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l ·Chair:r-an Nunn: :'hank you all for your tescimony; .We 

2 will have all the s~ate~enes incorporated in the record as 

3 submitted, without .objec~ion. 

4 ~et me scare with our usual procedure here. 

s General Stiner, in his press conference yesterday, 

6 President Clinton mentioned that the military had been 

7 consulted during the stand-off with the:~roup in WaCOi Texas. 

s were personnel from the Special Operation Forces, from your 

9 command, involved in any way in trying to resolve that stand-

lO off? 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

17 

16 

General Stiner: Not in resolving it, Mr. Chai~. We 

did orovide three technicians ~o the FBI. This was after the 

init~al assault took place~~e fou/;."faw enforcement 

~members lost .t!1eir lives. 

Approximately two to three weeks a~ l~asfafter tha~, ~ 

:i:t 'Tat' when the F3I e-mployed e~ts -of the hostage rescue team~ 

,._ '<t:::: given primary responsibility" t! e II' '> ... - tf they asked' for 
J· 

technical assiscance in.installing video surveillance devices 

19 between ob'sel:V'ation posts. That was approved appropriately{ 

20 and we did provide that~G) ~ 
21 ~But .we were not involved in developing the plan. 

22. 

2.3 

24 

25 

Chair:na.n Nunn: \-lere your people ever called on?· Were 

you ever called on.to give any assessment to the Defense 

Department or co ~he Justice Department, or to the T~easury 
,. 

Departmene, for thac ~atter, since they were all involved, as 
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co what conc=ibution the Special Operacic~s Forces co~ld make 

2 co t.hat. si:.uation?. 

3 General Stine~: No, sir. 

4 Chairman Nunn: So you really weren't called o~.fo~ 

s either a plan or resources, or even an assessment.? 

6 General Stiner: No, not i~ that concexc. !t was 

7 requesced just last Tuesday.that Brigaeie~ General Pete 

a Schumaker, who used to co~and one of. our Special Cperat.ions 

.9 Forces and. who is now the Assistant Division Commander of the 

10 First Cav Division at Ft. Hood~ ':"exas ,· and the cur:::-ent 

ll commancie: o: one of our su:gical units accompany t!le ·commander 

l2 of t!'le FE!' s ho_stage rescue tea.orn t.o Washi~gto:l. to b=ief t.he 

13 Attorney Genera~ on that plan. 

14 They were not asked to cast j~d~enc on t~e ade~~acy·of 

lS the plan or anything of that nature. 

16 Duri:g t.he briefing, they were asked if they had.ever 

l7 be.en exposed to t.he effect.s of cs gas a:ld they -ir..dicat.ed that. 

16 ~hey had and described_ the syrnpt.c~s. There was also an expert 

lS present, a doctor who had been involved in development. and 

20 experimentaeion on this, who answe~ed questions. 

21 That was the total exr.ent_f f:1 ~ ~ 
22 Chairoan Nunn: But your command was never·asked for 

23 input •• 

24 

25 

General Stiner: It was no:. 

Chairr.a:1 Nunn: -- into eit~er plar.ni=.g or what :::-esource 
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.l you had that. could be used in this unique ·Set of 

2 circumstances?. 

3 General Stiner: No, sir. It was not. 

Chai~an Nunn: Do you Y~ow, General Stiner, whether the 

s FBI anQ the Justice Depart:menc, who were, I unders~and, in 

6 charge of the operation, had. any uncierstanciing of what Special 

7 Operations Forces can do? Do you kl'iow-on·-your own whethel: 

8 they know that? 

9 General Stiner: Yes, they do. In fact:, we have providec 

:o training assistance to the FSI's hostage rescue team on other 

· 11 occasions. 

12 Chai~4n Nunn: Let m~ ask each of you this question. WE 

13 alerted you to this when Senator Thurmond and I appriseQ you 

14 anQ advised you of our incerest. 

15 How do you rat.e the perso~~el morale under your commands 

l6 today and what recomnendations do you make to this committee 

17 for anything that you think is essential in our consideration 

lS in making sure that the morale· of ·our military forces· does no 

l9 deterio~ate? 

20 I noticed, Admiral Larson, that you mentioned that we a! 

21 standing, in your words, "On the brink of a degradation in 
22 readiness." I consider that, and I'm sure you do, having 

23 listed· these points, to be rather,significane • 
... 

24 So I would asked each of you about the morale of your 

25 militart f:rces. General RisCassi, .let's scart wieh you .. 
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substance was his oft-repeated.position that God said to wait, 

and that he was not coming out until God told him. , 

"]) . .· 

At 10:10 a.m.,-.,.ttempted to ~ontact Koresh through 

the FBI; howem, Koresh woulc;J.,not speak to him since it was the 

Sabbath. ~old ._, call back at 8:30 p.m. 

At 8:30p.m., ~called back as instructed; however, 

Koresh still refused to speak to him. 

April 14 

From 10:21 a.m. to 11:32 a.m., (t] I 
nd 11111-1111111••• spoke 

advised the FBI at the end of this conversation that Koresh had 

established a new precondition for his coming out. Koresh would 

only come out after he finished writing a manuscript which 

_explained the Seven Seals. 

In the afternoon, there was a meeting in FBI Director 

Sessions' office to brief the Attorney General on the military 

_and medical perspectives of the proposed plari to insert cs gas 

into the compound. Two military experts provided their · 

assessments of the plan, while a medical doctor summarized the 
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results of studies of the effects of cs gas, particularly on 

children, pregnant women, and the elderly.Y 

Pursuant to an inquiry from the Attorney ~ene~al, the FBI 

began to gather information about the compound's water sup~ly. 

The Attorney General wanted to know how long the Davidians could 

hold out if the status quo continued. 

There were ongoing conversations with individuals in the 

compound throughout the day and evening, but no progress was 

made. 

April 15 

At 7:30a.m., FBI Air Operations reported that the water 

storage tank in the rear of the compound appeared to be full. 

This information was immediately made part of the report to the 

Att.orney General. The report concluded that the compound had a 

.~ufficlent water supply to last a significant period of time. 

[Material redacted as required by statute.] At 5:15p.m., 

the FBI activated a "flash bang" device when a male exited the 

compound unannounced. He returned inside for a few moments, then 

came back outside. The FBI activated another "flash bang." 

§I See pages 266-70 for a discussion of these ~ss~ssments. 
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Koresh and his followers. Director Sessions believed it w~s 

essential f~r the FBI to be "in control of its own fate" and to 

ensure the safety of its own agents' lives. A major concern in 

everyone's opinion was the need to avoid being drawn into a 

situation, or taking antr)ction, which wou~d .escalate 

unnecessarily. To it was important at the same time 

to convey to the Davidians the FBI's commitment to a.peaceful 

resolution and intent to remain in Waco until that objective was 

achieved. 

~ 

··/· 

Another major role for FBI Headquarters' personnel 

included contacting various u.s. military components regarding 

the transportation of agent and support personnel, and obtaining 

data about the effective range of assorted weapons. The FBI also 

sought technical ~ormation about certain military vehicles. 

According to there was concern and uncertainty as to 

the types.of weapons inside the compound, particularly in view of 

the reported presence of .so caliber rifles capable of 

penetrating any tactical vehicle in the FBI's inventory. As a 

result of these concerns, the FBI requested.Bradley fighting 

vehicles from the u.s. Army. Nine of these -- without barrels, 

pursuant to an agreement between the FBI and the Army to avoid 

posse comitatus prohibitions -- were ultimately provided. 
~· 

When the Bradleys arrived and wer~ positioned around the 

compound, Koresh advised that he had weapons that could "blow 
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them 40 to 50 feet in the air." The FBI then sought and obtained 

from the Army two Abrams (MlAl) tanks and five M728 Combat 

Engineer Vehicles (CEVs), to give FBI personnel adequate 

·protection from the .50 caliber rifles and other, more powerful 

weapons the Davidians might have. 1~ 

Finally, FBI Headquarters' officials served as advisors to 

the Justice Department, particularly in the latter stages of the 

standoff as the plan for the insertion of gas was developed. The 

FBI ens~red· the flow of inform~ion from the· Bureau and the SIOC 

% tct:lting Attorney General J nd later Attorney General 

and to other departmental officials, including members of 

the Criminal Division's Violent Crimes and Terrorism Section. 

D. The Negotiations 

1. Organization of the Negotiation Teams 

In all, 25 negotiators were assigned to the negotiation team 

during the Waco standoff. The overall&Jgotiation- effort was 

coordinated by FBI Quantico SSAs (from February 28 

to March 25) and e11••••••••• (from March 23 to April 

171 The FBI also used a 17th tracked vehicle -- a M88 Tank 
Retrieval Vehicle. (For a complete list of military personnel a~d 
equipment present at the compound as of April 13, 1993, see 
appendix B) 
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The intent was to give the Branch Davidians the clear impression 

that although there was an alternative and this was not a panic 

situation, the FBI was maintaining maximum control. ~~~ 
understood that the use of tear gas to end the standoff.would 

take several days; the plan was to inject the gas through the 

windows methodically. He added that both he and the Attorney 

General were confident that there would be enhanced medical 

capabilities to meet all needs. He also said that the FBI 

informed them that the tear gas would not cause a fire. 

April 14 Meetings 

On Wednesday, April 14, a large meeting was held in the FBI 

summarize results of studies of effects of cs gas on children, 

pregn~ women .and the elderly. The Attorney G.eneral _described 

Dr. 1 as "careful and scientific." She recalled that 

although there had been no laboratory tests ~erformed on children 

relative to the effects of the gas, anecdotal evidence was 

convincing that there would be no permanent injury. 
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The military personnel present told her that .the gas was 

used at least annually on soldiers in the u.s. Army during 

training exercises. They also discussed properties of the gas, 

int~luding any pyrotechnic qualities. The military personnel made· 
(t) \ . \ 

..... feel more confident with the concept of tear gas, as opposed 

to the original concept in her mind of "gassing." The military 

officials also said that in a military operation, the entire 

compound would be gassed at once, not.g~adually· •. However, the 

law enforcement interest was to go step-by-step, increase the 

pr.essure, and make it increasingly uncomfortable inside the 

structure in an effort to drive them out. After discussing the 

nature of the gas and varied tolerance levels to be expected from 

the occupants, the meeting participants were prepared to wait two 

to three days for everyone eventually to come out. The action 

was viewed as a gradual, step-by-step process. It was not law 

enforcement's intent that this was :'\to be "D-Day." Both the 
. fi) 

Attorney General and Director 1 \dO 1 voiced concern for 

achieving the end result with maximum safety.· ~made it 
.plear that the goal of the plan was to introduce the tear gas one 

step at a time to avoid confusing the Branch Davidians and 

thereby maintain the impression that they were not trapped. 

Once the Attorney General was convinced that the gas was 

non-lethal and would not cause permanent harm to children, 

pregnant women and others, she turned her attention to the HRT. 

One of the military officers argued that m~intairiing the HRT in a 
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constant state of readine},s)was not possible. He advised tha~. 
~ . 

the HRT be withdrawn. z 3Q advised that his team had received 

sufficient breaks during the standoff that they were not 'too 

fatigued to perform at top capacity in any tactical operation at·,,. 

the time. He added, however, that if the standoff continued for 

an extended length of time, he would pro~e that the HRT. stand 

down for rest and retraining. 321 When asked about using . . 

SWAT teams to take the place of the HRT, she was told that the 

HRT's expertise in dealing with the powerful weapons inside the 

compound, driving the armored vehicles, and maintaining the 

security of the perimeter was essential. 

The FBI asserted that law enforcement on ~he scene in Waco 

could not safely maintain the security perimeter indefinitely. 

There was a vast open area surrounding the compound, and it was 

impossible safely to keep people from wandering in and out. 

Moreover, the Branch Davi~ian compound i'tself was a heavily armed 

camp, with dangerous people inside who had· a~ready kille.d four· 

. ~aw enforcement agents. The situation was difficult to control, 

and ~he area was difficult to defend. In the FBI's-view,· there 

were extraordinary public safety issues. Containment of· the 

Branch Davidians in the ouilding with walls or wire appeared 

o? 321 
I IIIII described the factors in ·the deterioration of HRT 

effectiveness due to the lengthy deployment. The HRT operators, 
including the sniper observers, were required to watch for long 
hours through binoculars and rifle scopes in a very tense 
situation. Also, while the FBI snipers ~ere observing the Branch 
Davidians, the Davidians likewise · observed and foliowed the 
movements of ~he HRT. 
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infeasible, and posse comitatus proscriptions prevented the use 

of a military force to secure the area. Some experts had raised 

the distinct possibility that Koresh might actually mount an 

offensive attack against the perimeter security, with Branch 

Davidians using children as shields. This would have required 

the best trained forces available to the FBI. Finally, the FBI 

expressed its concern about the possible incursions of fringe 

groups intent qn coming to Koresh's aid. For all these reasons, 

the FBI regarded perimeter security as so significant that it 

urged the Attorney General to relieve the HRT with SWAT teams 

only as a last resort. 

There were additional discussions about the prosecutors' 

concerns over maintaining the integrity of. the crime scene, the 

rules of.engagement, the deteriorating sanitary conditions, and 

the lack of medical personnel inside the compound. When the 

Attorney General asked why the standoff had to.be resolved soon, 

R~.cjers and others offez;-ed the following additional reasons: 

ioresh had broken every promise he had made; negotiations had 

broken down; no one had been released since March 23f and it 

appeared that no one else would surrender. 

_1:' 11 . th. t. . 0 t ·. h ff. . . th (j ) ,_;;o owJ.ngr,;·'J.s mee J.ng, -.o me J.n er o J.ce Wl. ..-..., 
\2/ l/.f-) , (7) 

1' l, and 9 $ IP to discuss the plan. AUSA ....... n was · 

consulted during this meeting about indications from electronic 

surveillance of conversations inside the compound that the Branch 
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from the building at least two minutes before the first reports 

of smoke. The split-screen video mentioned above shows CEV-1 

backing away from the building at that moment. The infrared tape 

shows a heat source -- the exhaust -- at the rear of CEV-1, but 

no heat source at the front of CEV-1. 

r-··-. 
( The army has examined all the CEVs used on April 19, 

I 

I 
! 

I 
I 
I 
i 
j 

i 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 
l 
I 
i 

. , .. 

including CEV-1, to determine whether there was any possibility 

that any of the vehicles could have been outfitted with a flame-

emitting device. All bills of lading, maintenance records, and 

other relevant documentation were checked. The evidence shows 

that none of the CEVs was outfitted with any device:capable of 

emitting fire or flames. We also had each CEV examined for 

evidence of charring or fire. No such evidence was found. 

u·~ S. Army maintenance personnel who were present in Waco, 

and who were responsible for CEV-1, were also interviewed and 

shown a copy of 9 P videotape. They could offer no 

.. explanation for the appearance of any fire at the end of the 

boom. Neither CEV-1, nor any other vehicle, was ~utfitted with 

any flamethrowing apparatus. , Moreover, there were no flammable 

parts at the front of the CEV, and there were no electrical 

components which could cause a flame. 

In summary, no evidence has been found to support the claim 

that CEV-1, or any other government vehicle, started the fire at 
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LETTER OF TRANSMI'ITAL 

HoN. NEWT GINGRICH, 
Speolw of the House of Representatives, 
W aMl118tOn, DC. 

HOUSE OF REPREsENTATIVES, 
Washington, DC, August 2, 1996. 

DEAR MR. SPEAKER: By direction or the ComiD.ittee on Gov~mment Reform and 
Oversight and on behalf or Mr. Hyde and Mr. McCollum of the Committee on the 
Judiciary, I herewith submit the committee's thirteenth report to the 104th Congress. · 
The report is based on a joint investigation conducted by the Judiciary's Subcommittee 
on Crime, and the Government Reform and Oversight Committee's Subcommittee on 
National Security, International Affairs, and Criminal Justiee. 

Sincerely, 

(v) 

WIILIAM ·F. CLINGER, Jr.,· 
Chairman. 
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Union Calendar No. 895 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

• ~. . ··~ •• f - . -

{ REPORT 
104-749 

-~:::~~riN,E~ridAnoN·~ ~ AcTIVITIEs OF ~iJERAL LAW ENFoRCEMENT 
:' ... ::·:;''·:·'->·:·•;"_-~.-~f~~?.~~·:.'f9~~-~~--~~~-~ ~~~IAN~ . 

~~-·- -:-:-;. -:-- -··.: -~ ·-·- ... -::-:~:.:._-· .. :::::. -- -·. -~-.-:<-::: '"':" . ·;.' .. _·_: •:. :-= ... -.·.~ -.-.--.-

-· f.u~2 •. i99s~~~iied io tlie·_cc;·iq·mt~-bftheWhole House on·the.Sta~ of the Union and 
·... ._ "- ·' _. _ ... , ... ·, .. . . _ · · : _o~ered to be pririted · · _- <. -.- ·. · · 

Mr. CLINGER, from the Committee o~-Government Refo~ and Oversight, 
submitted the followmg 

TIDRTEENTH REPORT 
together with 

. . 
. p,,~_,T·.·~--~.~- ·'!::::~'"' , ,:;_ ... _ ~-.· ·--···' '---- _,_: ____ .. -ADDITIONAL AND DISSENTING VIEWS 

~~--. ; '. ~-~~~ ;.;~~~ ~GATION:~·~ s:~~~ ~NNATIONAL SEcUim; -~ATIONAL i.FFAIRS, 

~. 

~: ·.,. _ AND cRIMINAL .Jtirnc£· OF THE~ C~MMITtEE ON oovERmiENT REFORM AND OVERSIGHT, AND THE 
·.- ·-- · --. -·-··-·---8uBcoMMITI'EioN·:ciUME .. oF nm coMMrrrEE or m .Tmnc.IARv · 

., .. '• : . .. -·. ... . . . .. . .. : :- ·::·:;-.. ~ 

On July 25, 1996, the Co~~e on ·GoVernment Ref~rm and -Oversi~'t approved and adopted a report 
entitled "'nveStigation Into the Activities of Federal Law Enforcement Agencies Toward the Branch 
Davidians." The report was prepared jointly with the Committee on the Judiciary. The chairman was di· 
rected to transmit a copy to the Speaker of the House. 

-_ _ _ __ __ .... ExEctrrivE SUMMARY · ' · · ,_ · ·· the sU.bcomnuttees' findings with resPect to many 
.. · -- .. _ .. · ·. · · ·_ · · · · · ·- · - · .. • -~ · ··:: ··· .. disputed issue$ :and· to new facts uncovered during 
. Fro!D April 1995 to May 19~6, the Subco~~ ·.-the investigation. Finally, the report makes rec­

, :on ~e of the ~?use. CoDUJU~ on the .Judiaary · · omm:endations in order to prevent the mistakes 
. _.- an~ the Subco~ttee on ~at:ional ~ty, Inter--- tha,t occurred at Waeo from· reoccurring in future 

national ~· and Criminal Justice of the law enforcement operations. 
House Comnuttee on Government Reform and -
Oveimght ·jointly . conducted an investigation_ into · A. ·A BRIEF SU'MMARY OF THE GOVERNMENT'S 
the actions of the Federal agencies.irivolved in law_, .... -- -. A~ONS .TQWA.JU>. ~BRANCH DAVIDIANS 

: ~~f!Dt activities nem: Waco, TX in late 1992 In June 1992, the-A~ TX Office of the. Bu· 
and early 1993 toward a group known- as. the reau of· Aleohol Tobacco and Firearms (ATF) 
Branch Davi~ans. As part of that inyestiga~on, opened a formal investigation into allegations that 
the Subcomnuttees held 10 clays of public hearmgs. members of a Waco 'IX religious group known as 
Durin~ the course of- those hearings, .more than the Branch Davidians, and in parti. ~ 
100 wttnesses appeared and gave testimony eon- leader, Vemon Howell, also known as David 

.--.:~:-. ,-:'!:·,., .-,~-::. :~·:~~all aspects of ~e J'?Vernment's actions. ~.were in possession of illegal firearms and 
-_----,;~ ·;~:,;.'i.· :._-:~:.,.:-~_/::s~nmu~ ·~-~,renewed_ ~us_ands of., .. expl081ve devices. ·In January 1993, ATF agents 

. .. _:_-~-.c .. ~:2-: -- - ·.--:d~enta_·.~~~- .. tr,pJ.D. __ amd ___ ~~ed-· __ by __ ,.the ~-;·~·commenced-~ an-:.un~er operation in a s:na1l 
·-·~----- ---~,---~--- .:_. ··:: .. 4l~c:ie:s{_inv~Iv~ ~ ·:th~e.·~actions~:~~4iti~,- -_."_-Jwuse,--directly_~~ from.the property on which 
-~; .''.-.-':_,~,~~- -~:-~---~--~n ~~-~~~ ""~~t_.:mf.h ~ets-_who w~·m·::'~,.'-.the Br8J1Ch'.Davidians lived. The ATF agents posed 

__ .. _ -~·:. __ ... :.'r·..,.·: -?;~~:.:::·~~volved ·m the~·_=-actions ~~.:··whO ·offered-... ~~~~~- _as: students::attending ·classes at a local technical 
_.:·~~~--:;:.~:~--~~~~:~~-- :·~~~:,. --~~~~b:afo~~-~_or.-~ptilio~concerni!lf·the~;J·:~~!:;~,:._~; ·::-.--~-;J·Z~[-~co~ep.to m_onitor,tJ:ie.ad:ivities c# the Davidians. 

• • ••• - ' ' ••• 0' -_ :. _· ~ • :·~~- ThiS report 18 the final product-of that fnvestiga·. . ·part or the ·undercoVer .operation involved one of · :·:~·-- -- ·aon.·- It., sWm:narizes ·the most --important facts· .. the agents .·.;meeting:: with Koreah and other 
about the key issues of these activities considered Davidiana several times by expressing an Interest 
by the subcommittees. The rePOrt also seta forth in their religious beliefs. As a result of the evi· 

1 
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dence gathered by the ATF, and in particular dur· persons offered advice to the FBI. While a f'ew of' ' 
ing the undercover operation. the ATF sought and these individuals offered credible assistance, the 
received from a Federal judge an arrest warrant FBI chose to ignore the offers of' assistance from 
f'or Koresh . and a warrant to search the Branch all or these persons. . · 

. ·- · Da.vidian.reiidence~·- ~- - ·.... · · ·· -···- ··': .During the week of April 12, senior Justice De. ·-
-- · · · Shortly before -the· ATF planned tO seive ··the partm_er:tt offi~ats·began ·considering a plan devel· 

, ... ~ .. , · .J .:.-,,., .... ·aearch·-a:nd·arreifwarrant.S, it-contaCted Operation oped by the~~ to·e~_cJ._the standoff. Attorney Gen· 
~-:·: .. ,-- _·Alliance, a government oftice":-whiclt. cO"OicUnatecr·· ·era[J'anet Reno~ other senior Justice Department 
.-·- ·--.... m~~~ -~-~tet:~~rug operations along· the ·aoutJ.l." . officials~· and FBI officials- held several meetings 

···- · :_ . west bo~er. Through ~at ~ce,.. th_e ATF re-· · concemmg the plan. ·The. FBI also requested the 
~-:·~: _ -,,·quested·that militaey.personnel provide triiriiilg"tc) · input ~r ~p'artm~.n~. :or _Defense employees and 

-.:·:.. .. ;:: ·_·the "ATF:·agenta. who would be inwlved iii ·the raid.:.::'· military" personnel eoriceming the plan to end the 
~ ;,·-" _ .. to serve the warrants. The AWs reques·t ·ror mili- ·-:.:_-iitandotr. During these deh"berations Associate .At-

. ·. ~ •.. · 

. tary assistance also .~ould have involved the mill···-·''··tomey. Ge~efal W~ter: Hubbell ~rsona!ly dis· 
taiY""petsQnnel as ·r· articipants in the raid itself. . ; cusied the status. or the negotiations Wlth the 
After military lega advisors cautioned that such . FBrs chief day·to-day negotiator in Waco. The PTO-
activity might--Violate Federal law, the ATFs re- posed plan centered around the use or a chemical 
quest was modified so that military personnel only riot control agent which would be injected through 
provided training to the ATF agents and did not the walls or the Davidian residence in order to in· 
participate in the raid. Because the ATF alleged duce the residents to leave the structure. It pro-
that the Davidian& were also involved in illegal vided for the methodical insertion or the riot con-
drug manufacturing, the assistance provided by trol agent into different parts or the building over 
these counter drug military forces was provided to a 48 hour period. The plan also contained a contin· 
the ATF without reimbursemenL gency provision to be used if' the Davidians fired 

On -February 28, 19931 a Co~ o(_76 ATF _agents · on the FBI agents ·who were implementing the 
_ stormed the Davidian residence to serve the arrest plan. In ·that event, the FBI proposed to insert the 

. .-. :/:~·, _ .. '· and sear.ch wammts. Prior to· the commencement · riot control agent ~nto a.ll portions or the residence 
~ _.,.;~:-;~."··or tbe ·raid, h9w~yer; th~· .Da\'idi_ans_ bad .teamed of._ .. simultaneously;·~. a result or these "deliberations, 
· - .: -- the .. A'f.Fs.j)lans.~:As the agents arrived at ~e, the Attorney .General approved the implement&·· 
., ·: ... , ·.Davi~fU1s'_.re~i~ence,. the.:::Davi~ans-en~e<Lthe : :tion of the plan for April19. 1993. . · -
.. - Jt.TF agents in a·gun ~ttle which eontiJtued for al· .·.: .. At approximately 6 a.m: on April 19, the FBfs 
:.!·-· ~~>::jni)St .90 minutes .. _V.oQJ: .ATF agen.t$ ·were killed in chief negotiatOr,: Byron .. Sage, telephoned the 
-· -.. -the battle ·and more than 20 agelits wounded. At Davidians and informed them that the FBI wa.s in· 

least two Davidians were killed by ATF agents serting the riot control agent into the residence. 
and several others, including Koresh, were woWld· Sage · also began broadcasting a prepared state. 
ed. · ment over loudspeakers that the FBI was "placing 

After a cease-fire was arranged, the Federal Bu· tear gas in the· bw1ding" and that all residents 
reau or Investigation (FBI) dispatched members or ~hould leave. As .the announcement was being 

_ ... its Hostage_ &.scue Team . .CHRT> .. to W aeo ·to take .. . . mad.e, f.fll ~enta using .unanned military vehicles 
·- . -control of the situation ·at the request o( ·the ATF; -··-. With. boOms. IDOunted on them began to insert the 

-~-·.At 6 a.m. the next _morning. the FBI formally tOok. . riot· control agent into the compound by ramming 
_ · -control·of the situation and commenced a 51 day holes intO the iides of the structure and then using 

... ~- _standoff' wit;.b. the DavidiaD:s.. During this_ time~ FB.I _de.vices .mo~ted on the booms to spray the riot 
·.'officials engaged in daily· neg9tiations ·with· the control agent into the holes in the walls. Almost 
~avidiana in an efFort to end the standofF peace- immediately the Davidians began to fire on the ve-

·- _·:.ably .. Between February 18 and March 23, 35. per·.·· .Ncles. being- _used by. the. FBI. At 6:07 a.m., the 
---... -Ions, in'Clu:diilg 21 Children, left the residence arid commander of tlie- Hostage Rescue Team ordered 

IUrl'e~dered to _the_ FBI. From March . ~ to April that the contingency. provision of' the opera tiona 
18, · howeve~ •. · none or -the remaining Branch· plan· be·· implemented and that the riot control 
Davidian& left the residence. · agent be inserted in all portions of the residence at 

In addition to the continual negotiations with once. During 6 hours or insertion or the riot control 
the Davidians, FBI officials took other steps to in· agent no residents exited the compound. 
duce the Davidians to surrender. These tactics in- At approximately 12:07 p.m., a fire was observed 

.:·\~·:·~ · eluded tightening the perimeter around the in one portion or the residence. Within 2 minutes, 
_~,d-:-:.c;.:, · :_ -.·- .Davidi~. re~idence, cutting ofF .elecbic:ity to the ... two_,_other fires developect Within a period of' 8 

:".. ·-·-' ~- -~ :- ·~'::-~-;..-~<~~ii~e~:~ 'an~·, ~f'~n~~:J)pin~- e~: o/J&b.f .. l:lP1tf'.··:··," ~Jinj:~s. :-t.h~~-t.§~. _fi~•.J\ad engulted the. entire 
·: -;:~.:r!i. ~: ;:;:,;:·:~·~,-•'tlie-~reiidence _Jllid ·playing loU'a~muiic;anctim~.· -~,:_atnictur~, ~ti~teJJ:~est;r:oying it completely; · ··· 
<· -':~;-~;~: '.=:-:'-'-,·: .'-~tating·~":~aoun~:~·~ .ovet_.~:_l!)~s~n~_.:; ~: ... the' . - Duling the fire, ·SOunds or gunfire from within 
·'~··:,·:';;;£7:; ·; _ .. ·-· :,.CoUrse.~ofthe·.·atandof!';-· pPl· negotiatorif c:Oniulted·:·:·-.. :_.the strilctur~·-w.ere~-)leanL~._Some or these .sounds 

~-·.· -~~.:-;;:?7 ~.:. ~~:·~~~With .. se_viral ~iti''J1)u~··Jy·~ed bf'tlle;FBt;::~~--were live rounds-8Xp10ding:in the ftames inside the 
-~~--.:::~·~::= ,_,,_...,_"',;. .. !~'m"some ·ease;~·'the· adVice' ofth~~~-·wa. ·rol- ·<"'-'compounCl'llowever, other sounds were methodical 

-.... _,_-- -~ · lowed while in other cases it was ·noi. Many other and evenly·spaced, indicating the deliberate firing 
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· or weapons. Nine persona escaped from the &true· Tlu BUTe4u of Alcohol, Tobacco and Fireilnru . 
ture during the course of the fire but more than 10 L 'nl~ ATF's investigation of the Branch 
other residents remained inside. AU of these per· Davidians was grossly incompetenL It lacked the 

_ . ·~ ,- ·~"". -eons died. O(thia·_ number, a1,1topsies in.~cated that minimum professionalism expected of a major Fed· 
19.died from gun~ho~ ai close.range. Most of the erallaw entorce~nent agency • 

. :: ... ,. other residents .. wbo rentail1ed inside the structU.re · 2; While the ATF had probable cause to obtain 
lil·:~·- :- __ died- as a result .of smok.e ·illbalation from the fire.:'· : the··. arrest .. warrant to~ -David Koresh and the 

.. ~ -:.-::~ -""'or from· burna from the fire. -- . .- search warrant for- the Bran~· DaVidian residence, 
..... ~R!';Iill :. .. ' :" . . . : - ..... . ". .. · ....•. ~. - •. " .. . ~ ... :;;:--' :. , .. _ •. : .' " the· affidavit filed. in support or the warrants con-
~- ... ·oua- .. ;·_ ,,. __ :_·: .. :-~,:-·._ ~~:·~~~-?F.::~ ~-~0~ .. - ·· . - - . tairied an ineredible -nuinber· of false statements. 
ltt~mll ·.. : --_ ~ A.. a resUlt" ·or ita investigation, the ·a~mmit- ··... The ATF ~nts responsible for preparing the afli. 

· : .. :·-.-tees inake,.the following findi~: · ----.. :- .. - _ _ · _ davits· ~e, ·or-: sh.ould have known that many of 
c: · --- ·:· ··-- ---- ... --··--. · · ,_._ --~:-:·~·- • -:~ :·the,.,·&ta.tements-:were false.-: ·-

The Biunch Davld~ . .. -;_::- --- · .. · • ·: ·, ·' · -·-. ·:::- 3~ David· ·:KOresh could have been arrested out-
L But Cor the cnm1nal conduct and aberrational . -... side the Davidian compound. The ATF chose not to 

_behaVior --or David · Koreab · -and other Branch arrest Koresh outside the Davidian residence and 
Davidians, the tragedies that occurred in Waco instead were determined ·to· use a dynamic entry 

. ~ould not have occurred. The ~~mate responsibil- approach. In making this decision ATF agents ex~ 
tty for the deaths or the DaVJ~s aJ'!d the four ercised extremely poor judgment, made erro~eous 
Federal .law ento!Cem~~t agents ~es Wlth Koresh. assumptions, and ignored the foreseeable penls of' 

2. While not disposttive, the eVJdence presented their course or action. 
to the subcommittees· indicates that some or the 4. ATF agents misrepresented to Defense De-

. Dav!d!an~ _ ~tentionally set ·the fires inside the partment officials that the Branch pavidians were 
DaVJdian restdel;lce. . involved in illegal drug manufactunng. AI a result 

·· 3. The Davidiaris could have escaped the resi· - of this deeeption, the ATF was able to obtain some 
~·;J·.d~.:-~1 , :; ~ :-.,~~1)~- .-.for'~-- ~~~~t- period ·o~ ~me ~r ~~ .. training from .fo~es '!hieh wo~d not have o~.er­

--- .. ··· . .-:-.- .:.-; _'-_~::itart.of the·_fire. ~~~~_o( the ~aVJtf!~s -.~J~e.r_ ~d _, · .wi~~,P.f.9.~d~4.tt,,an4.~kely ~b~ned ~th~ tra1nmg 
· not attemp~ to· e~cap~_ frO~ tli~ res:td~~ce or-: we~e . -·with~~~.~_- •h9~.r.: ~.~Od ·or time th_!!11_ .1lllgh t __ o~~er­

··-.~-~~~~ . . . · __ pr~ven~ from escapmg by other Da~dlanS~ ·:. . .. . . . . -·. wise 'have. been. f1V8.llable. Because or Jts deception, 
~ ..... ~'8··- · ··: ···:c.- The' gUhsho·t woun~- wbj~ were the·eaw.e_ o~ · the ATF-_\¥aS_ able; to···obtain the training without 

death of 19 or the· Davidian_s ~n APril_ ~9 were.· ~i~ · : :, haVing· tO. reimburse ·the Defense Department, as 
ther self'-inflicted, inflicted by other Davidians, or otherwi'se would have been required had no drug 

. the result or the remote possibility of accidental nexus been alleged. 
discharge from rQUrids exploding in the fire. 5. The decision to pursue a military style raid 
Th, Denanment of the Trea.sUI)' was made more th.an 2 m~nths before surveillance, 

,. · undercover, and mfiltration efforts were begun. 
1. Tre~ury Secretary Lloyd B~ntse~ and De~uty The ATF undercove~ and surveillance operation 

. .: .. 

. : _ . :Sec:r~~-:Roge~ ~m,tall. acted. bt~hly -~'!es~n~Ibly_ . lacked the minimum professi_ona~sm expected or a 
· · · -_ .: _-_~d. w_e~_ ~ereh~ m their du~es ~- fadmg ·to .even Federal law ... __ enfo~~ment __ agency. Supervisors 

·· _ · · 111eet WJth th~ J;)Ireetor ~r the _ATF ~ t~e .month ~r ... failed_to prop_erly _monitor tJ:Us _operation. • 
IQ_they wer~.J!l- office ¥nor~ !he ':e!->ruary 28 nud 6. The AT~s·raid plan for February 28 was llg· 
on the; DaVJdians re11dence,. m fall~g _to .r~~est . z:tificantly flawed. The plan was poorly conceived, 

_ .. any ~nefing on ~~F ope~t1ons dunng tlus tif!!e, utilized a .high .risk tactical approach when other 
.. and m. '!~011)' falling to 1nvolve themselves Wlth . tactics could have been successfully used, was 

.. the acttVJtie& of the -~TF. ...... . _ · ~------ _ :· __ . . drafted and commanded by ATF agents who were 

. • 2. Senior. • ~\iry Departm!nt . official~ . rou·· less qualifi~ than. ot.h~~ ~vall~le age~ts, and 
. tinely ran~ m. their _duty to morutor th~ acti()n& -~r. used agents who were not suffietently trained f~r 
ATF ofti~ala, and as a reSult were. urun!Olvr:<' m: ·.the operation. ~ditionally, ATF commanders did 
the plannmg of the February 28 raid. Tins fSJlure not take precautions· to ensure that the plan would 
eliminated a layer of scrutiny of the plan during not be discovered. . · 
which flaws in it might have been uncovered and 7. The senior ATF raid commanders, Phillip 
corrected. . _ Chojnacki and Chuck Sarabyn, either knew or 

....... __ 3 •. After the raid failed, Assistant Treasury Sec- should have known that the Davidian a had become 
-~-·._.,c.: j·etiiey. -~n~tct liPl>.l~ J~~te~Pted to_" _l~Y .. .:~~--=~~~~. . . aware __ of ~e impending raid and were likely to re­
;:L.-~~~~iri~l~:·.o~- tl.le A';l'F.~~-eiplte _tlj~ racrth&:t~~ij.f.f_: _oo:-~-sist. :·_With. ~:deadly Jorce.~ .. ~~~rtheless, ·they . reck· 
.::. ~'~:-~ :Depaitmeni __ :~offl~-~~.::· including. Noble; Janect·. t-o:,._- Jelslt-pf0cee4ed. wjfh tlt~-:;~4, thereby endanger-

,:_;c~_',' ;~;~?: ,:;:~,·zr~s:tr~~!i~~~:~~~~O:J'~'::·,:~~e.!tt;a:~ 'i~~To:: ~~~~e~ c~~ 
---:.:.~. -· -~ ~::~·::~ ~-~:~>~; J.a.~villg ap~rov~:~th~ taid, Cai~~ -~ cl«;~lY.I!fl~. ~~:;-.. ;/~.<co_m~~!f...·!h~s, .. ~or~}han any other .factor, led to _ 
- :-·- ·: ___ - __ ,. ... -:_:.'_~ aa~ly commun1ca~--~he e9n<U~ons under .. wh1cb ·1t :·:: . .J,he .cJe~~-~ ~(the. fo~r:ATF agents killed on Feb-
. -... _ ~ ~ ; _ :;.-:~-:.- W8:8. to be· aborted. __ --... _ ~--,:.:: _. . .-·.-: :_ _ .... :~ ~- , . , __ .. :: _ . ruar.v 28.- · · . . - . .. 
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··-· .... 

8. Former ATF Director Stephen Higgins and Reno offered ·her resignation. In light or her ult.. 
Conner ATF Deputy Director Daniel Hartnett bear mate responsibility Cor the disastrous assault ant 
a portion or the responsibility Cor the failure of the its resulting deaths the President should have at· 

__ raid. 'l1ley failed to become signifi~tly involved . cepted iL 
in the plann~ (or .the raid ana ,als9 . failed tO in·_ ~ ~--The Federal Burea~ oflnvestigatlcn 

-· atiD in the seruor ra1d commanders an understand- . • - · 
ing or the need to ensure that.·~-~-~ .w~. ·.m.~-· ":: _·.. . ~ The cs _not_ f;Ontrol·agent assault or. ~ril 19 , 
tained in an. operation o{ this type: .. , .. ·. ·::.-_ -: . .- : .· · · ehoul~ not have taken _'place. The posS1"b1Uty or a 

'" ·.:· . ·.' 9. -There wu· no justification (or. the rehjring _of . . ·negotiated end to. the standoff p~~ented by Koresh 
_ .. · the two .senior ATF.::.-.raid com~ders after they · shou1d have been pursued even 1f 1t had taken aev· 

.\, __ ,_:,._: ··were-firecL.The·.fact=-.that. se~ior._Ciiti.tOn··admiriis·~····::·eral more weeks •.. ,~.:.;;- -~~···· : • ~ · · 
. : .... · ... .-·:·tratiem officials approved ~eir· rehiiirig.iiidiea~.s a·~:,·· ,. 2. ~r ~resh and the DaVtdians brok~ a prom· 

... ~ -.,Jack o(soundju~ent·on their·~:-:., ... ~-~-~.: .·~:>::~:~~- .. :~· ise to come ou~-- on .. Mar~ 2 FBI tactical com· 
--· .... _- -- .. . . · .-· ·.- .- ... -·· ... "'" -·-::-· .. mander· Jeffrey Jamar. Vtewed all statements of 

Tlu Department of ,Jwtlce -.. -· .. ···-.:- -_·: -:... .. .. ..Koresh · With ~eme skepticism and thought the 
L The decision by Attorney General Janet Reno chances ot a negotiated surrender remote. While 

to approve the FBrs plan to ·end the standoff on chief negotiator Byron Sage may have held out 
April 19 was premature, wrong, and highly irre- hope longer, FBI officials on the ground had eft"ec- · 
aponsible. In authorizing the assault to proceed At- tively ruled out a negotiated end long before April 
tomey General Reno was seriously negligent. The 19 and had closed minds when presented with evi-
Attorney General knew or should have known that dence of a possible negotiated end following com-
the plan to end the stand-ofF would endanger the pletion of Koresh's work on interpreting the Seven 
lives oC the Davidians inside the residence, includ- Seals of the Bible • 

. ing the ehildren. The Attorney General knew or 3. The FBI should· have sought and accepted 
. should have knoWri.that there was little risk to the. more expert advice on the Branch Davidians and 

. FBI agents, society as a whole, or to the Davidians their religious views and been more open-minded 
·.:.,,;:-:_."_'"·.:.:_~·_from continuing this standoff. and that the possibil· to the advice of the FBI's own experts. 
__ .:-:_. :::jty ofa·peacef\ll.re~ol~~~!l.co~tinued:to.exisL.: .. ::-.. ·.;:·:-~~,:: .. •~---~J .. ~ctic~ -~~~ander Jeffrey Jamar and 
- . . . .. ·. ·: .. 2 •. The. AtWmey Gen.eral knew .. or-should have :-.senior FBI and Justice Department officials advis-

. . _.known-tllat' the' reasoni~ated for end,ing Ute .sta.nd· ing the Attorney General knew or shquld have 
oft" ~n April 19 lacked merit. The negotiations· had kn9~.Jhat none of. the reasons given to end nego-
·noi ~ed an impasse. There .was n<f threat _of a·.:· tiatjons. and go forward _with the plan to end the 
Davidian breakout. The FBI Hostage Rescue Team stand-off on April 19 had merit. To urge ·these as 
did not need to stand down for rest and retraining an excuse to act was wrong and highly irrespon-
for at least 2 more weeks after April 19, and if and · sible. .. . 
when it did stand down FBI and local law enforce- 5. CS riot. control agent is capable of causing im-
ment SWAT teams could have been brought in to mediate, acute and severe physical distress to ex· 
main~in the perimeter. Sanitary and other living posed individuals, especially young children, preg-

·- _ ... . conditi~s inside. the Davidian. re~~ae.nce had not nant women; the elderly, and those with res· 
deterio~~ duririg·th~_standofFand~there.was·-no _ .. _~--:-piratory:conditions. .I~ some cases, severe or ex-

. evidence that they were likely to deteriorate· in the tended ·exposure can Jead to incapacitation. Evi-
.. near future. And while 'physical and sexual. abuse dence presented to. the· subcommittees show that 

·. _. -.. of minors bad occurred, there waa no basis to .. con- . use . of CS .riot co~trol agent in enclosed spaces, 
elude that minon were beirig subjeCted to any. ··such asthe'b\mker, Significantly increases·the·pos­
greater risk or physical or sexual abuse during the sibility that lethal levels wUl be reached, and the 
stand-off than prior. to .February ~-· The fi~al as- . posSl"bility of hann significantly increases. In view 

· aault put the children at the greatest risk. .... ·· - ··- .... of the risks-·p()sed by insertion of CS into enclosed · 
.. 8. 'Ibe CS riot control agent insertion and as- spaces, particularly the bunker, the FBI failed to 
sault plan was fatally flawed. The Attorney Gen- .. demonstrate sufficient concern for the presence of" 
eral believed that it was highly likely that· the young children, pregnant women, the elderly, and 
Davidians would open fire, and she knew or should those with respiratory conditions. While it cannot 

-have known that the rapid insertion contingency be concluded with certainty, it is unlikely that the 
would be activated, that the Davidians would not .cs riot control agent, in the quantities used by the 

.ilil.,.:~·,:ir:::,:_:~~i= .. ~~~;~n;n~:~~~e;c:_~~~;{:~.~~-..... :.~;~~~~~;~~~~!~=:· ~:~cgr·i~=~~~ 
. ~,:,,.::;:,:~-~; ~,swo.~ .~ction. w_ould .~~r.,..~th~~ .tli'-.:.~~~~~: ~ .. i.nto.Jbe. enelos.ed ·J,uiik.er, at a time when women 
~~ .. :'. <-.~-_aence. ... T.Ji~.: Pl!infiipg~t9.·:~nd th~f ~tjuld~ff~u :rur-;~ T ~- ~~r~children\¥ere'· :~-st'mbled inside that enclosed 

;_·---s~ :: . .-'; ther &we~ in:that.n._~·:;pij,_vis~op]lac! ~~n~#-taife'for ~~~ lp~~--could 'ha~e been :a proximate: cause of or di· 
0~('\·~~~v:~~~~ ~t1~-i1d~~7!~!~~~~:r:;.;;:~~:~~~l1i~~;e ~~~:·::;~ attrib-
........ · · · .t; .. Followmg. the fBra Ap_~ 19 assaw~-. on·-t~te·· .. · :· .... · ~! _The_r~· ta·_no ·ev1aence that the FBI discharged 

· Branch Davidian··· coin pound, Attorney ·oenerat ·-··- fireanns·or.· APri119 ... .: · · · 
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?. 'ntere it no evidence that the FBI lnten· formation to arrest or search the premises or the 
tionaDy or inadvertently set the fires on April 19. subjecta or investigations. · . 
. 8. The FBfs retusal to ask f'or.or accept the 81· 4. The ATF ahould revise lt. National Be-

- ~.tri.~~~or other .. _la!.~rorc~p1~n~ .~en.cies ·d.urj~&:, .·. sponse Plan to enaure that Ita best qualitiecl 
··-·· · _- .. ,. ·:-·. the stand~tr.demo~stra~ an msti:~~onal b1aa at · agenta are placed lD command and. control 

.. =-· ... .. . the-~~-~~ ~~ep~ng an~ util~g ~u~ ~-- .. :_. _posftioaa_ ~ all operations. Doing so wtll help to 
·'· · .. ..,..._ •. ·. a~ee.. .. · .. --~. -·~: .- ... :.· :··: :-- ... · !":'~ •• :-··· ....... _: .. ·:. avoid iitu:ations like that which occurred at Waco 

:.:<.~ .. :~. 1Jej;arl~~t' o{De(;~ _. . . ·,~·:~:-. _ :~ . ~~:· .. ,·--.c.· :·.~-'-·~ .. ·. ':'he~ le~r~qualifi~ ~n~ were placed in ~si· 
~~~ ·.:: ~· : .. -L·Tb~ 'activities· or· active' duty military persOn· .. :~ .tion~ (9r. w~t~ .. :tl)ey_. ~e~~ .... at best, .only partially 

.;·.-- --:..~ nel jD 'training the· --~'1'~ .. ..:04 in suppo~g· the ....... quaJiti~. wh•le ~~r. ~()~ expe~enced agent& 
_:·-FBfs activities durlng the standotr did- not violate ·.: . y.-ere .aVailabl.e whose involve_~ent msght have pre­

,_._·:.: ''the Pos&e: Comitatus· Act beCause their aetions did ··· -~·:Yente4 tl\~ t~l~re oC t.}le,,.Ud.:.-- · 
.... - ~ ... ·nstitute. · ·di..:....... .. ·;....,.: • ·ti • th .. · . . .. 5. Senior official8 at ATF headquarten -· no. eo ·~" pcu_ ... opa on ln e eov.em· -'- 'ul... . . .. .. .. . . 

· · ... ment's taw enforcement activities. · · -· · · ... · ~0 d ~ ereater commaDd and conti"'l 
... 2. The activities or National-Guard.persoilnel in ov~ algn!ficant operati?na· ~e ATFs. most 
·training the ATF, in participating in the ATF raid semo~ oftioals sho"!ld· be di~tly ~~lved m the 
on the Davidian residence, and in supporting the pl~lruung and o~emght of every stgruficant oper· 
FBra activities during the standotr did not violate ation. - . 
the Posse Comitatus Act because the personnel 6. The ATF mould be conatralned from 
were not subject to the prohibitions in the act. lndepend~ntly lnvestfgatl:ng clrug-n:ta~ 

3. No foreign military personnel or other foreign crl~es •• Given that. the ATF ~ed part of' tts m-
j,ersons took part in ·any of the government's ac- ves~tion ot the Bran~ pavuliana on unf"oun~ed 
tiona toward the Branch Davidians. Some foreign !'llegations that the DaVldians "!'ere manuf~ 

. military personnel were· present near the Davidian 111~~ drugs, and as a. result lmproperl>: obtained 
residence as observers at the invitation of the FBI. mtlitary supP<?rt ~-l,no cost, ~e subc~m~~s ree-

. . . . ... ·. . · om mend that COngress restr:tct the JUnsdiction ~ 
::_:::. :·!:.· .. ~:,;~~<<,-;;.~,-:~(:_: .. __ ;_,·.c.-~c~~ATION~~-~, 5:; .· ... :"·-'1:::.~'" ·;::. ,, the~·,_ATF · to:_lnvestigate ·.:cases involving illegal 

'_:: ·'~lri"oider to pre\rent the':errors·in 'judgnient. arid drugs "unless such investigations are conducted 
_conseq~~~~ -~~-re~-~~-~~ oee11.~ed at. Waco.; .. jointly with. the Drug Enforcement Administration 

·- from occurriiig .. in .. '·the-·futlite;~_.the sUbconimittee·it-~·-·· as the· lead agency.-.- . .- ...... ·::.:_._._-~:: . 
·;;=~~· ,; .... make the following recommendations:.· ; . . .. .. '1. Con.gres& ahould. consider applying the 

· · · L Congress should conduct further over· · P088e Comitatue Act to the National Guard 
algid of the Bureau of Aloohol, Tobacco and with respect to situations where a Federal 

· F~ the· oversight of the &gency pro- law enforcement entity serves as the lead 
vided by the Treasury Department, and agency. The fact that National Guard troops were 

· whether Jurisdiction over the agency should legally allowed to be involved directly in Federal 
·. be transferred to the Department of Just~ce. Ia"! enf"o~ement actions against ~e. Davi~ans, 

·. :: :Congr:ess . should·: consider whether the lack of while active duty forces were not, 11 meons1stent 
:·. · . _TreasUry Departtn~tit oversight of'·ATF activities -- with the spirit·oCthe Posse Comitatus Act. 
.. in :--c:Onnection with the. investigation or· the. . 8. The Dep&rtment of DefeD&e should 

·· · Davidian&, and the failures by ATF leadership . · streamline the approval process for milita.ry 
.. -- dUring that investigation~ indicate that jurisdiction suppor1 e.o that Posse Comitatus Act oonflicta 

· · . ·Over the ATF should be transferred to the Depart.. and drug uexus controversiea are avoided iD 
'ment or Justice. . . .. . . the future. The" process should make dear to law 
. : 2. If the false ·atateinent In the affidavits enforcement agencies requesting Defense Depart. 
filed ~n·.upport of the ·8eaicll and. arrest war- ·ment support the grounds upon which support wiD 
rant. were _made_· with knowledge of lbelr fat. be given. Such requests should be assigned to a 
alty, erlmlDa1 charges. ebould ·be brought · single office to ensure that support will be pro-· 
against the per&Ou making the statements. vided only in legitimate circumstances and in a 

3. Federal law enforcement agencies mould manner consistent with the Posse Comitatus At:t. 
verity the c:r.edibWty and the timeliness of 9. The General Accounting Office ahould 
the information oD which It relies In obtain· audit the military aasfstance provided to the 

. IDa warnmt. to arrest or eearch the property ATF and to the FBI In connection with their 
... -_· of.~.~ric~a~i;,cftlzen..The.affidavits on which·:. Jaw.: .... eDforcemeut. activities toward the 

. ~-"'~~~<·the iirielt'and:'learCb warrants or Kore'sb we . ·--·~ '·.:·::·_ ranCh. . . .. . .. . ' .. _ ... . . 
--,~~~- ':o=r:·. ,_ ·.> :: -~··derea· eontaiD.~_Jilt~mia-u~~piovtdecl-·_tc, ihe~TF ~··.:.~-:a-.luive~""=te0ti~~td::,::.: 
.. ~ ;·,: ~. ~ -." ... :~:~=· ·:~. ~r9.~t.l-.~~--ob\ij»us·. ~ tOwArd "JtOresb .. ~- .. ,·,~on:~neemlng the value. of the mill..__, support 

'"·-:::;~_~-;-::---..,_ .. ~~:-l·ua theJ).Yidian~flgid.-.hif9rmation ~~ w~(itale--:~ -.~- roVided t.O ... the.ATF. and .. the FBI the.mmit-
.·~-~-~,-~,_:; :. . ·--~~_]j(thil[it ..... 8Lwecr·~ · ~rlenee(~~;'betore_·.-; ~;.: .. ~: ~~-i:Dend. ·that ihe Generai Accoan • Of'. 
--·.-:-: '· · .. -_,_.-the --ilive.-.;.-.....~on. 'l'he···ATF. should. obtaiR.~tresb -~ ._._:fice conduct· eii'. il"- • .. . • ting • _ .. " .. :·: .. . .... ~-6~ .. -:- ...•.. ·~·- _. .. . ... ·- .. ·.. . .. • . .. .... .. . . . . Udit of these agenoes to ascertam 

aD4 ~ ~orm~~on __ wlu~n_ re1yn11 .. 9.~ .~t~~ _ -: .. ~~ value oC the military support provided to them 

z 0039068 

i 

i 
I 
'· ! 



. ' 

and to ensure that complete reimbursement baa' committees recommend that Federal law enforce-
been made by both agencies. ment agencies revise their policies and training so 

10. The General Accounting Office should that their agentS are open to the advice such ex-
. lnve.tipte the acllvitiee of Operation Alll· pez18 might provide. . . . . 

. ance In ught of the Waco mcldelit. The·sub- .... "15.' -·Federal '-law·, enforcement agenclee 
::. ·: ·:: •· .".·:-·committees conclude that Oper~tion Alliance per-~:· . ehould revise poUcies and training to eucou:r­

··-"·'-·iorinel kriew-:or lltoUld ·have kn9wn_.that··ATF-did .··.:age the aeceptanee· ~outside ·1aw enforce­
.. not have a· sufficient drug nexu.i to W8l"i'a.nt the -- · Jlient · a88lstance, wJiere po11ible. The unwill· 

_ ·:militarY.· silpport-:·provided· on a"_·non-reimbursab~e · ·mgness of the FPI·to accept support &om State. 
· ·. :_ · .:.. · ·-~ -bali&! FU.rtherinore, -given"that the provisi()n· of' as-·~ local,· or other Federal law~ enforcement agencies in 
'0- •• '" aistance·: undef' sueb ·-duhious_"cireumstan~t( ap- .. -conn'eetiorf'With the standoff' increased the pres· 

.. . :. '··":'·;· peari, 'to'"not have b_een_·~-anomaly and the. expan-- ., -•sme on-:the .. Aft'Omq ·General to end the standofF 
. . . ·aion_. ~f Oeeratioil'. ~l!a!Jce's ':jtirisdittion-.... since·'.:- 'precipitously. To avoid 'this type or press.ure in the 

Waco, the· subeommJttees recommend --that the ·future, Federal law enforcement agene1es should 
General ACcounting Office conduct an investiga- - · be open to the assist8nce that State and local law 
tion or Operation Alliance. . .. "~-- . :. .. . enforcement agencies may be able to provide. 

lL Federal law e~orcement · agencies· 16. The FBI ahould expa.Dd the .tze of the 
.hould . redesign their negotiation 'policies, Hostage Rescue Team. The FBI should increase 
ud training to avoid ~e lnlluence of phys· the size of the Hostage Rescue T~ so that th~ 
leal and emotional fatigu~. on. the eour&e of· are sufficient numben of team memben to partio· 
future negotiations. In antiCipation of future ne. pate in an operation and to relieve those involved 
gotiations involving unusu.ally emotional subjects when necessary. The FBI should also develop or those .whi~b .may inv~l~ prolonged periods of plans to utilize FBI and local law enforcement 

.·.- time dunng which negotiators may beeome phys- SWAT teams when extenuating circumstances 
-- ically or emotionally fatigued, Federal· law enforce- .. .- . exist.· · 

__ .. _m~~ agencies should implement. procedures to en- 17. The government should further study 
.: -:-... : .... · -·,~·sure that ._th_e~.e (@.~ra F do. no~ _ mfl~nce _ t.h.e. _rec· __ .... and . -~yze_ the_. effects of cs riot control 

~I!IMf!lll _ o~~!n~~ons of· negotiators to .semor- co~mand- agent on children, ·:pemns with respiratory 
- . _en.·.·_-:.: -~:·-·; ... _~ ·:·:··. :.=.:·· '· ... .D. f::·-:.,_-··::.·-:.~' .. : .. -:problems,.pregnant women, and the elderly • 

. ' 

.··•• .,~. ~ 

. : · · ·. , . 12. ·· Federal : ~law ... _~: entorce_~ent ~~~ncles . The subcommittees note that only limited scientific 
- ~ould ~e · steps . to. ·foster rr:ea~ . UD~er-. ·. . 11terature. WS't.~ concerning the effects of CS riot 

atandlng of .the· ~et under- mvestigation. -···control agent, especlally. With regard to the effects 
The subc~mnl!ttees believe that bad the govern- · of long-term ~sure in a closed area. Until such 

· ment officials mvolved ~t Waco taken steps.~ un- time as more is known about the actual effecta of 
ders~d better the ph1losophy or .the Davuiians, exposure to this 8gent, ·the . subcommittees tee· 
t!'ey ~t have been able to negot:!a~ more eff'ec- ommend that CS not be used when chfldren, per-
tively wsth them, perhaps accomplis~g a pe~ce. sons with respiratory problems, pregnant women, 
fu1 end to the standoff. The subcomm1ttee.s believe and the elderly are present. Federal law enforce-

: .. ·~- . ·that had ·the ~'FF and .. ~I been better tnC~f!Ded · · .. ment· _agencies should develop guidelines for the 
· ·. - .. about the r~lipo~ philosophy of the .Davuiians- liSe of riot· eon.tiol agents in light of this further 
.. : . and the D~VIdia,ns. Ukely response to th~ govern· itudy and analysis. · · 

· ment's actions agamst them, these agenoes could . . 
. . ... have made better choices in planning to deal. with L lm'RODUCTION 

-the Branch Davidians. · · · · · 
· : · 13. Federal: Jaw··· enforcement - agencies _ A. 'I11E NEED FOR THE WACO INQUIRY 

·.. uould Implement ehangee. IJl __ OP!=rational. ·. ~:~ .. On February 28, 1993, r~ur specla~ agents or the 
procedu.re8 and. training to · provule better · Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Fir~s (ATF) 

... leadenhip In .. future negotiation& The sub- -~were tragically killed near Waco,.TX. in a sho;otout 
· . committeea believe that placing greater emphasis .· .. wjth a religious sect -known aa the Branch 

on leadership In critical situations will not only Davidians. The group's leader, Vernon Howell, also 
protect the targets of government action, but also known as David Koresh, was wo~ded in the vio-
will help to protect .the saf'ety or the law enforce- lent confrontation, and several of ita members 
ment ofticers. · . were killed. Then on Apn119, 1993, after a 51 da7 

.. -:.--~,~~-·-· _, .. : __ ., .... _: 1 .. ~ -::· ~~eral . law enforcement .agencies standoff with the Federal Bureau of Investigation 
-~~~-.~~<·:>;:::.::.:ahoulcl~.'~~pplj~~:.and_.trainlng·-to.-fll•:.···.<fBI>, the episode came to a fiery conclusion when 

·~_~:·~-,:,,,_-;:=·,;:... .._ .. :·.··~'-"_,- ·creue thc(w.flllngne8(~ tbe~7 BP.nte ... to con---~--:. more _than 70 Davidians,. including 22 children, · 
:_.-; ·;_·.:··-.·:- 81der _t.be_,·_a.4v!ce .. · .. ol o~talde ·e~. The ~ ~·: ·ilied·:inJide the.:groap'a residence. . . · 

·---~~..;. __ ·:=...::.:.-·. · .. '-~--~::::-.~-~niulittees notJ,.~.::th~ expertise ,or tecogmzed· ... =. -_·:--.· FrQni:~~y .. _perspective; Waco ranks among the 
-· ~==::=-~?< '.~.~:.; -: :····=.·. ~=~-ilegoti8ti~n:·"~~:-~~lar11-th.ose experienced .. · most .significant even~ in _U.S. law enforcement 

_,. ·.. with. retigiously.;motivated gr6~Jj-:..~~~;o:·M.ve ··~,-?histoey. For --ATF,.,it· was the largest ~d most 
· :#·. ~.:..-~?- ,_ '- -....... -·- -proved·-: invaluable. in::::,mstmg:~~I -nego~~ons , _ ~ea4.1y -raid :ever conducted. F~r the FB~ •. tt was. an 

with the Branch DaVldians. Accordingly, ·the 8\lb.. · · unprecedented fal1ure to ach1eve a cntical obJeC· 
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tive--the rescue of dozens or innocent women. and their f"onnat oversight plans, filed in February 
children. · 1995, the intention to conduct hearings on the 

The television coverage and news accounts gen· Waco matter. Representative Bill McCollum, chair· 
era~ _by .Pte ~~ at the .scene. near .Waco pre- man of the Subco~mittee on Crime of the Commit-

. - .,.. . -- sented.a troublirig .. picture to Americ&M. ·On ·the :. tee on the Judiciary and Representative Bill Zellir, 
· -- -.. ::. :····,· - - -one. ban~ it-=-seeined ·clear. enough··· that a .. Jones. - · chairman of the Subeommittee on National Secu­

. · ...-:-~ tc;wn::.Jiltecreligi~us-·cutt led by an· irrational leader-·~ ..... rltY~·tntemational Affiiirs~ ·and Criminal Justice« 
-~:..::~: .. had btOugbt.-cli_~r on itself. On the other hand,·':· .. the :Committee on Government Reform and· Over • 
.. :- .. :·::: iJnagea· of tli~--~tailb. and·. other I:Jlili~·'vehiclel~ _,_··sight stated Ori ieveral OCCI!Sions that such hear. 

· -- . · gaye th~·-i.~P.r~s•iP~. tha~. the __ FBI _yia&-.-Using' exees~ · . · _: ing8 ·were· a>~n~es~· response to the widespread 
· .. :.·~ sive foree·together wi~-~~~ry weap<>ns··e.nd·tae•;·· .. ~:·dissatisfa~ion ·with tJurF~_eral Government's foJ.. 

-~~~~ .. .. __ :.c -·ticif ~nit U.S. Citizens, co~trary- to our .. civilian .. : low-up· to· what·· happened-at the Branch Davidian 
· .... ·~- -~= -~ :, ~:,;.,:·;:taw emorcemer~~ ~cUtion!. ~ the·· aftermath ·or·th4(· · ':residenee~'"-The .. deplorable bombing in Oklahoma 

__ · ·•. . . -··-April 19tli fire~ ·g.o·V8minerit ''officials; ·Members or ·-city 2· months later revealed the extent to which 
Congress, and assorted observers called for a thor· · Waco • continued to served· ·as a source of coo­
ough review or the matter. Outside the corridors or - · troversy for some Americans. With the concurrence 
power1 a mixture of fact, rumor, and suspicion pro- of the . Speaker or the House and the chairmen ol 
duced a wide variety or lasting impressions and . the Committees. on the Judiciary and Government 
conspiracy theories. Reform and Oversight, the subcommittee chairmen 
· Bot.h the Justice and ·Treasury Departments ii· began to organize comprehensive joint hearings on 

sued detailed written reports many months later. the Waco matter. As the July timetable was set for 
The Treasury Department Report criticized ATF the bearings, both chairmen hoped a comprehen· 
personnel, but it exonerated all Department offi· sive investigation, primarily involving testim0131 

.. . clals. ~e :·J~~ce. Departm~nt Repo~ . f.o~~ no .... ffom a ~de ~ety ()f. witnesses Pt;sented .in pub-
. fault With an)' actions ·or the FBI or any Justice he heanngs, w~Uld Jay to rest questions which per. 

.. Depart~ent official. ·· · · · · · · sis ted, assess· responsibility fqr any misconduct, 
-< ·::.~~~er~---~-n~sional. ceinmittees_:..-conducted · ··and .ultima~Jy--ijstore full. confidence in Federal 

-- h~iuings·in·the weeks following th~ di$8:$ter.·un·~·-;::"'lawenforceinent.- . : _____ · .. ::.:. .. 
· . fo~~tely~_-Ji~le _i~or:matiort ~as av~~l~)~ fr~Dl. _ .. , - . ·B. OPPOSmON TO THE INQUIRY 
_ ,adrrumstration offioals at the .time. Representative_ : .-. • · . --. : _ ._._ _ ·. . , . -.. . . .. . 

.:.· -~----> Jack_ ... Btoou;·~'chairmarf.·ot the House Judicia · ' Opposition to the .. Waco hearings was tQ be ex· 
.: ·- ': ·- Comiriittee, promised · additional "'heanngs- iO r?. . . pected. The Departm·ents-or ·Justice and Treasury 

~~~ aolve remaining questions, but none were held. believed that their respective. reports were forth· 
Several developments in 1994 contributed to the right and complete and that additional scrutiny 

· pervasive view that serious questions about Waco would only result in more negative publicity. Clin· 
remained unanswered. The criminal trial of the ton administration officials were concerned that 
aurvivi!lg Branch Davidians resulted in acquittals the hearings would cause further political dantage. 
on_ murder chargei. The self-defense. ilrgumenis.. _:. ~at !f~S ~-o~ exp~ted was the extent ~ whieh 
l'ai~ed at trial and ~eir obvious effect o~ _the juey ... the adrrumstration. tried to con~l potential dam· 

. encouraged the public's ou~ and desire for ac· · age from the .hean~gs. The .Wiute House stafF as­
·, eountability. Journalists, investigatOrs, and attor- . sen:tbled a damage control team and retained the 
. ileys involved -in. the ca~ decried the .absence of services of John Podesta. a public relations special. 

~ ,. eandor arid mdependenee iii .. the .a.dmiiustration's. ·ist and foriner White· House official who had 
· l'eporta and demanded a more comprehensive and worked for Handgun Control, Inc.1 Treasury Sec· 
. ~etai!~--_inquiry. In . addition, widely ::distributed .. ' !e.tary ·Rubin ~ntacted at least one member or the 
. -- video ·tapes· entitled. -waco: The Big Lie• and -:.. .Jomt subComnu~es, Representative Bill Brewster 

-waco: The Big Lie Continues" had a significant of Oklahoma, and requested that he not ask an7 
impa~ on public opinion. AlsO, many poli~aken ..... . questions that might embarrass the adntin.btra· 
read an ·article pUblished in First Thlngs, written tion.1 Also, the Treasury Department flew to 
by Dean Kelly of the National Council of Church· Washington two Texas Rangers who were sched-
·ea,t which stirred up considerable speculation uled to testify before the subcommittees in order to 
about the ATFs conduct and the FBrs use of CS help them prepare their testimony. The Justice 
chemical agent. In short, by the start or the 104th Department, in concert. with the subcommittees' 

___ :.::: 7 __ ; Co.ngr~.s~, _ ~'---~~:~· Jor .. a :sufficient and· thorough .,. _D~m-~ts. ~~~ht firearms recove~ from . the 
... ~~-~- -~~- -· ·- _:-~,:. :,~-,!=~nrn~~-~~P~-~_exatm~~tio~ of the ____ ~W~ccf;.~rag~-.. '-~--~harr~---Davuii~~~m~~d:..to Washington to be 

-:-~' .. ,~- 'W,.., m¢i.~p\lt&J:)le.:;.:~-~-;::~:..! ,·,f "f.:-.. :-:::-..,:-: . ..:: ~;~ ::-:··.- •:.:-··=;:"~,-: ... ~e4;-~,:prop~~~: ,,;_;~~-;-., ':";;.-·~.:::--.o··;""c: . . 

,.:.:-·:.· •• -c ... : .At'",,jhQ~,9\i~..t.~or:the .104tb ... Congress,· bOth. ·the:··:~·. :~:·Pe!haps:,-:~~ ~gst-,"disturbing counter~measure 

· .. ~:~~·;~:_~~- -~,:-~~=~~~~~;r~f::ft~;~:x~~;~~;=~:= 
·· · · ·· · ·· -.. · llq tM.·auz. · · ·- · - - -· - · · Wuh. r.&. Jal)r a. liN. at AU. " -.--..· 
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that the hearings were an attack on law enforee- 1. Document requelts and revkw 
menl Quite the opposite was the case. All involved On. June 8, 1995, subcommittee Chairmen 
in the planning and ca.rrying out of the hearings McCollum and Zeliff' delivered document produe-

. · ··-and the inveitigation -were st~ng supporter~.J, ol _ tion requests to the:..Federal agencies involved at 
- . : . -~ Federal law enlorcemenl· All believed that througll- .. Waco. The agencies. contacted were the Depart. 

:.:;:: . .-.-·.·· airing·and analysis of:!-he .. Waeo.e_vents .. ~Y:,~ngr. es- menta of Defense,-.Justi~, and the Treasury. The 
:.-_ . .:._-,. - aional oversight comm.1ttees were __ necessary to the._: ... :- White House. also. received a document request.. 
-:::.'-:~:··long ten;n credibility -~d .viab~nty .. ~-.~~- Fec;\~ra) .. , .. _ The subcommi~es .. t®\J)le_position ~t virtuap7 
-·=~ . .--:-·:law enforcement agen~es. The.~se-~on::·~~-~ tlt~-: :·· ·every Federal. ~ney _document auooated Wlth 

··. :; .. <: : .. hearings. were ··anti-Jaw. epforcemet:lt _w~_ con~ary ·-~-.the Waco incident re.quired some level of' review. 
: ·.·. ·.to the Unambigu9US_ yie'!~ or Federal--laY(:_~,9~&.":::.:~·:····To ·_review.-_tbe -~aiter· any Jess thoroughly would 

. ment-Jeadcra .• ·:·FiAAilyt. ~d pe~ha~~ ~~ .strQ~ges~-~'- leave .. _lingeri.rtg do~t- as to whether a complete 
:-response to the -subcomiDlttees .. cn.tics, .lS .. that. tJte ~~:and comprehensi~ job had been done. 

:, · · • _. Wa~-- bearings did in fact serve to strengthe~ pub-.. . Despite public commitments and private as sur-· 
_ ... lie .con(ide_n.ce .. in .. Fed!ral law enrorc_em~nt. The · · ances of cooperation by the relevant departments, 

public wu clearly remmded that we live lD a ~a- the subcommittees experienced a latk of ·coopera· 
tion or laws and no power sits above those laws. tion which clearly frustrated hearing preparations. 
Americana are far more likely to support law en· Throughout the month of June and early July, rep-
forcement authorities when they know that such resentatives or the White House, and Departments 
authorities will be held accountable for their ac- of Treasury and Justice attempted to narrow the 
tiona. scope of the subcommittees' requests and restrict 

A final issue that arose at the start or the hear- access to a wide array of information. The tint sig-
.. inga was the extent to which the s~m~ittees . . nificant documents were delivered only 3 weeks ' 

would. consi~er the. -~aracter of DaVl~ Kore~h. In prior to. ~e bearings, some just da~ before, and 
the· mmds of some, evtdence of Koresh s desp1cable tens of thousands or others were rece1ved after the 

. ,.;.:_·:·:~~· _. ~ .. l>elu~!i~. w~)ild __ provide sufficient justification- for. ····hearings had already begun. This •wait-and-dump• 
• •• ·- · .... :. L - , ..• , ·' not~scrutinwn~.-.the .co~duct :.of·:fed~ra).law_ e~~ . -.·strategy .render.~ meaningful st.affreview of many 
.-. -~ :· ._:_Jorcement ~ffie~ats. 1'he subcomnuttee_s .were pre_-·· k_ey. doC\lments yirtual!y .. impossible prior to com-

.-. parea. to stip~ate then and now that.Kor~s~ ~as,__ mencemen_t_ofthe heanngs._. __ · · · 
· ·.· -= ·:::on one level, responsible for the· d~_t:lth. an.<l"4~~~~c~ : . ,_ ~ Moreover,- ·the task of reviewing these documents 

'tio~ ~at f?C~!""~· at .waeo. ~i- actions insi~e. the ' ,:·was made .mor~ diffi~uit by the manner in whlcb 
Davidian's rel1g~owr commuruty were of the .Vllest . , .. they ... were presented. _ 'fhe Treasury Department's 
sort. Nevertheless, Koresh was not accountable to documents were in no apparent order, making the 
the people's' elected Representatives in Congress as retrieval of a particular document nearly impos-
are Federal law enforcement authorities .. Hence sible. In what became symbolic of the administra· 
the subcommittees' inquiry concerned executive tion's uncooperative attitude experienced by the 
branch conduct, and not that of David Koresh. subcommittees, it was discovered that the minor· 

c. THE NAnTRS. OF THE INQUIRY ity, but not the majority, had been provided an 

..... ; Gi~~ the: ~~si~--:_~d es:Pandi~ srubiic·: eon- · . int~~~~cib:~~~e:h:? c!';;:~~~· particularly 
cern about the Federill Government's actions -. from the Department of Jwtice, improved consid· 
against the Branch DaVidians, and the effect such erably shortly before the bearings began and con-

. .-concerns were having _on the credibility of.Federal tinued throughout the course of the public inquiry. 
· · · law enforcement, the. subcommittees determined, 
. _.-in early 1995, tha~ it would be advisable to .hold 2.1nvestigation cmd in.teruiews 

.. · hearings as soon as practicable~ As a result,· rath.e.r · .... ·:.· -The su~mmittees engaged in investigative 
. than wing the hearings as a forum for presenting · InterViews, an 'examinaiion of physical evidence, 
.. the results o( a lengthy and completed jnvestiga-. and an · on-site inspection of the former Branch 

tiori, it wal decided that the hearings ·would .con- . Davidian residence as a part of the preliminary in-
sist or an exhaustive public airing of the issues as- quiries. Both majority and minority staff traveled 
sociated with Waco. These •discovery hearings," to Austin and Waoo, TX for a fact-finding bip. 
rather than "presentation hearings, • would afl'ord Interviews were conducted with several Branch 
members of the joint subcommittees, interested Davidians bo!h at th~ lofD!er residence and at ~e 

.· .... :·;·_attendees, t!te _media, 81\d C-SPAN audiences .. ~ home of Sheila Martin, Wldow of Wayne M~ 
... ~--.· -~--~----~ .. ::'·'~·~oppo~tY- t(;·',ll_e&f·&o~ tlle:.People wh~ -~~re di~ _____ w1to _ diect.i~. the April._19 fire. _Former. Davuiian 

· ··~-~ ·:-·"::.~feCily·mvoiVeG-iia:tlie':Waco matter;-·:;· .. ~~ -~-~r.:.;,: .. :,_~;:~.c:·---·:-_'; -~---~~_Clive· Poyle ·provided a· tour of th~ rwns. of the 
~-----·~~~--~:The···-~~!·ot_· ~e_~:inqUiey;· co#~-~-,.o.rJ:e-_ ,·.,_D~yi~~~('~~i~en~. ~ta~. aJso m~ with ~embers 

~,·:·~: .. ·Quests f'or ·and, review ·or docunu!n·ts··oofore ·and···" of··the ·locat·'county shenfrs office and WJth FBI 
· ·.::'·Ciiiring~tb-~7=-b-eariiigi;:-=·a~·pre-lu;mng:~invesl.igation -·>,~rso~nel. who, ~IP.O.~~J~ther ~ings, ~lso took them 

. ph~ including numerous interviews-with_. many~---~ ··.on ~visit1o.i.h~.Q~Vl~a,~ res1.denc;e Site.. 
or the Per&onl involved; the hearings themselves; The staff also had an opportunity. to mspect th.e 
and a pos~hearini investiipltion. . physical evidence taken from the rwns of' the re11-
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. : ·-· ~· .. · ..... ~· 

• dence after the fire, much of which bad been w ~d · 3~ Hearings 
in the criminal trial of surviving Davidians. By The plan for the Waco bearings was to receive 
prior agreement with the Justice Department, a testimony under oath from as many persons mate-
potential witness at the hearings, Failure Analysis rial to the mat~r as possible. Thu, nearly 100 
Associates Inc., was to inspect some of the physical witnesses appeared before the joint ~mmittees 
evidence in order to respond to tampering allega- over a period of .10 days. The hearings included in· 

··tiona. -It ~was·beUeved·that·the views.of scientists - dividu:ats··rrom ATF and the TreasUJ)' Department 
from Failure ··Analysis; who. had often performed .. · who played critical ·roles In the. investigation or 
scientific evaluations for the Federal Government;· -· David Koresh, and the planning, approval and exe. 

_ .. ,_· ... .including the. Justice Department and NASA after .. eution of the February 28 raid. They also included 
· .. the. Ch~!~~ge~--~~~819n,_~ou14_be beneficial given-~ ... .:.~the key p~cipan~ from the·: FBI and the Justice 

. :_ :_:_ ·. _puh~c iUipieions about the . firearms recovered Department ·.'!Jth regard to- the 51 ~Y standoff' 
. . .. -frOm "the ··site .. or the" DaVidian. residence·.- The·. in-.--~ ;:.Land the plan rung,· approval,: and execution on April 
·-~-:~- ·. •pectioirY!c)Ul(:(Jtoth.ye ·da#laged the weapons and ·. :,"":19 or ·the. plan ;,to· ~lld ·the stan~oft. Mo~ than a 
" .. _wai]o.h&ve_l)een~'c9rid\lCtec!Jn the presence of all · .. -do~n experts._ on ••sues ... assooated Wl~ Waco, 

· ··· ·:pa~~~:·l~ ~S.S·h_oped.ihat.tlielnipection would de-·~-- ·-•~ as fin:. not control agents, and tactical oper· 
termine whether the Davidian& had attempted to ations testifi~. The attorneys • who represented 

· · alter legal, semi-automatic weapons by cor;tverting Ko~s~, DaVJ~an Steve Sehnetder, and several 
them into illegal, automatic weapons as .the ATF D!lvtdian survJvors or 'fla_co also were among the 
bad alleged, and whether any of this evidence had WJThtnes~ · ·~ · .:..ao rd d rtunity to add 
been a1 d afte •t th. ed fro th d e mmon was auto e an oppo 

tere • • r 1 • was ga er m • e • e· witnesses to e panels. Every effort was made to 
a~y_ed !Javuli8f! restdenee. When the s'?enttsts accommodate the requests received; more than 90 
arnved m Austm, th~ D~partment declined to percent or the names submitted by the minority 
make the fir~s available to them. Th! Depart- were added to the witness lists. 'Ibe administra· 
ment 8i!'eed tn~tead to conduct the ~sts 1tselr and · tion also requested witnesses to be included. On a 

... ~t. ~-~ ~dings ~ ~~ a~omtmttees. A sh~rt -.~ ··few occasions~ ·these· requests conflicted with the 
tim~ later, the Department~ for cost cons1d· minority's requests. Again, these desires were ac· 

. : erations, th~t ~e tests not be performed~-~~_!--~~- . _ .. commodated to the· greatest extent practicable. 

. sult, no tests were performed on the firearms.·, ... ·, - ' ·- ·-,The· transcripts of these -hearings will serve as a 
. ·.Pre-hearing .ir)wrviews were held wi~. seni9r of·.. . valuable tOol for· years tQ ·come. Many of the most 

ficers of th~.T~ ~~rs. ~p.~ors Qf_books ·about :-., aignificailf'documents ·were incorporated into the 
... ~.e.- Wa~ ~.clisas~_rf._ perso·nn~l ·m th~ McLennan· -record.: Many-others are gathered in the appendix 

"· · Co:Qnty ·Sheriff's Qffice, an.d officials from ~e De- to this report. Additionally, the appendix contains 
partments of the Treasury, Justice, and Defense, a complete listing ofhearing witnesses. 
ATF, Drug Enforcement Administration, and the . . · . . . 
FBL Also, thousands of pages or materials· submit:. 4. Pos~-~anng 'nvesttgatwn 
ted by outside groups and individuals interested in Additi~nal document requests were made after 
WaCXJ were reviewed. Regrettably, the Treasury the ~eanngs to the Departments or the Treasury, 
Department balked at making ATF agents. avail· . Justt~, and Defense. Unfortunately, the lack of COe 

able, fo~ interviews. The Department, steadf'astly operation .from.~e-~_and Dete~se Dep~ 
refused ·to allow the subcommittee. stafF to meet .. ~ents w~c~_~sted pnor .to the h~ contin· 
with ATF agentS who participated in ·the raid. ued, dela~g n:l~e _of th~ ~~m~ttees' report. 
Only the threat of subpoenas. secured the appear· Other mves~gati!e aetivt~es w~cb occurred 

: .ance of ATF agents at the hearings.- The inability after the heannga :mclud~ 1n~on ~f pho~ 
. to interview these individwils before public hear· grap~~ at the FBilaboratones ~d mtei'Vlews With 
inga was a significant investigative roadblock. . murutioll;' experts, expe~ on_ not control a'!nts, 

- · · FiD..;.n ··' .,~.; ubco -·-. · - · • _._ao led . F -and National Guard oftioals. Numerous wntten 
· · a.uy, w•e •. Jll!D1Uees Dwut trave to ~rt ~ · questions were posed to :the ·Justice, Treasury, and 
Bragg, ~C . to m~~ew the Army -pe~nnel m- · Defense DepartmentS. For ·the most part. they 
v_olved Wlth the tntinin~; of ATF ~!lts 10 prepara- were answerect··Leg81.8XPerts on the Posse Com· 
~on for th~ raid. Sev~~ or the ~uhta.r">: perso~el itatus Act were consulted. Subcommittee staff also 

. mvolved Wl~ the trammg were. not avmlable pnor met with the FBI agent who drove one of the ar· 
to the h~gs due to duty a&Slgnments, however, mored vehicles involved in the de$truciion or the . 
~ther ?Jlllltaey personnel who~ the stafF sought to backside of the Davidian residence and other FBI 
tntei'Vlew, and who !ere stationed at Fo~ ~ragg: . officials involved at Waco. Finally, several inves· 

.. we~ . not •. ~e av81~1e tA! the ~!D~~--~-----'==··tjgati.ve ... ~~~r_e _,,sb~red,Jn(ormation they have 
__ ;~, . stafF _ror mtervi.ews._ ~sturbmgly, a1_J.-~--~e.JI~!M~~:::::~.·:~thered.regarding:p.e Wa~ ~tta.:· · '· ........ -· 

· tar.Y personnel m~mewed by the subCommtttees'-.~·-:·'v''-·-·~"·.:...·.-':·.,· .. ::;·:•.r~,,., '"· . . .. - -··. ··--

. staff w.~re_ co~seJe4._ ~~t the.J~tervie,"W-.~_,p~or. t9.: ~,":.. D.-~ ~UCTURE AND~~ _OF~~~ .. 
~-:.'.~·~,"~em J:~)t.,.s~~ijt~~~~~~~~rl;:~~spite·:r.~~~ts _W=:·"~--- . The. re~rt,does not attempt to restate a ehrono­

.':·:~~:~:--the contrary~~:.:~-:-,.·_;"::~:"-= T.;~~.··:·--'--~ · .. ·,<.:-~:;: ... ~:-:~;;._: .- -:~·-::~~:"-···logieal .. iuniritary. of what happened at Waco. The. 
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admiriistration'e reports, supplemented .. by several A. no: MCMAHON COMPLIANCE VISIT 

commerdal publications, tell the story fairly well. On July 30, Aguilera joined ATF compliance ofti. 
Instead, to avoid duplication the report consists of eer Jimmy Ray Skinner to conduet a compliance 

..... · · ..... review, -·~alysiJ, an":- where ... ~P_P~p_riate, . rec~.- ·· ._ inspection or the premises or Henry ~cM.ah~, 
·-· · . . · . · ~ ommendations concemmg the ma.Jor ts~ues ~a1sed.- -.. - proprietor or Hewitt Hand Guns. The tnspection 

.-- .: . .------·····=-It il structured:in .. the._S$_roe. chrQflQlog~cal p~tte~ :·::revealed ·that certain AR-15 lower receivers sup-

·c•-·c_~: ··;. ·•:;.,~{.#·the-~~~ri1~~co~~.-~~:;,·.~:-:\··:.S~~~~S:Hni:?:2u;!t~ 
.'"" :.,_,:; -~ :: -.. ~: ·_ :,elf .. F~~~J~y(,.~iifo~~~en.t_ .. a.cti_ons. stnce.}:he.. · .. :.: sion. ol=- David . Korea h. _·,:McMahon then • called 
--~---· . -·. Waco h.~ ~- ~-:·fBJ_r mdi;ati~n. c9.ien~.tf~.}~~ ;~·:::Koresh,--who offered to~ allow the &gel'ltS to mspect 
-~~ :~ ,_ ·· --~quiry. haa- already .ha~ -~.: ~'!sui.~t:Bbly. P~~1ti:Vt?l:· ~f· .. _,. · for -~·po·ssib1e·'- firearma.:-:violatione. The agents de-
···· . · .-.... f~ The apparen_tly mcre~IJ:tg p~se~ce or. sepa~ ··~-~ clined ·.· the · invitatiort'· Shortly thereafter, 

.-. ratist relisious or anti-government groups had ere- McMahon told Koresh that he was suspicious that 
ated a significant new challenge f'or Federal law an investigation or Koresh and his followers was 
enforcement agencies. Finding the proper balance underway a 
between ~e need to .enf~rce Federal law .with ~e It is ~clear why the ATF did not accept the 
responsibility to avotd VIolent eon~ntations Wlll offer to do a compliance inspection or Koresh's fire.. 
continue to be difficult. _It is c~mpliea~d by the anns. Importantly, the Treasury Report faila to 
f'aet that innocent people, espeaally duldren, are mention that Aguilera bad an opportunity at the 
ao often in harm's way. Yet, over the past seve~ time of the compliance inspection to inspect 

· months, Federal law enforcemen~ and the FBitn Koresh's firearms. Wade lshimoto, a re~ewer of 
particular,~ demo!lstrated B? m~ased lev~l or the Treasury Department Report, jndicated to the 

·- tactical patience. Thts change~ ~bey,· eomb~ed. ·subCOmmittees that he had not been made aware 
with othe~ important reforms mstitu~ by Dlrec- of the McMahon compliance visit by the Depart-

-·t.;-

· .• ~ ··_tor ~~--~ -_ ~~ th~ ;~I _an~ ~~re~~ ~~~r:' .. ,ment of, Treasury during ~is review.' Mr. lshimoto 
., ___ .,_,i:- ·-·~-:: - . -:··:-~-Magaw· •tA1F,--ta~~-~-~m~~""nd~;._::;~:::'::"-: :!=-~:..:::-. ~mamtairied-that KOresh's offer should have been 

· · -:·.· .. _ .: ...... -.· -. · .··.::-~·;;_: ~--->-ATF ~GATicni· :· · ,,-_·. ~-,_~'-::~:=:·~:·.-'-accep~. presentin·g·an invaluable oppo~ty to 
-· --. · - -n .. THI · · . - · --- -... ·_ -· . ~-:--- ·- -~ · ~-- _-· · · · · -th .. · ·..:ca1 • tett· 10 Th agents' decbne or . ·: ... , ... , .. ;.· .: .· ·:: "- .. , .. ··-' ···· · · ···•· -· --:· : · · .. : ... · .·· ga er Crlw. lD 1gence. e 

. -.. · - ·.- · In -May 1992, . the AuS~, TX· Office of_ the Bu- . · tlie· Ki>resh ·offer was a serious mistalte. 
· · .. · . reau of Alcohol, ·Tobacco and Firearms was called · 

by · Chief Deputy Daniel Weyenberg of the B. THE INVESTIGATI9N CONTINUED 

McLennan · County Sherift's. · Department. Tracing UlJS invoices, Aguilera ·teamed that 
Weyenberg notified the ATF that his office had more than $43 000 worth or firearms (including 
been c:Ontaeted by the local United Parcel Service AR-15 semiau~matics) firearms parts (including 
regarding a package it was to deliver to the . AR-15 lower receivers): grenade hulls, and black 

. ... Branch Davidian residence. The pac~~ ha~ bro· po.wder had been shipped to the .Davidians' storage 
. . _ ~-~ .. ken open. _IUld con~ned fire~ •. 1nert grena~e faeiUt)'.u One of Koresh's net~rs, who . had 

· casings, and black powder." ...... · . • . served in an Army- arti11ery urut, told Aguilera 
,_ On June 9, 1992, Special Agent Davey. Agui!era that he had frequently beard the sound of auto-

. _. . , of' tb~. ~ ATF _ofli~ __ opened. !l f'o~almvestj~a- ... matic ·weapons· . fire-including .50-ealiber fire­
.. - tion. Within a week, Philip ChoJnacki, the Speoal -coming from the Davidian residence.u Aguilera 

_· _____ Agep~ in Ch,arge o.f the H.ouston. AT~ Office cl&.!!si- . also ]earne.d that in November, a deputy sheri!f 
. __ -: fied the -~~ _ •sensitive, • -~ereby callmr for a high -· had-heard a loud _explosion at the Davidian resJ· 

degree of oversight from both Houston and Head- dence which pl'Qduced a cloud or grey smoke.11 
. quarters in Washington, DC.I5 Notwithstanding the --.· Through- interviews with former cult members, 
· prioritY given to the ease,. numerous·· and· serious _ · Aguilera Jeanied or numerous allegations that 

missteps oecumd throughout the investigation Koresb had had sexual relations with girls young-
that followed. The . most troubling aspects of' the er than 16 years of age.14 These allegations would 
case were the ATFs overall lack of thoroughness 
in ita investigation, the ineffectiveness of the un· •ttL alts. 

d affida • • r '~~~~ ,. a. Adllllllu o1 rlfltrol,.., IW'oraiiVI&l Apda dercover operation, an an vtt m support o. ~1M BroAo\ Du~~UaM (Parl lJ: Htoriltp Bt/Orl u.. Su&oNudl· 
·· ·.--~:- tlie ··ae&reh·:aiid ··amst' .. warrarits .. -.tha.~-~as replete ,. • CriMe ot • B ... OoiMillt. ... u.. ~ ~ ~ &&-

--·~f.~;~~;;~;_~~~;~-!i_~~~"~--~~JE=~~~~~ 
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•• 1ate1' feature prominently in Agw1era's affidavit in become. the basis for modifying the nature and 
support or the aearch and arrest warrant&. . timing or any subsequent action against Koreah. 

In December 1992, after reviewing all or the There ia substantial evidence to suggest that 
available evidence associated with the Koresb in· Koresh and the Davidian a knew that the under·. 

_ vestigation .. in ATF headquarters ~- W~gto~, . cover ho_\lse. _e_stab!i~~e-~: by the A'f! across the 
.~ .. . _ : ATF decided they did not yet have probable cause · street frOm the compound.~as occupted by law en· 
. .. . - . to support·. a warrant. Director Higgins stated: torcement . officials .. Koresh. told hia next door 

-~~a~~ -:=·-::::·.:-rw.Je .. went··.OUt.:-and got ··more iilf'oi'IIUltio_n ·arid · .. ·.:.~eighbor that' he believ~-- that the aelf'-identified 
:~ ... .. cam~~ back iii FebrUary_-~-·.· ..... , .• We didD't have ·ft·-.~·. •college studen~_.,were-t9.0. old to be actual college 
' . [probabl~ e&:use] un~ilinid~F~~ruary.· 1~ ~ part of.. _ .stu~ents,'.:\Piitli' ~~ too new. and ·expensive to be 

'·its eft"ort to ~evelop ptob~le~eause· and to gather. 7 _._owned. bY. college studenta .... He commented that 
-~fi~ · · .: <:additional ilitelligenee, -on·· .. ·Jan\UU')'=·l0/'19~3. th~_ ~:· · they w.ere p~~ly. Feder~l:agents.17 The agents 
Jl . -- ATF set up surveillanc.e· cameras in an undercover ..... were .. also informed~ by __ one _or Koresh'a neighbon 
.:::-~·.::.. _ ·- ; ·.-house· acros8. ·rrom· the ·Davidian·:resideilce. ~:~·~ .-,. ·ah'otily ·after-they ~)egan- surveillance that Koreah 

...... 

.:·surveillance --produced no ~additional· ·eVidence· ·or · ·.suspected they were not what they claimed to be.1• 
eriminal activity.· Former Davidiarili ·were inter-: On one ·oceasion, the n·avidiaM visited their new 
viewed in December 1992 and January 1993. neighbors in the undercover -house to deliver a six 
Among those Interviewed were three members or pack or beer, but the occupants or the house would 
the Bunda family, an or whom. had. left the not let them in.U Finally, Koresh complained to 
compound before 1992. The· events that were de- the local sheriff that the UPS delivery man was an 
saibed by the Bunda occurred prior to 1992,18 and undercover police officer.20 Koresh commented 
the information they provided was so stale as to be that he did not appreciate being investigated. At 
or little or no value. the hearing, Agent Rodriguez testified that •a]] « 

Importantly, the only activity mentioned in the [the undercover ATF agents], or myself' knew we 
affidaVit involving the Branch Davidian& that OC· .· · were going to have problems. It was just too-too 

··-· ·· .. -- ... -. ·· ·· · curred between December 1992 and February 1993 ·.·obvious." II . . . . .. - .. 

· ...... :~:}~ .. • · was Agent Rodriguez's undercover visits to the The undercover operation was also undermined 
, .. ) ----"1j~l; __ :_.~',.: D.llrid!~:~e~denc.e .. ~~ _vi~i~ consisted .. Q(Kore$h.:::~. -~Y its limited_ na.~~-= The 24-hour-a-day surveil· 

li ,. speaking to Rodnguez libout· Second Amendment··· ·tance was·ol)ly sustained-from January 11 through 

.. · 
.. - . . ... ·. 

•• ·.t..·• 

:-. rights, .~re~ ~o.wing .~: ~J>e or .. ~leged -ATF ··· Janu~ ... l~. ·~t which time Agent Chuck Sarabyn, 
:~.:-., ... ··abuBe&/.ilnd::the ·two men··shooting legal.firearmir .. r~·.'the'·A'i'F taCtical eommander, ended the constant 

· at the .. ·cam pound's range:· It -· appears that·-· .... s.w-Veillance artd redirected the mission toward in· . 
ROdriguez -discovered no evidence during his-visits 'filtration or the ·compound.22 It was later deter· 
that would have contributed to a finding of prob. mined at trlal that during the period or constant 
able cause, or that W!3uld have provided valuable surveillance the .. agents within the bouu did not 
inf'ormation to guide subsequent ATF action. Nev· know what Koresh looked like. Rodriguez testified 
ertheless, in a case or such potential danger that at trial that the only picture identification that the 
it was designated •sensitive• and •significant,• the agents possessed was •a driver's license picture « 
ATF proceeded with ita February raid. him, which was not that good. That was one rea-

·.· ThrOughout the~ ATFs inv~stigation decisions. ·son ·we· [later] needed. to. make contact with the 
. . · · ·- ·· _were made and actions .were:· takeri which dem-· · · people· inside the eompo'\md, so we coul4 identify 

onstrated a . reckless disregard (or the value _of him. I myselt did not know what he looked like [at 
weD-developed intelligence. Furthermore, the hap· · ·· the time of surveillance].• 23 Significantly, the sur· 

. hazard manner in which the investigation was .. veillarice · log cites two Occasions when a white 
. pursued . repeatedly exposed the. lac~ or adequate -~ale jogged up 'and do~ the road ~ .which the 
command, ~n~l ~d .. com~urueatiorfs . processes .. undercover house was l~ted.St If this JOgger bad 

· to support such an operation;.· · ·· · ~ ... :~·· · · · · . ~ ·: ·::--· :·_: · · been Koresh, •ccol"ding to Rodrigueii bia1 testi· 
c. UNDERCOVER oPERA noN mony, the_ agen~ would. not ~ve _kn~wn it. The 

. . . · ·· ···· -· · -· lack or an. efFective surve1llance operation was fUr. 
· On January 11, 1993, eight ATF agents moved the.r demonstrated through the ATFs tailure to de. 

into a small house directly across from the front velop nearly 900 photographs taken from the UD• 
drive ot the Davidian residence, posing as college dercover house or to review videotapes or the 
students attending the nearby Texas State. Tech· movements of the Davidians.:as This evidence rep-
meal College. TJtrougb a series or mistakes, the resented an opportunity to develop critical intel· 

. . .. ATF .. appealed to lose the sec.urity or its under· · .. 

. :~~,~=~ ~!~~f!¥t@~!~~;~~~~~~~z:~t:~~IPII~ 
~---.·~ .. ;.:- ,--.:: ~ · ;· .'.r.-.;.1;1~ &r~::~.~Hout:.~ • :~.-~ •• 1~ .. 7.~ •. (1)(6)(1)(8)(8)(10)(11) li(12)(W.D•,.&·I~~ 

'.-~~~~-.. ~·: ____ -.. -,::.·~~~--:~:·~~&~au1-A :-:~~-~--~~.:~ .. : __ ·:-: .. :: .. ,·:~- =~~~--;,.~·~· ~c··J · .. -'·
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•· 
ligenee regarding the habit& and movements of aeterminat1on or a neutral and detached mag. •' 
compound residents, including Koresh. istrate that probable cause exists to believe that 

The lack or such basic and critical intelligence. the search will yield evidence or criminallty.21 The 
. ::clearly .Wldeimined·the ability of-the undercover . standard articulated in Rlinou v. Gatu, which 

. . . operation to fulfill its mission. The operation's fail--· guides a· magistrate's ·probable cause determina· 
:_:-;':::. _·,. .. :ure :to·~ develop~ useful_:intelligeJtc:e after .8 days. or._.·, tiona, .is whether CtJtere is a fair probability that 
. ::._,,:' -· --eontinuous survefllance should not have led to the ·. contraband or-evidence of a crime will be found in 
.--f;. : .. termination of-the s\irveillance, but .. rather to ita a particular place.• 28 Such a determination is, in 
·:- · . .---- modification"an'd prolongation. Given the potential -. the Supreme. Court's words, a ~ractical, common· 
· · ·· · for· -danger to ·.agents: and __ th~se -·-~thin . the ';.:.sense. ·decision ---whether, given all the cir-

.0:-·- .· .. - .. c:Ompound and the dearth of_int;elligen_~. th_~ 4.e~- .·- ·. eum_stances: . .et :·forth in the affidavit before the 
aion to end around-the-clock sur.veJ~c,_ WS$ __ -~ri~. , . . magistra~ • :• • -there ia a fair probability that ~e 

__ . :. oua~ flawed. Signifi~antJy, ·an _·C)f th~ ATF iU.pe!'· . contrab.~d or evidence or a crime will be found ~ 
visorj' &gents mvolved in the planning-or the oper· . a particular place.•. . . .- .. 
ation believed the. continuous surveillance con tin· . When applying this common sense standard to 
ued beyond the '·date it was actually ended. This - the circumstances or the ATF investigation, the af. 
mistaken belief both confirms that the termination . fidavit appears to have contained sufficient evi-
of the surveillance was ill-advised, and highlights dence ot violation$ of Federal firearms law to sup. 
the wholly inadequate command, control and com· port the magistrate's decision to issue the war· 
munieations processes utilized by ATF throughout rants. 30 There were substantial purchases or AR-
the operation. The eyes and ears were poorly uti· 15 semiautomatics and AR-15 lower receivers, gre-
lized, and what intelligence they did supply was nade hulls, and black powder. A neighbor, who 
poorly used. · had served in an Army artillery unit, testified that 

·--···· -----D.-FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH "sENSITIVE·. h~_ bad frequen~ _heard t~e soll!ld of automatic 
. · . SIGNMCANT" PROCEDURES . . . . . weapons fire. A dep~ty sheriff testif!~ that ~e bad 

- · .. , · .... · .. -. -- - -=- --;; ---- "'·. - -- :_. _ - , . .. . · ~. .... • . . heard a loud explosto~ at the DaVIdian restdence 
:-:.--:.::,_!.~::.::T.·-~·no~ m.J~~e;Tre.asury ~potf;~~e,;~~_es~ ~~~- ··.~::wlli~b~j)rOduced.a_ cl~u.d of grey smoke. Taken to­

.· · · -v~stigation~ w~ classdi~ ~ sensttiy~_ .. ~~- .. stg·_ . gether, this .. information provided a sufficient basis 
....... · . ... n:~~t" wtthj~ ·a w~k of ~~. fo~ ~~~atton _o~, .·. for finding. P!obable cause to issue the warrants. 

-·.·.-June 9,-:1992. ·Such: ·a classifi~tion 1s mtended: to .. _ While .the warrants "may have met the minimal 
. . e!lsu~ a rugner degree. of inv~lvemen.~: ~-d over· ..... ~daTd'otCOOstitu~onal sufficiency, the affidavit 

11gbt from both the ATF S~al ~nt m ~barge supporting ·the warrants contained numerous 
and ATF headquarters. Yet, In Splte or tlus des- misstatements of the facts misstatements of the 
igna.tion, ~e .agents. in ~har~ or the ~vestigati.on. law, and misapplication of the law to the facts, 
rece!ved. muumal ~verStpt. m develop1ng the m· and serves as a de faCto record of a poorly devel· 
vestigation and r&Jd, With 1mporta.nt elements ~f oped and mismanaged investigation. The affidavit 

. !he plan, such as whe~er or not to abort the raJd included misleading and facJ,ual1y inaccurate state-
if ~e element of aurp~se was l~st, apparently ~ot . ments, contained substantial irrelevant· and con­

. bet~ UDders~ by tlie agen.ts _In . charge. lti ~eW . fusing info·rma~on, and failed .to properly qualify 
of tlus · des1gnati~n, the. lac~ of knowl~e on the witnesses' testimony when obviously called for 

_part or the Speoal Agent. 111 ~· ~d H~d-. baeed on their backgrounds. Consequently, the at 
_ .. __ . .. . .. . · quarters, throughout ~e "!ves~~~n-mch!.ding . fidavit gave. the appearance that the ATF was not · 

·-' ~~ un~e~over .ope~tion-:-ls striking. The .sen· · going to let questionable facts or evidence stand in 
11tive/s~~t desJgnation make:s AT.Fs fmlur~ the way of moving forward on their timetable. 
f.c? ~ve l!Dple!Dented a proces~ ~or continually re- · The affidavit. proVided and sworn to by Aguilera 
~ewmg mt:elligen~ .and modifying plans accord- contained ··numerous . errors and misrepresenta· 

· ingly a glanng ODUSSlon. tions, ·which, taken together, create a seriously 
E. Tim"AFriDA.VJT JN SUPPORT OF THE WARRA.NrS flawed affidavit. '111e affidavit misstated that 

Koresh -Possessed a British Boys anti-tank .52 cali­
ber rifle, when in fact Koresh owned a Barret Ught 
.GO fireann.31 Possession or the British Boys would 
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i..~.~.:_~:_: ... ~.:~[-~.·.:;.~:·--~-·.~ · 1 have been a felonys2 wh.ne possession or the Bar- named the E2 kit, It wrongly asserted that "the· 
. ret was completely legal. The affidavit misstated parts in the kit can be used with an AR-15 rifle 

. :.~ -~_;:_. ~:.:· that the M16 parts kits kifrom hi~chesard compdany or lower. receiver to .assemble a machinegun • • • 
.. . were two CAR and two EZ 'taw containe all ThP. parts in the E2 kit also can be used to convert 

... ·; •:.. -·the parts of an Ml6 machine gun except .tor the . an AR-15 into a maehinegun.•ae These assertions 
;_: .-.:. ~~:;_; ~ · :. ·lower· receiver · unit,· ·when;· in fact, the- ··Nesard · are false. The Treasury D~partment regulates gen­

.......... =-.::: .. _ partsJqts ·do not contain the auto sear. ~d pin ~uine conyersion kits as iC they were themselves 
. · . · :·: ;·:~ ·~ :· · _ · which ~-e. ~s.~tu~ly neee~sary to convert ·sem.i· ~ ·: 'machin~~-~.·_lt .doos riot regulate E2. kits. . 

·:.:. :~}.~.:·.~ -, .. ~.~ .. ~!lto~~c. we~po~s to machme guns." ~e. affi~~· ·... .·. In~matii)g that: .~resh wu:eonverting AR-15 
... >_;.~:~::.·.-.. ·.··, ~t. ~~~~~mention. tha~ grenade h~Js·.like thQse ~- Sporters and· semlautomatic·eopies of AK-4Ta into 
.·.:·_-/:·;::~~-~ ... ~.:~;Clted: U:Lthe_ ~daY!t: ·to· ~elp··.!s~lis~.:. PJ'9~1e · .... J~u~.rn~~~ •.. ~ler.~ Jncl~ecL evidence ol pur­
._·.-~~::-~. :.·.· :·cau:~ _liad.J~e7n ~ld by the. DaVJdians .m the .. P~.t: .. ·=·~·~elulses._.,~e-~.by~. J.(or_esh .. from'·-;. South Carolina 
·• -···:··. -.:- .. ._t gun, sh~v.rs as:·pa~r:·w~~hts. and !D~un~~t ~~-- .~.:.,CQ~pany. which was· mown to-·'sell parts needed to 
.. · .. ·. ·) ·.~·:·-_- . plaqu~s. Firially; the affida.Ylt wu IDlSl~di.ng ~Y. . conver(.~oililutomaties·;.of~tl)e~ type that Koresb 

repo~~ that Depu~ Sheriff Tel"l')' Fuller was m· .. - · possessed into automatics. :AgW1era failed even to 
~· ·• -'7: •• : . ·. -·the VJ~ty or the .compound when be beard a lo!ld allege that Koresh purchased parts from this com· 
. ~~· .. _-~ expl~Ston, but then failed to report th~t .Fuller m~. ·pany which would have allowed the conversion or 
.. _::-:.~· ve~tigated ~d learned tha~ the DaVJdians were semiautomatics into automatics. Nowhere in the 

usmg dynaDUte for construction. affida •t • ~"" 'd th t D ·di 
-~ ...... Former Davidian Mare Breault provided much or. V1 15• WJere • eVI ence a • aVl ans wer_e 

the information contained in the ATFs affidavit. m~ufacturing the1r ~wn automa~1c sears, .or modi· 
. . ~-.-:~:· Yet, nowhere in the affidavit is it mentioned that fying ~~ lower recetvers or ~mu~utomatics, both 

. Breault left the compound as an opponent or or wblch would have been VIOlations or firearms 
··: :~:·::; -· · Koresh, a fact . certain to call into . question Jaws. - • · • • • · • 

-~ .·.:~~; · Breault's motives. Nor does the affidavit mention .Theedaflici:V1
1 

t dwas. D1!sleubadiling .m thThat 1~!aldsel}' 
. .· · ·· that he is blind. On the contrary, the aftidavit ·im~· ··- referr to c B.? estine p catio~s. e auJ !Vlt 
.:. :-_ .. :..:-.. <. • . plies that he was a compound bodyguard. It states reported ·that m June 1992! a· wttness .had ob­

-~-~:.:::;··~:- .. :··:·.=:···that:·BreatiJt .. t~p&rticipated-Ui'physieal training an·d. , .served~ the compound pubhshed magazmes such 
· .. · · .; :· .. :' firearm shooting· exerCiS.es. conducted 'by Hoviell..._ .. _,; as, the Shotgun News .and Qther related cl.andes-

. ' .. ,.,. · ·>·,He:stood guard armed with a loaded weapo~.~~··- ~ .... ~ · tine. magazin~s.".3~ ~~ from ·clandestine, Shot8l;"' 
· ·: · · ·· · ·: The:·B.ftidavit•also eontained misapplleation·s .. or~n:·~ews ~a_ ~culation of.about.l65,000. Suhscnp-

.. · : · ·.firearms Jaw~ The affidavit alleged the Vjolatip_rtof. .. · _t!ons are avaJ1able by m~I o~ telephone. The Aus-
one statute: 26 U.S.C. §5845(0. This statute, how- ·- tin,·TX ATF office-Aguilera s home office-was a. 
ever, merely defines •destructive device.• It does subscriber. 
not establish any crime. It is 26 U.S.C. § 5861. · F. FINDINGS CONCERNING THE ATF INVESTIGAnON 
which establishes crimes related to destructive de· 
vices. The affidavit also confused the term "explo· 1. The ATF's investigation of the Branch 
sive" with the term •explosive device,• a tenn Davidians was grossly incompetent. It Jacked 

· · · . which· does not appear in Federal law. ·- . the minimum professionalism expected of a Fed-
.·· · ·· .·.:·.,··.~ ·. · · In the affidavit, Aguilera misstated .. tbat a ~ma· eraJ law enforcement agency. Among the failures 

·~··:.·· · · chinegun (conversion Jdt• was a combination or, . ,~fthe investigation were:·· 
.. Plllts •either designed or intended" to convert a. · · · • The- failure ·to accept Koresh's offer to fn. 

· ··· · · · ~· ··· · semiautomatic into an automatic firearm. In fact, spect the · _ firearms held at the Branch 
. . .. ~. : Federal law defines a conversion kit to be a com· · Davidian residence. It is unclear why the ATF 

bination of. parts •designed end intended• to con· did not accept the ofFer to conduct a compli· 
vert a semiautomatic 'into an automatic.~.::-:.-.· . · · · ance inspection or Koresh's firearms. What is 

_ In· the affidavit, Aguilera also uiisstatecf that · · · cle~ j~ tha~ the agents' refusal of' Koresh's in-
... - Koresb had ordered M-16 -EZ kits.• 'lhe kits to vitation .waS the first· or a series or instances 

which Aguilera was· referring are called.~· kits.·· - .· .. ·' ill. ~hich the ATF rejected opportunities to 
· ···~ ... :.: · Furthermore, the E2 kit is a spare parts kit, not · · · proCeed in a non-confrontational manner. The 
.... a convenion kit. It contains spare parts which fit . agents' decision to decline Koresh's offer was a 

either a semiautomatic Colt AR-15 Sporter or an serious mistake. 
automatic Colt M-16 automatic. Because it is not • The failure to recognize obvi~us b~hes of 

·· :-···: : .::.: · · -- a conversion kit, the E2 kit is not regulated by surveillance security. Some of these breaches 
· :~_ '~:_.<~]~.~~;~;. ... _.,,,Federallaw.·Yet the affidavit bnplies that the kit's ... -.... w~~- so serious and obvious that they should 

~~;.~:';·~§~J~: .. :=u!.'b':r-~~=t.'.t~~S:~ti~e;~.:;,:~.~·:c .. ~~~~=~~~;~~e .t!'!idae:!! ~ 
· .. ::·.-.-: ·:·~·--·~~·;·';);;~:. ::- .~ent. Report ~~.IDJstaken_ as .. w.~ll. ~1-~, J~ 'to~y·, : !_ .• : -:::: f:9~_4! .. th~::~: fo.~ -~~~g the nature or the 

·,F,,~~i:}':~:-:_-~;:~=a~~f~~;;·--;:;:;;;~:.:~· ··· :.~·,~JS~t~;:·:~·~:;;--=:::~ .. ·~ · 
·. -~ . . • s. 28 u.s. c. 16841. - "ApiJa AtllclaYi' an" . 
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.... ~. '·.: 
: :• ·- ·-. 

. _.:_.:·_:_:._·.;~~--~.: . • The f'ailure to analyze intelligence gathered 8. The ATF should make every etto.:t ~.o ob. 
during the undercover operation, including &aln contini.loua and substantial intelligence 

· : __ :· · more than 900 photographs of' activities and 8hould ensure that the etrorta to obta.iD 
• < • • around the Branch Davidian residence. These 1uch Intelligence are not hindered by 

.. : ~=: photograp~s .. coul.4. ~av~.Jed. -~. f:b'--· _deyelop-, ... ~reach~ .. of ~ty. The ~TF had a !n'oken and 
· -... -· ·.· · ·- · · · ·. ... ment of en tical. intelligence regilrding the hab- .. m~ecure .1ntelhgence operation. Gap~ m the sur· 

·-~~:--~~X~;~_: .... , .. . .its and . movements of the·: DaVidia.ns· · and velllm:tce -~d .breach~~ of the secunty of' under· 

,._ -· ;,,·;)31~ -.-.-_'.:/;/·~·--tv~i~~;t~~~:~~·l$~~~~h·-·-·-~;:al~:~:fe~::~~i~~:~:;~~ ~~ 
. . .':: -·~:· .:·..... ..·: , .. . .-V~lop q,~futmtelligence after 8 days of contm· · ~ ·If th 1 _,__ te t in .. t.. affida • .,._ -.· .. · .. ~;,.<.~~:-L>~ . .-., :: .. _;_. ·· · ···uous surveillQ.Jl~ should not have· led .. to .. the·:-: ... ::--- ~· ·• · · tLU~..L¥U sta men Wle vt .. 

: --~ ·· · ~ · · · :.· · · ·· · ---.· · .. · :· · ·:~temiination. ~or: the_·_:siirveillance, but rather. to. ~. f11e_d ~- ·~pport o( ~e search and 8J"l'e8~ war· 
. c.:~-· .·:---::~r.:::~~~--~~,·=·.,.· __ =~·::: .:·:_· .. ~-:)t&. P.tolonp~on.-QiV.en Qte· pOten~l-for:--d8n •.. ,._'rant .U..~~~~~d~,.~~ Jmahowluledlebeof 'te~·~t 

: .. -.. ·- ·=-~. · '· · ·· · · · · .. _ ·ge;· to ·agents··and those withiri the residence~· . • ty, ~ ~aes • o ro.._..,. 
:·:·_::~·\· and the dearth of intelligence, the decisi()n to against ~e per&ODB making the statements. 

. . . end around-the-clock surVeillance· was· seri- · Ill. PLANNiNG ANI) APPROVAL or THE RAm 
ously flawed. · 

. : ..•.... · 
· .... · 

~~ Whne the ATF had probable cause to ob- The ATF bad a variety of' options in the manner 
tain the arrest warrant for David Koresh and in which it could have served the arrest and 
the search W8lTallt for the Branch Davidian search warrants on Koresh. These options included 
residence, the alfidavit filed In support of the"' luring Koresh otr the Davidian residence, arresting 
warrants contained numerous false state- Koresh while be was off the Davidian property, 

_menta. The ATF agents responsible for preparing surrounding the Davidian residence and waiting 
for Koresh to surrender himself and consent to the 

the affidavits knew or should have known that search, and executing a •dynamic en~ atyle raid 
many of t!te statements were false. inro the residence. The ATF chose the dynamic 

-· - ... - - . -.. . - . :·. 3. DaVId -~re~. co~d ha~e. ~D .-~ste~, .. -·.entry raid, the· most hazardous of the options, de. 
.. ___ ... _ . -· :· · ~utside the Davu:lian compound. 'l'be · A_TF. de- .: . : ,. spi'te' its ·recognition- that a. violent confrontation 

..... : ...... · .. __ h~~~Ir,,c~?,se._n,~t .. ro ~rrest Koresh_ ~U~lde the.· .·was .prediCtable. The .. decisions regarding the raid 
·.-·:.~"::; :!·'-:.!-· • ...... , ·' "· ·; -·DaVIdian~·-residence··and mst.ead: de_teTIJU.?ed ~:';lSe·_ .. ·:we_r~_·ma.~~ W:i~ou~ ~~-participation of" either Sec· 

, .· ... :·: :. · . .-, . . . . .. . , a dynanuc entry a~proach. lri- making ~.s dec1slon: ·· ret,ary Qf the Treasury- Lloyd Bentsen or the Dep· 
, .. : _. .. : ATF:. agents .. ~ercts~ e~re~~ly .poor Juc:Jgment, - -uty Seeretiey· of the Treasury Roger Alb:nan. 

made erroneous assumptions, and lg'Ilored the per· 
ils of this course of action which they should have A. WAS •sHOW TIME" EVEN NECESSARY? 
foreseen.. · ... The .. sUbcommittees received evidence of nu .. ~er· 

G. RECOMMENDATIONS ous opportunities to arrest Koresh away lron ·he 
residence, thereby reducing the likelihood of io· 

1. Whenever it Is feasible to achieve its ob- lence .. The failure ~ make use of these oppor{ Jli • 
. ... ·- jectivea, the ATF . should. use less ties raises the_qu~stion of the dynamic entry'• 1e· 

.·· ..... confrOntation~. tacti~. The ATF had an oppor··· · . cessi_ty. ATF_ officials offered at least threE lif· 
· ·. . . tunity to search the Davidian residence at the in· ferent rea5ons for this critical decisi~ . 

- . . . . . vitation of Koresh. Koresh was off the property · ATF Special Agent Phillip Chojnacki, the '0\"t. all 
and subject to the .capture of law enforcement on. . commander or the raid, testified that Koresh. t :· ·J.ld 
numerous occasions before the raid. The ATF not be arrested outside the residence becaust ~e 
should 'have taken advantage . or ~ese less intelligence from the undercover house was .'\at 

.. confrontational opportunities. .·The ATF should be. rarely left the· residence. 38 ATF did not \'· :utt 
punue such alternatives in the future. · the tactical problem of" having agents on standby 

. !. Federal law ento~ment.:&gencies should .. - indefinitely while they waited for the rare eo· ·"'Ur· 
· . _-::_~verify the credibility and the_ timeliness of renee of Koresh going into town. 

the information on which they rely iD obtain· Yet the testimony before the subcommittee·. re-
lng warrants to arrest or search the property vealed that Koresh left the Davidian residence at 
of an American citizen. The affidavits on which least once a week during January and Pebruary.39 

the arrest and search warrants of Koresb w~ or- .. David Thibodeau, who lived at the Branch 
qered contained . information provided to the ATF Davidian residence but did not consider himself' to 

· ~-.~::.;_,~_by._ info~ts ,·with: .. obY.i.ous ~bl~. toward KQresh--~·· :.be _a_. membet:. ... _oj_ tbe. _er&nch DavjdiaD religious 
- '':·. ':~:t.~'-?::..:- ·.· ·::._~,· and the DaVidiana;ln addition;" m~_b- Q( t.h.e. iD(of~~~-~~~m~liilicy,·,.·~atifi~a_.· tli.at Koresb wu a regular 

mation was stale, based ori eiperleiices yean .. ~~-;: .. jogger.!IO It-was· also revealed during the trial that 
. . fore the investigation. The -ATF . should obtain · Koresh had left the ·residence on Januar,y 29, 1993, 

--~-- ,:_-~ :~;~:_;_:·-- fresh and unbiased infonnatio~·:"'~~n }eliing -_on~~:: ~- ,-;:,: __ ·-~·.:.--= ~~ --::~,::, :~-: ·.-~: ·~::-:- ·.: .. -. · 
-.:= ;:-.-:-.-: · .-: ·:~·--·· that information to arrest or. seaidi tlie ,.premises ·-. ---- • H~ Puo· aUll. 

· ? 7·''-'.:, ~th sub. ~· • · . -· · ,.•ld.al123 • 
. . _ ..... . · 01 e ~~ts ~~ 1nvestigattona .... ·::. -- ~ -:: -- --··. --:~---~=.~.-.-- •rtL · 
·=--~-·"':.•;"'.: 
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... . . .. . ~·~.·:: 
~··. ·>~; . to eonduet busineu at a UUlChine shop:n Finally, Mount Carmel, the Davidians' home.48 Contact be-

:<:~:~;~~=< the manager at the; Chelsea 8ar and Grill in.Waco tween ATF and Breault was made during Decem· 
. _. _ .. ~~--~:~/ s~ted that they served Xoredt about once a week ber l992. During that time and up to the time ot 

· · · through Feb~:•2 · · _ . _ the raid, .the f'ormer Branch Davidian provided in· 
... · .~_._: ~-~:: __ /:: __ .i . · · ATF _agents ~ext-U:pt~~-~at .. i~.1i't~-~t atake -· f'ormation about the Davidians and Koresh in par· 

_practical ~ens_e:to arT~~~~"~ ~ul.aiue ~~e he ..... ·.ticular, including his . past correspondence. In a 
·~· ·-··::.:~·=· ::~:t1_ · · -~owd_ i_mf!ledi~tely be I'! I~ -~d ~-d· be ~~- .... · paPer· prepared by. ~reault and provid~. to the 
... ·-.·:=;,~}::=_ .. ~.·~.~~: .. ;;· · at_thC: reThis~c!e~ce. !h.~..:~-dta:o~~JS ~~K'?u··ty~ -~~ :. AT,, • recent history of' the Branch. Davuliansdre-

..... _ ~-: -~ .. ~- .. ,_ _ row~. ... _s_·:.~~~~r. -~-~-· .. ,~~ ll'n:uwl . amce counts the group's views that the world will en in 
·-- , .•. :.- .. _.. - Federal Jaw proVIdes that the arrestee can ~e held -_ ·a finalviolent battle.· .. ··-::·_ ... 

· · ~~;~··-::.~:: Cor3·~ys upon: motiOn oC·the7gOvernment..~ ... ~~ .·.~-.·.· ~·=·~. ·~· _ .~.~~ ··. · __ .·;.·:-.. . _ · . ··_ -: . 
-:.:: -~:;.):-~ -.~·;·,.:. --~Firially, .. ATF-·offidals testified. at the .hearingi. . ,. C. THE PREDJSPOSmON TO D'YNAMIC ENT1lY 

·- · · :: ·. ·- that they abatiaori~ ·the idea .. or trying .... i() ~~s~, -.,:--·, An examination of' ATFs timellne in the Waeo 
· . Koresh outside· the re.sid~nee · because their · pri· ·... · investigation and raid planning aetivities reveals 

·~.-~·::· m~ goal.~as _to __ ge~ ms1de ~conduct a search. that plfJlni.rig f'or a military style raid began more 
·.: _: .:~-: :~· · ·- These offiCials ma:mtamed that 1t was prererable to than 2 months bet'ore undercover and infiltration 

·: . .._ :.::.- attack the residence by surp~se and get Koresh efforts even began. 
·· · · and the guns at the same time.~ However, the ... . .• 

ATF had developed ita own scheme to Jure Koresh 1. The source of tM predlspoSJtlon 
off the complex. 'Ibe ruse wu proposed to Joyce a. The culture within the ATF 
Sparks, the social worker who had conducted an 
earlier child protection investigation at the Branch Man·agement initiatives, promotional criteria, 

:· ;:.. Davidian residence. Sparks was to contact Koresh, training, and a broad range or other cultural f'ac· 
-: ·. · .. who. she had come to know relatively well, and tors point to ATFs propensity to engage in aggres· 

~ ····:<=·-?~::; .... ·· make an appointment with him to be held in her siy~__J~w en.rorcem~nt. .Senior officials f'rom other 
~:,· .. " .... _ =. o~ce .. ~le Sparb agreed to cooperate with the Jaw enr?rcement agenc1e~ have commented on ~e 
=--··~~~ i: ·: . . :.:· ATF~>Sp~~., .-.s.~~rvi~t-,-J~ to'"_approye ~~ , ... , ~1! r~d. ~everal h~ve .informed the subcomrrut· 

... · ··-· · ·: ruse tactic . ..a· .,-. "· · . ...: .... · ..... ; ... ·.-·.~.-~:·- ::· . "·::·_ .. _.tees t}lat· th.~Jr OTPJ:l~tions would not have han· 

.· __ ~~~ ~-i~:~_.:·. ·,::~·- .· .. : .·~:·~-~:~w~ Tf.IE:~~~~ _ourt~ ~~i#~-~t ... _:_·:· ... \.~.'~, ~:::~;~~~~~~~~~t~:~: :0~~~ ~ 
·,. _ :· · · :~··. : ·.:_ .. -_::-. 1')1~ r.e.~-~~;:of !-he· ~~mittees'J#vestiga-tion' ·-·'For e~~nriple, .. Jeffrey Jamar; the FBI Special 

shows that persons who through contact. and expe· Agent·)Il.:Ch,arge of the Waco standoff, was asked 
rience became familiar with the belief system and about the FBrs -approach· iO such a circumstance. 
the authoritarian structure or the Branch He stated that he •would not have gone near the 
Davidians could have . predicted a violent resist· place With 100 assault weapons.• 51 

ance by the Davidians to a mass Jaw enf'orcement b The w; Trib n raid' "S"nful u 
action. The Branch Davidians predicted a violent · . h. aco une· e 8 

' es· 

·. 

a~~ypse, a visi~n that followers believ~ be nee· S&a . 
· · · · · essary to: go :t:e·heav~n. .. ,:· · · . .. _ :· -~- One f'ac~~ affe~ti~g ATFs decision to employ a 
· . · · · ·-·The · ATF investigative ·agents interviewed dynamie-·entry·'was·· the- impending release of' a .· Sparks, who bad kept lines of' communication open newspaper story abOut K9resh and the Davidians 

between Koresb and. herself even after the· end of . which revealed the Federal law enforcement inves-
. :her Child Protective Services investigation. During tigiltion then underway. The Waco Tribune-Herald 

· · their · eo.nversations, Koresh would often provide had planned to release a series o(articles on David 
lengthy presenta.tions of' his religious beJiers. · Koresb_in early 1993.52 Fe&ring publication of' the 
Sparks developed an understanding of how 'Kores_h~·=. ··article, ATF hastened its plans to serve the arrest 

.· -th~ugbt and how he was viewed within the Branch --and search warrant. It wa.i unclear, however, how 
Davidian gro~l? at. the ___ ~d!nce. When ATF Koresh woul_d react to the story. In f'act, ATF Spe-
sought her opm1~n. about ~e rmd~ she stated that--. eial Agent. Robert Rodriguez _suggested .that the 
the Branch DaVIdian a believed that Koresh was newspaper article did not upset Koresh. A 

··:· .. the Lamb or God and that they would protect him 
. to the death. -rhey will get their guns and kill -.---

you, • Sparks recalls saying. 41 u.s. DepL t1 the ~. Jteport ot the Department fL the~ 
= · · :,.-.: .. - · - :.· Th- .. .&ml:.' 1 · "ved !-1. • c.-. M "'7 on the Bureau ot Alcohol. TC~bacaa. ADII f'ftarml llmlltiptioa fL - :-. .. .. -: ·• ~~ -- - e ~4_.1.' . ~ ~~-n.tel. .. 1;11;10rmation a.n.Jm . a~e ~ V~ Wayne Howe!~ aJ1o know'll .. Daricl X..b 29 (li93) (beniao 

-- · ... ; .. , .. _--.. · '.··.· ·-~~---- Breaul~ ·a·f'o-rmer· BranCh. J)aVidian and resident at · ... ~.~ Treiaury ~t=J. .... · 
~~-,:~~~~~~~~~~~~--~ -~~:~;~ 

-- -· ·":·.-:" · .. 18 U.S.C f31GCO. · .. .. . · · ·· ..... •·-::::·::". :.:;:~·J~UtJ« tJ('.IM·HoUM-Co...allla M ~ Rl(oma 01111 ~ 
,., :~~;; :.·~~::~·.,. . :}1~ut l_at:~~--- ... ~-.: -.; :~_- =. ~_:; ... _ . _ _,..,·.·_·: __ ,- .. ~.~:: . . . 1~ Core. bt S... 300 (lt96) ~ Heariap Pat 1). 

=-, ':-:. ·' · .·.- ct Jaa. D. Tabor 6 Eareoe V. o.n.t-. WhJ W.Mof. 1.;.;10 (199'5). •Treanry Deput.meat Report at 11-ee. 
• H-. Put 1• . II Hearinp Pan 1 at 7151,105. 
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2. Rald 4pproval a.nd l4cl of Trea8u, Department place for the dir&etor or the ATF to apprise the 
ovel'lighl of ~TF . . Secretary or Deputy Secretary of the ATF's plans. ' 

Testimony reeeived during the bearings estab- ldr. BRYANT: Wu there any process or 
·; · :,: .-·:: .: lis bed that there was no process through which proc~ure available to you as the Director 

··· · · : ··. - ·· . _ . TreasUJY Department officials were able ~ review..... . or the ATF to brief" either the Deputy or · >~-~~~<~ · ~ ·pending ATF. matten prior· to their ·reaching .. & cri-·· · · ... ·-: .. the Secretary?· : ;: · 
-~ .... ·;.-·.-··.;~.,..:, · · .. sis stage.:·In·the investigation of Koresh,. there was .. Mr. HIGGINS: I could have called them 
. ·. ;··.,:·}~:·· no ovenigbt by Treasury over the ATFa planning· , ' and said, yes, I would like .to brief" you on 
- ·:.=: .. :.~::!= .• :.:-.-: "., · · · •.. ·.:and execution of the raid until approximately .48 · . something. I think they were accessible, 

·:~-~~.:•:.:... .. ... ~·.hours before :the- raid occurred.-"'· -T~_sq~~ny re~ ·:_: .yes. .. ..... _ .......... . 
. - ···- :.:.~:-~~~·-=: .· .. ..:·~:vealed th~~ even though BentSen had been Tre~.·. . · · Mr~··aiivoo:· But there was no routine 

-~ ..... -... : .. '. ·:_ .. ::.:_,.. ury Secretary for' approximately 1 month at the - process? This was no regularly done at 
.. .... ··: • :.~. • •• ,. :.:7 ···~·-time of the ATF raid,. and -~~an--had .. been 'ieiv·· · :· that point?·:: .... ··:' .. ~ · 

ing u Deputy Secretary Cor the same .time peiiod,·~.: · -· Mr ... HIGGINS:': ·No routine process, a]. 
ATF Director Steven Higgiris had never met either . though ·most ·secretaries at some point set 
r th I a1 b • ~-..a th gardi. th • up a system where there is a regular, ei-

0 em, et one neu:u em re ng e m- ther eve'I"V week or every 2 weeks, meet· 
vestigation and planned raid. This point was es· ., 
tablished at the hearings during the questioning of" ing with bureau heads. aa 
Higgins by Representative Ed Bryant. The testimony before the subcommittees consist-

ently depicted a Treasury Department that treated 
Mr. BRYANT: When did you first meet ATF as its lowest priority. Department officials re-

with the Secretary to discuss anything peatedly demonstrated a Jack or interest in even 
about your agency, the ATF? major ATF actions, such as that or February 28, 

Mr. HIGGINS: I don't remember any 1993. The Department maintained a culture that 
.. __ ,briefings with the Secretary. I haven't perceived Jaw enforcement as, at best, a peripheral 

. gorie ~ck to look- at my documents. Prob- ·part of its mission; .. according the ATF correspond-
. .. .. .:_..:· .. ::. ~:.: ... : :·· .. al;>ly. m ~at first month, mon~ and. a ingly little .atte~tiol)~ This point w~ ~rought out 

. :·' . .: ... · ..... .. ltr-J.t. t.d9~.~ ~~e"mber ~y m~tin.gs wtth _· · ·during the. he_anl)gs through questlorung by Rep-
..... ··, _ ... · . ; : .... : him ... The O!llY.,!',!~ractioh we ·really .bad ·::.·:.~· .: ·reseri'tative Bill McCollum co-chairman of the sub-

;_,. x;:·::.;''~t~·.{::;.;; ~;~~~~~rs;ron~i~::}:. .~a,~; .. ~:·~:~;~~~ •. · .. · !J::~·~~~~;~o;r~s~ sp~:~r!b= 
. _, , ·'· ·· · Mr. BRYANT: Are YC?~ = saymg that you. 2· -~ · 28 · 1993. · .... , -. -· · 

· · · never had met with l8ecretai-,f.'Bentsen · · .,'·:;;·.- ·' :· •· : _:,·'. · .:- -·.·-,." · .. -... .. . 
· th" • t?· Mr. McCOLLUM: When did you first 

pnor to lS potn • , . )earn of the raid or any pJan for that raid? 
. Mr. HIGGINS:. I c~ t _re~ember haVIng . Mr. BENTSEN: I was in London at my 
gone to a s~meeting whlle.he was there first meeting with G-7 with the Ministers 

. . . : I don t remem~r speoficalJy today of Finance and was very much involved in 
havmg been at one wtth hlm. . . that one. l came back, to the best I can re. 

. . . . Mr. B~YA,NT: Had you ever !~let -~?th h~s . . .. call! som~ time early Sunday m~ming on 

... deputy, Mr~::AJ~an, ~for~ thls r&Jd. ·:, .. ~::. _·:. - a mght fl1ght from London, and m turn I 
Mr. HIGG~. I don t believe I knew Mr. did not find out about the raid, to the best 

AltJ;nan until then. I knew wb~ he. was, or my memory, until early Sunday evenin.g 
obVJously. . . . _ .. . . . . ... '· and that is the first knowledge I had of 1t 

Mr. BRYANT: Well, I am a little confused ··at all · 
here .. You are saying ~at you were the cf!· Mr: McCoLLUM: In other words, there 

.... rector .Q.f !be . ATF, . wh1ch: ~e ... all kn~w _1s.. ,_.as .. no discuss~on with you, no informa· 
very llgllificant, powerfUl element or the tion paSsed to you prior to the time of the 
Department of Treasury, and you had not raid that it was anticipated or that it 
met . with your ultimate boss, the ·See· ·.' .. ~-- : · ' might exist or any nature- · 

· retary, for 30 days or so? Mr. BENTSEN: That is correct. 
Mr. HIGGINS: I don't believe so, other Mr. McCoLLUM: Isn't it a little surpris· 

than maybe to shake hands, and I don't ing one or the largest or one or the largest 
even remember doing that. It is interest- raids in the BATF's history was taking 

·. · .._. ing that those who think there is some place, and the Secretary of the Treasury, 
::.;~;;:;t: :~: ~ ~='•::.:.:,.; ,~ :: :::;,;:·. giant. conspiracy ... in tb:~.,£0:Y_!~m~n~ doQ~t . . .. . . . the ehier or all of the law enforcement or 
~~?~·~·~, 

• .·.! :· ~- .. . : 

.. ·. . :. 

... ·: · ... ·.: 
.. ;-.'! 

.... . _,. 

.. · 
. . . . . .. ~~ ~- . 

·-: ·.· ·- .. :.· 

-~.,- ''··-=-.~:..:·:= .. ~:.::'~":':':: .. -.~ .:_.~ .. ld. ai &le-Uo."' . ;;::::-·~-·.-.-:--: _,,.,_ .... : ·.-.• ·._ .. - '' -· ;. .. . .. o '"-. , ... C'- .;;-. ,, 

·~:~--. :_: :: · •rd..-. : , .... ·.:;_ ~.· .. · ·-~~·~-' ~~ -· .. ::.':~.~~-,_;;;_·~~ ._.:; -.:~~-·' ~-~~ 561~~:'~.:~~ .~;~~T 
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··~ :-::·~:· 
.. :·. ~ ~ ·. • · monetary exchange rates and some very designation was Ignored in practice. In View or this 
.::-~:~rl=. serious subjects at that point, that others desigm~tion, the lack or knowledge on the part or 

-·· -· within the Department were handling the the Special Agent. in ~arge • an~ .ATF H~d-
.: · -~::_..: situation. _ -. .· . quarters throughout the mvestigation, incJuding 

. _ ·:. ::~-'=~ . Mr. McCoi.r..tiM:_·_ But· ~dit't. you keel? in: ~ --~·;:·:· th~ . ~dert?ver op~ratio~, · i~ striking. The 
::. _ - :;:_:_~ :~·~:::-~ ;.-_::· .. c:Ontact.::with··your ·office dunng .11!~ time ·_. .. -:·,: . "s~ns_Jtive/. Slplficant. des1gnat1on makes ATfs · 

.- . .- :': . .;::-;,·.:·. . --,. · · :yo·· u· we·re··-- ove· ·r- tJi--e~re-·'~·We."i'en't- there. tele~ .: . . fadure to bave 1mplemented a process for con tin· 
- · · · .. :·· · · • · · ·· · · · · · · · ·· .. ··· · · • lli d di~ lans .. -~· .:·:. ::·,. ;~5:) · .' :. . .. .;. ... P-hone calls? ·, :···:· · ~ ·: ·. · ·; . ~ ·. _ . _ ... ·. _ . ually ~vtewmg 1!1~ g~nc; an mQ ·~·nr P 

·• .. _,·:.:. .. :~!~·.-::··_,- ·:--:- ·_:: Mr.:·BENTSEN: or eourse/··. . . . .. . . . ·. ~~ccordirt.g!~-~ gl~nn.~ O~lSSJOn. 
"·< ~ <<',::~~~-··= -.:.: :·=-· · .: :: .. Mr •.. McCoLLUM: -:Nobody in the 1~ '!. ,~~·· · ... : .. · .... : . ·E~ "roii;)INc8.·coN.~G THE pUJOONc AND 

·- · ·:·:·--::.:..~:-;_,·-"·---·~ ·· .···--rorceinent division· thought you ·ougltt ·to ·--~--~ · < ~- . >.-· ·:._:,: ··APPROVAL;or THE RAID · 

___ ., :~_::-~~:::.:~~~'~·:' ;·,,> _'"· ~~-:eddi~~be'at-.t.··':_·Iaboutd· ·rstan·_thisd.· :cident·: and <: --~--. : -~->._:.~.·:· TJi~ .. :·;ribCOiiimlttees conciude that the 
. /. . .llaA .... ti-UU':l 1, -~ e , .. .. . . ·.· .... ATF ·wu·· predfij)osed to using aggressive, 

. .. . · Ben.tsen's respon~es !'veal. that thro~~out the military tactic. _In ·an attempt to serv~ the ar· 
.... plann1ng of. ~e nud, -~elu~g the entical days rest and search warrant. The ATF deliberately 

· · .~_.~:- just prior to "its initiation, the Treasury Secretary choose not·to·· arrest Koresh outside the Davidian 
knew nothing about it. Neither he nor his deputy residence and instead determined to use a dy· ... •. .... 

: .. . • .. · . ... 

knew anything about an imminent law eruorc~ namic entry approach. The bias toward the use of 
ment raid-one of the largest ever conducted m force may in large part be explained by a culture 
U.S. history-being managed by his Department, within ATF. . 
which would endanger the lives o~ dozens or law · 2. The ATF· did not attempt to fully under· 
enforcement agents, women, and children. stand the subjects of the raid. The experience 

·~· · Other testimony fl'om the hearings· further dem· · of Joyce Sparks Marc Breault, and ATF under· 
· · .... ·on·strated insufficient ·oversight by Treasury De. eover agent Robert Rodriguez demonstrate that 

· ··:. ~--- _ .pll$1en~ officials of ATF '!Ianning. At the he!U'· . persons who spent a .reasonable ~ount of .ti!lle 
... ·.,;,.-. ---.~ l:llgS-.J~(qr~t~~~ +~~~~~~ •. }~.~-P~-~~~~~!~---~--with Koresh, even Mthout profess1onal trainmg 

···-:·~~~ "'· ·-· ':' -~~:::--:- McCc:HJ.~_q':iestioi'loo. Christop~~r .. C.\ly)er,.-.wh9 ~,,~;. specifie t:o.~.person's mch:,·as. Koresh, understood 
· ..... ~: -~, · '"· Febtu.a.ry 1993 ~a(the.~TF'~.Ums9!\;~_,the:'l're~~- .. ~-- with some ·predictability -the range or behaviors 
.>:;~--~-~·~'-- ~-,_-, (:!:·. __ ury· Qe·p_~et:t.~'. ~~yl~t. te~tified tha.t A~ ,~~~_ury. _:;;; that might.' result frOm a mi~_tary style assa~lt on 
., ., -- .... _,_,. ·-·oftici!lls had ·)Qlowle~·-~u~·.Jbe P9,~n~~~ f~rJh~ ,· :the Bran"clt ·Davidians. ·. · -.~:_" ·., 

·--- ... ~ -~-. ·nud ·until Febtuary 2&-,;;..2 days befQr.~.th~ .. r:¢d _was_ ~ .. 3~· Treasury SeCretary. Lloyd Bentsen and 
· .- . initiated. 58 · · · · · Deputy Secretary Roger Altma.D acted highly 

. The .~ct~uate_ ov~rsight or the ATF .by Trea.s- irresponsibly and were derel!ct in th~ir du· 
· ·ury Department offiCJals was further eVIdenced m ties iJ:i tailing. to even meet W1th the Dtreetor 
the final ·communications between Treasury and of the ATF ill the month or so they were in 

. ATF in the day before the raid. The Department office prior to the February 28 raid ·on the 
maintains that it conditioned the raid on ensuring Davidians residence, in falling to request any 
the element or surprise was preserved. As stated . briefing on ATF operations during thi• time, 

.... in. the Treasury Department Report, Department::· :and . in wholly.- failing to Involve themselvea 
· officials assured that those directing the ·raid were with the activities of the ATF • 
. under express . orders ~ . cancel the operation if · 4. Senior Treasury Department ~fficials 
they teamed that its secrecy had been com· routinely falled in their duty to monttor the 

·promised. • • .- 69 Yet, ATF officials, including actions of ATF officials, and as a result were 
.·Higgins, Cuyler, and the agents in eharge of the uninvolved iD the planning of the Feb~ 
raid testified that. it. was not at all clear to them · · .. 28 raid. This failure eliminated a layer of scrutiny 

. that TreaSUry _wanted the raid. canceled if the ele- ·or the plan during wbitb flaws might have been 
. - ·.: . . '.·:-,.. . .. ment qf surprise _was ~~-~----- , .. · . . uncovered and c~rrected. : ·. 

· D. FAILURE ro cOMPLY WITH "sENSmvE· .. · w: RA.ID EXEcitmoN 
. . . . . SIGNIFIC1-.Nr" PROCEDURES 
. · ·::·~~ There is no question that the ATF raid exeeuted 

. : ... · A. noted in the Treasury Deparbnent Report, on Febnwy 28, 1993, went fatally wrong. While 
. the Koresb investiga~on was classified as •sen-. many factors played a role in this, one stands 

· -· aitive• and "significant" within a week of its formal apart as the principal reason why four ATF agents 
--:::_._ .. -:.--:-=:<.:_=·:·~=~--~~~~on on:June 9,- ·1992:81 Sucb.:A:~l~~cation-. were.IPJI~·an~ many o~~t:~- wounded. Simply put, 
. · :;--____ : ~>.·_ :. ~:..; .. je_cJ~~ed to·:~nsure .a.-higher de~. of mvolve- . · the DaVidiaili."-lmevi··otbat· ·the ATF agents were 

~-=_,_:· .-=.=·.=:~:~.: · ::.:· :·=.:-ment·· anct·ov~rsigh_t"from-:-·bo~ the ... ~TF~:·SpeeiaJ;:·:-~-: eomiil'~: .. ·Aiid'=:While·· tJie··ATF~ expected to serve a 
- .::.::- : ·:·.c-.. ·~ '-~-"-: ··. A .;;;.;;.-'"t m• :--,;;._t.;.·a·· ~- ana··c A...-ct_. headquarters vet this . . .. _,:_..;._,_1_ ... ·:. ,. . -t.,.,_ Ko"liltb ·-an· . d -----'- the. resi• ·-· . ..:. ... ··-·:. .. ::---·~.---~·;·~~· . ···:~- ·o~ .· .. , .. -. ~'~-'- ....... , . . , , - leculal warran aor r~ ~ 

· · · : ~ · •. · - • ---~- ----~-· .~---~--~- >:.-~-. ····-~ -.:··-··---""""" dence the Davidian& apparently feared the worst 
.-.r;,.~-;~:~~;:~-~~5.-.:~~:~.~-.:12-::J:t'!'i.i.:~:~:~£::'.;~~~-~--~~-- ·=.. ~--~ ~···-"-"~"·· that iaw enforcement agents or military tzoo~s 
:~.~~----- ,~ . ..; .. ·~·· .. -. -=~~ ~r=ra&k~· t'll. ·- ~~~ ~~ri were eoming to arrest all or them or, perhaps kill 

•'l'n~Mm7 DeJ-nmeot Reparta u. them. In any event, some of the Davidian& armed 
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. .· .. 
:. •.:~;·. . . . . 

:.~_:.~.:~_~.-~··.:_.~.:.:: themselves and Jay f.D ambush, waiting for the &r• • .Koresh left the room to speak with Jones.• At this 
rival of the ATF agents. point. David Jones relayed to Koresh his disau· 

: · ·' :.::: ~~- A. RODRIGUEZ AND THE "ELEMENT OF SURPRISE" sio~ with the television station cameraman. 

..• ·_>.~--~:. · ···· 1. --How.the DavidUJns Jmew the ATF. f!J~ comlnt "- The TrecuUI')' Departmenl Report vers:IM 

.,:·;::~\?? : · . th~er~fte!!"!~:~f~ ek~Zn p=:e~:..! · The ~e~~nt~epiirtment Report summarius 
.. · ...• ; .. :~::·:".;'-: . happened io. get lo.st on .. his way .to the Branch· ,~ _the sW?~~q~~!lt ~~ent:s.as follows; 
·· ~ ~--:; · -: ~ DaVidiaiF testdence.82 The· cameraman· had been · · ·· .... : .. t)'p~n Koresh's return, Rodriguez could 

··='_..::··~~~~- ~·..:: :····.···dispatched ~ the"residence by the local ·television ... · ... se~: th~t:·.he_·wu. extremely agitated, and 
..... ·· -~ :_.· :- ·· · station becaUse the ne.ws director or the station ex· . · -- ... though he tried to resume the Bible ses-

.. · .. ~.-. ·· ·~ · pected the ATF raid would occur on that day. He. . sion,,- -~e. ~uld _not talk. and had trouble 
suspected this !>ecause .an employee : of . the local . , " , . . .. h9Jdis:sg Ju~ .. BibJ~ .. Rodriguez ~bed the 

· ·. · · :·: · ambulance serv1ce had snformed him that· a Fort · Blbie from·_ Koresh and asked him what 
··.· :.·.: Worth-based trauma flight company bad been put ··· ·· -~~~ wrong. ~driguez recalls that Koresh ... 

on standby along wi.th the local ambulance com· · 18ld somethmg about, "th~ Kingdom of 
pany. a · · -.-· · . . God, • and proclaimed, •neither the ATF 

· - While the cameraman wu sitting by the side of nor the National Guard will ever get me. 
· the road attempting to locate the Davidian resi-· The? ~t me once and they'll never ~et me 
dence, David Jones, a Branch Davidian and a Jet. agam. Koresh t]:len ~aiked to ~e Win~ow 
ter ~er with the U.S. Postal Service, pulled up and looked 01;1t. saysng, "Th!Y re com.mg, 
behmd the cameraman and asked whether he was Robert, the time bas come. He tumed. 
lost. The cameraman introduced himself and asked looked at. ~guez and repeated, 

. for di~ctions tO ."Roden ville,• the name by which ~~{le commg Rebert, they're com· 
many ··local- res1dents referred to the Branch mg. . 

.... ·· 

.•!. 

- . :. . . . 

. Davidian residence! AfUr Jones pointed tO the res~··· According to the Treasury Department Report, 
<:;~,-~,_.· ·;:.,~;~ .. -)=-< ·~-:>·'· idence; which wa~:·m __ Jight~f .. w~~~-.th~ two men Rodriguez went first to the undercover house an-

. . .·. . . .. were stopped, Jones stated that he. bad read abOut··· ;;nouncing.::'to .. ·the· agents there and to James 
··:~·.:~.:·;_:·:~.:~· :.~ .. :·_:~"<_.~·~-~t~-~p' m. ·-~-~ -_J~a~r and "th~_~(.~t~~ey·; .. :-·cavan~11gJ:r;cleputy·tactical coo.rdinator or the A'f! 

· _--- .. ·_ .:·~··:· '~<' . .-.:.:.:·.:.-.. :·. __ .,ere w~ird:•·Tbe-~nieraman, belieYiltg_tha~ Jones , .. ,_.operation,~ that Koresh was &gJtated and had wd 
· ~ :: ::.·.~:~:-~·.·:-;-.· :; -· wss'ttot affiliated with the Davidia:.n-. -~~ect'ffim -~ ... 'the·:"ATF·and the National Guard were coming .• 61 

... · ·-·-·.-:····:that· some type of law enforcemen~ .. action .. was The report states that Cavanaugh asked Rodriguez 
going to take place at the residence thai" It ·-wa:s ~''Whether--he· had: seen: any guns, had heard anyo~e 

. . · '·· .·.- ,_ · likely to be a raid or some type, ar:d that there talking about guns, or had seen anyone hurrying 
may be shooting.N AfUr the cameraman --departed around. Rodriguez responded in the negative to all 

··.:. 

.· .· ...... 

.. · ·. .. ~ •· :. 

Jones drove directly to the residence and informed three questions. Cavanaugh then told Rodriguez to 
the Davidians. · report his observations to Chuck Sarabyn, the tac· 

· tical coordinator Cor the raid. sa · 
.::.~·~ '!'~ urukrcouer agent · The Treasury·· Department Report states that 

· · · On the morning or February 2S,· 1993, at ap- .Rodriguez: called· Sarabyn at the command post 
- proximately 8 a.m., Robert Rodriguez,· the: ATF · · telling him that Koresh was upset, that ·Koresh 

agent who. had gone undercover into the Branch had said the ATF and the National Guard were 
· ·· Davidian residence · on several prior oCcasions, coming, and that as Rodriguez Ief\ Koresh was 

went to meet with David Koresh one final time. shaking and reading the Bible. The report contin-
While Koresh and Rodriguez were . engaged in a ues that Sarabyn then asked Rodriguez a series or 
Bible study session, David Jones arrived at the questions _from a prepared list provided by the tac· 
residen~e and told his father, Peny Jones, what tical planners concerning the presence or weapons, 
had happened.. The· elder Jones then informed whether there bad been a call to arms, and other 
Koresh ··that he had a telephone eall. Koresh,· at preparations the Davidians were making, to which 
first, ignored the statement but, when Perry Jones Rodriguez responded in the negative to each ques-
mentioned that it was long distance from England, tion. 

. The TreaiW')'. Department Report then notes 
• u.s. Dept. r1 &be ~. Res-tot &be ~tuwt rllhe ,..._. that Sarabyn left the command post at the Texas 

.:-~~~~~-~:~{·._·~::_,. _ _.._ :Z.,:~.:H~~-D.~~=r~ State Technical CoUege (TSTC> and ~ent to.~e 
· ---~~··'"'.=~::..:_ ~! _,~~:::.aer,T~Wi!tY-~t~J. · ... . · · ·.- . . . . tarmac . area nearby to confer With Phillip 

:::.::.: ; .. ·: -.;~-~-:;;-::i.::· _:·;0 ::_-.:.: . :::..'!' ~ ~ :~~ae•.•.,C lieldenaat wi&la.lhe Waco Sbaia'a De-·:~ -::.: Chojnacki.~ the . overall ATF incident commander, 
·-~ ·• .. : ... :\·.;_~~·'·""'-· ::~~ 7 -·~ .. -;. C:1h.ee.~&a ~tJcaJ ..==:::.:=~~-- ,.--~d:.th~t·-Sanm)tn .. told Chojnacki what ~ez 

: ~- .·:.:.,:·~- ,~,:~=-·7~. 'r···s::·:<:~r.aubeamb~~r·t~a w--. dppiDI.OI'tbi10cal ·• ·-had:·8aJd·u·weJl·as:the answers to the questions 
.•::::~ ~:.:~: .. · . .; _;:_:-.;~- :~·_-:_,-'=rlW~=-~=~u:=: ::OaF:··.:.;··-:·~~-,;,~~~~- . 

~ a.-lo abe,.._ ol&.be pallce ~ • .W. ...,.... lbe police u.t ~ •JtL at •· 
~t&&o&MI&atba. . . .. ··: ·~ :- ··-·-·--·· · ·· ·· .,ltL at• 

•Tftual7 Deps11me.at Repcn aU&. -~ .. ·· •ltL • 

. 
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:' :-~:.; . . .. ,-: ;• 

-:: · · .:.~ Sarabyn asked or Rodrigu~ The Treasury Depart· proximately 3 or 4 minutes later, and 
·=-. · :. ~~ ~-:~.: ment Report states that Chojnacki asked Sarabyn when he came back, I mean it was lib 

.<:/;:~ =~~hl:t~~~~~ed~~=~~t:~~~~ ..... da.{.~~~:!ached me, he wu-he wu 
. -.. __ .. :,_:···,- Ciited sueces8fiil1y·"ifthef"numed.•• . · .. ·--.' _-·-·-- :-,-.,~~- ihaldnirte·ai- bad. He was breathing real 

.... _. ·:·.=: Ac~rding_to the .Treasury Departme_n~. ~eport.. ,, .. · .. hard. At one time he put his hands in his 
~ ~~>~··:· .:,·; . , ::;- ,-, ·sanw)rit" ·. ·the·n· . went .to the staging area~·_ at ·the .·~ · _ .: .. · po~et, . in. _his. jacke~. pocket, to probably 
·· _ ··_· . ;·~·~. :··· ~ _·Belhnead Civic .. Center n·ear the TSTC. When __ h.e · .... · .... __ keep .his band$ fro_rn shaking. He sat · 
--··:·: :~~:.:· .·'~.-··:_~:_arriVed.~e:~w&$ ~cited, "obviously in a hurry,•·'and .. ~~ ... :, .. ·-· dQ'M.l.next ... ~: Jlj~~~P.:ro~ly about this rar, 

..... · _·: :::.: ··.· ··: . telling agents •get ready to go, they kno.~:~~--ar~ .. ~ .. -~·.,_ .. ~d .. be· ~op.l;:inue~tto ~to finish what he 
. ·-:~:.::··:·: . cominr- and _"they know ATF and the National,~ -....... was t.alldn.i to me abOut. . 

__ .· .-.~···}; .. ~rd are~·eommg. ·we are going to.Jti_~ .~em.~:···;···.-~··-Whe~_.he·:·grab.becl. the Bible, he was 
·· •.· ·.>. ~ ·· now.- 70 · · ··-·:·· _ . · · ·· · · · · • shaking so bad that" he could not actually 

~: ~-.~:.: b. Testimony bel~ t~ subcommittees read i~ I grabbed the Bibl~ and asked him 
. . . • what IS wrong. At that time he stopped. .... 

. - ...... 
·. ·- . 

. ' 
-~.·· 

At the heanngs bef'ore the subcomnuttees, these . and as I sit here I can remember clearly 
individuals te~tified in ~ mann~r that was similar he took a deep breath, he tu~ed and 
to, but not en~rely conststent wtth the summary of looked at· me and said, •Robert, neither 
these events m the Treasury Department Report. the ATF or the National Guard will ever 
Whe~ he testified before the subcommittees, agent get me. 'They got me once, . and they'll 
Rodriguez ~~ded upon the Treasury D~part- never get me again.• 11 .. • 
. ment's descnption o( the events on the mommg .or La Rodri · . d hi • · 
February 28th. · ter, guez continue s testimony: 

.. ·.· . ·.:~~~ Mr.~ Sco.'JT! Mr. Rodriguez, is thei-e- . . M~ EHRLICH: And what "did you do 
. . · was there any question in your mind, hav· next. . · · • 

· . .. ing been inside the residence, that Koresh. · . Mr. RoDRIGUEZ: .I qwckly-1 felt-1 Celt 

. :' ; :_; ,,,.: _,_,-~ ::t,'&~t~!!ie·.~!lts:; were. coJDi!'~~:~!Ei ~<_, -~~ r,;:h~:f~if~~e~ :~\! U.~o~:~!.~~~; 
!.: '·'-' >:, , ... · · · • ~-·· --.; ·'-·Mr. RoDRiqUEz: Sir; there's no question ; <:: , , : : that· ~m~, tjlere. was mor~more people 
··.---·---:-~::· · ?_!:··:· ·--:'-':\ ifi'.:my_ntiria that· Kore~b knew-the~~~j .. no ,·//---~.::=~ ,, th~~.:.hS:~=: ~me: ~~~:~~e livmg room. At 
.,<< ' ·:-:-:_:'.-~·-·::·~ ~:- question:·m ·my ·mind that Koresh Jme·w ;.-:·,. ·~.-·: .. · ..... ·,·:.first: ther~ ~as_ .onl1·ihree when we first 

·~ .. · -· ··: · ·· ·: · ·· ·· tllat ·we- were· coniing'· yes sir · ··. . · . - ... started . 
. _, Mr. Srorr: And ~ yo~ d~scribe briefly . Mr. EHRLICH: All right, sir. Now, why 

his emotion when be got the word? . .. . . did you .. ~ee 1 yc;>u n.eeded to leave the 
·Mr. RoDRIGUEZ: Yes, sir. We were-1 compound. 

was inside the cam pound, on that day, Mr. RO?RI,GYEZ: I was threa~ned be-
that morning. 1 had asked him some ques- cause I didn t · know-1 was afraid that I 
tions regarding a newspaper clipping. He would be exposed as to who l wa~ .. And as 

.. sat down and started to explain to me the I stood ~ere, I.,looked an~ I noticed that 
.·'difference between his preachings and an- the door-there s. people m front or the 

other subject's preachings. . door, people. behmd me, there was no 
As we were discussing the Bible, one· o( place for: me to go. As I w~ I s~ 

his subjects, Mr. Jones, came in and ad- there, Kores~ went from on~ wmdow, did 
vised him that he had a telephone call He the same thing, looked .outside, and ~e 
ignored the call and continued to talk to back . to the other wmdow and agam 

. me. looked outside an~ sai~, they're coming, 
. At that point,. everything was normaL Robert, ~ey're _com.mg. . - . . 

. _. .-~· ·· · · _ There was only three .people in that living ···· -. • • • • 

.·.·:. room at that poinL Everythi'?g was calm. Mr. EH:RIJCH: All right, air. And there 
· · He was normal He was ta}king to me as came a point in time around 9:15, 9:20 

. . h.e always ~ke to l!le dunng all our ses- where you left the house, correct? 
11ons. Nothmg-no~g was wrong. • • Mr. RoDRIGUEZ: Yes, sir. He finally-be 

. . Mr.-M~. Jo~es ~ came to the bVJng motioned, he gave a head signal, they 
- --._.-:;~., ;~·.:.~ .·· ·:::· -~~--~~:-~~r~~~!DE.~~t d.heAth~~.;Lant __ ;_;.:., ._, opened.the-doo_r .. for.:me. I walked out. I · · · · eme~nc:y QU uvm ng1an waa '· · · · ·- · -~ · --. --·- :. . .• :~r '-" · ': ,_. "! ·.: ·ti-- · .. ·. b qw .. • _t.."'y.:!,."·- ""t . · , · · ·a left .. ,_ -;··. - ---~-::;-- .. ~ .. --~ -got.'into: ifty, vehiCle.l_t took me a while to _ • _ .-__ ,_ .... me,_ e ~' go up an Wle:room. -· - · · · · --.- ·ltiirted lie·· 1 as-b tb 1 
·· ·::. ~·::-···~-~.:'""'~-"'"' ·· At· that· time it was still ju.it Mr. Schnei;~!:·::·· ·· · :: .. ··._. .. -P~.!~ ..... . ·· ~~f! w . f en 

_;.,::.:- /.-.. :·~:~::::~~::·~'· .. :·: ·der and Shem··Jewell were in that .. rootb! :;,·-::-~ ... :·,-~~ .. w~_ P:'-'e~:.~~en. I ~~ckly went 
l.U~ • . '~ -~-~~' .... ; ·,: . ; with··me.Jiit ihat timei··, He came-back . ap· ... .. -:·· .. ·.' . . . . back to the undercover house. . 

. . . .:· ... :.,:.:. ... ·:· .. ·· .. ·. . .. ·-·. . ~:-~.·..:_ .-~·- . ., .. _·;•,-,_, 

. ... 

.. 

-, ·- .· •lctalll. ..:: ... ,.:··,·,_.":.: .. :·.~; .. ~~-.~._,~· ·:P.,_-:&,PmlMT51 •. 
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• • • • • was, where's Chuck? Where's Chuck? And 
Mr. ·RoDRIGUEZ: Well, what I did, I they advised me that he bad left. 

went into the-to the room where Mr. At that· time, I. started yelling and I 
Cavanaugh was because that is where the said, "Why, why, why? They know we're 

. ·· ::.~~-~ .. --.,-··_, .... : · STU· phone _was. I was supposed to use coming, they know we're coming." 
.. :.: ~: .:. · ~at telephone to ea'l Mr. Sarabyn. When - Mr. EmuJCH: And what reaction did 

• -~ ~-~·::~::; .. = · , .. __ ··.!·: .• - I ·got there, we all huddl~- up an.d. I told. __ .. :: ..... _you ge_t,.what. ~spons~? · , 
· ·: .. ; : · . Mr. Cavanaugh . ~ctly . what had . hap· ·. : . :: . ..: - _._ .:·:.. __ · . Mr .. · RoDJU~UEZ; .. ,~11, everytlung was 

.

.. ·.~-.~-~.:.·_:·:·~.{_·:_=~_:_:_·.~~:_·.: .. - -. _' · · · · pe~ed in the residence, advised him... .. . _ · ... :. _·. :: . .- .v~ryh ·quiet, vbo· eey qui~t, and
11 

if' I rememedber
1 Mr. ···EHRLICH: ·And what .was his reac~ ... ·:· .· .· .. ng t, eve.ry 1dy was rea y concern . 

. · --~·· ... ···· ..... ···aon?- · - ··· "- · . ...-.. :·~_·.·:·.·.. · ..... went outside and I sat down and I remem· 
··· -~ Mr. RoDRIGUEZ: His reaction was. we · ~-- ... _ ... ·~ .. her stArting to ,ey~starting to. cry until 

· · · · .. ;._. . .. better call 'Chuck right now,·. · . .. . ... - · · .: .. -·· Sharon Wheeler came to me and told me 
• ; __ • 1 • - Mr. EHRLICH: All right, sir. You got on . . ... what was goirig·on.71 .; 

the phone and did just that, correct? While the Treasur;y Department Report main· 
Mr. RoDRIGUEZ: Yes, sir, I did. tains that "all key participants now agree that 
Mr. EHRLICH: And please detail the na· · Rodriguez communicated, and they understood, 

ture of that conversation. that Koresh had said the ATF and National Guard 

... ·: ... ·.· .. 
..... • 

. ·~ 

Mr. RoDRIGUEZ: I got the phone,· I were coming," 78 Sarabyn maintained at the hear· 
called. He came to the phone. The only ings before the subcommittees that while he un· 
thing I can't remember was if somebody derstood the words Rodriguez had spoken, be did 
else answered. I think somebody else an- not feel that Koresh actually believed that law en· 
swered and he came to the phone. forcement personnel were on their way to the resi· 

·~··. -~. 

• . • -.o: ~-.: ... 
Mr. EHRLICH: Who -is he? Mr. Sarabyn? dence. As Sarabyn testified: 
Mr. RoDRIGUEZ: Mr. Sarabyn. I did not f'eel he knew that we· were 

.,. .. _ .. ____ .. Mr. EHRLICH: OK. . coming at that time. When I talked with 
-- ~--:,-"-· "': .. ~ :·.-:.- :·.Mr:.)~QQJpq~: And th~--~~ .. t~nn~.t.h.~_t_ .......... !:---.&bert like .. I._testi,fied before, I took notes 

..... · .. '' . . .. . . - ~: : came out of' ttly . mouth ~as;. Chu'ck,- they .. ; ..... · .... ~:while: we-'' w~re. ialkirig over the thing and 
;-;~.: :i,=. ·.: u ·., ;· ~-~ ~Qw,· Chuck; th~y know,_ ... ~l)ey k~Jo~·'fe~re_ ... · .. . ·-: _., . ~ll .have ~re$4-: all of, Robert's statements. 

:· . .::. · -.-:~::;.< • =: ~ . -coming. :.He:-says, "='ell, ~h~~ Jl~P,P~~~?. :-'· : .. -~- ·:}tq~ri.-:did~~taj~reat job, but I think 
. ---~ !·:.. .. And I explalned.to him what ~.a.P.J?en~~ ~ .·-.. . :··. · :~ ·;:~.,.~-: ~eve~irig.tliat yo~J1eard as far as testi· 

. . ·•· .. 
. , ·.··· 

I explained to· him all the events that.. . > :·,::·_ .:.mony was,not .. pa$s~d on to me .. 
took place inside the compound, and his In f'act, Robert told the shooting review 
questions were,. well, did you . s~e any team, or commanders, he didn't go into 
guns? I said no. detail or ·should have said more. When I 

What was he wearing? And 1-1 advised went through the questions I asked him, 
him or what he was wearing. At that time, you know, he had ·said specifically Koresh 
be said OK,. and that was about the ex- said, you know, ATF and the Guard are 
tent or the: phone calL . coming,_ but ~h~n I asked, trying to deter· 

Mr. EHRLICH: All right, sir.· Did you re- · · mine what he was doing from those ques· 
quest that the· raid be called oft" because tions, he wasn't doing anything, he was 
the element of' surprise had been lost? shaking~ reading the Bible. He was 

Mr. RoDRIGUEZ! No, sir. At that time I preaching. I determined that, you know,. 
really didn't have the ·chance. It was a in my opinion, his actions spoke louder 
real quick question and answer thing. H~ that his words, so I didn't feel that any· 
asked me what he was wearing, said OK· thing was happening then." . 

- and .he hung up. That's why-that's why At another point in the. hearings, Chojnacki testi· 
·I qwckly left the undercover house ~ go . fied: · · · .:. · -.. 
talk to him at the command post because . When I received the information from 
I wanted to have a more-more or a 
1 ngt.h Mr. Sarabyn • • • (he] pointed out that he 
e y conversation with him about the had finished talking with Agent Rodrigu~ · 

events. 
14 

. 1 and that Robert says be knows we are 
. ':: .. : .. ·: -~ .· · .. ·::-.· -~d·guez then testified that he_drove to the com· coming. He said, -rhe ATF and the Na· 

-_.:-~: .. -man ;post,- looking -for SarabYJl; in order to further.. . · ·tiona I Guard were coming to get me," .. _~_;.-:~-:::;' .. ~;<~,~~: : · .. ·: .di~ss- with·· him. in. ~rson-~~e :~ent~Cof: U:ia~:·. ~~~::~-~those kinaB~otcQJilments that I took to be 

.:~z.;·; -~m~ ~~ 

MJtL ., m. . "Hearinp Pm l ., '188. 
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episodes where be preached that the ATF 
will be coming to get u.s. -rhe ATF is com­
ing to get us. • 78 

Chojnacki was then questioned directly as to 
whether he believed at the time that Koresh did, 
in fact, know that the ATF was going to the 
Branch Davidian residence. He stated, ~ot at 
that time, I didn't, no sir.• '78 

Later, during the hearings, however, Rodriguez 
questioned the truthfulness of the testimony given 
by Chojnacki and Sarabyn before the subcommit· 
tees. Mr. Rodriguez testified, 

[T]hose two men know-know what I 
told them and they knew exactly what I 
meant. And instead of coming up and ad­
mitting to the American people right after 
the raid that they had made a mistake 
• • • they lied to the public and in doing 
so they just about destroyed -a very great 
agency.eo 

Several other agents also testified that Sarabyn 
had informed them that the Davidians knew the 
ATF was coming. Agent Roger Ballesteros, who 
was present at the staging area when Sarabyn ar­
rived testified: 

I was in an auditorium along with a 
large party . . . and Mr. · Sarabyn rushed 
into the room and made it clear to us that 
we needed to hurry up because, in fact, 
Mr. Rodriguez had come out and identi­
fied the fact that Koresh had been tipped 
off and that they knew we were coming. at 

c. What the ATF commanders knew 
It is difficult to reconcile Sarabyn's testimony 

that while he heard agent Rodriguez's words, he 
believed that Koresh's actions spoke louder than 
his words and that, as a result, he believed that 
the Davidians did not really think the ATF agents 
were on their way. In light of the testimony of 
Rodriguez and the other agents before the sub­
·cominittees, the subcommittees conclude that 
Sarabyn understood that the Davidians were 
tipped off and would have been lying in wait for 
the ATF agents to arrive. 

The fact that Sarabyn felt it necessary to tell 
other agents of what Rodriguez had told him, re­
gardless of how he undentood it, indicates that he 
found the information to be important. Unfortu­
nately, when Sarabyn told Chojnacki this in forma· 
tion, Chojnacki did not believe it to be important 
enough to call off the raid. And. inexplicably, 
Sarabyn apparently did not believe it important 
enough to urge Chojnacki to delay the raid. 
Compounding these failures was the fact that the 
ATF line agents who heard Sarabyn's comments -
apparently were not co~dent enough to question_ 

•ttL al 466. 
•ttL 
•ltL al 188. 
llJtl. 
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their superiors' judgment in going forward .with 
the raid, even given their concerns about the infor­
mation relayed by Rodriguez. 

B. WHO BEARS THE RESP0NSIBIUrY FOR THE 
FAILURE OF THE RAID? 

The Treasury Department Report attempts to 
lay the blame for the failure of the raid squarely 
on the shoulders or Chojnacki and Sarabyn. Much 
has been made of what has come to be known as 
the loss of the •element of surprise,• with adminis­
tration officials asserting that Chojnacki and 
Sarabyn went forward in the face or a direction to 
the contrary if the element or surprise were lost.. 

ln their report, TreaSUJ')' Department officials 
assert that Stephen Higgizu, then Deputy Director 
of the ATF, had instructed •those directing the 

· raid • . • to 'cancel the operation if they learned 
that its · secrecy had been compromised • • • • • 82 

.. This statement was purportedly made by Higgins 
to Ronald Noble, then Assistant Secretary-Des­
ignate of the Treasury for Law Enforcement, and 
John P. Simpson, the acting Assistant Secretary of 
the TreasUry for Enforcement. Noble and Simpson 
had expressed concerns about the raid when they 
first learned of it on the afternoon or the Friday 
before the raid was to take place and Simpson had 
initially ordered that the raid not go forward. h­
cording to the Treasury Department Report, Hig­
gins made this statement to Noble and Simpson in 
response to their concerns about the raid and in 
order to convince Simpson to reverse his earlier 
decision. 83 At the hearings before the subcommit­
tee, Un_dersecretary of the Treasury Noble testi­
fied: 

It's been our-it's been our contention 
in the Department of the Treasury's re­
port that only Mr. Hartnett and Mr. 
Chojnacki and Mr. Sarabyn deny, because 
Mr. Simpson-I mean Mr. Higgins made 
it absolutely clear that this raid was not 
supposed to proceed if the advantage of 
surprise was lost and Mr. Aguilera testi· 
fied about that being clear on February 
12th as well. 84 

Representative Bill McCollum, ccrchainnan of the 
joint subcommittees, read into the record at the 
hearing a similar statement that Mr. Noble had 
made during an appearance on the television news 
program ·6o Minutes" in MBy 1995.• 

But ATF on-site commanders and senior ATF of. 
ficials disputed the position asserted by the admin~ 

·~Department Repan a& ITt. 
•ltL 
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istration in the Treasury Department Report. by Mr. SARABYN: What t . was making ra· 
Noble in his television interview, and by Noble : erence to, sir, is the element of surprise. 
during his testimony · to the subcommittees. ~ Throughout-at this point, it became a 
Dan Hartnett, Deputy Director of the ATF for En· very big issue. The point I was trying to 
forcement in February 1993, testified: · ~ake is I was never given the order not 

:.~<~::·~~/-~~>:_~:. ~- ·. · ·-.~ .. Mr;·_~: _(s~w ~p __ Nob_le testify . _ ... _ · -~~, ¥b~ :it:~t!: ::c~l~~:~!r:!ti~~:fi:; 
.... ;-: •:··~· _on a n~tion~_program_:severail months 8go th t bo t th 1 t f · d I 

-~ -:~~: )-/:··~:.i .;:·:'· .. - .h,_-;~-.qr a month ago·whe·re he _said,,_boUt.'r~eas- ·_ -· ----- .. -. . a a u . e e emedn o surpkn nse ban 
, '".:·~ i~:·.~·-: . · .. _ ury _and ATF ordered the ·cominanderi~af· : ··- · ···was trying to say I 0 not ow w 0 up 

.·~~:: .• _~·=;, ~-~---·. -'~--~--.-~Waco .. _-noft.Q P.~,'-~r tO~-.. -~d: Ule~r~d, _.: .. --.- - .. ---oabordevre tomeso, mhoebow dfayr, bwuhtaltevneerv'ergarveceeJ~veadt 
· - · · .~ . .-.:-.-... :. ..... ·- ::- · ·. ···-if th -· 1 .. · -th- --r· ---- r· ---- · · -And - • 

L'T~~x:-~~-- ~~~,;~~!~::~~=t:~l::~~:f~:::~~=- -'r!!~~~:~;¥iriiSt .. tlon's attempts .., ~ug-
__ , :--:-:._~_:_:_ · .. · .. ....:.• . ·• • til afte. · ··.- .. th ·· ·d .. h.···. · : .. ; ·:,gest ·that· mamta.i.nmg the •element of surprue" . _ .. ·. .... .. __ ... ___ surpnse, un _ _ _r. e rBl , w en. we.... .. h. d. be . . .- ---- .. di. · 6-. · f th direct• f . -.-- ·. ·.;.·· .. ·: .. · · - tarted · · · .. · · 1 ·d th · ·-·.. . a .· en an ovem ng aeature o e tves o 
. ·· • .-·~-~""--:~------•"o···C·.- ... --<c"l . usmg.Jt ourser an .. · e. media.. . Tr' .. -. ·n. :· --~----.· ffi 'a] A~ ffi ._,_ .. ·-- · · .·: · ~- - .. --- ... · · atartea · ·· · . . --· - · .. - · ·· · · · ·· easury epartment· o c1 s to 1·u~ o Clau ss 

· ·:·~:·::(".' . . ·· . But _I b~:;! ais~ · ~dd that in the brief· . inaccura~ While. the. iss:u~ was· discussed,. there 
· .. ... ·· ings, the briefings tJiat 1 had and Mr. Hig~ was no absolute direc~on gtve~ to ATF officials or 
·.· · .... ·. ·· gins had, the secrecy of the raid was dis·· ATF ~mmanders ~n-stte that sf secrecy were~-
. ... . cussed and was an element or the raid promJ~ed that ~ey were ~.not ~ forward wtth 

plan that was given to ·me and to Mr. Hig· the ra1d. The 91mton admm1stration ~ attempt to 
gins. It was just that nobody ever called s~st otherw~se, ~ppears. to be a .veded atte~pt 
and said abort the raid if you lose the ele- to ~stance the adzmmstration ~d sts ~ost semor 
ment or surp ·se That just ne h offic1als from the results or the faded ra1d. 

. n d. n · ver ap- But as Hartnett. testified, "Secrecy was part of 
_ ·_ ·_ :~ ~- ~_·_·. __ . ~" . _ ---~ _ ·-.- .. pe e. But seer~ was a part ~r the . the plan-secrecy and safety. I mean it was dis· 

· .. · -P!an-sec~cy. and safety. ~ mean st was cussed over and over again." ss And Secret Service 
__ ... _ , . , ~- _. _. _ . . . . ·.· _ : .. ~-~sed o~er ~d over ~~~ 88 

_ ... . .. _ _ _ Agen_t Louis !.t{erletti, the Assistant Project Direc· 
·--~_.·;·~~-~-~----~~-~::·~---,·-~~-J~~r;_._Wicl~r.fp_~er CfU:~~tionmg_on ·~us~p~in~ by :· to~.ofthe .. Waco Administrative Review Team ere-

. : ·. . .. ·. -~ :. ... . -.Representative Bill Zeliff, ··'co-c1iilirman: ot thEf joint A., ... ·ated 'by the Departmeni of the Treasury to review 
.·.·. · -~ :.::.!·.-.-;·;_.::-. ·. ·..-:.slih¢o~f:ID~-~· ~e .. sta_ted ,that~~-~- ~~!lj~~ra~oq_---'. th_E! .Wa:co ,incid~nt, testified that ther~ is no dif· 
. _ ~ ~ .• , , .. '· , -. --... bad- ~ned to cover --up. t.J:ae r~lure · ~-- -~~ _ serilo~ -~ _ : fe~ence between "the· element of surpnse and se-
. · .... · ,.:· ___ -~---~--- · . _· ... Tt~~~i#r:Y Depanm~t officials"-to· properly· direct· :==riecy.• He testified that it was "basic to a dynamic 

...... ·-'the actioris ... of ATF offid8ls: ... ' · entry" method of conducting a raid,89 Later, bow· 

. : · ..... 
• •• • 0 ••• . :·.:.·~:(: ~ 

~ 
. : .: .. -... ~~-

. ·=·· ·. ::: 

.· ... 
. :: ·~ · .. ::~. 

Mr. ZELDiT: 1n fact, the element of sur- ever, Hartnett testified: 
prise was never in that plan; Is that cor-· .... -.--Mr. MiCA: Mr. Hartnett, you had ·said 
rect? you disagreed with Mr. Merletti • • • 

Mr. liARTNETr: The terminology. Se- abo~t some .comments he ma~e about~-
crecy was part of the plan, sir. sessmg the element or surpnse. Do you 
· Mr~. ZELJFF:. One final question .. so the · .. ,.,want_to.~spon.dnow? 

.':. ·. ·record may stand clearly on its own: Do. . . Mr. liARTNE'IT:_-Well, fve always dis-
. you believe ·that these facts demonstrate agreed with that .terminology, ever since 

an effort to· cover· up the truth by the.. ·.~e.· W~~ review came out. I ~.ink that 
, Treasury Department Report? . . .. . . 1t ~ a created ph~se, and I don t mean to 

· Mr.· HARTNETI': Yes, yes, I_ d.o. . nuslead the c~mm1_ttee .• 
· - Mr.- ZELIP'F: By Ron Noble, _specifically?_··.... . ·-..... _Yo~ kn~w, fve testifi~ many, many 

'·'"·'.-.. -· -· : '> .... _ .. C·-Mr .... IIARTNETr: Yes.··· . . . . .. . ~ ·- .... ·· ·tim~s that a_ part of the rald was secrecy. 
---- - ·- ----- --- - - · · .:. .. .-:·- ·· · · ,._ , .. ·· · But part .. of the raid was not specifically 

.. _ SarabyJJ also_~~sti:fied before the subcommittees : directed toward those commanders when 
--that-he was neverJ,rdere.cl not_ to go fonvard.ifthe · -:· they :say.·they ·were given a direct order • 
·tactical advantage «surprise bad been lost. That is just not true. They just were not 

Mr. CHABar: Mr. Sarabyn, fd just like. given a direct order. so · 
to follow up ~ ~th ~our statement, Regardless of whether it is called the •element 

.· .... ·.. where yo~ wd. ObYJously, some people of surprise" or simply •secrecy," it is difficult to 
- .· ··:. · ·: : · . : . · .. ~ay up 88ld some th~gs. after.~~~ ~h_1c~ ____ ., .. ~d~J:$tan.d why __ ,enio.r. ATF officials. did not re-

. ~i;;i~~~:;:~~~~,~~:ir~5f&~ff.£u£~~~,2.~~~~~{~~~!:~::,;w~ :e ; . 
. . . :·.:·~,~~~~r;;:~-~-;;\;';1-~,~--·;:;~~~~;~;~;~;~~;-;,~:~· · · --·~~~~SI~~-:~~~,'~.,~i;;~:;J;~~ ;;:. -~~~;_;;::- .:_---.. -_ -·. · -·-- .. .- ·< =.~ .. .-

•. . .· .. ~- .. 

..... · .. 

. . : ....... :.:. 
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· · .·· -· . ; ning of the raid. And it is almost impossible to un- -sware _of the impending raid and were likely to re. 
-~~ {-_~:~.:~.~-·.:·. derstand .why ATF commanders did not find sist with deadly force. The only realistic conclusion 

Rodriguez's information to be important enough to that can be drawn is that Chojnacki and Sarabyn 
·.:; ·.:·~ call off the raid. Given the type of tactical oper- acted recklessly failing to call olf the raid. 

_ · : .. :.:·/:·~· - ation sel~ 111ain_taining the secrecy of the tim- Gi.ven the manner in which Sarabyn relayed the 
. _ .:<.---·. .. ing of_ thf! _raic:t_is_: ·~.fundamental that -the blame---· information to Chojnacki;·- it· is perhaps under· 
.. _ .. ~~-:-=i·-~--- ·.i'or. -th~ .. failure. to ·ensure that ·it was maintained. standable that Chojnacki presumed that the infor· 
-... ~=. -: .. ~::_:.· ,_·· .. inust be shared not ·only .by. the coin.Ji'1anders. on- mati9ri ·was ~not important. But Chojnacki's over-
----_- .. ·.:\~\:~: . site but by senior ATF officials.. . ·- · -~ · riding· concern· on Febiuary-~28 should have been 
_ ~.-:;·=~,-~-:~ ~~-_._< · ·It ·is unc1eat. frOin. the testimony· and fro~ ·the·'. ·-that the: &ecz:ecy of--the mj_$sion be maintained. 

_·. ;_:_._ ---~,~;::.-:_...,_·;_; ·: -~,Treasury .Depa~~e_n·t. Report ·why ATF ·Director··:' ~.-When ·any credible-evidence wa,.s brought to his at­
-~.;,.',:.-~--'~~-;~/~~-:-... - Higgins.~d_Dep~t,y .. DirectorJiirtne~t did·not ~g----.< .~tention that secrecy migbt·h~ve been compromised 
...... _ :;~_<-::~:-.- .---~--~:tiificantly in'foly~_ themse_lves.Jn the planrting·an~. ·" he· should have ·delayed tlie·· start -or the operation 
· · ·_ · ~ --~--~,-. ··_-·_·ove-rsight c;r_ ~e·_ u~tiQri..~~,of a· raid ·or this mag.;.'· ,•.-· until he· could confirm or deny those reports. 

__ ;·:_.~:-:--. ·,_-- nib.ld~. This. is .esp~lly:p-tizzling in''light_·or the · As Chojnadd testified before the subcommittees, 
· .. ~-..; ;. ; · amount· o( weaponry the ATF suspected was poi;,.. "' ~ccept· the ·responsibility for making the field de-

. · .. ,~: sessed _by _the .Da~dians •. Giyen the high risk in· ·· cision. I was the iitddent commander, I was the 
. ~---- _volved in"any-_dfn.~C entry, and the fact that tile-- ... persoif to ·make that deeision.•81 Regardless o( 

· _ .. _. t~ ·:· · open loeation of the Davidian residenee created a whether he fully understood the significance o( 
- · ·· greater· risk to the ATF agents in using this tactic, what· Sarabyn told him, it was his job to take 

it is simply incomprehensible that the most senior whatever steps were necessary to insure that se-
ATF officials were not directly involved with the crecy was maintained. Because he did not, his por· 
planning of this operation and in overseeing its tion oC the blame Cor the failure oC the raid and its 
implementation. In retrospect, maintaining the se- consequences is equal to that or Sarabyn • 

. .. _crecy o( this operation was one of the most impor- c. OTHER WAYS IN WIDCH THE PLAN SELECTED WAS 
···:: :: tant aspects. of this. plan. To experienced law en· . 

. ·. ·. ·-~~ ,_ forcement officials. this .fact should have ooen Qbvi· -- · BUNGLED 
~~----~"'~·,.,·.,:· .. p~s .. fr9.~,"th.~J~~gj,nn~~g. ,~Jl!ct, i~-.~~~!lldJ~ave , · __ .While tl:te(~lw:e.~C_ATF's commanders to recog· 
_:_:-.~::::. ::_.::. ~-:_·~· ~- b_een tlie-ovemding .eoncem of all irtvoly~-~ 1t'·wa5'_'" "niZECiind~tespQnd,.tO the _.Cact -,t.hat _their raid plan 
. ·-----.-':, ·--~ ---·:·--not something of.whic~ se~ior officiaJ~ .. -~~-o~~ have : ·had-cb~-~··severely:·co~pro'~ised was, by far, the 
. .. · .. . had to or~~t:. agents-to be. 'a't'{are. __ ·: · ·, . _·. · c ,_ · .. ·: ~C?~~=-~ign_ificant mistake· made on February 28, a 

··· '".-=· ...... : :- ·_Hi~ns·-__ atfd:U~ett' .Pi~:t shar_e:_a;--po~on_ o(,:::., _n~er·orothef,.failtir.es ·eame to light during the 
_.the ·blame for the failure· of the raid bee a u.s~· Utey_ .. ·_. su.b.Co~rilittees' ·investigation. · .. . · · 
failed to become significantly involved in the plan- · .-· · ... · · · · ... · · · · ...... · · 

. ning Cor . it.. Had . they done so, they presumably 1. Command and control usues 
· woul~ ·have ·~nsured that· a· procedure was in: place A number of command and control issues signifi • 
through which Rodriguez's information was re- cantly undermined the possibility or success for 
layed to them and they would hav~ acted upon it. the raid. Most of these issues were addressed in 
At the very least, they share some blame for not the Treasury Department Report, 92 however, three 

. . · 

instilling in the_ senior Taid commanders a:n under- or them 'bear repeating here. . 
·-· -.=. ·' standing or the· need to ensure that·. secrecy . was··· --- ~ .;~ ii~ ;;;,[~ini d,mjnarui _·and control functions 

. maintained in an operation of this type. . .. _ , . .. UIU'.ler the AUs National Response Plan 
· · .:. . But. most oC the blame for the failure oC the raid, 

. · ·. · and for_ the loss .of life that occurred, however, The. decision ·to 'designate Chojnacki as incident 
· · , ~ .-· · · must be born by the rmd commanders themselves, · commander and Sarabyn as tactical commander 

_ · ::. ------·<·and iri~particularly by Sarabyn. Both Sarabyn and waS mandated wider the ATFs National Response 
· --- -· . .::: :.. · ·- ::._Chojnacki unde-rstOod · what , :Rodriguez .. had .told . Plan .. While . the tactical experts who testified at 

· ·-- ·· ·sarabyn but,- ine%plicahly~ iomehow did not find it . th~ hearings and b~efed the ~ubcommittees noted 
.. to be significant e_nollgb to ·warrant -~~g- off- the ... that_ the we or an. 'overall coordinating document, 

.·. :'. -:~.-: ... · raid.= Perhaps.- they· thought that because ... th~ .... such as the N~tional Response Plan, is an appro-
. Davidian& were not· arming themselves when · priate ··organizational ·and ·standardization tool, 
Rodriguez left the residence that they would not some or 'the plan's requirements resulted in less 
do so. Perhaps· they believed that the agents could qualified people being placed in positions of com-

.. · : .. 
. ·.: -:.,:. 

have anived at the residence before the Davidians mand and control when agents who were more 
had fully ann~ and _taken up offensive positions __ qualified for ~ese posit!ons, and. who were ~ready 

c-.--_.;:.··-~---::...;.. apinst··tliem.-·Pem·ap( they .. even!, tho~~- --:ij}at .. __ s~le~d to ~--~~olv~d ~-n ~~~~·were avallable . 
. -:._~~·-:;·~-;;--~~c~-- ~·.-·:their_'~ abiliti~s w~ 'lfO~;superior to..:_--~~~-.9..( the. Cho~nacki was selecte~ as ·1no~ent ~ommander 

~ 7 ' c~· '-=:_?: ,_._;_::::-~:2_:DaVidiaris :t}iat_.the)'?~wd have sueeessfUJ1y_:OVer• because he .was the ~a} agent~- ch~e of the 
.- --- .·:;"-;:.-··-····.:-.·:-- .-· · th ·na····di-- ---;:c .... _ -~-th --n "dian. h d. field offiee __ m whose regton the __ nud was to occur • . . .-· come e V1 ans, -even .u e •Vl s a Wb ... 1 --.'"- · . --- .•... 1 ---- .. , ...... · h--- ·f- h" 
--~::,_~.:__~ · been expected to be lying in_ wait. Wiiatever···the· ,:.~ .. -.. -... J_Q.;,"''l;·sp~qA _ _age~.t~.c -~ o a geograp 1c 

: ;~ ~- ~-;1:·· :; reason; however, the facts are ~t th'ei. ~~~-~-o~.-~::=:-::;e&H. Pan lat '159-?eo. . · .... 
should have known that the DaVJd.ians--bid-beCome •'l'reuuJ7 Department Repar\ at Ui2-t&e. · . · 
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:·7·~·.::~<·· area may have a great interest in an operation haps diverting or redirecting the actions of some 
-~·-:.:/ :-\ that takes place in his area, his position has little and reducing the number of casualties sustained. 
·.:~.=:::. :~ .: . bearing on his qualification to run the operation. c. Command and control from Washington 
.. · .. . And even though Chojnacki had 27 years of law On February 28, "'TF acti'vated t'ts "Nati'onal ·-·; · · ::.y._. · enforcement experience, there were other agents n 

- . · -· · · · -· . involved in .. ~e· rii.i4 . who possessed su_bstantially .. C.om~and Cen~r" at its Washington headquarters 
~-=.:< ::.~: more experience in· taCtical operations. . .. staffe~r _ ··_: witl} .. :~ '"high-lev~l .. ~age!~ 

~=- ·,;·_, .. :~.;~·.:::-}.: ~::.· ~- ···- ~ Chojnacki;·~ tum, appointed Sarabyn, to be tac- _ , ~ex~·~!.len~e_(~] .tn field operations. Yet 1t appears 
•• o. · ·J".::'·:·:-,~-; · .·,.·_;; ir.:·tic:al: coordinator :.bi!cause the. Na.tio_nal. _Response · , :that. ~e ·_.CO.f!1.1P~4~:~_en~r played no rol~ m th.e 
· · · ·· · · ... ·· .. · · · - ~ .. - ·· ··pi··-.·.· · · • ··d· :th·. ·· ·t· ·· ... · •·ti to be ·fiJle.d b,v an-. s · plannmg or tmplementation of the operation until ·· · ··· --.···-·-· ~-- ·· · · · an reqwre a pos1 on ~ a· · :·· · ·1 d d d. · ·· .·.- ·<~ ~:·:::·~~:~~- . ·· ~.-=;~- :_ = =~i~iB:ht · s~ial ~~-~~ in_·:~ha~· !iho-~h~d ;comp~et~(( ·_:~.- =~~~~1-f:er~-,~!~!::~d k~e~te~r :e~U::. ie~ed 

_. .<.::~- --~>~ .. : •P.~~a~.- ~spo!'~r.-~~ .. (S~r~. ?-ammg,_:~ ~~ad· ··that--ROdriguez .kiiew .the Davidians thought the 
-·-. _ _;:· ·~;.: .... ·· ... -· ~ ·:Sa.~~-·_J3ut Sar~~ had ~~-~ded SRT ~81~1~g_.__ raid ·was 'immirient"·because Chojnacki never told 
::~~~~-~, :.~.·:~~:~.~:'=-: .. ·-c_~---,-~n~y as_ ~-~~s~er., ~d th_~~~l!e.~ .. ~o~~er,~ay:~n-~_ .. ;.~·.··thertt;;·Apparen_tly,·the·person in the command cen· 

. .-· ·. · .......... : ..... of· lesser ra~k who nad mor.e ~.nel)_ce Jn ·_th1.s ... ; .. : tei' :with: .. wboni Chojnacki spoke did not know 
· ····. ... . area.93 AS in the case with Chojnacki~ the National. : enough about the raid to know that an undercover 

:- . . ·· :·. ·.. Re1~P~f!.~e_ ~1~·~ ~~~ptedhasiths 0 ". ... J1l!lk anddedgeogra
1
phif·. . agent was to have been inside with the Davidians 

· ·. Ca ~SS_1gnment ere~ e un~nten . ~e~u t 0 · until. shortly before the raid was scheduled to 
pla~ng a less q~lified. person mto a posttlon for begin and valuable infonnation might have been 
wh!~h he was e1ther s1mply not .quabfied or for · available. In fact, according to the Treasury De· 
wh1ch there were others more quahfied. partment Report, no one in the command center 

b. Command and control on the seeM on asked anr questions of Chojna~ki at all when he 
raid day reported m shortly before the nud.91 

Chojnacki decided to ride in one of the heli· 2. The lack of a written raid p_lan . 
cop~rs ~n ~,"aid -~y.94.This decision placed him out_ The Treasury Department .review of the ATF's 
of effective communications With the other "raid · investigation of David Koresh noted that the ATF 

· · com~anders and SRT teams leaders prior to the agents. who were in command of the raid did not 
·· · ,~·,. beginning ·of the- raid~ Had he chosen to ·remain in ... __ :·· ·pr~p.af~ a Written raid 'plan in advance of the raid . 

... centra,I position ·rran;t· y.-hich he could control .the · While. two A.TF-·agents ·took it upon themselves to 
-~·evolving r~<L :he: mighfhav~.:had .. othet:, oppo_r_tuni-.... create' ·one;; ~t· was . ~ever reviewed by the senior 

"· · ·· · .. · · · ties to learn Qf ~~~ez's information abOut what ·;·-::-raid planners ·an_d commanders, and never distrib­
·. the '-Diividiaris' .. forewaming .. :_~·He might alschhave·~··,.:·uted·.·to·· any ~of~ the -agents who were to participate 

been able to learn from agents in the undercover ·in the raid.98 · ......... . 
. . house that the Davidians were not where the ATF During the hearing before the subcommittees, 

antiCipated. they·· would be on the morning of Feb-· ·--several. tactical ,eXperts .testified that the drafting 
ruary 28, a key element of the tactical plan, but of a written raid is an important part of develop-
instead were lying in wait for the agents. ing an overall operational plan. Indeed, the ATFs 

Sarabyn, the tactical commander, chose to ride own National Response Plan, which was drafted to 
·· · in oii'e of the cattle trailers es rather than observ·· establish •consiste11:t policies and procedures• 

· "irig 'the residence· _frorrl'a· vantage ·point ·such as the· :'~~hEm s·ever~~ Special R.esponse Team.s are invol~ed 
. un~ercover house, where he could monitor ·activity m an O_Pe~atton,~ .req~re.s that a wn.tten plan for 
in and around the building, as well as view the ap- .m~~gtng the cnt1cal tpctde~t or ma~or AT~ oper· 

· · proach of t~e ATF agen~ in the cattle trailers. By ation be p~oduced before the operatton begms. 100 

"riding in the trailers with the agents who were to-~ .. .Yet this was not done in this case. 
. :· ··c~nduct the . raid,· . s~rn sev.ere]y limi~ his . 3. Lack of depth in the raid plan 
- · ·.· · vtew of the Branch DaVIdian .restdence, whtch also: --~:·. (:)'·: · bl . .-:.-. · 'th:. . .. rall 1 • th fact 

· · · ·prevented him frOm observing that .the ·Davidians .,. ,_. ne pro .. em_ .\.:Vl ove . P annmg was e 
... ·.~-.. were .. riot where ·the ·ATF expected them· to be just that. no wntten plan extsted. A factor th~t may 

... before the J.a:id .. began . have exacerbate4 ~.e. lo_sses the ATF sustamed ~n 
... Additionally once Sarabvn arrived ~t the res·- February 28 wa~·the lack of dep~ in the oral ra.td 
d h ·be ' . "·· . 1 plan. The plan mvolved agents m two cattle cars 

ence e came pmned down .Wlth t!'e other driving up an exposed driveway to the front of· the 
agents and was unable t? communt.cate With many · Davidian residence and running out of the cars, 

. . . of !h~ other agents at different po.mts m:ound th.e with one group storming through the front doors 
,,..,. .", .... : .. . ·.~ ____ · .. b.w~F.g~_:.H.-'~::.h~_ ~~sen .topla~~Jumselfm.a pos•·.· while the other went to the side of the building, 

.- ... ·~:;·.·. ~,-.,:·,_:_ ... -:;-.~=~-' .-:- · ·tton . where lie .. would. not have. come under fire · - ... 
:··:o: :·'~---~:::t-~:~·:~:~:~::~_·:~·.--·aucii''~~~thi .. Uit,de#py~f~9use, he m~gh~· hav_e-,bee~. - •ret aU75: .. - .... - .. _ : ... _ .... --·-:_:: _: ... 
·.:~:_: ... , .... : ... '"'., "':-:. · .. abJe·to communicate 'With all :of~tlie·~agents, per· "ItL . · :.-. · . 

· ··i-~t:::_-~_-~··:~ . ·=j~~~~gt ~-- .. . . --. ·::~-::·~~~~#:~~,;;-~T_:~~~-e;i~~~;:n~,:; 
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. . , : .. -.-; • climbed ladders carried by agents onto the roof involved. At worst, it is evidence or grievous neg· 
-:·-~---~~_'.::_!_: and in through the second-story windows.101 There ligence on their part. 

was little else to the plan and, importantly, little . • 

_: :·;} .. __ or ~e:s·:Zi:i~~h:! ~~~ ;J:er:f~n ho-W ~ ~· ~~/,:t';ul.ra:ne;:.,t~getlur for only 3. days 

. _. withdraw·· from the residence.102 Even-the written - -· . .-.Another fact w.hi~ mdica~~ a lack or skill on 
--~---~~-·-·~-~:~:;r:~~-.':·:·pl~ ~~:~.;~r ·the··md _and~givef!··to .. the.Texas: :; ~e part of_bo~ s~p_ior,!!-,~f.. ~~dals and ~he .ATF 
. , - _::: :_~:-~~-, -'~·-·"·Rangers · d~ng . their irive·stigation ~(which·· was ~·:'.: o~-Stte .c:ommanders, partiC#J~rly overall mc1dent 

·-=-=:· __ ;-~:;:·:_.,-: ~~;-·never·djstri'bu~~to the·comma!.lders or any-agents ... eom~~r ... Qhoj~acki, Js.th_~,tact tb"at the Special 
:- ~ : . . _·;~:~,; _::_ ._:: ... iri-· advance ·or the·:--riiid) .. devoted mucl{ of· its 81/a. :·-··.-Response .. -'l'ea111s . (SRTs) invQ_lved in conducting 
~-··- ~: ~:~:; ~~~- ~L~' ·::: ·:·j;_&ges· ,to·~_o admi~istrative -. · is'su.es. It contained~-no -· ·: · the operati~n. ~tained ,together. for only 3 days prior 

_·_ :.·, ,:~-.:~.~:=:~-~~-ti~~m--~o! ... ~hat :&gent~·\ivere-·to do if anything .·to the __ bper.ati9n.~~~~e:ATF_does not maintain a 
-:- .. :···-:: .·:::-,~:.: .·. ·_:--wen~_ .. wrong·_W)tli Pl_e_"dynariiic ·entry" into the resi- .· .. .-.-.Jarge:·.standing .force or t;pecially trained agents 

· -- ~ · .---~ · ._,.-~-c ~den·ee. The three _sh'ort·paragraphs undet·the head·- · which .. can be dispatched to the site or a disturb-
. · _- : .: ing •contingencies•_ si~ply mentioned the presence ance, such as the FBrs H.ost8ge Rescue Team. In· 

· ... _-.-.. or an ambulance and nurse near the scene.103 _ . stead, the ATF put together its team Cor the oper· 
.... : · ~ discussed above, the most grievous failure on ation againSt the Davidians by combining special 

· '· · the part of ATF officials on February 28 was the response teams from several of the AWs regional 
failure to understand and appreciate the signifi· offices. 
eanee of undercover agent Rodriguez's report that While the subcommittees do not conclude that 
the Davidi8!ls. knew the AT~ raid was im~inent. the ATF should have created a special team such 
Yet.. the om1sston of any contingency plannmg was as the FBrs Hostage Rescue Team in advance or 
a fallw:e that may ~ave led to th~ deaths o~ agents the raid (and does not conclude that it need do so 

. ·. 

who ~ght .othefW!~~ ha~e s~ved. Contingency· now)~ it ·app:ears that the reason why the FBI 
plannmg m1ght }lave ~en effect1.ve at a _nu~ber or . maintains its HRT as a single unit is because co-

. ·. _ .. _ •. · .. . -=::,-~tag~-~=. Vt'~-~n ~e -~e.nts tu~e_d Into the_ .dn~eway; ordination· of the agents involved in a tactical oper· 
·; '> --:. ~-·::::~ r-~::~-: ;~~ ~h~n. :~er-_..fi~t ~~-~ed:]..:tl.'~.f.)¥ere ~o~ung under .. · atiop, e~pecially one involving great risk, is of the 

· : · _ ... ·" · ··· ···· ~e from the D~'19i~s • .-:or .~hen the~ o_tder; was: utmost 'importance~ ··S~nior ·ATF officials and the 
. • . , .. : :·· : , :· , . gtven to retreat. m the face of .the DaVIdians . fire.· ·A· TF' · . - · -~ .... ·-.- ·. ·· d .. "th { 
. ·-· .... c __ -. ·Tb' ·--Tr .. ~-.' 'D . . . '. ··.Re . . ·th . s on-sl~· Cornman ers el er were unaware 0 
~ -:-,~~-~-:~~~·::_:~-~·:_ .. :.·:-:::.' r~tU:e:_of; ~~~ri~~m~~~ide:Oth~t~fh~; ~p.er~ .- ~: t~~s;_:_f~ct_:or, m,~-~e likely,· s~_mply ignored it fo.r rea· 
. . .. ~ ation might go &Wry and 'prepB..re {or' tha~ eventu· . _sons whl~h- ar:e ~known: to the subcommittees. 

ality is tragic, but somewhat understandable." 1o.c Regardles~ of the. reason;·· however, the fact that 
··· .. -. -:-It-notes that. most ATF agents wer_e. useti to oper· . ATF officials beheved that they cou~d ·create a 

ations going ·without incident, or at least being ·re: - force of over 70 .agents, a~equately ~ned ~ con· 
· · solved in favor of the ATF, and that the only other duct. an operation o_f this co~pl~:nty aga.tnst a 

ATF operation similar in ·magnitude to the one heaVlly armed opposmg force, mdicates a lack or 
agairist the DaVidians . had been resolved. peace· foresight on th~ P.art of these senior officials which 

... ful!Y~. The ~PQ~ places_ stronger blS:Ule on ATFs. is_ u,nac~ep~le.~. ;. _ ....... . .. 
national lea~~rship for 'this f~lure,· ·calling _its fail~ 5. True .Natio-nal .. G~rd . role- only made clear 24 
ure_ to ensure that some contingency planmng was hours prior to tM raid - · ·. -:. .... ~: . 

done "simply unacceptable. • 105 .. . . , . . . • · ·· 
· · · · ··· .-:; · . ,. The _subcommittees agree that ATF leadership The sUb~mm1ttees have learned that ~hen th.e 

. :: _._ .. __ shares. the blame for the failure of this operation Texas National Guard was asked ~ proVIde heli· 
--- .... . :. ·-... _ .... and that, cl.ear:Jy, it would have been beneficial' co~t4!rs to the ATF, the purpose ~ven was that 

· ... '-' ._ had they been in~lved iD a_Dieamngfufway in tli"e··- ·· they would be. used as an observation platform or 
~:- -.. -:-.planning of the operation~·. B~ it shouldnoftake·· ~mmand and ~ontrol J?latform.101 When the N~-

··· . - . ----·-- -- di~ves- from :Washington_ to. ensure that. agen-tS ti~nal Guard pllots arnved at Fort. Hood to train 
• =. in chaige of ·the ATFs various field offices and · wtth ·the 'ATF the day before the ra1d they learned 

. Speeial Response Teams, the people who actually for the first time that the ATF intended to use the 
conduct an operation, will know enough to ask the helicopters as a diversion just before the raid was 
simple question •what happens if this doesn't go as to begin. The helicopters were to fly close to the 
planned. • No amount of past success is reason residence, attracting the attention of those inside 

. : ~-:~- ~-~-----;·~::..-~~-=-·~~ough-to explain why this possibility_ wasn't eon-: .. to_ the back side of the bw1ding, while the ATF 
-·- _ .. ~=~:·.;~~~ ·.~:.~::;:<~~:jide~- ~4. pJ.~~- f.o~-~!_.f'act .. that. it. was~ not:·~--~" agenti".arrtvttcl~t- the-6.'9nt of the sbucture.108 

~~~~~l~?~~i~~i~~1:t!f~~!~i.~~~e~~:~~:%~n_:_,r_._· __ ._·.;t~€;_J~~~Sr?: 
. . "-;;::;,;.;.;~.;. .. _-.. ,.;·... ,~ .. ·.....-·--
.. 
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While the National Guard was. conducting its have held that such IL"l announcement Is unneces· 
role in its Title 32 status, toe and ·so was not lim· · B8J)'. when the facts known to officers would jU:Stify 
ited by the tenns of the Posse Comitatus Act,110 them in being virtually certain that the person on 
this change in plan is still troubling. The failure to whom the warrant is to be served already knows 

-;;::"':::~:;~:: ·-·. inform Natiooal Guard commSJ!ders of the true the officers' purpose and that an announcement 
_ . ~ -~ .: :.;..:· __ _._. , role for the National Guard troops and ~qwpment- would be· a· useless gesture.u3 Courts also have 

" .. :-~.:·.~.:;~·~: :. ·- ·:., well ill. advance of the raid is an omission that is; .::.-hel_d .. that_polict( n_eed not knock and announce 
.· .. ~;~~·.::· . ;::....:::. - <:at best;··add.itiorial ·evidence of the· po()t planning·:··:.· 'their·intent to ·aei"Ve a warrant it they fear that to 

. _·._.:~·:)z:~:::: ',, ::.:<:foi the .raid "do'ri'E!. 'by the A'rF"COJllmanders.-·:At -:-'· 'do'''&O .WQl,lld allow·_the person on whom the' war-
·. . . ·.: .:·:: .~;;. . worst,' this may . have been an ·attempt bY '.·ATF ::··: rant is ... to be sert~d to destroy the evidence to be 

· ... ···:-:~ · -· · ... · ·· .... commanders tO obtain operational assistance ·that,.·· . . seiZed · imder · the warrant.n• A third general ex· 
· --.-/;~:~~;;·.~ ·while not prohibited by law, might ~av~ been de- ~- ceptlon .. tO· the -rill~frequiring the police to knock 

'·':··~"'--:-"· ':- --_. ----·clined by-the Governor ot Texas as commander of and announce their intent to serve a warrant is 
· · ··'-.. ·-.-~~- · the Texas National Guard h~d ~,~ __ ATF give.n suf- ._ ... wh~n. to .do so would increase the risk of danger to 

.. •. ficient notice f~r word to have reached her:'ln' any· the officers serving the warrant.115 
. ··-:·_;:::~. event, it does not appear that senior ATF or Treas- · · Given the .. fact that the arrest and search war· 

ury officials gave any consideration to the negative rants were based, in part, on the evidence that the ·: ·-.~··:..-

... ··. 

image of military helicopters being us·ed as part of Davidiai'ls were·· in possession of illegal automatic 
a raid on American civilians. ' weapons, the subcommittees believe it was reason· 

D. SERVICE OF THE WARRANT able for the ATF to have presumed that the 
Davidians might fire on them had they announced 
their intent to serve the warrants in advance. The 
David.ians own behavior in firing on the ATF 
agents proves the reasonableness of that belief. 

·One of the issues considered by the subcommit­
tees was whether the ATF agents serving the ar­
rest and search warrants on February 28 were re­
quired to "knock and announce" their intention to 
serve the warrant before entering the Davidian E. V'NRESOLYED AlLEGATIONS . . 

.. ... .._ . .· re~idence. Whe~ ~he A~F agents conducte~ the 1. ·whO shot first1 
=-- -:-.:~~, ._;.,- ~::=·nud on the Davt~~-restden~~.the agen~~ _di~_not .. ·'-- M h h·-s--b en ·m d . f the issue as to which 

. knock on the -Davtdians' front door and announce ·-: U:c -~- · e.. · a ~ ·° C fl" . . 
_; . their .. iD~n~ons tO setve. the ;.~~~L ~.ther, the . /1~e_ m .the ~ b.at~le shot first. on 1ctmg eVJ· 

... -:,. ·-· _-.-. -~-- -:, ATF 8g~ts .. disomounted -from_~~!~ _cattle ttaileri in . _.-,.,}iE(~Ce. on t~~. pomt. :was presented tc? ~~ f:b-
. . .. _ . wh~c!t they_ w~re riding .on the_ ~~ _ Q_ne group at..:._ _ -~opt~!tte~s .~Y the A~~ agents wwho wenre 1 o ed 

tempted to enter the res1dence forcibly·through··the . · ~n !J:l!! .. ~~·--~-~--'I)~~s Rangers ho c~ ducted. an 

··:· ,. 

front door. A second group attempted to enter the Jnvestigatlon mto the events ~f the rrud followmg 
second floor windows via the roof. . tl\_e end of the stan~o.tr on Apnl 19, and by the at· ,_ 

The subc-ommittees' review of videotapes made tomeys for ~e DaVJdians. . 
of the training sessions during which ATF prac- ATF Special Agent John ~enry Williams, a 
ticed the raid plan revealed that the plan was de- member of the SRT ~a~ ass1~ed to enter the 

. __ signed around thi_s_type of dyna~.c _entry and did· front door of. the DaV1d1an Restdence, and who 
· · not involve ·a knock and announce. approach •. In . spo~e. t()_ :_D~~d )_tore~h at the. front door of. the 

· ·. -~ oth~r words; the use of these tactics was not the Davtdian . res1d~n~~ as the rrud begfl!1•. testified 
result·o(any ·circ:Umstances which had oecurred on th~t he. w~. convmce~_. that the DaVldians sh.ot 

· . February 28~ · · · · · · · . · _ · · : · · first.. As Wdhams testified before the subcom11llt· 

In 1917,111 Congress enacted th·e Federal knOck. ..tees• 
·_and a._nnounce statute.112 Gen_erally.speaking, the 

statute permits forcible en tty for the· purpo·s~ of_ 
executing a· search warrant only. ~r· the ·~cer · 
gives notice of his authority an~ his purpose but is . 
:refused admittance. Courts in~rpr:e~g tlie· stat- .. 

. ute, however, have adopted a number of exceptions .. 
to the rUle allowing unannounced police enbies in 
limited exigent circumstances. For example, courts 

As ·we approached the front door, David 
. Koresh came to the ·front door dressed in 
black cammo fatigues. 

As he closed the door, before we reached 
the door, one agent reached the door, and 

· at that point that is when the doon erupt· 
ed with gunfire coming from inside. It .was 
10 seconds or more before we even fired 
back.ue 

... ,Cir' &D eqU.udon otthe three "a&atuel" lD •bicb Natiaaal Caarcl at 

_;{,~i~~~L,,:,-ii:SL~~~=~;:-:--·~r~~~~:~rt~~=~~;. 
-~_-.:~-;·-_:::. -~ . -... ~n!;,-13=-bad ~-~ liibit.~"' ~-:b.:~~~~uiiti. ·~:.· --- ''veijl)rietly, you 'were walking up to the 

-d-,.~s;.B-,;;~,_ .• ,·-··ra~~1i:f:.~Z..!=.:i-.!i?.5~':::~~:~~J¥Eti~::- __ . 
. . parpaM, be • relbaed Mmitluce or wbea IMileiiiiiJ'·lo·libenia biiiiNlr' .. · ~»ltL . .. . ·. . · · ·· 

... ·:: :; "- .. _ .... _ . • a penoo aidi&IIJ bim lD &be a:ecatioca ot &be Warraa4. •: - ,- : :- · : ·· a.u Heaiap Pan I a& 72&. . . 
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.~.;:_~:·.·:=·~~:: door, and how dose to the door we~e you But I believe that what the evidence 
-:· :: ~;.~~/:. when the shooting started? . . from the trial, the criminal trial, was that 

: .-=<~-.::_: d!~· _ WILIJAMS:_ ~ut 10 feet ~m the fi:~~~ ~:0 :~~~e~~ :s:e~z! 
.. ---·------ -~ Mr. ScOTr: ___ wu· it you,r inten_tion P-~~~ behind them--~---~ ~- :1 will J)oint out to you 

:---··_;>+.-.·. to that ~ad_Koresb eotiie out by then? from-talking tO 'the foreman or the crimi-
~ _: ·:··: ;.;_/ _ -_ . Mr. Wn.LIAMS: Yes. . . · __ :. -_- __ -·:.·. _ _ -. . nat .trial jury, who he•l!i, ~ weeks or testi-

.. -.. <·.~·: .. -~ ·_ ~r. SCOTT_:_And_)low rar· from :~e doo(
0

• - --.- -~.. mony:by the Ckivernmerit in 2 days of' tes-

. ·.. :~~.~:~-·_._·_~_;: __ :: __ .·:~(.: __ .:_: -_-_- -_- .. :-.- --'=-~~----_-_f. ___ :eMr_-!_.·y __ · ~W_u "-_':'_~_-y-~-y -~ •_: ~~:~.e -:~pr~~o-~tnm _ _-_ ~a_tedoolv_--_::. __ -.-~~-~:~: __ Y_~-fe~uert_ -~--~_-_-_, _-__ -_ :. -. -~. · .. : ~~~t t~~~~~m~!-~Th~~--f~,:~!~~ ~! 
_ _ - - ·""------- :::_ ___ ~-· ·~.:--~- ~ ~-- _ " -. ::. juii-iOld--me-.-_they .. _coulfiiot decide because 

-- from the door. . . . - - .:. - --~- - -the -e'ViCience-- was in~- such conflict as to 
t ;: -,_,: -· --- · _ .: .. · Mr~i:Md did you contii\1iH.:8ll~;·_::·, _ ~ ,,. ~ wh~ fir~ ~i-lt,~ ;.~ :'-' ;:: 

mgM orwW • v. .. . .. - - : _____ :.-:~.. ... --~-: ... ~~ · V{ere shots /ired from the helicopursr . . ~. 

.... · ::.: .. · .. ··: 

... . . . ... 

r. n.LIAMS: &es. . . . 
Mr. ScOOT: And how close ·were. you· ·· · Allegations were leveled by the Davidians' attor· 

when the shooting started? · . neys that agents in the National Guard helicopters 
Mr. Wiu.LUIS: 1-basically about 10 · used in the raid fired into the Branch Davidian 

feet. After that, the shooting started im· residence ·from the ail'. The Davidians' attorneys 
mediately after he closed the door. . . testified that they were shown holes in the roof _or 

Mr. ScOTJ': Is there any question . m the structure which appeared to them to be bullet 
your mind as to where the shooting holes fired ~m the outside into the structure. 
began? Phillip Chojnacki, who was riding in one or the 

Mr. WILLIAMS: None. helicopters, testified, however, that no shots were 
---. -Mr. _Scan.;~ YO..~~cuse_.m.e~ ___ th_~~--- _fired from the helicopters. l{e testified that ATF 

.-/· . · was frOm the mstde com.mg out.-· ·.• . -. personnel on ·the heli~pters were armed only with 
.. .- _ _. __ ,_-_._ -~r .. WILUAMS: ··Yes, ~m_ th~ .. 1~51~e: -9 millimeter ·sidearms and that he observed no 

••· .~., . . --~_:-~,,r:,~:_--~: : :-~~~g:.o~t.~_:~!.~-~-:;~_,F·:·::--.-;--:: :~~-~- · ·: --. ;-;·;. -.. ;.-~·>-. ..· ... ----shotS fired: from ;the he.licop~rs.~o His testimony 
· ....... ·.: .. senior .officers of: the:·Tex~ Rangers .. also testi- is _supported_ -by .the sworn_ s~ienitmts of each of-

·,: .. . . . ,-;: ~- __ · .. fied~ as: to· the ;findings or their. investigation into ... :_the .. pilots of the hellC9pters,_ taken on April 20, 
• • -··. -.. _ t._.. ·these .. events- after,-April.l9 ... The Rangers_--inter-:_. :_:·.1993, t}l_~_t. ~_ej1e_licopters:were unanned and that 
-·.··:· ·" .. : .... _._, viewed-virtually everyone who .. was present at the no ATF agents fired from the helicopters.t21 Teias 

·BranCh Davidian reSidence on February 28, includ- Ranger Captain David Byrnes also testified as to 
ing several of the surviving Davidians and all of what the Rangers' investigation eoncluded with re. 
the ATF agents who were present. As Texas Rang- spect ·to ·this issue. He stated that the Rangers 
er Captairi David Byrnes testified to the sub- found no evidence that shots. were fired from the 
committees: helicopters.t22 

I believe the evidence was to me over· The subcommittees reviewed videotape or the . 
whelm1rig :in the iria1 that the Davidians · raid shot by agents in .the helicopters as well as 

. fired first. The cameraman and the re· videotape or the exterior or the helicopters involved 
porter, although very reluctantly, ~nally I in the raid after the helicopters withdrew from the 
believe conceded that. He had broadcast scene; At no point in the videotape does any ATF 

. .- that several times. He was' more or less a agent fire a weapon from the helicoptez:-s and the 

.-. 

·_· ·- _-- · .. ·:.hostile· wiloness~ But in ·my mind there ·is·_· helicopters· do not appear to. have been equipped 
· ·-. · ·· · ' -. · no doubt who fired firsi.1ia· ·· · with machine' guns or··other weaponry. The video 
. - ..... .... ·- · · · · · - · · · · · .. "- ·.. ·-· · · ·tape _reviewed, however; is not continuous from the 

. But· the attorneys for the Davidians testified that ·point from which the helicopters lifted ofT to the 
they believed the gun battle erupted as the result ded. ~ th · d 

-. of· an accidental- di~harge. by one ot the ATF ~int at which they Jan The ,act at V1 eo-- . 
···agents; · Jack Zimmerman, attorney for David -tape was taken at some points in the raid and not 
Koresh during the standoff, testified at others has not been explained to the sub­

committees. 
My personal opinion is that it was an 

accidental discharge by one or the ATF U.Hearinp Part 2 at 28. 

. . . ---· .·.:..... .. agents_ as __ h~ _was_ ~~()unting ~d . that_ _ _ ·· : _, =~~"'2 ,:.t ~~the labcaalmitteee bf the Desartmm' 

bi£~~~§~ft~~~~~~Z:f!~:~!jtt:--~~him~~J1.r~~ 
; · ... ;=:.:~·- .:!. ..... --::. .. decuuon-' .What ~mmand_was 1t? -- ,_._._--- · · · --- ih.. -- --- - --- - hiU ftrecl·aur belt~ 1.1 that tbeJ peeled o6 

·-:~~~-~;~-~~~\:t;;:·~-::-:-~·:·---~~;/4. .,~ _:--·~::~~~-:--~~~ ~:· -·- ~---· 7 ~;~;:·:·;{:{- f :::_; ___ -;Jf:·:f~S~~,;::-~ paftre. ... thoM p1ca 
· u.tH..;ap Pat tat liD. --- · · ·· ·:. Heariap Pm 2-' un. 
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=-~·.;._·.-. It bas been suggested that the bullet holes in Sarabyn. They either knew. or should have known 
··.;~··:.;.. the roof of the Branch Davidian residence may that the Davidians 'had become aware of the im· 
··:-····:.:~: have come from ATF agents on the roof who were pending raid· and were likely to resist with deadly 

. ___ ,_:·;~-:~:~·.) .::· _.,.. firing_into_the structure as the firefight continued. force. Nevertheless, they recklessly proceeded with 
.. -.: · ·. .. Jack . ·zimmerman,.: .. the~. attOi-Jley _(or Branch .. :the rai.~, .thereby endangering the lives of the ATF 

__ • • ~-~·_':. -~ ·; _ L .- __ • - __ :_ • __ Davidian __ Steve Schnei_4er ·during·tne ·Standoff, ·cori· _ _agents under_ their command and the lives or those 
· ·- .-:>:·:.'·/ --.-~:··_ ~ _ -_· __ ced~d :that''tl1is ~was a pos-sible· expl~ation for the residing in the compound. This, more than any 
__ -·~-~_.~_::·~;;' .-~-- _-'~_.· _:_. ~ :pre·sen.c~(of th.e:_bullet boles during his testimony ~~--other factor, led to the deaths of the four ATF 
-~"- ·_. · .. !--~.:\~ · ~:·-~-~:---_- : .. · '_~-_bJor~:·:::_the --~·-subeom.·~~es. 123 yiy~~- . that .: ~ere : _ ~geJl~sJ~.illed_ on February 28. · · 
. ------=- ·?:;.:.--:?::- :-:-~.;.,.:::.:~~)~ier:~,:~se~e-1'$1 A?:'f~·ag~f~t(-who- were on--the -ro.o'f__of__;-·_.. _.:->~ Th~ fo~er_l)irector and Deputy Director 

:-:.;:~~:~·>·.-~,_,:: ..... ·:-.-_-the .--~-8!~-~ri~-~---duririg··. 'the ~refight -~:wi~.- ,__.t.he. .-:· ~t th.~. ~Tf_);J~ar • portion of the reaponsib~· 
. _ -.. · .. · _. __ .. _____ Davulians, ~~s-~lane.ti9.~. seems plau~nble •... ______ ,_., __ .tty for the fa_ll~ ot·the raid. Former ATF Di· 
-~'-' __ ·::::--:}:'-:-.. ~--- ------.,; -~--~~-~ REHmiNG·b~~CHoJNAOO AND·.-_·_ .. )ectar···stephen-Higgins .Jild fonner ATF Deputy 
-~,: ·:· :.· :~~ .~--.<:._-~--~~ ----------- ·_- - --:·-:-. _ --:-::-c SARABYN --=-:.-~:--~--:.,;-:·_.~·:.--.._--.~-- ---~--~))irec~~ _Daniel.Jia~ett·bear a po.rtion of there-
. · . ·: . ~. _ -__ - . . _ _ -- spons1b1lity for-the fa.Jiure of the r&ld because they 

.. -.. :: 

. . ·.: .... 

·!.·· .. 

. __ In October 1994, following the Treasury Depart- failed to become involved in the planning for the 
·men t's -·reView of the failed_ raid -- against ... the . rai4. __ f{ad they. done so, they might have ensured 
Davidians, the :Qepartment terminated -the em- .. that a procedure was in place through which the 
ployment of the two senior raid commanders, undercover agent's information was relayed to 
Chojnacki and Sarabyn.124 Both of them filed com- them and they could have acted upon il At the 
plain~ with the Merit System Review Board. very least, they share some blame for not instilling 
While that complaints were pending, the Treasury in the senior raid commanders an understanding 
Department reached agreements with both or the need to ensure that secrecy was maintained 
Chojnacki and Sarabyn.t25 & a result of those in an operation of this type . 
agreements, both were rehired by the ATF. How- 3. The planning for the raid was seriously 
ever, neither is assigned to positions of authority _ flawed. There~ we_re .. nu.rnerous problems with the 
over other agents and neither is presently empow- ATF's planning for the raid. These failures evi-

-~r.~-4 ~--~a 'i~:~P9"·~, ;:~o; .. ;._:_~j. ~,,~;_ ";:;~~.-:-:-. ~ -'-:;.;·~!' 4~~~~J~1_e J~~lt __ of_e_JfP~rience an~ sophistiCS:tion or 
·-- ----- · ... , _. ,- .~:/· -;~:·--tlj~.: .. h~~np~ __ :_ ~fo __ r~_ ~~~ -:~~~o~mtttee!J •. _ -::·the--se;m_o! AT~ agents·charged Wlth developmg the 

. " _ _ ,.Tr.~asury .D~pa~.m~~t p~Clals -.y~re.· _a_s~ed -why _a : .. ATf.s nud .plan._ fbey. also sugge.st that th~ ATF's 
_ : · .. - --- _- deal w~ struc~ _ ~~ the two p"e._ople_ on ~hom _the - ~emor o_ffic1als r~led to fully tram or mom tor the 

.. ·~ .. 

·-:- --- -_ TreaN.rY _Department blamed. the __ fajlure ;Qf .the_--.: __ a~ons ofJts senior operational commanders. In· 
Davidian raid .. No sufficient answers to this ques-- ..... ~eluded ~~Q!l_g th~ f~hiJ:e~ were: 
tion were provided. In light of the Treasury De- · • The ATF's own internal guidelines resulted 

. partment Report's conclusion that_~raid command- _ in less qualified people being placed in com-
ers Chojnacki and Sarabyn appeared to have en- mand and control of the operation when other, 
gaged in a concerted effort to conceal their errors more qualified agents, were available for these 

. ~ in judgment, • 1~s it is difficult to_ imagine any basis. P?sitions. The commanders also made strate-
- upon which the rehiring .of these two individuals gtc comman<J and control errors on raid day, 
. -_can be jusUfied_ by Treasury Departmeri_t officials. __ pla~ing ~e_mselves_.in positions that ~ampered 

· · · · .. __ - . . . __ _ _ _thelr ab1hty to rece1ve and act upon 1mportant 
__ G._ FINDINOS CONCERNING THE RAID EXECUTION · information that might have led them to post-
.. _1 •. _Chojnacki and Sarabyn jointly share pone the raid or redirect it to minimize casual-

. most of ~e r.esponsibillty fo~ _ the- fanu.re of .:-:_ties.. . . _ .. 
... ___ _ ___ the ATF_raid_against the Davidian&. The blame • .The_ raid plari itself lacked significant depth, 

.. _. · _for ~e failure of .. the .. raid, and for __ the loss of life . principa~ly in that _it contained almost no con· 
that Oc:Curied, -must be born by the-:senior · ATF _ · tingency planning . which might have mini-
raid commanders, Phillip Chojnacki and· Chuck. ·mized the losses suffered by the ATF on Feb-

____ - rwuy 28.. - . . 
·::· w"'l cauJdn'\ .ten )'DQ ~h~S. thciM ~-~~ -&.:ea-~-.-a ·heii. · · .. -. ATF commanders also failed to adequately 

eopt.er ar rd. AD I cav.Jd &ell 100 il l.bey come ftoom the aty clown ward. · • th·. · · ·· · • 1 ed • th "d .e.. '1 
lhocnebody were a&udh~ oaloop o(Lhe root'ahootiJic dowa into the cetl• tram e agents lDVO V lD e raJ Or to IW Y 
iDe. i& would look euctly the lame way.• Hearinp Part 2 a& Z7 (atat.e- inform the Texas National Guard of the in· 
-:!M"~~~ o. Sanbyn tram ATF Deputy Imect.or, tende~ role that its personnel would play in 

·. 

"Deciaioa to Remove tram Poaition ami !rom &he Federal ~ (Octo- the rmd. . 
_ .~ ···~: ---- . . . '-:r 26, 1994k_-~emcnncSWD to PbiiJiP. ~· ~nacki hm ATf' De~ty • ATF commanders failed to reduce the raid 

_:~_!,'._::~ ·"':':·}~·;;·· .:;~::. ··:_~·=:·~~~S:,.~:::a~~ ~~~~:is_~~---~-_ .. ·. ~-- -P.l~ tcf~tillgLa~ _wa~ required by ATF inter· 
---~:-:.~;::.;_>->~.~-.:~:.;.-~~--. :-~::.:...~ ...... -~!!:' ~ ~ .1. C1to~ •. Y.! .. P.:!J!011~ tf;.~- _ _..· '"~·.-·')1aCgU.fd~J.in_~, .. IJ.d ~is been done, and the 
.·. ~,-~,_ '--=~: ~-"~·i-:---~:';;: 7 ·~.~ • ..__ • .,o.- DA-9762-96-ot2&-:1-l, ~~'·&yatem~ ~~~ -------~~~--- 'Written ·ptaii'-cirCulated to those involved in· 

·:E:'~.}~~::~:;;~J,_~!E~i±~~~,~~:~::~::~t{~~tb~~~t!~,i~ht :~:!~~~might 
- · ·Docurnena.T0001:J42S.,.T0001KK .. ·,..: .. __ .. _ :>-..: _ .:-:.-·. '--"·· •. "'" '~--·~-,,~~Tlu~--:·a.ct~yati~!'l:::o_f' .. Jhe ATF National Com· 

. _____ "_ ,:·.---~ _ .. 7"~~~~~-·~}~· ·=·::~;-;·--~~~~-:~~::.·/ -:~~ __ --·;_------~- _."~_!11~~:~~~:~~-~QC~-~~ only because it was re· 
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.: . . .•. 

~-· .. ~~_:·_·:._:_:· ... : ':"··:;_:_:_:~ .. ~.~-;.:~---~ =~:tt ~~N:,tih:!! ~i:':!.f~Ia:'o1en: ~~:.!'J·~s:r,io~e~~~~n ~~~:~~'!tiJ:J~~~~ 
. . ~ the implementation of the raid plan. Had the · judgment on their part. It also further begs the 

senior ATF officials written the National Re- question as to whether there are {acts not dis· 
· --~ · ' - < · ···· ·· · -- sponse Plan in such as Y~ay as to ~s~re that closed to the subcommittees that Jed ad.ministra· 

.. ·-.\~·~:Wl· ~ • .~... ::m~~cffin;t ·'de;~r.n!~ ,th;u~~!:~;~1.·· , .~o~,~~~~r&.~ir:;:J::~:!;;: merL 
. . . ... . · ::··would ·have the elear authonty to question on··· . . . _- :· .. __ '-·· :·. -: -~ . 
--~ ~~:··~--·;I~,:-~·-:- --< :-\;:.· ._._.,·scene:. corrfmanderJ., tl)e -~-aid might have been· . . : · Because the. largest single cause o'f' the ATF raid 
:·:-·.: :."'.:~:;~-;-··., ·~·' __ ·:· :~~·ea.ued· olrbY ·cammand eer\ter officialS'' asking,=.-. disaster,was·the failure of-ATFs senior field com· 

··· ~:-~ .. ~:-·;:-··-, _-. .-. ·:- · -~'·'·8bout"the·report··-maae by-Rodriguez;·> ::-,,·_.:: -. .-~.--:, manders .. to recognize .or .act .. upon the undercover 
_ :--:·.·:.:.:>~··-:-_:::· ... <~~~·The ATF agents'·exec\lting the rai~ were~--·7c·.agent's information_ that the Davidians knew the 

-·· -~·-,";~;-.--.:::~ ·Jiofreqwred to::knock a:nd·announce their iD• ::.·.ATf_:ra.ld .. was __ -_underway,. there is no overriding 
-- ·- ··_·'··.-..~:· .... -;:.::::· .. ·· ~e·ntioii t()~serve-·the·· arrest and search. war-.: .... :::·r~romenda~o~---!!'hich, if implemented, would 

- .-. ·::·.:-·::~ .. --. ··ranu~ Given that th_e· arre·st and search warrantS. prevent similar tragedies from occurring in the fu • 
.- · · ···:··. were based, in part, on the evidence that the ture. The subcommittees believe, however, that 
~:.:_::~_=_::;.~ ·navidians were in possession of illegal automatic·· had mqre experienced ATF agents been involved in 

_·.: ...... ·~· 

weapons, the subcommittees believe it was reason· the planning of this raid the many deficiencies in 
able for the ATF to have presumed that the the raid plan itself would have been avoided. Most 
Davidians might fire on them had they announced importantly, the subcommittees believe that had 
their intent to serve the warrants in advance. Ac- more experienced commanders been assigned to 
cordingly, the subcommittees conclude that the . this operation, the infonnation that the Davidians 
ATF was not required . to knock · and· announce knew that the raid was impending woUld not have 
their intention to serve either the arrest warrant ·been ignored but, rather, understood for what it 

. or the search warrant because to do so would have was and acted upon accordingly. ·There are, how-
.. ·· >·::~·~- measurably increased the- iisk to the ATF agents -ever;· a ·nnmber·or steps that should be taken to 

: . :.: . · · · . ____ . involved. ... :· ·-· . . . . . correct other problem·s · ~ssociated with the failed 
:7.~.:~'·-~.--~-~·::<=·'~·.::_·--~ The~eVidetice-suggest8· that the DaVfdians:-~::.· raid.and_,which, taken'~;together, might help pre· 

fired the first~ shots on February 28; 1993. The·.:.:· .. vent similar failures ·in the future: 
... :::.,·.::·::.· :subcommittees believe·.that-the question~':of who.->-~ l•·.Congress should -conduct further over· 
. -" · ... :· . .-:· ·-fi-red ~tli.r first -s~ot ·on=-February 28 ·cannot ·dea.i· -. ·sigbt~of:the ·Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and 
-.... -:· · ~~ ·- ·-: >sively be resolved given-.tb~Jjmited testimony pre--·-.·~- Firearms, the- o·versight of the agency pro· 

sented to the subcommittees. It appears more like- . vided by the Tre~ury Department, and 

.· 

ly, however, that the Davidians fired first as the whether jurisdiction over the agency should 
ATF agents began to enter the residence. . be transferred to the Department of Justice. 

6. The· evidence presented to the · sub- - ·congress should consider whether the lack of 
committees generally supports the conclu- Treasury Department oversight of ATF activities 
sion that no shots were ru-ed from the heli- in connection with the investigation of the 

- copters at th~ Branch Davidi&A ~sidence. ____ P_fivi_dians, and t}:le .failm.~s by ATF leadership 
· The subcommittees believe, however,.th~t tlu~re_i~ _____ du.ring that' investigation, indicate that jurisdiction 

insufficient evidence to determine· ·_~th certainty··· over th~- ATF shoUld be transferred to the Depart-
as to who fired the· shots that made. the bullet ment of Justice. · 

·holes in the roof of the Davidian reSidence. 2. The ATF should revise Its National Re· 
· . .- · 7. _Mter the raid failed, CliDton administra· · sponse Plan to ensure that its best qualified 
tion _._officials. inaccurately. stated ~t _the agents are placed in. command and control 
ATF ~d .. (:OJ!lDWld~." ha"d been -=liven ex~ ·· · position8 in all operations. As discussed above, 

. plicit orders to. not-proceed with-~e~-raid-~if~, the.ATFs National Response Plan in effect in 1993 
_ the secrecy .of the raid was -.. ~mp~mised. led. t,c) the_ plac~~ent of Chojnacki as incident com-

.. :--.-: -· --- After the raid failed, Assistant Treasury Secretary· mander· and Sar8byn as technical commander for 
Ronald Noble attempted to lay the blame ·entirely the raid, wh·en· more experienced ATF personnel 
on the ATF despite the fact that Treasury officials, were available. The subcommittees recommend 
including Noble, failed to properly supervise ATF that the National Response Plan be revised to pro-
activities leading to the raid. Moreover, Treasury vide that incident commanders for significant oper· 
officials, having approved the raid, failed to clearly ations be selected by ATF headquarters personnel 

. . _ -_ · . . and concisely communicate the· con~~_ons unde~ _ . from among t}le_ -~Q.st experienced agents in the 

=~:·t~~m2:;<·rr~=;~~!~~~~~E;£~~J~:rn&i:~~~::i~~~~ 
_.;-:. :-... .. --.·.-:·._·,_: ::.~·~;~:: '. <,_.-Given: .. thptt,}ur largest. porti_on_ of' bt~·e ~rCJI"~~e-fail• · "'"- subcommittees· recommend-., that other senior posi· 

. . . • · · ure or the raid aPinsf· the ·navidianii~mun ~-b.Om ~~": _·tio.~,~a · uf '·Signifieant ,~operations, such as tactical 

... ,_. 
·::·· 

... by Chojnacki and Sarabyn~ the ~ttees .. find> _ _. ___ . eommaitder ,.:·also be selected by ATF headquarters 
no justification for their rehiring bY the ATF. The ·. · personnel from ATF agents most. experienced in 
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.. 

. ;1~.~-.; ... ;.~~~ · !!':t areas, regardless or geographical assign· ~t127 ..:se:!!!i ::~=:~mi!::nsb':d lj= , 
..... ·· 3. Senior officials at ATF headquarters cases ·have eroded the Posse Comitatus Act to an 

·: ·:.·.:·: should assert greater command and control alarming degree arid blurred its legal restrictions • 
. -- <: ~.<:\: :-· over significant operatiou. Just as . the Na· ... ,.<.~In~ detennining whether the military assistance 
.· ,; ;.:-:· ."·-. c-·.: ._ .. _.~tional..Response· Plan should be revi~ed .to allow . provided at Waco was iDegal, the subcommittees 
":.; :.: ~:~ ... ~ ;; < :~,,_._.greater.- control by~- :ATF head.quarteJ11,:~.~e _sub- · · .; reviewed· the current ·status of the Posse Comita-

._:.~,: '[~-<~~ . . :. :.··:_ committees recomm~!ld·that AT~s most senior of-. ..tus Act and other. laws governing the use of the 
.--.:; \£·~: . .-.:-:~·--~-~~:.:-:: _ _- -ficial$ _be personally involved ~ -~~ planning and .. ~-: ~ilitary. in~ civilian..Jaw. enforcement, why changes 
.. /.:i~·::.-~:·" -~:.: ... __ ~t~::;.,_oversight Q(.evety·signifieant operatiC?~· While th.~- :.in_ theJaws.:have·occurred and what effects those 
: ·.:.:..-~::~-:--:~:.:~: ·. -· ::: ATF·did--activate its National_ComJDand C.enter::in ,, ... _...ch~ges have had .on. the use of the military in ci· 

. --~..: ... : :.<_" _ _., __ ,·_:~ ~ ,~~_c.Washingtq" j~t,.ptiQr to the _co~m.en~~~en~ of~~ .. ,.vilian. law. .enforcement.~ Additionally, the sub· 
-.... ··.~ ~-"-~ .:. ~ -_- --- ~- ATF-~ raid ags)nst the D_avid.ians~--~eoniniB.ri~ cei:tter,--~. -_- comiJUttees have adc;l~ssed the common practice of 

: .· · personnel played no actual roleJn ·uu:;- pla-nning or_· Gove~ors ·using National Guard (NG) personnel 
-- :. : -·=-~· .-_;· the implementation of the operation until after it across State lines. · 

. .. . went awry ·-· ~ .. · ... .. -- .. . . ·. . . . . . ... . . . . 
~·.· :_.:~~~- :··~:-. .. .-. The- s~o~nrl~es -reeomme-rid thai' ATFI mo-st ·1. The Posse Comitatus Act 

·· · ·. · senior officials be directly involved in the planning a. Overview of the law 
of all significant operations and personally approve The Posse Comitatus Act was enacted in the 
each operation in advance of its implementation. United Stated in 1878 in response to the improper 
Additionally, the subcommittees recommend that use of military troops in the South during the 
the National Command Center be activated well ,.vil w Re · ·od.t29 Th p 
before the c:Ommeneement or an operation, that it post"1 a~ construction pen e osse 

Comitatus Act provides: 
be staffed with persons experienced in tactical op· 

· "~- -.. ·::·.: . . - ·erations and knowledgeable_- of_ th~_· operation in __ _ 'Yboever, e~cept· in cases an_d under cir-
-- . question, and that these persons be given the au~ . cums~~s expressly authonzed o/ the 

~-- -~ -·:··"·:··;;.:: :-.- : _,.,,,_~oriti..-i9 _s~~~cl.:tlt~ .o~ra~on .. ~r ~~Yjs.e :~e·oper~i:·,.: ..... -. , .. 9-c;>~s~-~~lJ.~l~f!. -.~'! Act .or Congress, wtllful~y 
... -.. ~·:_:·~----.·:: ___ ·--. ·."&.tio'n pl_arf~-th~--$i~tion develop's. v··.~j.'·-·~~~:~_-_'_';_~-;; :·~-· _-::•:- ·~·~es .:ant_=part:··_of .. ·~e Army or th! Air 

· ... · 

· ·· 4. The· ATF should oo···constrabi~d ·from·: .. ·-:_~·- Force as a posse co~tatus or otherwtse to 
.. indept?ndently._.:· ~ve8tigating d.rui'~related -:: · ___ ··execute the law~· sh&:Jl be fined not more 

-- ·crimes. Given- that the ATF ·baSed part' of its in·_, than $10,000. or Jtnpnsoned not more than 
· vestigation of the Branch DaVidiaiis on· wuolinded 2 years, or both.130 ·· 

allegations that the Davidians ~ere manufactu:lng However, as early as the Magna Carta, prohibi· 
· ill~~ drugs, and as a result tmproperl~ obtained tions against the use of the military in civilian af. 
m1htary support at no cost, ~e subc~m~~~s rec· fairs were being established.13t Tbes~ prohibitions 
ommend that ~ongr~s restnct ~e Jun.sdict!on or are based on the principle that ~~ uulitary should 

__ ~_e ___ ~TF ~. _ mvestipte ~as~s mvolvmg tile~ never be employed against the otizenry of the Na-
. ---~~s 'm.less ·such·. mvestigations are .~ndu~ _·tion it suppo~ and is buttressed by the clear sep-

--~ ___ .. JOmtly Wit~. the_ ~rug E~fo_rcement Admmtstration ara~~on, in this ... country,. between civilian authority 
-~ .. -as the lead.ageney. ·: . ... · -- .. · and ·military support Cor that authority. The clear 

- V~ MIIJTARY INvoLVEMEm IN THE GoVERNMENT ~eparatio.n ~tween civilian .and military autho~~ 
· OPERATIONS AT WACO 1s embodied m the .Oe:laration of Independence 

and the U.S. Constitution.l33 
. V~S~ military. invQlvement is one of the least eX·_ _ ·- _ .. 

plored and most misunderstood elein~nts of. the .., Pcae cOinitatU:.-me.n. "\he pow-er or rarce ot \be coaaty. 'nae ea-
.. : .. . ·.-events. that. t()ok place n·ear Waco~ TX in 1993. The - :tire 'pQpalatiod ola COUDty above the .,e ol Meen. which • eheriff may 

· .... Treaswy Department Report dedicated only 31/:a of ::::C: ~ ~.bs.ca::·m'!t-U: t:': ~<':: 
220 pages. to.· explaining the military's involvement, .s. 1891) (dtilwt Williaaa Btacb&Gae, eommmt.ama 343). 
and the Department of Defense and National • Roaeer Blab Hob~ FourtA ~ IIIIIIIM ~ Comilo· 

lui Ad Ralridiotu M Jlill1417 b&IIOllMIMIIl iA Ci,Q /AMI ~ 
Guard Bureau have only recently taken an inter- M Ceo. WMb. L. a... 404. 404 (1986). 
est in addressing some of the IDl_ '}ita_, issues that •"Ualil ......., ol &.he Paue Ccait.atue pi'Oiu"'bidoa Ia 1&18, 1M 1m-

- ~ pnper- f1l troops became • CIIIINDOQ method ol aidi.na' l'ft'eDGe dcen 
Waco raised. · ta ~ illep1 prodaction f1l whiltcr. ...utia11oc:al ama.Je 1a 

qaeD:iac labor &Cmbaaca; w ~ tbe UDCCity otlbe eledGnJ 
__ A. THE EXPANSION OF MILJTAR~ ~~~CE TO LA~ ~ m &he Soa&b by JIOidnc panta •' polti~ pa.c..• C1anDce L 

~~~~~~--~~ . c:' .......... ~-. - . " .. - - rar---- ..... -1 -- fli ' .... th· ~ ,_ ·u . ali -Uld- ... , ____ 1;_ iii . . .. J!t)' ~ Co ~~ be "'* ancSer dUa Cide ar tmpri8oner.t DO& -. _.: · ... ·...... .. . -__ , ._e .pnn_~p e. __ -._t . -~·~~- tal)' 0 n~t ."V. ~: ........ aJWi.-,...-.--~·v-.-. Crime Ccmtrol aM Law £Dibrce. . 
----~;·- ~ .. ~-:-·:· ~--; .:." •. :.:· .. -.:;~ ~ c·.: -'Volved. in civilian law e.!lforee_m~nt. Congress: codi- ·-::.·. ~;-~t AA ot leN t330ote(L), ~ ~ 103-322, 108 ~L 21,7. 

;}r;·:~:~~~:-~:-?~;=:~;:~i~~~~·tJ~g~~~~~i~;~~~~l;r::~~~~wi:::?;a: ~: = 
. . 
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-~.:<:· .. :.:~~=-.~ Nevertheless, no one has ever been prosecuted sive orCoindirect, ~~1as43sistance did not violate the 
· for violating the Posse Comitatus Act.134 Due in · Posse mitatus n.c;~oo 

:_:. ~~.:~~- part to a creeping acceptance of military· involve- In order to resolve questions raised by the 
•• • ::: ... 7 ment in law enforcement actions, the Posse Com- Wounded Knee cases, and at the urging or the De-
··,· _:· · ·· ·itatua Act Jias _been invoked-very rarely. 1~5 Until_ (ense_ J;>epartment and Justice Department, Con-

. · -·-· - the crnmnal cases arising from the 1973 Indian gress· adopted· the above distinctions set forth by 
-----~_.;:..:_,~.:.-::~ __ .-: ·-uprising at Wounded Knee,1.~ c_i~lian_~aw·~nrorce- the &d Feather courtl« ·and,- in 1981, enacted a 
_._,. -:~\·: ~ ~~-~. ment ·apparently· relied upoll : militB:r'Y ·_support· .·_number or geri.eral exc-eptions to the. Posse Comita· 

·_·_ ~ ~- :_ ~~·j:. -.: · ~ without fear of_J'eCOurse.-1~ ~ ... · . . . . . _ . _ _ · ttis. A.Ct.14s Iii general, the 1981·-exception~ .author-
·--. ~ .. --·:·.:~---- ~=--.:. Specifically,--_ at .:Wounded_ Kn~. the _·Ne!Jras~ _:- izecl'the inilitarj_tO make-available to civtlian law 

::. __ . ·.' . ~/~.;::~: __ -~-.' .. National ~~--and .U:S.- Air ~Qrce persoJ!n_el con~ . · · · enfo_~~en~ ·agenCies information collected during 
-~- •''.". r.. ::~: ·' ..•• ducted a.erial .. reconp~1S,~ce ph~to~aphy~ __ of -_~e .. 'riiiljtary_operati~qs, ~raiiiing and advice, the use or 

· · ·: · .. ::·-·-:=------ ·.:. _si~·:.:v.:hile_ -~e.:..:Soqth _pak9f:8 Na~ona!_ Guard __ - milibUj- eqwpnie:rit~ and·raoli_tie·s, and the use or 
·· -· mamt.ained m.thtary._"vehicles. m_.the ~ea. of ,~e.,.:·::soine_Defense Depaitrilentpetsonnel148 However, 

.··.: siege.138 Two regular Army colonels (Title 1~ _per~ .. cifrect participation in .Jay/ enforcement activities 
··· sonnel) 1~. were __ present at Wounded ~~ as J?~·-- b'ke search; seizure and arrest was prohibited.141 

· ·-. ·.·: fense Department •observers"; however,· these DUll· ·- · · · 
tary personnel also provided •advice~ ·urging· and b. Tlu! war on drugs · 
counsel ••• to Department of Justice personnel on By the mid~ 1980's, there was little question that 
the subjects of negotiations, logistics and rules of the Nation was struggling with a major increase in 
engagement. • 140 

· illegal drug importation and use, and Congress 
Four criminal eases resulted from the Wounded summoned a massive increase of resources to 

. ·:·. 

Knee incident. Each raised similar .challenge~ to confront this modem scourge. The fiscal year 1989 
. : : ·. the uu1itary's involve~enl141 'fi?e diverse rultngs Department of Defense Authorization Act signifi. 

-" ·· .... _ --· .. on ~ese challenges rmsed. 9uestions .about_~_the _le~--:;_. cantly -expanded the role of the National Guard in 
.. gality __ of mu~ of the ~htary assistance bemg support of law enforcement agencies.t48 The fol· 

·: ,; '' '' '' :~· ' :; ~=;f!~!!"Ji~~lyJ:~.lli1!i4s~i!i:·/~~~J · __ .•. , ~;;~~~~~s'!\e;:a~~9~1i~e":a':t:.:.?:Pt: 
~:.:.::··:.-;,;,;: ;~;_ :;:: 'i··: .. u~-~- States V.· Ja_ramfllo found ce~ ;~.h~!1 · Cense_.·Authorization Act. which. "directed the U.S. 
_ .. ··: "· ·:_; _: :.'-':: · .'- .. .-.-:.: ~-cti~~~s _to ~ ~: V1_~1~P.0R of;~-~- Pos~~--.Com1tat~.: .·. :.Artned Forces,: to'.the riraximurit extent pc)ssible, to 
. .: .::,·_. __ ;_ . -=~ ,,.~~ Whtle th~_ co~ m_ ~n1ted ~t~es y._Red Feath·. ---eonduct·~-inilitary training . in-· drug interdiction 

er. found the -~U~ tnVC?lvement: .~t: :-Wounded --- areaS. •u&. :- . .- ....... . 

· ... 

. ~ee permissible• 142 Th~ !Ud Fea~her court deter· After Congress and the courts expanded permis· 
· mm .... ...J that as _long_ as Dlllitary ass1stance was pas· 'bl "lita · tan to c' 'l'an law e-~"-orc...._ ~ ~ · -- --.:- · · ·- · · ··· . s1 e uu ry ass1s ce 1vt 1 1u~ ._.... 

ment and the Defense Department assumed the Pt:Weeb, "111'0 aote 129, at 128. 
•1tL lead in the war on drugs, military assistance to 
"'Ia che 1gr3 Woanded Knee aprisfng, a c!i..-ident lndlan £l"'OP rare. law enforcement greatly· increased. This increased 

lb1y \aX .caiotrol ol the Wounded KAee ViDagoe on Pine Ridge Reeerva· . 
tioa.. so. Tbil en;up· entered a u.s. Pa.t omce by r~ held hosl.a£ell · use or _military perSonnel is most noticeable with 
and ntu.ed to .nov' Federal ian.tip~ iaCo t.he an&. ID IUpport or the N a.tional Guard bec-ause oC fewer legal restric· redeD.J lAw eal'on:eDent ageata., military pnoDMI prorided an amy o( -. 
~ cbely naembu111 the ms1ita1')' uaiatance povided_ to Fed· · tions .. on· its use.· 
era) law enrm:ement ~tl daring the Waco incidenL . · · C 

I6JPd.f!r M. ~ rM "D1118 wor.-TM U.S.IIiJilor7 GNJ Hcdl>n.ol c. The National Guard and the Posse om· 
~- &a.nt;.;u u. L. Jleor• 1, 109 (1991). --, · · :· · - : itatus Act under ciuT.,ent law 
.. ' "'Aa at Waa.ocled ~aerial. ncoonaliunce pbotograpby and mafn. 

t.aiaiJic miliary~-~~~- by mili&a.ey penon~ at The. National Guard, for reasons that are at. 
· · · . c:. · ; - ._.,_~ W~ tM. eelldfen a~ W~ ~ ~ OG ~ daty, ~L ~~ ... least ·partially historical,' iS not SUbject to the Same 

time Rt1 1a &be led" ma1it&rJ ·een-ice· Ot-&be Umte&t Staee.. s. ·1o · ·· · legal reStriCtions· p-1ace·d on active duty and reserve 

. ~- .. -· 
U.S.C.f101 (dXl), codifted u ammcSed by pgf), L. 102-484. . -· · -· 

. ...Keeb. a.pra DOCe 129, a& 12L lroOicaDy, approzimat.e1y 10 acd~.. . military _person~ e) :~th : r~~~ to involvement in 
4hty Special Farca ~ were ,.._.,, at Waco • ~en· darinc 
..nc.. et.ca f1l the ..-&.raid lliege, lDcJOI!i.Dg the day f1l the UN f1l CS . WI Suchec, I"Pf'O ~ l31:· . . . - . -- -
riG& ClllltrDI apat ud &be !Ire. AodcliCicnally, at the nqaeat of the com- tMJtL at 1 (citinc &o 10 U.S.C. 1311-316. aa ~ndy amacW 
.. ..-. f1l the FBI Ha.tap Racae 'l'eua. two eeuiar Army Special by Pab. L. No. 100-456, 102 StaL 117 (1988)). "'---
Fora. da!n .,... pnMDt wbell Atc.amey QeQenJ ReDo wu briefed oa we~ Releafth SerYice, 1upra aoCe 54, 23. 8ft olio ..,... 
&be F'Bl'l pka &o end the t&udc4 Prior Co the meetinc, oae of Uloee otB- r.n.e Deput.ment AatharizatioD Act ot 1982 t 905, Pub. L. No. 1'7--86, 
cen rilited &be lile ol &be e&aDdcl« by beliC!Dp(a' aC1:10rDf1Miecl by &he t5 S&aL 1114, u ameacled by National Delen.e AutboriutioD N:l FiacaJ 

_ _ _ . : ~ ·· ~~c;:::~ . .,:.Jonlllllllo .380 F. Sapp. 1315 (D.Neb. 1914), a Year 1989 t 1004, Pub. L. No. 1()().-.456. 102 S&aL 2043 (coctitMd • 

:~~~-,--~:~:'.J~-?-~~~~~~· ~;~~~r. ·r~;.~~~::1:: :,:.,ars=~.u,:;',!w.~;~~: ---_- --·:;ruj_~ ~~~~!1>- _ . . _ .. _ . 
-~- _ :-_'"'·-· :: -·----... :-·,~:·-:ll~S'AD. 'lt1S);':U..u-. S~o~u-•.11~. 419 F.sapP:._li!S <Q.H.p! _ .... ~ ~liT~ Oprra~ Supi)CII't_ ~~~H-Ccdde (citfnc Pub. L. lCJO.-
-~~ ';.'~,~--~-~---~- ·-:~ ~-tt71),·.rcs.a&-liaia;'rmllecl SWa •· Caqcr, 541 F.2d 121S.(8th_(:ir.~ · ------~._102 __ ~L _1~1~. ~ codil!~ aL.l~ .l1..S.C. t 124 (SH DocameaCI 
--~ _ _-_-:_·-··,'-: --.-=:..-~--"~~Itm.·or;c;·~~u.s._ ·810(1111),:.-;-:::~_c . : . • : :;_..- ·. -·,'::.:·::·proclacel! to Llie nbcOnimi'u.ee. by tb• ___ Depertment._o/U.. Tr-euar7 - . >· > ·:-~~ · -·_-· ~q&w;ci- · &caal_:Beliearcb ~- IIIPfti.Dole at~ a&:=::~:.:~.-.::··. ~7~·.'1'08788, at Appendix lbem~. Tnuary Document.). The 

----, -~-''_:·~' • -··· · ::•.·. :*'ail·t•Jl~-f'iiW-·tbat the PGMe Comitatua Ad·. ill riolac.e.l ~y_, _ _._ -A~~- publiahecl eepu-at.ety.) s-.•--~2 U.S.C. 1112 fOr c.be Na-. - ···-·"-~--.- ~~"•'·"=----·-• ~-an labjedel Co the clind ~&ary .. ,.crip&be·or· lioulCunl. ~-- ._- ·..:. · ----· . ,, _ --~ · 
- -·-· ·;--: _ ~- -~ •I*& ol- u. lllili&arJ taftlftDlftL. u~. $lola-_"· -,·.-~- .~.rrr~ <>Pfta~On.fsiip;pc;r& Plunfr~-caicte, Treual)" Doauneata 

- -- ··- -~-~- -·-·· .. llcAitMt',. 418 F.Bopp. a&-IN. _ _, _ _-___ , 1'08188. 1'08788. 8« olio 10 U.S.C.f3Tl(b). . 
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civilian law enforcement.IIO Having evolved from tions as the Posse Comitatus Aet by regulation · 
the State militia concept. the National Guard even while in a Title 32 statw.153 

holds the unique position as both a State and a d Active duty personnel & the Posse Comita· 
: . :-.:;.:.= .natio.z:t.al ~li_tary .force. Th~ •. a. Na~onal Guar~ ·· ·· · tus Act under current law . 
-·· ····'·· ·· .. ~e~.ber .~ w~r~ ~U.S. ~Y or Ai~ Force unt· Unlike the National Guard, active duty military 
·. ~~\;· · · · fo~, fly -:.m a ~litary &lrCJ.'~ · ~e1ve Fed~ral ·persoMel clearly fall ··within the proscriptions of 

7-:·.·' ~~.~~~~;{:'·_:·.: .. :.: . m~lita.ey pay_ ~d ~lowan~es, ·be- covered ~Y. the- · the Posse Comitatus Act. Any assistance they pro- . 
... . ·. ~: .. ; . ; ... · _ ;:.·: _Fed~ral .Torts Clan~s Act_~c!:.Fed~ral ~~~~~?' _· ·."Yiae to civilian law enforcement personnel must be 

-·"~~::_· .. :.~~;.,;:::.~ .. · ... ,:~.;. medical ~ .. Yet, he or she __ can pe~onn thts .mth· :·:.-'either. Within .·a statutory exception or expressly . · : .. <~>·~~;~·~ .:~~.:· .. :.: -.. ,::·· tm.Y ,se..-vtce ·flj)~ on.lr as ~:-.·-~~mber,_.:.of. th~. ~u:~· .·: .·.autho.riied by the u.s .. Constitution. 
· . ,:·:.._:::~~~~:·.·_;·.·,. ··:: .... ·.:~.-~~ ~orces; but:as a member . .of' ~e. S~te.mt.h· ... _:·_:.: M~~Y.: o( the· stat~~.TY exceptions to the Posse 

...... ~ ·~::. · ,·: .· ,.·,.. tta, havtng a Governor f'or a .~om!Dander-tn-Chtef · Comitatus ·Act have ·been enacted in the last 15 
~:..;~;,;..:.; __ .. · .. ~· --~-.J:~ther th~ the Presi~ent ~fthe United·$tates·~ ·.:;··.~.:··:.··.-years"" "arid evolved from a desire to SUPJ>?rt 

· - _ ·The ab•llty··of' the National Guar~ to perform· · counterdrug efforts. Title 10 U.S. Code, Section 
·· ::·:~:··· military service in this capa~ty exists because the 371 et. ·stJl. outlines· the types of routine law en· 
· ~ ·.::.-.- . National Guard· luis·· three different •statuses• forcemerit assistance that active duty military per· 
· .... · under the law. The first two are a Title 32 status sonnet may provide. Such assistance, includes 

(also called •state active duty" status) and a •pure equipment, training and advice .. 
state" status. Under either a Title 32 or •pure One of the most important issues for a civilian 
state" status, National Guard troops are under the law enforcement agency in deciding whether to 
command and control of the Governor of their seek and accept military assistance, is whether the 
State and the Posse Comitatus Act does not agency must. reimburse the military for the assist· 
apply.u1 However under current Ia~, .. w~ile the ance provided. Gener.ally, a civilian. ~aw enforce· 

.National Guard-is in .. a Title 32 statu·s and under ment agency must ·retmburse the mtbtaey for the 
th€; command and control of the Governor, it is cost of assis~ce, except under ~hree. cir-

... ,. 

.. ·:.· .. . : ·:-:· .• 

. . _ . still funded..WJUt Fe(leral funds.u2 An example· ~C ~~~,~~~·-~i~~Hr~.e~e~t may be watved it the 
· .. ··. :.~ ·:·:,: ... ·-::·:; ~~·-:.:::·;£::.the" :N atlo"n·ar GU"ard. being· .. in a· Title-. 52' stiltus ;"is: .. ; .. >.:aSSlS.tanc·e-:.:.(l)·.~s provtded m the n.ormal course of 

. ··- - . - . .. . . . . . '1' t . . 154 (2) lts . be fit to th ·· · .... ~· ~ ·:~·- ... · .... w·hen· National Guard:.personnel·· are:· conducting··· ·.m1_1tary. ~A!mng; · . ,resu. m !' ne . e 
· · · · · · · ... ·· · · · ~ · · · '· · · · · , . ··. · · ·... · un1t proVIding the support that ts substantially ·: ·-'· .: ,·.· •' .cou.nt.eu"rug .operations.,: . ,, .. ···:.:;. , .. ,·· ·:,-.~~·· ;" -·-·. ·: . c.·.. • .. . • • 

·( .·::·, .. · : ... · ·. · The· third-Nati"onru ·auard status .. is· called -Title;. --·:-.eqwvalent to t~at wh1ch would othe~se be ob· 
. . . . ·:- . : i(r. ~r:. •federafa.Ctive duty" stat~s~ Title ·10 statuS .. ~ed from mihtary. operati_ons ~~ tralrung;" 155 or 

.:. · ... : .· . ·· .... 

occtirs when Congress or the President takes af. (3) ts for counterdrug operations. . . 
• • • • " • 1 d The counterdrug statutory wmver has come to 

..... fin.nauv~ ~cticm. -~-: federalu:_~, B:· Natiqna_ ~r mean in practice that before a waiver of reim· 
~1t as m the ease .of a natur~ disaster or Clvthan bursement can occur under the counterdrug oper· 
d!sturbance. Only tn a federahzed status are Na· ation exception, the civilian law enforcement agen-
ttonal G~d troops un~er command and eon~rol of ey. must demonstrate the existence of a sufficient 
the Prestdent of th~ Untted State~. Under th1s sta- . ·~drug: nexus" in the . investigation. 1ST Although 
tus, the Posse Conutatus Act apphes. .: .... ·· ::·there is no· defined standard for what constitutes 
·Aside from. the_ Title 10 sta~_s. and Wounded a .. •diug nexus,• it is essentially a quantum of ered-

Knee ·case·s~· ·the ·Posse Comitatus Act has been ible evidence that links an otherwise non-drug in· 
. .. Widely interpreted as not applying to .the. Na?onal vestigapon with the existence, or well-found~d be-
. Guard;· Thu~·under CUt:Tent law, the leading mter·· · lief of the existence of significant illegal drug 

· ' · pretation of the Posse Comitatus Act is that unless crimes. ' . 
o~herwise prohihit:ed .PY .. policy .directive,. regulation · · This waiver for . counterdrug operations devel­

. -·.:. · ··-:...:: .. ;::·:en: State law, the National Guard ·can··partieipate· oped when ·Congress created a specialized subset 
. actively in civilian law enforcement. The· National . : of military assistance for coWlterdrug operations 
.Guard, however, does implement similar proscrip. ·· in 1990.158 Military assistance for eounterdrug op-

.. '· · · · erations provided under this statutory authority is 
*Rids. ~ NolioNJJ GM4III. IJrullt~Urdldltm ·GNJ CA~surdrul &. · on a non-reimbursable basis, which means civilian 

tiflilic" and Poe. C4mil4hl4: ~ M~ GNllmpUcoliDM of "iil Ftd· 
ctGl &rv&ce.• 3& ~lAw. 1 (l~~ ~aDd ae.ene mtlitary ~· WRic:h.IJAPI'O note 150. The National Oa.artl Bareea sdic1 aa aat.bor-
eonneJ arc both tabjed Co the. pratcnptaona ~. fn Lbe p~ Comita· bed tupport Lo law en(Oftemenl currently Iiiia 16 apprond coa.nta'druc 
taa Act. while &he Po.e Comitata. M only appliea &o National Ouard · · An · · &.ide lhe panme&en o( t.be ai'Pf'O"Id IWt ma.t 
~~ whea &h~ ~Ye. been caRed ~&o (eden) eemae.• ___ _ -... _ ==-De~ Decenae apprgval. 5« oao NOB JWc. 5(».2 ud 

. • ... _. . •. ·- Ov.ri~ Lhe Wa~ 1n~denl, ~.l'(aLianal Gaard ~~ ~ti~~ anair ..... -· NatiOnal Ou.nt COuaLmlrve comtin"el«'t HudhGot. 
...• ··:·· ~- :-. . . . .. . .. :·~=·-Title.32 ar -.&ate active·dg&y"·tt.atue u it proriclecl&ua~~Liilce loUie AT~ _ .• , . :IMlO U.S.C.U17. . . · 

··"~ ::":\~~~:~~·:.::··,:~~:~~~~~: .. ~·,::·~~~~~~~,8~~=~:t;=,o.:~:::·.:-~~:: ~;~·~~·~~~j02~i~~~~~:~·106 St&L 1484 (1991). &. abo Pab. 
.. · - .L.~- ~-- '· .. ,,:;~· ·:.~~:~.~:lhe:CIXD'tacticl 11M tale on whether lhe P0.e Comit.a&aa Aet applied·.~-·· ·~.~o. 1Q1~10.f 1004, 10C:St&Ld629 (1990) U.S Pab. I. No. 101-188 

. . _ _. :~- .~' : < .. ":·..:0;~: .. .:::-:.l·<="' U..,Nati~:~~:~!"' ~~ apon &heb: •t.atua.la·~i -:·. ·:.:t 1212, 103 Stat. U56'7 (1989).. · . • 
· .,: ••• :·.,. · ·· ... ::-: ·'·-= ~ CIOGI'\ did aot lridk:a&e w~er ar • the Nat:aonai.Caant w·a..:.::~ .c:.,-. aa.,'Of'llce c(.iho .Oepanment_9f DeCenH c:ariia.atar ror Drag_ Eaton:e-

... :.~-~:L:~~:~;~~,., .. ;~~~:~·~.-~:~~a::~~!=~~~~~~~cl:!~~=~~·=~;:n~j=~roJC:e:~==::.::.:~~ 
· ... "-.. ·.--:·.· ...... :._ .... . · ... ~ ar ~~·~ -~ •.~-JepJ ~tatu o(&he N~·~ a~ ~ca. , .. ~ ?IJ:n. 95. Derenae Docamcntt 109-115. at 111 • 
. . . . ;-.-c.----'" . ·=-~···· . .. -.,- la·a·pureState 1\at.aa, DO Federal faDdinc OIXUI'L .... _ -··. ... .. . . ltL 
';_.~:..":---~..;;_~:~ ··.: --·· -------· 
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law enforcement agendes do not have to reimburse tual · use of National Guard forces across State 
the military for the assistance. Instead, Congress Jines. However, these agreements raise several 
provides a separate fund to_ the military for this legal concern~. particu1arly when the National 

.. ':~:·::. -- type of Jl&sistance: .. a~weyer! _ ~ese ~~~. ~ust be Guard p~rsonnel are used to assist civilian Jaw en· 
- :::<~~. :.:·-,. used solely_ for m~~~ ass1sta:nce ~ a~han.law· ·· · forcement~ - . --- --·"··: ·: .. ·.· . 
-::::!}~ ~ --- e!Jfo~cemen~ ,ag~_~o_es. for ~c:o.unter~~ operau_ons. _ ·_'· Althougb··a thorough examination of' memoranda 

. _. ---~·: ... ··=-:S~~uti~~-portions Of'_IJl111~- asstSl.ance proVJded·_- .... :of··agt-eement is_far beyond .the scope of the sub­
·-.L-/"·.~:· ~-: -~>.J.o .. ~~~---~4 :·ev~~- ~~ --~~-=!f!re fUn~~ through : committees' ·Wac:O·-mvestigation, th~ most signifi • 

.. ·-_<:.~~;:~-----·· ~ese~c:o~~~rut;_al~~:·;, ·::·.,· ·th ~>-:j.·---~ · __ ·:~~ ,_·:_·_··_canf_legaf ·i~sue~. aris_ing·from the use of memo­
-' • . .--:.: :.~· ,, _;_'-·~-- -~;; IUCI!'I~~ : ~-~~: lZS.~O_D_ 0 e:.-~~- ~Ul&,1_ I. Jn• · .. failda Of"~e~irient·-Win be highlighted. While the 
. --·~·:?:..-: .. ::: ::_fi·.:~~!'!.-~~~~-.t9 ~e ~-~!'drugs mvolv~d. !he --· Na.tionat··GuaM ·w·· atterrip-ted to address these 

- : · · . .creation .or Jomt Task ·Forces 1• between etVJllan ··- · ..... .-', - · ·· _ . - ·- ---
----.. _drug .~J&w ... entcircement: ·agencies an·d-·the '·regl!lar- - lega.l~,--J~~~~~·--.th~---~P,~f.~~~e -_:Department and the 

.-·~·- army. The Defense · Department .. _created-· these. ,._. ~ta.~.s .~av~ ~alle~.-~J~-d~.q~~ly address the poten· 
-Joint Task Forces to incru.se the eOc>rdination be· tial leP! prQblem~ .. !!'}:iu:h memoranda or agree.. 
tween the military and dvilian law enrorcement ment . nus e. Two m8Jor _ legal ~ncems are (1) 
agencies and to increase the . civilian agencies' ac- ":he.ther these memoranda o( agreement. o.r o~ber 
cessibility to regular army assets for counterdrug &Juular agre~ments between s~tes . are. e1~er a 
operations. For the Southwest border region where ·treaty, an alliance, or confederation m VIolation of 
the ATF investigation of the Davidians took place, the U.S. Constitution, or at the very least a com-
Joint Task Force~ix (JTF-6) 1eo was responsible pact requiring congressional ratification; and (2) 

. for the operational support to ATF by active duty whether these memoranda of" agreement or similar 
military personnel · . agreements attempt to supersede State constitu· 

JTF-6's Operation.aJ Support Planning Guide, in tions and statutes without legal authority • 
. :~: _ explaining its support capabilities, states, "No list 

_:;..:-,· . .._.-~:.·- :-o(, miU.tary supw.~ _capabilities is ever aU-inelu· a.· States'- power -ro enter memorandll of 
__ · · ·_· ~'-~'sive.-_Innovatjv~: ~pproache~~-~ p~~~ng -new: and '"' _,._ . ~~ent · . -

.. ·. . . . · ·- · :· mor~ effec;tive support to l~w: enfoz:ocement·~ertcie'S·:;:~. , .. Q~ly ~~lp~ggres~}:~- 8J)4~.the President (to the 
· :~- ,_- .,:.~. ~·:·_._::: ': ar,e constantly)~o~t..,~~:-legal·;~~ polzcy bar· :-: e~tent presently delegated by law) have the power 

.--· · · -._.c..-::.·::c--:·_=_rius to the appllcaticii-0{ miUtcuyeapabilities·are Lto·.:~e~-,_rn_iJita.ry Jorce. across State lines. Many 
- . . . ·gradually . l>eing_, _eliinin¢ed.~ 161 This .:··quote from . . argue that. any 8gr00.men·t ,~tween States to con· 

the JTF-6 Ope:ration Support :Planning·· Guide.: >cert their militaJ'y ,forces_ fQ~_ the use of (orce for 
: ,._. . .; .· ___ cl~ly and succmctly describes the weakening of any purpose constitutes a treaty or an alliance.164 

· the Posse Comitatus Al:t pros~riptions .s!nce ~e. However, the U.S. Constitution specifically p~ 
1973 Wounded Knee ~ases. Th~s. obsez:vatton fore- hibits States from entering into treaties in any in· 
shadowed the potential f'or uulitary mvo1vement stance 165 and into alliances or confederations 
that _was re~~ized_ eye_ntually at the 1993 Waco witho~t congressional consent.166 Applying such· 

. eve~~·:. .. _ . _ :. . . . . . . __ .. . an argument would mean that the use of the Na· 
2.1nlerstate·use o(Nati0n41. Guard by.Gorie'riiors.:.::..: ·. tional Guard for law.:enf'orcement purposes across 

... : ."!. 

.: . 

-There 'is a common. practice among the States -or._·. -~~t:ate .lines. is stri~ly·· prohibited by the U.S. Con· 
-using· National Guard personnel· across State sti~~on. The Na~onal Guard Bureau ~es ~e 

. _,· lines.182 States enter into memoranda of .. agree- , _ posttion that su~ mters~~ us~ of' f'orce JS prohib-
__ : : :·· -· ··· · ment with one another which provide for the mu· . Jted, ·but the contrary opm1on 1s advanced by the 

·~ ···- ........ ' -. . ' .. - . ·-
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?:~f.;~[~ =s~T:.i!:.M~~~l~ Counsel and the b; ~:;:::1: t~':~uh:%t a::;:r:. . 
• .. :~~~·::·: The National Guard Bureau further argues, also thority 
·. ··: .. ·-:·:: cgntrary to th_~ . _pef~n..se De~artme~~ General . . During the ATF investigation of the Branch 

··.::: · = • , - · ··Counsel and the A.nriy Staff Judge M..vocate, that Davidians, National .. Guard assistance to ATF 
.··.~~<'~:;:~~- . _·····.-: even if such- ·:agreements among· States . ."are_·· not .. ~-~· came not only &om the Texas National Guard, but 

-·~' :,· .. "·:· .. · ·:. treatiesi -~ey::=a-re:_atj.he yErr,y least· co~p~~- Yfp~c;g_ .. _. from the ·Alabama :National ~rd.n2 At the be-
-:-~::. <::~:-·;·~> . -:.: :::.:~ ~,~- Jlu~ . consent of _:Con~~s~~uid_ .. : -If &J.l .. a&r~~~.-:·. -.. best .of· the· ATF,- the· Atijutant General of the 
- : -\::;:::~ --,..:.· '·.···.-.:.:.,·meiifamong States ·results in a.po~n~al __ ~n.cro.~dt- -.-~-Texas National Guard".J·equested and received sup-
. · .~>.-·: _; .. ment on Federal authority or .. a tendency to . en- . . port from the Alabama~, National Guard to take 

.. ~~~·-.":-::.~~-· :; .. : .. : ,,~:.::han~ State power,· the;n-it wo~d~eons~tute:.a CQm~.- :_aerial photographs. Those aerial photographs were 
· ... :> ~~·:· :- - • . : P;tct··.requiririg. ~rigre_~s~onal consenL_l.~ /fbe. Na-:-:. ·. taken. -~n Janua7: 14, 1993. This assistance • was 

·_ ·. ··-~:.: c:·:_ :~.:·.· ·-c::·tiOnal ·Guard Bureau argues. -.that these:.. National ·- authonzed by a memorandum of agreement be-
~- :, :: • ." . . _ Guard memoranda .or. agreement enhance State· .. ·tween the .~utant Gener~s of !.he Texas ~d Ala· 

:-- ·· ·:; pciwer. by allowing Governors to command militia· . bama ~ational .Guards whi~h s1mply proVJded for 
employed for force across State ·lines, and there-- -. the use of the Alabam~ National Guard at the roe. 
Core, encroach on the President's power to either qu~st of the Texas Adjutant General. However, a 
deny or command and ·control such interstate use. revtew of the State laws of '?oth Texas and Ala· 
Thus, the National Guard Bureau believes they re· ~ama rmses 1~ COf!ce~s wtth the 1~1 author· 
quire congressional ratification.no 1ty for. conducting this mterstate National Guard 

Currently, none of the memoranda of agreement operation. • .. 
(or compacts) involving the use of National Guard Texas law reqw~s that,"£~) l!uhtary force from 

I · lin /!'. 1a another state, territory, or district, except a force 
personne across State. es .,or w enforcement· that is part of the United States armed forces, 
purposes have been ratifi~ by Gon.~ss. Although -. · · may not. enter the· state without the permission of 

.. 
.. :· .·:. 

. ·:·:·· 

.. the Sou~ern Governors . Assoctation recently ·the govemor.•n3 Yet, National Guard personnel 
... _ .. _. . . .· ... ·•· .. :: ,_. ame~~e~ __ 1ts_. ~o_u.them Regi~~ -~~~~~~~- .,~~- "· · ·· whQ ··were_irivoty_ed irf'po$.t-raid National Guard in-

·-· --·agement-Asslstance Compact.at.the.adVJce··of'··-the·-,--: ....... ..,.ti.'" ·.ti .• · ··'"''"(-'th .. ·,w ··. ·· ·d t h tated that · ,. ... . . . · . · · _. . _ , . ves. ga ons o e aco. mc1 en ave s 
.N.~tio~~l: _G~~d .. B~ea.~ ·to P!~'ud~ th~ use 1_or · Governors Rich·ards did not approve the use of the 

... .::·.fOrce across S~te··Unes a~ se~k ~~gresstona~ a~:· .'.Alabama ·Natio.W. GuarcL Military documents in-. 
·· · · · ·:~ ·. ·· : :. ·proval of th~ c;9llipact,· most of:tbe :1nterstate Na~ ~ · dicate ·that Governor Richards was unaware of the 

tional :Guard as"sistanee to law. en('orcement agen·---···· extent of even the Texas National Guard's involve. 

.•. ~. .. .·· . 

cies ii occUrring under the guise of memoranda of ment until after the failed raid occurred. 
aueement, not eongres$ionally approved compacts. An examination of Alabama law indicates that 
Moreover, this·· issue expands beyond· direct in· the. Aiabama National Guard had no authority to 
volvement in law enforcement actions, such as conduct military operations outside Alabama be-
Waco, to the use of the National Guard for inter· cause the Governor's authority over the Alabama 
state.Jlssistance in ·disaster 1Tl_ and .. emergency re·. · National .Guard. •ppears only to extend to the 

.:_·: .. lie£ In: fact, the _issue has arisen with. respect·to ... State's bo-undarles.n•_ ~~. it appears that the 
. ..: _..the. prop<)s·ed. use· Of non-Georgia National Guard. . . Alabama. National Guard entered and conducted 

units to as~st the ~rgia National Guard during military operations in Texas without the proper 
the 1996 Summer Olympics, in Atlan~ GA. . authority to do so. . · 

. . . · · · - · · ·· ·· · · · · If the Alabama Governor's command and control 
· ·· · .,Natioftal Cuarci.Draf\ LecaJ Memaraodam. -en.. Borde!' ... ot authority ended at the Alabama State line and 
·- "Nacional Caard rc:.- Law Eotaroemeot: eon.titutioul r.~~e~ aocl Neecl : Gov Richants";Ciid riot" ap·p·· rove the Alabama Na-

- lr ~anal Ratiftcatioa ol IDtenta&e Acnemea~ (Recdyed b)' . · - • . • • 
atxamritteea • Mardi u. 1996). .. ... - ... '·-·=---·· ;____ ~ ·tional GuarcJ's entrance mto the State of Texas, 

_ •u.s. Can.L m. I, t 10, d. 3. -Na& an ecnemeata betwoeea etata then several questions are raised: Which governor 
en ~abject to lltri=ne ol tm. dame; apptic:atiaa ot w. dau.ee ta lim- · had command and control of the Alabama National 
ttlll to acreemen&a that are clinded to &be fbrmatioa ol &D)' c:oniriutioa • 
t.diJic to foc:reMe u. political po_. ta &he •• aac1 which mar eo. Guard urut? Who (Texas, Alabama or the Federal 
a-=b aa « ta&a&re with u.e J-t •apnm~~CJ o1 u. VDi&e4 S&ataa.• Government) would have been liable for claims of 
~ &.~1 c.p.. ~. IIIIJI:UioU f'az c-utlaiM, c:u '!A a2 o.a (1978) injury and property damage had any occurred? If 
(cil:iDc U.S. CoaaL art. 1, flO, d. 3). Sec .Z.O, Vup.lo ~. f'~NYMN, 148 th AJaba • • •d d be • 
U.A &03 (1883). e ma umt 11 conSJ ere to operating 
. ••Appellant. ~briber 1111" that the pertiaeet iDqaby II one or poten. outside its scope of employment would its person· _ .. ·· ·· .... _._, .. ~~;:~.Q:;'~~~~rm;~ \_ nel.Jose. Federal Tprts Claim~ Jds protection 

. •• . the Na . . -·· ..... . . • t nalliab.lity' -A-d, ld th N ti. al . :·;\~-~-:·::(-::··::~:-~---~-~~-:~:~&~~J:!~tioaot. t~cf.aantJ!~A"i.H.tr~&be~-- ·-=.;agams pe~ _ ._, .• •,_ . <~· v.:ou .. e a on 
_,._ .. ··-·. · -,~···· .. ·~ --·· · -·-- · · Deputmea Anifi -·· · ··· · · · · .-. · · Gua~ __ perso~el nsk losmg the1r DUbtaly health 

-_ < :~,;.::':.l<~~':' ~t~E:c~ ~$.::~f;";~:~~:- :.:;:~.:.;;a:;..~,~;:;~~~ c-c-......c s-
._.,_..,. __ .. :.:_.~ ~':'='",;:o""...:..o ~~:· .. ""'·'. ~.P.bcammiU..-baft beea ~ ~-~~-Ud fol·"·' -.··ta Waco. TX M""CA,nl"'ll~ 1883);" tsft Docameota ~to &he.._ ..... ·-.-:· .:·' ~-.. : -. ·.·: _. ::- ~.!-!~.~~ ~·~ Cun!Ri .. N=-E~-~~!-~~--~-=~_; ~"- 23;". .,~ ~ Deren~e J)oc:Qmallll). ,_A.-

. -· ·-~~- ... ···' · .. • -·· .... .-. ·--- .. ~ G) • uu.n~.r-o-~- to WJIIJ. . -.a~ .. ~- -1.1:."--.. -..ra&e~YJ --
·.-· .:· :: ·· · · · ~- .. ~~-=. ~-,-. ~-lllaada to _,..... looUnc. claM~ HarriCaiie Maril~~ t>Hed' ·o.a c ~ ·" ru;:r.:, -c.;d;A:._. 1'1&11 •;iouxn. · · · ' · · 
· · · ca.. cautitudoaality ~ '"Ala. Code 131-&-7. · · ·· ·· 
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· .. -~=-.:_.::.~.·~::.:; care and other miUtary benefits in the event of an · JTF-6, NORAD and the National Guard.112 Non· 
accident? · operational support which would include, but is 

:~ ·::7{ Memoranda. of agreement currently used fail to not limited to, equipment, institutional training, 
. : · · address tlie intricaci~ .. _w~ich State laws present and use of facilities would be provided by the Be-

.... :, >.::~--~~- .. and fb,ey <Jo not appear ~ .. ·Jt.~ve legal authority to- .... ·gional Logistics.Support Office.1a 
"· ;._ ;_;:_,;:,,:; .. -.~ ~ .. ·~aupe~ede. atate. censJ;~~ti~~~ and. S.~t\,J.tes .. Be-··· ·.. ·To receive assistance through Operation Alliance 

:-:- :-.::· •.;?:: .-, ..... ~use. ~tate )aw.s · 4iffer,· __ ~ese '·questio_n·i must be · ·:and from these organizations, the civilian law en· 
.. ;··:~: .-=·~ ·::~~.-}:. _ .. .· · ... J~~~ess~ ·_oif' a .. case b>: ~.J?asis~)f. State~ are · for~me~t investigation ·must·.involve criminal vio. 
.- , .. _ .·.-:..~~-:'-:: "'"·~::. gomg tD engage· in the mterstate use of National- --lations ·ofU:.S~· dnig laws, i.e., have a •c:~rug nexus.• 
-·~--~: .. -·~.::· .;··; .. ·:~· ,-~nf .. pei~~n_el •. : . · .. _ .. _. . . ... ·· · .... ··Having initiated 232 Operation Alliance investiga-

.. -~·.-::~·::,;_ .. · .... _B · ~· ~~ti·-~F ·~Fi~£.' "~BACcO ·ANn ·F~ ·-·~ tion5 tlirtlugh-·~scal..year, 1989,1M ATF was no 
· •.• :_:--~ .. : ·· · •ltlUtfJf REQUEST ·FOR" MILITARY ASSJSTANCE·. AND l~ger ~Operation Alliance'~ ~unterdrug mis· 
. • . · THE MIIJTARY ASSISrANCE ACruAU..Y·PROVIDED -... llon·and·lts ·drug ·nexus pre~equisite. In fact, docu·· 

.• ··. · . . , . .. · · .... · · .. · · ·· · ments dated as far back as March 15 1990 des· 
.... _ . ~e . Pre·r~~ mili~. ·wis~ce ~ Waco was· ignated·ATP Special Agent Sarabyn, .U:d ATF Spe-

proVIded thro~ active duty and National ·Guard cia] Agent Pali, the ATF coordinator for Operation 
eounterdrug uruts based on an alleged drug nexus. Alliance during the Branch Davidian investigation, 
Much of the post-raid military assistance to the ·as ATF coordinators Cor military assistance.185 

· FBI and ATF also came from counterdrug · units · · · · · 
· ~- •· · · and funds. Central to understanding how the mili· b. Chronology of A7Ts requut 
. . . . taJy became involved in the Waco matter is an un- The chronology of ATFs request f'or m.t1itary as-

·. :.·• derstanding or how ATYs initial request for mill· · sistance provides insight into how early ATF want-
:·· :.:...·:-.· tary assistance, based on alleged drug involve. ed military assistance, how the military and ATF 
. . .. .. . ment, progressed. became concerned with the drug nexus issue, and 
···. :-:·. i 0v lew · how the military's concerns changed the scope or 

. ·~----- ,..~ _ _ _· erv . . __ ·. · military assistance provided. 
--~ ·.:. ·. · ~- • ,..·:r=:·-~;:_ . . !..;~~ D.{:The·pr:r:x:e88 for-requesting milit~ry _assist- . As early as November 1992, ATF agents were 

:-, . ~. ". ~- .. ~... . . tuice azon,-tliJ! "Southwest-~bOrder':;; :_:. ~ :~ . .:~ t.r ~scussing,· ~~ :l\e~4 .. .f9r: militaey support with Ll 
... , . . .: Mil~~ry s'upp(>~ to. c·o\irj~rdrug o·perations ·along , ~~I. Lo~ Walker~ . the-·. Defense . De~itment rep- _ 

. -·. · ·. the Southwest ·bOrder or the United. States is de-.. · resentativ~ to .AtF.181J In his summary or 
.. _.aignect.•to ~s~st }jiw .. enforcement agencies ·iri· their_ .. :·.~yents" ~~~ N~vem.ber. entry, ~t.. Col Walker spe-. 
· mission to detec~ ·deter, 'disrupt, and dismantle n. -·.cdically state~ tha~:-.at that time, he was not told 

legal drug trafficking organizations."175 Thus, · .. or any drug conn~~n~1~ .. _ . . 
military support acts as a -coree multiplier," allow- ~Y December 1992 (almost 3 .months before the 
ing law enforcement agencies to focus on "interdic~ · raJd), ATF agents \Ve~e req~estmg Close Q~rs 
tion seizUre actions • 11e Combat/Close Quarters Battle 118 (CQB) trainmg 

When a drug l~w enforcement agency 111 re• by U.Si
90 

Army .Special Forces soldiers. ~or ATF 
.... , .. _. . . . que_~ts. ,counterdrug military assistance along the agents. A bas1c CQB course takes a rrurumum or 

S~t_~thwest border,.that r~uest is ~ecei~ed and r~:. ··- YIJrf~.~ NORAll emptor actift clatJ a'licay penoaneJ. Tbe 
VIewed by Operation Alliance, which a~ as the SLa~ National Oliard ~onnel are ta • Title 22 ILatua. 
cl~aringhouse. 178 The· request is then coordinated · u:.ny~ Operation&~ SuJIPOI' f'unin& C-*. 'I'nual)' Doeomeata 

. _ .wi~ support organizations such as JTF-6179, the ~71=·~,.e·&M s~ on IN nwa.K.7. Pr»>IJJ &rvit:t, 
. ,. North Americatt Aerospace · Defense Command llllll ~rol Gowmmmt ApproprWiotu tf u., B<»~M ~ 011 AI>-

.. : :· '.- ·' ·.:.. _._..... fi(NQRAD), 180 the Regional Logistics· Support Of.· =~~·=-~~:, ~=;~ ~~tffJ:: 
· :··~. _.. . ce l&t and the pertinent National. Guard: Oper- Tobecco and Firearms). • . . • 

· ational·aupport is provided as a J"oirit .. effort bv · *~enorandum hm Special Acmt Eddie PaH, Tlldicat Openticoe 
. · . . ·· , .. .'-' Coordinator &o &he ATF SAC'e. fa O.tl&l, 8oae&oa. uc! la Aaplel 

,,..rrr~ 01--tionai s".....- .PWual- c-u ......... ~- Docwr.nta ·CM~1M990~ ~~.n:::; ~ ~ Doev.meac. 
1'087 ---- ... ....._. ··-1' '1"001884. . . . . ,,. 1:: al1'08190. . . : .. · . . . -·: · . ... ·· . '"ltL · .. 

'"A ... law eAt'CII"CeeDD!!lt .,eoc:y II a law eatarcement ~ that IM/d.. 
U. jurildietioa Clftl" clrac law. ATF ... aotborisecl to inveatipte ...,.. .-ClOH Qaanen Battle f.awhw ·~ t.ec:ludqaa whkb bt· 

. code. tramcbn wbo 1188 tlranni·&Dd ap&o.in. u &.ooJa ot&beir trade. dade ac!Yaaeecl marblnllAIIUp. - olapecW JIGI1IOM .-paM, IDII!Ii-
•aeeWI riol t tioM, clematitiou ud aelective &apt e.., & GJDCfad.ad by llllllll1. 
lft~~AC:; il the deaiaebowse b-aD ciYiHu Jaw enl'arc:e- 1peci&Dy trained unite api..t a tic or balled mu·...S. lai'J'eta to c» 

___ ·-- _ .. _ ~D~Dt nqaeetl for military Iappan aJonc l.be Soothweat border. 0per. feat a bc»tDe Con:e with a miaimam ot'coDac.eral c~unap.• JM.dqoarten. 
- ·~ ADiaDce 1"WieWW aD nqae1t1 &Del ~ the reqaesta f1 Fed· ·U.S. Army Special FOI'alll Coaun.u4. PDtiq lAUa' aa Cloee Quarten 

-
77·--~~ .;. ~--:--~~ _: :...._ ·enl, &ace &Dd Joical. egenciel, and deterdDea the app-opriate military · ~~ (CQC) Tniah~ (~4 N~ 1993). 1\e CeriDt CQC aad CQ~ 

. .-. . --. ac-cy tO·aroricle &he·auppcn. mo-e OpentionaJ Support. PlaMi,. --bawe'been U.S in~y.fara namberciJ"'UL 0QC ia the mali· 

i0~~;~~;~ 
• ~ ;.' • ..-:: •.•• ~~ ·n~ ~ ·~~ ·; .... • ·_ • 

8 'The ~ l...c:IPtb Sappai-l Orpalsa~ n~~ertM)tirect ·:~·:·· · Sped&l Fon:a CommaDcl ·bact tOea place rtprdfft( U.S. Arrtty Special 
. __ .. , -~'-:- :--~. ·;:-· ... :.~ .. ~.......-~~~~ al·dwi Otrlce.-ot&be~Dei'IDM ~l~Coonlinator f« · Fcma Commaftcl (AfrWrne) putidpatioa as ..tadiac CQBISO'l' k 

. ·. · . .. ,.;.~;:, :"·--;·~-~,..,~~,:::!_. z.c ~·Enr~t Nk7 b&l·.ar-e ~ primuy poUit_or~~·rar·on. .-.·~: ... _d:naclaw eararcemeat .pnae~-,lhe Com • ' ol~ u.s. Army s,. 
· · · .. · "-:.·: wwcWclrcement Apaq ftlqQIIIIU far ·~~ ~ ~dana~:\. ·. ~·Operatlonl ~,~ IDI'onllllllabe. C oA.r or nF-

~ .. ,, . .··'i ... "''•"···· . '·' ........ . 

·. 

. -~-- ... : .. 
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.. · :···.:.· 
·:· .. ·~:~ 2 months and advanced CQB training takes a min- to those, present •that the military probably ·could 

.·.:.;=~:-.-·.-: imum of 6 months. Moreover, CQB ·is the type of provide a great deal or support and [that be] aug. 
>~-~-/.·: specialized training a terrorist or hostage rescue gested things like aerial overflight thermal photog· 

. . team such as the FBI Hostage Rescue Team would raphy." 196 Lt. Col. Walker's notes also state that 
~.' -:-_·.: · ~-_us~ •. ~Q.~ is.~~ ~--pe~~hable sk.jll ~ring fre.._:: he explained -~at·_ without a drug connection the 

· : .. :. ·... .- ·quent/cOntinuouS training that ATF, as an agency, military ·sup'pOrt :.would be on a reimbursable 
·::~:."·?·· is not _desigil_ed_.tO_-_mfli:ntain or utilize. Somewhat- .:~basis." 191 This· refe~~ to reimbursement is sig-
.. · . .-~---~ ... - · surp-risingly, neither the dcx.:uments from ·the~:· --nificant heeause· it .. reveals that .military aid was, 

,_ ·"' ·.:_ ~--~-....... ~ _" .. Treasuey_ .. i:flv~ti~~~n,-:·nor th~t.T:t~asury RePort.·- .·as or that date~·-unders~ to require reimburse-
~:: ~::.:~: :----~:-·: .. , .. itself;n.ev:f:r_rer~.r t.o-~~$,tequei~ . ._; ·:._~-~ .. , -.. -.7.:.. -~ .. : ·. m·ent·by ATF. \it~Jess· a drug nexus could be identi· 

· . · _·_::.:~ .· _:.. ·:· ... However,·. one. ~litary document. f"urr.tished to · ;_ · fied and artiCulated with sufficient specification to 
-·· :: .. ~~=~-- -~~- __ ._ :·· · ··the subcommittees .... is. part or their.·_documerit re~ . :· · warran~ military aid-·on.-a non-reimbursable basis. 

· ·_·'. ____ -_--- _ = .. : .. quest sp.ecifical_ly states_ that. 7JO written docu· · Ll Qol~ Walker's J;>~e~r 4th entry is followed 
__ ·.---.·mentation:-- is· available .on this ·extraordinary re- ~- by a·handWritten note that states •Agw1era said 

.. --- . :ciuest·by ATF. for CQB training.19 Pr.Jiis is the case . ·.,there was·:·no mown ·drUg nexus." 1ee 

despite ongoing discussions in 1992 and early 1993 · On December 11, 1992, Special Agent Jose G. 
within the senior ranks of the U.S. Army Special Viegra; the Resident in Charge (RAC) or the AuJ. 
Operations Command regarding the prudence of tin, TX ATF Office, met with representatives for 

· making SOT 192 /CQB training available to civilian the Texas Governor's Office about the role of the 
law enforcement and foreign military personneJ.193 ' military in any potential ATF action involving the 
These discussions are significant because they Davidians.199 Representatives or the Texas Gov· 
again foreshadow the potential use in civilian law emor's Office present at the meeting were William 
enforcement ofhighly specialized military traini.ilg, R. Enney, Texas State Interagency Coordinator 
designed and intended (or military operations. and his assistant Lieutenant Susan M. Justice, As· 

·. ~--~_- · _ _ On _Dec~mber 4, ·1992, several ATF Special sistant Interagency Coordinator or the National .. 
. - · Agents including the SAC's or the Dallas and· ··Guard Counterdrug Support Program.200 

.... _ _. .. .... Housto~ ATF offices, met at Houston's ATF field This meeting was requested by ATF to discuss 
~,_.,:::_:~·~·.·. , .\:_-:~~fi1c,•t (qr:·the._nz:st _time· tQ.discuss·.the :Waco:inves;;. :.· spe~fically,wh~t- types or military assistance were 

· · ... tigation:i~- In attendance ·were SAC· Phi11ip·· J. · ~ avmlable 't(). thtf ATF for· its raid on the Branch 
,_ ·:~:-:- ... -~ ·-='~:~·· .: · ... Chojn~c19;·;·,sA,C-"TEtd -Royster; .. :Assistant· .. Speci_al_ ·}>avi~~ ~~i~~!lce 20_1 . _U:t Waco, TX. During t!'t.e 

_ .... _ , · ~~nt-- in .. Charge James Cavanaug~;-~~ Resident· ·~:·mee~ng, .. SP~~ Ag~-~-t Viegra !"as tot~ that IDlli· 
-Agent i~ Charge Earl K:- Dunagan; Speaal Agents · : tary ·ass1startc:e. through . Operation Alliance would 

· ·· · "'..... ..J.:.·-- • -A~iilera LeWis Petrilli· Buford: ·K. ··Lattimer- Wil- ·not· be available unless there was a •drug nexus.• 
Iiams, C~rter, ~d John' Henry.i9s Also pres~nt at That meeting constituted the second time in 8 

..... 

that. meeting. was Ll Col. Lon Walker, the Defense d~ys that ATF agents inquiring about mill~ as· 
Department representative to ATF. Lt. Col. Walk· ststance were told of a drug nexus prereqwstte. At 
er's notes of the meeting reveal_ that be explained the December 11, 1992, meeting, Enney asked the 

ATF agents to determine whether a drug nexus 
CS by nu1it&l')' rnes&qe. elated 4 Janaary 93 (wit.hiD a Yf:r/ doee pnmm- did in fact exist. · . 

. ·ily ~ An"• i-equelt ror~ ~QB). that the ~ woaJd _fmWide CQB .. . ·: Three days- after their meeting with ATF, the 
. ·. Speaat OpenUcnw Tn.Wnc CQMOI' tnwnc to law enforument T · . . .. -... d · ... · · • ed ,_ 

qenciea. -It i• anticipated that CQIWOT tninfnc •a~ requeata may · . exas coun~r rug representatives rece1v a aac-
be filled by the u.s. Army Joful F. Kenn«<J Special Wmare Center and simile or a letter dated December 14, 1992, on 

· - School <USAJFKSWCS> ar o&ber anita &hat Udu.a CQBISOT u ~ ot "H to SAC 1 tte h d" fro th RAC ( th 
: . tbeiT Mm.• The memoru-clam ~oe~ ca to •tate &hac. USASOC anc! ous n e r ea m e o e 
. :_ UBASFC(A) have OGJy.,.... to proride CQ&SOr··u.truction eo &be Austin ATF ·office, Earl K. Dunagan; requesting 

u.s. Border Patrol Tactical Uait CBORTAC'). military assistance from the Texas Counterd.rug 
•'"SSF ~iat.uce to Federal Law EAI'an:ement ia Weco, Tau.• De- · 

... . terwe Docameata D-lllaA.. _· .. - :--· . . · - ~r.ogram.~ The military assistance requested 
• 

1118 5<?1' •ta~ ~w Special ~tiCIIIA ~nc- _AI~ SOT • aot. · -.. from the ·Texas National ·Guard was for aerial re-
=.;:7~ ~=-= :::;'~=J~ic!:~~'-9~ connaissance · photography, interpretation and 
Warfare Center ancl School CUSAJFKSWCS), it.~ ~ .. aMCI .. here to .evaluation o( the pho~s, and transportation o( 
identify Special Operatioaa Traininc because that ia bow it· ia Ued. by 
&be tniHt&Jy clocameata retem.l to b7 &be nbcommitsee inveatigakn. IMLL Col Lea Walbr'• 1~ ot e¥eota. ~- Docamen&a 
8ft Hudqv.uten. USASFC (A) Policy LeUer ca Oole Qu&rten Combat ··-, 
'l'niaing (24 NOt'. 1993) (wuuuunhtncf) lbr &caaion aa proper aup rl ~7r· 
sor. · IM/tL 

sus,. cnemor.ndam fll 3rd Special FOftll!l Croap, ·Headquarten •Memorandum 6-aat Cclleea Callalwl and &bert Te¥ent &o Ceolf 
• . llemarandam on S,.W ()peratiCIIII TniDiDc and Cbe Qa.&l1en BaUl Moulton and Lew MerleU:i "Cbraoooo&J and Wi~ R.e: Milital')' Sap-

_·_;.-~ ··-~-~~~.c._,_,.~·: .. :~~~~~~-~--~~.:~:=: ... ~ftt.Alr.~~-~,~~~~ Mlhe .. ·-·'<· :~. ',.._ '.··. - . ,C!I!Gil~ ~tiona ia &be _contifteatal UIUieci_Sta&al-(23 Feb._l993) · ... ;.:.Texas-State l'epreMDtative ~ oa~_Depanment caontiDataon ol t.he 

_-x~1-~~t~~~~sgt~~~~~!_-~Jii~~e~§ 
Moulton and Lew_ MerleUi, "Cht"'nnOcv u4 Witnellel Je: Militawy sap.:·-~--. --Moulton and Lev Kmeui, "'Ciiiai~q:fancl Witaeue. Re: Milita17 Sap-
pan fll ATr (JW)' 14, 1993). TteaaaJ)' llociameo~ ~· · .... port f11 ATr' (Jal1·14.1993~ ~ Docamenta '1'004589, T004590. 
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: .. ;-:·:-~~i: 
·~.:_:.~ .. -.. :.~.: __ ;:~.·-~-~:.·;..~. ATF agen~ ... aboAlardth .. ~e thaircraft durlndif:dthe reeon· th~:~uhto body·shodp,..£~1edb tbthe ~Tlag Bag..N • .Thlsnal 

_ naissance.- OUfiu e request . not men- oveuut; t was con UQeU 11 e exu atio 
· · · · tion suspected drug violations (drug ~exus), as Guard Counterdrug unit in a UC-26 counterdrug 

.··.~~::;_;{. ·.:-:: .. would be required to secure non-reimbursable as:-.- .. ~ Forward Looking Infrared (FLIR) 212 vid· 
.... : ... ~--~-~~:~ -.... ·aistarice-or-military·assistance from .. a ·c~\m.te.rdriig · '·eotape tak~~- during the overflight indicated a "hot 

· -~~ ·.:·:;-.:-:·:.;~ · .:.-: ... :.··-·urut,~,·Lt.-:COt· Pettit, the Texas Co~te~rug Tas~ .. -.. : apot'.' .. iilsid~. th~. residence and three persons out· 
· · ·;_-:-::]~::.~·· · ........ Force··Commander, initialed his approval on_ tile .. side behind .the re'sidence·· .. ~hom ATF designated 
. · :- :~·;·f::·:_.~:: .-.-~~--request.20f =·.: ·, ~::: -.- ::·. · . . : .. ·.·· _.,. · . ___ ... _.·"· .··~.- : •. .. · ··- < . as .. •sentries."213-The Texas National Guard con· 
-- ·::_-::~·~:~ ;~: · · . ·· · · Lt: COl. ·Pettit. ·told National Guarii. inv~s~gators ~~-"; d~cte<l" five. _"~ore::reconn~~S8nc&'survei11anee over· 

·· .. ·.:···._;_._··:~·:--_:' · .-. ·tbat ·be provided his-approval ~~e the request ·_···flights ·_oyer the-:7'·Branch ·Davidian property from 
>. ::· ·-..~:~:;~ .. · ··. · required . another: :·penon's· cappro.v~! _.as . wel1~20&_ . · Februsiy 3, _}.9~3. ~-to February 25, 1993. These 

· ··· :·· ... ~:;. -~- .. · . · However this · d~ision, in itself, raises sev"i'al Un~. · ov~rflights were eonducted ·to •search for armed 
·· ··:··~:~.;··.·:, .. ·· .. ·answered ·questions. Did-Lt.. CoL J'ettit ass~@ ... a ·-.·~and drugmanufacturingfacilities.- 214 

· -·drug ne.Xus· existed or that one was .. not needed? · '· On the-lame 'da)' aa· the first National Guard 
• ·= ·:·~~/ .Did he believe that the request should be approved overflight, January 6, 1993, Richard Gamer, Chief 

· dupiU the absence of legaJly required drug nexus? of Special Operations Division of ATF, drafted an· 
<·:<~~:·:~: Or did he believe that ATF. would. reimburse the other request on ATF Headquarters letterhead di-

... ~ . National Guard? These questions repeat them- rectly to Colonel Judith Browning, Direc:tor of 
· -··- selves throughout the approval process, and are Plans and Support, ofthe Office ofthe Department 

· ~-.::. raised here to illustrate the difficulties encoun- of Defense Coordinator for Drug Enforcement Po1-
tered in disentangling a past approval of military icy and Support.21S ATF requested the loan ofvar· 

· .:~ .. ;~ aid involving a drug nexus. . ·. ious office equipment, a refrigerator, cots and 
·· ~o days after Lt.. CoL Pettit's approval, Special sleeping bags to be made available on January 11, 

.·::·.:·:.:._:.~: ·. · Agent Aguilera informed Lt. Col. Walker on De. 1993. The Jetter states that the ATF was inves· 
.... ,.:.:·:. ··cember.l6,·1992, that he received a facsimile from tigating violations of-Brearms and drug laws• and 

. '·· . ,, ·,. -~·.:,:_· ... , .. _ , -~ Br~ult ~- ~tralia_ suggesting ~e exis~:- requested. the equipment as •part of Defense De-
""f:.::~··_ .... -.i ·c: - .. _ :.en~· .. _:Or._:·a: ~metlu1¢phetmniile 1® .t~;·~~- -B~ch· --- partment- support .. fo_~_ · co_unterdrug 'effort. • Cot 
· · · DaVidian ~~sidenc_e.JO& ·Mr~ Breault'was ~-former :--,:_Bziownmg.-respanaed.by,letter on January 15 ap-

; · _, '· ·: · ~- · Bran.ch ·Davidian ·who left the ~o-tip: 9n bad· terms; :-.::: proving the .support. to .be_ provided by the Regional 
.'L' -~:~.:-·:,:::: :~,··and· exhibited ·strong personal.&riiinosity toward.!--:. .~stics.Support·Oftice2te in El Paso, TX.211 The 

· ·. · , _ .~.ltOre~h.and _sev~ral ~fthe ~.avidians·.:· · · :-· -~ · ·. · __ · .. __ ... same qU.estions ~ked of LL Col. Pettit above must 

• .. ~ I 

... ~- ·-

. . ... 

. : ~-: .. 

~ . . . . -.. -· .. 
~. . =·.:· ... 

The follo-wing··aay;· ·necember'·,·.17, .. l992, SAC ···-.be-asked here of·Cot .. B.rowning. Here, as with Lt. 
Phillip Chojnacki held a meeting in his office with Col. Pettit, key documentation justifying the de- · 
Special Agent Ivan Ka11ister, Special ·Agent Davey ployment of non-reimbursable military aid on the 
Aguilera, and Lt. Cot Walker regarding the Waco basis of a proven or suspected drug nexus is miss-
investigation.207 According to ATF, Lt. Col. Walker ing. Yet, Col. Browning approved the request and 
told SAC Chojnacki during the meeting that the directed further ATF requests to be made directly 
Defense Departmen·t ·could provide non-reimburs- to the Regional_Logistics Support Office in Texas. 
able military support if' there is a. "suspicion of· · ... Within. a . week· ~r Col. Browning's response. 
clriig activity.• 208 Aguilera was subsequently in~. ·Gamer sent a further request to Major Victor 

. structed to "actively pursue information from his Bucowsky, the Officer-in:.charge of the Regional 
· info~ants about il · d.rug nex~." 209 Additionally, Logistics Support Office requesting an MOUT 218 

.. ATF Intelligence · Research Specialist Sandy site for Special Response Team training. driver 
Betterton . searched criminal reeords to ·determine training and maintenance support for Bradley 
if Branch Davidians bad "some" prior- drug of· . . 

.~. _ · ... f'enses.21o It ·later· waa determined tha:t only one 
· BranCh ··Davidian had a prior ·narcotics convic-
. tion~21l ·· . 

January 6~·1993 was the 6rst ·National Guard··· 
overflight or the Branch Davidian residence and 
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fighting vehicles, seven . Bradley fighting vehicles, counterdrug missions in late February i993; (3) di· 
and on-call support ·in the event a siege OC· rect support by Texas National Guard counterdrug 
eurred.219 This was the largest request for assist- personnel who conducted an aerial diversion the .. · 

-:: :-.::-..: ance in Regional Logistics Support Office's history day of the raid on February 28, 1993; and (4) post· 
. -__ . -~~·:._·_(._:<~--- ·. ___ __ ·and even-tually h:ad to·. be supplied_ by Texas ~a· . raid support to FBI and ATF. 

tional GUard becaus·e· the Region·at LogiStic! SuP. ·Six ·surveillance overflights were conducted by 

~-~~ -~~::/~?;:~~-;~_-_,~- . :!!/!t~::~~~:~e.;i~de~-~ ~~ enfo~e- - ·:~~~':i!!~~-b~~~~i~N!~~ P= 
. ----~~)~?~:-\-~.-_. · _ . -- On F~b~ 2~- 1~9~, OPeration Alli.ariee m~de· a .. _began_ on January. 6, 1993.227 The ·January 6 mis· 

. :-~·-_.;·.- -:·· __ , ·-_request .t~)_·f.h~, 9ommaiuling Gen~raFof JTF-6 .for __ ._ .. :·iions and. sUbsequent missions on February 3, 18, 
"' .' :-:.:.":3 ·· ·;_:_ .;::·· ·:_th_e.'u_se ·or_~peclal Forces Pe..rsonne}amgn_e_d to his . and· 25, 1993; :were taken by a Texas National 
-:-~~--;~·-::·-.. ·- ·' org3nizatio~~~~-L~ Col._Philip ~ •.. ~dley,~2 the_ .--~Guard Counterdnig UC;-26 aircraft.us On Janu· 

~-:-~- ~--~=·~-:-~~ ·_ ~--=-.· ~~ _: U~S._'Anily~_Sp~~al _Forces. ·cominiind-:~taff_J~l(lge ... _.. ary:14, 1993, aerial photographs were taken by the 
·' -.. -·.. . .. _ Aavoca~ •.. wu-~pQ~e4 .. ,ofthis req_~est -~~--.advise.4_ ... Alabama Nati~n8l·Gua~d~229 And, on February 6, 

'-- ·· ··- ·- · - JTF-6, ·· • · ·· _. . _ 1993, the Tens National Guard provided infrared 
, .. ., .... , •.•.• _that.Rapid Support Unit (RSU)223 video CFLIR) and .aerial photography in a 

: .· ._· .· assistance in actual planning and re- .Counterdrug UC-26 m~aft.230 
· · · hearsal of proposed •ta.kedown" could vio- · ATF's request for trainmg of ATF agents by Spe. 

late posse comitatus law, expose RSU to cial Forces soldiers went through several alter-
. ·· liability. [A q)uestion also arises as to ap- ations before ~e a~ training took place. AI-

.- .. propriateness of RSU giving non- though ATF initially requested Bradley fighting 
METL, 22.t i.e., SOT/CQB training to vehicles, SOT/CQB training, on-site medical evacu-
ATF.225 ation assistance and planning assistance, legal re-

th • d strictions caused the ATF request to be scaled 
However, ere again is· no wntten ocumentation· down.231 A Special Forces Rapid Support Unit, as~ 

. • I .... 
::._ ... :_· 

of ATF's request for this highly controversial train· signed tO Operation Alliance, trained ATF on 25-

"_·~~~;.: i .. -.··:~~-~1t~~:t~f~t ~~ ~ing !lljssj()n:::by Sped~_ 27_ ~ebruary 19~3, in .co.mpany-level t:;~cal C2: 
-, · ·· Forces S()lcfi.ers ~as revtsed to 1nclude:only coqrdi-. .,M.e~~!..~ya.~~~~~ ~~rung, IV ~C'~,3 and~ 
- ·.-·nation on Army ~anges and teach!eg.:~:rFJlC?~ .t9,:::. ~~s~!l~~.~th ~nge and-MO~ s1tes.. According 
.n;.~!.·:i .. develop an operations order,226 ,. _ _,_:~ .... = .••... ., -~ -~*-~~-=-4·0~n:l,E!9~.,8.Jl4 ~rnh_tary Witnesses w~o ,. ,.·. : :: .. ,~·-~:: ,>· :·::-.·:::.:.:;·:.::. ·:-:,_;·.=:· :-.::: ::,.::-_=: .. ,-..:-:::: •-;"-=- -'-'- · · ... ··.': appeared ~fore. tli,~ .SUbC:Omm1ttees, no non-M.is-

.:o_~:-· :- .·; __ ::--:-:·.-~-.- ··=-· _:_c._-.fre·1XIi4.:.military .assist~·~requested by'·o:_:··aion_ E~senti~_·T~k L!~t __ (wartime tasks> training, 
. ATF and assistance actiudly received···,_· :..:·_·-sOT/CQB;·· o·r. direct iriv-olvement in actual plan-

,The military assistance provided to ATF can be ning occurred.23" 

separated into·. four- areas: (1) sUrveillance· ov_er- For the February 28 raid, the Texas National 
flights by counterdrug National Guard units in Guard supplied three helicopters and 10 
January and February 1993; (2) training by Spe- counterdrug personnel. When ATF requested Na-
cial Forces soldiers assigned to JTF..o· for tional Guard assi_stance, their stated mission to 

•• 7 · • - th~ National Guard was to use the helicopters as 
SUTreUaiy ~nta 'I'0046os (c!at.ed Janauy 22.- i993;, '1'00461( . a COfXlinand and CODtfolplatfOmJ during the raid, 

. Tr.auy Documeat 1'004610 ia a duptica~ ollhe leUer except it ia and to transport p· erson_nel and evidence after the 
elated Jana&r7 21, 1893 ucl baa h.andwrlt&en aoCea alcqr l.he border. 
The DCU~ aJoac &be bordeT appear to iocticat.e &bat .m-e .... ,..poa. area· was. secured.235 Only when the National 

.. .. ·~ . 

.a'ble-rc.. &he SRT tniaiac and. "No. T~ Tr • wriUeD am tO &he- Guard team arrived at Fort Hood for the pre-raid 
·. ·B~3~~-: i!~tl~es~~ Raben T~ tor- . .training, less than 24 hours before the raid, did 

-..... __ . - - -u.e_w.., Mminiatnch• amew CSepe.ember 14, 181113~ Tteu1uy Doea- ATF agents inf'orm the NatiQnal Guard personnel 
_:_ -- _-. -·_ " __ ·.-_ ~- :.- --. --~~~~eon.---~ aDd BeN\',...._. to Oeaa' · . that the helicopters would be used as an aerial di· 

MoaJcaa and Lew Mertettl, ~ Ucl Witoeu. a.: Military Sapo _. · -- version during the raid itself. ATF. had even as· 
port r1 An-- cJaJy 1._ 1993). 'l'tealar7 Doeameata 1'004589, 1'004590. • ed f th N ti. 1 Gu rd terdrug 1 . a~.u &he time ot &be waco iacilles\& Pbilip UadJq ..-nd .. -a MaJor _ s1gn one o e _ ~ on a a coun so • 
ID the u.s. Anrty. HOWft'tll',lliace &hat lime. be hu bees pnii'QOCed ·uc~ ~dier8 to hang from a monkey sling outside the hell· 
&eltiW Wan &be aabcommie&ea witb tbe ruk tJI U.l.ieQ&eQu& Colo-
eel. He wiD be retirrnd to .. Lt. Cal. UndJ- thrDacboallbe ~ . 
.. A Rapid Sappart Unit (RSU)w ~ ota s,.aa1 Farca Com- ...,TIIUII Na&na1 Ouad After-Action Jlepan (Apri129, 1W3). Dele.e 

pat11 witb au.dled ariat:iaa ...ee.. Jl&pid Sappcll'l Unit n.cripliaa Doeamenta 02344 at 02346. · 
Paper. De&ea.el)ocQmenta D-13&1. '!be av.bcommiu- an aware otoo DeltL 
RSU aYiatioa ..c. being aaec1 at Wam. -RSU ....._ are~ =~~ 

.• ·:-··:~·-:.-· . .. _ bed bJ ...n., ahan chlradoa. il&*rdidlola l'llluiou -.ally llJniUd lo aa-sor ~to Fedenl Law Wcnemeat in W.o. Te:ua.• I» 
. .. .... _ . _&otduatYtU.•ltJ.. (emphuia ..wed). Tbe paper auc. ...-Mitaioft Pa- (enM Docamenta D-1118.\. 
····::~::-~-:.~:-~;. , .. _:":_. ___ ~ &hat "'lbe.miMioa mut_ btl relatecl_ to ~:ss-w ·opa.u~ _· --~~~~-)C~--~uee.G:Jr &z.tinc b&Llleftelclloj~ iDe!~ iotn· 
.. , ..... :. :.·--~-.:.::.:.:·y:-:, .. -,:·-:Jfiu:ioe Eaeatial T•t Ua& (wutime tub) Mel_ MiiNi.W if ~l-pnMtpl·":. .. ftftOIM IS~jed:io.na at: nuida. clearinc .. airway., cantl"oD&a~ bleedinc &Del 

._ :._:.:~~;~~;~-, :_"_·::.;_~~--~;.~-~~~~-~k··:LW _-OO:i'i) ·iDcl~~di~:·:~~---~-·::.::~T~.·~--~~-a&alement.oCMaJ. Petree. Dereae ~meota D-
• ·.· . · ·· · __ &aab., l.& what a kOla a aalctier hal M,a trained ta Uil Clp.blifol &rafa.: ··:· .:: . ~~-AMiat&Dc:e to FedenJ Law Eararcement Ia Waco, T--. • 0. 

·-:-::-"'.;". , ~::.::.:. -;:·,-:._.__:lac a&Mrt_la. ~pedal Farciel uita who .wwe .....,_ '~'opifttiOii:ADi- -~,.::· te:: ~ci-~ift&A..,;;, :-~ .. ;_ .... -~- ": -~- _ 
-~- --- ___ --, uc:e werenatric:tad to &heirMETL tnlaift&'la•~tMenta. 14:.- .. .. --.--. _____ ___,., ._ .. . 

~ ·: ::--:_-·~-· ---~-- · -Delea8e Dep.ttmen& Docameata DUL ~--. ---·:-:·---···· - --::·:· · ....... -=-~TnYiitfPtiaa lnl.eniewt rJ National Oaard penaaael. 
~--~:..~ .:~.------ '-~:·. -. -"'!~~_:_·:~ .:.~-·:. ~ ~'.'~~:..:~·~:~--~~~ ~;-~.' ·:·.-· ... ··~ ": . --~~~~-:~'~:~.::; :_;_-::··:_ .. :-"::. --~{~ Docamenta T0053a8. 

·:.-:-~~!":.:__ .::· ~.~.::- .... 
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copter to film the raid.IM The soldier was in that Requesting through Operation Alllance also aJ. 
position when . the helicopters took incoming lowed ATF to avoid an approval procesa with a · 
fire.237 Although all of the three bellcopters SUS• greater potential of independent oversight. 
tained damage from weapons tire, none o( the Na· ·. · ... The same conclusion can be reached for the Na­
tional Guard crews or ATF personnel aboard were · ·· ··tiona) · Gisard· · supporl: · Had :there been no drug 

·,.-~~.:~:_~}"_>· ·· _ injuted.238 .. Siil~- such di!.eet involve_~~!--i~-- pro- · nexus, there again would have been a different ap-
. bibited by N$tional GUaru BUJ'eau re5 '"-Gtions 239 : ·· proval- process. Without-- a drug nexus (i.e., non-: .. :-~·~:}:~2~~~:.:: . ~- · an4 pl•~~4 ~~~~tta.l: Guard personn~J. in immirient ~:~- counterdrug·-purposek ATrs··request for National 

: .. ·.-:::-·~-:-. '~_:danger,:_it_is)iricl~t ~y·th=:Nhanati~nal (}uard ~~~~--·-Guard assistance would only be pe~~thifboth 
.. _ .. ·. ·. _."sented tO: ATFs -J.Ut-minute ·c ges. ·· · .<·"·' .. _,_·. · · ·.·· the Texas State Constitution authorUc:u e Na-

_-·.··>.".~ . The National Guard's focal· group :reView· ot the·· . .-··· tional ·Gu8.rd•s involvement in the type ar assist-
. .: ., · .. ,.:·: .: :. . . Jo~d.en.t cf.:i~ n~~ ~h~ 111~ch _light o_n tlu~_ ~~e.~ .'l'he · · &nee ATF requested and the Governor wu wiUing 

--: .. ,.~ .... ,,_.. ~-·._um_maey of' its ·rep_ort,··dated Ap~--~~. ·19sa,&nd- ·~-to··' expend··:state:· fUnds ·ror that purpose.141 Na-
.· · · · the report· itself "revw orilf ·one major issue.: The · tioi1al Guard personnel have indicated that the as- . 

-~ ··:·=~· issue deals with .. the pr~raid threat assessment or · sistance would not have been provided under those 
. · ·~ the Davidians provided· by ATF to the Texas Na- circumstances."'2 This is supported by the fact 

:·~::.~ tional Guard as a 'docile' environment. A second ~at the National Guard Bureau regulations pro-
. . .. . issue, which is not included in the written report hibit the type or direct involvement ATF received 
·· ·' of the .focal group but has been vocalized by Colo· from the National Guard counterdrug personnel, 
... ·. net Spence, deals with the suspected methamphet· i.e., acting as a diversion during the ATF raid.143 

amine laboratory at the Branch Davidian resi- Further, since the Texas National Guard depleted 
dence. Colonel Spence contends that the drug issue its fiscal year 1993 counterdrug funds during its 
is not included in the focal group report due to the assistance to ATF at Waco and had to request ad· 
potential ~edia interest and any resulting Free- ditional funding during it assistance, it is doubtful 
dom of Information Act inquiries. • 240 .. · ... .. that Governor Richards would have approved · 

. :. ·::-
. ·. . .: :;. 

-.,~ . :' .. · ,;.~ ...... ", .. , .. · ,,~ ,~ .d .... W_#hQut ,the. aJkg_(!,ci:.drug ~us. tlu ATF . S~te -~ding_or so expensive an operation. 
· ·- · ~-.. : .. ·· :: ..•• _;;_.~· LT, - •.- -nwSt likely= WOiild,·not !,lave received the . _2. Co_~~ t?f171#itary legal.advisOrs 
.. -;. · ... :_. . >;; :, '. '! ·.• ; ' .. ;: :. :: •. ~me.·--~~;· ~istcmce ~ . w~ . prO-. . ' . Xs'sistan"t : Sebreta't)t :of :Defense Allen Holmes 

.• ~,_·:.~!· !,~_,.,:,:·"·''~;~t('':--.t:;·;;: r- :tl~-:'~·_:'~ 1 . . : .. .-. ·. _.. .r· . . :· . _. . . ··'.and Maj.~Gen._J9hn.~. Pickler· both appeared be-
:·:. ==--'·-Tre.s·u:ry -~d-Defense::Departmen-fO.ffida,b·h~.Y~.'-- ',_',for~. the _subeommitt;e~s.:'fhey testified that the ap­

_,_-.,;:-·.'-, .. ,., .. : .. ··t·ep'eatedly·'-maintained·that·ATF would have re~' . -proval'.process···wo't'ke·d.as .it was intended.""' Yet. 
ceived military assistance even without a drug documents·· show tliat this·· was so only because 

· nexus,. but that ATF would had to have paid for it. . . Sp~ial. Forces Command legal advisors at the U.S. 
However,. this statement is misleading because it · Special Fo-rces· Command Headquarters, who were 
fails to answer whether ATF would have received outside the normal approval process, but who had 
the same training it requested from units other learned of ATFs request for assistance from Spe-
than counterdrug units · and for purposes other cial Forces soldiers at Operation Alliance, strongly 
than couriterdrug operations. . · ._voiced . objections • to· the· Special Forces training 

·.: What is cleat is.that the ATF would not have re-.: · m"lssion of ATF as proposed by JTF~. AJ a result 
ceived military assistance from the highly trained of these.-·concerris reaching_ extremely senior levels 
Special Forces units in such a short time. frame of command . within the Department of Defense, 

· : .. :.- :: -":. and through the streamlined approval process . the training missions·. were scaled back signifi. 
: which it enjoyed. ~ stated above, the ATF origi- cantly and potential violations of the law were 

. -··· nally requested Close Quarters Combat ~ing, a- avoided. · · 
-· ., .. ,.-.; ·<· ·-~ of tra!ning _avai~le only ·&om: ~cialized···: .. __ ::,.: .·a. lnv;,zvemeni".of Special Forus Com1n4nd 

·- --military uruts. like. Speaal Forces.. ATFs request.. · ra,.aJ advisors · 
_. ~ ~-~-·-- :· .!"~ ~~-th~--~e~ law enlorceme~~-~es~_(~r-- ~· • • • 

·m•litary·asststabce m many of the counterdrug or·····- . A3 referred ~ earlier, a RaJ?ld S~~~rt Urut 
ganizations' histories, such as the Regional Logis~ ~U) from Third Company, Th1rd DiVJSJon, Spe-
tics Support Office. ATF filrtber requested that its C?al Forces Group was deployed ~n .a regular rota· 
military training be conducted less than 30 days ti~n. to JTF-6 for counterdrug ~lllSStons. ~en the 
after its request. while even the meamlined Oper- ong1nal A;TF request was as~sgned to !-hls RSU 
ation Alliance process normally required 90 days. . team, MaJ. Ba11ard, the Speaal Operations Rep-

~ ·.· .. :··: 
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.: 

/-t~ resentative at JTF-6, telephoned Special 0per. Lindley was aware or coneei-ns with the physical 
:.·:~~~·~· ation. Command at Fort B~ and expressed his characteristics of methamphetamine production 
~ concern with the ATF training mission to Mr. and the dangers in the chemicals, as well as am· · 

·,. __ ···-·- .... Crain, • . d.Yi.lian employee at Special Operations munition considerations given the explosive nature 
· ··~·· Command.~-4~. . .. :. . ... .. of methamphetamine lahs.2" Contamination of 

. ~~y:,~:.;-:··. ~:;·;;·:_:-~: .. ~_·,~ _t]pon hearing the. details of the original request, . s~ldiers' clothing by che~ca1s used~ the produc· 
. . . ··:·: :.-~~~-f .:. . . ... . . Mr .. _Crain also became concerned·· and· immediately·,:· -tion. ·of-, ·!Deth.amphe_~mes woul~ mvo!ve those 

... · _: .. :~··."\ ... , .. ··:·.:·- ·notifi~ Lt._C9.l.-Lindley.~ Lt. Col. Lindley subse· · soldiers- m the. ·colTection·-: of phystcal eY!dence.256 

·:·~-:~;:~;_;·~~f. · _~;.·.~· ... _q~ently spc)ke with Majo"~Petree, the Special Forces· .. ~n;·· suc~·:-~rect.·inv~lv~ment wo_uld vtolate the 
.·.~~::_::::. j,_ ·--:-~,Rapid. :··S1lpP?rt·:Unit-... Com~der;··.wh~ ·,also ·ex·.· _ _.-·· .. ~Posse Conutatus. Act.·:·,_. • • • 

. _ ~-·. :..·:·:. . . pressed: sn:tular .concerns .:about the scope of the ·····:-Upon COJ?lpleting his discuss1ons ~th th~ Spe. 
· · ·· ·. . mission.~~r. . -.-, · ;~~-· ,,. -···· ··. .. . : _, ., :-:' . .. cial Operations. perso~el;· Lt. Col. Lindley directly 

.· ·:: ····: · Lt. ·col.-· Lindley testified. before the subCc)~~it-· .·· ·- contacted ~F-:6 p_erson11el to expr~ss his .concerns 
.. ~:·. . tees that he was principally concerned with three- ·_about the nuss1on .. When .Lt. C_ol.. ~dley mforyned 

• .: : areas of the support requested-the review and JTF-:-O perso!lnel that, from hts m1tial analrsts of 
. . • . . . ·scrub of the ATF operation plan, medical support ... th~ t!lfonnation presented, the z:equest was ~mper· 
.:·· ·.: · in close proximately to the scene, and assistance in mtsstble as proposed, he rece1ved a hostile re-

developing ·and constructing the rehearsal sites.2..a spo~se ~m Lt. ~1. Rayb~, the. JTF-6 Legal 
Lt. Col. Lindleys first concern was the review and Advtsor.25 After ~s conversation Wlth JTF-6 per· 
scrub which is an analysis of a mission that has sonnel, Lt. ~ol. Lmdley began a memo~dum for 
already been planned. The review and scrub of the record detaihng the chronology of events and con-
operation plan and the review of the discriminat- versa~ons as they took place.2~ JTF-6, not Lt. 

::_.~-~:::·. ing fire plan would have been done by_ the Special ~ol. Lindhley, subsequently provtded the legal re--
··-· Forces unit assigned to JTF-6 which ultimately· vtew oft e request. 

·: · .. ·. · provided the military training io ATF.2-4B Lt.- Col. After- the r89uests for .additional. ~vidence. of 
.. .., , ___ ·---~ . ___ · _____ Lindley was of the opinion that the actual plan- methamphetamme pro~ucbon, th~ m1htary asSist· 
. ~ :.-n., :::;· .. r.-. ,:::•· n·mg-':8:Jld:.rehearsal-Df:the·-take down was __ ~active~., .. ~~~- a!~,~wed wa~ _dra~tically restncted. 

· -:-·~ _·.:_·:_.- :: .. ·· .. · and ~~reforeii~le,~.~ ~~~-also ·.~li~~e'~~:thaf.~a·.:::::3~--Evid~nct~:lndicat.ing.,prob_lems in the approval 
·. ,: .... ~..:.- _:-: ·,;: ·. Spec1al Forces urut was not authonz~. to. offer_ ex-. : .. · . · pr:oce.s$: ·' .. :· ·-·- : 

.--_-,;.-: ;::-.::.>··· _ pertslivic!f~n·dec~-s~ga d#.(l~;~1:.-·--~~->:·!~·;·:~e"ont~aey~t.c; assertidras' by Assistant Secretary 
- ...... ::· .:~~ ·- ., · · Lt;:=Col< f:Jndley's ~cond-·concer.n: deal~ .. Yll~tQ __ ~e. -~:;Holmes;· Brig.:Gen. Huffman, and Maj. Gen. Pick· 

. use of .mihtary medical .. penonnel.. AcCording ·-to, ·. fer,· the· approvaL process did not work as it was 

·. 

.. ·.: · .. 

:. ~-: •. ~··. 
; .. 

. ATFs re_ques~ these ~li~ med•ca! person~el . supposed to.259 First, although concerns liad been 
would be on-~1~ ~d directly mvolved m po~ntia1 raised that JTF -6 had been providing military as-
search~~ of m.divtduals ap~re~ended and 1!1 the sistance to non-counterdrug activities, little docu· 
coll~ct1o~ of.eVJdenc~, resulting m. Poss~ Comttatus mentation of ATF.s requests for military assist· 
Act tmphcations. Th;is ~~gre~ of direct ~volvem~nt ance exists. Second, while some senior military of-
would also create liab11ity Issues assooated WJth fleers and DEA officials had opportunities to voice 
the treatment ~r the dvilians.252 The .med:ical per- : _ concerns about ATF.s alleged drug nexus, they 
sonnel poten?ally would . J:»e trea~g gunshot , .,chose not to exercise ·those. opportunities. Third, 
wounds of chtldren, an.d .nulitary ~edicaJ penon- because a few military officers identified major 

.. _ nel do n~t have _the trammg_or e9wpment to treat legal problems with the training mission and alert· 
.... such trauma wounds ~shots~ m small _chi~dren. ed senior military commanders, despite threats by 

For example, s~me medical ~wpmen.t. for_ch1ld~en_. _o.ther senior military officers, ·the mission was al-
. , •uc!t as breathin, .tubes. reqwre special s~es wtth tered to avQid violations of the law. Finally, after 

which th~se medical teams ~e not be_ eqwpped.~53 ._-Waco hearings were scheduled, the Secretary of 
Accor~ng to Lt. Col. Lindley, the J!F -6 m- Defen~e. acknowledged problems with the military 

fo~ed him that the law e!lforcement acti~n was a_. .. ass!s.~_ce process and created a working group to 
rB.ld on a methamphetamine lab.254 HaVlng been - reVJew the process.• . ~ .. ~. . .. 
involved in law enforcement actions involving - . ' 
methamphetamine labs as a civilian. Lt. Col. a. Concerns of cheatzng by Jl'F-6 

· Military documents indicate that a problem ex· 

40 

isted with JTF-6 providing military assistance to 
law enforcement agencies in the absence of a drug 
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nexus.2e1 These concerns apparently bad reached 
the highest levels of the Department of Derense.262 

When JTF-6 proVides military assistance in 
non-counterdrug related Jaw enforcement actions, 
it is referred to as •cheating" because it allows the 
law enforcement agency to obtain military assist­
ance without reimbursing the military. Moreover, 
military assistance ·provided under these cir­
cumstances is funded with money specifically ap­
propriated for counterdrug activities.263 Further­
more, cheating allows JTF-6 to provide military 
assistance to non-counterdrug activities, outside 
the scope of its authorized purpose .... Interviews 
with Defense Department· counterdrug personnel 
revealed that self preservation in part fuels JTF-
6 efforts to secure healthy budget allocations.285 
Documents provided by the Treasury Department 
show that in the months following the tragic end 
of the Branc~ Davidian siege, JTF-6 and Oper­
ation Allianc·e were actively promoting their serv­
ices to ATF. This was occurring even as senior 
military officials expressed concern that ATF mis­
represented the required drug nexus in order to 
obtain military assistance.266 

Assistant Secretary Holmes stated that JTF-6 
does not verify whether a •drug nexus" exists be­
fore providing military assistance because it would 
potentially place the military in a capacity of con­
ducting surveillance and investigations of Amer· 
ican citizens, which is a violation of U.S. Jaw.26T. 
Secretary Holmes' purported concern is not respon­
sive to the issue. Contrary to Mr. Holmes' asser-

41 

tion, the verification ot a drug nexus would not re­
quire military personnel to conduct surveillance of 
or otherwise investigate American c:itizeM. ~~er, 
verification could be accomplished simply by estab­
lishing a standard which requires sufficient docu­
mentation by the law enforcement agency of the 
existence of drug offenses, as opposed to mere 
speculation or suspicion. In addition, .rrF-6's own 
planning guide states that it •reviews and vali· 
dates all requests for support" in conjunction with· 
Operation Alliance, the National Guard, and the 
Regional Logisti~ Office.tea 

b. Special Forcu paper and ATF'1 response 
Further evidence suggesting a serious problem 

in the military's approval of assistance to ATF in 
this case involves ATF agents' reactions to the Bu­
reau's own claim that a methamphetamine lab ex· 
isted in the Branch Davidian residence. 

The alleged presence of a methamphetamine lab 
was the basis for which the Special Forces assist­
ance provided to ATF. After Special Forces legal 
advisors concerns' with the proposed training and 
ATFs alleged drug nexus, Maj. Petree, the Com­
mander of Special Forces Rapid Support Unit 
which was assigned to provide ATF support, or· 
dered two of his Special Forces medics to research 
and write a paper on methamphetamine labs for 
ATF. These Special Forces medics, who are highly 
skilled military personnel with far more advanced 
training than a typical civilian paramedic, spent 3 
to 4 days researching and writing a memorandum 
on methamphetamine labs for ATF. 269 

There is no doubt that a central purpose of the 
memorandum on methamphetamine labs was to 
infonn the ATF of the potential dangers and spe­
cial precautions required when dealing with an ac· 
tive methamphetamine lab. Yet. when Maj. Petree 
presented the paper to ATF agents during the Feb­
ruary 4-5, 1993, ·Houston meeting, these agents 
openly chose to ignore this information in front of 
the· soldiers who prepared the document. In fact. 
the ATF agents' dismissal of such vital informa­
tion was so obvious that these agents' reactions 

. alone made to clear that the ATF believed that a 
methamphetamine lab did not exist.2'70 

Maj. Petree indicated that the purpose of the 
Special Forces paper was for the informational use 
of Special Forces units who might be involved in 
future counterdmg activities involving meth· 
amphetamine labs. Yet, when the subcommittees 
requested a copy of the Special Forces paper dur­
ing a visit by subcommittees' staff to the U.S. Spe­
cial Operations Command in Fort .Bragg, NC, they 

.. JTF-4 Operatloeal Soppon Planai111 Caide .t 18. ~ Doco­
rnent.t 1'08788. 1'08803. 
.. Heuinp Part I al3el. 
-"ltL •' 37Z. MaJ. Peer. W t.o baft bGwD. ar ~ llhoald ba" 

bDwn. .. a eea~or mfH&aJ7 omcer IMipel to nr-e. t.hl& a d:nc Deal 
•• ablolu'-ly......,. Co naa.. _.tuce fraal bil am~ cJaroacla 
.rrF-4. Ev• &boach S&aa'Bct- nu.. .. otu. wric.et~~ otu.. .. .,.. .... 
tical &be ATF ..-&a' 6fnt.er.& ta &he YitaJ paper &ad cJeaty came Co 
the CDDC~.-a &bat. ~-lab 61 DO& ailt. MaJ. p.,. 
iadiea&ecl &hal be 61 aot ... arq ~ r.dioD b7 &be ...... 
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-.. . ~ .. · . 
... ~·-~~~ .. ~~· 
~-•.. :_~--.·.:_._~,;_:.:.~ were mh· tidormed that it eouldcialnot be located.2'71 Sgt.· sition t"rom their chain otedcomlimand at JTF.ed~. wasd 

Fitts a not seen the Spe · Forces paper since a •major incident avoid , ·ves were sav , an 
:~ :~-:--;-- the meeting in Houston and had no idea what be. the law was not violatecf.•H3 
, ~. ~~~~:~. came. ol the Special Forces paper after the meet- JTF-6 and Operation Alliance have the approval 

··=' ,.: : ·-~ =. --- · · · • _ing. If the_ Special Forces paper wa.s written as an authonty for law enforcement requests for military 
.:: ... :·-::.~:=- .- __ infomi-ati~n resource, the S~al Operations Com~· · ass:istance along·; the· Southwest bOrder, which 

;~~~~·.-::.:·:·:~ .. -~ · ·_ : ·:·~--~ Di~d- -woul4 _J?e· .. ~ ~ have.~ copy __ of .this -- ineans-:fheir legal_ advisors_ conduct the legal re. 
-- -::\:·:_.~-=-:=. -~:: _ ~-- · .... paJ)et: on_~le~-;~_.,._:. ,.._; _.,.,. ,,_ __ .. -~- ... -_ -* · .. vievi' of the 'proposed assistance, not Special Oper-
-· ,._>:_.·~-~~ ~ --~:~--- ~- -~-~-- ~;- ::.__ ·:- c~- Two.DEA ·agents were members of the· Op-- · · · ations· ·com'mand I~ a~ Visors at Fort Bragg. 214 

:-.·~·~_ ...... : __ ·-~,:,; __ : ·:. · ---c:.· .. <:·:: .. · · UaiionAJlUJnce board-.. ::·~:·_~:,: .. ,_- ·: :·.·, -.. , Soldiers--artftaught that· they should always go 

-··-,;~;~ ~~:::~> _: -~~:~-~~ .. :.:7·-:.~Military-officers" were= n~t·-aione -m--tb.eir' inaction·~--- .... throUgh their--diai!' 0~ cOmril~d _to address a prob- . 
::-::_.- ---·~:::..:c--:··;_ ~=~::: DOcirni~~ts-·snow·that tWO--ieriior D&\)igents -.were; _____ ~~~~.!?~l.¥._.und~r .sli.'l~!i~t.. orcu~stanc~s are sol-
--_--.:"-:.-... ::.-::::;:;:~;:·;:~· assigned·": tO' .:<>peratio_r(-~lliutce. : ~r -~-~-- ti.r:D~~~--~r:.~~--~~rs _en_~~ed to~~ outside ~elr cham of ~m-. 
--.=. •• ~-~----_- - .·.-:·ATFs requeSt for ~)Jtary assistance at Waeo)&'7t'".~- -~-~~_-_for_· ~~-~"s.~ce. ~e_ ~pec1al Forces soldiers 

· · ·· · Yet. none ·or the ·d~ents · iridicate_ that either of . asstgn~ to &SS18t A"!F_! appru:ently pad been prop-
_ _._.-. ~._-._ these DEA agents express~. co11~m_s_ ·about· the · ___ erl~ trained to~: ~uts1de _thetr chambof comm~d, 

evidence ATF offered in support of its claim of an · · .. which at·· the· time·· was-- at JTF ~. ~ contacting 
active methamphetamine ·lab or· how ATF ·was · their legal advisor at' Special Operations Com· 
planning to take down the alleged methamphet· · mand, (USAFC) if they had concerns about a mis· 

....... ·~ ... 

amine lab. sion. 
These two senior DEA agents were memben of The Special Forces soldiers assigned the ATF 

the Operation Alliance Board which provides the mission did just that. Maj. Ballard, the Special Op-
final approval of military assistance missions to erations Representative at Operation Alliance, eon-
drug Jaw enforcement agencies. It_ is ~onable tO · tacted Mr ~ Crain at SpeciaL Operations Command . 
assume that these DEA agents were aware of·tlie-· .. ·-·cnun-·theii infonned LL Co1. Lindley of their con· 

. . •. 

--safety ~-~--h~th_ risks. a methamphetamine lab: .. _ .. ·cems:· ----~ -- .. · · · 
~- . -_-_. · would pre·sent.·· >-:~ .... ·o· · ·; ·:: __ ~.:: <· ~,,~. · ... ·: _;-:,_.:-.· ... · Ifwas·Lt.~~·Col~·-Lindley- the legal advisor of the 

_ -. ~:~~).:_-:· -~~~ ~·~.,>/;::~~; _1~~-~r~~J:~:-~~~~~::..~:~a~:'~ :~=~~~~:: .· ·: Spec~_a.f_'~~ritiori 'Co_mnu~nd, wh~ rais·ea th~ legal . 
-·.- - · .. _. -"~·" -- ··• · Alt·····-·:- ... :1·-=-- ---··;.;.,~·- ted d:~: • al. concerns .. WJth JTF. _ ~· .. L~. Col. Lindley reee1ved a 

-. .-.: L _,.,._., • ·• ··ation umce .. at- east tw&ee reques· --·a wt1on __ ,_:_·h .. _ .. ~· "1.,.,.,-:::· :::::.= £· ,_.L.· ·c·.-1 Ra. b th JTF . ..·_· .. :, __ .. _ .·. .. .--- _. .. -. .. . '··· ·" .. , . ·. · _ . ___ o~-~ e respo_n~e.uvm _t.._ o •. y urn, e_ . ~. 
_.- -- ~ ;~:-: :~ ·---:_t~~~~ti_<?-~-~-!l:-~T~~--~, n,.~xus, tha~-a._very con--.~- 6 -leg8.J' a·dvisor who_ accuS'ed. him of attempting to 

. · - - _ ten?ous . ~scwston. between }egal :adY!sors--.and-:· --- ·"iuldenrurie" ·and ··Uridereut• JTF-6's mission_lns 
_ = _ ·:·: se_~or ~li~ offiaals of Speoal Operations Com- Lt. Col. Lindley was also told that he could eon-

. m~d S!ld Operation Allian~ h~d taken place, and---- aider Lt. Col --Rayburn'&- words a personal at· 
that tlus was the largest nud m Jaw enforcement · ck 216 8·-ub--- • - u.· ·c 1 Li dl ·" 1 h 
history. Yet, no evidence was presented to show ta · . se~uent to o · n e., steep one 
that these DEA agents expresse~ any concerns conversa.tion WI~ Lt. Col. Raybu~, these concerns 

-~:--that ATF was not addressing the~-~ n~~~Jf.l ~~ir .. _were nus.ed,_Jv~~: ~e Commanding Generals of 
- - --- -- - · · opet~tiofl:.Blplanning; · -~.:.:_:·_-- , . : _ .: .... _,_. ; .. , . ___ ;_·_ .... _,.bot~_ ~l)eo~l_ Ope~tions. Command and JTF-0 and 

· · ..... -- --- .... --: ·" -- ·':- · ·_eveu.~ly __ r~_!l.c.h~,.the_ Office of the Secretary or 
- ::-.·~:~:· ,:- :~: .. ·---.... : -· :.:·~:.-.d~;-~PTJ>ual procu.s did not:_work· ··· ·-:: -· ... _ _ -~ Defense. When the legal concerns were reviewed 

_ Contrary to the teStimo·ny of Assistant ·secreta& · at th~t level, __ the Special_ F~rces training mission 
- --- .. · ' · ;,-.--Holmes and -Maj~- ·General Pickler, · the trait_$g _·· ·: was mo_dified_ to ~om ply with. the law.217 

. · _ ·--~··:mission did not·viotate·tawa because the approvat·--·_-·· __ · · . -- ·.-. · · ~ · :. · 
.:·::-;.: ... --.-~: ...... process worked, but in spite ·of it. Only be~use · .. : ' · ·· ·.-··· ·-- ·--- ----··- - · ·-

:: , .. _, ... _ :•. --- -·· .... certafri'" sOldiers recognized a legal-problem··and· ·.: .. l'n~aadwri~ -~ ·oa &he ~cl ot ~odp A.ltrocat.e 

· ~ :::c · · = - .. =·. baa the· c:O{mij'e 10-·~e--~e issue· iii_. light: of oppo·> .:.-. :::U~~ -~ =.= ~ ~~_:t:,~~~ ~ 
.-_-: .-. . · ... ::~· .. ::- -:~- .. ·;_.~: ,::-:.:-;.-.-~ .: : .. " . . ... :.. .. . . .... . ·- : . ·: :· ; . , .. ·:. . . .. ·-_·-:~:_. .• .. :r.t_._·_·w-~_·. ~~~· ~--. -. .. ,_ -...:·-- a...:..taace .t-.. 

. :·c. . ·:· . ;~;--~~~=; ~:;, __ Ml'l'be ~cit &be=~ rorc.·s;. ....... -.... JcF~cSe ·eon:> AU - - -·~-· ~-~, !~-- -- InUI-T - -.... 

.. _: ·- :. :-~---- _ :-· cleDce to poodaae_cbap. U.t (1) Splldal F01a11 tniDen ·...., &Wdeni __ :: ~-~ =~ :-:~ ~ti~ g;: 
·.~ . ···· :·lD &heir~ ot AT'!_ja lliliac to__... A'f'F toot propr pre- atioa ADiancie-..-....;..;;... &bit.__.. ·I& 11·tblll ee~tt to n'F-8 l'ar-

caatioaa; (2) Special FOft* tniDiin bew tram 'ATr. Cailare 1o fDCIJI'o --- ·--., r-
parat.e pooper JINC&a.l:icma &bat DO .-th•mpbetami~ lab aiatal uc1 foe. .JTF..fJ Opentiacw 8ecdOa .m clewlop a clnft operatioaa crier wi&h 
&h• &hey ~ prooricW milita.,. uNtaoc:e fa a DOD- &he law l!lllfcrcemeot lpDC7. Once the pWurlac tl complete. &he clnA 
coaaterdn:t« law ednaaea& operatiaa. Neither ot u-e potential arder II reiDn2ecl tO Operadoa Alliance l'ar ita appnwaL A ftul appaql 

~ - · · . ~ tl 0.~ to m-«o uc1 •pec:Wly to J410. Petree. who P""' ot the open~U~rw crier II &hen cleCermioecl a& a Jabs& meetiDc ot tbe 
~- ;~·;· .. :::•· < .. -;.:. -:~~~~=::-._&elf -&he~ to ATF·Uil wbo .....,,........., &he~ Fan:m anita heeda ol ~lWei q law ~& ~ the Special 

· :.~·-:-_-·~-~:. ~ --_-_:.-::,·:''-:.:·:whkb &ndoed ATt:f-:_.:~:=- · ~: ... --·:: - ~:.:: ·:.'!.·-~ _ F~_RapW Sa~ __ t1nit &u~_byJTF4and &he tactk:al caoni.u&« 
. ·- ._ ..... ·~· -· ·-.:::- .. -_--.!~~~~~"!!~C. RocbalriDIS·DF.Ii·StaaCo- ---." -l'ar-Operadoaal·IJtiaoce.-~ trom'Ope!atioaal AD~ Speei.al Agent 

... -~ ~' :.·-.!:~~-~~~"2::.: "=':: 'Orilfaacat ~-'_d~~_,...,-~- oa ·u.o Operatiari' ADianar:baaJ'd..,.·.-_-Ecldle ~ ATF Coardiut.ol' rai- OpeN~ ADiuc:e (J.ua.el)' ae. 1990). 
.:'..:: .:=·-:-' · · ·. ---. . H~. Special Apitt n.c.- ._ aa act lene 6*d ·appnmmat.ely Tnu:a:l7. Doc:Dmea&a '1'006663-0066&C . 

~ .·:, _ _-~4:."::"; :;~:;;-_~:, __ ·.:-·,~ l892.~tiJ -~~'=~- JAI!IIII!Y l~j~l.e~bU-:ao-pe-;··:.-"!' ·- .,.M~um·bin.ecn tram 1L CGI. Pbilip lJDCIJef. Dei'IDM Doc-

c;.,::;'·~~;*1\tt~:l\~~$,=F-;,~J£$::;,,,,•-=~~~t::-~~~·J~·--.. ~·· ,_ . 
. _, . ::· ~ ·-·: :----~~9.1~-~ ~~ ftllli'*& 1'ar iDJQrmiatlaa)." · · · · ..r. ear,.. U.S. ~.!W~Me Doeameata D-1155 a& D-1148. . .. . ... 
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e. The worklng group established by the Sec· should alarm any law enrorcement official, because 
retDry of Deferue or the extreme safety and health dangers involved. 

: 'J;'he_. ~natpiece,_~_f ~~de~ee that s~t1~u~ pro~.l~ms .. a. .Dangers as_sociated with methi:Jmphd· 
-· ·- · - · · ··· · · exis~ .1~ ~~--P_~ss by~ _w~J~h the m1l~ta?' provtdes- · · · · -ciniint lab;··=: ... ;:.·. -~-- . 

. . .. '·· , .. _,.,., .. suppo~ ~.civilia.nlaw:en(orcement agenc~es is ~e······_··~ -·-- · - · . ·. ··· ·.. ··:· . 
.. __ -._· ... :~·:. · :· .. · Seeretary~Qf Derense'i' creation of a working· group _ .... ,.:.~·- Hazards wh1cb ~aw ~nfot:ee.ment agents ~ay ~-

-. ----·. .. . . ··-··· • ·' ""th ·.-.·--:. - :· -- .-··:~j,\;:- .. ,_ .. r th. ·- --.-;L. :.~-:::_-pect to. encounter_ m:.cl~des_tine ~~operations m· . _ _ _ __ _ _ _ . . . _ _to reVJew. e process m we WtiAe o e Su,u. 
1 

d . . . h . 
1 

· ·· 1 · d 
_, -~ ... ~-=- . . -· : coniinittees' -announcement -· o( W aeo· _- h~az:jngs .. :. t U e. -exposu-:e -~ ~ -~~C · C em1ca S, exp ~SlVe an 

·. ·- ·.:. :-.:,::. -·: ~:· which...:w:~n~hl.~~--~l~z:e t~e. tnilit.t!)"s-~J~:_in_ th(;o:::~~reactl~e.i:hemleals,_,namm,Ple ~gents, lf!"l~t .and 
~- ~'c ·.-.·_ " ... - ~-·--·. ·..ineiden~ ..... -.~-----~:==~~·.->.~· :··· ._,_._::- ···-- · -.-· .- ·... ·-~--· ··-·-·,:·: corroswe .. agents, bo~by_ traps, and phys1cal tnJury 

~,- -, :_, ~: ;:: . < __ : ~~ _ :~:. Ori" "Mity_Jl~:~. ~~?p; Seeretaey of. ~e:re_nse · W~l~_am . from close :·quarter ~ntact. '_Ylth illegal lab opera. 
~~ .. : ---·~--~------~-"= .. =::.-J;J,~_rf.Y d:lrected·.the·Undei'··Secreta.ry of'Derens4f·v:. tors.~.l..:~: ·.-~ ... :;· ·-·· ·:. :=,·-= .··--.·,_ · ... · 

· --- --~·for·Poliey'to·establish--a~:w-ork.ing group ~-coifduct .. ····· .. :- .nlegal :methamphetamine labs use highly vola-
. .. · _,_ · a comprehe~sive review or the current systerif by·:' ·tile ·chemicals during~the production process. Not· 

which-· Defense · ·Department evaluates · and -re- -.- withstanding·- the booby- traps law enrorcement 
sponds to requests (or· assistance irutiated by out- · agents frequently encounter at methamphetamine 

. iide agencies.•2'78 Perry acknowledged in his ... labs, the·firing or a single bullet, sparks from tum· 
memorandum that, "several recent events suggest ing off and/or. on light !lwitches, nash lights, or 
that the process by which Derense Department even a flash from a typical photography flashbulb 
evaluates and approves outside requests for assist· can easily trigger an instantaneous explosion. 
ance may be Jess than adequate" and that •there Toxic vapors produced during chemical reactions 
are. indi~ations that ~erense Department~~ ~i~ity can penneate a building's structure and buildings 

_ -~--r.esp~n-~ -~~~f.hly .. •s ~n~bered ~ co~fl1ctmg with poor ·ventilation and temperature controls 
-- - - ' ........ __ · · ·directtve·s~·-mwtiple entry po1nts and :diverse-fund_.:. ·. · Oike the. Davidians' residence) "add to the poten· 

... :· :~~- .· .. ~ ~. · .. : .. . i~g a~~-()-~ti~~·~_2"_"::_:· .. __ : · ': .-,:. ·:·.. .. · ··· · . tiat'-for. fire, explosion, and human exposure."282 

.. -.-. :-. ·:· · .. :· ._, .. ·:··_;_·:·;. :·.>-."_._:·~~;-. :~~i:·:f~-~~-~'!'~§~n~-~~uo ~~1·!:~, ,,;,~~;~,: --~:~;_:·_- ~~~1~~\~n~~~o~tc~:~~s!~~~~ ~~~~~: 
.· " . . . . . . . .. ·: ·. ~. ~p~~n~ed- ·e~lie~_,· in order. t:o• receive ·military- : ;' ... he.ad :or a pin~. could kilr a room full or people.~ -

, __ , .. -.. :·.·--· ...... : .. ·~-:--~~~~stance at:-_W~ fi:"~m.the mthtary counte~T,Ug::· .. : ~- .Qther·health concerns are no less serious. In the 
· · .. ·:·,~ . .. : .. ,.:--. :: __ ; _: uruts, .. ~TF_ .was·- ~qwred .J~:. h._ave: .a. drug:_.!l~XUS~·.= _._··absence ~o(·pioper·~ safety- precautions and. cleanup 

. _,_ . . .. _ ·, . -The eXtstence o£ a· drug nexus also .. ~ould have al· , · d . J fl t ts ·" · 
·' · · · · lowed ATF. to receive that military assistance proee ~re:s, . aw_ en ~rce~~J1. agen may expen· 

without. being required to reimburse the military .. enee bOth acute and c~romc adverse health effects 
- · Cor the cost or the training; ATFs allegation that· as a re~u!~. C?f ex_po~_':lr~ ~ solvents, re~ents, pre-

a drug nexus existed at the Davidians' residence cursors, by-products, ~d drug products tmprop~rly 
· · raised two concerns: (1) whether ATF used this al- used or ge.n~ated ~unng ~e manufacture of llle· 

., ·Jeged drug nexus as a subterfuge in order-:to ob- gal dru~. . .. Toxtc matenals pr~uced at these 
. tairt free military assistance f'rom specially .trained . ..l~bs .. ca~ _mJu~e ~h~ lungs or the skm, damage ~ 

Special Forces counterdrug units; and (2) as sum_~'··--.; hve~, k1d~eys, even the c~ntral nervous sys~m . 
. ing .. A.T_F actually. believed a drug nexus existed, ·_·Some toxms have. be~tt hnked to malformatton or_ 

· .. whe~e~·ATF "ensured-that its agents were aware .... embryo~, oth.er genetic .. damage, cancers, and re--
.. Of tne extreme health and . sa(ety hazards that ·a prod~C~lVe (aJlure. 286 · · - · · · 

_ ·- .. :. · .. methamphetamine I~ _presents, and were properly In :.d~tennining appropri.ate satetr and health 
~- ··-~ _ •. · :-_ ·_: ]~ne~ _f!lld eQuipped _to address those hilzards. . ·· · pre~_utlons, the s~omm1tt.ees relied on· stand· 

-· - · ·.- · ·-· · ·-·- ,-_. ···.· ... -:. ·-.-~:: . ., .. -: · · -. - :.: .... : :ards set rorth by the Drug Enrorcement Adminis· 
- · ·-. 1. Methamphet4mlne_lab_".!Jllones .. ~_::_ .. -.:.--:~ -~·:;:· :.:::.-·tration (DEA). DEA.ha_s p_rimary jurisdiction over 

AT~-all~ged ~ the DUbtar>: that 1~ had e!Jdenee . -investigations of clandestine drug labs. As the lead 
. . --~ran-- active me~~un~heta!Dme Jab~· o~ 'the prem•._.,. --Federal .agency, it has esWllished procedures that 

... --· . _ .. tses- o! th~ • D~VIdians rest.denee. Unlike. ~eneral DEA agents must follow during the investigation 
narcotics SeiZures, clandestine labs;- by their very ~ and seizure or drug Jabs 28'7 Moreover this ap-. 
n.ature, •present a unique series o! hazards and proach by DEA has been ·a model (or State and 
nsks to Jaw enforcement personnel. 280 Therefore, JocaJ agencies in developing their own clandestine 
an allegation or an active methamphetamine Jab drug lab programs.288 . 

.. 

a..ponee &.o au.t.tioe Dr,. Labora&oriel HSep&.ember t•). .. ,4:.. · · ·- · · · · '· · -~ -
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b. Certification/trcWting requirements for assessments, processing, exit, and (ollow-up.298 Be· 
deconstruction of methamphetamine cause ATF entered the Branch Davidian residence, 
labs only the first two steps will be discussed in detail. 

. ~w enfor:c~ment_--personnel engaged in the- in-- In the planning stage, the case agents must first 
··'··- · ·· · . ·vestigation and seizures of clandestine· drug labs asse~s of the hazards _likely to be encountered and 
. _ _ _ _ . should have. speci~lized training in the invesiiga- determine who. needs to be notified before the raid 

. : ___ _ _ ~- tion of·si~~ labs! j~ ·appropriate health and safety (i.e~~= police, fi~e ~departme!lt•. hospitals, hazar~ous 
... · · ·· "'· , . ·,.. . _ :;_ .. ,; Pt~.dures, .~d .~n the use of the protective equip· . was.~ .. contractors.) 291 Ttus mcludes a detennma· 
:-~~·:'-·:..· __ . ''·:-=·- ·::-- ·: .. : .. ment.289-· . ~-,. . = •. :, . . :·· . . _. __ ., •.. ::..7-.:.i.~-~~-:-: · ~ .. ::··: ... :: · tion of· what .chemicals the agents might encoun­
·'· ~--~- ~-:··=-:-·:: .::~ _ _.:-;· ·.'f)l~:P.%)·eqwre._all or its .. penon.riel:.tO com---. .-=·.ter. ·Once. the· &Ssessment is complete, certified 
· -~· · · ·:~ -···:._._;=_": _':~:~pl.e~:a ::~o.un~~-,oii"'-Clandeatine m~th~phetamine teams, including a forensic_ chemist and site safety 

.......... "labs :ana 'be certified prior to ever participating in·i ~ agent. trained c·and ·-'equipped with the requisite . 
=-- -""·--·. a methamphetamine lab.raicL290 Simply stated, n0 --.. ': safety;·equi_pmE!~t;·:_anrassigned. 

__ ___ DEA·- agent ··may· participate in "take downs~- .. ~or· . .- .. · ·:~The- second· stage is·_ the initial entry to appre· 
methamphetamine·· ·labs· without --·proper ~certifi-· ·. bend and remove· the ·operators and to secure the 

·· cation. Annual recertification also is required. In lab. Typically in methamphetamine lab operations, 
...... adclltion, DEA provides seminars on clandestine· Jaw enforcement agents will attempt to arrest the 
- methamphetamine labs throughout the Nation to · suspects away from the premises to avoid many of 

other local, State, and Federal law enforcement · the aforementioned dangers. This is usually ac· 
personnel. complished through surveilla~ce and investigative 

DEA agents are also required to receive a "base- techniques which provide law enforcement agents 
line medical screening, including an occupational/ with sufficient infonnation to determine the lab's 

. . .. . medical history, a complete physical examination · exact location, what chemicals are being used, the 
· · - --~ ·.- --~·a blood chemistry screen, pulmonary function and stage of the ·production process and when the sus· 

. ... .. __ _ ___ spirometry. testing,-- and .. a stress-treadmill · test"-·:_·-· pects will-leave the premises . 
. ,,·-.,·:-· ·.~,,.;:.; .. : ,.· ... ~n<).f)o._~signment.".2:91 Agents:·hav.e .regular fol~.' ..... :If_the lab operators c~not be apprehended away 

· · · ~ -- · ·· .· :.~ .. -. -.~-~-:' l~w·urt~ medical ~valuations anttf·beC&use··:of· 'th~: .'>.from. the.· premis~s. tJ)en the_ ipiti_~l entry. takes 
.. :: .. ,._: -;·.·.>:·:~:-::.·.: : .. -~sks -assoCiated With long_~tenn -eip()sure, teglllarly :.:·.-place. •DEA protocol cans· for the initial entry 

.:.~_·.:c~:~:~:t\_·:·?:~>::::·:-:)~~~ rQ,~~:~t9JJ~c.~f the.J(lar,tdestiJl,e_~~~.~ .. P.rogr.a.~•,:·, .... : :. ~-a'!'·· t9 e11Jploy b~lli~tic ,P.rotection equipment and 
·:::··. ···. :· , . ..~: .. __ - _·· ... · ~~ m_1tiat entry, .te~m.-, also must.._have and be fire retardant .. cloth mg .. 298 Other safety proce· 
·· ___ · · -~~·-,_·?:~. ::·.··<.tr~~~4)f.!_·~~~~~~- ot~appro~riate monj,~_ljng .in~ _.. d~r..~~j~clude ~voiding ~~e use of shotguns or di· 

· · · strumentation, · such. as .. 81r-samplin·g'- pumps,·- · verstonary .de_VIce~ such as flash bangs, smoke, or 
. . explosimeters, o~ygen meters, organic-vapor ana- tear gas· canisters which ·can ignite fumes.~ Addi· 
· · ·. lyzers-: .. ·~--that are _u5ed to .determine ·the lower ·· ~ionally, agents should avoid turning light elec· 

explosive limit and the coneentratioif of organic va~· . trica] switches on· or'off';·use only explosion-proof 
pors in the laboratOry atmosphere.• 292 All of the flashlights, and use electronic strobes, not flash· 
monitoring devices must be •designed to suppress bulbs. 300 Once the premises are secu·re and every· 

. ..... . .·.~parks" ~a~ .,~~Y. ~~~ -~-d cause fires or explo~. --~ne is evacuated,.- the. as~es~ment step begins. 
· · · · ·· ' .. _, · .S..1~~s~~3 __ :: . . · .. ·. ---.·.. .. · "·=:;-- =:-- -· · ..... d .. l)id,:!-.t:F ·Odifress the extreme safety and 

.. ..". ., . . ~- .-~~- 'J'~ Sptc'fai' preeauliOM TeQUVed ~h~i;-law . : . lu!alth concerns a methamphetamine\ lab 
~- = .. · _ .. ·enforce~en.t actions . involv-e a . meth· . ... , .. ~·: :.-:.-.':·.·~-_-pre_sents_. in .. it$ raid on the Branch 

...... · .: __ .... .... ·: .. ' ... _ --- amphetamine:l(Jb · ~,. ·:~~~:: ----~ ···: · · -· .. ··. -~·-· _____ Dcividi(J.TJ res.i4~~ce1 
___ --_-- After ~ investigation bas gathered suffici~~t · ·.·:·in .. 1990, Stephen E. Higgins,301 the Director of 

._,._... _. · ___ · _pro~le caus~ to establish that a drug lab is oper- - · the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms, tes· 
, ~ -- .· -~ting on a pre~ises, DEA agents ._obtain. a search·: __ tifjed before. the Subcommittee on the Treasury, 

. · . :·· ·.:~warrant. Agents may reciuest in the .warrant the ·· Postal Service,. and ~neral Government Appro­
------,~- ..• uthqri~-~~-d~stroy any .. haurdous.bulk.cheiriicals .::·_priations. of the Committee on Appropriations. In 

· and equipment.294 A forensic chemist· is· consulted :: ... wdtten .responses to questions from subcommittee 
.. prior to ·and during the seizure.~. Once ... the" war~--- ·members, Higgins acknowledged: 

rant is obtained, the case agents begin a six step .. · · - ·· - .. 
process for conducting the seizure: planning, entry, .. ,tL 

.,-In .Wng • c1andesc.ine dTvc laboratory, &he law enrcmemen' 
.. .,.,-,_ ... .__;.: .... __ . . . agency may encoDn&er materia1a U\al Lechnic:a11y qualiry •• halanfow 
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[W]e [at the ATFJ are aware or the con· and the con-centration or vapors in the atmosphere, 
siderable hazards presented by the care- or explosion proof flashlights . 

. __ .- . Jess storage of" chemicals and the sensitiv· ·· ·. Clearly, AT'f disregarded th_e safety or its agents 
· :: ···: · .''''"' · ·_· __ :· · :· ·iti···or· the_· ·explosive mixtures at ··these·':'' ~- .· :··-and .. ~n.n.ocen_t -.~viljan~~ Ag~n.cies involved in clan· 

·. .:. .. ·. - · (clandestine ·methamphetamine] ·;,labors· des.tioe Jab·. openitions fall. _llllder OSHA regula-
. _-.-_ -·· __ ;:.-= :-:-. :- .. to·nes:·'"-Iri an eft"oit to ensure a safe and -·.. ~tions. requiring ~e follow.i.ng actions by employ· 

.· _ :~:~~--~~. ~·' . ::·;_)h~~o~-i~_yesii~ti~~~ AT_F has proposed -~·. ·_ e_rs: 306
" -· ... · . . .• .• : . ·. -~:· ... 

. .... ··,-::· ... ~~~,."~ ~=~ .. :-::~·-specific;· ... ·sp~i~li.z~·.::training- ·ror ··select --·~, ..... :_7: ·~:.:· .. •,.~ c.~~ITIUB~~_ati~n-.. ~:.:~:mployees of" cl~~· un· 
... _ .---~·/: -: -.>: ·. ~- :.~ATF~-p~~,ri~l#~·"readiJy·-identify-·narcot-: .. : .: ·;.~_:;:·:· .. __ :_·. ~m~~~~~ W.~_mmgs,, ti,~ weJ1 as proVJslon ~( 
-. "--~ . -~--:: ~ :- ... ·, ics . ..Jaboratories ·arid .. to· recogniztf ... certain· ; :: .-··",;__ .< : -~d~a~O~-~:J:!t:Ogram.~ O_'f!_~e hazards of cheml• 

·:·_ --~=·=-~·-_;_<~_~,,~_:~,;~ .. :~:~~~;~~t~~e-~~~~.sJ(·:~~-~~a~- -.~~~.:.~.e ... :-~ ·~. _, __ :,.' ~ ::: -.~-:r-~ri~l~f·&u--~~pl~jees.· w~o ·may be ex-
. · · _ ... ·· · ·: · ... · ---· ·- ...... --···'· .. '· --: ... :··..: ·· · · . . . posed to haZardous substances tn how to rec-

!liven that !Iiggins was. st!ll the ATF Dire~r d'!r~ ...... _ ognize_ -~d handle safe~ and health haza~s 
1ng the penod when· DaVJd .. Koresh.. was bemg tn· at laboratol')' ... sites, in the use of" protective 
vestigated, when· the Wa_co raid took place _and .. equipment, and in safe· work practices." Train-

.. during the post-raid investigation, it is reasonable . . . ing must meet OSHA standards. 
to conclude ATF was aware of" the safety and • Examining and monitoring the health of all 
health ha.za.rds presented by methamphetamine employees exposed to hazardous substances 
labs. Furthermore, since the case had the "highest including documentation of any exposure. 
interest or BATF Washington and had been ap- • Provide information to employees regarding 
proved at that level," 303 ATF headquarters was any hazardous conditions in their work en vi· 
_aware of ~e _alleged presence of"-~-- rn.~tha~phet- · ~pment.s. . . . 

- · · ........... :.alllin-e··tM>:'~; ,·;_.;>2 "-·-•c:=.~ ~=": ; •. _ .•.. :-'·-:·.- .. -' --.:-~;-.:.: .. ._ __ ._ .. When .... (lg~i:l~.i~~~ran···tq_~a~ere to these require-
. .. ·: Even so,·' ili .. :-respo~·se to·'the subcommittees··. tn:L.~ ~·)ne.~Ui~ ~supe·rvi~~rs_ ean'"be 'held strictly and sever· 

: -~')i\liri~~~:: -~:11~-.:~!·f'. ac.~<?.wledged ~-~at: J!q. ~-· ~Tf :~.:~ ~~~~ Jj~bJ~ fQr.:.~.it~~~~s · .i.~~olving ·employ~ expo-
.. : ··!·' .· ·:,_-agent w~o··-~a~::r;>r.es~~t_ori. F~brua'Y:~2~;)~~~~- .'.-:··~···_;;·~-:::·~~r~_toh_azardous '~~~~sand~~ ·"_!sultlng ad· 

_, . . ,._;~;.,.; · :: . .:: :·hAd. rece~y~(tf?·~~fi~~ .. ,~P~lahzed trmmng 1n mve~- -. '· .ve_rse.,hea1~. effects. -. ..:; .... 
. :~- _=;· ---~ ~ ;:_;_._:_:3: : .· ~ ·.tigi,tingi pie~~~-P~~tam~_~e. ~~ratories.-. ~ Jn: .re;. ... : •. 2. · ·-Euidence-·purpottfng to ·show tM alleged drug 

. _ .. -~ _,."', , .. _:: .~~~rig: ;Vid~otapes_ of~~~ Fort Hood- trairiing,-·s~:o-- -nex~:. -.·:_..- : . . -~-- · . , : · -. · - : ·. . . 
-- ... ·· ... -·· · · committee investi."gator-~J'also found no. discti.ssion-·or· '- .... - .. ~ ·· ... ~~ .:.L··B· ·" .,_It' t- -~· nt · · · .. · · . · · · · · a. Mar" reau s s a eme 

. . . the potential safety and health hazards that the . . . . . 
·:suspected· active methamphetamine lab would . ~o1':1~~4~n~11y,. after r_e~~atedly bemg tnfo~ed 

present. ·:In other words, ATF agents participating by mJl.tary. offietals. of tfie d~. nexus reqwre-
in the raid had little or no notice or the dangers ments, Aguilera recesved a fac~tm1le on J?ecem~r 
they might have forced in .the active·methamphet·. _1_6, 19~2, _from Mark Breault m Aus~raha, which 

mine lab - .... · :· · · · · · · .. ,_: · . .:·: .. _ ~- . ~ ~c~~rdi(l~ ~ ATF. "su~est[ed] the eXIstence of an 
a s. · · · ~- · · · ~ - " ·, • . .. . . · tlhett. me,thamphetamme laboratory at the Branch 

.. From n~ero_~s. .. b.f.1efi~gs. and. a z:e.~ew of Vtdeo. ... Pavidian . _compound. • 308. Mr. Breault's facsimile 
.. tape shot .on.-~e .. day of" the.-r~d, Jt apl?ea.rs ~at __ · . re1ays:.that' upon taking ·.;ver the Mount Cannel 
~TF agents did possess ba1li~tic protection ·eqwp- · · (Residence of the Branc:h Davidians) property from 

.. · ... m~nt and fire retar:dant. clothmg. ~TF agents also ... · --(korge··Roden, the fonner -Branch Davidian leader, 
· · . . ~ssessed regular flashltghts and. '!gular camera~.-- . · __ KOresh ·. found methamphetamine Jab equipment 

_. .. ·-::_.,. -.. ~_ .. }t.e.~ -~:h. _ph~tograp~y)~ ·:·abo~-~ 8J!d flash· and .. recipes• and caJl~d the Sheriffs Department 
. _ _.. · :·: _ . ~--b~gs_._ .. .- ~~. of whtch .. eould .t~~er ·· l~s_tanta· ..... :.-.to ~urn. ove_~ the ~atenals_. 309 It had been long ru· 

___ . · _ · · neous explos1ons 1r. used· m the V1(!ntty of a meth- mored that .. an· individual who used to rent from 
. _ ·--~"-· :~·:·--~--~:~··:·.:_·ll~~~etal!l!.~~_}~~· Nor i•--~~re an~ eviden~.~ ~at;·:. ··Mr. Roden was into drugs but he had later gone 

----- .. - - · · · any ATF agents -possessed appropnate mon1tonng~~- ..... tc). prisori.s1~ This individ~l was no longer on the 
·equipment· to determine the lower explosive limit prope:r.t)' when Koresh toOk over.su 
--·-- - .. · · · --- Mr. Breault's facsimile to Special Agent Aguilera 
•H~ '-/orw 11w Suhcomml#H • ~. PuiDl Strvfct. 11114 also indicated that although Koresh did call the 

. .... ,_ _ _: .·, , ,~~~;£~7~!~:r.::::; :;:_ _:!';~~;el ~~Sa:;;::"!utan~ th~h~~!:r:~~~di~ 

..• i,i~~i~~!llltlit~l~~~~i-~;~3 .. 
----- -... -~-~~---. -.-.. chieeor SpedaJ Operatioel bi...- • u.e .. ot "-~a.,.. clari•·'_·-~-·~-,e···s•).~'J'iilU- -· ~~a-'1'00008912.· . . 

1M raicl. [Requell &o aee tJMb a... claled Febnaay S, ltsa:J, TreMury· .,.: · ---·•,.14. _ :' ·, . ~- .· :.:.-:-:·-art .. _, -~ . ·- · - · · · 
Docwnenta OOS:ZlJ-1.}.. IU/4. . 
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vidual pre~nt at the residenCe when the Sheriff's should have raised questions about Mr. B~eault's · 
Department visited said she did not personally ob- intentions and credibility to the ATF agents. 
serve Koresh tum the lab equipment over to the Lt. Robert A. Sobozienski, a New York City Po-
Sheriff's Departm_ent. ~~~_Mr. Breault also stated in lice officer who acted as an expert consultant to 

· ·· ·· ,. · his facsimile that one night in 1989, .. :Kores~ ~.was . :·the Treasury Department's Waco Review Team, 
__ ·;::: ·.:., .... __ -·. ·talki.rig_.~u~ tfamcking drugS ~'-:~-~ay_of~si~g- _-.-summarized. the -problem with _the. informati~n 

· ~-' ~ .;·······:·--:~ .. · .. money.31~ __ He [Koresh] seemed v~ry 1n~restecj m_ · :· Breault proVJded when he wrote 1n h1s Waco Ratd 
·- .. -.- -- · · --~:-_- --· --~-·-:ge-tting m(iriey .through--.. this .me~s~~-~~:' However,. · Asse·ssment, -•Former .; cult members were inter· 
·:~_'-:- ··:·-~~~~:~"- ~.-:·, :. ··-~--~.:~r •. Br~~ult: als~,- ·admits in h.i~.Jacsimil~: .. :.tha.~~-he-:;,~.viewed and, apparently much, if not all of the!r · 

.. ;.~-:::: .- .. _:·:.-~.· ·., "O..C' :~wu the only ex~member who-~was pre$ent fo.r_this .... statements are:reported'to be facts. No thought 15 
·:_· ·:·. -·~ --~--- -: ·· ... _ · ~teiJtEm~31~ Mr.- Br~ault g~i~_on_ to say in:.the·· ... :given to the idea·that-ihese ex·c:ult members had 
· · · · ·:--· .· ~ · .. · · · ·· .~e .. cJ~ment that :the bwldhtg Jn..· which he im~. . · been .. away frOm the· residence for some time, or tD 

. '-~· .. ~ .. ,-·. .. plie~ .th._.:clrug lab equipment .:was·J~~cLbumed · :.::· the· indi\iidual·biases, ·or if they had an ax to grind 
. ·.. --down Jn Spring 1990.318 Lt. Col. Gen.- Fielder:. te~~i-_-: :·.·:.With· present CUlt members. • 311J 

·· · fied before the subcommittees that this· infonna- .. · - ATF agents· did check With the McLennan Coun­
tion from Mr. Breault · regarcJi11g a. uiethamphet- . ty- Sheriff's ·Department· personnel who acknowl­
amine lab also was told to the military by ATF.317 ... edged Koresh's request but -round no record• of' 

. However, military doru.ments indicate . that ATF.. the removal· of methamphetamine lab equip-
was conveying to the military the presence or an ment.320 However, Joyce Sparks 321 states in writ· 
active methamphetami~e 1~.~18 • ten testimony, that during her child protective 
. There !"~~ at least s1.x s1gntficant problems WJth services investigation in 1992 she checked with. the 
1ts . C!'edtb1bty as . e!ldence that the ~ranch Sheriffs Department and was told that ·Depart· 
D~vtdian_s were o~rati~g a methamphe~mme lab ment personnel did receive drug evidence from 

.. .... .. . pnor ~ ATF:s: r8ld. Fir.st. the all~t1ons w~re ·. ·_ :David Koresb.322 During her interviews with him, 
. --- . very·sf:ale--by ~~~ ~dards. -~TF· r~_e1_ve~·-_~e ~~- .. :Koresh told_h~r that he-had given the Sheriff's De­
· .. ·:. fonnatlon·~more ._~al_l_ •. ~.: years_· ~r the meth-_· ... partment j~formation,·pictures. and drug evidence 

··L .. ~.:~_:_::~_:_:~;--~· ~,~:f_. ~J;J~e~!l_.le_·~~;.·~-~P!Dent.:~a&..:-.f~~~'-:·'¥1~.·-~~ .. , ,;_~_ut:.~o.thipg --~-~d __ ,ever,_~£~~e" of it.323 Koresh com·. 
-:: c.::_:· : · .... ·- ~henffs .. Pepar:tment __ vts•fed.th~-p~elll!ses to.mves- -:~. plained· in_.:_ his .interviews with Sparks that the 

_____ , tiga~ the ~l~m .. _:~con_d, 1t Js:: .. ~~spU:t:ed t~~~: ·Sheriffs .Department --.was aware of the illegal 
..... ::: ;~: :::~- ~}~~- :;: ; ~- : .. \:~, .Kore.sh. foun:ci-.--t~e . m~~a,mphe~~-~n·~- ·~1~ ~-~.,~!P:o:.: .-·: -·inetha~phetamine. lab. ~2~ · 

·-' · .. -~>>."ment and ~or~sh h1ms~tr·c_al'ed the SheJ?~.to p1ck __ · ~----· The.:disp9sal.of..methamphetamine lab equip-
up.the eqw.pme~L-'~'Iurd; the- pe~~~--ru~ored_to·.· ... iiient--iu1d,_che-micals presents great risk and sig· · 
have bee!' mvo!ved m drugs w~ an· occupant of· ... nificant proplems. ·As a matter of routine, DEA 

. the prem1se_s pnor to Kor~~h taking over, and su~ . hires certified State and local chemical disposal 
sequently was sent to pnson. Fourth, the former companies to: remove the lab equipment and 
lea~er, Mr. ~en, n~t .Koresh, was ~spected of chemicals for proper disposal under EPA guide-
ha~ng been mvolved m lllegal drugs. F1fth, the a] •. _. lines.32S Because the cleanup costs can easily total 

.. · .. · _-leged -~tate_~ent by Koresh ~bout· d~. co~ld no~ .. $20,000, or significantly more, depending on the 
. . ... ...... .. -. be v~_nfi~ -l~depen~ently;· SIXth, the -bwld!ng Mr._--, size and condition of the lab site, local law enforce-

.. B.z:ault 1mphes house~_ the mef:ba~phe~~nne _rna- .... " ment .officials. sometimes choose not to remove the 
· t_e~als burned down· m· -~~90, 3-~~~~rs ·])ef.o.re .. th~ . · lab equipment: and ·ch~emicals or not to follow the 
,~d. . · . . : ·• • ·. • •. ····proper·tmvironmental.guide)ines for removal in an 
.. Perh.aps the m~st ~s~bmg-fact ~ut th•s 1-~~:: effort to ·avoid-the legal~ liabilities and costs associ-

. · formatio~, how~~er, J_s th~t all of _this drug nex~ ated with such labs.328 · 
.... mfonnatlon. ongmated wtth Mr. Breault, Jl_ dts~ ..... _ .. _ . .. . .. ... . . 

..... _______ . ·. -~ gniiltJed .. fonner~:~mem~r~'who __ le~.--th!-~-~~~~P.!~--- .-,::·:-~'!.w.at~· A~-~~-. neal b7 LL &ben A. Sobodena'ki. ~Doe-
. . .. ·-.:~·'·:-=-: · .. 198~. 'rb_be.fact.thh~calt-Mrda. B=lt mamtained tan exd• · -=-=~~lReportal 212 • . ~:- -__ _.._, . : ... · ... .:~tenSJVe ·. tograp 1 . · .. · . se.·:.._!)O~~-p~~~~ .... ,a.n ... : ..... ·.I!I~Ma. SpUta wu an tnveoeiptione auperrilor ror &he Taa. Depa1. 
. ... ·, '~- .. '.-.---. .... :.~·-·former. members ·and was -workirig~ W1th·.:.a $elf-:pro-,;. .lllef\,_ol' Pro&ective a.ncl ~lat«.Y Servica. Children'• Pnuctive ~-

'"laim.;;...a .. ~nlt.buster o:ck ·Ross in and· of itself ' ice, who wu interviewed repeat.edly·by A'IV. . . "" cu .,,... ~ - -Prepared , .. Lement ol' Joyce Spafb. See Appendix. ITM Appenlti:l 
.. ~liahed aepera\ely.) 

~~ ~ . . 
u. D&ltL .. 

:!1~ -Tbe hiri• ol' Stale and local chendc:al com.-nfea •• &be Nall fl 
1U ltl. leplation whids ~ the problem ol' DEA diapaai. ol' &he msb-

·'*~~-~:;.;~;p,~%E~if~$iW*=Si~~i.~~f~~~-=~j~l71~=~;; 
· ·· ··· - "' ; · can« cbeinbJa.•A· h. are &be Februat7'17/IISJ3~ -~tiOM anter; ·-~-. · .. ~ Daridia.n. ~ ~ reft_ll!)ve methamphetamine W. a~~ll:riall 

. ·- -· .... &be Febnwy 2, 1893,lee.&er trona Operation ~-~Jbe ~j!i~L -;.,~;a.'- ..... Kareah~ -~l tn: 1989, lhere ... ..0 'iecrri or &be adaal re-
.· . . . _ . . GeaenJ ol' the Ta.M Na~t GuN. cau.nc.:u·~-~~;~!l.r~nr -~ '~-~~ oe: t.be~ne--1ab ma~ Howevet", ~ coalcllle . 

'-~ . .. .. : ~ · :-·::::"·:: .. ~:~ · did ATF .had reqaea&el! Na~Qurd ~~ ~ ~n.- a F~.;; ·, ,. ~- reuon1 why no aach reari cms.ed fran a Sherift'a caJ1 4 · ·· 
·-.:::'\":.-~_:;;; .. :,~-·-'::: .. :.:..iirds~t.arrant~-&q·_.• .. ~,.,..,~tiiin~..b.elf"ti!tJ~-·~-:~:-,...,. .. ~:-•.nc~.triu-atrurther:ericSenceot&bemet~wn~~ 

-· ·· - · · --- .:, ... ·· -~~--- prOIIudftl ~-··,.,_.a.y ~ .. ~)!.. &-. all)o ,·,. _.Gtinaed: ue or.,... tta· continual ~&.ee there ia tit&Je pnba~ 
-·--~--~~-.·-~2. ~-.. ---:. DeltMe Docwnen&a D-681. :-· - · - ~==~~ ftl•&o Mr. BJWull .. infbnnation. Na&hcr AWe eeardl...,..,.lear'itl 
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b. ThiNailMtJl Crimt ~nter check methamphetamine lab would be a last resort and 
AJ mentioned earlier, after a December 17, . only as "icing on the cake• under that cir· 

1992, meeting of SAC Chojnacki, Aguilera and Lt. eumstance. 
Col. Walker in which Lt. Cot Walker ~nfom1ed .. the. . . _d. The DEA lab team 

.··c::· .-"'_.:.·,-- ...;_ ·.-~ :ATF:--~~nts that·ATF. eould receive no~:reimburs· __ .. _- ·Only-when General' Pickler·of cTJ:'F-6 continued 
_ .___ .-- _ -~b1e mdttary s_up,port if' a d~ nexus eXJsted, ~TF _ .to .request additional ~vidence of a methamphet· 

_ . ..--->~:~'-~-- :::. )n~l~ig~n·ee-- '~search~Spec1abs~ ~-~~Y. _ Be~terton- ~-· :·' ami'ne 'lab, did ATF indicate it i~tended to include 
. _<~f.---.~- - ~ --.- ~- - .was-~~ ins~eted_ ~-::to : search cnmtn_ll) .t:~cords -0~ _ .. : a lab .. tea in -from the · DEA in the operation. 335 . 

:- ~-_-'-:~~-·::·=~:~_.:.::·.::' . .;;~a~c:!i_liris_:_ ~~ ·identify-.p~or_ .drug off~n.se~·327 - IJ.o..v_~~ ·- · .. Tre~.s~_cy doeuii}ents indicate' that two DEA offi-
. -~--- ---"'···_\-~ .ever~- when-·ATF_.·Speoa1 Agent Pal~ __ ~as ·_·mter·· _ clals ·were at 'the· :command "'nst at the Texas 
· ~--- _ .. ·. ~.-·::·'Viewed· by Treasu':Y- .Agents: d~ring:·.~~ fo_st-~~co::-~ ···suite _Technical Institute on ttlC: ·day of. the raid; 

.. :: • __ ~--- =·· ;:. - _ · --l"eview,_::'; he:~· adm1tted · that; only ___ · one_ Branch · ·, but" ATF ·declined the .DEA offer ·or direct assist· 
-~---~ ~~~:~~::~.: ~~~-~-~---~ . .pari~~ ha~ ·a-· prior drog ~.l:l_yictioi:l~-~28.'~ ~-c:~~·~:-~.7.--_-.~-.; · = :.·. =ance· Croom _a .. DEA Clandestine Certified Laboratory 

-- ,, ··--· --- , · · ~ .c:F&ii.i&()I~Bjiii __ , __ . ~ ~-,-:- ,_,._ ·.- · ·:: _-_: -~,: -_ · -~~·- ~- .: _ ~ea!D~338 Such ~{lab te~m i~ sped ally trained ~d 
. Treasury Dep~ent documents provided to the. certdied_ to _"take down active meth~~phetaml!le 

·subcommittees indicate that at the request or ATF, · labs. These tea'!ls also ~aye the sp;ctahzed eqwp. 
Forward Looking Infrared Radar {FLIR) imaging ment and. tactical tra.J_nmg requ1red for meth-
was taken on January 6, 1993, by the Texas Na· amphetamme lab operations. 
tionaJ Guard Counterdrug unit in a National e. The precursor chemicals used to prodUCJ! 
Guard eounterdrug aircraft. Eugene Trevino, a methamphetamine 
Texas National Guard airman aboard the aircraft., There are numerous methods to produce meth-
oft"ered an uritJff~efal interpretati?n o~ the FIJR amphetamine. However, certain chemicals re--

.: photos to .th.e Aust~ A_~_ ag~!'ts ~:'1. ":h1ch he stat· . quired in the synthetic process are themselves in· 
·- :"--_::::.c-~ :-· -"'eel· that- the:; "hot ~po~~_.in~id~ the: .. ~s1de.nce ~COU:~d_ ~-~- · ~orpora~d_· intcf'the molecule of the target drug (in 

-- ~ -~ .. -: ;·-be indicati.ve Q(~~ methampheta~in~_ Iab.'" 3~ It.ui_-. • this·-::case methamphetamine).33T These chemicals 
.. -.:-_--:::'.:·_unclear_ whethe~~:~'fF .. ~~~ts s~li~~d -fr~~~o:~---_ -~ .·a~---f.~(~rn.d to ·as-'.precursor chemicals and their 

--- '_. ~ '· · personal interpretation . or if he off~~~·_ 1t on __ h1_s_. _ ... deliver)' .W.9.uld ~: e~den·ee that ~efl!a_mphetamine 
_. --~_,,~-"-=·. :····_'~ .,.:.own:VQlition.-.. .- '.;;:::. .-i-:.:· :--;~-,~-. .,,..._·.. . · ... ,. , •... :· .•. was being produced. While ATF.agentS--rep·eatedly · 
:·: :_:.:'. ~--:..: ~=: -.: '- '.; ~: ~- _ -~<-, Regar4less ·of the iiJlpet~Jor tlle}n te_rpretatio~; · · proffered evidence of deliveries of precursor chemi-
- -, : ,, .. ·.: · _.,: ::~-:· LL Col. Pettit.and~ Li_euteriant Ju~_~c~ :'!ll~n-tained::;~_;. ·cals to -th:e:;·Branch: Davidian· residence as proof of 

': :: ri:,; :·.:that-' ~nly'; information- about~ grid' ··coo~ates ~~s· .. an active· m~ihamphetamfrie'lao;the Treasury l)e. 
officially provided ~ ATF' and that ·•no ·official in:. .. , · partment has , since been · unable to locate or 
terpretation was ever provided to ATF regarding produce the documents offered to support its pre. 

. -the 1lot spoL"' 3.10 Even though ATF never-~ought, .--··cursor contentions.338:_-.- .-
an official interpretation,331 ATF agents later of- Treasury documents outlining the series or· 
fered the "hot spot• as direct evidence of a meth· meetings between military, Texas National Guard, 
amphetamine lab to· the military whe·n JTF-0 re· and· ATF offi~ials, describe a February 4, 1993, 
quested ~dditional proof or the drug nexus· at a. meeting held at __ the SAC/I:Iouston office regarding 

-·--:·February 4,.-1993 ine.etiilg.332 .···::~:-:- - ··- ·:·:~ ·_7_· ·-- ·-:.military __ support.'. In· ·attendance were Special 
-- - · .· .. :-:.Major __ ~~e!~~~tl?ickl~r testified that at the Feb~. . . Ageni. ~Wis;.~_Specl~l Agent Sarabyn; Lt. Col. 

. ruary 4 meeting .there was_ some pictorial evidence ... · Bertholf; Special Agent Pali, ATF coordinator to 
. ,.(ie.,· FLIR evidence) that .an active methamphet- Operation Alliance; William Enney, Texas State 
· amine lab was on the site of the residen·ce an~--- Interagency'-·. Coordinator; and Maj. Lenn 

ATF expected the lab to be there. 333 Interviews Lanna ham, JTF-6 Liaison. During the meeting, 
. ---With DEA·agents have ·revealed that FLIR imaging,· .Saraby.n_offered ATF documents including a list of 

.. _._ __ is -riot -a technique. ~d. _to identifY clandestine . .- ... methamphetamine precurs.or chemicals, in support 
. -- - drug labs because using. _e!J)ot spots• as· signatures . . .. . . 

· ; L ":.. .-· • • .l!.or methamphetamt·ne )a· bs· 1·s too unrelt".;.. LJe.3:U · ... CeoenJ Pickler te~tilied that u ca. Benha1 ... told at the r• 
- -- · _ _,, • • lW ·-·-- ·ruarr· •·ana &, 1993, ·,;eetina·tn HGI»t.oa that ATF had tnt.encW ao ,.,. 

DEA agents have mfonned subcommittee staff_ . -dude a DEA tab tam in the Waco aperation. Hearinp Part. 1 at -.. 
that the use of FLIR·im1unng to identi~ ... an active . 110. . . . .. 

-o· · ·~ . . . . . aeTnu~ Document T.cs89. · · 
'"U.S. DejlartmenL ot Jaatice. Drar Eal'cnement AclmlnlatnUon pab-

nppwtine aJicla\'lt eantafn uy lntonnadon about auspect.ed ftlepl. lation, Chemic:ak Ueed ln the Clancleltine Proc:IDction ol. Drup al H 
lllnwactmty (March J995). -

. ____ __ .. - iftM~um. tram. Calla c.Jlahan and Raben Tnena io Ceotl' ~On F~ 2. 1993. ATF 'pecial Alenta PaH an4 PhO Lewis mel 
·_. '·''_I:._ .i-:-"-'·· .. ::.-':;.;...,~, •• JIGal&on and ~,Merte~._"Ch~ ancl Wi~_Re: M!_~tAry:SUP.<···; with ~~ntativ~ o(t.he JTF~. Tau Naliona1 CIW'CI and Opention 

;~",~~~:~~~;t~lf~~1¥ifli]~~~§<~,:~~-~~ 
. --- .. ~- ... ~-- uae-e. t995l aacl t.eJes-hone ift~etlii wilh nn;,_~r~~ ~Mimi)_~:.: ..... -·~~u.. _(J~nu.a,Y 26, '1996l C~nc-&o t.he IDbcamrniUeel' .. 

lien Cion chetnil&a. . . . . .··- . , __ .. c:· ... · .. - •-' lw 'nlanna~. ~ ~cwember ~~. ~~); . . . . . 
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or the drug nexus.339 A. a result or the meeting, requests failed to mention the existence or a meth· 
military support or the Branch Davidian investiga- . amphetamine lab at the planned raid site or sus-
tion continued. pected illegal narcotics production. · 

According to ~ne_ral Pickler's testi_m~r:tY ~f9re . . A review or the January 5, 1993, briefing paper 
- ·· the· subcommittees, Lt. 9o1. Be.rtbal· ~as· told.~ at. ient. to ATFs Washington, DC. Headquarters re­

the February 4, 1993 meeting in Houston that pre- _ veals .that. no mention or the subject or drugs or 
. . ·-.--· , .... ·_cursor chemicals ~~re.discussed as one or ttte·el_e- ... military involvement even though senior ATF offi-

- '·· ·-: .::, ·: :'".'.· ·.· ::~_~enti(·~f" Pr.9_o( proffered by ATF:·that _an active·_ .. ::. cial~·_at. headquarters were signing off on requests 
·_· ... -: .=-· , .. -. ·_·. ~-.: m_~t~amp~e~~_ine.J.~. existed :ana:·thos~.·~h~n:i~~ls .... .for .. military ~assistance_··.under the guise or a 

: :.,:: -::.:--- · · ;.!·~ . ~:-:. ~- ~--···:Jn~Y:J~ay_~--~~0.. q_n: 11~ ·at the B~anch D_aVJd1an_ ~~-s- .... , cou.n.t.er-::narcoqcs · .. : operation. 344 Treasury docu· 
--~·.-::: ~:~;:,;~-~~~~- ;~:~c~ !de~¢e.~-~~~.·:'~n.~~·--~~l~r testlfied·that the. AT~ .. :;-_m.ents indicate that· this briefing paper was for· 

· .. ·' • • - ·' .-::. :
1 

••. tep_resen~tlv.~. w}t_tl~ g'lVJng a backgro~d_ bT1~fin~ :~warded .to the Assistant Secretary or the Treasury 
.... ~ _:~-_· ~--~--- :. _:·.·.~_s· ~--~by ~~T_f. __ h_~d ~rg~ted the. Da~dians,- ~~~~-- · ,- ~- ·ror ~n(orcement after review by the ATF Director 

. - :7.':'.:'"' ., '::'·~::.:,~~~d.~~~. UPS_ .~r .sJuppmg documents "ATF· WB:~ ··-_'"and' -his staff.:U~ The: ror\varding of this type or 
-- - -- . . -_· . }ra~~m-~ l!'dud~(l 8: great deal of Pt;cursor ~hemJ·c .... briefing pape.r. was the normal procedure the ATF 

. _. ___ eaTs cons1stent _ WJth the pr?duction .or •ll.egal Director used to notify Treasury of major on-going 
... · dhrugs.:w1 Howevcher, -~ntral Pick~r also d U:sttf~~d cases.346 

. t at precursor ef!li~ 5 were s~sse 10 e In addition to the January 5 briefing paper 
COntext or the poSSJbJhty or a dehvery or those d b •t I 

kinds or chemicals much earlier than 1993, but he mo?thly status reports were prepa~e ~ Agu! era, 
is not exactly certain which precursor chemicals reVIew~ by Dunagan, the. Asststant. Res1dent 
were there.342 A:ent m Cha~e of. the Aust1~, TX offic~ and ap~ 

General Pickler's testimony raises several ques- proved by ~hoJnackt, the Special Agent m Charge 
---- . - -- .~ions: First, what did ATF actually tell the mili- . or the Austm, TX .office ~ho. then forwarded there­

taiy ·about p~ecu.:.rsor chemicals? Second, General . ports to the Spec1~l __ Ag~~-~~ m Charge ?r the H~us­
.. ,-, -~-- ;:.-·=· ~ ··.- --~-:~~~lefS·te~t.im.ony imp_l!~s_·it.. wa_sJhat inform-ation·-~-- ··ton ·offi~e ... A1th_oug~_ ~~s-~: reports ~mg p~Vlded 

· ··-- .. :. ·· --- about deliveries of precursor chemicals·that.ATF · · over a 9 month penod and almost da1ly dunng the 
· c :.:~_!: _ . r~: .:: ~- ::~_~,, :· ::. ~- ·,:'qf.ter~d~.:wb~~- :ihe .' mi.UtalY·_,r,e,questecractditiQnar: evi~ ··< Tw~~k~ ~~~nff'uir. to' ;the ·ra._id, .the>: neve.r m.ention 
<~~::: -~:. : ···: .-:: ·.·- ···, 'dence~ _If QeneraJ:.f~i~l~r was uricertai!} .when.-pre~ ··.···.the case as- a .. counter-narcotics mvesttgation or 

~.- ·. · .·>::~ .:~··,·.·.;_ ... ;_~~s.or._,.c;h.~mj_~~l~·~. _were, pr:esenf. ~t ,J·h~- Br~ch· . ·,_,.any m.ilitar)"inyolve~cn~ ...... . 
:·.~Y::_~"':,·:~·-:-.-'i~:-::-- · ·-~~~:-·:~Davidlan, ·;~·side:n.ce,Jvhy, did he~~ approve.:.th~:A.TF::·:· __ i:::~. ~::l~~e-~_':l!_s_ :~:Fe~ru~ry ::.·~~ .. --~~-~-~. Chojnacki re· 
-- · - · · tfairiing:·oy ·an elite.~:Special Forces_ military·. unit <··.quested the use·,·offlash ba.ngs --and failed to men· 

assigned to' do 'counterdrug ·miss'fons?'Third,_ did tion the --possib)Ef- existence o( an •active meth• 
·· . General_Pickler si~ply rely_.~n th~ ab~ence or a de- amphetamine lab,• even though ATF policy states 
· fined drug' nems ·.standard i~ appi'9vihg 'the train- ·.that drug laboratories or other explosive environ-. 

ing mission? Fourth, after he requested additional ments may be so hazardous as to preclude the use 
information before approving the military training, of flash bangs.347 In fact, the only consistent men· 

__ -.:· .. ~~y _di~. ge~~~al J,ick_le~ ~~ o~er mi.li~ry.. offi •.. · tion of any drug ~ctivity by Branch Davidians in 
... c1als ~ay _1_t .ls_qQ.t.~~~:. P9.~-~~~on ~f-~e .. ~~ul~-~9'.::~ .. : :·.;.any or the ATF Waco documents on Waco is in re­

. · · · quest1on .. ~e· ·vera~~y_ ,.of_-a drug l~w. enf.or~e~ent _ . quests fo·r rJ:iilitary· assistance which required· drug 
· _ - d.eclarat1on !-hat ao.· drug !l~~~s ~~~ts? ~s-~ec•all?'• ... :'activity to justify military hitervention and assist· 

. . ·. -~--·,·:.: .:·.~.----s.~l1~e ~F~ s. own __ plan?mg ~1de ~tate~. th't m . ance;' ::.·· · · · .. , · .. _.,_ .. -- .... 
· conJunction Wlth_ Operation Alhance, ~e -~at1onal_ _ ·--- .. --. ~- .-· ... 
· · :(Zuard and Regional Logistics Office .. reviews and . . .. b .. ATF agents were not properly trained and 
· -validates all requests for support.• 343 · · · . . .~rt-~fi~d. . 

· --~ ..... ·c···-· >~~~--~~i~ni:~ ,::r:efi!ting .. 'ATJ;:s--cl~i~ ·a(~ iJ~~::~us. . The- seeond piece or evidence refuting ATFs 
claim that a drug nexus actually existed is the fact 

· a. ATF failed to' cid4i-ess th~ ___ i§sue of an ac· th.a~ .:.~TF- . agents -involved ·in the raid on the 
.. - = .. tiv~ · met_ha..rrqiheta~ine .. !al!or:..f!-!.,'!9'. into Branch Davidian residence ,.were not trained and/ 

.. -.. - .ra.~dplanmng· . .· -.. : .. :.or cert(ned~iri'"methamphetamine operations. Fur· 
l!ndemumn~ ATFs claim that a me.t~amp~~~- thennore, the Jack or necessary safety precautions 

amme .lab eXJsted at th~ Branch DaVJd!an reSJ· taken in the planning, training and operation indi· 
dence, 1s the fact that bnefing papers which went cate that these agents were ill-equipped and un-

- . :.:.~.l!:~ ~ ~'!.-~:He_~d~~I~~~ ... s~~s rep_2r.!-~.~~--.o~~r, .. __ --:prepared (or .. th~ .. "s_uspe~ted~. presence or an active 
·,-~;.~;:~-~~-=~~:_;:·~~: .. ,~~~-~:~.~~1~-:~~-~vect.::~~~~~~;ia~:;~~ .. ~.i!l~-~~~~P:~~mine !.&~,~,:~.e~_e _r~ilures are in di~ct 
· · · ... :.>-.' .. '-, ·. :...:~-~fAc-ihe..netJie. ·· het:a .. ··-· -~·-~·-----ehemi t · ha.·ATFd ·· -~···&a·-· ~--.-·confl•ct-~Wlth:·ATF's own-gusdehnes on. clandestine 

. ~I=-~- . 
_. ·""·--: :: ; :.:,~' ._;. :·:,. :':: "-~-ITF~ ~~Uonal 8uppcn Planninc Caide, -~~-~~6-~786, 08803: ··.. ·.~ .. 'TreUul')' DacamenLI 1'008213-'1'008214. :. .... __ · . .' 
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. I 
... 

e. The DEA's offer of a.ssistance Although DEA was never infonned officially of 
ATPs claim that a drug nexus actually existed the Waco investigation by ATF, two senior DEA of-

is c.a11ed into question by ATPs response to DEA's ficials were weJJ aware of the facts surrounding 
- · -.-- .· -. ;:---. offers of·assistance •. The.Prug_~_nforce~_eQ_t Agency the ATF i!lvestigation of the Davidians. Tw.o seni~r 

is the lead, Federal agency_ in enforCing ·narcotics·-- :'DEA offic1als were members of the Operatton Alli­
.... -. .;·-:-:-; .. :-: ·;··.~··and controJl~--;.·aUbs~~--· J~~s a..g4: _re~t_ation •. ance_board which ~v_i~~ed.l~~ enforcement agen-

, ... :: :While Operation Alliance· ·was ·assisti~g ATF Witfi ,-,._.,ey requests. Doeume~t.s. indica_te that at least one 
.:;:;~- . ___ . ·-__ i~. investigation of the Davidians, DEA_ b~d;.~ Se~- - _of these DEA agents did-offer_ DEA methamphet-

... ____ ", ~- · ior Special Agent, Mr. William Rosh on, il~l1g:as· a-'·:.- ·amine -Jab ·a-ssistance and ATF. declined that offer. 
··- · .. -~-~;-'-" .-: ... -"Coordinator:for,J),E.4\_ ~t_,Operation __ .f.Jlian_ce~:_orf:'·.-·~-aowever, -.--no documen~ received by the sub­

~ ·:>; -~~--~.::~_,. __ January,,~~·- 1993, ·_l)~puty Tactiw· _COOrdi~atoi':. ~-:'~omt:nittees indiC$te ... thaLthese _DEA agents ex­
- · ~; --~ :' ---~ _,. ~ .. __ - .-William ~~hoiF o~~ted~ P~:·_·- assi~.tari~~ _Jn. ~ th·e :.· _: ::;~- pressecf· any-· coneem. with ATFs apparent plan to 
~ ---- ; ~--··· .:'.-~.::.: .. ---f'onn~ of .. on~sight · ta~ratQ!'Y ·--~chni~ia:ns--·to·· ATf -··raid-an active methamphetamine laboratory. · 

:::.::~--.Special Age~.t-Pali. Pali placed.DEA Agent Roshon . In addition, when the subcommittees requested 
in touch witli._the SACJHoustOii-Offic~348 ·-- ' - ·· .--- ·copies of the ·UPS .reeeipts as proof of the delivery 

- ,. Post·raid inte~ewi of-Pali by th~ -ATf' W~c9- _ 9f chemicals that are required for the production of 
Review Team revealed that ATF refUse~. twice· · ··methamphetamine or any other evidence of the de­
DEA's offer of on-~ight lab technici;9ns, but did · · livery of these chemicals, the ·subcommittees were 
have two DEA offioals from the Austin DEA office infonned that none could be found. 
present at the Command Post the day of the . . 
raid.34e Two DEA agents from the Waco office. d. The Special. Forces paper and IM ATF rt· 
were on stand-by for the raid. uo sponse to it 

On February 2, 1993 ATF Agent Lewis provided The fourth piece of evidence undermining ATrs 
~·· ·:~-_._:~· .. :-.. :.a :briefing_. to: Operatiop_.;t\lJi~ce m~mbe~.s _on the· ~laim that a drug l~b existed is AWs own reac-

---..... , ·-- .. _. ....... .-•aiJspected ·me.tb~pl)eta~ine lab• it-~e lt~cb : __ tion"·to· the--Special Forces-paper on the meth-
-__ ~: -- ,,-.--_.:;">>"i.·:.~~;,-~Da_vi_~an. r:esid~~ee V.:~tc~, ~~a~cording ~ the ATF . amphetamine Jab. Sergeant Fitts testified that he 
· · · · - · · ·- ,..: 'sum mazy ·ofr. events; . was kil~wn •[. th~t ~ -'.'tO- ~·.:- arid-- ailother· Special Forces medic where directed 

·--:: ~----.-.. -~~-- ~-~,:-· · ... ·.·_hav~ r~ceiy~d deliv~rij!s of chemi~tpr~.~~~!~fo!:, .:_::=-by Jda]or··pefree, 'their Commander, .to research 
- :' .. - -::-,':.-:-:; _.,:.;··_=:· -~,~; th~ tnanufac:t~~.otm~~~-@11lllheta!p#l.~ .. ~r ,t~e:_c·- _'._,an~ ;dratr a paper ·on m~thamphetamine labs.353 

· _____ -:: ___ --- _,-_·briefin~-- :bY"·Le~s~::_.(!e,n;~-~~kler,,r.9~~~8f~e~. o~- --~:Jn~ryi,ews-~th ~gt. fjtis revealed that the paper 
· ~~~ -~tated ~· t!tat:Jt .. J.S __ ()_~~. th~_ .. P_9Sl~~~n_pf_ ':he ~~--_.jiq4:re.ss_ed·_ tlie dangers of·methamphetamine labs. 

nulitary to question ~e verac1ty of a law enforce.;·.· · fToin · ·00th·.· tactical--and' exposure perspectives.354 
-~~~ req~e_st .regarding a d~ nexus.~ 35~ .J?EA Sgt. FittS and the other medic took 3 or 4 days to 
Agent Rochon told Waco ReVlew T~am tntei"Vlew-·-; ~- COJl1plete the project.356 .· .. 
ers, after the Feb~ry 2, 1993, bnefing, that .he During the ·February"4-5 Houston meeting, Maj. 
had .offered the asststance of a D~ Cl~destine Petree presented the paper to ATF agents who 

. _Certified Laboratory Team and ~ah. dec}uaed ~e .. _ showed no interest in its contents. Sgt. Fitts testi­
-< .. request._~~w.ever, ~ent ~~o.n _dtd __ pro~~~ Le"::~- :fied. that ~Tf'_agerits never expressed any concern 

- :~ . - _-:: ·: ._ the phone_ ~umber of the Au~tin-J?EA ~~~de~t tn ___ .... -abOut the. d8ng-ers .. that':w uld be presented by a 
__ . _ _· Charge.- Agent -Roshon ••opmed' that precursor ··-- ·· ·.- '.· .· • - ~ . . . . 

._,. ' ·chemicals-- for- methamphe~mine -~~uld _ ~Jso be ~ethamphetamm~ lab and that tt was h1s J.mpres-
--~~~-~ =·:_·" ... wed 'in the manufacture .of expJosive$."_352 How- _._.,,._:lon; that ,the. SQbJ~ct of a methamphetamine lab 

-~ :· :_·_·:_·:~ever, seriio·r--DEA chemists--told subCOmm~ttee in· dropp~_ off th;a!:ce of ;th~ ~a~h ~r the p~per 
. .. _ ... ____ -~: __ ,_vestigators when interview.ed regarcf.ing the use of was Presented: . . In h1s opm1on, 1t was obVJous 
--_ :., _ . __ : > ·:: -· · m~the;mpheta~:ine cbeW.cals to __ ffi~k~: eXJ?l __ osi_y~. f!om the r~~ction o~.the ~if agents that no meth-
: _ · __ . ----· ___ ~at J,hey bact_ never heard that one bef"Qr~· a.rt4_:-·:-. amphetamine l~,e~sted~ .:· 
- ~->·-=·_. ... _~:..-~ tl)ey .. w~re unaware .:or. any chemicals_ used ... to -··-=:·---., ·.-, . __ . . 
. - . - -.. ~Uce· me'tJi&Jrip-Jietamine which could be .. USOO .. to ~ · --:: · ... 1:1-.nnp ~-!at JS~. Spedat F~ me4ic:s are COftlridereclto be 

- I" VY . - - .. -- . - - - ~ bfchly anm.L -
-_:__ --__make:-: exp)os.jy_es. Although IO~e methainpJiet~ . . IUTbe a~Ueei--niqoeiLecl a copy rl &be saper aod wen laid 

. amine chemicals are ver;r vo1ab1e in tlatUre- -Using .. U..t.ll couJcl na& ~located •. ~~- ~~:.~action ot~a. lo the 1111111> 

th to k 1 . . th - • . ClllllftliU... the ,......,. Depui.rniftt tailed lo ~ • alp)' ol .... 
em ma e exp os1ves 11 ano er matter en- ,.._. althauch t.-ttmony wore lhe abcommita.- indica&ecl that u.e 

tireJy. Given that ATF has jurisdictions over explo- paper .. .,.._wao ATF ..-u at a meetinc • Felwaar7 u. •• 
-~--;~·:;~_.~:-.··- ;:~- ~~:~ ~~-e~_an<l D~ h~ jurisdiction over illegal narcot- ••:.=-.,:;m tat MI. 

·- _ .-. -~-: ~-~·· · __ ,~--_-;-~ -•cs; tt:.~~~~ oclc:l :~a~ ~rF-agen~ and D~·nt.. . .. Hcmnp Part 1 ., 372; IIUbaommlu.." aaaemew ftl&all' Set­
~:~:.:_.: .. ·-=.<~~'t-::=~?I-·.·;:_-n;Jtoch~~---~o\1Jclatten:apt_10 J>1ur thi1Ccl.istin~ion.-. __ ; :·_, __ ~--&w~e nua. tn WaaJUnc&on. DC(Jwy u,t995). 

;;¥s~:~~~~~r~;~t~l'~r.:~~:~_;_#~~-••.~-~--:;~:~,:,:~T~~~~~~~i ... .. : ... .._.__~, ..... _..,. .• ,,.._.UI'7 Donunenta ~'l"OCN584. . W8llelt ..,_..&14 ATF the ,_per, Maj. Petne ~.s tha' heW 
aiJd.. · - • :.. . ..-..aiL . ·· ... · 
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D. POST-11..-JD MIIJTA.RY ASSISJ'ANCE '1'0 nm FEDERAL· of these vehicles which are normally anned were . 
. BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION (FEBRUARY 28-APIUL 19) removed before they were transported to the 

The standoff' between the government and the Branch Davidian residence.380 

Branch Davidim.s began on Fe_brua!Y_28, 1993, as During the standoff the Bradleys were used pri-
the cease-fi~ went into effeet· following t.l.te ATFs " ... _~arily .as .. armored· personnel carriers to transport 

· ···· >>failed raid on the Branch Davidian ~esidence. Dur· _FBI officials to-meetings with the Davidians, to 
.- . , " ing that time personnel ~d eq~pment of the U.S.- · tran~port. · ~BI · ~er)ts- ~- their. observation posts 

·· ·· ·:··_-o:·- - -··· · Anned Forces were present at or near the Branch .. around the B~n~~ D_avtdi.an res1dence, and by fBI 
· .... ·· ·.·.~ · .:.: .. ··.~---~_Davidian residence .. .-: ... -.. _· -:··· . ::c···: -~~ .. agel)ts··to·guard ~_e_penmeter of the operation. 
--!·:·':c.·:-<-;·.::.-~ ,· .... ~·::····.···=-~- ·:· .. ·. :··-- • · ..... ·.. .:-· : .. · · .. .. .·: • ·-~ ... ·c· , ...... ~=· .During .the inseitiori'of the CS agent on April 19, ·::--:: .::· .. :::;:.~ .. :->><' _--:·~-~~ M'!'tag ~~~l!.~rt.JI:rr/ person,~e~~_p_r,ouide_d _ .... ,-,_-... ::~ ... the Bradleys ~were usecrby FBI agents to maneu· 
,,· "::.-:· .·.·-: · =· ··: ·._--~.-.·. :·;':t~ 4.-_Adiue:d!l.tY personnel and equipmeij_t ... · ·-,,,.._:_·· ver clole·enougn·tc;·~h'~_Branch Davidian residence 
~ ~:-- .-::··-;:-·.:: -~ ::. -· .. · _ _- J>un.ng<_tJ.e· standoff, :ai''limitec( n~nibir of:active· .: ·s~ that t~!~-~geiits ~co~l-~ ~re Ferret .round projec· 
:.:'>:=~ . '"·~·;~::.·: .': :: du~~ inili~ry:· .personnel were. present;. at .. · the' '.· tlle~:con~-~~~~, .. 9~-:~~IJ~ mto the Wlndows or the 
~. · ·- =-~-.-. <~-, ·.:.'.=::: .- Snmc~· pavidian residence providing services to ~es1dence. ·: - :. ·. ~- _ .~:~· ·. · . • 

. ·- --:=:-··.:,-:. ~~ .. --.-~the .FBI in support of the FBr~-.::~ctivities during The CEV's were not used until. Apnl 19. At· 
... - :· ·: -. · · ·the standoff. Most or these· troops were dressed in ~ched to each CEV was a long tnangu1ar boom· 

uniforms. which indicated their rank service and hke ann. Attached to the booms or two or the 
·.. function. -A small number of ~ps p'resent a't the .CEV's v.:ere m?unted devi~s . that spray~ CS 

site were assigned to Army Special Forces units. agent muced w1th carbon dioxide. On ~pnJ 19, 
Because the military occupational specialties or thes.e. CEV's :"ere used to ram h~les mto the 
these troo~s are classified, they dressed in civilian DaVJc!ians res1dence. ~e operator:s !n eac~ CEV 
clothes whale at or near the Branch Davidian resi· then mserted CS agent mto the bw1ding usmg the 
dence and did not identify themselves as military devices afruced to the boom. Insertions of CS agent 

:. . . . . personnel. Additionally, one of ·the :two senior· .. :·occurred· in four distinct phases throughout the 
• , ·; .... ·_,,;;:: • ... ,.,. ·.-= :.: .•. Army officers present at the April 14 meeting with · .. morning· ·of·:t~t~ .:l9tb.-~ ~-·one point, one of the 

- the AttortJey·.: .. General. also visited =.the .::Branch ..... CEV's became damaged and could no longer spray 
·.'"·: . ~' .. :-:_._.::t.:.:~~·;:i~:·_{:J)aY!ili·8ll-.re~i~en_~e i:n. -~nle~ ~ P.ei-,~o~~Jl~ ·_view·dl'e~ .. qs _agent .. ~.,th~ ~Y p~gressed, ~e FBI began to .. 

·• · .·c .. -.... -··. . ..Jactacal SJ~~tJo~.:.:Thi~:J~fficer· was~present--at·the:·: .... use ···tl!~. 9.~s · ~·:'_deconstruct the Branch 
_·. ..... ._:_ ~- ... Branch ~~v!.di~;-·.reside11.~~Jor p~~ .. or 1day .... :, ...... " .. _DaVidi_~.~res_idence, l.l.sing them to ram into the 

.: ~' '--~~-~;:;; :_~·-. :. :~:~·.:··· :TheJ;ypEf Q~ SUpj>OJt.p~yided ~y' th~'active:dUtf: ·-·::~·CQrrters: ,8:i1d ... ·s~c;les =·of-~~~buiJding,.·creating large 
-.-.', .··p·.,.=: . ~ ·- ·-:~troops· c:Orisisted primariJy _of perf9,nning- r~pmrs .. ··openings in_the b~lding.· At one point, part of the 

and maintenance_ on sophisticated observation- and rear roof collap~sed after one CEV made multiple 
electronics equipment 358 provided by the Defense . · entrie_s into th~ _sjde of the ~uilding. 
Department to the F.BI.- Active duty,- enlisted mili- . 'In ad4_ition to. these vehicles, a number of sup· 
tary' ·personnel set-up · the equipment and per· port vehicles (e.g., Humvees, used to transport per· 
fonn~d necessary maintenance on it. There is no sonnel, and flatbed trucks, used to haul the Brad-

.. evidence that military persol)nel ~ctually operated Jeys and. CEV's to .Waco) .. were located at or near 
· th~_equipm!~~ _If!stea~,--it ~~_pea!'l.,that .. FBI agen~ ·; . .-.·the -~ra9ch Davidian residence. Additionally, De­

, OJ>f:r!lted .tlus eqwpmen~ .. !!1 ~ne lz:iStance, however,· · ·· · fens~ · .Department. provided support equipment 
CI~lian _e.mployees of -the Department. of Defense .·.--· (e.·g:, tents,· generators, concertina wire) to the 

. _. oper~te.d one piece or sophisticated electronics FBI.· - '_-_ · ·· _ 
· · __ ,_. -~quipm~nt.359 In. addition, active .. duty, .. enlisted· · · An-· unknown number,-of Texas National Guard 

=:, '·L-;.:.-"".·.. · ·:·military personnel perfo~ed re~air and mai~te· · personn~l ·were present during the standoff. Most 
. ·.:: ~.ance .. work on the electron~cs eqwpment belongmg . or these .. person(l_el performed maintenance on the 
.. t.O.~e.F~J. ,_rh! .accounts given by all ~rsonnel fa •. · .. milita.iy .. vehicles loaned--to the FBI or to provide 

.. . . · m_!har. \Ylth .tins_ aspect or the oper~tion and- who:.:·:···: support --services for. these troops (i.e., National. 
· · · .. . we~ 1f!teTVJ~wed by the .subcommittees confirm Guard cooks were present to prepare meals for the 

. :., .. . ..-:~:~~·~:-:.::~;:· __ ,that, .W1tll ~~-~~~:e~n~, -~cep_tJ~n; only,_FBI personnel ·- · meehanics). Other:·National Guard troops provided 
·- ~ .- :. __ . _:o.~ra~d-~he eqwpment dunng the standoff. remedial training to. the FBrs HRT members who 

. b. NatioruJl Guo.rd perso1U'U!l·and equipment were to operate the Bradleys and CEV's. Addition· 
~g the standoff, the Texas National Guard a~ly, on April 19, s~me Na.tional Guard ~ps as· 

provided a number or military vehicles to the FBI. s1ste~ FBI agents m refilhng the CEV's WJth the 
.... : ..... ~~ipa)_ among these were_lO Br~d1~Y. Fighting.. ~~ "~~- co~~~~-,~-~~~c:~::::.· 

:. ·- _ -·· -- -:~:-~.-:~- Vehic~~--~C.Bradleys)i·~:--M728·;Com~~~~~ngineerirlg~::···_t7 :.:r~£: ';_c;:Reimb·ursement 

~~~t~;i~:1~:-~\~~t~E'-~c~;;~:~:~~~~!~1:;?;!E~1r: 
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.. pc)rt provided to it. The subcommittees have been c. April14, 1993 meeting with Attorney Chn· 
infonned that this reimbursement has been made. eral Reno 

.:.::. ,~, ,. ___ ~- ", .. :. -~·_Advice/.c(!IU_ultati:on provided by militar;y officers On Aprill~, 1993, a meeting '!as held in the or . 
. : ._ .. _ . . _ ... ... ' .. ---= ···-·· . · '" __ _._: .. · . __ . . ... fice of the D1reetor of the FBI WJth Attorney Gen· 

,:-:. : .. :;~. ··_:...~.: .,.·:'···_·:~:~!"Request by_:~~- Governor .. ··.· :,. _--_:· .··· : __ eral Reno and several Justice Department and FBI 
· :: · .. -~-- ·~ .-. -~ _-- Whe·n· Texas· .Governor Ann. Richants_ lea:med of ·· officials. ·According· to the··Justice Department Re-

:: .. -····--= ~ . ...: · -~- th.~ f8iled.ATF.raid on February 28, sht!:requested · ·pori,_ •sever•l military representatives• were also 
_,.;i-: :,·,_~_ ~-:·"·:·'_; :..·;:~-- .tO ··tgf.l~ult· __ With'~-~ knowledgeable military officer· .... present.362_·The· subcommit~e$'. investigation iden- · 
'.-~ :---~-:·;~,-_.:;·.,:·:~.,~::; ,=~~-uf.theJ~_cident. In response t.o· her:reque.~_t, ~e .. _· t~~~-~, ~~ t~o· senior military _offi~rs present at 
. . . ::. : · .. ·. :~;·:~~ ·.<, :con:a"mande-r. or ·tJ:l_e. u.s •. Army's III -~ips -at ... fort. ·.. t~~ ~eeting. __ ':l'hese ty.'O- offi.eers bnef~d the !Dem-
'"· ·""'';.=: . .:.,.-'.;_ .. : , .. HoOd,:TX;·asked tne·'assistant:division· comma·nder .. · .. -~ers. of:;~e s~omm!tteea.~m a. classified bnefi~g 
. -.. --~- :~ ot:tbe'. First·: 9aWilty Divisio~ of the m Corps_,_.also ... -In J !lly of.199~ ~~ COnJunc:t?Q.~- vnth the subcommlt· 
--· ..... :. _ ... --at:.-Fort~.H~ ·t.O meet .with. Goverilc)i" ·Richards . . : ~e~;J:)ubhc -h~anngs. .. Addi~o!lal1y, a Defense De-

.. That ·_officetmet Witl{th.~. Gover:nor 0_0 :~e evening ... __ pa_~~~f!nt _· n:presentativ~ testified before the s~ 
·. · ·0r February 28~. D~ng ·the meeting, ~e ·officer an"! .. _ . C()m.~mttees m open sesston generally as to the dis· 

awered the Governor's .. questions concerning . the cusstons . betweel! the officers and Attorney Gen· 
f Tta • t · th ATF h d ed eral Reno on Apnl 14, 1993 •.... 

~~ o mt 1 • TY eqwpmen e . . a ... us. . The ·officers present at the. April 14 meeting at 
dunng th~ nud and the types of m•htary eq~p- the invitation of FBI officials were to answer any 
m~t whic~ Federal law enforcement offictals questions Attorney General Reno might pose about 
might use m the future. The. Governor also ~ the FBI's plan to end the standoff. The officers un· 
quested that the officer meet Wlth the Texas Adju- derstood they had been selected to attend the 
~t General _(the commander of the Texas Na- meeting because of their special tactical training 

··· ..•.• · ... : ... : · --~= ti~nal .. ~), __ w_h~ only ~eeently bad been ap- and experience. Additionally, HRT commander 
· · =--- ·:.· .. ·--··.: .~ :,·pomted to.h.ts,pps.ttio~·,::·: -~':. .... ~ ..... :-- -, ... ___ ,. _Rogers knew one of the officers personally and had 

. . : :~:! si:{'L . :~.- :··. ~.:-:t;-:.i.::;·::-.:~;:_.· •.·· b, .. Yis.((. to. the· B~- Davidian resi~nce .. _,. ·radlita~d-. th~~·;:.requ~st ... from .. the Justice Depart· 
= .. -.":;·~~--~~~~~~::~':·:-:.-·:~-,~--:~//: ~,;·':~ '!'.tti{FBIW{iclisls···,-:·,. .. _· ."'~-~·:·'-~~-- ~~z,-:.-.··· .• .: :·:.,:~d\~: ~:~~~;~partment that the officers at· 
· ·_ ·: --- _ -: :_·. _::· :- --~ · .TWo se~i~r_ ~Y_-~ffi~ers_ p~rticipal:eci .i~~~· :'#e.et- -:~: ~-.·.·The officers: izrloofriie(('Attorney: General _·Reno 

·-·"· >- ,., . ----~-~_-Jng __ o(..J~ti~e. P_~p_a~men_t ~d F'!JJ_.oft.i.~.lal~- ~th · · that.:they could not comment· on specific FBI plans 
- -· ·.' :_ .' ··. -the .~tl)rney :~rie~l ori ·:April :._l4.)>~tirig'"·'the·; ·.:tO. :end th~-:·stiindoff.364 :One of the officers did in~ 

- · ···· ·· meeting,:· the parti~p~~ ~-~c:uss~.( ~¢. ~~_rs. plari' _ _..., .. form; Attorney .General Reno. that if the HRT had 
to end the standoff. The sUb.Committees''inyestiga.;;·,·:· beeft ·:a: mili_tary ·force .. under his command, he 

· · · _. tiort revealed that. on~. or the Army officers visited would .. recommend· puUing it a way from the Branch 
the Branch Davidian reiidenee on April .13, aceom- .. _.Davidian residence for rest and retraining.365 They 
panied by HRT commander Rogers. · ·· ·· · also explained to · Attorney General Reno that if 

·During a briefing of the subcommittees these of· the military bad been called in to end a barricade 
, :-·, _ .. _ .. : . . ficers · indicated that .Jtogers had arranged . for the situation as part of a .military operation in a for· 

... · _-~ ·officers- to, be included in . ~~-- April 14 meeting ·an4 . -'-~ ei~ country, it would foc:u~ its efforts. on •taking 
· ·· · had · invited _one of them to view ·the · __ Branch ... :- o~t ~-~e Jeader·of the operatton. 
· ... Davidi~ .residence to better understand the ·tae-·_:·:· .. ~e-ofticers_·believed Attorney General Reno un­

. ;tical· ·sittiation .. Rogers; ·met the~ officer at , the .. -. de_~~tood ~rei~- comments as an illus~ration of the 
· · .. Branch Davidian residence and arranged for 8 bel- _ : tactlcal·p':nc:Jp~l-that a group he.avdy dependent 

· · ieopter tour of the perimeter of the area. The offi· . on · ~ ~hansmat1c leader for d1recti~n, such as ~e 
··--.-~:..:-:·~-~,~- .:.cer,il)f9~ed the subcommittees that he onJy·ob-· =_I;laVJ~ans, c:an best be eontro1Jed 1f ~e leader 1s 
. ·--. · ---: · sei'Yet:l' the FBI's activities there and· did- t·-tak · ... : · .. rez:n~ved from -control. The officers bel!eve Attorney 
· - ... - . . . . •. - ·· . ·: . ... · .... _no e -Genera] Reno understood that the1r comments 

·:--.-~::::~ 7 •. ·--~-;- • pa~ u:t.~_e_ ongo~~' opera_tton. The of!i~~r-~d Rog- · · were· appropriate. to a ·military operation abroad 
· · · · - · e~ -~en 1~ W~eo ~- ~a~eJ to ~~~~~~~, r.~~-~e ... but were· not directly applicable to the domestic. 

· :·.--meeting W1th,Attorl!~Y. General Re~o.--···:. · .. _-_,.·.'' ··· · .... , .... law erifottement situation. facing Attorney General 
The oftjcer further informed . the subcomnilttees -:Reno ·. , .. , .. 

that his visit to the Branch Davidian residence · • 
was his first visit and that he did not return to the 3. F~reigli military personnel 

· .:-.:: > ··--·: · ·. ·: ~ranch D~yi-~~n .tesidenc:e after April 14. The Foreign military personnel were present at the 
--=:: : .: ... ~-.: _·.:_:. :,-..-j_ Q~h~!' ~~-c~~,.p~es~J)ta~ ~~--Ap~ll4 ~eeting sta~~ Bran~ D~vidian residence during the standoff 
_ .. _-'--- .. ·---:~_-;:~.~-:...-~->··that _:he· aid· not--Visit- the' Branch-:DaVidiari ··resi· somet1meJ.rL~rcb. The ~wo penons present were 

--~·t~'V~c?~:;:,:·;,;;:~~~~~f~fe~1~~trt:::.;.l~7:@;;~;; ;~;:ft~ooJ:~~:~~.:~ ~- ";.~. -· 
.. ~--:~-=::-.. . .. - . . . . . pr~sent at Waco dunng the. standoff confirmed "the· .... : secretary ot Detenae r._ ~'-~tiOIW ancl Low lnt.eMll1 Conllic&). 

~---·;=-~-~~::-.;~.-,~~,:t".~\·:._._:-~~~ents~~~tht~Y-~:~flice~~~---\f~~i~-;_,"~:·::::_.t•'-:)i~~-:~:L;~;;_..~·-~.,~;;_;~~~---·;_s_i!i··;.~·-·;~~>~::_j::~.~-."-·: ~-
.. ~ .... , ~·:, \' ~:! ~- 0 ~: 0 

':.:.• • -:-~:· •• ~ Mo 

:_.:~ :_; ~ • ; : ;·: ~: : ~: .. .:. : :. ~: :~ .:. .; ¥' 
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·membe.rs of the 22nd Regi~ent. of. the British by the aetive duty military personnel wh~ facili·. 
Army's Special Air Service (SAS). This branch pos· tated the training of ATF agents at Fort Hood, TX 
s~s~es special tactical milit:sry skills and has a role in late February 1993. The ATF's initial request to 
~1m1lar. f:O U.S. Arfr,Y Speoal Fo~es. troops. &.ner· .. ,;Op~_ration _Alliance included a request that mill· 

· .. a~. m1litary pe~_cm~~l.:.P~~ent .d~n~g the .stand· ... ~-!Y .medical personnel actually participate in the 
.-·off mformed~the s~OJJ?~~~ tha~ ~he_ SAS p_~~~->. nu~: on. ~e Branch .D~~dian residence. The ATF 

· · -= .· .. , so~_~el:: ~~-~~~-~~.~- ...... c~_YJtles -~~-~he .F~I.,an~_too~ ..... ~l~o._requested -~at .,m1htary personnel participate 
·· -- ... · --· · ·:·_no -~a~--~ ~e action~_of.the_~.•:ht.ary or.~the FBI.·:· .- m f:be. fonnulati~n~.of:th~ ~TFs overall raid plan. 

-~::··~·;.;·~:~.:·..:~ ···-·=. - _ ·. The-two SAS re~re~r:t~~ves !"~re n~t P.~~~-e~t_Q_I! :.· a~m$t.the .. D.aYJdJans'· ·res1dence. These requests 
~-- :~:-.·::_: ;~_·;···':~~:-.. ~···-.~~~- _ -~-~p~~-~9~-~~~·,~-~ ~~ s:~dofr-,~~,~~,,:_.~, 0:~,;. ~ .. ::. ,'·'- ,:,_'"··-~,·raj~ed:the .. ~nce~.of ~ili~ry lawyers due to their 
··;' .:~,::_.._,,_~·,,._~-- <~ .:~·::..: · Accordingly·tO:~·e·~~tice Department's wntten Posse Com1tatus tmphcatlons. The subcommittees 

'. · .=":-: · =-= :.:.~ :-:-:- ·. ::_:·:.:>~response: to· Qliestions·· siib~itted bY the ~~l>cominit·. ~ ~--=~~-~ncl~d~ tJu~t .. these. officers were correct to raise 
· -:--:·. :--::.·~=;:-t···.:::::-:..:.. :::·,.; .teesr_::~the .SAS .Pf!rsonnel were ·· pr.esen£-af::;Fort.:~- -~ese'. coilcems.-and ,that--their actions helped pre· 

.·;; '.:'··_.,.,,:-_,. :-::.~~·:;::., 'Bragg;··NC.in·eat:ly 1993. on other.busines~. and.r.e-:·-· ·;vent.~yi.Qlaticm"of:the Posse Comitatus Act. 
· :··. ::.:-.. ~. ·· .,_ quested·,:to observe the··FBrs HRT ·c:ommand post . · As a result of-the concern by these officers as to 

. . · ~d ·forward tactical. positioni· at··waeo: _FBI offi· . ATF's request, less. support was provided than ini-
.. ' , · · -· cials · have· infonned ~the· subCOiinnitti!es ··tb.at" the : -:-tially requested. That support was limited to pro--

. HRT-maintains liaison With the miti"tary .. and law····· Vid.ing and staffing a training area for the ATF at 
enforcement coUnter-terrorist units of friendly for· Fort Hood, teaching basic first aid, . and providing 
eign countries, ·including the United Kingdom general advice on communications questions. Be. 
Gennany, Italy, Spain, Australia, and Denmark: cause these activities do not rise to the level of di· 
HRT commanders occasionally invite representa· rect participation in a law enforcement action, 
tives of these units, a well as the U.S. Army Spe- they did not violate the Posse Comitatus Act. 
cial Forces, to observe operations in which .the The subcommittees also find no violation of the 

- _ .. HRT is engaged, as each" of the :organii~ti91JS·.h.a.s..::·;:·-.~~sse Comitatus Act as a· result of the support pro­
similar skills and performs simill1r functions. This·.. Vlded by the ·Texas National Guard which partici-

. ---_>: . :.--.-. · .. -· . ·.-:_a,rofessi~~~1 . .-:~l:l~sy ,~~p~en~y._)s ... ~- ~n-ded to . pated in the trai~ing that t~e ATF conducted for 
·- ·.-:: '::;~ :.'!':· .,., __ ~= '·.:: :~Bto~~a~s AJ.Well.by~.~~ U.S.: Spedai-Forces.and ~:~' ·~~~~~s:at_.~QrtJiooci,.~ u~)ate February 1~93 
·-- - · .· .-.... , , .. ::·the counter-temri"si"unit:s··of the-countries liste·d··,. _an.d~.~n~c.~.Jlew·, the helicopters on February 28 
.. ·, · ... :· :~;_al:)()~e .. ' ~~~ F]r~xJ?~~~-~dj.h~ ~r~~~~C!,~-~(th·~. S~ .· ·~at. ~¢·r~-~ P~!1.of. th.e ATF's _raid on. the Branch " .. ~--~ ~~<: ·=:,..:~·. . :·····personn.~l at the Bnlnc;hJ).aVJdJan . .-restdenc(!:-85 an.·;·:··_.-,.Da~(]J-~~:r.esJdeoce.::·The Texas National Guard 
'·· :: ~::.: f_· ·:.·::·:·· 

7
· ,, ::.' •. ~ · exa~·pJe ~ of~i.~ ·type :or fnformat1on:~haring~,. ·_:.~_::·, ~- ::. · ._ .. : tt:o?P,~ ': who,.·.-piirtic.ipated in these activities were 

,..,""'".,.~·"'-" .... ,!: ··!•::·" The ·sUbCommittees' .investigation finds n·0·: 5up- · ·. _acting in their •state national guard" status under 
port for the assertions· made by some that SAS the command and control of the Governor of 
personnel •. or any:.other foreign person.s, took part .. Te~s; even though the costs of the operation were 
in the. ·actiVities of U.S~ Government agencies at pa1d by the Federal Government pursuant to title 
the Branch Davidian residence. Accordingly, the. - _32 of the U.S. Co~e ..... 

_ .· . _ .. , ... _ _ . _ · ~~O~!I:l.itte_e~, ~on~l~4.e -~~t th~, two. ~A$ per.son- .. . Th_~ Posse .Cof!l•tatus Act does no~ ~ove~ th~ ac­
. ~ • --' - .. ··· .c· ne)· we·ft( ~e only (or~i~ perSO~S present .. at. the ... : --~OnS of the ~atJonaJ . .Guard when lt IS actmg In a 
. ·~ -~·:·~--~=·:~.~-:: __ ,~·::~·.:.·.:, _-,~r.~·ch.'J?.a~~-~ j-~~iden~e.368 ~.d that they u;·ok · -:·n~n:~ederal_:(J.e., State) stat!-~~· B~cau.se the Texas 
· · ··· . ~ · · _- . _ .· .. ·:. ... no P~rt ~~ the gov_e"!me~t'_s actiVlti_es the_re.- . . : . . Na!-J~na_1 Gu~r4 .. t~~P~ partlCJpatmlf m. the .ATF's 

- - ·· -·- : · : · · · - -- ·· · . ·- · . · . . .... _ ..... t~~mg and ._th~ -ra1d 1tself were actmg m th1s sta· 
·. E. FINDINGS CONCERNING MILrrA.RY.INVOLVEME~ ... tus,_ the~ Posse. Comitatus Act did not apply to 

·. IN THE GOVERNMENT_ ~_PERATJONS AT WA_co··· ·· ... ~ ·. ·theril~ ·ACcordingly,. no 'violation was possible and 
·1. The __ Posse. _Comitatus Act was .not vio· · . · .. none, therefore, occurred . 

.. . . .. .. · ... · · ·tat:ed. ·_·. _ =· · ·. ___ b. No violations of the -Posse Comitatus Act 
·-· · ~-· - .~.- \.- ,.· : .. a.;·No·vio18iloD. of tliwe:Poese· ~"mi~tu~ :Act". .. - Occun-ed afiei: Febro.ary 28, 1993. The sub. 

· · ~-d~. ~p. to __ Feb~ 28, 1993. The sub- committees. conclude that no actual violation of the 
.· .. -·-·-_.. ·· .eommitteesconelude·that rio actual violation of the·.· -··Posse Com1tatus Act occurred as a result of the 

.. ·-- . -·-· Posse Comitatus Act.ocCUTred as .a result of the·:.:. mi1~tary .. support:provided to the FBI after Feb. 
military support ·provided ·to the ATF throUgh Feb- . ruary 28, 1993." The subcommittees review of this 
ruary 29, 1993. The subcommittees review of this ·question involved two issues: the support provided 
question was divided into two parts: the support by active duty military personnel prior to Feb. 
provided by active duty military personnel prior. to ~ry 28 and the support provi~ed by Texas Na-

---- -~ .. -··"'· ... ·-·Feb~ry 28 ~d the suppo_rt provided by Texas.. ~onal_ G.uard_tro.ops·.throug~ ~n11.9,, 1993 • 
.. ·~-~,~~:~~-·:_~~:··:.··>:-~-~-,~:~:N.Jti.o~~!.·,~'!J.~!'.~P.~-,~P..:;~~>._a.~ct:~~-:.f~bruary -28,~-·\:.:· Th.e:sW>c~mmJttees:f.ind·no _ytolat•on of the P~sse 
·· . ·: · .•. · -·: :~ ~}99:t.: .. : ..... , .. ,-.. :-"·,../,~·~,.-"';:·.:,~;-;:,=:;'.'r~{ .. · · ·-:.-r-w .: ,-,:..i·u.:~ ,;: ·/v ... ,:'n. ~tp~~J~s~.M._. .. a.::result of the support prov:tded 
·:; ~:.-":-~,-:-. :"'"·~< · · · ·...::·: Th~~-~i#~romittees.find 'n()_violation of: theJ!osse-::; ;by-~~e ... ac_~~e.:,duty.-,military ·personnel who were 

·. -..,.-,·;~:::,P::!.;; ~"wCO:initatu&-"ACi'aa'·'a'res\i.it.!;-01: th~~--~ ··~- ·- rt· · 'd d ·--··present at· the. Branch Davidian residenee frOm 

_,;~i-.:~r~~:';~::*;~:;:;;i¥i~-~~~fi~;~;7:~-f;~;~,-.~~F~~~::*:oz~:~:I!:r.~:~: ~i ~t: 
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• ings confinned that no active duty military person· the Defense Department as otherwise would have 
nel actively participated in any actions that can be been required under Federal Jaw. 
characterized as the exercise of the law. The ae· The subcommittees also conclude that the com-
tiona of the enlisted p~~s_onnel appear to have been mander of the military personnel providing the 

.. ·limited to-setting up eq~ipm~~t and.. p_e~orming training knew or should have known that the 
7
·-. :.·-:.·-:.:·::,··maintenance on it, or providing supj)ort-~to·'other·· ATF's-allegations as_ to the.- existence of a drug 
-~· .. _~:;:-,,_:·:- . . ,: military. persQ.nnel_(e.g.-,. ~~s.P._ortation, food- s~rv-- man~factu_ring operation at the Davidian residence 
. · .,-.. -~··.·., .. ,. ice). All ·of the military, ~J'$onnel interviewed ·-bt .: .. , · we rei at .. best; overstated. and were probably un-

- --_··- ·_-· -·-·"- ~ ... ·the .. subcommittee~ eonfi~~~ that orily- _FBI' em·:· -true. His failure to raise this issue with his superi· 
::_; - =~:-~~:~::: :--'ployees _operate_d., the J!lilitary ·equipment-' during· .ors is-troubling. The subcommittees believe this 
::: ·, -- _.,..,.;,,.:.~.-.·the law,"·en(o_rce~~t 41~h?.ties conducted, .~t the · failure· should ·be .. revie.w.edJ>y. _ _Defense Department 

· -: . :;:'. -~,. :-''':.- _- ... Branch~ Davj_dian, resid~nce~ _The . subCbmmittees · ··authorities. · ._ .. ,:.; · .. . . - . ,. 
·- .. ,:.T ·::-.·- foundnoevidenc~~totheeoi\iriry.· '-'~'-~_:;::_:_:·:_-.·:· .. :::·- :·'.:~ · · 3 •. No·:foreign Dtilita.r)',-p.er&ODDel or other 

. ·' ._:~,:-";'"-'··; ·,---'~- AiJ'", diSCUS$J~~I_ ~_ve,·: th~ ~osse ~Comitittus'"'Act :-·.··::foreign·~persons. too)t Pa.tl..; in any way in any 
· .: - - does not govern the__actioni o( _the National Guard .:of. -the,··. government's.:. actions toward the 

when it.is actir:tg in a non-fe4~ral (i.e., State) sta· .Branch J)avidians. While .some foreign military 
tus. Accordingly, :none Qf the actions taken ·by the.. personnel were present in Waco during the govern-
National Guard during the- $·tan doff ·Violated the· ment's operations toward the Davidians, there is 
Posse Comitatus Act. The· subcommittees note, no evidence that any Qf these persons took part in 
however, that. it appears that the National Guard's the government's operations in any way. 
role during the standoff was very limited. The Na- 4. Civilian law enforcement's increasing 
tional Guard role generally involved troops trans· use of militaristic tactics is unacceptable. The 
porting to the Branch Davidian residence ail of the FBI's and ATF's reliance on military type tactics 
military vehicles used by the FBI during the greatly concerns the subcommittees. The Waco and 

:~_-,...:·: .' ::.:.-'--:-:.-·':='.' .:·standoft·anttpe_rfoonigg_rQ.P.~ne maintenance on · Ruby· Ridge incidents epitomize civilian ·law en-
them.-~; .. :, .·:::..:...... . . . - · ·· ~·:' -;~ ·- ~-· -~---- .forcement's growing acceptance and use of military 

·<..,•--•.•.- -.-:::;·. _ _._:~.: ~ •. :. ;,: .. On:AprilJ.~._Na.ti~nal Pu.~rd troops assisted the .. type-tactics. The_ subcommittees find this trend un· 
-' ·, · .... ·! _'·~·. ~-~~ ;'~ ' .. FBI iri ·.~filli11g ,the ·C~Y'l, ~tb the- '0.S .~ent :~ed: ::.:: accep~bh~.. .. ... ·. : ~·:·_ -.-- , - __ ~-. 

. . -·.; .... ~:i~·:. -::~-·iii the:' .. unslicc.essruf~ort)o ~indue~~ the ·Da\)l!lians i.:·; ,, . :· ~- WherCATFJace~ ~e option o( conducting a reg-
.:~;-~ _;:_~. i<~> ...... :.:: .. to ·Jeave the~· r~~•9en.~_e. JJ,ecausf:· the-::National ':' · -ulatory, inspecti_ori._. or. tac~~cal· operation, it chose· 

-~·:: (~·: --· _r:·.:· GWiril:troops are:not~ubject to the'Prohibitions.of-.-: .: the ta(tic~LC?peration. When .. ATF had to decide be­
.:::: .'_ :_:·:· ,. __ ,_:~-:-·the··:_·posse· Co.t!i{~t~:--J\ct ~--~hen ... aCting·: in'~_-their~ · .· tween~_arresting .. Koresh· .away from the Branch 

· State status, no · Violation-.,' occuited~· ··The'-· ·.Sub· ·, ·, Davidiar:t _r~s,idence ·or. a ·direct confrontation, it 
. committees note, however, that had the National chose direct confrontation. -ATF also decided to 
--~-:~' .... -.:,:Guard troops .. in_s~~d ·-been aCtive d~ty personnel, conduct a dynamic entry as opposed to a siege. 

or acting in a Federal. status, their participation in... .. The·. subcommittee_s . are not recommending that 
the execution of the CS gas plan would have \iO· the use of militaristic tactics should always be pre-

........ ---- · Jated·th~. Posse Comitatu$.._ Act. eluded. The subcommittees acknowledge that there 
. ·. · -:-: .... _: :: · .. _::: .. ·.2..Th~ ATF misled .. ~e.Defense Department ... are .certain circumstance$ in which military type 
··-. · -. ·. :: -,-~ -:· -~ a8 to the. ~s:~~~ce ·of a drug :nex~'·.in. order:..· _tactics_ may be -~~~cssary. The subcommittees urge 

to obtain non·reimbursable support ·trom the·,~ -·aU Federal. 18~ enforcement agencies to review 
·: Defen..., .Department. .. The subcommittees . con~ .. · . their policies· on· military- training and tactics and 

· ·. '··· - --elude. that· :.the A"rf'.- i!l~~~ionally misled Defense·: .. ·develop_ appropriate guidelines for when such tac· 
-: . -: Department.an4 military personnel as to. whether ..... tics are_, ac~~p~ble .. Military training, especially 

-the Davidian& were __ operating an illegal drug man· ·: ... speciali~ed ·training . .in. eoinbat tactics, should be 
':-~ .. ufacturing::operation at theJ)avidi~ resjd~n-~e. It _. highly- .restricted and the Use of military tactics, 

... --·-· . appears~that_the_ A.1'f.~~~~_ts involved in planning :· .. such as a dynamic entry should be approved at the 
the raid knew th~~--~ey coU,d obtain support from highest_agency levels ..... · .. · .. _· ... 

.. ·---- . the, .. milit.a.o- ... at. ncL.:COSt b1 ·preparation· for their ... · -- -- .. --- · · · · ... '~ · 
raid. It also appears th~t.the ATF kn-ew-that this.::. .., .. ,·:··. F. RECOMMENDATIONS 
support would be provided promptly if the. pres- -. ·. ·1 •. COn~s8- 'slt~~d--- co~llSider applying the 
enee or a drug manufacturing operation was al- · · Poue COmitatus Act to the National Guard 
Jeged. While there had been allegations that a with respect to situations where a Federal 
drug manufacturing operation was located at the law enforcement entity serve• u the lead 

-.s.:.:i_:_ ·(~: ::;-:;: ~~;:::t;:_-;;DavidiUl.:r~sjden~~:~~--.so~~ po~~~ in the mid to ... •re~:~cy. Th~ subcommittees acknowledge that the 
--·~..,·--~_~· .• ·~~·-·<.0·:: . .: -late .l~~.{t.s __ ~f~re Koresh .took-controf:·of,the.group, .. :·· Posse Comitatus Act has been and continues to be 

_:<~':.-·:··,~:.!' .. ·~:,~..,_~~~:.":·.there-:w@s no:~evid.~~:-!hli~Jlle drug.o~t~tion:·con.,~:-~_ a .. significant Ji:otection for ~e:Jights of the people. 
· ·.~_:_.:... ,-:~:i--·.·; :::~.~tiiu1ed ·. i~~---la~..:.J~_92~ =_.rJifAT~~misrepresenta~._;,._. -.The, event-a. in.~.W!ico,, hoW.¢.yer, suggest that these · 

.,:_~;:~c~:.c .. ;~l7::"_;t;_·-,·~:::_!=:~~~fri~~~~:.r~e:i~~;·~d:~~~~~!~mz~~c:;~j~~<:~~=~?~~ ~;~~-:~~.\-~~~~,stron'-·-~-~- m_o:st _citizens 
··,_·~ ···:-:·,..- ·.·-,::~·:.:_~~--~_:;·;~~:hav~·t:provided..J.t.. .:~or~ ·c:iwckly~tll~·f·migbt:'_)\ave ... : :- .. -As--.-disc:Ussed;·-~abo:ve;~:~,tlie Posse. Comitatus Act 

..... · · · .. been .. possible, and ·Without haVfrij ·.tc»~'-~i~~9nf(~- · does~not'':~P._ply-:.to·:'the National. Gu.ard when it is 
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acting· in its State status. As the events at Waco . through the Director or Military Support CDOMS), , 
illustrate, actions taken by National Guard troops an Army two-star general headquartered at the 
can never violate this law, even when those same Pentagon who heads a staff that is on-call 24 
acts would violate the law were they undertaken hours a day. In some cases, commanders or local 
by active duty military personnel. The subcommit- . military bases are authorized ~ provide support 
tees question.whether this disti~~i.on ~s_ acc~p~J~~·.··~ ::'!it!tout. approval of the DOMS 1f the r~uests are 

·· --··--···- to the American people. · ·· ·· :. ... ·· ···· · _·,: ··· · · · .. hm1ted m scope. 7.:<=· ' . 

· · -~-- · ...... ,. ~---·· ...... ,-~·- Tb~ purpose:. of': the·. Posse· -Co~i~~s; Act. :!s.~.~-·-:-;·~:c~.:~ ·or)993, .. _requests fo_r military support. relat· 
· · "'~-:--"~·:···:-~~..::.· .. · .. prevent the. government from usmg ~e :n:'Il1~ry~ ·:::·'.!1~-~-c.o_'!Jl~,rdrug operations were not required. to 
> ... ;-.:;~;-:~ .· .. -~ :.~.,~~,--:-·_&g$st-ita.·o~ -~tize~s. )'et :the ~atio_~~~- G~~~'- ·:~,b~,~,-~m.,tt~ to the __ DOMS for appr~val b'!t 1n· 
~ · · · -..... · · :-; .. -_ ~ ... · · .. _and dre·:&_serve. .exists in· part,--· to ·augment·~~~ a_c-· . . stead: w~re channeled through Operation Alhance, 
: ·->~/~~:~,5":~:·~ .... ~:--.~-~c;~~':-~·.tiye .. ~duty __ miUtaJ'>:·.-. in·· ~!"e·s:?:~~ · :~-~d~_·:.:N..a~on~l,,.: ~.:grOUP. representing .agencies such a$ the ATF, 
--"· ·-~·c-~ :~-:·.--. .. -. ·· · Guard troops,-recelve--Dl.lhtary··trauun{;·.~-~t!Q~~l ... ·~-'- t~~ .. B_or~er. P~trol,-·and other Federal law enforce. 

. . -._.~---:~·''~:~= .. :~ .. . ; .. G.uard .. :Wtita · m:e . .--eQUipped··~th -~~l:i.~ry~:~qwp~~~.;-~.men~. agencies .. together with military representa· 
.......... ~. -~-:--,~--~ .. ·. ·: .... meot,Jn some cases=-the most sophisticated and ~e-·. tives;,.Operation Alliance serves merely as a clear· 
·- ... ~-... ~- ·=~ :·· ·--- ~:that military .equipment in :the· Def'ense .:·De~_a..rt~. :.· .· inghouse for requests, tasking actual mili~~uy or· 

· , ... · ··· · ment's arsenal, including tanks~ figh~r ~an..~ bomb· ... ganizations .to. provide the support. In th1s case, 
. er airct'aft, and armored personnel earners. ~es~. Operation AJiiance tasked Joint Task Force.6 ~d 

units, by design, possess many .or the same ~apa... the Texas National Guard, two or the military or· 
_ . bilities as active military units. In fact, almost ganizations at its disposa1. . · 

· - one-half of the U.S. Armed Forces is composed ~r Requests for support involving the use of lethal 
National Guard and Reserve forces. When act1- equipment such as Bradley Fighting Vehicles and 
vated by the President, the. National Guard be- tanks,361 ~ere to be made through the Office or 
comes part or the active duty military. the· Secreta I)' of Defense in the Pentagon. Appar· 

. ~le _Federal. ~w dis~n~shes bet.wee!l t.!te e~tly~ ho~ever, that requirement was not complied 
Nation~l..Guard.m .1~ vano~ ~~tuses!· ,th_t_s_ c?s.~: .. ,..wlth,m·th•s case.·.~_..::.:.:~=:· 

. ~~:: __ ~ .. -·.-_tinction .'is ·unclear. to the vast .majoritY-of the·p~··· ...... The subcommittees believe that authority (or ap-
.......... · _ .. lie .. Mil!lY dUzeos no doubt w_oul~ ~----~~ris~.~--~d :.:~:~:.proVing.:,military.~upport for dom_~st_ic law enforce. 

_ . , . "·;;:;;:~<.;":::~;;·f~: ·:; :_: :~::· ecm~~111ed tO}eanf t}u~t com~ri:et~f;B.: o(.~~-...,~~~-~-~~-~ ::-ri.ient'.-~p~tio~s·~-shotild be loca_te~. within one or~. 
· -·-- ·--· ----- .. , .... :-: ·· .. ,. :·forces· the tTmted States used m · C>peration ~~-s.ert.. flee· .Withm the Office of the Secretary of Defense. 
· .-.... .'~~':; .·:···.-~>-· :-;;-: ~ :-;; ... ~.t9~.-,.-S()~~~a.::·_and :.~osnia•~·.a'-~ .. '-~.:·,J~~!,~,_,~s.ed~':;.:·: _Centrally .. _l~cating _this r~sp~n.sibility ~ll.help en­

'·-~~-'-''=-~~:_·: .. ::;~·:,:·:::,.~'::.-~·,;agaJJ.lSt tbem.-m ,the ~Un1ted States ~-}o~g.:;'!~ ._t~e. :.· :,sure.thafunifonn·:·st.andards are· apphed tn evalu-
·· ... -.': __ ·<_:··.: ·.~-::;,I· :·.,_ .. s~t:us~:-of ~e~::troops··used fitS'.~-~~,~-~:~ro~~r::.). atingiall:request~-ro~ mili~ry supp~rt and that no 

. ·-- -:.~ _· _:.. .... : ..... --.:. .. :;-. ;·category~::.Glven ~~~ m~y .NationaJ .. GUard un_tts _agencies can successfully end-run. the approval 
have force capab1hties s1mllar to that or active process. It also will reduce confus1on among law 

.. duty units, it makes little common ·sense that on~ . _enforcement age.ncies which, under the process as 
unit's activities m.ay be constrained by the· Poss.e , it existed in 1993, first had to detennine without 
Comitatus Act while another's are not. In short!_ If Defense Department guidance the purpose for the 
it is important to prey~n~ mili~ry force from ~~~g_, ·"' support (i.e.,- counterdrug or not counterdrug) and 

. us.ed -~ .enforc~ the CJVlllaws, 1t shoul.d matte_r !1~·. _:_ the type of military assets that might be involved 
_tle th~ · status or the ·force used .. ~~-~~--t~! .. c7~~~~~- •• :~.Ji.e; ·letha~ assets o~ strictly n~n:lethal assets). The 
zenry. . .. . · . . . . - -~ _ .. -:. . . subcommittees· bebeve that 1t ts best left to the 

·::. . The questio~ of applying the ·Posse ·=co.Jil_i~tus .·~:.·military, ·in the first instan_ce! .to determine l:he n!l· 
.. A.:~~ the Na~onal Guard has. not.bee~ ex_~~~ned __ : .. ture and-type -of·support 1t 1s able to pro~de, 1n 

· . .- recently -by the ·Congress. Accordirigly, the •uJ>.; .. keeping with the Posse Comitatus Act and 1t own 
· ~mmittees . recommend that Co~gress hold hear· · · need to fulfill.its pri_mary defense mission . 

... _ .. ings_ on ~~~, matter to· dete"!l~~ .. "".he~~r . -~~ ·: : :_.: "·:The: .. :process· for ciVilian law enforcement ~n· 
·:~::·.·;' ·:-~·.

0

:
1

~:-~~~-.;: .J>~~se ,Co~tatus Act should be 6roaden~d to apply . · -·.cies --receiving milital)' assistance must req';llre 
.. - · ·· ·· .. _ .. ~ ~e :Na~1o.n~l ~rd and what excep~1~11s ~ .. th.~~ ~,, that all ·requests ... an~ _approvals be in writsng, 

...... _____ ... :: ·:_-_·:::~~-~-~·:·l?~hlJJ.•~o.n~, .. i_(,.,any, .are~app_ropn~te .. to ~~~- ,_:·specifying in detail..:,the·requested and approved 
.. . National Guard m light-ofats role·and m1~sion.-- -- · · military· assistance! Additionally, the Departm~nt 

..:.·---~. -.~e - Departmeut of-.:. .DefeDse ··' ~b_ould of Defense needs to .. establish a clear and conc1se 
atreamlme the approval procesa for Dllhtary standard for what constitutes a sufficient drug 
aup~rt 80 ~' both Poue Comitat.ua Act . nexus. Congress should specifically es~lish. crimi- , 
CO~cta &Dd drug Dexua CODtrovez:sae& , ~. . nat and pecuniary penalties for willful VlOlatJonS O( 

..... · .. :•. ·. a~o~d~ _b) . ~!- future. ~~ _subcom,mJ~.te~s ... ~.~~=:·.-::::-the: dr.ug. ~em_s standard~ .. 
-· · · ..... ·~ ~ ·~·;_ .· .. , .,., ~, xestipUon;;re.v..wed.,; t1la_t :.Department .. ,of Defen.~,~,;,;: .. .,.~ ~; ~~' _ ); ;: ::~ ;·,=,-;;._,~ .7;· -~~-,:~ .. _ . 
-~ ~: .· ""~ :·--.:~:- ~~:·~J»r:~ur~s:J~~r ~~g,·.~eval~ting~:~~ .d¢~~~~;--.·~·,_ .~_Aa_cliKaleed &bcWe. hO..mt.'whne 10me oru- vehkJ• _are ean • 
. -··· -. :. --·~_:, .. ~:..::upon.reques~-fo_r.usiltance fr~m dom~suc·Jaw en< .· .. .wenc~te~ ~~~-l~ Wf!lll~ •fl&eml fn an otthe nu1il.uy ..... 

-~-~-_'::.·--~-- :~:~-:~- .:: .ror~nient~_:ageo.d~ _ wai::~cle~ ~ -~;rly_:~;19~~~~~~-"~!r:.=;:.t-l:e4~"fhe~e:.~':! ~n:~cliaa'i: 
-·-. :. ~- --~ · .. ..: =-;: __ -- Gene~ly, .. ~~~.:'Jor,-mtbtary: .. ·&SSlstaiJ!.ce'" tc?~~ do-~ L clenc& -Hearinp Put~J at· 314 ·c.w&emen& or Allen Ho1,... AMWf:-n& .. 
-:-~ --- ~:~. :"_:: .. :·:-.:~meatlc .. law. enforcement, agencies--were "Chan·nele~_,_ .... -~~&ari,,~~.J~~ ~tioni and_ Low Jn&enalt¥ CoftllicU. 

··:··:·.::~-~ ;::..-.~-~ ._ .. ._~. -.- . . .. -.~-:-~---··:·------~---- .. ::.. ~~·:: - -~ -=:::: -: .. ·:~----::::.- .. ---:. ........ ;.; .. ·:.i•--: .~-:-.· --· .. -
.]0~:- ... ~>~~-~ '-:~L·:;!.· ... -:-. 
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· The subcommittees acknowledge that in May Anti-Deficiency Act or other Federal laws are 
1995, the Secretary of Defense directed the Under . found, the appropriate legal action should occur, 
Secretary of Defense for Policy to establish a work· including criminal prosecution it pennitted under 
~tng group -"to conduct_. a e~mpr.ehensive reYi~W. of existing law. -· . 
the eurrent system by which· Defense Department ·- &. The General Accounting Office ahould in· 

. ~ !::.: _.-,,-;~:·:':evaluates ,and .r~~~nds to reques_t for assist.anee .:vestigate the .activities of _Operation Alliance 
·· · ·- -· · initiated bl_~utsj_de· ageneiea~"- As~-a result of the_"~ ··~In light· of· the .. Waco_ln~~~-e~t.. The subeommit· 

- -· . working group'i- recommendations, the Secretary · ·tees ·concluded · that. Opcr~~on AJJianee personnel 
~ ::·.:_-~reeeritly directed. th_at,.requests f.~~--militarf~u)>po~· knew or should have known-that ATF did not have 

.... _·:·:·.~ are···to·be .. ehanneled through the Office ofJ.he·:AS:- ._ .. _a ·iii.fficient ·drug· nexus- ~~-:wa!"rfijtt the military 
, ,::: · ._,_. sistant Seeretaey __ of_P~f.e.r:-se for Special Operatio·rrs·· . support provided to .i~. on _a_ non~reimbursable basis. 

_.:._._·~-"' -_--:---:.-: and---Low,~InteJ~si_ty __ Confli~~ ~e-.·~suheommit~ees · Senior. DEA. age_nts:-were .members of the Oper· 
· _;_ ·-:-~--~,:::,C:oriimerid th{s--.deas~on~:_tO __ :c~ntra_liZe the··'approval ~-- · ation Alliance board which· approved requests for 
_ · ........ ·:: process for providing thii-typ4fofsuppo~~·This pol--. military assistance, yett.~ei_voi~~d no concerns re-

- icy should .be tr.e_q~e~~ly mooitor:~d so as to ·ensuie . garding ATFs plan to directly· assault an alleged 
that law enforcement agencies,· ·Jlld field com-- : active methamphetamine laboratory. Military offi· 
manders,-are complying with it.-· · ·· · - -- --~-- ···: :·· eers were present when. ATF was presented a 

3. Congress should review the legal status paper detailing the potential dangers and special 
of memoranda of agreement for the inter· precautions required when dealing with an active 
state use of National Guard personnel for ci· methamphetamine laboratory. The purpose of the 
vilian law enforcement purposes. The sub- meeting was to detennine whether a drug nexus 
committees' investigation revealed that the use of existed. Even though there. was evidence that no 
National Guard personnel across State lines for drug existed, those military officers present took 

.... --·-:' Jaw-:-~orcement _p~~~ses is . a common practice. no action. UPS receipts which allegedly detailed 
, · This practice·· is ··eonductecf through simple~,..- pro·:··.-·:--deliveries of .. pr~~~~~r .. che~ieals to the Branch 

,... forma memoranda· of agreement which rarely take .. _ ·Davidian ~sidenee .-and ~:wer.e used to substantiate 
+ ~··~/;if·:~ili~{'·•e~tin~·- State,Jt\w..~- :.gqyem.ing the_:.~~e: ~(:,.the;::;:-: _th_e ._dJ1tg. ~-e~s~jv~_t.~--~~v.:~er~- ~·be found when 

. :'!: :,_, National_(;~~_., ~~. ,su,~.m~mt~es beheve ~that,~:: ·:··:the -Subc_o~~JutteeJ .. r~q~es~~ ~op1es. . ..... . 
.. j·_c.. :- :--, .. :-:-: :;:_ .- .. j11 ;pz:actice, -.:m.~Y--·.ar·-tnese ~- agr~e_ments··,supersede. . ::-: Addi~onall.Y~."the · subC'on1m'.it~~s· review of mili· 
-_.~;;_:-:_~'--::~/::~-;-:·:t.State.:_'~n$_tit~QQti~~~~-~-~t~tes.-·Witho~t-legal au· · tary do~um.~,n~ proVided at their request and the 

--,_.. · :_·i.:.-_, :·_:-:~:thonty._-:~~!;~~~mMi~!kcf .. ~tr,~i-:eonc~med:: th~~- ·:;:~:resut_~_:o(~i~,te,.~e~~ ~th pers~m~s in_volved in this 
·.- these agreements do not.eon'lply Wlth Federal laws .. -. mattet: .. ~J~r,y):lentons~rate: that= there was a con-

. and may violate the U.S. Constitution. tinuing ·concern· .from senior military officers that 
The .subcommittees recommend that Congress, JTF-6 was providing support to non-counterdrug 

· the Department of.. Defense, ·and its National . activities, and _that -~e Special Operations Com· 
Guard Bureau come to an agreement on the prop- mand was attempting to reinforce resistance to 

. er .. legal status of these National Guard Memo- this recurring misuse of military eounterdrug as· 
....... ,. __ randa c)f _._Agreement. If it is determined these . sets and fun_ds, referred to as "cheating. • Given 

· _. __ ·- -. ·agreemen~ reqUire eqngr~ssionaJ·ratifieation, pro- ~hat·_ th~ military·:.assista.nee_ to ATF for Waco 
_ - cedures to obtain ·sue~ approval ·should be estab- under dubious-. eirc:U.mstanees · appears to not have 

-_lished by the ·National_ Guard Bureau.-:-··-.~- -. ··. --·: been ~-ariomaly,· and the fact that Operation Alii-
··. , _, ;_-'-- . _,Regaroles.S -··or- _whether . these me~oranda .·_or . anc~·-~ jurisdicti~n has ·significantly expanded since 

agreement require··corigressiorial ratification, --how;; c.·_._ Waco, -~~ suJ?coi:Jimit~~s-- recommend that the 
___ ... .·ever, the National Guard Bureau should establish General ACeoimtirig Office investigate the aetivi· 

a centralized review process for- aU Memoranda of --ties ofOpera~ion Alliance. · ·. 
· ~ · Agreeme·nt involving the interstate use· _of th·e. Na· _.. · · ·- · 

. tional Guard personnel. This review process_ must-.. , ... ~ -~~~~~~~Ns To END THE STANDOFF Wrm 
·.-_-·::::,, ,.::_==>,--. '·:c~-inchid_e a ·per:,~se J~).determi_nation that··perti-:· ·:. ·· .. ·- -:.:,_._:-.-- - ... _,_.. ~,~AVIDIANS 

-· ·: ··· nent State law. is not violated by the agreement.... ---~'-: Negotia~ons .. between the_Jf1JI and the Branch 
4.. The General Accounting Office should Davidians eontinued _··for 51. days during which 

. audit the mfiitary assistance provided to the time the negotiators utilized generally accepted 
ATF and to the FBI in connection with their negotiation techniques. The FBI was unwilling to 
law enforcement activities toward · the ·engage in a novel approach toward the Davidians. 

• -·-~ _ . _ .. :::r -~~=-=--_;_·-~~~~- ~-yi~~·· Given that -the su~ommit- While American hostage negotiation -training, es-
_-- :_.- ·- ·• 

7-~' --:.=---:: , ~ ~ have ~n un~llr~~~n- de~i!~4 .infonna~.::~-->-p~cially ... FBLtraining, ~~ tbo.ught to be the best in 
.··:...-:.-:.-:-.~-- '>~:··~_':·~,-,_::·a~_ concerning _.-the ... _v,tl_h~~. ~_(Jhe mili~_ty ·support: · .·:.-·the worTd,'-·there·--remains ·COO$jder~le room for re­

"'~----:~:·~ ... ;:_~,~~\f.:'Jffl)Vfded~J.Ctthe··;ATF.$nij:~tbe ;FBI, th,@:~su!t~tn,mit-.·.:- asseument-_a.nd;;,bas_ed .. oo the Waco· ·reeord, im· 

· · ~~·~=~'.:~:·~~~:i~~ii;~i!~t~~~~~ir;l~~~:.·g~~eitJ;~J~~::!~::~; . 
~~~.~~:: .::- .... ~., .. _ ""' ,.and- to ·ensure.: that>eonip)~te ~.i'eimburse~nent hu . given by its own experts .. TJte evolving nature of 

been m•de by both:-agencies •. If violations· or·the .. · ... hostage barricade situations:·ne:eessitates that ~ 
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the future the FBI continually strive for the pre· . gression in strategy that occurred among' the FBI 
paredness to confront more emotional and unpre- Commanden at Waco in his Report and Rec· 
dictable barricaded subjects. At Waco, FBI resist.. ommend4tions. At first, according to Stone, ~e 
ance to different negotiation methods may have agents on the ground proceeded with a strategy of 

"· :· -- · contributed to a prematurJt ~~siQ_!] . to. el).d .. ~e . conciliatory negotiation, which had the approval 
- .. : -~---· :·-.,standoff> .... : ~.: <::. - ·:. :. and understanding. ·or the entire chain or com· 

:· •. · .. <:·:. -·- _ -·A. THE CONFUCT-B~-..fACTI~ cO-MMANDERS ·- · mand._: ~shed·~}' __ the tactical leader, ~e com• 
· · · ~ ·: --=-·::·- -- ·---_.--AND NEGOTIATORS_-.~ -_.·:'. :;_ :·_;;.~ .... _ · . .-·- .· -mander~n _the_gro~-~ began t:o allo": tactic~. pres· 

_ :: ~;,_ ··· ~ ,. - · -·'-"-.:.-;;:·-· .. . .. . ... ~ ... :_. _ -- : ··< - . . . ·. ::. ::, :· .- . : .. _. ·sures· to be ·placed.on the res1dence 1n addition to 
.... :.·: .. : •.. _______ ,.J;-.. ~TM:·probkm·:wi~h- two ~arns:.o~:-,.negotialing:. . .-.;-negotiation~·373 Stone summarized the feelings or 

- teanr-and a tactr.cal team· .. - .... ·: - . -. . . . "· ... -- f''·th··· ··.··· . bl . s· 
_-· _; __ -~,---·· .. :. __ .::--·~ ·. • .... · .. -·7 ... ..... : .... -. __ ._, "";;:-·_·· .... _.:-==<;~ .. : .. ,-: .... ::negotiators- o · ... I~.J.neVJta e progress1on. tone 
- . _,· :~.-~ -~--.. ::·::_:~:.;:;·.-·.- .:.-:·<At'Waco~:the FBI. 'C~_risis.Manag~m~.llt._Team was·< --writes,:·-r~tis··changing strategy at the residence 
-- .-- -: _ ~-. -~---- ~-::: . :_:. · ·: · '_dep_l~y~f~~e Czisif}dan.St.!!ment. Team is~ riiade · from (1). conciliatory negotiating to (2) n~gotiation 

.---- ... :-·:. .. ----~-·.::-:: .. ~::up or--a--vanety or taw enforcement proresslonals,; ... , ... arl~. ~ct~eaJ_pressure.and then to (3) tactical pres· 
. · among -them·· agentS· triiined as tactical ·agents_ .and·. · · .. ~ iurif alone, evolved over the objections or the FBrs 

· ~ as ·negotiators. The team was divided into groups · · · own experts and. without clear understanding up 
---. -· ..... .. with separate leadership and different responsibiJ. · the chain ))f command." 374 

ities .. Each team gave ita perspective to Jeffrey :· The . di~eement w~ called a ~ndamental 
·Jamar, the Special Agent in Charge, who_ deter· strategy disagreement. 375 The negotiators sug· 
mined which strategy to employ in negotiations. gested that tactical maneuvers worked against the 
There often was a conflict between these two ap· negotiation process. The tactical team wanted to 
proaches. · employ aggressive tactics. Regarding the connict 

Although disposed to the active approach, Jamar ~th tactical peo~le, M~lure says simply, .-rae· 
_ allowed the proposals of each .team to be. imple· t1~al p~p!~ .. t~u.nk. m tactica! terms and negotiators 

__ men~d ~ ~imultaneously, working against· each . ~~~n~_ m _negott.abo~. ~rms: 376 Byron Sage, a Su· 
·"'=~- · ··-· ·.. other.: .. ·,_ .. -~--·:' .. ·· .'~-: -- -:·.:----'-., .. · .. :;.: · .. ·· .. · ~- pety~_~ory Speetal Agent and the lead day-to--day 

.· .. '-~:~:;·.~ > .:.;L~--~-~,~~--~;,.~-~---=~l!·-~-tf!-~fcl;~-d~~-it!-·N_~8.,~~~~-~-::·--.-;~_-:-·~~·-.:r~~~~!:~&::;::Jfd ::~~: ~~~~~l~ds~-
::<--: .. -.. _.= ·,:.·-: :: ::-:;;,:·~-!:.::.!:"ACcording to. ~e FBfs Chief:Neg0tiatbr~ ·Gary: -~-~d~_iation'·· teams] ~-presented difficulties, for sure, 
_;- ::- • . <= .-.-:-.:· _ •. : ~----. ·N~$-~er,:;~~ .. :~cmfli~J>~tween· tactical-.and_._nego- · .'·_bp~~dlat -i•. not.,u.nu$.~1. These are not matters 
. ... >.·~~<~;,-.:-·j ;::_:~-:~ti.hg t;e~~~ Js:.~~- ()ne univena1.eleme·n~ 'iiVlaw·'i··~~-:~lj-~f.we· ~~re_:iiq(prep,ared to attempt to negotiate 

::-:.,._. .. ,_;_;·~--- ·: ·; .,. _:·erifo~reenient operations of this· type.~:~l tacti~r~:.· t~.r~iiglj/,~~7 IJt.;Jhe~:.end, however, the tactical 
~~· .:::':."'... .. forces are trained to act in stressful;--Yiolent situa:"~~'~ team won', the endorsement or Jamar. 

tions. Agen ta are ·1nclined toward ·the·· •action · im- .. -'·Jamar decided to constrict the perimeter or the 
_. ----· _ .· perative," the sense among agents th~t ~otiv~~s , . _building by moving vehicles closer to the residence. 

them to act.369 Negotiaton are more ·inclined tO On· March 9, 1993 the FBI began to use Bradley 
seek a nonviolent resolution or the standoff simply Fighting _Vehicles to elear debris (ineluding auto-
by virtue or their training. mobiles and. boats) from the front or Mount Car· 

::.----. ·The FBI has a policy .in place that favors a nego- mel. On March -14, 1993 the FBI focused bright 
... : .·. :.>~--, -··tiated settlement.-~7<» Through-a type of negotiation··- ·lights ori ·the--residence -in an effort to disrupt the 
.. <. :-- __ .. _.": .ealled active listening; negotiators attempt to firid sle.ep or those inside. Four days later, loudspeakers 

_ ~ . ·· ·· ·· • ··. 7 ways to explain ·to the barricaded subject why it is were set up ·to communicate messages from the 
.. .-: in.·his best interest to seek a nonviolent solution... FBI to· the Davidians inside the residence. Soon 
·_. ,. : This. FBI- policy and ·training or negotiators con~· .··-thereafter ~-··the FBI begar:t playing recordings or Ti· 

.· ructs with the •action imperative." betan chants, rabbits being slaughtered, and other 
· .-. · b- •1 • d' , .. bet tL-. t . . sound effects.37~ ..... · -. _ .. • ~~r. . -~-~eernen..., ween . 'K wo- Wh'l ti to- -.- . · · -... t · to • th -· .. t -- · · -- · teams . _ . . .. _ __ .. . .. · . : _ 1 e nego a rs were rymg g&Jn e ... ~ 

. ···· ·· . . · -~ -- - . · .... of Koresh ·and --the·.:.Davidians, the actions or the 
_. -. _Each_.. t.e_am ada~ant1y argue~_ to Jam._ar on. be~_ __ ta~ical team gave Davidians reason to distrust 
_:}.&l(o( Jts, perspective and adamantly. opposed the FBfs negotiators. At the hearings, Sage explained. 
others.'~~ Dr. Alan A Stone'72 c~ron1cled the pro- · 

'- • .: •. ' - _r ~._·· •• :· 

duding time COMtralnt._ ·Dr. Stone aubmiu.ed an lndiYidual report apen 
-Briefing by Fedenl Bareaa fll IM•dgation SapeniiiJI")' Special trvm Lhe JuaUce Oepanmen& ~ 8ft infra no&e 313. 

"',:' 9err No-.ner 1o &he aabc:DmmiU... November 1e96. na Alan A. S&ofte, Report: To Deputy Att.omey CenenJ Philip 
.,. :~ · HeymanD, Repcn and Reeommendaliona Conceminc &he ~~l_n· 

. _~U.S. Dept. f11 J•tiee, Report to &he DepalJ AU.crne)' Cenera1 on d~&a Sach • &he Branch Daviclian S&a~ Ia Waco, TX. .-......-.i.t, 
· ~- ---~ ~-- -:.·.·_- · .· ,_.-~-~~~-..at W.o. .TX 75 (1993) (beftinafter J•tiee ~t Reo . AW::·A. ~-~-~!h ... ~pv,~.8.J993) (herei~ S&one Rep:nl. 

~~~!c:~~·:·;:~i"?~:_;.;.; .. ~:.::~--::..~~=::~·~'-~~~~~~--?n-~.t.::·-:'.:.·~ft~nP.-Jtait:~ .. aL,3J~CJ~ Noaner &eatiftecl bel~ &he lab-
·. ·. .. · .. ana Ia · · ·rcfte · =-·Bat · · · ..... ~- ·---~"- -'· .. '·. , .. ~ ~t Waco,.there_~"·-.A:-fJU'Ciamental atra&ec:Y cfiucr'eemen& 

-~~ii0'~3_:~~E:~~~~lflf~~-~~1j~~~~~=~~-
- . . ·""";· :- .... . =·=~ .! :-
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"'t is not uncommon to, as part of the negotiation fact that •the appeal of any _tactical initiative to an 
process, to actually try to ingratiate yourself a lit· entrenched, stressed FBI must have been over· 
tle J>it more with Koresh and his followers by say· . whelming,• Stone reasons, •the desultoey strategy 
ing.-l~k. this is out of our hands, but that is why of sim~~taneous. negotiation and tactical pressure 

. . __ you need to give us something to work with." 37~ It was enacted as a cOmpromise. • 386 Stone concluded 
·--::·--.-::.:··_is ··difticiilt· to imagine· that U$e,:of tactical force .. ~hat tactical maneuvers were initiated as a way to. 

. . -- coUld be a beneficial tool with those whom· experts· ' "relieve ·agents' desire· to act. 'It is let\ to the SAC 
. _.... . -~·· .. iay" 'should . ~- trea~ wi.~ ._ ~\l~ion and- eoncma.~ - .= to override the group psychology of the agents on 

___ .. _. _ · .··:-..... tion.··NotwithstandingSage'sdescrip.tion .. of.the··~c:.; .. :-·'···th_e· grotind- and -~ake the .d~~ions necessary to 
··.' .. ' ' . · ~ ~ .. · .-,:-~ ~ ·._ ... · .:~".iical '·'maneuvers~~ as-· helpful 7 to:'" pegoti~~on~~ .)lily'·_. ·reach ..... a .. : peaceful conclusion. Storie . writes, -rhe 
· - · ···: .. _,.. ·consequences of aggressive movements on th~ part. ·:.·' __ FBI ·should not· be;pushed by .. ~eir group psychol· 

· ---···"-of- FBI. .were: not __ ones ·it intended. They \Ver.e pre.".-.·· og)i ·into misgUided ad hoc decision making the 
diCted, .. however.- Gary Noesner remarked, •Jdo .riot::·. next time·arou.nd .• 381. ":· .. :·.- ·' .: .. :···· · 
a!"ake froth nightmares or hB:ve trouble.sleepi~g at .. :-.-,:--·.'~e.· fk ~it~Ci on'ti:egotitltions of the ckcision to 
n1ght ..... • · _bec~use .. eY~J"Y!hmg_:-; that I_ P'.e~scte_~ . . emploj toctical maneuvers 
would happen, did happen. 380 .. : .. ... • .• . . ·:· .. :·. . •. 

. , . . • - The declsJon to employ tactical maneuvers bad 
c. Insuffu:unJ commu.n.tca.twn between the the exact result negotiators and experts predicted. 

two team~ and thezr commanckrs The experts advised against antagonizing the 
In testimony before the subcommittees, Jamar Davidians.388 In a memorandum coauthored by 

described the strategic decisionmaking process. He Peter Smerick, an FBI Criminal Investigative Ana· 
said, "''he supervisors o{ each component would lyst, and Park Dietz, Clinical Professor of Psychia· 
get together and report and discuss matters. And · try and Biobehavioral Sciences at the UCLA 
we would have various meetings." 381 Noesner said _ School of Medicine, the FBI was advised that "ne· 

· ·· ·.' the· problem: :.was· '·not one of communication~··;:.:; gotiations coupled with ever increasing tactical 
__ _ : ..... ~ _-_: ·- .,. Jamar's ~-·office . was across . from the negotiation .. · .presence • • . could eventually be counter-produc· 

:: .·-·:~-· '.'§;._: · --~ ·;. r-· -~->·room~: No.esner c:Omrnu.nicated ,th_e desired approach · tive ·and eould ·result in loss of life. • 389 When tac· 
. ···.:: ~--- ·--·<::·':··: .. ·of negotiatOrs. \viih. regularitY~)uid o~~':in·:heated·:;,--.·ltical -man~~yer~: w~.re utU~~ negotiations were 

_-_.,_' ·--·.; · '·. <~;:: · · ~xchanges. Ja~..:.he~n;l_op_irii~.ns from 'the ·nego--··=.::.·ise.tbac.k..: TJu~,D.aviru.~ris ·wer:e.'unable to.· sleep with 
._.:. _:.; ~ ··~ :· ',_·:.' . tiatOrS· ;and tacQcal agents given witJt·eqi:Jal .force.::. · . sounds._ Qf, loud .. music . and rabbits being slaugh· 

·.-::~~;·.:'.~-'_,-· ..... ,,: .. ':He~.let each ... strategy gt) ·Coi'Ward as if:it- was ::the .·,=terecf~ .. Th·e:IlaVi.dians: were angered by movements · 
·----- ---·~-·- c.•.t:pninar)i"one~382 ...... . _. . .::·"''- ; .. ; "' ':,0:: .-,: .. ·::-::.0(-'the armored 'personnel -cilrriers. They were an-

. . d. De_~isions between the options presented by gered by the . clearing of .debris from · the · 
... :.. . .. the two te47n1 . _ ·--=- .. . ... .... grounds.390 As Richard DeGuenn, the lawyer rep-
, · ~ .. · - -.. · · . resenting Koresh, says, tactical maneuvers ap-

In early 1993, FBI pohcy was to place the Spe. peared to be •calculated to discourage anyone from 
cial Agent i~ ~rge of t~e FBrs ~gion~l offic~ ~n coming out." 391 . 

.... . ., . :- . _~charge '?f makmg operat1onal dects1ons .m a cnsts .: The effect that the tacticaJ maneuvers had on 
... : .... ~. ·-H~~ Wa;o.- Noesner descri~ the ~le of th~ SAC.· ... _:·r.ei0tfat1o-ns:~.w!J.~:only·one of_ the problems result· 

sa)'lng •. He h~ to take .the tnform~ti~n-.an~ -~up_~e. _ ... · ing from that_ decision. In· fad, some believe that 
that·. WJth the mformation he recetves frOm other . playing loud .. music bonded the Davidians closer to-

:·:.,: in~lligen~e sources~ fro~~! th_e _tac_tical team ~d ~e gether.392 · ' · ·· ... -· · 
. . . has to wetgh all those t~ungs, we1gh· ·them WJth h1s · .. . .· . . . . . . . .. . . . 
. . _:·own. experiences and his own perceptions and· he f. Tac,tt~al ma~uuers _may have fed 'nto the . 
. .. . has to come to a decision .• 383 . . . .., .. , .. . . ' .. . .. . . .. ... . . . ' . v~szon antzczpated b)# Koresh 

, ~·:.:, .. ,_, .. '-~':' N~~er emphasized the fact that the realprob-~_~_.-_:·---Koresl(ofieri warned Davidians that they would 
lem. in Waco. w:~ one or leadership. 'nle situation .. cije~ b( a· fire brought on· by •the Beast."39a· In 
at Waco required someone to make the decision on Smerick's March 8 .memo~''·'he recommended that 

_. wh&t strategy to utilize to confront this_._~(9pven~.- •· ~ctical .pressure "should. be ·the absolute last op­
tional" · glijup. He characterized Jamar as an ac.- .- .... tiori ·we( should consider, and that the FBI might 
tion-oriented agent, one who fell prey to the •ac· · · -·----
tion imperative.•S&C . =~~ at24 . 

. Stone describes the action imperative in terms or .. Memorandum tram Criminal Jn\Wtig&UYe Aulrat Peter Smerick 

... ... .thbel _FtoBthrs "FB~up_J~~~oi~'P's··to. ~!.~~1p1tions ahvail· ;:~:~~t..:::=::-~~!'7~ BiobehaYicnt 
: _ .. - . . a e .· . e .., aecon.ung "" ne, ae som~w ere: ..... :: .. -ld. . 

·~~~~[~~!~~i.rii~~~~~~!!~~~~~~~~i 
_. Brieft~ by Gay Noeloer SO the IRibcoilaadU... apiMt the Waco "bioiii!iari 'if:Uiemeillt Ia lal.e Febnlar7 1993 ....._. &o 
.. S&one HepGK at a. &haN iMide &o nlidac.e a& leMt pen o1 K.anlh .. pnpheq.'.ld. 
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unintentionally make Koresh's vision or a fiery end however, the shooting stopped and negotiations 
come true. • 394 When the FBI began to play loud began. 
music and inch closer to the residence in annored In his statement to the Department of Jwtice, 
vehicles, experts maintained that those were ex· Agent Cavanaugh gave a compelling description of 
aCtly the. wrong tactics.396 )'iore than simply_bon~_·.-··· . the'· first moments after the raid.402 The atmos· 
ing the Davidians together, expertS.concluaed that.- phere was frenetic and hostile. Cavanaugh's tone 

. the$~·- actions proved KOresh·· _iigl,ltjn. ~-e min4~ .. o,f ; _was .friendly as he sought to gain the trust of those 
· :~ . ____ ~~he·· . .-Davidi_ans; ··The Justice -:,:Dep$r,tmerit Jt~po~~- ,~~·:in the residence._·· .... · 

·-···· --~~ .... : ,_ . notes,- •Some.of the experts felt. ~at th~. 8ggressive .·._, ..... Cavanaugh gained the Davidians' trust by ac· 
. _. :=.·::·-:·.· .. · ... ··~·: -~ta~icaL .m.~.v~~ ·pla)'e~ -·into· '~~e~h·s· -h~ds:"-:-3-~ ·: .. knowledgi~g ~tlfe;·-David_ians' point or view.403 He 

.·-.. .:E_ven clamar,-who made the ·deci~ion·~to.us.e .. Jlte~e ·.granted. many of their requests.404 He talked with 
.. ·. . . --iaetics,_·safd,-•I.di~-not like it.•_39'7 .·. :. ,.. . .. . . __ --: .. . : ·. .them.· as· ,tho~h .. : they" were· •equals" trying to 

·""· '· ... ~,~:·'· .. ·"·~S~~-~-'"-'.-BINEGOTIATiol:{omRTVNim:S·-.~~:::.,·. ·'· "".,,: _~chieve the~-~a~e~~?~ls.~·-~avanaugh assuaged their 
-~·:· .~- _ .•• _, •• .· .• ·c,• '7": .. . ·. . . .,. . ·- . . .- _ .. .concerns · by-·promJsmg. that they would be ad· 
~~- _"!fliy: the r.sr clumged negotiators_ -- ··-·· ·· · . .. . dressed. Most importantly, Cavanaugh established 

Soon. ~r the raid the FBI was calied to ·take · a routine that --prOduced the release of some 
commancf of the· =sit.:ation at .. the Davidian -resi;. -.. Davidians.405 

dence. Edward Dennis writes that •ATF requested Cavanaugh .e~tablished a rapport with Koresh 
assistance from the FBI on February 28 1993 and other Dav1d1ans. When Cavanaugh left the ne· 
after ATF agents had attempted to serve an' arrest gotiations, Koresh mentioned that he ~issed 
and search warrant on the Branch Davidian Cavanaugh. He noted that Cavanaugh prom1sed t.o 
Compound.•398 Before the FBI took over, negotia- be there until the end.406 But on March ~· 19~5 
tions with the Davidians had begun. Lieutenant Cav~augh left Waco, ,only to return bnefly .m 

. Larry Lynch, or the :McClennan ·c~unty She_zjft's . ~pnl. After Cavanaugh~ departure, the nego~a­
. -.-.~ Department/ ~d Jlrarich~.Davidian·:Wayne Mar-Pn _ ... tJ~~-s wer~--~~:r.B! o~_~r_a~1on . 

. _ . · ·talked ·~ver the Waco 9~J _Emergency line~399 Soon·· . . .-·_:_~b .. Why the FBI was brought in . 
J!~!-~':.~?,-;=t.·.- ~-· · th_e~_r._,~'!:-f.~~~~s~~(,Spe,.9-~;l;.~e.~tjl): G~-~r.ge~l;·-~it::·:·The: ATF-:asked for~:the aid .. of the FBI. and-.·. 

. .. ----· ..... J~mes ·~av~7a~~an-~ -~~_vuiians_-·Stev~ .$~~n~nd_~r~: .. ::agr~d:that·'ifwoutd.,oo.:best for the FBI to assume 
;:~;._::.;.~~"" ·:·:.;: .. ·-·':·:~:and ~~resh.~ sp~ke ·by telephone:·.Jn.~:;a!~~P~-~~~;._.,,_.operational cohtrol;ofth_e-entire siege.401 All of the 
,~t·---" ~::t:-::·:~~·,; .-:·;,f-i·i:-_resol_ve· theJmtlal. firefight.400 ~~~!!~.~>'• ·q_~.~.~.r:t,~P.~~::~-~:; officiat-:·-report$::-:not.e·· th'a:t the FBI was asked to 

-: · ... _.::.:~.~,·-:.>- . ·-,~ ~,: succe~_s_~l..r. n:e~~.tJ.ll~ _B;Jl_,end ~-·-~:~ .s~_o~ttpg~:.:~~=~;. ··take over the siege.408 . 
· · · Cavarraugb, WJtiJ the- help of' the-Texas Depart- . 

ment or Public Safety, made measurable progress .. • 11 Department or the Truaury Document.. al.aLement or ,..,. 
toward release of Davidians. Communication was Cavanaugh: · ...... _, caned the compOund directly··-on the phone from the undcreover 
extremely difficult between Davidians inside and . ·houae. I nached a man named Steve, lat.er identified .. Steve Schneida'. 
ATF agents outside. Nonetheless, Cavanaugh rna- I &.old him J wu an ATF agent and I wan&.ed ID LaJt ID him &boat Lhw 

· u] d h eli 1 fr th h • 1 • aitwation. M ahoulcf be expec&.ed. the activity inaide Lhe compou.nr:! wu 
. . nJp. a~ -~ e. a _og om e ys~nca scream!ng •ery _frantic. people were ac:reaming and yelling. and there .... ecm 

. . . ' dunng the gun battle ·to productJVe COnVersation · .. 1hooting going on ~Lh li4b. &e-ie Wal Yet)': UQ~ and YeT)' ha.tiJe. 
- -· "" ~-- ·tea'dmg to a cease 'fire· ........ ~., ._,_~.,.."--· ... .::... ---~:..:::: -~ .:· ... _7"1 wanted .a.o negotiate a·c:e&le fire• a.nd he (Schna~er) wu ~ 
·· -- - - . . • · .. ·- --:- - . - . I am not png 1D be good·on-the time or how long tt aoot,-but tt Loot 

-~--- .. : . ;. - ·:·· ~~- ·C~vanaugh~s' :rappdrt with !!ie. iJciuW.ia~·: ----~. :~~~~e;~~~~~~~nr~~~=-::: .~~~~:e ': ~ 
.,_ ...... ~--:··The· most difficult task after the raid fai}ed··W8S· , -~~ia. t.here·wal etiR ahooting going on both .idee. I had 1D 1'1' on 1M 

-. ·- ·-- tabl" h 1" b1 th d 1.". . ~nd. net frequency and t.e11 t.he commanclen on Lhe erouncf &here ,_ . .- to es JS a re Ja e, common sense me o ,or - ; not a.o •hOot. and they had to relay l.hat a.o aJI 100 agenca, who Wl!l"e 

· communicating with those inside Mount Carmel. around lhere, ao it look aJiuJe time to arnnge i&. - '· . C ' • th .d . fi . "'Once I returned ID the rear command poet I ca11ed bKk ill CD &he 
. . · -_ .. : . .-~-· ., .. ~mm~u:~tmg-. e · -a~ee upo~.: ~~se re was ~ephone r., ~- ~de~ .. about 2:00 p.m. and r a poke with &eft~ 

· ·.·,:,"'·-:;~:.:~-~-', ___ made cfi..~cult __ by the.~sJZe of M9lll.lt Ca.rmel and · · David Koreiah about _wha&_ .... pna_oo. We had~ conwena~ 
-- - ·- .. the A...,.',_.entation of ATF agents 401. Eventually . -about the wan-ant and we at.o had. lot otconvenationa aboat Biblical 

. ... ., _.u cat;m · · .. . . _ • · · • paaeaga. and Mr. _Koreah'a belief Lhat he wu U. Lamb of Cod. who 
- ... ••• •·· ... ....;·-..... ~"~-·: 0 .. C . ·-.·~· '." • ••. ·would. opei._tl,e.SeYen Sea1a. Aa ~might a•wne. he WU Y'e171atile. 

Of~~~~ Criininalln~tin Ma)yst Peter ~ct-· .. "'e:l,li~~Cip~~2l2~;7, ATF ~t .ramea c. .. naugh. the bli&iaJ 

-Jaatice ()epartment Rep:n at 185. negotiaiDr clwing the aLanclon: leltifie&t bel'ore l.he aubc:onuriU... "tThe 
.. J.~ Department Rep:n aL 185. FBI) eel.abliahe&t truat with Koreah./d. C&Yanaugh appean Lo haft been 
..,HEd.nnps. P0at~t.31!· E aJ • H aceompliahed aL active lwteni •• The FBI, however, clid not c:hoaae tore-
.. ward 2 • ua~n-. "'·· • wation ol Lhe aac!Jing tJl Lhe Branch lain Cavanaagh . · 

Da¥idian &ancloll'in Waco, TX 6 (1893) (bereinal\er Dennia Report). _.A aumma,Y or the Davidiana' requ.ta can be round ill che Jaatice 
.. . . -McLennall Cowl~ Sheritra l>epatment.. SHl 'l'raMcriP'a (Febnaary · .. a>e::rtment Re~ in the Ap dix. 

·.·;~~:~~~t~-~·.£~;:~~~k~~~~B:iii:~~~: :a:£i~3a~it~~E~ 
··-":.' ,_,,~:-:-:- __ ,_ ~- .... · . ~-~ ~-f~,~ pm ~:Lo walt thJooachoat Lhe nafd~ · ··pie 1D be releued during that period. •• • •lfL .. 

....:-...:::,-·..- ·-~_.,;,~: :.· ·::.~., ·· -- --~ ten. ~--~r~, ·~-~"1· .Ca•ana• ._W.-no dared. ..,.Tranecripca ~the Negotiation• Between Lhe FBI ancl the Daorictiull 
~-==- .·.;;-::-.-, .. .. ... . - -~eli~~-~-~ ~~:~~~~to .a4"ae Lhe ~ -~ fll.Lhe ~ ftre , .. ,.CMaroch .• ,.1993).{hemnal\er Necotfat.ion Tranacripta). 

.. ---. -·=-:::. ~~:..:_:: ... :=::--:-. .-;.::..U.S. &be~ f~.~ lWD~ci.Lo commamca&e Wlth.Lheir:-eent.a..~ ';::~~::.-~?Juatice De_partmenL Report at 22. . · 
-· ;;:,: ..... ;: t.\_,._-nl_~ .-.:·=,!'·C~MM-ftre wu ~Li.cl-.k_.JI'l1011:oC.time befi:IN·&he ahootin;·ftn:aD,vJ.::: .. ::. ·· .. Tre.UIU)' Department Repcn aL 114. Jaatice Departmen& ~at 
. ·.~-,· c·~·; ,:!~.._-.:.:: ~'"''.;: -:--~14.'-=·;-'·-··:~-- .. : . .. :. . . :~';~:~. ~-:.'~~:. ....... __ :::~ I. 
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According to the Justice Department Report, the tJ. SMrilf Jack HarwtU 
FBI Hostage Rescue Team was the law enforce· Early in the negotiations, Koresh and the 
ment organization best equipped to handle the Davidians told the negotiators they had a cordial 

- standoff. 408 It _is _because of its expertise that the relationship with Sheriff Jack Harwell. On March 
.. .. :. _._. :.·""'·· · F~l is· can~ in to· take control of complex barri· · 13, Jamar alJowed Sheriff Harwell to participate 
- .:. ;::: . .;. .. :~.de: aituaf.j~qs ·throughout the eountry __ ~d __ the ..... in.:negotiations. ACco"r:ding to the Justice Depart· 

__ -.. __ ,_ .. :_,-___ . jvorld. ACcording·~=the Treas\lry Departnieht.&~:_-: .. · ·mentJteport, io atlow an··W,trained negotiator to 
:-_::;~~--~::-~' . .-:-: ,port. on th~,_ir_u~jd~.r:tJ;·ATF knew immedia~l,y._&fter _. partjcipa~: in such: operations was a .. departure 
-~:.-_:;0~------ -_ -.-~h~ raid begiif·-~at:i_t vioiild·rieed -~e-help-;ofthe.~. ~fr.om_·:conventionar negotiation doctrlne.• 412 In 

. -- ..... FBI.- Tbe-~appar.~h~(~animitY.'~is expressed in the _ P.t:epa~aJ~on· for .these negotiations, Noesner and 
_ -- .-, ·- --.:~--·.-De~~~I ~r,~~\irf_:·:p~partment Re~ji.~to:·- ·-~:th~.--f.JJI .~egoti~ti~ns-~put~Ha~ell throug~ quick 
- -. _,_- ::' ::_ Once the-de~isio~ was_·made·to tum th~-~operation ___ ; and ~~~n..s~ ,t!'81n!ng_ tl} pro~e~stonaJ negottatlons. 

·- : :- over· .to the FBI, the·_ Fa..L was in. ~arge _ _._ ~f ~~-:-o- . ,~}~~~~11- :.'!~s put m this. pos!tion only because he 
- - - .. -- - _., scene in Waco within a matter._ or hours. . . . _ . _ . was a person who~ .: both ·:·stdes truste~. And a] • 

.... ::- .. - . . . . _ . . · , . . . ....... '·--·-'.. thoOgh ·-the negottaton were womed about 
. 2. ':flY the Fl!l t!Jdn 't aUow .othus to part&eipote in · Harwell making ·the. situation worse, negotiators' 

.. the negotUJtrons worries were soon quelled when they discovered. 
The FBI was disinclined to allow anyone, other according to Noesner, t~J!arwell was a natural!' 411 

than the FBI's own negotiators, to participate in Two days after h.e began participating in nego. 
negotiations with the Davidians. Many were offer- tiations, Harwell participated in a face-to-face 
ing their assistance, but few were allowed to par· meetir:tg with Sage .and Davidians Martin 8!'d 

. ticipate. McLennan County Sheriff Jack Harwell Schne1d~r. The .mee~mg produced no substantial 
.. and the Texas Rangers -were suggested and offered change 1n the sttuation. Harwell and ~age attest 

. -. - · -_ their help. Attorneys for Davidians r~peatedly ~ the fact. that a ~apJ>!>rt was establ1shed, par· 
- ·- <:~:-: ·: ... asked to .. SPe~- ~th the Davidi~s: It .. was With_ .. _ t1cul~rly wtth Schnetde~ ... 4_

14
_ Unfortunately, what· 

· .. · :·:·::::-_::~'i:·. -! ;_::·f·!-,~ gi'eat-::he.$j~~e:- ~at ..... the __ -_,BI ~allowed Shetiff ev~r sufces~_ ~~Y.}~ave ~e.n brought about by 
'----.:-·---.-··--Harwell' to s~8k.:Wi~--tluf-Davtcfiiiis~ aiihf'·Witn:::_:::;~alafr~d-~!~. ~dia~~~p~a~_r-,w~_r.mdered ~Y !'hat Sage 

· -.. -.~ ::-: ·,: _,:: : :-, ~~:.: even. greater;- reluctance thai the .FBL.all~wed the· e e,. 4 15~ . - ~5?~-~ . Jnan~ .. ~n negoti~tion ~t~· 

·.:.~"::,~·~.,:;~~~i~~~:','~~z~·~;~~1~~:~.~~~~ti~~.:~z~~~~,~~~r~-ilr:~:d~~th~~:~. 
nted or. &o pncn rai-ee. It .w .. · tmnecl Lo deal .nih hiPJy ~ ,, dence V1~ lo~d$pea](er ~ ___ .: :.:~ 
mi .. iana. 'l1w &e&m bauta -.cphlatic:a~ armament tndadinr iAh-nd · · · · 

-· ·- · ·· -•trnU.tC &SrricM, u.)'time anc~_ nighwme .mper c:apabtnti•, eaplome anct b. The Texas Rangers _ 
mecban~ bnachtar abl1iU., and eirtaia non-lethal~.-.,.,_ .• n.e Aiiother group for which Davidians expressed 
qenta are trained t'ar tactical opera&iona an land and a& ea. The HRT th • · th T Ran A 1 ding 
... created In the JieO'• to eantront • crowinr namber or aaDauany e1r trust was e exas gers. ongstan 
c~angennJa and compliea~ mminalaituation~. and well respected law enforcement entity, the 

. ··-·-= _ ...... · __ . ·~-u~ .. I>epL cl ~ Treuury. ~. cl the Deputment cl ~ ~. . Tens Rangers were charged with conducting the 
, .-. ·.: _ "- .. _ ary oa the Bureao o( Alcohol,: T~ and flrannl Jnveatiptlon cl -· · fi J • t• ti• .. ---~- • to th •d th D •d• 

. . .. _ ___ vemc;n we,rne Hot.en abo known .. David KDN~h a& :l13-~l4 u993). n~ m~~~- 1ga _ on 1n e r8l on e .a'fl 1an.s. 
__ i._ • .-: :_ · (heran.iAer'l'rWizr)'DepartmentRepart). .:, .... ·.- .. .. . ·__ . The Rangers·were never.allowed to partictpate m 

Shortly aJler the eboot..out,"Chqnadi apob wieh Hart.neU. wbO ..... ·: .. negotiations. with the Davidians. They often had 
tn w .. bin(tan, DC and reccmmended &hal the FBI Hoat.ece ~ . abo th d f th • d 

· · • - .·. : -" . . .. _Team be~'~ Weco~ handle what w ~ ~ aiege llitua~ ... con~ems ut e con uet o e s1ege an at· 
· · ·' At tvaPJ1 u.e .&me ·time~ FBI ·Di~ WiUi&m s.noa. ieanM.is .. at&he · tempted to express. :thes~ concerns to Jamar. The 

. ebao& oat, contactecl ATF Directar S&ephea ffiaiae end aa'ered tu. Clllfte Rangers were frustrated by a Jack of communica· 
~and hi• asencY"• uaiatance. After Hanneu aniYed ., the Na· u· "th J As c . B "fi d L.. 

· :.-..~ .. '"'-_ .. ,_ -. , .-.:., .. . donal Command ~c.er ancl .. "-.. c~1 _brietecl. he de~~-.t.ha_&. ~ _ on wt am.ar: . aptain 1J11eS testi e IA:'" 

... J'BI HRT ahooJc:l b .. e"~ to~~~ ·-'_' -'~' ... -.. -· ....... _- . · __ ~-- .. fore '·Subeomm~ttees, .,l]f I went over there, the 
~~.n;~=u!':!..~==c;;i...:!.=- .~.·.8d~~ w1as·.~lr~.a1dy··c!osded·toh w1rhhere Mr. Ja'!'ar was . 

... __ .. : .. : :.._ --~ _-.~~. ~ ao.. · u. tuna. aMI~ ~l SAC Jeffrey Jamar cs.Q ~)_ •• _ · · A· _eve~ . ~1mes . . ~~-~ :a ~ our, 45 mmutes ~ 
__ · ... :· .~: ~ .. ·: ·. -·- - --~ brielal him oa. the .tt~dOD. FBJ Sped.t! ~' ~ Fc.aam (W.o> .. · .· see · b1m ·and never saw hsm, and I finalJy qwt 

-- ... · .... tDI'onnecl otlhe cnN b)' bo&h AUSA ~ ancS .another SoeaJ FBI. . going- over there. We· coufdn't even get a phone call 
epot.. SbortJy aft.er (Fc.aom) aniYed, Cbojud:l Wei hun &he A TF WaaJcl th .. ...,~.,; .. • • • 
we~eame wha&ew"er auiatance &he FBI cauW pnl'ricle. rouai ... I~ was total lack of commumcation. 41& 
••• 
a.tt ~ararmec~ [Noble] that • reqaat"" &he HRT 11ac1 eJr.d1 beea c. The attorneys for the Davidians 
~~~ :.,~:'~' ~--~ ~~ • 111 

n.r 1D &he_~ to Another concern of the Rangers was the FBfs 
·:-_ =-=---~ "::::,'>"·· . : .. __ ~ .:..--::. ~ Jamar . .C&Ut,A.rl~~>. t.;t u.e SAC at &he .. aa-~ c1~_ ... · . .-: _, decision to -allow face-to-face meetings between the 
-~~-:~·~;;~:=:~-~,_~'7j-~-,~;-.~-f::=: :~t:!.c:-!t.!::'o::r ~~~ =.a:-~i7:~~;D8Vidi~~ -,~d: tJ:ie~~-·,a~~-ey~. While it is co!llmon 
"~-·-·:- ,~-~~-- -- -.-~ · -:·:;,_- -.: a.tiat.el7 beJu r.o •a.bllah a.Comm&nd ... ,_. .-.. u,e· mb:iiatioft."::'· .. ·:·:"'fo.r. .a :·cltent;:under.:-mvestigation or prosecution to 

/?~1f;r~:~,,,::~:,~!Ef~i~$""}:··.·~ff£~~~~~~~~.~.-::~~=:or an atwmey 
. _ -· · -· · &erm, the FBI ~ hne operational ClllnUII&aMt ~ "~-~ .~ ~- •. ·:: .. : · •••Juatice. . . ~~pan at 133. 

14.. · ' .... ·· ,_._., .; .. 7"':--.. •U/4., at 134. 
•nJ•dce Department Repor& at 133.. •••Hearinp Pan 2 al Uil. 
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to meet with his client while his client is the sub- "Seven Seals,• discussed in the Bible's Book or· 
ject or a '1lostage barricade iituation." 411 The ne. Revelation. 
gotiators and the tactical agents had difFerent A letter attesting to the surrender offer followed 

-· opinions on the wisdom or letting tpe attorneys the verbal promise. But the FBI remained skep. 
·into the residence. 418 · _ .. ·- _. tica1~42'1 · 
-- The ne~_tiators ~ere concerned that any third -(ii) ·_Negotiator CiUI.lawyers consultation afttr the 

_ - - party inter:mediary" _was ill equipped to· be thrust first· 11i8U.;_After each visit and on occasion when 
-· ._ .. :: ·~ ··.:.into ~e "fr~le_ neg~~tions. that. eo~s~me·~~.; .- .· ~e~. ~8.'(n~ _Visi~ the .. FBI and the lawyers ~ad 
. __ .. ,.. ____ ·.- _ . - cade &JtuationL Negotiators -were wtlling to use ·. discuis1ons about strategy and about arrangmg 

· · ·-.~: ·::>:the a~!De>'!11,m:-waya_ ~t would- jump_s~rt ~~- ~---~-m~re. !i~iis_.-with··.-DaVidians. The agents worked 
_. negotiattons.- The tactical team, al~ng ~~ _ ~e --_- · ·closely .with the attorneys berore each visit and at· 

. __ :_: :·_ ·-T~a:.Rangers,-:~~':8 co1_1cerned ~ut the. oppo~·._ .. =-~m.~~~.eoope_rated with_the FBI. 
-·· :-.<~=- .- ;_t.umty -that-DeGUenn ~~ Ja~k -~•mmerm~·-::~~- .- . Bero~ the. trips.into .. the Davidian residence, the 

·attomey.for Steve-SChrietder, -would~·have_· to-~e.:_· agents and -attorneys arranged time limits and 
a troy . eVJdenc~ -But even Tex9:1 Range~ Sen1~r · to pica for discussion while the attorneys were in· 

.. Captain._Maunce Cook agreed wtth the WISdom or "d 42s On 1 . did th k 
letting the attorneys· into the residence by saying, Sl e. . . ~n Y one ~aston e attorneys as 
"(Y)ou got to do what works."420 Jamar made the to rema~n m the re_s1dence longer than the ar· 
decision because he wu tifocused on resolving the ranged tJme. 
standoffpeacefully: 421 DeGuerin and Zimmerman . C. LACK OF APPRECIATION OF Otn'SIDE INFORMATION 
entered the residence on several occasions. The at· 
torneys spent a total or 32 hours with Koresh.422. 1. Why the FBI did not rely more on religious adui· 

(i) Progress was made from the visits.-Nego- . sors to understand Koresh 
tiators and Jamar had the sense that the meetings . Many ll~e that the reason negotiations failed 

·- --- - ·_.-weJ1!-•positive."423 On Aprill, when the attorneys __ , w~~- that.~e-~1 failed~ gras~ the nature ~d 
- .. --. ' requested eXtensions or the pre-approved time Jim: . - strength or Branch Davidlan be hers. There eXIsts 
--~=:-:::,, ·..., ~ t;::.. ,"r·-,-·. i~~; t~ey._d-~sc.~,.J~e.~.~progre~~ ~ ._~z;ri.fi~·;7: 1~_: .. - a.--=~~fli~ .. ~mong those who ~liev! negotiators 

~ :· · '-,,-.. ·.h-. •-:~::> that rmee~ng; ·David KOresh promfsed-,to .. c~#,l~J~l:l~=:-:~:h s~p~'d,~ev:W:JJ:~eqme;mnpat~ettc With the "hos-. 
- :· "-- _, :. ''·'·'"'"after Passover: 424 The actual'da~· or Pas:$over, .-. -tage_ taker.' anci others who beheve the only way to 

~ '"-·-.:- ,:!·: , "_ ........ ~;\-h-owever, was a matter or cont~~er$y~ ~ ~-~ ~ _ :.:.'_t;~~ L-~~ ,~,:~: ~ ri~&.~·~t~ ,ls t.q, .understand the subject' or the nego-
··•• --_·· -~ ~.-.. - _ . =- .. __ ·~ Pn -_~pri.J ... ~4i78-:_~lep~Q~e c~~~e·r~ti§l) ·~e~~~e_n_~~ .. -: -.ti_~tjpoe!~~ .. -The ~FBI-: .. beCame frustrated with end· 

c. :_ , .- • ~: · : ': • De.Gueijn_ ·ana Koresh , produced 'wh.~t)~~eQuer,l~-~ ~ .· __ 1~5_8. ·: diss_~rtations :or, Branch Davidian beliefs and 
called a promise to come oul425 The 'FBI called'···- ignored assertions or religious experts that Koresh 

.. this p.z:omis~. -~-_new, _precondition for his coming eould be .negotiated with on a theological level. 430 

· oul" 428 The ·precondition was the completion· of The. FBl grew skeptical that Koresh could be con· 
David · Kores~'s written interpretation of the vinced that ending the siege was in his best inter· 

esl 
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._a •.. 'I_'he FBI standard in negotiations 
Mainst~;eam negotiation tactics call for the nego-

. tiator .to remain aloof from the subject or the nego­
tiations, to pursue crisis -management team goals, 
and never become embroiled· in the message or the 
hostage taker.43l The"·fc)cus or negotiation training 
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is •active listening. • The negotiator is supposed to 
find out what the subject wants or demands. 

Negotiation training gives preference to those 
with a social science background. The FBI ~egotia­
tion curriculum includes abnormal psychology and 
the social sciences. Time after time, David Koresh, 
and Davidians Wayne Martin and Steve Sehnei­
der, sought to speak with someone who could un­
derstand the Branch Davidian interpretation ·of 
the Seven Seals. The FBI resisted the desire to en· 
gage Koresh in such a discussion, saying that it 
was sure to be fruit1ess.4.12 McClure testified at 
the hearings that be had been involved in a· simi­
lar situation when religious discussions of a barri· 
c:aded group had proved fruitless. He said, "'n 
1987, I was involved in a situation in Atlanta 
where 1,400 Cubans were holding 121 hostages. 
Their religious belief was very important to them 
during that period of time. Those hostages were 
held for 12 days. Every time that we gave a nego­
tiations and responded to their religious questions 
and got in their head or tried to get into their 
head and they tried to get into our about religion, 
no progress was made. When we talked about sec· 
ular issues, we got people out." 433 This experience 
appears to have Jed the FBI to avoid religious dis­
cussions with the Davidians. 

b. Experts consulted 
When the FBI first arrived in Waco, it had little 

information about David Koresh and the 
Davidians. Negotiators sought as much infonna­
tion as possible about the group. Ii was left to the 
experts hired by the FBI to create a profile of 
David Koresh and develop a plan to· negotiate with 
the Davidians. 

Dr. Eugene Gallagher, professor of Religion at 
Connecticut College, ea11s Glenn Hillburn, Dean of 
'the Baylor University Department of Religion, •the 
one expert with a finn grasp of the history of the 
Davidians within the framework of the Seventh 

with a religious expert familiar with the unconven· 
tional beliefs of the Davidians. • 436 

e. The failure to coMult outsick ezperts 
The FBI relied on experts with whom it was fa­

miliar. But, there were individuals who embraced 
the peaceful resolution of the situation in Waco as 
their personal crusade. Among those who made se. 

· rious efforts to help were Philip ,Arnold, Associate 
Professor of Religious Studies at the University or 
North Carolina at Charlotte, and Gene Tabor or 
the Reunion Institute in Houston, TX. It was dif'. 
ficuJt for Arnold and Tabor to intercede. The Jus­
tice Department Report mentions that •[t]he FBI 
refused to permit a live telephone conversation• 
between Arnold and Schneider although Schneider 
requested Arnold .by name. en 

d. What communications did they have with 
Koresh1 . 

Tabor and Arnold saw a Video sent out by 
Koresh and thought effective negotiation was pos­
sible if the FBI dealt with Koresh within a frame· 
work of the Bible, particularly the Seven Seals.431 
Koresh had heard Arnold giving his interpretation 
of the Seven Seals and offering assistance on the 
KJBS radio. 439 

Neither Arnold nor Tabor ever spoke with 
Koresh. Koresh and Schneider repeatedly asked to 
speak with Philip Arnold. Arnold and Tabor were 
allowed to send in tapes of their interpretations at 
the request of DeGuerin, Zimmerman and Koresh, 
himself. But at no time were they allowed to par· 
tidpate in the negotiations. 

e. Did the FBI take any of this advice? 
It goes against standard negotiation policy . to 

allow outsiders to participate in serious and dan­
gerous UJlostage• negotiations. Consistent with the 
advice or FBI experts, the negotiators in Waco did 
not allow outsiders to participate in negotiations 
out or fear that something they said might inflame 
David Koresh. Arnold and Tabor were no excep. 
tion, they were ignored. · · ·.Day Adventists.• 434 According to the Justice De­

partment Report, Glenn Hillburn, Dean of the 
Baylor University Department of Religion, "pro­
vided information on the Book or Revelations, the 
Seven Seals, and other Biblical matters. • 435 The 
report makes no mention of special insight 
Hillburn provided into the peculiar habits of the 
David.ians or David Koresh. Other than Dr. 
Hi11bum, Dr. Gallagher concludes, the FBI con· 
sulted few religious experts with knowledge of 
Branch Davidians and what they believed. Indeed, 
Stone says. in his Report and Recommendations, 
"'ne of my fellow panelists believes-and I am 
convinced-that the FBI never actually consulted 

From the very beginning, negotiators failed to 
take seriously the point of view of the 

, Davidians.«< According to the Justice Department 
Report, · -rhere were certain areas of activity in 
which the FBI did not seek outside help. The FBI 
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did not request_ a~sistan~ .••.. with negotiations, fused to allow a religious expert to engage Davie 
· · ·since the FBrs best negotiators were assigned to Koresh or to consult in negotiations. 

Waco throughout the fifty-one day standoff."441 It Much of the criticism of negotiations centered or 
appears that the FBI paid no attention to those ex· the fact that the FBI never engaged Koresh or t}u 

< --~- ___ -..: perta ~ho believed Koresh ~u~d have been. J;"~a· Davidi-"s in a discussion of theology. Noesner saic 
- · ·• • ;:- "· •

7
• • ._ soned. __ with within· the proper religiou$ -&nd biblical,: .. -~ -~~e~~ ·-~r:~'- _two consistent themes that you wit 

··: -~:-···.--.-_---- ----.. contex~.- .. -:: -_·:·:. o·-- _, _,,_. ·~----... ·. .-·._:bear from.ey~ry mental health expert that know~ 
:::~ __ _.:·_'_: __ -:.~~--':._·-'::-.: ;.-~~~-.-_,y~·-:~·,,::' Koresh~·aild l)f.ividians talkoo ·frequ~n~it:-.~n---reli~ :·:::_a.~_Ythin·g. abou~.- crisis interve~tion, crisis negotia· ... 

-_~:~~· ·_ · .. -.:-:._ .... ~--- ~-- .... --. -~ :gious. tenns.: .. In their book;' T~r~ an~~-GS:H$gher .-.J!on, .~d~ th~~ .1s .th$t you ne1ther ~mbrace some· 
-~;~:~~::·-.:.~·~;·:.·, .>t~;-:: -~·;· q®te.J.he: .f~lloWing···nassage··froni die negotiation,.~. -~on~~~-' :~bef "-S~S.:~.m .. nor do you ~~count iL • 44: 
-.-· ...... _,_ ~ .. :'0P.:-.J~=-·.:.:=:~·.: . .:,~----- · ... ~ ·--.· .. int: .. ·· this --~- -··t)l~_...:,;.~- ·rnr ··1· :..1~: .. -.. ::Some __ are.~onvmced that a prereqws1te to success· ... _ _ .--: ... ,_ , ..... ,.tapes to po out trat1on WJ ,.ue s a~ .. ---~".:.) .· .... t~-- ti ....... tli th D .d. · fi · 
·.'<'. -... _,. .... _ ~: -:.:,- .... · .. · .-: - · f fj T · -:- -·th ·th · 1 •. ~..;;. ·. ·. '·:: -· : .. __ .. :'- :-.· ·· , · 1u nego 1a ons WI e aVl 1ans JS a nn gras1= · 
·_-:-:: ~~~~-~:::: ~:_; .. :~';::::;-.:~:,; ~~~--la!;lt.r-~.- i ;.~;-,~~ 0~f.;=:,,:-;·~:'· :~:=i~~=~- -~·:_ . ::·::·8. or:the·:religio\iS' doctrine' on which they base their 

·' -.:::·:::':·:-,: ::-:·:: · · ;"" -~·--:---:.: ·~-~:.JJE~V: Let's not talk. m those...-tenns,::;.: . :, ----beliefs· i646 :..ln-'heaiirigs before· the subcommittees 
·-::.; .. ~ ·-:,~·:_~~ .,,~ __ ;.'·~~,--·~ .. ~:;~.-~.-pleas~: ~::-~:.:::-:;.~: < .~.·~~~-~,:-~.~-,-~~:,_-~ :::,. ,.,,·~:.; .. .,y ·-~ ·AmoJci·-~sHfi~ that.'the FBI negotiators were ni 

-- ,.;,_ -::- ~-. · ,--·.:· . ~-..:....:: · -· KORESH! No. Theii·-you" don~t: un4_er:-:-- ~ · __ :_·.--.·prepared-· :ror· productive discourse with the 
stand my doctrine. You don't w~ntto.hear ... · · -.. -. ·navidians~ "(The negotiators] were not able to per· 

.. ~e ~9rd of my.God: · ~ _. .. . .. . . .. · .ceive the meaning of the religious language the 
· .... IIENRY; I hav_e listen~ to .Yo_u an~.!!~·... .. Davidians were· using. They were not able to un· 

tened to you, and I beheve m what you · derstand ·the actions the Davidians took. Had they 
say, as do a lot of other people, but the, had knowledge of the religious faith of the 
but the bottom line is everybody now con· Davidians, this story could have ended in a much 
siders you David who is going to either better and happier way."447 Others simply sug-
run away from the giant or is going to gested that negotiators should search out experts 
come .. out and. try .to slay the gianL For ..... ~ .. to grasp better the subjects of the negotiations. As 

___ ~·~-~1~,~--~~-" __ ,·_ 7,-~. ~:·god's-Jiake,.you know, giv_e-~~.·-~_)!.fl~:-ver,.,, .. ~:, , .. )~~pre~~mtative~Henry:~yde, chairman of the Com· 
',--~~~ """ ~-~~·-·:·- .. · · ·· -· .. ·_·:--~David .. I need· to. have an ans~:Cr~_Are you --- .. -_~.:,~~~~e-on the Judiciary, said, "There is an unwill-

·.::r-:S:~:~if~- :~I ~:·._:-~·;,~.:--~1~\··~·{~~5~tf=:~~,~oy;;·:ttsa~,?~=:~: 1.·; · :·;-~ ~~-·-·,::·:~... -~:- -:~.:_~- ::)e~r:~iil~~~~~i~t6°~r~;;~~n~:} ~t~r ·:ci 
· · .. · :-:.. : ·:. · ;·:. ·_ ....... HENRY: Right now· you're· coming. • _ ... _ ......... _ _they·-_ bel1_~v~_ : strange ·-things by our standards. 

:·.:. ~-s:-::~;~~--~~--.·- , . : .- . .. K_QRESH.: ~-~e._~hat dash-e~)~~pJ~~sJr.· ~;: .-.- :.~_}1}.~!~.4.}he uilderstan.di!lg bee!\ these weren'~ ~os· 

-· _..r,~.:·: -~=,~'t·:'~~:~~~; ';~!~~~~:,~~~~!~#i~';;,;,;~<··e;~~li4~ ~J!~[!~:~~!i[~i::·~~ -
_ .. _ .. , . : _ . .. ·· · ·· H,~~Y:_ One of the things; on~_ of_ -~J:s-~ .. -. : fr~m~_. ~f refe~~_nce, not tear gas and tan~. 

: :-,;-- -~-=-:thinp· fs ·I doii't Widersta.i1d.lh'e-:scnpiiires·· ·-- -.. - - W1th_~t l~!l~~--~ .. good ~ekground on the subJect of 
.. like you, 1 just c:ion'L religion, pa~i.cularly the relirous dogma professed 

KORESH:· Okay, if you ... wotild jilst lis· .- .. ,by ~e J?aVJdtans, ~e negotl~tors could have bet· 
. ·_~ri,_t~_~n I wou~d show yotL·It_5ays here-· . te,r ~~~p~la,~d -~~~ co~_versatlons. 

:.~- _,.:,~~ :·,, .: · -.-:-.-' .· -~:_:. ___ · ·it,.S,ay~ ·h~~e~· -~~ .Chariots :shaJJ·oe·"Wit.h'·:-_ ;~--,~~ _ ·2: Oth.e~s who contributed information 
...... < .,.~ami~g ~~h.~s~~ :fhat's whiif you've ·g-ot __ ·_·_·.:· .. :.J. ·-~ It is clear th~t all of the attention focused on 

. · · ·· out t}iere _[referring to the· tank-s].""'2 ' ...... · · ''·---~~ · ·-waco and the standoff at Mount Carmel encour· 
....... _ ... : . FBI. negotiators .. z:naintain that they never dis· aged many people to contribute their ideas to the 

.. _ - ... counted· Branch]:)~vjdian beliefs. However. in one · negotiations. The method for processing this infor-
. · -:~.< ..... _,,_._ :. ___ · _ .. , -·~<mversatiori:with Koresh, Byron Sage responds to mation is central to discerning whether any valu· 
, ... " .. , ,, .. : .. _- .:·o.--~:~:~:·.::::-·· ~·:':' -~ ano~~~: ~~~J~::-dj.$_sef.YitiQn by·~:KOres~. Sa.g~· _says;~::: .. !l~t~- !1.~.!!£¢~~pr_.~d~ta .:was. omit~d or, ina~vertently 
_ -~ ,.. - ·· ~, .. , __ ' .. -·:. ~_ . _.,. -z'h.at's garoage." Later in that -~~~f~~-~-ii.v~r$~tiori, ·_- .. ~r. ~~t_er:t~~~nally, 1gnored. In th1s case. as 1n others, 
-- -.. ·::·_:·~~:·;~:--:·=::·:··----Sage. says, -~o one·in th.e FBI. hu :.ever- scoffed at _the. actions taken by the FBI depended largely 
·:~~- ·.·---·:_.~~~~~::7".;~:~<·:::;YcnitJ~~1_i.~fs~~-~4~~::c~~:.~:-~.::-:~.:- .. ·: ··-:_-:::'"·--_· __ :_·~-- · __ -~" -~:·~--"~--:,.:. -~-=-~PQ.11 .. :-tb.~.-jJ11orm.~tiQn ~used, an~ .to whom it '!'as 
· .. · ... - -:~ .. : .. -. -~ ln ... theJr ~k.about Waco. Tab.Or .. anC:tP~l_lagtler made .avallable when key deaSJons were bemg 

are cri~~l of the negotiations.-- They ~te, made. 
"Koresh s mterpretations went completely over the 
b d f th FBI h ... H•riftcs Part 2 aL 325. 

ea s o e negotiators,. w o were under· ... N•ncy·T. Ammerman. waco. Fltktal z.,.., l:ltfort:J~MDII ONl &Aol· 
_ . . ~~~aJ>.ly __ put off by this approach. •"""' Despite the~ .,. of&~ u. ~ in Waco: CriUcaJ P~pecti,.. oa the 

·i_~~~----
:: .;_::.~·"'".:::...:.. .. --:.:...:-. --::· "·' .-

...... -- -.. - =-=· ~·:-···=---·-~:-.:: .........:.:.;:-....... -:-::"": .. ···.· 
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D. THE FBI'S FAILURE TO FOU..OW ns OWN EXPERT'S .. bui)ding_ bo~ds .• •:··. ·the tactical group wa~ under.' 
RECOMMENDATIONS · ·mining everything."488 Smerick continued, •[e]very 

1. w;_ hat the FBrs own e:cperts recommended time the negotiators were making progress the tac· 
tical people would undo it"461 . 

~ _ ... _ _Ac~rding to Sto.ne, ~e ~I ~vestiga~ve sup. puring the hearings before the subcommittees, 
· · · · .. ·port unit. and tJ1ll!led ne~~ato~s · pos~s~~- the_ · · Sm~riCk was questioned about this abrupt change 

... :··.; ,_, ~ .. :.:.·_ . · psychologlC:~llbeh~VJora_f • soence · expertise .. they . . in his advice; an.d. whether senior Justice ·Depart· 
· .. :: ~~;-.: :~·;·:. __ _ :- _· ~ ~--· need.ed::~·4eaJ '-~~ D~yt~ ~.~~sh ~~-:~ _un_con•i .. merit officials·press~ed.h!m to change his advice 
'-=-~·,:·-~-·· ··--::. .. __ ::-::' ... _ve~_tiQ~al gro~~ h~~- tb~ Da~~~s. _, -: .~ong ~_e.· .. to match the eourse of action preferred by the on· 

~::/:'1~'r;_;':c;;;_~~~~~f~~r~-~r~::z~~n"'~~;;:~~1-~;~ _- '.::O~~~;r;..a;!~~~e~ck.J~~ti~: !':!o~~~ _ 
~--'=~·: ·-·! .'':.~· .~r:t~nnous.--It· ~o.·~ot :~ffic~t f~'-"-·~tf;e_-=-~~:_,tq , ~-:l~ut·he said that· he was aware that the FBI want· 

-~-,:/~~y_~,i~,:;;;j !f:~!:e:r~ti·~:o~~~l~dlJ:~~1ci'/' -~~~;~~~~!;~~::;,~~erick tO~d the su~mmit· 
, .~:- :o-· --=-·-::· ~: . . ~-. ·-<-experts .. Ceared····that any p~vo~tio~i- .c~:nita·.-lead ::·· . __ .. : .. ~.-. l:l~a- received mformat•?n from FBI 

.. ~--"'··' .. . Koresh· to initia~ the fiery end _he predicted. FBI , headq~rs that FBI offioals were not 
·· .. ·experts agreed· with··· this appr~acli~~~ ~-Stone . happy Mth_.the tone of my ~n:emos. ~m 
. writes in.·his separate. evaluation, .. ·1. believe the ... ~e ... st&ndpo•~-~- th~t .. they felt 1t was tf!ng 

FBI behaviorill .. scierice experts-had Worked out a . the1r hands, !fieamng they were not gomg 
good psychological understanding of Koresh's psy- to. hE: able to mcrease any t~e of pressure 
ehopathology. They knew it would be 8 mistake to WJ~hm that compound and !nstead w~re 
deal with him as though he were a con-man pre- ~mg to have to rely on stnctly negotia· 
~nding to religious beliefs so that he could exploit tions ..... 

.. · ··. his followers.• 462 · · .: · ··_ .. : .: .: ... _. __ . .. . .. Smerick developed profiles and memoranda that 
__ _;:: ::--7· · : .•.. .-. .- ··-~merick , .. coa~thor~. -~ · m~~o_r._a.rid&. on _ _,_ Da~d .· .. corroborated. tbe opinions of qualified experts both 

··-···.- .. , .. ,_:- :.··-~--~-:-~.":-::.;: "Koreshbased·!)~_Koresh'i past behavior-and listen-. in and O\l~_sid~ .~e .FBI! Smerick's opinion on this 

.~.:,·~~":.~"~T~~~f§;S~Iil!f~~~~~~~~~:~f!~f~:r:~;]~i~:g;:~::· · 
:, "~ ·,;:; =" ''~:'- :'·' , ... , ,:- .-:_;-; wer~f~(;\iing -tQO Jjap~_dly ~toward ~a t.Scticatsotution'",··· ·_: :: ~ u·pi' ~ady_· to· e~~ __ w't\.~~-·.Koresh was •told by God 

···· ·· and·w~rir'.ri.:9.(illowing adequate tin.te fo·r negotia-····. to :wait."·470·"AS· far1'as·:the FBI was concerned, 
. tions, to .v.ror~!~~--_In_ bis final memorandum,. Koresh's credi~i~ity_ w~~ broken. After a trip into 

.. . ·- · ;.-·Smerick.-proPc>sed .,other measures' ~ ~ -,~---·liee·tuise···· : the--·residence; ·· ·DeGue_rig and Zimmerman told 
· negotiations had met with only limited· suc· · Ja:mar ·or 8.' new ·surrender plan based on the writ· 

... . ·e-ess.•'464 _As ·the Justi~~ Pepartment Report=main· ing or the Seven Seals. The FBI did not believe it 
~ · · · ·.· tains·, •those other measures included sporadically . . But ~ere was ·eVi_dence that pointed to a genuine 

:_~ ·. ~- terlnin~~g- _and~: reins~ting of. utilities; movin·g · ·ehange ir:t:attitude.41~ ·- · ~:·.. . . 

.. _ . · ··· .... :.::;~:~.:_.:~:~q#~p~~:~r~~ rii~&>O.wer .sudder:tly;. downplaying · -J.-=iifds}ii[~ii up>~ith th~ir jdl:kets on• 
. .. ': '::.·.- .. ~- -~~:~he J.m.po~-~- or .:KC?,r~sb m the dally press con-. . . . . .. _.,. - . . . 

=· • ·- :.: ··--. Cerences; controllin-g teleVision and radio· reception· .: '"-'!he surrender p~an on March 2 was marked by 
· : :· ·. · . .- . . ·: -· ·, · · · · in-side· the- compoiind; .and cutting off:negotiations ·· . ::-. eVJde!lce that -:very one but Kore~h was prepar~d 
- ~-- ·. _ · with Koresh." 465 Although these suggested meas- ·· to ex!t the residence. After m~m~ much of his 
· · ••·· -=--:. -·'-"-:. · _·urea·· are· exactly the -tactics the FBl used in Waco, .... prom1~ to .co~e out, Koresh .mmntained that God 
.:.- '"-:~:.:~ .. :.: .. ~; ;..:_:;~--~:.: Smerick's'Ug:gesta that.. while the ·.')Jegotiators were . told, him to wmlln pr~p~~at1on for the surrender, 

· ·-.~--.--· ~~·---~,· .. ,·" .·:·· · ···=···.·~s~r.e-~:~r-.~_-,.-:~;~. -~:.:.:-~.:- : ... ··.··:·:.,;,·:-~_-:,.:~~-~-.~-: .. :., .:~~-~·:·~":~.~~:~·Pta::·:_~·fn:~~::l!v:rythorkfng· 0&!.: b~:; 
··· · · '" : · · .. , Edward· nia a1ilnma~Uecl .. the opiniona 01' the .. --,.~ · · · · · · · · . . ·• • rd • 

· .::.~ ·-~ ·_·· -.: ··· .. 0n Marcb_3, Ie93 &he beharianl aperta.WI'Oie :"J:;;¥memo:-rec-' ~-~ that. wo.uld, .. earry the Davulians to the o. er m 
···· .-:-· ··· ·om:me:nctiftl·a·itnt.v ortij'inc t6 Wort: .nuun u.e·DaYicliana.OWD.belW ..... which everyone-would- stand. A proposal to mvolve 

. eya&em lo talk them_ oaL They -~ded acknowledeinc u.e Conapir. . the Texas Rangers in a surrender •wasn't rejected, 
aq aplnat &he Daridiana and their rich& lo delencllheawelv•, and ere- b t •t ' d •th 1 t f th • "412 ating an muaion the& &r.h couJcl win in caun and in the p.a and u 1 wasn t greete Wl a o o en us1asm. 
would not co ao Jail. 0n Mai'Ch & beharicnl apen. wroc.e a memo a.m. In connection with the DeGuerin and Zimmer· 
~nc_tha& the ~·tion ante rocue on t .. urinc &he ..re~~ !"the chn. man visits to the residence, Jamar negotiated a 

. :.._· and faalitatinc &he. ~fbi_.~ ot Y-e DIIYutiana. 'l'hil ... ·• •1 · d ·] ·th th Th 
-·"'"''.'"~;:~. _..~~::.:.:·~~~:: .... me~·~ • cSe-e~c:alation aCt.actical:~are bec:.auee.mowe- ··--=~ s1m1 ar ··SU'Ten er ·pan Wl e· attorneys. e 

:;~-~-~----_-_-_._=_._·~_J_,:_I~_··_:_:~_·_·_::: __ :_:·.~_-c~_:_:_-_·y_:_~fe~!Bii~:·•.~.~-:_!_~_r_i_•·_:_-f_·,E_;::_-_:mt~t!--~,-~ ~ .. 
4:::.:! ;:-.:-:~~. "_"::~~·.:~:.~ .:~~~~ 
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o~ly change that· the. attorneys an.d. ·the Davidian! . subject, Tabor quotes surviving Davidians as say· 
suggested was that the children come out with ing, "We were so joyful that weekend because we 
their parents, rather than separately.413 knew we were coming out, that finally David bad 

~ :.·: : ...... ,. . . 2./J.~~akth~~~ '!Jith _/fpt:r~·~.letter ,, , · .~J~: .. ·- -~.:·. ···o. .... -c::~--~gC?t hi~ wo~_or·~~~-_to_do·-~is J~gally, the .l~ers, 
: .. : . . :- _. ....... - .... -::. · .. ·.· ...... , ., = ·o. ·• • -- • . • ... and theolog~eally m terms of h1s system. The 
. .:·:,:.~~; :: ·-:,:_';~ ·:T ....... Foll~'Vlng_or:a_e YJ,Sl~:~ th~_.reSldenc~. by _DeGuenn·. _: ··DaVidians believed that they-were coming out • 

... ,.·, ..... :,·: :. ·· -and .Z1mmennan, Koresb .. sent out a letter attest········ ·· ····· :· .... · ; ,, . = ;, .... ,. :.:,-,; 

_.;·~;:-;. --~::_ .. :; .. _··.·:-, .:- ~--_ilig .. to .the. f~;t.ct;th~(h~ ""~·'!orking-·on· the Seven·.·._ ·3. The.bre~through eo~rn..'fn_icated to Jamar 
~- .. ~;-"<~>-:.-,i;,,~_~:~:iJ·t··$~.~;~~-· Cffi ... ~rR;13)ui_4.~.14,. Koresh·.·.-wd: that h~·~·. y.:·_; On~·April·"l4; ·.DeGuerin.pve Koresh's Jetter to 
, : .. · .:~-~:· .. ~~~·,_;.:~ ... ;::.nad:-tlecej~~d.)~i.~ mi~_~iq~~J!~m ·~'anCi-·that he:·:~i:Jamar.:·Jamar.testified that he knew ofthe ~reak-

. -~- ·..: .. . : .. _:~:-~-~-=-~ · -~:""w:Q~ld, b_E( ... ~U..(~r·:~e.}esidence s~ii. ~~rding. to through.". Upc)n reading the letter·arid talking with 
·- .... :- ·~: '" ~- De.GUeiin; -"ever.joi:ie~-~w~_jj~lieved they did not -. , I)~Gu~rin and Zimmennan;·Jamar tOld them "that 

·.: -;:,. _.,~ ·. -~~-.,.~~::.hav&-:tO ciie.~:~'t~ .K9res1tliacr!nittenJettei"s before. : ... _ .. ihere·,·was plenty or time.•484 In his testimony be-
~-~-:~~c:~:::";.. ~: . . Most-liad beerLrambling _biblical dissertations:- The .. · .. ::. tore =-the·= subCommitteesi·-Jamar recalled,- .-what I 

· .. :~:·finarletter~.was· .. mft'ere"~ because. it~mentioned ··a····~''said·.:wai;~ir·th"ere .. is.::writing of a manuscript, jf 
._c "' .. ::::-;.:: ;·'·.'":-:. .• _.,dea~Iine ~,bY". wltich .. to. determine ")iihe·n·: -Koresh: .. · there is·progres,J,.we-will take the time.• 486 Jamar 

would surreiider. That deadline was the·· writing ·of ·--gave · DeGuerin· ·.and. Zimmerman the impression 
·Koresh's interpretation of the Seven Seals. · . :· . that he believed the offer to surrender was serious. 

There· were other reasons that some saw the let-. . DeGuerin ·and Zimmerman were so confident that 
ter as a true breakthrough. The April 14 letter Koresh was writing the seals and would soon sur-
was written in a prosaic form different from the render, that they returned to Houston. Jamar, 
other letters. Koresh's letter expressed the desire however, never took the surrender oft'er seriously. 

. to come out of th~ _residence and to •stand before He told the subcommittees, -It was serious in 
:: .. --· '-.:_· :~ ...... · man to a:ns.w~.r :•~Y. and .. all_~estio~~ ·regarding my · .. ·[DeGuerin's ·:and .':Zimmerman's] minds. I think 

- ·- ~-!-.-:. ~;:·-·:-.+:=·.'-~, -.actions/''·4~6:·::-'More .. -:impQ.rtant to ·-some ~-religious .:.-.they:.:were :~.eamest~and.: really hopeful but in 
. . : .. ··· .:·.-icllo.l~nf:and ohservers than a professed= d~sire.·to · · .' Koresh's mind1never a chance. rm sorry." 486 

~~/·=·_.-·;~'.·,.~_:i'>.::':Y-L :s~ri4~r,":_)!~.wev.er.-wa... th~Jact iha(thi letter· in~· '.·_:~-i~~The··fi"'i ::- ·""!!· :· ·-:···: - ... - ... ,.. ... hi b ak h h 
· .-: .- ~, · :, ~ .-.- ··.~· : ·: ·: ,-:::dieated: :Kor~~h :na(l Jound · • .basis: for·. i'Utrendet' irf .. Y},: :.~~-.:· .'U . , tC:J "gj~~. ft'Jl.'J&-~:fd~~ ._.t . 8 re t . roue 

· · vr = ~ ·- his own religious -doctrine 417 TabOr···and· Ainota··· !·:··· , .. . P.. ., .. ~. ··· · 0 ,~!7' ·.· · ,-:·:· · .. · 

: ;~; ~;:~,,<;:, -!;':~~i;~=ft~=~~etd:~~J~~-~~~:1i~:; ':~:iir!:~e~,~~~'ej~~~~~. n;n~~!o:::i:; 
;;.sJ;,~;-. i.~.s;,:s· __ : .. ~:~ .. the::Bible~-.1~be:)P$.i.or~~~ge in ~~:-:A:Pril.14.·letter,:;~.:; ~·:-'-am~r ~~~-~~there m_tg~t be~ genV:me_ attempt _to 

_ ~~ . ~- .. according to Tabor, was that -&resh· used ·the reli-- · · e!l~ ~e s1ege by Koresh. No_ o~e put forth the pos-· 
, . gious arguments in thi~ le~r for why he had now stbJhty that a surrender was m the future. When 

-< ,=,;Seen that.the:.scriptures~ld him~ come out."418 ··asked-by the subcomm_ittees whether the_Attomey 
Arnold and Tabor, among others, found affirmative Gener~l ~ad been no~fied or the. surrender plan, 

. ... . .. ... evidence that Koresh would surrender in the fact . Jamar s8ld, '1 doubt 1t because 1t was not, from 
· ··.that •[Koresh] ·coUld ·eeme out and preach his mes- : .. Q~r ~de~~d.ing .... ~.-.:~ if. serious plan." 487 In an 
.. _,. · sage.~_ .. .,e::~·TabOj<·tc)]d the. subCommittees. that ... _., ~ptil: ~5 COil_ve.~tj_on, .. S~ge told Associate ~r· 

-·- .. : ... ·.,.;.·c :.~. :·~ .. [t]hat:.w.as._the_:po.siti~e. ~<l. An~ court was nega- =-· . ~~y .yell~ra1.!le~s.ter Hub~ll that there was little 
.... ·····- : ·-: · · .· tive; But·· DeGuerin eonvmced [Koresh] ·that court .. ~:: use. Jn ·negot~~ting (u~her.488 Sage, Jamar, and 

.. •· .. : "· •.. ; ·c.· . .-~ould·~end -posiU_vely.~-~ .'J:a.bor, Arnold. DeGuerin ·: . Ri~k~ ·all acted as t!loughj1othing ~ut of the o~-

. -·· - · - · · ;· .. : ·. _ . and .. Zu:.nJPerman .. believed -that a surrender was . : ~ nary had occurred II)_. W ~eo on Apnl 14. They did 
·- - ·-· -·.-'~eminent.·. ~- ~- .. ·... .·.: .... ~ _ ; ~ : _, . . . . · 1.-: . not _give. the Department. of,Justice all of the iruor· 

__ ,; ~ __ ;..,. ~ ·.~ .. ···.:.: Further .. eVideriee··or the-ract that Koresh's Jetter .. ptation __ th~y had about· the~ situation in Waco and 
- . ::_;_ · .. :. :~:.,.::>" was.::a~gemii.IJe_~bre~tJuough was. the~ reaction of. ..... m~sled them &bout" the previous success or some 
-- :_ - :.- · ::-·-those ·iri the residence ro·the. news of the surren- · ··_.negotiator:s.:.--.-~- ......... , ".. . 

..... ,... ....... .-~der. V.~~--d.i.i.~~veey-thai ~resh had given ·a dead-: ~, It appear! that'DeG:Uerin and Zimmennan were 
-·-un·e· for sunender, tliere was obvious ,ubilation", ,._.-~.,_~J.te:. only peo_p~~---i~~~~e-~.J~n the negotiations who 

·- _ : .. ~ · -· · · .-.:: at_ the prospect of ending the siege. ~1 In the back-·. . · took. Koresh's prom sse . senously. SAC Jamar and 
ground of ilie· -tapes, ·ehee.ring ean be ·heard. As ·the FBI negotiators saw this as another attempt at 
Tabor told the subcommittees, -you can exactly · 

. see the _mental state ~ the people. inside. It is :f~ •142. 
. .. . ... buoyanL They are talking about com1ng out. They _.,d. at305. 

-i;:-~::,~;.~~·:;:;;~~~-;,;:,r:i~:;;; :0~~'~ In~~=~~= ~~:'~~:~.;~a~!~~~m~~::::.. s::-:= 
·" ·. ' 7 ·""" · ~"- · • ... --,;~·•MLeUe:rft-Om Dni4.Kariilh:'-Dict.~D:CX.P.t1't~·tt!b);' ·:·. "·'"' 'hirc.·~-~'y'peope KGN~an hachel-.1 wen olcler. arpeaflle •~»••_. 
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delay by Koresh. As a result, they did not give. this · course of the negotiations could have been· better 
new surrender offer • chance to work. directed by an increased understanding of the 

.. · . . Davidians' religious· perspective. 
· . g. E_u_!£kn« that Kore_sh was wntma hJ.S Jnlerpreta· 3. Th~. FBI leadenl:J.ip failed to make cru· 

.. ..=:;:::. .... ·-·:'.: ·-~-·::-·": ___ . __ - _--tu;m_~ft._~_~vee&~als. . :.: ..•. -. ·: .. · ·:··.···· -··cialdecisioris abOu~,which strategy to. em• 
.·:·:.~-~--- :: _: .'·:="~~~ :·· ·::-~~- 'fh"e-FBJ had .,9_concrete evi4~~c~.Jh~t~~Jte _Seals_-:-· ploy~.T.~o-separ~te strategies were enacted s1mul· 

_..;...:~·:.: r·~ ·~_1 ·=_:··-~·'·_.:.-c~~·~r:e·:. ~i_ng ... wnt~n~ ... ~ :'Eyen,. __ -.n~~_atio_q ':_tra.n~·~.;., ~e~U.Sly. ~e tactical press'!r~ constantly work~d 
-~- .:'_·i~::-_·_=-,;:.:...::.:·-:_·-:~>'~~s-mpts giv.e. ~nflicting:.mdica~QI!~. a_s .:1:0:;~heth~r- ... against Ul~. ~tr~teg:r _of.~e~otl~tion. FBI leadersh1p 
. ·. "."· . -::_~·.'_:,-,.--. ;:-:;-:' -· ·- ·the_ wod( W~S .P.t~ progr_eJ.S .. ;On ly_ --~~r. PchYSlC,).,.eV1• ' -. engaged th~s.e tw,O _St~l).,~_~es 10- a way that bonded. 

·_ :.::.,·::>:=,:,_> :._;· •. ::::>_-:.:<:-.::derfee.:was i:emov~_d_:from~,the d~~troyed~.r:~s.tdeo.ce : ·-the· DaVidians together ana perpetuated the stand· 

.,:~·., ~;~ .. :;~::~~:~J;.ea~~~l~~~~t~~~; :~~ --··~:->~ G~ ~s;~~;,6~~ .: . , ....... · .. . 
. . -.· . .-.~_ --"-· .. - Schnel~~!'.·-y.,~~~~c~iEg the_ Seals .. an:~·~-~dltt,-~;_:. }•·F~'de~ law··~~~~J?lc:nt agenet~ ~hould 
. ___ . had'.--tlle'~cotnp·uter-.·cns~ ·containing that ·wnting.49.1_. redesign "negot~ati()J;l __ polictes and tram!ng so 

~ ,., __ ,- "··=·--·-·· .. •Jt• is. ele"ar that lo"me work ~as-·being~ d~t:ie_ .on that phy~icill_and.. emot~onal .ra~igue ~n ~~t 
Koresh's interpretati_on of the Seven Seals. influence the course of J1egotlati«?ns. In antiCl· 

-· ... - ·:-~. ·- ..... - . h ... ide h he . pation or future negotiations involvmg unusually 
... - 6._ Why the FBI d•sreearded t. e ev nee_-~ at __ t . emotional subjects, such_as Koresh, or those which 

Seven Seals were. be~na wntten · . . • may involve prolonged periods of time during 
Although Koresb mdicated he was wnting h1s which negotiators may become physically or emo-

interpretati~n of the Seven Seals, the FBI was J?Ot tionally fatigued, law enforcement agencies should 
willing to g~ve the surrender plan an opportun1ty . implement procedures to ensure that these factors 
to work. The FBI was frustrated and appe~red .W.." do not influence the recommendations of nego· 

·· ;:~: .:::: :--·. -· ·-.~~ .. ~give· to-dustice Department ofti.cials .!l_nly_ ~~~ --~~?:_ tiat.Ors to -senior eomin.an.ders. Such procedures 
'-"--~ ",.:-,_~~-~····-:~: · · ~~ioJ1_!_ Qf.the brea~thr.ough~~- ~f.e-~the __ ~_:al~,;-:Sag~_ , .. ·.may involv·~-·using-~dditiori~l negot!ators in a.team 
. _ ~--··-=--:~: ·-. ..-r.-,:·~~:;-~s~fi.~~ ~-~~~,~the .. ,~~oml!utte~s th~~: ~.tS._. 0~r.'-,~ ;~-- approach, lin.'iti!l~-~the: amo.~t ~r. time a parttcular 
-~-':':'::,~~- _u.:" _,..;:;.;:::y·_·. 9f-:~_l __ y.ra.~-PO.fa;~~-:-~~:~:~~~.?.~._-t9, ~·- ~.fl!-r ~•Jh~ _:.:;_7 -._;~~goti.~to.r.r~mm~~};)Jl d~~;J1m1tmg the a~oun~ of 

· -~~..:t.~-' ·t:._ -~', ··' •·. .: · Seveo~ S~~l~.,.:.!~;:Fr9~. ~a.rly. tn th~,..~~~ft 1t·_: a.,- · .~·..interaction· between law. ·enforcement offic1als and 
. . ~-- -~- : _ ·.:_·._ .:~·- ·. iMi~re(f~~t_:_,qi~~.~~>~~~~-~ade ll:P its:-_tju_p_~ th"~t · ·the ~subject: or -the· negotiati_ons· ~ntil satisrad?ry 
~:: ~:-:. t'••; :..-:s·-:· .. _ ·'-the- Davtdiaps-... w~reJl t.c~mu~g ou~ of th~ :res~~~-P=~~,,.. behavi·or:'is .. elicited· from th~ subJect, or applymg 
' ~ ::· ·:···: ·::~~_or thei(own ft:~_Wi)l." Of th~ pos"si~i_lity or ~rre~<:::::other.-.•rewards" and-•ptini~hme~ts" in order. _to-

· · ··--~- · ·· -- der·~=~Jamar _·testified~·. ~rom. [KOt~sh~sl co!ldu·ct __ ,. ·.-elicit::positive: .. __ .resp()n·s~s~J1:~,m the subject _dunng 
from.!~~~~ ~~th ~~~1 Apnl 19th, I would have . negotiators. --_. . ·:: • 

- _every ·reaso~--·to .J;~lteve h_~ would·· not [surren.~ .... ;·~ ~ 2-. -Federal-law emor~Qtent agenctes. must 
· .. der)."4S3_ The FBI ·was·-convinced Koresh would take steps·to foster ere.ate~ understandmg ~f 

never surrender. the target under investtgat1on. The subc?m~lt· 
. - F ... FJNDINGS CONCERNING THE NEGOTIATIONS-TO ~- ., tees believe that ha~. the government offictals 10· 

···-~:. ··~:.·:.:END.THESTANDOFFWITHTHEDAVIDIAN$.:: _. ,_,·,volved at·Wa_co taken ste_~s •. to understa?d better 
·--· ·· ._:·_ · . .. .. :.,··~ •. :··-~: ·· .:·:" · .. ; •. ;··.c-,the .. philosophy··of-the·D~liJ.dlans, they m1.ght have 

. ·:_.:·~:~.:·'"1.~-'t:he FBl:aUo·wed·negotta~~ .to.·_re,~!:r:t.~ _ ... been ·-able ·to-negotiate' more ... effectively_ With them, 
· p~sthqD., at .. the _ ~rap.~h ~ J?aVldtan. l'!~td~nce perhaps accomplishing a p~-~~~ful end to the stand-

.--: -for ~-long,. ~sulttng :.?Jl the · phys1~ an~:-.. off .. The. ttailling,- polici~s _ ~11~ procedures ~f Fed-
e~ott~D~ fatigue, affe.ct~ng the C:O~~. of_ the eral -agencies should be revised to emphas~e the 

-· _ . · · D~'-~~Ult~on.~-!h.~JJ~_g~t~a~-~ were _I,D __ J)l!l~e, fo~ 51 importa~ce of . deve~oping· :. an understandmg of 
days. Nego_~~~!-io~~ .oe~rred almost ~ns~~l>'. 24 __ .:",their.:in·vestigative.targets~. · _ -

, .. _, ..... ·.···hours ··a day. Desplte. __ -._ ~-~-~_dy rotation ·of ~eg~ . . :· 3 Federal law eDforce·ment agencies should 
. .: __ , .:, · -t!ators·,. it ii'clear·from __ ~e- ~r:an~cripts -~~t-ne~ ··:--· lmplement---.·chal1ges ·-~~----~l?erational proce· 

.... :.-.. , :~ .-.-·:··" ,_ -t~~f.Ot~~ allowed· ~-~!..~-~~~0~~,:. to mfluenc~- ~~---~~- ,. . dures ·and training to ·proVlde better l~der· 
-· · · ··· cwsions. ·· .. · ·._ · .. -.... ~-· .. , .. ··· · .. · · ship in future negotiations. The subcomm1t_tees 

2. The.FBI dld.-Dot take _appropriate steps. believe that senior commanders should be gJVen 
to understand the mindset of the subjects of additional training in critical deeisionmaking and 
the negotiations. Numerous experts offered their that operational procedures be modified in accord· 

. _ . . .. . . advice on the specific belie~s of ~r~sh and the ance with this training. The subcommittees believe 
~~- ·-:-.:-:~ .:..·~ ____ .:.:_ •. _D_~yic;lians:·'~r.~~~~~- ~~ ~~:~~ss, tt JS ~le.ar ._tb_~t. _____ .tb_at.. ··the result of these changes should be that 

:~r-~;~~J. ~:' .:"':.pni-, ·t~e:n.egotiators-~d-~~~.t;~~e ~e -P.a~d~a~s:~P:~~~;;,~=.:comniirlder~ -~m be __ )Jet~r equip~ed ~ .m~.e ~ec· 
· ___ ·:,;_ .-~.~~; --~-=->=---~-~~t;'-Jll!J~ :~~gotl~~()n_~-~ tiy-~~o~ng--~~· __ Da~~~an-~·;;·,~:.~ss.ey.-._dec_is_ions {rom:·'Jil:l'i~~~~ptlons WJth bm1ted . _ . 

~~~::=~;:~:~:~~~~~~!.;:ai~l~\V;~:;.~~ ~;!:etii:;.~~~·"i!!f!F.~~~~t~;~~jft::!~~ 
·-:~! . .:;\;~ ;.;:~!!~-~~ .. ·~:~ ·- •• , ...... ··· ·. -,, ... _. · · · - -- -·. ---:.·:·~-- ---~. -- ·· that· Federal law ·enforceirien~ officials will carry··· · · 
·=''"'"'"' - . _·_ .. =~~ :~= -· ·:· : .. ·.· · · ... :·--·-:_. :··- ·c··. . . .. ___ •. out their mission· in the manner most likely to IUC•. 
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ceeci. but will help to protect the safe-ty o"f the law ·B. THE'OPERATJON P~ FOR APRIL tt, 1993 

enforce.ment officers 88 well. . • 1. Overolew ~the written operation plan to end tht 
·-~.-·~-~-· ... · : _______ ._ --_.4. __ ~~4.era11aw enforcement ~enctea should standoff._:. · . 
... : . _ ----~-~ _:_: ~ ·~pa- to -~~ase the_. willinP:_~88 0~ it. --- ·-~- e~Jy· as ·Mardt 22; -1993 the FBI began for-
- .... _. ; : _. ag~~t& to_; ~-n••~er the advice of outside ex· · mul· ti g- an ti 1 to d the standoff' ·--·- -- ---- · .;..... Th -~L-- •ttee d th t '1:' d a n opera on pan en -·- .~:_ .': >"', -~ . -~.&.... .- -~ ~~D!m~ -~ recommen · . a &"e • -.with the Davidians."fH On April12, 1993, the FBI 
:.: -~ !.·: >-:- : ;' =. t:..: ~·-:!~~ law.: ~f.~rce~e!l~ _o~aals- expand thetr __ capac··.-~:- ·pre~ented its plan· to the Attorney General for her 
-_ > ·- \ ~~--' _: .. _ :_: _ 1tY._ ~~ .-o~~ -~h&:~ora! = ~alyses _of th~ ~~ets ~r_ :·": .•PP!~~yaJ:•N Acc9f:ding _to the Justice Department ·.:·. ·:·:-~~:~_=.:. thear.•~!~s~gati~.n~_· -~~~ -~u·cJ ~do~~ _th~o~.an_:: ; __ Rep~rt/ 110yer·the next several' days the Attorney 

·-. _ ~-~-~~- ~·~ ~:._~--- ~P~~~os:t. ~f ~0~~ _ pa~~ ~~:_the agen~~ !~ whtch . · General ·and Senior Justice Department and FBI 
--~: ,. .. ,.~ :::.~:_;:-== ._; be~aytO,!:al,_1 r~·lys~S,.-,~-_.:.peffonned._ Ad~~~~alJy,-:.-:: ·_officials·disc~sed, deb~ted and dissected every 85• 

_ · · . · -~- --.· · _tlus .cap~c:t~--~~~.~-~~!i~~~d th~ug~ .. t:D~~~for~--~:· :pect Qf~u! pJan.·~ .. : -__ · . .. · · - ..... _ . :. --
. :-:c· .--~mal. a~g~!l!.~,.,!l~:rep~~le .o"!~}~e. cons~t-·~=·: ';'-~ . 'l_'ht( oi?.~~-~-~n~~: plan provided. that. its mission 

ants. The .Nation s uruverstties contam a. wealth ~r was to "secure the surrender/arrest of all adult oc:· 
. . ... . .. -... ex,perts . who~-- expertise.--~~ . across .all_. fields. 'of cupants "of' the residence while providing the maxi· 

. .·· .. :human behaVJ'?r. ··~ederalJa.~ enforcem~nt should . mum ·p;ossibJe· security for the children within the 
consider a .. more . formal process . for _i~~ntifying . eompound." The key component of the plan wa! 
qualified experts and entering into arrangements the deliver)' 'of· a chemical riot control agent,. 
with them whereby they would be available when known as CS, into the Branch Davidian residence 
caJJed upon. in order to induce the Davidians to leave. While 

1. Federal law enforcement agencies should the CS agent was being inserted, FBI .officials 
... :·-. ~· · ~·modify ·standard negotia~ion polici~s to allow planned to use a loud speaker system and the tele­

.. -~.''· .. ;-; :::·.· .. .;:·.~:.:~.::·.e:ntor::oom.ma.Dde~. ~ .... ~k_:,,~utside .. _.~~-- ··J>~.o!!~,.t?.··~dvi~!.th~ ~avid~ans that tear gas was 
.. :.~-.. ,~. --, .. ,:.-.. ·: ... · pa,rticipatlo~.:'·,fJl-:.·:negotaatlons ~when. war· -:·-~~JJ1g_m~~~d .. ~.~~ -~e:r~s1dence to force ther.t to 
:;·!·.~,·~~~:.:~_:f-~:·,:_::::.::·.::=-t~~~~!lte"d<~JJY.' special ~~~d ·:· .. e·xtenuating ·.cir·.:: ::- l~ave; ·but ~ha~, 8Jf.attack was not underway .. The 

· · · .. , ~'." ~-,·~"~):: ·~··· ..... ~:..:~· -:;"-- d th--:~--b- .. ~ · ·r· .. :-.h · . · • _ ftlan ·aJso·proVJded for a demand that all sub,ects ..... -· . cum.swu.aee& an . . e _a aJeJlce o ua ouse ex :. . . . . . . . -. .., 
! ·: · ~ :·. ; ;~ ,·-:· .; -~~. : .. ·: ~~is_e~ Th~: immense number of ~ple seek.ir1g to· ~: . e8Y!! _ Y.l~: . .b~ildi~g: ~d .. ~~*-~n~.e~ ~ authorities.•97 

=~r . ..:·.- ~-.. ,_.:._-··':·r~ ·.-·: a'ssisfin="thenegotiatiqns $t Wacc) provided·a ·good : ~, .--'~'he·plan·p~oY!ded for t!le operation. to last up~ 
.--:~· -.~:;:·.~;;;_i--;~~~~~±{-,Pd~~-~~~.' ·~~~~£~s. fr~DJ _.wJ!ic~ .. -~~, c}i~~S~( ~ert.s. ~ .. :. 4~ ~-~U{$_ ~rl_lrl~l alJ SubJeCts had extt:ed the reSJ• 

. - --- . · : ~m( o(· tJi~~·e·. _people·~ offenng·:~.ih~!'~ _8SSlStariee·:~; _:. __ d~~;e~.:~~ ~~~~ndered. __ rbe. pl~ proVIde~ for the 
.. . eould ·have proven useful in the- negotiatioi1s:-The·-·- ~-fi~~.~- ms~~~o~ -~r CS age~t to be made m~ the .. 

· - . FBI sho.uld en~ourage agents to reach out for ere- f!ontlleft.portton of the res1dence. After a pe!"l~ o! 
·. · ... · -... 1 · · ·. · · b .. · d · -· · · . · · .. h fu .. · . tune,_ w}l~ch was to be dependent on the Davuiians 
atlve 80 uttons to amca e · 5·~~~o~s,._J.n t e •· · ··response to'the initial-delivery of the CS agent. and 
ture. any subsequent negotiations that were possible, an 
· VII. THE ATTORNEY GENERAL's DECISION TO END additional tear gas delivery was to be made into 

· · _ . . . · nm ··STAND·OFF · . _ . . the back/right' ·portion of the residence. After a 
· ,.: · '·~··' :.' :-:::·· .. :5":::;.- >.· · ;;· ,~ ~-~·': .. ·· ... :... . . .. .. · ·· .... · · .. :. , .. , ..... ~~. ·.third delivery of CS,--.into an area not specifi~d in· 

.. · · · · · :·..... _ _ ... :·:. A.,_()~~YJ.EW·;~,-~ J:'~ TO ~l.t'fl~E st~OFF. ·~ · _ _"~h.~]:ilan,-·aJr·siibsequent deliveries of CS agent 
· _: . =_·;,-~'~ ;.-._,~,_:_:: ... i:_: .·.,:.~ On:'April-12, 1993i ·the: FBCp~sented.Atton)~y ·: .w.ere.~ ,~·-~~de.-into·the upper and lower windows 

.. - .-:·~ -... ' ._;-" ·'-"Genei-81 Janet. Reno .with. a pl~n tO end the stand· . ~f.t}:le.:~s1de~.~e.~88 ... ·,_;. • 

_ ... ·-·-· __ : ... o~ with. the Branch D~vidians. On Apri1~~7;·1993,~- ~ .. - _D~~:ng:_the.~rs_~ ~ree tnse~ons, the CS agent 
•• • •• _,.:,_;~ :'"-~---~-- ~-~J ••• 'th~·_Attomey··.-General gave her approvaJ'for the ·. w.as to~. ~~~JYe~d .mto the ressdence by two COIJ!· 

' .. ---~"""-"-pJan·:tO .. _be.:.·.implemented_ ·0n ~riJ 19. The stated bat ~ng~meenng·veh1cles CCEY's>~ an artl'!ored vehl· 
.. _: · ... .. :.. · mission -or the ·plan was to •seciire the surrender/ ele stmtlar ~ th~ Bradley Fightmg Veh1de (Brad-

.-· ....... . .:.- ---~ ' .. __ ._. =-arrelt.. o.f~ll. ~d~~f~cup~ts or the residen~ while ley), but whtch .IS unarm~d. The C~s at Waco 
-- ---. . ·. . "d" · th .... - ...... _ ..... :·.-" ., ·, ·.· ibl < •ty ~ ·· th were mounted WJth boom-bke anns wh1ch were ca-....... ·-- ~proVJ mg e __ m8Xlmum poss e ~ecun ..... or.. e .· ~. bl r tr · th 11 f th t ctu 

children within the compou~d.~ .A.key component-·.·"-~~-: ~ __ 0 _ .. ._1~~m~--"~~ng, e wa s 0 e 8 ru re. 
of the plan W88 the--decision to U8e CS, a chemical . - .-.U.S. DepL ~ ~~ce. ~~Ute Attomey CeaeraJ an Ute EnDia 
riot eontrol agent, which would be sprayed into the a& Waco. TaM 'l't(l993) (hereinaR«J•tice Depaimeftt Report~ lAn')' 

. - Branch Davi~i~ residence in ~ attempt .to in· !::;;::=:~:-U::.=Ii~:~~"'~= 
'-.. ~ • • > ••. :·- duc:e -the DaVJdlan.s .. W _)eave. The pl~ was Jmple- Mr. Jamar fin& cantadec! me around Ma~h 21&b tilt eomel.ime neG" 1M 

. .,·< ... : ·_- · mented on --AJ)riF19 .. : but the: .DaVidians:·.:did not,,· . ..:::!er,r.fl!ld ~-M~~._aoincticate ttaa& aucb • p~aa •• beincwbmiu.t reo 

.. . : :-_·:.=:::~~----. : . ..• .:..::;. .. 

'· 
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Mounted on the arms of the CEV's were mechani- portantly~ howeve~, the. second contingency provi-
cal devices designed to spray a stream of CS ag~nt sion in the plan _provided: 
in~ t.h~ _holes made_ by the boo~s .. After t.he th1rd __ . · · If during any tear gas ~elivery oper· 

·· inse~~~~,cQ(__q~ _ag~~t, ~e operaUons::plan. cal~ed ··· ations, subje~ ope~ fir~ WJth a weapo!l• 
_, __ ,. ._,.

7 

·.-:=·. for·· age~~--l~ted J,n_~a~ed _Br~c:lley-FightinJ:··~ ~·,.:'~.··-then the ·FBI ·rules of engagement wdl 
.. ... .. Veh~cles. to·. ~~eu~~r. close enough to the ~Sl• apply and appropriate deadly fo~e ~11 be 

_ >::: ,. :~~:-· .·:-·_····. ·· · ~e11~e. so_,~u~t: ~~~>: ~~uld fire F~rret -round proJeC· used. Additionally~.: tear ga~ WJll tmme-
. · · ·· · · ~. :, ... · . · ·. ~~~~- ihr91;1g~ •· tJ;\e. ~.dQW~. ~of ~e ·, ~t,~~~,~e~ .. These -~ :· "· .dia~ly_ .J>e: -~~s~-~~, ~n ~, all wmdows of th~e ..... 

. '-~:_-:-:. ;Tc·'. · .. -;~ • -~-~.-~8!1 ~ lfota.:_~ple.~~-V~ ~ ~en_~e-h~~-.~pro~~ct~!~s.;:~~~ .'-~:~::·_~mpouri~- ~~~~z~ng_the four _Bradley _Vetu· 

. ".,._.- -=-·:-:··~-:_~-::.·.· _.:~-~~_t.:ain.~. C~-- -~~Itt. -!"h_t~h; w~14.-.. ~~~--:1!1~~- tll~. au:.. ~~ .. cles·as·wellas tli~,CEV's.499 . . . 
- · · · ·_ ··:. ·· · · · · when the proJectile broke. _open. upon tmpa~. 'l~ie. :. : , , . < : _.. . .. : . : ·7 . · . · 

.-,.,-·~'t'!:~,;t, .. :,-.:~~W:li:#!t~~~t:n~¥~£-~~~~~·mt .. <·''j;t~~~~~:-~::";:;:ku;::-;::ocom· 
.. _ .. :·: -~, .::~·~·.,_-.... -~ '··'The ·plan .also proVJded for_specific ~~~gnmen?. .... mander of the·- FBI's ·Hostage Rescue Team, or· 

·""' -' · ·----- ·. · for.the·di.fferent HRT and SWAT teams mvolved tn_ .· ·. dered the two CEV's; which were to insert the CS· 
.;., · · ·the_--~peration. It specifi~d ~e ·maneuvers. to .be _riot control agent, -deployed to ~e compoun~ At 

made by the two.CEV's, the nme .Bradley ~ghtmg 5:56--a.m.-;---the FBfa chief da,r-to-day negotiator, 
Vehicles, and the. M-88 tank retney~ ve~cle, and Byron Sage, telephoned the res1de':lce and asked to 
provided (or mtscellaneous admtru~ative and speak with Davidian Steve Schne1der. It took ap-
logistical issues such a_s types of uniforms to. be proximately 3 minutes for someone to come to the 
used and the appropnate manner (or handhng phone.soo At 5:59 a.m., Sage informed the person 

· prisoners. · answering the telephone that "We are in the proc· 
· ... ~ . Additic~maJJy, the __ .plan provided to the ~tomey. ess of putting tear gas into the building. This is 

_ -~~ ..... -~~·-· --.. ~- . Qene.r_a.l.J)JLA.J>til . .; ~~ .:J9_93 ::inclu.ded · details con- . nof an._ assault.. -We . will not enter the building." 
.:-~_ ---:-- ~--· ... :- ·,~-=¢emiri('Y!here _.the .. F~~·s_ ~nipers were--to.~ posi··.---- ··Tlle--·'j)ers.on on the other end of the telep~one re-

~~:-.:~~-~ ~:: .. tioned· -~d. "'-~_e._-.:-ROS!.QOm.n.g. ancl_:;.~p!lb•ht~s ... o~~ __ :spo!l~4.e.4_~~~"'~~e ,goi_ng to spra~ tear gas mto !he 
.-; u~<l.'!! b.t='.] :;:.' ;;:a~---SWA'r.~rm~JDPe{J,/l'b,e:plan C9~~~d:a<.<_medP~'~·:•:~bw··ldinft.?" ::wher.eunon ~Sao-e .rephed, •I~. the build· 
·::~. ~ : ·. ~--. ·: ':::::::~ ·.: ,~)#]. ~M-h~"jl.c~Yj9fug -(.Qr. .. a :means;~-~~~- ~the po-· : ~ing --~ ·:~~:~_;_ri~-.~:we.-.. ~-:nof :nun rig. the· b~lding. ~ 501 · · 

,. · .'· _ ., .. t;e~ti8.lly J~rg~ _number of casualti~!J .. ~h•ch .. c.o~Jd ..... While :the_,_Justi~e D~paJ1.rne_nt Report 1s ambJgU· -: 

•:~ · ~ ··,;;~')~-:i:fej~~~~~l·.'::~~ =~~~~.~~~~~6/r::l~: ·s~e~'fet~~j~~.'t.i;~n~agbefo: ~~ 
:,-_,,:· :_:.·;:::: .:.~;~ ;:.:-;~,lowe(:l" to'arrest.:persons who had· tieep exposed_~~-: committees" tba'f" tJie perso!) he talked Wlth was 

·::· ·_: ~--- -.: ·:.··. · CS~. The .:~nex also provided for loc:ations ~here - Schneider.502 At the conclusion of this conversa· 
. the injur~ were to be tr~ated,. proVl~ed ·a hst of .. ,_ tion,--·someone threw the tel~phone outside of the 

···· local --a~_d s~ondary hosp1tals (mcluding address, building. 503 · 

. latitude/longitude Joca~on, and estimB:ted B:ir traY• From 6 a.ni.· to approximately noon on ~ril 19, 
~J _.ti.~e). ~"'~ th~. medical annex _proVlded mstruc-... -1993, FBI 'agents implemen~d the oper~t1ons plan 

... r :_'· .-;, . tJ~ns .. ~ tn..e agents on. ~e .. ~rocedU!_e~,~--~~~~e a_:-:'' and~ injeeted~·a· large qua~bty of cs not ~ntrol 
, __ " '''-"··'.~ .-- _:_·f!lass·_$.U.rrender by thtfJ?aV!dians. ·--~·:.· .. .. · . .- ·_..:. _,_ ·. ··agent intO'the Branc~ _J)avidian residence m four 

._ ~-~: __ =·· .:.-·.::--.. -- • :·.·:.: . .-:. Firi~lly, Jh~ ,p)~ pro.v1ded for the:pos_slbJl_lty __ that,·::· :·.·distinct· phases ... Th~- agents moved close .to the 
- ·:. :> .. · ·. · · .... , •· · :~- the _Davj4uut~ _m1ght. not~ surrender;'·The ~nal con· . Davidian·. residencE(. in: CEV's equipped Wlth de· 

,.-..::..-..·: .. :: . : _-.-~ tingency:·pro~~~~n: in the.plan stated that·•jf·an vicesSCH which could shoe»t a horizontal-stream of 
----.-:·-=.---~-~~-~ ·. _&Ubject8 failed ~- s~ender -~r 48 hours. of ~ar: ·- .CS agent·in short biirstS or eontinuouslr f~r up to 

···::· · -~- --~-~: .. :.;._ .. ~ •. Jlum a_.CEV ~th.a.modifi~ b~&:~~- WJJJ -~m- __ ... 15 seconds.~~-The device uses-~arbon d1oXJde as a 
·.:--: :· _ .... · ~ ··: ---mence· a systematic opemng-up/d1sassembly·of the·-:-~-.:, ... ·~~"···· . _ .. _ ... -.:-. · ·7 - -·· . • -- . 

· ~---·.-._.: ... -~~-~ur~-jig~ran subjects~ J~ca~~~ · .: _:·----~>~-~:--··:54;~·~-~;-~~~,·;~_-·-.-_· 
----~ ~:-,-.-::.~ ... J .. kceleratlon·provisions of'the opef'C#ionipldtL:.:~:~:__ ••J=~DeJ:~,Re~·~-2~ _·. ·_ 
--- ,, -· ~-- _ ---~·-Whne th~_:Q"P.eratioi1s .. p18ii.Citt1ed rc>J. .. ihe gove·m. ·-- -::r.:r~~,2fPc.t.use.:--:--

. ... . d ff L'. ld .. The deliYery ,,.tema mounted oo -the CEV'• were Procedo-.fe' . . inent's actions to end the stan o to· unao over: a Model 5 Tear ca. Deli•ery Sya&.enw manaracturecl bfiSPRA. 1.14_ an 
period of 2 . days, the plan also con~ned eon tin- ~aaeH canpan1. Tbe .~ were eo1c1 eo the FBI b)' AdYucell JUse-
gency provisions that allowed for a departure ·from riale ~bon::,1n~on;' :Cit~,~;:~~~ 
the concept of a methodical insertion of CS. One of ;:; ;:-281• The~~~ tn•.:&igae3on indica&e~ that while lhe 

. _ _ ___ =----· _. _ ~~se ~rovi_siQP$. 'Y~. imP.le~~u~~;~d on_.April.l9 ~d · __ M~'=~d· ·~~:.:d~ .• ~ .• ~-Lhere1 il ~~~-':~!'Mil~~:-=_~!!' ..... - . · ··1 · r• . ·a-- ·--·-·1· · •=- f th · rti f The ••• ence anm-- Will' on y - ~J.... .....,. u _, _ _... ·:~~ ~: ~ ; . .:: :..::_ :-··· Tesu ~u._l_l!·a-:rapt ~ac.ce era"Wt~~o -~'1nJe _ -.~!1 JL:.-. -ri;Unrid-~ &he·c~. furnished &o &he FBI b7 u.e Derea.e Depe~L 

~;,~;;:!~?~;~~,~~~1~~~~Jii:~~~~=:~;y;~t~~:;~::~~~~~;~~=··' 
-::.,- .: -~ -=--::: :,_. ;·.::-· ~ ;..:.::~-:- served"'· iif=the··: tower dunng the Ope~~~;m,s~ a_t\er . .' .. :"II n.;:~ich·fl· coftneicced &o a hose wttlla nou1e. 1'bl: ~ - car­
'.:_:-_;.: ~.----:-~~- . ·- ... ' h . . bee. . . . • L'. ..;.~. t·to be t'he e ~-.mants were--·"-- -boa ctioidde &o propela.chemical .P..l~-i.eh-.. cs. mixed"' •• .,..,. 
:'~'.:,:..,.;::_-··"·--· · .. · ~~l)g ..•. ~.:~~~.9~cu~~o ·• _:. . ,· r •\.~"' .,_.; -··· ,,_, ... ,: ···.n' eiC ~ylefte chiaride. in&o the air. The rance ol' the derice i1 1'­
.:':'::-~_-_:~ p_~·r..:.~ ~~·~:-?pe-~itt.e'il~~~P~n~·CS~S!'s·~~..{he ~:~.et .b~ tinng . _ 20 ,. .. ha '",,. atr. 'l'he dmce can be uae~~ eo ahool 13-11 t-eec:Gn4 

·:~ .. ~-:-~_·: ·:-:~::·;::;.:Ferret :round :projectiles· into the tower.'"More im• ,.:-.- banw or·a--&iondnaOcllburaL rcr up &o astec:Ondl. . . 
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disbursant t0 propeJ a stream of. CS agent, IUS· tiles fired at the -residence actually entered the. 
pended in methylene chloride, horizontally into the residence, however, the total quantity of CS agent 
air. Once the CS stream is fired, the carbon diox- delivered by the Ferret round projectiles would 

·ide. quickly evaporates and the methyler:te chloride have been 1,480 grams. . ... 
. ... · :.,:n··:·:-=-·· -... ·g~_ 4ispenes·the CS e~enly.througb·a room,-:until.. . . . 

. -.-.-~· --~---_~">_:~::.'_ .. ::.,'~ · .. the· methylene· ehloride- itself .evaporates. The CS. D .... ~VERVIEW OF 1HE USE OF CS CHEMICAL AGENT 
~·; .. __ :..,·-.: . _ .... -· ~,;->-·-agent·;·: which is ·a fine PQwder, then ~low_ly falls. to·.. . I. Introduction ,.. . . ._, : :. .. ' 

-;;.;:}!1·:;£t~-!~~~~~~~~~~~r~~;i~~~:r~r?~ ~, :~~¥~oc;,e~~~~e:r -~. :~~~;o:r:;~x!;~~;n1~ · 
,., ; .. ··.: .. :_::-:~~ :~·-:>::;·--~:-'~The.~ iiisertioif -~o1--CS. ·agent intO:. thtr ··Branch:-_· · -~P~~.~-~~~ ~~r;n,.P.?un~s ~sed.:~. cont~~~- ~-vthan popu· _ 
. ::,:~- ~--:·-~--::·.:.-·~·~:·~:~.::;~;-D~~·~#l~residence:waa .perfonne~- in~follr ·phases.-,._,_ la~P-n.~ .. ~~g _P_~no~s -~f-_~1stu~ee an~ ~nr~st. 

- . ,-~ -'~,.~~~-~-; -~e·fi~::~o'phasetfemploye~ tw~:·cEV's~ on:o!le,.:; :-Th,~se-:.:'~~~~ntJ:ol ~e~~-;·cause _a~ute t"'!ta~on _ .. 
_ ~- - . ___ C_~ _'NU. m·ounted two CS dehverj' systems, whde ,_ . _ --~ . Pte_ -~re .. s! _. ~o~-~·-~~~eL ~d upper resptra~ry 

. __ · .. -. four s)rStenis. were mounted- on the ·second CEV. ~--- __ =~~~~-t, tljat_ ts _.relativ~ly bne! and not usuaUy ac· 
_ . - The ·CEV's ·were ·operated in tandem, ·each insert· _ . compan1ed _by permanent toxtc effects. Exposure to 

- -., . jog the·entire ~ritents·ofthe six CS.agent delivery riot-control agents renders the victim temporarily 
system·s during ·the first two phases of the oper· inc~pa~~_ted,. but the symptoms typically persist 
ation, at 6 a.m. and again at approximately 8 a.m.· fo.r only a few· minutes after cessation of expo-
In each of the first two phases, a total of 180 sure. 507 · 

grams of CS was delivered. The third and fourth The first riot control agent was developed in the 
phases, also 2 hours apart, involved only one CEV, early 1900's. 508 In 1928, two chemists Corson and 
a~ the ~econd CEV had experienced mech!lllicaJ Stoughton, developed 2--chlor~nzylidene 

"~:-:.:~:~-~~~-~--:··-· .·.·.~ :·_ . ~IH»~t}e_s-:-~d. no Jon~~r-_operated. Four cyhnders ___ JD.~Iononitrile, code named CS. However, CS was 
__ _ _ _ _ --· of' CS were ·delivered 1n eac~ of thes~ tw~ phase~, .n.ot. :· deyeloped_ ·_as :_rjQt-controJ agent until the 

~::··:';:;~~~~_.;,~--·/:~-~-\:<~ ... for_ ~-=~~--~?·-~ms .. of9~--~~serted mto the ~est- .- _1950's, ·wheii-:the_ B'ritish War Office began to 
· ·- _- . ~~---·.·_ ·-=~:·----~~-;·-·de!l~ Thus.:~e~ _qi! \~~~r~ 6-hour~_:~f.~e __ op~r:. s~aJ!h _ _fq_r_~_-·chemical that was more potent than 
_ . , ~~~:. :' ~:- _ .. _ -~-."-~_a,ti~n. ~ totaL~f_6.QQ gra~s. of CS. agen~_ .W~ ~~- _. e1ther CA or CN.509 By the -1960's;- CS had re. . 

-.~-,~-.-:~;:.~f;".'.:;..;-~: ... :::~.;~-~~~d.t~~-~~!J~ch-D~~dian _re~lder_tc~. ----·~c:. -_ placed CN as the preferred tear··gas among police 
. __ . __ ----::":-----;)_\ ~ ·-:.·_·_-Dun~ the L~~4~~':1~t.J:l- ~e I?aVJdian.s, FBI- --authorities·.~ around the world._ Its popularity 

·. ~ ··-·· ~- -.::··"~~~:~.:·~~~~~a;o~J=1~K!~a~th~:~~:::.:J.tei11Jt~~~:f!o~_ t~e_f~~---~~t it ~as sho!ffi to be a 
. ..,,.-.... -.- ____ rimeter of the resielence.-The FBfs ove-rall-oj>e'r;·· -more _poten_t,Jm~nt ... -~~ CN,- ~d appeared to 

. _ .· ·- · -· · , .. :· ·"""'---~~~_onal plan·for April19 provid~d for the BradJeys · · cause les~ .lo~g-term InJUry, particularly to the 
. . . . to be wed in a cOntingency plan_ to be impl~- -· ~ye._510 Mihtary. forc!s a!so _saw CS as a po~nt 

..... mented in the event the Davidians began to fire on weapon for particular opeJ:"a~ons. Large q~ttties 
.... the _CEV's.·If.tha~. _occurred, agents in Bradleys o~ CS were used by. the Umted States dunng the 

· · . .-_,_ who .. :.had . inaneuv~~ec;t _close to the building and V1etnam W~r .. CN 1s no longer used by the U.S .. 
. ·.-· : -~:::;·< _.: .. ~.- ... ·were>standing· ready-~-were tO·.:·m5ert additional m.ilitary~·operations, but it is still used by some 

·-···: .. :::;;·:· ...... ~~_ .. ·:.-.. _, ... quanJ.i.f.f~!{·or:cs::agent:·into aJJ.parts_Qf.th~,build~ ·-civil authorities.- and by individuals for self-de· 
_ _ .. . . ing. Agents· -iri the Bradleys w.ere ~:10-..'fire-. _Ferret:·· .. fense.-:=Among civilian Jaw enforcement agencies CS 

.. ,~--- o.· · - .. :. ·_· . --~..0\md~.~ proj~-~~~~~ into ·the .-~~s'i~-en·~~., ~ .. :Ferret·_ --~~i'S~ .b)i far, the most ·widely-used riot control agent. 
__ .. --· rowids~.r:e.semble Jarge·_'plasticJ,_tjl~~ts~-and __ are_· ·--- :::- .,_, .-.. -

.. -. _._ .. __ . ~., ... ·, ~.<.fired from hand-held grenade launchers. Each· pro.- · c .'. ~~~nr.W.f!-Wict. CMMUlol ~"" Vl«lllt RiDI-ON&Jrol GAd WGI'(an. 
·' ti'l .. ' .. 3 7· ( CS · -t,- · · .. -. d. · · · --· 2 Ham..TcmCIOklgy247-256. --·----- '--.:.:.:: -=:>-~_--_..- .·_ :-· -JeC ~-.--~~_e.~--- :.. .. ~a~~ _0. • &g:~J~. _ IDl'f-~ , In __ ~ · ·· .. , _ ... The fint riOkcntrol aeen& may have been ethyl bnlimace~.ale, 

... _--- ·_ ·-·:·- .. : .. ,.,-,,~:.:-·, ·suspens1on ofmethyl~ne_~hlonde. ·:·~:·, _ ... :;, : ... · _, · ·--~~.id?-w.. a.e.tby Che Paria police in a hand~ &odi&ableaiminal 
. - - -. ·- --.-- Once· the· Davidian a· began firing. cni the CEV'i. · .. pnp. The~- chemic:aJ ind•try Usa& J'")duoed manylelbaJ chemi-

·---------~·- · · • .· · D..;.... ·th rd to • -~--- · ···th . .. caJweapo~Yclaring.WcddWarl.(e..r .. nene.->aJ.ode¥e&oped.-. _ .. - : ~---.:-.~-, ... -: __ ...• .v&en ·gave.":;: ec::O ._ .4tt , ...... -:.Imp em~nt. e ~ntin~, . __ &ear,._: F• eum~ xytyl bnlnDde WM pecbc1 lQ J&o-mm artallerJ 
__ . ____ -. _ -._ . .-.,: .. _ .. · .. -.. gency plan. 'Ibe agents in the Bradleys then ma~~-· _ahelbr ancns~-&tUrinc u. bauJe .,. • .,.,abe au-w.. ., Bolimrnr ill 

.. ~ ... ·iu~uvered··close to the Branch Davidian residence-- .. .ran1W)' 1911.,. early milit.uy we ora...,. ....... .-J~.., 
· · · ·• · -- • . . ... . .. . _ .. __ be a •caca.a. owinc 1o the l'ailare ol &be chemkal&o nponu in lhe •• 

and began to fire the Ferret round proJectiles ,en; &empmtaiei·an u.e t.UJefteW. Ho....,.., '',..mew .,. •"' Wfi. 
through the windows of the building. During the 6· · catioe f1l &he imPGrtance ot .,.lher cancliliou 1o u. eft'edi..,.. ftl 

· - - - . h ti' 400 F t d • ... :1 &MM epnta. By 1918, abe French w cSe¥elope~t ~ . ··'-~"--'-"-"-~-.. ~ _ _ _ _ _ our opera on, ef!'e. roun. proJe"w es were tno-n by &.he military eoc1e CA. and the Britiah anc1 Americana had.._ 
-~ ·:"",~;..;.;,;.~:;-~_;~:;~,;::-7~r:e4~~~ _the Branch.Davtdian ressden~e •. a number . w:e~ope~t dl~ known by the mlicary coc1e CN, which be-

--~?;~~~;{:~~l!B?:i?!~,';i::!!iS~~. 
· . .. -' · - Jlae fti'iil ·.u.s.~ peucle_Jaandwn.:~~'Je-C:a"riW' 3.7; · -..,.,, CoclbGn and .I. NoUiftcbam, A Sarfty o(ChemlcaJ ud 8iolcP . 

.,.... .C CS no& Clllftlrol teen&. m&a'ed in • -peMiiOn ol' methylene ch1o- . . caJ Warl'aN (1869). · · · · · .. · · · · · 
ricle. a&e Ha. ..,. nOte &o8. 
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2. Con.Cerns over use ofCS control agents in ~nclosed and indoor-spaces where 
CS has gained wide acceptance as a means of it is feared that resulting high concentrations may 

controlling and subduing riotous crowds. However, have resulted in harmful levels of exposure. Severe 
. _ i~ .. ~desp_re~<Luse· h11~ r~sed _gu_estions about its ·:~injuries from exploding. ~ar gas. grenades as well 

: ·-~~~~-- ~,.:-: - · -~~~~· --~~st __ pt4>1ish~4 ~tudi~s: .. have_ ·concluded ... · __ as d~~th~ from. the. toXlClty of not control agents 
. _·. -'"'---~--' , .. .::.:., :. -:· ·.: · that, if ~sed :_correctly, _the. irri~t .effects of expo- .-. :used m confined;·: 1ndoor spaces have been re­
·:::._ ~-'>-~-. :~:::-J~~- --~:_S~:.~'aure ·are s~()~;.J~yed, -~~---'do no_t_~u~ .permanent.::: po~d.~:~- ~-:; - .. ~ .. , .-_:_~ _::c.;~-
.:>.':'> _··.:·/ ::·..:::·:·::~:.::~~&ge.au-~9\V_e_ver. tli_e_~, ha~·~J>een isol~~d re-·-~:~-;. · C~tics.of ~e .us~ of thes~ ~e!lts a~e that the 
:>~~~-::<'~:~-:·;:_~::,~-=-·.-: ··: ;·pons_ .. of fatal~ties··~m))le,:_US~:~o.f riot control av~labl~ toXlcolog~cal da~ JSJnsuffi?ent to de- .. 
,;~;7-Z-;;:: .. ~ .. ::;:.·_?:;_~.: ~~-~-· ~ageniii.:·Tbe. '-~~~~r-·coiiimc>it repc)riS: j"volve.~-death's :· .' :. ~ml.>e. ~th~_ .. any' confidence the potential for long- · 

__ :_~-::~·:::"_::_;,-::::_[·:·~:~:~_::;~.:-~'"·,·attributed~ :bf ttie· _-u~e-)(_riot _: ec)iit~~_jig~nt$~·:.by·:·=.-···~~~pu.hp_~Qary~ ·carc~_no~eni_c,' ~nd. reproductive e~· 
·.·_ -:-~,~;;;:':~~:;._:;:,_:_~,:~eric~·~~~ ·per~~~n.~l in~VJetn&Dl.~-~~Mdj:-· · f:~c~~~ ()~e r:e~_en~lt-,pUbhshed reVJew of the toD· 

·. ::.::: t.: :~, · ·.~: ._c.;._.:'.':~' _ '_: tj_o~~~ly ~ ~~~~r :.t.e.P.9rtJJ~;~, J.J1-yolve :Jro~ey ,,_,~~'""4eath , --:· -~'9~~a.l. ~~.ta on ·not-control ag~nts c~ncluded ~t 
.. ~-. : .~:::-- :: .. ::,:::~-.:.: ·_ :- ::·rr()m the usi otCS in Chile Panama South Korea .. ____ rela~.!~ely :.ht_tle. has been.: pubhshed m the mam-

. · · .... : :· ::.::-:and-th_e_~·_stnp .and. W~st Bimk_~r isrlle_l.tsl:l It.· _-_-stre~~ _medic!ll litera~urf!. and that epidemiologic 
· :_:_has __ be~n _·w~~Je~l .ftC?ni,_ Jhese .- t.~P'!rts,:. however,.-_ . :st~d~e~, followtng tear gas u~e under actual field 

. . whether the ~ot ~ntrol agent used was .CS ·or an-.-.. ,.-_ co!ldltlO!l~- a!e almost. nonex~stent. The author of 
other,' more toxic,. agent. 51• Of particular concern,·_ ~thiS ·reVle~. wrote: . 
however, has been the indiscriminate use of riot There is clearly a great need for openly 

conducted research illuminating the fuJI 
•uThe mae& &borough atudy o( the a. orCS agmt apinat humana h Jth f to • t 

• the Hime.-orih Report, which inveetip&.ed the u.e or cs agent in ea consequences o exposure no • 
Northern Ireland In 1969. It conduded lha& expoeare to cs did no& · control agents including· outcomes such as 
produc:e Jong-t.erm ildUJY « cleaLh in hu.maM. Home Ot6ce. report otl.he tumor formation, reproductive effects, and 

_, _II'Q~T)' ift&o the Medical and. Toxicoloeical .. upecCII ot CS (Ortho- 1 d C d be 
chlorobenzylidene malononitnle), Par& II: Inquiry into Todcotogicat A. pu monary isease. onsi eration must 

. . ... peet.a otCS and ita ue rorCivt1 Purpoe. (1971Hl(~_Himsworth ... given-- ·-to· -·the ---possible effects of these 
·-·:---::=--·-; -~--- ReportJ.·~·recentetudyotttae·~orcsoa l;soc>penoaa_ina_eonfilie( ___ .. --~agenls~--.on. the young, the elderly, and 
.. ~ .. -.... - _. .;.·, ... _. _,_,: . .. aree._-apac;:e.~:~~&de __ ~e aame.ftndanp. P.J. Andenon.et al., N:lik 1/f«:U · -.. h . . h • h h • ed 

.:~c::;[:}f:f:lilf~~~I~Y~~.~if~~t:/L~t~!Dii~:~ez~, ... 
· .. --:::-·:::~;-_ ;'·:::;_-_~ .. _·::'. :~opiftkionl:=at'~euibfe _in '&Acii~_.jtaa~:~ie:d -~~::·::.->·All n·o• .c:ontrot·ag(mts'·,l··nc',lu" .d. ing cs·:p-roduce in·· 

-· ._ .. : .. -:::.···Ciomber·rn.~WIIicli=n·Piat{reaponding· i1-temi--a'ie ·e..eatiat and·penna· .· .. ·. . "" -~· · .. • • • ' • ' • · 
. . - . -aen& efl'ecta are undeeinble. Rio&-<antrol munition~ can be uaed tense sensory Jmtatlon even m the most mmute 

:tactically eo· &elnfo,an1r_~iaab1e hoetil~ __ troope,-~ eu~ ~eir fire,,... concentr~tio(l_s~ :F.or most of these agents, the eye 
·to ca~ l.h~m·eo_~.:_the.t:Poeitt~ onen.ively, rioWOn,"?ligen_ta"::·.: .. is the most sensitive organ, with pain arising rap· 
can be u.ted &o "'fluh out" unprotected enemy troope tram concealed posi. 'd) · d b • • • · • 
tiot-. or &o 1'educe their abtlity &o maneuver,_. uae t.hc:ir weapons. Defen· . I y, accompa.me ry COnJUOCtiVJtJS, exceSSIVe tear-

... aiv~y. !"oko'!trol mun!tiona.can be in~Led_in&o 4efe0sive perime&era ing, and uncontrolled blinking. The inside of the ...... .... . -~~= ~~ C::d:?'er:!i:~!.dtU:~~ u,e ·eYent or a eur· . m~uth. ~~ no~e ~xp~riertce a stinging or .burning 
·. :· · p;.e &u.&ct f'ram euperior enemy rarcee, and to t.etp··~-:betieopter · sensatJon; .. and there_1s usually excessive d1scharge 

atrad.iona or combat unita,.. downed airman. !C. ... uecS extensively . . of nasal- inuc'iis~ Chest tightness and burning are 
ia aree-deniat open tiona to render t.erTain uninhabitable by the enemy.·· • d b h • · d · d 

_ _ _ .CS.waa ateo a.ecS routinely in direct enppment ot.u.e enemy during---:-: _.1~~~9t.:n..pam~. 'Y coug mg, sneezmg, an mcrea.se 
-.: ·. ~enmve =~ba&o~tiona •.. - _ . .. ·: ·· : . secretions from the ___ r~spi_ratory · passageways. A 

"U.S.: ron:eB were 1Mued PI rnub to protect t.hem.elvee agalnat uee:·: 'b\iming--·s·ensatio·n .is felt ·on the skin_ often fol-
. ·: .. C!l.CS ancl other tear pee. by &be enemy. Aa:ordi~ to one U.S •. evalu.a· ·- ·· -~- · d b · · fl . · d d d · 
~-'~,the ~c,mh View~ had only a limited au~ ·or &.rar ru.· buf_ _ o~e ___ -; .'Y Jn ~m~at1on an _ re ness. an m some 
-.··~-Died tt t.o sood etrect. ~nc &be cono_ict. 1M~~ eemce 1'81· . :·cases~--~~u&.Lb4r.rti!lg of the skin occurs. Tear. gas 

' .. · . • •. . .· ··-~- - JIU'81or. .,.. repl~ bya li£.f'&er mal~ ·~icb ~'--~ a· number-~_ . :·:exposute~·--may·lit59. imtiite 'the stomach, leading to 
· --: '···::·--- ~~~~.;-.;.~=':'.,.:!nCO::·;-t.::;-~:=~---·-4 voriiiti~g-and pc)ssibly.diarrhea. In addition to the 

-. , •. -~- ------~-~--. _·_ :. eft'ecl:on .~1'1- ~~~--~~-n~ ~ ~ _.ncl, hamid conclitioal_ when"l.he 'ikin .... •'physi~l. sitrip~ms, _·panic' and severe agitation are 
•· :-;.:-.·:·::.-·-=.-.--_~,-- ~=;;r~_;u1;:~---.~~:~~~~ M; ·coait~rieecan~=~·&ii;·.;~--cO~m:on among those individuals with no prior ex· 

· . . -· ·:· --- -1 Play~~ ~ -~ -~ _H~ ~ c.. Shlllil• from - pe_nence _of exp_o~ur.~ _to tejlr gas. 51& 
- ~~/:~): tiT Pla1~ (01' HUIIIM RWAb. lNB 14 1993, 21o Most of the symptoms are felt within 10 to 30 

•wJa a 1888 report. the General Aoroaatinc omee noted lhac. lhe seconds after ·exposure to the agent. After ces-
poap Phywiciana ror Human RiehLe had canc!uc\ecl • r.ct-ftndinc trip &o sation of exposure however most symptoms con· 
iatabpte aJlepticlnl ofclealha from &be .e orCS iD &he occupied len'i· · t• • ~ ' • d 1 f • be~ .. L 
Iori• but that the memben rLthe eroup caaJd not ·caiifiw:m &hal any or·-. !n~e-~_ per.s1.s~ aor a pe_no o mmutes ,ore su.u-

... _ the-~ ~~ ~ ~~~~ &.o:.&ear pa iahalation. -&e c:i:; 7:&:,~ s1dmg· and ··d1sappeanng. ~~~ '11le effects of expose 
---~;::,;·~~:·..=:-::-·:-:: .-,.:;'~~u&Gerieial~tincOflcie,Iereal:.ONotu.s.-Manutadurec!Tear-:.'· . ..,_. a· -- m· ·.- ., d·---a·'-·1 Add"ti 11 th · --. -'-=-'··------=·""'··:e:.iD·&hi"'OcCUpMc!.Terii ....... _. 989)"( .... P1i ..... , •. -~ · - ........ v ry a ongm JV1 ua s. 1 ona y, wea er.con· 
--~~<-2~ r~--:~ .~:·;~;::~~(ltilh&a._.-~:-~~~~~c;t =~-o:~ .=u:.:rRi~~=- .. , ___ ~~ior}~~:·:·_sud) ~~. :te_~pe~atur~ and humidity •. can . 
. ""'::::.·.::,\~-~--~: .. -~~, .'·:_:·:~:.-~·~t~al'!Jan~. Ucl Gua .Strip,-~ ot a Medical Feet Findinc 'Mia-·~_~'-. beJghten the ·potency of these age(lts. 511 

:?;I;=~;;;~;;yf~\nitlFA~~~~=~s:;;,~;{~y;;;:...n;.;ols:·;:l=.;;.'~:~:... ~ ....... i~ -· · 
· ,~~~~~,~~--~: :_:, ;;. ___ ,,--:~·: ~ __ :_·:--~:!!:t~ ~~!,•:,.a::-: .;~::.'~~;;: ~;;~~_;. :, ;_!;Jic~.'\~117. ~ 608.' al276. . --:~~· .. _.-~-. --~ ~- . ~.:--.·-~ 

- -:·:~::7 ... ~, .. ::..,.--- ... _·;,..._·~·-.;;,. ;..·-: ·.:.-i-
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2. TodcUy o(CS lation. In· fact; the most well-known study or the 
A review of the scientific literature eonceming effects or CS on humans estimates that the liketi. 

. the use or cs indicates that limited conclusions as hood or death after exposure to. a dose or cs that 
·- -~ · - ··.:_c·c~:~- .. to the· to~icity--and l~thality_ or .CS .. a~e :known. It is one-tenth the estimated lethal does is Jess than 
, .. , ... '· .. ·'~~,·~.~-"'-seem's generany:·a.ecepted by:the·Jci.ep~fi_c COt~ftnU:·' . -~.in 100,000.5~ Accordingly, any analysis or the 

_:·.:-- , __ , _·_:_ ~--. nity:·that·the~eoncentratio.n_orcs ~el?t whicli--is :·lethality of·the·CS agent used in the concentra· 
,;: --.,- ~:- _._~--- --·-·:-'_.·-~~tic~ble: ·by_ humans anc:l,_; which ___ wa]l'_ provoke tions_ that·: resulted ·on APrH 19 ean only be per-
-~:;..->.';.~~-~-~-->_ --·:·-'physiea1 res~r1iei _in -human~ is 4 milligrams per formed in· light: or the 50 percent lethality esti· 
-~:_-~:;,':'?-~~:~}::--.~~;~.·~~ic)iieter'··c4::mgfm3)~5~9 While.n~.·-~,~~d!~~~--on hu•_·: ··mates~- .. --.. ·,_ .... ::: -:~ -:-~ . 
·: ;~_-'"-~ ~::~-~ :-:<_:_: '-~ ~ .. ~':m$Jj,_]iave .been-conctucted·~nceJ1li~g th~(le~aJ~ty-- ·-:' ·.-' Even jvhen_, _the _ q\Jantities or CS riot control 
-~ _: ,c:~~~;-:,-,.:·,.-:··.:;·,:.::·c~( .. cs~,:: . .-i.everal· stUdies:-· have piOj~ct:e<t_~~-- .co~··.:·:',-.·age~t us'ed··do:~not ·reach lethal toxic levels, there . 
. · .. ~:.;.: ~-~·,·:·~-- .. _'.;-':: een_tratfi>ni· .. at·which~:CS_is leth~ t.o_:_hwn&r!s from .. :.:·: are;.:· nevertheless, .:-~ "sigrlificant· physical con-
----·~-__ > ·_: .. -~·--_ :.::~·:"the" eft'eets ''of studies perf'ormed on j~i-~~~s:· Those:~~:=-_ ·sequences that occUr· .. froni ,_ exposure tO . cs, and . 

· · __ ---_ -__ - · __ ---,~~s_·_ ~ihiiate that··the:.concentration:···c,r·.:·cs-:, .. ' often· severe: emotional-reactions caused by the 
_ . _ ~nt w~ch ·wowd-prove lethal_ to_ 50 percent or · ·. symptoms :brought on f'rom exposure to CS. As dis-

- .. c:any given hunuur·population ranges fro.m. as low as · . _ctissed above~ one recent study or the use of large 
- .. 25,000 520 tcf as ·high as 150,000 mg-mullm3• 521 Re·- · quantities· ·or ·cs against a population unable to 

cent estimates by the U.S. military, b'owever, esti· -- ·.,·leave the area in which the CS was used indicated 
mate that the lethal concentration f~r humans is that first, second, and even third degree bums are 
61,000 mg:minlm3.~22 11lat study p~Jf7ts that the possible when skin is exposed to cs.s21 Addition-
concentrations '!hicb would be mJunous to the a11y, some studies have shown that exposure to CS 

. health ~r approxunately 50 percent of any hum~ can cause allergic contact dennatitis. &28 Other 
____ ... _ .. . population range from between. 10-20 mg-mm/ studies have shown that when CS can cause se-

: .-. ---:-~ ---_· := __ ._ Jn3~~~-- _ ·._ ·,_--- :_. -~ .. __ - --.- ··,.;·~, ·:____ _ _ _ _-_- · _ vere gastroenteritis when ingested, whether eli-
·---- _. -· ,_ :. _. _ _.ltJ_sJ~~rtant:~ ~ote! however,· that there-are· ···rectly or as a result of ingesting mucus secretions 

,:"-·_s'~;.::"·O ;.~:~;j p.,o ;p~t~:~~~ ~t~~~~--w~~~~, find that any human containing CS from oral inhalation.&• 
_ ._ .. : ·~····_·--:-_ .:.._ :-i:lea~ ~~_.ll_eer:-._ ~.qs_.~ ·btexpo~~~--_to __ CS .agen~,:-::-:-~ -:~4.ditiona1Jy, .some studies on animals have sug­
i--_- .- ~ _ _ : _ : __ . : ~lul~ -~· number_ ~r. ~~erified. ·reports of.- human :- --ges~d that ejposiire to cs might caus~ cancer and 

:; ;-,,:~~':>;~;:-.... ~ :~~:-,,de~_tp~ ~~~~ t~~--~~·~~e ~te~~ure, :J~._.al~. of'.,_ . genetic abnormalities.~3o Some studies have stat.ed 
__ ',"?~~·:,:~: .. ::·:·~~- ·~:~/;:;/.:~~~~-.:~P,9r,t8_ !~), ~.cleta!. ~,-ec:t~ly·Vt,~~~-~LCS.:or. -·,_:.that exposure:to high.cohcentrations ofCS for pre>­
. ,. _. ·--~ ... , :· -c~·:, ;:;.· • ...,.:-; .. 1_om~ ~ther.~ .. ~~r~ _f:OX1~•}'!~~'·COJ1~11?l_·ll~~t_·_was .used·:··. ··.-Joilg''perio.ds .-could:resuJf iJ) inflammatory changes 

-· · __ . _ or _whether· some other Cl~!J~~ce ~·:could. have-" · in· the ·respiratOry:tract: that-might be conducive to 
_--' ... caused _the_ ~e~~~·1_h~ most extenstv~ studtof_the secondary .. respiratory infection.531 And it is be-

use or. CS agent on hum~s, b>:- Un1ted ~ngd_9m lieved that CS may exacerbate existing medical 
forces m ~orthem Ireland m the~~ 1.960's, found conditions. of persons with bronchitis or asthma, 

.. _ _ . : _ .that no deaths (and no long·term UlJunes) .resulted although no reports of death from these conditions 
. :: ;:·.· ... ~-:. ;_::_)rom· th~ .~desp~d us~ ofCS agent there.&24 The . exist. 

· ..;;.:: ..... : .. ~--.,- ~- _, : only ot)l~.r. _ dorume.g~d study of-. the_ effects- of· C~_ -.-. . .. _ . _ _ .. 
_.,,_,_. __ ,:. :,;·. : .. _..,-;~ ._::- used __ o_~ a _"J~~ge._iitiin~i".-~of hun:tans confirms .this._:; ::t·.:E,~CT or_~~ AND METIM.ENE CHLORIDE IN-
·- :···: ... ,._findirig.~u-··· ---~---~ ~- ::::.~.:... ,;,, _: ..... :::.- ".-: ;.- . ..: · .. ,--_:.·: :-.-~ ~Q~-~-~USEDONAPRIL19nl 

. . . -- ~ - .. · Some· pec)ple. may find curious ·the fact ~hat all qf. ·__ -~. Let.hdliiy oi CS ·as-o ~d .at Waco 
. .. . ·these s_tudies (and similar studies on the effects of - · · .. · · : 

.-· · -. -. ~- ·:.:.:_-_. _ .· ... ~hemic.A.J ·ag.ents):·wurormly give .. estima~tes·.-0r the·:-. ·· Testimony before the ·Subcommittees present.ed 
-.... ~ -·--,~~--- . . . level at whicb cs is·lethal or injwio~ to .5() per-· . . contradictory·- evidence on the effects or cs . riot 

. - . . - ----~~: cen·t- of a_ givert :population of humans.- It. appears : control agent. The published literature descnDed 
.. · -· from the .. literatilre that--the effect of cs: ori _hu· _ a~ve, however, i~ m.ore consistent in the conc~u· 

. ·- --. -- mans (and ori"·other animals) ia. not- -Hneir.· i.e.. . : SJOns: dra~.; Wlnl~_ It cannot be conel~ded WJth 
__ ........ __ that-.-proportionatel'-_ greater .concentrations _ _do not certain~. tt 1s unh.k~Jy that the CS not control 

--... ~ -··- · --have equally --prop(,rtion"ate inerea_ses ._.iri~-_eft"~t. __ -·-·a_gent, m ~e-quantities.-u~d by the FBI, reached 
While scientists. can estimate .the-levels which·.-- lethal tox1c .levels.-_ The.:eVJdence presented to ~e 
would prove lethal to "so percent or a giveri""i>Oi>u- ·s~om'!'ittees does indicate, however. ~at cs 10· 
Jation, it would be incorrect to presume that half sertion mto th! encJosed bunker at a .tt~e when 

__ -_ ::: ... : :~ .. -~·.!»_f_ ~at quantity would kiJl 25 percent of that popu- women and chddren were assembled . tnssde that 
· ·:: -- --- -- ·-:·.:. ,_ -- ....--::-,----· ....... --'·-----~--· _.,.. __ . · _ · . enclosed space could have been a proXImate cause 

. _ • :.: -_-.-_ ··~ ·.~·~~1~<::.~~ ·~~~-~~ ~.~tro.r_:Acenw;_~iea1ancl Health ~.a~ _ of _or directly resulted in some or all or the deaths 

· .. Andenon. aupro ..-. 611, al ~ AI Ballantyne, ayro no1e Sit, al 30. 
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In order to answer the quesbon of whether -the The air circulation earned some of the CS agent · 
quantities of CS agent inserted into the residence out of the building. Adding to the air circulation 
might have reached lethal levels, the subcommit- inside the David.ians residence that day was the 
tees attempted to determine the concentrations . fact that the FBI began to use the CEVs to ram 

·· that_·_were ·· presen~·- j~ __ the residence-~ Wi4er. :,the ... o&)enings into the buildil)g, ostensibly to create a 
__ ----· · .- . -~ :_··. ""':ors~-case" · cir~stail~-; To.:~:-~~e..:·-_this .. de.ter~ .. mean~ ·or ·escap4f for· the ·Davidians and, later, to 

_·· , .. -:.::..:.-;~: ·: ,_· __ ml~a~on,:a_.':l.~.~-=of ~~~ptl~~-~~t_,be_ made •. "deconstruct" portions of the structure in an effort 
;=-~·-;. r;-;.:::.2-7 ·.-:-;c~'-Many'of ~e~~--~su~ptiQn.~"w~re overstated. solely: .. 'to· prevent_ the. Davidians from occupyin-g those 

. ;.:,_., .. ~.:.:~. ::~··:_··fo:r:!f~.:_p~~~e,Rf;c~Jc;_~~t~9~ mJ~rA,;er tq~pl~~-_,the. ~--·:areas O,fctiie_r~idence ... These actions greatly en-

•·. ;c, __ '{~,,-+;~,~?:~~Jri~~~~-;;~~~;h'!'~~~lri~~:~-~tO~~ .: !i;tr~~~~~!:;~:J"~-~~~=:t'~r;':; 
.-,:.: ,:.;"··- ~:--:-': -:·.::'_:.·:·· . .-.· t)1e ,J;Jrancli ···J)aVI~~ ~sl_4en~ ..... a . .:~~~ ·. ~f: -180 :,.~:t~te·:.:residence··:·Additionally ··on· April 19th the 

.:.::-, ·::~:€· --~-'"~!~.!;.•:·!:··~gtatnif_·uso,ooo -~~r:~(.:~- w~_d!!!ive_¥.~~2 . .f0 r. ~··;-·Wihdr~were'-~:~-~n ... u ~ to• .25 in h.539 Thi; (act 
· -····-···-· -- ~-··-·the··purposes·::of--·anilysts ·the siibCOmDllttees as· -·· --·.: --·'· ;.~~~-'- P.. ·. P •.• -· -~'-' .. . ·:-__ : _:-~:.:·· d" . -~·ext·• ... ,. ,_ .... _,,::-- ··•····- .,.·h .. all iso -~· greatly~enh~ce~-~~--~ir. circulation mstde the res-

-· . ,. - . · -~r!s =~ dell~~r~to ~nb~idi=g ~~'-t.he two :· .· J~en(e; addiQg to. the. dissi~ation of the concentra-
.. CEV's at the same instant, and tli"at one.quarter_ o( -· ... ~on of.CS-.ag~_nt !fl the restde.n~e. Th~, the ac:tual 

·the Ferret roundS fired at·the residence were fired . _lev~ls of CS mStde the DaVIdian restdence were 
at the precise- moment" "that the··cs. delivered by . _Jess than tho~e calculated above. . . 
the CEV's entered the residence.533 If so, then dur· Some who have contacted the · s~o!'lnuttees 
ing the first and second phases of the. CS oper- have s~sted that the above analyst~ ~s. flawed 
ation, 550 grams (550,000 mgs) orCS were deliv· because st does not allow for the. posstb1~1ty that 
ered to the residence. 534 During the first and sec· some CS ~ent was concentrate.d sn certain . areas 
ond phases, therefore, the total concentration or .. or the residence rather th_an bemg evenly d.istnb-

: ···- . CS delivered-into the comp~~d -~~~ ~~.92 mgs!_ ~-~\1~~- ~-~ugho?~· the e~ti~e .structure. The ~ 
___ : ..... ~. ~·:_:.:·':' -":· . .:.~m3.u&-Duting:~e tli~rojmd_fou~_phases, due to · · comm1ttees beheve that 1t 1s 1mpo~t to address 

. . . . . the ·me-chanical fAilure of the Second.:CEV, only .. 490o- _ tbilt PO$Sib_ility.: ., -~~·.:·.:.- ···-~--- :"~·- · 
<-x· · . ;....: ... ·~~,>·grifmf.(490,000 ~)-·.;()f;{!~.:agept_;~w,:~;::~~HY~J:~~.:-2-~,.:od ~-~a~ :~~~~:J~~fl~' .. ·.~~p of bodies r~cover~ 

! ::: ·.' ·. ·· ·· .. ;·.·,.':·:·:-~· irito th·ec:resiain~~.S36 ·-nuHng eaclj-:or,tll~ .. thircland·::;·:·, :~.r.· the .fire. _was found m· the._area _of the reSt-· 
. -.~· · ..... ,, :. : ; :.:~.·.: ... _;··:...::.fourth-· phasei.-·the ·total ·e(mcentration· ii[~the>(as- · . ,~dence ~ommonly:Jmown as ·the gun room or b\lflk-
. --~-'~.::;;.:~:r -~--~~,t~- _::1 ... ~:•U:Jrl:ed~ ~r?.o~e·~~·:o(i#~~~~~~~~ ~ti~ '~@Jil~,-!37.:~-i··:i-~ej#.~-,,~eQ.nsi~eration. ·was gi~en ~ the.J:onceJ1~~­

_,-;;-.,-~f.:~. ~ .. :. }.~:.--. ~--~·_;;;:_1 ~sumUlg the BranCh,;DaVJdiarr:_resu:l.e.n~e .. been:· ··tlpns;.Qf~CS_m,that area.54l.Th~ bunker was a sohd .. 
. :·;~~;;-.:C:~~- -~·: ~'---~ ::l ~7:~-;~::~air-tight~' so··lJ1at i1ol1_e j)(~j·:cs altef1t ___ e~apea 'the-··_: ... concrete :7 room·· inside -·the Davidian residence. It 

... . . . . ,. building. (which . was . not'"_ 'the c:Sse), the:. _tOtal had no windows or other access to the outside of 
am~~t of CS agen~ de,ive_r~~l,present in the build~·-·:· --~h~J~wlding, ·but did--opim::into a hallway inside 
ing· would fiav.•i been 411.92 mgslm3.538 This con- the residence~ It appears that there was little op-
centration is far below the 61,000 mgslrn~ amount portunity (orCS to have been directly sprayed into 
projected to be lethal to 50 percen~ _o_f ~- giv~n. PQP·.... the bunker and that any. CS that was present in 

· · .. ··-·- .. ulation ofh~an~ .. ~tated in.ano~her'~ay, it ~o'uld ~~··_· the -bunker-likely drifted ·ii1to that room after it 
-~· .. ·-·· __ take· a concen_~~~~-~~- of G~ 148 tim~~ ~eater than - was sprayed into ·one or. more of the rooms along 

.. . ..... · .. ·· .. the greatest·amount ·thateo~~d have bee~ pres~nt : the outside :of the ·structure. The subcommittees 
, . :- , ...... --'··., "·at --the ~ranch, Da~di~.-.!~~i4ence · Of!~~~ri~- 1~:·.·.~· · ~ · note~ 2 ho\vever, that the·· Vi~e()tape of the insertion 

.. --- · reach-~a~ le.thal,I_~vel. _--- -,~·:., c .. : ._, .•. :.--.· .· , ... · .•• ...::of- CS-·on'April 19 indicate-s 'that one of the CEV's 
. ... : ·In.: re~hty; ~ t!t~ . ~n~~ntratlon.s of ~s lnstde the .... drove "into the. structure near the bunker during 

-· .. . .. . _ Branch Da~di~ ~~-~d~nc~ -;~d not. reach: -~ven ::,~-the fourth phase of the· CS insertion. If the door to 
·---·"' _ _.. ··-··. : .. these_l~_~el_s .. ~e Br.~~- ~~~di~ r~s1d,~~~~--w~.a ... · .the·bu.nker'had beeri open'afthat time, it is pos· 

· .·: poorlr _co!ls~cte_4_ ~~ct.w:~. '!hich -~P~~~~ .fC?'. a1!. ·_, :_.: -sible- that· CS ·.might have been injected directly 
to ~~~~- ~n:-.~~ ~-~- ~~-,9i~: ~~!1.~en~e.7"~~~-~uousJy. -::·-intD the burikeri'·--·· :·: · --- - · · · 

· ·." ·. · ~ ··- ~CEV~l emptW. ita ioar ·;,_era~ cytinaen ~hri~ CEV-2 · ~ptiecl ·· Based on this possibility the subcommittees at-
the con&en&a ol f'- two 30-pam qUflCie:n. Tbe lota1 dcli\"Cftd wu lh• tempted '.to determine, as a worst case scenario, 

~-,:(4a30)+.(2a30)•lSOcruw. · · ··-- ""·.····.- · · the concentration of CS that· would have been . au Each Fenoet rauncl auriecJ 3.T pwnw tl CS apaL A total ol 400 · 
rerm,•oaiuta were &reel at the swidence. 'nl-. the toeaJ quantity otcs present in that room had the CEV emptied the en-
agent ta one qaarier ot &be Ferm rvuncla -.1 •• 370 cranw (3.7 x tire contents of one of its CS containers into the 

- _u,~~On •c:h at &be ftnt t..O pMa., 180 sraa- orcs -Pnt ... deli•· . bunker .. ~t appears, ..: however,_ .that even in that 

_:;;:_;--,::i~~~--~~~-;-~.:~y.~,l~~;;~:;=~;~s;;~tilrd~S:~:~-_:;~~~::~,;~~~~--~~~ Mmtnll~ration ~--
. · · · _ : . . : ... · ..... :·:ca!:ic_(ee& cl'livinc ana. Con-wert.ed iftto meten. &he ~-~-~ru.e·r.;.:_:z.; .. bi~:wiacJI.IJeciMI~at ~ f:H\.~AP.ril-!-'o:l893. 1be winda coaliaue! 
·· _· ··· -· ·- _ .. · ~.wu 6,049.1-cabic ~-=·'ftMHIDriCecitndan"'Uwicle the bailclin- ···'·"~:,&hroup-April·l9. A~~u~ ~~-C)nj\~JIJ~ wincla were reoonW al25 

'j3t~~~;~li!&«~Wei~i:~,-·~~~~~;;=.·· 
. - . . . . 
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event the concentration or cs would not have . ene ehloride. This suspension was then dispersed 
reached lethal levels. into the structure by carbon dioxide, which almost 

- ·.. · · ··.:. · · The · volume of:: the. b~ker room was appro xi· immediately evaporated, leaving the suspension or 
. · , ·._ ·: .. ~_._. _ ... .-. '. · mately 44.40 cubic me~rs. Assuming that an en· ···: CS and methylene chloride. Additionally, each or 

- · · .-·tire cylinder (30 gra~s) of CS was injected into the . ·.the Ferret:·round projecgJ~s. contained 33 grams or 
· :_::::-:::_ ·' :: ·: ·· .. ~_-: roo.m~. the. ccmeeo.tnttiorf~at ._that: moment· would: ..... methylene chlQ_ri~e as the dispersant medium for 
. . :_ . .,··'".:.· .. :::.;· .... have: been .675.6.7 .mgs(m3.':4,~;As diseus~ed abOve; .• ·~--the CS agen~::.,-- ...... · ·-> ·: -·. ·... . . 
· ·: -:·~ ~..: :· <·: -->··:the: concentrati..on.-Jev~L-~sth:nated .. to be lethal to ·.. :- ~The rour phases or inserti9n orcs agent into the 

, ~ ··.::'.~ '· ,, .. -.-.·· .. ,-.... ~.; hurr\ans :is~6l,O:O~t~g$.··miQ/m~. Even.·had •the CE:V:: .'.::B~ch Davidian residen·ce· were conducted ap-
:: .. ,-:-~' ".~:-: :- ___ ,_; :. ; which was)noti.!lte( Wi_th' ro·ur. con.~ners._ of-~ in· . ~- proxi_mate~y · 2 ho~s . apart. During the first and 
.:.-- ::; .-:.::-_--,.·."'··· ·serted-the':eont.;e!_ltS Qfj~JlJour eontairiers into-.th~.:·::···aecond·'ph'as'es :six .cylinders. of cs agent were in· . 
. .. . . ,,_.; . :~;: : .. bunker.;~:~~J restilthig;~Coi.i~~~-~tration . would have_.::;~.:- serted into the residence, delivering approximately 

-->-~·:-:,~ .. -,.~_:=-been 2,70~.;7_0_~~m3~~3.Again, this· figure is weiL- ... 6,420- grarns-~.L-~of :·methylene chloride in each . 
· :· below_th_e.-ccmcentr~~tio·n l~v.e.J estimated··to be le-·--;~~.phas.e.~·~I?uring.tb.e_.thir(l_and fourth insertions··· 

~~: . -.thai to hun1ans:···.·.~~- .. ··.::.-· ... · .. · :· ·· · ·- .··· :· .. ::. only four cyl.i.Qders orCS agent were inserted. ac-
Ailother .worle · ·ea.e· · a·cenano considered by the ·. ·_..-counting for approXimately 4,280 grams or methyl· 

subcommittees was tlie- pOssibility that one of the . .ene ehloride during each insertion. Assuming a 
CEV's might have delivered the entire contents of worse case. s_cenario of all of the CS insertions in 
one of its cylinders of CS agent into one or the one phase occurring at the same moment and ap-
smallest rooms or the residence, and that that proximately ~ of the Ferret round projectiles en· 
room was inhabited at the time. It still appears tering the building at that same time, thus adding 
that the concentration of CS would not have an additional 3,300 grams of methylene chloride in 

-· .... ___ :.reached lethal __levels_. The .. smaUest rooms in the each phase,s.c1 the total concentration of methyl· 
- -:-:- ·· >·.-- ,. ·.-. ;~- :::· -,-_ .. stru~ure . .were. th~ ·· W.9men's quarteJ:S loCJlted on en.e. chloride delivered into the building during the 

. . - ... - the. second floor. of the residence~ .,The: sm·an~.s~ ,of. first. and·- second . ins-ertions was 1,924.87 mgsl 
!•·l !''-"~~ -~··Jc•n!. ir.,these.bad..8 total VO)uine or 16.17 CubiC meters. AJ.-. ·m3.s.f8··~~·' -~ :··:·:~C~··:'. -. ~~~· :-;: 

_:,~~~;·~·::.!;_'~~-~:~_-_? __ -. __ ~r;.;:.f~ri,.tnilt'·!lh lentit& eyllifder .of.J;~ .~~4 ... ~~--~~r--·:· ... ~~r,~v!~~ -~r- the_ scientific Ji~rature concerning 
· .. ::·:>.· -): :.::,·- ~--•nto WS.~m, the concen~~tion at.th~t-~o-.!-'~-'·.=··CS .. agep~.-!:ha!Fiocated··?:1)9·::_estnnil~S..~.·of' the con·. 

:;,_· . ·: ... : .. -~~~~~ · (·,::·~, .: -: ·s·-::~~t ·\V~uld · hi\Y~-~.~, 1855.29 r:n,ptm~ ~ ~ As sum- "·· ·-· centration ·: .· ot ~ methyterie _:-:chloride which · · would .. 
·;:~<~=-.:!;:-;· -·:/~~_fj t._~-<~i(~~r~~·a_t;l['~~ber of-~~q"~.~.,~~4.s.:.,~l~ci·::. prove harmful or ,lethal to:humans. The only esti· 

·· · -: .. :.·,._ ... _happ~rie.d ·tQ-~J~red·JJit:O'~the ro<im_· at .. ~th~.e~_ct . ·mates which do exist are·with resp~ct to mice and 
moment that the'CS ·was injected b)' th:~. CEV·cas.:,··::: rat.S~~-Foi-·· example;. the:: concentration that would 

· "-"'~- ·_· -.-.. ,.--··· ......... : sume ~ j~~ssible event such as 20 rounds·en·ter- ·_-·:···prove lethal to 50. percerit.of a rat population is es· 
ing .the room al .. the· same ·instant), the concentr~- _timated to be 2,640,000 mgs-minlm3.S49 As can be 
tion at .that instant woUld have been 6,431.66 mgst seen . from the· above figures, . therefore, the total 
m3.MS Again, these figures fall far be}ow·the COn• concentrations or methylene chloride at the 

. -centr~tions estin.u~ted to_~_}ethal. to humans. · · Davidian residence on that day were less than the 
·-· . Whsle C()ncludmg that st IS unlikely that the CS concentrations that would prove lethal to even 

·· -··.-reached· ~xic .. levels~ the s~nimittees n.ote. ~e · --_rats.sso~It --pp~ars, therefore, that the methylene 
· level of ~~os~re to CS ~xpene'!ced by-:~:m41~d· ·:~. ehlori4e ... us~~-~w..i~Jl 2the .. ,CS agent could not have 

__ __ ~ _ ual DaVJdian ~nnot be detemuned~ I.t !s ·~osstble ·. cause_d the d~aUt of.ariy of.the Davidians . 
.. · .. ·that a per:son near one or the CEV's lnJectmg the .. ··: .. As in the. case.With CS the subcommittees eon· 

.. . ... ,. CS m~y h~ve been subject to a level. ~f:CS-that ., .sidered .. the-~J)Q~si}?ilitY~,th~t- soine methylene chl~-
.-~·-, . ., ~. ~ ... w~sJngh enough __ to cause death. Add1tionally, 10 ride was concentrated in .. certain areas or the rest· 

.. ~--: ._,·-:.:<-~~·· .-.~ ofth~~·'autopsi~s,in~~~.asphyxiation ~the cause dence ·rather ··than -being evenly distributed 
.... · ~-~--: ·: ..:-~_:; -.-.. ,~,or_ deaUt, _but -~o _not 1ndicatA; whether ... CS_,Qr ~.ther_ , ... throughout th~ _entire structure. Because the larg­
. ·: .. .. :··_: __ ::··:::-:.::_·: -~'-~rs may ~~~:ve lead: to thJs. ~e subeommJttees est. group of bOdies~-- recovered after the fire was 

· .. ,--····· ·-: _ . .- .. , .. _ .. ~r~ ~able ~ -~oncJu~e that CS did no~ .. Pl_!lY a _p_a~ . fo~nd in the area of the residence commonly 
1n the deaths or these persons. - ·. · ... -·.-:-: -- ·- - ... -~ .·-· -- ··: --·-·· · · · .· .... ·· ........... , · 
J. Let/udity of methylene ch/orlde-Usei with CS -'bt .·.- :n:.ch aZw~-== . i:o?cf 1"1~ ot metheJ,eee chlaricle. Sb 

. Waco .. , Each Fenet 1'0Wicl can&alned 33 ....... o( methyleDe chloride. Oae 

During the gassing operation, each cylinder of lnlnctred Ferm rouncll lhu fnaer&ell 3,300 cram- ot u.e chemicaJ ift&o 
_ _ _ ... th CS . J • d ed . th lhe bailcfinc. ..~....~.L. cle-:..·· · ._, .-~;.- =· e -not contro ··_agent sntro uc mto e ... Ia &he ftnttwo pha~e~ &he total quant.lty otme&by~eM All~ • 

···~ .-.. . :.., .. :_· __ .···""·Branch Davidian residence by~--·the. CEV's was . 1i•erect ·~ 9,1'20 snme C(8 • 1,070) • ctoo •.33>> or 9,720,ooo ~ml_Ji· 
... -.. ;_' ::--:::,::.-:=-.i...'·--~-.,.W.~··~--~--ed--·. · ~ ... 'L · • 1··· 

070 
·· :.--r ... ·'iL--.. 1 ~ .. , ... ,...,.~_ricledb)'&hecubieroo~apfJ/u.IMu1dinc(I.Oa.7r>&M&· 

., .. ::,..:-:,.;~,~;.;,".'·:::~,,·~i::::·i.::~~;;,;.;.~:~~w~~p~oxu~a~_y_), ____ -_.;grains 0 : m_e_"!!y •.. '&ribotian 01' l.he-subetanee throughout the buildinc in~,.._ .... 

. '~;-:;;~~i~~it~r~J.IIi~~~;;fli~~~~~~·· .. ·.· 
104,000 millicru& 104,000 ...,ae.n r • e,4:u.- ..-,...· .. , ..... , · ~" ... , .. · wa1 on1J·&,356.74 rnpJrrr'. cc2 • 1;924.81) • (2 x l,&oUI8) • &,356.74). 
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.. known as the gun _room or bunker, consider~tion ·66,171.93 .. mgslm3.'" Assuming further that a_. 
--was given to the concentrations of methylene chlo-: number of Ferret rounds also happened to be fired 
ride in that area.581 As discussed above, the bunk- · into the room at the exact moment that the CS 
er was a solid conaete room with no windows or __ _was injected by.the CEV (assume, for example, an 

. :. -,- - :•·-· ·'· ~~' : . .... · oth~r a_ecess to the .outside of the building, but did. ._. evtmt _as unli~e_ly_ as. 20 rounds entering the room 
. . ·:.:.::· o~n_ int9 a ~illiY!I~Y i~side the_ r~sidence~- Again; ·it -" . at the same instant), the concentration at that in· 

· ---~-~~- ~ppear~- f.h:&.f ~her~- .wa~ little ·opportunicy·~·for th~_ ... stant would. have been 106,988 mgslm3.sse Again, 
--:·:~; ~~-- ~~;.- ___ ---::;,"-:-: .m_etnylen·~ cblori_de_:~rj'ying the ·.CS-agent t' h·ave ' ·-_tfie·s·e figures fall far below the concentrations esti· 
. :::~=~-- '- :~,~· : ~:.· ... -- --.~i1.dif~~,y· sp~~yedJn~ the bunk~~ ~d.tha~·ariy:; -·roated.-to be lethal to·rats.' . 
- ~; -~'~:'<.,~:;.:~~:.~~-->.' methylene chloride that was present hl the 'bunker': ... -:::--·· . ---. :-· .. --- ·. .. . ·; :· '_,·,:· . .. _... . . . 

~- ,-, .. ;_;::- :_:~ ~ ~i -~:. -.. ~,'~= :_''like))"' dri~d .. hj_~ J.hat:~rocim 'after' it': .was" sprayed ·_ ::~· ·3_~: Qt_h.erposslble efffd• .l?.{ meth,lene chloride used . 
: .. -=~ , ;~::: ___ .~:~::::._.:"'.' ·-~iniO,one· or·more of the rooms· along the ·o_utsfcf~ ~of_-;_; .... -:. ·_ With C~ ~_t,~~ !::: ::::~;- . _ .. _.. . . 

;_i;:: · ,, :.:;::~: :~. :;· __ the .. sti:iiaiire~~--But; th.:e~.subeoirimit~~s, again··-nour·:.. :~_Whi.l~--th~_·.-subeommittees conclude that the lev· 
·; ~ ~,.:::::::"- -::·_.._ .. ,."·'~'.thafth~:.:Viaeotap~- otthe:insertion .. of CSori:AP-ril·".- ;~ls),Cn_ie~ylene chloride did not reach lethal toxic 
·· · · --:: ... · 19 indfcate-s that one of the CEV's dro~~ into ·tn_~~<~-lev¢ls, the· s~bcommit~es also considered ·whether 

· · ·--structure near .the bunker during the fourth' 'phase·' : ·'··~be ·levels of. methylene chloride may have affected 
of the CS insertion. If the .. door to the bunker had · ·the"DaVidfans in other ways. At levels over 1,000 

·.o .. been oJ)en at that time,.- it is possible tllat ·methyl--- _parts per miUion (ppm) anaesthetic effects begin to 
ene chloride carrying the CS agent might have occur in humans.557 At levels above 2,300 ppm, ex· 
been injected directly into the bunker. posure to methylene chloride may cause diz.zi· 

Based on this possibility the subcommittees at- ness. sss 
tempted to d~tennine, as a worst .case scenario, Because methylene chloride evaporates rapidly 
the concentration of methylene chlonde that would when released into the air the subcommittees con· 

_ have. be~n _ 'pr~~~nt in that room ha~ the CE~ sidered separately the con~entrations of methylene 
: __ -;~DJPP~ .• ..--fJt~t.~~-ntlr.e.:; contents of one ~f 1ts CS con· -_ chloride ·during ea.ch of the four phases of the CS 

--_ -~:~ -~~~-~~- .: ---~ taine~s~,m~ theJ~u,nker. It appea~, however, that agent _insenion. '.rh~Jevels of methylene chloride 

· .::::~. :,~L£;;,:f;+~~tM~~*i!~h~'i~&~f:{'tJ~f:r~~~~,,~f.;;~~:\V~~I:,;:; ':;:of~~s~~~n;,:e :::~~~:C,~~~J:t·<:~'bs 
,i:<-.;~_..:::~,- ·-=~", .. ·:·:····e:~~.:.~vql~m~.- of~-:~e. bun~er roo~ ~as; .~PJI~O_XJ·_::_ .. agent/methyle11e c}l_l~rid~ mixture during the third 

_:,_'·.,:. :· ... · ... ;, ~,,,__..; ,~_;·~-~tel.Yt=~~tt_Q,~C'llblc..:~eters.,_Assu~~ng_Ql~t-~ e•l:_,_, and fourth phase) -~-;:.:: ._., .. (;· ----- · · 
''~: :·;,~,;~.:~;;._---<':_.::; __ ~- ;~~f;~~mter: o(.<~.·~Sb!~_th-:>·~70 ~!1~9 ~~t~.!~e~:_'-~_; :.D~ring:the-·first'and!s~b~~d phases, six cyiinders 
·- ~-: ,;";~:,--, ,, ;-, k.~--~:_;::00:::..: ffi~ ~:~~e~t~:J:~ -. atwth~tnJ!comeri1(: ·wo·urd·:.,~" :-. ~f.CS'.agent··-~ere· insertec! irito the resifdenceth, de

1 
liv-

. have ~e.n_ 24,09~ mgslm3.155~ Even if the c~y)hat enng. a_P.P-~~1_mately -~20 gra~s o me y ene 
-~ :-:W,as-mounte_d: .Wlth-- four ·cylmders. of cs-1nserted chlo!"lde m each._ ph~e. - Assu~nng that all of the 

the contents of all four containerS into the bunker · CS mserted by the CEV's dunng one phase was 
the resulting concentration would have bee~ inserted at a single moment, a~d ~hat approxi-
96,396 mgsfm3.SS3 Both of these figures ·are well_· _ -~~tely '14 ~~ ~he_F_'erz:et round proJ~ctlles use~ d~r· 
below the concentrations estimated .to .. be lethal to .. --1ng t~e---~_nttr~=op~rat1_o_z:t,.alsQ_ entenng the bwlding 

-~ ... ~ • -l • · ·~~~h: ~ :-~.--:-: :fats.·~-~ .. ;-.;~--:.:· ~- · .· :;:.-::: .. ~-~-= . ._ ;_.--~·- .: ~- : ... ~. ··:·~-- • .. -.~~- ~~- t~at_ S_~-~-¢~tJ_m~ (thuS 8ddi~g an additional 3,300 · 
... .. . : :;: . :": :~·-:_ .. _ ·. 'Aiiotlier~ worse, .case ·scenario considered by"' the"-'~ ''grams-. of --m.ethylene ch~c;»ride in each phase 560). 

- : _____ :--~---- -· ___ "·_iubCo~ijiit~e.s .. was .the possjbility that orie of' the--- _and _th~(the--Davidian residence was airtight, the 
· · ~ _ . .. CEV's might have. delivered the entire conterits of--- .concentrati_9.n of-methy~ene_ chloride during each of 

.. ,-.-;. '-''·-~,·:one of its cylinders_ or. cs agent into ''one" of the . ·the_ first' two·phases would, have been 548 ppm.561 

.. · .- smallest rooms of the residence, and that: ·that · .: .· ·· ·.. · · :. · · . -- '· - ,_ ,~ 

.. __ ..... .- ; .. roo·m wa8··inn8blted ::-.t· the time. It--still appeari _·. ··Ea~ ~i~-~es·:~t.cuaWned 1,o1o snma o1 meUa,-e 
... ---that the' cOrieentratiori of methylene chloride: would-_ .. <· -:~e,·~~··o~o~~-nu~J~n& _1,0~,000 rrp/16.~7 r. 66,171ffCI/ 

no~ l'!a.ve reached lethal levels. The smaJJest rooms . . _ .11:1.1,070 ennw or-_meth,tene chlarWe hm a CEV pi• 660 sru- 11 
in the structure were-tbe,women's quarters located met,hyJene ch1CJ!if:le rrom 20. Ferret rouncta t. • total or 1,730 pam~ 

. __ .. _.,;_.-~-:7.-. -:on"-'tb·e~--SeeOncf.floor· of tJui~residen·ee.- Th~·sffiaiJest .. :·(1.07o·+' (3"3 x ·20) ~--i.T30). Cir 1,730',000 nu1Jigrams. 1,730.000. 
. . f th . h d total 1 f 16 17 --L· 16.17 ~ • 106.988 ~m'. o ese a a vo ume o . ~•c meters. •'2 o. Cla,Y\On " F. Clayton. Pauy'•.lnduttria1 Hygiene and TaD· 

Assuming that an entire cylinder of CS had been co~ogy :J.«&-3455 Cl981~ a. Stewart et •':· Methylene Chloride:~ 
injected into this room the concentration of meth- menL or • Biolopal St.andard rcw lnduecnaJ __ Wonen by Bz.Lh ~· 

• ' (1974). )'lene chlonde at that moment would have been .. ,tL . . ... __ _.__ __. 
- ·-- . . --· . .. _ . , , ·--:.~-:-:-... -:.: · .:: "'.':::·:.":.: ... ~- ---- .. £&-ch cytfncler contained 1,070 p'SIN of methylene chkJricJe. Sis qi-

~~-·,_..,_.·~~:~:.-:::~,. . .\~:~.-~~!~~~.~-~h.i~~;~~--~~~~~~~r·~~~~-·~~-;-~:~r.::.l~"f~~~~~.-33p~-~f·~;~~C:h~·~ . 
... , .. :,•:: ··'''<'.:-••-s•:'·-- .. UIIIIIIU 1U WI'C UUIUiiCT IPUICA&e- call88 UI-WI ~ ·uvmGpGI~. bunctred .fe'ft"et • '&hUI ~~ J,300 p-aml rJ/ &be chemical into . - _::_ ~--:-.. :---· ,:_. -~=~me~mcs:,- CS oantafnOs·-io'IO .... · ~~:=~,~~~~~: :-'':.' &he_baiWine.:·::_ 7'--;':: ... ·-~~'··_:;.;~_-.::.,:, · . 

-:-:;·-~~,A ~--~ -.:~::=~,:~~~:cl-~~,Cl\~: t,07o.ooo ,..r::;o . .,.-::~214~099:~- .,-:- : __ . ':~-~~~21:f~:1an:c:: 11 S:i4~1~ 
'.';;·~~~:; ~~~s~~~i~~-ffi~;~4~~f;'~;:t5::.~;?.~~~:.;;,!-~ 
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At this concentraiion, ·studies have shown no ·ob- sault on the residence was attempted. The FBI be-
servable effects in humans. &a lieved that the Davidian a had fortified the resi-

.. ~: _ ... Jn_con..s!deri~g ~~- possibility~that sos:ne methyl· dence and were ready to offer resistance equal to 
· · _ . · : . ene .dllo.nde was eoncentrated an certain areas 9( .. or . perhaps ... even . greater than that they had 

.. .- .... ., . ., .. - · -theresid~nce,·ratlierthail'beingevenlydistnb~ted .. :··;·showed·d~_ring.the.failed February 28 assault on 
· .:.·:../,· ·-~;-~·~-~~,~~.-~: .. dirpughout 'th~e_7

~~tire structure, the.subcommit- · .. , tJle .res~~e~i.e .. by.the-:ATF.:'The· FBI was also con· 
~-·-·".·_,-:'":"·;:····. :~tees·round thatit··wal possible that:the Jevel.s.;or_._ .ce_rz:ted ab.Out .. th.~_·_·p~ssib.ilfty of suicide by the 
·:..-:.j.· _ :,,~-:. _: ~ ... :;_ .. m~thyle~~--;.~J.o.ttde·- !ea~e~ -~~ncentrations th!t · DaVidians..i~:~e -~y~nt ors~ch-=an assault.164 

" ,,:, .... · _ .. ~ ..... _;, . .-~, D)~t _ hfiye ·-·caused-. Jev~l•::: :that --:~produced :,·,.~ .. · -~perts. on tactics testified before the sub- . 

. • ~: " ','~;':~;'}:-··,, ·~~~;_ti~~~:~;~~~s::.::onsid;~~-,.ili~ -~~~~ .• ;: -~-t~;~~~~t}' ra!:r~;r:~~~~~:.. n..~r ~: 
: . . . .. .... , - ··, .· -~·_ijible _ conceptra~o~:~ _b{.~the · bunker~ ·-·as:-: theJa,rgest :- ~ ~ was :even--grea~r -~i:l. this ·situa-tion given the large . 
_ ...... ___ ·· :. ~g.-Q_ijp ~r. bodie-s, ·recovered :afte't the fire ·was· fo911d ... -c :lije _- of_ the~. ~~~ur~:: alid. ·.: ihe wide-open areas 

- .. _.there •.. The voluri1e' o( the bunker7 rooin. =.Was. ap- . atilund. the. •tructure •with.':fl!e resulting Jack of 
.. .. . . __ proxiin4~ly. 44.40.' 'Cubic meters. Assuming that an cover for any approach to. fJle _residence . 

. entire cylinder of CS (With 1,070 grams or methyl~ ...... The. f.B_rs decision t0 pUJ-sue options other than 
... ·ene chloride as a disbu.rsant) was injected into the a ftorital assault in order to end the standoff was 

room, the ·concentration at that moment ·would a wise one. It seems clear that a raid, even one 
have been 6,861 ppm.563 This conceniration was better· planned than that of the ATF of February 
sufficient to induce dizziness and other anaesthetic 28, was of unacceptably high risk. It is likely that 
effects in humans. FBI agents would have sustained casualties in 
~ stated, however, the evidence· is not deter· such an assault. Any assault on the Branch , 

. . ._, · -·- minative as to whether one of the CEV's did, in Davidian residence also risked the lives of the 
. . .· ... -:.-:, ;~ \ ·f.(ad, in~~l1 ~ _dir~tly .. into the bunk.er •. M!JJ~on~ .Davidians .. Mdi~o~ally, the FBI appropriately 

. . .. _ . .. : __ ·.· ally~-u _js-unknown 'if the bunker door- was open or . consi~er~ .. the. possi.bility. of' suicide by the 
=.-.~,L-; .. :::-:,;,,-; ,-.-; .-;-~;:,.eJo~e.d/ar'fA.~.ti;;r.that :-woUld· have .significantly af'. Davidians in the event'of'an assaulL 

:. ':·: · .·: ~. _;,; · .. ;: f :~:-~:~~c~~ .t!le·~cp~~c;~ntri~~.?t&-:J~ve.~s· ~ns~de. ~die. rqq,f!1. ,.F.'i~. i-t r.-2:..-.T~ :~;asons asserted for ending the smndoff on 
·. ·. . : ~" :,' , ,, :: s-.~'!l.~J>'• -the: ~~--~~~~~~tion 1ns1de the bwl mg.:~~~l~}.:·.·.~·. ·:,:··(lay. 51'.:. :·.?~~;~._. ~~.~ .~:·-::",.'··-.:~~·f :.: ... -:- ·- _ . . . 
··:.:~;;;,-.,··->.· .. ·--,:~~:"-have., affected~ .th,. levels o( methylen4! chlonde···_,., ·-:'" · .. :· · .:- ':··. · - . . . 
. :·.:._-;,_',-._, ._:.- .. ~ ~ .~:.'_~:P'r'esei1(a(~y-'onettim~~'I'Jle subcc)lrlrrt~tiees 'Con-·:.: :/:_-:-::~'-:' a,./J:~ ... ~(~~t.ie~ .I:IJ.o~lrJ nQt __ soo~ be resolved 

-- ~ ··: ~ ·- -·:. - :_:-_:elude,. b'Qwiv~;;;·~~l-'it _is:·possibJe' that:thEt levels.-,: ·t.:!.Orle of:ihe key-. factors- in(iliencing the FBfs deci-
or methylene chloride in the bwilter-wefe":··such ·, .:sion-to .recommend~to.Jh~ Attorney General that 

_ _. . that the chemical impaired the Davidians' ability the standoff be ended on day 51 was the belief by 
· __ : -·:~--- ::: ... tc):·escap~ :th_e··roomP~Additionally, the possibility .... -FBI officials that continuing to negotiate with the 

cannot be dismissed that· other Davidians, in other- Davidians would not lead to their peaceful surren· 
. . . . areas of tlle resid_~nce, might have been similarly der. At the hearings held by the subcommittees, · 

.. ::. :.~_:;:·:=.•dv~J'S~ly ~ec~-~ if they were di~~ctly exposed to FBI chief negotiator Byron· Sage testified that be 
.... ; an 1nsedion .. Qf.·~·-~z:l~!'~. cylinder·ofthe 'CS agent/ .. ·believed ~that further nego_tiations would not be 

.. -. _.-:-_metliylene:-chJoride·-mixtUre~· Thus; ·the· levels '·or -· fruitful.~ TaeticaJ.co.mrg@Jlder Jeffrey Jamar tes­
. · : ·meth.ylene 'dtlor:ide·:·: that··. ·were · ·pr4!sent·· in· ·the·= · tified. that ... he , was· .. skep_tical that negotiations 

_l)~vi~an .. reside_~.c~_ .. as -~-result of the use ofthe.CS .-- .w·ould·end.the stand-off., and that he became even 
... ... ... . .. ri9t control_.·&gen(migtit have impaired the ability in ore skeptical after KOresh reneged on a promise 

i_.of.sollle of the DaVidians to be able·· to leave--the ·. tc)'·come out on March 2.561 Documentary evidence 
. . ..... __ ·. · resj4e.!fce_h$d·_Qley·oQl.e:rwise wished·to do so. - reviewed ·by the ·subcommittees indicated, how· 
.... · .... ·:. ···-:'' .O~···ANALYSis,~oF.~~AnoiDm CENE.iA'L·$. JlEC_iS,:or·f ""~Ver;:that ·some of the_ FBrs behavioral experts be. 

-- · .. .- .......... -...... ~- :.,· .. ..:.- ·:.ro·.END .. THE 8rANOOw oN APRIL 19 .. 1993 -.· .. - · · _. · .. ··.: : beved that there wer~ (~rther step~ that could be 
._. . . · . . · ·· · ~ ·· ·· · - - ~-- taken through -:,negotia~on~~ Additionally. at the 

:' .. .-.·:.- _._ .......... ~ ... ·;_.,.~1; TMidecisio!lliO(.~."'SJP};~~ re~~e. : .., ""'"~·.-... .;: _.-... subcommittees' hearings, .testimony was received 
The sUbcommittees received testimony ·tforicem~·-···"· from:the attorneys fo.r. the:Davidians that they be-

-·- ing the FBfs decision not to storm the residence lieved further .. negotiations could have led to the 
in order to end the standoff. Additionally, .. tlie Jus. Davidians• peaceful surrender.168 

tice Department Report on these events also dis· Sage's view was that Koresh had broken many 
-· ._ cu.sses_the factors that went into this decision. J.A:. of the promises he bad made throughout the 

.·< ~ .- ·~ .... ~ .. ·: ::-.::.~-·~·:·eording~:to Uuit.:.·ie.P.9t:t.. FBr· tactical:~experts be- standoff. After a experiencing a number of these 

~~~~~g;~~~f~f:!~1!~~E!~!~t5!~Ei~~;"_:;~~iii3i;~;;;;:;~: 
.,.:_~--::::--·-: .. · -·- - _. _: _ _ Jl~b)t, T~ Pioft1e far MeOiylene Ch~ (1993).·-::: o·.· .-. .: ::-:.;!" ,-~~Wiy-·~-~~uJiy ~Ye th~ mauer. My_ a&a&.ement t.o (H_. 
-'-'""'.::.:~::::-."""=-'-"-"''-·,:~-=:··· ·' .J.f¥!0 1 MeT 85 • 12.69 mol•- 12.~ ndel.&·:2q:li~~ =~;:.~.~-, ~Ja.~ -~-~,.,_,._,. _ _._ •• thatJ ~'IN& neptiationa wen at aa bn-

. · '. '·: · 30U:S li&en oCM~ There wu .U,400 ht.en.:.Gl' .• ~ .. iD_Jhe.~~.:.-·-,. ~--.· ._, •. ,""~Hearj_npPart.2a&:i45'"(.1a&emeDtoCByna&.p). . 
.... -. (U.40 rrr' • 1000 bcawma • u . .coo~ •nuu 304.631.~,4QO.:~~l0' •I.Mf ··· ...,H•riftij.Pan·2at306-30'7. ·· ---.,.. · ·-. · . <.,:,-~· ~- ·:~ :·::-.. ;.:. .. ,..~Netion VJ £ otl.hw repan. 
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mander8 believed that· they co·uld not rely on Team members) would be on the scene. 572 There 
Koresh's assurances. · was some doubt as to how much longer the H:RT 

Another factor that may have affected the FBI could remain at the residence. 
-- .... -... · · commanders' view of the situation, but which was _ Ther~ was little evidence to support this fear. At 

_ _. .. -.·_ --- ---- ,<~ .. given. little -emphas~~ ·_u( the_ Justice ·_Depa~mer:tt. ,-- ." nc) ti~e did Koresh or Schneider threaten that the 
: -·_· ·:.: ~-.-_,~·c'. : .. ,_·_:;:Report, is mental-anO:.~inotioriaJ fatigu_~· affeeti_n_g ___ _l)aVi.dians might" attempt to break out of the resi· 

.:·· :-·-:_ :::: .:· > :::~::'.: the FBl:d~ision·puikers:·s~.-was··one-of the_first- dence or take .any other offensive action.· In fact, 
·· :.:·;: :~:-~~---~~-~::-... · FB~ ___ agents l)ri':the···_stefie orf-~Febrilary- 28._ .. He~·· :·:fro_m February 28 to April 19 all of the Davidians' 
,:,,~' >&~:.-~,:·,"-:-~·.-. .::-:-~:worked e~~J)':day,_aU day, of.the··sr.day standoff,·- .. .-i1etions could be viewed as defensive in· nature-

- ~:···.:·_-~::.~·,. ;_;=: :-=.~--~-imd .. only -returned :to:<-~~~ home_ .. m~:Auitin .' for···i(. ·defending wh~t they believed to be sacred ground, 
···.-'.:, ----~------~ ·:~-:-:"·:.short·- period ·of-::time··'. on· 1 c;fay· _to- gather·. more --their residence., Given the Davidians' professed de· 
..... : --~--- _ ~- :--.:clothes.-Jamar and the other senior-FBl"coinmand-· · ··vot.lon to· th.eir. residence, it is difficult to under·· 
.:·--~-~- ;:. ·:~:.;· :·':'~--.,·:_en_. we~;alicFon __ site· ~o·(~almo~ ;the·;en~re _time· of , .!~'ci, y.'hy.· the.:FBI thought the Davidians would 

-... :.. :~-.::::--··- ...... :-: ... the. ~tandoff.: =-I~-. see_ms~~·only :. natural-. ~en,· ~~t, _·. try t:o .l~a~~· qiyen that- the FBI also kne~ ~at the 
-physical-and mental fatigue would-begJn ~ set·m ·.Davl(iians were very-much aware of the penmeter 
and that dealing with Koresh's rhetoric and ~~- .. security aroi.ind the residence it is diffieult to un­

. ·: ingenuousness would ·!ead to emotional· fati~ ·8!' · derstand why the FBI thought the Davidians be-
... well. Indeed, the Just1ce Department Report mdi- Jieved they could escape .. ln short, there appears w 

cates that the law enforcement personnel present have been little support for the FBI's concern that 
were tired and that their •tempers were fray. the Davidians would try to break out of the resi· 
ing." 569 

· dence. To the extent it played a part in the FBI's 
Nevertheless, FBI commanders to become firmly decision to recommend that the standoff be ended 

convinced that nothing more would come from fur. on April 19 this unfounded fear contributed w the 
the~ negotia~ions with Koresh. :That belief was tragic resuits of that day. The Attorney General 

.. .. · __ ~.-:~-~-- :-~,:-~~;·_-:·:~·:;:]m#e~~:,d:~~i\e·~rt;;o~a~h!J~-:f;P~;; .. : ·~. ,_ ~~:=,th~~~~~~~:~~;:;ted~at the fear of break· 

:,:~~~;;:;~~~;~=~;r~~~~~J~~tz~~~Ei~~f.!t~~~':;;:;L:;:r~;s:!~~;:~rl::: ::~:: 
',~: ,:~:;-;·(:·:._::1.-,:: tu:.tee•··recelved·'testJmon,r·~(l:_o;n theJDaVJdians',;attor- .. ·:·other 1mportant·l'actor that played a part m the 

._._ .. ,, --~~,~~-;;,~.:,-2:·_;_~.~: neyi thatl{~citesn=-w~s-liantat work_w_ting his in- Attorney Gene~l'.~d~cis_i.~l'_l to end the stando.ff·on 
· · · ter-Pretaiion· of'the=-seve'ii' .. Seals -·discussed' iti''the' .. ·~- ~April'l9.:was ·concem··ovet:.the continuing readiness 

· Book of Revelation in th_e Bible. They believe that of the ·Hostage Rescue Team.573 It is unquestioned 
-' ,_ : _:Koresh ·wati"\villing··to.s\lrtender when· he finished· ··that:·_the H~ po~se_sses:more skills and skill.s .~at 

his writing. · are more h1ghly developed that any other ClVlhan 
The FBI's commanders knew ·or Koresh's desire taCtical unit within the· Federal Government. 

to write th_i~ manuscript -~ut did not believe he ~~~e skills nee~ cof)s~nt use in order to. be re-
. ·--~---~-~ =-. '-· ·was ·actualJy wor~i~g~_on it.<It ap~~ts that fatigue--"' ~ned,_much as.a supenor _athlete must tr&:'n ea.ch 

. - . . ~-&gd ,frustration at th~ lack .. ()f aehi~virllfsuccess in .. day .. to maintain-his or her level or athletic sk!ll. 
. . . obtaining -ilie relea$e ()f additional Davidians may·- - Witho~t.that training, these skills begin to deteno-
-· .. ' - ·- ·.---have led the "negotiators· to"be less~ ·auiii" receptive.~:- rate. . . ... . . . . - . . .- .. 

- -·:-to this· inform~~~~·- ~at _the negotiat.ori ·-w~re __ not . ._ ~~~~r_4ing to the Justice Department ~port and 
· ·•. ;L- open to this new information, and ·did ,-n.ot pass· it testimony presented . to the subcommittees, the 

- ·. ·-- .. ·. - on to tl1eir-superiors, played a part. in the Attorney·... · ·concern ·· abou~ the possible · deterioration in. HRT 
----- . ~- .- ~~;~~-- ·'·General's decision: (Q)~ndJ,})e ~~~'!i<!tf.oi!:APr.iL~-~-:~·: .~ki,!l~.:"was -~~sed, at a m!eting of Justice Depart· 

- -. ·--. ..· and in .. the manner chosen tc(end u:.· . .. --:- · .. · -.. ~-- ... , __ . :ment .and FBI officials wtth ·the Attorney General 
.-.--'"' :. .· · · · .. · ..... --------- -;:- ~---· ·_ ; ··_ · . :. · .. --- .. :---. ··· ·--. on April14, 1993.574 By that date, the HRT mem· 

.- __ ,., ___ ·,~·- ;-~--. __ lJ.:T.he,D!'v'd'41f' m~ht ~tempt-o_b~a~~ .. ,~~--_ber.S .. bad been present a~ th~ ~ranch Davidian cen· 
....... ~ __ _ poss&bly usmg tM ch&l~n oss~elcls ..... :·ter for almost·7 weeks Without· the opportunity for 

Another factor that went into the FBrs rec- the type or training that they otherwise would be 
ommendation to the Attorney General to end the pursuing every day. Also present at that meeting 
standoff on day 51 was the fear that the Davidians were several military officers. As a Defense De· 
might attempt to breakout of the residence using 

. _ ... -.- _, .,. _-.:~~~ .. ~~::.~~~e .. ~hi_~dr~!' ·_~s_._h·~-~~ -~hi~~:~ds. ~cording to-~~,-:. ___ ;:~~~~·H~ta Cllmpri,aed at nil ;·~·Jecenta ~eeled UnoaP 
. ~ ·: ~.- . -::-~·o:F~==~ '":-'~· ~- J~t1~ ~e~_att~~~~' Rep~~~ .. .=:. ~~e"· ~'!,_1_1_1}~~-~~'"!X..:,,. , ... ricor--~1riJ-'P!.._.,!~ u~~~- ~~ r~1 Ia• en~~.~- the 
· :_:::.:=::-~ ~.-.:: . .:·-".-::; :.-~ perta ... had- suggested th1s posslblijty .and .Uiat .to· ;.:,;·HRT-IniDi a·itaya .- ~. aJI.~r:.frt.~ nla&ed to,._ .....-on &o 

. ~- ..... ___ _ ... combat this possibility,--~~ .. FBI had ·tc;. be 'Certain"~'-~-~~ concrol-~~nd·e_riel hOi~ ~"'-~"~cle lliLuatioM_witbout ~ ot 
-.. -. - ·--- . .·: .-- ";.:that-Its c"tiest "ti&iried" troops· ·(the ---Hostag~( Bescu4r·~.-- ll(e to aft)' innoeent __ penona whO may be lnYdve4 Unhke &he I' 

-~'::;~~~~:r·f:Etf~~~~;.~111c·"'·· ~~~-:~::~--~k:~;~{!~~l~:ft;;:r=::~~~ -
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partment witness testified before the subeommit· Department Report and hearing testimony made 
tees, the officers explained that they were present clear, during the 61 day standoff the HRT was 
at the April 14, 1993 meeting at the invitation or used only for perimeter security-keeping the 

· ·· · FBI officials in order.to answer any.questions that . Davidians in and outsiders out. of the residence. 
.. ·the Attorney· General might pose._tQ .them_· about --~Had _the .. HRr_·h~d been· relieved by SWAT teams, 

-·· .· .... ··:.-~·--:·: .. · .. - ·.·endingthe·standoft The officers had beeJi selected . they·wouJd.hav~·been.assigned to the same task. 
. . ~:-~:.'.·because of.their·s~al ~c.t;ical tramir)g~and expe~_·: In· _short;:'while HRT capabilities exceed SWAT ca-

.,""~' ··r-=, _;·:·.--,:..-;~, .·.: .rien·ce.- J)uring_,t~e_.~eeting~ _one ot:tne· .officers a~~- .. - . pabilitjes~_tlj_e· HR'rs additional capabilities are not 
·:~· -'~s-_}-:~:~~~-,,_J·-~ _~::~:Vi~~,~~-;Attomey ~n.,_JjJ,.~-thatjf.th~~~'r."~.~-~~ · .. , -~hR.~~--·~~sei1~~~L~: .. ~.~- task of securing the perim­
·.··.~ ~ ·. ·· -·:'·-·:·: ····· _mJ1Jtary. .troops u_~d~r--h~s -~mmS:fid ~~ .w()u14, ~~-- ~, ~t.er. of a· crime ·scene·~· ... , ... 

_._ ._, _,._._ ,_,:· '::.~~:: ~~ :·~: · ·,:omme-nd :--puJlin,,. ,them , :away.· f!om ·:.:the .. Br~ch·. ~: · ..... ·.·.·Given· "'ii1at ·-ih~ · ·· threat .. :.,of a Branch Davidian . .. .... n· .di ,.. d . . . 575 . .. . . . . -.. 
··..: :·.' .. :: ... ~ ;..,-~ : __ aVl an.:~nter,.;.J$?T. r~t~,;retr~-1!~~~;·~--- .. ··~.·:; :·; .,-.-breaJco~t' was minimat"afmost, it appears that the . 

· · :-, .. ··:.----~--~~-----~--:·ACcording~·:~ t..h~ c!us~~~ J?epa,~en~;. report,·:··- ~-I ~was ~v~r~utious · in''infonning the Attorney 
· ----. · ,. :·.::.-. - ·:·HRT.co~m.al}de_r, Dick .. ROgers mform;d _the At.to.~-~- .. : Genera~ ·~at_ its o~--SWAT teams were not capa· 

· ne~ General_ that th! _HR:r.. memJ:>ers. were not .too · ble of. securing the residenee perimeter.179 ·While 
· · · ···- · - fatigu~ to_cperfo":D .~~ ~p -~paat~._Jn any tactical_ · .the HRT might best have done the job or securing 

oper~ti_on at. :!J,lat ~me_ but that. If the ~tandoft' the residence, nothing in the record suggests that 
continued _for any extend~ penod of "time he- the SWAT teams_c:ould not have done that job ade-
wouJd rec~~me~~ that they stand. do~ for .rest quately for a short time. Indeed, had the Attorney 
and retnurung. At the subeomnuttees . heanngs General not approved the plan to end the standoff 
Mr. Rog~rs and Floyd Clarke, J?eputy Director or in mid-April, the FBI was planning to use its 
~e FBI m early 1993, each test~fied that. they~- SWAT teams to relieve the HRT. It does not ap· 

- . heved the HRT could have remamed on s1te for at th th · d th At Ge 1 
least 2 additional weeks before he would have rec- · pear. . at e FBI mforme e tomey nera 

---- · - - -- · ··· __ ._ ommended that they •stand down.- 111 · - _ . - . . of this. fact~ ~~~ever. . . • 
· .. -. · - · .. · _ .. The poin~ ··at which the deterioration- of HRT . · . Represe~tatives ~~ ~~ Texas Ranger~ testJfied 

j·:., ~-- --::.~~~· -~_-._ ;~-:~Jilemlirs'skilJs'beronies .. tiriacce table-'is:not a-fact. _ .. b.ef~r~ _ _th~ __ subcommittees_ that they beh~ved that 
·:''"~ :~'- -._ ;_ ... 

1

:. ~ ··: 1 wllicl{'appe'ars tO""'tie-J.e~dily ~tifi~l?l~;-~~~fitn.:.d ~~~~;·~'~f£ sw~~-· ~~~ could h_ave rehev~d the 
-r; 1 ~ -~~~: •· {;.!i,_-·~·: .~r .~(.! .m~~~_of.}~ormed judimeo.t;~Q~~ng·::ln:_. ·· f~~ ~~ ~~Jn~tafn.~. the pe!'lmeter while the 
. .-. .-.~""·•~ .,, ,-,-- =--~-- ~ -.the·eVJderice··presenteif:to~the st'lbCotrtmltte'es·Jeads ~·_ .. HR:J:' wa~ ~s,~.. -: Representati~es o~ the Texas 

.... ··- ··'·.,····.:··:- ~- •. _, 1to''·t1le~~conelusfon'that't.he IIlfi:in:embers,-·"'skills ~. ~&Dger.~ ... ,_n~~~~e4 by .~mm .. ttees staff s~t· 
_· -· ~~· ;~;.:::; .:. ;;weiii;tiot;deterioratmg··or that tlie-:iecc)mmendlition· -:.--,_~:that_the _'!_'~a~ .. ~~te _pohce dtd offer to assast 

. · of the military officers and the HRT commander-to --~ - ., t,. · ·. ,, ... _ · · • •L.- '-~ •L.- ·HRT · · - ·· : th HR, be .r. d t • • ,.F« examp.e., &he .luatice ucpartment pc~~nt.a &o - ~ WU~t remove e " mem r8 10r ~~t. ~. re rammg members had been traininc in tbe maneu"le'rinc a( &he al'mCin!tJ vehidea 
. -- -,- --'. was not well•informed .. But this observatioii aoes .. -lcenec:r &0" the. FBI· by-the milit.ry,- implyiftc &M& the swAT &eama ctid 

not answer the questions of what weight this fact ~ ha~ ~- training. Ye&. e¥en the _HRT member~ had ~receive nme-
. h ld h ) d • h At Ge 1' d • dwl tratntng on the aae o( &he. fthtcl~ while a& &he rwiclence. In fact. 

8 OU ave p aye 1D t e tomey_ ... nera S eCl· a& one poin&. an armcrecl vehicle driven by u HRT member who wu 
sion to end the standoff on day 51. being mra.inecl drove ower an automobt1e belcqing to a member ot &he 

- .. -- .. : The Justice Department Report states. that the ... ~ .. d~ng &he Yehicle. Surely" woaW not baY~ t.'ll:en much mere 
· · .. · ··-_. . . . . • • &ratntng to eaable &he SWAT mernben &o perform t.ber &&at adequately, 
.. .. . ; - Attomey General discussed Wlth Ute F~_I ·the_po~~ :· "~ ftifwere nOl"up to HRT akiD le¥eta. "ill and•r why &he SWAT 
- ·:· · ·' ... · ·. ·---='sibility of using FBI -SWAT teams. to relieve -the.··. me.~ couJc1 not have received IIUftlcieftt tniaiftc to clrive Lbeee mi· 

. HRT ~ . ·ti th t th HRT ld b )) d ·· clea around the perimeter ot &he reiAdenoe. ·:. . aor a me so a e • cou .. e· pu. e · .. Mr~ MCCol.UIM:· In )OUr opilrion, bowinc the Teua ot&cen, yvu 
from the scene, rested, and retramed but that the .. an clan'\ have SWJ..T teama, cto )"CCQ. &he Ta.u Ransen, but Lhe &ate 

· FBI discouraged. that option and took the j>osition · · pouce·c~o, don~~ 
th • h 1d be d .] 1 A .th . Mr. BlRH£s: Y-. they haYe • SWAT lea& . . ·-· · : · at· 1t s ou use on y as a . ast resort. t e · . .: Mr. MCCOI..UJM: EiLfM:r the SLa&e police w the local omaa1e '" &be 

·----· -·· -· -hearing& before the subcommittees however Floyd · .,.._were &here. SWA.T &eaml or Clllmbinatiou lhereol' that eoalcl haYe 

Clark D Di. f th FB'I • · 1 '· 9 · been put t.acecJter &om State law enfarcemen& or loc:aJ law enforcement · ·. __ . ·. . e, eputy. rector o ~ . m ear y 1 93, &hat ccaJcl han m&fn&ainecl that perift'IINI' s.- a'"" cla)"' ar a week ar 
-·- : .. ~··· ··- :.~- ·.testified.that the FBI w~ fonnulating plans to use·. · .,wo. ir,....,., ao let lhw FBI a..&aptam Np~Up had lhe ~-

. . . ·- • .. . • lioN ti aed fl another t.b ~ 
. .··. ·· .. FBI SWAT_W!ms.~ p~a~e otthe HRT teams tfthe, .·· .Mr.~ .wen, co . .:;'..;_ .-ation, Jut pnencany, ,... 

Attomey General did not approve the plan to end Fnnkl)', 1 ._,·boW: AM let me .. 1 that u.e HRT cam. ia 11'0' opia· 
the standofF in mid-April 178 ion, ia prcbahly &he ...-t bf&bJy trained aait r .. what lhe7 ae llcUc ill 

The FBI testified that the qualification of its "'M~ce:u:~i~~ cb:i ::trer. ==~am no& ewen ,._. 
several SWAT teams do not equal that of the HRT. &ionirw aha&. 1 am jut aald• -. ... 1 bow 1f1fG mar not bow .n r1 
What must be considered, however, is the actual &h!-o bat we have looked inro it. uc1 it appean that ta a r.ctor. We are 

.• -:·: .. ;_:.:-:: .. :,.~;.-7:--~-~.:--- ·taak·for which. the SWAT teams·wou1d. have been .:.: 101,:~~uwwcn. . 
·_:.::~·,:·:~-t~:-~-~:-;.,:r.;}\;:~:~~~ -It .woutd::not ·have_::~r(!&:n ~tfe,!hpt. to: ert~~~-~T·, j;::~~~:!-:~!.~t.· t=C::~ :--=~~:~ 
. ·.· ··-·.- .... ~,-_,.·_:,.-~and take control-of.the.,ireSJdenc:~; AS the Just_Jce··;::_·:·~~Pain&:~'ne Uiit ~--anc11 woW_. aha& t.o 700 .. 

·:· -~ :·· ::.ti·~~~~~~,~--;:~;~~i:~~:~:-'~,8~~ ~-~:iai-~- ~i~:;c;_~-~~~~:H~:-~~~~::· ·::·::~·=-:..<;:-~.!!'-~';: .:r:_ ~ '":ct ~ 
.-.::. :.:::::::--~--: ·c:...,-,.-_.,. ~-~_-Secretary otnec-.erCir i:····-,·. OPen'*- Pet Low Jntenli&y.Coftruet). , .. -~~-~do U..&. tMft \hoaah they woaW.'l haYe been u elrective a& It 
: . . ~. -· -~-~ ·" ~,·,·--~·..,..Julice O..rt.rnent at,Ja · -=-~~: .: .. , ·. ~~~· .:··-,_, · ·- pertui~ u t.he f1"'a .HRT &am. r. tha&..-tar . .-f 

. ·· .-: ____ .,. ;· -~:-~· ..::;:. ~:~·:. ._:,-.,. _ _._-,~Hearinp-P.r& J •' (~~& o(~' ..... k Heuinp Par& Nr. COOK: llhudtal CDUicl ha.,. been 8CICDmpliMed.llhink lhallaJ•' 
~~~=..,~~~~~a(.,;·~~-:';;:·.:.,:,:;.~.·-= .. :_,-_·.~==~~~=-~':' : .. w ..... .,. pdke ofJkrm traiiMII in .. 
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the _FBI in maintaining the perimeter during the The concern about det£iiorating conditioilS is , 
standoff but that this offer was rejected. · mentioned in only two places in the Justice De-

The FBI's decision to reject outside assistance is partment Report. sa• The report also States,, how-
c.onsistent wit_h ___ ~e_ p~evailing FBI attitude of re- ever, that the FBI became convinced that while 

L.-·.-. -·~-.- sisting· a·r.ay·· ··in·volve~ent . from· __ ·other agencies,· Koresh was rationing water to ensure discipline he · 
.. .:. .... ~- . --~--· WA~thei: :Fe4eral, -S~te ... or local. This 'attitude'''is· ~=·was continuing to replenish the water supply.582 

- - · "'"""'-O- · ·counte,Productive.::;.Wbile the subeomm_ittees --can- The report further States_ that the FBI believed 
.. --- .·-._:--:: __ . __ .. .-. not evaluate t~~_c;apabilities ofthe Texas State p'o>.:.~·;;inafth~ Davidi_ans· h~d_food to last up to 1 year. 

--·: ,_.,, . ;..''·-=: :·. -~-~ . li~e~- ~d-are 'mindful of.the commpntl .. and control' -~.- - 'In short, if-the concern about conditions 'inside 
.. :~~~-~~~"s...,·::::_:·:;~~~ :~~--_':~·prp))le:!i1~.--.!Ji~f_may_ be·:~ericoun~red.-':when~~briniini( -' the.:resi~nce was, .. ~: fac~r in the Attorney Gen­
-.. ·_: :-::::·., ,, ,,_, ., together membe~ for j)rganizatiort~. that have -had · er~rs decisi_ori, if eo:Ul.d. __ ~nly have been about lack 
-- ~--=:-- no previous experience together~ lt:-appears- short· ~- · of ele~~-Dcity or- the .lack or sanitation inside the 

-==~r:- >=-- .. _.. __ :::. ,._ sigh'~d ·ror':the FBJ't() have_reje:_~d-·out ·9r hand_-- resid_~(lc.e;::~ile .. e~~~~~ty to the residence was 
--=- :. ---: - -.. --the· offer ,..of··assista-nce. from the- State 'police and~--- cut. off for the. finaJ ti:me on March 12,583 the 

-- - specifically 'for not con-sidering using· State ·police'- -Davidians had kerosene lamps inside the residence 
----. - SWA.~ ~ms. to. help maintain the ··perimeter .. · which_ they used to.Jllumine the interior. And 

&~lind ~l:te B.rancli .Davidian residence: Given ·FBI while the Davidians had. no way· to cook food, they 
~o~ce_m.s with the size ·or the perimeter to· be main· had ample stores of food that did not need to be 
tained, it. ·would seem that these additional perso·n~ · cooked. In short, there is no evidence that the lack 
nel could have been of some assistance to the FBI of electricity resulted in any real hann ·to the 
even if they were used in a merely supporting role: Davidians. 
such as at a secont\ary perimeter established be· The purported concern over sanitary conditions 
yond that maintained by the FBI. inside the residence is also exaggerated. Even be· 

While using FBI SWAT teams to relieve the fore the February 28 raid, the Davidians had 
HRT might n_o~have been the optimal approach to nev_er ~ad r:unning .~ater or other sanitatio.n inside 

-· .. ,_ th.e ·pr_~bl~!ri.~ using·them (perhaps-·augrne.nte-d -by J~~ restden~~.Jium~n waste was collected m buck-
. ::: t."!'1 Te~";'-'3:_;_,--,St.ate -police te$ins}..wo.ul_d ,b_l;lve enabled the FBI to·. ____ ets _and ~ther con tamers each day and taken out-

_,...;i ~- .... ,,.:.: _: <:,_i;.·,~rest:.1and]~~r) "the .H:Rt::&o--tli~at~R coti1d . .-1lavi:-.-.";~s~~~- ~ ~n ~e~~~~~<l d.~mping site for the. waste. 
< ~. ·--~~:._x:~ ._ .. _ ~h _red~pJoy~·-to:-tlu~.~scene aft~f:iln ,appropn~'ie-:·:,·.:·~~~ng.th~. sta~doff! .was.te was dumped i~to the 
.:~=-·>" ;=~<~': ,: ;-[.\ -:'?tiilje~·:_Th(f~Far.ftf~ihire~.to_·.r.~comm~:hct_to the ·.A1t4r~~~ -~ :)1~~f~6nts_h~.d ~~-!llf1l10.g. pool nex~ to ~he restdence. 
-::.:.<:::~-~·; ~;~:_>.·~\:,··ni§.:~n'e_r&.l ~ai~s.WAt>~ains ~~!1~-~cl~tc) ·r-~ti.~.v~~-~~, :~B.~f!J~o~ ;.t~e-~~~r (~m, .. ~lle swn~mmg pool~ how~ 
- ·· ---- .-.·_ ~-' --~ ·: · · ·· ~:the' H;RT, ·or-~ ·i_iifotrii~_Jler:- J;bat th_e_.FBI _plati_ned~ to--~;.:. ~Y.~~r~ --~~-~_re -~~ !,19: ~~~~n,_c~: tha: the matef!als m the 

·use them for this very purpose ·had -_she·-.riot ·.·ap~·-- ·· po~l 'W.~s.leakn~g .or~Jeecbmg mto ~e res1dence. At 
. prov_ed the. plan to .. ~~d ~e ~tandoff, limited the op- the ~e.anngs ~~ore the ~ubcomm1ttee~, OJ?e o! the 
tions and created' an· Unnecessary -sense~'of urgency S~rYlVlng Davtdtans testified th~t santtatton was 
about __ ending the standoff. The Attorney General no worse on the !.!'~day than ~~ w~s through~ut 

. _kn~~, or should have known that the HRT did not . the fifty-one days. Th; ass.erbon m, ~~ Justice 
.... . ... ..~ . :nee~ .. to stand .do.wn. to_rest .or retrain for at least Depa!1ment ~ep?rt that .sa~ttary ~ondibons had 
· - ... · ·~...... :;,2 more weeks After April 19 and if and wh •t detenorated stgmficantl( .1s SlJ?P!Y mcorrect; 
-··-· ,,,-=--::- ·- d"d .. tand .. d. · .F __ B_I. d 1 • 11 fi en 1 In summary, the conditions mstde the residence 

. :-- 1 s .. . 0~· :-an -oca aw e~n _ prce~~n~. · -!had changed· only ·slightly from those in which the 
SWAT teams.could have been brought m to mam- · ·Da ·di· • -- 1· d'l....;,~ F. b 28 Th diti" ... tai th · · If h did k. · h -· V1 ans !Ve uta ore e ruary . e con ons 

. . . n .. ~ perm~eter. s. e.. . . not now t .e true -· appear· to· ··not have~ presented any immediate 
... facts lt ss because she did not ask the qu~stlons of - health risk to the adults or children inside the res· 
-··- t~e. f13.t. tAa~ .a reasonably prudent per~~n . f~ced . idence. If.conce.rns about these conditions played a 

.. : "!.~~ th~ _4eC1s~on woulfi have as~~4.-. If_ ~h.~--~~~.r--- - role in· the At~mey General's decision to end the 
ney Gene.ral did ask these questio_ns, ~omeo!le m · standoff·on April 19~ ·they .. were unfounded and she 
the ~BI bed to her or was ".'ossly neghgent ~n re- knew· or should have known this. 
~rting.the facts .. ,.!(. the latter was the case, there- · 

- - . -sporisible party should -have-been Cliseiplined .. icing .. - e. There was the_po_~i.bility of on·going phys· 
ago. The absence of such action leads the sub·· ical and sexual child abuse 
committees to conclude that the Attorney· General The Ju5tice Department Report states that dur· 
was herself negligent. · ing the week of April 12, an (unnamed) individual 

... _ .. _ . _ . . d. Conditions inside the residence were clete- informed the At to mer _General· that tJ:te FBI had 

.·.'~~?~:,:~,t:r~~~e~~~f~tth~'-~~et:~r~~,,~~Yi~:::~~t~$:ir:G:;:r£~':,d~C~ 
:::~-: ... :":_::~~~ . ., .. _.,_:PJ8Yed-;~: ·P~~--~ )ler_deClston':_to end-:tlle~.~~-~~~-tf~"7~:-l~te~;-~(T]he -Attorney-General had no doubt that 
-' .. · _:_ · ____ · - em Apnl19 was a concern about.detenorat,_ng,_~n~-~ --~- _ . ·--~ - ,_ .. -- ···'·-·""·~ .':: ·:: =-'-"'··"· ---- -

.;."2~.:-:~-.;~ ~:.:--~·-, ,_.;_ 4i~Q~J _inside the residence~ There i.s: ~li~le· SUpport- . Ml.fuatice Oepartrnen& Report a\ 269, 215. 

:·~~~::?.~~~--!:.!_·. f~r t!tis concern and it sh~u.ld not ha~(t 'pl~Y!~ any ::~ :: w.-210. . 
"~-.. ~--:~.:: . · · 11gmficant part ~f the deas1on to end. the standoff. ... H•rinp Pan 3 a& 195 C•&a&emen& or Clive Doyle). 
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.. 
the ehildren were living in intolerable conditions.• tomey General's concerns f'or the children's wet. 
The report goes on to State that the Attorney Gen· fare were real, there was no reliable evidence that 

_ eral had been told that Koresh had sexually conditions inside the compound had worsened sub-
·- .. : ._,,:@used minors in the past •nd "continued to have stantially from those existing prior to the Feb. 

_.. ' __ , .. -lex-whlle recovering from his wounds." 585. The~ · ruary raid_ or that the Davidian children were auf· 
•• : .-_-~:_.:.· .··; .. ~ p9rf~oes ·riot. S~te on what. inteJJigence_ these as·. fering ~eater banns than they bad in the past. 

.. ~-:- :~:=--~·~-;;.;.:~~rtion~-y,~·r~·based. · ·· .:. :,, 7 ·•· .:.-: ,·,;_ !;~::· ~ ,· .. Addition~Jy~ ·as the Justice Department report 
. ·:~ :.:~,...~'""'..-,.":_.,, .. ~ S!l~t~e~- J)_art··of'~e·_report, bowev~r, til~ ~u.s-_-:·· ·makes CJ~ar~ the-Attorney General was aware or 

. --~ :-~;;·;~-:;{,:~; .. ~:-~-~~ti~ De_p~me~t ·~dtDJta th~kthe FBI.h.~d. n9_4i:r~ .·.;.:_the_ po~ntial for extreme danger to the children in 
.::...:.,-~,:::,~:,~,:.··_~-7--" eVJdence .of-physical or·.sexu&l abuse •.. A4 ... ~~=--IY-~-:~_-·purs_~~~ tlie FBra assault plan. ISO 

~~-- ,-;..;..;. i..· .. -7.-~po.z:ts_s~tea, ·-- ···-·· "-C. ..... ·_. · ·- · · ··_·; . .-...• ~ -.~=-· ~ ··.,:.--.~-~-- Given the·taek·-or evidence_Uiat the children in· 
-- ~ .. .:..·. -~~-~-,~~ -.~. ::· .. ('t]fiere·~-:~ "jio ·,direct evidence.:. es~~- ·_: ·::.,·.·: ·.:. ~i~~- .t~e: '~ompoUnd. faced:: immediate life-threaten-

····. Jishing ·that_·.~y ·children were being ei· .-_ . . -~~g_harm fr~m.the ongoing standoff and ~e Attor· 
::~.· .-- tber sexua11y. abused of physically abused . . . ney Generals awareness of' the extreme nsks of an 

·the February _28 through April 19 time pe- ~ssaul~ incl~din; ~e potential f~r serious or even 
· riod.·· There ·were circumstantial indica· hfe-threatemng InJury to the_ dnldren, the Attor· 
.. tiona, however, that the children were liv· . . _ney General's decision to approve the raid based 
ing in a deteriorating environment, and on concerns for the children's welfare was flawed. 
that the prospect of living in a deteriorat- While the Justice Department Report tries to 
ing environment, and that the prospect of downplay this factor by asserting that the At.tor· 
sexual or physical abuse was likely as the ney General was more influenced by other fac· 
standoff continued.586 tors,591 the Attorney General's public statem~nts 

There is little circumstantial evidence revealed in on and after April. 19 indicate other:Mse. Parti~· 
~-"~. = -- · · :: :·=:.. the report 88 well. · · · · .. · Jarly troublesome IS the .state!Rent m ~e Justice 

.. ·.·. .. _·. : .. =-.:It is clear that.Koresh.sexua~l~ abused -~inorf'e· .. · .. ~ep~~m~~~ ~~po~. that (~)lttmately, 1t made .no 
-=. ·. ·--~: . .:~----•-;.~:.m~es at.thex~stdence, Jn addition .. to haVJng con· difference _whether the chlldren were ~dergomg 

,..._~ ·.·:-:-·!"' ,._:,_ . .,..··.::-lerisuaLsexU.al relations with a severarofthe·adult---~· SP.-".~-m.po~a.neou:; abuse, beca~se the enVJr~nment 
· ~ ··:., ::o~_.,,:·;;.: :·i;,_:=.: •. (em&Jei .. wbo-,=lived ·tliere. iA:·· numoert:·or:·fotmeri·,~--: ap.sl_~_e ~:e:·. ~sJdeJ?C~~- · wa~:~-anto]erable an any 
. <1 ·;,.:~ th B h;n F-Davidi~ .. ~.-~t~'ri.~e,<:t i#fidaVits· .-detajl~ri( ·--th_ese·-·sex-: .. e~~n~, ·:. . '~s '.~tatemen·t 1s. an at~mpt to m~k 
!.,,_ "':-~:: . f. ~~~d :·, ual.t:~~ati~~s;·~tb~ll,l.~iif' ~e ~~~ual ;-~ll:Se_'in~lvin·g· , .. ,, ~~-~}~.~ -tJ:'~~ th~ Atto~e.y.. ~neral e1ther was ~1s. 
,7 ,,~,,,~ : ·=··<·: '~minorsJe~~l.e~;-~oyce·:Sparks~ an ~~mployee~·or the:: __ ._;-;~~f?~~ed._._C?r ~~s~~ders~od ·.wha~ was happenm' 

Texas Children•s' ~tedive'~Serviees '·agen·ey· pro•·--:-,. ,J.!1~!4~.Jh~_ -~s~.d~nce ~=:o~ the th1rd ~~ek or April 
vided the FBI with a report of' an interview she : o~ mtef!tionally -exaggerate~ the conditions to pro-
conducted with a child ·who lived at the residence Vlde ~ excuse for ~pprovmg the plan s~e knew 
detailing ·an incident of sexual abuse~ This child could hk~ly __ end Jn VIolence .and put the children at 
testified about her experience before the sub- greater ns~ · · 

.. : _ . ~mmit~es at the July hearings. Also, during con· 3. The decision as to how to implement the plan 
. v~~~on . bet_~een the FBI and S~ve Schneider . · , . · . . 

,,~- du~ng_the·'week·of April 14, Schneider·admitted-.-~: ..... ~~ The-F~Is_ mmdset-'This" not an tU· 
.: .. that heltriew ofKOresh's sexual abuse·ora.minor : -.. ··sault.·: .. :··'.=···-..:, ... ,· . 

.. ··female.581_ While·· all of these incidents occurred. ':·At ·s:s9-~8.m~:'ori: April 19, FBI chief negotiator 
. . . . . prior to . F.'ebruary 28, FBI behaVioral--·eXpert Dr.- . Byron Sage spoke . with Steve Schneider by tele­

· . .-· Park Dietz, in an Aprill7 memoranda~ to the FBI, . phone a_rid tol~ him, "[W]e're in the process of put· 
. . ~. · opined that "Kor~sh may continue to _make sexual ting tear gas into the bUilding. This is not an as. 

.. :-·:.::-~-'-: ,_~e o(_ilriy ·minor (emale children who remain in··: sault. .We will not enter. the bui1ding.•693 Schnei· 
. · side."588. · · ·· ·. ~ . · · -·: .. ·-· __ :_ . .-_·,·.: .. · ... - der·_.-re~porided by throWing the telephone out of' 

.- ·.··:· · :.~.-.... : ..... n. also appea~_certain that Koresh employed se· · the ·residence. Sage-·then began to broadcast the 
:-:·.-::.:·- :::·_ .... ~:-=-·~--~·vere -physical.ptpiiahm~ri~·aa a means o( disdplin~ -.. folloWing _message over loudspeakers pointed to-

... ing the children~- A March' ·26 report·-or Dt:-Bruce ward the residence:· · ·· :-· .:.~ 
· Perry, ·• child psychiatrist· who interviewed the ... 

children who had been released during the stand· 
ofF, confinned that Koresb physically abused chil· 
dren who bad misbebaved.589 

-· -We· are · ~ the proc.ess or placing tear 
gas into the building. This is not an as· 
sault. We are not entering the building. 
This is not an assault. Do not fire your 

; ·-- ~:~·; ;_: ;~f~-~:::=.-:'"=-"~·'"":: ~OP.:Ap~U l$,Jhe -~mey General made several 
- -~~'~::, :'~,-~;;; =:-~;•·:~r:tele.viii~~.~~~te~~:~-'!~~~¥J which ~~~-stat.ed _that.-.-.:. '.·i~~~·AU«Mt.~_enl nlled.wta prapout to encllbeatandoft'chlf. 

-·: . =~. _ _. her concern or on-gouig··CH_Jla abwf~r.was·.f'act.Or that ,~~;fnr~ ~~-or·"p·n 11~~orhercaneem aboalebea~ilab1ilf 
. ·--:_---:-:~ ::::~--- .- .. :~ . ~-- .. ··:1~ her to dec.ide t0 end the starldoft::cWbiJe the· At- ot em:e'PftC1 I'OCIIM.:Ia Mdl&iof'. ·~ pre-nid approwal meetinp_ ~ ::: _,-··:~~--.-.-::: -::~:~: -~:-~~: :·:.- '~::. ~- ----~~~,--_ --~~ .~,·-, ·--~~:~ -.~;:· __ -- ·... . : . . . -·::·:.;.. ~-; ·.: ; :.·:-~ : ... :.";==-c~n::-:= 'ft: .!,!!.'::'::' ::-~~~ 

· · ,~ ... :-c ... Joatiee Depal1ment Rep•·hU'7&; · :···.·.: :-~~:::~:· --=; ·>;. · · chitcftti-beinC t•hip winclowa arMI~beinc t.hreatefted &o be ahcl&./tl. a& 
.. ltL at221. . . · · ·· · ..... ·· 272-2~'-- :-'·.-·.·. ,:·.~,,. · .• -.--, -~-. · 
• 7 ltL at 222-223. _ •'lil. at 214. .. · · ·' · ... ·:.:: : .:• < 
.. ttL aU23. ·- '· ·:: · .. :~·/!._''~-~--: ·· •ld. aUl7. 
-ld. at 223-22"- tN/d. at 286. 
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· weapons. If JOU fire, fire will be returned. . would be perceived by those who were the targets 
Do not shoot. This is not an assaulL The of their actions-the Davidians inside the resi-

~ gas you smell is a non-lethal tear gas. dence. This failure was a significant error. 
This gas will temporarily render the 

· building uninhabitable. Exit the residence b. The FBI's failu~ to consider the "Reason· 
· :- , .. ~--now arid follow instructions.~- - - : ·· .; :-_ ..... - . ·able·B~anch Davidian" 

.::- - ...... -- . _ - _=_: · ' .You .:iU'e .. ·n.·of~to ___ have ;anyone· in·.·-:the··_: .. : -· .-·- _ -~- the: . ..-BI :·i!Jiple~ented its plan to end the 
-- · - :·.~.-:::~-.-.-·.-, .. tOwer. Tile-tower is off limits. No one-is'to.:<~- ·_· ·stan·d:-eff __ th_~ J~tanc~ Davidians were confronted 

-- .·,--:-·oo in the-tower: Ariyone observed to be.in~·-=:· . .- ·· With .. the,~p\J.Jid--.()(jnilitary vehicles approaching 
'-;-·.-_::::·~ =··.::··:· ·~ >-.-~:.: .. - · .. _:'-the~tower~~Will.be·.:~nsidered :to~be-an act .. ·.,.~.:·_-their hori1·e~·-.= the ·Vibrations from holes being 

.:;~:~- )'~-~~::~,:~~--~·~·:·-~::~.= ~ :~=~::\·:i=:~~~~~~-;·:~~:~~U be:-.~~-~1;~, ·:nt~~~ ~-~: c·. ~~-,:·.=.;:~ff!lds~t?_:ta~li:!?:Zb~h!':~r t!r:;e~;:'a~:J' i~t! .. 
. · ___ -._.:....:=- -::.:~ :. : ·:·--···If you- cam'e ouf-now, you·. will not ·be-- .. _.:.=-:·.their hofu.e~. Mc)st people_ would consider this to be 

' · · · .: - · liarmed~ ~ollow··an instructions. Come out- ":: .... :. an iiitack-on ·them~ -~assault" in the $imp lest 
With your hands up. Carry nothing. Come ·: -·: ·terms. Jf th·ey thei! saw other military vehicles sp-
out of the building and walk up the drive- · proaching, from which . projectiles were fired 
way toward the Double-E ' Ranch Road.-···· --· through the windows of their home, most people 
Walk toward the large Red Cross flag. - are even· more likely to believe that they were 

Follow all instructions of the FBI agents ·under an assault. If those vehicles then began to 
in the Bradleys. Follow all instructions. tear down their home there would be little doubt 

You are under arrest. This standoff is that they were being attacked. These events are 
over. . what the Davidians inside the residence experi· 

We do not want to hurt anyone. Follow enced on April 19, yet. the FBI did not consider 
all instructions. This is not an assault. Do their actions an assaulL . 
nQt .fire_ ~_r __ '!'i_~apo~~· We do not. want Compounding this situation is the fact that the 
anyone hurt... . . · - · Davidians ~ere-~ ·not ·"_most people." They were a 
. ~as ~ll_continue to be delivered until . close-knit group With ii·es to their home stronger 

., ... -:-,;e!~ xr.i.~C·F~ L>" ~: ~-:·ev.eryon~_'i~_~o~ro~(!P.~_bHildi~g._~~-d ·~· .. : b~ i.Y·: :::·· , .. ,,·th~~tlto.s,~-~.of_m.,~st-:peop_t~~: .. 'I'he Davidians consid· 
::. :--- • ·' : _ = lmmed.iately)~T.,_Sage_.spolce with Schneider~ t~o :·- :e.~~--~-~ir_'!eSiC!~nce·to· be _sacr~d ground. Their re. 

.· ;c '.~ -i~,_;_.:·; ;·>:-=; _~;. CEV's. Jl.Ppro.~~he~4h~:r:esid.ence. :.·Both ~EV's were' _ }l~o':l~-~e-~d~~Je.d :t:P~m. to, ~heve that on.e day. a 
-.:.:·-: ~,>~ T-;;:;: 1"- .:-.:"':fitted· .With'" a ·tong_ tri81lgular bd·on:t-lik~f 'arnF on·r·~ _1gwyu,p·~,C?f.':9.u~JCi.e~,::'·nQn-:b_e.bevers, most hkely m 

.- --·-··· ~~: .. ;._ ......... which ... ~as-..fitted' ·a ·deVice that. would '"sptay·'"_·c~:··:~:.· the_:fonn·_~-~r:gov~mme~t .agents, w~uld CC?me for 
agent mtxed with carbon dioxide." 'nle CEV's were them. Inde~d, they bel1eved that th1s ~estinr ~ad 
maneuvered close enough ·to the residence so that- . been pred1~ted 2,.000. years . before m B1bh~ 

.--,7 ·-~-- ··.-the boom· could be rammed into and through·the · prophecy. G1ven th~s .rnmdset, 1t can hardly be dis· 
wall of the building. The operator then inserted CS · puted that the DaVJd1ans thought they were under 
agent into the building using the device aftlxed to assault at 6 a.'!l. on April!~. l . • • 

the boom of. .the CEV. Insertions· of CS agent ·by !he. FBI's frulure. ~ con~1der how the Davuiians 
th~- CEV's . __ occurr~d_. in· four distinct·-'phases:' __ m1~t. respo~d to thetr acttons was impor~~ The 

_ throughout_ the morning of the April 19.-- - · · -,, ·FBI s operat1ons pl_an called for a systemat1c mser· 
·· ·_· During ~is pbas~ of the plan, FBI agentS ·in the·.:··. -tion __ of the :CS riot control agent at different inter· 

Bradleys also maneuvered close to the residence. vats_ throughout the day. But the plan also ca11ed 
Th~ agents used hand-held grenade launchers to··· for a back-up _operation _if the armored vehicles 
fire CS agent in projectiles knows as Ferret rounds used in the operation came ~der fire. This ~ntin· 
thorough a firing port jn the Bradleys and into the gency plan involved rapid insertion of CS agent 
windo~s _of the. residen~_e. This activity· also _.went · · ·and the eventual "deconstruction" or tearing down 

·.-_on throughout the ·morning of the 19th~ · · · ::. of the ·residence·_ it$ elf. The .. vehicles came under 
. As Sage testified at the- subcommittees' -hear· fire almo.st is:nme4i~te1y after the gas insertion 

-- · · -- · · ings~ ~-·the FBI _did not ciOnsider these actions to be -. began. The Fl;J.J _resorted tO their fall-back plan as 
an assault against the residence. To Sage, ·the fact·.-- of 6:07 ·a~m.595 · . .. . · .... _. __ .. 

that the FBI did not plan to enter the residence at As the Justice Department Report makes clear. 
. any time, and did not enter· the residence, was de- the majority of the FBI's briefing to the Attorney 
- terminative as to whether the operation was an General involved the main FBI· plan involving the 

assault. While this distinction may have made · deliberate, slow insertion of CS agenL Little dis· 
_ ·---- . _ . complete sense to the FBI, it made sense only be- · eussion appare_ntly took place about the contin­
;~;~~:~:.::~~i.;:.~~~~-;~~-~C$~se_r-B.I -~age~~.~:~~{; -~~~lly HRT ~ :mem~-rs~ -~ ;:· ''en~·p~9~s_i~~-ip~~~~,- pl~ :.~]ling for the rapid in· 
'1 -~:~:.::·. ~~:~--~: _,·:_~."-:-,~- :_,de~!.J!}~~~ -~-e~~; -~~~~~_p~: ~~~day as -.pa~ of ·th~irc:=: .t.:. ie~on· or··cs "agent and ihe deconstruction of the 

·: ·· -· ·. ·:::.-~.~·:.-;.: ,:_~.-· . .-d~ties. -< .. , :.~ :_ ..... -·- · ·-- '"'''~,.-~~-. _ ":..: ." ::·"-·:-: .. :, ·: . .-.·.;.:-:-; ;:'-:..;:- · ... res1dence. __ " ·'· _ ~-,-,.;; .. .,..;, :-.. - ~ ,::'-:'~:-: . 
.<~~;"_~::~~_ .. :·· ··-· .... _ -~~ ,-~~~- as.~·~s~e{~~~-ijW..tJon_ on1y~ orf~~eir· -~--,·-~u~ou~JY/.:~f-~81 ._~_f!~J1.1~~ to know that their 
:_,.·._ ... ---~:·-;. ·=::;~~-~- ·_=-terms~·-~Th~Y..: r ... d~d,.to~ consi~er;.'how.-thelr aetions ~-.:· ., pnnclpal~·plan would not govern the way that 

...• :.:.:. :'. • .. .-::~\-:-:-:-- =~.7-~ .• ,·.o:. ....• -~-:..; ··-··-· ........ -~ ~: •• ~ ·;.,_:,__: •• ~.:::::--=-~--~-; . 
. •.'. -~·-'· ~.--i ~,_. .. ../d.-., ~-.1. -1c1. aL za&:2at. ··--.- .. 
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• events would actually. unfold on April 19. The 
FBI's overall commander, JefFrey Jamar, testified 
at the subcommittees' hearings that he had a be· 
lief to a .99 percent certainty that the contingency 
plan would be implemented, as he believed the 
DaVidians would open fire on the CEV's. As he tes­
tified before the subcommittees, •1 believed it was 
99 ·percent when we approached with the tank 
they would fire. I believe that. Not all people agree 
with .me on that, but I believed that at the time, 
yes. • 696 Although the Justice Department Report 
does not mention that Jamar informed his superi· 
ora of his belief, it is c:lear the Attorney General 
also believed the Davidians would open fire on the 
FBI. In referenced to firing on the FBI, the Attor· 
ney General testified that she "knew what these 
men would do.• 59'7 

It cannot be known whether the At,U,mey Gen. 
eral would have decided differently had she known 
that the FBI expected the contingency provisions 
of the operations plan to be implemented. What is · 
clear is that she never had the opportunity to con­
sider this fact because the FBI believed that their 
actions did not constitute an attack, based on an 
incomplete understanding of the Davidians. Had 
the FBI considered how the Davidians would per­
ceive their actions they might have been able to 
predict that the fall back plan would be used. If 
this fact had been communicated to the Attorney 
General she might have decided things differently. 

H. PRESIDENTIAL INVOLVEMENT IN THE EVENTS AT 
WACO, TX 

The involvement of the White House occurred in 
several. ways. According· to White House Chief of 
Staff Mack McLarty, two parallel lines of commu­
nication existed~ne from Acting Assistant Attor­
ney General Stuart Gerson to McLarty, and the 
other from Gerson to White House Counsel Ber­
nard Nussbaum. Senior advisor Bruce Lindsey 
also kept informed on developments in Waco.s~ 

No White House officials objected to the plan to 
end the standoff at an April 13, 1993 meeting be­
tween . White House and Justice Department om: 
cials, including Hubbell, Nussbaum, Lindsey and 
Deputy White House Counsel Vince Foster~ On 
Sunday, April18, 1993, Reno called the President 
to inform him that she had decided to approve the 
FBrs request to use CS as part of a plan to end 
the standoff. The President told Reno •it is your 
decision."ue Clinton later told the American peo­
ple, •1 was aware [of the plan to insert CS into the 
residence.] I think the Attorney General made the 
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decision. I knew it was going to be done, but the 
decisions were ·entirely theirs."600 

I~ FINDINGS CONCERNING THE PLAN TO END THE 
STANDOFF 

1. The Attorney General's decision to end 
the standoff on day 51 was premature, 
wrong, and highly irresponsible. The decision 
by Attorney General Janet Reno to approve the 
FBI's plan· to end the standoff on April 19 was pre­
mature, wrong, and highly irresponsible. In au­
thorizing the CS assault to proceed- Attorney Gen· 
era) Reno was seriously negligent. The Attorney 
General knew or· should have known that the plan 
to end the stand-off' would endanger the lives rL 
the Davidians inside the residence, including the 
children. The Attorney General knew or should 
have known that there was little risk to the FBI 
agents, society as a whole, or to the Davidians 
from continuing this standoff and that the possibil· 
ity of a peaceful resolution continued to exist. 

a. The "benefits" of avoiding problems were 
not properly evaluated The FBI's belief that 
the standoff was likely to continue indefinitely was 
too pessimistic given the advice of behaviorist Dr. 
Murray Myron and the Davidians' attorneys that 
Koresh was turning his attention to what he con· 
sidered to be his principal theological work, his in· 
terpretation of the meaning of the Seven Seals. As 
they believed that no resolution was possible 
through further negotiations, the FBI wrongly con· 
eluded and convinced the Attorney General that 
there was no alternative to going forward with the 
plan to end the standoff. The only issue was tim· 
ing. There was also no need to rush into action on 
April 19, but having lost patience with the nego­
tiating process and facing an initially reluctant At· 
torney General, FBI officials manufactured or 
grossly exaggerated arguments for urgency. 

There was never any overt act or even a state­
ment made by Koresh to support the FBI's as· 
serted fear that the Davidians might try a break· 
out. Using the threat of a breakout as a reason to 
go forward with the CS assault plan sooner rather 
than continue the negotiations was wrong. The 
FBI and the Attorney General knew or should 
have known there was no remotely imminent 
threat of such a breakout. Also, there was no rea· 
son to go forward on April 19 out of concern that 
the HRT was exhausted and needed to step down 
for retraining. According to the HRT's own com­
mander, the HRT could have remained on duty at 
the residence for at least 2 more weeks. In addi· 
tion, FBI and local law enforcement SWAT teams 
could have been brought in to maintain the perim­
eter if the HRT had to step down for a short time. 
The FBI and the Attorney General knew or should 
have known this. 

The Attorney ·General wrongly based her ded· 
sion to act in part on concerns that the conditions 
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inside the residence were deteriorating 'and: that· or .·appa!en-tly. tO anyone els~ (o~ that ;natter .. 
. children_ .were_ being abused!· There·- wa:s- no eVi· ·· · Other senior FBI officials, however, should have 
dence that sanitary ·and other living eonditions· in·~· realized th-at the Davidians would respond with 
side the residence, stark at the beginning or the gunfire and that the contingency provision of the 
standoff, had deteriorated appreciably during the plan would be quickly implemented. Given this, 

. . . . standoff. Further, .while there is no QtJ:estion that they should have more ful1y brief~d the Attorney 
.. ;.: ~ ..... ~-:·- _ ~-PhysiC41_and_sexual-abuse of minor~ ~Curred~pfior- -~·.=Gene~~~ on ~is aspe~ of the plan .. 

-.-·._,2:",~<·-.;~~~:~_:'· ~:.<.·. _:~.,.~·: .. f.ebru~ry _28 and· may have- contin~ed ,·thew:e~ ,, '-"~-·More ·im·partaiiU,Y."J'iowever, the Attorney Gen· 
-~::~ : _·,· :-.~~----- __ ·~:-.~---·.·after,· th.~r.~. js no.~eVidence that<miriors·~were·being' ::."' eral herself:_~(imitted during her testimony before 
·-:~·- --~"_<7~~ ~~~:.·:·~·-·: .. :...:.:~:· .!f.®je._e:ted .. tcL$i\Y .greater _risk .. or ;physical' or· sexual ·:·... the. ·subCommittees· ·that_ she . ~pected the 
·:~~---.·;,·_.~---. _~;:)~;~~~ ~~~--<:~a.bU,Se~:ali.ring~tbe:·stan.d~tr th~~priof to· February'· :.t:· DaVI~arj:s:to·J'ir~ or:(.~it~nks, i11jd _that she under· 

·_"_-~~·:.;·,;~~;~:.::;~~-;::;~:~~; -~ ;,26,j'l;'ll~~ Attorney :7;~~neral knew~orjshouJd. ·have ·~- .. -~ sto~d that if-~hey did the' rapid acceleration or con· 
. /'~ ;'--... ;;~}~~-: .. , .. :~;,;·,krio.WD· ~{s.,_.In:Jight, of:.the _;·fisk:-..:to- th'e··::-childr.~m. : tlrige·n·cy plan would be implel!len~d. It is ·evident 
· ·:·;--·::,_~: __ :::.:~_'S~~~~-- ;{~~~~~~~~t~:fo~~.d ~nd:-to the:.~s~d~~ff, and the rem~.n~-':,.·.:.the.:Attomey General knew or .. should have known 
~~:.~ :~:;·=-::-,~;~. :· :· ::.. ... -:,::,, ~-.. '.-: Jng ~~~s_ibilib'::. ot: a· p~aceful resolution, it was ·inap: · · · . .-~hat ·~he . cQ~~inge~cy, p~yision of the plan woul~ 

-.0"'' · , .. ___ .,, :-· ··.':"--~'.: .. _proptiaU. for_ the .·Attorney ·~neral to ·havtFbe·en · ... _.be ·impletrie-rited .cmce:~the~ operation began on Apnl 
·- --·-::: · -_-........ _oceupied with _apprehending Koresh ·for Violations .. ,. ·:>.19: _that_the Da_vi!liaris would not reaet by leaving 

: · .... of- Sta.te l~w which: were.outside her jurisdiction· to _th_e..·:resi~~nce as: sugg~sted by the FBI, and that 
en(orce. . . .. . . . · ~ .. there· was a possibility that a violent and perhaps 
. b. The risks of ending the standoff: were not suiCidal. reaction would occur within the residence. 
fully appreciated. In deciding to end the standoff At no time has · the Attorney General indicated 
on April 19, the FBI and the Attorney General that she reflected on the consequences of the possi-
fai1ed to properly evaluate the risks to the bi1ity. At the very least this demonstrates gross 
Davidians of the FBI's operational plan. The FBI's negligence on the part of the Attorney General in 
plan was based on an assumption that most rea·· authorizing the plan to proceed . 

. . · __ , .. _,____ .:.- s~n.~le.~p_le_,.would. flee the re.sidence when CS 3. FBI commanders in Waco prematurely 
-: . --=-~·.-- :;:nerit.,wa.$.-JiltrQdu~ed-.Jfl)e FBI :failed to ful1y ap· ruled-out .the po.ssibi.li~ of a negotiated end 

_ .. . ~- ·.:: =-- : .-.-~·.Pr~ciate -~~:-fact that the Davidi&.ns could--not be·-" . to .the· stalid:.off._A..f'ter _Koresh and the Davidians 
.-.~~~-.. ··:··-; : ,",~:m~.J>:~:~:3·l~pect{:uPQij i:to=~-.a~t.~-.as .. =-Qthe~·~:·r~~-~~:~te:-.:{)~~~p·!e.':~:/;~!~k¢.:a_..pr~JD~~e-.t9J~Ofi.l~.put on M~rch 2, FBI ~C·. 

~:·:--~>·:· .. ;_·:: .. ~;· ··:: ,mtght., Th~ .a.lLfade'd;:to- :properly ·account·for.:the·--:_ .. ·ttcal commander:-Jeffrey .c_Jamar VIewed aU state· 
: '··.·~·;'" ·.~;{-:· ~:.~.:~~-~.,..'Davidians~ r.es~olv.e.igroup cohesivenessj'-and.loyalty . / ments·· of .. Koresh. with. extreme. skepticism and 
·;~-~~~~,.~;~·~-;-.v·:;};:·~;.,.;!)~i~.Jl~y ~Jit!ve4 to': be sat!edi·gto~!lai~;l;~~~- ;·.:: ::.~_.;::-i ih'o~gh,t~-~K~:~~!-n:~_es Cor._:·~- negotiated surrender re­
. :·-:_ ~·~:-· :.:.:~;:~~, .. -:~-;..6 r .. MPr.~."~rQ®lingds:~:tbe~·;Jact ;·that'.:the.:.:.FBI ~ coiri;;::·: :in6'te::·'Wl:i'il~):lue'(J.}~gotia~r Byron _Sage·may have 
-:..-.-:.u .·

7

.-~~~-t~ .. <:·:.~man~ers :e,~~er- ~newj·or-11houJd,:·~·~'v~;.:kfi~wn~J.Ila( :.'h'e_la···Q~~'}i9p~·')ofigef,Ji~IJJ officials on the ground 
.. :·:- ~.- .. ~.............. ·~·the conti_~gencywprovisions ofthe.pl&ii pre-sented tc)-~~ ··~ha:d_=·etre_Cti~eJy:_i111~d ·out-a ·negotiated end long be· 

~:'_ .... ·.·;:_~:-,::~:·_:."~:~:: .:~ ·::.th~~-iM:~.rn~ __ General. ·would-~-likely be-'. imple-.. ·fore· ·April 19. .. an~· :had- _closed minds when pre­
. -··-· · ..... · _., .. :,. ··· · · .. _ mimted..- -While the plan'-as. desCribed· w·tne··:·Attot;.:;::i.~'serlted with' evidence ·or a ·possible negotiated end 

· · ney ~neral called for a slow and deliberate inser· involving Koresh's. w~rk on inter-Preting the Seven 
.-.. _ tion .of CS agent-in an eff~rt to deny the DaVidians Seals described .in the Bible's Book of Revelation . 

....... : access.~.s~me areas of.the residence arid-encour- .. · ·. · 4. FBI tactical_ .. ~c.onunander Jeffrey Jamar 
·--· . ·-- .... .':::_".a~ thenr.t9:.exit the. residence ~n specific-locations; .. :" .. · and-.-senior.FBI and' Justice Department offi· 

·_::::~~-.-~--~---- .: ~---_: .. ~~:-.the:·c:ontiJ.lgellc)''"·Pro·vision:. in the-.~~lan' ·caned ·ror; :=:~;cla~-.. -~-"cted. ... ir.J:es~ns~~~Y in advising the At· 
:,_, :~·- . . . : ,_.._ :·· ~~ ·.:much Jarge_r:. q~tities or cs to De. inserted: ·alT:Jlf' >"to~ey '.Ge~~tal .. ~·;go 'forward with the plan 

.. _·_:~- .. -~~:· '?::-,.-_ .:.,::oq~.:·c_tm4_-.in::all:.:areas:·or the.·-residence,'!;'if ~the.. to end the--·s~d~off_ .. on April 19. Jamar ·and 
..... - ~-- _ . . .. _., ..• ": .. 1 __ .; Davidians .: opened .fire ,.on the agents ··in·srde · the=·;·,-- .. s.enior· FBI' an·d· Jus'tice Department officials ad vis· 
: -~~-~~?- ~~-- _, ;_'·"~"' .. ~": :- CEY.'~~ _ .. The_:~~s\llt ... ~ the contingeney·:-provisiori· ·.:·.: ··ing: the Attorney .-G~rieral knew or should have 
·: · _ .. - : _-_ · .. _ , .. · wo~d · be much larger quantitie-s~- ·or "CS .'being:·· >knoWn that or thf!· reasons given to end negotia· 
~-=-~~- ~ -~~:.- ... __ ---pref.~nt .. inside Jhe ·residence with t~e-~attendant: tions-~and: go'_._(o~~rd With the plan to end the 
- . ·.· '"-----~-~.:. -~ .. --~-~~::likelihood that:· harmful. concentrations·' · .. :itiu1d-Off·:ori APril 19 ·lacked meriL To urge these 
· "<-' .. · .. _. -~·_::·_. ··might~be--readJ.~. ·:and.also the-.trong-likelihood · as an excuse to act at the time the Attorney ~n· 

::'~-~s:·-~;:~~:~:~;;_~;~=~)~~J::e~~~~~=~~~~ ~~u~~~:~.:~~n~;;-~!~::"!~e:·~·-:=··~t:~·~;t~:s~::s~~si~·n -~:-~~ so was wrong and 
· _ . . · Jeff'-,ey _J~mar~ the FBfs overall commander at·------~=··s~ .. -TIIe· FBra·'refwial tO:-a~k for or accept the 

. the r.esidence testified before the subcommittees.. assistance of other law enforcement agencies 
th&:~ ~e ~1ieved there. was· 99 percent chance that · during th_e. ~~d-off demonstrated an institu· 
the eonUng~!ley __ provision .would-~be- .·implemented· · tional_ bias at the FBI _against accepting and 

~-: -~ ::~;~~ :.~:-~::~-:~-,~~use_:_th~J>avidians ·wo~d ~pen~iire-:·on c·the· FBl-:· "-:_u~ilbing- ,~,~ch ~si$.tUee. '111roughout the 51 
·:;.~~-:.::~~ .. ~~:·:~~-:·1~:hf.:nS~os~l;.;Ql~rly,.,-giveactbf · DaVidiani~ actions·· in';= ~dai~'~d~c!~~e'J~B.Lr.eflij~d to ask for the assist· 
.. ;. ~.-:_:~ -~-~~;l-\~:;_r~~p~' -~~:ithe~ATFLr&id; on· Feb'niary~28!jt'was ~ ::winc~~:_:c,r· ot)ie(J.w .. : ~n.£orcement agencies and even 

. : :-~~":~::,:.:;:':~- .. ~~-; -·; :·:~l~o~~;~ceJiejn.~:tbat::;:the_,~p~Vidians··~. w6uld ~respond . ; : -~re(U$ed'. ofTEir(.~or:·sucli _assistance. The subconlmit­
. ~-::t-:. ~-:~_:-.. ~·-::~~-:~ to, th..@._fQJ)·:~~~-~os-.With-:gunfire~~Ye~/Jamar~iiever~'- :;;·tees:·fina 'tha(thertf'is~ari:J~stitutional bias inside· 

·_;_~ ~L;:;· i·:~;:. ·~;:·i~~,j~;;_ · ~~J~~ ljl8 opinion ~to· the~ttomey ~oenerafp;'.:.:::th.e"FBI. 8gainst-a11owing. other agencies to partici-
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-· _ .P&t.e'.in'-FBI __ operations. Such bias is short-sighted ·persons whose job it. waa to be fully informed 
and, in this case~· proved ·to be counter-productive .. about the use of CS, it appears that the Attorney 
in that the failure to seek or accept assistance General failed to fulty·eonsider the flawed assump-

. . added to the pressure _to end the stand-off on April tion in the FBI's plan once it should have become 
. -~- ~_.._. .--.·~. -:-: , .-... ;,. .. ,19 ...... -. ··: .--· .· .· ... ~:,... · · ·_ · · = ~ .... - . · ·- : · · ... > · ·· ~-..... : -·"· . ~obvious tQ her. . . . . _ _ _ 
·- ·----.-... c:-,-~.-... : ·---.-~-.::_ ~ a: :It ·la,:_UiiUkely .. that~ the. CS riot-·-control·-, ·.: .7.- There is_ ... no ·eVldeiice-that the FBI ctJ. • 
.. ::· .. -~·~:;-:;;; ·:::·: ._-.;,:·~;, .. are~~ .. u8c!cJ· _by· the( FBI _reached _toxic levels,~----., charged firearms ·on April lB. . . . 
:: :<:<:f-·' :'··:-:";·~--> howeve~; .. _tn~_~·e DUi.iiiier ~n·.:.wblch -~~-·cs was·.~''-:~ 8. :FOU9wi.Dg ~e .FBl.'• ~April 19 asaault OD 

:,:~::~~-~-:~~;:.~:~~:}~~~~,:-~:·--~=:~~~~D~ti~~;!!:!~:;;~~--=d!!!! ·_. ·. ~~e=r;~P~·;,;t~-,-~;po~~.:!f!:.rn~ . 
· ..... ·:~-l:·,= ;::~\1~\~~;:-:fp~jli~C;.~o~p~IJ.·. ~e ~Jd~rly, alld:._those--With .-,:_:·light. i'of:; her. ultimate .. _n;spousibility tor the 

-::'~~;;f'~;~i~:~·i\lll{!i~~;~~!i4~~f':~:~~~::t~~~~;l~~~{deaUu 
. :-- ... - --~ -.': ~- , , - ~,. those with' _re_spiratorj. conditions.·. In· some--~~es, _ <· ... ·_ 1 .• Fe de~ law entorce~ent agencies should 

. . ' ... : . . 'ievere or -~~nded 'eXJ)Osure·.can lead -to:-.incapaci- :, .:·. ta~ steps, .to· _foster gre~~r unden;tanding of ) 
... -· _.. . · tation. · Evide~ce presented to the subcommittees :. the targ~t under investigatiou. The subcommit· 

· show· that in enclosed _·spaces; such as· the bunker, tees feel strongly that government officials (ailed 
the -use or cs riot control agent significantly in· to fully appreciate the philosophy or mindset or 
creases the possibility that lethal levels will be the Davidians. If they had, those officials might 
reached, and the possibility of harm significantly have been better able to predict how the Davidians 
increases. In view of the risks posed by insertion would react to the plans to raid the residence on 
of CS into enclosed spaces, particularly the bunk· February 28 and the plan to end the . standoff on 

... , .. _- .:~-~"'~-· -,;.···.·-:·er, the F'JUJ~.l~cl .. ~- de~o~strate Silfticient concern April 19. If so, perhaps many or the errors made 
. ~ .. ::.--:.::·:.-..:._, "·'·~-~.::~=(::.Jo.r _th-~ ,.-presence·:.~-·or :.=.-y~ung- chUdren,;:.preg'nant: Ldm F~b.OJ~rY ~~ ~ndd~_~g.the standoff could have 

... : -~- " .... ~-·---·,-~·.wciineri, . the'-~elderly; ~and those 'With 'respiratory. :~:.;·.:b.een avoided .. ;. : .. ~ . . - -.·.--:···· .. ---·- :. . 
· ·, ·;, ~-: .. ;·~-~=·:"; . .: .~:::;~~-~;~_:e-on-dliions~- While _it: ·eanriO.t>~ con·ctud~-with .cer~ · . . :~.::... '---~~: sUbC:oininittees · Co_iin:d ... troublesome th~ Cact 

. :. ~~: -_-._,~~;:··:.:·.-~:·:'· .. ·.·.·:·:·.~n~y;.it'is;illii~elt:itiit the.::cs riot·,eontrol agent,·:~ r!~hat:Jn-~Y-~fjh:~.)~.';I'F .~nd.fBI officials involved in 
· ~. > :; t ·:~,: ;; ~~~~ •. :. ··;;>l_r(tlie~:.q&Wl~ti~·· rils~' ;bY ~·th:e. ~~~·: reathed -lethal : ,::this :m~~-~(~ee.ine(f~riin~f.ested in understanding -... _ 
;)c ·ri rt; c t ;·:r ·or ih ,.: :.~~-, l~t~~!~-':rh~:_pf~~~te_d · eviden~e: ~oes ·,indicate_ .;;_· .th~ . !?~~~~~·· ·g.o~l$·. &A~: ~lief. systef!l· The views. . · 

; .:·i:· the ;; 11 .;· rw:rit~~~iPSJ!.l~~,W~~1;!#~ '~e=:encl~s~e~ ''b_':J-fl~e~~~· at a· r.~I-~f..t:h~~ off!~~~,~-~~~~ fr:~-~ assumptio!ls that the · 
::..:, 1-':·::(;_;-r,~;; .--.,":,_.-:-:. ~.:time ... wheJt_ ~~en ··and :ch1Jdren · ·were:! assembled·.:~'. =Jir8J1~~ ~ J)aVI~J.an. ~ere .. z:a~gnal people likely. to _re~ 

.. . -- . -- :· .... ... inside" th'at~···en"clos~cr-:-~Pa~€-"(te~·;. dUring'~ th'e 'fourth- -. spond .. tO-- initllorities' as \vould most citizens' t.O_-... 
·" : ___ ,. __ .,.·. :~·~:.~---~.~CS,riot~con~-:~ll;lgent insertion), could. have been· a ···belief that the DaVidians were a "cuJt• which could 
- --·. -:::'· _:_.·_·,.-··.proXimate· ca·us·e:·,or-~r·dire~tly -resU,l~~jn~some·or·>:~:not be. dealt ~thjn .. any_.Vr:$Y other than by force. 

· alJ of the deaths attributed to asphyxiation -in the . . _Seldom· did these officials seem interested in actu· 
. ·_:·_~·-· .... ·.aUtopsy reports·.:-:·-.-,-. -_·. -~.. . .............. ,., .. . aJJy trying to understand this group or people and 

-,. .·-::·· ... -· _·::.~-_·:_:~:_.It is_.cleaJ:" ... fhlm. the. testimony at the· ·he~irings ._, , .their. motivations. This attitude was shortsighted 
. ,. ;,, '•·;~·:.=.: ~;r- .. ·,that the.·.nu~:expected 'tlie. adul.t-~s:n.~~n· or the. ··:·and.contributed ~ leveral.ofthe mistakes that the 

,_·,; ;, . ~: ,~; .. ,.,~ ,: ::: ... -- coiiuhitrii~t ~c( caj'e'· fot. the- children . by-=·removing .· ... government .om~_als .Jilacle. at different points from 
_,.-· ·;:;,":' ·-·.· ;~: .. : .... them fio~if.~<i~~ff~:.~e'·cs agent by eoming out ·<::_February-28 through_-APrill9. · · 

.. - ... :~'-,_·::~ . -.. :. _of the.i~~i_d~ee .. ~~th· ~em·.:·This 'presumption was. ··:.. This' change: in .orgaz:~~~tional culture can only 
. : .... .:.-::~_:. " , -:~-·flawed. ·AS···th~~-Qe'fense Department's witn~ss __ testi- ··result if-senior -officials in the Federal Jaw enforce-
~ ...... : -~ ... , .... ~: ':~_fie_<l:~fote the'subeoinmittees, on'e of th·e -:two sen;.- ·ment agencies implenierit'~changes in training and 

.- .. _:-.-~--- --_.-. - . ,, , -~_)o~.tnUJt8_wt:_9!fic_~rs·:~h,o·_~~-n~~--~~)lu~eti~~ with : ·: ·operationa}-. procedures. :The benefits of these 
.. ::~·->::=·"'- .~::.-:.:;:_ ·-.::-. ·._the __ ~tomey oe~~ral on_ ApnJ 14;· told 'the·Attor-"r, ..... ·ehanges;wJllnot only protect the targets ofgovem-

--· ... ~c:::-:··.-:.:::~-·.-~.- :.~-:·.ney. Gen~rafth_a_i:-~uiing~--~e use or·cs· mothers ment .. action-but, by making it more likely that 
·.> ... ;~.:::· . .::. ::·-~_..,. -~igh~;~.run-~ft" ~<t·J~~e their_··ehildren~~·Yet the :.federal::law.:_enforcem.en~ .. :.ofticials will carry out 
-~-.:.,.·~~;-~;...:---~~ .. -~~-:~--Att.Omet~~-n~~raLf).i_J~Jc(~pp~iate ... _tlie·r~ct tbat·_·= =" their:·mission_.in _the m.an.ner most h"kely to sue· 

...... · ~::..-~ ~; .. ,"-:"'; :--=,~·~this -P.9~sQ:,jljgrj\r~fJiL.c!ireet ~ntniven.tio'fa to· a>·:.:·ceed, will help to· protect. the safety or the law en­
-~'·- -~ - key as..s~mptioii.'of.tbe plan's proVisioli ror 'the'·uae .. -· forcement officers 88 well.:.-

of t~e . CS agent-th-at the adult members ... or the· · · 2. Federal law ellforcemeut agencies should 
. commUnitY )vould ca.re for the children •. ---· ...... ·- · · revise policies and .~iniug to eueou.rage the 

· ... _ ..... :·::--"'=·'"'-~:;·- ;.~ .. /.rluLF~J..J~.J~ ~ p~~rly inforln the Attorney~- acceptance of aissistance from other Jaw en· 
---~~·-:; ~:..~-,~~~;::;\;:;~_· ,.~n~·t~l.,~--~~.n~~~ ~~i~~ c~ .. ~e~~ -o~.:~~!1~!e~:~~~-'': force~en&: agencl~. "')Jere possible. _The sub­

.. ~• ft. .. .. ·. - . ..- · by_ not ·app~tmg·_the~mJIJtaty .. office~s war.rung·.· ~· :·cotn-nnttees : recommen4 ~that FBI ~oals take 
· .. ·. - ... :/c ,_that parents might_:abaridon theu·;chil4~~~tand IJy steps .. to change th~ prevailing FBI ;euJture· that 

·.. ··:,:.~~- ·notfiilly apprising~~ Attomey.:Gen.~rliJ.-·th~f~~~~:~~,~:-'Jead(.:_~bi''to· believe" U'.at only the FBI kn~w.s _ 
.:.~ :·~· !-. :.·: :~:- ._~·:::: .~. was:=-u~~~--~ ~!Je,l_l_tific. information~~.'!. ~~.;.effects~·.:~--~.:-: :_best _how-.tO-;-IlandJe '&~situation .. While '8gency pride 

· :~ ;.,,-.,,t~-~~f:f':i,:. :,C$:ojf~0~~9:~~J!~th~'Attom..ey~~-O~f~lcapn9f~~}:is·.apptopria~,·and-deserving in the case of th~ 
·-- ·· · be fault:ect·.-ror''relying·on·;the adVice given her·bY .... FBI, ~ihia.pride appeara to have eaused the agents 
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to have been foreclosed to other. possibil~ties of' .. plan to end the· standoff, fire was detected i'nside 
.. _ . ____ dealing with 'the situation at hand, such as by_.fll· ·_·:- th~ Branch D~vidian residence. Within a period of' 

· · lowing other J)ersons whom the Davidians trusted · - 2 minutes;· two ·additional fires were detected in 
to become more involved in negotiations or using two other parts. of' the structure. In less than 8 
other Ja..y_ en(~~m~nt agency forces. 19_ n:taintain minutes the fire had spread throughout the struc-

_ .. ·•··-~ -:~-c:-r: ··. th~_-Btanc~ .. J;>aYi:~an ,center perimeter:~~ thuB:_r:~_~.: -~-~e. By . .-the end of the aft.emoon, the structure 
_ ·.- · . . . ··Jieve_ pressure. __ on.,,~-~ HRT. The ~F~_I_ ~o_uld h'ave:- .. -.was completely destroyed. . -~ 

:-·,--.;;.;··, !:;. _,.,-, .. _.,~,-- >r~n_:open_ ~ _th_ese p,0ssibilities w~~le m~~~~ing_:_··-~--.-The subcommit~es received testimony from the 
.. ;: · · .:..·-,-~- -':><~': i_ti ultimat~(~o6trol of the situation; The FBI needs .. :·.Jeader--of a .team ·Of fire experts called together by 
_:·--·: -- ~-:...--:f:: ~:-~'~:~~- ~--~e: s~p$;_n,~~j-9~nsure th~t th~i--c~ose·_~!n~~- ·:· :-,:_~~ T.exas ·Rangen to investigate the origins of the 

---~t·:::~~~T __ -;-;:~!'~",:·Y:~,,~~~;~::~~~-r~=~~~e--!h:id~.-~-~:;.:·:-t.~C!~--)~:~%:ltt~~j~~~~~r~-:!~;~s~int~~-~e; 
.,.: __ -:· -- ~,_:F"' :_-=:-:.:~~and·j~natyze'-'·tb_e-.'dfecta of. CS··:rio~ ,::~D.:tror~·::·;;.:,:'exas Rangers,ecn and an independent arson in·. 

·'"=l:~.,i ;.<: -,~-'-·'agent .. ·cui:·~Jl~n,_:per&Ona.with:.respiratory ·:-·ve·s~p~r.,.,_,_ 0 _.,_,,.··· ·.: .. ~i;,~~; · - ··· .. . · ; 
:-~~- -~.,~_;::__ ;:·: .. t:i.:·~ .. :· :'··-'·eOnditi~~-8,. pregnant women, ~d .the eld~ly~>~ :::: '----D~rjiig· __ tlie:_~~.i:no~y= or these witnesses, the . 

- · · · -· ----· .. · · ·· .--The -stibcomm~~i)ecommend ~hat the: ·FBl~ and_,_.,· sUbcolrtmittees -also reviewed videotape recordings 
· -Deps;itmeri.t_of.~efense investipte further the-ef_. ..... :_-.:ordfe·de~elop~ent_and spread of the fire. Included 

···-''·'fects--of"-eipOsure -to CS on ehildr.:en, pregnant--- : 1Ji .this review was a videotape wing "forward 
women, the elderly, ·and persons· with .Tes.piratory· looking. i11frared•. (FLIR) technology, which was 
·problems~ .. ·until such· time as more is learned - taken from an--FBI observation plane circling the 
about the actual effects of' exposure to this agent, Branch Davidian residence throughout the mom-
the subcommittees recommend that CS not be ing and afternoon of' April 19. The FLIR type of' . 
used when children, persons with respiratory con. video, also eaUed a Thermal Imaging System, is a 
ditions, pregnant women, and the elderly are type of video photography which images thermal 

.. · _._,present... .. · ·: .. · · ... , .· .. __ . . heat sources. Because of its sensitivity to changes 
"-=· ... :~. < ·. ·-.. : .·_-- :· -~ .Tii~f~~~--:.~o~cl .. expand the ___ ~~~-'~~---~~-~ ... ;. in the quantity or heat• given ofT by an obje~ the 

: ~-·- ~_,_-·:-·;:-=_:: ··HostageRescu~ Team. One of the p~ssures·_that · .. ~:::.FLIRcvideotape "showed. the beginning of the fires 
· "·-···-··,. __ :,~:.-~"··-::-led the FBI.~to~.recomm~nd to'the Attorney ~oer~l __ =-~~in the-Branch :Davidian residence prior to the 

-:.:y::·-:,--a -_-~:~-~ ~·PfJ:.:r:"thi('Uuf~sta.ii'd~ft1~- ~~nded on· April '}9 -~~s;;-;th~~"::\-<po~~tat..which was the ·names were visible· to per-. 
-:~!,:'l::'-~ ,; ~·. '7:-~.--~:.·:·:ije~_<L~ ·r_e_~~~~'-tettain the ·HRT. Th:e're~w~r.~:.n#: ;.~;:'_ions-on thecoutside:qf-the structure. Time lapse in·-
:.:!·:;_ ;·:·~;~;. ~::J.- _-~:'.-sufficient liW1lbers.of~-HRT members tcfbOth· gi,lard:-.; di~tors Qn'..the video tape recordings were used by 
·.it~0!';• ~:.~ .. ::.I;~}. ;:': . ..-~tlii:~r:me~f'qf~·~~ "i~~idence and to~t~!i~Y~ ttiem:·~ the Witnesses to establish the times at which each 
-:-~~-:!~_:;:..\~~~-~-:~~~:~;·}~!Wi!s~:!'~~~~~:O~~~~ G~:~ i~~!i:h!~:~~~!·; ;-~,_;~~:"~~-~~~:~.!-'~~~~~h Davidian residence began. 

ta·~·· -----·L.....;---·---~d·--.. --.t. ·t·· h d d 1 d • --~- ···-:·:"A.~SUMMARYOFmEDEVELOPMENTOFTHEFIRE : _ . - - ~e or IM;l~ca e 11 ua 1on a eve ope tnvo v· ·· · ·· · · · 
·-~"-~-~-~-~~-:;:~~~~·-'-:''·'big' jC,Fe4~-~-!~w~·i.~f~r~ement ~ge!lCY. -:)Ypi_l~-~-~~,-~;,-:::·r.J~p.ri_ng ~~~~e~~n'sh~am_~~ Quintiere •. pro~essor 

standoff WJth the DaV1d1ans was continumg, the · or Fire· PrOteCtion Engmeenng at the Umvers1ty of' 
FBI would have been- faced with the choice· of not Maryland and one of' two fire experts retained by 

- ... Tesponding to that sitUation or pulling the HRT - tbe· .J\lstiee. Department to join the fire review 
... __ _ ___ ... ·.-.. out of Waco and moving them to the new location. . ~ _ assem~~e~ by. the .Texas Rangen, used the 

; , __ ,_ . ... Both of these scenarios suggest the. _need·:~_'en:. .--'-FLIR video.,tape_to.:.demonstrate the development 
, .. : --~,: :~ .·.-.,~-~-~:~. _·._--_.large ·the size_ ·or the· HRT. While. the:· subcominit: ~ __ :-;.:ot·~~--fire_ ·p~ :~P!il,~9. Dr •. Quintiere's responsibi1· 

.. ~ ~ · :' .. ' - ~ .. ':-.. ·=, tees .. are a ware-~thafthe' FB~ ·has_ increased the_-_. size · itie.s_ · ~-s_· a: p_~..;,9J !-he ~view Team were to analyze 
:~'::-·· ~-- ~ ·. ·_. ---~-- ·or the --HRT ·fronFthe 48~.-.,op'erator~~-agents'ori ·the· ·<:th~ .d~v~l~p~-~-~~3~f' ,the·-,fire.and draw interpreta· 

· __ -.. ,:·· .· .::~~:-.·. _ ,team __ as- of early 1993 ·to 78 operators· JlS ~or:July:.::: ·· tio_"$_-and·conc;~~o~s froin·that analysis.603 In ad· 
_, ·: ,__,_, ;.;> .-, __ .. · :~1996,::-the subCommit~es -re-cc)~mend ·that further:_-- )li~on ~ r~·~ewing the FLIR video, the fire inves· 

.. '~ .. ~--_::::~~---~ -_.~::.. · :_:.•_~ consideration--be' giveri ---~---~is issue~---As =the :-sub- . · '. tigatiorf· team .,reviewed. ·television coverage of the 
... -<~- · -.-... · . -.-eonnnittees have---eori'cluded-~_~at the·.:.goveminent' ·:.: _ ~ri ·by: _the_ C~._di&J) Broadcasting Corp., which 

·. --~ .::: :·.;.: ___ ::.----- •hQuld have-waited beyond.Aiiri119·and continued ·-=·:·wu-li.lso time--da-ted, and· television coverage of the 
_-:-: .:=: .. -~- · ·:·;"._ .:., •. _, . to, .negotiate ·'with· the· DaVidians,. inherent· in ·that--=::· f!~ ~y- ·afJoeaLWJlcO. television station. The team 
.... · . .-· ~-·.. . .. :::.~recOmmenda-tion. wai~-thai Uie.~HRT-or.'some "othe-r.'···.~-also'nVi~V[ejl_airial ph,ptographs and other mate· 

· 'tactical force should have remained-at the· resi· :.- 'ri8Ji~ __ p~_ng_!l!s)~_~timony--to,.tbe subcommittees, 
dence. The· FBI should ensure that· the-.o·HRT--is -----Dr. Quintiere pfayed a video tape that simulta· 
large enough. to_:_n:taintai_n a long standoff in· the fU. · · neausly play~ each of' the thr~e video tapes of the 

. . . ture, sb'Quld the need arise, while also having the fire synchronlZed to the same time. 
~:_-=:. -~~:~-:~·-!:···-:: '_~p~ffi.~>iJ~~-~·fid ~f-~~other hos~_ ~r .. ~.r.r..i~-~=.-:::;_-;'l'he _vid~o~~ :demonstration showed th~t the 
;~~;-~~·_:.':":::_._ ... ~~=-L~,: ~e s•tuation.-:.elsewbe.rtrJnthe country_C;Juring.-the' ,.:.·.,..first f.ir~ ~~~t .12:07:42 p.m. As part of h1s tes· 

.J~~!~~~~~~~;~::~~==darll¥~~~Jii~~i~!=~t-:=;::~ 
-~. ~~;"£·:-::r-.:-.;~.; :·,· 1"-th. 6 h afte th FBI l...uw i . 1 ----~- -----a..~ fl~;-. ......,.'Part-1-al uecutanenLotJame~ Quintiere). 
--~~ -.:-:.• ~-- an ours . r e ""'~ian to tlip e~~-~ 1.11e ' .,14{ . 

- .. . . .... -.:~:...- -.. ------·- ' 
- :==.· 

:".' ~ ·_:: •. · ~ -:·:. 
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: _,._ ~ ·. the'. tank tO :the building lor that to hap- . . . and autopsiei Indicates that the cause or death or 
pen. · · · · · · · : -· .. · several of the bodies at exit points were self-in· 

Dr. QUINTIERE: AbS()lutely. . flicted gunshot wounds or gunshots from very dose 
_ . . .... . Mr. ScHuMER: And we did not; is that range. 

· -- .- -. :L.~ .. -·-.-?~_;_ · .:':·~:;jo_~?.::;·:· _·,.~,-~.:::: -' ~: · .:.~·:_.:. :-:=:···'!.:~, , , . . . > ___ _,: ~ · At tl1e hearings before the subcommittees, Dr. 
_ ,:_-~,._::~,-o:· ~~----.-~--:~,::·~~ pr. QUJNTIERE:Absolutely. ..' .. ·- -~~--r:·:.Q~ntiere· testified-as.to_his opi11ion as to whether 

He 

. ... --. . . m~t ~t:rtesa·testified tha~ all:o( the m.Jlitary vehJ-. ~> .. _ -- some-protected 'areas ofthe:bwJding. 
_- .:...: cles loan~. by_ the Defense I)epartment to the- De-·,,.. .. -~- . -.. So between and interval of five minutes 
... pa~e~ or J~tiee· and used ~t Wa~-w~r~ un-- .. :. ·.. after-Jhe.fire :~rte~ and maybe as much 

armed. . Additionally,_.tbe .. subeomtmttees •nter- as .20 mJnutes, ···person could have .es-
VJe~. wtth ~ther persons. present at the B~eh eaped from· some parts of the building. as 
DaVIdian res1denee on Apnl 19 confirms that none · • .. • ·· · · : . 
or these vehicles was anned. Paul Gray, Ass1stant Ch1ef of the Houston Fire 
. Department and leader of the fire review team as· 

c. WHETHER 11IE DA VIDIANS COULD HAVE LEFT sembled by the Texas Rangers, agreed with this 
_ _ . THEIR RESID~CE AFTER THE FIRE BEGAN opinion, "' would take an educated guess or about 

. '··--~--:-~~·-: . .-_;·.~---~~~~~-.-~Th~ughout the.moming or April 19, none of: the ... 20 to 22 min_u~s. f!om the inception or the fire, 
. -~- · . --~"'-· .:-c·.·:·Daridians left: .tlie.i.r residenc_e. --After the fire broke~---- .ftom the first 1gruti~~ Jh~~ the_re may have been 

.. -. ~~- ;~.:. ::.~?-~'t""~ f ;_D:-:--:wt;: ;:=however; _,gi~~~---~r-soris_ i~~ _ the buiJcliiig. ~-~:·__ _som~-Viable· conditiQO~ _ in~~d_e the building .. " 629 As 
:.~ : -_ ~ · ,-· ~--:~ -~--: ~ .: This".lndicaw~ ~~~ ,.tJ~:~t~:•o~e opportup~_ty. ex~7 - _.;. ~~~ ~P~rt ~r.the .te~m _led by: Gray summanzed, 

., ~ ~-:: .. :- -.- -.~: :: =~ _; ~ isted ·.-for :tht :Pavfdfani·. Jo ~~.relY lea\re ~the stnie::' . · ' ·-·· '~:-:- .._. '(A:f' great' 'triany·· 'of' the, ~cup ants could 

~~~~~~~~~;~~~~~~= 
·. ._ .- . : ___ ~ _-- ·- ·- 'UteiJ: ~t.:.t.h.! ~lj!!_>~~_;_. ~-f tbe ~.!'St ~re.~~ :.Cl~~\::. -t]~~: ~~~~4; · • · ~~; (C)onsidering the observ~le 

,. ·:··- :· · -- · ~: ·.: --·;·~~e l!'e~s-'.~f,_e~~ ffo~---~~ res1denca.exJ~~.;: -~---;::-:;.-:~·;m.Eian$~ Qf~i.t'-4iv~l~le~~-we must assume. 
· .. :. ,... .-: . -~·o.: ·,.,for a 11gndi~n,~ _pe~pd. Q(f.:i.~~. ~r the fire-.- broke . -., . __ that·· rn~y-~of thtf:pecupants were either 

- - ..... -· ouL.::-~. -~..;.." .. ::·:.·:::.::- -<~- • - _ ----_ • _-_----_ ;~:-:.. =-=--.:~;:: ~: .. :·. -·-~------ denied -esciipe_:from· within or refUsed to 
.. ~ !mports:nt questi_on-, h~wever, -Js.whether. tlie ~- ~-:~·leaviun-bTescapewas·not·an option.830 

· DaV1dians msght . have been overcome by smoke ·_ · . · · · · . · · • ·: · · : -- · ·· · .. • 
.. _: ·. .._ .. _ ::·.-: :::·::"and preve~~ (tq_m_leaving the residence .. The·· au ... ··. -In hght of thlS e~d~nce, ~e subco!flmlttees con­
:.:<-.-~-~;~;..- <~,:-. .-~--.-.topsie_s ~f.~eJ)aYidians indicate that deaths from·.· ... _elude that_ ~en;- wa~. a penod ~r.t1me after the 

· ::, ~''·:· :::;-,-;,·;·:-::-~--·smoke~-~halit.i9n-~or···:uphyXiatiori: ·from ~rl>9.n.::i·.·.·fires ~gan WJth~n.,w:h•ch.~~--D!lVldJans could have 
,_. :..-,--,..., .. ~- _s:nonoXide poisoning accounted for ·only half:o.f.t)le .... .- ~seaped · ~e ~suJ~~-·- tJi~-- ~VJdenee presen~ to 

__ .. · · --~::;.'··~·-·,:naVidians' who· diedjn the residenee~_::oTh~;.-:-otli.~-~ ~.!;'~,;~~de~ s~omm~ttees: 1m4•~~h-~-.·bth~:d.the dDa:ndianths 
-- ~- :, ... , .. ,~ ... _,_,::;.:::~~c--:·J:a~~.!:,~~f::;d~~tb ~~~---~s):lot_ wo~ds;:-_1>\l~os,·. 0_~:~_, _ -not.~!lttempt :~ e~~e;· t -~- ~ . mg u!"lng e 
· ·. :. ~--- ·: :.--- ·-----> ~:oUl~r .. tr~u,ma:~.:rh~.- ·even after the. fires ~gall _to _ Ji":·, In)1ght of.~-~-. Pa.~d·~~- ~ehg~ous b~hefs that 

... · ---~: -, .:: .. :_: :.-.::: .. :.:.consuine.--.:the "sttuctUre··~:at·· least .. --half or.·::the .· ... fire--.wowd·_play •:·P~ ~n Ule end of the1r worldly 
-- ·.-:~ .. ::~ .. ~;;:-~;;.-.:_.. ~,~;_,:~:,PiiY.idl~s w~r~~~ot-so~·airec:ted by the smoke_-:and'~- --li~~.-~e-~mmi~tees eonctude that most or~e 

- · :, -.. , ·'---·v··::.,._ '--::::.- --:"--' --:tb:me~- ~~m~-the:=·~·..e '.ilia~· _they were-:physic.a}Jy ~~--~-::--=;:~--!'l~ans" :e~~er.;did. __ n~~ ~ttempt to leave the1r 
; .. ,-; ,-., • .. ::· ., __ ,_,_ ..... able toleave·the'itructUre.-_. .. :·,_- .· ;-,-.:·::.:.-'-" . __ .: .. ·---· ~- · resufenee dun_ng_theAire .. ~_r_ were prevented from 

·' ·.... · ..... ::·:: .. :~~:-· ·.::.~~AdditionalJY/tbe·:·location of the~ bociies··c;r~"ilie'·.:.:·· eseaping:by qther_Qa~dians. Had they made such 
.-.. - ·- ·--- ::~:.::... -.. -baVidians.indieates-'tliat· rew :o( the ,l)aVidian&·:ac- ... ·an _attempt.and.not.beeri_hiJJdered in the attempt. 

· ~~:· ---·~tU&ny~--~ttempted ;~:esCape· the buildi_ng.~~~ariy- c;;----: lioY!ever; -~nditi.C!rj~_ we_r~ :.such that for sufficient 
· · .· the bodies were huddled together in locations ·in···_ .:·pen~ ortame.after the fi"~ __ broke out many of the 

the center of the building. 821 Few of the bOdies ·. Davulians could have survwed~ 
:·. ,_..---_:_-_ _ . ~ .. -.,.we~. ~oea~ at poin_ta of exit from the building, . . D.'JHE FBI'S PLANNING FOR THE FIRE 

· _ _-,·;~ :-~~~-:~;;~:::~_:;.~;~i;:~~~~~:~~~-· ~14.-.fi44-·~-·-l~ :a$.J.~ ~-~•••-~-~~~-~~ate!i ~ · - . Ac~!ifi~g -c~~~~=:~_~ti~_-.D~partment Report, at 
... ·~--: . .,."_ · ·· -· -~~~flmf.~=',{.~.f::=.). ~"-~:.t~~; ._-:··a· meet1ng ~"AAJ:ly ~PJ;J,I,.~~~e~ ~r the government at-

. ;i :< -"':;·"'"- · .._ ror Spec!al Operation~ ud Low lnte•ity ~ftk:t)..-.-=~~-'-· · , ,. :- .';: tomeya e tiR~.jfi~e"',. .P9~~-ibahty of fire at the 
-~:::.;-__ · -- .. ,a.tice ~rtment Repart.•' 298. ,....,_ ~-,~ ~~.---Cti"e:·,:,=--~~d,::anc:l_::;ugge~tea:-=to the FBI that ~~fire 

·H. ~~.;;;;;;J:~!.~:~~~;~;;;;;J;_aii:t~,::r~r~:r 
1M nmairw or-w-ee» con \.lined in lhe AppenltiL .. : . --.~ .... -Dii;ilnmenl_ltepn ., ~ 
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fighting eq~pment .be pla~ed on standby on the _a ~a~~-~r ~Juit indicates.an intention to spread the' 
----- , . .,.. ·· ·-· ' acene.~ 831 ·Additiorially, the Medical Annex to the·· fire. - __ . · '·. · 

operations plan for April 19, which listed the loca~ ·· 2. The methylene chloride In the CS riot 
tiona of .. primary" and .. secondary" hospitals in the control agent used by the FBI did not cause 

_ . . . .... .. _ area noted that local-hospitals should not· be ~ed · · - the~ J:i~ •. Th,e.re_ is_ ~o evidence that methylene 
--~·~--::-_;; ,_ :; ::: ~:~"Y:-=- =-·:.·=' ~-~ to tteat_·_~Bjof~~~fbut tba~ one. of. the ~~:~nd~: ---~- "~hloricJ~-.:Y.apor i~:the, air in ~e residence, present 
-.. ::..: --~·:;-:::. '~:~:-::-:- ·---~hospitals wil~"primary for· major bums.~::-..-.:.::_·,:-::_:_:- -·· ··_as· ~e_!_esu_lt_~f.ats use as a d1sbursant for the CS 
·::~~ ;:: .• :. .:.r. r:.;:;;_::-. ---==.; ~fo~rding:~~..:~~.A~~tice~J)epartment-Repo~~~~:_:_:~:.~not·c9_~ft~l agent, -~used the outbreak ~f the _fir~ . 
. ,,_, .-,:~-:.~,-~----- .· ~-: :- _ F~~--"~~c~~~<t~. ~9tJ:uave fireJighting:equipment at · ~.~ _e~d~~£~- ~~sented ·to the subcom!luttees md1· _ 

_ -~,::-;-·::-£.lr'< ~;- ~-~~~:~:':-; __ ?~'~:ih~)a_~n~(~{C?r .(e~'.:..t.h~t they;-woU}d; b"~r firecFupori_ -~_>eatAA~~ -~~t-f.~t:.th~..: .tnethylene. eJ:tlonde to have 
._ ~:·~~ ·~·;;;.' :'~~:-~·77: ·::; -~ · -~Y~~~~i.J(~dJ1i~· (QJloweta..'~§:J~:)'et' shottJi _after' ····burned s~me spark must have 1gt11ted the methyl· 

~ .-: .• '--··-·· ""~-, · -·~- :~' --_,_: ·£.'- -· • --- ···-.; -- -:..it __ fir ... th ~r~ -· · -- -· ··d:~ -·~·-t· .. ., ene chlonde vapor and that a fireball would have . "---,~ ,._,~ . . WJe_ . .rei>Q~ . .,JL ~,; ___ ,,,. e r~u _ .. comman pos re. l d · ob ·1· 
-~-- ;.<- "-~~·:·_-:::::~:- 7.~;:-::: queiied'ffre-·fighting-assistance be requested. The resu te . Because no fire~ll was . served unt1 _ 

. . first fire fighting vehlcles arrived in the vicinity 20 wen ~r the fire had become estabhshed, ~e s~ 
minutes later and, at 12:41 p.m., approached the committees conclude that methylene chlonde did 
structure. In total, the fire crews did not reach the not ~use the fire. 
structure until 31 minutes after the fire had first 3. The subcommittees conclu~e that. Fed· 
been reported.833 The report also asserts that Jef- eral law enforcement agen~ d1d not mten· 
frey Jamar, the FBrs on-scene cOmmander at tfonally . set the ru-e. The eVIdence before the 
Waco, stated to Justice Department officials dur- subcommittees clearly_ demonstrates that no fire 
ing the their internal investigatio f the · · d t beg~ at. or nea~ the t•me when any or the co~bat 
th .. "f th fi figh h n ° . ma en engmeenng vehtcles used by the FBI came mto 

at even 1 • e re ters ad amved a~ the contact with the structure. Had a flamethrower or 
compound earher he would not ha~e pemutU:d ·similar device been installed on one or the CEV's 
t!tem. to enter due to the great nsk to their and used to start the fire its use would have been 
hves. 

634 
• • • observable in the infrared videotape of the fire. No 

The sub~mm1t~~~ do not dispute the Just1ce such use is recorded on the that videotape. Accord-
Dep~rtment s position that at ~he outbreak or the ingly, the subcommittees conclude that the FBI 
fire 1t _would hav~ ~~. ~angerous for fire fi~hters · did not use any or the.CEV's. intentionally to cause 
to approach the structure. Yet, the subcommittees the fire · · · · 
find it troubling that even though the government 4. The subcommittees conclude that Fed· 
clearly believed .~ere ___ existed a strong possibi~ity erallaw enforcement agents did n~t wiinten· 
of .fire, no proVJslon was made for fire fightmg tionally cause the fire. The evidence presented -· 
un1ts to be on hand, even as a precaution. If, as to the subcommittees suggests that it is highly un-
the Justice Department's Report implies, the gov- likely that Federal law enforcement officials unin· 
emment had decided in advance that it would not _tentionally caused the fires to occur. The evidence 
attempt to fight any fire that occurred (and thus demonstrates that the fires broke out at points in 
did not make provision for fire fighting units to be time· when no vehicle used by the FBI was in con· 
present at the compound), it is difficult to under· tact with the structure or had been in contact with 
stand why the FBI placed a caU for fire fighting the structure immediately prior to those points. 
units. to be. summoned to the scene immediately Because this would have been the case had these 
upon the commencement of the fire. vehicles inadvertently caused the fires to break 

E. FINDINGS CONCERNING THE FIRE out .h>: distur~ing flammable mate~als inside the 
DaVIdian residence, the subcomm1ttees conclude 

1. The evidence indicates that some of the 
Davidian• intentionally aet the fires inside 
the Davidian residence. While the evidence is 
riot dispositive, the evid·ence presented to ·the sub­
committees suggests that some of' the Davidian& 
set the fires that destroyed their residence. The 
evidence demonstrated that three distinct fireS 
began in three separate parts or the Branch 
Davidian residence within a 2 minute period on 
April 19. Additionally, the fire review team found 
that a number of accelerants were present in the 
structure, including gasoline, kerosene, and ·Colee 
man fuel, and that in at least one instance these 
accelerants contributed to the spread or the fire in 
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that it is highly unlikely that the vehicles inad· 
vertently caused the fires to occur. 

6. The FBI should have made better prep· 
aratlons to fight the rare. While it may have 
been too dangerous to fight the fire when it ini· 
tially erupted, it remains unknown as to whether 
it might have been safe for fire fighters to ap· 
proach the building at some point earlier than the 
half hour later when they were allowed access. 
While fire fighting eft"orts might. not have extin­
guished the fire, they could have delayed the 
spread or the fire or provided additional safe 
means of escape for some or the Davidians .. It also 
does not appear as though the f'BI considered ob­
taining annored fire-fighting ve~icles .. from the 
military. In any event, given the 'government's 
strong belief that a fire might take place, and its 
action in _summoning fire fighting units to the 
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scene, the subcommittees conclude that the FBI 
should have made better provision for the presence 
or fire fighting equipment as part or its overall 
plan to end the standoff. 

6. The Davidiana eould have e8caped the 
residence even after the r~re began. After the 
fire broke out on April 19, nine persons left the 
Davidian residence. This indicates that at least 
some opportunity existed for the Davidians tO safe· 
·ty leave the structure had they wanted to do so. As 
one person left the structure 21 minutes after the 
outbreak or th~. ~rs_t fire, ~ome ~eans . or _es~a.p~ . 

·-~~·· .:.·~ . . . . -..:.:-····· 
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from the residence existed for a signifia!nt period 
or time after the fire broke out. The autopsies o( 
the Davidians indicate that many of the Davidians 
were not so affected by the smoke and fumes from 
the fire that they were physically unable to leave 
the structure. Additionally, the location of the bod· 
ies of the Davidians indicates that few of the 

· Davidians actuany· at~mpted to escape the build· 
ing. In light of this evidence, -the subcommittees 
conclude that th~re was a period or. tim~ after the 
fires began· within which the l)avidians could have 

_ ~scaped the reside-nce. · 

. i 

I 
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~0';s;_;;.:~t: ~~; t~ '::_} :~ ~:2.~:: ~i',·:_t.fuP~~~~1-Y~;vs OF HON. ~LLIAM H. zELJF'~· JR· 
--__ -__ -_ . : _;·;::.: --=-~ -.. : _··. _; --~-in ;_.respons~~;_iO- eon~ms .·raised. by.-- two -nfeinoefs ~: ::·--:! arld ~-:is"5{1;8·-·a"t~i-: -~~;d. at the hearings or inter· 

~-:-_:-~:.:~;-~~;; ·;~:~'-' ~- ;·.- of_ the· _minoritY .at.th~- ~mmittee :mark-up, I want views. There ~ere _no·_surprises in these requests. 
-_- --= ~~-f·. : ,_ .. ·..... · . ,.to_ set·.--the .record s~~t regarding.- th~ el_C~nsive . _ ': ·-::.: ·S¢vet(t}li_. the ,.pre_ss_~CQnference held on the day 

---·--'--'~~, :-.:•:'- "~-- ~ '·::--~:m.a.JQrfty~~efrq_rtif:~~-~ c:ooperate·:·with : the-~_triiriority -~h~-- .-·repo~_ )vas d.i_stn_buted to Members simply 
·_-· ~ ····- :-.·~::•- --"''". ·-_-througho\i~ the entire investigative proc-ess~-,-, ,-,:· · · made· ·available ·the .recommendations of the two 

First, the subcommittees made an unprece- subcommittee chairmen to the respective sub-
dented attempt at genuine accommodation in hold· committees and committees, and the summary-
ing 10 days of inv_estigative hearings. In a conces- _well- with.in th_e_ House Rules-was made available 
sion that had no apparent precedent during prior to the minority· at the same time. Ironically, the 
Congresses, the majority accepted 90% of the wit· week prior to the business meeting, one of my 
nesses suggested by the Democrats. staffers received a call from the Justice Depart· 

. Second, minority members were invited on key ment in which the Department indicated that they 
fact-finding trips, such as to Waco itself. had received-presumably from a ~inority staff 

__ Third •. the majority shared all available docu- member or member-a copy of the whole Waco re--
.. _ _____ _ ments, set up a document room -accessible _to -~lJ ___ p~ft- For. th~--~ecord., ,tb.at ~sa clear and unequivo-

si81f,--afl4- shared -~11 indexes received ·to those doc-- _.-·cal violation of Rule .4, if any majority member had 
·- ·:· ·. . - · _ _ ~- ume_nts; ·by:_ ~ntrast the majority · subsequ~ntty··,-_: wished r.Use· i~~~ -_~l!.en asked for a chance to 

··- '-· "": _. · ..... _ :·-: -. ·:·le~imed that ·the minority :stafr;received- :an·d in ten~·-·,' ----~~carr~~l_Jacts. ihat.-might; be unclear or wrong, the 
- _·-:: ---:·_ ~~~~::.~~·_;·;-;~-~:_-,)_iona11x .. .:.~~}1elfl-- froni: majo_nty~-: s~fr·. thelt·ey"-,_,. · il~i?~riiiient. niii4.e<g~ .· ~~~h _proffer~- In fact, they 

-:~. ,,'~ ~ ':' '.~:1;.; ~ ;~j -~-,d~; ;/fre~~~-'~~P~~tnept ~dex to~nr of ~-o~~~~-~~- ,of .. ·.- .. ;. n~y~~ -~·en~-~)' C9r:rect.i_on~ whatsoever, des_Pite five 
~,._ ·:·_·~-- ~- __ • · .• -,. :, •. _ i·,; ,_;p~~~~ent,s .. ThJs::mlnC}nty tactic, -te<t ~to_ ~th~e'~unnec~ , _\"folTPW·l:l~-~lep~()ne -~Us_ ~ get fact _correcttons. 

·.: ___ :_~-'~:, .. _~~~~~-~}'(:·;~->-.:_-_es·sca.tY. !~~n4i_t~rcr-of-~~( of hchirs.~~jn:dexirig by"_·~:~,~-~---~igb_~h,,.co~p~r~tJ.o,_~ with the dep~rtments was, 
-~ ·_··:-:--·~------ ,~---·• .-thec·mruot:lty--pnor-~-to~being able·-=to use-the· doeu;··-· frankly, an exerc1se 10 extreme patience; the rna-

. - · merits they received. As another indication of the jority even had to suffer .having the Secretary of 
-, . ~- -~ __ - - -:.-: _ :_: ._difficul~ies_ the -majority facted,--two Demo.crat staff--: .. Treasury . calling Democrats and telling them not 

ers apparently met· Secretly with ·the TeXas Rang~··· io ask any embarrassing questions at the hear· 
ers and told them that they should not or did not ings. Surely, that is not the proper reaction to con-

. , _need to honor subpoenas. issued by the· majority; gre$sio_nal oversight, and it is ·not consistent with 
••• __ 

7 
• these kinds of obfuscatory. tactics during and prior _-___ President CJinton's promises of full cooperation. In 

·-· _- ---- · .... to. the_-hearlngs :di4· not enhance 'majority~iriino_iity ·:· a further example_ o( "unjustifiable manipulation, 
_ . :~- _·., ···,._co.operatiQn_._:.-.-~--- :~--~_-;· ~;:_ · .::_~ ______ : · .::.:::~~-:.-"c" '--~_'_.the~ Trea·sur)'.-Department also flew the Texas 

·-·--- ---· ·. , .. ___ ,. Fourth, ··the ·appendix-·to this··-'report'··-corisists:: . .-- · -~J:tgers··wh_Q·~~re __ going:to testify to Washington 
·. largely of documents that are in the ___ public·doiriain ··-ahead ··or time and at taxpayer expense-to brief 

· · from _the . hearings; ·or are otherwise available tO them· for 2 _,days -on -what they should say. In my 
the minority; we have never had :a request to see·· view;· there. ·can· be. little question that that action 

_ _. . .. __ _. .---- ___ -:- these documents,-.. and we· know tha~ _ ~ost w~r~ - W$§'"patep~ly offensive to both the word and spirit 
- · · -'--«- -··-- ·- · separately sent to the minority staff by the_ depart· ·; ~f cooperat!o-:t. ___ . -- ..... 

_ , _ ments .. themselves; -accordingly; · c·omplaints- about ~._·_··:.:Ninth,· the ITlajority_-has actually allowed the mi· 
:_ :; -···-:-:_:~,not seeing:the:appendix ring hono·w~ :·-. :~-:~ ; ~ :~·:~,_-.: ~:-___ -·_·n_opty_ four_ times the ·amoUnt of time normally al-

. -~ ··-- Fifth, the 10 footnotes···missing· ·rrom: the distrib- ··· -;Jowed--Bnd under House rules required-to review 
· uted·draft. are either in documents the minority al· a report prior to a business meeting. On balance, 
ready have or are merely ids or ibids to documents I believe the record will show clearly that the en· 
already once cited elsewhere in the report's other tire investigative process was conducted not only 
600 footnotes. · · patiently, inclusively, exhaustively and with an ex· 

. . . . _ _. _ _.. _ Sixth, the post-hearing . investi~ticm, ... consisted':: .. ·_: traotdinary em-phasis~ on ·cooperation, but with an 
-~--:; --·· :·-· ~:- ----_ ·_· =largely ~r ~skingJot."'documents QtaJ~the majQrjty .. :incontrovertible:" premium. _on .fairness. In fact, I 

7.:~~.~-.r::~ .... _·:-:·--~-: h~d •triady·a~k~cr_ro·r on·June 5, 1~9~;ji!1d~i!e~~~r::·-·:Jtri-~_•l,or·~-g_-·~~-(~f investiptive hearings or report 
.:';-·•::: .. --;:- ; :::; , ~ i'~~ ~. ,_.r~-~~iV~. , __ ,.f'roriL ,~}le::: dep!frtmen tS;' .-''irit~tt~~~~_rie~. ·:~ .. J" ~))~_t lt~~ ~ye~:J~i~n-~eooducted with- this level of in• 

. - .. _:-~ --~·:..:_.-~::_- _ _ :~ -·o·: __ that__ p_etf4i.ned -to:_:unans~~red ~eaiinif~'-Q4e~_tictr:rJ:~-;~:. eJ~~jye_i)·e~.--.~-~~~ration;-- or-fairness. 
--=--~-:-.--,~----.::·_:"_~--·-.::~- -- ~ -~ ... --~- ~- ::- :.; -: ->-- · · ·-"'~~,:..::-~ ~.,·_~ .. -- -~.-~:-:- · ·- ~-~-_:_.::;{..:;.-:::-:=:-~ .:;:;:;._=-·-=-·--=-,·-=::;-:.:~' · · --~- --.: · · · · ; ,,;;.. · >HoN~---WJi.iJAM H~ ZELIFF, JR. 
·-·-·~-=~ :.~: .. t.o"..,-;,_!~·.:-: . . ;:..,--;• -~~-~.;;.~~~·. ·,._~"H ••o'10o'; f ! ~~~ ";': .:z .. :~-.~ .. ·- ... - .. _:;-:·~·. ?~:-_::{:~~··i~ '!' ~ ..... :: .. ·.··:.::_~· ·. ~ ·~-;.::~·:: --~ ;;~:;-~_.;;-~~:;::.:-~~-·. :!:=~:-=-

·-. ·- .-·-·"":- ··.· -·-" ~--;-~ ·:·.:;·:·. ·...:.·.::· .. _.-..•: 
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· ~--· .... ,-:··::""< -,-~,~~:~:,_-·THE SUBMISSION. JtX HQN.: .. STEVEN SCHIFF, OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON NATIONAL 
::: ~·- ·. ;; .. -· ·- .. : ' _SECURITY, INTERNATJONAL AFFAIRS, AND C&I~!.-L JUSTICE OF THE COMMIT· 

·:··~·-:-~: .... '_'_'._"··''~-~~,-: __ , , .. :.::~TEE.ON .. GOVERNMENT REFQnM~AN.D.OVERSIGHT, OF EXTRANEOUS MATERIAL 
... ,-~;:.:~~-.':-~.>.- ·:~:·:".'~··: :~::'·P.ROYiDED' ro:HIM :BY·.HON~ -Bcnt:BARR~ 'OF. THE .. SVBCOMMI'ITEE ON CRIME OF 
·;·-:;;_~~0;~1- ·_ . '. _·.·:·· -·.:m'·coi\tM!TtEE ·oN THE ... JlJPICIAnV:.L·: ,_ ....... :<.~.-~.:._. . .. · ... -.... . . 

. . --, .. , · ~:. _ ,_ :-··~u~:~~Jf~~~~~~~~~;'t!a~~~4~k~fu· {::;s~~~~~:/i~~o:if~~~~~~:,~~ir ·~~ific respon· · _ · 
· · · Committee Of the .House .C~~mi.Uee on.· :~he:._~JUdlci~~ ·i. ~:-~:~~However;-· ·with the . pheno~~~~al growth In the 

·aey arid. the ··Subcommittee. ~n-.Nationar ~eeu~tY;-::.::· ·~power ,of. ,the· ,Federal .. Government, touching vir· 
· International Affairs, and Criminal Jus~ice, or the"'" -tually every facet o(:our l~ves~personal, business, 

House Committee on Government Reform and educational, government, religious, recreational, 
Oversight, was a painful expose or perhaps the etc.-there has developed a mentality on the part 
greatest law enforcement tragedy in American his· of law enforce~ent that they ean do anything and 
tory. Yet, it was a necessary exercise, because it not be held accountable Cor it. Along with this we 
gave those of us on the subcommittees, and all have witnessed the development or a militaristic 
Americans, the opportunity to examine why it hap- approach to domestic Jaw ·enforcement, in every· 
pened and to at least begin to implement steps to thing (rom dress (black military unifonns and bel· 

.. avoid· a recurrence or the tr~dy. It would not be mets), to equipment (annored vehic:les and mili· 
·a -significant over$~te!ll~n~ ~ describe th~ Waco tary surplus helicopters), to outlook, to execution. 

-- ~ · · · .:: -·· ·operation ·from the .. :Q:ovem·me~1t's standpoint, as .... O.ur ~rroed forces, in carrying out their mission 
·:'·'':~_-,..~:..z:·:~,· ·::."~;·:::., oneJn_:which iC~9~~~J.ng eould go wrong, it did. to .. protect and · project our national interests 
~-~=."=~-·.· i_;,.· .• ~ .• :;;The trufitrage.dyi.,_,.:virtw.tJly.~a.IJ of those mistakes : abroa~, .are: not bo~n.d by the constitutional re-

"'"'·'"':~>·-~ ~-'"''~: '.eould.bav~ .. be.en_,~yoidea:-··· L:Z · ;·.::T::·::· be ~Y,)i',';:,~ ~~~~ts,pl~-~¢,4.o"n.·d9..~~st~e J~~ enforcement. This 
_-., <-.: ... --"·~- ~X' .• near_~y 2 weeks or hearln·gsti-:the; .. s~;:·. ,_reflects the:·_signi_ficant' differences between con· 

. ·. ~:-.:·· :" ':_: .·5 :·:~= ·::~:eom.mitfeei 
0 

'elose.d} .down the proceedinp' 1 ~nd <~··. :, d~~ing., ~o.m~.~~ic·iaw: eriforceni.~nt operations, and 
· · · .... _. ,., , .. , '· ~" ;-~; .. ·; ~oved; .~~; tRr;~.~er, }~u.si.~es~~. _Now,<over.::.J~~Y:_e!lr -.~--~ :_:e~ndij~ti~g'jva.f(af~:" ove~~eas. In a war situation, 

"later, we have··.a-repon:--Whn~· the repott.·.C9~tains .. : ~-.~~ija_n.rted--forces_ d()" ri"of.·~d. sh()uld not have to . 
.. . . .. .. . ... _ ·:, __ many condu,sions that I believe are accurate and:··.-. give:~··Mirlirida~·= ~warnings ,·before shooting the 

·- -·appropriate, along -with sev~raJ important rec- enemy; they need .. not have "probable cause• before 
_ ommendations, it fails to address several ex- an attack . ..: Domestically, our Jaw enforcement offi· 

tremely important.matters that came to light dur- eers must do these things. 
ing the hearings and which deserve Car more scru- · Unfortunately, we saw in the Waco tragedy one 

. tiny than" a~¢orde"d h-eretofore.- . . . . . . logical result of the blurring or lines between do-
. .I w9uld hop~-that iri_.the next Congre·ss, 'folJovnip:- . -~~tic ·law enfor·cement: and._militaey operations: 
·Ji~ngs are-he14;'~d·legislative m.~as~~~.intro· an operaticH'i·earried out· pursuant to a strategy de-
du-ced and- ·passed~ ·Avoiding·. trat¢4i~s _.'such· __ ·,~s - signed to--demolish an.:~eoemy,~. utilizing tactics de­

- '·.· :· :·• Waco ought to be a ·top priority for the -CO~gress·:, - signed to cut off·avenues· or escape, drive an enemy 
. · .. ,. aiid the adminiStration; · .: -· · - ·: --- -:.. out, and run roughshod ove~ the •niceties" of ear· 

. . . ... · . ~,: ..;_ ___ ,:_ __ , . Rather .th~. r~peat aU the conclusions· and· ree; · ... ing for the· rights or .those_ involved. The protesta· 
· . · . .,-.-~--~·. ~-= -··-· ... -~ ommeijdations or the ---repart, many or- which 1- ·.·. tions of the Attorney General to the contrary, that 

.· _ ... ·. . . . - . agree with. (es}:)edilly those .·concerning the' ·ATF-.~ ..... she .authorized the injection oC debilitating CS gas 
______ .:--·-~-·the-Treasury Department faiJure.tO monitor,·· and-··· -intG~·closed_. interior_. qua~~- with no ventilation 

. ~ _. . ·the- decisiorimaking at -~e FBI and the top_ -levels where dozens or _women , ana children were con· 
.. . ·of the Justice DeP8rtni"ent); ·I will n~~ those· 'with-': .· .. centrated, · ou_~ _of concern for the children. do not 

which I have serious disagreement, _from my per· ' match· the .Government's. actions. While the report 
speetive as a Crime Subcommittee member, as a reflects this view to some extent, I believe very 
former U.S. attorney, and as a citizen deeply con- finn steps must be taken to •demilitarize" Federal 

.""".--..;::c.~---·· . . .. . _eerned with the militarization of domestic law en· domestic law enforcement, through substantive 
,~:.:. ,~=·: ,:.:..rr:·:.- .. , ···~ ·:(orc~nfent an.c[-the' lack of: accountability by Fed· legislation and funding restrictions. 

ii:il~~ffl;E~Iiii~!~~i~~~~~~I:~i1i\~ltii[~t~~i;~~~ 
· .. ~-.:=~~-:--.~:.- ....... "_ ~~r:._CO~~~tu~~ ··:Th~se . p~cJplea::underbe·,_.~VJr•. ·-· . .f.9.r~~~~~:.ag~n~~~~-~.J'l .. ~ftt~r,to o~tain ~1uhtary as· 

·· · tually everytltlrijt"illey-·dcf iif'their: capaeity-.-as, ~m-. sistance without- paying: Cor it, my concerns ·go 
eers sworn to protect our citizens; and they limit deeper. . · 

.-.. ~ 
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I seriously question 'the role or JT1i.litary officers dence. (On a related issue, I also believe fUrther 
being involved in strategy sessions, on sight •ob· study ought to be made, and additional evidence 
servers" and the presence of foreign military ·per· examined, concerning the cause or the explosion 
sonnel, and the use or military equipment such as that occurred during the fire on April 19.) 

. · .... · .... , ._· _ __. annored vehicles. Contrary to the conclusion of the 
.'··· ... --~- :· ':· .. :·. ··.c·report,-,l·am:riot .. C9ilvin·ced that the-·separation··be;·"'·::--~. . ..... · ~ ~s~_~f CS GAS 

-~.:i:::-;:_· ·- --~~-::·~ .. :-.. ~ .. ~· ' .. · " .. ~:-.. tween.: mil~t.a~-- ope!a~io,~s ail.d ·do~~~tic _ la~ en·~~·.::·-.:. -~e·. Govem.ment;s use of 9s gas in ~he m~ner 
:;_~ ... -;-·:· · .. -:·:~-=·: ::; =·~.-· force"!en~ ... ~~~di_ed, m_:t~e u.s ... .c~~ s·,"~.osse_ Com~ ... It ~~~ ,_th~t: IS, clearly_ destgned to mcapacttate 

__ :::. .•:-~---· .-=-·- : ... :: ... ·.:ltatus.~proVISlOns;·-was:~~ot VIOlated: m the Waco ·. men .. women and .. children in a confined. 

-_·-.:.~r~~,~~:~~:l'_t::~.r.~:~:':~~~~~·~i~~,o=-~-~~~~::: :.:~~- '~~Ei!~t~:~~:~{ ;~:~~::~~r!:t!~ 
':~ . . -... "':.~~.,,~ .. _;;:~: ,_,·:-::-·.··:,During· the questioning· or---~tomer--~n_e~~l __ ~:·:~~~·~!'d espeCiiiliy.·AttOmey Ge11eral Reno "bought 

··: .. : ... __ ·.-:~.,c:.: •.. c:.. ~- ~·::_l_ten9 ~n .. ~_t~eJ!l.S~ day· of the heanngs, .1 -asked her·-·'~ into" the conclusory and simplistic analyses that 
· wha~ speofic _st:eps h!l~}>~_en taken by _th~-- Govern· _the. use of .. Cs··gas posed an •acceptable" level or 

ment to ensure th~t another Waco .. would ·not risk. 
· ·· r~cur. The o~ly spec1fic step the At~mey General · The· fact· is, while ~perts may-and did-differ 

Cited to me m response to !flY question, was that over thf! precise effects of CS gas on children, or 
the "Hostage Rescue Teams (HRT's) had been ex· how and in what ways the use of CS gas might act 
panded. The .report agrees that HRT's should be as a catalyst for a fire, no rational person can con-
expanded.~ disagree. , , elude that the use of CS gas under any cir· 

In my VIew, based .on the ~aco lnctdent (and cumstances against children, would do anything 
others), part of th~ problem IS ~e HRT's them· other than cause- extreme physical problems and 
~elv~s; they are f!hed ~n too heaVIly, and are used possibly death. 

__ ~n ... ~•_r~m_stances m wh1ch no hostages are pres~nt, For the Government or this country to con-
.. · ·- -- · --- · or .wh1ch _do. not lend themselves to HRT tacttcs.- ..... ,.·.· ·1·· ".:.-- .... ·cs· ·--, ... ·-·'·· · h · did ·1 

. .. -- · ... ' · .. -- ·Rath ·r than ex an-d'n·g the · · an_·d· _f HRT' sc1ous y use gas 'n t e way 1t on Apn 19, . . . . . . .. . e P •- size use o s, . 1993 . W . . I . d fi ibl d h ld 
· ~;-~:: '.::, ... ;_.::-;.:'.·.:.<; :··":;_-:,f ... beJieve· .. ·the)'-"·:ougflt ~tO.".' be ·:mc)re :· · refull .. ·cir•.. ·:_ .. -~ .m .... ~CO IS Ut~r Y.-- 10 e enst e an. S OU 

:·-- - ,·. ·'· ... •.::-r.-: ... -.. .,...,.,.,,,. ·::~c:{1!~~-T'!lt''d , ... d. t~·i)8 ~-·_,_ .. _., Y.':;J ....... never be allowed to be repeated. I beheve the 
. ·:~·':,':': ~·,,;-.:::,'~::.:~.~~ ·• :::·:·.~-~~::·::.:: ':·~~·~.:~R ~-.;.:.Sf.,, sea: .. ~. , __ p_ ·:. :·; .. : ·. ·. deaths of_d9.Z~~s .. of men, _women and children can 
. <'_:· -',_ ~-,~.:· ... ,.,..,;;'i--,~il"!~' ('f~!.c,::·~;:FLil't T~'.ANtfWHAT THEY Sab\vr::-~; :_:[ ~~-~~'b_E(d~t~.c~ly'iili<l:'indirectJx)lttributable to the use of 
·--~·~~- · <:_~! h,~d -:!:-.:s_~:;·u::Fo~ani~·:~ki~g-~l~~~ed ~(i'~r: ;cF.LHi{~~~s:-.'~.:~~~~J-~~.~~i.~:~~·-Vi:~Yti.t·~~:~~injected by the FBI. 

· · • - c·- , ,,~ ; ·:;!~~t;~ao~~e~en~~g ea:~~asc-feia~r~f;:;~~l.~:H~i~:r\·~r,t~~r~~!!'r ~S :a~: sft'.!ti:~/?~ 
..... · ;; .. , -~---.· · . Davidian compound on the".day _of t.beJ~n~l .. a:~sa~lt. whtch chtldren or the elderly are present or are 

Portions of the FLIR tapes were shown at the the targets. 
hearings; these were under the control of the Gov· THE FIRE 
emmenl or. course, the . Government used the 0 • 

·: . ' -~- ··: tape$ to but~re~S its ~rgum~nts __ th!lt no.·shots were . \l(lul~ .. t~e._ ~epo~ _ ~n.c_ludes that the evidence 
· · .. ·:-~·~~~~~-~=-.-;_.:~fired .o.~.~-APriL~9~(the.:day of ~h~ .. :~ss~:Ulf.on· the ·:·-- .. -~'early -~s~bl~s~es_ .t.ha~ the. ~re that eventually 
..... . .. - ·· ..... ·- .·· coinpci\uld). ffe>.m-.-.-outside ... ~ the·. CO:mpoWI_d_jntO: the.= -~~~~o~.~~m~~-- .th~_ .. Brar~ch :· ~a~dtan st~cture was 
· · · · .. · ... ·"'-compound,. ~d. that. _the fire that destroyed. tl):e . s~~ted __ ~ns1~~ ·by th~ .D!lVldtans, I thmk that the 

.. compoUnd_ was not started from. the. outsid~ or 'by most that C8!' ~ · sa1d IS th&:t ~e. fire rna>: have 
· ~ .. - the Government vehicles. , · . · · . . --. · _.. - · · · · b~n .. S.~~d mstde, ~nd, e_ven 1f 1t did, the eVIdence 

.. _;: _ .· .. Giv:en .. the . severe .limitations on :ques.iioning by · . ~~-~t Jt ~a~ .. ~_elil?erately _ se~ !s. inconclusive. I be-
-~.:.::·.~ :~.:--='.~!_q}xQmmi~~~~Ulernbe~; .and th~ inability t9. truly .. }~~~e _th~re. IS_}ll$o.t~~ po~~1b1hty that the fire, or 

. . -~-~ ... · ·review and _analyze ·the ·Govemiiierit'~~-evidence, 1 ... _~--:!.t.J~!l~_t_·_-~o~e. ~r-~~ ~~~s:--ll!ay have been caused 
,. ·:· ..... : ... do not agree with -the. conclusiorii .. in the ·repoit · ·as .. ~ r~s~l~ ~r_tlie ~emohsh1.ng effo~ or th~ ar-

.... . . · .... ::~,_.·that .the evidence .. clf!arly establishes the .. GOvern- .. · more~.: ml11~ry veh1cle~. w:h.•le_ there 11 no direct 
· ..... ..... · ment's .. position on these Issues. :~-: - .. , - ' ·.- ..... ·-·-· evidence·that_,the fire was started from the out-

On further examination or FLIR tapes, after the side, further study (of _the FLIR tapes, for exam· 
hearings, and in discussions. with private parties ple) ought to be conducted. 
who have reviewed the tapes, I believe sufficient 
questions have been raised to warrant further 
study o( these two issues: were there shots· fired 
from ·outside: the:_compoJind in'to the compound on 
April · 19th, and· were . the fires . started-in ten· · 
tionally or unintentionally-by the armored mili· 
tary vehicles or personnel therein? 

Unlike the .report,- I do not dismiss out or hand 
the ciVilian analyses or these tapes and other. evi· 
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EscAPE 

The report concludes that there was opportunity 
for the Davidians to escape. While obviously this is 
true-a handful did escape the maelstrom-! eon-· .... 
elude there was no opportunity for the vast ·major-
ity or the Davidians to have_ any hope of escape, 
because of the Government's tactics the morning or 
the 19th of April. · 
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Essentially, the use of the annored vehicles, me- recti that interviews are to stop because excuJ. 
thodically smashing down portions of the bui1ding, patory statements may be generated. 
eutting off avenues of escape (for example, smash- This pattern of activity to deliberately avoid col-

-- ing_ the .walls_ down to_ ~-v_er d.t~ ".e~cap.e• .ha.tch to lection of relevant evidence, because it might tend 
·: .---~~.:. "_": :-~~-~ ·.-.:-·th~_--.tunn~J ~ut:-~f-.the,.m~ .f.~ddingJ., tntimJdated-. .-... _to estal>Jisb a· perso~'s._ i~no_c.ence,~or, as is appar­

-· .. : .. ".: .:.:·-' ~~:·:-:.:.: __ the ~nbab1tants 1nto seeking ._.safety" -tn the one,;.s~: · '·ent _from other docum.ent~, -might embarrass the 
. ---·----·--· ---- :- eure_part.of.the.;s~~~~-~ CtJ:l_e_conCT~te ~unke.-r an · .- ATF, raises- very_tro~ling ,_questions to say the 

. . the cen~r).· W~th _mas.SlV! quantiti~s of cs- gas ---,.o Jeast,--about-the interests of the Government in es-
... · · ... :~--~ :.-. -..... p~mp~d m~ thJs ar.ea, tt VJ~ly ~1'~-~d tJ:tat tablishin~ .th_e_ ~-~~. ~d in seeing that justice .is 

··- · ... : mos~ .. mhab~tants woul.d ~ J!le&pac.l~ted, whach _done. Neather goal woUld be met under the or-
they were, ~d. they. die.d Ill,. 11!~ ensumg_ fire be- · cum stances evidenced by these documents. That 

· -cause of the 1ncapac1tating. e~~s of the CS gas · . d' · th -
and the cutting off ()f escape ·routes. . the Department of Justice casual_ly asm1sses ese 

· · -.. . · concerns should be of concern to the Congress and 
BREACH OF E11-IICS.AND POSSIBLE 0BSTRUCfiON to the people ofthis country. 

One area of inquiry which I pursued during the COMMITTEE RULES AND REsnucr~oNS 
hearings involved what clearly a.re breaches of eth­
ics, and p<)ssible obstruction of justice by Govern­
ment attorneys and investigators. This aspect of 
the hearings is completely overlooked by the re· 
port. Government documents clearly show delib· 
erate efforts by Government atto.meys to stop the 
collection of evidence and possibly cover up evi­
dence the Government did not want to be available 
later on. While the Department of Justice went so 
far as to issue a news release during the hearings, 
to refute my conclusions, I consider it extremely 

·.:serious; especially when considered with evidence 
that two of the ATF agents first disciplined and 
fired and then later reinstated and records sealed, 

--- --::· --- to rai_~e :very--troubling questions of etbjcal ~ola-
. ·· tions at best and obstruction at. worst. Attorneys-~ 

who testified at the hearings also raised serious ... 
concerns about the attitude and policies reflected 

The · procedures under which these hearings 
were conducted did not lend themselves to ade­
quate inquiry. Important evidence was not avail­
able because of tactics by the Government and mi­
nority members of the subcommittees to keep evi­
dence out of our hands; such as the weapons taken 
by the Government from the burned Davidian 
compound. We were never able to test the weapons 
to establish whether they were in fact unlawful 
weapons as the Government .charged (which pro­
vided a primary justification for the Government's 
initial action against . Koresh an~ the Branch 
Davidians). · · · 

The . method of questioning employed-in S. 
minute increments~ alternating back and forth be-. 
tween majority and minority-with no comity from 
the minority to provide both sides with longer pe­
riods within which to question, lent itself to a sce­
nario whereby savvy witness (most Government 
witnesses are very familiar with how to answer 
questions and stall so as· to use up large segments 
of the questioner's time) were able, time and 
again, to minimize or completely neutralize the 
member's ability to obtain answers to questions. 

.... ~ - ';,•, -:·.-, •... --: . 

in these documents. 
Documents eXplicitly showed that "DOJ [Depart­

ment of Justice] does not want Treasury to con· 
duct any inteTViews •.• (that might] ·generate 
~ • • material or oral statements which could be 
used for impeachment" of Government witnesses, 
and that hopefu1Jy if such material is not gath- . 
ered, "the passage of time will dim memories. • 

· (Memorandum from Treasury Assistant General 
Counsel for Enforcement, dated April 14, 1993.) 

Earlier, on March 1, 1993, in interview notes, 
the ATFs initial "shooting review• of the February 
28, 1993 initial assault at which time ATF agents 
fired their weapons, the ATF is advised to "stop 
the ATF shooting review because ATF was creat­
ing Brady material.• (Note: •srady• material is 
evidence that would tend to establish innocence or 
which could be used in mitigation of guilt.) 

In handwritten notes, taken at some point dur­
ing the siege, Government attorney Ray Jahn di· 

-;-•,; --=-:.:;· .. 

.. ..... .... :-~ ... 
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Starting out at the mercy of the minority to con· 
trol and minimize the majority's ability to effec· 
tively question and elicit timely, forthcoming and 
nondilatory responses, set the stage for hearings 
much less productive than these could have been. 
Some exploration of instituting other methods or 

_conducting investigative hearings ought to be ex­
plored. Moreover, many witnesses who simply did 
not answer members' questions, were allowed to 
escape with dilatory or nonresponsive i.actics; 
which again limited the productivity of the hear· 
ings. 
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CONCWSIONS mo~e accountable Federal law enforcement. How.· 
ever, that follow up has not yet occurred, and 

Despite the severe limitations in procedure, and many troubling questions, some going to the very 
the other · matters noted above, these hearings integrity of the Government's actions and person· 
were extremely valuable; perhaps histori~. They nel, remain. These hearings in June 1995 should 

. ·resulted in very important evidence whi~~,-1(prop- .. be viewed. riot ·as the conclusion or the efforts by 
__ ;-:_-_ ~-~.:.-~ ~rly followed-up, can help establish, throu~ laws/·:-'-~-the:· Congress· t~ ·getj~ the bottom of the Waco 
.:: . __ -. regulations, :and- pr:ocedures, mo~e- effective and·.~---- ·tragedy,.J:>1Jt th~_beginmng of that process. ._ 

.. __ , _· -.• _, "' . - ... : __ .:;.. -.---,, :---.:~; .:: .. -..... _:::i;_ .•. ·.?: ... '-~-~.'~;' -~ . :' ~~-:: ~---~;_._ -·-. . .. .. HON. STEVEN SCHIFF. 
-~-~= ·.··=-~~-~~;;· •. ::-~··.-.:.:-.:-;-:_:_ ;::.;~. ~·· .. - .;·: ;~;.-_ ,;..~;.. · ... :..::.'..··· .:·· 

-· -.:.::.~;:.:~ ... ~-- ··~--"':_::---:;-:_::. -;.~_ ... ,.:...~ ":J' .... - .. •·:..·.-:. --: --.--~· •.• -.- ,-,_~:::~~- . .=--:.:·· •.. ·; • .:::-·~~ --

;~---~- . ~~:.:. :_:3;._=~- -:-: .... --.-:---.:·-::; :.~ ·- :-·-· ~-= ;-. .. :~--=·: ·: .:::::::·.: :_::;·- ....... >; 

- -·. ··---·--· ... 
.: r .. • 

• . .o;·-.-:a:.-.'!:;o· 

:: ·. ·. :.·--· ... :: ~=- -··· 

. . ; .. ·;.: ...... 

. . ... --·- ~·- ·. -:-. .-·. ;, 1.-.:·: 

~--;;:--i:-~. ;;._. =--~: -:v:·::·:~:·~--:-.~.~· ~--:~-

·,•,···:..· 

, 
lS(~~; .:~~ ~ :·.l 

.... _ ..... . : ...... . ::---· \.-•.:. .. ·-
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.. Such assistance may not involve DOD personnel in guard unit is "federalized," law enforcement ae-
a direct role· in law enforcement operations, except tions taken pursuant to that status are governed 
in specific and narrowly drawn circumstances. by the provisions of the Posse Comitatus AcL 

The Department of Defense provided minor non- The Texas and Alabama Air National Guard 
_ . reimbursable assistance to the. ATF in. connee~ion. _ . un.its provided pre~raid assistance by conducting 

. - --· . _with :the events .•t: Wa.~. Under.1Q U.S,C;.-:,3.71 and.-.- ... aerial' :. ·recormaissance .... :~~to .... photograph the 
:.: :_. 32 U.S.C. 112,.-the _Se~~tary of PefenseJ$ .. "~~-or::_· .. compound. They conducted. slx flights over the 

-_ _.- :- , ·-'-::;·Jzed·-to_.-profide_-:.!lli_litarr.~aupport_-.to J.a~-=-~.~:tf~rce~.-- .. compound ·and .the facility ,k.~Qwn as the M)fag 
. . -· .-. -.··:··- ment agepCJes engaged_m -~unte~ ~ o~ratlons._ -.. ·:Bag"·: .from_. January .6 .through :February 25, 1993. 

:.::.'~:::,_: __ : .. -.--_.: ·.;~;The:"Se~ft!~IY-~CDe{e_n,c~~ 11. !lut~_onzecL~ "~y_.for.:: ·ln:::·addition_.:.to. the .reconnaissance flights, the 
.·:·.- ;-.. .::·::;~: ·:.·.-:: .:~_~_.:.the.~_UPPQrt,~IP".s.~n~,to.8ecUon;_;1004 o(P!4 ... 1~1~:,.,.: .Te~~ .. NationaJ Guard ·supplied three helicopters 

_'-·'"-<· - .. ·.·-':; .. ~_510,.·$e~lon~.l.O~;~(J'.~-J02,-;_~~. 8.1!!1· ~-~~tio~ _;_for .. traioi!lg ex~~ises-::op ... ~~b~ry- 27 and for the 
_ · ._ . _,, ... - . ..l~l._of..r..~_JO~~~ .. -}f:a .. Cinlg nexus -~oes not ~--_raid on the.follo_wing day~·~, ... -... :..<:, · 

-~-:: · ~- extst,:-.t.he ~on.omy __ ~ ~res .. ~at as_._" ge~e!~J ... _,·:--; In ·sum, ·there is no evidence. ~ suggest that the 
.. matter,·:· retm~\lrsement . ~~ requ_1red w~en_~ eq~p- ... :Posse . Comitatus Act was violated by the Depart· 
. ment or sei'Vlces are proVIded to agen~es. outsade - ment of Defense. Additionally, the National Guard 
the ~partme~t of Defen~ .. ~ exception may be units utilized by the ATF were not in a Cf'ederal· 
made it ~ere ts some trainmg value to the DOD ized" status and therefore were not subject to the 
personnel 1nvolyed. - • - proscriptions of the act. 

In the planmng stages of the nud, the ATF re-
quested Special Forces assistance from the Depart· VII. DESPITE INADEQUATE INTELUCENCE OPER· 
ment of Defense. This request was forwarded ATJONS, ATF DID NOT PREMATURELY REJECT nn: 
through Operation Alliance and Joint Task Force SIEGE OPJ'ION 

6. The initial request raised legal questions with We disagree wit.h the m8J'orit'"'s findings. that 
·Special Forces attorneys regarding the permissible 'J 

.. scope of assistance. Specifically, Special.Forces:At- the primary reason that the dynamic entry route 
... :, __ , ·_· ·. · tomeys. were concerned with the proposal for DoD -wa~ chosen '_vas~ be·cause··ATF d~d. not have the ex· 

...... ~- ~ ... '.: .. ::~_,_:-:::·-~;~ .. ,re~e~ Q.t~/{fF:_~~~,~ -~~-~- -~d penQ.~, .. :~m_-:_,~te:·_,· _P~~~~ce,. ne~t1~tors: _or ca~ab1hty to conduct a 
· -~-:' ~---.. --::: ·<~:: _· ·u1edical eme~eneyr:ierVices: 'A.Cteding ,to. .such .a, re•: ·: ~- ~u~ge_ of_ any stgm~~c~t _duration~ 
· --~: '· __ ,, -··· ' ·' ·: :-l·d· ··h.:.:--. ·1·· 1 . ·• 1· ted th · ·p· ·- · c· - :: ·:··:··Once :ATF.agen.ts concluded that there was prob-

. ~i~:_:~-~-'-.:~_-' ,~·:_:_~-~-~~~;.~Ad;;:·.J~riaca:~~;~:h~~tirig tbe~~~~i~~; · ~~:::~~~,~~~~usftO··~w~~,-~ary-tints~:~ search the prem·. 
-~~! ~,-- ~ !' ·-• .. ·:~·~<')~~Cipa_tio~:-J~ '~vili~ ;·Jaw. enforcement.; :ac:t_i.vi~·. . :: ~~~~-c ~ ~~- '-~rrest __ -~~~-s~, -at~en tton tum:d to the 
:· ·::· · :·-· -_:: .: .... ~i~-~-·-- ~erefor~,-- f.li~· lnitial ~quest ..-.w.~~·:;_sigt)jfi._ ~--"'~ exe~tlon of ~?s~ .. -~~.trant$. ·'111ree options were 

cantly scaled back and limited.t(fthe facilitation of constdered ·(1) arrest_ Koresh away from the ---.. 
ATF training. The military did not offer any train- compound and then se.rve the warrants; (2) place 

' Ing involving the specific details of the raid plan or . the compound ~der s1ege a'!d (3) serve the war· 
any advice· concerning the accomplishment of ~e · rants by "dyna~nc entry or ra1d.• 

. mission. Special forces provided assistance limited The first option to arrest Koresh awa~ from the 
_ ·. -~ f~cil~ts:ting ATF training at Fort Hood. This in- compound fo!lowed .by a subsequent .seTVle~ of war· 

_ eluded helping to construct models of, the doors ... r~mts was r~Je~te_d a!\.er car.ef~l constderation. Con· 
~·and .. Windows···of the compound;·. ereatmg a scbe· . ·. trary to the majority's ~ssertion, the ATF explored 

,.,... iriatic"protOtype~of'the compound's extenor;'::operat· .. ~he possibility or arr_esting_ Koresh away from the 
ing.firing·ranges- for weaPc>ns practice and provid·.· ··compound. However,- there are two problems with 

-:ing limited ·training in· emergency DJedi~l_ assist- __ this. asserti~n. The fir$:t problem is that it ignores 
·ance. Additionally, it should be noted that t;here is · - the fact that a laWfut··search warrant had to be 

.· : . ~-: .. ~ ·no evidence to. suggest that Department 9f. ])~f~ns~ . - served ~or, the p.rernises, There_ is no reason to be-
. .. -· · -.-personn·er werif present· at the· time of_ t.he .. raid __ 9r:.-... .- . lieve . that the Davidiaris in ~e compound would 

---- -- <: -:;: ··at any time· during the --sieg~ --:-,:.: · .-.- . · not_ have :·reacted ·in. the .same manner had the 
Federal courts have concluded that the National ~search warrant been served without Koresh on the 

.. -- _Guard is ·a State force ·which is not subjeet_·_to_ the'·.·: _premises or .a.tte~p~d .. to de~troy evidence if time 
restrictions of the Posse Corilitatus Act, except elapsed between· Koresh's ·arrest and the execution 
when called into Federal service, (United States v. of the search warranL Second, as of February 1993 
Benish, 5 F.3d 20 (1993). While in State militia the ATF had conducted several hundred raids ol 
status, the range or pennissible activities are gov- this kind. There had only been one cue involving 
emed by the laws and constitutions of .. the respec- prolonged armed resistance. Moreover, Koresb had 

· _ · · ... ··:-_.:.. ::~ tive_ .$~~s;_ .. ~.owever, ..it -is, po_s~ible for _a Ji"tional __ ·:::·.~Pr~~~~s: ~cou~ter~ ·with -the. State officials, police 
-.~ .. -~:-~:~=· ~-- --~~:--:-:.~~:.:: :;i.~-~Giiaid:·unit=::to beeo~e a·. Fede.raJ Ia w::en'-Q_~e.ment·~- -~ a~tliorities arid- -Ui.e ~judicial. -~s~m. During these 

. · :·.;~· ~:- ; ... ::;;:,~~ :. ~-~:·.:·"·entity/A :S~~L~ational. GUard. ·Unjt.;_ if. ;"fed.~-~-t~·~?~:·:. ,pi~vj:Q#(e~-co~Wit.ers;· ;Ki:)res)i, iiid not react violently 
. .· . ---- ·,; :~~·7.;~~j¥h.if:.itjf.:~~lled-::into_ ·aemce ~byo ~e,;·Pr.esj~~~~:-.tO. s~arches 0~ seiii~---9fprocess. Therefore, neither 
· ~ff==~' -~~::f.~: __ ~d~t::t.O iuppres,--~_dom~stic.-.violen·ce or.··ins~.c~o~-~ ·)}le~~iii~o/s)li~~ty·jl~r ~resh's personal history 
··:. ~-~, :-~:-;_,--=~:.-~::·:~st. a State governme~t:or~the authority,_o(_~e:>··:::>ie.J4.e4 ~yJr:a(o~ti~ll. ~at~ould tend ~ indi· 

~ · · Umted States ·(10 U..S.C. 331-333). \V_hen~a State --:5:~~ca~,~--~olen~ reaction,. I~ is· pure speculat1on for 
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the majority to argue that Koresh could have been Additionally, it should be noted that prior to the 
arrested away from the compound. hearing, majority subcommittee stafF spent several 

As acknowledged in the Treasury report, ATF days in Waco to gather facts and interview pro-
failed to. collect sufficient information to determine spective witnesses. It should be noted that in bear· 

. ,:- -: ~-- =·- c~ ·: :-.-: .•• ::" • whether-:· an _off-premises arrest-- of· Koresh could ·. ings that las~~- 10 days and had over 90 wit· 
.. _ . _ ______ ... .. __ .. -have been· achieved. The ATF ·raid planrie·rs made ·- · ·nesse·s,· ~o 'witn_ess~s; who were not members of the 
.. ·_ ·_ · :'::-.-:-·-::·:·.--- .. _ _. :_··--serious:.mistakes ·in· the, intelligence· gathering· op~--- · Branch- DaYidi&ns-·=or'·=~ lawyers for the Branch 

--~::-- _: . -: · _. -"-~:::-'~:~-.: ·:-·:.- --: erations conducted·:·pri~r to ~Ef ~d~ :_Succe-ssful in:.--:-~-Dayi~a:ns·.~~~r~ ,,P~od!Jc~d ~ testify supporting the 
.. ,. ·:. _, . .:-.~-:-____ :::._{.-::.-:~_-. -·-:_telligeilce-~operation~~--requir_~---.·-~e,-d~v~~op·J1lent·~~f __ -_-- maJ~r:tt.Ys_p~e~.~n_t co~tention that Koresh left the. 
--; -,_ - ·--:-····"·;::~·----~_:>:= ::.-.·adequate-~and -ac~~te~-informatip.n}~~at·-informa;,; ,. · compound Wlth suffiaen~ frequency to affect an ar-
- _ · - . -· .. , --.: ; . ~ .·'-~::.:::· tion· _must ·be distnbUt.ed tO p·ers~6ns-in the organi- rest away ~m the premtses. 

· -- .. -- -~:--- .-~-"·=;:zatiorHll --hi_erarchy ·w~()'-"are able to __ !'_~oiD.'liz~-~the :::.~:. :.,, ~~ .~Rt~~_.!n .~h~_,Treasu.ry report and by seve~al 
: -- _ . ·:~ ·-'~ .. _; -.:· f • :-. :·mea_nirig and limitation_s _of that iof()nn_~~on./- -._: _ .. ""'.::.::.·. "-· Wl~_~s~~s,_ -~- ~~~~ge w~ reJected beca}lse of a bel~er 

- -- -___ -:: ,.. ____ -.-- . ·_-~---~-~-On· Janual')' 11,1993;- the ATF ~gan -~- ~der~ · .. that any prot~~-~t_ed .e.:ncolll!ter Wlth a ~eaVlly 
cover operation- i~ a ·house across the-~ niad- ·rro:m " _armed- and ·-_J)li•losop~1ca1ly tsolated and m~lar 
the Branch DaVidian· compound. The agents ·in· group would n?t .be .hkely to produce an optimal 
volved were given the cover of being students at a result. .The maJonty mcorrectly concludes that the 
local technical college. However, from the begin· dynamtc entry ~l?proach was premature)? aban-
ning several neighbors became suspicious of the doned. The d~tsJon to p~rsue a dynamic entry 
their activities because the agents appeared too was made dunng a meetmg that too~ place be· 
old to attend the college and the cars they drove tween January 27:29, 1993 after surv~tllance and 
were too new to belong to students. However, even unde~cover _operatJ~ns had begun. P.nor to .that 
·r the "cover stories" used by the agents had been m~tmg a stege opt1on. w_a.s under ~cttve consJder-
1 1 th · h d . atton as was the poss1b1hty of lunng Koresh off 
s~cc~ss~ , e operations of t e un e~over mves- the compound. The Treasury report noted that the 

. tJgatJo_n Itself were .abysmal. They f8ll~4 to .keep - -.-surveillance operations could have been better co­
- accurate l.ogs and f8lled to tu~ .over the av8llable ordinated and intelligence .. better utilized in mak· 

.:-_=.:-= };_:-~f:·:: -~ :~- ::.~ ~C)g~. -~ r~d plan~ers .. ~o_we~~r. ~:.t _s~o~d -~-.noted - ing ~his tactical decision. While the Treasury re-
- _. ,-:. _ -.-.-- tJ:'~t ~.e ~Cf7!l.~~were gt_Yen ht~-~~-~f~y:mea~m~l, _: T:poi"t coneludetf'that the-process used to decide that 

· ..•• ~.·~:·:~,~~-~:-- -~ -: ._,. _.1 di~~~-~n ~ fiOlll,_;th~. ~~P. pl~~e~~ e;~~~r~~~ .~d a dynamic entry should be undertaken was flawed, 
·_.·-.:~-.':'- :.··_·:'·.~ .. :·:.; ~" .. _C~oJ~.~~~!l:~--~~~~~or~~ ~thout ~·P~$1~~~ ,~l;p~~~~~ --:_.·'a siege. option-.-presented its own risks of failure. - ... _ ···;-:- .. _ :-_ f!~~ ~e·~.~peno_rs,.the_ agen~ ~~-r:'~.!ll,"'~~t:_de_~: .:_;Four of-the five indep-e-ndent reviewers who ad· 

-- · -- :-- ~: -~-· -_· --. tmed to-.fa1l. Al~hough ~ent &.~ngu~~.,Rb~1.1~-~~JL;- dressed-:ihe"'·~-issue~=found· that the dynamic entry 
good deal of relevant and . r~hable mformat1on ·plan ceuld:-nave beeri ·successful if surprise had not 
about --~9~~sJL ~d: _the ... DaV1d1ans, those agents been lost. · 
charged with the responsibility of-. surveilla~ce --- -·- ----~ .. -.--·--:-c.> .. _ -

were poorly. served by raid planners Sarabyn and VIII. TREASURY DEPARTMENT OFFICIALS SHOULD 
Chojanacki. HAVE TAKEN A MoRE AcriVE RoLE IN RAm 

Because._ of_ this inadequate supervision, the sur· PLANNING · · 
.. _ .. -- "·ve~~llan~Ef._~p~ration was not ab_le_ to detennine the . . . We "dis'agree with. 'the majority's assertion that 

... , . _ " .. ~ ,-.. -. -~~q~~~ __ cy ___ ~f... -_Ko.res~~s" dep!lt:t'!-res .fro~ -_ the·-·-·'_: officials ·:at· the Treasuf)i-Department should have 
_ . compound, the-. ro~tme ac.bVJttes_ -~.thm ·-the .... taken a more active role in pre-raid planning. The 
_ _ comP.ound ~.r oth~r. mformati~n th~t. m1gh~ have -majority s~ems lO"forget that prior to President 

been useful m dectdlf!g ~e opti~al time, place and · .. Clinton and S_ecr~taJ')' Bentsen's order, the Bureau 
manner to effect s~l"Vlce of the warrants. ·of Alcohol TobaccO and ·Firearms exercised in de· 

_. · .:: .}~o~eyer,. ~ed_,_or( t~~. sca,n~_ in~ormation pos~ - pendence in planning and implementation of en· 
____ sess~~- a~Jh_e ~!"~· the agents concluded- _U:tat.suc~-: -·'--~forcement actions. Prior to this failed raid, there 
--·an ar:re$~ yt_as_ ~~t a vi~ble alternative.· They knew.:·:·:·" ·was no -practic~. ·history- or reason to believe that 

.. ,, .. ~~~-:: _ ~res~'s _ .. infreque~t departures·. from the--- ·_additional oversight was· necessary. 
_ compound ~w_ere Wlpredictable. ·_ A-~ sooa! . worker.· ·" . The ·Tr~asury Secretary is responsible for the ac· 

who had VISited the compound to Investigate the ttons of· over · 165,000 people and numerous bu· 
health and safety of children present, had in· reaus and offices. During his first month in office, 
formed the case agent that she thought Koresh did Secretary Bentsen relied on the Department's ·ex-
not ·leave the compound very often. On February isting organizational and operational structure. 

: _-,_,-;=_,, -~:,::~·::. ----_:::..1J.!:~~~e_~Ph:_tolcl,_the ~dercover agent that he did This structure had 'been used by the previous Re-
:;: ;·:.-~. ;:-;:::- .- ~=-".; _ ,~;·,::rt:,,g_9.t --~~ll l~v~ the:CO!Jtpound •. -Further;jt-:sh~u.ld .. _:.-~--publican_ ~nd Demo~t!~- administrations. In the 
. ~ :-'-.:,_-~ -~?o.:-""L ~ .-f _:_~-J,~ J~-o,ted:-lb~t: ~r:-~Aprj\;19, all::r~ports; of -~res}l ,r,=.:·,epforc{ment'·area~ · thi~_ o_iganizational structure in· 

_ -:_· ___ ,:_·_· ~--- _ ---~~_;·:'-':=·_,., __ 1t .. Yiit~-·~-;-.seen:· ofr:.the co~pound----wer,~: Utor~l_;J-~: cluded_:·a·:e)uun:~o1-con1iriand from ·the law enforce· 
_: . . . ·:_~:- _--.::;.~:;:.:. ; ;_ ... ';. o:ugh ly . .- i_nvea~iatedJ>Y~ -~e Treasury Review.~ 'J;'he~.::'P'':'lilellt_ bureati h~ad-tl1rough the Assistant Secretary 

· ~.:;·_-: --~~~---- ·:· ~·-~:::~~;=,_;, ·revi~w.er~,.--~ete ·:able -.to·.:.-document only~:isolated"-:_-FO(: tJie-i·Treastiiy:. for·--_Enforcement to the· Deputy 
... ~:.-.~.~ .:,:~-----c""~~- .:,~-~-~·;trips~QW_th~:compoundl m.ost oceurring-:long::before·--,_;_!:i Secretary and·tnen to'the Secretary of the Treas· 
, __ -- --·. ·· __ -~~--~:; _-:~-.,-~,- -: ;, the lirpe:,ofthe raid~·.:: ::.::;,~;-, -:~'''~ :~:·::_~-. ~::::<:. _;, :-.-. ~ :~.~-:~,_ u~;·:;'This' stiiieture::plaeed responsibility on the 
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• law enforcement bureau head for bringing signifi· . a raid was about to oeeu.r. This error In judgment 
eant matters to the attention of his or her imme- a11owed Koresh to have an estimated 30-45 
diate supervisor. It is unfair, inaccurate and irre- minute preparation time prior to the arrival of the 
sponsible . to .. castigate Secretary Bentsen for the agents. Koresh used this opportunity to ann him· 

;::;;:_._._~.:_.:-~~-.',:~~~ adopti~ra. of:..~ ~rP.niza~iona1 .. ~~!"'-'cture and oper·: s~lfand~his followers. Despite the majority's ~s!r· 
.. -.. _ ·: ,. .. . .. · ational app~ch that. h.d .. beeg ___ ~ place for y~ars. · :: ttons to the contr~ry; Treasury acknowle~ed tn 1ts 
:. : :~ . :: ·. :.:: . .. . · ... ,Under. tile .structure that extsted at that· time,· . ·._report that the nud commander was questioned by 
.. , ... · , . "'- ._: •. > than ATF-.i>iric£0r s~·vell'.'Higgins' immediate su;·.- ·,·:.the Washington_cornmariders -and knew or should 

·~ ,~~·~:·:::r :-.;,_;::. ~rvisor. _ wu·._:~.J)eputf Assis~·t Secretary John .. :~- have: kn.own that: t:l,le rai~ shC?uld not have pro­
. ·--;~ -~. ···"'=··_:,-".,Simps.~I),:·~ .. ,C.!l~~r ~'1.1-~,t\.r~t-'!"ho had served at·. · .. ceed~. i(.~~-~~y 9r:~urp~se, had been lost or com· 

·_· ~- -~ .. ,._ -~;:;_~_·.-:·~-·:-_··:·:'f:;a:~?tJ~r A:.:t~i:~r~~-t~i~~t~~::a.;?o;.:_;·~~:~!~~~-~:~~~- · ,.~~-- ~>.::; ·. ~~,:. _ .. _:. ··:··.: · ~:;~: 
· :·~- . _ ~ - -· .... Enforcement, pending_ th_e .co~firmation of .an As~ ,.· .·. ~ ~-_FBI NEGOTIATIONS AND TAcriCAL 
.. _ . . .. · ·.- sistarit- SeCretary for Enforcement designee Ronald ,:.·· QPp~A~O-~s __ WERE SoMETIMES CoNTRADICTORY. 

Noble. Having been ATFs Director for ... approxi-:: .. The Depa~ment:_of Justice has acknowledged 
mately 10 years, Mr. Higgins was vel')' familiar . . that there could have been better coordination and 
with the reporting process. . . . . communication between the officials responsible 

The suggestion that a meeting between Sec· for tactical decision and the negotiators. Altemat-
retary· Bentsen and ATF Director Higgins would -ing tactics of negotiating, granting demands and 
have led to earlier notification of ATFs planned then using tactical operations such as cutting ofT 
raid of the Branch Davidian compound is pure con· electricity to punish Koresh for reneging on agree-
jecture. In fact Director Higgins did not tell his im· ments, may have allowed Koresh to increase his 
mediate supervisor in Treasury of the planned raid hold on his followers. 
until 2 days_ before its planned execution. In an effort to improve coordination and commu· 

· nication between negotiators and tactical com-
D.'- THE· RAm SHOULD HA~ BEEN A.BORTE~ WHEN: . man~d in 'the fUture, the Department of Justice has 

... . .. _ · . THE Ura>ERCOVER AGENT REPoRTED THAT created that Critical Incident Response Group. As 
.. _ ·.··:. .. . : · -.· .. __ ....... KoRESH .KNEW. ~ RA,m WAS ABOVT TQ OCCUR rt f th" te .: t · d ta .: I 

.. " --:· "·!...-- ~ . .: . .:... ... ........ : · _ . · . ·. · •· · ··· ··· · · :::_;-;,-,.;,, ~··.·.<.<·~, :· .. ' a. Pa., Q .. , _JS .. l!m, .negowa Q~ an cwca per· . -;.-·. : .. ,·, -:: .: .. ·. ,..· .. ·_: -~e:· ~j~iitf. re~tt:::'erraf·:·in eoncJu·~ing:,-that;..:c, :iOti.ri~r~r~rii~ge'th_er)oJa~i~J~.te improved coordi· 
·,_:~~·::~ . ·. -~~ ~- :.- .. :._._·_·. ~~:Tr,~s~Jj'' 'offlcials' 'fQ.ile·d .-.to ~learly". (pJ11mupi~ate. ~; o~~oq of,op~:~li~ions~ ~ ·. · ·· . · ..... ~ :;_' 
. ~--.. >.;.:~.~~~.'~.:-. ;·.::··:th~:~n~tions''Urider·:·wt~ch·>the raid -was.;tQ: be~!·~ -~---H:Q.wev.er. 'the 'majoritY's m'ain criticism of the 
· ,_ .. _ ::~··: ,_.· .. :·.-·~ · _ . .- :_abOrt.ect- hf fad~··'thEf Ti'eamry· Report and,.ATF .. Di:-- -~·· F~ ;FB~.· ~ny_q1ves its alt~ged relu(:tance to use outside 

.. ~-- , -, .. , .. "· , . !~~~:~:s1·m~d~~t0~feat;eih:t ~:~T~ k~e:,ett·.·' ~·;. :=u'~~i·:r~e~~~~r!i ~:~-e~:d~o~~~~~i~:~ 
. was supposed to call off the raid if Koresh learned . . repeatedly stressed to Koresh that if he left the 
that the ATF had planned a law enforcement oper- compound, he would have -every opportunity to 
ation against them. Director Higgins never ques· spread his message to a worldwide audience, that 
tioned the clarity of his message from the Treas· he would be presumed innocent of any wrongdoing 

... ___ ury Department..He testified that he to~d h~~ _sub-. _with respect to the·ATF raid, and that the judicial 
· . ... ----... ·. ~ .... ordinates if anything l90ked unusual, the raid .. ,.; ·prOcess·would ·provide him ·with an opportunity to 

· -.· .. should be ealled oft: ·Consistent wfth the .. ATFs :::~.~tell .. his-· sid~(· or· the· ·conflict. ·The FBI negotiated 
·.plan,·:: Agent Rodrigues ·-clearly : ·_cc)miriunicated · ·--WitlfJ{oresh.-·.·.ror .:$1 .. days: During that course of 

Koresh's awareness of an impending ATF law en· . time, .over. 36 demands by ,the Davidians were doc-
. ·forcement operation to his field supervisors. Unfor· umented and granted by the FBI. Contrary to the 

tunately. Mr. Sarabyn and Chojnacki failed to majority's assertion, there is no indication that 
-heed this clearly communicated waming.-~1 six of .. ··: FBI_ neg~tia.t()J"$ .we~ advers~ly affected by phys· 
· the independent: tactical.. operations ~perts .. who.·:~.: . icaJ .or. em9~i.onal_fatigue~'- · ... _ .. · . 

. . analyzed. the ATFs failed .. raid concluded that · We disagree with tb'e -~ajority's assertions that 
. -.. .:, . .:. . .-:based on Mr. Rodrigues' information, the raid com· . . on the 46th day of the siege. the FBI should have 
.·.· - ·: mariders should have called ofrthe nua. .. ·· .... ·: .· .. >.· .. : : .... :believ~d the represe~tatiC?~~- ~f Koresh's attorney 

We eoncur with the majority's finding that de- who relayed Koresh's representation that he and 
spite their contrary testimony before this commit- his followers would leave the compound if Koresh 
tee, evidence clearly shows that Agents-in-Charge were allowed to write his exposition on the Seven 
Sarabyn and Chojnacki understood yet consciously Seals of the Biblical Book of Revelations. Early in 

· . .. chose to d.isr:egard wamings by Un.~~rcover Agen~ the siege, Koresh was allowed to speak to religious 
.':-:~·';:' : ;;.·::·.·.::::.:. ·-=:-:~·-Rodrigues .on the_ moming. ~f.. the J'!li4:. ~drigues·.~ : , scholars_ co_ncei'J:\ing his in~rpretation. In response 
-~ ~:.' ~ -;:- ::.:~ .;·· .. : ·=·:~:·adyised.~ &J)~t CbQJn.~~~ th•~-~~~ATF:i);p;.:~~:-~~a . .'lit~m.i~~:~ ~ ~ji.it.ender.·an au~iotape containing 

..,_-.- --,..:~:· ··-·:·.~:. i·_;_:;.·erati()n,b8d been eomptomis.~ and tlj~ ~leinenl·-c;r.·.~:-.hii-·jnte_J])~tftjor(·~f_th~ _Fj~~ Seal was played on 
-~:. ~-~>:~- :-~~-'·: =~;-~_: ~ ~:~:·:~Ji.s~-·:had .been)~k,Th~.)~nost ;.~i~:i~-~~--·iii.! .• f:;;:;._a,~-~-~o:~&~d~~-::·.~~~ev~r,'·. ~re~h d?d not sur· 
· =- :.~: ,_,,::,~.:: · ::· ~-;take-.. was: :the ·deCISlon_:,:_of '.~e on~~nte. r~d .. c~m~ . .-end~r." •t tlu~t·. time~. FBJ·:·behaVlorabst Murray 

· .-_, ~-~: :;~ "'· ;:- · ;.· ~: .:.~: ::mander ·to: proceed= .after he had ~~Jiifof.i'(i.~~: ~i, :::.=,~ ~ro~);>~~lj~ve~;t i~f!-t. tl!i.s _late~7t attempt was mere~y 
an undercover agent that Koresb was aware that . anotlier .. stalbng taet1c. 'nlerefore, based on hts 

105 

z 0039162 
. ~ ......... '·-··· -· ····--~ ...... ______ .. . . . ... .. . . . . ... -. ... . .. . 



prior behavior and manipulative personality, it XII. THE UsE OF TEAR ~AS WAS UNFORTuNAn. 
wu not unreasonable for negotiators to conclude BUT NECESSARY 
that Koresh would not honor this laf:est promis_e. The majority report suggests that the decision to 
We would note that had Koresh been mterested 1n use. gas was not the only option available to com· 

· · --_-_ :: · --:. : -.. __ :~:11~ende~ng_-~ .. ~~~~orities, h~_ co~ld ·:~av_e.,~~!l-~-~~o~_ .. : :. pel the ~r~ch. D~.~dians to leave th~ ~ompo~d. 
, .... , . ,-,-- -.. ---; -at--~y ti!lle ~unng ~e 51-~ay ~·ege. Dunng the- -. Jn'- ·support. or their 'theory that additional bme 
~ _.. -~ -~_ · _-~.: -_~ __ _ ... -.. _ s~~~ --~en~;· ~J __ or _ _!us folio~~!~ .. ~ur-ende~e~ __ and_-.: .. · would have yielded .. ~ nonviolent surrende!• the 

.·:.. ~-: __ · ,~:_:_:~_-:. .. - · ----called 1nto ·the_ -~_omp~_~n~ ~ ·•~f~~- Kores~: ~-d._- inajoiit.)'-report points·~ the release of 21 ch1ldren 
__ --·- :--:-~---------:·.:-__ :_~-~-~-~~~-ers ~~~ t~e~ wes:~:::lxnn~---:~~-~tea.'V~lJar:-~_-,ha~ :---between February"'28 and March 3 as an indica· 
----·--"'~·------~·-·:.'·~:··:··'·--·not =})een-'-~-~u~;: The~efore;_._,.wha_tev~r.>_co:r.npelled- ~- tion-that--corit.inued negotiations would have even· 

. _::::.~'=··--"-- -.. :_'_:-_~--::·_·-;.- :~~:-~_.:~Kotesh .. to_ ~~B:ht'in:Jhe c~mp~~~=--~~~p,~ey_~n~ed-~_.:;--- tually'·secured:·the 7-·release of the remaining so 
- - _- ~·- - --.. ~,--~; ·=~-: other followers· from leavmg __ ~~~ n~t. ~ometlung - adults and children within -the compound. They 

'- _,.... - · · --- -· -_ th~t a ~e~l i~v?lving ~resh'~ ~ompo_s•ti-~n __ o( the · · -argue ·that :other ,_.options including expansion .or 
wntten expos•t•on ~r h1s rehg1ous tenets. w_ould and eontiiluation of the negotiation strategy. wSJt· 

· · · ·· · ,___ ·' have resolv~d. . --~- · ing ·for the depletion of food and water supplies, or 
XI LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS CoULD BENEFIT waiting for Koresh to complete his written expo· 

FaoM FlmJRE UsE oF Ot.rrSIDE BEHAVIORAL AM> sition on the meaning of the ~iblic~l Seven Seals 
PsYcHOLOGICAL EXPERTS prophesy were pre!Daturely reJected m an effort to 

end the confrontation. 
We disagree with the majority's assertion that However, after March 23, additional releases 

the FBI should have developed a thorough under- had' not been obtained. Koresh repeatedly reneged 
standing of the religious tenets of the Davidians. following the FBI's performance of agreed upon 
During the course of the negotiations, the FBI at· terms. Repeatedly, Koresh would explain his deci· 
tempted this approach and abandoned it because it sion to remain in the compound by saying that 
became clear that the tenets . were based on . God had not yet to]~ _him it was time to leave. Ad· 

_ K~resh's perso~al thoughts and ~apidly changed tO · ditionally, it should be noted that the .. regular" 
- - swt the occaston. 'nterefore, th1s would no~ only :conditions within the compounds were austere (no 

· lt ..-1~~ :..:f i.!,::· ~E·~. ·~·-_ba~·been~ftitile·b~t_W.~uld<-have·'}luShed:l>ack-the~· .'ni1i"r\ing.,w'~~(oi~plum.bing) and there was a vast 
·'- '-:.; .. ,., .:!! :: ~!."~~~ipt_e· o~~h~~s~rv}£f~f-~e wa~ts ~th_ereby:,.allo~--~-·;;~~~pply.gf~iJ.i~rX;~tyle MRE's (meals-read~ to eat) 

:· ;.. '-..•~ -__ _- I:_~:Jng ~r~sh- to·a~_a_~S- ~~en mor:~-:Jlleg~l:-We~pOnS'~ ·. ·- -· 1 .··:and ilJf. arte.sian ~ wen with Water Storage tank 
_._._, , ... ;::_.;.: .... _.c ''-~we·_~is~-~-'Yfi~-,~~fmajo_ncy--ass_e~io.n_t!'at-~li-~-~--:_.7ho~~-~ ~~~-n)~e-~mpound. · 

. . · .-FBI negotiators dtd not_,appear to -recogniZe ~~ po- -_ · · · Becawe·: ·the :FBI ·decided not to fire any shots 
-tential benefit of using religious experts in work----- -d~rlng:-ihe staridoff, --the Davidians walked outside 
ing with Koresh~ We refer the majority to the De· of the building on several occasions to smoke ciga· 
partment of Justice report which listed the opin-- rettes,- empty chamber pots, feed chickens and 
ions of independent religious experts and FBI be- gather water from rairi water runoff. Finally, the 
havioral experts consulted during the siege. The large amount of firearms and ammunition 
FBI solicited and rec~i_ved input, from various ex· (200,000 rounds) found within the compound. and 
perts in_ many fields including psychology; psychia;: : · · _ the·. gathering of other interested and potentially 
try, ·psycho-linguistics~- religion --and·theology,:~cuJ~_- __ , ___ . .dangerous individuals :(para-military and Militia 
theory- an'd ·negotiation· techniques. Reli~ous- ·ex.; ·g;-Ou.p:s)-·eontribuied to their concern about the con· 

. pens ··a:nd· ·theologians consulted by the FBI in; ·; -- tinued degradadon of the situation and their abil-
_._ , -eluded Dr. Philip Arnold of the Reunion Institute; ity to adequately s~ure the perimeter of the 
-_.- Dr. Bill Austin, chaplain, Baylor--University; Jeriel compound _ ·_ · _ 

Bingham·~ "Vice ·president, Davidian ·- Seven.~h. Day - In fact, during the standoff two people, not peo- · 
·-Adventist Association; -Reverend Trevor· Delafielcl, ... -... pte previolisly ~~Uated with the Davidians, infil· 
Seventh· Day Adventist Chureh; ·Dr~_- RObe~- Wal- · _trated the --p_erimeter and entered the compound. 
lace and Dr. "Joh·n· Fredericks, Lighthous·e Mission; -The · FBI was concerned that failing to end the 

--=------~,-: = -'~-~::-- -·- -Dr.- Michael Haynes,- Doctor of Theology arid Psy- _standoff would_ allo.~ ._others (particularly para· 
chology and Dr. Glenn Hilburn, Dean, Department military militia groups) who had begun to descend 
ol Religion, Baylor University. Additionally, the _upon the compound ~ en~!. the perime~~· 
majority of those experts concluded that Koresh Threats posed by gathenng mll1tia and ~ra-mll1· 
was manipulative and likely to deceive. All the ex- tary groups in the area increased secunty prob-

. _ perts_ agreed that ~resh would not leave the lema and underscored the need for a q~ck resolu· 
-":. ==~--:~-:;.,:-,~-=-----.:..-·---· compourid:-vol\Pltarily:·..:Th_eq(~re·.~b~:.:F~t ~eg~·: ·< tion to the situation._-J'here was a genwne eoncern 

:.:::c:-'o::.-'"'~.:-:: .... ,~~ • .::L.•~=, ;._::..:ti8iori -tactics whicb:-:-roe:used on ---Koresh ·as.·.a. ma~--·--::-as :.to whether-·th·ese ·groups had gathered as ob-
·::-·"z·~-,;- '~:·:~::-~::-:-;:.--~: ::,;::nipwative· an'd~::CfeeeitfUl"individU&l-wei:e -preCisely._--_ servers or sought to engage in the standoff. - · 

:_.-- -~---- ~~~::-~.:::·-:·~~~-~;·,~:-in acC:ord .with· ~e ·Yie~i~~ -~r_~e:·teli_gi~~---~x~ __ : ::_-~-~ ~91l.~Pz:!Ll2,._~_~FBl-~presented its tear.gas plan 
~-.:·- ':-:·-:· '-,~~7:-.: -,:~~-~,.:: c;f:perts and psychologieal-·experts·and witb~t!l-~~~~~_:···:-to~AttOtney General Reno. Over the ensumg days • 

. ;·,}~Jj~-; L2 ·::: · :~r;,::.r;;rtJ:;~ ~!;::,a:;; ~?~;~~~;.~"~~;:!~r~~~i;!~~~~r~;,~~d ::S dch~~n t:cr:e ': 
. .. ·: ~ ... : ::-:- .... ·.:·-· ... -· .- . 
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• recti of gas on vulnerable populations such as The Himsworth Report, issued by the British 
pregnant women and children. Between the initial Government, found that there is no evidence of 
presentation of the plan on April 12 and the Attor· any spe,cia) sensitivity or the elderly, children or 
ney General's April 17 decision to use ~ar gas, pregnant women. AdditionaJly, the Himsworth 

·Reno ··attended· no fewer than eight meetings. to Commission chronicled the effect of CS gas expo-
. · · · .. diSCUSS the .. tear gas option~ Those meefirigS were SUre .. on One infant and· found that the child reCOV• 

· -- ;:'"' .:· ;attended···by'~.-iriilita:i:Y 'and ·tactical ._.expe_rtS·:~h-o · ·.ered rapidly after·.removal,from the area affected 
··· · ~- · .. briefecf d'ie .. ·Attorney General on the· advantages by CS ~ar gas. Th1s !eport w~s -supported by a re· 

. ,.. · --- and cfisadvantagei· of the \ise of tear gas in ~ bani·:· .. port wh1ch appeared m a Med1caJ JOurnal. The au. 
·: -~-~---·. ···-· .-·:·.eade' sitUation as well as the available medical and .. ·thor no.t·:only set forth-· a --treatment protocol for 

~ ·.-: ~-: ~- _::._ ... 'sCierl"tmc "; infonnati6i'l'~coilcemirig: the toxiCity" and""·~.: children expos~d to ~s· tea~. ga~. but noted that full 
- . - .- · _' ·flariiriialiitity ofCS tear gas .. ·_.-·.:-· ~ _ :- -·- -·: ··:,--_ · :··recovery was h1ghly .hk.ely~ -- · .-· . 
· -·· · .. -.:~ --=~-·- :- ·cs-teafg&s-is a eommon·nof contr~l-_agent used.· Moreover, the maJonty report contends that the 

- · ·in the United States· ana Europe. The purpose of - presence of ~S gas· may haye a~ted as ~ 
· tear gas is to cause irritation ·or the eyes, skin and acce!erant dun!'g th~ fir~~ That 1~ ll!lh~ely. Wh1le 

respiratoey system sufficient to encourage an indi· ~S IS combu.stl~le (It wlll b~ 1f 1gmted, much 
vidual to le-ave the premises or any open area cs hke paper), 1t 1s not .a. chem1cal accelerant or a 
is considered the least toxic agent in the family of ~ammable agent. AddJtlo.nally,. the method of.de-
chemical tear gas irritants. In order to reach a hvery or the ~mpounds 10 which ~e CS partlcu· 
level which would be lethal to fifty per cent of the l~te .was c~ntamed (methyle~e chlonde ~d. c~rbon 
population, CS must be in concentrations of 25- ~~o~:~e) wdJ not bum and wJll actually mh1b1t fire 

150 thousand milligrams. ~r minute, cubed. ~e 1'Th~~rlginal CS. insertion plan required that the 
C~ gas used at the DaVJdsan compound was s1g· tear gas be inse~d by CEV's over a course of 2 

_ ndicantly Jess concentra~d than the le~al le~el. to 3 days. The theory was that the gas insertion 
. . The CS gas ·used was 10 a. c~~centration . 'Yhtc~ - over several days and in different parts of the 

_ __ = --- would .o.nly reach 16,000 m1lhgrams per mmute compound would gradually . render the entire 
. .-.~ .. :.:;·I· D~~_,:,.(~) 1fa!l of~e gas. used had ~~n r:~leased at. compound uninhabitable. However, within 5 min· 
. , : ___ : ; _., . _. ,t!t~. ~~e._ ti~e ... ~. a smgle closed room· and ~ ~~1; ~ utes- of. the initiation . of.·.the original plan, the in· 

· _

1 

• '. ___ · ~ : • · ~ 1'~~~d~n~~ of:~~~~-~ ~~m had been exMs_ed ~optl~.u::.:. -seition of tear: gas ·.was dramatically escalated. 
~ : :·~_.; '-c-:-·.!:: .. · ·:-~()~~ly f~r =1~-~~!l:~t~s·: At ~~eo,_CS te~! gas_ ~~.s.~~e~:., ·:·.·~;The origin·ar :gas insertion plan provided that in 

.. : ·.-~ _ .. _" · · ... ::'~ _'_··=. 1ea~ed'_'thro.ughout :·d1fTerent· a~eas o( t!t,e bwld1ng. , . the event that-the :cEVs or others were fired upon 
··-·-· · ·· wh1le openmgs were ere~ ted m the .Wln4ows an~ :· ·. during· the- ·insertion --or· gss, -that the insertion 

w~Us. The CS gas was 1~serted for a total of 5 would be escalated. The plan vested authority with 
mmutes over a 6-hour penod. A total of twenty CS the SAC Jamar to make the escalation decision. 
canisters were deployed ~n April 19. Additionally,- Therefore, when reports of shooting coming from 
s-:veral CO!flmentators discuss th~ fact that the the compound were confinned and it became clear 

·-· WI~~ veloc1ty reached .35 knots dunng the tear gas . that the CEV's ~ere being fired upon by · the 
debveey. Therefore, gtven the am()unt of tear gas Davidians Jamar decided to escalate insertion of 
wed, the ·presence of high ·winds, building ventila· . . the tear g~s delivery schedule; 

... · tion and th~_ ~~H':er)'. of ·gas ~ ·cfitrerent areas: of · · We agree with the maj9rity report that it should 
the compound,- 1t 1s h1ghly unhkely that anyth10g · have .. been obvious to all concerned that the inser· 

. _ ··-_close· to the fifty . percent lethality rate was tion of CS tear gas would have prompted Koresh 
·.,: ·· reached.··. · ·· ' .--_ --· ~:- .. · · ·· ·· · · ·· · ·· ... -- . .. .. . to order the vehicles fired upon and that this 

· · There are no documented cases in which the use would have resulted in the acceleration of tear gas 
. of CS gaa caused death. Reports that Amnesty insertion. However, the majority fails to recognize 

· · ·. ,.:": International linked ·use-·or the gas ··to deaths of that if the vehicles were fired upon, the parties at 
-- · ·- · · - · · · Palestinians in the occupied territories, is an ex· ·. risk would be the FBI. Following the conclusion ot 

- ·· - tremely biased readirig-of the ·report." Released in · the insertion of tear gas, the building would be un· 
June 1988, the report discussed the use of two inhabitable and- the occupants would have evacu· 
kinds or tear gas, CS and CN. CN gas has proven ated. Therefore, it seems that this underscores the 
to be lethal in closed quarters. The overwhelming FBI's determination to compel the occupants to 
majority of' evidence on ill-effects orCS was anec· leave without any loss of life inside the compound, 
dotal. Medical care had not been sought or docu· despite potential hann to themselves. 

· · · -- ---·mented. _Moreover, because of religious prohibi· · · 
'~- '~·;-~~~: ~~:-~=~J~:-~~ti~ri-s~autopsies .. had:not-been J)e_rfonnecl··Th~r~fore,: :~: J~III_"c _\Y~~ , ~ous~ ._,_O~crALS WERE INFoRMED 

··;:':?~t,~:~'0:q~.ftt¥~t~_l;!i:~~d:'~C$~~~:'!:::::=: .. ~-:~~-t~;L~~-~;;;~:DECJSION TO USE 
. __ -· .: ~ ~ · _ .. --· ~_::cat.e1r~·-··p.nr. ·of ~.e-:-·de~ths~ --As PJlysicians~:_._ror=~ ·- ... ·White House officials were·infonned but not con· 
-~~:-~.:.:' ... ·····~: :--:~~: . ...:Jil:UD~:-~ghta: fo\lnd.:w)j~n:·Visiting: __ :_the oceupied~: · sulted aboutthe:we:·or~r·~ 
: .:.:. .. ·._:· -~-"·~-:- .. _-,-·temtOnes_.:.-wt:-eoutd'not c:Onfirm tJle':.·reports ·or---~·:·: -· .. On.April.18;-Web Hubbell~· Justice Department 

·- · --_: ~.··· deathimin te~ gas inhalations." -·-: ·.-_- · ~-:·: -·-··: '··'-.·White· House Liaison, and Atto~ey General Reno 
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informed the President about the plan to gradually It should be noted that the fire departmt:nt was 
insert tear gas into the compound over a 2 to 3 · called after the blaze began. However, they did not 
day period in an effort to render the compound un- attempt to put out the fire because during the 
inhabitable and .. compel the occupants to leave. blaze gun shots were heard coming from and with· 

. ·nuring ·that. ~nversation, Ren·o told the President···.: .Jo the compound. The -safety of any firefighter who 
. .. . . that April19 was not ·envisioned as •o.:-DaY'c.an.d _ approach~d the compound could not be assured. 

:-.· __ --- "~::~ · .. ·__ ~-that the-use· of the tear gas would.not· be the-be· . ::!l'herefore,_th_e ~BI_detennined that the local fire· 
._ .. :.::.;- ··'-;. . _~:-:. ;.<:·.;:ginning of an -assault on the compound..:· :" _ .. -~ -.~·.:_ :·;: .. fighters .. 7should_ not. be allowed to approach the 

.. " __ , -,-. ..: ·-,:·-.-,:'".· . Critics maintain that the : .. White· -House_ pres·- . : C9ll!po~_d .. However, -it should be noted that after 
.... · _ ... sured Reno to .. end the standoff. by any means- nee-:-·,. J~e fire began __ nine survivors exit~ the compound. 
· : .:.. -"essary. They· contend that this directive. led. to the·· .. -:"- .Th.~re. h~ t;>een .some -~peculat1on that the tear 

-~lack of clear decision making and a: less than objec- · ·gas -used n_tay have contributed to the fire. The CS 
tive ·examination· of the potential hazards concern- tear. gas d1d not act 1!-s an accelerant for. the fire. 
ing the use of CS gas. The majority report implies CS IS a .. powdery part1culate. Wh~n used m a tear 
that had expediency not been a factor, Reno would gas ~an1ster .or other tear ~as debvery sys~m, CS 
have continued to wait for the Davidians to sur- particulate 1s suspended m methylchlonde and 
render. This contention is pure speculation that is ·carbon ~oxide. Neithe! . CS particulate, 
not supported by the facts. As noted earlier, Attor- methylchlonde ~r ~9:rbon d1oXJde are flammable. 
ney General Reno held eight meetings to discuss· They a~tually mh~b1~ the outbr~ak of fire. We 
various aspects of the tear gas plan with tear gas agree wtth the m~Jonty's conclus1~n that th~ use 
experts. If speed had been her concern, she would of CS tear ga~ pn.or was not a dnect, .Pr?Xl~~te 
not have consulted with various experts and wait- · cause or co.ntnbutmg factor to the ~ap1d 1gmt1on 
ed a week between the first proposal of the plan and .expa.nsson of the b~az~. The audiotape ~~ f~-
and its implementation. r~ns1c eVJdence clearly md1cate that the raptd tgru-

. - · · - tton. and spread of the blaze was due to the use of 
.. XIV. THE BRANCH DAVIDIANS STARTED nn: FIRE chemical accelerants (including gasoline, kerosene 

·"·~----·":~_ ... ·.-,·:~:-.:·~-- i..,_ ~- .:.: •• '., .AND.-Ca~E .. TO. ~MAIN Wrrn~ .. ,THE "COMPPJ.l~Y. :=-.. ~ ~.!1 .. ~ .camp fllel_.Qil) ~stributed throughout the 
.-...-,-;=::. :;=; rh-~- 1-::.:-.:i r,.~:-::WHILEJTrBU.RNED:·· :l- ·.~.-;--:~-: ~~: ~,.~. r::-:~:::::;:L:-:s ;C~~~~d,-,,by-_,..,in_dj_vi~~ls within. the compound . 
. _;,. ~-'···~- .:-. >=-.: .. ; .. ,!·-:;,'_;,_.0- c·.&;,..--.. 1-,.-1-9-:,:-.-~- 1 r~."- 1.-.. _2-0- r· •. ~·····-·'\: .. A':····.th: .... -.,Addltlonally--the:-ma.•enals used m the construe· .. --~· ·- · .. ·· · ··-· ·- · - · n ·~n -~ · apprOXlmate 1' tl)lnutes ·tu~.er e ..:.----. ·· · · - · .. ,_ · ... _. ..... ":"'·-.. · 
· · , .... ,~ .-.,._.,. :;:· .. !,.) ... }-,

1
-.. -, .. ,,._, ... -,;; ----•.:-·'! --· .. :·····:.:·J·,.· th --~~------ d.·. ,-,c.. · · -· .. -.:. ! ·. t1on of the .bwldmg ttself (largely plywood.> m con· ·· :--<-· ····--·.·: .... ·-:·-T ·- ast:·tear--ga·s--inse·rti·on' e·:Davi ian·~com ·ound.'"' ~----·· •.. < • .-- ··-· • ·- • ::.~::~ :<~_:.-:·: ·:-. n:'·-'··:·, · ·_ ~: ·.-· • · . :·: :·.· . .-.':.-- • :: .. -:. ·;- - .·.- ·;: · - · P :·-:-- .. .-. "' ·Junction w.tth.storage of.matenals such as hay and 

. ~- ___ : erup~_4 _ m. fla_me~. _Th~ first md1catio~ ·of fire was_ .. --_ .. propane gi15·_ coniainers __ and high winds combined 
see!' and noted at 12.07 p.m .. By _12.11 p.m., the to significantly contribute to the rapid combustion 
ent1re compound was substantially mvolved. of the building 

There is no doubt that the Branch Davidians · 
started the fire. We disagree with the conclusion of XV. RECOMMENDATIONS 
the· majority report which states that the evidence Finally, the report makes 17 recommendations 
concerning the origin of the fire is not dispositive. that are largely duplicative of recommendations 

._ The majority report ignores evidence contained in made by the ·extensive internal reviews under· 
the a·rs-~:m repo·rt·which proved three separate igni- taken by the Department of Treasury and the De-
tion points within the compound and ·conclusively partment ·0r Justice. Those recommendations and 
found that ·chemical accelerants· were placed our responses are as follows: 

.. throughout the _compound. Additio_na.)ly, _there, ~as 1. Congress should conduct further oversight of 
eyewitness testimony as well as film footage which the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms and 

.. _ . : . _chronicl~ the __ rapid spreading of the blaze. More- . jurisdi~~i9n _ .s~o.uld be transferred to the Depart· 
... oyer,-_the clothes_ :~f s~rviving :_Da_vid.ians .. who _es~ . m.~t o_f JU$tice. While additional oversight is a]. 

caped the compound were laced with gasoline and· ways proper,. it should be noted that the proposal 
: -O~her flammable materials. Finally, _and most to transfer jurisdiction of ATF first surfaced in the 

.. poignantly, several.surviving Davidians .admi~ted.. Carter administration and has been rejected sev· 
that those within the compound had started the eral times. Rejections have been based on concerns 
blaze. These statements are supported by recorded about placing total enforcement of the firearms 
statements in which voices are heard asking about laws in one agency. A separation of investigative 
the location and timing of fuel pouring and light- and prosecutorial functions in separate agencies 
ing activities. Additionally, it should be noted that maintains an important check and balance system. 

, ·. -_ ~- -.~.;, ~..-:~-. ~; .. . ~:~-:..~:· .:..· '· ~p .... ~.~matio,n..-.p( :~~-~:-, yehicle~~ ,inygJ~e~ j~s-~1'\_ins _ ... :.~ _. ; If false sta~~ents _were made in the affidavit 

. ·;; d:~ :!~·~~~,'' ~~'~:Jf:?i:~~~~~~~~;;!t~~~ ~~~:r~~:ir;~~~--"-,_~,~l:t;;•~t~/!~!4e:erc:u::edrr~!r:~~.ili;: 
-~ .=--~'.:.':-. :-~;~_.;,_-.--: .. -.... ~~:-_.:_~e-:_,typ~~ -~-~~, .. ~~ld~J:iive J~-~.n. ~P.ped .... Wlth ; .lutely,_nQ .~vidence- tcLsuggest that the agent 10 

· · ·- ~ ,:.h:-.. :·.-; .~-=-· ~:::-::.-:: flamethrowing _.equipmen·t. Alte.\'ld~nei _ Cle8.rli~in~-;. · ~, ques~_ijn:·made. false· statements. This recommenda­
. .- .,; .. 1 ~:;:,~.-. ::·:,.,.;·o::.:-_~;~.,,-dj~~s.:~a(~he.Jir(-'Y)\ich des..~Jj)y~_.th·e Br$1cb:-~;: .. c·.tiol).,i~ -_a~---.-~ample of .. a ... willingness to disbelieve 

.---=-- -_~:i- , ••. ·~·-:·---~, , .. l)avidi~_compo~~-on.A.prilJ9".~a~.--ignited.by in·:::·.· F_~deraJ law_-enforcemen.t personnel which is mani-
: . - - . dividuals inside the compound. - . --:. . . . :.-_ 

0 

- • fe~~ throughout this report. . . 
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3. Federal law enforcement should verify the 
credibility and timeliness of the information used 
in obtaining warrants. An assistant U.S. attorney 
and a Federal Magistrate reviewed the affidavit 

· and found the information sufficiently ·fresh to 
issue warrants. AdditionaUy, in finding that prob­
able cause existed, the majority report implicitly 
agrees with the determination that the informa· 
tion was not stale. . 

4. The ATF should· revise it National Response 
Plan to ensure that its best qualified agents are 
placed in command and contror positions. The 
Treasuty Department made this finding in its in· 
temal review. The ATF has implemented proce· 
dures to comply. 

5. Senior officials at ATF should assert greater 
command and control over significant operations. 
The Treasury Department made this finding it its 
internal review. The ATF has implemented proce· 
dures to comply. 

6. The ATF should be constrained from inde· 
pendently investigating drug-related crimes. This 
recommendation may lack administrative and 
operational feasibility. · 

7. Congress should consider applying the Posse 
Comitatus Act to the National Guard with respect 

1 

to situations where a Federal law enforcement en· 
tity serves as the lead agency. This recommenda· 
tion may lack administrative and operational fea· 
sibility and may unduly hamper the State's ability 
to use the guard in domestic law enforcement op­
erations (e.g. drug trafficking patrols, civil disturb­
ance). 

8. The Department of Defense should streamline 
the approval process for military support so that 

. drug nexus controversies are avoided in the future. 
This recommendation may deprive the Department 
of Defense of the operational flexibility necessary 
to provide assistance. The inability to pass a "lit· 
mus test" should not preclude the provision of oth· 
erwise justifiable assistance. 

. 9. The GAO should audit the military assistance 
provided to the ATF and to the FBI in connection 

·. With their law enforcement activities toward the 
Branch Davidians. It should be noted that Mem· 
bers of Congress can request GAO audits on any 
topic at anytime. . · 

10. The GAO should investigate the activities of 
. Operation Alliance in light of the Waco incident. It 

should be noted that Members of Congress can re­
quest GAO audits on any topic at anytime. 

11. Federal law· enforcement agencies should re· 
design their negotiation policies and training to 
avoid the infiuence of physical and emotional fa· 
tigue on course of future negotiations. The FBI has 
doubled the size of the Hostage Rescue Team. 

12. Federal law enforcement agencies should 
take steps to foster greater understanding of the 
target under investigation. The Department of 
Jus.tice and the Department of the Treasury cur· 
rently consult a wide range of outside experts on 
various topics. 

109 

13. Federal law enrorcement agencies should im· 
plement changes in operation procedures and 
training to provide better leadership in ,future ne­
gotiations. Recent successful negotiations with the 
Vip·er. Militia and the Freemen ·indicate implemen· 
tation of successful negotiation policies. 

14. Federal law enforcement agencies should re· 
. vise· policies ... arid .·-:trai'ning·: to increase the willing· 

ness of their agents to consider the advice of out· 
side experts:· -Recerit 'su'ccessful negotiations with 
the Viper Militia and the Freemen indicate policies 
evincing a willingriess to employ ·the advice of out· 
side experts .... ·. . . . 

15. Federal law· enforcement agencies should re­
vise policies and training to encourage the accept· 
ance of outside law enforcement assistance, where 
possible. Federal law enforcement officers cur­
rently network within and among officers from 
Federal, State and local law enforcement entities. 

16. The FBI should expand the size of the hos· 
tage rescue team. The HRT has been doubled in 
the 3 years since the events at Waco. 

17. The Government should further study and 
analyze the effects of CS tear gas on children, per· 
sons with respiratory problems, pregnant women 
and the elderly. Numerous studies have concluded 
that there is no increased toxicity or adverse effect 
when these populations are exposed to CS tear 
gas. Currently, data is gathered by exposing new 
anned forces recruits to tear gas. It seems that 
there would be a problem in conducting tests on 
human subjects within the population categories 
suggested by the majority report. Although tradi­
tional tests with control and noncontrol groups 
would not be possible, persons should be mon· 
itored and data collected whenever exposure oc· 
curs. 

CONCLUSION 

The events at Waco were a tragedy. However, 
the majority investigation, hearing and report add 
nothing new to the understanding of the tragedy 
or the prevention of future events similar to Waco. 

We live in dangerous times where the threat of 
domestic terrorism is real. The bombing of the AJ. 
fred P. Murrah Federal Building in Oklahoma, 
more than any other single event, stands as a tes· 
tament to the possible impact that a few people 
with illegal weapons and destructive purposes can 
have on a nation. Groups or individuals bent on 
undermining the constitutional democracy of this 
country are a clear and present danger to the 
rights, liberties and freedoms that every American 
enjoys. 

In such troubling times, it seems irresponsible 
for the majority report to engage in speculation 
and unsupported theories and unproven allega· 
tions against Federal law enforcement agencies 
and officers. The agencies involved should be com· 
mended for their extensive and unyielding inves· 
tigations as well as their quick and decisive efforts 
to take corrective actions to ensure that there is no 
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reoccurrence of this type or event. It appears that 
the successful handling of events such as the 
"'Freeman" standoff in Mon~a and the Viper Mi-

0 

'110 

Jitia arrests in' Arizona are testament to th.! deter.· .. 
mination of these agencies to learn from previous 
mistakes. 
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events would actually unfold on April 19. The 
FBrs overall comm,..nder, Jeffrey Jamar, testified 
at the subcommittl.:es' hearings that he had a be· 
lief to a 99 percent certainty that the contingency 
plan would be implemented, as he believed the 
Davidian& would open fire on the CEV's. As be tes· 
tified before the subcommittees, •1 believed it was 
99 percent when we approached with the tank 
they would fire. I believe that. Not. all people agree 
with me on that, but I believed that at the time, 
yes." ase Although the Justice Department Report 
does not mention that Jamar informed his superi­
ors of his belief, it is clear the Attorney General 

·also believed the Davidians would open fire on the 
FBI. In referenced to firing on the FBI, the Attor· 
ney General testified that she "knew what these 
men would do."&9T 

It cannot be known whether the Attorney Gen­
eral would have decided differently bad she known 

· that the FBI expected the contingency provisions 
of the operations plan to be implemented. What is 
clear is that she never bad the opportunity to con· 
sider this fact because the FBI believed that their 
actions did not constitute an attack, based on an 
incomplete understanding of the Davidians. Had 
the FBI considered bow the Davidians would per­
ceive their actions they might have been. able to 
predict that the fall back· plan would be used. If 
this fact bad been communicated to the Attorney 
General she might have decided things differently. 

H. PRESIDENTIAL INVOLVEMENT IN THE EVENTS AT 

. decision. I knew it was· going to be done, but the 
decisions were entirely theirs."&OO 

J. FINDINGS CONCERNING THE PLAN TO END THE 
SI'ANDOFF 

·t. The Attorney General's decision to end 
the standoff on day -&1 was premature, 
wrong, and highly irresponsible. The decision 
by Attorney General Janet Reno· to approve the 
FBI's plan to end the standoff on April 19 was pre­
mature, wrong, and highly irresponsible. In au· 
thorizing the CS assault to proceed Attorney Gen. 
eral Reno was seriously negligent. The Attorney 
General knew or should have known that the plan 
to end the stand-off would endanger the lives or 
the Davidians inside the residence, including the 
children. The Attorney. General knew or should 
have known that there was little risk to the FBI 
agents, society as a whole, ·or to the Davidians 
from continuing this standoff and that the possibil· 
ity of a peaceful resolution continued to exist. 

a. The "benefits" of avoiding problems were 
not . properly evaluated. The FBI's belief. that 
the -standoff was likely to continue indefinitely was 
too pessimistic given the advice of behaviorist Dr. 
Murray Myron and the Davidians' attorneys that 
Koresh was turning his attention to what he con· 
sidered to be his principal theological work, his in· 
terpretation of the meaning of the Seven Seals. As 
they believed that no resolution was possible 
through further negotiations, the FBI wrongly con­
cluded and convinced the Attorney General that 

WACO, TX there was no alternative to going forward with the 
The involvement of the White House occurred in plan to end the standoff. The only issue was tim· 

several ways. According to White House Chief of ing. There was also no need to rush into action on 
Staff Mack McLarty, two parallel lines of commu- April 19, but having lost patience with the nego-
nication existed-one from Acting Assistant Attor- tiating process and facing an initially reluctant At-
ney General Stuart Gerson to McLarty, and the torney General, FBI officials manufactured or 
other from Gerson to White House Counsel Ber- grossly exaggerated arguments for urgency. 
nard Nussbaum. Senior advisor Bruce Lindsey There was never any overt act or even .a state-
also kept informed on developments in Waco.598 ment made by Koresh to support the FBI's as· 

No White House officials objected to the pl•n to serted fear that the Davidians might try a break· 
end the standoff at an April 13, 1993 meeting be- out. Using the threat of a breakout as a reason to 
tween White House and Justice Department ofti· go forward with the CS assault plan sooner rather 
cials, including. Hubbell, Nussbaum, Lindsey and than continue the negotiations was wrong. The 
Deputy White House ;.Counsel Vince Foster. On FBI and the Attorney General knew or · should 
SUnday, April 18, 1993·, Reno called the President . have known there was no remotely imminent 
to inform him that she bad decided to approve the threat of such a breakout. Also, there was. no rea-
FBI's request to use CS as part of a plan to end son to go forward on April 19 out of concern that 
the. ~tandoff. ~e President told Re~ol~~~(.- your. t_he HRT. was exbaus~d and needed to step _down 
dec1s1on." 599 Chnton later told thel1i~'fl pe~. ·l~·for:.::retra.1~ng. Accordmg to the HRTs own com­
pie, •J was aware [of the plan to ins. • iti~ ·the·~4.~.Jnalic;ler, tht HRT could have remained on duty at 

· ;#k · . t1on, ~Bl and l9cal law enforcement SWAT teams 
residence.] I think the AttomJ.)' ~_.'. er made ·the~· ·"~":··i~e !residence for at least 2 more weeks. In addi· 

:n:~:: ~= J ::=:The Au.orney _ .. , .' ... • · '&atiftecl: coul~ have beeR-brought in to maintain the pe~m-
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pate in FBI operations. Such bias is short-sighted 
and, in this case, prOved . to be counter-productive 
in· that the failure to seek or accept assistance 
added to the pressure to end the stand-off on April 
19. 

8. It i• UDUkely that the CS riot control 
agen&a uaed by the FBI reached toxic levels, 
however, in the manner in which the CS was 
uaed the FBI failed to demonstrate sufficient 
concern for the presence of yoUDg children, 
pregnant womeD, the elderly, and those With 
reaJpiratory conditions. CS riot control agent is 
capable of causing immediate, acute and severe 
physical di~tress to exposed individuals, especial1y 
young children, pregnant women, the elderly, and 
those with respiratory conditions. In some cases, 
severe or extended exposure can lead to incapaci­
tation. Evidence presented to the subcommittees 
show that in enclosed spaces, such as the bunker, 
the use of CS riot control agent significantly in· 
creases the possibility that lethal levels will be 
reached, and the possibility of harm significantly 
increases. In view of the risks posed by insertion 
of CS into enclosed spaces, particularly the bunk­
er, the FBI failed to demonstrate sufficient concern 
for the presence of young children, pregnant 
women, the elderly, and those with. respiratory 
conditions. While it cannot be concluded with cer­
tainty, it is. unlikely that the CS riot control agent, 
in the quantities used by the FBI, reached lethal 
toxic levels. The presented evidence· does indicate 
that CS insertion intQ the enclosed bunker, at a 
time when women and children were assembled 
inside that enclosed space -(i.e., during the fourth 
CS riot control agent insertion), could have been a 
proximate· cause of or directly resulted in some or 
all of the deaths attributed to asphyxiation in the 
autopsy reports. 

It is clear from the testimony at the hearings 
that the FBI expected the adult members of the 
community to care for the children by removing 
thein from exposure to the CS agent by coming out 
of'the residence with them. This presumption was 
flawed~ As the Defense Department's witness testi­
fied before the subcommittees, one of the two sen­
ior military officers who attended the meeting with 
the Attorney General on April 14, told the Attor­
ney General that during. the use of CS mothers 
might •run oft' and leave their children. • Yet the 
Attorney General failed to appreciate the fact that 
this possibility was in direct contravention to a 
key assumption of the plan's p~ovision for the use 
of the CS agent-that the adult members of the 
community would care for the children. 

The FBI failed to properly inform the Attorney 
General of the risks of using CS agent on children 
by not appreciating the military officer's warning 
that parents might abandon their children and by 
not fully apprising the Attorney General that there 
was little scientific information on the effects or 
CS on children. While the Attorney General cannot 
be faulted for relying on the advice given her by 
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persons whose job it was to be fully informed 
about the use of CS, it appears that the Attorney 
General failed to fully consider the flawed assump­
tion in the FBI's plan once it should have become 
obvious to her. 

7. There' is no evide.nce that the FBI die· 
charged fire8l'ID8 on April lB. 

8. Following the FBrs April 19 asaault oD 
the Branch Davidian compound, Attorney 
General Reno offered her resignation. ID 
light of her ultimate responsibility for the 
disastrous aasault and ita resulting deaths 
the President should have accepted it. 

J. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Federal law enforcement agencies should 
take steps to foster greater undentanding of 
the target UDder investigatioD. The subcommit· 
tees feel strongly that government officials failed 
to fully appreciate the philosophy or mindset or 
the Davidians. If they had, those officials might 
have been better able to predict how the Davidians 
would react to the plans to raid the residence on 
February 28 and the plan to end the standoff on 
April 19. If so, perhaps many of the errors made 
on February 28 and during the standoff could have 
been avoided. 

The subcommittees found troublesome the fact 
that many of the ATF and FBI officials involved in 
this matter seemed uninterested in understanding 
the Davidians' goals and belief system. The views 
of these officials ranged from assumptions that the 
Branch Davidian were rational people likely to re· 
spond to authorities as would most citizens to a 
belief that the Davidians were a "cult• which could 
not be dealt with in any way other than by force. 
Seldom did these officials seem interested in actu­
ally trying to understand this group of people and 
their motivations. This attitude was shortsighted 
and contributed to several of the mistakes that the 
gOvernment officials made at different points from 
February 28 through April 19. 

This change in organizational culture can ·only 
result if senior officials in the Federal law enforce­
ment agencies implement changes in training and 
operational procedures. The benefits of _ these 
changes will not only protect the targets Qf govern­
ment action but, by making it more likely that 
Federal law enforcement officials will carry out 
their mission in the manner most Ukely to sue· 
ceed, will help to protect the saf'ety of the law en· 
forcement officers as well. 

2. Federal law eDforcement agencies should 
revise policies and training to encourage the 
acceptance of assistance from other law en· 
forcemeDt agencies, where poaaible. The sub­
committees recommend that FBI officials take 
steps to change the prevailing FBI culture that 
leads agents to believe that only the FBI knows 
best how to handle a situation. While agency pride 
is appropriate, and deserving in the case of the 
FBI, this pride appears to have caused the agents 
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timony to the· subcommittees, Dr. Quintiere nar· 
rated the videotape demonstration. As the first fire 
developed, Dr. Quintiere testified, 

If you look at this point here, you will 
see this window begin to tum · slightly 
grayish, it does right now. Nine seconds 
later the window on the opposite side 
right here is going to also show an illu· 
mination which is due to this temperature 
rise, and in my opinion that is due to 
smoke being transported from the fire 
started at one end of the room to the 
other end of the room. . • . The room was 
a second floor room approximately 16 x 11 
in dimensions and· about 8 feet high, 
which is presumed to have been a bed· 
room. One minute later the second fire be­
gins on the first floor at the rear of the 
dining room. 804 

Dr. Quintiere then described the development of 
the second fire. · 

We are looking at the development of 
the fire in that bedro,om area, the second 
floor right tower. What we are going to 
see here at 12:09:42, we will see an event 
known to people who investigate and 
study fire. That event is called flashover, 
and that is a point when we have a tran· 
sition in this fire in which the fire goes 
from a discrete object that you could dis· 
cern very readily burning in n room such 
as this to a point where flames now fill 
the room, and that transition can occur in 
seconds. It is known as flashover. Before 
that. time the room might be survivable. 

After that time it is definitely not, and 
now the fire is a threat to spreading to 
other rooms. soa 

Finally, Dr. Quintiere described the inception of 
the third fire, which occurred on the first floor in 
the chapel area. 806 He also noted that 38 seconds 

· ·later there emerged hot gases at a point 45 feet 
·away from the point where the third fire began. 
He testified that this could have been a separately 
set, fourth fire, but that the development of this 
fire was consistent with someone placing a trail of 
gasoline or other Uquid fuel between those two 
points and allowing the third fire to spread over 
that trail. 80T 

As Dr. Quintiere s1immarized hi~ conclusions: 
If we can just pause at this point, you 

can . aee the fire here, the first fire. A 
minute later, a fire began . in the dining 
room area, and a minute after that a fire 
began in this chapel. It has not burned 
through the roof yet, but the ignition in 
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the debris area because of the wind has 
now propagated significantly over that de· 
bris area. These are three distinct fires. 

From this information I can conclude 
that these three fires that occurred nearly 
1 minute apart were intentionally set 
from within the compound. Also, you have 
the time periods involved and the very 
discrete different locations. None of these 
three fires could have caused any of the 
others because their growth rates would 
not provide sufficient heating to cause 
such remote ignitions.soa 

The experts testified that they believed the fires 
were intentionally set by Branch Davidian mem­
bers in order to destroy the structure. 809 Support· 
ing this conclusion is that fact that the fire review 
team found that a number of accelerants were 
present in the structure and on the clothing oC 
some of the surviving Davidians, including gaso-

, line, kerosene, Coleman fuel, and other 
accelerants.610 As Dr. Quintiere testified, 

Although normal furnishings and inte­
rior construction characteristics would 
provide a means for fire propagation, the 
more than usual rapid spread of these 
fires, especially in the dining room and 
the chapel ar~as, indicates to me that 
some form of accelerant was used to en· 
courage to the rapid spread of these 
fires.611 

B. OTHER THEORIES CONCERNING THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF 11iE FIRE 

1. Whether the methylene chloride in the CS riot 
control agent used by· the FBI caused the fire 

One of the theories forwarded to the subcommit· 
tees concerning the origin of the fire is that meth· 
ylene chloride, a chemical used as a dispersant to 
carry the CS riot control agent . injected into the 
Branch Davidian residence, may have ignited and 
started the fire. During the hearings Dr. Quintiere 
testified that it was his opinion that the methylene 
chloride in the CS agent neither caused nor COD· 
tributed to the spread of the fire. · 

According to Dr. Quintiere, methylene chloride, 
when a vapor in air, is flammable at ambient air 
levels of 12 percent or greater.e11 This conclusion 
is supported by information provided by the manu· 
facturers of methylene chloride. &13 The subcommit· 

· tees review of the evidence presented indic:aieS 
that the levels of JOethylene chloride present in 

.. ,tl. al 138. 
-ltl. al 138, 191M don\ diamanl &hal &be ft.- were l&an.l....., 

by &he people irwic!e.-, (ela&emenl fJI Rick Shenaw). 
• 10 ltL al 166, 187-188 (ala&ernenl of Paul ON)'). 
•nltL al 138. 
•&altl. al140. 

· •11 Lel&er from Pet.er VCII)'tek, aeeuUve eli......-. Hakpua.l ...._ .. 
lndua&ry Alliance, Inc. Ia Glenn R. Sch~u.. caunMI Ia &be Sat a · 'M 
on Crime (July 25, 1996). S« ol.o IJifMrolly Mallinck:JQdt_ Inc., MaiiNJ 
Daia Saf'ely Shea l (1989); Dow Chemical, Inc., Ma&erial Daia &l6q 
Sheet l (1988). . 
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events would actually unfold on April 19. The 
FBI's overall comm,.nder, Jeffrey Jamar, testified 
at the subcommittl~s· hearings that he had a be­
lief ·to a 99 percent certainty that the contingency 
plan would be implemented, as he believed the 
Davidian& would open fire on the CEV's. As he tes­
tified before the subcommittees, •1 believed it was 
99 percent when we · approached with the tank 
they would fire. I believe that. ·Not all people agree 
with me on that, but I believed that at the time, 
yes." &96 Although the Justice Department Report 
does not mention that Jamar informed his superi­
ors of his belief, it is clear the Attorney General 
also believed the Davidian! would open fire on the 
FBI. In referenced to firing on the FBI, the Attor-

. ney General testified that she "knew what these 
men would do."WI 

.Jt cannot be known whether the Attorney Gen­
eral would have decided differently had she' known 
that the FBI expected the contingency provisions 
of the o~rations plan to be implemented. What is 
clear is that she never had the opportunity to con­
sider this fact because the FBI believed that their 
actions did not constitute an attack, based on an 
incomplete understandi~g of the Davidians~ Had 
ihe FBI considered how the Davidians would per­
ceive their actions they might have been. able to 
predict that· the fall back plan would be used. If 
this fact had been communicated to the Attorney 
General she might have decided things differently. 

H. PRESIDENTIAL.INVOLVEME.NT IN THE EVENTS AT 
WACO, TX 

The involvement of the White House occurred in 
several ways. According to White House Chief of 
Staff Mack McLarty, two parallel lines of commu­
nication existed:....one from Acting Assistant Attor· 
ney General Stuart Gerson to McLarty, and the 
other from Gerson to White House Counsel Ber· 
nard Nussbaum. Senior advisor Bruce Lindsey 
also kept informed on developments in Waco.598 

No White House officials objected to the plan to 
. end the standofF at an April 13, 1993 meeting be­
tween White House and Justice Department offi· 
cials, including Hubbell, Nussbaum, Lindsey and 
Deputy White House Counsel Vince Foster. On 
Sunday, April18, 1993, Reno called the President 
to inform him that she had decided to approve the 
FBrs request to use CS as part of a plan to end 
the standoff. The President told Reno •it is your 
decision." 599 Clinton later told the American peo­
ple, •1 was aware [of the plan to insert CS into the 
residence.] I think the Attorney General made the 
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decision. I knew it was· going to be done, but the 
decisions were entirely theirs."&OO · 

1. FINDINGS CONCERNING THE PLAN TO END THE · 
STANDOFF 

1. The AttOrney General's decision to end 
the standoff on day 51 was · premature, 
wrong, and highly irresponsible. The decision 
by Attorney Genera] Janet Reno to approve the 
FBI's plan to end the standoff on April 19 was pre· 
mature, wrong, and highly irresponsible. In au· 
thorizing the CS assault to proceed Attorney Gen· 
era) Reno was seriously negligent. The Attorney 
General knew or should have known that the plan 
to end the stand-off would endanger the lives of 
the Davidians inside the residence, including the 
children. The Attorney General knew or should 
have known that there was little risk to the FBI 
agents, society as a whole, or to the Davidians 
from continuing this standoff and that the possibil· 
ity of a peaceful resolution continued to exist. 

a. The "benefits" of avoiding problema were 
not properly evaluated. The FBI's belief that 
the standoff was likely to continue indefinitely was 
too pessimistic given the advice of behaviorist Dr. 
·Murray Myron and the Davidians' attorneys that 
Koresh was turning his attention to what he con· 
sidered to be his principal theological work, his in· 
terpretation of the meaning of the Seven Seals. As 
they believed that no resolution was possible 
through further negotiations, the FBI wrongly con· 
eluded and convinced the Attorney General that 
there was no alternative to going forward with the 
plan to end the standoff. The. only issue was tim· 
ing. There was also no need to rush into action on 
April 19, but having lost patience with the nego­
tiating process and facing an initialJy reluctant At· 
torney . General, FBI officials manufactured . or 
grossly exaggerated arguments for urgency. 

There was never any overt act or even a state· 
ment made by Koresh to support the FBrs as­
serted fear that the Davidians might try a break· 
out. Using the threat of a breakout as a reason to 
go forward with the CS assault plan sooner rather 
than continue the negotiations was wrong. The 
FBI and the Attorney· General knew or should 
have known there was no remotely imminent 
threat of such a breakout. Also, there was no rea­
son to go forward on April 19 out of concern that 
the HRT was exhausted and needed to step down 
for retraining. According to the HRTs own com­
mander, the HRT could have remained on duty at 
the residence for at least 2 more weeks. In addi· 
tion~ FBI and local law enforcement SWAT teams 
could have been brought in to maintain the perim· 
eter if the HRT had to step down for a short time. 
The FBI and the Attorney General knew or should 
have known this. . -

The Attorney General wrongly based her deCi­
sion to act in part on concerns that the conditions 

eDOWhi&e Houe at.a&emenL, Apn119, 1193. 
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inside the residenee were deteriorating End that 
children were being abused. There was no evi· 
dence that sanitary and other living conditions in· 
side the· residence, stark at the beginning of the 
standoff, had deteriorated appreciably during the 
standoff. Further, while there is no question that 
physical and sexual abuse of minors occurred prior 

· to February 28 and may have continued there· 
after, there is no evidence that minors were being 
subjected to any greater risk of physical or sexual 
abuse during the stand-off than prior to February 
28. The Attorney General knew or should have 
known this. In light of the risk to the children 
from a forced end to the stand-off, and the remain· 
ing possibility of a peaceful resolution, it was inap· 
propriate· for the Attorney General to have been 
occupied with apprehending Koresh for violations 
of State law which were outside her jurisdiction to 
enforce. 

b. The nsks of ending the standoff were Dot 
fully appreciated. In deciding to end the standoff 
on April 19, the FBI and the Attorney General 
failed to properly evaluate the risks to the 
Davidians of the FBI's operational plan. The FBI's 
plan was based on an assumption that most rea­
sonable people would flee the residence when CS 
agent was introduced. The FBI failed to fully ap­
preciate the fact that the Davidians could not be 
relied upon to act as other reasonable people 
might. The FBI failed to properly account for the 
Davidians' resolve, group cohesiveness, and loyalty 
to what they believed to be sacred ground. 

More troubling is the fact that the FBI com· 
manders either knew or should have known that 
the contingency provisions of the plan presented to 
the Attorney General would likely be imple­
mented·. While the plan as described to the Attor· 
ney General called for a slow and deliberate inser· 
tion of CS agent in an effort to deny the Davidians 
access to some areas of the residence and encour· 
age them to exit the residence in specific locations, 
the contingency provision in the plan called for 
.much larger quantities of CS to be inserted all at 
-once, and in all areas of the residence, if the 
Davidian& opened fire on the agents inside the 
.CEV's. The result of the contingency provision 
would be much larger quantities of CS being 
present inside the residence with the attendant 
greater likelihood that harmful concentrations 
might be reached, and also the strong likelihood 
that the all-out assault would cause panic in the 
people inside the residence. 

Jeffrey Jamar, the FBrs overall commander at 
the residence testified before the subcommittees 
that he believed there was 99 percent chance that 
the. contingency provision would be implemented 
because the Davidians would open fire on the FBI 
against. Clearly, given the Davidians' actions in 
response to the ATF raid on February 28, it was 
almost certain that the Davidians would respond 
to the FBrs actions with gunfire. Yet, Jamar never 
communica.ted his opinion to the Attorney General, 
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or apparently to anyone else for that· matter.' 
Other senior .FBI officials, however, should have 
realized that the .Davidian& would respond with 
gunfire and that th,, contingency provision of' the 
plan would be quickly implemented. Given this, 
they should have more fully briefed the Attorney 
General on this aspect of the plan. 

More importantly, however, the Attorney Gen· 
eral herself admitted during her testimony before· 
the subcommittees that she expected the 
Davidians to fire on the tanks, and that she under· 
stood that if they did the rapid acceleration of con· 
tingency plan would be implemented. It is evident 
the Attorney General knew or should have known 
that the contingency provision of the plan would 
be implemented once the operation began on April 
19, that the Davidians would not 1'eact by leaving 
the residence as suggested by the FBI, and that 
there was a possibility that a violent and perhaps 
suicidal reaction would occur within the residence. 
At no time . has the Attorney General indicated 
that she reflected on the consequences of the possi· 
bility. At the very least this demonstrates gross 
negligence on the part of the Attorney General in 
authorizing the plan to proceed. 

3. FBI commanders in Waco prematurely 
ruled-out the possibility of a negotiated end 
to the stand-off. After Koresh and the Davidians 
broke a· promise to come out on March 2, FBI tac· 
tical commander Jeffrey Jamar viewed aU state­
ments of Koresh with extreme skepticism and 
thought the chances for a negotiated surrender re· 
mote. While chief negotiator Byron Sage may have 
held out hope longer, FBI officials on the ground 
had effectively ruled out a negotiated end long be­
fore April 19 and had closed· minds when pre· 
sented with evidence of a possible negotiated end 

· involving Koresh's work on interpreting the Seven 
Seals described in the Bible's Book of Revelation. 

4. FBI tactical commander Jeffrey Jamar 
and senior FBI and Justice Department offi· 
cials acted ilTesponsibly in advising the At· 
torney General to_go forward with the plan 
to end the stand-off on AprQ 19. Jamar and 
senior FBI and Justice Department officials advis· 
ing the Attorney General knew or should have 
known that of the reasons given to end n.egotia· 
tions and go forward with the plan to end the 
stand-off on April 19 lacked meriL To urge these 
as an excuse to act at the time the Attorney Gen­
eral made the decision to do so was wrong and 
highly irresponsible. . 

5. The FBrs refusal to ask for or accept the 
assistaDce of other law enforcement agencies 
during the stand-off demonstrated an inatitu• 
tional bias at the FBI against accepting and 
utilizing such assistance. Throughout the 51 
day stand-off the FBI refused to ask for the assist· 
ance of other law enforcement agencies and even 
refused offers of such assistance. The subcommit­
tees find that there is an institutional bias inside 
the FBI against allowing other agencies to partici-
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pate in FBI operations. Such bias is short-sighted 
and, in this case, proved to be counter-productive 
in that the failure to seek or accept assistance 
added to the pressure to end ~e stand-off on April 
19. . . 

8. It i• unlikely that the CS riot control 
agen&a used by the FBI reached toxic levels, 
however, in the manner in which the CS was 
uaed the FBI failed to demonstrate sufficient 
concern for the presence of young children, 
pregnant wo~J~en, the elderly, and those with 

· reapiratory condition•. CS riot control agent is 
capable of causing immediate, acute and severe 
physical distress to exposed individuals, especially 
young children, pregnant women, the elderly, and 
those with respiratory conditions. In some cases, 
severe or extended exposure can lead to incapaci· 
tation. Evidence presented to the subcommittees 
show that in enclosed spaces, such as the bunker, 
the use of CS riot control agent significantly in­
creases the possibility that lethal levels will be 
reached, and the possibility of harm significantly 
increases. In view of the risks posed by insertion 
of CS into enclosed spaces, particularly the bunk. 
er, the FBI failed to demonstrate sufficient concern 
for the presence of young children, pregnant 
wonien, the elderly, and those with respiratory 
conditions. While it cannot be concluded with cer· 
tainty, it is unlikely that the CS riot control agent, 
in the quantities used by the FBI, reached lethal 
toxic levels. The presented evidence does indicate 
that CS insertion into the enclosed bunker, at a 
time when women and children were assembled 
inside that enclosed space (i.e., during the fourth 
CS riot control agent insertion), could have been a 
proximate. cause of or directly resulted in some or 
all of the deaths attributed to asphyxiation in the 
autopsy reports. 

It is clear from the testimony at the hearings 
that the FBI expected the adult members of the 
community to· care for the children by removing 
them from exposure to the CS agent by coming out 
of..the residence with them. This presumption was 
flawed. As the Defense Department's witness testi-
. tied before the subcommittees, one of the two sen· 
ior military officers who attended the meeting with 
the Attorney General on April 14, told the Attor· 
ney General that during the use of CS mothers · 
might -run off and leave their children. • Yet the 
Attorney General failed to appreciate the fact that 
this possibility was in direct contravention to a 
key assumption of the plan's provision for the use 
of the CS agent-that the adult members of the 
community would care for the children. 

The FBI failed to properly inform the Attorney 
General o( the risks of using CS agent on children 
by not appreciating the military officer's warning 
that parents might abandon their children and by 
no.t fully apprising the Attorney General that there 
was little scientific information on the effects of 
CS on children. While the Attorney General cannot 
be faulted for relying on the advice given her by 
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persons whose job it was to be fully informed 
about the use of CS, it appean that the Attorney 
General failed to fully consider the flawed assump­
tion in the FBI's plan once it should have become 
obvious. to her. 

7. There' is DO evidence that the FBI dia· 
charged firearms on Apri119. 

8. FollowiDg the FBrs April 19 BB&ault on 
the Branch Davidian compound, Attorney 
General Reno offered her resignation. In 
light of her ultimate responsibility for the 
disastrous assault and its resulting deaths 
the President should have accepted it. 

J. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Federal law enforcement agencies should 
take steps to foster greater understanding of 
the target under investigation. The subcommit· 
tees feel strongly that government officials ·failed 
to fully appreciate the philosophy or mindset of 
the Davidians. If they had, those officials might 
have been better able to predict how the Davidians 
would react to the plans to raid the residence on 
February 28 and the plan to end the standoff on 
April 19. If so, perhaps many of the errors made 
on February 28 and during the standoff could have 
been avoided. 

The subcommittees found troublesome the fact 
that many of the ATF and FBI officials involved in 
this matter seemed uninterested in understanding 
the Davidians' goals and belief system. The views 

. of these officials ranged from assumptions that the 
Branch Davidian were rational people likely to re­
spond to authorities as would most citizens to a 
belief that the Davidians were a .. cult• which could 
not be dealt with in any way other than by force. 
Seldom did these officials seem interested in actu· 
ally trying to understand this group of people and 
their motivations. This attitude w~as shortsighted 
and contributed to several of the mistakes that the 
government officials made at different points from 
February 28 through April 19. 

This change in organizational culture can only 
result if senior officials in the Federal law enforce­
ment agencies implement changes in training and 
operational procedures. The benefits of these 
changes will not only protect the targets of govern· 
ment action but, by making it more likely that 
Federal law enforcement officials will carry out 
their mission in the manner most likely to sue· 
ceed, will help to protect the safety of the law en· 
forcement officers as well. 

2. Federal law enforcement agencies. shoUld 
revise policies and training to encourage the 
acceptance of .assistaDce from other law eD· 
forcement agencies, where possible. The sub­
committees recommend that FBI officials take 
steps to change the prevailing FBI culture that 
leads agents to believe that only the FBI knows 
best how to handle a situation. While age~cy pride 
is appropriate, and deserving in the case of the 
FBI, this pride appears to have caused the agents 

z . 0038814 



to have been foreclosed to other possibilities of 
dealing with the situation at hand, such as by al· 
lowing other persons whom the Davidians trusted 
to become more involved in negotiations or using 
other law enforcement agency forces to maintain 
the Branch Davidian center perimeter and thus re­
lieve pressure on the HRT. The FBI could have 
been open to these possibilities while maintaining 
its ultimate control ·or the situation. The FBI needs 
to take steps now to ensure that this close-minded· 
ness does not occur in the future. 

3. The government should further study 
and analyze the effects of CS riot control 
agent on children, persons with respiratory 
conditions, pregnant women, and the elderly. 
The subcommittees recommend that the FBI and 
Department of Defense investigate further the ef. 
fects of exposure to CS on children, pregnant 
women, the elderly, and persons with respiratory 
problems. Until such time as more is learned 
about the actual effects of exposure to this agent, 
the subcommittees recommend that CS not be 
used when children, persons with respiratory con· 
ditions, pregnant women, and the elderly are 

, present. 
4. The FBI should expand the size of the 

Hostage Rescue Team. One of the pressures that 
led the FBI to recommend to the Attorney' General 
that the standoff be ended on April 19 was the 
need to rest and retrain the HRT. There were not 
sufficient numbers of HRT members to both guard 
the perimeter of the residence and to relieve mem­
bers on the line periodically. Given this limitation, 
the subcommittees also note that if another hos· 
tage or barricade situation had developed involv­
ing a Federal law enforcement agency while the 
standoff with the Davidian& was continuing, the 
FBI would have been faced with the choice of not 
responding to that situation or pulling the HRT 
out of Waco and moving them to the new location. 

Both of these scenarios suggest the need to en· 
large the size of the HRT. While the subcommit­
tees are aware that the FBI has increased the size 

. of the HRT from the 48 "operator.. agents on the 
· team as of early 1993 to 78 operators as of July 
· 1996, the subcommittees recommend that further 
consideration be given to this issue. As the sub­
committees have concluded that the government 
should have waited beyond April 19· and continued 
to negotiate with the Davidians, inherent in that 
recommendation was that the HRT or some other 
tactical force should have remained at the resi­
dence. The FBI should ensure that the HRT is 
large enough to maintain a long standoff in the fu· 
ture, should the need arise, while also having the 
capacity to respond to another hostage or barri· 
cade situation elsewhere in the country during the 
standoff. . 

VIII. THE FIRE 
At 12:07 p.m., Central Standard Time, more 

than 6 hours after the FBI began to implement the 
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plan to end the standoff, fire was detected· inside ' 
the Branch Davidian residence. Within a period of 
2 minutes, two additional fires were detected in 
two other parts of the structure. In less than 8 
minutes the fire had spread throughout the strUc· 
ture. By the end of the afternoon, the structure 
was completely destroyed. . 

The subcommittees received testimony from the 
leader of a team of fire experts called together by 
the Texas Rangers to investigate the origins of the 
fire,eo1 a fire expert retained by the Justice De­
partment to join with the team assembled by the 
Texas Rangers,602 and an independent arson in· 
vestigator. · . 

During the testimony of these witnesses, the 
. subcommittees also reviewed videotape recordings 

of the development and spread of the fire. Included 
in this review was a videotape using '."forward 
looking infrared .. CFLIR) technology, which was . 
taken from an FBI observation plane circling the 
Branch Davidian residence throughout the morn­
ing and afternoon of April 19. The FLIR type of 
video, also called a Thermal Imaging System, is a 
type of video photography which images thermal 
heat sources. Be~ause of its sensitivjty to changes 
in the quantity of heat given off by an object the 
FLIR videotape showed the beginning of the fires 
within the Branch Davidian residence .Prior to the 
point· at which was the flames were visible to per· 
sons on the outside of the structure. Time lapse in· 
dicators on the video tape recordings were used by 
the witnesses to establish the times at which each 
fire within the Branch Davidian residence began. 

A. SUMMARY OF 11fE DEVELOPMENT OF THE FIRE 

During the hearings, James Quintiere, professor 
of Fire Protection Engineering at the University of 
Maryland and one of two fire experts retained by 
the Justice Department to join the fire review 
team assembled by the Texas Rangers, used the 
FLIR video tape to demonstrate the development 
of the fire on April 19. Dr. Quintiere's responsibil­
ities as a part of the Review Team were to analyze 
the development of the fire and draw interpret&· 
tions and conclusions from that analysis.eo3 In ad­
dition to reviewing the FLIR video, the fire inves­
tigation team reviewed television coverage of the 
fire by the Canadian Broadcasting Corp., which 
was also time dated, and television coverage of the 
fire ·by a local Waco television station. The team 
also reviewed aerial photographs and other mate­
rials. During his testimony to the subcommittees, 
Dr. Quintiere played a video tape that simulta­
neously played each of the three video tapes of the 
fire synchronized to the same time. 

The videotape demonstration showed that the 
first fire begadl at 12:07:42 p.m. As part of his tes· 

•• U.S. DepL o/ Juadce, Report kt the Deputy AUGrney CenenJ • 
Lhe Evenu at Waco, Tau 329 (1993) (hereinafter Jua&ic:e Oepmmea& 
Reaart). . 
---...Th.e tnlllivicluat. viaitecl tho acene ol the ftre • Apn112-24, 181113. 
Hearinp Part 3 at 119 (a&alement of Jamea Quindere). 
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timony to the subcommittees, Dr. Q~intiere nar· 
rated the videotape demonstration. As the first fire 
developed, Dr. Quintiere testified, 

If you look at this point here, you will 
see this window begin to tum slightly 
grayish, it does right now. Nine seconds 
later the window on the opposite side 
right here is going to also show _an illu· 
mination which is due to this temperature 
rise, and in my opinion that is due to 
smoke being transported from the fire 
started at one end of the room to the 
other end of the room. . • . The room was 
a second floor room approximately 16 x 11 
in dimensions and about 8 feet high, 
which is presumed to have been a bed­
room. One minute later the second fire be­
gins on the first floor at the rear of the 
dining room. 604 

Dr. Quintiere then described the development of 
the second fire. 

We are looking at the development of 
the fire in that bedroom area, the second 
floor right tower. What we are going to 
see here at 12:09:42, we will see an event 
known to people who investigate and 
study fire. That event is called flashover, 
and that is a point when we have a tran­
sition in this fire in which the fire goes 
from a discrete object that you could dis­
cern very readily burning in n room such 
as this to a point where flames now fill 
the room, and that transition can occur in 
seconds. It is known as flashover. Before 
that time the room might be survivable. 
· After that time it is definitely not, and 

now the fire is a threat to spreading to 
other rooms. 605 

Finally, Dr. Quintiere descnoed the inception of 
the third fire, which occurred on the first floor in 

.. the chapel area. 808 He also noted that 38 seconds 
··later _there emerged hot gases at a point 45 feet 

away from the point where the third fire began. 
He testified that this could have been a separately 
set, fourth fire, but that the development of this 
fire was consistent with someone placing a trail of 
gasoline or other liquid fuel between those two 
points and allowing the third fire to spread over 
that trail. ecn 

As Dr. 'Quintiere summarized his conclusions: 
If we can just pause at this point, you 

can aee the fire here, the· first fire. A 
minute later, a fire began in the dining 
room area, and a minute after that a fire 
began in this chapel. It has Qot burned · 
through the roof yet, but the ignition in 
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the debris area because of the wind has 
now propagated significantly over that de­
bris area. These are three distinct fires. 

From this information I can conclude 
that these three fires that occurred nearly 
1 minute apart were intentionally set 
from within the compound. Also, you have 
the time periods involved and the very 
discrete different locations. None of these 
three fires could have caused any of the 
others because their growth rates would 
not provide sufficient heating to cause 
such remote ignitions.eoa . 

The experts testified that they believed the fires 
were intentionally set by Branch Davidian mem­
bers in order to destroy the structure. 609 Support· 
ing this conclusion is that fact that the fire review 
team found that a number of accelerants were 
present in the structure. and on the clothing or 
some of the surviving Davidians, including gaso­
line, kerosene, Coleman fuel, and other 
accelerants.610 As Dr. Quintiere testified, 

Although normal furnishings and inte­
rior construction characteristics would 
provide a means for fire propagation, the 
more than usual rapid spread of these 
fires, especially in the dining room and 
the chapel areas, indicates to me that 
some form of accelerant was used to en­
courage to the rapid spread of these 
fires.6 11 

B. OTHER THEORIES CONCERNING THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE FIRE 

1. Whether the methylene chloride in the CS riot 
control agent used by· the FBI caused the fire 

One .of the theories forwarded to the subcommit· 
tees concerning the origin of the fire is that meth· 
ylene chloride, a chemical :used as a dispenant to 
carry the CS riot control agent injected into the 
Branch Davidian residence, may have ignited and 
started the fire. During the hearings Dr. Quintiere 
testified that it was his opinion that the methylene 
chloride in the CS agent neither caused nor con­
tributed to the spread of the fire. 

According to. Dr. Quintiere, methylene chloride, 
when a vapor in air, is flammable at ambient air 
levels of 12 percent or greater.8 12 This conclusion 
is supported by information provided by the manu­
facturers of methylene chloride.&13 The subcommit· 
tees review of the evidence presented indicates 
that the levels of methylene chloride present in 

.. ltL al.138. 
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the residenee on April 19 was far below this con· 
centration.814 ·Additionally, a spark, flame, or 
other source of heat is necessary for methylene 
chloride to ignite and a fireball-like event would 
have resulted. As Dr. Quintiere testified, 

In other words, anything above l2 per· 
cent to approximately 20 percent, it would 
be in the flammable range, and if we had 
a spark or a small match and if we had 
conditions like that, we would have a fire · 
propagating through the atmosphere 
much like a fireball. There was no obser· 
vation like that made for this fire.6 15 

The. only fireball which did occur took place well 
after the fires had engulfed the building, and was 
most likely due to the explosion of a canister of 
propane gas.&18 Accordingly, because there was no 
explosion prior to the beginning of the fire, there 
is no evidence that methylene chloride vapor 
present in the air caused the outbreak of the fire. 

Dr. Quintiere also noted that methylene chloride 
is generally in a liquid state and that as the meth· 

· ,. ylene chloride vapor condensed and fell in droplets 
to the floor of the structure after the CS was in· 
serted the methylene chloride generally would 
have evaporated. In some instances, however, the 
chemical could have collected in a puddle. He testi· 
tied that such a puddle would have been difficult 
to ignite due to the presenee of chlorine in the 
chemical. He testified that "in some sense [methyl· 
ene chloride] acts like an inhibitor.•en He further 
testified that. he conducted experiments using 
methylene chloride as a •wetting" agent by depos­
iting it on wood, paper, and other flammable ob­
jects that might have been found in the structure 
in an effort to determine whether the methylene 
chloride ·might have burned along with these 
items. As a result of these experiments, he con­
cluded •that the methylene chloride had no en· 
hancement effect on the fires spread over the room 
furnishings and other things that burned in the 
co~ pound." 618 

2. Whether the irritant chemical in the CS riot con· 
· · trol agent used by the FBI caused or contrib· 

uted to the spread of the fve 
At the hearings Dr. Quintiere· testified that he 

had reviewed the literature concerning the ignition 
point of· the chemical irritant in CS agent and 
noted that the temperature at which that chemical 
would ignite was comparable "to ·what we would 
find from most fuels around us. • 819 Based upon 

••• 8ft eectian VII F ollhJe l"epGG\. 
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his review of the literature, Dr. Quintiere tedtified 
that it was his opinion that the CS powder that is 
an active irritant in the riot control agent did not 
enhB:Dce the spread of the fire,820 

3. Whether the combat engineering vehicles used by 
· the FBI on April19 started the fire 
Some theories concerning the origin of the fire 

involve an explanation that one or the combat en· 
gineering vehicles used by the FBI to inject CS 
chemical agent and to demolish portions of the 
Branch Davidian residence may have actually 

· caused the fire, either intentionally or unintention· 
ally, 

At one. point in the video record of the operation 
.on April 19, a combat engineering vehicle is seen 
driving into a portion of the residence. The first 
fire begins in that same location shortly thereafter. 
Some have suggested that the CEV mighi have . 
overturned a lighted kerosene lantern inside the 
residence, causing the fire to begin. The fire that 
begins in that area, however, is not discemable in 
the FLIR video until 1821 During the hearings, Dr. 
Quintiere was questioned on the significance of 
this fact. 

Mr. SCHIFF: Well, if there were lanterns 
in use and if you had, either through vi­
brations of tanks hitting walls or through 
a number of people, panicking inside at 
what they might have perceived was an 
assault, notwithstanding the FBI broad· 
cast going to them, couldn't either or both 
or those factors easily overturned lanterns 
inside the compound? . 

Dr. QUINTIERE: Well, the only evidence 
or a tank being in the vicinity of one of 
the fires is the first fire, and that tank 
has not left. 1¥2 minutes after the fire has 
begun. If that tank knocked over a lan­
tern and the lantern were. lit, we would 
have seen it in that FLIR video because it 
would have been sensitive enough to see 
that. If the tank had spilled a lantern and 
there was no flame there to ignite it, 
that's possible, but somebody would have 
to come in and put a flame in that.au 

Some citizens have contacted the subcommittees 
to suggest that the combat engineering "vehicles 
used by the FBI at Waco carried flame throwing 
devices which were used to intentionally set the 
fires inside the Branch Davidian residence. During 
the hearings, the fire experts were questioned 
about this theory. 

Mr. SCHUMER: Another theory we have 
heard mentioned is that a flame thrower 
from the tanks started the fire. Now as I 
understand it, we would have to have 
seen on the FUR a hot streak going from 

_,d. 
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the tank to the building for th.at to hap· 
pen. . 

Dr. QUJNTIERE: Absolutely. 
Mr. ScHuMER: And we did not; is that 

correct? 
Dr. QUJNTIERE: Absolutely. · 
Mr. SCHUMER: So you are saying a 

flame. thrower from the tanks starting the 
fire-is that consistent-is that theory 
consistent with what we saw on the tape? 

Dr. QUJNTIERE: No, indeed. There was 
no such thing as a flame thrower on those 
vehicles. 823 

On another day of the hearings, a Defense Depart­
ment witness testified that all of the militaey vehi­
cles loaned by the Defense Department to the De­
partment of Justice and used at Waco were un­
armed. 824 Additionally, the subcommittees' inter· 
views with other persons present at the Branch 
Davidian residence on April 19 confirms that none 
of these vehicles was armed. 

C. WHETHER THE DA VIDIANS COULD HAVE LEFT 
THEIR RESIDENCE AFTER TBE FIRE BEGAN 

Throughout the morning of April 19, none of th~ 
Davidians left their residence. After the fire broke 
out, however, nine persons left the building.62& 
This indicates that at least some opportunity ex· 
isted for the Davidians to safely leave the struc· 
ture had they wanted to do so. One of those who 
escaped the fire left the residence almost 21 min· 
utes after the outbreak of the first fire. 828 Clearly, 
some means of escape from the residence existed 
for a significant period of time after the fire broke 
out. . 

An important question, however, is whether the 
Davidians might have been overcome by smoke 
.and prevented from. leaving the residence. The au­
topsies of the Davidians indicate that deaths from 
smoke inhalation or asphyxiation from carbon 
monoxide poisoning accounted for only half of the 
Davidians who died in the residence. The other 

. ,.causes of death were gunshot wounds, bums, or 
· · other trauma.· Thus,· even after the fires began to 

consume the structure, at least half of the 
Davidians were not so affected by the smoke and 
fumes from the fire that they were physically un· 
able to leave the structure. 

and autopsies indicates that the cause of" death of" 
several of the bodies at exit points were self-in­
flicted gunshot wounds or gunshotl from very close 
range. 

At the hearings before the subcommittees, Dr. 
Quintiere testified as to his opinion as to whether 
the Davidians could have left the stnlc:ture. He 
tesafied, · 

I've estimated • • • that the occupants 
would have had sufficient warning in no 
doubt (sic] that the fire occurred, and this 
would have enabled them to escape for up 
to five minutes from the start of that first 
fire or perhaps as many as 20 minutes in 
some protected areas of the buiJding. 

So between and ·interval of five minutes 
after the fire started and maybe as much 
as 20 minutes, a person could have es· 
caped from· some parts of the building. 828 

Pa1,1l Gray. Assistant Chief of the Houston Fire 
Department and leader of the fire review team as­
sembled by the Texas Rangers, agreed with this 
opinion,"' would take an educated guess of about 
20 to 22 minutes from the inception of the fire, 
from the first ignition that there may have been 
some viable conditions inside the building."829 As 
the report of the team led by Gray su.mmarized, 

[AJ great many of the occupants could 
have escaped to the outside of the 
compound even as the building 
burned .• ~ • [C]onsidering the observabl.e 
means of exit available, we must assume 
that many of the occupants were either 
denied escape from within or refused to 
leave until escape was not an option.83o 

In light of this evidence, the subcommittees con· 
elude that there was a period of time after the 
fires began within which the Davidians could have 
escaped the residence. The evidence presented to 
the subcommittees indicates that the Davidians 
did not· attempt to leave the building during the 
fire. In light of the Davidians' religious beliefs that 
fire would play a part in the end of their worldly 
lives, the subcommittees conclude that most of the 
Davidians either did not attempt to leave their 
residence during the fire or were prevented from 
escaping by other Davidians. Had they made such 
an attempt and not been hindered in the attempt, 
however, conditions were such that for sufficient 
period of time after the fires broke out many of the 

Additionally 1 the location or the bodies. Of the 
Davidians indicates that few of the Davidian& ac· 
tually attempted to escape the building. Many of 
the bodies were huddled together in locations in 
the center of the building. 621 Few of the bodies 
were located at points of exit from the building, 

· Davidians could have survived. 
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D. THE FBI'S Pl..ANNtNG.FOR 11IE FIRE 

Aecording to the Justice Department Report, at 
a meeting in early April, one of the government at­
torneys raised the possibility of fire · at the 
compound and . suggested to the FBI that •fire 
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fighting equipment be placed on stancp,y on the 
scene.• su Additionally, the Medical Annex to the 

·operations plan for April 19, which listed the loca­
tions of --primary" and "secondary" hospitals in the 
area noted that local hospitals should not be used 
to treat mlijor bums but that one of the secondary 
hospitals was "primary for major bums." 

According to the Justice Department Report, the 
FBI decided to not have fire fighting equipment at 
the scene "for fear that they would be fired upon 
by Koresh and his followers." 632 Yet shortly after 
the reports oC fire, the FBI command post . re­
quested fire fighting assistance be requested. The 
first fire fighting vehicles arrived in the vicinity 20 
minutes later and, at 12:41 p.m., approached the 
structure. In total, the fire crews did not reach the 
structure until 31 minutes after the fire had first 
been reported.633 The report also asserts that Jef­
frey Jamar, the FBI's on-scene commander at 
Waco, stated to Justice Department officials dur­
ing the their internal investigation of the incident 
that "even if the fire fighters had arrived at the 
compound earlier he would not have permitted 
them to enter due to the great risk to their 
lives.•s:w · 

The subcommittees do not dispute the Justice 
Department's position that at the outbreak of the 
fire it would have been dangerous for fire fighters 
to approach the structure. Yet, the subcommittees 
find it troubling that even though the government 
clearly believed there existed a strong possibility 
of fire, no provision was made for fire fighting 
units to be on hand, even as a precaution. If, as 
the Justice Department's Report implies, the gov­
ernment bad decided in advance that it would not 
attempt to fight any fire that occurred (and thus 
did not make provision for fire fighting units to be 
present at the compound), it is difficult to under· 
stand why the FBI placed a call for fire fighting 
units to be . summoned to the scene immediately 
upon the commencement of the fire. . . 

E. FINDINGS CONCERNING THE FIRE 

1. The evidence indicates that some of the 
Davidian& intentionally set the f"U"es inside · 
the DavidiBD residence. While the evidence is 
not dispositive, the. evidence presented to the sub­
committees suggests that some of the Davidian& 
set the fires that destroyed their residence. The 
evidence demonstrated that three distinct fires 
began in three separate parts of the Branch· 
Davidian residence within a 2 minute period on 
April 19. Additionally, the fire review team found 
that a number of accelerants were present in the 
structure, including gasoline, kerosene, and Cole­
man fuel, and that in at least one instance these 
accelerants contributed to the spread of the fire in 

• 11tl. at302 • 
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a manner that indicates an intentfon to sp~~d the' 
fire. 

2. The methylene chloride in the CS riot 
control agent used by the FBI did not cause 
the ·fire. There is no evidence that methylene 
chloride vapor in the air in the residence, present 
as the result of its use as a disbursant for the CS 
riot control agent, caused the outbreak of the fire. 
The evidence presented to the subcommittees indi· 
cated that for the methylene chloride to have 
burned some spark must have ignited the methyl­
ene chloride vapor and that a fireball would have 
resulted. Because no fireball was observed until 
well after the fire had become established, the sub­
committees conclude that methylene chloride did 
not cause the fire. · · 

3. The subcommittees conclude that Fed· 
eral law enforcement agents did not inten• 
tionally set . the r.re. The evidence before the 
subcommittees clearly demonstrates that no fire 
began at or near the time when any of the combat 
engineering vehicles used by the FBI came into 
contact with the structure~ Had a flamethrower or 
similar device been installed on one of the CEV's 
and used to start the fire its use would have been 
observable in the infrared videotape of the fire. No 
such use is recorded on the that videotape. Accord­
ingly, the subcommittees conclude that the FBI 
did not use any of the CEV's intentionally to cause 
~efi~ . · 

4. The subcommittees ·conclude that Fed· 
erallaw enforcement agents did not uninten· 
tionally cause the fire. The evidence presented 
to the subcommittees suggests that it is highly un­
likely that Federal law enforcement officials unin­
_tentionally caused the fires to occur. The evidence 
demonstrates that the fires broke out at points in 
time when no vehicle used by the FBI was in con­
tact with the structure or had been in contact with 
the structure immediately. prior to those points. 
Because . this would have been the case had these 
vehicles inadvertently caused the fires to break 
out by disturbing flammable materials inside the 
Davidian residence, the subcommittees conclude 
that it is highly unlikely that the vehicles inad· 
vertently caused the fires to occur. 

&. The FBI should have made better prep• 
arations to fight the f"~re. While it may have 
been too dangerous to fight ·the fire when it ini· 
tially erupted, it remains unknown as to whether 
it might have been safe for fire fighters to ap­
proach the building at some point earlier than the 
half hour later when they were aUowed access. 
While fire fighting efforts might not have extin· 
guished the fire, they could have delayed the 
spread of the fire or provided additional safe 
means of escape for some of the Davidians. It also 
does not· appear as though the FBI considered ob­
taining armored fire-fighting vehicles from the 
military. In any event, given the government's 
strong belief that a fire might take place, and its 
action in summoning fire fighting units to the 
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scene, the subcommittees conclude that the FBI 
should have made better provision for the presence 
·of fire fighting equipment as part of its overall 
plan to end the standoff. 

6. The Davidian& could have escaped the 
residence even after the f"U"e began. After the 
fire broke out on April 19, nine persons left the 
Davidian ·residence. This indicates that at least 
some opportunity existed for the Davidians to safe· 
ly leave the structure had they wanted to do so. As 
one person left the structure 21 minutes after the 
outbreak of the first fire, some means of escape 
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from the ·residence existed for a significant period 
of time after the fire broke out. The autopsies of 
the Davidians indicate that many of the Davidians 
were not so affected by the smoke and fumes from 
the fire that they were physically unable to leave 
the structure. Additionally, the location of the bod· 
ies of the Davidians indicates that few of the 
Davidians actually attempted to escape the build· 
ing. In light of this evidence, the subcommittees 
conclude that there was a period of time aft.er the 
fires began within which the Dayidians could have 
escaped the residence. 
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ADDITIONAL VIEWS OF HON. ILEANA ROB-LEHTINEN . 

For the record, while I agree with the Waco-spe­
cific conclusions in the report, I want to note that 
Janet Reno has had a distinguished career in pub­
lic service beginning in 1971 with the Judiciary 
Committee of the Florida House of Representa­
tives. Her record of service and history of public 
integrity is long and worthy of additional com­
ment. From the Florida House, she held positions 
with a State Senate committee, Dade County State 
Attorney's Office, was eventually appointed State 
Attorney for Dade County and elected to the posi­
tion for five· consecutive terms, culminating in her 
present position as Attorney General of the United 
States~ 
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Ms. Reno is Widely respected as a woman of in· · 
tegrity and a selfless public servant. Indicative of 
her sincerity, she took complete responsibility and 
offered her resignation for the actions of Federal 
agencies toward the Branch Davi~ans near Waco, 
TX in 1993, after serving only a month as Attor· 
ney General. Ms. Reno has endeavored to improve 
the U.S. Justice. System as shown by h~r recent 
and complementary handling of the Montana Siege 
which ended in a peaceful resolution. Her leader· 
ship in. the Department of Justice has, in my view, 
since Waco been of considerable benefit to the citi· 
zens ofthe United States. 

BoN. ILEANA Ros-LEHTINEN. 
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ADDITIONAL VIEWS OF HON. WILLIAM H. ZELIFF, JR. 

In response to concerns raised by two members 
of the minority at the committee mark-up, I want 
to set the record straight regarding the extensive 
majority efforts to cooperate With the minority 
throughout the entire investigative process. 

First, the subcommittees made an unprece­
dented attempt at genuine accommodation in hold­
ing 10 days of investigative bearings. In a conces­
sion that had no apparent precedent during prior 
Congresses, the majority accepted 9~ of the wit- · 
nesses suggested by the Democrats. 

Second, minority members were invited on key 
fact-finding trips, such as to Waco itself. 

Third, the majority shared all available docu-· 
ments, set up a document room accessible to all 
staff, and shared all indexes received to those doc· 
uments; 'by contrast the majority subsequently 
learned that the minority .staff received and inten­
tionally withheld from majority staff the key 

· Treas~ry Department index to tens of thousands of 
documents. This minority tactic led to the unnec· 
essary expenditure of tens of hours of indexing by 
the majority prior to being able to use the docu­
ments they received. As another indication of the 
difficulties the majority facted, two Democrat staff. 
ers apparently met secretly with the Texas Rang-

. ers and told them that they should not or did not 
need to honor subpoenas issued by the majority; 
these kinds of obfuscatory tactics during and prior 
to the hearings did not enhance majority-minority 
cooperation. . 

Fourth, the appendix to. 'this report consists 
. ..- largely of documents that are in the public domain 

from the hearings, or are otherwise available to 
the minority; we have never had a request to see 
these documents, and we know that most were 
separately sent to the minority staff by the depart-

~- ments themselves; accordingly, complaints about 
not seeing the appendix ring hollow. 

Fift.h, the 10 footnotes missing from the distrib­
uted draft are either in documents the minority al­
ready have or are merely ids or ibids to documents 
already once cited elsewhere in the report's other 
600 footnotes. 

Sixth, the post-hearing investigation consisted 
largely of asking for documents that the majority 
had already asked for on June 5, 1995, and never 
received from the departments; interrogatories 
that pertained to ·unanswered he&:ring questions; 
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and issues first raised at the hearings or inter· 
views. There were no surprises in these requests. 

Seventh, the press conference held on the day 
the report was distributed to Members simply 
made available the recommendations · of the two 
subcommittee chairmen to the respective sub­
committees and committees, and the summary­
well within the. House Rules-was made available 
to the minority at the same time. Ironically, the 
week prior to the business meeting, one of my 
staffers received a call from the Justice Depart­
ment in which the Department indicated that they 
had received-presumably from a minority staff 
member or member-a copy of the whole Waco re­
port. For the record, that is a clear and unequivo­
cal violation of Rule 4, if any majority member had 
wished raise it-and when asked for a chance to 
correct facts that might be unclear or wrong, the 
department made no such proffer. In fact, they 
never sent any corrections whatsoever, despite five · 
follow-up telephone calls to get fact corrections. 

Eighth, cooperation with the departments was, 
frankly, an exercise in extreme patience; the ma­
jority even had to suffer having . the Secretary of 
Treasury calling Democrats and telling them not 
to ask any embarrassing questions at the hear· 
ings. Surely, that is not the proper reaction to con· 
gressional oversight, and it is not consistent with 
President Clinton's promises of full cooperation. In 
a further example of unjustifiable manipulation, 
the Treasury Department also flew the Texas 
Rangers who were going to testify to Washington 
ahead of time and at taxpayer expense-to brief 
them for 2 days on. what they should say. In my 
view, there can be little question that that action 
was patently offensive to both the word and spirit 
of cooperation. · 

Ninth, the majority has actually allowed the n'li· 
nority four times the amount of time normally al· 
lowed-and under House rules required-to review 
a report prior to a business meeting. On balance, 
I believe the record will show clearly that the en· 
tire investigative process was conduCted not only 
patiently, inclusively, exhaustively and with an ex· 
traordinary emphasis on cooperation, but with an 
incontrovertible premium on fairness. In fact, I . 
know of no set of investigative hearings or report 
that has ever been conducted with this level of in· 
elusiveness, cooperation, or fairness. 

HoN. WtLUAM H. ZELIFF, JR. 
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THE SUBMISSION BY HON. STEvEN SCHIFF, OF.THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON NATIONAL 
SECURITY, INTERNATIONAL. AFFAIRS, AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE OF THE COMMIT· 
TEE ON GOVERNMENT REFORM AND OVERSIGHT, OF EXTRANEOUS MATERIAL 
PROVIDED TO HIM BY HON. BOB BARR, OF THE SUBCOMMI'ITEE ON CRIME OF 
THE COMMITI'EE ON THE JUDICIARY 

The hearings into the 1993 Waco tragedy, con­
ducted .jointly in June 1995 by the Crime Sub­
committee of the House Committee on the Judici· 
ary and the Subcommittee on National Security, 
International Affairs, and Criminal Justice, of the 
House Committee on· Government Reform and 
Oversight, was a painful expose of perhaps the 
greatest Jaw enforcement tragedy in American his­
tory. Yet, it was a necessary exercise, because it 
gave those of us on the subcommittees, and all 
Americans, the opportunity to examine why it hap­
pened and to at least begin to implement steps to 
avoid a recurrence of the tragedy. It would not be 
a significant overstatement to describe the Waco 
operation from the Government's standpoint, as 
one in which if something could go wrong, it did. 
The true tragedy is, virtually all of those mistakes 
could have been avoided. 

After nearly 2 weeks of hearings, the sub­
committees closed down the proceedings, and 
moved on to other business. Now, over a year 

-later, we have a· report. While the report contains 
many conclusions that I believe are accurate and 
appropriate, along with several important rec· 
ommendations, it fails to ·address several ex· 
tremely important matters that came to light dur· 
ing the hearings and which deserve far more scru· 
tiny than accorded heretofore. 

I would hope that in the next Congress, followup 
hearings are held, and legislative measures intro· 
du_ced and passed. Avoiding tragedies such as 
Waco ought to be a top priority for the .Congress 
and the administration. 

Rather than. repeat al1 the conclusions and rec· 
ommendations of the report, many of which I 
agree with (especially those concerning the ATF, 
the Treasury Department failure to monitor, and 
the decisionmaking at the FBI and the top levels 
of the Justice Department), I will note those with 
which I have serious disagreement, from my per­
spective as a Crime Subcommittee member, as a 
former U.S. attorney, and as a citizen deeply con· 
cerned with the militarization of domestic law en­
forcement and the lack of accountability by Fed· 
eral law .enforcement. 

MILITARIZATION OF LAW ENFORCEMENT 

Law enforcement officials have long been re· 
quired to abide by the BilJ of Rights, enshrined in 
our Constitution. These principles underlie vir­
tua11y everything they do in their capacity as offi~ 
cers sworn. to protect our citizens; and they limit 
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what they can do in fulfilling their specific respon· 
sibilities. 

However, with ,the phenomenal growth in the 
power of the Federal Government, touching vir· 
tually every facet of our lives-persona), business, 
educational, government, religious, recreational, 
etc.-there has developed a mentality on the part 
of law enforcement that they can do anything and 
not be held accountable for it. Along with this we 
have witnessed the development of a militaristic 
approach to domestic law ·enforcement, in every· 
thing from dress (black military uniforms and bel· 
mets), to equipment (armored vehicles and mili· 
tary surplus helicopters), to outlook, to execution. 

Our armed forces, in carrying out their mission 
to protect and project our national interests 
abroad, are not bound by the constitutional re­
straints placed on domestic law enforcement. This 
reflects the significant differences between con­
ducting domestic law enforcement operations, and 
conducting warfar~ overseas. In a war situation, 
our armed forces do not and should not have to 
give 111Miranda" warnings before shooting the 
enemy; they need not have "probable cause" before 
an attack. Domestically, our law enforcement offi· 
cers must do these things. 

Unfortunately, we saw in the Waco tragedy one 
logical result of the blurring of lines between do­
mestic law enforcement . and military operations: 
an operation carried out pursuant to a strategy de­
signed to demolish an "enemy," utilizing tactics de­
signed to cut off avenues of escape, drive an enemy 
out, and run roughshod over. the 111niceties" of car· 
ing for the rights of those involved. The protesta· 
tions of the Attorney General to the contrary, that 
she authorized the injection of debilitating CS gas 
into closed . interior quarters with no ventilation 
where dozens of women and children were con· 
centrated, out of concern for the children do not 
match the Government's actions. While· the report 
reflects this view to some extent, I believe very 
firm steps must be taken to •demilitarize" Federal 
domestic law enforcement, through substantive 
legislation and funding restrictions. 

POSSE COMITATUS AND MILrrARY INvOLVEMENT 

While the report touches on the issue of military 
involvement in this operation, focusing primarily 
on disingenuous steps taken by the civilian law en· 
forcement agencies in order to obtain military as· 
sistance without paying for it, my concerns go 
deeper. 
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I seriously question the role of military officers 
being involved in strategy sessions, on sight •ob­
servers" and the presence of foreign military per· 
sonnel, and the use of military equipment such as 
annored vehicles. Contrary to the conclusion of the 
report, I am not convinced that the separation be· 
tween military operations and domestic law en­
forcement, codified in the U.S. Code's "Posse Com­
itatus" provisions, was not violated in the Waco 
operation. · 

HO!rrAGE REscuE TEAMs) 

During the questioning of Attorney General 
Reno on the last day of the hearings, I asked her. 
what specific steps had been taken by the Govern· 
ment to ensure that another Waco would not 
recur. The only specific step the Attorney General 
cited to me in response to my question, was that 
the "Hostage Rescue Teams" (HRTs) had been ex· 
panded. The report agrees that HRTs should be 
expanded. I disagree. 

In my view, based on the Waco incident (and 
others), part of the problem is the HRTs them­
selves; they are relied on too heavily, and are used 
in circumstances in which no hostages are present, 
or which do not lend themselves to HRT tactics. 
Rather than expanding the size and use of HRTs, 
I believe they ought to be more carefully cir­
cumscribed, controlled and scaled back. 

FLIRTAPES AND WHAT THEY Snow 

Forward Looking Infrared Radar (FLIR) was 
used by the Government, in cameras aboard heli­
copters and planes flying over the Branch 
Davidian compound on the day of the final assault. 
Portions of the FLIR tapes were shown at the 
hearings; these were under the control of the Gov­
ernment. Of course, the Government used the 
tap.es to buttress its arguments that no shots were 
fired on April 19 {the day of the assault on the 
compound) from outside the . compound into the 
compound, and that the fire that destroyed the 
compound was not started from the outside or by 
the Government vehicles. 

Given the severe limitations on questioning by 
subcommittee members, and the inability to truly 
review and analyze the Government's evidence, I 
do not agree with the conclusions in the report 
that the evidence clearly establishes the Govern­
ment's position on these issues. 

On further examination of FLIR tapes, after the 
hearings, and in discussions with private parties 
who have reviewed the tapes, I believe sufficient 
questions have been raised to warrant further 
study of these two issues: were there shots fired 
from outside the compound into the compound ·on 
April 19th, and were the fires started-inten· 
tionally or unintentionally-by the annored mili· 
tary vehicles or personnel therein? 

Unlike the report, I do not dismiss out of hand 
the civilian analyses of these tapes and other evi· 
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dence. (On a related issue, I also believe furthe"r 
study ought to be made, and additional evidence 
examined, concerning the cause of the explosion 
that occurred during the fire on April 19.) 

USE OFCS GAS 

The Government's use of CS gas in the manner 
it did, that is, clearly designed to incapacitate 
men, women and children in a confined, 
unventilated space, after avenues of escape had 
been deliberately cut off, was unconscionable; as 
was the cursory manner in which the Government, 
and especially Attorney General Reno "bought 
into" the conclusory and simplistic analyses that 
the ·use of CS gas posed an .. acceptable" level of 
~~ . 

The fact is, while experts may~nd did-differ 
over the precise effects of CS gas on children, or 
how and in what ways the use of CS gas might act 
as a catalyst for a fire, no rational person can con­
clude that the use ·of CS gas under any cir· 
cumstances against children, would do anything 
other than cause extreme physical problems and 
possibly death .. 

For the Government of this country to con· 
sciously use CS gas in the way it .did on April 19, 
1993 in Waco is utterly indefensible and should 
never be allowed to be repeated.. I believe the 
deaths of dozens of men, women and children can 
be directly and indirectly attributable to the use of 
this gas in the way it was injected by the FBI. 
. I would go further than the report, and call for 

a prohibition on the use of CS gas in situations in 
which children or the elderly are present or are 

. the targets .. 

THE FmE 

While the report concludes that the evidence 
clearly establishes that the fire that eventually 
consumed the Branch Davidian structure was 
started inside by the Davidians, I think that the 
most that can be said is that the fire may have 
been started inside, and even if it did, the evidence 
that it was deliberately set is inconclusive. I be· 
lieve there is also the possibility that the fire, or . 
at least some of the fires, may have been caused 
as a result of the demolishing efforts of the ar· 
mored military vehicles. While there is no direct 
evidence that the fire was started from the out· 
side, further study {of the FLIR tapes, for exam· 
ple) ought to be conducted. · 

EscAPE 
The report concludes that there was opportunity 

for the Davidian& to escape. While obviously this is 
true-a handful did escape the maelstrom-! con· 
clude there was no opportunity for the vast major· 
ity of the Davidians to have any hope of escape,· 
because of the Government's tactics the morning of 
the 19th of April. 
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Essentially, the U:se of the amiored vehicles, me­
thodically smashing down portions of the building, 
cutting off avenues of escape (for example, smash· 
ing the walls down to cover the "escape" hatch to 
the tunnel out of the main building), intimidated 
the inhabitants into seeking •safety" in the one se­
cure part of the structure (the concrete "bunker" in 
the center). With massive quantities of CS gas 
pumped into this area, it virtually guaranteed that 
most inhabitants would be incapacitated; which 
they were, and they died in the ensuing fire be­
cause of the incapacitating effects of the CS gas 
and the cutting oa: of escape routes. 

BREACH OF Ennes AND POSSIBLE 0BSTRU.CTJON 

One area of inquiry which I pursued during the 
hearings involved what clearly are breaches of eth· 
ics, and possible obstruction of justice by Govern· 
ment attorneys and investigators .. This aspect of 
the hearings is completely overlooked by the re­
port. Government documents clearly show delib­
erate efforts by Government attorneys to stop the 

. collection of evidence and possibly cover up evi­
dence the Government did not want to be available 
later on. While the Department of Justice went so 
far as to issue a news release during the hearings, 
to refute my conclusions, I consider it extremely 
serious; especially when considered with evidence 
that two of the ATF agents first disciplined and 
fired and then later reinstated. and records sealed, 
to raise very troubling questions of ethical viola­
tions at best and obstruction at worst. Attorneys 
who testified· at the hearings also raised serious 

· concerns about the attitude and policies reflected 
in these documents. · 

Documents explicitly showed that "DOJ [Depart· 
ment of Justice] does not want Treasury to con· 
duct any interviews . . . [that might] generate 
. . . material or oral statements which could be 
used for impeachment" of Government witnesses, 
and that hopefully if such material is not · gath­
ered, "the passage of time will dim memories." 
(Memorandum from Treasury Assistant General 
Counsel for Enforcement, dated April 14, 1993.) 

Earlier, on March 1, 1993, in interview notes, 
the ATFs initial "shooting review" of the February 
28, 1993 initial assault at which time ATF agents 
fired their weapons, the ATF is advised to "stop 
the ATF shooting review because ATF was creat­
ing Brady material." (Note: .. Brady" material is 
evidence that would tend to establish innocence or 
which could be used in mitigation of guilt.) 

In handwritten notes, taken at some point dur· 
ing the siege, Government attorney Ray Jahn di· 
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rects that interviews ·.are to stop because exeul­
patoty statements may be generated. . 

This pattern of activity to deliberately avoid col­
lection of relevant evidence, because it might tend 
to establish a person's innocence, or, as is appar­
ent from other documents, might embarrass the 
ATF, raises vety troubling. questions to say the 
least, about· the interests of the Government in es­
tablishing the truth and in seeing that justice is 
done. Neither goal would be met under the cir­
cumstances evidenced by these. documents. That 
the Department of Justice casually dismisses these 
concerns should be of concern to the Congress and 
to the people of this country. 

COMMITI'EE RULES AND RESTRICTIONS 

The procedures under which these hearings 
were conduCted ·did not lend themselves to ade­
quate inquity. Important evidence was not avail­
able because of tactics by the Government and mi· 
nority members of the subcommittees to keep evi­
dence out of our hands; such as the \1Veapons taken 
by the Government from the burned Davidian 
compound. We were never able to test the weapons 
to establish whether they were in fact unlawfu.J 
weapons as the Government charged (which pro­
vided a primal)' justification for the Government's 
initial action against Koresh and the Branch 
Davidians). 

The method of· questioning employed-in 5-
.minute increments, alternating back and forth be­
tween majority and minority-with no comity from 
the minority to provide bOth sides with longer pe· 
riods within which to question, lent itself to a sce­
nario whereby savvy witness (most Government 
witnesses are very familiar with how to answer 
questions and stall so as to use up large segments 
of the questioner's time) were able, time and 
again, to minimize or completely .neutralize the · 
member's ability to obtain answers to questions.· 

Starting out at the mercy of the minority to con­
trol and minimize the majority's ability to effee· · 
tively question and elicit timely, forthcoming and 
nondilatory responses, set the stage for hearings 
much less productive than these could have been. 
Some exploration of instituting other methods of 
conducting investigative hearings ought . to be ex· 
plored. Moreover, many wit~esses who simply did 
not answer members' questions, were allowed to 
escape with dilatory or nonresponsive i.actics; 
which again limited the p~ductivity of the hear· 
ings. 
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CONCLUSIONS 

Despite the severe limitations in procedure, and 
the other matten noted above, these hearings 
were extremely valuable; perhaps historic. They 
resulted in very important evidence which, if prop­
erly followed-up, can help establish, throu~ laws, 
regulations, and procedures, more effect1ve and 
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more accountable Federal law enforcemenL How-· 
ever, that follow up has not yet occurred, and 
many troubling questions, some going to the very 
integrity of the Government's actions and person· 
nel, remain. These hearings in June 1995 should 
be viewed not as the conclusion of the efforts by 
the Congress . to get· to the bottom of the Waco 
tragedy, but the beginning of that process. 

HoN. STEVEN SCHD"F. 
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ADDITIONAL VIEWS OF HON. TOM LANTOS 

I welcome the dissenting views on the majority 
report, which I have signed with a large number 
of my colleagues. That statement points out clearly 
the many serious deficiencies of the majority re­
port. 

One issue, which is completely igno~d in the 
majority report but which was raised at the titne 
of the original hearings and which is raised in the 
dissenting views which I have signed, is the issue 
of the highly questionable involvement of an out­
side interest group-the National Rifle Associ&· 
tion-in the investigation which preceded the 
hearing. · 

It is my view that this issue deserves greater at­
tention and investigation. The active involvement 
of an outside organization in a subcommittee in­
vestigation raises the most fundamental questions 
about the integrity of the entire investigation, and 
the failure to address this important matter is a 
fundamental flaw of the majority report. 

The outside organization-the National Rifle As· 
sociation CNRA)-is not a disinterested third party. 
That organization and its leaders have made it 
clear that they had a particular point of view on 
the matters being considered by the subcommittee. 
Members of the subcommittee repeatedly urged 
the chairman of the subcommittee to investigate 
these matters, and the chairman has repeatedly 
refused to do so. In the interest of fairness and in­
tegrity, it is important that these issues be made 
part of this report. 
· The first matter is the subcommittee majority's 
use of outside "experts" to test firearms. These "ex­
perts" were contracted for and paid for (at a cost 
of some $25,000) by the National Rifle Association. 
Furthermore, the chairman of the subcommittee 
and members of the majority staff initially tried to 
cover-up the involvement of the National Rifle As­
sociation, and majority staff even refused to iden­
tify to officials_ of the U.S. Department of Justice 
the name of the outside advocacy group which se-
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lected and paid for the outside experts. Further­
more, in conversation with Justice Department of· 
ficials, majority staff admitted _that the so~called 
"experts" in fact had no expertise whatsoever in 
firearms testing. Later, during the course of the 
hearings the involvement of the National Rifle As­
sociation in this case did become public. 

The second issue is the matter of an employee of 
the National Rifle Association identifying herself 
as a member of the subcommittee staff to at least 
one individual who was called to testify before the 
subcommittee. Furthermore, two witnesses testi· 
fied under oath during the hearings that they were 
contacted by an employee of the National Rifle As· 
sociation prior to testifying at the hearing. This 
raises serious questions about witness tampering. 
Again this issue was not investigated by the sub­
committee chairman and is not dealt with in the 
majority report. 

Both of these instances regarding the involve­
ment of the National Rifle Association in the con· 
gressional hearing and investigative process not 
only raise questions about the ethical behavior of 
the majority staff, but also may be a violation of 
the law. This issue was raised in a July 17, 1995, 
letter from Congressman John Conyers, Jr., and 
Congress~an Charles E. Schumer to the chairman 
of the Judiciary Committee and the chairman of 
the Government Reform and Oversight Committee. 
The instances of the National Rifle Association 
providing valuable services to the subcommittee 
may have violated the law and the Rules of the 
House. This issue should have been investigated 
and resolved. It was not. 

The refusal of the . subcommittee chairman and 
the majority to investigate these issues fully and 
openly--despite repeated requests by me and other 
Members who participated in the hearings-raises 
the most fundamental questions about the integ· 
rity of the majority report as well as the hearing 

·and investigation conducted by the subcommittee. 
. HoN. ToM LANTos. 
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DISSENTING VIEWS OF HON. CARDISS COLLINS, HON. KAREN L. THURMAN, HON. 
HENRY A. WAXMAN, HON. TOM LANTOS, HON. ROBERT E. WISE, JR., HON. MAJOR 
R. OWENS, HON. EDOLPHUS TOWNS, HON. LOUISE M. SLAUGHTER, HON. PAUL E. 
KANJORSKI, HON. CAROLYN B. MALONEY, HON. THOMAS M. BARRE'IT, HON. BAR· 
BARA-ROSE COLLINS, HON .. ELEANOR HOLMES NORTON, HON. JAMES P. MORAN, 
HON. CARRIE P. MEEK, HON. CHAKA FATTAH, AND HON. ELIJAH E. Ct.!.MMINGS 

The text of the majority report entitled •Inves-· 
tigation into the Activities. of Federal Law Enforce·· 
ment Agencies Toward the Branch Davidians" is 
based on 10 days of hearings (July 19-August 2, 
1995) jointly held by the Committee on Govern­
ment Refonn and Oversight's Subcommittee on 
National Security, Criminal Justice, and Inter· 
national Affairs and the Committee on the Judi­
ciary's Subcommittee on Crime. During those 
hearings, the committees heard testimony from 
over 90 witnesses and viewed voluminous photo­
graphic, video and documentary exhibits concern· 
ing the events at Waco. 

Throughout those hearings, the minority repeat· 
edly insisted that no new facts or evidence 
emerged as a result of this extensive investigation. 
The majority report proves that basic point. 

The text of the report agrees with recommend&· 
tiona and positions taken as a result of the 1993 
Department of Justice and the 1993 Department of 
the Treasury investigations of the Waco incident. 
The report agrees that the tragedy at Waco would 
not have occurred but for the criminal conduct and 
aberrational behavior of David Koresh. The report 
also confinns a number of other important points 
emphasized by the minority during the hearings: 
that there was probable cause to issue warrants to 
search the premises and arrest David Koresh; that 
the milital')' assistance received by ATF did not 
violate Posse Comitatus; that planning and intel· 
ligence operations prior to the raid were inad­
equate; that the Branch Davidians started the fire 
on April 19, 1993; that Koresh and his followers 
had ample time to leave the compound after the 
fire started; and that the amount of tear gas the 
FBI used was far below the quantities that would 

. have been required to cause injury or death. These 
are not new discoveries revealed as a result of the 
majority's investigation, but previously known 
findings which the ~ajority h~s fina1ly accepted. 

While we accept those findings in the majority 
report that are largely duplicative of the rec­
ommendations contained in previous Department 
of Treasury and Department of Justice investiga· 
tions, we. reject the false assumptions and un· 
founded allegations raised by the majority's report. 
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The report is fundamentally flawed in a number of 
important areas. In an effort to correct those flaws 
and provide clarity to facts obfuscated by the rna-. 
jority report, we in the minority file these Dissent-. 
ing Views to address basic factual errors, resolve 
internal contradictions, meliorate certain defi· 
ciencies and express our disagreement with certain 
original recommendations made by the majority 
report. AdditionalJy, we wish to express strong:dis· 
agreement with the majority's unfair criticism of 
Treasury Secretary Bentsen and their call for the 
resignation of Attorney General Reno. 

The majority report suffers from several defi· 
ciencies. First, the findings reached are not sup· 
ported by the hearing record or other evidence. 
The text of the report states that the Davidians 
started the fire, however the findings conclude 
that the evidence is not dispositive on the question 
of who started the fire. 

Second, the report is internally inconsistent. For 
example, while critical of the FBI for failing to 
consult those outside of its control during the ne· 
gotiations, it then commends the FBI for allowing 
lawyers representing the Davidians to enter the 
compound and conduct several hours of discussions 
with their clients. Clearly, these attorneys were 
not controlled or directed by the FBI. Their .efforts 
to end the standoff were discussed by the majority 
report. 

Third, the report omits important evidence from 
the hearings. At no point does the report discuss 
the allegations of child physica~ and sexual abuse 
perpetrated by David Koresh. Additionally, the re­
port fails to mention the riveting testimony of Kiri 
Jewell who testified at the hearings concerning 
Koresh' sexual molestation ofher when she was 10 
years old. Instead the report dismisses the crimi­
nal conduct of David Koresh by summarily stating 
the Koresh was not subject to congressional over· 
sight. . 

Fourth, the report reflects a willingness to be­
lieve Koresh over· Federal law enforcement officers 
and personnel. For instance, the report asserts 
that Koresh's lawyers negotiated a credible surren­
der agreement. However, Federal law enforcement 
personnel on the advice of psychiatric and Unguis-

z 0038829 



tic experts determined that the •agreement" was a 
continuation of prior manipulative stalling tactics. 
The report ignores no fewer than four prior in· 
stances in which Koresh reneged on promises that 
he and his followers would leave the compound. 
Moreover, the report ignores that Koresh did not 
state a time certain for surrender and bad not al­
lowed anyone to leave the compound for 3 weeks 
prior to the "agreement• or 5 days following the 
agreement. 

The mlijority report criticizes Secretary Bentsen 
for failing to take an active role in preraid plan· 
ning but ignores testimony and evidence presented 

. at the hearing which conclusively showed that 
under the structure that existed at the time, the 
ATF exercised independence in planning and im· 
plementation of enforcement actions. This struc· 
ture existed under several administrations. Sec· 
retary Bentsen's post-Waco order changed the 
structure to require additional oversight by main 
Treasury. 

Additionally, the majority report calls for Attor· 
ney General Janet Reno's resignation because of 
her decision to allow the insertion of CS tear gas. 
Attorney General Reno stated during the hearings 
that the decision to use tear gas was a difficult one 
but all those consulted who had personal knowl­
edge or professional expertise agreed that the use 
of tear gas was the only way to compel the Branch 
Davidians to leave the compound without use of 
force or loss of life. Evidence and testimony during 
the hearing clearly indicated that the CS tear gas 
was not direct, or proximate cause of the ignition 
or acceleration of the fire. Evidence conclusively 
found that ·the Branch Davidians started the fire. 
Therefore, the deaths of the Davidians who re· 
mained ·in the compound should not be laid at At· 
tomey General Reno's feet. This finding of the ma· 
jority squarely contradicts their finding that 
Koresh was the author of the events at Waco. 

I. COMMITJ'EE PROCEDURAL IssUES 

·.'During and following the Waco Hearings, certain 
procedural issues arose which need to be ad· 
dressed and remedied by the majority of this com­
mittee. 

Prior to the hearings, the majority conducted a 
series of interviews in Waco, TX. Apparently, these 
interviews · involved surviving members of the 
Branch Davidians and other residents of Waco. 
The minority was not informed of these interviews, 
invited to participate or allowed to review inter· 
view notes. The minority first learned of these 
interviews 'from the majority report. During this 
pre-hearing phase, the minority ·was not allowed to 
participate in the formation of the document re­
quest to the Federal agencies involved. Moreover, 
contrary to the implications in the majority report, 
the majority of this committee did not willingly 
grant the witness requests of the minority. In fact, 
our early witness requests were summarily 
rebuffed. The minority of this committee was only 
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able to obtain witnesses by working with the mi· 
nority staff of the Judiciary Committee. 

During the hearing, at least two witnesses ac­
knowledged under oath, that they were contacted 
by representatives of an outside interest group 
prior to . their appearance before the panel. One 
witness testified that in at least one instance, an 
employee of the interest group identified herself as 
a congressional staffer. We believe that this raises 
serious questions of witness tampering by an out­
side group with congressional proceedings. During 
the hearings, we. requested that the majority in­
vestigate whether this outside group was operat· 
ing with the knowledge or at the behest of the ma· 
jority stafF. To date, the mlijority has refused fur· 
ther investigation of these instances of improper 
witness tampering. 

After the hearings, these practices of exclusion 
continued. At the conclusion of the hearings, the 
majority conducted extensive investigations and 
interviews without the knowledge or participation 
of the minority. This fact did not. come to light 
until the release of the report. 

Finally, one year after the hearings nothing bad 
changed. On July 11, 1996, the mlijority released 
a summary of this report to the press. This press 
summary was substantially similar if not identical 
to the executive summary contained in the report 
and contained all recommendations made by the 
majority report. On July 12, 1996, Members and 
stafF of the minority obtained a copy of the report. 

This pattern of exclusion of the minority mem­
bers of this committee from the production of 
something that purports to be a committee docu­
ment should not be allowed. This practice is a seri­
ous departure from prior practice and from the re· 
spect that members of this committee have held· 
for each other in the past. It serves as dangerous 
precedent that should not continue. 

, II. FACI'UAL BACKGROUND 

On February 28, 1993 agents from the Bureau of 
Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (ATF) attempted to 
serve an arrest warrant on David Koresh and a 
search warrant. on the Branch Davidian compound 
outside of Waco, TX. While executing these lawful 
warrants, the agents were met with a hale of~­
fire. ATF agents Conway C. LeBleu, Todd W. 
McKeehan, Robert J. Williams and Steven D. Wil· 
lis died as a result of gunshot wounds inflicted 
during the ambush. In addition to those agents 
who were killed, 20 ATF agents were wounded by 
hQstile fire emanating from the compound. After 
negotiating a cease fire with the Branch 
Davidians, the agents were allowed to remove the 
bodies of their iallen comrades. 

Within hours of the initial shooting, the Bureau 
of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms requested assist· 
ance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation's 
Hostage Rescue Team. The FBI arrived on the 
scene of the shooting within 24 hours. A 51-day 
standoff between Federal law enforcement agents 
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and the Branch Davidians led by David Koresh fol· 
lowed. Between the time of their arrival and the 
tragic conclusion of the events, the FBI conducted 
several hundred hours of negotiations with Koresh 
and others within the Branch Davidian. 

. Compound. Despite these efforts, only 14 children 
and 21 adults left the compound as of March 23. 

Between March 23 and April 12, negotiations 
continued but , no one left the compound. During 
that period, the FBI held a conversation with a 6-
year-old girl who identified herself as Melissa Mor· 
rison. The FBI negotiator asked Melissa whether 
she would like to leave the compound. She replied 
in the affirmative. The FBI negotiator asked her 
why she did not leave. Her response was that she 
could not leave because "David won't let me." Me· 
Iissa died in the tire. · 

On April 12, the FBI presented its tear gas pro­
posal to Attorney General Reno. Between April 12 
and April 17, the Attorney General conducted no 
fewer than eight meetings with military and civil­
ian tear gas experts to debate the tear gas plan, 
advantages and disadvantages of using tear gas in 
a barricade situation, the properties of the tear gas 
chosen and the medical and scientific information 
concerning the toxicity and flammability of the 
type of tear gas proposed and the effects of tear 
gas on vuJnerable populations such as children, 
the elderly and pregnant women. On April 17, the 
Attorney General approved the tear gas insertion 
_plan and informed the President of her decision. 

On April 19, 1993 the Federal Bureau of Inves­
tigation began to insert tear gas via combat engi­
neering vehicles into the Branch Davidian 
compoti.nd. However, instead of advising his fol· 
lowers to leave, David Koresh and other unknown 
members of the Branch Davidian& spread highly 
flammable liquids throughout the compound and 
set fire. to the entire building. Because of the poor 
construction of the building and the use of chemi­
cal accelerants, the entire compound was engulfed 
in flames and completely destroyed within 15 min­
utes. 

In the aftermath of the fire, the bodies of' over 
70 Branch Davidians were recovered. According to 
autopsy reports by the Tarrant County (TX) Coro­
ner, 30 people died of asphyxiation due to smoke 
inhalation, 2 people died of injuries resulting from 
blunt force trauma and 20 people, including David 
Koresh and a 20-month-old infant,· died of gunshot 
wounds inflicted at close range by themselves or 
others within the compound. Of the nine Branch 
Davidians who . survived the fire, seven escaped 
through openings in the wa11s and windows of the 
compound created by the combat engineering vehi­
cles. The shoes and clothing of several of those 
who escaped contained concentrations of gasoline, 
kerosene and other flammable liquids. 

After the siege, the Texas Rangers conducted an 
extensive search of the Branch Davidian 
compound. They discovered 48 illegal· machine 
guns, seven illegal explosives of various types, 

nine illegal silencers and over 200,000 rounds of 
ammunition. 

A series of indictments were returned against 10 
Branch Davidians between March 30 and July 20, 
1993. The indictments contained. charges relating 
to the ambush of ATF officers on February 28 and 
various firearms violations . committec:l between 
February 1992 and February 1993. On August 6, 
1993, the U.S. Attorney's office in Waco obtained 
another superseding indictment from the grand 
jury combining all previous indictments into one 
and added two additional defendants. 

On September 9, 1993, Kathryn Schroeder en· 
tered a guilty plea to one count of armed resist­
ance of a Federal law enforcement officer. As a 
part of her plea agreement, she agreed. to testify · 
against the other 11 defendants. A Texas jury con­
victed 8 of the ll Branch Davidian defendants of 
various firearm offenses. The convicted .defendants 
received. sentences ranging from 3 to 40 years with . 
7 of the 8 defendants serving sentences of 40 years 
imprisonment. 

Several congressional hearings were held which 
solely or predominantly addressed the events at 
the Branch Davidian compound. The President in­
structed the Department of the Treasury to cori­
duct a review of the actions of the Bureau of Alco­
hol, Tobacco and Firearms at Waco. That report, 
entitled "Report of the ATF Investigation of Ver­
non Wayne Howell, a.k.a. David Koresh" was re· 
leased to the public on September 30, 1993. Addi­
tional1y, the President ordered the Department of 
Justice to conduct a review of the Federal Bureau 
of Investigation's actions at Waco. That report, en· 
titled "Report to the Deputy Attorney General on 
the Events at Waco, TX, February 28 to April 19, 
1993" was released to the pubHc on October 8, 
1993. . 

Two years after the conclusion of the events at 
Waco, the Committee on Government Reform and 
Oversight, S~ommittee on National Security, 
International Affairs, · and Criminal Justice and 
the Committee on Judiciary, Subcommittee on 

. Crime held extensive hearings on "Matters involv· 
ing the Branch Davidians at Waco, TX." These 
hearings began on July 19 and ended on August 2, 
1995. During those hearings, the committees 
heard~ testimony from over 90 witnesses and 
viewed voluminous photographic, video and docu­
mentary exhibits concerning the events at Waco. 
Despite the comprehensive nature of this examina­
tion, we believe that no new facts emerged. How­
ever, we believe that there are certain indisputable 
conclusions which can be reached by reasonable 
minds regarding the events that transpired at the 
Branch DKvidian complex in Waco, TX between 
February 28, 1993 and April 19, 1993. 

III. DAVID KoRESH WAS THE AtrrHOR OF THE 
EVENTS AT WACO 

We agree with th~ majority's conclusion that the 
criminal conduct and aberrational behavior of 
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David Koresh and other Branch Davidians led· to 
the tragedies that occurred in Waco. We share 
t~eir judgment that David Koresh bore the ulti· 
mate responsibility for the deaths of 4 Federal law 
enforcement agents and 80 of his Branch Davidian 
followers. Additionally, we note that Koresh should 
also be held responsible for ·the serious gunshot 
and shrapnel wounds of 20 Federal law enforce· 
ment officers and the nonfirearm associated inju· 
ries suffered by 11 Federal officers. 

IV. THE ARREsT AND SEARCH WARRANTS WERE 
LEGALLY SUFFICIENT 

We agree with the majority's finding that the 
ATF had probable cause to obtain an arrest war· 
rant for David Koresh and search warrants for the 
Branch Davidian compound and the facility known 
as the "Mag Bag." However, we disagree with the 
majority's assertion that the affidavit filed in sup­
port.ofthe warrant contained false statements. 

The ATF began its investigation of Koresh after 
receiving complaints from· the McLennan County 
(TX) Sheriffs Department in May 1992. A deputy 
sheriff asked ATF to investigate following a report· 
from a concerned United Parcel Service driver. 
The driver relayed his concern about a recent de­
livery. In delivering the package, the container in 
which it was shipped broke open and revealed sus­
picious materials including grenade casings and a 
substantial quantity of black powder. The driver 
relayed that this was not the first package he had 
delivered to the compound that caused him con­
cern. Following this t9nversation, the deputy 
teamed from neighbors of the compound and other 
members of the community that the residents of 
the compound were constructing what appeared to 
be a barracks-type cinder block structure; had bur­
ied a school bus to serve as both a firing range and 
a bunker; and apparently were stockpiling arms 
and other weapons. · 

Before opening a formal investigation, the ATF 
age~t spoke with local officials, interviewed gun 
dealers and searched national firearms registries 
tc) determine if any resident of the compound was 
licensed as a firearms manufacturer or dealer. Ad­
ditionally, the agent searched the national registry 
to determine if any resident of the compound was 
licensed to own a fully automatic weapon. These 
searches revealed that no resident of the . 
compound had registered to manufacture or sell 
weapons. Moreover, no resident of the compound 
was licensed to own· a fully automatic weapon. 
During these discussio~s, the ATF agent teamed 
of the delivery of grenade casings, black powder 
and large shipments of firearms. · 

. While initially focusing on the paper trail gen­
erated by the weapons and explosives purchased 
by Koresh and his followers, the agent .determined 
that an Anns company had recently shipped a sub­
stantial quantity .of AR-15 parts to the "Mag Bag." 
Although not within the compound, the "Mag Bag" 
was an automotive repair facility operated by the 
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Branch Davidians which was situated less than a 
mile away from the compound, on the grounds 
owned by the Branch Davidians. He also learned 
that a gun dealer had sold more than a dozen AR-
15 lower receivers to Koresh a few months earlier. 
As the agent knew from previous investigations, 
someone with access to metal milling machines 
and lathes and the knowledge to use them could 
readily convert AR-15 semiautomatic rifles into 
fully automatic machine guns (similar to .M-16 
machine guns), by obtai~:ting legally available 
parts. Additionally, the agent learned that 36 
weapons had been sold to. Vernon Howell (a.k.a. 
David Koresh) and additional weapons had been 
sold to other persons the agent knew to reside on 
the Branch Davidian compound. Moreover, the 
agent learned that approximately 65 AR'-15 lower 

· receivers reflected in a local gun dealers records 
were not present in the inventory. When ques­
tioned about this discrepancy, the dealer cla'imed 
that the firearms were being stored at the house 
of David Koresh. 

The agent obtained further evidence by speaking 
with one of Koresh's neighbors who had served in 
an army artillery unit. The neighbor reported that 
since · 1992 he had frequently heard spurts of 
weapons fire coming from the compound at night, 
including .50 caliber and automatic weapons fire. 
In mid-November a deputy sheriff reported that 
while on patrol a few days earlier he had heard a 
loud explosion at the compound accompanied by · 
large clouds of gray smoke. 

In an attempt to gain additional information 
about the manufacture and possession of illegal 
weapons at the compound, the agent spoke with 
several former followers. They confirmed seeing 
numerous weapons including grenades, pump shot­
guns, and AK-4 7 machine guns. Additionally, they 
provided information on the extent that Koresh 
dominated the lives of the residents of the 
compound. Branch Davidians had not only surren­
dered monetary assets to Koresh but allowed him 
to administer corporal punishment ·to children as 
young as 8 months old which often led to bleeding 
and severe bruising; permitted him to dictate the 
dissolution of marriages; empowered him to forbid 
married couples to engage in sexual relations; and 
authorized him to engage in sexual relations with 
all female members of the Davidians including 
girls as young as 10 years old. 
· In January 1993, the agent spoke with David 

Block, who had been a Branch Davidian from 1981 
through 1992. Block relayed that he had seen two 
other Bran~h I'avidians using a metal milling ma­
chine and metal lathe to produce weapons and 
which can be used to convert legal weapons to ille­
gal automatic weapons. Block described an arsenal 
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that included .50 caliber rifles, AR-15s AK-47s, 
several 9mm pistols and three •streetsweepers• .1 

· ~e findings of this extensive investigation 
formed the basis of the agent's statements con­
tained in the affidavit in support of an arrest war­
rant for Kotesh and a search warrant for the 
compound and the "Mag Bag." This affidavit was 
presented by an Assistant U.S. Attorney to a Fed­
eral Magistrate who determined that the inform&· 
tion contained therein was credible and suffi­
ciently current to issue warrants. 

Therefore, while assertions contained in the un­
derlying affidavits concerning the physical and 
sexual abuse of children may have been beyond 
the scope of the ATFs j~risdiction, ·it is abun­
dantly clear that probable cause existed to obtain 
an arrest warrant for David Koresh and search 
warrants for the Mount Carmel compound and the 
facility known as the "Mag Bag. • 

Any doubts Koresh or others may have had 
· about the validity of the warrants should have 
been expressed through lawful means. However, 
instead of chaJlenging the validity of the warrants 
through the judicial system, Koresh chose to in· 
struct his followers to open fire on Federal agents 
in the lawful execution oftheir duties 

It should be remembered that at the criminal 
trial of the 11 Branch Davidians, none of the de­
fense lawyers challenged the validity of the war­
rants. A successful challenge by any of the defense 
attorneys at trial would have excluded evidence of 
the firearms and would have been a major step in 
acquitting the defendants of the firearms . viola­
tions. Therefore, it seems incomprehensible that 
had such a challenge been possible, it would not 
have been mounted by one of the many able attor· 
neys representing the 11 Branch Davidians. How­
ever, no attorney questioned the validity of the 
warrants. 

Additionally' it should be noted that evidence 
obtained from the scene after the fire, conclusively 

. proved that Koresh amassed a huge cache of weap­
ons and materials to manufacture illegal weapons. 
Although much evidence may have been destroyed 
by the ~ril 19 fire set by the Davidians, at least 
4 7 fully automatic weapons, which are illegal 
under Federal law, were recovered along with 
seven i1legaJ explosives, several grenade casings, 
nine illegal silencers and 200,000 rounds of ammu­
nition. 

In its attack on the validity of the warrants, the 
mlijority does not present any facts that would un­
dermine the integrity of the core pBnlgraphs of the 
ATF affidavits establishing probable cause. In­
stead of providing testimonial or documentary evi­
dence to challenge the validity of the warrants, the · 
majority raises ~e unsupportable implication that 
a Federal Jaw enforcement officer made false state-

'A -.~:reecaw~ ta a 12 saaee. 12 •ho&. ahoCpD wtt.h • •princ dri•· 
en drum mapdne and IOiding Ina&~. Each time t.he &rigger Ia n­
leued after ftri• a eho&, Lbe 1n11pDDe ra&a&. 10 pmtion t.he na& eho& 
rar ftrinc. . 
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ments in securing the warrants. ·Such an unwar- · 
ranted and unsupported attack on the credibility. 
of a Federal law enforcement officer is simply irre· 
sponsible. · -

V. ACCELERATED SERVICE OF THE WARRANTS 

We disagree with ·the majority's assertion that 
there was no compeiJing reason to serve warrants 
on February 28. After a year long investigation the 
ATF had probable cause to believe that Koresh 
had amassed a substantial cache of illegal weap· 
ons and materials necessary to manufacture addi­
tional illegal weapons. While the particular date is 
not significant, it would have been . extremely im· 
prudent to wait long enough for . him ·.to amass, 
manufacture and potentiaiJy distribute , additional 
illegal weapons. A.dditionaiJy, we should note that 
the original raid was planned for March 1. How­
ever, on February 27, a local newspaper began a 
highly critical seven-part series of articles focusing 
on Koresh and the Branch Davidians. The series 
detailed several allegations against Koresh of child 
physical and sexual abuse which could have poten· 
tially exposed him to serious State criminal 
charges. Therefore, there was reason . to believe . 
that Koresh would expect a heightened interest· 
from State or Federal authorities following the 
conclusion of the series and may have destroyed 
evidence of the illegal weapons in anticipation of a 
search. The date of the raid was moved from 
March 1 to February 28. 

VI. MIUTARY AssiSTANCE DID NOT VIOLATE PossE 
COMITAnJS 

We agree. with the majority's conclusion that 
Posse Comitatus was not violated and share their 
concerns over the implementation of formal guide· 
lines and criteria in the nonreimbursable use of 
Department of Defense resources in drug cases. 
However, we are concerned that the implementa­
tion of such a litmus test could result in the denial 
of needed assistance in the fight against the im­
portation, production, distribution and use of ille· 
gal drugs. Therefore, although we understand this 
concern, we cannot support a recommendation for 
such guidelines and criteria when there is no ob­
jective evidence to believe that the military has 
failed in its role to accurately and appropriately 
gage the need of domestic law enforcement agen· 
cies for nonreimbursable assistance. However, it 
would be appropriate and would not hamper the 
fight against illegal drugs if the Department of De­
fense, the National Guard and Federal law en· 
forcement agencies developed operational param· 
eters for d~termining when a drug nexus is suffi· 
cient to justify nonreimbursable assistance. 

Posse comitatus is the statute that limits mili· 
tary participation in civilian law enforcement. 
Military personnel may provide training to Fed­
eral, State and local civilians law enforcement offi­
cials, as long as it is not •Jarge scale or·elaborate." 
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Such assistance may not involve DOD personnel in 
a direct role in law enforcement operations, except 
in specific and narrowly drawn circumstances. 

The Department of Defense provided minor non­
reimbursable assistance to the ATF in conneetion 
with the events at Waco. Under 10 U.S.C. 371 and 
32 U.S.C. 112, the Secretary of Defense is author­
ized to provide military support to law enforce­
ment agencies engaged in counter drug operations. 
The Secretary ·or Defense is authorized to pay for 
the support pursuant to Section 1004 of P.L. 101-
510, .Section 1088 of P.L 102-190, and Section 
1041 of P.L 102-484. If a drug nexus does not 
exist, the Economy Act requires that as a general. 
matter, reimbursement is required when equip­
ment or services are provided to agencies outside 
the Department of Defense. An exception may be 
made if there is some training value to the DOD 
personnel involved. 

In the planning stages of the raid, the ATF re­
quested Special Forces assistance from the Depart­
ment of Defense. This request was forwarded 
through Operation Alliance and Joint Task Force 
6. The initial request raised legal questions with 
Special Forces attorneys regarding the permissible 
scope of assistance. Specifically, Special Forces At­
torneys were concerned with the proposal for DoD 
to review the ATF raid plan and perform on-site 
medical emergency services. Acceding to such a· re­
quest would have clearly violated the Posse Com­
itatus Act's mandate prohibiting the military's 
"participation• in civilian law enforcement activi­
ties. Therefore, the initial request was signifi· 
cantly scaled back and limited to the facilitation of 
ATF training. The military did not offer any train­
ing involving the specific details of the raid plan or 
any advice concerning the accomplishment of ~e 
mission. Special forces provided assistance limited 
to facilitating ATF training at Fort Hood. This in· 
cluded helping to construct models of the doors 
and windows of the compound; creating a sche­
matic prototype of the compound's exterior; operat­
ing firing ranges for weapons practice and provid­
ing limited training in emergency medial assist­
ance. Additionally, it should be noted that there is 
no evidence to suggest that Department of Defense 
personnel were present at the time of the raid or 
at any time during the siege. . · . 

Federal courts have concluded that the National 
Guard is a State force which is not subject to the 
restrictions of the Posse Comitatus Act, except 
when called into Federal service, (United States v. 
Benish, 5 F.3d 20 (1993). While in State militia 
status, the range of pennissible activities are gov­
erned by the laws and constitutions of the respec­
tive States. However, it is possible for a National 
Guard unit to become a Federal law enforcement 
entity. A State National Guard Unit is ~ederal­
ized" when it is called into service by the Presi­
dent to suppress domestic violence or insurrection 
against a State government or the authority of the 
United States ·uo U.S.C. 331-333). When a State 
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guard unit is "federalized," law enforcement aC• 
tiona taken pursuant to that status are governed 
by the provisions of the Posse Comitatus Act. 
· The Texas arid Alabama Air National Guard 

·· units provided pre-raid assistance by conducting 
aerial reconnaissance to photograph the 
compound. They conducted six flights over the 
compound and the facility known as the "Mag 
Bag" from January 6 through February 25, 1993. 
In addition to the reconnaissance flights, the 
Texas National Guard supplied three helicopters 
for training exercises on February 27 and for the 
raid on the following day. · . 

In sum, there is no evidence to suggest that the 
Posse Comitatus Act was violated by the Depart­
ment of Defense. Additionally, the National Guard 
units utilized by the ATF were not in a •federal­
ized" status and therefore were not subject· to the 
proscriptions of the act. 

VIL DESPITE INADEQUATE INTEWGENCE 0PER· 
ATIONS, ATF DID NOT PREMATURELY REJEcr THE 
SIEGE 0PrJON 

wf# disagree with the majority's findings that 
the primary reason that the dynamic entry route 
was chosen was because ATF did not have the ex· 
perience, negotiators or capability to conduct a 
siege of any significant duration. 

Once ATF agents concluded that there was prob­
able cause to obtain ·warrants to search the prem­
ises and arrest Koresh, attention turned to the 
execution of those warrants. Three options were 
considered · (1) arrest Koresh . away from the 
compound and then serve the warrants; (2) place 
the compound under siege and (3) serve the war· 
rants by "dynamic entry or raid." 

The first option to arrest Koresh away from the 
compound followed by a subsequent service of war· 
rants was rejected after careful consideration. Con· 
trary to the majority's assertion, the ATF explored 
the possibility of arresting Koresh away from the 
compound. However, there are two problems with 
this· assertion. The first problem is that it ignores 
the. fact that a lawful search warrant had to be 
served for the premises. There ill no reason to be· 
lieve that the Davidian& in the comp~und would 
not have reacted in the same manner had the 
search warrant been served without Koresh on the 
premises or attempted to destroy evidence if time 
elapsed between Koresh's arrest and the execution 
of the search warrant. Second, as ·of February 1993 
the ATF had conducted several hundred raids of 
this kind. There had only been one case involving 
prolonged anned resistance. Moreover, Koresh. had 
previous encoua.ters with the State officials, police 
authorities and the judicial system. During these 
previous encounters, Koresh did not react violently 
to searches or service of process. Therefore, neither 
the agency's history nor Koresh's personal history 
yielded any infonnation that would tend to indi· 
cate a violent reaction. It is pure speculation for 
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the majority to argue that Koresh could have been 
. arrested away from the compound. 

As acknowledged in the Treasury report, ATF 
failed to coUect sufficient information to determine 
whether an off-premises arrest of Koresh could 
have been achieved. The ATF raid planners made 
serious mistakes in the inteUigence gathering op­
erations conducted prior to the raid. Successful in­
telligence operations require the development of 
adequate and accurate infonnation. That informa­
tion must be distributed to persons in the organi· 
zational hierarchy who ~ able to recognize the 
meaning and limitat.ion·s of that information. 

On January 11, 1993, the ATF began an under­
cover operation in a house across the road from 
the Branch Davidian compound. The agents in· 
volved were given the cover of being students at a 
local technical colJege. However, from the begin­
ning several neighbors became suspicious of the 
their activities because the agents appeared too 
old to attend the college and the cars they drove 
were too new to belong to students. However, even 
if the "cover ·stories" used by the agents had been 
successful, the operations of the undercover inves­
tigation itself were abysmal. They failed to keep 
accurate logs and failed to tum over the available 
logs to raid planners. However, it should be noted 
that the agents were given little if any meaningful 
direction from the raid planners (Sarabyn and 
Chojnacki). ·Therefore, without adequate guidance 
from their superiors, the agents were almost des· 
tined to fail. Although Agent Rodrigues obtained a 
good deal of relevant and reliable information 
about. Koresh and the Davidians, tho$e agents 
charged with the responsibility of surveiUance 
were poorly served by raid planners Sarabyn and 
Chojanacki. 

Because of this inadequate supervision, the sur· 
veillance operation was not able to detennine the 
frequency of Koresh's departures from the 
compound, the routine activities within the 
compound or other infonnation that might have 
been useful in deciding the optimal time, place and 
mariner to effect service of the warrants. 

Additionally, it should ·be noted that prior to the·. 
hearing, majority subcommittee staff spent several 
days in Waco to gather facts and interview pro­
spective witnesses .. It should be noted that iri hear· 
ings . that lasted 10 days and had over 90 wit· 
nesses, no witnesses who were not members of the 
Branch Davidians or . lawyers for the Branch 
Davidians were produced to testify supporting the 
majority's present contention that Koresh left the 
compound with sufficient frequency to affect an ar· 
rest away from the premises.· 

As noted in the Treasury report and by several 
witnesses,· a siege was rejeeted because of a belief 
that any protracted encounter with a heavily 
armed and philosophically isolated and insular 
group would not be Jike~y to produce an. optimal 
result. The majority incorrectly concludes that the 
dynamic entry approach was prematurely aban· 
doned. The decision to pursue a dynamic entry 
was made during a meeting that took place be­
tween January 27-29, 1993 after surveillance and:· 
undercover operations had begun. Prior to that 
meeting a siege option was under active consider­
ation as was the possibility of luring Koresh off 
the compound. The Treasury report noted that· the 
surveillance .operations could have beeri' better ~co­
ordinated and intelligence better utilized in mak· 
ing this tactical decision. While the Treasury re­
port concluded that the process used to decide that 
a dynamic entry should be undertaken was flawed, 
a siege option presented its own risks of failure. 
Four of the five independent reviewers who ad· 
dressed the issue found that the dynamic entry 
plan could have been successful if surprise had not 
been lost. 

VIII. TREASURY DEPARTMENT OFFICIALS SHOULD 
HAVE TAKEN A MORE ACTIVE RoLE IN RAID 
PLANNING 

We dis.g,.ee with the majority's assertion that 
officials at the Treasury Department should have 
taken a more active role in pre-raid planning. The 
majority seems to forget that prior to President 
Clinton and Secretary Bentsen's order, the Bureau 
of Alcohol, Tobacco and Fireanns exercised inde· 
pendence in planning and implementati~n of en· 
forcement actions. Prior to this failed raid, there 

However, based on the scant information pos­
sessed at the time, the agents concluded that such 
an arrest was not a viable alternative. They knew 
that Koresh's infrequent departures from the 
compound were unpredictable. A social worker 
who had visited the compound to investigate the 
health and safety of children present, had in· 
formed the case agent that she thought Koresh did 
not leave the compound very often. On February 
17, Koresh told the undercover agent that he did 
not often leave the compound. Further, it should 
be noted that after April19, all reports of Koresh 
having been seen off the compound were thor­
oughly investigated by the Treasury Review. The 
reviewers were able to document only isolated 
trips off the compound, most occurring long before 
the time of the raid. 

· was no practice, history or reason to believe that 
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additional oversight was necessary. . 
The Treasury Secretary -is responsible for the ac­

tions of over 165,000 people and numerous bu· 
reaus and offices. During his first month in office, 
Secretary Bentsen relied on the Department's ex· 
isting organizational and operational structure. 
This structure bad been used by the previous fte. 
publican :nd Democratic administrations. In the 
enforcement area, this organizational structure in· 
cluded a chain of command from the law enforce­
ment bureau head through the Assistant Secretary 
of the Treasuey for Enforcement to the Deputy 
Secretary and then to the Secretary of the Treas­
ury. This structure placed responsibility on the 
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, law enforcement bureau hea~ for bringing signifi· 
cant matters to the attention of his or her imme­
diate supervisor. It is unfair, inaccurate and irre­
sponsible to castigate Secretary Bentsen for the 
adoption of an organizational structure and oper· 
ational approach that had been in place for years. 

Under the structure that ·existed at that time, 
than ATF Director Steven Higgins' immediate su· 
pervisor was Deputy Assistant Secretary John 
Simpson, a career civil servant who had served at 
Treasury for many years. Mr. Simpson was carry· 
ing out the duties of the Assistant Secretary for 
Enforcement, pending the confirmation of an As· 
sistant Secretary for Enforcement designee Ronald 
Noble. Having been ATFs Director for approxi· 
mately 10 years, Mr. Higgins was very familiar 
with the reporting process. 

The suggestion that a meeting between Sec· 
retary Bentsen and ATF Director Higgins would 
have led to earlier notification of ATF's planned 

· raid of the Branch Davidian compound is pure con· 
jecture. In fact Director Higgins did not tell his im· 
mediate supervisor in Treasul')' of the planned raid 
until 2 days before its planned execution. 

D( THE RAm SHOULD HAVE BEEN·ABORTED WHEN 
THE UNDERCOVER AGENT REPORTED THAT 
KORESH KNEw THE RAm WAS ABOUT TO OCCUR 

The majority report errs in concluding that 
Treasury officials failed to clearly communicate 
the conditions under which the raid was to be 
aborted. In fact, the Treasury Report and ATF DI­
rector Higgins' testimony before Congress on sev· 
eral occasions made it clear that the ATF knew it 
was supposed to call off the raid if Koresh learned 
that the ATF had planned a Ia~ enforcement oper­
ation against them. Director Higgins never ques· 
tioned the clarity of his message from the Treas­
ury Department. He testified that he told his sub­
ordinates if anything looked unusual, the raid 
should be called off. Consistent with the ATF's 
plan, Agent Rodrigues clearly communicated 
Koresh's awareness of an impending ATF law en· 
forcement operation to his field supervisors. Unfor· 
tunately, Mr. Sarabyn and Chojnacki failed to 
heed this clearly communicated warning. All six of 
the independent tactical operations experts who 
analyzed the ATF's failed raid concluded that 
based on Mr. Rodrigues' infonnation, the raid com· 
manders should have called off the raid. 

We concur with the majority's finding that de­
spite their contrary testimony before this commit· 
tee, evidence clearly shows that Agents-in-Charge 
Sarabyn and Chojnacki understood yet consciously 
chose to disregard warnings by Undercover Agent 
Rodrigues on the morning of the raid. Rodrigues 
advised Sarabyn and Chojnacki that the AT~s op· 
erations had been compromised and the element of 
surprise had been lost. The most significant ·mis· 
take was the decision of the on-site raid com· 
mander to proceed after he had been informed by 
an undercover agent that Koresh was aware that 
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a raid was about to occur. This error in judgment 
allowed Koresh to have an estimated 30-45 
minute preparation time prior to the arrival of the 
agents. Koresh used this opportunity to ann him· 
self and his followers. Despite the majority's asser· 
·tions to the contrary, Treasury acknowledged in its 
report that the raid commander was questioned by 
the Washington commanders and knew or should 
have known that the raid should not have pro­
ceeded if secrecy or surprise had been lost or com· 
promised. 

X. THE FBI NEGOTIATIONS AND TACTICAL 
OPERATIONS WERE SOMETIMES CONTRADICTORY 

. The Department of Justice bas acknowledged 
that there could have been better coordination and 
communication between the officials responsible 
for tactical decision and the negotiators. Alternat­
ing tactics of negotiating, granting demands and 
then using tactical operations such as· cutting off 
electricity to punish Koresh for reneging on agree­
ments, may have allowed Koresh to increase his 
hold on his followers. 

In an effort to improve coordination and commu· 
nication between negotiators and tactical com­
mand in the future, the Department of Justice has 
created that Critical Incident Response Group. As 
a part of this team, negotiators and tactical per· 
sonnel train together to facilitate improved coordi· 
nation of operations. · 

However, the majority's main criticism of the 
FBI involves its alleged reluctance· to use outside 
experts. This criticism is not valid. Following the 
suggestions of behavioral experts, FBI negotiators 
repeatedly stressed to Koresh that if be left. the 
compound, be would have every opportunity to 
spread his message to a worldwide audience, that 
he would be presumed innocent of any wrongdoing 
with respect to the ATF raid, and that the judicial 
process would provide him with an opportunity to 
tell his side of the conflict. The FBI negotiated 
with Koresh for 51 days. During that course of 
time, over 36 demands by the Davidians were doc· 
umented and granted by the FBI. Contrary to the 
majority's assertion, there is no indication that 
FBI negotiators were adversely affected by phys-
ical or emotional fatigue. · 

We disagree with the majority's assertions that 
on the 46th day of the siege, the FBI should have 
believed ·the representations of Koresh's attorney 
who relayed Koresb's representation that he and 
his followers would leave the compound if Koresh 
were allowed to write his exposition on the Seven 
Seals of the Biblical Book of Revelation$. Early in 
the siege, Koresh was allowed to speak to ~ligious 
scholars concerning his interpretation. In response 
to a promise to surrender, an audiotape containing 
his interpretation of the First Seal was played on 
a radio broadcasL However, Koresh · did not sur· 
render at that time. FBJ .behavioralist Murray 
Miron believed that this latest attempt was merely 
another stalling tactic. Therefore, based on his 
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prior behavior and manipulati~e personality, it 
was not unreasonable for negotiators to conclude 
that Koresh would not honor this latest promise. 
We would note that had Kore'sh been interested in 
surrendering to authorities, he could have done so 
at any time during the 51-day siege. During the 
same period, 37 of his fo11owers surrendered and 
called into the compound to inform Koresh and 
others that they were being treated well and had 
not been hurt. Therefore, whatever compelled 
Koresh to remain in the ·compound and prevented 
other followers from leaving was ·not something 
that a deal involving Koresh's composition of the 
written exposition of his religious tenets would 
have resolved. 

XI. LAw ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS COULD BENEFIT 
FROM FuTURE USE OF OUTSIDE BEHAVIORAL AND 
PSYCHOLOGICAL ExPERTS 

We disagree with the majority's assertion that 
the FBI should have developed a thorough under· 
standing of the religious tenets of the Davidians. 
During the course of the negotiations, the FBI at· 
tempted this approach and abandoned it because it 
became clear that the tenets were based on 
Koresh's personal thoughts and rapidly changed to 
suit the occasion. Therefore, this would not only 
·have been futile but would have pushed back the 
time of the service of the warrants thereby allow­
ing Koresh to amass even more iHegal weapons. 

We disagree with the majority assertion that the 
FBI negotiators did not appear to recognize the po­
tential benefit of using ·religious experts in work· 
ing wjth Koresh. We refer the majority to the De· 
partment of Justice report which listed the opin­
ions of independent religious experts and FBI be­
havioral experts consulted during the siege. The 
FBI solicited and received input from various ex· 
perts in many fields including psychology, psychia· 
try, psycho linguistics, religion and theology, cult 
theory and negotiation techniques. Religious ex· 
perts and theologians consulted by the FBI in:. 
eluded Dr. Philip Arnold of the Reunion Institute; 
Dr. Bi11 Austin, chaplain, Baylor University; Jeriel 
Bingham, vice president, Davidian Seventh Day 
Adventist Association; Reverend Trevor Delafield, 
Seventh Day Adventist Church; Dr. Robert Wal­
lace and Dr. John Fredericks, Lighthouse Mission; 
Dr. Michael Haynes, Doctor of Theology and Psy­
chology and Dr. Glenn Hilburn, Dean, Department 
o( Religion, Baylor University. Additionally, the 
majority of those experts contluded that Ko:resh 
was manipulative and likely to deceive. All the ex· 
pert& agreed that Koresh . would not leave the 
compound voluntarily. Therefore the FBI nego­
tiators tactics which focused on Koresh as a ma­
nipulative and deceitful individual were precisely 
in accord with the vieWpoint of the religious ex· 
perts and psychological experts and with the expe­
rience of those negotiators who spent over 400 
hours talking to Koresh and his followers. 
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XII. THE UsE oF TEAR GAS WAS UNFORTUNATE 
BUT NECESSARY 

The majority report suggests that the decision to 
use. gas was not the only option available . to com· 
pel the Branch Davidians to leave the compound. 
In support of their theory that additional time 
would have yielded a nonviolent surrender, the 
majority report points to the release of 21 children 
between February 28 and March 3 as an indica­
tion that continued negotiations would have even­
tually secured the release -of the remaining · 80 
adults and children within the compound. They 
argue that other options including expansion of 
and continuation of the negotiation strategy, wait· 
ing for the depletion of food and water .·suppUes, or 
waiting for Koresh to complete his written expo· 
sition on the meaning of the Biblical Seven Seals 
prophesy were prematurely rejecte_d in an effort to 
end the confrontation. · 

However, after March 23, additional releases 
had not been obtained. Koresh repeatedly reneged 
following the FBI's performance of agreed upon 
terms. Repeatedly, Koresh would explain his deci· 
sion to remain in the compound by saying that 
God had not yet told him it was time to leave~·-Ad· 
ditionally, it should be noted that the "regillar" 
conditions within the compounds were austere (no 
running water or plumbing) and there was a vast 
supply of military style MRE's (meals-ready to eat) 
and an artesian well with water storage tank 
housed within the compound. 

Because the FBI decided not to fire any shots 
during the standoff, the Davidians walked outside 
of the building on several occasions to smoke ciga· 
rettes, empty chamber pots, feed chickens and 
gather water from rain water runoff. Finally, the 
large amount of firearms and ammunition 
(200,000 rounds) found within the compound, and 
the gathering of other interested -and potentiall~ 
dangerous individuals (para-military and Militia 
groups) contributed to their concern about the con· 
tinued degradation of the situation and their abil· 
ity to adequately secure the perimeter of thE 
compound. · · · 

In fact, during the standoff two people, not peo­
ple previously affiliated with the Davidians, infiJ. 
trated the perimeter and entered the compound 
The FBI was concerned that failing to end the 
standoff would allo.w others (particularly para· 
military militia groups) who had begun to descenc 
upon the compound to enter the perimeter 
Threats posed by gathering militia and para-inili 
tary groups in the area increased security prob 
lems and underscored the need for a quick resolu 
tion to the situation. There was a genuine concen 
as to whether these groups had gathered as ob 
servers or sought to engage in the standoff. 

On April 12, the FBI presented its tear gas plBJ 
to Attorney General Reno. Over the ensuing days 
several meetings were held to debate the tear ga 
plan, the properties of the gas chosen and the ef 
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fects of gas on vulnerable populations such as. 
pregnant women and children. Between the initial 
presentation of the plan on April 12 and the Attor· 
ney General's April 17 decision to use tear gas, 
Reno attended no fewer than eight meetings to 
discuss the tear gas option. Those meetings were 
attended by military and tactical experts who 
briefed the Attorney General on the advantages 
and disadvantages of the use of tear gas in a barri· 
cade situation as well as the available medical and 
scientific information concerning the toxicity and 
flammability of CS tear gas. 

CS tear gas is a common _riot control agent used 
in the United States and Europe. The purpose of 
tear gas is to cause irritation of the eyes, skin and 
respiratory system sufficient to encourage an indi· 
vidual to leave the premises or any open area. CS 
is considered the least toxic agent in the family of 
chemical tear gas irritants. In order to ·reach a 
level which would be lethal to fifty per cent of the 
population, CS must be in concentrations of 25-

. 150 thousand milligrams per minute, cubed. The 
CS gas used at the Davidian compound was sig· 
nificantly less concentrated than the lethal level. 
The CS gas used was in a concentration which 
would only reach 16,000 milligrams per minute 
(cubed) if all of the gas used had been released at 
the same time, in a single closed room and the 
residents of that room had been exposed continu· 
ously for 10 minutes. At Waco, CS tear gas was re· 
leased throughout different areas of the building 
while openings were created in the windows and 
walls. The CS gas was inserted for a total of 5 
minutes over a 6-hour period. A total of twenty CS 
canisters were deployed on April 19. Additionally, 
several commentators discuss the fact that the 
wind velocity reached 35 knots during the tear gas 
delivery. Therefore, given the amount of tear· gas 
used, the presence of high winds, building ventila· 
tion and the delivery of gas to different areas of 
the compound, it is highly unlikely that anything 
clos~ to the fifty percent lethality rate was 
reached. 

There are no documented cases in which the use 
of CS gas caused death. Reports that Amnesty 
International linked use of the gas to deaths of 
Palestinians in the occupied territories, is an ex· 
tremely biased reading of the report. Released in 
June 1988, the report discussed the use of two 
kinds of tear gas, CS and CN. CN gas has proven 
to be lethal in closed quarters. The overwhelming 
majority of evidence on ill-effects of CS was anec· 
dotal. Medical care had not been sought or docu· 
mented. Moreover, because of religious prohibi· 
tiona autopsies had not been performed. Therefore, 
there · is no .reliable scientific data which would 
lead to the conclusion that CS alone was impli­
cated· in any of the deaths. As Physicians for 
Human Rights found when visiting the occupied 
territories "we could not confirm the reports of 
deaths from tear gas inhalations. n 
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The Himsworth Report, is&o~ed by the British 
· Government, found that there is no evidence of 

any special sensitivity of the elderly, children or 
pregnant women. Additionally, the Himsworth · 
Commission chronicled the effect of CS gas expo­
sure on one infant and found that the child recov· 
.ered rapidly after removal from the area affected 
by CS)tear gas. This report was supported by are· 
port which appeared in a Medical journal. The au· 
thor not only set forth a treatment protocol for 
children exposed to CS tear gas but noted that full 
recovery was highly likely.· 

Moreover, the majority report contends that the 
presence of CS gas may have acted as an 
accelerant during the fire. That is unlikely. While 
CS is combustible (it will bum if ignited, much 
like paper), it is not a chemical accelerant or a 
flammable agent. Additionally, the method of de­
livery or the compounds in which the CS particu­
late was contained (methylene chloride and carbon 
dioxide) will not bum and will actually inhibit fire 
ignition. 

The original CS. insertion plan required that the 
tear gas be inserted by CEV's over a course of 2 
to 3 days. The theory . was that the gas insertion 
over · several days and in different parts of the 
compound would gradually render the entire 
compound uninhabitable. However, within 5 min· 
utes of the initiation of the original plan, the in· 
sertion of tear gas was dramatically escalated. 

The original gas insertion plan provided that in 
the event that the CEV's or others were fired upon 
during the insertion of gas, that the insertion 
would be escalated. The plan vested authority with 
the SAC Jamar to make the escalation decision. 
Therefore, when reports of shooting coming from 
the compound were confinned and it became clear 
that the CEV's were being fired upon by the 
Davidians, Jamar decided to escalate insertion of 
the tear gas delivery schedule. 

. We agree with the majority report that it should 
have been obvious to all concerned that the inser· 
tion of CS tear gas would have prompted Koresh 
to order the vehicles fired upon and that this 
would have resulted in the acceleration of' tear gas 
insertion. However, the majority fails to recognize 
that if the vehicles were fired upon, the parties at 
risk would be the FBI. Following the conclusion of 
the insertion of tear gas, the building would be un­
inhabitable and the occupants would have evacu· 
ated. Therefore, it seems that this underscores the 
FBI's detennination to compel the occupants to 
leave without any loss of life inside the compound, 
despite potential harm to themselves. 

XIII. WHITE HOUSE OFFICIAlS WERE INFoRMED 
BVT NOT I~VOLVED IN THE DECISION TO USE 
TEAR GAs 
White House officials were informed but not con· 

suited about the use of tear gas. 
On April 18, Web Hubbell, Justice Department 

White House Liaison, and Attorney General Reno 
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informed the President about the plan to gradually 
insert tear gas into the compound over a 2 to 3 

· day period in an effort to render the compound un­
inhabitable and compel the occupants to leave. 
During that conversation, Reno told the President 
that April 19 was not envisioned as •n-Day" and 
that the use of the tear gas would not be the be­
ginning of an assault on the compound. 

Critics maintain that the White House· pres­
sured Reno to end the standoff by any means nee­
essary. They contend that this directive Jed to the 
lack of clear decision making and a Jess than objee­
tive examination of the potential hazards concern­
ing the use of CS gas. The majority report implies 
that had expediency not been a factor, Reno would 
have continued to wait . for the Davidians to sur- · 
render. This contention is pure speculation that is 
not supported by the facts. As noted earlier, Attor­
ney General Reno held eight meetings to discuss 
various aspects of the tear gas plan with tear gas 
experts. If speed had been her concern, she would 
not have consulted with various experts and wait­
ed a week between the first proposal of the plan 
and its implementation. 

XIV. THE BRANCH DAVIDIANS STARTED THE FIRE 
AND CHOSE TO. REMAIN WITHIN THE CoMPOUND 
WHILE IT BURNED 

On April 19, approximately 20 minutes after the 
la~t tear gas insertion, the Davidian compound 
erupted in flames. The first indication of fire was 
seen and noted at 12:07 p.m. By 12:11 p.m., the 
entire compound was substantially involved. 

There is no doubt that the Branch Davidians 
started the fire. We disagree with the conclusion of 
the majority report which states that the evidence 
concerning the origin of the fire is not dispositive. 
The majority report ignores evidence contained in 
the arson report which proved three separate igni­
tion points within the compound and conclusively 
found that chemical accelerants were placed 
throughout the compound. Additionally, there was 
eyewitness testimony as well as film footage which . 
chronicled the rapid spreading of the blaze. More· 

1 over, the clothes of surviving Davidians who es­
caped the compound were laced with gasoline and 
other flammable materials. Finally, and most 
pOignantly, several surviving Davidian& admitted 
that those within the compound had started the 
blaze. These statements are supported by recorded 
statements in which voices are heard asking about 
the location and timing of fuel pouring and light­
ing activities. Additionally, it should be noted that. 
an examination of the vehicles involved inserting 
tear gas was conducted. These vehicles did not 
have flame throwing equipment and were not of 
the type . that could have been equipped with 
flamethrowing equipment. All evidence clearly in· 
dicates that the fire which destroyed the Brarich 
Davidian compound on April 19 was ignited by in­
dividuals· inside the compound. 
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It should be noted that the fire department waa· 
· called after the blaze began. However, they did not 

attempt to put out the fire because during the 
blaze gun shots were heard coming from and Mth· 
in the compound. The safety of any firefighter who 
approached the compound could not be assured. 
Therefore, the FBI determined that the local fire· 
fighters should not be allowed to approach the 
compound. However, it should be noted that after 
the fire began nine survivors exited the compound. 

There has been some speculation that the tear 
gas used may have contributed to the fire. The CS 
tear gas did not act as . an accelerant for the fire. 
CS is a powdery particulate. When used in aJ~ar 
gas canister or other tear gas delivery .system;·. CS 
particulate is suspended in methylchloride. and­
carbon dioxide. . Neither CS ._particulate,. 
methylchloride or carbon dioxide are.- flammable. 
They actually inhibit the outbreak ... of. fire. We 
agree with the majority's conclusion tnat the use 
of CS tear gas prior was not a direct,. proximate. 
cause or contributing factor to the rapid ignition. 
and expansicm of the blaze. The audio:ftape and fo· 
rensic evidence clearly indicate that the. rapid igni­
tion and spread of the blaze was due to the use of 
chemical accelerants (including gasoline,· ke~~ne. 
and camp fuel oil) distributed throughout ·.the. 
compound by individuals within the compound. 
Additionally, the materials used in the construe· 
tion of the building itself (largely plywood) in con· 
junction with storage of materials such as hay and 
propane gas containers and high winds combined 
to significantly contribute to the rapid combustion 
of the building. 

XV.REcoMMENDAnoNs 
Final1y, the report makes 17 recommendations 

that are largely duplicative of recommendations 
made by the extensive internal reviews under· 
taken by the Department of Treasury and the De­
partment of Justice. Those recommendations and 
our responses are as follows: 

1. Congress should conduct further oversight of 
the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms and 
jurisdiction should be transferred to the Depart­
ment of Justice. While additional oversight is aJ. 
ways proper, it should be noted that the proposal 
to transfer jurisdiction of ATF.first surfaced in the 
Carter administration and has been rejected sev· 
eral times. Rejections have been based on concerns 
about placing total enforcement of the firearms 
laws in one agency. A separation of investigative 
and prosecutorial functions in separate agenciea 
maintains an important check and balance system. 

2. If false statements were made in the affidavif 
filed in sunport of the search and arrest warrants 
criminal charges should be pursued. There is abso 
lutely no evidence to suggest that the agent ir 
question made false statements. This recommends 
tion is an example of a willingness to disbelievt 
Federal law enforcement personnel which is mani 
fest throughout this repo·rt. · 
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3. Federal law · enforcement should verify· the 
credibility and timeliness of the information used 
in obtaining warrants. An assistant U.S. attorney 
and a Federal Magistrate reviewed the affidavit 
and found the information sufficiently fresh to 
issue warrants. Additionally, in finding that prob­
able cause existed, the majority report implicitly 
agrees with the determination that the inform&· 
tion was not stale. 

4. The ATF should revise it National Response 
Plan to ensure that its best qualified agents are 
placed in command and control positions. The 
Treasuey Department made this finding in its in· 
temal review. The ATF has implemented proce­
dures to comply. 

5. Senior officials at ATF should assert greater 
command and control over significant operations. 
The Treasuey Department made this finding it its 
internal review. The ATF has implemented proce· 
dures to comply. 

6. The ATF should be constrained from inde­
pendently investigating drug-related crimes. This 
recommendation may lack administrative and 
operational feasibility. . 

7. Congress should consider applying the Posse 
Comitatus Act to the National Guard with respect 
to situations where a Federal law enforcement en­
tity serves as the lead agency. This recommend&· 
tion may lack administrative and operational fea­
sibility and may unduly hamper. the State's ability 
to use the guard in domestic law enforcement op­
erations (e.g. drug trafficking patrols, civil dis~urb­
ance). 

8. The Department of Defense should streamline 
the approval process for military support so that 
drug nexus controversies are avoided in the future. 
This recommendation may deprive the Department 
of Defense of the operational flexibility necessary 
to provide assistance. The inability to pass a .,it· 
mus test" should not preclude the provision of oth· 
erwise justifiable assistance. 

9. The GAO should audit the military assistance 
provided to the ATF and to the FBI in connection 
with their law enforcement activities toward the 
Branch Davidians. It should be noted that Mem­
bers of Congress can request GAO audits on any 
topic at anytime. 

10. The GAO should investigate the activities of 
Operation Alliance in light of the Waco incident. It 
should be noted that Members of. Congress can re­
quest GAO audits on any topic at anytime. 

11. Federal law enforcement agencies should re­
design their negotiation policies arid training to 
avoid the innuence of physical and emotional fa. 
tigue on course of future negotiations. The FBI has 
doubled the size of the Hostage Rescue Team. 

12. Federal law enforcement agencies should 
take steps to foster greater understanding of the 
target under investigation. The Department of 
Justice and the Department of the Treasury cur­
rently consult a wide range of outside experts on 
various topics·. 
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. 13. Federal law enforcement agencies should im· 
plement changes in operation procedures and · 
training to provide better leadership in future ne­
gotiations. Recent successful negotiations with the 

. ·Viper Militia and the Freemen indicate implemen· 
tation of successful negotiation policies. 

14. Federal law enforcement agencies should re­
vise policies and training to increase the willing· 
ness of their agents to consider the advice of out· 
side experts. Recent successful negotiations with 
the Viper Militia and the Freemen indicate policies 
evincing a willingness to employ the advice of out· 
side experts. . 

15. Federal law enforcement agencies should re· 
vise policies and training to encourage the accept· 
ance of outside law enforcement assistance, where 
possible. · Federal law enforcement officers cur· 
rently network within and among officers from 
Federal, State and local law enforcement entities. 

16. The FBI should expand the size of the hos· 
tage rescue team. The HRT has been doubled in 
the 3 years since the events at Waco. 

17. The Government should further study and 
analyze the effects of CS tear gas on children, per· 
sons with respiratory problems, pregnant women 
and the elderly. Numerous studies have concluded 
that there is no increased toxicity or adverse effect 
when these populations are exposed to CS tear 
gas. Currently, data is gathered by exposing new 
armed forces recruits to tear gas. It seems that 
there would be a problem in conducting tests on 
human subjects within the population categories 
sUggested by the majority report. Although tradi­
tional tests with control and ·noncontrol groups 
would not be possible, persons should be mon· . 
itored and data collected whenever exposure OC• 
curs. 

CONCLUSION 

The events at Waco were a tragedy. However, 
the majority investigation, hearing and report add 
nothing new to the understanding of the tragedy 
or the prevention of future events similar to Waco. 

We live in dangerous times where the threat or 
domestic terrorism is real. The bombing of the AJ. 
fred P. Murrah Federal Building in Oklahoma, 
more than any other single event, stands as a tes· 
tament to the possible impact that a few people 
with illegal weapons and destructive purposes can 
have on a nation. Groups or individuals bent on 
undermining the constitutional· democracy or this 
country are a clear and present danger to the 
rights, liberties and freedoms that every American 
enjoys. 

In such troubling times, it seems irresponsible 
for the majority report to engage in speculation 
and unsupported theories and unproven allega­
tions against Federal law enforcement agencie.s 
and officers. The agencies involved should be com· 
mended for their extensive and unyielding inves· 
tigations as well as their quick and decisive efforts 
to take corrective actions to ensure that there is no 
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reoccurrenc:e of this type of event. It appears that 
the suc:c:essful handling of events suc:h as the 
"Freeman" standoff in Montana and the Viper Mi-

0 

110 

litia arrests in Arizona are testament to the deter·· 
mination of these agencies to learn from previous 
mistakes. 

HON. CARDJSS COLLINS. 
HoN. KAREN L. THuRMAN. 
HON. HENRY A. WAXMAN. 

HON. TOM LANTos. 
HoN. ROBERT E. WISE, JR. 

HoN. MAJoR R. OWENS. 
HoN. EDOLPHUS TOWNS. 

HoN. LoUISE M. SLAUGHTER. 
HoN. PAUL E. KANJORSKJ. 

HoN. CAROLYN B. MALONEY. 
· HON. THOMAS M. BARRETT. 

HoN. BARBARA-ROSE COLLINS. 
HoN. ELEANOR HoLMES NORTON. 

HoN. JAMES P. MoRAN. 
HoN. CARRIE P. MEEK. 

HoN. CHAKA FATTAH. 
HON. ELIJAH E. CUMMINGS. 
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. Sec.. 1.3. Ciassfllcntion Categories. 

. (a) Information shall be considered for classification if it concern~: .. 
( 1) millWj' plans, ~paris. or opm.tions: 

(2) the vulncri:blldes or capabilities of systems, Installiuions. projects, or pla:u relating 
to the national security; • 

· (3) foreign government information; 

( 4) iotelllgence activities (lncfuding special activities), or iatelllgence sources or 
methods; · · 

(5) foreign relatio~ or foreign activities of tho United States; 

(6) scientific, tcchnologicalt.or ~omic matterS rcls.ting to tho nadonal security; 

(1) United States GOvernment progranu for safeguarding nuclear materWs or facilities; 

(8) CI"YPtology; 
.t'··. 

(9) a ~ntial source, or 

(lO)·other categorl~ ofinfonnatiOtftlW s.ro ~atcd to ~e national·s~urlty and tbat 
require prott..ction against unacithorlz~snre-u-~ed by the President or by · 
agency heads or other officials who have been delegited original classification authority by 
tb.e ·President. Apy determination made under thiS itibsecdon Jha1l be reported promptly to 
·the Director of tho Information Secmiry Ovenigbt Office. 

. (b) Information that is determined to eoncem one or more of the categories in Secrlon 
1.3(a) shall be cla.uified when an. original classification anthorlty also determines that its 
unauthorized. disclosure, cith~_by iuelf or in the.co~t of other infnrm~trlon, reasonably 
~d be expecte4 to cause ~iC .t9 ~~.nation~!.' security.. . . .. . ·... ·• • . .. .. . . . 

. .· . . . 

(c) Unauthorized disclosure ot foreign government info:mation, the identity of a contiden· 
tfal for=ign source, or intelligence sources or methods is presumed to·cause damage to the 
national security. · 

(d) Information classified in aeeordanco with Section 1.3 &hall not be declassified intoma.t· 
ically a$ a. result of any unofficial publication or inadveneot or unauthorized dlsclosure in 
.the United Stares or abroad of identical or similar information •. 

··-- r_· .. ft1,1 _ -:=, 
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3RD CASE of Level 1 printed in FULL format. 

The Honorable Samuel R. Pierce, Jr. The Secretary of Housing 
and Urban Development 

B-229732 

Comptroller General of the United States 

1988 U.S. Comp. Gen. LEXIS 1581 

December 22, 1988 

Page 3 

1. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) appropriations for 
Research and Technology and for Salaries and Expenses are not available to fund 
programs primarily intended to promote international trade where HUD's authority 
to participate in international data exchange programs is limited to those 
mission related programs which benefit HUD in discharging its· ~tatutory 
responsibility to provide for the nation's housing needs. 

2. The Department of Housing and Urban Development has violated the 
Antideficiency Act, 31 u.s.c. § 1341 (1982), where it has no funds available to 
fund international trade promotion programs since obligations for such 
activities may be viewed either as being in excess of the amount (zero) 
available for that purpose or as in advance of appropriations made for that 
purpose. 

OPINION: 
Dear Mr. Secretary: 

On August 3, 1988, in testimony before the Employment and Housing 
Subcommittee of the House Government Operations Committee, the General 
Accounting Office reported the results of its review.of the commercial trade 
promotion activities undertaken by the Department of Housing and Urban· 
Development (HUD) in its role as the United States executive .agency for 
implementation [*2] of the bilateral Agreement on Cooperation in the Field of 
Housing and Other Construction, June 28, 1974, United States - Union of Soviet 
Socialist Republics, TIAS No. 7898 (Agreement). The Assistant Secretary for 
Policy Development and Research (PD&R) responded to our May 13, 1988 request for 
HUD'S position on a number of issues by letter dated June 23, 1988. We 
carefully considered the Assistant Secretary's responses pefore reporting to the 
Subcommittee on August 3. 

Among the findings that we'reported to the Subcommittee was our conclusion 
that HUD does not have authority to spend its appropriated funds for. commercial 
trade promotion activities. We are now writing to advise you of the basis for 
this finding and to recommend, for the reasons which follow, that HUD report a 
violation of the Antideficiency Act to the President and to the Congress in 
accordance with 31 u.s.c. § 1351 (1982). · 

BACKGROUND 
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HUD's commercial trade promotion efforts grew out of its role as the 
responsible United States agency for implementation of the Agreement. The 
original purpose of the Agreement was to carry out a mutually beneficial program 
of technical cooperative projects with the Soviet Union [*3] . in housing, 
construction, and urban development. In 1985, HUD and its Soviet counterpart 
.agreed to add a commercial dimension to the Agreement. HUD's agreement to 
engage in this new undertaking is documented in a protocol signed on September 
17, 1985. n1 The HUD Assistant Secretary for PD&R was then appointed as 
coordinator of United States commercial activities under the Agreement and was 
directed to organize "a major United States presence" at Stroyindustriya '87 -­
a 10-day international construction exhibition sponsored by the Soviet 
government in Moscow in May 1987. 

n1 The September 17, 1985 Protocol provides, in relevant part:. 

"The Committee noted the possibility of building mutually beneficial 
cooperation on a commercial basis with respect to individual project areas and 
directed Working Group leaders to undertake appropriate steps for establishing 
the required contacts prior to and during joint meetings." 

We estimate that HUD ·spent about $ 3 million for activities related to the 
Agreement during fiscal years 1984 through 1987. Over half of this amount was 
spent, from fiscal year 1987 ap~ropriations, for commercial activities in 
support of the trade exhibit. These [*4] commercial activities are to be 
distinguished from HUD's traditional technical cooperative projects. 

Traditional technical projects'frequently involved reciprocal exchange 
visits, information exchange and the development of technical papers and 
seminars in a manner mutually beneficial to both the United States and the 
Soviet Union. Topics have included utility systems, construction, seismic 
effects and urban development, and rehabilitation of buildings. These projects 
necessarily involved private firms with products or technological expertise in 
the topic fields. Although the participating companies.undoubtedly hoped to see 
business opportunities developing from their support and participation in the 
program, HUD's primary purpose in involving them was to facilitate the exchange 
of .. information related to housing and urban planning and development which would 
be'potentially useful in developing new methods of meeting problems encountered 

· ~ith the topic areas in the United States. 

HUD's new "commercial activities," on the other hand, were primarily intended 
to enhance the business opportunities of the American companies which desired to 
do business in the Soviet Union. According [*5] to information received from 
HUD, after identifying key Soviet construction and housing needs and priorities, 
HUD officials met with Soviet technical experts in Moscow and reviewed catalogs 
from the American firms which had expressed interest in the trade exhibition. 
This review was to assure HUD. and the firms that there was Soviet interest in 
the U.S. products and that they fit Soviet priorities. In November 1986, HUD 
·sponsored a delegation of public and private sector executives to Moscow to 
conduct another catalog show and a series of seminars designed to acquaint 
Soviet officials with examples of American products and technology that would be 
exhibited at Stroyindustriya '87. The following January, HUD officials led a 
delegation of U.S. business men in an advance marketing mission to Moscow to 
begin negotiations on machinery, equipment and products that would be purchased 
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off the floor at Stroyindustriya '87. 

In serving as the principal domestic organizer of U.S. participation in 
Stroyindustriya '87, HUD identified, contacted, and recruited the 

Page 5 

participating u.s. firms. Some of the companies HUD chose· to participate in the 
trade show were marketing products which do not directly [*6] relate to 

.housing construction or to community development~ Examples of such products 
include airport runway sweepers, protective playground equipment, potato storage 
construction technology, add-on green houses, carpeting, drapery hardware, and 
upholstered furniture. In Moscow, HUD and its contractors handled the details 
of renting the exhibition building and other fair logistics. During the 
exhibition, HUD staff worked to arrange individual and group meetings for 
American exhibitors with Soviet officials, provided directories of the 
participating companies, and sponsored a reception for Soviet officials. 

HUD's response to our inquiry indicates that it paid for these and other 
Agreement-related activities with funds from its appropriations for Salaries and 
Expenses and for Research and Technology. HUD's response does not cite any 
other appropriation which it believes to be available to·pay for activities 
related to trade promotion. 

DISCUSSION 

Section 604 of the Housing Act of 1957, as amended, 12 u.s.c. § 1701d-4 
(1962), authorizes the Secretary of HUD to participate, and pay the expenses of 
participation, in international conferences and other similar activities for the 
[*7] purpose of exchange and assembly of information relating to housing, 
urban planning, and urban development as deemed beneficial in carrying out the 
Secretary's responsibilities under legislation which he is charged to 
administer. Based on our review of the legislative history of Section 604, we 
conclude that the Congress intended the exchanges to be reciprocal as well as 
useful in developing new methods of meeting problems encountered in these fields 
in the United States. n2 In the absence of expanded authority in its 
appropriation acts, HUD's authority under 12 U.S.C. § 1701d-4, however, does not 
extend to participation in international conferences or similar activities if 
their purpose is not the exchange and assembly of information relating to 
ho~sing, urban planning, and urban development. 

n2 "Section 604 of the bill directs the [HOD Secretary] to exchange with 
other nations data relating to housing and urban planning and development. 
Because of the significant recent progress made in this country in dealing with 
problems in these fields, the [Secretary] is very frequently called upon to 
provide information to other countries which the committee believes is helpful 
to those countries in solving similar problems. Furthermore, the committee 
believes that the housing and urban planning experience of many other countries 
(particularly in specialized fields) has been and will continue to be helpful to 
the the housing industry, the Congress, and the [Secretary] in developing new 
methods of meeting related problems in this country." S. Rep. No. 368, 85th 
Cong., 1st Sess. 31-32, reprinted in 1957 U.S. Code Cong. & Ad. News 1319, 1349. 
[*8) 

HOD's annual appropriation for Salaries and Expenses under the heading 
"Management and Administration," provides funding only for "necessary 
administrative and nonadministrative expenses of the Department not otherwise 
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provided for." It finances all salaries and related costs associated with 
administering HUD's programs. n3 Accordingly, so long as (1) the Secretary of 
HUD deems his international activity under the Agreement beneficial in 
discharging his statutory responsibilities and, (2) those activities are for the 
purpose of exchanging and assembling information which relates to housing, 
urban planning, and urban development, HUD's information exchange activities in 

.support of the agreement may be funded from its appropriation for Salaries and 
~enses.· 

n3 See, e.g., Executive Office of the President, Budget of the United States 
Government, 1987- Appendix, H.R. Doc. No. 144, 99th Cong., 2d Seas. at 1-M36 
(1986). 

With respect to HUD's activities under the commercial Component of the 
Agreement, n4 we examined materials issued by HUD to publicize its new 
initiative and concluded that the purpose of the commercial activities 
undertaken pursuant to the 1985 Protocol [*9] in support of Stroyindustriya 
'87 was the promotion of international trade rather than an exchange of data 
related to housing and urban development. n5 HUD's new commercial emphasis was 
illustrated by the catalog exhibits, advance marketing missions, the exhibition 
itself, and follow-up activities to monitor new business with the Soviets. HUD 
described these initiatives as "a major departure from past practice." Expenses 
relating to the Agreement were classified as either "technical" or "commercial." 
On the basis of these facts, it is clear that HUD's primary purpose for 
participating in Stroyindustriya '87 and its related activities was to 
facilitate commercial trade rather than to exchange technical information. 
Accordingly, l2 U.S.C. § l70ld-4 does not provide statutory authority for the 
activities HUD undertook pursuant to the commercial component of the agreement. 
Absent such statutory authority, HUD's appropriation for Salaries and Expenses 
is not available to pay for them. 

n4 By letter of June 23, 1988, HUD stated its position that: 

"The Agreement authorizes the parties to agree to areas of cooperation and to 
forms of cooperation other than those specifically mentioned in the Agreement. 
Accordingly, the two parties can, by Protocol, expand the areas and means of 
cooperation so long as the cooperation continues to be related to housing and 
otper construction. There is no question that the •cooperation of a commercial 
basis' contemplated in the 1985 Protocol related to housing and other 
construction and, even if not totally within the scope of the original 
Agreement, is a means of cooperation that could be mutually agreed upon by the 
parties under Article III of the Agreement." 

n5 For example, HUD News Release No. 87-51, May 14, 1987, announced that: 

"Samuel R. Pierce, Jr., Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, will iead 
a U.S. delegation of over 200 public and private sector executives to Moscow to 
participate in the International Construction exhibition from May 27 to June 5. 
A total of 105 U.S. companies will be represented in this major effort to 
generate Soviet commercial interest in American construction materials and 
technology. • • . The strong American business participation in STROYINDUSTRIA 
'87 resulted from a variety of advance marketing activities, led by Secretary 
Pierce and Dr. June Q. Koch, HUD Assistant Secretary for Policy Development and 
Research, designed to match Soviet priorities in the civil construction field 
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with capabilities of American firms . • • • As a result of secretary Pierce's 
initiative, there is now a significant •commercial dimension' to the technical 
exchange program under the 1974 U.S. - U.S.S.R. Agreement on Housing and other 
Construction." [*10] 

The HUD Secretary's statutory responsibility to undertake "programs of 
research, studies, te.sting, and demonstrations" under Section 501 of the_Housing 

.and Urban Development Act of 1970, as amended, l2 u.s.c. § 1701z-1 (Supp. IV 
1986), is limited to those which relate to the mission and programs of .HUD. n6 
The primary mission of HUD is stated in the Declaration of Policy of the Housing 
and Urban Development Act of 1968, § 2, 12 u.s.c. § 1701t (1982), in which the 
Congress affirmed the national goal, as set forth in section 2 of the Housing 
Act of 1949, n7 of "a decent home and suitable living environment for every 
American family. " n8 

n6 HUD, in response to our May 13 inquiry, noted that Section 520 of the 1970 
Act: 

"requires the Secretary of HUD to take measures necessary to encourage 
large-scale experimentation in the use of new technologies, methods and 
materials in producing housing and related facilities. Section 502 also 
authorizes the Secretary to provide advice and technical assistance in 
connection with activities authorized under Section 501 and to pay the cost of 
writing and printing reports concerning those activities. Section 502 further 
authorizes the Secretary to carry out his responsibilities under Section 501 
either directly or by contract or grant. Section 502 also contemplates and 
authorizes mutual cooperation between this Department [HUD] and Federal, State 
and private agencies in furthering this Department's research missions." 

n7 42 u.s.c. § 1441 (1982). 

n8 See .7 Warren, Gorham & Lamont, Housing and Development Reporter at 13 
(1987) . The responsibilities of the HUD Secretary are further defined at 42 
U.S.C. § 3532 (1982), and include the responsibility to: 

"~ .. encourage private enterprise to serve as large a part of the Nation's 
total housing and urban development needs as it can and develop the fullest 
copperation with private enterprise in achieving the objectives of the 
Department; and conduct continuing comprehensive studies, and make available 
·findings, with respect to the problems of housing and urban development." 
[*11] 

The Agreement provides for cooperation with the Soviet Union in the areas of 
innovative techniques for the improvement of buildings and building materials; 
performance criteria for housing and other construction in seismic areas; 
improvement of construction methods in areas of extreme climatic conditions; 
services to housing and othe~ buildings; and planning, design, and construction 
of new towns. Article II, TIAS 7898. Under 12 u.s.c. § l70lz-l, HUD is 
authorized to participate in such cooperative activities so long as they relate 
to HOD's mission of providing for the nation's housing needs. 

HUD's appropriations under the heading "Policy Development and Research: 
·Research and Technology" are available: 

"[f]or contracts, grants, and necessary expenses of programs of research and 
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studies relating to housing and urban problems, not otherwise provided for, as 
authorized by title V of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1970, as 
amended (12 U.S.C. § l70lz-1 et seq.) ... " n9 

n9 Department of Housing and Urban Development-Independent Agencies 
Appropriations Act, 1986, Pub. L. No. 99-160, 99 Stat. 909 (1985); Joint 
Resolution making continuing appropriations for the fiscal year 1987, and for 

.other purposes, Pub. L. No. 100-202, approved October 30, 1986, 100 Stat. 
3341-242. [*12] 

Therefore, to the extent that a cooperative activity (1) relates to HOD's 
mission as required by 12 U.S.C. § l701z-l and, (2) qualifies as a program of 
research and studies related to housing and urban problems, HOD's Research an4 
Technology appropriation is available to pay for it. 

The Assistant Secretary for PD&R stated in his June 23 response to our 
inquiry that HOD's participation in Stroyindustriya '87 and other trade 
promotion activities grew from HOD's agreement to support a "commercial" 
initiative as documented in the September 1985 protocol. Neither the statutes 
making appropriations to HUD for Research and Technology nor 12 U.S.C. § 1701z-1 
contains authority for HOD to undertake commercial endeavors. Commercial 
activities are not analogous to the "technical" research, study, testing, and 
demonstration programs ~uthorized by 12 U.S.C. § 170lz-l nor, do they qualify as 
a program of research and study for which Research & Technology appropriations 
are available. 

Where, as here, the purpose of providing information on American construction 
and building technology to the Soviets was the acquisition of information of 
Soviet needs and the potential for sale of American products [*13] and 
services in the Soviet Union, n10 we cannot conclude that the 12 U.S.C. § 

l70lz-l requirement for HOD's programs of research, studies, testing and 
demonstrations to relate to its mission has been satisfied. Had the intended 
benefit to U.S. commerce been a by-product of an authorized HOD research, study, 
or demonstration program to improve housing in the United States, HOD's 
appropriations would have been available to fund such activities. Here, 
however, HOD's primary purpose was to enhance business opportunities for 
American companies, many of which marketed products to the housing industry. 
Ina~much as the promotion of trade does not qualify as a program of Research or 
Study related to housing and urban problems, HOD's Appropriations for Research 
-and Technology are not available for that purpose. 

n10 See Department of Housing and Urban Development, Construction Industry 
Technology of the United States: Stroyindustriya '87, "Fact Sheet: U.S. 
Participation in Stroyindustriya '87." 

CONCLUSION 

When an agency's appropri~tion is not available for a designated purpose, and 
the agency has no other funds available for that purpose, any officer of the 
agency who [*14] authorizes an obligation or expenditure of agency funds for 
that purpose violates the Antideficiency Act. n11 Since the Congress has not 
appropriated funds for the designated purpose, the obligation may be viewed 
either as being in excess of the amount (zero) available for that purpose or as 
in advance of appropriations made for that purpose. In either case the 
Antideficiency Act is violated. n12 As discussed above, HUD has no funds 
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available for its trade promotion activities. n13 This finding was the basis for 
our testimony on August 3, 1988, in which we reported our conclusion that HUD's 
trade promotion activities had resulted in a violation of·tbe Antideficiency 
Act. 

n11 3l u.s.c. § l34l(a) provides that: 
. '· ~ 

•(1) An officer or employee of the United States Government or of the 
District of Columbia government may not - (A) make or authorize an expenditure 
or obligation exceeding an amount available in an appropriation or fund for the ' 
expenditure or obligation; or (B) involve either government in a contract or 
obligation for the payment of money before an appropriation is made unless 
authorized by law." · 

n12 60 Comp. Gen 440 (1981). See also, B-204270, Oct. 13, ,1981. 

n13 Other than its appropriations for Research and Technology and for . 
Salaries and Expenses, HUD did not cite any other appropriation which it 
believes to be available to pay for activities related to the promotion of 
international trade. [*15] 

z 0023718 



EXECUTIVE ORDER 
11850 

..... 4 

RENUNCIATION OF CERTAIN USES IN WAR OF CHEMICAL 
HERBICIDES AND RIOT CONTROL AGENTS 

FC 3-11-2 

Apri1.8, 1975 

The United States renounces, as a matter of national policy, first use of 
herbicides in war except use, under regulations applicable to their domestic 
use, f~r control of vegetation within U.S. baaes and installations or around 
their immediate defensive perimeters, and first use of riot control agents in 
war except in defensive military modes to save lives such as: 

(a) Use of riot control agents in riot control situations in areas 
under direct and distinct U.S. military control, to include controlling 
rioting prisoners of war. 

(b) Use of riot control agents in situations in which civilians are 
used to mask or s~reen attacks and civilian casualties can be reduced or 
avoided. 

(c) Use of riot control agents in rescue missions, in remotely 
isolated areas, of downed aircrews and passengers, and escaping prisoners. 

(d) Use of riot control agents in rear echelon areas outside the zone 
of immediate combat to protect convoys from civil disturbances, terrorists and 
paramilitaty organizations. 

I have determined that the prov~s1ons and procedures prescribed by this 
Order are necessary to ensure proper implementation and observance of such 
national policy. 

Na.1, !liEREFORE, by virtue of the authority vested in me as President of 
the United States of America by the Constitution and l~s of the United States 
and as Commander-in-Chief of the Armed Forces of the United States, it is 
hereby ordered as follows: 

Section 1. The Secretaty of Defense shall take all necessary measures to 
ensure that the use by the Armed Forces of the United States of any riot 
control agents and chemical herbicides in war is prohibited unless such use 
has Presidential approval, in advance. 

. Section 2. The Secretary of Defense shall prescribe the rules and 
regulations he deems necessary to ensure that the national policy herein 
announced shall be observed by the A~ed·Forces of the United States. 

ntE WHITE HOUSE, 
APRIL 8, 1975 

GERALD R. FORD 

Figure 1 

v 

z 0032755 



-
FC 3-11-2 

Introduction 

a. General. Riot control agents (RCAs) and herbicides are not considered 

chemical warfare agents by the United States. On 22 Janua~ 1975, the u.s.· 

ratified the Geneva Gas Protocol. As part. of the ratification process, the 

u.s. made it clear that th~ Protocol p~~hibited only the fir3t use of lethal 

gases. Non-lethal agents such as riot control agents were not prohibited by 

this Protocol. 

b. Scope. This circular provides guidance for the use of riot control 

agents in combat and training. It is applicable. for low through high 
I . 

int~nsity conflicts and written primarily for use by staffs at all command 
.• . . ..... 

echelons. It gives brlef descriptions ·of .RCAs·n~ available for use and 
.• •. , -. ,· 'J ...... 0 : •• ',. :. • • •, • 0 • • • .. •• • 

developmental as well as standardized RCA munitions. Target effects data. 

area coverage. or munitions expendi~ure is given for each iteCl if available. 

r.,is manual is not intended as a reference for law enforcement or civil 

disturbance operations. For guidance on these uses of RCAs refer to FM 19-15. 

Civil Disturbances, dated Nov 1985. 

c. Policy and Authority for Release. 

(1) United States Policy does not prohibit the use of RCAs in War. 

however·. on 8 April 1975, the President of the U.S. issued Executive Order 

(EO) 11850 that unilaterally renounced certain first-uses of riot control 

agents in armed conflict (Figure 1 - EO 11850). It does not forbid the first 

use of RCAs if they are used in defensive military modes to save lives in an 

area under direct·and distinct U.S. military control. The order also places 

no restrictions on retaliatory. use of RCAs during chemical warfare. 

Nonetheless, EO 11850 requires prior Presidential approval of any use (first-

use or retaliatory) of RCAs or herbicides in war. Approval authority has been 

iv 

.c . , 
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delegated for most peacetime uses (such as civil dist·urbances and training and 

certain special conditioa.. (see Figure 2-1). 

(2) U.S. ampl~ent of RCA• may be authorized in retaliation to ene~ 

first-use of RCAs lethal chemical agents. incapacitating agents or toxic 

weapons against U.S. or Allied Forces •. This retaliatory use will be conducted 

so as to minimize casualties among the civilian population. There are many 

factors that must be considered in any employment decision. such as the nature 

and level of the threat. the likelihood of escalation of chenical warfare, and 

the concerns of the host nation, Allies, and the international c~unity. The 

deci~ion to emplQ1 .RCAs·or herbicides will be determined on a case-by-case 

basis, even after first. use by an enemy. 

(3) Requests for deployment and use of RCAS in wartime are submitted 

and answered using the chemical weapons request (CWR) messages established 

within each theater by the commander-in-chief (CINC) in accordance with the 

Joint Chiefs of Staff Emergency Action Procedures. Plans for RCA employment 

should be included in the chemical fire support paragraph/appendix to the fire 

support portion of plans and orders (see Appendix D), and coordinated with the 

division airspace management element (DAME). RCAs should be integrated into 
( 

conventional time-phased force deployment data (TPFDD) files and preplanned 

for.both first-use and retaliatory roles by theater and subordinate staffs. 

Authority to empl01 RCAs and approve RCA targets in combat should be delegated 

to battalion level whenever possible to ensure the most responsive usc of 

these weapons. (Large area RCA operations and integration with chemical 

strikes must still be considered at division and corps.) Coordination and 

logistics requirements are similar to those for chemical weapons, but less 

reztrictive due to the essentially non-lethal nature of RCAs (see Appendix C 

vi 

f . . 
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for DODAC and locations of RCA munitions). RCAs should be maintained at the 

corps ammunition supply points until released for use and included in unit 

prescribed chemical loads (Pets) • 

. i 

vii 
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NATIONAL· POLICY 
Extract from Executive Order No. 11850, Apr. 18, 1975 

The U.S.· renounces as a matter of national policy. 
first use of riot control agents in war except in 
defensive military modes to save lives such as: 

~ 

(a) riot control situations in areas under direct 
U.S. military control, including POW riots. 

(b) situations involving· the use of civilians to 
mask or screen attacks. 

(c) rescue missions in ·remotely isolated areas of 
downed aircrews •. passengers, and escaping 
prisoners. 

(d) in rear echelon areas to protect convoys from 
civil disturbances. terrorists, and 
paramilitary operations. 
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HEADNOTES: 
[*1] 

39TH CASE of Level l printed in FULL format. 

Matter of: U.S. Department of Labor -- Interagency Agreement 
Between Employment and Training Administration and Bureau of 

International Labor Affairs 

B-245541 

Comptroller General of the United States 

71 Comp. Gen. 402; 1992 U.S. Comp. Gen. LEXIS 661 

May 21, 1992 

Page 21 

1. The Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, 
appropriation for "Training and Employment Services" was available to fund 
international research projects that could assist the Secretary of Labor in 
finding solutions to the nation's employment and training problems. The Job 
Training Partnership Act requires the Secretary of Labor to establish a 
comprehensive program of employment and training research to help find solutions 
to the nation's employment and training problems. 29 u.s.c. § l732. 

2 .. The Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, 
appropriation for "Training and Employment Services" is not available to fund a 
project to provide developing countries with access to instructional training 
materials. The Department's appropriation is only available to pay for 
internation~l research projects to the extent the projects relate to the 
Department's mission under the Job Training Partnership Act to·find solutions to 
the Nation's employment and training problems. 

qo?loPINION: 
DECISION 

This responds to a request by the Inspector General and the Assistant 
Se,6retary. for Administration and Management of the United States Department of 
Labor (Department). They [*2) ask whether the Department improperly used its 
Employment and Training Administration (ETA) "Training and Employment Services" 
appropriation to fund three projects carried out by the United Nations• 
International Labor Organization. For the reasons indicated below, we conclude 
the appropriation was available to fund two of the projects but not the third. 

BACKGROUND 

At the June 1988 International Labor Conference in Geneva, Switzerland, the 
Secretary of Labor pledged $ 500,000 to the United Nations• International Labor 
Organization (ILO) n1 for research involving job training, employment promotion, 
and working conditions. According to Department officials, the Department's 
Bureau of International Labor Affairs (ILAB) n2 coordinates all international 
labor activities within the Department. This includes administering the 
technical aspects of the Department's participation in the ILO. Therefore, 
Department officials decided that, although funding·would come from ETA, the 
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ILAB was best suited to administer the projects in view of its on-going 
relationship with the ILO. 

Page 22 

n1 According to the Department, "the ILO, a specialized agency of the United 
Nations, exists to promote voluntary cooperation of Nations to improve labor 
conditions and raise living standards, thereby improving prospects of peace by 
fostering economic and social stability throughout the world." 

n2 The Bureau of International Labor Affairs "integrates all international 
labor programs and foreign economic policy within the Department (of Labor); 
gives Departmental guidance to the U.S. participation in international 
organizations concerned with labor and employment and training problems; and 
provides for labor and employment and training technical services to other 
Government and international agencies." See Budget of the United States 
Government, 1989 -- Appendix, I-P18. [*3] 

ETA transferred$ 500,000 from its "Training and Employment Services" 
appropriation to the ILAB under Inter-Agency Agreement No. 99-9-3368-75-002-03, 
signed on November 8, 1988. The purpose of the agreement was "to provide the 
Department of Labor with comparative international experience related to the Job 
Training and Partnership Act (JTPA) and to enhance the status of the U.S. 
Government in the ILO." Under the agreement, the ILAB entered into grant 
agreements with the ILO for the following three projects. 

Project 1 (Grant Number E-9-K-9-0040): Research Project on Drug and Alcohol 
Abuse Preve~tion and Assistance Programs at the Workplace 

The Department provided about $ 225,000 for the ILO to conduct an 
international comparative analysis of drug and alcohol abuse prevention and 
assistance programs in the workplace. The ILO evaluated drug and alcohol 
programs i~Canada, the Federal Republic of Germany, Sweden, the United Kingdom, 
and the Unit-:ci' States. The objective was "to improve the capability and 
knowledge of governments, employers• and workers' organizations and managers of 
enterprises to formulate effective policies and to develop, design and manage 
drug and alcohol related [*4] prevention and assistance programs." Under the 
agreement, the ILO was required to present the Department with a comprehensive 
rep~rt discussing "the dimensions of the problem, the various approaches tried 
at.national and enterprise levels to prevent drug and alcohol abuse among 
workers and to assist those with such problems, the barriers (including legal 
ones) to the development and implementation of workplace programs and strategies 
to overcome them and elements of effective programs and the role of labor and 
management." 

Project 2 (Grant No. E-9-K-9-0042): The Potential for Training Disadvantaged 
Youth Using New Training Technologies 

The Department provided about $ 225,000 for a "survey and analysis of recent 
training programs in Latin America, in both industrialized and developing 
countries, for disadvantaged youth, especially from the perspective of new 
instructional technologies and learning theories." Under the agreement, the ILO 
was required to develop sample training materials designed for disadvantaged 
youth in Latin America and to present the Department with, among other things, 
~a report on the implications of new and innovative instructional technologies 
for training [*5] young people with poor formal education." 
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Project #3 (Grant No. E-9-K-9-0043): Development of a Focal Point for the 
Identification and Distribution of Learning Materials 

The Department provided$ 50,000 to the ILO to create an international "focal 
point" to identify and distribute training materials, primarily American and 
European in origin, to developing countries. Under the agreement, the ILO was 
required to establish an operational link, at ILO's Center for Advanced 
Vocational Training, with existing data bases and to train key personnel from 
developing countries in how to access materials on the databases. 

DISCUSSION 

The DOL/ETA's Appropriation Act for fiscal year 1988 under the heading 
"Training and Employment Services," provides: 

"For expenses necessary to carry into effect the Job Training Partnership Act 
. $ 3,658,651,000 plus reimbursements, to be available for obligation for 

the period July 1, 1988, through June 30, 1989. . . " (Emphasis added.) 

Pub. L. No. 100-202. 101 Stat. 1329-256 (1987). 

Under 31 U.S.C. § l30l(a) (1988), agencies may use appropriated funds only 
for authorized purposes. The determination that a particular expense is 
necessary for an [*6] authorized purpose is, in the tirst instance, a matter 
of agency discretion .Jq§s iH;;!391, . Se:pe, ::;!7, l:PP:a., 70 Comp. Gen .'"1t.o~) Accordingly, 
when we consider whether an expense is necessary, we determine only whether it 
falls within the agency's legitimate range of discretion, or whether its 
relationship to an authorized purpose is so attenuated as to take it beyond that 
range. Id. 

Here, Cortg.ress provided an appropriation for the Department of Labor to carry 
out the Job Training Partnership Act. The Job Training Partnership Act requires 
the Secretary of Labor to establish a "comprehensive program of employment and 
training research, utilizing the methods, techniques, and knowledge of the 
behavioral and social· sciences and such other methods, techn~ques, and knowledge 
as will aid in the solution of the Nation's employment and training problems." 
29 u.s.c. § l732(a) (1988). The Act also requires the Secretary to establish "a 
program of experimental, developmental, and demonstration projects, through 
grants or contracts, for the purpose of improving techniques and demonstrating 
the effectiveness of speciali~ed methods in meeting employment and training 
problems." 29 ·U.S.C. § l732(b). [*7] 

Department officials believe that 29 u.s.c. § 1732 authorized the projects as 
part of a comprehensive research program. They believe that the knowledge, 
expertise, and experience of other countries can help the United States solve 
its own employment problems. As such, the Department considers comparative 
international research a legitimate component of a research program carried out 
under the JTPA. · 

Section 1732.makes clear that Congress intended for the Secretary to carry 
out an extensive program to "assist the Nation in.expanding work opportunities 
and assuring access to those opportunities for all who desire it." 29 u.s.c. § 

~732(a). The program may include, but is not limited to, studies involving such 
broad topics as "policies and programs to reduce unemployment," "productivity of 
labor," and "methods of improving the wages·and employment opportunities of 

z 0023709 



Page 24 
71 Comp. Gen. 402; 1992 U.S. Comp. Gen. LEXIS 661, *7 

low-skilled and disadvantaged workers." Id. Thus, it is within the legitimate 
range of the Secretary's discretion to include comparative international 
research projects in a comprehensive program of employment and training 
research. 

Nevertheless, the Department's ''Training and Employment Services" 
appropriation is only [*8] available for such projects to the extent'. they 
relate to the purpose of the Job Training Partnership Act. Cf. B-229732, 
December 22, 1988 (HUD'funds are available for international trade program only 
to the extent it relates to HUD's mission and programs). The Congressionally 
declared purpose of the Act is to "establish.programs to prepare youth and 
unskilled adults for entry into the labor force and to afford job training to 
those economically disadvantaged individuals and other individuals facing 
serious barriers to employment, who are in special need of such training to 
obtain productive employment." 29 U.S.C. § 1501. · 

The information resulting from Project 1, which involved research and 
analysis of drug and alcohol abuse prevention and assistance programs in various 
countries, could assist the Department in establishing similar programs in th!:J '-rou 
United States. Likewise, the information resulting from Project 2, which . 
involved research and analysis of training programs for disadv.antaged youth in 
Latiri America, could aid the Department in finding solutions to the barriers· to 
employment facing disadvantaged youth in this country. Thus, we think it was in 
the Secretary's legitimate [*9] range of discretion to decide that Projects 1 
and 2 would help the Department find solutions to the Nation's employment and 
training problems. Accordingly, the Department's "Training and Employment 
Services" appropriation was available for these projects. 

The primary purpose of Project 3, however, was to provide developing 
countries· with access to American and European training materials by 
establishing a data base, or "focal point," at the ILO. As the ILO•s proposal 
for Project 3 indicates, the United States had access to these training 
materials on existing data bases. Clearly, therefore, the project was intended 
to be~efit developing countries and not the United States . 

. Had the intended benefit to other countries been a by-product of.an 
authorized research or demonstration project to help find solutions to 
employment problems in this country, as was the case with Projects 1 and 2, the 
Department's appropriation would have been available. Here, however, the 
primary purpose of the project was to provide other countries with access to 
training materials readily available'in the United States. Thus, the project 
did not relate to the agency's mission in carrying out its responsibilities 
[*10] under the JTPA. Accordingly, the Department improperly charged its 
•Training and Employment Services" appropriation with the cost of .the project. 

CONCLUSION 

When an agency's appropriation is not available for a designated purpose, and 
the agency has no other funds available for that purpose, any officer of the 
agen~y who authorizes an obligation or expenditure of agency funds for that 
purpose violates the Antideficiency Act. 31 u.s.c. § l341(a) ~ If no other 
funds were available for Project 3, the obligation could be viewed as either in 
excess of the amount (zero) available for that purpose or as in advance of 
appropriations made for that purpose. In either case, the obligation violated 
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. .. . '·:,'J1ia·:hlt~nt ~~~ to give the sr~ ~~i~i~iu. ti,~ C:l~~ D]_~:ltif~ 
:.tii&t &itho~gh thcire vas an al~emati~a and thi• vas not it. 

,. 
aituaticn, the FBI vas uintain!ng aaxaua·control.. lti.cml~ . . . 

~·. ·. Unc!e~to~ ~t .. the u•• of t~:ar· 9~ '·to. e~· .the. -~tan4oti 

. bkA • .va~al csa~•~. tha plan ~a8 to i!ljaot ~e c;aa throll9ai. 
· vindova aethoc11ca11Y.. He a48e4 that boi:h. he • .and the A.t~c'=~ 

aene~a1 ver• confident that there would· be •nhancecS · .......... iiG.I. 

· citpabllitiea to •••t all ftaiada. :Ha'·al•o a~.ld::~at tha FBI'~· ..... -.. ~>< ... 
=_ 1nt~r2led them that the tear gaa vcu14 not ca~•• .. tire. ·=' · 

~. April lf Mtt~inqs 

on Wednea~ay, April 14, a large ~•eting wac 

Director's ot~ice: The 3uatiae Depart=ent vas rapresante4 ~y·• 

~ana, Hubbell, Keeney and Incontrc. Alon9 with Director 

Seaaiona, the FBI repraaen~atives included Clarke, Gov. Potts,· 

coul•oft, Roqera, and Anthony Batz, chiet of the Domeatic 
. . 

~rro:risa unit in qio.· Thera vare · also several military ·_1.. •• 

rapraaantativea, an~. B&rry Saleyho vas }lr:aent to .·.:{:; 

•u=m•rize r•aulta of atu41es ot eftacta ot es gaa on cbildren•~•~~; 
. ' .. '· 

_P,r"egnant women .ant! thea elc!arly. The Attorney General delc:r1~e4 .or~ t:' · .. ' . \. ..... ,.-. ... 
»r. salea as "careful and scientific. • Sha raaallacS that ··.''=:~:M·.'. 
. . . .-.. 
although thera ba4 bean no l•~oratory teats ~ertor.med en chil~~: , 

relative to the aftacta of the ~as, anecdotal evidence va• 

ccnv!ne!nq that there vou14 ~a no par.aanant injur,y. 
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c:. The interyiew of the former cult members posed a dillicuft problem in 
terms of determining their reliability and accuracy ofinfomaation. Again, a system was not in 
place to pool information coming from these sources, to fully analyze it, and to disseminate the 
1esul_ting intelligence in a useful way to tactical and support personnel. 

d. The VIC house operation was an excellent idea which did not pay high 
dividends b«ause of a lack of organization, proper tasking, and supervision of their activities. 
"fhe logs which I reviewed were incomplete and do not substantiate many of the assumptions 
which were made on activity in the compound. For example, the tactical planners were adamant 
that a •routine• was evident in the compound with the males working outside at 10:00 AM 
onwards .. .logs from the U/C house do not corroborate this assumption. At best, the U/C house 
operation resulted in limited information about the physical structure, incomplete observation of 
activities. and information about a few of the personnel inside the compound. The UIC house 
operation was capable, in my opinion, of providing much more intelligence. One of the supposed 
goals of the U/C house was to obtain additional information on probable cause for a search or 
an est warrant .. .it is not evident to me that this occurred. 

e. The Forward Observers were not effectively used and a TOC was not in 
place to exploit information coming from the Forward Observers. The lack of effectiveness in this 
event refers to gaps in tasking, limited deployment around the compound, lateness of deployment. 
and tbe provision of extremely limited amounts of collection devices to the Forward Observers. 

( Rt~ommendations: 

Without access to all ATF policy. procedural guidance, and training information for intelligence, I 
am not able to make detailed recommendations on improvement of human intelligence operations. 
1 therefore recomme11d that ATF or an outside organization conduct a more in-depth review of 
intelligenco operations to determine whether thefO is need for changes/additions 10 policy. 
proc:edu(e, and training. 

4. lnaagti'J lqtePicenre: 

a. In-bouse A TF capabilities to coDect and process imagery intelligence 
appear e"tremely limited. The'e are references to a (i.e .• only one) JSmm can1era in the U/C 
bouse, a pole camera which did not work very well and was positioned poorly (both physically 
and in terms of how permission was obtained to install it), poor intelligence analysis and posting 
ofinformation from the UIC hour.e photographic operations. and little or no use of night vision 
equipment with video 01 photographic capability. 

b. A TF capability to collect aerial imagery intelligence appears to be very 
·limited. ATF turned to both Customs and the Texas National Guard for support in these areas. 
do not find strong evidence that the ability to plan and collect imagery intelligence using aerial 
platforms was well planned or directed by ATF. The offer by a member of the Texas Governor's 
Office to overfly &he compound and to use relatively unsophisticated Forward Looking Infrared 
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the exception of smoke grenades. which were apparently unavailable from military 
sources. Under the circumstances. smoke grenades might have been of benefit in 
concealing the withdrawal or movement of the raid force. A controversy developed later 
concerning the availability of additional AR-IS semi-automatic rilles. but according to 
lbe Support Coordinator. all that were requested were received. and if more had been 
requested. they. too. would have been provided. In retrosrect. there is no question thai 
more could have been utilized. 

With reference to helicopters. it had been the understanding of planners that 
necessary aviation as.o;ets would be provided by U.S. Customs Service. However. the 
decision was made at a later date to utilize Texas National Guard auets. This assistance 
was obtained with the cooperation of the Department of Defense liaison officer to the 
BATF in Washington. D.C. Whether the decision to utilize National Guard a!ISets was 
based upon politics. rivalry. or practicality is a moot point. In either case. the National 
Guard ultimately committed to providing aviation assistance. armored vehicles on a 
standby basis. and other support equipment. 

Fortunately. full-scale. multi-agency activities. approaching the. size of 
Operation Trojan Horse. are still rare within law enforcement. Nonetheless. agencies 
inust be prepared should they be confronted by circum..,tances of this nature requiring 
their attention. Logistical support of any operation. and particularly one of great 
magnitude. can have a marked affect on . its outcome. Therefore. the assigned 
coordinator must be especially familiar with his role. as well as various sources of 
logistical assistance. 

One approach to ensuring future uniformity and directed action in obtaining 
logistical support for an operation is io prepare and provide to each BA TF Field Division 
Office a logistical manual. This manual. which would be provided to lhe Logistical 
Coordinator at the time of his assignment to the position. would contain a full description 
and statement of duties and responsibilities. along with logistical sources. procedures. and 
points of contact. The National Re~ponse Plan provides some direction in this regard. 
and that lnfonnation could ea..,ily be el(landcd into a more helpful format. ~ described 
above. 

Emffgmey Medical Senlca 

One of the areas for which the BATF was most criticized by those with little 
or no knowledge of Operation Trojan Horse was an alleged failure to provide Emergency 
Medical Services (EMS). Research for this report revealed that these allegations were 
patently false. Unfortunately. television coverage of the evacuation of dead and wounded 
agents. and the withdrawal or others. prompted these allegations becau.o;e there was no 
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Raid Implementation· Analysis 

Criticism must be directed at the way the raid plan was car-

ried out. 

Critical to a successful operation on this day was the el-

ement of surprise. This advantage was not maintained because of 

several important tactical shortcomings. 

Forward observers might have helped ensure that surprise was 

maintained. had they been positioned to have full-circle coverage 

of the Compound. and had they been given a developed plan of op­

eration. Observer and sniper teams should have been in place for 

twelve hours prior to the raid. This kind of coverage would have 

allowed 1\'I'F lo see the armed Branch Davidians who apparently went 

to the Compound• s "spider holes'' during the hour before the raid; 

a report that Compound residents had taken these positions would 

have required that the raid be cancelled. 

The role of the helicopters was to create a diversion immedi­

ately prior to arrival of the raid force. llad command and control 

accurately directed and communicated the diversion. firing at the 

helicopters by Dranct1 Davidians might have provided the signal 

that the raid should be aborted. 

The use of Waco as the staging area and the number of media 

vehicles active in the area prior to the raid should have received 

r.arc[ul and in-depth assessment. 
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OPERATIONS PLAN 

J-.~lTV~TJON: 

A. CIR~IMSTANCES: 

On March 1, 1991 e Federal Search Warrant 
vill be executed on the premises known as the residence 
of Vernon Wayne llowell, AKA: David Roresh, and others, 
~lohg wltn all outbuildihgs and appu~tenahces and 
vehicles located on the premises. 

B. TERRAIN: 
The pre~ises is in a rural setting, located on an 
approximate 77 acre tract of land, nearly 14 miles 
north and east of Waco, Texas. The premises contains 
the residences of approximately-eighty (BO) men, women 
and children, along with storage buildings and other 
structures. 

C. TARGET: 
llowell is the leader of a religious cult known as 
Branch Davidian and the premises has been named the 
Mount Carmel Center. For the past several years Howell 
has been receiving firearms parts which, if combined, 
could constitute the manufacture of machineguns. Also, 
he has been receiving shipments of chemicals and 
explosive materials which, if combined, could 
constitute the manufacture of explosive devices. These 
deliveries have been made through a cult operated mall 
drop known as the "Mag Bag". Additionally, nearby 
neighbors have reported hearing what they believe to be 
the sound of automatic weapons being fired in the 
nighttime coming froa the Howell residence. 

n. suruEcr: 
Vernon Wayne Howell is a white, male, born on August 
17, 1959. He first took control of the Mount Carmel 
Center in early 1988 after an armed assault on the 
previous occupant in November of 1987. Howell, 
according to credible witnesses, depicts himself as 
Jesus Christ incarnate, requires all cult members to 
turn over all of their personal belongings to him, and 
he also sexually appropriates all of the female cult 
members for himself exclusively, to include female 
children as young as thirteen. Howell has surrounded 
himself with a group of approximately ten male cult 
members who have either criminal records and/or special 
skills which might precipitate violence during the 
execution of the search warrant. 
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~SION: 

The objective of the operation is to safely enter the 
premises of the Mount Carmel Center, to search the 
entire premises (to include the upper level residence 
of Howell and all other living qu.art.ers) for evidence 
of the manufacture of machineguns and explosive devices 
and for the machineguns and devices which may have 
already been manufactured. Personal identification of 
all persons on the premises will be accomplished and 
any persons who have outstanding warrants and/or 
immigration violations will be detained pending release 
to proper· authorities. All others will be allowed to 
either leave the premises or to remain, as they may 
desire, once the search has been concluded. 

1._. EXECUTIQN: 

A. HOW THE OBJECTIVE WILL BE ATTAINED: 
Utilizing a number of facilities and the services o& a 
vide array of Federal, State and local agenc~es, ATF 
will accomplish the mission. on sunday, February 28, 
1993, at approximately 8:30 p.m., an undercover ATF 
special agent will admit the Deputy Tactical 
Coordinator into an undercover residence which is 
across the road from the premises where the warrant 
will be served. Sometime prior to S:JO a.m., on 
Monday, March 1, 1993, the undercover agent will 
position Forward Observers outside the premises, front 
and rear, in semi-concealed locations. At 9:00a.m., 
Monday, March 1, 1993, the Tactical coordinator will 
gather the tactical elements at a large parking lot 
site approximately eight miles away from the premises. 
The Tactical Coordinator will advise the undercover 
special agent by STU phone that the tactical elements 
are in position at which time the undercover special 
agent will visit the premises and identify the location 
of Howell and other principals. He will also check for 
recent changes at the premises and for any barriers or 
obstructions which may have recently been erected which 
aight deter entry. 

After his check of the premises, the undercover special 
agent will return to the undercover residence across 
the road an~ he will advise the Deputy Tactical 
Coordinator pf his findlngs. The Deputy Tactical 
Coordinator ~ill advise the Tactical Coordinator by STU 
phone O( the conditions at the premises •. Once the 

{'b 

premises site baa been deter.ined to be functioning 
normally, the Tactical Coordinator will adviae the 
three road block aitea to begin their road blocks and 
be will deploy his tactical force of approximat~ly 
aaventy SRT special aganta Into tvo cattle trailera 
being pulled by civilian trucks and baing driven by 
qualified special agents. The Tactical Coordinator 
will ride as a passenger in one of the trucks pulling a 
cattle trailer. He will be accompanied by an EHT 
trained special agent assigned to the SRT. As the 
Tactical Coordinator deploys, he will notify the Deputy 
Tactical Coordinator, vho will then broadcast a radio 
message to the Command Post, air support units, the 
road block units and the standby ambulance unit that 
the tactical operation has begun. 

Following a prearranged flight schedule, the three 
helicopter• participating in the operation as veil as 
the fixed wing aircraft, will depart froa their ataging 
area and will proceed to approach and bold a position 
at the rear of the premises. Their arrival at the rear 
of the preaisea will coincide with and cause a 
diversion for the entry by the SRT trailers at the 
front entrance to the preaisea. One of the helicopters 
will be occupied by the Incident commander or his 
Deputy to provide an overall assessment of the tactical 
operation from his vantage point. 

The Nev Orleans Division SRT will lead the entry Into 
the main structure of the premises and will push 
straight ahead toward the interior staircase. They 
will proceed to the third level and vill contain all 
persona found at that location. Next in line of entry 
will be the Houston Division SRT which will aplit in to 
tvo separate groups. The first group vill aake entry 
to the aain structure immediately behind the Nev 
Orleans SRT and will apread to the left which is a 
series of bedrooms. The second group will disperse 
around the perimeter of the premises and contain any 
persona found. The Dallas Division SRT vill 
immediately follow the Houston SRT which entered the 
strUcture an4 will spread to the ~lght aP4 to the reer. 

once all persons on the premises have been loceted, 
they vlll be assembled in the central area of the 
structure. Vernon Howell will be aeg~~gated from the 
~est ot the g~oup so as to ainiaize any •ttempt on his 
part to exhort hie followers to some action. once 
facilities have been erected outside the structure on 
the premises, all persons will be removed to those 
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outside fa~ilities to be identified and interviewed. 
Simultaneous'with the structure being cleared of the 
cult members, a search of the entire premises will 
begin by those who have been designated to perform this 
function. Perimeter and internal security duties will 
be performed by additional ATF special agents until 
such time as the scene can be released. 

B. CONTINGENCIES: 
on February 28, 1993, a Texas Air National Guard 
aircraft will overfly the premises and will photograph 
the entire area. This reconnaisance will provide 
information regarding any late changes at the site of 
the tactical operation which will take place the 
following day. 

On March l, 1991, an ambulAnce will be positioned at 
the site of the road block closest to the premises. 
This ambulance will be manned by qualified Emergency 
Medical Technicians and will provide nearly immediate 
response to any injuries sustained in the tactical 
operation. 

At the airfield at TSTC, immediately adjacent to the 
CP, a Careflight helicopter with a registered nurse 
aboard will be standing by in the event that an aerial 
evacuation of an injured person from the premises is 
required. 

~~~MINISTRATION AND LOGISTICS: 

A. ASSIGNMENTS AND LODGING: 
On February 21, 1991 the case agent will appear before 
the United States Magistrate and have the Federal 
Search Warrant Affidavit approved and the Federal 
Search Warrant signed. · 

On February 24, 1993 the Tactical Coordinator, the 
Deputy Tactical Coordinator, and the ATF SRT Team 
Leader~ and their assistants will travel so as to 
arrive at Fort Hood, Texas by 1400 hours. Lodging will 
be arranged in the military barracks at Fort Uood to 
accomodate twenty (20) persons. · 

on February 24, 1991 th~ Incident Commander, the Deputy 
Incident Commander, the Support Coordinator, and his 
support staff will travel to the Texas State Technical 
Colleqe (TSTC), Waco, Texas to set up the Command Post 

c·.a 

(CP). Accomodations will be arranged in a Waco aotel 
for eleven (11) persons. 

On February 24, 1993, two Comaunlcatlons Specialists 
will assist in the set up of the CP. once the CP has 
been established, they will depart for Temple/Belton, 
Texas where they will establish a radio repeater site 
and be lodged in a motel. The Temple/Belton location 
is equidistant between Fort Hood and Waco and the 
repeater site at this location will facilitate radio 
transmissions between the SRT elements at Fort Hood and 
the CP at TSTC in Waco. 

On February 25, 1993, the thirty-seven (37) Sector SRT 
~embers arrive at Fort Hood, Texas by 1400 hours and 
they are initially briefed by the Incident Commander 
and his staff. They will be lodged in the military 
barracks at Fort Hood to accomodate what is now a group 
of fifty-seven (51) persons. 

On February 26, 1993, thirty-four (34) ATF special 
agents from the Houston, Hew orleans; and Dallas 
Divisions arrive at Fort Hood, Texas by 1400 hours. 
These special agents represent auxiliary personnel who 
will be utilized in the identification and interviewing 

'of detainees at the site of the warrant execution. 
They will be lodged in the military barracks at Fort 
Hood to accomodate what has now become a group of 
ninety-one (91) persons • 

On February 26, 1993, one ATF special agent/pilot and 
two Texas Air National Guard pilots arrive in Waco at 
TSTC with their aircraft. They are lodged in a Waco 
motel and their presence increases the number of 
operational personnel in.Waco to fourteen (14) persons. 

on February 27, 1993, the Sector SRT personnel and 
other special agents assigned to the tactical operation 
will practice the tactics of the warrant execution at 
Fort Hood, Texas. 

oo February 27, 1993, two Public Info~ation Officers 
(PIO) will arrive at the CP at TSTC in waco. They will 
be lodged in Waco and will increase the number of 
personnel at this location to sixteen (16) persons. 

on February 27, 1993, the Project Alliance CQordinator 
will arrive at the Temple/Belton, Tex•s location "here 
he "ill meet with the Communications Specialists, 
bringing the number of operational personnel in this 
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location to three (J). 

On February 28, 1991, the ninety-one (91) Sector SRT 
members and additional support special agents will 
travel from Fort Hood, Texas to Waco, Texas. The 
Communications Specialists and the Project Alliance 
Coordinator in Temple/Belton, Texas will relocate to 
Waco, Texas. A representative from the Tactical 
Response Branch, Special Operations Division, Bureau 
lleadquarters will arrive in Waco. Two (2) 
representatives from the Explosives Technology Branch 
will arrive in Waco and two (2) fingerprint examiners 
from the ATF Laboratory will also arrive in Waco •. On 
this date ten {10) Texas National Guard Aviation 
support personnel will arrive in Waco as well as 
twenty-five (25) additional ATF special agents from the 
llouston and Dallas Divisions. The total number of 
operational personnel lodged in Waco this night will be 
one hundred-fifty (150) persons. 

On March 1, 1993 the Federal Search Warrant will be 
executed as outlined in section JA of this plan. 

B. EQUIPMENT: 
The following special equipment, beyond what is 
normally carried by SRT members, was authorized for 
purchase during this tactical operation: 

100 Flex Cuffs 
250 Hospital ID Bracelets 

2 Inertial Rams 
1 Bolt Cutters 
2 "llooligan• pry bars, JO inch 

ll Sets of knee and elbow pads 
26 Pair of Protective Goggles 

J Halon type, 1J lb, fire extinguishers 

5. COMMAND AND SIGNA~ 

A. COMMAND POSTI 
The Comm~nd Post (CP) will be phvslcally located at the 
Airport Manager's Building, immediately adjacent to the 
airfield at the Texas State Technical College (TSTCl, 
approximately eight (B) miles north of Waco, Texas~ 
1'he CP will be the operational headquarters for the 
Incident Commander, the Deputy Incident Commander, and 
the Support Coordinator and his staff. 
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B. SIGNALS: 
The CP will provide the Incident Commander with point­
to-point Coded DES communications between all elements 
of the tactical operation and the National Command 

·center. These communications capabilities are: 
handheld radios, mobile radios, fixed site equipment, 
satellite cellular communication with secure STU Ill 
and Secure/Clear FAX. This will be accomplished through 
the installation of a Motorola Micor 100 watt repeater 
in the airfield control tower, an antenna installed on 
top of the airfield control tower, a portable System 
Saber base station and a secure STU III telephone unit 
with Secure/Clear FAX capability along with four secure 
point-to-point deskset telephones. 

C. COMMANDS: 
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WACO REVIEW TIMELINE OF EVENTS 

DATE EVENT REMARKS 
OC'f/WOV, 'lniiOII Iowa.&. &1111 lnaAL or Ill UIOCUftl rvaCUIID llrYDAL llPUI U 

I I lU7 LOCAL PALiftiD, fti.Aa UU OVII IIOPI. ftlll IIUI'OWI lfiU 1/IID It Iowa.&. 
&1111 Ill UIOCIAftl P'OI a lAID 01 1ft. CUJIII., 

ll/J/17 ftiiiOI WatD Iowa.&. &1111 llrftll or Ill 8aOUP AU UJtalftD P'OI aftiiiCPftD 
IIUIUift or 010101 IIVC2AIIAII IODD, 

ll/6/17 Iowa.&. II UL&UID 011 LUI. (150,000) &1111 awaz'fl ftlaL, 

I/2S/II A MllftiAL U DICI.&&ID (.lVIII DUIILOCDDI IM lowa.&.'l ftiAL • Iowa.&. II IIOf 
ftiiD aoa1a. Ill lnt:lf AIIOCIAftl UCIIft ACQOiftaLI, 

ll/1/11 ~ CBAJIOI aOAIWft lOWELL II DI .. UIID. I 

ll/1/11 ftl COUD OI.D... ALl. r1ornn IIUID l.ftVIJriD ft IOWIU.o nza r•c:z.&~~~n a IW.ftaftraz. i 
WUIIIft OP _.. AIID ~nnrroa. I 

ltll•ltlt 010101 IODa II IICACIUftD P'OI Ill IICiftll P'OI ~or COUD, Ana Ill ftU aLL.OWI ••• fU.I. &liD Ill I 
~11, a 111.1.1 a Gil UD u a..rft'lm ft u ICIIII'rAL urnnvrr011. u~oeran• ft nnt COJrnol. or 1ft. 

CA&ICKL. 

t/tO waco Pll UCIIftl laQUtlt UCIO'f "C'BVI" riODIIC'riCIIII rllCICI'riiO "I .... nr DftDilr... ·cna· ! 
11AU1ao11 w1n aoll'ftALru C1rna1. DUCOIIIOI Wlft loDIA, waco DlftUfld raODOC"rlOirS ft N A _,I>ICAL OIOVP 
10 PIDIUL Ylal.\%1011 llfQU_IIt II CZ.OIID, LID II lOUD, J 

2/U/U nua DIPA1231Drr or n.onc:orrn UD UGUI.U'Oit IDVlCII CDPUI vurr ftl wr. 
CUM~~. C01PC101rD U1 aCCUIA%10111 or CIJUI .UOII. 

J/l•t/U DAVID IOUII, au, ..._ WAIID IOWIU., Ylllft ftl waco OPPICI or ftl DPU arr DOll 110r I.IAJUI or ra 1war 

i 
UD I PIAU Wlft .IOICI IP.u&l &MUJiliO ftl CIIL.D &lUll ~lOIII, ftAliiiiO UIJftU. arna J/21/IJ, 

PllOI ft MUCI S, COIIPOIIIID 
LOCAL 1.\W GP'OI~ COCIGC"r IWU ftloliiiO naa "IIU uo•, OAYID IOUI., UI.IIVID ft &Aft UPIIOJ, 10 
au, 'lniiCIII Iowa.&., UACTI Ill l) UlWOliO IACI -..a PICIII C:.U.IP'OUJI UD rlUAUI, AnWI I&AJIC& S, U 
aot.AIDJ 21 IIA&liO I..AaOI PvaCIAIII or WIAI'CIII PUftJ II aCQVIIJIO CIIDUCAI.I UDI'IIOIIAI. IU IIIOftl.l AIUUU 
WIICI CAll U DIU ft IIAU IJPLOil\'11: 6) PVIICIAiliO IJCI'ft \'111011 ICOPU UD a1n.a• ua .ICQII'JUD. 
aaao11: UD, II ac:c:IJIIUlJI1:JIO I..AaOI IIVPPLIII or ..-nriUCIII, 



6/U waco ns.uwa-auu uroana uu ~ aacnn tiiWIT10A%1011 or auaa 
DAY1D1Uie Ansa DA&110 UPOIT'I or POIIIIILI 11&11 IV1ClDI OYU DAVlDIAII 
PUIOVD. 

waco n1 aPDIII ~~ 01 II:OUII POl llf9ounrr&JI1 IRVI!VDI, 

6/1/U ftiU Dnl Ytllrl COMI'OUin) U1 ClUJ! UUII, 

6/JO/U ftU,I _.. I'U.ID n:& COMI'OUIID UGU.DI- rD ClUJ! UUII AU..aiiU1Uifl POl J01CII IP&UI COftlliVII to IAft 
n:& LAft TID &liD IU.I&QUD'TL1 C.OIII IT' I IIQGllf, n:z.&PIOn COftaCTI 11Ift IOUII, 

1/U L%. ~ J..U, *l.DIIAII COUft'l 1DaU1"1 OPPICII COiftACftD 11 Ul'l Ul IIPI DIIVII OU.U.U.ft UYUU 
oa.s~ or uaoa AIIOCIWn or PlUUII raua to ra IIAII ua. DC.Iftllll IIADI lliCII IIAICII, lttJ 

AleOOiftD TO urao1. UO,OOO II 
Clll_. .oavrt an:n.D.G CALLa &A c:u.a.a1 ana, AOftll TO LIPOU Vl'l CUI 
IIPOUIA%UIII, 

nl ~ ftiU DDa.a.DI'I or PIO'fte%1ft &1111 II.I«<LAA''a'l IIIYICIII, JOICII IPA&U ftU.I nl ID II AII&U OP 
IFAUI, Ut nl IIIV&ftiOA%1011. I:OUII, 

1/U/U lA Daft uvn.a& II TOUt 11 lA c:a.uua a"lD TO COII'Uoc:'f Clll&r DDV'l"'' ana oa1o1au.1 TOO& CAl.L n011 
....,......, 11cLD1GL1 CO IID.U"P'I OPPlCII Ul IIPI DC.lYUIU, .,..,....... IDJilPP' I OPPlCII, IO'f CAR II 
AIIIOirl loT 01111 IA&8D TO lfOU lflft &CRJ1l.DA Una&aD to AOU1r.nA lr ....,._, 

1/U 101CS IP&&U' LAft COift&c:'f 111ft D&VlD IOUII, 

n1 C.OI&I liiV&ftJOA%1011 or II:OUII POl liVOLGftA&'I nrrt!VDI, 

6/1/U &aull.DA IIDTI PlUS' If/AUlA IlL&. JOIJIIS'Qir, ral Wlft lAUD, lAUD 11&111 lAUD DIICIIlUI Wft'IOD Ul'l 
lllftiU or UAIICII D&t'lDlUI, DC.III&ADI ILUVIIa &liD AIIOVIft Or 111'1 DC.IVDl&l DC.lYUIII AU IIADI UD UOG'r A 
TO .... _...., llMD OUlAD& CUIIIO r&u.liiO ~ 

or A DG.1VR'I PAC:U.OI. 

1/t/U 14111l.DA IVUlT'I 111%1Ul- LIPOU TO IOOftOII t'l& &aft II, IIIC:.WII UIPOIIIA%1011 PI0¥1DID II 
t.UJID, 11:1 .... UD 01ua&lft 

1/U/U lAC CIICWDCitl I!CnlPI&I lAC L.AU'I IPAUI, &Uftll Yla ~~ rt.UD 1Dil%1ft C.UIIPICA%1011 Da.oftl 
IIQTSI, 111V&ft10ATIOII C.UilPl&D U IDIITlft. liiV&ftl OAT I 011 COirT1liVII , IZADQUUTUI -1tollll0 or CUI. 

6/lt/U &rr DAIIQCIUSUI C&QI UCOIGI AWUJI or IIIV&ft10A%1Uif 11 WACO, IICOIGI A IQ -ltoUD CUI 
I IIUIIIPICAiftl 

1/U ~lc:aJ. OPD&%10111 OPPICSI, IIAU UZIIAT Uc:ael&ll)l TO &CRIIJ.DA 1111 or 
POIA c:AGaA AMD PD UOIII'TU U IIIV&ft10U19& IQOJ.I, 

1/U/U alll7ti.DA UQV&Ilft OPIIIOII nOll UP IQ Ul ID'LOilft IIAIIVPICTOII- UD 
.....UlC IIIIUOII'I ~&C'IVII-/COII'ID.IlOII IUD 011 CIIIII'Onllft ~ TO U 
IJI POSIIIUOII or DAYIDIUI, 

1/JO/U ~UICII 1nncn011 or .... ., -- 1'1 UUiz.a& um 111 111aa uvuw ll.lDDrliDI~ 
U'I'IIOI U LOWD UC&l'IDa POl U•11e IIIIZ.O, -- 1&'11 ITOUD U VIOI.A%10111, IO'f DOll ~ CIB, II 
PU&Caa'l (D&nD IOUUI, &alll%10111U.1 1&'11 U PIII&Ua IOLoD TO ...... OI.DD TO IIUftUI llftftiiiUIOII 
...u.. DOH ~ a~ 01 0 ...... t'D'I Ul lAD Pa.OII, I~T~Ga:rn. 

1/S/U lAC UU'I IPUU, &aftll II AD11lll~ln:L1 IIDGftD nml &aftll OPPICII IPAUI II Uoftll PIUD ,_ ftl 
,.,.... aac lUlL DOID&UI u ~ AC%11111 aac or &aftll. &Tr &liD IU APP~ T'IU &enOII, 

1/1/U n:Dall ~TO.._ •• Ple\CII OP IVI111111 &1111 PIG'IlDa IDIIItB 
ZIIPOIIIDnOII 011 r.a.a UCDI:D ~z.o um nDD.U. nc:rn u.na. 

1/U/U U9 laDU.ID PCILI Cilia&, IUI.D TO~ I~ TO waat llllnL DICIIUa U, UP AftDIPftD llltCII :nr OCI'OUia TO , .... oft ra CAliDA TO waa. ...,,. aa ~ lo1lllrD.D& .r.u1 ... w VIII P~~GaCnW oaa.a.a u a:aa ... oaaz.o nu on:uz., a 11 IIIIULI 
~. lfta9UA. TO PUiaa. ftl llftftliiUIOII, 

10/ta aaa'll II ~--"" Y Ull- TO IQ TO PID&&I IIUIOIIIZ. ........ I'IM 
(nc:TOII n.toll) • 

&0/U -....n .......................... IVU~ DAPIDa OCCIIII ,_ 
l:lY ~ Zl IIOY., 1ttl 

~., ... lllloCIO ftla aaoaa, ~~&~:~.a~ IICCIOaiCS Cll.&.l &a~& .r~ a. oano:ran um 
lttl uau.zn or rzaaaa.. 

10/U ....,... ftUol &CRJ~UU TO lftii.B ..a a. awroan~ ,. nuc:a/uan 
lrUUftW UD UCina AO'fiO&IIA%1011 TO 1ft VP U fllC IOG&I. 

U/t1 .a. nml ~. DAU.u &1111 ... ~ - IJI ~GDWSW. 

lft'rUIOII a.n. U IQ, DftUI.I OP UlftftlMnOII &1111 GaiCIIo PIAaUa f'OI 
n&aC:S lfUUoll't DIICDII&D, ll&ltllllft &1111 C0111101 an 11011 IJrnU..ICiaCII 
:nrPOID%:1011. l'CIUt o:rn11011 a:ran w a.aw 1101111 ucrzc:aJ. r:r.ua~ •• •. 

U/1/U UP IQ OP11111 ~ IIIOfiA ftiDDCS ft 1VPP0B I&UCI IIUUft U1 aPU»>Ift TICS PAUD, UP &Q, UIIDGI Till 
IIUIIIIAL 1o1ft IVUiftD .rfll.1 na. OPI.IOII. 

U/1111 ~ OOU TO ClloiPOIIIIIA ft llmlllnll IIUI:IU ~ • .JI~ .,._, 
UD IAIIIIDU lAD UC&Iftl UIPCID&lriOII ... U. ...... , cr. PD UOUI' D&nDIUI 
&.Rt• II c:aJ.IPOIIIA. 

z 0037753 



~~,:·I I &JIDu.Da &JID OJUa 9111% &IIDUIII DAUOft'RI LIYIIIG 1• n. CCIICPOGIIII Ull &aa 
DUan:no If aovn.nA. 

U/30/U AUlA .IOIIIIftOif UYIIWD PC TO DAD Ull OPIDI IIIOVCII llfPO~IOII P0a a DUIIAOAif &JID IUUft PUiarftD 
IIITOIIC.U. S&UCII Wua.un'. PAC'H OP CAll. 

Ultltl IQ PlaiOWIIIIo IIOU TO lrn:IID lmftliiGI z• IOUITOW. (CIIo.rDCII, lOriDa, IUUIW WU 1• IIDC IIOUIIIG(OII n,p 
CAYUAOGI, IWOIII, PI'Z'IUI.LJ, LATIKII, Ulfll, CAA'I'Ia, IDII7, CUII%11 A% %Ia TIKI) &JID ~CIII .. a 
wtU.rua, loft: w~. D~JDGU, &JID aavn:.a&) LOOJftJCI POl OPDI%1011 a.\11. III'POID IILICDD U POC&L 
DIICUIQD, UIYifti0&%1V8 UQO'Iftl MADI Ull UC"fiC.U. PUD!IIG COII'riiiUII, PO 1ft' POl 1111' IIIYOLYIICift'. 
ICIDZ& llft'EUft 1• ftll DAYJDIUI ll DUCIJIIID, Clo.rDCZI ftiiiU UP COIIDC'f lOOIUIA 'I'OUI ro c:a.clll'ftAft 011 
U0UL11 II z•S%UDD, C&YUAIIGI AD&IIlii'Uo7 OPPOI&I COIIUC'fo lllnftiGA%1011 &JID lftAai.UIIIIO PC 

POl wau.urn. n1na a ra 
UGU'I'Ia 101 ft.UI U11 ft&CII W1U 
IJIID IIUIIIIIO ftU IIYiftiGUIOI, 

12/7/U AGVIUIA UCIIIYID IIIP'OIJIUIOII .. 011 IP&IU Ut CIIILD UGII. ID PIOYIDII 
n.oo1 Pt..UII OP COICPOCIIID. 

U/t/U IUUOIIIA TO PIOIIII COICI'U7 POl IUUCIIID Ull t'Ot.L IIIPO~IOII Ull 
.. 

IDDrlPIC&%11111 or AU. DLUio.a IIUIGIII UIOClAriD IUD CCIICPOGIIII, 
n:LZPIOD COMPU"'' COULD lien PIOVIDI L&ftD. 

12/U/U lA !rlacnl& 11DD Wlft ftZU IIATIOIIAL GUUUI TO UUII ~ ftl'l OP •n.IDAI 
IWPOft ll AYllu.m.& TO &1'P II 'I'OUI 17 TIZU a&riOIIAL GUUUI, a DIOG DIVII 
U DCIIIAI7 POl - Ul~ ll&%1011&L GUUUI IWPOII1'o 

aavruaa L&UJn ... lift, U.a:t«~ft'l, LA.,.... ro, ..-n 1o1n, .IIUID, 
OAYID &JID DUOII&I IDWDI &JID IIAAC UU.VL%, 

HU CAliDA .u.ll1'l ft WOU, 1ft II 1DPPWC%1ft, UCAOII OP %Ia DlftlUICIII 
IIIYOLYID. 

U/16/U U%101a&. GUU8 UCIII"YII PAZ UQUSft .. GI OUIDGU POl ADlAI. Plorol OP L%, JVftlCI 110111 un OP DIOO 
COIIPOIIWD &JID IlL IUPPOII1' • DOll lien Mll'%1011 DIOG n1V11. nru•. Plorol UPion::D 17 UC. 

Pftfr, 

U/U/U AGUlua& CAU.8 IUAVL% &JID UU lien TO IU.U IIIPOUU.%1011 Wlft waco ftllaa, ftll II Pill% UP co.a.= Wlft 
IUAIIL% AOUII TO DIAl. 10l.I:L7 WID AGQJI,a&, IUAUL%. II IPlft or UP UQUift 

TO ITOP, a COftliiUII Ill con&C% 
UUIUIA UCilftl YDUI. (UII ~ ftlftart OPIIIOII .. 011 UP Plaa&a Wlft %1:1 Waco ftlllllmo 
ftC:aUC.U. IIUCII ft&% %1:1 Lift or %Ia P.utft &JID lCCZIIOilll IVUIII'TID POa 
OPI.lllll Will COIIIlftarr WID~ P.utft, WIICII lP OIID ft IIAa U •• P.utft Ull lCCIIIOIIII II Ull If 
u uaza -· ft&% ua1n GUll WOilUI aa ILIAGIL TO POIIIN. %11111111LYII, &aa 110% ftCIIle&U.I 

PlUUIII U DIPIID 17 L&lo 

U/&1/U AGUIUIA UCIIYII PU "~* IUAUL%, GlYII IIIP'OIIf&riOII Ut llft'UIII'IIDICID ~ 11&1111 .IIU .. 1ft, PO .... 
Loll PUla% waa aoun TOO& ova c:oaon.o&. or ftll COIIPOUIID f'IOII 1ooa, 11 car.% ICIIGD U UIIIO &au %0 
UIIL, ltll. C:OUOIOUD liiPOIIIIa%1011 011 

llft'UIII'DZIIIID J.Aa, 
AGVIUIA Ull C. WII.Lillll 09an.7 COia'GGIIII t• COftGIII AIICI.V'I Ull OIDI. 
Ilfti"U..G PIOTOa or COIIPOUIID. 

U/17/t2 DQ lloriPIGI or POIIIU. DIOO RIV1I 17 l1'P, 

U/11/U IICOIID ru UCIJY'ID 17 D%10.U. aaaiUt nGC DUIIIoG&I, lll:llftOIIII •PMIJI&.t run tiKI DIUG R1V11 lllllftD 'I'll 
aa~zca• -.m uu roa raoro or 1110 .... wazna UIJQ'Ift nGC azr. 
llllftJaO II~ Wlft la&.lfta, LI'C WAUED, cso.JUICII, IOTftD, IUUIW, DICUIOII - ft Jlllllm l&a R 
P.-nlu.J, DUII&GAII, CA'I'&DDGII, LA%1MII, CUI%11 WJU 1.1111, .IOU WIU.IUII, 0/C IG1U111 Ull DUICIIIaft ft'IC 
IIIIILD, C&llm6r, Dl~, WilD, 'l'lal7 UIIIIIOII Ull AGUILa&. &IUOII% OPI .vtUIIIIO U UP CPo 

CD~~C&n roa DC%1CU. PLUr wu roa 
1110 u ftll %1J11, 

U/U/tl Mlft'JIG u IQ ciiAJISim'ft, co.ao7, aaua, ft07, ..-.. 'I'JD, %Aft aa Dft aa ~a~.~na DO ftl a-.u. 
&U.ZI'I'Ia) Ul Gaa&L UIIPJIIO 011 CUI, 'I'ID .,..,~ftiiD ft -.z%011 %1:1 aaru, 
nlftft'IGUl-. Mll'%1011 or POIUU. 011 OP G/C ICINI TO COUOMUD PC UID 
GADa lft"'U.IODCII POl DC%1C&L PLUf, IIAJISim'ft/COD07 Wlft ... PC 
WVI:UIPID II e&n Ull ft •n.ow• DOWII %AC"fiC.U. OPI. PUatJIG, 

12/U/92 ..,_ 1.0111 UAII 011 PLlCII OP IOIJDII U11 won• ft PLOIIII&. 

U/U• Mll'%1110 II &Gft'll, &GGJUIA, IKIIIIAUI, .. on, IIIOIIOWI&I, L\ftllllll, 11:1110, CBOJDCIJ 11 orr, 0011110 n11 
JO/U P'Sftii.LI, IUUIW, C. Wn.LIIIII, IIVPOU, U11 CAY&DOOI tiD% %0 traCIO %0 'I'IIW PDJOD OP %1111. Wn.LIIIII 

fta COIIPOUIID UD III00%1U"' lflft PDII POl 011 or U/C IIOQR, l&llftalll U ftll PO!ft PLUf WU 
POl 11101, AGVIUIA %U&ID ft 
JIIITUYIIW IUAIII.Z Ull OftD,I Wlft _ .. or an. 
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U/U ltOUD OUDYD orr ~ ~ ta DICDGD, Uti ITa .... I..,.., ltO ... I .U.ftooaa coun UPOitftD orr 
.JOOGil- II UIJDac:. IIVDAL 'riMHI Jon., DIPLO~ U lftJ- ~~ COICPOUIID ta nw. aDIA &rra 

POl_.,. 110m!&, PUCD ra• 1_,.1 UID, our..\CK, ~ OIIIIDA&o ftOUo DIICDIID, OIIL'r ~ IIOftliiOI WWU 
or COIIPr~~az~, 11 auro UPara .ru. n 
D~ UID 31 VIIJ'r !'0 1..,..'1 

UIIDac:., LUI Dl~, lULl 
.ru. ,,,,., r.U PIAIIA, GW11D anr• MOaut IGIIC 1!'018, lAID D nu:D Wlft COUll U PIAIIA lUll IU UCO~C'riO. n 

LOCAL ftCD DAJI1' QUail, DAft a ua1n1 1rauaa a um 
~:ou11 nu: uovr. ,,., .. U%JOIIU. CR1U11 O'fai'L'r ~ UID 11M lAO 1'AD Aal.U. PIO'IOI UID llln.UD fti.U • vc-u u ·v11D. Pllft 

liWUIIO Plc:rvul• 1'IIDJIIoL UG.O mil l'r11'111 PI CEI UP • 1ft IPO'r" r .. IDI n.ran. 110 · orrrcr.u. 
CG1CP0VD UID ID• ftlla IDftlll !'0 I&U or COMI'OIJII8, Ilrftll'l.ft&1'tCHr or "1ft aror• 

PIOVlDID !'0 UP II R, 
UPOI% nOll Dn.Dil, UP, IIPLOilftl DPOI~ OPPlCKI, (lfU.WV'I: CIJID, CAl " 
oun• co .... rv.auz• CDIIJc:.u.a AD aur.oun MUDI&LI roa ILLIGA&o ... 
vn. 

ru:r.nrraa'r t10U 011 !'ftC~ ron uann. 

&/l•f/U A.OVtLa& IIIII IQI'OID c:ococr lllftll'll~ or ~ IIIIIDI, ~. Ullla&DI AIID I'UU'OII or lftD'nCW. !'0 GAll 
o.zaa. urna.LJODCI POl rAC'rlCAL 

rr..uar110 um oara r .. tan rno 
~ t.ral, auro uat eaGV!'ItU rln'DU.ID u !'ftC CCieGUID ron. ftll ltOUft'l ftAft or WID, 
lift IJIID 11' '1'111 0/C IOCJft &allftl U OPPIC., 

1/U/U O/C 1ovn uorw1 oraur•. 0' PU.IUIIl2"f, UIOIOW.Itl, VI IOU, IODIJCIVII 1 
UIIIUC., IIAU, 'rliiDil UID 1&01111 ft.&l? ~ IOVII, 
D/C 1ocrn U nnrD II DAYIDI.&a, DA'UD .Ja.la, lla'l"'l!! ~laBia UID nn. 
II:DOIDD, 

1/U/U UP IWftiiii.L ~ UGUIII- Oil or D'rlO.U. IRZaiD PD-.r. IIGWID II 
U&BI'ft, 1'IU II, 110 r~ UID IPICl.U.IIID lltQVtPIIIII'f !'0 II OIID 
&a&taft ~ UIU, .a1' IPIClrtC IIIDlVllllmU, varc:z.aa, 01 UIU, 

1/U/U 18CDIID • ova.ruon cart-e a1 ., .... oar.raaa uar.u. r10101. ALIO • vc-z• DVUOU nuu nrrour. CIUUD ro1 
onart.lll 11&11 lAO U1D CCIIIII'OUIID, IIVICDOUI Aal.U. UID llrPIUD liiUIIIO &sllftUC. IPICIPICAU.'r POl 
r1oro1 rua UID tvaiiQVD'D.r oa.rva.D !'0 arr • 01 uovr .ru. u, nu. urnarurarrn um IVU.U.Uro. or 

riO!'Oio IIA'rlOII&Z. CIVUD IIPOIXI 
w .a .1. an rararurarron oa 
IVII.UJUJOIII IT Aft IIUIOIIIII. OUAID 
rnaoaa. IIOIIt.D 11 Dnaca» 
uworrrcr.u.. 

1/11/U V/C &allftl IOUI IT 1,_., DAYIDl.&a IVIriC'r OCCVPUft or V/C IOCJft !'0 U 
nz Ullftl, 1'IU ltOUD ftOUOft POLJC. waa IIAZCJIUIO f11D1 UID ftA'r ltO ... I 
wa• nrlc:niiO a vurr no. na nr. 

&/lt/U QJ!Uftl nltft V/C RVQ, D U.... Wlft 0/C UDft !'0 Dllcc.rzlllll PIIOI !'0 IUAaftl'l YIU'r, 
IVIIftlr.LUC. IIU'II- ftl IICift 'ria IOVU. a PVIlTID C:U.OD na r1roarn IVIlftlr.LUCII IIAI &1' lllot Ll'llloo 
no. ~U~~nrr.r.uc:a !'0 tln'll.ftA%1• or na COICPOUIID vra OWDaeova ...... CUIIOID !'0 -1!'01 IIIIIIIV.U. 
Tlalll ~.or !'0 PW 11'11lftlll.o Ia LOlli, OIIL'r 1111111PI~ ftl .. , AC'flYlft A~ &U. ~tal. IV'r, 

VIIV&L IVIlftlr.LUCJI IIU LI.JftD 
!'0 oan.ran •~· 

&/U/U POLl CIIID& &IIIO'f'IID, Dn !'0 IICDUft U&ll If POWa CIIIIPAft IIIPLOTDo 110'!'11110 or ntDIIfttU'r oa 
llftlr.LICIDCI l&'rOU WU OAIIID 

UCIVSft n uc. ftUID/IUUftl !'0 •ruua1r roa IIQVIPIIIII'f !'0 IVftiUI a lflo& no. ftll IQUI~. 
(IIICLIIZIIIIO 119111 UAIILI'I PIOftl• YDICLU) II IIIIDI• 

PUll roa lllo& II COIIPIIIDII II 
ftll UQCIIfto 

&/U/U wa •ar.r ~ oaa LJAIIOII, !'0 ora&71011 au.r~. wru.ru 10111a AIID 
DIICIJIIII DilDO IIDIJI, 101 ... 0 ....... Dl& ftCIIIIIC.U. UllftUCJI POll IVUacftD 
IG'ftUCPDDIIrn r.u u na CIIIIP'OGIID. 

&/U/U ACIVILD& Uo IQI'OU lftlllYIIW OAYID ILOCI:. IWPOUD !'0 Dft ~ C11U11117 ftll U1D ft'lllll lln'OUATIOIIo !'0 
l'lrftr.I.IOIIICI 011 COIII'OIIIID, I&YI- Lin ftl CllllPOOIID UOVIID aa1r, lffJ, aLOCK r•c:r.uoa a DIICVIIIU 'r a 
l~a t'CIIIIII .a1' IJIID POll IVIlftlr.LUCII, 1ft, ,_ .._,. ~1110 &11&1, POIIIILI K&ll IOICIDI. P1091DID 
... IIGUG&ZID no..._, O&ft IOVI'nrl, O&ft LOCAirtOII or.._.., (lAID l'r II ruvroul llfn:IVII'II or ro..a 
WU LOCII:Inl), - OCC&IIOIIaLI.Ir ~ CIVIl 11111111 UD AIID a ...... AUoOIIa !'0 CUU ICDIUU Llla.1' •111111 
1ft& II ratnft IIU.I'Oirl or III&I.L CALl Ill, ltOUia OUP!IIID 111ft POIIIIILlft ~AC'fiCAL PLAIIWIJII ,..,.. IIIGI !'0 
OP 11101, 1&11 VAft QV&al'ln' or POGO , .... ,, ftlla .SO CALIIII IIIUOIII II D111UIC Dft'r APPIOACI, 
COIIPOUWII, AIID, POIIIILI •ftD• OUII 111110 IIADI ta r.oiCPOVIID, 
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l/27/U 

l/21/tJ 

l/2t/U 

~ J/1/U :; 

2/2/U 

2/./U 

2/S/U 

2/t/U 

J/U/U 

2/U/U 

J/lt/tJ 

J/U/U 

2/11/U 

J/U/U 

J/U/U 
IOIIDAI 

aftZ.a. z• IOCJ~. C. WlLLZ&III, U%l .... , LZ~, PftaZLLZ, 11:1110, 
nzft, DWAGU, AGIUUI&, llnmt2'Dir, IOGTCVft, Clo.111ACKZ, I.UI&aft, 
IOTI'fta, U'D ll&ftZ.. luPOaD PUIDTI nrPO~ZOII cn.&Ual n011 Znat'fZIWI. 
fi/C IOIJA BPOUI 110 IDftlU 'ftiiiU an A I~ZR WDa.l MD U'D lfOIID AU 
laGUGAftll U'D liD &war nOll llt:llrl, DIIC:UIIIOII OP UIGI 'fl. DftUUC llrml 
a:z.D, z:r u eotrCLt:IDm, aum o• urnu.raaca o.uaam, to ao wrn onuuc 
arrt.1'. DDU l~ ll COIIPGUIID DUCt:IIID, ~ AG&a A ~ZIG Wtft A 
IUU~U'l'fl nOll n. WACO ftZIVR ll wua&lrftD, A cor• PLIP Dl'ftiiCZDI 
DD'V'n UC%0~ COIIIGUIDD POIIIZOII POl OPDArZO., IIAftZ• Wlll U'D U lAUD 
tiD'V'n. tlftl'fta 110 LOIIOD PUTZCIPU.I ll PLAIIIUIIO IIIUOWI, 

A DDIIAIIO ll fi/_C lOLII {UPI ftAZWD) 'fUZft IGG lAG U'D caG'OIJIID, 

DIJIIZIIO ftU PIIAII ftl UCitCAL 
PLAIIWUI 11011 Zl IUnft 1'0 
Drn:LOP U OPDArlOIIAL PLU 
PUPICD U A D'nlAIItC Dlft1', 

M aaa.a UDIIIRIIII an lA 111111 Ua.lll IIUa Ptaft IVftA11111D CIOIIDCI Wlft COft.ICI r.&lft on ICMI, UD U 
CCIIII'OUIID IIIDG8U, ZICLt:IDZftl IOUII, COIIDUC'ftll OQftlDI ftl C011K1U1rD 

lll'lt.DliiOI. 

mQII L&A'fll COICPOVIID 1'0 PICK II'P Pt.a'S POl Ill CAIIUO U' llCIUL IAIJIAID'I lot OIIII'IID II 11'/C nan~. 
PLACK OP IUUIIII, PDPOUIUrCI IIJ'!'CIIIInrft UCIIlll, a.n'IILL, ft, 

I&LUft U'D lliUIIIGUr lila'S' Wlft uaa&IA la.*U, waco ftllllllmo UPIOIIICift DAft OP UP ICIIC. 
azvar. · - · 

.umUDC U'D o.1Dil 'ftll'l' U'DIAGI'I DAIJai'I'IIUI I% !'Ill COICPOIIIIII, ftl'l lftVUI 

1'0 n. CDIG'OUIIII 011 n. 21111 U'D JID. ruT AU 1107. D:.:I::;U:;.:l:.:I;:.I'D::.,,.:I.:.I.,:A::,'I'P:...:.,• ---+-------------~ 
eaDI.ZIRIIII OOU '1'0 COICPOIIIID, IU'I' U !OUI IOUII ll lLL Alii» 1'0 ~. 

OPD&'I'lOII U.Z.Z.UCII IUPPOJr'l' AllftOUID, IIAID 011 A7P IV'IIIliiiOII OP A DIUO 
DZVI PUI~ II lA PilL UWII I% II. PI.IG, 

IOCID, OIA, o...-. Dl& c:u.Jnllftln CD'I'lPrD uaoeA1'01"f ftlll 1'0 A'I'P, 

.IOnr'l' COIICUD PI.&Dllll 11111011 Wlft ao.I'II&CI:Z, IAIOAaft U'D ID'UID'I'l'l'l'fll IU.Uft AIIIWDI QUiftlC.' e 
now 1111 aa'l'roaz. ouaao, .l'I'P-6 uro IPICliL roacaa ~ uauorwa oaua nrua. 

&ODatCIVIll Aft'llnll rraa'l' lliU nvDI u CDIG'OUIIII, ~arran on ow on uano• 
Wlft IOUII. 

CIIVCI loc::GID, COl DITIUIZIII, ~ Clo.111ACK% A"'D IAII D ll ftl WACO 
ftliiiJII'I LUUO. WZ'I'I UP. 

Cla.J'ICICil IIADI UQUift '1'0 10 '1'0 ACIZ'fa'l'l ftl 1 ... 1 IIC'I'OI fLU, 

UUPllll U IQ. lll'flftta&!OU U'D UCilCIL Pr.aaDa UliP IAII:nll'l"'' ft a&., 
P~ CAUII OUC:UIID U tfiU, U 'I'&CnCAL PLU 01 0111"1'11. 

UliPIJIIII I% IQ POll llCMI&a'l IDIIPI'I'o IM8 UIVU DUCt:IIID U PU'flOQI ••• 
uu•a .IOaft!OII uro •n•rn uro u IIGIIaOUI lla'l' wrn waco DIIDIC'I' 
AftOIIIft, ll.li.Uftll '1'0101 1'0 OliCt:lll r.oc:u, &aaa'l' wa&LUI'I' POl IOUU POl 
Qtl~ AIUII, 

aaaa.ft .ICII'fl'l'll IIC'I'OI PLAir PD UP OaJID USO.lO 

roaa or 1raa vtc a.Ga'l'8 ·~ • .,.. ..-. V/C aova, 

t~GDUaaS UftiiD8 11az.a nust~ ca.r aut. 

c:.o.nracu ~ IIOCIIIIa an vra ...... lntftll aoc:aa 10 •raw A'I'P 
DADIIII U' POa 1000. 

~ Ulln ftU.I ~'I UPU~a!J41ft '1'0 'I'D ftU.I DaCO'I'lCI COIIftGL 
PIIOIAUI, .IUCII WlLLIOU aaOIJ'I' ftl I...:U. tll'flftiU'I'IOII. 

IOD&ICIIIWI AftDDI IIlLI! ft'IIDI' (J IUt r• ~. 
~IOIIAL UIPOIIR PLAir • A'I'P OIIJII:II JJIO.lO II P01111U.In:D, 

eoaarana MD UIOIOinl II~ Wlft &Oua r• U&ll OP CDa'CIIIJIID, IOUIII 
110'1'11 • au oaiD'fD fi/C aaarn noootnra, ~ ~ - r• aau. 
~ an UIOICI'II&I 'I'UIII 'I'DGGIIII CDa'CIIVIID IIVZLDIWO '1'0 UA& UMo 

~~ WUZ.I&III Ca.c:a.ll V.I. Cll'l'lmlll III'Ptoa .-n, 

aun uu aooarana to CDMa to CDa'CIIIJIID '1'0 &.lnmr '1'0 ICIIC. lft'lftl 
ttODIZCiftl !0 UCOIIII ICDIIIft OP Ill QIICifi'P, 

aoc:ara aara cao.na.car !'OLoD 111 
acrro. '1'0 OCCOI Ul/U, 

IOIG IAI 011.11 ll 'l'ltl IID'I'llll 
CAUID DILII ll ftl OPa&nC.'I 
Pt..AJnrD DAft PD, U lltJ. 

WUiftD 10 VII nuAir'l' 10 Ul 
IOUII Allal nOll~. 

IOUII 'I'IU.I IODIZGVIII D &IOU 
10'1' L&An CDIIHaiiD orn.. 

IOOIIIRIIII Ua&WOU '1'0 aoot Wnll 
aoaau nl'l' ••· 

IODIIIRIIII UUII 1'0 111101 IIlLa 
1\'UDI '1'0 ftAa1' IIA&CI l, lttJ • 
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.... -··---·-- __ . .____.,.._,.._...~ ·-...-.r~, ... .: - . 

2/22/U uau.aa • QIIDGU aa1ar lk.UIIIIUI I&DIPP'I ow1ca U• U.ID IV'PfOft lAID DAft 111'11111 U ... CII &, ltU. 
~IDA'f UQU&Ifto 

IUIOU lAID C&U. CAlli 1• ~Pill 
~MID a C&I.LID ~ U1l tQUa aD Wlft IUU'fll'l PDII'IIUO., lAID lAIII. 'I 'EO •1D Fa o 
DAft .wD 'EO IIAIICII &, ltU, 

n:& ....U •JIIall D&CLI ... 'EO 
t.GUIUIII& &CCOIIPUIU & ....U IUJIDa 'EO Dlfti.Jcr &ftDUft 'EOal.'l OPPICII roa ftftln UAIWft lOUR, 10 ~~· 
urn:a•r•. COIICUI'DII l"raft CoUIIIOr PIOCDD 

&GAIWft I:OUII roa CIIJUI &aDII. 

2/U/U cao.7DCSl ~CUB lflft RI'EO&I&L nan OF IGCIO ftiiiVD•IID&UI IW U ~ 
waDI 'EO D~'f PUU.Ic:&%1011 OF ~!CLio 

PUIID'r _... ft:IID%1ft DWCIUO. 'EO P&Dft n:UU ll'r&BI .. u.zvu&'f, 
I 

wnaa.aooa. ftl.r.l lu.rP ~ 111 •"rn• OIYI• UJD DAft roa .-aor, 
l/1/Uo 

az.aa~ &181_. ~ u.oaDa 'EO ClOYD AftiCJPUD UlD 0. -'r, 
l/1/U. 

loUIU'fll ft&n:La 'EO n. aoao 'EO ~ IU 'l'UDIDIO fOR OPDUIO., IU IIAJ!Bft'r, Al'ftll 1&1110 UIIPD l'r 
z.a.ua:u, unn. DAII a.u.oa.a uo P'OIIIIUD ouan:aa PU~. cao.no.ca1, uua• .'EO Rllll&"r lAID 

DAD, 
c:.onDC1U uu· aaaan IF UJD c:aau» U ~ VP 'EO u.zvu&'r, II toUa .. , 
D&CIIl- II IIADI 'EO 110ft lAID 'EO IUIID&'r, 2/21/Uo 

"rft'C c:xa.aD I'Oft .u..rY &al..lft n IGoCO UID --~· 'EO ~ VP CP, 

I!UnPIC&%1..- 00 CIIU'I 'EO UP ........,, IIWIIIO UP UI'OB~ DUa 'EO roa 
&OOD/II&COo 

UP ~ W "rD IEUIOIIUo GUUD I"'Ol IIU.JD&'r I'II'Pf'OU II IUU'Dft!AU.'r 
Dt~ PltGil n:& .lU. 21 UQGSft, C.DUIEUDIO 1":'11111 ne&aiAA'f fOR a 
uaow. t•cunu .. n:a aL\DU\' rsont .. vatcr.aa. 

1/25/U lUI t.Uift U POU ROOD UD ..a1• ft&DiliiOI 
"rnUI 

-Jns&D II .... n.a &rrtD&'flft PO& t.Uift An IU&CS WUII&IIftl, 

Wt~ ft:UA ~~UP lAID .. ~ CADCIIL 'EO OCCII1l- ... ca &, 
un. 

1/U/UI A arn.D PIIO\'IIIU ft&Uaa'f Wtft _. PU8 -Lt.IIIMI Ul aft''l ft.UIIIa 
niDA'fa &crl• IIAUJift !'a D&YIDlUI, 

~ana ... cc.caar ~lAID, U Ptllft CU1CS1.1 lAID, S'UW, t.rn:a 
I'Va.a DIICUIU- Wlft IIOOID, IUCIIIDI 01.DD 'EO cuca. lAID, 

JoOD .. • IIOCIIIIID ftU.I ~ &UICLI 'EO aa. CIIU'I .. IUftDA'r 110 
Jla"rl• or arr r• ~~cr.a. ' a ~ or cau.a ... .._ "EO 

IIUIIUM u.n ... 1aarrr•• orrtca aa O'I'D:U ~ .... .uncr.a uo ~ 
lllfOa &VPPOU P&Oftol OP !'a 
CLUIOII IW U.tD DAft l'r aft' UD 

lAID II IIWD UP 'EO IUIIIIAI' _,UtiiO, 2121/U. COl' .lOIISI UD 0 ... lAUD. 
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IDI1llll 2 

1100111 - na«/OU.Y Oft ADVUIC& rvaLICA'flOII or WACO ftliVIm IDALD AIID DILlftll COP'I' 'l'O C:WOJWAC&I, 

1100111 . IODIICIU'II JOIII cmntc:& IUVIC&I II ~. 

nun• - w~'l IIIP'OIU&Aft %ILIA liM U.ID C&AIIGCI 'l'O IVIIII&I, 

. wl'ftDUOC* CAUA al.AIIIft'r AIID IAfl IIIP'O-.ft GAYI C&AIIGI II lAID DAft 'l'O IVIIDAI • 

1210011 . IODilCIU'II ~YU COICI'GUID AIID IG.U'SI IIIP'OU&ArlOII 'l'O c:&O.JDC&I 011 TD UA~IOII or IOUII to ftl &ariCZA. 
IA&Uft 1o11D CBO.JDC&l IIIDICAft IODUCIU'II 0110911 10 OftU CALL 'l'O "UIII" II IOUII, IIOUOYU, CIOJWACIU 
UPOiml '!'0 uaDft'r OIILI COIC&all or IOUII U WIU &arlCZA WILL DO 'l'O PVIID IAUliO. 

DUW.IH UftUOOII 

lll&P or c:&OJWAC&l, IODUCIU'II OIILI Ucau.l CIOJ1IAC&l UlliiCI rP IODUCIUIII lAD IIIII OUWI Ol PUPAIA%1011. 
IODUCIU'II II w.a.a. llftt911W 11'&ftl, IOUII fOUl POu.owDa "ftl'f

0 
WD.a COIIIIO POl Ul AIID IIIIUUI 'l'lll 

&am~~, ftl rou.awat IIOUUI ~Oft ftlftllc:&l. AIID I.IICDGD WIA1' II lAD 'l'OUI ftDI 'l'O DO• 
CIOJWACitl 01 

I&IU'n 1ft 'l'OUI ftll 11' IODIICIU'II• 

. PICIIII, al.AIIIIfto LOft AIID IOCIIID ~ &'! PAPD 'l'O DIICUII Wlftlaii'OOII'I IIIP'OU&AriOII. 
DIICUIOII II IIADI 

'l'O COftll ftl lAID, 
al.AIIIftft CIIAIIOU ftl IRI1CII8 or PaaoaiL UIIOICI 'l'O cona 1'1DI lAID, PaOli J 'l'O t. 

. dUift'lftD Oftl riC* IIL09II lAID 'l'O OCCUII 011 IVIIDAI, AIID %ILIA IIIIU.oll1' • 

JaOO .. - IIUIUift UID WlftDnOOII Pl.&l uc:QUftULL IUID OUC:VSI CUIICia or lAID DAft, 

. IL&IIIIr'fo LOft, U1D IOCIIID Dllft II ~. 01 IIlli UCZ 'l'O PAPD OIID9'1 a:LICO~ n.r !'IIWUn me, 
PIOCDD 'l'O ~ IIUOd AIID ID a:LICOI'TS& AIID PIOPLI, lOIII II UIUPOIUll. 

aocsna 'l'IIIU nao1110 ·uu 

POl~· 

taoon . 1001~1 U•ar'l'l:aa CC*POQIID, Llftlln 'l'O 101111'1 Ulllllllllft or ftl WACO ftliUIII'I U1'1CZA "IIIII'VL 

IIIIIU". . IC&ImiDD CAUA al.AIIIIr'f AIID AID POl II'!DnSW Ul .... &ariCZAo 
IUI!IIr'f C&LLI DIGLAIID AIID aocaa, 

aocasa C&LLI ao.nu.c:&l AIID uu rr ean 'l'O 11:1111 UPOirftll 1110 -.111111 roa urruvsn. DIGLAIID DICLiftl 

OHQelVI!Ift to p ... OIAU.I lft'&IVIIW llOUII 01 ICIDIIIOD, 

- U.UIIft 1101'rPIII UPOiftti/PIO'fOOIAI'DU 'l'O 11ft llilmar A% laOOAII A1' PAPR. 

1100 .. - UIII'IIICI POl IVPPOft piUQI!IIa. A1' WACO lift WKITDII lftlz.,. ltllrUrO COIIDUC'RD II IAIU111. 

taoon - POiwatll 011~ IWIDftD IW'l'O U/C 101111, CAVUAUO. II I .. Dnll Uft:l, ••• 

UaOO. . IOOIICIU'II &IllS COICI'GUID AIID UZAnl OIIIIVJ.'fiOIIS 'l'O IAIU111· 
U 'l'OUI II IAIIAII111 II WILL lAYS 'l'O 00 IACI 

1110 ftl COIIPOUIID nn All. IOOIICIUIII II Mft IAI'PI Aaocrr IAYIH 'l'O U:arrD ~ COMPOUIIII OW IUIIDAI IIOUIMO • 
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BODY: 
REP. BROOKS: (Sounds gavel.) The committee wiH come to order. l've called this hearing of the fun Committee on 
Judiciary to examine the events surrounding the stmct-offb.e:tweerr federal Jaw enforcement agencies and members of 
the Branch Davidian cult near Waco, Texas. · 
As the Members well know, hearings at the full committee fevei are rare enough an occmrence to be called 
extraordinary, and I believe that the subject matter oftoday's hearing is appropriate for such extraordinary ~eatment 
because it cuts across multiple aspects of the committee's broad jurisdiction over law enforcement activities. 
While speculative -~d contradictory theories have abounded, it is only in the past few days that on-site forensic teams 
have begun to draw a number of tentative conclusion based on scientific observation and testing. That's all for the best, 
even if it departs from the sCripts ofthe made- for-television movies already in production. The basic chronology of 
events related to the stand-off and its fiery conclusion c:an be staled succinctly. On February 28th, after an extensive 
investigatio·n and pursuant to legal process, a team of agents from the Treasury Department's Bureau of Alcohol, . 
Tobacco and Firearms raided the heavily armed compound then under control of the cult leader calling himself David 
Koresh in order to serve warrants for federal weapons violations. 

The raid turned into a fierce gun battle that left four BA TF agents dead, 1 S wounded, and six cult members dead. 
There ensued a stand-off for the: next 51 days, during which time the Federal Bureau of Investigation assumed the lead 
law enforcement responsibility and attempted through a variety of tactics to persuade Koresh to lay down his weapons, 
let the adult and juvenile cult members leave the compound - all to no avail. · 

. ·'Finally, on April the 19th, the FBI undertook a major action to inject tear gas into the compound in an effort to drive 
the occupants out. The effort failed. Instead, Koresh and more than 80 of his followers died as a raging f1re consumed 
all the compound's buildings m a few short minutes. However, establishing the baseline chronology of events is not the 
sole purpose for what we - for being here today. Rather it is to hear from the three law enforcement officials directly· 
responsible for the actions and the choices taken in Waco so that we can understand the decisionmaking process behind 
the events. 
Now I don't relish playing omniscient second guesser when there an:o sttn facts to be a!eertained, evidence to be 
(introduced?), and given the instant experts that pop up everywhere iD the press, I may be in a distinct minority. What I 
care about is whether we have in place in our federal enforcement agencies the capability and, yes. the creativity to deal 
·with the increasingly disturbing situation of terrorism, where in the high offtee tower.. of our urban centers. or in small. 
entrenched pockets of alienate citizens who operate separate and apart from a larger society. If such groups, wheth~r 
they are called cults or not, pose a direct physical and violenttbmrtto their own members or to others in society, then 
the~ operations cannot be ignored or justified through innovations - invocations to the great American tradition of the· 
right of each citizen to be left alone. Oliver Wendell Holmes declared the esse~ce of a free society is indeed the right to. 
be let alone, but not at the expense of the social compact which allows an of us as Americans to live together based on 
the values we share together. 
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What this committee and the public need to know is how, in a difficult situation of dealing with Branch Davidian cult, 
did our agencies perform, and how they processed signals, other information - such as it was -- from this man Koresh, 
whether they developed alternative plans of action, how they negotiated, how they prepared. how they implemented 
decisions that were made. 
The verdict on David Koresh's methods and aims can already be read in the Gallup polls. We're here to seek answers to­
weightier questions. I'm delighted _our three leading law enforcement officials have made themselves available to the 

. committee. 
And now I would just like to offer several notes of caution about testimony we're going to hear today. First, 
investigations of both the decisionmaking process and the events oflast Monday are at a very preliminary stage. It may 
well be that the answers to many of our questions will have to wait until completion of the forensic examination or the 

· internal review of the Treasury and Justice DepartmeDt's activities 'that the President has ordered. And secondly, it may 
be that the-witnesses will be reluctant to respond to some question& because they might expose investigative sources and 
methods, or could jeopardize the pending criminal actions against a number of cult members relating to the deaths of 
four BATF agents. I believe that .people of goodwill can easily accommodate both these considerations and Congress' 
need for accurate and complete information. 
We're participating in an important proceeding today, and to admit aU members to have the chance to question our· 
witnesses, I feel compelled to limit oral opening statements to the ranking minority members of the full committee, and 
the chairmen and the ranking minority members of the two subcommittees with major jurisdictions over the issues 
under discussion. Of course, all members are free and encouraged to submit individual statements for the Record at this 
point, and so at this point I would yield to my distinguished mend from New York, Mr. Ham Fish. 
REP. FISH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is indeed a tragic set of circumstances that brings us here today. In recent 
days there has been considerable fault-fmding and imger-pointing. Hopefully, as you have_ said, this hearfug will get us 
beyond recrimination and help us to better understand what happened in Waco, why it happened, and how better to . 
prepare for possible future similar episodes. 
On Monday, April the 19th, 86 persons, 24 of whom were children, lost their lives. Prior to this, on February 28th, four 

brave A TF agents were killed in the line of duty. This committee oversees the operations of the Department of Justice. 
_the Federal Buz:eau oflnvestigations, and the Bureau of ~Jcohol, Tobacco, and Fireaims. It is a legitimate exercise of 
our legislative and oversight responsibilities to inquire into the sttategies and decisions that led to the tragic events in 
Waco. Moreover, the American people expect their Congress to inquire on their behalf-- deliberately, thoroughly, and 
fairly -- into the threat, the decisionmaking, the optio~ and the lessons learned. · 
Obviously this was an unusual and extremely difficult situation for law enforcement officials because they were dealing 
with a complex, unpredictable, and dangerous personality. This certainly was not the-classic hostage situation, nor was 
it terrorism, but was this a bizarre, isolated incident or a portent of things to come? We need to know whether we are 
facing a new and different challenge to the public safety, health and welfare. 
Law enforcement in this country today involves enormous challenges. It places great responsibility on the shoulders of 

law enforcement officers as well as agencies. And throughout this nation, heroic deeds and rescues on the part of police 
occur daily. 
Cert~inly mistakes are made. But most often law enforcement in this country is carried out with great_ skill and 

professionalism. Nevertheless, when a high profile episode such as the Branch Davidian stand-off occurs, and results in 
· w~at appears to have been an unnc;cessary loss of life, America asks why. America and the Congress have a right to 
lalow what happened, but in this search, we should not forget the difficult, almost impossible challenges that law· 
enforcement face every day. 
And so I welcome our distinguished witnesses -- the attorney general of the United States, the FBI director, and the 
director of the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Fireanns. Th~nk you for being with us, and I look forward to _your 
testimony. · 
REP. BROOKS: Mr. Edwards, the gentleman from California. 
REP. EDWARDS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I, too, welcome the attorney general and the other witnesses. 

We're here today to listen to these witnesses, not necessarily to criticize. The President and the attorney general have 
both said that the Congress should study this incident to see if there are any lessons to be learned. And rm especially 
interested in the process by which the events were carried out. 
· But Mr. Chairman, it would be a mistake to view this as a cult issue. Religion bad very little to do with the incident· 
It just as well could have been a white supremacist group or another group whose philosophy and identity had nothing 

to do with religion. The question is how does the govemmcnt deal with highly motivated. coherent groups barricaded in 
a fortified compound. This is a serious issue and deserves the committee's attention and the attention of the law 
enforcement agencies. 
Thank you. 
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REP. BROOKS: Thank you very much, Mr. Edwards. 
Mr. Hyde. 
REP. HENRY J. HYDE (R-IL}: Thank you, Mr. Cllairman. 
The 52-day standoff between the FBI and members of the Brancfs Davidian sect culminated in a fiery inferno which 
claimed the lives of 86 people. We mourn the loss of all of those inside the compound, especially the 24 children who 
perished last week, and the four A TF agents, who lost their lives ill tbe irririaJ conflict on February 28th. 
It certainly appears in the light of the tragic conclusion to the stamfotftfratsometfring went wrong. We need to know 

why the A TF agents were given the initial order to storm the compound in late Febnwy after it seems clear they no 
longer had the element of surprise in their favor. We also m:ed to know whether the plan put into action ·on the morning 
of April 19 was really the best available option or whether we just ran out of patience in trying to peacefully coax the 
group out of the compound. 
We are not here today to second-guess the attorney general, the FBI. or the ATF. or try to affiX political blame. Our 

purpose today is simply to understand the judgment calls that were IIWk and whether or not those decisions were the 
most appropriate under the circumstances. · 
We also· need to know if adequate resources, including military resources, were available or requested, and if not, why 
not? We need to get answers from the past so we can learn to avoid similar situations in the future. I look forward to 
hearing your testimony. 
REP. BROOKS: Mr. Schumer, the gentleman from New York. 
REP. CHARLES E. SCHUMER (D-NY}: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I thank you for holding this hearing today. 
Let me say at the outset I want to express my full confidence in the attorney general. In my opinion, President Clinton 

has put an absolutely outstanding person in. this difficult job. She's tough, intelligent, and possesses an integrity and 
forthrightness that is refreshing in Washington. . 
Now, I'm sure that under her leadership the Justice Department's internal review will produce a complete and thorough 
report on· this entire episode, including a full accounting of my mistakes that may 6ave been made when all the 
evidence is in. And that's because we're dealing with a new breed of attorney general. one who is candid about facts and 
matter of fact about taking responsibility. There may well have been errors in judgment in Waco, but we should keep in 
mind that mistakes in outcome are not always the results of mistakes in judgment. Personally, I'd rather have Janet Reno 
making these judgments than just about anybody else. 
We would also do well to remember that we're looking at the actions of law enforcement personnel motivated by a 
genuine desire to follow the rule oflaw. We're not dealing with a corrupt or dishonest government agency. We're not 
dealing with acts of venality or cover-up, as in so· many other scandals we have seen. And so, I strongly hope we will 
keep all this in mind while pursuing our legitimate search to find out what went wrong. 
To me, there are two key questions we need to explore in order to understand what went wrong. First, why was the 
element of surprise lost in the initial raid by BA TF? If it was, did BA TF leadership know that? And if they knew it, 
what was the process that resulted in going ahead with the raid anyway? Second, what was it that led FBI officials to 
make the judgment that David Koresh would not destroy himself and his· followers when faced with ultimate capture by 
law enforcement? 
Now, as we lo~k at these issues and other issues surrounding the tactical and strategic decisions in the matter, I believe 
it's also important not to lose sight of the fact that the real villain here was David Koresh. He and his followers' desire 
a1;1d willingness to use children as hostages and to ultimately sacrifice them in a ferocious act of self- inunolation surely 
must go down as one of history's most heinous crimes. 
If our ultimate goal is to avoid future Waco disasters from taking innocent lives, we also have to take a close look at 

how David Koresh was able to amass one of the largest and most deadly arsenals ever faced by US law enforcement. 
We need to take a rational look at all the guns involved. More than 10,000 rounds were fli'ed at the BA TF agents on 
February 28th as they attempted to serve legal arrest and search wmants at the Waco compound. 
This committee will hear today about how Koresh was able to arm his followers with more than a hundred fully 
automatic machine guns, grenades, and other materials such as explosives and bomb components. This an area where 
change is surely needed, because once David Koresh had established himself in that compound, surrounded by children 
and emotionally captive adults and with that arsenal, he rcaliy held all the cards. Can anyone doqbt we would be 
looking at a different outcome had the Branch Davidians been anned only with knives, ordilwy hunting rifles, or other 
sporting weapons? Koresh was determined not to be taken alive, and if necessaxy to take every one of his followers and 
as many federal agents as possible with him. As we have seen graphically. because of weaknesses and loopholes in 
existing law and his own criminal intent, he had the abundant m=ms to do so.: · 
I'll shortly be introducing legislation to address part ofthe·problcm by banning the sale of machine gun parts that can 

be used to convert legal frrearms to machine guns unless the purchaser is a legal machine gun owner and to ban the sale 
of such parts by maiJ in all cases. David Koresh used this weakness in the law to amass parts and convert legal weapons 
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. to the deadly fully automatic machine guns he fired. This legislation will also prohibit the sale of large caliber 
ammunition to all but law enforcement and military agencies. The .SO caliber ammunition possessed by Koresh, which 
although perfectly legal can easily blow through an ordinaiy vehicle like a fu:e tmck, has no legitimate purpose in the 
hands of anyone. 
Mr. Chairman, I know that this hearing is not specifically about guns. it's about accouatability and responsibility. But I 
also believe if we're going to get beyond the tactical issues involved we most adopt cr strategy that recognizes the role 
played by guns and the excessive firepower so easily available: to a rna~. r look forward to hearing our witnesses· 
today. 
REP. : Will the gentleman yield for a moment? Will the gentleman yield for a moment? 
REP. BROOKS: Not now. This is his opening. statement We want to go to Mr. SenscnbreMer for-­
REP. :(Off mike)-- Mr. Schumer to yield. 

REP. BROOKS: Not at this point, no. 
Mr. Sensenbrenner, the gentleman from -· 
MR./REP. : Wisconsin. 
REP. BROOKS:-- Wisconsin is recognized. 
REP. F. JAMES SENSENBRENNER JR. (R-WI): Thank you vr:ry much, Mr. Chairman, and I also salute you for 
calling timely hearings on the disaster is Waco. · . 
I think it is very plain that the function of this hearing should not be to second-guess the activities of either the FBI or 
the Department of Justice, nor should it be to micmmanage either of these agencies. That's not the role of the Congress 
of the United States. And furthermore, we should not be involving politicians in either the excctJtive or legislative 
branches of government in operational decisions .in law enforcement agencies. The people of this country expect the 
decisions of law enforcement to be free from politics and severely chastise anybody who tries to bring politics into those 
types of law enforcement decisions. 
But the Waco operation had a· result that none of us desired, and that was the deaths of all of the people who were 
inside the compound a week ago last Monday. Thus it's legitimate for this committee in discharging its oversight 
functions over law enforcement to ask what went wrong and how we can learn from the mistakes that were made in the 
Waco operation to prevent that from happening again. 
I think that the principal focus of this conunittee's activity should ~e to look into the chain of command. What types of 
options were presented? By whom? Who reviewed those options, and who eventually signed off on those options 
before April the 19th? 
In conclusion, I would like to state my personal admiration for the activities and brave behavior of both the FBI and 
A TF agents wh'o were on the scene in Waco and again express my personal coudolences to the families of those A TF 
agents who passed away at the time of the fust assault I also think it is important that everybody realize that no one on 
this committee holds anyone but David Koresh responsible for the tragic deaths of those who died within that 

. compound. He was the one that brought them there, be was the one that kept them there, and he was the one that led 
them to their deaths in the frre that occurred at the time the FBI stormed the compound a week ago Monday. Anybody 
that seriously says that the FBI or law enforcement was at fault really didn't know what was happening down there or 
cared not to listen. 
So I would hope that we could get into the business of overseeing the FBI, the Justice Department and the A tF here so 

· that all of us can learn from this very tragic activity. aDd so that the word tan g.o aut to anybody that is contemplating 
holding innocent people hostages, as Mr. Koresh did, that Jaw enforcement will be able to get to them and, hopefully, 

· have a result that will bring those who are guilty of committing crimes to justice in a court of law rather than the tragic 
outcome that occurred in Waco. 
REP. BROOKS: Thank you very much. And I woul~ at this point. want to recognize the presence of Congressman 
Chet Edwards of Texas, whose district was the location of the Branch Davidian compound And without objection, I 
would recognize a statement from the Congressman regarding the subject matter of these hearings be entered into the 
record at this point. · 
Thank you very much, Congressman. 
REP. :Mr. Chairman, I understand that members. such as Mr. Moorhead, who did leave a statement, will be- any 
members who have a statement at this point they can- . 
REP. BROOKS: All members who have statements at t&is point will be put into the record and this record will be open 
for a few days in case you have some time to perfect yom statement .to.bc put in thc.record at this point. 
REP. : Thank you. 
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REP.-BROOKS: And now I'm delighted to welcome Attorney General Janet Reno .to the conunittee ~her fU'St 
appearance before us since being sworn in. We're familiar with her backgro~nd as a result of the confmnation hearings .. 
However, for those who are not, I'll just tell you a. little bit about her. 
From 1978 until the time of her appointment as attorney genc:rai. Mrs. Reno was a state attorney in Miami, Florida. 
She's been a partner in a Miami-based law fum, an assistant state attorney, staff director of the Florida House of 
Representatives Judiciary Committee. She comes from good Fklrida sr.oc:k, feeting every bit at home as much with 
alligators as with the more dangerous predators she's encountered em this side oftfle Potomac. (Laughter.) 
And, Madam Attorney General, while we regret the sad events that necessitated this hearing, we welcome you. We 
look forward to your testimony. You proceed as you see fit 
A TrY GEN. RENO: Thank you very much, Mr. Olainnan. Can everybody hear me? 
I trUly appreciate this opportunity to appear before you to discuss the tragic events at the compound in Waco, Texas 
this past week. I want to be as open as possible with you and with all the American people about what we knew before, 
what we knew on that day, and what we know now and as our inVestigation proceeds. I want to be responsible and 
accountable to the Congress and to the American people in every way I possibly can. 
This was one of the hardest decisions that anybody could ever be asked to make. We deliberated long and carefully 
before reaching a decision. Nothing we do now em dtange the suffering felt by the families of the A TF agents or the 
families of those who perished in the compound. But as you have pointed out so eloquently, we must do everything we 
can to learn from these events about what we can do in the fjlture to prevent people like David Koresh, or people 
motivated by other thoughts, from causing such a senseless, horrible loss of human life. 
On February 28, 1993, four agents of the Bureau of Alcohol. Tobacco and Firearms were killed and 16 were injured in 
a shoot-out that occurred when they attempted to execute an arrest warrant for Vernon Howell, also known as David 
Koresh, and a search warrant at the Branch Davidian compound near Waco, Texas. 
The agents were met by a barrage of gunfue from numerous fliing points in the compound that lasted 45 minutes, 
involved thousands of rounds of ammunition 
and left the agents dead and injured. Weapons used by the Branch Davidians included 50-caliber rifles having an 
effective range of 3,000 yards, from the Capitol to the White House. AU of those killed or wounded were shot or 
injured by homemade hand grenades. While several members of the commune were killed and injured, there was 
apparently no serious injury to any of the children. 
After the shoot-out, the remaining A TF agents established a protective perimeter around the compound. A few hours 
later, three Branch Davidians attempted to enter the compound, resulting in a second shoot-out with A TF agents in 
which one Davidian was killed. Attempts were made to further secure the perimeter. 
A TF offici~ls then requested that the FBI dispatch its hostage rescue team, which we refer to as HRT. On February 
28th, 1993, agents of the Federal Bureau oflnvestigation, including the HRT. aaived on the scene. The FBI found an 
armed fortress, a compound consisting of approximately 70 acres located on Route 7 near Waco. 
I took office on March 12th, 1993. After my FBI clearance, I had been briefed previously by the acting attorney 
general and was thereafter briefed specifically on the sitUation at Waco. I was advised that the primary goal of the FBrs 
hostage rescue team was to negotiate with Koresh to secure the release of the children and the surrender and prosecution 
of all those who participated in the murder and a~sault of the federal agents without further violence or injucy to anyone 
concerned. I concurred that we must try to negotiate to avoid further bloodshed to the extent that we could. As this 

. ~ituation evol,ved, the FBI had consistently rejected a direct assault on the compound because of the danger of heavy 
casua~ties .to the agents and to the children and because of the layout which prevented a surprise assault. 
I was told as I was briefed that the FBI had a trained negotiator on the scene and that they had and during the course of 
these deliberations continued to consult with behavioral experts and others who had knowledge of the cult to determine 
how best to proceed to negotiate with Koresh. From the start, the negotiation tactics focused on restricting the activities 
of those inside the compound and depriving them of a comfortable envir<l1llllCilt so as to bring the matter to a conclusion 
without further violence. · 
Those inside the compound were advised of the FBrs rules of engagement. Under those- rules, the agents conveyed the 
information that they would not use deadly force against any person except as necessary in self-defense or defense of 
another, when they had reason to believe that they or another were in danger of death or grievous bodily harm. The FBI 
installed lights to illuminate the compound at night and loudspeakers to ensure that they could communicate with all 
members of the compound at once, rather than having to rely solely on the single telephone line available to speak to 
Koresh and those he permitted to talk on the phone. They also used loudspeakers to disrupt their sleep; They cut off 
their electricity and they sought to restrict conununicatioos o( those within. the compouud just to the hostage negotiatorS. 
Additionally, they sent in letters from family members and made other good-faith efforts designed to encourage 
surrender by those who wished to leave the compound. In particular, and I asked about this during the course of our 
deliberations, they made repeated efforts to secure ~e release of the children. In further efforts to encourage the 
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negotiating process, attorneys representing Koresh and Steve Schneider were allowed to enter the compound or 
communicate by telephone with them on several occasions. 
Throughout this S 1-day process, Koresh continued to assert that he and others inside would at some point surrender. 
However, the FBI advised that at no point did he keep his word on any of his promises. Despite all efforts, ~e 
negotiators concluded that negotiations were at a standstill and that they had not been able to negotiate a single item 
with Koresh. . . . 
Although 21 children and 14 adults had been allowed to leave the compound between Febnwy 28th and March 23rd, 
1993, those persons who left the compound did so because Koresh affirmatively wanted them out as they were not fully 
conunitted to his cause, they were a drain on his efforts at internal discipline and resources, or he viewed them as 
potential spokesmen to the media. 
During the week of April the 5th, the FBI advised me that they were developing a plan for the possible use of tear gas 
in an effort to increase the pressure on those in the compound to sum:ndcr. Thereafter. I had a series of meetings with 
the FBI to discuss the emerging proposal. · 
The threshold question I asked was whether the gas would cause permanent injury to the children. I did not even want 
to consider the matter further if we could not be certain about this factor. The FBI assured me that the gas would not 
cause permanent injury. i asked them to research further, and subsequently they arranged for me to meet with Dr. Harry 
Salem, a top expert in toxicology, who is chief of the Life Sciences Department at the Edgewood Arsenal. He reviewed 
with me case studies that confmned that it would not cause permanent injury. 
Then the primary question I asked again and again during the ensuing discussion was "Why now? 'Why not wait?" I 
asked about their food and water supply and was told that it could last at least a year or more. I asked that the 
information about the water supply be checked and double checked by observing the level in the water tanks. We 
explored but could not develop a feasible method for cutting off their water supply. 
I asked my staff to have direct personal discussions by phone with the chief negotiator on the scene to satisfy ourselves 
that we had, indeed, reached an impass'e in discussions, in negotiations. After a two and a half hour conversation, that 
seemed clear. 
I became convinced that short of allowing David Koresh to go free, he was not coming out voluntarily. Given that 
unacceptable result and in light of the fact that he was such a dangerous criminal, allowing the status quo to remain was 
not going to lead to an ultimate peaceful resolution and eliminate any risk to the safety of the innocent children in the 
compound, the public at large, or the government agents at the scene. On the contrary, the passage of time only 
increased the likelihood of incidents and possible injuries and attended injuries and harm. 
But we continue to deliberate. And in the course of our deliberations we met with General Peter Schumacher (sp) and 
Colonel Jerry Boinken (sp), former and present commanders of Delta Force, respectably, the Army's rough equivalent 
to the FBI's HRT, to review the plan. Their comments were instructive. While indicating that the plan appeared to be 
sound, one suggestion was that rather than an incremental approach to use ·- to the use of the gas as proposed by the 
FBI, gas should be inserted into all portions of the compound simultaneously. 
I preferred the FBI approach, which called for a gradual increase in pressure over time. It seemed to me that that would 

be best to ensure the safety of those inside. I directed that if at any point Koresh or his followers threatened to harm the 
children, the FBI should cease the action immediately. Likewise, if it appeared that as a result of the initial use oftear 
gas Koresh was prepared to negotiate in good faith for his ultimate surrender, the FBI was to cease operations. On the 
.o~er hand, ifKoresh and his followers endangered the agents by fuing upon them, they were authorized to return the 
flre. · · 
To the great credit of the FBI, they received substantial fue from within the compound both at the vehicles and at 
sniper positions surrounding the compound without returning any fire. In fac~ throughout the S I day siege, the FBI 
never fued a single shot. Instead, when fued upon, the FBI responded by beginnins to insert gas throughout the . 
compound consistent with what the Delta Force commanders had suggested. 
The commanders also expressed concern about the length of time the HR.T had been on the scene in a state of constant 
readiness, and all expressed the view that the team would~ to kpufTed &act fOr retraining very quickly if they were 
going to come back to the scene. All advised that there was not a substitute civil force that could secure the extensive 
area around the compound that had the. expertise of the Hostage Rescue Team. . 
We continued deliberations. I wanted and received assurances that the gas and its means of use were not pyrotechnic. 
I was concerned about.intentional or accidental explosions and ordered that additional resources be provided to ensure 
that there was an adequate emergency response if we should go forward. . . 
I also considered that Koresh had talked about suicide, and that might occur at any time under conditions that the FBI 
might be less likely to control. Experts, however, advised the Bureau 1Dat the chances of suicide were not likely, but I 
again emphasize that it was something that was consi~ something that was considered that might happen at any 
point along the way, regardless of what the FBI did. · 
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In considering the FBI proposal, I weighed the many concerns of the government with respect to the state of affairs 
inside the compound. They included the well-being of the children in the compound given the deteriorating sanitary 
conditions'; the apparent lack of adequate medical care inside; and reports of sexual and other abuse over the past; the 
vulnerability of the outer perimeter, which'created a threat to public safety and the fecferal agents at the perimeter-- the 
outer perimeter was vulnerable because there were. inside the compound, SO- caliber weapons having an effective. 
killing range of 3,000 yards, a dis~nce that would reach from the US Capital to the Wbite House; our inability to 
maintain the presence of the HR T on-site indefinitely; and the advice' I n:eeivcd !frat there was a lack of a suitable 
substitute force that could replace them at the compound and ensure the security of all involved; fourth, the increasing 
risk as the stand-off continued, of injury to federal agents, whether by accident or by the risk of shooting from the 
iDs ide. 
Since being sworn in as attorney general, I have had numerous conversations with people both inside and outside the 
Department of Justice concerning the Waco situation. In additio~ I directed my staff to keep the White House apprised 
of ongoing developments. My discussions with representatives at the Whib: House were predicated on the premise that · 
as chief law enforcement officer, the decision on how to proc~ed was mine. I advised the President on the Sunday 
before the operation of my decision to authorize the FBI's use of tear gas at the compound, and he said he would support 
my decision. 
I believe we were dealing with a situation that woulduot resolve itself by mere acquiescence to the stand-off. 

Negotiations had proven to be fruitless, and despite our best efforts. we could not secure the release of the children. It 
was a situation that suggested to me.that time would only increase the risk to public safety, to the safety of government 
agents, and to those within the compound, without any realistic expectaticm that the matter would be resolved peacefully 
if we did nothing. It was my call, and I made it the best way I know how. 
Let me urge that we focus on the future, and to try to determine how we can best avoid the recurrence of this tragedy. 
In this regard, at the President's request, we in the Department ofTreasury are looking at a process whereby the events 
at Waco will be examined by experts, both within and outside tbe government to consicfer the following questions. 
One, in the execution of the arrest and search warrants by A TF,. were established procedures followed, and if so, were 
they adequate? Two, is federal law enforcement adequately prepared to negotiate in dangerous situations in terms of 
training, staffmg, and available techniques? Three, is training for the execution ofwarrants·involving barric~ded 
suspects who may be holding innocent third parties adequate for all law enforcement agencies? Four, are improvements 
needed in coordinating the activity of the various investigative agencies? Five, how should federal law enforcement 
agencies marshal resources in various disciplines, including psychology and psychiatry in situations involving cults and 
other groups using barricades and holding innocent people? Six, what systems and understandings about command and 
control should guide the relationships among leaders of the departments, and career officials. and operating units when 
field operations impose a substantial risk of danger to law enforcement officials and others? 
The incident at Waco ended tragically for all involved. I have thought every day since about·· since April 19th about 
what I might have done differently. I only hope that we can work together to make sure that I never have to make such 
a decision again. 
I would be glad to answer any of your questions. 
REP. BROOKS: Well, Ms. Reno, the major focus oftoday's hearing is the decisionmaking process at the highest levels 
of the law enforcement community which led to the actions involving the Branch Davidian cult. Could you descri~e for 

.. tlle committee the major considerations you personally brought to bear in approving the actions leading up to and 
including the April 19th operation? · 
A TIY GEN. RENO: The pr4De concern that I ask is- the question I kept asking over and over again, Mr. Chainnan­
why now, and why not wait? I reviewed statements that he had made about apocalypse at any time -be could have 
done this at any time. The FBI advised me that they were in better control, considering the state of readiness of their 
HRT team, so that that was a defmite factor. I reviewed the-- it was important and we spent a lot of time detennining 
the water supply. I thought that might be a way, if the water supply were reduced, that we might be able to force them· 
out. And again and again we ~ent back through trying to observe tile fever of water in the tanks to see if it might be 
possible to wait them out in that fashion. 
It appeared from everything that we were told, based on our discussion with the negotiator on the scene who advised 
that negotiations had reached an impasse, that he was going to stay there, and he would not come out voluntarily, and it 
was going to be an indefmite stay that would expose the Jives of agents on the perimeter to danger, would threaten the 
continued safety of all inside. I continued to be concerned about the children. There was no sanitary facility for them. 
They were dumping their waste. The conditions were increasing in that regard. We. bad. bad reports- as I have p9inted 
out, until you see the children you cannot confmn the reports one way· or the other about the abuse of the children. 
But the concern 1 had was that to let this go on indefmitely, where you had dangerous offenders who had killed four 
agents, injured 16 others. was something that could best be resolved by increasing the pressure, not to make this D Day, 
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but to try to increase the pressure by the use of gas, which I bad determined by •• after very car~ful review, would not be 
permanently hannful to the children -- that by tear gassing the compound that would be the best way to proceed to 
increase the pressure to try to force them out. · 
REP. BROOKS: Now, Mrs; Reno, questions have bCCil raised about the extent to which the White House was. involved 
in the decision-making process relative to the events in Waco. Could you describe the extent and the nature of your 
contact with the White House dwing the standatl: aDd particularljr daring the days preceding April the 19th? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I kept the White House advised ffmnrgh ~White Boase Counsers Office during the course of 
my deliberations after the FBI had made its proposal about the use of gas. There were continued discussions as .we 
developed new information. · 
On Sunday, prior to April the 19th, I talked with the President, advised him of what we proposed to do, and he gave me 
his full support. · 
REP. BROOKS: Would you describe in detail how you kept in touch with the situation· in Waco and the individuals 
with whom you consulted in formulating and approving the: actions against the Branch Davidian compound? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: The fJrst conversation I had concerning the possible use of tear gas at the compound was with 
Director Sessions, who said that during the week of April the 5th that he would like to arrange some time to brief me on 
a proposal that they would like to present. I met with Director Sessions and other representatives of the Department, 
including Floyd Clarke, Larry Potts, Doug Gow, and there may have been others, but those are the people that I · 
specifically remember. 
I was briefed in all details about everything that had been done up to that point in trying to resolve the matter 

peacefully. We went through it in detail. Then l started asking the questions. What about the gas, would it be harmful 
to the children? Go back and do some more study. I had reai concern about that. It was pointed out to me, after they · 
had had the doctor brief me, that the gas was non-lethal, it was tear gas as we understand tear gas, and that members of 
the United States Anny are gassed as part of preparation. So I became comfortable with that., But I was still riot 
conifortable with the primary question of why now, wny nat.wait. 
We had explored other possible alternatives. As 1 suggested to you, the FBI, before I had been sworn in, and theri I 
concurred totally with them, rejected any direct assault on the compound as being far too dangerous for the agents and 

. for those inside the compound. . · · 
We asked to meet with military officials. And the general who ~as the fanner commander of Delta Force, and the. 
colonel presently commanding the Delta Force, came to Washington and met with us and FBI officials after they 
reviewed the plan. And we consulted very carefully about that. 
One of the points, raised for the fJrst time by the Delta Force commanders and previous commander, was that the HRT 

had to be at a constant state of readiness and that to keep them on a scene for the length of time that these agents had 
been on the scene began to raise questions that they could not remain there much longer and still be in the state of 
readiness that should be expected of an HRT team. · 
I asked, well, isn't there another team, and was advised no, except for the Delta Force, and then I believe the Navy has a 
force for marine disasters. We explored the provisions of posse comitatuS and became convinced that you could not use 
the Delta Force in a civilian situation. I asked at that time, well, can't you send in SWAT teams or something like that 
I'm n9t a law enforcement expert, but I was asking every question I knew to ask. · 
And they explained and went step by step through the training that the HR T team has in tenns of sniper fuing and their 
~~ility to maintain security. So, I became convinced that if we had to pull back the HRT team and substitute somebody 

· else, we couldn't begin to provide the security for all of those concerned that we would with the HRT. 
I cominued to be concerned about the water tank because I heard some information that indicated their water supply 
might be low. We went back in and with the ability of the FBI to detennine the level of the water tank from a distance, 
we were advised ·that it continued to be replenished and that it looked like they had enough supplies and water to last for 
over a year. 
What concerned me was the fact that even with the HRT team, it was going to be difficult to control a perimeter.· Ifyo,u 
can imagine having to control a perimeter that extended. ffom here to the Wliite House and the same distance either way, 
it could be a very difficult situation. People had been able to get in there and people could come out. There could be 
confrontations. . 
We reviewed-- because I directly considered the fact that people had talked about the possibility of a mass suicide, and 
you remember the situation with respect to Jonestown. and that's something I considered. the FBI advised me that its 
behavioral experts had indicated - and by the way. Mr. Chainnan, rve asked the FBI because I want to be as candid as I 
possibly can, to interrupt me if I say anything that's inaccurate in any way •. and I would ask that because I want to make 
sure that I lay out the clearest picture possible for you in terms of any advice that they gave me. But we looked at it 
They advised me again that their experts had concluded that the chances of a mass suicide were not likely, but if they 
were, they could happen at any time. And if we let the standoff go on forever, they could happen-- it could happen if 
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you got some rambunctious group in there that wanted to square off against the Davidians, it could happen in any 
number of ways. · 
I made -- went step by step again through the decisionsr weighing it back and forth, and reached a conclusion that the 
gas was not lethal, that it would not permanently harm them. By everybody's description, it would be so -- they could 
last with gas masks for some time, but it would become so uncomfortable that they would come out. I think as a 
footnote to this, one of the things we didn't count en wuthatwiDd. ADd I tlriaJc fiom an·-- one of the things that we 
will have to review and look at and understand is whytfle gas didn't cause more discomfort immediately. 
But those were the factors that led to my decision. And constantly dwing this time, I was consulting and trying to be 
available at their request to the director, to Mr. Clarke. Mr. Potts, and Mr. Gow. REP. BROOKS: Thank·you very 
much. 
In accordance with the rules of the committee, I want to note that - well. I've asked only three questions -- we want to 
adhere strictly to the five-minute limit because I want all of ilie members to have~ opportunity to make their positions 
clear.· 
Mr. Fish. 
REP. HAMILTON FISH, JR. (R-NY): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
And General Reno, I commend you for your frankness. I would like at the outset to take a step back and ask you a · 
threshold question. What was the reason or perhaps reasons that federal law enforcement personnel were there at the 
compound in the first place? Was there a serious enough threat posed by the Branch Davidians to justify the BA TF raid 
and, following that, the 52-day stakeout, as well as the FBI action on April 19th? · 
A TfY GEN. RENO: Congressman, I have focused my attention on Department of Justice activities and on the FBI. 
And I would refer matters that preceded February 28th to the investigation that will be conducted. I have not reviewed 
that in terms of making any informed comment on what led up to it 
What I did satisfy myself was that four agents had been killed, 15 had been wounded by very dangerous people, and 
that the FBI had been called in. When I accepted - when r took office, that .was the situation that I was faced with, and I 
made a judgment based on all the information that I had that they were indeed dangerous offenders who had knowingly 
killed federal agents. But at that point, with the tragedy of the agents' deaths_ the I 5 wounded, the issues with respect to 
the siege, I did not want to be in the process of second-guessing somebody else. 
REP. FISH: Thank you. General Reno -
REP. BROOKS: Excuse me. Would the gentleman yield one moment? 
REP. FISH: Of course. 
REP. BROOKS: I would say to the members of the public- let me say that we would ask that you rotate - that is, 
leave the committee room -- every twenty minutes, beta.use there ate 1 SO or more people outside patiently waiting to .. · 
come in for a while. And if you would stay twenty minutes and rotate out, it would give others an opportunity to 
participate in and hear this public hearing. 
Pardon me, Mr. Fish. 
REP. FISH: Thank you. 
Janet Reno, you've demonstrated both personal courage and professionalism in your willingness to take responsibility 
for the decisiot:15 that led to the events of April 19th. But while you're ready to take public responsibility, it does not 
mean you actually made the decisions. As to the tactics, whose idea was it to use the tear gas and the tanks? Who 
~qtually made the decision to move in that manner and on the particular day? 
·A TfY GEN. RENO: The FBI made the decision to bring in the tanks. and the tanks were on the scene as I recall when 
I was sworn in on March the 12th, 1993. So CEVs, as they were called, which I believe are construction equipment 
vehicles, and Bradley vehicles and, as I recall, a tank were already on the scene. 
The proposal that was made to me was made by the FBI to use tear gas inserted in order to protect those involved and · 
to protect the agents involved from the weapons that were inside the compound, that it would be inserted with what we -
-I came to refer to as a CEV, which is a tank-like vehicle with a boom on the front of the tank. 
REP. FISH: Attorney General, the- in the April 25th issue of the Washington Post Outlook section, Richard Restak­
R-E-S-T-A-K-a neurologist and neuropsychiatrist, author of eight books on brain behavior, had this to say: 
"Unfortunately, in dealing with psychotics, negotiations may take weeks or months, but not waiting is extremely 
dangerous. Psychotics respond very erratically under pressure. Indeed, if a person could deal effectively with stressr he 
would not have descended into psychosis in the fll'St place. · 
"Unfortunately, those making the decisions about what to do about Koresb unwittingly set up situations from the 
beginning that could almost be guarantee to further his descent iD1o madness EVCD a well-adjusted person could de­
compensate, as doctors say, under the pressures of psychological warfare techniques like aiming high intensity 
·floodlights at the compound or playing loud, irritating tapes of jet planes and the cries of rabbits being slaughtered. Such 
techniques can be s~ccessful when applied to individuals whose responses can reasonably be anticipated. But if there's 
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one thing the authorities surrounding the compound at Waco can agree about, it is that David Koresh was not 
predictable. 11 

My question, General Reno, is, with the benefit ofhindsight and recognizing that you were dealing with a psychotic 
who was not likely to respond rationally to stress, efforts to break down his resistance, the increasing of the l>ressure, 
and so forth, should a similar situation arise in the future, would you recommend a course different from the law 
enforcement procedure applied in the Davidian st3J!dofl? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: What I want to do, congressman, is talk wit!! M~. Restak, &ecause I saw this-- this article and 
reviewed it at the time that -- this past Sunday ·- talk with any other expert I can, brief them on everything we tried to 
do, and try to understand whether a man like David Kore~ whom he calls unpredictable and whom everybody agrees 
was unpredictable, if there is any other way to have done it. 
One of the things that I've learn is never believe everything you read in the newspaper .. And the second thing is make 
sure that the person who writes the story in the newspaper who's being as accurate as they know how have all the 
infonnation concerning the subject matter of which they write before relying on their conclusion. And with Mr. Restak, 
Mr. Adams, and others who have suggested that they might have had a better way, that is what I intend to try to do. 
REP. FISH: I thank you for that. On page five of your testimony, you say that to determine how best to negotiate, the 
FBI was consulting with behavioral experts and others. And ye~ as you know, the result of the techniques used and 
psychological warfare only served to make Mr. Koresh more irritable and prone to angry outbursts. 
So my questions are, upon what infonnation was this strategy of psychological warfare based, and who are the experts 
that were consulted? 
A 1TY GEN. RENO: The FBI will testify after I do, and they wilt give you in detail just whom they consulted with and 
sometimes the conflicting infonnation that was given. 
In fact -· and I think i't -· it will be important to }}ear from the FBI, in terms of it •• his •• his outbursts, at times he was 
very peacefuL You were dealing with a madman, congressman, and he was totally unpredictable. What we will do is sit 
down with the experts, with the experts that we consulted vdth, with those who now have opinions as to how we might 
have proceeded, and try to come up with the best understanding of what to do with people like him or others in other 
situations for the future. · 
REP. FISH: To your knowledge, were biblical scholars and theologians involved as experts either in consultation or in 
negotiation? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: My understanding, because I directly asked _it, is that the Bureau, the FBI had consulted with 
religious experts to understand the significance of the various biblical references during the course of the negotiations. 
REP. FISH: But not to negotiate directly with Mr. Koresh. 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I don't know of any negotiation in which a religious person directly negotiated, but you should 
enquire of the FBI. 
REP. FISH: I shall. Thank you very much, General Reno. 
REP. BROOKS: Mr. Edwards, the gentleman from California. 

. REP. DON EDWARDS (D-CA): Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you for your forthright testimony, Madame 
A~orney General. 
I was interested in Congressman Fish's questions. Did - did tlie FBI tell you that they had examined previous 
experiences by the Department of Justice in situations such as this? I'm not talking about the ordinary hostage, where 
9~y to day criminals are involved; where highly motivated types of people like, as I said in my opening statement, white 
supremacists or religious people who have some kiDd o! a cult attitude. were involved. Did - did they tell you that they. 
had examined what happened in San Francisco a number of years ago when Indians took over Alcatraz Island, and the 
President -- it happened to be President Nixon at that time - said "Let them stay and they'll get tired of it. 11 And they 
did. They stayed over a year, and then they got tired of it and left. And did they also- bad they also looked into what 
the federal government, the Department of Justice did at Pine Ridge, where a similar waiting period worked out rather 
well? · 
A 1TY GEN. RENO: I ·do not recall any reference to Afcatraz nor to Pine Ridge specifically, congressman. 
Again, what we were dealing with here was not somebody who had just taken over a place, but people wh~ were 
dangerous in terms of the surrounding community who had killed people and a perimeter which had to be secured And 
as I recall, we discussed whether we had ever seen a situatiou. rd obviously not seen a situation like that in my 

. experience in Miami, but whether we had ever really seen anything precisely like this. And my infonnation was ~t we 
had not. But I would refer you to the Bureau in order to make sure that the Department of Justice's representations arc 
as accurate as possible. 
REP. EDWARDS: Well, I think we will have quite a lot of questions for the FBI, because after all, you were only there 
less than half the time that the siege was going on. 
I guess, Mr. Chairman, that I will yield back my time. 
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REP. BROOKS: Thank you very much, Mr. Edwards. 
END OF EXCERPT 
(NOTE: This is a resumption of the hearing which took place Wednesday, Apri128, 1993 with Attorney General Janet 

Reno testifying before the House Judiciary Committee. Coverage resumes at the point where it was dropped yesterday.) 
Mr. Carlos Moorhead, the gentleman from California. 
REP. CARLOS 1. MOORHEAD (R-CA): ThaJlk YG11r Mr. ClmirmaD. 
You know, one question ~'d like to ask, and youmayrrotbe th~~to ask this, but why was the press·notifiedprior·to 
the BA TF going in there to begin with? Because obviously, they knew about what was going to happen inside the 
perimeter. And iri one of the briefmgs we got, it was stated that one of the people that came from inside· was notified by 
a pressman about what was going to happen, and they knew about the thing. Why did tbat ever happen? Why was the 
press notified? · 
A TTY GEN. RENO: Congressman, again, I have tried to focus my responsibility and my review on the issues that the 
Department of Justice confronted, and I would respectfully refer you to A TF. 
REP. MOORHEAD: All right. My next question is, you state here in your opening state~ent that the big question you 
had was whether the gas could cause permanent injury to the children. Was there any consideration about whether this 
attack, using the tanks and gas, could be successful or would be successful? Did anyone weigh the damage that could 
come, the possible hann against.the possible good? 
A TTY GEN. RENO: When I say the big question, that was the threshold question. I wasn't even going to consider· 
using gas unless I could be sure that it would not be permanently harmful to children. So, that was the threshold 
question before I began the deliberations. . 
We then continued with the big question being why now, why not wait? We reviewed- and those were the 
alternatives. I reviewed it. I became convinced that the gas was not hannful, that the gas, as described by the 
commanding officer of Delta Force and by the head of the HRT, the FBI hostage rescue team, would force the people in 
the compound out. As I have said, I took into consideration.that tbere were concerns expressed that Koresh might 
commit a mass suicide, that he might commit suicide. 1 e.xptessed concerns that he might put the children up against the 
window and threaten to do things to the children. And I gave specific instructions that if anything like that should 
happen, we should fall back immediately. 
But the issue was, based on what we had been told and the comments made by Koresh that if he were going to do 
something like what he did, he could do it and might do it at any time, particularly when the bureau bad less control of 
the situation than it had with the HRT team on the site. · 
Based on what the commanding officers of Delta Force told us and what the HRT team told us, the gas was going to be 
so uncomfortable that they would come out rather quickly. Some would be more immune to it than others. They would 
have gas maskS. We knew they had gas masks, and that might give them a longer period of time before they came out. 
but that they would come out. . 
I made -- one of the things that I' was concerned about, I kept thinking of what ean b.e the :Worst case scenario, and what 
I envisioned was that he would do something terrible like set an explosion. And I just balanced it with the fact that this 
was something that he had threatened to do that I could not control. Based on ali the information that we had, everything 
we had been told, he could stay there for over a year. It was something that I felt that we were in the best position to 
bring to a conclusion by increasing the pressure through the use of gas . 
. REP. MOORHEAD: There were children being Jet out from time to time and other: people that were in there were 

· deciding to leave under. the pressure and had already left. I don't know how many able-bodied men were inside of this 
place, but it would seem to me that their ability to resist was being cut down by the people that were being allowed to 
leave. And it just seems to me that some gain could be there by letting time go on. I know it was costing a million 
dollars a day, and that's a lot of money, but weighed against all the lives that were lost,· it doesn't sound like that heavy 
an expense. . 
A TrY GEN. RENO: Congressman, you don't consider dollars when you consider human. lives, and that was not a · 
factor that I considered at all. What I tried to consider was the best way to resolve it over time with the least danger to 
all involved. Most of the people who had come out had come out early on. They were in there. They weren't coming 
out. They were heavily armed. They had 50-caliber ammunition that could fire the distance from here to the White 
House. They were not somebody that was a non-· dangerous offender who was sitting there because they wanted to take 
over a place. These were dangerous people who bad killed and who bad the chance of killing again. 
REP. MOORHEAD: Well, I think we understand that. Obviously. But in- you know, we learned in Jonestown that 
being pressed, these people that are a little bit warped to begin with ao go to suicide many times. And the pressure 
down there was·very soft, just one of our members of our Congress had shown up and they thought he might be a 
danger~ And they caused all tha~ damage there. This guy was very similar to-
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A 1TY GEN. RENO: Congressman, we will welcome any suggestions you have as co any issue that we might review to 
avoid a tragedy like this for the future. 
HSE JUDICIARY CMTEIRENO PAGE 28 04128/93 
Nobody will ever know what the right answer was in this situation. and r think we have to collectively work together to 
come up with the best guidelines, the best procedures 10 try our level best to avoid a tragedy such as this in the future. 
REP. MOORHEAD: Well, we can't do anything abaut this one. but 1 think we caD learn a lot for the next time that 

something like this comes up. And ·history has·tuld as those~ n:pc:at themselves. 
ATIY GEN. RENO: Well, I'm trying my best to make sure that I have exhausted every possibility of learning 
everything I can in the course of these next several weeks that can avoid a tragedy like this in the· future if it's possible. 
In some instances, with a madman like that, it may not be. 
REP. BROOKS: Thank you very much. 
Mr. Conyers, the gentleman from Michigan. 
REP. JOHN CONYERS JR. (D-MI): Thank you. Mr. Chairman. 
Madame Attorney General, I am extremely disappointed in the decisions that have been made out of the Department of 
Justice, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, the Agency of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms. In Philadelphia we bad a 
mayor that bombed people out of an eviction (sic). In Jonestawu, we lost the lives of my colleague, Congressman Ryan, 
who tried to get Don Edwards to go to -- go out there with him beuuse of a miscalculation about cult people. We had 
Patty Hearst and the Symbionese Liberation A.rr,:ly. We had Wounded Knee with the Indians. Now, when in God['s] 
name is the law enforcement at the federal level going to understand that these are very sensitive events, that you can't 
put barbed wire, guns, FBI, Secret Service around them, send in sound 24 hours a day and night, and then wonder why 
they do something unstable? 
The root cause of this problem was that it was considered a military operation; and it wasn't This is a profound 
disgrace to law enforcement in the United States of America, and you did the right thing by offering to resign. You did 
exactly the right thing. I commend you for it. · 
Now, there is no longer any reason why the Alcohol, Tobacco. and Fireanns agency cannot be folded into the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation. And if there is some reason forcourinuing ATF. fd like to hear it today. And I'll be introducing 
legislation to that point very, very shortly. · 
And now I'd like you to know that there is at least one member in the Congress that isn't going to rationalize the death 
of two dozen children that weren't cultists, they weren't nuts, they weren't criminals. They happen to be parents of 
people, and they were innocently trapped in there. And that decision that was jointly made by these agencies bears 
extreme criticism. And it's not President Clinton's fault He's taking your advice. He's taking Judge Sessions' advice. 
He's taking Mr. Powell's advice. 
And so I'd like· to get some straight answers. I've read &o many conflicting rationales about this that it's absolutely 
embarrassing. And I've been through each of these incidents that I've cited. Doesn't anybody have any historical 
recollection in federal law enforcement about how to deal with these kinds of people? And I'll yield the balance of my 
time for anything you'd like to respond t9 me, Madame Attorney General. 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I haven't tried to rationalize the death of children, congressman. I feel more strongly about it than 
you will ever know. But I have neither tried to rationalize the death of four A TF agents, and I will not walk away from 
a compound where A TF agents have been killed by people who knew they were agents and leave them unsurrounded. I 
~ill not authorize a military excursion with the forces of the military into that compound with a direct assault such as 
what you might expect in a military situation. I will stand by and. be proud of the FBI as it used its restraint But most 
of all, congressman, I will not engage in recrimination. I will Jock to the future, try to learn everything I can from this 
situation to avoid tragedies such as this in the future. · 
REP. CONYERS: Are you concluded? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I'm not concluded if you have further questions of me, sir. 
REP. CONYERS: Well, I consider that a non-responsive answer. 
A TIY GEN. RENO: You did not ask me a questiem, sir. You asfced me ifrllad any comment, and I responded with 

J!lY --
REP. CONYERS: And I consider those non-responsive comments. 
AITY GEN. RENO: Do you have a question of me, sir? , 
REP. CONYERS: I have more questions of you than ru ever get time to put before you in this committee. 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I am prepared for as long as you would like to question me, sir, and I will come to your office. 
REP. CONYERS: Well, ask the chairman to give me some more time. 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I will come to your office and be prepared to answer any question at any time that you may ever 
have about anything that I have ever done. 
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REP. CONYERS: Well, 1-~ I'll thank the gentle lady and accept her invitation. REP. BROOKS: The gentleman from 
Illinois, Mr. Hyde. 
REP. HENRY J. HYDE (R-IL): Thank you, Mr •. Chainnan. 
Hopefully a little change of pace. I just want to comment that all o(us are sometimes victimized, and I use the word 
with some caution, by experts. We rely on experts a little bit too much sometimes, and we should be more aware of the 
fact that there are experts and then~ are experts mel there are c:xperts. ADd it would -=m to meo eommon sense would 
dictate that suicide was a real possibility. Dealing with people who are religiously obsessed in an aberrant or bizan'e .. 
direction and with the history of Jonestown where 900 people lost their lives. to say suicide is not a real possibility, I 
would wonder if all the experts said that. Now, I know you don't know because you relied em the FBI, who was told by 
experts. And I'll ask Mr. Sessions and others whether that was a tmmimous view or whether there were other experts, 
and they chose to believe one set of experts and gave you that information. But you don't know that, and so I certainly 
don't ask you that. 
You've made a statement that only the hostage rescue team was appropriate to accomplish the mission they were 
assigned in this operation. And then we note that fatigue ~ad ~et in on the hostage rescue team. And that troubles me, 
because evidently we only have one hostage rescue team. Maybe we have two. I understand it's made up of SO people 
and there are two groups of them, 25 and 25, but the inability to Wait out these people does trouble me, the impatience. 
And if there was no backup, if there were no people to relieve the hostage rescue team, then rm concerned about that. 
Because if, indeed, we have hostage situations on both coasts simultaneously, one in Seattle and one in Pensacola, and 
we only have one team, we're in trouble. 
So, I have made inquiry as to why we didn't have adequate backup, if indeed only a hostage rescue team is appropriate; 
the Delta Force is out, SWAT teams are out, whatever; theologians trying to seduce these people to come out; all of that 
is inappropriate, and we have to rely on a hostage reSc:ue team and we don't have adequate resources. So, I tried to fmd 
out why. I thought perhaps Congress was to blame, that we wouldn't provide the funds, that the FBI has asked for funds 
to train more hostage rescue team, and Congress wouldn't giv.e them tlte funds. If so. then it's our fault But I learned 
no, that OMB -- that the FBI has asked for additional funds to train additional hostage rescue teams, but they've been 
denied that by OMB, certainly not this OMB, the previous OMBs, Office of Management and Budget, and previous 
Justice Departments. . 
And so, I guess the moral of the story is if you're taking testimony from people and you want to know what's going on, 
you'd better kno~ the right questions to ask. Because I never knew the shortage of hostage rescue teams. And I think if 
Congress knew of that, we would be forthcoming with appropriate funds because hostage taking cannot be confmed to 
one incident at a time. And so, I just ask you, is it not a fact that we didn't have sufficient backup; they did get fatigued; 
and it would have been helpful if they did have backup, if Congress bad provided the funds? 
A'ITY GEN. RENO: One of the things I'm not is an expert on bow hostage rescue teams should be staffed or deployed, 
and I would respectfully defer to the FBI, who I think can furnish information to you concerning budget requests that 
have been made. But one of the things that we are in the process of doing is to deteimine just what appropriate staffmg 
levels should exist even if this situation could be resolved in short order, if there had been another situation, an airplane 
hijacking or something such as that. And we'd like to approach it in a very orderly way to make a recommendation to 
Congress. 
REP. HYDE: Well, sure, and I'm going to try to know what questions to ask the next time the FBI appears before ~ur 
s~bcommittee so things they need and want we can elicit from them, maybe going around or underneath or over the 
· OMB or the Justice Department. Thank you .. 
REP. BROOKS: Mr. Romano Mazzoli, the gentleman from Kentucky. 
REP. ROMANO L. MAZZOLI (D-KY): You're getting closer, Mr. Chainnan. In another couple of years, you'll get it 
right. We appreciate that. 
REP. BROOKS: You'll still be a subcommittee chainnan in-
REP. MAZZOLI: Yeah, that's right. (Laughter.) I know how tough it is for Texans to wrap their tongues around the 

word Romano. But, in any event, thank you, Mr. Chairman. And tflani you (or having the hearings. We appreciate it. 
I think we all of us applaud the heroism of the FBI, of the ATF, of the good people that my friend, Chet Edwards, 
represents down in Waco, the sheriffs departments, the (lie department people who showed up at the place. We grieve 
obviously the A TF agents who were killed,· the 16 who were wounded, their families. And as my colleague from 
Michigan has said, we grieve the children who perished and~ f;)f the adults in the compoUnd. 
We applaud you, General Reno. We know that you've done a very good job Uu:l you've had a very difficult flrSt 
encounter with the life that you'lllive as our attorney geueral. and I 
applaud you for taking responsibility. I think that's in the spirit of public service and we appreciate that. 
And just like my friend from Illinois, Mr. Hyde, is saying, we want to help you do the job better. So if it comes to 

appropriations or monies or things like that, we hope you're not at all hesitant, even if it means breaking from the 
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administration in some respects, to tell us what you really think your department reaJiy needs. Because too often we've 
sat here at hearings and we've had members from other administrations come up and act as a loyal soldier in. carrying 
out their instructions, failing to ask for what they know they should have and they fail, therefore, to get it, and then 
sometimes there's a failure down the line. So we hope that you'll say that ' · 
And we certainly hold only responsible here David Korcsh and those people who followed his persuasion. And I think, . 
as you've said, what we need now to do is look to tbe future, tEy to develop same ways to avoid these horrible carnages. 
And in looking to the future, we'll not at all questi011 the valor, the-heroism, the gmrt devotion and dedication of all the 
people who were down there for those SO days and are still down there trying to figure out what went on~ · 
But I think it is correct, and certainly I glean from your own questions in your statements, that we have to look at the 
training, we have to look at the techniques, we have to look at the coordination, we have to k>ok at the professional 
skills, that the people who act in your behalf, in our behalf, are up to the task that they would face. 
And in that setting, I would ask this question. In some of the television that oc:amed soon after the blaze at the 
compound, families said they pleaded with President Clin~ they said they faxed messages to the White House, 
apparently pleaded with you, maybe pleaded with the FBI, maybe with the ATF, let some of the family members go in 
there and see if they couldn't reason and solve the problem. My question is, did you ever say no to those requests? Did 
they ever reach your desk? Are you aware of the FBI ever having denied family members an opportunity to intercede? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I never -- those requests never reached my desk and rm not aware of that. You would have to 

check with the FBI on that. I'm not familiar - · 
REP. MAZZOLI: So you're not aware of whether they existed at all? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: That's correct. 
REP. MAZZOLI: Nor whether they were denied? Let me ask you, are you aware of- and the question was raised, a 
lot of callers apparently watching on television the blaze in live coverage, called the fire departments and Called the FBI 
and said why aren't the fli'e departments there. Now, we realize all the logistical problems.ofwater on the scene, oflong 
distance rifles with-- or rifles with capability of lolling the .tire people who might respond. Were you aware of any 
discussions when you had with all these people leading up to this misadventure that the question of available fire 
department personnel, available water, special pumps, auxiliary electrical supplies was ever brought up? . 

. A TIY GEN. RENO: I never specifically discussed fve yehicles, I just discussed a sufficient emergency response. 
Because as .I indicated to you, what I envisioned was - I mean, .;ven if he didn't do something, there might be an 
accidental explosion considering all the ammunition. And I just - I directed that there be sufficient emergency vehicles 
to respond, both from a medical and another point of view, but I did not specifically address the issue offli'e vehicles. 
REP. MAZZOLI: I'm very proud of the work our f1refighters do around the country. And we have a fve caucus here on 
the Hill. And these people are trained beyond almost any enforcement officers in responding to emergency, whether 
they involve frre, hazardous or toxic smoke, whether they involve giving fli'St aid and immediate rescue to people. But 
apparently they weren't involved here. 
ATIY GEN. RENO: You would have to ask the bureau exactly what circumstances that they worked out with the f1n: 
departments. · 
REP. MAZZOLI: Let me ask you one other question, General Reno. I have read - and I may not be asking the right 

person the question - I have read that Koresh was a jogger and that there were times during this S 1 days when he went 
out' for his exercise, came away from the compound and was jogging in that area, I guess, that was cordoned off. Are 
y.ou aware of that having been the. case and whether or not any of your discussions dealt with what could be done while 
he was absent the compound? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I never addressed that. The only- I never heard of Koresh being outside the compound other 
than just to go outside. But my understanding from the bureau was that they were trying to restrain the ~oundary, the 
perimeter immediately around the compound by increasing pressure. 
REP. MAZZOLI: But, I mean, I'm talking about jogging, when he might have been out in something -
A TIY GEN. RENO: I did not hear any --I've not ever heard about- anything about Koresh jogging. 
REP. MAZZOLI: Well, thank you very much. And again, my time is about to expire and aD members-want to ask' 
questions. Again, I want to applaud you on your willingness to accept responsibility here, even as we gather, it was not 
your responsibility to accept but you did it an}'Way. But we will - and I applaud the conunittee for trymg to get to the 
bottom of exactly what did go on, what could be approached for the fUture. 
Thank you. 
REP. BROOKS: Thank you, Mr. Mazzoti. And the chair recognizes the gentleman ftom Wisconsin, Mr. 
Sensenbrenner. 
REP. JAMES SENSENBRENNER (R-WI): Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. . 
And I hope when you come back, General Reno, that ifs in a little bit more advantageous circumstances than this one. 
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I have a few questions relative to the chain of command and decision- making process. The fiiSt is, is afte·r you 
·assumed office, were you briefed every day on the Waco situation? 

A TrY GEN. RENO: Not every day. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: But frequently enough on developments-
A TrY GEN. RENO: Frequently, and if there were any changes or any new developments. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: Yeah .. By whom wue you briefed? 
A TrY GEN. RENO: I would be briefed by DireetorSessicms upon oa:asion and by Mark Richard in my office. Those 
wete the two primary - and people who would be with Director Sessions. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: At any time prior to Saturday, April 17th, which was two days before the frre broke out, 
did you discuss this matter with the President? · 
A TrY GEN. RENO: No, I did. not. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: When was the fust time you discussed the matter with President Clinton? 
A 11Y GEN. RENO: Sunday . 
. REP. SENSENBRENNER: And at that time did you briefhim about what the FBI's plan was and seek his reaction? 
ATIY GEN. RENO: Yes, I did. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: Okay, and what was his reaction? 
A 11Y GEN. RENO: He supported my decision. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: When was the frrst time after the fli'C broke out that you talked to President Clinton about 
what happened? · 
A 11Y GEN. RENO: That night late. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: You appeared. on Tom Brokaw's program, which I had hoped to s~ but I bad already 
fallen asleep at 11:30 at-- at night on that. And at that time Mr. Brokaw asked you ten hours after the fact if you had 
discussed the matter with President Clinton. You said that you didn't, and in a part of that interview you said you were 
going to· talk to the President after you got off the air. Is that wllen you llad your ili'St c:cmveiSaticm wit11 him? 
ATIY GEN. RENO: I don't remember the exact time when I got off the air, because I was then subsequently 
responding to further inquiries from the media and felt that it was importmt since I knew the President had been briefed 
as to what had happened to try to respond to the American people and be accountable to them since I considered it my 
decisipn. · 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: During the Brokaw interview, you said that the President was talking with Webster 
Hubbell about what had happened in Waco and the events leading up to that. Could you tell us what you found out 
about that conversation between the President and Mr. Hubbell? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: What I think I did, and that may be subject to correction. because when I -- I think what I told Mr. 
Brokaw was that Webster Hubbell had been the person discussing the issues with the White House. I had talked with 
the President that morning, and I had_forgotten during the course of that afternoon and all that had happened that before 
the fue broke out I'd given him an update. 
Hubbell was talking to the White House that afternoon and into the evening. What 1-- thought I -- corrected myself 
with Brokaw was to say I don't know whether Hubbell had talked directly with the President or with somebody in the 
White House counsel's office. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: Do you know ifHubbelJ ever went to the scene of the siege outside of Waco after it 
s~ed? 
ATIY GEN. RENO: No, he did not. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: Okay. So you-- he did not go there. It's not that you don't know. 
A TrY GEN. RENO: He did not-
REP. SENSENBRENNER: Yeah. 
A 11Y GEN. RENO: - go there. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: Yeah. What was Mr. Hubbell's roie in this? The concern that I- I am having is that there 
has not been direct communication between you as Jiead o(the Justice Department wllo has got the ultimate 
responsibility as you have accepted for the activities of the agencies, your department and the President, that somehow 
Mr. Hubbell was in the loop, and I think it would be instructive for-us to know exactly where in the loop he was. 
A TrY GEN. RENO: Mr. Hubbell is the Associate Attorney General· designate, and he was talking with the White 
House counsel's office. I had talked with the White House counsel's oflice, and that was bow he was in the loop. 

· REP. SENSENBRENNER: Yeah. . 
A TrY GEN. RENO: I was the person that briefed the President on the. Sunday before it happened as to what the plan 
of action was, and he supported it I talked to him that night after it happened. rve talked to him on several occasions 
since then, and he has been very supportive. REP. SENSENBRENNER: Well, from what you said to Mr. Brokaw, is 
that apparently Mr. Jiubbell was talking to the President before you were able to talk to the President after the frre broke 
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out and the people perished. And I am -- I am trying to -to fmd out what ~· Hubbell's role was in -- was in all of this. · 
He's not been confumed by the Senate or swom in. He has been designated, but he still isn't doing that job. 
A TIY GEN. RENO: As I indicated, I think I corrected myself or at some point during the course of the evening 
corrected myself when I realized that I didn't -- I knew that he had been talking to the White House. I don't know 
whether he talked directly to the President. I made a it a point of talking directly to the President. He had been fulJy 
briefed, understood what had happ~ed, and we have amtir:mcd ID talk. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: Did he play any rale m your approval~ oftfrebreatciDg up of the siege in Waco? 
ATIY GEN. RENO: Yes, sir. I talked to him the Sm1day before, on April the 18th, and explained to him what we 
proposed to do, and he approved. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: Was he briefed by the FBI on what the options were independently ofyaa? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: No, he was not. 
REP. SENSENBRENNER: Okay. Thank you very much. 
REP. BROOKS: Mr. Hughes, the gentleman from New Jersey. 
REP. WILLIAM J. HUGHES (D-NJ): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. First of all, let me thank you, Mr. Chairman for 
convening this very timely hearing, and welcome, General. 
Let me just say that like ·my colleague from New Y orlc, I think most of us are very happy that you are the Attorney 
General of the United States. You take the kind of compassion and toughness and savvy and experience to that office 
that we need, and you're like a breath of fresh air, and we wish you well. We're happy the President supported you 
wholeheartedly when you offered to resign. 
I -- I'm concerned about a couple areas. My colleague, Henry Hyde, has already touched on one area. Since Teledago 
(sp ), some 18 months or so ago, we realized· that we have one hostage rescue team. And fatigue should never be a 
factor in our decision-making. And I hope that w~1llook at what we n~ed to do to provide the resources so that we 
don't have that as a factor in our decision as to when to move in a law enforcement operation. 
Let me focus, instead, more directly on who we consulted._! understand you've indicated that the FBI will testify as to 
who they consulted by way of behavioral experts. You testified that you did talk to Dr. Harry Salem (sp) relative to tear 
gas and his expertise. Did you ever talk to any of the folks from the American Family Association that has developed 
quite a bit of expertise, or the Cult Awareness Network, possibly, during this time? 
ATIY GEN. RENO: I personally did not, sir. 
REP. HUGHES: Do you know whether the FBI did? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I have not heard of that-- of the American Fainily Association, but I'm not sure that that's -
REP. HUGHES: Family Foundation, I'm sorry. The American Family Foundation~ 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I think the American Family Association ami the American Family Foundation are separate. But 
I-- . 
REP. HUGHES: They are. And the Foundation is what rm referring to. 
A TIY GEN. RENO: Yes. And I have not talked to them. 
REP: HUGHES: Well, the American Family Foundation has developed a great deal of expertise, as you may know. 
'Are you familiar with the article that appeared recently, in fact, April 20th, on how many Jones towns will it take? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I have a copy of that article. I'm trying to collect as much information as I can to pass on both to 
the investigators from within the department and independent investigators so that we make sure that anything such as 
this is fully considered in trying to develop guidelines, processes and policies for addressing these issues in the future. 

· And also, as Congressman Edwards points out, for adckessing non- c:.ult situations that might develop in the same 
fashion. 
REP. HUGHES: See, I- one of my main concerns- and I have conesponded, as you know, with your department 
before you became attorney general, over the lack of information; strategic infonnation in particular, about cults around 
the country. We don't even know how lnany.we have. And while the CIA apparently many years ago did some in­
depth studies on mind contro~ we've done very little, apparently. And I realize there are some very serious First 
Amendment questions involved, but it seems to me dmt we cannot dear with situations like this without a lot more 
information.· One of the constructive suggestions I've received from those that arc working with the Cult Awareness 
Network -- and I've been in touch with the~ for a number of months- is that we don't· know how to deal with people 
like David Koresh or Vemon Howells ( sp) in these types of situatious because it's not like the usual hostage situation. 
And I would hope that we try to develop that kind of expertise in the future. . 
And I'm not faulting, you know, basically, any agency, because I undetstandr you know, the difficulties that we have to 
be careful about with regard to freedom of religion in particular. 
A TIY GEN. RENO: As you know, CongressiJWlp we met and I am following up on some of your suggestions and 
doing everything I can to make sure that we determine ail available experts that can advise us in terms of how we 
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address these problems in the future, what do we do now to address the cults that exist, what action should be taken, if 
any. We want to do a very careful review. 
REP. HUGHES: I don't - I don't know that it would have made any difference no matter we would have done. David 
Koresh is responsible. for what happened. I don't buy the suggestions of my coneagues that the law enforcement 
community should be criticized. I don't agree with the suggestions I've heard that the searcll warrant needs to be 
examined very carefully and the complaint that was filed. Frankly .. 1 read it last cvmiDg and there was more than 
enough evidence to issue both the search warrant and the warrant, in my judgment. And rm sure most of my colleagues 
will agree with that assessment. 
I mean, the issue is, frankly, what we can do to provide more information, basically,. so that we can make better 
decisions to avert what occurred. I'm going to have some questions of A TF about the options that we were presented 
with. I gather the FBI was not in the loop when you made the decision on April the 19th. Had they been-~ had the FBI 
been consulted at that time on the plan that was developed? 
ATIY GEN. RENO: The FBI? . 
REP. HUGHES: The FBI. 
REP. : February. 
REP. HUGHES: I'm sorry. February 19th, yeah, February 19th. 
ATIY GEN. RENO: February 28th. 
REP. HUGHES: February 28th. Sorry. The day that you made the decision to go ahead with one particular plan after 
weighing options. 
A 1TY GEN. RENO: I would have to refer you to the FBI on that. Again, I focused on what happened as we -as 
existed on the date that I took office and what I had been briefed on in terms of the Department's responsibilities, 
including the FBI. REP. HUGHES: Okay. So you're not sure at this point whether the FBI was consulted-. 
A TIY GEN. RENO: No. I think to be accurate you·· 
REP. HUGHES:-- as the plan evolved. 
Did you ever -- did you ever look at an option that would do as Mr. Mazzoli has suggested, basically attempt to get 
David Koresh when he was outside the compound? 
ATIY GEN. RENO: I asked them if there were any situations where we thought we could get them out and isolate 
them, and based on the information they furnished to me, that was not going to be possible. 
REP. HUGHES: Well, Mr. Chairman, I just hope that we don't rush to judgment. You know, I hear suggestions that we 

should basically realign A TF, and there are some difficulties there because they have regulatory responsibilities that 
don't lend themselves to law enforcement missions. 
But I hop·e that out of this will come an examination of what occurreds of the structure, of the mission, command and 
control, and· see if we can do it, perhaps, better next time. And that's not leveling any criticism at anybody 
because, frankly, I believe that David Koresh is the one that was responsible for the death of the children and the adults 
that died in that compound. (Nothing could have changed that?), in my judgment. 
A TIY GEN. RENO: I want to join you in that. 
REP. BROOKS: Thank you very much, Mr. Hughes. 
Mr .. Gekas, the gentleman from Pennsylvania. . 
REP. GEORGE W. GEKAS (R-PA): I thank the chair. 
And I join in l}le welcome that bas been proffered to the attorney general to these proceedings. Many of us on this 

. panel, as you've probably discerned by now, are former prosecutors and we ha.v~ a. kind of a feel for the process that was 
undertaken from beginning to end because part of the responsibility in a criminal action is to prepare for the eventual 
court proceeding and fmal process in the justice system that we have. In that regard, I wanted to focus on something. 
When you came on board as attorney general, were sworn in, who WaS the US attorney in the Waco area? My 
information is that that was the western district ofTexas, is that correct? 
A TTY GEN. RENO: Mr. Ederer. 
REP. GEKAS: Yes. And our information also, if you can confirm, is that he was instruniental in the preparation of the 
search warrant and the affidavits and the consultations with the judge in this case. Is that correct? . 
A 1TY GEN. RENO: I don't know, sir •. 
REP. GEKAS: You don't know that? 
A 1TY GEN. RENO: I don't know whether be was personally instrumental or not 
REP. GEKAS: Well, when you issued your order or directive or announcement about dismissing or asking for the 
resignations of US attorneys, did that include Mr. Lederer (sp)? 
A TTY GEN. RENO: What we did when we asked for the resignation ofUS attorneys was to take each case on a case­
by-case basis to make sure that there was an orderly transition and that nothing was impacted. One of the fust questions 
that I raised was the issue of Waco to make sure that there was an orderly transition. REP. GEKAS: Was that based on 
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.. 
the severity of the case or the importance to the public of the case? There were criteria apparently that you utilized in 
asking him to stay on? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: The criteria that I utilized in each instance was to make sure that lbc:re was no Uaterruption in 
ongoing matters that would be affected by a US attorney leaving if there was going to be an interim US attorney 
appointed. Subsequently, concern was expressed by people at the scene. I sent Mark Richards {sp) from the criminal 
division to Waco to personally meet with everybody CDDCcmed to make sun: that we had the best prosecution presence 

· available on the scene to properly handle the matter. 
· REP. GEKAS: So, the reports you got back from Mr. Richards -- Richards or Richardson? .. Richards - was to the effect 
that he should be requested to stay on or that he could stay an? is that it? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: What we discussed with Mr. Richards, and be is here and can go into more detail, was we 
reviewed it to see what experience prosecutor should be assigned- the trial prosecutor who would actually handle it 
who had had extensive experience. The recommendation of the uiminal division was tbat that would be Mr. Ray Jahn­
- I believe the last name is spelled J-a-h-n- who had bad extensive cxpc:ricnce, as I recall, in the prosecution of a case 
involving the murder of a federal judge. Based on all the conclusions, everybody's discussions with the FBI, with local 
prosecutors, with people on the scene, Mr. Richards met with Mr. Ederer and. people on the scene. We determined that 
Mr. Ray Jahn would be the person that" would lead the prosecution at the scene. 
REP. GEKAS: In Mr. Lederer's {sp) jurisdiction, you're saying. 
A TIY GEN. RENO: Yes. Mr. Jahn, as I understand it, was an assistant United States attorney in Mr. Lederer's-
Ederer's office. · 
REP. GEKAS: And Mr. Lederer {sp) would be staying on? 
ATIY GEN. RENO: That was going to be addressed as we went along, but we felt very comfortable with Mr. Jahn 
being on the scene and being the person directly involved in the prosecution or"the case. 
REP. GEKAS: Was Mr. Lederer {sp) relieved during that time? I mean, was he not supposed to focus on this incident 
while Mr. Jahn was doing his -
ATIY GEN. RENO: Mr. Jahn was going to be the person directly on the scene, handling it directly, coordinating with 
the Texas Rangers, with local prosecutors, with everybody involved on the scene, since Waco was somewhat removed 
from San Antonio. · 
REP. GEKAS: So, if a new search warrant or other affidavit or other legal process would have to be confronted at the 
initial stage, it would have been presented by the FBI or A TF to Mr. Jahn at that time or not Mr. -- A TIY GEN. RENO: 
Mr. Jahn and the person who had been at the scene, whose name, as I recall, is David Johnson or Johnston, who was the 
assistant United States attorney on the scene. Which prosecutor personally handled the search warrant, I'd have to refer 
you to A TF, and we would be happy to furnish you with the information as to who assisted in the original search 
warrant from the US attorney's office. 
REP. GEKAS: Is Mr. Lederer {sp) still on duty? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: It's Ederer, as I recall, E-d-e-r-e-r. 
REP. GEKAS: Oh, Ederer. I'm sorry. 
ATIY GEN. RENO: Yes. E-d-e-r-e-r, as I recall. 
REP .. GEKAS: Is he still--1 guess I didn't catch-- maybe I didn't ask it correctly. Is he still now the US attorney for 
that district? . · 
A,TIY GEN. RENO: I don't know. I'll be happy to furnish you that infonnation to see whether he has resigned at this 

point or not. · · 
REP. GEKAS: On another quick matter. The-
A TIY GEN. RENO: I'm told that he is still there. . 
REP. GEKAS: All right. Just to follow up to conclude that portion of it, when the decisioQ was made that his 
resignation should not be requested, I take it, you can conium it one way or another. that part of the reason that he was 
not asked to resign in your general conclusion about the transition which you describe, the importance of the case, the 
public attention which had been drawn to it, and tf!e general circmnstmces of the high visibility of that case, is that 
correct? 
ATIY GEN. RENO: That would be one of the factors, sir. 
REP. GEKAS: I have no further questions. 
REP. BROOKS: Thank- thank you very much. 
Mr. Synar, the gentleman from Oklahoma. 
REP. MIKE SYNAR {D-OK): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Welcome, Ms. Reno. Let me focus in on the tough decision you eventually had to make. . 
In making that decision, was there any additional infonnation you either wanted or needed that you did not have 
available to you at the time of the decision? 
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A TIY GEN. RENO: I asked question after question, congressman, about the circumstances of the children, about 
anything that I could think of in trying to elicit as much information as I could to make sure that we had fully explored 
everything·. And I don't recall being told "We can't further you this information." I mean, each-- each question where I 
was told "No, we can't do that" was based on a technological impossibility. 
REP. SYNAR: In making your decision, what influence did the death of the four agents have in that decision? 
A1TY GEN. RENO: The decision of the·- death-thedeatboftbe faaragmtsandtbe injury to the 15 or 16 other 
agents created the situation in the first place of a dauge1ous offemfer who latowi:ugfy had killed federal agents, who had 
knowingly injured federal agents, who was dangerous, armed, armed 'Yith very - very high-powered weapons. And all 
of those factors created the situation in which I was faced with a situation that I couldn't say "Here, put down the guns, 
we'll walk away from this," or "Here, we'll put down the guns and let Koresh come out and talk to us." Here was a 
person who had murdered. And obviously that was a significant factor. · 
REP. SYNAR: What influence did the nature and amount of weapons within 1he arsenal have on your decision? 
A 1TY GEN. RENO: That had a real impact, because I learned a lot mare about weapons. 

At first, when I asked why we needed an HRT or a hostage rescue team to- to try to ensure the security of the 
perimeter, I was surprised when they said, "Well, we're going to have to pall back at some point if we don't-- aren't able 
to resolve this because they're the only ones that can really secure the perimeter." And I said, "Well, why not a SWAT 
team, or bring in other agencies?" And then they just started describing just how fM a .50 caliber weapon or ammunition 
can travel and started putting it in terms of from here to the White House, and I bad- 1 even questioned that. And they 
said "Well, its effective range is 3,000 yards, and m intentional killing range where they have a real chance of success is 
a thousand and - a mile." And as I put those into perspective just looking at Washington areas, that was another factor. 
The powder that they obviously had in the place, the - the degree that they had armed themselves, the fact that they 
had built additional gun holes and portholes from which to fue these weapons was certainly a factor because I ·was 
concerned with the life of FBI agents on the scene, I was concerned wit& peopTe who might wander into the compound 
area and institute or just initiate through accidental or other means a confrontation with them. There were so many 
factors that had to be considered because these people were armed and extremely dangerous. 
REP. SYNAR: What influence did the resources being expended have on the decision? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: That's the one factor that people kept mentioning that I tried not to address, because l.don't think 
that you can address the -- the exposure of-- I mean, the danger of exposing human life. _It - it was expensive, but I just 
very early on put that in the background and said "I can't consider that when I have the lives of the children at stake." 
REP. SYNAR: And the length of time that the agents had been on-site, bow did that influence your decision? 
A TIY GEN. RENO: That influenced my decision in the sense that I was told- the first I heard about it was by Delta 
Force, and I had not yet had the chance to meet with the bead of the hostage rescue team, but he was there the same day. 
And both pointed out that the state of readiness of the HR.T would be diminished if they were required to stay on the 
scene much longer, that they could puii back. But at the same time, the compound was arming itself with gun boles and 
taking other precautions, and I made the decision that no time was perfect, but that at this point we should increase the 
pressure with our expectation that it would simply- that it might not go down that day, the next day. We might not get 
everybody out for - for three days. There might be a bunker where they could go, but that we should increase the 
pressure to try to get them out in a peaceful, safe manner . 

.. ,REP. SYNAR: And fmally, at any time during your decision process, did you feel like you had inadequate personnel, 
equipment, strategy, or resources to make the decisions necessuy'? 

A1TY GEN. RENO: No. Every time I turned around, the Bureau was- here we asked for the Delta Force, and much 
to my -- I thought I'd be talking to them on the telephone. Much to my amazement, there they were at the FBI, both the 
former commander and the present commander. Here was the hostage rescue team leader. Here was the doctor. The 
questions I had trying to probe - they always came through and tried to provide me with as much information as 
possible. 
REP. SYNAR: Thank you. 
REP. BROOKS: Thank you, Mr. Synar. 
Mr. Coble, the gentleman from North Carolina. 
REP. HOWARD COBLE (R-N.C): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Ms. Reno, it's good to have you here. Ms. Reno, let me think aloud with you for a minute or two and propound a series 
of statements and/or questions to you, then I'll be glad to hear from you. 
On February 28th, it appears that the element of surprise had been compromised, perhaps even emasculated, and I'm 
wondering why at that time the raid was not aborted and delayed until a subsequent time. 
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Number two, many complaints have been voiced because the invasion of the compound occurred too soon. You 
yourself, I think, in your testimony said why -- why now? Why not wait? Let me put another spin on it, Ms. Reno, and 
ask if anyone considered conversely accelerating the operation. 
I'm thinking now fiscally, and I realize it's very delicate because you have: innocent people inside that compound, but I 
know the daily cost was enormous - I am told in excess of one million dollars - and after the fact the result may have 
been even better to have done that •. 
Admittedly, Ms. Reno, every one of us at this paael up here is applying 20/20 llindsight todayp and that's far easier, I 
will stipulate, than was - than what confronted these agents when they were in the trenches. But having said all that, it 
appears probably about every person who touched the ball presumably fumbled it at one time or another. Again, that's 
easy for us to say today. 
But I don't want these hearings to conclude, Mr. Chainnan, without at least mentioning- and this has been said before 
-- I think the most crucial fumble of all must be charged against David Koresh. After aU, it was he who started this in 

· motion. He cannot, in my opinion, be exonerated and should not be exonerate~ which leads me to this question, Ms. 
Reno. 
I guess when you're dealing with what appeared to be a prominent presence of emotional and/or mental instability 
inside the walls of that compound, at that point perhaps a higher degree of care should have been imposed, and I'm · 
curious to know if you believe that was done. I don't believe it has been asked yet at this stage of the hearing whether or 
not, Ms. Reno, you and/or Director Sessions ever went to Waco. fd be curious to know about that. And if you did not, 
I'd like to know why not. If-
A TrY GEN. RENO: With respect to- oh, okay. 
REP. COBLE: Let -- let me ask one more - a couple more. Ms. Reno. 
Ifl were drafting a plan for subsequent use-- hopefully we'II never bave Waco II, but if I were drafting a'plan to be 

used, I believe I would insert therein provisions for a more thorough continuous briefmg for the President. It appears -
and I may be wrong, but it appears that the President was in.the anteroom rather than at the head of the ta.b1c.. And I'm 
thinking he was a -- he's a former governor. He was a chief executive at Arkansas. Who knows? He may have had a 
similar encounter while there. I'm wondering if that was ever discussed. . . . 
And fmally, in response I- the gentleman from New Yprk. Mr. Fis~ asked you, Ms. Reno, concerning psychological 

·warfare, and I think it's clear that that was a key component in Waco. And I'm curious to know if you approved of the 
use of psychological warfare against the Branch Davidian compound. 

I apologize, Ms. Reno, for hitting in rapid-fire succession, but these are questions that have plagued me almost since 
the outset. And if you can respond in the time that's left, I will be appeciati9e. 
A TrY GEN. RENO: First of all, your fli'st question, as I understand it, is why, after it appeared that the ATF assault 
had been compromised, was it not delayed, and I would have to refer to the A TF for that. That is in another department · 
REP. COBLE: That's fine. 
A TrY GEN. RENO: Secondly, you made reference to a complaint-· the 'complaints that we went in too soon. Again, I 
have spelled out why we took the time we did to try to exhaust negotiation techniques and do everything we could to try 
to resolve it peacefully. ·We did not go in in the sense of an armed assault. We went in by trying to in~rease the 
pressure through the use of gas. · 
. Your third question was, on the other side of the coin, why didn't we physically assault the place at the beginning? 
Based on the fli'epower that was in that building, I did not think, based on what the Bureau told me, and it was certainly 
their conclusion, that they could assault that place physically while at the same time ensuring the safety of the agents 
involved and ensuring the safety of the innocent children inside. 
Third -- your fourth question is - you made a reference to a higher degree of care. 
REP. COBLE: Well, yeah. I was going to say, when- when you're dealing with- with emotional and mental 
instability, maybe- you know, some people are prone to say "Well. my gos~ they're just a bunch of nuts. Let's go in 
and take over." I think maybe we ought to do it in a more dcliade, cudbl- but I say "Listen, we've got .a problem in 
he.re. We're not quite sure what the response is ·going to be." Do - do you think that at that point they said "Let's be 
especially more careful"? That was my question. · · 
A TrY GEN. RENO: I think we·-- the FBI approached it with the greatest care imaginable. On February 28th they 
went in to Waco, but they didn't go into that compound, they didn't assault it, they very caretully started talking to 
people. As you hear from them today, they will tell you who they talked to, the care they went to, everything they did to 
try to affect in the most thoughtful manner possible a proper resolution of it. · 
You ask why I didn't - I don't know whether Director Sessions went to Waco. but whether I went to Waco. I did not 

go to Waco. I am not an expert in hostage negotiation. I am the person where the .buck stops. I'm not an expert in 
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tenns of law enforcement tactics. And the Bureau frankly told me, "When we get into a tactical situation, that's our 
· job." And I acknowledge that. But at the same time, the buck stops with me in tenns of a review of--

If- if they had said, "Well, we're going to go something crazy," I would have said "No, you're not." If they had said 
"We're going to do something that didn't make any sense," I would ask them questions until it made. sense. But as I ask 
question after question of the Bureau, their responses made sense. And nothing that I was going to learn on the ground 
at Waco that I didn't see from picture after.pictu.te. nom reviewing the models of the compound, from understanding 
everything from - understandmg where e~ water tank was, abe bunkers were, where the armament was expected to 
be, that was a - it was not a decision made overnight. 
The fust time this question of using the gas came up was during the week of April the 5th. There was meeting after 
meeting in terms of reviewing it, asking the questions, saying "Go get more infonna.tion." "Go do this," "Oleck this 
out," "Let us talk with the Delta Force people: "What about the water tanksr- question after question. Whether -
If-- if, upon our investigation, if, upon the recommendation of all involv~ all or us who want to make sure that this 

tragedy or a tragedy like this does not recur again, they say we can do something with greater care, I'm going to be the 
firSt to try to do it. But I do know that extraordinary care, extraordinary deliberation went into this. While --
REP. COBLE: Ms. Reno, I think our- the chairman is uneasy about a red light. I'll be glad to.hear from you, but I 

suspect--
Mr. Chairman, I'll yield whatever you say on that. 
REP. BROOKS: Have you completed - you completed your­
REP. COBLE: Well, I--
A ITY GEN. RENO: He's got two more questions. 
REP. BROOKS: Go ahead. 
REP. COBLE: Ms. Reno; would- would you approve of the plan that I drafted to bring the President from the 
anteroom to the head of the table if he, in fact, was in the anteroom? It appeared that he was not continuously brought· 
up to speed on this. And I'm not saying this critically, but that seems to b~mygutfeeling. 
A ITY GEN. RENO: I guess it's the difference between President Roosevelt and General Marshall arid General 
Eisenhower and General Bradley. And I think that President Clinton did exactly what President Roosevelt did during 
World War II, and I was in kind of the position of General Mars~ and there are-~ he got briefed, and he took 
responsibility, and he's been supportive, and it was my decision, and I take responsibility. 
REP. COBLE: So I don't think you-- I think you would sign off on my plan for Waco II, and I say that with tongue in 
cheek. 
A ITY GEN. RENO: I - I would not sign off on your plan to send the President of the United States into all of the 
details that have to be made, because as I was making decisions there,. I was also dealing with Los Angeles and making 
other decisions, and there -- there are an awful lot of issues that have to be dealt with in the country. But the President 
has been supportive of me. He was informed. He was concerned because he had had a situation in Arkansas, and he 
had considerable thought, and he had the right questions. 
REP. COBLE: Mr. Chairman, I thank you for the additional time. 
Ms. Reno, I thank you for your response. 
REP. BROOKS: Thank you very much. 
ENO OF EXCERPT 
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REP. BROOKS: (Sc•unds gavel.) The·· cc•mmittee will come tc• •:-rder. I've 
called this hearing of the full Committee on Judiciary to examine the 
events surrounding the stand-o~f between federal law enf~rcement agencies 
and members of the Branch Davidian cult near Waco 1 Texas. 

As the Members w~ll know, hearings at the full committee· level are 
rare enough an occurrence to be called extraordinary, and I believe that 
the subject matter of today's hearing is appropriate for such extYaoYdinary 
treatment because it .cuts across multiple aspects of the-committee's broad 
jurisdiction over law enforcement activiti~s. 

While sceculative and contradictorv theories have abounded, it is only 
in the past ~ew days that on-site foren~ic teams have begun to draw a 
number of tentative conclusion based on scientific observation and testing. 
That's all for the best, even if it departs from the scripts of the made­
for-television movies aiready in product~on~ 
• El JC 
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The basic chronology of events related to the stand-off and its fiery 
conclusio" can be stated suc~inctlv. On Februarv 28th. after an e~tensive 
investigation and pursuant to legai process, a t~am of.agen~s from the 
Treas•.t ry Department's Bu rea1.1 c•t A I C•:=thc•l, T•:~ba c C•=' . and F i reaYms Yaided the 
he~vily armed compound then under control of the cult leader callino 

·himself David Koresh in order to serve warrants ·for fede~al weapons­
vic•latic•ns. 

The raid turned into a fierce pun battle that left four BATF aoents 
dead: 15 wounded~ and six cult members dead. There ensued a stand-~ff for 
the next 51 days, during which time the· Federal Bureau ·of Investjaation 
assumed the lead law enforcement responsibility and ~ttempted t~r~ugh a 
variety of tactics to persuade Koresh to lay down his weapons~ let the 
adult and juvenile cult members leave the compound -- all to no avail. 

Finally, on April the 19th, the FBI undertook a maier action to inject 
tear gas into the co~pound in an effort to drive the oc~upants out. Th~ 
effort failed. Instead, Koresh and.more than 80 of his f6llowers died ~sa 
raging fire c•:•nsumed all the compound's buildings in a fe•..J sh"O-r·t min1.1tes. 
1-k•wever. establishina the baseline c.hronoloav of events is n•::.t the s.:•le 
purpose.for wh~t we:_ for being here today~· Rather it is td hear from the 
three law enforcement officials directly responsible for ~he actions and 
the ch•:•ices taken in L'Jaco .s•:• that we can understand the decis·i·:•nmaking 
process behind th~ events. 

Now I don't relish playing omniscient second guesser when there are 
still facts to be ascertained, evidence to be (introduced ?l, and given the 
instant experts that pop up everywhere in the press, I may be in a distinct 
minority. What I care about is whether we have in place in our federal 
enforcement agencies the. capability and, yes, the creativity to deal with 
.the increasingly disturbing situation of terrorism, where in the high · 
office towers of our urban centers, or in small, entrenched pockets of 
alienate citizens who oper~te separate and apart from ~ larger society. If 
such groups, whether they are called cults or not,· pose a dir~ct physical 
a~d violent threat to their own members or to others in society, then their 
oper~tions cannot be ignored or justified through innovations -­
inv6cations to the areat American tYadition of the riaht of each citizen to 
be left alone. Oli~er Wendell Holmes declared the es;ence of a free 
society is indeed th~ right to be let alone, but not at the expense of the 
social compact which allows all of us as Americans to live together based 
on the values we share together. 

f.LJhat this 'cc•mmittee and the public need tc• know is h•:tw, in a diff'ic1.11t· 
situation of dealing with Branch Davidian cult, did our agencies perform, 
and h~w they processed signals, other information ~- such as it was -- from 
this man K..:•resh, whether they developed alteYnative plans r:•f. acti•:•n, ha:•w 
they negotiated, how they prepared, how they implemented decisions that 
were made. 

The verdict on David Koresh's methods and.aims can already be read Jn 
the Gallup polls. We're here to seek answers to weightier questions. :·m 
delighted our three leading 
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law enforcement officials have made themselves available to the committee. 

And now I would just like to offer several notes of catition about 
te~tjmony we're going to hear today. Firstr investigations ~f both the· 
decisionmakino orocess and the events of last.Mondav are at a verv 
oreliminarv s~a~e. It mav well be that the inswers.to manv of ou~ 
~uestions ~ill ~ave to wait until completion of the forensic examination·or 
~he internal review of the 'Treasury and Justice Department'i activitie~ 
that the Preside~t has ordered. And secondly: it may be that the witnesses 
will be reluctant to respond to some questions because they might ~xpose 
investioative sources and methods. or could ieooardize ·the oendino criminal 
actions-aoainst a number of cult ~embers rel~ti~a to the de~ths o~ four 
BATF agenis. I believe that people of goodwill ~an easily· accommodat~ both 
these considerations and Congress' need for. accurate and complet~ 
in f•:•t·ma ·t i•:•n. 

We're participating in an important proceeding today~ and to admit all 
members to have the chance to question our witnesses, I f~el compelled to 
limit oral opening statements to the ranking minority members of the full 
cc•mmittee, and the chairmen and the ranking minority membe-,s •:•f the tw.:•· 
subcommittees with major jurisdictions over the issues under discussion. 
Of course, all members are f~ee and encour~ged'to sub~it indi~idu~l 
statements for the Record at this point~ and so at this ~oint I would yield 
to my distinguished friend from New York, Mr. Ham Fish. 

REP. FISH: Thc:o\nk y•:•u, Mr. Chairman.. It is indeed a tra·gic set ccf 
circumstances that brings •.ts here t•:•day. In recent. days thei"e has been 
considerable fault-finding and finger-pointing. H6pefully, as you have 
said, this hearing will get us beyond recrimination and help us to better 
understand what happened in Waco~ why it happened, and how better to 
prepare for.possible future similar episodes. 

On Monday,.April· the 19th, 86 persons; 24 of whom were children~ lost 
their lives. Prior to this, on February 28th, four brave ATF agenti were 
killed in the line of duty. This committee oversees the operations of the 
Departm~nt of Justice, the Federal Bureau of Investigations, and the Bureau 
..:•f Alcohol, T•:•ba c c•:•, and F.i rearms. It is a legitimate e:.-:er c ise c.t •:••.t~ 

legiilative and oversight responsibilities to inquire into the strategies 
and.~decisic•ns that led t•:• the tragic events in ~Jacc•. M•:•re•:•ver, the 
American pe•:•ple e)':pect their C•:.ngress. to inqr.rire on their. behalf 
deliberately, thoroughly, and fairly -- into the thr~at, the 
decisionmaking: the options, and the lessons learned. 

Obviously this was·an unusual and extremely difficult situation for 
law enforcement officials because-they were dealing with a complex, 
unpredictable, and dangerc•us personality. This certainly ~.oJas nc•t tt",e 
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cla5sic hostage situation~ nor was it terrorism: but was this a bizarre~ 

i~olat~d incident or a portent of things to come? We need to know whether 
we are facina a new and· different challenae to the oublic safetyp health 
and welfare.- - · 

Law enfotcement in this country today involves enormous challenoes. 
Jt ~laces great responsibility on the shoulders of law enforce~ent o~ficers 
as well as agencies. And throughout this nation~ heroic deeds and rescues 
on the part of police occur daily. 

Certainly mistake~ are made. But most often law enforcement in this 
country is carried out with great skill and professionalism. Neyertheless, 
when~ high profile episode such as the Branch Davidian stand-ofi occurs~ 
and results in w~.at appe,::\rs t.:• have be?n an unnecessary l•:•:.s •:•f lifep 
America asks whv. America and the Conaress have a rioht to know what 
happened, but i~ this search! we shoul~ not forget th;·difficult, almost 
impossible challenges -that lai.J enf'•:~rcement face every day. 

And so I ~.Jelcome our distinguished witnesses -- the attorney gener~l 
C• f t he U n i ted S t a t e s ~ t he F B I d i r e c tor , and t he d i r e c t •=' r of t-he B u rea u •:• ·f 
Alcohol! Tobacco, and Firearms. Thank you for being with us~ and I look 
forward to your testimony. 

REP. BROOKS: Mt. Edwards 1 the gentleman from Californi~: 

REP. EDWARDS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I! too, welcome the 
attorney general and the other witnesses. We're here today to listen to 
these witnesses, not necessarily to criticize. The President and the 
attorney general have both said that the Congress should study this 
incident to see if there ~re any lessons to be learned. And I'm especially 
interested in the process by which the events were carried out. 

But Mr. Chairman, it would be a mistake to view this as a cult issue. 
Religion had very little to do with the incident. 
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It just as well could have been a white suoremacist orouo or another ~roup 
whose ohilosoohv and identitv had nothino ~o do with-relioion. The 
ouesti~n is h~w.does the oov~rnment deal-wifh hiohlv moti~ated.·.coherent 
~roups barricaded in a fo;tif~ed compound. This-is·~ serious is~ue and 
deserves the committee's attention and the attention of the law enforcement 
agencies. 

Thank y•:••.t. 

REP. BROOKS: Thank you very much~ Mr. Edwards. 

Mr. Hyde. 

REP. HENRY J. HYDE CR-IL>: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

The 52-day standoff between the FBI and members of the Branch Davidian 
sect culminated in a fiery inferno which claimed the lives of 86 people. 
We mourn the loss of all of those inside the compound, especially the 24 
children who perished last week~ and the four ATF agents, who lost their 
lives in the initial conflict on February 28th. 

It certainly appear~ in the light of the tragic conclusion to the 
standoff that something went wrong. We need to kno~ why the ATF agents 
were given the initial order to storm the compound in late February after 
it seems· clear they no longer had the ~lement of surprise in their favor. 
We also need to know wheth~r the plan put into action on the morning of 
April l9 was really the best available option or whether we just ran out of. 
pati~rice in trying to peacefully coax the group out of the compound. 

W~ are not here today to second-guess the attorney gene~al, the FBI~ 
or the ATF~ or try to affix political blame. Our. purpose today is simply 
to understand the judgment calls that were made and whether or not those 
decisions were the most appropriate under the circumstances. 

We also need to know if adequate resources, including military 
resources, were available or requested, and if not~ why not? We need to 
get answers from the.past so we can learn to avoid similar situations in 
the future. I lcu::.k fc•rward tc• hearing your tes_timony. 

REP. BROO~~S: Mr. SchumeY, the gentleman fyom New Yc•rk. 

REP. CHARLES E. SCHUMER CD-NV>: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I thank 
you for holding this hearing today. 

Let me say at the outset I want to express my f~ll tonfidence in the 
attorney general·. In my opinion, President Clinton has put an absolutely 
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outstanding person in this difficult job. She's tough~ intelligent~ and 
possesses an integrity and forthYightness that is refreshing in Washington. 

N~wt I'm sur~ that under her leadership the Justice Department's 
internal review will produce a complete and thorough report on this entiYe 
eoisode~ including a full accounting of any mistakes that may hav~ been 
m~de when all the evidence is in. And that's because we're dealing with a 
new breed of ~ttorney general~ one who is candid about facts and matter of 
fact about taking ~esponsibility. There may well have been errors in 
judgment in Waco~ but we should keep in mind that mistakes in outcom~ are 
not always the results of mistakes in judgment. ~ersonally, I'd rather 
have Janet Reno making these judgments than just about anybody eJse. 

We would also do well to remember that we're looking at the actions of 
law enforc~ment personnel motivated by a genuine desire to follow the rule 
of la~. We're not dealing with a corrupt or dishonest "government agency. 
We're not dealing with acts of venality or c6ver-up~ as in so many other 
scandals we have seen. And so, I strongly hope we will keep all this in 
mind while pursuing our legitimate search to find out what·went wrong. 

To me, there are two key questions we need to explore in order to 
understand what went wrong. First, why_ was the element of surprise lost in 
the initial raid by BATF? If it was, did BATF leadership know that? And 
if they knew it, what was the process tha~ resulted in going ~head with the 
raid anyway? Second, what was it that led FBI officials to·make the 
judgment that David Koresh would not destroy himself and his followers when 
faced with ultimate capture by law enforcement? 

Now, as we look at these issues and other issues surrounding the 
tactical and· strategic decisions in the matter, I believe it's also 
imoortant not to lose siqht of the fact that the real villain here was 
Da~id Koresh. He and hi~ f~llowers' desire and willingness to use children 
as hostages and to ultimately sacrifice them in a ferocious act of self­
immolation surely must go down as one of hist6ry's most heinous crimes. 

if our ultimate goal is to avoid future Waco disasters fro~ taking 
inno~ent lives, we also have 
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to take a close look at· how David Koresh was able to amass one·of the 
largest a~d most deadly arsenals eve~ faced by US law enforcement. We need 
tc·· take a rati•:•nal l•:•ok at all the guns invc•lved. t1•:•re than ·10. 000 r··:".tnds 
were fi.,·ed at the BATF aoents •:•n Februarv 28th as thev attemptecJ: t•:• serve 
leaal arrest·and search ~arrants at the ~aco comobund: - . . 

This committee ~ill hear today about how Koresh was able to ~rm his 
followers with more than a hundred fully automatic machine guns~ grenades, 
and •:•ther rna ter ia 1 s s•.l ch ·as explosi'Jes and b•:lmb c.omp•:•nents. This an area 
where change is surely needed~ because once David Koresh had established 
himself in that C•:•mp•:•und, s•.trrc•unded by ctrildYen and emotic•na-lly captive 
adults and with· that arsenal, he really held all the cards. Can anyone 
doubt we would be looking at a different outcome had the Branch Davidians 
been armed only with knives~ ordinary hunting rifles, or other sporting 
weapons? ·Koresh was determined not to be taken alive, and if-necess~ry to 
take every one of his followers and as many federal agents as possible with 
him. As we have seen graphically, because of weaknesses and loophol~~ in 
existing law and his own criminal intentf he had the abundant means to do 

I'll shbrtly be intro~ucing legislation to address part of the problem 
by banning the sale of machine gun parts that can be used to converi legal 
firearms to machine guns unless th• purchaser is a legal machine gun owner 
and to ban the iale of such parts by mail in all cases. David Koresh used 
this we~kness in the law to amass parts and convert legal weapons to the 
deadly·fully automatic machine guns he fired. This legislation will also 
pr•:•hibit 'the sale •:.f large caliber ammunitic•n tc• all but law enf•:•rcement 
and'~ilitary agencies. The .50 caliber ammunition possessed by Koreshf 
whiih although perfectly legal can easily blow through an ordinary vehicle 
like a fire truck, has no legitimate purpose in the hands of anyone. 

Mr. Chairman, I know that this hearing is not specific~lly about gunsf 
it's about accountabil-ity and responsibility. But I also believe if we'Ye 
going to get beyond the tactical issues involved we must adopt a stiategy 
that recognizes the role played by guns and the excessive fiYepower so 
easily available to a madman. I look·fcirward to hearing our witnesses 
tc•day. 

REP •. Will the gentleman yield for a moment? Will the gentleman 
yield for a moment? 

REP. BROOKS: Not now. This is his opening statement. 
to MY. Sensenbrenner for --

REP • (Off mike). -- Mr. Schumer to yield. 
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REP. BROOKS: Not at this point~ no. 

Mr. Sensenbrenner~ the gentleman from 

MR. /REP. 

REP. BROOKS: -- Wisconsin is recognized. 

REP. F. JAMES· SENSENBRENNER JR. (R-Wir: Tr-,ank yc•u very m1..1ctc~ Mr. 
Chairman, and I also salute you for calling timely hearings on the disaster 
is Wa.cc•. 

t think it is very plain that the function ~f this hearing ~hould 11ct 
be to second-guess the activities of eitheY the FBI or the Dera~tment of 
Justice~ nor should it be to micromanage either of these agencies. That's 
nc•t the role c•f the C•:•nore::.s •:•f the United States. And· furtherm•:··,..e:' we 
should not be involvirig politicians in either the executive or legislative 
branches of governme~t in operational decisions in law enforcement 
·agencies. The p~ople of this country expect the decisions of law 
enforcement t•:• be free from p.:•litics and severely chastise a~/b•:•dy wt .. :• 
tries to bring politics into those types of law enforcement decisions. 

But the Waco operation had a result that none of us desired, and that 
was the deatt.s of all •:•f the people •..!1-u:• •...rere .inside the C•:•mp.:rund a week ag•:• 
last Monday. Thus· it's legitimate for this committee in.discharging its 
oversicht functions over law· enforcement to ask what went wrong and how we 
can le;rn from the mistakes that were made in the Waco operation to prevent 
that from happening again. 

I think that the prir1cipal focus of this committee's activity shc11.1ld 
be to look into the chain of command. What types of options were 
presented? By wh..:•m? ~lJh•:• reviewed th•:•se optic•ns, and • ..,r,,:, event•.1ally :.ighed 
off on those options before April the 19th? 

In ~onclusion, I would like to state my personal admiration .for the 
activities and brave behavior of both the FBI and ATF agents who were on 
the~~cene in Waco and again express my personal condolences to the families 
qf those ATF agents who passed away at the time of the first assault. I 
also think it is important that everybody realize that no one on thia 
committee holds anyone 
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but David Koresh responsible for the tragic deaths of those who died within 
that compound. He was the one that brought them there~ he was the on? that 
kept them there~ and he was the one that led them to their deaths in the 
fire ~hat occurred at the time the FBI stormed the compound a weE~ ago 
Monday. Anybody that seriously says that the FBI or law enforcement w25 ~t 

fault really didn't know what was happening down there or cared not t~ 

1 is ten. 

So I would hope th~t we could get into the business of overseeing the 
FBI, the J•.1st i 'e Dep<.':il r tment and the ATF here S•:• tha ·t a 11 t:•f •.ts: can 1 ea·r n 
fr•:•m this very tra9ic activity, and so that the ~··~rd can go out; to .. ?.nybody 
that is contemplating holding innocent people hostages, as·Mr. Koiesh did~ 
that law enforcement will be able to get to them and, hopefuily, h~v~ a 
result that will bring those who are guilty of committing .crimes to justic~ 
in a C•:•t..i rt •:•f 1 aw rather. than the tragic Ol.lt Ct.:rme that. ere c l.lr rea in Wc.=t.c•:•. 

REP. BROOKS: Thank you very much. And I would, at this point, want 
tc• Y"Ec•:•gni:e the presence of Congressman Chet Edwards •:•f Te:-t~as, i...•l· .. :·se 
district was the location 6f the Branch Davidian compound. And with~ut 
objection~ .I would recognize a statement from the Congressman regarding the 
subject matter of these hearings be entered irito the record at this point. 

Thank you v~ry much, Congressm~n. 

REP. Mr. Chairman, I understand th~t members, such as Mr. 
Moorhead~ who did leave a statement, will be -~ any members who have a 
statement at this point they can --

. ,: 

REP. BROOKS: All members who have statements at this point will be 
put into the record and this record will be open for a few days in case yo~ 
have some time to perfect your statement to be put in the record at this 
p..:•int. 

REP. 

REP. BROOKS: And now.I'm delighted to welcome Attorney Ge~eral Janet 
Reno to the committee in her first appearance before us since b~ing sworn 
in. We're familiar with her background as a result of the confirmation 
hearings. However, for those who are not, I'll just tell you a little bit 
abt.:•Ltt her. 

From 1978 until the time·of her appointment as attorney general, Mrs. 
Reno was a state attorney in Miami, Florida. She's been a partner in a 
Miami-based law firm, an assistant state attorney, sta~f director of the 
Floiida House of Representatives Judiciary Committee. S~e comes from good 
Florida stock, feeling every bit at home as much with alligators as with 
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the more dangerous predators she's encountered on this slde of the Potoma~. 
~ Lat.tgh ter. ) 

~·.nd, Madam Attc•rney General!' ~hile we regYet the sad events t~1dt 
necessitated this hec:n·ing, I,Je weicr:•me -yc•tt. ~Te Icu:•J:: fc•rwal'·d tc• yr:rtt''r" 
testi~ony. yo~ proceed as you see fit •. 

ATTY GEN- RENO: 
hear me? 

Than~ you.verv much, Mr. Chairm~n. 

I truly appreciate this opportunity to appear before you to discuss 
the tragic events at the. cc•mp•.::.r.tnd in vJaco, Te~~;as t~.is p~!::.t •..Jeek •. J t.,;,:o.nt ~~t.:· 
be as open as possible with you and with all the American people· about what 
we knew before, what we knew.on that day, and what we kno~ no~ and as 0ur· 
investigation proceeds. I want to be responsible and accountable to the 
ConQress and to the American people in ~very way I pos~ibly can. 

This was one of the hardest decisions that anybody could ever be asked 
to make. We deliberated long and caYefully before reaching· a decision. 
Nothing we do now ~an change the suffering felt by the familiBs of the ATF 
agents or the families of thoseowho perished in the compound. But as you 
have p•:• i n t e cJ out s C• e 1 C• que n t 1 y , we m u :;. t d •:• every t h :i n g we can · tr:, I e a r· n f '!" ·=· m 
these events about what we can do in the future to prevent people like 

• ; · . David Kore::.h, or peoplf? mc:•tivated by •::.ther thoughts, fr•:•m ca•.ising :;.uch a 
senseless, horrible loss of human life. 

On February 28, 1993, four agents of the Bureau of Alcohol,· Tobacco 
and FiYearms were killed and 16 were injured in a shoot-out that occurYed 
when they attempted to execute an arrest warrant for. Vernon ~owell~ also 
known as Da~id Koresh, and a search warrant at the Branch Davidian compound 
near Waco, Texas. 

The agents were met by a barrage of gunfire from numerous firing 
points ·in the compound that lasted 45 minutes, involved thousands of rounds 
•:•f ammunition 
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and left the age~ts dead and .injured. Weapons used by the Bran~h Oavidians 
1 n c l uded 50-ca 1 i ber I"' if 1 es having an effective range of 3,. (H)O' : ... 'a.,..ds: f i"'om 
the Capitol tb the White House. All of those killed or wQunded ~ere Ehot 
or injured by homemade hand grenades. While several members of ~he commune 
were killed and injured, there was apparently no serious injury to any ~f 
the children. 

After the shoot-out, the remaining ATF agents established a protective 
perimeter around the compound. A few hours later, three BYanch ·oavidians 
attempted to enter the compound, resulting in a second shoot-out with ATF 
agents in which •:•ne Davidian was killed. Attempts were made .Jt':. frirther 
secure the perimeter. 

ATF officials then requested that the FBI dispatch its hostage resc•Ae 
team~ which we refer to as HRT •. On Feb't'•.ta'fy 28th, 19'33, agerifs .:··f the 
Federal Bureau of Investigation, including the HRT~ arrived on the scene. 
The FBI found an armed fortress, a compound consisting of app'foximately 70 
acres located on Route 7 near Waco. 

I took office on March 12th, 1993. After my FBI clearance~ I had been 
briefed previously by the acting attorney general and was thereafter 
briefed specifically on the situation at Waco. I was advised that the 

·primary goal of the FBI's hostage rescue team was to neootiate with· Koresh 
to secure the release of the children and the surrender and prosecution of 
all those who participated in the murde'f and assault of the federal agents 
withc.r.t.t further vic•lence •:..r inj•.try t•:• anyc•ne c..:•ncerned. I cc•nc~.trred that 
we mu~t try to negotiate to avoid further bloodshed to the extent that we 
cou~d. As this situation evolved, the FBI had cons~stently rejected a 
di~~ct assault on the compound because of the danger of heavy casualties to 
the agents and to the children and because of the layout which prevented a 
surprise assault. 

I was told as I was briefed t~at the FBI had a trained negotiator on 
the scene and that they had and during the course of these deliberations 
continued to consult with behavioral experts and others who had knowledge 
of the cult to determine how best to proceed to negotiate with Koresh. 
From the start, the negotiation tactics focused on restricting the 
activities of those inside the compound and depriving them of a comfortabls 
environment so as to bring the matter to a conclusion without further 
vic•lence. 

Thc•se inside the cc•mpc•und we-re advised of the FBI's rules c•f 
engagement. Under those.rules, the agents conveyed the information th~t 
they would not use deadly force against any person except as necessary i·' 
self-defense or defense of another, when they had reason to believe that 
they or another w~re in danger of death or grievous bodily harm • 
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The FBI i~s~alled lights to illuminate the compound at niaht and 
loudspeak~rs to ensure that they could communicate with all me~bers of the 
comoound at once, rath~r than having to rel.y solely on. the sinale teleoho~~ 
lin~ available to speak to Kore$h ~nd those he pe~mitted to taik on th~ 
phone. They also used loudspeakers to di~rupt their sleep. They cut off 
their electricity arid they sought to restrict communications of those 
within the compound just to the hosta~e negotiators. 

Additionally, they sent in letters from family members and made other 
good-faith efforts designed to encourage surrehder by those ~ho .wished to 
leave the compound. In particular, and I as~ed about this durinc. the 
course of our deliber~tions, they made repeated ef~orts to secur~ the. 
release of the children. In further efforts to encourage the negotiating 
pr•:•cess, Cltt•:•rneys representing Kc•resh and Steve Schneider were all•:•wed t.:, 
enter the c•:•mp•:•und •:··r communicate by telephone ~,o~ith the·m •:•n several 
c• c c asi..:•ns. 

Throughout this 51-day process, Koresh continued to assert that he and 
c•thers inside w•:•uld at sc•me point st.trrender. Hr:•1.-1ever, the FB-I advised that 
at no point did he keep his word on any of his promises. Despite all 
efforts, the negotiators concluded that negotiations were at ·a standstill 
and that they had not been. able to negotiate a single item with Koresh. 

Although 21 children and 14 adults had been allowed to leave the 
compound between February 28th and March 23rd, 1993, those persons who ·left 
the compound did so because Koresh affirmatively wanted them out as they 
were not fully"committed to his cause~ they were a drain on his effo~ts at 
internal d~scipline and resources, or he viewed t~em as potential spokesmen 
t•:• t; he med i. a·. 

During the week of April the 5th, the FBI advised me that they were 
de~eloping a plan for the possible use of tear gas in an effort to increase 
the pressure on those in the compound to surrender. Thereafter, I had a 
serie~ of meetings with the FBI to discuss the emerging proposal • 
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The threshold question I asked ~as whether the gas would cause permanent 
injury to the chi.ldren. I did not even want to consider the matter furthe~ 
if we could not be certain about this factor. The FBI assured m~ that the 
gas would not cause permanent injury. I asked them to research further~ 
and subsequently they arranged for me to meet with Dr. Harry Sale•n~ a top 
expert in toxicology~ who is chief of the Life Sciences Department at the 
Edgewood Arsenal. He reviewed with me case studies that confirmed that it 
would not cause permanent injury. 

Then the primary question I asked again ~nd again during the ensuing 
discussion was "!.aJhy n•:•• ... l'(' ~Jhy. n•:•t '""ai t?" I asked ab•:•ut their- fcu;:.d and 
water supply ·and was told that it could last at least a year or more. I 
ask e cl t hat t he i n form at .i •:• n a b •:. u t the water- sup p 1 y be c he c ked ·and d e:• •.t b 1 e . 
checked by obsetving the level in the water tanks. We explored but could 
n•:~t develop c:\ feasible rneth•:•d f•:rr cr.ttting r:rff tt.eir water s•.tpply •. 

I asked ~y staff to have direct personal discussions by phone with the 
chief negotiator on the scene to satisfy ourselves that we had, indeed, 
reached an impasse in discussions, in negotiations. After a two and a half 
hc••.tr c•:~nver:: ... ~-tio.n, that seemed clear .. 

I beca~e convinced that short of allowing David Koresh to go free, he 
was not coming out voluntarily.. Given that unacceptable result and in 
light of the fact that he was such a dangerous. criminal, allowing the 
status ~uo to remain was not going to lead to an ultimate peaceful 
Yesolution and eliminate any risk to the safety 61 the innocent children in 
the c6mpound, the public at large, or the government agents at th~ scene. 
On ~he contrary, the passage of time only increased the likelihood of 
incidents and p•:•ssible injuries and attended :i.nj•.1r.ies and harm. · 

But we continue· to deliberate. And in the course of our deliberations 
we met with Genefal Peter Schumacher (sp) and Colonel Jerry Boinken Csp), 
former and present commanders of Delta Force~ respectably, the Army's rough 
equivalent to the FBI's HRT, to review the plan. Their comments were 
instructive. Wh~le indicating that the plan appeared to be sound, one 
suggestion was that rather than an incremental approach ~o use ~- to the 
•.tse ctf· the gas· as prc•pc•sed by the FBI, gas should be inserted intc• ~11 
portions of the compound simultaneously. 

·r preferred the FBI approach, ~hich called for a gradual increase in 
pressure ovet time. It seemed to me that that would be best to ensure the 
safety of those inside. I directed that if at any point Koresh or his 
followers threatened to harm the children, the FBI should c~ase the action 
immediately. Likewise, if it appeared that as a ~esult of the ~nitial use 
of tear gas Koresh was prepared to negotiate in good faith for his ultimate 
surrender, the FBI was to cease operations. On the other hand, if Koresh 
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and his followers endangered the agents by firing upon them, they were 
authorized to return the fire. 

To the ~reat credit of the FBI, they received subE~antial fire from 
within the ~ompound·both at the vehicles and at ~nip2r positions 
surrounding the compound without returning any fire. In fact, throughout 
the 51 day siege, the FBI never fired ~ single shot. Instead, when fi~ed 
l.tpr:·n~ the. FBI respc•nded by beginning t•:a insert gas ttH''Ot.lQ~•et\.\t the comp•:•und 
consistent.with what the Delta Force commanders had suggested. 

The commanders also. expressed concern about the length of time the HRT 
had been ·:•n the scene in a· state ·c·f c•:•nstant · readines::., c:,ncj ~,11 eY,p.,.·es.st:~d 

the view that the team wo~ld have to be pulled back for retraini~g ~ery 
quickly lf they were going to come back to the scena. All advised that 
there was not a substitute civil force that could secure the extensive area 
aYound the compound that had the.expertise of the Hostage Rescue TEam. 

We continued deliberations. I wanted al-,d received a:.suYar.ces t~.at the 
QdS and its means of use were not pyrotechnic. I was concerned about 
in·t:conti•:•nal •:II" ac ci.dental e~·:pl•:•sierr.s and c•rdered that additit::~T"Lal res•:.•.trC:e?3 
be pYovided to ensure that.there was an ad~quate emergency response if we 
should go forward. 

I also considered that Koresh had talked about suicide, ~nd that might 
occur at any time under conditions that the FBI might be less likely to 
control. Experts, however~ advised the Bureau that the chances of suicide 
were not likely, but ! again emphasize that it was something that was 
ronsidered, something that was considered.that might happen·at any point 
along the way, re9ardles~ of what the FBI did. 

In considering the FBI proposal~ I weighed the many concerns of the 
government with respect to the sta~e of affairs 
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inside the compound. They included the well-being of the children in the 
cc•mpc•und given the deteric•rating sanitary conditions; the apparent lack •:•f 
adequate medical care inside; and reports of ·sexual and other abuse over · 
the past; the vulnerability of the outer perimeter, whith created a threat 
to public safety and the federal agents at the perimeter -- the outer 
perimeter was vulnerable because there were, inside the ccrmpc••Jnd, 50-
caliber weapons having an effective killing range of 3,000 yards, a 
dis.tance that would reach fr•:•m the US Capitol tc• the White H:rr.tse; · •:•ur 
inability to maintain the presence of the HRT on-site indefinitely; and the 
ad~ice I received that there was a lack of a suitable substitute force that 
could replace them at the compound and ensure the security of all involved; 
fc•urth~ the increasing risk as the stand-r:..ff continued,· of injury tc• 
federal agents, whether by accident or by the risk of shooting from the 
inside. 

Since being sworn in as attorney general, I have had numerous 
conversations with people both inside and outside the Depattment of Justice 
concerning the Waco situation. In addition, I directed my s~aff to keep 
the White House apprised of ongoing developments. My discussion~ with 

.representatives at the White House ~ere predicated on the premise that as 
chief law enforcement officer, the decision on how to proceed was mine. I 
advised the President on the Sunday before the operation of my decision to 
authorize the FBI's use of tear gas at the compound, and he said he would 
support my decision. 

I believe we were dealing with a situation that would not resolve 
itself by mere acquiescence to the stand-off. Negotiations had proven to 
be fruitless, and despite our best efforts, we could not secur~ the release 
of th~ children. It was a situation that suggested to me that time would 
onl~ increase the risk to public safety, to the safety of government. 
agents, and to those within the compound, without any realistic expectation 
that the matter would be resolved peacefully if we did nothirig. It wa~ my 
call, and I made it the best way z· know how. 

Let me· urge that we focus c•n the future, and tc• try tc• determine h,c•w 
we can best avoid the recurrence of this tragedy. In this regard, at the 
President's request, we in the Department of Treasury a~e looking at a 
process whereby the events at Waco will be examined by experts, both within 
and outside the government to consider the following questions. 

One, ih the execution of the arrest and search war~ants by ATF, were 
established procedures followed, and if so, were they adequate? Two, is 
federal law enforcement adequately prepared td negotiate in danger6us 
situations in terms of training, staffing, and available techniques? 
Three, is training for the execution of warranti involving barricaded 
suspects who.may be ·holding innocent third parties adequate for all law 
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enforcement agenc~es? Four, are improvemen~s needed in coordinating the 
activity of the varic•us investigative agenc.ies? Five, hc•w shc••.cld federal 
law enforcement agencies marshal resources in various disciplines, 
including psychology and psy~hiatry in situations involving cults and other 
groups using barricades and holding innocent people? Six, what systems and 
understand~ngs about command and ~ontrol should guide the relationships 
among leaders of the departments~ and career officials, and operating units· 
when field operations impose a substantial risk of danger to law 
enforcement official~ and others? 

The incident at Waco ended tragically for all involved. I have thought 
every day since about -- since April 19th a~out what I might have done 
differently. I only hope that we can work together to make sure th~t I 
never have to make such a decision again. 

I would be glad to answer any of your questions. 

REP. BROOKS: Well, Ms. Reno, the major focus of today's hearing is 
the decisionmaking process at the highest levels of the law enforcement 
community which led to the actions involvino the Branch Davidian cult. 
Could you describe for the committee the ma]or considerations you 
personally brought to bear in approving the actions leading up to and 
including the April 19th operation? 

ATTY GEN. RENO: The prime concern that I ask is -- the question I 
kept asking over and over again, Mr. Chairman -- why now, and why not wait? 
I reviewed statements that hP had made about apocalypse at any time -- he 
could have done this at any time. The FBI advised .me that they were in 
better control, considering the state of readiness of their HRT tea~~ so 
that that was.a definite factor. I reviewed the --it was important and we 
spent a lot of time determining the water supply. I thought that might be 
~ wa~, if the water supply were reduced, .that we might be able to force 
them out~ And again and again we went back through trying to observe the 
level of water in the tanks to see if it might be possible to wait them out 
in that fashi•:.n. 

~t appea~ed from everythirig that we were toid, based on our discussion 
with ihe negotiator on the scene who advised that negotiations had reached 
an_impasse, that he was going to stay there, and he would not come out 
voluntarily, and it was 
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going to be an indefinite stay that would expose the lives of aoents on the 
perimeter to danger, would threaten the continued safety of all-inside. I 
continued to be concerned about the children. There was no sanitary 
facility for them. They were dumping their w~ste. The conditions were 
increasing in that regard. We had had reports -- as I have pointed out,· 
until you see the children you cannot confirm the reports one way or the 
other about the abuse of the children. 

But the concern I had was that to let this go on indefinitely, where 
you had dangerous offenders who had killed·four agents, injured 16 others, 
was something that could best be resolved by increasing the pressure, not 
to make this D Day, but to try to increase the pressure by the use of gas, 
which I had determined by -- after very careful review, ·would not be 
permanently harmful to the children -- that by tear gassing the compound 
that would be the best way to proceed to increase the pressure to try to 
fc•r ce them Cll.l t. 

REP. BROOKS: Now, Mrs. Reno, questions have been raised about the 
extent to which the White House was involved in the decision-making process 
relative to_ the events in Waco. Could you des~ribe the extent and the 
nature of your contact with the White House during the standoff, and 
particularly during the days preceding April the 19th? 

ATTY GEN. RENO: I kept the White House advised through the White 
House Counsel's Office during the course of my deliberations after the FBI 
had made its proposal about the use of gas. There were continued 
discu~sions as we developed new information. 

On Sunday, prior to April the 19th, I talked wit~ the Presidentf 
advised him of what we proposed to do, and he gave me his full support. 

REP. BROOKS: ·Would you describe in detail how you kept in touch wi~h 
the situation in Waco and the individuals with whom you consulted in 
formulating and approving the actions against the-Branch Davidian compound? 

ATTY GEN. RENO: The first conversation I had concerning the possible 
use of tear gas at the compound was with Director Sessions, who said that 
during the week of April the 5th that he would like to arrange some time to 
brief me on a prc•posal that they WOltld like .to present. I met with 
Director Sessions and other representatives of the Department, including 
Floyd Clarke, Larry Potts, Doug Gow, and there may have tieen others, but 
those are the people that I specifically remember. 

I was briefed in all details about everything that had been done up to 
that point in trying to resolve the matter peacefully. We went through it 
in detail. Then I started asking the questions. What about the g~s, would 
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it be harmful to the children?. Go back and do some more study. I had real 
concern abc•ut that •.. It was pc•inted out to me, after they had had the 
doctor brief me, that the gas was non-lethal, it wa~ tear gas as we 
understand tear gas, and that members of the United States Army are gass~d 
as part cef preparatic•n. So I became cc•mfortable witt..that. But I was 
still not comfortable w~th the primary question of why now, why not wait. 

We had explored other possible alternatives. As I sugges~ed ~o you, 
the FBI, before I had be~n sworn in, and then I concurred totally with 
them, rejected any direct assault on the compound as being far too 
dangerous for the agents and for those inside the compound. 

[ 

. We asked tc• meet with military c•fficials. And the general whc• was the 
former commander of Delta Force, and the colonel presently commanding the 
Delta Fo~ce, came to Washington and met with us and FBI officials after 
they reviewed the plan. And we consulted very carefully about that. 

One of the points, raised for the first time by the·Delta Force 
commanders and previous commander, was that the HRT had to b~ at a constant 
state of readiness and that to keep them on a scene for the length of time 
that these agents had been on the scene began to raise questions that they· 
could not remain there much longer and still be in the state of readiness 
that should be expected of an HRT team. 

r I asked, well, isn't there another team, and was advised ~o, except 

1 
for the Delta Force, and then I believe the Navy has a force for marine 

I disasters. We explored the provisions of posse comitatus and became 

l 
convinced that you coul.d not use the Delta Force in a civilian situation. 
I asked. at that time, well, can't you send in SWAT teams or something like 

. that. I'm ~~t a law enforcement expert, but I was asking every question I 
knew te:• ask. 
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And they explaineq and werit step by step through the tYaining that the HRT 
team has in terms of sniper firing and theit abiiity to maintain security. 
So, I ·became. ~~:.nvinced. th~t. if we had to .PU~ 1 back the HRT team and 
substitute somebody ~lse, we couldn't begin to provide the se~urity for all 
of those concerned that we w6uld with the HRT. 

·. I continued to be concerned about the water tank because I h~ard some 
information that indicated their water supply might be low. ~e went back 
in ~nd with the ability of the FBI to determine the level of the water tank 

- from a distance, we were advised .that it continued to be replenished and 
that it looked like they had enough supplies and water to last for over a 
year. 

What concerned me was the fact that even wi~h the HRT team, it was 
going to be difficult to control a perimeter. If you can imagine having to 
control a perimeter that extended ~rom here to the White House and the same 
distance either way, it could be a very difficult situation. People had 
been able to get in there and people could come out. There could be 
ccrnfrc•r•ta tic·ns. 

We reviewed -- because I directly considered the fact that people had 
talked about the possibility of a mass suicide, and you remember the 
situation with respect to ~onestown, and that's something I considered. 
The FBI advised me that its behavioral experts had indicated -- and by the 
way, Mr. Chairman~ I've asked the FBI because I want to be as candid as I 
possibly can, to interrupt me if I say anything that's inaccurate in any 
way 1 and I would ask that because I want to make sure that I lay out the 
clear~st picture possible for you in terms of any advice that they gave me. 
But we looked at it. They advised me.again that their experts had 
conclud~d that the chances of a mass suicide were not likely, but if they 
were, they could happen at any time. And if we let the standc•ff gc• c•n 
forever, they could happen it coyld happen if you got so~~ rambunctious 
group in there that wanted to square off against the Davidians, it could 
happen in any number of ways. 

I made -- went step by step again through the decisions, weighing it 
back and forth, ~nd reached a conclusion that the gas was not lethal, that 
it would not permanently harm them. By everybody's description, it would 
be so -~ they could last with gas masks for some time, but it would become 
so uncomfortable that they would come out. ·1 think as a footnote to this, 
one of the things we didn't count on was that wind. And I think from all 

one of the things that we w~ll have to review and look at and understand 
is why the gas didn't cause more discomfort immediately. 

But those were th~ fac~ors that led to my decision. And constantly 
during this time, I was consulting and trying to be available at their 
request to the director, to Mr. Clarke, Mr. Potts, and Mr. Gow • 
• ETX . 
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REP. BROOKS: Thank you very much •. 

In accordance with the rules of the commi.ttee, I want tc• nc•te that -­
well, I've asked only three questions -- we want to adhere strictly to the 
five-minute limit because I want all of the. members to have an opportunity 
to make their~positions clear. 

Mr. Fish. 

REP. HAMILTON FISH, JR. CR~NY>: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

And General Reno, I commend you for your frankness. I would like at 
the outset to take a step back and ask you a threshold question. What was 
the reason or ~erhaps reasons that federal law enforcement personnel were 
there at the compoun~ in the first place? Was there a serioys enough 
threat posed by the Branch Davidians to justify the BATF raid and, 
following that, ~he 52-day stakeout, as well as the FBI action on April 
19th? 

ATTY GEN. RENO: Congressman, I hav~ focused my attention on 
Department of Justice activities and on·the FBI~ And I would refer matters 
that preceded February 28th to the investigation that will be conducted. I 
have not reviewed that in terms of making any informed comment on what led 
up tc• it. 

What I did satisfy myself was that four agents had been killed, 15 had 
be~n wounded by very dangerous people, and that the FBI had been called in. 
When I accepted -- when I ·took off~ce, that was the situation that I was 
faced with, ·and I made a judgment·based on all the information that I had 
that they were indeed dangerous offenders who had knowingly killed federal 
agents. But at that pr:dnt, with .the traged~· crt the agents' deaths, the 15 
wounded, the issues with respect-to the siege, I did not want to be in the 
process of second-g~essing somebody else. 

REP. FISH: Thank you. General Reno.--

. REP. BROOKS: Excuse me. 

REP. FISH: Of course. 
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EVENTS SURROUNDING ·THE BRANCH 
DAVIDIAN CULT STANDOFF IN WACO·,·TEXAS 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 28, 1993 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY, 

Washington,. DC. 
The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 a.m.\ in room 2141, 

Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Jack Brooks (cnairman of the 
committee) presiding. . 

Present: Representatives Jack Brooks, Don Edwards, John Con­
yers, Jr., Romano L. Mazzoli, William J. Hughes, ·Mike Synar, Pa­
tricia Schroeder, Dan Glickman, Barney Frank, Charles E. Schu:.. 
mer, John Bryant, George E.. Sangmeister, Jack Reed, Robert C. 
Scott, David Mann, Melv.in L. Watt, ·Xavier Becerra, Hamilton 
Fish, Jr., CarloS' J. Maorlread, Henry J. Hyde, F. James Sensen­
brenner, Jr., George W. Gekas, Howard Coble, Lamar S. Smith, 
Steven Schiff, Jim Ramstad, Elton Galtegly, Charles T. Canady, 
Bob Inglis, and Bob Goodlatte. . 

Also present: Jonathan Yarowsky, general counsel; Robert H. 
Brink, deputy general counsel; Daniel M. Freeman, counseVpar­
liamentarian; Marie McGlone, counsel; Allen Erenbaum, counsel; 
Chris Cooper, legislative analyst; John D. Cohen, investigator; 
Linda J o Shelton, administrative assistant to the general counsel; 
Mary V. Heuer, administrative staff member; James B. Farr, finan­
cial clerk; Ralph Doty, systems coordinator; Teresa Vest, research 
assistant; Kenneth Prater, assistant publications clerk; Alan F. 
Coffey, minority chief counsel; Charles Kern III, minority counsel; 
Ray Smietanka, minority counsel; Kathryn Hazeem, minority coun­
sel; Lyle Nirenberg, minority counsel; and Carmel Fish, minority 
counsel. -

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRl\tAN BROOKS 

Mr. BROOKS. The committee will come to order. 
I have called this hearing of the full Committee on the Judiciary 

to examine the events surrounding the standoff between Federal 
law enforcement agencies and members of the Branch Davidian 
cui t near Waco, TX. 

As the Members well know, hearings at the full committee level 
are rare enough an occurrence to be called extraordinary. I believe 
that the subject matter of today's hearing is appropriate for such 
extraordinary treatment because it cuts across multiple aspects of 
the committee's broad jurisdiction over law enforcement activities. 

While speculative and contradictory theories have abounded, it is 
only in the past few days that onsite forensic teams have begun to 

' (1) 
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draw a number of tentative conclusions based on scientific observa­
tion and testing. That is all for the best, even if it departs from the 
scripts of the made-for-television movies already in production. 

The basic chronology of' events relating to the standoff and its 
fiery conclusion can be stated succinctly. On February 28, after an 
extensive investigation pursuant to legal process, a team of age·nts 
from the Treasury Departmerrrs Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and 
Firearms raided the .heavily armed compound. then under control 
of a cult leader calling himself David Koresh, in order to serve war­
rants for Federal weapons violations. The raid turned into a fierce 
gun battle that left 4 BATF agents dead, 15 wounded, and 6 cult 
members dead. 

There ensued a standoff for the next 51 days, during which time 
the Federal Bureau of Investigation assumed the lead law enforce­
ment responsibility and attempted through a variety of tactics to 
persuade Koresh to lay down his weapons and let the .adult and ju­
venile cult members leave the compound; all to no avatl. 

Finally, on April 19, the FBI undertook a major action to inject 
tear gas into the compound in an effort -to dri.ve the occupants out. 
The effort failed. Instead, Koresh and more than 80 of his followers 
died as a raging fire consumed all or the compound's buildings in 
a few short minutes. 

However, establishing the baseli:1e chronology of events is not 
the sole purpose for being here today. Rather, it is to hear from the 
three law enforcement officials directly responsible for the actions 
and the choices taken in Waco so that we can understand the deci­
sionmaking process behind the events. 

Now, I don't relish playing the part ·of the omniscient second­
guesser when there are still facts to be ascertained, evidence to be 
adduced, and given the instant experts that pop up everywhere in 
the press,. I may be in a distinct minority. What I care about is 
whether we have in place in our Federal enforcement agencies the 
capability and, yes, the creativity to deal with the increasingly dis­
turbing situation of terrorism, whether in the high office towers of 
our urban centers or in small entrenched pockets of alienated citi­
zens who operate separate and apart from society at large. 

If such groups, whether they are called cults or not, pose a direct 
physical and violent threat to their own members or to .others in 
society, then their operations cannot be ignored or justified through 
invocations to the great American tradition of the right of each citi· 
zen to be left alone. As Oliver Wendell Holmes declared, the es­
sence of a free society isp indeed, the right to be let alone-but not 
at the expense of the social compact that allows all of us to live to­
gether as Americans based on our shared values. 

What this committee and the public need to know is how our Ia w 
enforcement agencies performed during this difficult situation. We 
need to know how they processed the signals and other information 
received from Koresh, whether they developed alternative plans of 
action, how they negotiated, how they prepared, and how they im-
plemented decisions that were made. . 

The verdict on David Koresh's methods and aims can already be 
read in the Gallup polls. We are here to seek answers to weightier 
questions. · 

... -··--------·--_._... ..... .__..,_,_ ____________________________ .. __ ,.....,... __ ~~~~!lflll.lllllll--
.. ·~ >>. · ..• ;~·= .. ·;::.: ... -::~::!! 
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Mr. BROOKS. I am delighted to welcome Attorney General Janet 
Reno to the committee for her first appearance before us since 
being sworn in. · 

Most of us are familiar with her background as a result of her 
confirmation hearings. However, for those who are not, I will just 
tell you a little bit·about her • 

From 1978 until the time of her appointment as Attorney Gen­
eral, Ms. Reno was a State attorney in Miami, FL. She has been 
a partner in a Miami-based law firm, an assistant State attorney, 
staff director of the Florida House of Representatives Judiciary 
Committee. She comes from good Florida stock, feeling every bit at 
home with alligators as with the more dangerous predators she has 
encountered on this side of the Potomac. 

And, Madam Attorney General, while we regret the sad events 
that necessitated this hearing, we welcome you. We look forward 
to your testimony. You may proceed as you see fit. 

STATEMENT OF HON. JANET RENO, ATIORNEY GENERAL OF 
THE UNITED STATES, DEPARTME.NT OF JUSTICE 

Ms. RENO. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
Can everybody hear me? r truly appreciate this opportunity to 

appear before you to discuss the tragic events at the compound in 
Waco, TX, this past week. · . 

I want to be as open as possible with you and with all the Amer­
ican people about what we knew before; what we knew on that day; 
and what we know now and as our investigation proceeds. I want 
to be responsible and accountable to the Congress and to the Amer­
ican people in every way I possibly can. 

This is one of the hardest decisions that anybody could ever be 
asked to make. We deliberated long and carefully before reaching 
a decision. Nothing we do now can change the suffering felt by the 
families of the ATF agents or the families of those who perished 
in the compound; but as you have pointed out so eloquently, we 
must do everything we can to learn from these events about what 
we can do in the future to prevent people like David Koresh, or 
people motivated by other thoughts from causing such a senseless, 
horrible loss of human life. 

On February 28, 1993, 4 agents of the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco 
and Firearms were killed and 16 were injured in a shootout that 
occurred when they attempted to execute an arrest warrant for 
Vernon Howell, also known as David Koresh, and a search warrant 
at the Branch Davidian compound near \Vaco, TX. The agents were 
met by a barrage of gunfire from numerous firing points in the 
compound that lasted 45 minutes, involved thousands of rounds of 
ammunition, and left the agents dead and injured. 

Weapons used by the Branch Davidians included .50-caliber .ri· 
fles having an effective range of 3,000 yards, a distance from the 
Capitol to the White House. All of those killed or wounded were 
shot or injured by homemade handgrenades. While several mem­
bers of the commune were killed and injured, there was apparently 
no serious injury to any of the children. . 

After the shootout, the remaining ATF agents established a pro­
tective perimeter around the compound. A few hours later, three 
Branch Davidians attempted to enter the compound, resulting in a 
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second shootout with ATF agents in which one Davidian was killed. 
Attempts were made to further secure the perimeter. ATF officials 
then· requested that the FBI dispatch its. Hostage Rescue Team, 
which we refer to as HRT. · · 

On February 28, 1993, agents of the Federal Bureau of Investiga­
tion, including the HRT, arrived on the scene. The FBI found an 
anned fortress compound consisting of approximately 70 acres lo­
cated on Route 7 near Waco. 

I took office on March 12, 1993. After my FBI clearance, I had 
been briefed previously by the Acting Attorney General and was 
thereafter briefed specifically on the situation at Waco. 

I was advised that the pnmary goal of the FBI's Hostage Rescue 
Team was to negotiate with Koresh to secure the release of the 
children and the surrender and prosecution of all those who partici­
pated in the murder and assault of the Federal agents without fur­
ther violence or injury to anyone concerned. I concurred that we 
must try to negotiate to avoid further bloodshed to the extent that 
we could. · . 

As this situation evolved, the FBI had co"nsistently rejected a di­
rect assault on the compound because of the danger of heavy cas­
ualties to the agents and to the children and because of the layout 
which prevented a surprise assault. I was told, as I was briefed, 
that the FBI had a trained negotiator on the scene and that they 
had, and during the course of these deliberations, continued to con­
sult with behavioral experts and others who had knowledge of the 
cult to determine how best to proceed to negotiate with Koresh. 

From the start, the negotiation tactics focused on restricting the 
activities of those inside the compound and of depriving them of a 
comfortable environment so as to bring the matter to a conclusion 
without further violence. 

Those inside the compound were advised of the FBI's rules of en­
gagement. Under those rules, the agents conveyed the information 
that they would not use deadly force against any person except 
when necessary in self-defense or defense of another, or when they 
had reason to believe that they or another were in danger of death 
or grievous bodily harm. 

The FBI installed lights to illuminate the compound at night and 
loudspeakers to ensure they could communicate with all members 
of the compound at once rather than to rely solely on a single tele­
phone line available to speak to Koresh and those he permitted to 
talk on the phone. They also used loudspeakers to disrupt their 
sleep. They cut off their electricity and they sought to restrict com­
munications of those within the compound just to the hostage nego-
tiators. . 

Additionally, they sent in letters from family members and made 
other good-faith efforts designed to encourage surrender by those 
who wished to leave the compound. In particular-and I asked 
about this during the course of our deliberations-they made re-
peated efforts to secure the release of the children. · 

In further efforts to encourage the negotiating process, attorneys 
representing Koresh and Steve Schneider were allowed to enter the 
compound or communicate by telephone with them on several occa­
sions. Throughout this 51-day process, Koresh continued to assert 
that he and others inside would at some point surrender. However • 

................ ..,...,..,.. .. .,.,. ...... ,.,..,,._ ... ,._~a . c; . ;c ... c'4< .. ~ 44< . 
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the FBI advised that at no point did he keep his word on any of 
his promises. · · 

Despite all efforts, the negotiators concluded that negotiations 
were at a standstill and that they had not been able to negotiate 
a single item with Koresh. Although· 21 children and 14 adults had 
been aiiowed to leave the compound between February 28 and 
March 23, 1993, those persons who left the compound did so be­
cause Koresh affirmatively wanted them out as they were not fully 
committed to his cause; they were a drain on his efforts in internal 
disciplinP. and resources; or he viewed them as potential spokes­
persons to the media. 

During the week of April 5, the FBI advised me that they were 
developing a plan for .the possible use of tear gas in an effort to in­
crease the pressure on those in the compound to surrender. There. 
after, I had a series of meetings with. the FBI to discuss the emerg­
ing proposal. 

The threshold question I asked was whether the gas would cause 
permanent injury to the children. I did not· even· want to consider 
the matter further if we could not be certain· about this factor. The 
FBI assured me that the gas would not cause permanent injury. 

I asked them to research further, and subsequently, they ar­
ranged for me to meet with Dr. Harry Salem, a top expert in toxi­
cology, who is chief of the Life Sciences. Department at the Edge­
wood Arsenar. He reviewed with me case· studies which confirmed 
that it would not cause pennanent injury. 

Then the primary question I asked again and a~ain during the 
ensuing discussion was: "Why now? Why not wait? I asked about 
their food and water supply and was told that it could last at least 
a year or more. I asked that the information about the water sup­
ply be checked and doublechecked by observing the level in the 
water tanks. We explored but could not develop a feasible method 
for cutting off their water supply. 

I asked my staff to have direct personal discussions bv phone 
with the chief negotiator on the scene to satisfy ourselves "'that we 
had, indeed, reached an impasse in discussions and in negotiations . 
After a 2112-hour conversation, that seemed dear. I became con· 
vinced that short of a11owing David Koresh to go free, he was not 
coming out voluntarily. 

Given that unacceptable result, in light of the fact that he was 
such a dangerous criminal, allowing the status quo to remain was 
not going to lead to an ultimate peaceful resolution and eliminate 
any risk to the safety of the innocent children in the compound, the 
public at large or the Government agents at the scene. On the con­
trary, the passage of time only increased the likelihood of incidents 
and possible injuries and attendant injuries and harm. 

But we continued to deliberate; and jn the course of our de Iibera·· 
tions, we met with Gen. Peter Schoomacher and Col. Jerrv 
Boynkin, former and present commanders or Delta Force, respec­
tively, the Army's equivalent to the FBI's HRT, to review the plan. 
Their comments were instructive. 

While indicating that the plan appeared to be sound, one sugges­
tion was that rather than an incremental approach for the use of 
the gas as proposed by the FBI, gas should be inserted inoo all por­
tions of the compound simultaneously. I preferred the FBI ap-
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ca~ that it might be going toward the compound, we would get a 
resronse from inside the compound, "If you come any further, we 
wil blow those vehicles up." 

The military loaned us Bradley fighting vehicles. We inten­
tionally had the barrels removed from these vehicles so they did 
not present a threat, and otrerecf us the sa(ety and s~curity to begin 
to maneuver. · 

On one occasion, David Koresh got on the phone and said that 
his people were very familiar with the military spe'cifications of a 
Bradley vehicle and they had weaponry in there that could blow 
those vehicles 40 or 50 feet into the air. Upon hearing that, we 
went back to the military and they made available to us two M­
lAl Abrams tanks and also three M-60 combat engineering vehi-
cles. · · 

We initially showed the Abrams tanks to them to let them know, 
as the Director mentioned, that their Government had the capabil­
ity anytime that we wanted to, we could drive right into that build­
ing. We didn't because we chose not to do· that. We chose to try to 
find a way to peacefully resolve this. · . · 

We talked to David Koresh about sending out the children. His 
response was, "Children are like hostages, they can't think for 
themselves." He made all kinds of promises to us. I think if you 
will recall early on he agreed if we would allow him to make a 58-
minute tape, that he would come out. He put a preamble to that 
tape and announced to the world that that is what his intentions 
were. He broke that promise. 

And what we also learned when one of the people did come out, 
she told us that the plan was that Koresh was going to have hand­
grenades strapped to his body and come out and· surrender to law 
enforcement on national TV, tgnite the handgrenades, blow himself 
up and the law enforcement officers that were going to arrest him. 
We also heard about stories inside about where they were trained 
for three people to stand around a handgrenade to ignite it so all 
three people could be taken at the same time. 

That is the kind of problems that we were dealing with as well 
as the kind of weaponry that we saw and knew was inside. So you 
can see over the 50 days we were not just sitting around thinking 
about what we were going to do or trying to negotiate with people. 
All of these vehicles were removed from that area to gi\·e us access 
to the compound. 

One thing that we did every time we went to make a move, we 
would tell them ahead of time what our intentions were. Most of 
the time they would react verbally not to do it, but we did it any­
way. And as the Director mentioned also in his statement, at the 
very outset we told them what the rules of engagement were. \Ve 
referred to them as the rules of safety. \Ve don't want anybody to 
get hurt, stay cut of the windows, don't put guns in the windows. 

Nfany times in the early days we could see them using their 
night surveillance opticals to watch us, and we saw weapon barrels 
come out of the windows. \Ve didn't shoot them. \Ve told them to 
take them back in, told them exactly where they were. What did 
they do? They resorted to recessed firing positions where they 
would darken out the background where you couldn't see them in­
side. 
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Mr. HIGGINS. That would be a guesstimate. · 
Mr. MAzzoLI. Within a 45-minute period, wben this fire fight 

took place, is that--if I were watching a movie, would that be fire 
pretty steadily for 45 m~nutes or are they bursts that happen so 
quickly-

Mr. HIGGINS. It wc;»uld be bursts, and then I am ·sure quiet, and 
bursts. Most police officers, in their entire li(etime, may draw their 
weapon but never shoot it. So you can ima·gine a 45-minute to an· 
hour fire fight. 

Mr. MAzzou. Let me move on to one quick thing, maybe to both 
of you. unfortunately. this was printed upside down so r have to 
look through this th1ng, but it appears from the picture there and 
from this photograph that we have that there was a body of water 
In front of the compound. ' · 

Mr. SESSIONS. That is correct. 
Mr. MAzzou. Because earlier today I asked Ms. Reno about the 

question of fire equipment availability, and someone said because · 
of the fear of being fired upon, that the firefighters wer-e not there. 

But I see a pond of water which could have been maybe replen­
ished or built up in a period of time, because this was called Apoca­
lypse Ranch, which, of course,. signifies a kind of apocalyptic end, 
which could very weii be fire, even though we had not anticipated 
suicide here. · · · . . 

But my question, I guess, is: Was it contemplated that this could 
have been used for the purpose of being a firefighting pond? . · . 

Mr. SESSIONS. That is my understanding, Congressman 1\fazzoli, 
but I think Jeff Jamar can answer that oecause he talked to the 
chief and knew about the plan as its evolved. · 

Mr. JAMAR. They brought truck pumps with them to pump from 
that pond when they came, yes. 

Mr. MAzzoLI. Maybe one final questi?n! Mr. Clarke. I. ~ecall y~ur 
saying here because they had the SO-m1lhmeter ammunition, whtch 
has a range I think of some 3,000 yards, that people could not get 
too close fire equipment could not be brought in for that fear. And 
yet, if I ~nderstand, you say you dismantled fences and were tak­
ing cars away right in the shadows of that place. 

How did you do that and with what equipment? \Vas that when 
the Bradleys were brought in? Was that done by tanks? 

~ir. CLARKE. Yes, Congressman Maz~oli, the Bradleys. :-ver.e 
brought in initially, and when we were 1nfonned by the m1hf::3ry 
that the specifics of the Bradleys that we had, they wo~ld Wlth­
stand .50-caliber ammunition-however, we were then Informed 
that he had weaponry in there that could blow the Bradleys 40 or 
50 feet into the air-we then brought in the M-60 tanks. They are 
actually combat engineering vehicles, and it was those vehicles. 

Mr. MAZZOLI. That actually pulled away the fences. · . 
Mr. CLARKE. Exactly. During the morning, we did take heavy 

gunfire, machinegunfire, and we believe .50-caliber rounds were 
fired that morning. . 

Mr. MAZZOLI. Was Koresh ever out jogging? 
Mr. CLARKE. Excuse me? 
Mr. MAZZOLI. Was Koresh ~ver out jogging? . 
Mr. CLARKE. Not from February 28 to April 19, he did not. 
Mr. MAZZOLI. Thank you. , · . 
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Mr. HUGHES. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
I, too,- want to weicome Director Sessions and Director Higgins 

and their colleagues. I really have a great deal of confidence in the 
expertise of both agencies, so my questioning~ like most of my col­
leagues, is not questioning their expertise. We are trying to learn· 
from this experience. ·· 

Director Higgins, I have a number of questions insofar as the 
February 25 signing of the complaint and the issuance of the 
search warrant. My question is, the affidavit is replete with sub­
stantial evidence. I can't believe that. that was just accumulated 
overnight. When was that evidence compiled? 

I. mP.an, there. was an awful lot. of evidence that goes back to 
1992, which suggests that this cult was co1lecting a lot of ammuni­
tion, explosives, and firearms of all kinds. 

Mr. HIGGINS. We began to collect the information in, I believe, 
June 1992 when we were notified by a focal sheriff's department 
that they felt like the compound had received some possible explo­
sive materials and other things. So we began to develop the infor­
mation then. But what we were dealing with were parts as well as 
explo.sive materials that only become violations if you make some­
thing out of them. 

Mr. HUGHES. I see. When did Bob Rodriguez go in undercover? 
Mr. HIGGINS. January 5. 
Mr. HUGHES. January 5. When were you able to confirm the in­

formation you had collected from neighbors and others that there 
was this horde of weapons in the compound? 

Mr. HIGGINS. Without going into all the specifics, and I think 
Congressman Fish asked me if we had probable cause by February. 
Through the miracle of C-SPAN, I was corrected by the head-
quarters staff almost after it was out of m)' mouth. . 

We had a review in the headquarters office in December with re­
spect to whether we had probable cause. We decided at that point . 
we did not, so we continue~ to gather information. We brought peo­
ple in from Australia, we got the undercover agent in, we inter­
viewed any number of people, including neighbors. They are all in 
the affidavit so I won't repeat them. 

Mr. HUGHES. When was it determined you had probable cause? 
Mr. HIGGINS. I think it was the middle of February. 
Mr. HUGHES. Middle of February. Press reports suggested that 

Bob Rodriguez came out and alerted the ATF to the realization 
that they had been tipped. Is that accurate? 

Mr. HIGGINS. I wouldn't say what is in the press reports because 
I don't know of everything that has been reported there. As you can 
see in the affidavit, though, it indicates that he came out and re­
ported some conversations. I have no quarrel with the accuracy. 
This is one of the issues that I said was going to be reviewed by 
the Department in response to an earlier question. 

Mr. HUGHES. I understand it is going to be reviewed, and I don't 
want to do anything that is going to compromise your ongoing in­
vestigation. 1\fy only question is: Is that accurate? 

,Mr. HIGGINS. What is in the affidavit I think is accurate. 
Mr. HUGHES. It is accurate. So you had infonnation that they 

were aware of what was occurring. · 
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I also understand that you had helicopters in the area, and they · 
took ~fire before the actual raid. Any substance to that? 

Mr. HIGGINS. No substance to that. The helico{Jters were there. 
They took fire simultaneously with the raid team. 

Mr. HUGHES. There have been some suggestions that ATF agents 
were not fully briefed insofar as the nature and extent of the weap­
onry they were to conrront, and that agentB requested more fire­
power than their service revolvers, and that was turned down. Any 
substance to that? 

Mr. HIGGINS. No substance to that, and specificaffy with respect 
to more firepower than revolvers. In fact, they had more firepower. 

· They had shotguns, MP-5"s, and other types or weapons that they 
had ·requested. 

So the short answer to that is, the raid team planners developed 
a list of not only the equipment but the ammunition and weapons 
they needed, and all of those requests were provided. 

Mr. HUGHES. I have received informatic;m also that when the 
agents mobilized in Waco, TX, you had 100. agents roughly, many 
in battle fatigues, and that the population saw this mobilization. It 
was the talk or the town. Any substance to that? 

Mr. HIGGINS. We had a number of agents there. The agents who 
were actually part of the SRT's trained and stayed in Fort Hood 
and assembled the morning or the raid, and that was approxi­
mately--

Mr. HUGHES. What time was that? 
Mr. HIGGINS. I will check and get it exactly. Approximately 8 

that morning. 
Mr. HUGHES. The raid was at 9:30? 
Mr. HIGGINS. Closer to 10, I believe. 
Mr. HUGHES. OK I understand that the agents were using walk­

ie-talkies which were being monitored locally. Any substance to 
that? 

Mr. HIGGINS. No, we had a DES system, which is an encrypted 
secure system, so nothing to that. . 

Mr. HUGHES. There also was some information that has come to 
my attention that once the squad leaders were eliminated, there 
was no ability to communicate from squad to squad. Any substance 
to that? 

Mr. HIGGINS. Incorrect. 
Mr. HUGHES. That is not correct? 
Mr. HIGGINS. Not true. 
Mr. HUGHES. OK. Did ATF at any time consult with any psycho­

logical or psychiatric experts on mind control, cults or what have 
you? 

Mr. HIGGINS. I would have to provide that. I can't say categori­
cally whether we did or not. 

(The information follows:) 
ATF did not. consult with any experts. psychiatric or otherwise. on mind cont.rol 

or cults. However, contact was made with the ATF S/A assigned to the 1-'8( Behav­
ioral Science Unit, Quantico, Virginia. 

Mr. HUGHES. Was the Department of Justice in the loop at this 
point at all? 
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been able to confirm that any semiautomatic weapons were ille­
gaiJy converted to fully automatic weapons within that compound? 

Mr. HIGGINS. I will have to take a pass on that. The search war­
rant has not been returned yet and the evidence at the scene is 
still being worked. When that. is returned. I think it will be clear 
in terms of what was there. but I tannot comment in tenns of speC'· 
ificity. • · 

Mr. SCHIFF. Can you answer then generally, how difficult is it to 
convert a semiautomatic and legal weapon to a fully automatic and 
illegal weapon? 

· Mr. HIGGINS. Not terribly difficult, given the proper material and 
books. I could not do it personally p but I am sure with some time 
either one of us could easily. . . 

Mr. SCHIFF. Mr. Chairman, thank you for recognizing me. I will 
yield back at this time. . · 

Mr. BROOKS. MT. Canady, the gentleman from Florida. 
Mr. CANADY. Thank yo~ Mr. Chairman. I ~ould like to follow up 

on some of the questions about the media policy of the AFT very 
briefly. I don't want to replow any ground there, but it wasn't clear 
to me, although I would assume that there is a written media pol-

icyMr. HIGGINS .. There is a written media policy and I think Con­
gressman Hyde asked for a copy and we wiU provide a copy to. the 
committee. · 

Mr. CANADY. I wanted to make sure if it had not been asked for 
that we would receive that. 

I want to similarly ask for a copy of any written media policy 
that the FBI might have. I think that would be helpful, Director 
Sessions. 

Mr. SESSIONS. I would be pleased to supply that. 
Mr. CANADY. Thank you. very much. 
I would also like to follow up on an issue that was raised earlier 

about the timing of.when you at ATF, Director Higgins, obtained 
probable cause to arrest Koresh. If I understood your testimony 
earlier, you indicated that it was not too long before the warrant 
. was actually obtained. 

I will tell you, quite frankly, that is at variance with information 
we were provided in a briefing by persons from your Department. 
It was my understanding, based on that information, that you had 
probable cause to arrest him in October. 

Would you like to address that? · . 
Mr. HIGGI~s. I am not sure of what was said to you in the brief­

ing, but we had a briefing at headquarters, and I believe it was in 
December, with respect to the probable cause that had been gath­
ered to that point. 

It was the decision of our Associate Director revieWing this, and 
that is who I got my information from, that he was not convinced 
we had probable cause to do that and asked we get m·ore informa· 
tion. It went back out and we didn't get it until February. 

So that is my best information fTom the person that was part of 
the infonnativn process. If we misled you in our briefings as to 
other than that, it was unintentional 

Mr. CANADY. So you feel quite confident there was not probable 
cause to arrest him any time prior to December? · 
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Mr. HIGGINS. David ·may want to expand on .that. 
Mr. CANADY. Mr. Troy. ' 
Mr. HIGGINS. We have infonned the committee on that once 

today. 
Mr. CANADY. If Mr. Trol wants to address that, and it is cer-. 

tainly related to Mr. Watts questions, and we need to make sure 
we are getting the straight story on that. 

Mr. TROY. When you actually have probable cause to effect an ar­
rest can vary greatly in any Investigation, and of course we were 
working with the U.S. attorney's office to get probable cause that 
was satisfactory to thena: We were also developing probable cause 
satisfactory to our own leadership within ATF. 

In addition to that, we had a tactical plan that had to be devel­
oped to execute the arrest and search warrants which we had not 
yet done. · 

When you put those three together, it is very difficult to pin an 
exact date and say on this date we had probable cause. We can do 
that, but we may not have had the other issues in line to actually 
go forward. · . 

Mr. CANADY. I understand that even though you had probable 
cause to obtain a warrant, you might not have had a plan together 
for stonning the compound. I understand that issue. 

But what I was trying to get toF and which I think is important, 
is, when you actually had what you needed to get a warrant to ar­
rest him-because that I think is certainly related to whether some 
attempt should have been made at an earlier point when he was 
leaving the compound to actually remove him as the leader of that 
group. Maybe we would have seen a little different scenario follow­
ing that. 

I don't know that it might have turned out the same way. I think 
that is an issue we have to look at. 

Mr. HIGGINS. The best information I had, that was given to me 
this morning, is that we didn't have it until mid-February, but I 
will get you the specifics. · 

Mr. CANADY. I appreciate that very much. 
[The information follows:] 

ATF first received information regarding Howell's activities on June 4, 1992, from 
Lt. Gene Barber, deputy sheriff, McLennan County, Texas. The original information 
received from Lt. Barber was eventually corroborated during June, July, and August 
1992. Additional inforination was developed through interviews with prior members 
of the Branch Davidian c:ult and others who had tieen inside the compound. During 
this period when frobable cause was being fully established the ATF S/A assigned 
the Vernon Howel investigation stayed in contact. with the Assistant U.S. Attorney. 
As early as the latter part of November 1992. he was told by the Assistant U.S •. 
Attorney that it appeared there was enough probable c:auae for a historical search 
wan-ant. However, ATF did not. feel it had enoutPt infonnation to fonnulate a tac­
tical plan and oontinued to pursue the investigataon. One of the last pieces of infor­
mation that supported probable cause was obtained on January 25, 1993, during aa··· 
interview with fanner c:ult member. David Block in Loa Angeles, California. This in­
formation dealt with Block's conversations with cult member Donald Bunds, during 
which Bunds showed him oomputer drawings of plana for a machinegun and told 
him of Howell's request for Bunda to help in the manufacture of such weapons. 

Mr. CANADY. Let me ask you something else now, Director Hig­
gins. Do lou know if there was a listening device placed in the 
compoun prior to February 28 or if any attempt was made to 
place a listening device in the compound? 
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' Mr. ~HIGGINS. No, there- was not. , 
Mr. CANADY .. Do you believe that the placement of a listening de­

vice in the compound might have helped facilitate the planning of 
the raid and the actual execution of the raid? · 

Mr. HIGGINS. It migl-lt have helped that, but it would have been. 
contrary to the laws of the United States. To plant a listening de­
vice, we have to be able to show we cannot gather infonnation in · 
any other fashion and that the listening device is being used to do 
that. 

We were able to gather probable cause followin.g other law en­
forcement practices. So while I am not an attorney, my understand• 
ing is that we could not have used that device given the fact 
that-- ·· 

Mr. CANADY. Let me ask you if it had been legal,. would it have 
been helpful? . . 

Mr. HIGGINS. It would have been helpful, especially on the day 
of the raid if the wordsJr "they are coming, they are coming, and we 
know they were anned. · . 

Mr. CANADY. OK. Thank you very much.· Quickly I have one 
more question. How many and what governmental agencies were 
involved in the February 28 raid? I want to know who was involved 
in any way. · . . 

Mr. HIGGINS. We had-in addition to tne· ATF agents, we had 
representatives from the Immigration and Naturalization Service. 
·I think there was one agent from the Drug Enforcement Agency. 
There were officials from the various, from the sheriffs depart-
ment. I am not sure about Waco. · 

Mr. CANADY. What about the National Guard? 
Mr. HIGGINS. The National Guard. 
Mr. CANADY. Let_ me specifically ask you, when were officials ·of 

the National Guard informed about the impending raid and asked 
to participate? 

Mr. HIGGINS. Dave may know the answer. I don't know the date. 
Mr. TROY. I don't know the specific date. They were obviously 

contacted and made part of the raid plan but we would have to get 
the actual date for you. . 

Mr. CANADY. If you could provide that to us, I would appreciate 
it, and also detail their exact role an<;l how many pepple they had 
involved in the operation. 

Mr. HIGGINS. Absolutely. · . 
Mr. CANADY. Thank you, Mr. Chainnan. 
[The information follows:] 
On February 2. 1993, William R. Enney, fnteragency Coordinator, Counterdrug 

Support, Texas National Guard, was officially notified and briefed on support needs 
for t.he upmming raid. · . 

Mr. BROOKS. Thank you very much. 
Mr. Goodlatte, the gentleman from Virginia, is recognized. 
Mr. GoooLATTE. Tliank you, Mr. Chairman. . 
Gentlemen, I want to thank you for appearing today and also for 

the briefings that various of your deputies presented. You have 
been cooperative and helpful, and this is a djfficult situation. . 

I do think that while the blame here clearly rests with Mr. 
Koresh, the respo·nse did encounter a number of problems. I am 
concerned about the communication between your agencies. And a 
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The threshold question I ~sked Yas ~hether the gas would c~u~e p~ manent 
injury to the children. I did not even ~ant to c~ngider the matt_r furt~~? 
if we could not be certain aboYt this factor; The FBI a~~~r~d m that th~ 

,f·gas w~uld nob,fause ~ermanent injury. I asked them to reg~~rc~ f~Yth~r. 
~nd subsequently they ~rranged for me to meet ~ith a t~p 

~&~pert in to~icology, Yho is chJuf of the Life Sciences Department ~t the 
·· EdQ~wood Arsenal. He reYiewed ~ith me case studJes that confirm~d that it 
:• "-'•;••Jlc.i.fh'ot car.tse permanent.;:·lnjrJry. · · , ~ ·· 
~~ . ·~J . • . . 

Then the pri.ncH'Y q•.testi'=•n I asked again and again d•.tring f:t.e en!:•.rir•:;J 
discus~ion was ~why now? Why not ~ait?" I asked about thei~ food· ~nd 
water supply and was told that it could last at least a ·year ~r more. I 
C\ S k ecf t h a t t he i n f •:• r m a t b::e n C\ b •=• t.t t the W ci\ t e Y S IJ p p} ~·· be C t'J i!? C ked '~ nd d •:•IJ b 1 e 
r. he c ked by r.:• b s e r vi n g the 1 e.,. e 1 i n the '""a t e r tanks • · "'e e.:~ p 1 •:• red b •.t t c •:ot.r! r:1 
n•:•t devel•:•p £\feasible meth•:•d fr:•r c•.ttting •:lff their ~ater s•.tpply. 

I asked my staff to have direct personal discyssions· by phone with th~ 
chief neootiator on· the scene to satisfy oursel~es that we h~d, indeed, 
reached ;n impasse·ln disc~~sions, in'negotiations. After a two and a half 
hour conversation, that se~~ed clear. · · 

I became convinced that short of allowing David Koresh to go free~ he 
uas not coming oYt voluntarily.· Given that un~cceptable res~lt and in 
light of the fact that he was such a dangerous criminal, ~!lowing the 
sta,Ys qyo to remain \Jas not going to lead to an oltim~te pe~ceful. 
res6lution and eliminate any risk to the safety of the innocent children in 
the compound, the public at large, or the government agents at the scene. 
On the. contrary, the passage of time only increased ~he likelihood of D 
incidents and possible inJuries and at ed injuries and harm. tl 

BrJt CJe Jn th~~e·c~o~t~rrlsiieliiolfll~i''i-'irlidlellii~~~~~-ue met uith ~sp) and' 
fr.•rmer and present commanders o a F·~_rce, respectably, the An~~.....z.;.&.ilol~-
equivalent to the FBI's HRT, to revieu the plan. Their co~ments uere 
inst.r•.tctive. {}JhiJ~ indicating that the plan appeared· to be S•:t•Jnd;1one 
sYggestion was that rather than an.incrementaJ approach to use ---~6 the 
''se of the gas as proposed by the FBI, gas should be inserted into all 
portions of the compoYnd simYltaneously. · 

I preferred the FBI approach, which called for a gradYal increa~e in 
pressYre over time. It seemed to me that that uoYld be best to ensyr~ t~~ 
safety of those inside. I directed that if at any point Koresh or his 
1·=-ll•:•wers threatened t•;, harm the children, the FBI sh•:••.tld ceage the ~~;f-·a·'h9 
immediately. Likeuise, if it appeared that as a result of the initi~-? 
t:ef tEtaY gas •=·=· ~sh \JC.S prepared to neg•:otiate in g•:u:•d faith f•:•r his •.tlti.n .. ~~.:.! 
sYrrender, the FBI uas to cease operations. On tha ~~~-- L--J 
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~~d his f~l!QYer~ e~d~nger~d the ~g~nts by firin9 upon them~ ~he~ ~G,~ 
auth~~!:ed t~ raturh the fire. 

T·.:· the gr~at: cr·~dlt of f:h~ FD!, t:t.e·:.; received s•.tbst.:;nt.ial firE? ir··:·m 
•.Jithin the t:•.:•mp•:.und b·:d:h at the .yehiclt:'s ~nd at sniper- p•:•!::iti·:·n~ 
s•.trra:••.tndino tt.e c•:•mpo•.tnd withodt returning arty fire. In f.:.ct, thr-•:••.tph·:·•.t'; 
the 5J d~y siege, the FBI neYer fired a single shot. Inste~d, Yhen fi,~~ 
•.tp•:on, the FBI reEpo:•nded b;.t beginning t•:t inser-t gas thro:••.tgh•.:••.tt the c•:·mp•:•qr.r1 
cc•nsistent with •.Jh~t the Delta F•:•rce C•:•mmancfer-s had s•.tgpested. C.: ___ .~ 

The commander-s also expres~ed concern ~bout the length of time th~ ~1F1 
had b~en on the scene in a state of constant re~diness, and ~11 ~~pre~s~d 
the view that the team would have to be pulled back for retr-ainino vpr~ 
quickl~; if they 1.JeYe g•:.ing t•:• C•:•me b.:.ck t·:· the scene. Al r 11\d'liS~~j that 
there was not a substitute civil force that could secure the exten~!ve ~r~~ 
a~C•I.tnd the cc•mp•:••.tnd that hC'.d .thP. e~peYtise of the tf,:.st~ge r:Resc•.u1 T~am. 

We continued deliber-ations. I w~nted and rec~ived a5sur~nceg that th~ 
9'='C3 ~nd its means of •.1se '""-:?re not. pyr•,:,technic .. l uas c•:•ncerned ab•:•r.it 
in·:enti•:•nal •:-•r accidental e:qll•.,~i·='nc:; and •:•rdered that ~dditi-:-•Tlal res·:••.•rc~:: 
be provided to ensure that there uas an adequate emergency re~ponse if ~~ 
sh~uld go forward. 

I ~lso consider-ed th~t ~oresh had tal~ed about 5uicide, ~nd that miGht 
•:•cc•.!r at an;.t time under- c•:•nditions thc:tt: the FBI might be les~ lil::ely f.:·:· 
co~trol. E~perts, however, ~dvised the Bureau that the chances of suicid~ 
were n•:•t likely, br.t~ I aga~h emphasi:=e. that it uas s•:•mething that'""~= 
~onsidere~, something that -~~s conside~ed that might happen at ~ny point 
along the way, rega~dless of"what the FBI did. 

In considering the FBI proposal, I weighed the many concRrns of th~ 
government with respect to the state of affairs 
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YLEASF. CRF.DIT ANY QUOTF.S OR EXCERPTS ~ROM THIS NBC PROGRAM TO •NBC'S 
MEET THF. PRF.SS." 

MR. RUSSF.RT: And welcome Leek t.o •Me-et. t.be Pr~ss. • Wii.b us nov, 
t.he Secretary of Defense, William Perry, end joining me- in t.he­
quest.ioning, Ed Rebel, vho covers t.he Pentagon for NBC News. 

Mr. Secret.ery, welcome. 

S~C. PERRY: Thanks, Tim. 

MR. RUSSF.RT: A couple questions c.m Oklahoma City. Timo·l.hy 
n~Veigh vas e memL~r of the United St.et.es military. Whet. can you t.Pll 
us about. his background? 

SEC. PF.RRY: I can't. t.ell you much about. it., Tim. He left t.h~ 
military about. five- years ego. We've.t.urned his records overt.~ t.hP 
Flil. ThPy have- 'lht=om, so vhen I 'lr·ied 'l.o get. e lit. t.l e a ore beckgrceund 
infor·mat.~C.ra ora it., I'm ebs~nt. t.he- r·t=ocords right. nov. 

M~. RUSSERT: Was ht=o iravol ve-d in 'lbe- Pe:r·sien Gulf var·? 

S~C. PERRY: I don't. knov t.h~t. for sure. 

MR. RUSSERT: Was ht=o honorably discharged? 

SEC. PERRY: Don't. knov 'lhat. tor sure. 

MR. RUSSF.RT: Whet. about. t.he Nichols <ph) brothers? They also 
were meabers of the United States military? 

SEC. PF.RRY: I understand that. also. We've also turned t.heir 
records over t.a the F~I. 

MR. RUSSERT: As secretary of Defense, is it. t.roubling t.hat. 
there's so auch discussion in t.he- papers. that. t.he-se rt=oct=ont.ly r~le-ased 

erens are m~t. in t.he military and are using some ot t.heir skills 
t.ake part. in t.hese kinds of activities? 

SEC. PERRY: The people vho c~omprise these t.er·ror·:l et. gr·our:•s all 
~ver 'lhe vorld are not. necessarily military. ~ame of t.ht=om aay hav~ 
.ETX 

z 0040575 



' NBC PERRY 
04/2:)/95 

PAGE 2 

• STX 

~m~ ~r~m th& military. They ere generating ~h~ir ovn military. This 
li~ie is making their ovn bombs and ~hey're developing their avn 

~~chniques, so I don't think you need -- 1 don't believe it is 
appropriate to couple ~he militia groups, the ~errorist groups, vith 
~he U.~. military, and I very much resent any connection between ~he 
u.s. military and terrorist groups. The U.S. military, ~he U.S. · 
Defense Depar~ment, ~s playing an important role -- not the primary 
role, but an important role -- in trying to counter terrorism. 

MR. RUSSERTl In a letter sent to A~torney General Reno in 
October, however, it vas stated -- and there vas also a discussion in 
many publications .;._ that active duty personnel in ~be military ar·e 
actively helping ~hese citizen militias. Do you have any evid~nc~ of 
~hat? 

S~C. PERRY: What soldiers do -- what military people do on ~hPir 
ovn time is no~ something ve kPep records of or maintain contr~l of. 
We do not hav~, no -~ hut to answer your question, ve don't havP -- I 
don't bav~ detailed records or information ~hat sugg~st that point i~ 
~:orrec'l. 

Mk. RliSS~kT: In Mic:higan, J=•Brt c•f 1:.he Mic.:higan mili tie &1:.1:.empted 
'Lo ~ak~ ovpr· an armor·y which hc.•used some CJld Russian ~anks. Wlaat can 
you 'l~ll us about ~ha~? 

SEC. PERRY: l don '1:. have any backgr·our•d or• that informa1:.ion, 

•• 
Mk. RUSSERT: Will th~ United States military he more involved in 

d&£ending federal installations in the £uture? 

SEC. PERRY: Th~ -- 'lhe basic problem of a democracy of 
protecting itself against extr·emists without giving up its democracies 
is a very difficult one. The Defense Department, of course, is not. 
~he pri~ary vehicle for doing this -- our lev enforcement agency is. 

·w~ do play, as your question suggests, a supportive role. Our 
supportive role in Oklahoma City vas not only in assisting in the 
relief ~fforts and ~he humanitarian efforts, but also assisting th~ 
lev enforcemen~ agencies. We do assist lev enforcemen~ agencies in 
many important. ways, end I'd be happy ~o discuss that if you wen1:.~d ~~ 

yo i.n'lo ~hat. 

MR. RUSSF.RT: Please. 

S~C. PERkY& We have, !or example, a logistics support. Our C-~s 
11ev thP crime labs out to Oklahoma City, and ve have very substantial 
logi~tics support being used in support. of both th~ FAI and 'lhe FEMA. 

The FEMA, Ly thP vay, is doing a magni£icent job working ~his. 
We have !'t~0 Defer.se D~par·tmen~ p~rsonr•el in Oklahoma Ci 1:.y today, as ve=o 

ak, including 300 !rom the Oklahoma National Guard. They're 
~ing in search and rescue, 'lhey're working in medical relief. Rut 

.ETX 
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~n th~ lev enforcement, vhich is ~he ~hrust of your question, ve have 
ovid~d surveillance equipment and ve vill continue ~~ provid~ 

.. ~rveillance equipmen~ --not ~nly as dealing with ~he inv~stjgati~n 
after ~he .fee~, but in trying ~~ find ways of pr~vPnting -- ~quipmPnt 
vithin the laws. There are very strict laws controlling haw ~hat can 
b~ used relative to U.~. citi%PnS. 

And then ~h~re•s a v~ry importan~ -- very important -- unjqu~ 
role in the Defense De,:•ar·tmen~ in J•r·eventing ~hP weap~na of masE; 
d~str·ucti~n .from get.t.ing into t.h~ hands of t.er·rorists. Nuclear 
weapons, biological weapons, chPmical weapons. D~.fense Vepartmpnts 
ttll over· t.he world make 'lhose weapons and ther·e.fore thPy have a 
~p~cial r~le in trying to prevent them fr~m getting in~o ~he hands ~1 
t.f:'rror i st.s • 

MR. RUSSF.RT: The United States military·vas also involved in the 
plartrtir,g o! the raid in Waco tvo years ago, is that cor·r·e-ct 'l 

SEC. PERRY: We provided t.echnical assistance and equipment to 
~av enforcement agencies in that one, yes, ~hat is correct. 

MR. RUSSERT: Is there any indication that this is something morP 
than a domestic terrorist group? Have you sensed any linkage or 
sponsorship by any .foreign government thus .far? 

SEC. PERRY: I•m not aware of any such linkage, Tim. 

Mk. RUSS£RT: Let's turn --

SEC. PER~Y: The FBI is pursuing 'lha~, along vith many !Pads, hu~ 
1 em not aware o! that. linkage. 

MR. RUSBERT: Assuming that this particular incidPnt vee th~ 
r~sult o!.t.he sickness o1 domestic 'lerrarjst.s, t.hPre continuPs, 
however,: ~o be a ~hreat of international ~errorism. Hov serious ie 
:i.~'l 

··t 

SEC. PERRY: I regar·d 'lhat as one o! the m~rf:' ser·i c•us secur·i ty 
~hrea'ls .facing tbf:' nation today, particularly if the intPrnational 
~f:'rrorists are ahle 'l~ get their bands on the weapons o! mass 
d~struction, as I men'lioned earlier, and one of the particular and 
Vf:'ry specific actions t.bat the Defense Department has 'laken is t.rying 
~~ keep t.t~ose weapons out of the hands of terr·orist groups -- a very 
difficult _and a very challenging task. 

MR. RUSSERT& I am told ~bat in Pentagon planning, we assume that 
ever th~ next decade a terrorist group will have the capacity and 
will. in fact, detonate a nuclear veapon. ls that true? 

SEC. PERRY& We have contingency plans for many, many di.f.fer~nt. 
events. That•s one particular contingency plan we•ve studied ~o knov 

t we can do, first of all, to help preven'l it, and vbat ve can da 
~eact to it that happened • 
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Subject : Inquiries on Waco/Parami~itary Groups 

--------------~----~3----~-·--------- Text ------~--------------------.;.:..._·:._ ____ _ 
came by to give us a heads up that JTF-6 and .· 

DEP&S have received several media requests on military support to the·.· 
FBI/ATF Waco operation. He has cautioned people in his office not to 
represent that JTF-6 support constitutes all of the military support · 
provided. He told them that any comprehensive response should be 
coordinated with the Army. I told him that DAMO-ODS and NGB would 
be aware of other· support. Apparently there have also been 
inquiries about a possible JTF-6 buildup for activity against 
paramilitary groups. Of course, JTF-6 has responded that it has no 
involvement with these groups. · 
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. beyond tlaat, apd wk about removing azu~ destroying files, and 
that, to me, is.somewhat unusuaL · · 

fl, Mr. • Yes sir, I think it is. I will note f'or the record, 
\.!l that .aS far as I have been able to determine, Treasury has not live a 

up. to the promise to correct .the ~tmel records to reflect the set­
tlement. But leaving that aside the insistence, by Treasury, on re· 
moving these files f'rom the public record, was either unique or rare 

. in the •. s before the. Merit System Board. 
@ Mr. . ·That is my understanding. 
0. Mr. I have limited experience and I will tell you, I 

had never heard· of doing that, taXing a fife that had been made 
a part of a public record in c:ourt. Ms. 7 Iilla a f'onner judge 
with the Merit System Board, and I am looking at her, to make 

· sure I am being accurate here. This is, I think, Unheard of by her, 
in several hundred, or ~en several thousand matters that the 

. ..Board Ill sonsidered. .j,& . 

~
Mr. •• . Mr. , I believe your time has expired. 
Mr. -.a. ·Who insisted, at Treasury, on that? 
)Mr. . I wouldtp,st call it rather a monolith. They were 

ust the other side, Mr. ~and the}.' would not settle with us 
without it, and we did not feel that 1t was worth fighting with 
Treasury in order to get our guys back to work. 

0 Mr ..... OK. I thank the witness, and I appreciate the chair· 
man's indUlgence. (fi) 

3 Mr. . l· Mr ..... you have 5 minutes. 
Mr. 7 m Thank you, M&Gha.ipnan. · 
I would like to ask Mr. •• pwe have heard a great deal of 

inf'onnation and insinuations in the last few minutes, the last cou· 
pie hours, about you ·and yo_ur eolleagues made up the possibility 
of the existence of a meth lab in order to justify not havmg to pay 
for the sup~rt of the National Guard for the helicopter. 

You have heard some of this. I am shocked, if that is the case. 
• Let me ask you some ·specific ~ons about the possibility of· 

the meth lab. . 
Did r.ou simply make up the Idea of' the drug nexus to get sup· 

port Wlthout pa~g for 1~? · 
@ Mr. & lluid, first of all, I bad noth!ng to do with that, and 

I absolutely made up nothing about a drug lab. In f'act in our pre~ 
arations ·ror the· raid, we were taking mto· consideration the possi· 
bllity that there would be a drug la6, and bad DEA ~ents stand· 

~Jng &y at the command post to come in, if' the lab was f'ound. 
~ Mr. So your men had prepared themselves with what. 

ever equipment, because· there are some chemicals that you have 
· to deal with, and so on, and so forth? · 

@\ Mr. Not specific eq!lipment, but we did discuss the pos· 
aibllity of it being the~ and the cautions that need to be taken in 

· the event that a meth lab, a dfmumtled meth Jab was located. 
• Mr. [ · May I respond to that? 
Mr. _ Yes, sir. 
Mr. I •• We felt that the potential existed f'or a meth lab@ 

to be there. Historically, everybody's awam that there had been the , '\ \>! 
components for a lab back in the late 1980's. ~n· 

. . tended ~ he was some to ~v~ that back tD the sherifrs depart­
ment. 

... 
-··· ······-·---

.. ... 
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@ l! 6 ; the i~vestlgating 
Ul's epartment and found that no su 

. ~t least one of the receipts that J: 
things that were coming into the ma 
eluded a list of assorted glassware a 
might be precursor chemicals. He pa.1 

At the time of the raid on Februar 
supervisor on board in the command· 
ing by f'or a call in case we did find 
Jab, so that they could take over thAt 
that area safe while we began our sea 

(1'1) Mr.. . So when you say he w 
standmg by at? 

@. Mr. The DEA supervf~ 
.~n Waco, and his people· were stancm'i 

I Mr. I want to go back-
:1r. S Can I "dd a little mor ~ 
Mrr. I amTh soinfcrry. Mr.. g 2!!> 

· e onnation-yo· 
d explosives investigation. All this 

lab came to us from other people in 
s~urt records f'rom Miehigan that wen 
t1on, you know, came to us. There wat 
· There was another individual, Mr. I 

the compound, and he had a-he was t 
he had an amphetamine conviction. HE 
~d you know, a lot of times some 

nuhtary today, they talked about "VIc 
addressing it like a lab. case." They " 
and when they are working with DE 
meth lab because that is what the who1 

Our ease was a fireanns and explos 
'!as ~ere,. we were taking preparatior: 
tigating this. 

.. It just turns out the fn!onnatfon jw 
Davidians, or whatever; and when tlieJ 

\;. just tumed over, you know, their cria: 
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Davey .Aguilera, the investigating agent, checked with the sh~r­
ifl's department and found that no such incident had occurred. 

At least one of the receipts that Davey found in his research of 
things that were coming into the mag bag, into the compound, in- · 
duded a list of assorted glassware and chemicals that he thought 
might be precursor chemicals~ He passed that infonnation to DEA. 

At the time of the raid on February 28, we had a DEA lab team 
supervisor on board in the command post. His lab team was stand­
ing by for a call in case we did find those kinds of chemicals or a 
lab, so that they could take over tluat very sensitive area of making 
that area safe while we began our search of the premises. 

.Mr. CONDIT. So when you say he was standing by, where was he· 
standing by at? · 

Mr. CHOJNACKI. The DEA supervisor was In the command post 
in Waco, and his people were standing by at their office, I believe. 

'Mr. CONDIT. I want to go back--
Mr. SARABYN. Can I ~dd a little more to that. 
Mr. CONDIT. I am sorry. Mr. Sarabyn. :''· 
Mr. SARABYN. The information-you know, this was a fireanns 

and explosives investigation. All this information about th~ · metli 
lab came to us from other people in affidavits, there were some • 
court records from Michigan that were about this. All this iriforma-= 
tion, you know, came to us. There was nothing that we sought out. tc 

·· There was another individual, Mr. Butler, who was a resident at 
the compound, and he had a-he was there from 1990, or 1992, and 
he had Jm amphetamine conviction.' He got 3 years. 

And you know, a tot of times some of the conversation with the 
military today, they talked about, "VIe might. have not have been 

·.· addressing it like a lab case." The)' work with DEA all the time, 
and when they are working with DEA, they are focusing on the 
meth lab because that is what the whole case is about. 

Our case was a ill'eanns and explosives case. We were aware it 
was thete, we were taking preparations, but never were we inves­
tigating this. 

It just turns out the information just kept coming out from ex­
. Davldians. or whatever; and when they asked us what is there, we 
just turned ·over, you know, their criminal histories or the afiida· 
vita. 

Mr. CoNDIT. I would like to get back to that, but I would like to 
ask Mr. Chojnacki to respond to this, to the planning. Besides the 
dynamic .entry. what other optlons were considered? Why were the 
other options rejected, and what would you do different today? 

Mr. CHOJNACKi. We had probably considered any gamut· i~ag­
lnable. Some or the people that were on the planning committee 
came to me afterwards, and said that they were surprised at how 
much latitude I gave them to free-think the different kinds of. tech· 
niques that we might exercise. ., · · 

We had talked abou~ waitlrlg for the arrest W81T8nt to be ap­
p!!W_e&J, and teyiJJg to take DaVid Koresh off' at some other location. 

I haft hearil testimony earlier re~ that kind of scenario, 
and one or the tJUn_ma that we eonsldered very strongly in that area 

. was that Jf we had hfm in our custody, while we still had him In 
our custody, if his people foun~ out, beCause of his supporters, who 

/ 
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down the lab. The DEA supervisor was there to initiate that action, 
Jf it was actually there. 

Mr. BUYER. DEA-certified. The question is OSHA-certified. So 
30u are not OSHA-certified to take down a meth lab. Mr. Sarabyn, 
~y~? . 

Mr. SARABYN. No, sir. · 
Mr. BUFORD. I am certified to execute a warrant, secure the 

. premises, and ea11 in the OSHA.l have taken the DEA training on 
how to secure the area prior to the OSHA team coming ln. . 

Mr. BUYER. With regard to some of the testimony of other wit­
neSses about the dynamic entey and if there is a meth lab, you 
don't go in shooting, and the concerns, was that talked about in the 
planning, the tactical planning stage? Yes. 

Mr. BUFORD. Yes, sir. Only briefly, because this was a tireanns 
investigation. The meth lab was very secondary and we don't nor-
mally investigate meth labs. · 

It was my understanding that if there was, in fact, a lab there, 
it would be dismantled and we were taking all precautions. Our 
agents have had the training. If they saw something that looked 
like a meth lab, they know to isolate that area and secure it until 
the proper people can get there. · . 

Mr. BUYER. Were the·three of you present in Houston at this 
meeting when the medic who testified, the panel before us, said 
that he wrote this paper on how to take down a meth lab, Sergeant 
Fitts? Were the three of you present at that meeting? 

Mr. SARABYN. I was present at that meeting. • 
Mr. BuYER. Did you receive that report from him? 
Mr. SARABYN. No. . 
Mr. BUYER. You did not? 
Mr. SARABYN. Like I said, they normally "WOrk with DEA and the 

whole 'focus of their search warrant is to get the lab. So when they 
· are working to get assisLmce. they plan it out. They go through it. 

We made all our agents aware that it was there. You know, there 
are a lot of things volatDe. We were going for explosives, also. 

Mr. BUYER. Right. 
Mr. SARABYN. So obviously, they have to be very careful when 

they come on that and deal with it. But, we had the people stand· 
lng by to assist us with that. 

Mr. BuYER. All right. Mr. Merlettl, are you famiUar wi~ any 
documents out there, that you found in your investigation, with re­
~d to the meth lab? 

Mr. MERLETI'I. Sir, In our investigation, we did find that .there 
were two DEA agents requested to be at the command post. They 
were there. · 

Mr. BUYER. OK. . 
Mr. MERLE'l'TI. Anc! two others were on calL 
Mr. BUYER. All right, that is helpful to me. 
The ATF ~ respo:use teams came fmm three separate cities, 

Is that correct? 
Mr. MERLE'ITI. Yes, tdr, 
Mr. Sa\RABYN. Yes, sir. 
Mr. BUYER. Had they evao wcrked together before? Had the re­

sponse te~ worked togethed 

.• 

455 

Mr. CHOJNACKJ. The response teat 
p~e!i~us investigations, a few year, 
DlVlSlon and the Houston Division c 
gether in a massive arrest and raic 
SRT's at that particular time. 

Some of the teams do train toge· 
training, I think it is usually two f 
gether to get accustomed to working 

!dr. BUYER. All right, I see that 1 
this. _ 

Mr. McCOLLUM. ·Thank you very n 
I think, Ms. Slaughter, you are n 

your 5 minutes? 
Ms. SLAUGHTER. I would thank l 
Gentlemen, first, I want io say he 

and .I am continually proud that yc 
when their Government asks them 
and put their lives on the line that • 

Mr. Buford, I would really 'like tC 
I really just want to let you talk. 'l 
here yesterday. Witnesses talked aJ 
1ou .wore and the kind of equipment 
mg 1t was greatly overdone. And a1t 
there were just paperweights. 

I know you made it into the wind 
der if you would tell me about the ec 
and whether or not you even found f 

Mr. BUFORD. The equipment we 
couple-1 don't know if ma'am Is tl: 
I am from the South. That is what I 

Ms. SLAUGHTER. Me, too. 
Mr. BUFORD. I have a helmet here 

rier that were actually used. . . 
Ms. SLAUGHTER. I would like to se 
Mr. BUFORD. I would like to show 
Ms. SLAUGHTER. I would like to SE 
Is it the same equipment, Mr. Bu 

killed were wearing? 
Mr. BUFORD. The vest that I am 

of the Texas Rangers has the beinj 
and, hopefully, he will have that in · 

Ms. SLAUGHTER. OK. 
. Mr. BUFORD. But, we wore a stm 
safety goggles, that are to protect 
JJUBught come along. We wore no Ka 

alaclava, the ski masks, as many 
Is Just an absolute lie on their part. 
• We wore the level 3 body annor, 

tion. Many of us had ceramic shoelr 
:;· take a high-velocity round, and ov• 
•. Which plainly Identifies us as ATF a: 
.. The vest it$elf, this is a level-S 

1

' sponse teams use a vest. that is Jar 
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ATTY GEN. RENO: Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, 'it's a great pleasure 
for me to be back here again, and I thank you for the opportunity to discuss ' 
with you the progress that we have made in the Department of Justice over this 
past year since our last oversight hearing last July. 

I am proud that the department has a strong record of accomplishment in meeting 
the challenges it faced in the past year, and I'm confident that, with your 
help, that we can continue this record of success in law enforcement and program 
implementation, not only doing it as we have, but doing it together as best we 
can. 
~s you know, Mr. Chairman, just a few weeks ago I had the pleasure of traveling 
to your home state to attend a tribal justice conference in Salt Lake City. I 
was deeply impressed with your participation and your concern for the issues at 
hand. Fundamentally, it is our ability to listen and to respect one another's 
point of view ~hat will lead to success. It's worked before. It was so evident 
in the good spirit that we both felt in Salt Lake City, and I know we will 
continue down this path, for in the end, we all need to work together in a 
bipartisan effort to confront the challenges before us. 
Let me briefly address what we've been doing at the Department of Justice to 
meet these challenges. Nothing in the department's purview is more important 
than fighting our nation's crime and violence problem. As I have told this 
committee before, effective law enforcement responses to violent crime and drug 
trafficking demand constant coordination arid interagency collaboration. At the 
federal level, as I testified last year, we are working successfully to end the 
turf wars that have plagued law enforcement for too many years, and I appreciate 
your kind and thoughtful comments about that effort. 
The department is also moving to better assist state and lo~al law enforcement 
in the fight against crime and violence in our communities. 

The strength of this growing partnership, I believe, may best be exhibited in 
the results we are beginning-to see from our anti-violent crime initiative, 
begun just over one year ago and in operation in all 94 districts. Through this 
initiative, we worked in genuine partnership with state and local law 
enforcement, implementing strategies developed at the local level to target the 
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worst offenders and effectively address the particular area's violent crime 
problems, including gun crime, rural crime, and violent drug gang activity. 
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In just this first year, we have seen greatly encouraging results, such as the 
dismantling of a violent drug gang in Louisiana. There eight gang members were 
tried in federal court, and another 35 pleaded guilty in state court to drug 
charges. The neighborhood, which had been terrorized by this gang, experienced 
a 34 percent decrease in violent crime. And this was a partnership. It didn't 
make any difference where the cases got tried. It was what was in the best 
interest of the case in that community. 
As you know, since the ·department's last oversight hearing before this 
committee, the bipartisan Violent Crime Control and Law Enforcement Act was 
enacted. .This historic piece of legislation, strongiy supported by every major 
law enforcement organization, enacted critical elements of President Clinton's 
legislative anti- crime progra~, including federal assistance of unprecedented 
scope to expand community pol'icing, increase prison space for violent offenders, 
support drug courts, end violence against women, and help stop crime before it 
starts. 
The department has been implementing this act in a non- bureaucratic and 
nonpartisan fashion. We have tailored much of our implementation toward the 
needs of state and local law enforcement.· The cornerstone of the act is the 
president's community policing initiative that will put 100,000 new police 
officers on the streets to work directly with citizens in the community to 
reduce and prevent violence. 

By cutting through the red tape, by simplifying the process, we already have 
been able to send notices of awards to more than 6,500 communities across this 
nation to help them hire nearly 17,000 new police officers. For example, our 
COPs applications forms for small towns and cities was, as Senator Biden 
indicated, only one page long so tha~ local sheriffs, small town chiefs would be 
encouraged to apply. In the coming year, we will continue our implementation 
effort, and plan to fund 21,000 adqitional officers, bringing the total for two 
years to approximately 41,000 new officers hired under the crime act. 
The department is committed to being a full partner with state and local ·· 
governments in the fight to curb violence against women. We've already awarded 
over 426,000 Violence Against Women grants to almost every state and territory 
in the country. 
An integral part of last year's crime law is the state prison grant program. By 
this year's June 1 deadline, 89 applications have been r~ceived from 38 sta~es 

for boot camp grants under this program. Future funds will be available to 
assist states in expanding correctional facility capacity to ensure adequate 
space for confin~ment of violent offenders. 
The '94 act also includes many important reforms in federal criminal law, 
including creation of a death penalty for the ·most qeinous crimes; a 
"three-strikes-and-you're-out" law to incapacitate permanently the most 
incorrigible, serious, violent offenders; a ban on assault weapons; and other 
measures to combat firearms violence, violence against women and terrorism. We 
are vigorously enforcing and otherwise implementing these measures throughout 
the country. 
We are also_working to implement the department's drug court grant program, 
which will hold offenders accountable and expand the availability of this 
critical link between criminal justice system and effect~ve treatment, which·has 
already proven successful in combatting drug crimes. 
Crime prevention is a necessary component of a balanced, comprehensive approach 
to fighting violent crime in America. The crime law's crime prevention programs 
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are strongly supported by police, prosecutors and members of both parties, who 
are working at the local level, who realize that more prisons alone are not the 
answers to the crime problem facing this country. 

Combatting the threat of terrorism on American soil or against Americans is one 
of the highest priorities of the department. Terrorist activities have claimed 
an increasing number of lives over the past decade, including those lost in the 
World Trade Center bombings, the murders outside CIA headquarters and, of 
course, Oklahoma City. The tragic events of April 19th should remind us that we 
must never forget that terrorism can strike anywhere and at any time. At the 
same time, we must do all in our power to prevent such an event from happening 
again. 
Unfortunately, in our open society terrorism is always a possibility. However, 
there are steps that can be taken and must be taken to provide the department 
with the personnel, the infrastructure and the equipment needed to detect future 
terrorist events when they are in the planning stage, or to aggressively 
investigate and prosecute them if they manage to go undetected. Indeed, the 
coordination I speak_of will only work if we have the resources to pursue and 
analyze the leads. 
To meet future threats of this nature, President Cli~ton presented to the 
Congress and the nation a comprehensive and carefully considered program to 
combat domestic terrorism, to be combined with an international terrorism 
package he previously submitted to the Hill before the bombing. Through your 
efforts, Mr. Chairman, Senator Biden, and other members of this committee, as 
you acknowledged, the Senate has recently passed the terrorism legislation that 
included most of the president's terrorism package. We greatly appreciate your 
support, and it was a great opportunity to work together in a thoughtful and 
bipartisan manner. ' 
Unfortunately, social and economic disruptions stemming from violence and drug 
abuse continues to plague our country. Although overall drug abuse has declined 
significantly since the 1980s, we are beginning to witness, as you noted, the 
development of two disturbing trends -- increased drug use and the perception of 
danger among the young and increased heroin use, eased by the availability of 
smokable heroin. We have· continued our efforts to attack international and 
domestic drug trafficking organizations that fuel the violence in our streets 
and engage in this trafficking. 
We are simultaneously fighting three equally dangerous enemies: the Cali cartel, 
heroin traffickers from Asia, and violent domestic drug gangs. On each of these 
fronts, we are working with federal, state and local enforcement agencies to 
identify and dismantle these drug trafficking organizations. As we attain 
successes against these dangerous enemies, we are attentive to those who would 
seek to replace them and are poised to devote investigative and prosecutorial 
resources to address emerging enemies. 

We have el.iminated so much of the duplication and overlap among the department's 
investigative agencies. Another example of improved coordination we have 
already seen is our strategy on the Southwest border, an area of the country 
that has not received enough attention in the past. Today the FBI, DEA, Border 
Patrol and Customs are working together with the relevant U.S. attorneys' 
offices and the Criminal Division in a coordinated initiative to target the 
major organizations responsible for importing the greatest amounts of cocaine 
and other drugs across the u.s.~Mexican border. 
As we continue to enhance our investigative and prosecutive efforts, we must be 
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aware of their effects on the prison system. One of the Bureau of Prison's 
major objectives is to continue to expand prison capacity to keep pace with 
projected population increases. 

Page 13 

I promised this committee two years ago that I would tackle immigration as a 
serious priority, and I believe I am keeping that commitment. Just recently, 
I testified before this committee on the progress we have made on this front. 
The consistent bipartisan support from this and the Appropriations Committee for 
our enforcement strategy and immigration initiatives have enabled us to increase 
the number of Border Patrol agents by 40 percent since 1993, and for the first 
time. to equip them with new technology and support so they can do their jobs 
effectively. 
We are the first administration to reimburse states for the costs of 
incarcerating undocumented aliens. We are working cooperatively with states and 
localities to verify eligibility for benefit programs of 126 agen~ies at over 
2, 000 sites nationwide, and we have nearly tripled the number of c'r~minal alien 
removals. While we have some differences, I am pleased that the bill approved 
by the Immigration Subcommittee adopts so much of the enforcement strategy 
e~compassed in the administrationis immigration bill, and we look forward to 
continuing to work with you on this effort. 
The administration is committed to the goal of expanding opportunity for all 
Americans in education, employment, and the economy generally. 

There will be no retreat from that commitment. That is why it is imperative 
that we enforce the civil rights laws of this nation in a fair, firm way, to 
eliminate discrimination. 
Those who question whether discrimination still exists in America need only look 
at the recent case the civil rights division brought against the Denny's 
restaurant chain. A situation where a group of secret Service agents, people 
who put their lives on the line to protect the president, were denied service at 
the restaurant because they were African-American. Civil Rights Division is 
addressing discrimin~tion on every front, attacking housing and le~ding 
discrimination is a high priority. A record number of new cases under the Fair 
Housing Act we~e filed in 1994, and that number will be exceeded this year. 
Enforcement of the requirements of the National Voter Registration Act has 
already, since January 1 of this year, resulted in the registration of 2,000,000 
new voters. Full implementation of the Americans With Disabilities Act is also 
important. We have sought to foster voluntary ADA compliance through a 
toll-free information line, letters and technical assistance guides, and the 
distribution of question and answer booklets. We have also sent a clear message 
to those who would commit fraud against the government that we're going to catch 
you and when we do we will make you pay. This is no more evident in our 
commitment to reduce health care fraud. 
In the last year the Department has taken numerous steps to strengthen our 
efforts against health care fraud at both the national and the local levels. 
Our new joint enforcement effort with. HHS, Operation Restore Trust, will target 
fraud in home health care, nursing homes, and the ancillary services in five 
states. 
We're committed to encouraging full use of the Keytam (ph) provisions of the 
False Claims Act, and we have worked with Senator Grassley over the last year on 
this important measure. The environment and natural resources division 
enforcement of numerous environmental laws has upheld our obligation to be 
stewards of our land and resources for future generations, to level the playing 
field for all enterprises so that we can eliminate the false choice between the 
sustained environment and economic advancement, and that we create a sense of 
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community that makes clear our environmental resources are a shared commodity 
that we can all rely upon and must respect. Enforcement of our environmental 
laws has resulted in compliance and corrections of violations, prevention of 
future harm and hazardous waste cleanup. 
A revitalized Antitrust Division has engaged in sound enforcement of the 
antitrust laws in order to protect competition and consumers in increasingly 
international and technology-driven markets. 
The Tax Division has developed an impressive record of pursuing tax debts owed 
to the United States and defending the government against unwarranted claims. 
On the vital matter of filling judicial vacancies, I commend Chairman Hatch and 
the whole Judiciary Committee for the work you have done so far this year. In 
my regular meetings with members of the Judicial Conference, they consistently 
remind me of the impact of vacancies on the nation's criminal and civil justice 
system. I know that we can continue to work together to keep up the pace and 
prevent justice from being hampered by critical judicial vacancies. 
This is only a brief summary of the progress we have made in the last year. I 
believe this is a record of which we can,be proud. There is, of course, much 
more to be done, and I look forward. to working with each one of you to build 
upon this record. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
SEN. HATCH: Thank you, General. We'll have -- we'll allow 10 minutes for 
questioning to each senator. 
And perhaps I can begin by just asking, the recent indictments of former Justice 
Department -- of a former Justice Department official and several other defense 
attorneys who were formerly assistant U.S. attorneys deeply troubles me, and I 
think many others throughout our country. It saddens me. that former Justice 
attorneys could be accused of violating the law. 
And as you know, we in Congress and many individuals in our stance have certain 
restrictions placed on us that limit our ability to lobby shortly after we leave 
Congress. Now, could. you discuss with us whether the department has in place 
any policies to restrict its attorneys' ability to leave the department and then 
represent individuals or organizations that he or she once investigated? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: There are clear, strict provisions in place to prevent a 
conflict of interest. But more importantly, there are, of course, clear laws in 
place that prevent a violation of criminal law. 

SEN. HATCH: Right. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: We will continue to review these laws to make sure -- and these 
regulations that prevent any conflict of interest or appearance of conflict, and 
do everything we can to ensure that the real privilege of serving a very great 
department is not abused by anybody. 
SEN. HATCH: Well I think that's good because it concerns me. In fact, I'm 
concerned on the other side of that equation, too, that here you have criminal 
defense lawyers who ar.e being indicted, who certainly have a right to represent 
those who come to them, and those who come to them have a right to be 
represented under our Constitution. So I'm really concerned. And, of course, 
not knowing the facts, I have to say that I'm concerned both ways on that issue. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Well, I can only comment by saying we have reviewed the matter 
very carefully and have tried to do everything we could to make sure that it was 
based on the evidence and the law. 

SEN. HATCH: Sure. I'm sure you have. And I have confidence in your efforts in 
that regard. 
General, casual drug use did decline dramatically through the 1980s and into the 
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early 1990s. And over the past two years or so, however, almost every available 
indicator shows that these gains have either stopped or have been reversed, 
particularly as they apply to young people. Now could you comment on to what do 
you attribute this reverse in the earlier downward trend that now seems to be 
going up -- upwards? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I think it's important, because as drug usage went down, what 
did go up at the same time was violence in this country, and trying to 
understand this emerging pattern of drug abuse with violence as well is a 
complicated issue that I think we must address together. 
I think it is important that we reaffirm our commitment to education and 
prevention strategies. And the president has done that. I think it is very, 
very important that we do everything we can to give our schools, through the 
Safe and Drug-Free Schools Act, the tools to ~ducate our children about the 
danger·of drugs. And I hope that we will not retreat from that effort. 
At the same time, what we have tried to do, in terms of drug enforcement, is 
recognize the havoc, the violence that it spawns. And through that initiative, 
the FBI, working with the Drug Enforcement Administration in our anti-violence 
initiative and through the DEA (METS ?) program, which is a mobile enforcement 
effort aimed at violence in particular cities,. have come together to work with 
local law enforcement in what has been a very successful effort to rout out · 
these violent drug gangs that contribute so much to violence in our community. 
And we are continuing that effort as well. 
SEN. HATCH: Well, thank you. We think that it's a combination of preven~ion 
programs and tough law en~orcement that needs to be determined. 
I was intereste~ in the Supreme Court's case yesterday, which was somewhat 
surprising to me, where Scalia and five others basically ruled that there could 
be a urinalysis of athletes, at least, in the middle and high schools. And I 
think it's a kind of an indication the court feels this is a big problem in our 
society and we have to do more about it. ATTY GEN. RENO: Well, as you know, we 
argued that case successfully. 
SEN. HATCH: Yeah, I understand -- (chuckling) -- and I'm proud of you for doing 
so. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: But with respect to your comment 
SEN. HATCH: Yeah? 
ATTY~GEN. RENO: -- on drug enforcement, what troubled me so much when I came to 
office with drug -- the drug enforcement initiative is that the DEA and the FBI 
weren't really working together. 

In too many instances, they weren't working with state and local law 
enforcement. ·The DEA might be concentrating on a drug kingpin, but then we 
couldn't get him extradited. 
What we have tried to do is develop a comprehensive, vigorous law enforcement 
initiative that focuses on the kingpins. And we have seen recent results of 
that effort in Colombia, with the arrest of a major figure in the Cali cartel by 
Colombian authorities~ ~ 
We have focused in the Far East, because we are concerned about this heroin 
problem and we want to make sure that we work together with all concerned --. 
with the State Department, with other agencies -~ to make sure that we follow up 
on the efforts that have already proven successful to date with the arrest of 
certain of those involved in the heroin trafficking coming out of Southeast 
Asia. 
And in our initiative on the Southwest border, that's another example. I found, 
when I came to office, that Customs was doing one thing, DEA another, and the 
FBI another. We now have a comprehensive enforcement effort on that border. 

z 0004022 



Page 16 
Federal News Service, JUNE 27, 1995 

I'm so proud of what DEA has done, for example, in New England, where they 
looked at the distribution networks and are working.together again with state 
and local law enforcement. 
so I share your concern that law enforcement continue to do everything it can in 
a comprehensive and coordinated way, both to deal with the traffickers abroad, 
but then to disrupt the networks that distribute it in this country and then to 
go after those violent gangs that are involved in drugs, but that spawn the 
violence which is so terrifying our community. 
SEN. HATCH: Well, I want to commend you for your leadership. 
And those who do lead the FBI and DEA and Customs -- I think they are 
coordinating as well as they ever have. And I personally have great admiration 
for the leaders of those organizations, as you know. 
Now General, we've had some exchanges about various indicia of feder~l law 
enforcement activity. In my opening statement, I mentioned a decline since 1992 
in the number of defendants prosecuted by the federal government for federal 
narcotics offenses. And although there have been a lot of victories too and a 
lot of good things that have been -- that have occurred, could you comment on 
the significance of those figures? I pointed them in my opening remarks that -­
(audio break) -- do you have -- could you just comment on that ~nd tell us what 

you think is going on there? 

ATTY GEN. RENO: One of the most disturbing things I learned when I came into 
office was that too many people played a numbers game. Agencies did ·their 
evaluations based on the number of cases brought, too often without 
consideration as to the nature of the case, whether it was a major case or 
whether it was a minor single-defendant case. I've even heard comments from ·some 
who were involved that numbers towards the end of the fisca~ year were given 
attention so as to make situation look good. 
One of the thing I have tried to do in my entire experience in law enforcement 
is never get caught up in a numbers game, but instead to focus on a results game 
and try to figure out what is in the best interest of the sase, the crime 
problem, and the community where we're focused. 

I have tried to do everything I could to avoid turf battles and credit grabbing, 
and as an example, in the Louisiana case of which I spoke, that's an example 
where some cases were better and more appropriately handled in state court and 
with a conscious, coordinated decision with local authorities we made those 
judgements,. We could have taken those cases and added to our numbers, but 
that's not in the best interest of the people in the Western district of 
Louisiana. 
Another feature that we've discovered, and I've discovered it even in my home 
jurisdiction. I used to transfer cases to the U.S. attorney's office, because I 
could get a larger amount of prison time for armed career criminals. I'm told 
now by the U.S. attorney and by the state attorney in Miami that there are more 
prison spaces available under the state system because of state construction and 
now that in many instances the state attorney is preferring to take the case 
because she can get the equal time. 
We're trying to do it, again, based on what's in the best interest of the case. 
Instead of taking five little cases we're trying to focus on the drug gang, the 
violent drug gang, the violent gang, and take ou.t the whole gang in a 
comprehensive way. · 
I think we've done a good job of trying to address the problems without getting 
caught in a false numbers game. We're getting stiffer sentences, we have 
increased the number of life sentences dramatically over these past two years, 
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and we're trying to focus on those that are at the heart of the crime problem in 
this country. 
SEN. HATCH: Well, thank you. Let me just point out that one of the things that 
worried me is -- in discussing this with drug czar Lee Brown -- he told me -- he 
quoted court personnel from some judicial districts who believed the decline of 
prosecutions was the result of, quote, "The policies of the new U.S. attorneys 
who de-emphasize the prosecutions of small scale drug offenders." Unquote. I 
hope that's not the case, but that's something I just wanted to bring to your 
attention and hope that you can follow up on. 
ATTY GEN. RENO; What we are trying to do, if the small drug case can better be 
handled in state court --
SEN. HATCH: You'd do it there. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: You do it there. If we can handle it better in federal court, 
we do it there. But the important thing is that we focus federal resources in a 
combined effort with local government at efforts that eros~ district lines, that 
cross jurisdictional lines, that involve violent gangs and that we do it the 
right way. 
SEN. HATCH: Well, thank you. My time is up. 
Senator Biden. 
SEN. BIDEN: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. General, as happy as I am with 
the way you've run your department, and I think, the way things are moving, I 
must say -- and for another hearing,just so I don't -- not be misunderstood, I 
do not think the administration's effort on drugs has been as robust as it 
should, to ·use a Washington-type phr~se. In other words, I don't think the 
job's being done like it should. I don't see -- doesn't seem to be an 
overwhelming interest on the part'of the administration to deal with the drug 
problem, but then again I've been here for six presidents, I've not found one 
who wants to deal with the drug problem. 
But let me say one thing at the outset before I go. I know you don't like the 
numbers game but if you take a look at the chart up there you will notice that 
what (Audio break) --

If I get a second round, ~'11 go back.to those things. 
But I'd like to focus on something that I think you are doing a phenomenal job 
on, and quite frankly, I'm worried that the Congress may inadvertently or 
advertently undo what you have begun. Two weeks ago, the House Appropriations 
Republicans offered this preliminary so- called 602-B allocations of 
discretionary dollars to the appropriating subcommittees in the House. And as 
you know, General, this is the first step in the appropriations process, giving 
each appropriations subcommittee for the public at large sort of a bank account 
which that subcommittee will have .to spend in each of the departments it has 
jurisdiction over, such as the Justice Department and each of the programs that 
fall within the Justice Department, such as the FBI, that are within a 
subcommittee's jurisdiction. So this is sort of the first sign of where the 
majority party, whether it's Democrat or Republican, and obviously now it's 
Republican, plans on going. 
All the authorization bills are great. All of that's wonderful. We can all talk 
about how committed we are. Budget resolutions are fine. They don't mean a 
thing. What really matters is when you get down to the Appropriations committee 
and the chairman allocat~s these 602-B allocations. This means you, as the 
subcommittee chairper.son of the committee that has jurisdiction over the Justice 
Department, gets a dollar amount, a bank account, and you divide that bank 
account up, you decide how to spend it. 
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And the House Appropriations Republicans also allocated the $4 billion in the 
Crime Law Trust Fund available from this year, and.almost $1 million from the 
Crime Law Trust Fund went to the Labor and HHS Education Sub~ommittee. 
Translated, this means that the front end of this $4 billion of the Crime Trust 
Fund, of that that's available to be allocated, only $1 million of it went to 
the Crime Law Trust Fund that the subcommittee that has jurisdiction over Labor, 
HHS and Education. And this means, translated again, that there's no way for 
tnat subcommittee to fund the several key violence-against-women programs that 
fall within their jurisdiction, including battered women shelters that the 
administration has requested $15 million from the trust fund for, enough to 
provide a week in a shelter -- a typical stay, I might-add, for 60,000 battered 
women and their families. Instead of the $15 million, and the rape education 
prevention grants, where you ask for $42 million, for a total of $67 million, 
only $1 million, only $1 million went to that subcommittee from the Crime Trust 
Fund. 
So I notice around here everybody's attacked my crime bill, but they all never 
attacked the violence against women. They're all for dealing with violence 
against women and all for dealing with the need for battered women shelters and 
rape education and all the other things that are in that legislation, yet 
you-all asked for over $60 million to fund -- no new taxes, just from the Crime 
Trust Fund, and they allocated only $1 million to the subcommittee that 
distributes these monies. (Audio break) 
ATTY GEN. RENO: (Audio break.) And as I have said on so many occasions, unless 
we start addressing violence in the home, we are never going to be able to 
address it on the streets of this country. 

The child who watches his father beat his mother comes to accept violence as a 
way of life. The American Medical Association, physicians across the. country 
are joining in now .recognizing that it's no just a criminal justice problem, but 
it's a public health problem as well and that we all must work together. The 
International Association of Chiefs of Police, in its report issued last week 
entitled "Murder in America: Recommendations from the International Association 
of Chiefs of Police Murder.Summit," call for, among other things in its 
recommendations, that we provide additional shelters for abused women and 
children. That's what police are saying -- the people who are on the front 
line. 
SEN. BIDEN: Every cop that I have ever spoken to -- and I defy anyone on this 
commit tee or in thi's Con·gress to give me any evidence to the contrary -- every 
single solitary one I've ever spoken to, on all the years working on this, say 
that the single greatest key to whether or not a woman will come forward and 
proceed with the prosecution against someone who's beaten her is if she has some 
reason to believe that her children, first, and her, ·second, ~an be put in a 
circumstance where, when he's released on bail, they don't have to share the 
same damn -- darn house with him or the same environment with him. And 
everybody talks about the key to this being battered women's shelters, which 
aren't permanent, which aren't permanent. These are to give people up to an 
average of a we~~~s stay just to collect themselves, get their fa~ily together, 
and get some help. And so I really hope all those people who say th~y really 
care about this legislation, all those people who are back home campaigning 
about how they are going to fight domestic violence with the police, understand 
that it is an oxymoron to suggest you support the legislation but will not fund, 
through an· existing trust fund -- no new taxes, an existing trust fund -- will 
not fund shelters for battered women. 
SEN. HATCH: Would the senator yield for one second? 
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SEN. BIDEN: Yeah. 
SEN. HATCH: I .want to tell my colleague that I think he's done a singular 
service in this country in working so· hard to pass that legislation, and I' 11 
just tell him flat out right now that I -- you know, I'm outraged by the lack of 
funding of that program as well, and I'll be happy to help you in this process 
to get the funding back up .there. 
SEN. BIDEN: Well, I -- SEN. HATCH: There are a lot of other programs I wish we 
could raise funding for, too. And you know, we have to face these problems, but 
I really believe that this is one we just have to do, because it's not just that 
they prosecute and are willing to testify against a -- {audio break). 

SEN. CHARLES GRASSLEY (R-IA): (In progress) -- the Anti- Electronic Racketeering 
Act of '95, and from sitting on the board of the Office of Technology 
Assessment, as Senator Kennedy -- and Senator Hatch does as well, and the Office 
of Technology Assessment has recently indicated that organized crime and that 
drug cartels are entering the electronic age in a very big way and they're, in 
the process, making it very difficult to find criminal assets. 
I intend that my bill and hope that my bill, as drafted, goes a long ways 
towards putting a stop to that. The bill would amend RICO t~ cover criminal 
activity committed by computer and apply U.S. computer crimes to overseas 
computer users who use their computers to (commit ?) crimes in our country. 
So in- announcing that to you, Attorney General Reno, I'd also like to urge my 
colleagues to take a good look at that bill and see if they could support it. 
My first question is a follow-on ~f my interest in protecting whistle blowers in 
the federal government. And I've been involved at this_over a long period of 
time, because I think it's important to protect courageous federal workers who 
stand up against fraud and abuse of government. These good people keep the 
government accountable, I believe. 
I'm sure you know, General Reno, that the General Accounting Office recently 
issued a report highly critical of the Justice Department of handling such 
matters. I've looked into the repo~t thoroughly. I've discussed the report 
with investigators who wrote it. 
My inquiries to you have raised a disturbing issue with regard to one of your 
section chiefs, the chief of child exploitation and obscenity section. I've 
learned that this individual was promoted after it was revealed that he had 
disclosed the existence of a confidential informant who was deep undercover in 
an organized crime family. Obviously, this endangered the informant's life and 
ruined what promised to be a very successful investigation. 
The case involving the undercover agent recently settled for a small fine, so I. 
hope it's appropriate for me to ask you about it. I want to give you an 
opportunity to say why you promoted this person when you became attorney 
general. 

But regardless of your. answer on that, I would like to also follow up -­
hopefully with a commitment from you· to help me get' to the bottom of the entire 
situation, whether -- (audio break) -- regard to Ketam (ph), I hope you will 
help me be aware of efforts going on in this· town that either want to repeal 
Ketam or want to modify it to such an extent that it would be inoperative. 

I ,appreciate your department coming out in support of the constitutionality of. 
it, arguing in support of the constitutionality since you've come attorney 
general, when your predecessors weren't willing to do that. Also, the fact that 
we've tried to work together over the last two years to modify it to some extent 
-- those efforts as well. 
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But· remember in this town what you and I see as a good tool for government to 
use both to suppiement your work as well as initiate from outside of your 
department certain potential publication of fraudulent activity that· there are 
organizations, companies, associations etcetera that want to obliterate the law. 
So I'm glad that you're finding it a very useful tool because I think at your 
level in government saying it's a very useful tool will cool some of these 
efforts to modify it. 
Now, my last poirit. 'If I could ask about the failure of the Justice Department 
to appeal the Lamocchia case in Boston? This case has dealt a tremendous blow 
to copyright protection and I believe it has put American business at, an 
entirely unnecessary disadvantage. 
Could I have an explanation for that failure to appeal that case? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I don't have all the details on that Senator but we'll provide 
that to you as soon as we possibly can. 
SEN. ·GRASSLEY: Okay. Just for clarification, for everybody, the Lamocchia (sp) 
case ruled that federal prosecutors could not pursue copyright infringements 
under the wire fraud statute and pursuit of such cases -- is impprtant because 
unless someone violates copyright laws for economic reasons that person cannot 
be prosecuted. Computer hackers routinely violate copyright laws for 
non-economic reasons so wire fraud prosecutions are necessary if copyrighted 
computer software is to be protected. 
Thank you. I yield the floor. 
SEN. HATCH: Thank you. If I could just make a clarification and then we're 
going to go to Senator Kennedy. I've checked on this and have been informed that. 
the budget resolution reported by the conference committee does have full 
allocation for the Violence Against Women Act. 

I'm happy about that. So it appears that the leadership of both houses intend 
to fund-- fully fund this program. Nevertheless, I intend to work'with Senator 
Biden to make sure that that is followed through on. So I just thought I'd 
clarify that for the record. 
We'll go·to Senator Kennedy now. We're in the middle of a vote. Senator Kennedy 
is going to be the last until Senator Thurman gets back to chair the committee. 
I have to go over to the negotiations on regulatory reform, so please forgive me 
for having to do that. 
Senator Kennedy. · 
SEN. EDWARD KENNEDY (D-MA): Thank you very much. 
Welcome, General. 
One of. the very important provisions of our education programs, I think, are the 
drug-free school programs. As you're aware, that whole drug-free program was· 
eliminated in the House of Representatives upder the Republican budget proposal. 
It was cut $100 million in the Senate by the Senate Republican Budg~t Committee. 
It was restored to full funding under the Daschle amendment when we came into 
the debate on it. 
It went to the cqnference and· it came back $236-million reduction, _effectively 
cutting in half the efforts to give help and assistance to local school 
districts that are trying to deal with the problems of drug abuse and substance 
abuse in their schools. Now, not all the programs work as well as any of us 
would like. But nonetheless, being able to appropriate some funds is an 
indication of where our priorities are. I'm just interest~d, as we look through 
a Supreme Court decision yesterday about sports and high scho9ls, and as we're 
looking over these last indications from your own testimony, .whether you think 
that we ought to be strengthening the drug-free school program rather than 
abolishing it, as has been suggested by our Republican friends in the House. 
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ATTY GEN. RENO: That's why I responded to the chairman by saying that it was 
critically important that we do everything we could to make sure that there was 
funding under that Safe and Drug-Free Schools Act to address the problems that 
arise in schools. And so many of those programs do work and are working and I 
think we have seem them work over -- in past time. 

The whole effort against drugs in this country has got to be fought in the 
classroom, in the home, in law enforcement,· in prevention, education and 
treatment. And we cannot back down from that. 
SEN. KENNEDY: Well, it's certainly true that it has to be in the comprehensive 
approach, and we can't expect just the education in high schools is going to be 
enough. And I know from past testimony what has been done when 'YOU were a 
prosecutor in Dade County, what was happening in a number of the high schools 
was enormously important and a good example. 
Tomorrow, in our Labor and Human Resource Committee we're going to consider a 
youth development block grant, and that youth development block grant, which is 
going to be a block grant back to the states, is going to take all of the money 
for the drug-free schools and put it into a block grant and send it back under 
the general heading 6f a youth development program. 

I'm just wondering whether you believe that we ought to keep the designation for 
the.drug-free schools and education program and keep that money targeted or 
whether you favor ~hat we ought to block-grant that funding and let the states 
make what judgment they would, whether they would continue that program or not. 
ATTY. GEN. RENO: I think it is imperative that we do everything that we can to 
get monies to states and local governments in ways they can use it for education 
and prevention in the schools and in programs afternoons and in the evenings. 
It all goes togethei when we talk about youth development and the prevention of 
youth violence which is one of the most critical crime problems we face in this 
country today. We see younger and younger people and ironically and sadly so 
often it's not just the illegal drugs, it's alcohol as well which is illegal for 
these children. We've got to develop comprehensive initiatives that address the 
drugs, that address the violence, .that address the lack of opportunity for these 
children. 
SEN. KENNEDY: Well I appreciate and agree certainly with your priorities in a 
different area. I commend.what the administration has been doing in trying to 
free our communities from being free-fire zones with the proliferation of guns. 
With the leadership of the president, yet the Brady Bill that has passed, 
executive order to restrict the importation of cheap guns from China where we 
were becoming a dumping ground and the courage that the U.S. president had on 
the assault weapons provision. 
It so happens that under the existing law -- under the current law gun dealers 
must report to federal, state and local law enforcement agencies whenever an 
individual purchases more than one handgun in a five-day period. But the state 
and local law enforcement officials are required by law, required by law to 
~e~troy each such form and any record of the contents in no more than 20 days of 
' ; · date that such reform is received and t~erefo~e it makes it exiremely 
~.d"ficult in the tracking of illicit guns and the accumulations of various 
arsenals. Do you think that we -- if they choose that local police should be 
permitted to maintain records of multiple gun purchases in order to keep track 
of people who might be stockpiling arsenals engaging in illicit gun trafficking? · 
ATTY. GEN. RENO: I'd like to respond after more thoughtful consideration. Let 
me check, Senator, if I may see exactly where we're ·at with those efforts and 
get back to you if I may. SEN. KENNEDY: All right. 

z 0004028 



Federal News Service, HJNE 27, 1995 
Page 22 

NOTE: RESUMPTION OF SENATE-JUDICIARY COMMITTEE COVERAGE FROM TUESDAY, JUNE 27, 
1995 
X X X right. 
SEN. KENNEDY: On another issue, on immigration, there's a -- we'll be 
considering both illegal and legal immigration. And one of the proposals that 
have been made, and which I would agree with, that the incomer's sponsors should 
be continued to (be deemed ?) when immigrants seek assistance even -- well, when 
--consistent so that those that are going to be sponsoring i~migrants are go'ing_ 
to be providing wherewithal in case there is a deficiency with the immigrant and 

.a need for help and assistance to the immigrant. There's a proposal, though, to 
continue that responsibility even after the individual becomes .a, citizen. 
My own sense is that having-- once an individual becomes a citizen and·runs 
through the whole process of citizenship --·they can vote, pay taxes, even 
serve in the military -- that -- whether we ought to continue, whether you have 
any view as to the constitutionality of that. It seems to me you'd have a 
second class citizen, effectively, by maintaining that provision if the person 
is able to qualify and does become a citizen. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Our Office of Legal Counsel has examined this provision in the 
immigration bill, and it has very serious concerns about its constitutionality 
as applied to naturalized citizens. This appears -- it would deny, as you know, 
welfare benefits to certain U.S. citizens because they were born outside the 
country. This is unprecedented. Various provisions of the law restrict 
benefits to citizens, but none draw a line between naturalized citizens and 
native born. 
SEN. KENNEDY: Well I think that's the key. I think there's requirements in 
terms of responsibility which sponsors should have in terms of -- which is going 
to be significantly expanded and which I support. But the question is when they 
finally bedome citizens whether they're going to have -- be recognized with all 
of both the responsibilities of citizenship and rights of citizenship. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I think it would be ·a mistake to begin now to relegate 
naturalized citizens to kind of another status. I had the opportunity Sunday 
night to stand at Ellis Is1and, where my father had entered in 1912, and I 
wouldn't like him to have been treated any different. 

SEN. KENNEDY: Just finally on the legal services question, we'll be marking that 
legislation up very soon ;_ your own view about the importance of a federal 
legal service program. One of the options is to block-grant this, have all of 

- the states develop their own program, as versus the legal service program. It 
seems to me that one of the things that make America America is the 
Constitution, and for the 40 million Americans to have at least some opportunity 
to have rights and remedies achieved is something which is rather basic and 
fundamental. But that has been and is under assault at the present ~ime -- the 
importance of the integrity of the legal service program and maintaining it. 

Could you comment? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: The Justice Department and the administration favor 
reauthorizing the Legal Services Corporation in as strong a form as possible. 
We believe very, very strongly in the mission of it. 
And it is so important. As you point out, there·~re too many Americans who do 
not have access to legal services. The law means little more than the paper 
it's written on. They cannot have confidence in the processes of the 
Constitution, because they can't gain access to those processes that protect it. 
I think it is very important that we continue this effort. 
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Thank you very much. 
~ think we're in recess till the chair -­
ATTY GEN. RENO: Thank you. 
SEN. KENNEDY: Thank you. 
(Recess.) 
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SEN. STROM THURMOND (R-SC): The committee will· come to order. (Gavel sounds.) 
Senator Specter, I believe, is next in (order ?) . 
SEN. ARLEN SPECTER (R-PA): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you. 
Madame Attorney General, I have two questions for you relating to the incidents 
at Ruby Ridge and -- one at Ruby Ridge and one at Waco. The question I have with 
respect to Ruby Ridge relates to the promotion of Mr. Larry Potts to be deputy 
director of the FBI. 
And the sequence of events at Ruby Ridge, as I understand it, were that there 
had been an initial charge against Mr. Weaver for sale of sawed-off shotguns, 
later determined on his defense to be an entrapment defense. And Mr. John 
Magaw, director of the Alcohol, Firearms and Tobacco Unit, confirmed that it was 
entrapment, although Mr. Magaw characterized it as borderline entrapment. 
And then the tragedy at Ruby Ridge involved the killing of a U.S. marshal and 
the killing of Mr. Weaver's young son, Sam, who was shot in the back, and the 
killing of Mr. Weaver's wife. And there was a controversy as to -- there is a 
controversy as to whether there had been a change in the rules of engagement in 
the FBI standards on deadly force. Special Agent Glenn {sp), who had a key role 
at Ruby Ridge, now the special agent in charge of the Salt Lake City office, has 
represented that there had been a change in the rules of engagement. The change 
of rules, as I understand it, rela.ted to deadly force. And Mr. Potts, in a 
,conversation with me last month, May 17th, said to me that there had been no 
changes in the rules of engagement and there had been no authorization to change 
the deadly force policy. 

Before proceeding to the answer to this question, I'd like to ask my second 
question because of the time limits. And my question to you on the Ruby Ridge 
incident is, why was Mr. Potts promoted to deputy·director of the FBI while. 
there are so many open questions on Ruby Ridge, including the issue as to 
whether there is going to be a prosecution by the state prosecutor? 
And the second question that I have relates to Waco, and it relates to the use 
of the CS gas. And I note from the report by Dr. Stone from Harvard the 
consequences of the use of the gas upon minors, ~eferring to a medical study, 
refer to the consequences of first degree burns, severe respiratory distress, 
toxicity, including an enlarged liver, and serious life-threatening symptoms 
based on medical literature on the effects of that gas on infants, and the fact 
that the use of that CS gas has been banned under the Paris Chemical Weapons 
Convention, ~o which the United States is a party signatory. And my second 
question is, was the very serious impact of cs gas on children considered in its 
use at Waco? 
ATTY .GEN. RENO: With respect to the f~rst question, we had not received Mr. 
Glenn's (sp) letter before the Potts promotion was made, and what I did in that 
instance was to look at Mr. Potts' record and to take into consideration that it 
has been my longstanding policy that when someone is responsible for an 
organization, they should develop the staffing of the organization, and I 
deferred to Director Potts -- to Director Freeh. 

With respect to Waco, one of the questions I asked before I ever considered 
authorizing the use of the gas, was what effect it could have on the children, 
on elderly people. I was -- the FBI arranged that I would meet with a civilian 
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scientist who works for the Department of the Army, and I met with him in 
advance, and he assured me that both in his readings, in his studies that there 
would be no permanent effect. 
Since the question has arisen, we have continued to explore all possible sources 
of information with respect to the gas, and we continue in that effort to see if 
Dr. Stone's concerns are valid. 
SEN. SPECTER: Were you aware at the time that you authorized the use of the cs 
gas that it had been banned by the Paris Chemical Weapons Convention? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I had not heard that. I've subsequently heard that the treaty 
may not be ratified and that there is a law enforcement exception. But I've , 
asked again that all of that be clarified. 
SEN. SPECTER: Well, were you aware that -- when you say it hadn't been ratified, 
were you aware that the United States had in fact signed the Chemical Weapons 
Convention agreeing to ban CS gas? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: As I indicated, previously, I was not aware of it at the time, 
nor was I advised of the treaty. But as I indicated to you, there -- what I 
have been advised of since is that there is a law enforcement exception. 
SEN. SPECTER: To what extent, Attorney General Reno, had you made an inquiry of 
the effect of this gas on people generally or infants specifically prior to its 
use? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Prior to its use, as I indicated when the issue was first raised 
by the FBI with me, I said, "What about the children? What about elderly people? 
What effect could it have? Could it have a permanent effect on anyone?" The 
Army -- the FBI made arrangements for me to meet with Dr. Harry Salem (sp), who 
is a civilian scientist with the Department of the Army, who I am told, both 
before and subsequently, is one of the world's experts on toxicity of substances 
such as this. And I met with him at FBI Headquarters. He advised me of what -­
the studies· that he had done, and he concluded that it would not have· a 
permanent effect. 
SEN. SPECTER: Have ~ou made any follow-up check to s~e whether or not he was 
correct? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: As I indicated to you in my previous question, what I have done 
is asked the FBI, asked Director Freeh to do everything they can to pursue all 
lines of inquiry that indicate that the gas might be harmful, so that we can 
understand in future situations if there is any new information that should be 
considered in making any decision affecting CS gas. 
SEN. SPECTER: And what has that additional study produced? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: To this date, it has not -- I keep checking to see whether they 
have found additional information. I understand that the latest effort has been 
made to contact British authorities, but to date I have found nothing that would 
sustain this as the gas was used, but we want to continue to pursue it. 
SEN. SPECTER: So if the question were to come up again today, you'd still use 
cs gas? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: No, sir. What I would' do would be to see what the latest 
information is, look at it all over again, and make the best judgment that I 
could based on the inquiries that we have made. 
SEN. SPECTER: With respect to Deputy Director Potts, Attorney General Reno, when 
you made the promotion, were you aware of his contention that he had never 
changed the rules of engagement or did not make any change in the FBI's policy 
on deadly force? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: At the time I'm I did not make the promotion. Under the 
procedure as I understand that it exists between the department and the FBI is 
that I must approve it. Director Freeh made his recommendation that he be 
promoted. He felt that it was important and that it was in the best interest of 
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the agency, and I made -- I was not aware because at that point I was still 
the decisions had been made by the deputy. I did not go into any of the 
details. 
SEN. SPECTER: When you say the decisions had been made by the deputy? 

Page 25 

ATTY GEN. RENO: The decisions with respect to the approval of the disciplinary 
action. 

SEN. SPECTER: Well, what was the status with respect to di~ciplinary action as 
to Mr. Potts? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: We will have the record checked for you as to what discipline 
was imposed, but that was -- I don't have it with me. 
SEN. SPECTER: Well, he had been disciplined, hadn't he? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: That is correct. 
SEN. SPECTER: Well, when you say that you did not make the promotion but just 
approved it, if you had disapproved it, the promotion would not have been made. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: That's correct, sir. And as I indicated ·to you, it has. been my 
policy when I have agencies or groups or sections under my authority to do 
everything I can to defer to the person who is responsible for that agency and 
the staffing and the promotion in that agency. 
SEN. SPECTER: Well, isn't there some limit to that deference, if you find a 
person is not really qualified for some reason or another, to exercise your 
authority of approval or disapproval? 

ATTY GEN. RENO: Yes, sir, there is. 
SEN. SPECTER: One final question. The orange light is on. 
Attorney General Reno, it's my understanding that the Department of Justice is 
not releasing its report on Ruby Ridge because of the .possibility that there may 
be a prosecution by the county attorney of Borders {sic) County, Idaho against 
federal officials. Have you considered, in approving the promotion of Mr. Potts 
to be deputy director of the FBI, that it was at least conceivable that he might 
be subject to prosecution by the local district attorney, which would certainly 
place under some substant~al cloud the approval of his promotion? · 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I make no 'judgments as to what happen in a case. What I have 
tried to do with respect to the local prosecutors, 'since local laws and state 
laws may differ from federal laws, is to take no step that would interfere with 
that investigation. 
SEN. SPECTER: Okay, thank you very much. 
SEN. THURMOND: Senator Kohl. 
SEN. HERB KOHL {D-WI): Thank you very much. 
Attorney General Reno, as you know, Attorney General, .I remain concerned about 
Milwaukee's low ratio of assistant U.S. attorneys to population because it seems 
clear that Wisconsin is not receiving its fair share of resources. We all 
understand why those American cities with severe crime problems, like New York, 
Miami or Los Angeles, .have a higher ratio of federal prosecutors. But districts. 
located in places like Burlington, Vermont, Charles Town, West Virginia, 
Cheyenne, Wyoming, Mobile, Alabama, Sioux Falls, South Dakota and Tulsa, 
Oklahoma, all have at least twice the number of prosecutors per one million 
residents as the Milwaukee, Wisconsin office, and in some cases closer to three 
times that of Milwaukee. Overall, of the 94 u.s. attorneys offices, Milwaukee's 
Eastern District of Wisconsin comes in Blst, and the Western District is even 
lower. 
It is my understanding that the Department of Justice is currently considering 
several new allocated model options~ When can we expect that one of these new 
model options will go into effect? 
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ATTY GEN. RENO: When I took office I was concerned because there did not seem to 
be any model or any formula for the allocation of monies, and there .were 
disparities between a number of different districts. I had been used to a more 
orderly allocation in my experience between pro"secutors in Florida. And s·o this 
is one of the first areas that we looked at. 

We went to the Attorney General's Advisory Committee, composed of u.s. attorneys 
who are representative of different districts across the coun~ry, large and 
small. And we sought to develop an allocation formula. 
A preliminary model was submitted to the Bureau of Justice Statistics to review. 
They issued a preliminary report-- the BJS did-- in January of '95, ·in which 
they identified substantial flaws in the model and recommended that outside 
consultants be employed. The final version of that report is pending. 
The United States attorneys' response to the preliminary report recommended that 
before deciding on the parameters of the next step, any further effort to 
develop a model, whether based on external or internal factors, should not -­
should cover not only th~ United States attorneys' offices, but also the FBI and 
the DEA, because you can't allocate for U.S. attorneys if you have different 
allocations or different disparities with respect to the investigative agencies. 
So we're trying to do it in an orderly way. It is of prime concern to me. 
I can't give you a date, sir, but what I will ask is for my staff to try to keep 
you as updated as possible. 
I've had an opportunity to visit the office in- Eastern District. I had an 
opportunity to take questions and answer their concerns. And I know their 
concerns, and it is something that we are pursuing. 
SEN. KOHL: Is it something that perhaps in 1995 we could hope to see some 
progress, some resolution? I'd hate to leave it so open- ended that it might be 
-- you know, two years from now or three years from now we're still thinking 
about it. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: One of ·the things that I've tried to do is to keep deadlines. I 
can tell you, sir, that it is on what I ---what is called, in my office -­
sometimes with not absolut~ happiness -- is my "get-back list. :• And this is one 
of those items very much on the get- back list, so I'm not going to let it get 
lost. 
SEN. KOHL: ·Good. All right. 
Earlier this year the Supreme Court struck down the Gun-Free School Zones Act in 
U.S; versus Lopez (sp). When the Gun-Free School Zones Act was first drafted in 
1989, only a handful of states had laws barring guns in school zones. Since 
that time, most states have enacted laws similar to the federal statute. 
However, not every state has done so, and state laws, as you know, vary 
tremendously. For example, in Alabama you could carry a gun into school so long 
as you do not intend to cause bodily injury. In short, the laws are a 
hodgepodge. 
Despite this, some have claimed that we do not need a federal law when there are 
so many state laws. Do you feel that there is still value in having a state 
a federal law? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Yes, sir, very much so, for many of the reasons you cite. And 
we have proposed a new version, which we believe is within Congress's power 
under the commerce clause. It would apply only to firearms that have moved in 
or affect interstate commerce, and I don't -- we conclude that adding that 
jurisdictional element will not substantially restrict the prosecutions under 
the statute, but it would protect it from a commerce clause attack. 
SEN. KOHL: As you know, Senator Specter and I have introduced a new version of 
the Gun-Free School Zones Act designed to insure it's constitutional. Are you 
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familiar with what we've introduced? And are you satisfied that it will 
accomplish the objective? 

Page 27 

ATTY GEN. RENO: I have not seen it directly, Senator, but let me make sure that 
staff .has worked with yours and Senator Specter's staff to make sure that any 
concerns we might have are addressed. 

SEN. KOHL: Good. All right. 
Attorney General Reno, I want to talk briefly about a deep concern that I have 
and I believe that you share over the use of secrecy agreements in litigation. 
Currently many judges approve these agreements almost routinely without 
consideration of public health and safety. As a result, numerous secrecy 
agreements have had grave consequences: to cite just a few examples, silicone 
breast implant litigation, DES litigation and heart valve litigation. And in 
all of them, the secrecy kept people from learning about the dangers that they 
faced. A few people have told me that we should wait for the judicial 
conference to act on this matter, but the conference has been meeting about and 
studying this issue for five years. It has played ping pong with the protective 
orders issue and, consequently, with public health. The conference has had a 
lot of meetings but tak~n little action. Former Judge Mikva testified at a 
1994 hearing that, and I quote, "This problem is too important to leave to the 
rule changers." 
Given the five-year delay by the conference, do you agree that Judge Mikva 
probably has a good point? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I think we can work together. Judge Mikva and I have talked 
about it. This is an issue very much of concern to me, and I would like to 
pursue it with you and see if we can get something done. 
SEN. KOHL: As you know, we've talked about it on several occasions and haven't 
really made the kind of progress that I think either of us would like to see 
made. Is there some hope that we can move ahead expeditiously? 
ATTY .GEN. RENO: I think we can work together on it. As you know, we've put an 
awful lot of effort into it. Frank Hunger worked with you and your staff. We 
had worked through the rules enabling process to promote the amendment, and we 
will continue to work with. you in every way we can. 
SEN. KOHL: All right. 
Another question. As you know, I'm concerned about the Justice Department's 
travel budget, which is estimated to be $198 million in fiscal year 1995. I 
believe that if you send more attorneys to the field as opposed to having them 
shuttled between Washington and the areas where they do the bulk of their work, 
then significant savings to the taxpayer would result. Just by comparison, the 
Department of Health and Human Services, an agency employing 30 percent more 
people than the Department of Justice, spends 25 percent less money on travel 
than Department of Justice. And even if you spread the $200 million travel 
budget over each and every Justice Department employee, including every janitor, 
every clerk and every .typist, that still works out to $2,000 ;in travel expenses 
per employee, or more than $26,000 for every attorney employed by the Department 
of Justice. 
My question is, wouldn't it be ·more cost-effective if the department transferred 
some of the 2,000 attorneys in Washington to the field offices across the 
country, where the bulk of law enforcement actually gets done? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: As part of the department's National Performance Review, the 
associate attorney general has undertaken a review of the litigating functions 
of the department. 

Part of it involves a ·survey of the litigating functions in Washington, DC in 
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the divisions based here versus the functions performed by the 94 United States 
attorneys. The expected outcome of this review will be an assessment' of the 
appropriate assignment of cases between the United States attorney and 
Washington-based legal divisions. Based on the results of the first phase, the 
second phase will analyze our organizational structure and whether or not we are 
organized in the most efficient manner both in terms of cases and geographic 
location of our attorney workforce. We share your concern, and I will ask the. 
associate attorney general to keep you advised and to let you know of the 
current status. 
SEN. KOHL: Well, as I understand it, we have 2,000 attorneys here and 4,000 out 
across the country, and I feel that that is not a good balance. ,Is -- you know, 
this question of -- and we've talked about it before; studying it and getting 
back to each other on it is -- I wonder how we can come to s9me ·kind of a 
resolution other than that's simply the way the Department of Justice wants it 
to be? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Well I don't want it to be that way, so it depends on how long 
I've got to try to change things. 
SEN. KOHL: Would you like to see more attorneys out in the field? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I think I should withhold judgment until we do 'the study and· do 
it the right way. Certainly my reaction, when I see people traveling ,to one , 
area that has a lot of environmental prosecution or litigation is, can't we 
better allocate resources there? But then when I see issues arising across the 
country that require an expertise and don't want to have -- if one person can 
handle it from Washington rather than having 10 people at 10 different sites 
across the country, I want to make sure we do it in a business- like way based 
on solid facts. 
SEN. KOHL: All right. I thank you very much. 
And I thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
SEN. THURMOND: Senator DeWine? 
SEN. MIKE DEWINE (R-OH): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Attorney General, welcome. You're getting there. We're moving down the aisle 
here. Let me ask you abou~ the Office of Intelligence Policy and Review. And 
let me summarize my question this way. It is my understanding that now, for the 
first time, wiretap -- the final sign- off on wiretap authority is being done by 
a political appointee, and that traditionally in the department that was not 
true, this was kept out of politics, this was done at the professional level. I 
wonder if you could comment on·that.and whether or not you have any plans to 
change that? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Well, with respect to wiretap authority, that's done through the 
Criminal Division with career employees, and the head of the Office of 
Intelligence Policy Review is a career lawyer. 

SEN. DEWINE: Is currently a career lawyer? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: That's correct. 
SEN. DEWINE: And who is that? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: That's Richard Scruggs. -
SEN. DEWINE: And he is a career lawyer? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: That's correct. 
SEN. DEWINE: Do you know how long he's been with the department? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: No, I don't. 
SEN. DEWINE: Let me ask you about the -- to follow up a little the testimony 
t~at -- questions that were asked by Senator Biden as well as Senator Hatch. We 
got into a -- you got into a discussion about statistics and criminal 
prosecution, specifically in the area of career criminals' g~n-related offenses. 
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And first, let me congratulate you on your comments about cooperation between 
the Justice Department and local. prosecutors. Of course, you spent many years 
as a local prosecutor and I think you understand the frustration that many times 
is felt by local .prosecutors when they deal with the FBI or with the Justice 
Department, and I think we've made a great improvement over the last few years 
in that area in the last decade or so, and I commend you for continuing to try 
to work in that area. 
I would like, though, to ask you specifically about what was formerly known in 
the Bush administration as Project Trigger Lock,. where armed career·criminals 
were targeted by the Justice·Department and actual statistics were kept every 
month in regard to how many people the federal prosecutors, Justice Department, 
actually prosecuted. It's my understanding that you now have a program that you 
call the Anti-Violent Crime Initiative, which you've talked about this ·morning, 
and encompassed in that -- it's much broader than Project Trigger Lock. 
And I understand the argument in regard to the keeping of statistics, and that 
if a prosecution occurs, it doesn't matter, maybe, whether it occurs at the 
local level or whether it occurs at the federal level, but I read the report 
that you -- your department put out, and really, besides some anecdotal 
evidence, there's no way to really tell what your department is doing as far as 
·federal prosecutions of career criminals, specifically those who use a gun. And 
I wondered if there's any -- if you do still keep those statistics and if you 
can tell us what has happened in the last few years. I'm talking just about·. 
federal prosecution. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: My understanding is that Trigger Lock prosecutions are reduced 
because in many instance.s, for ex~mple, state. courts are taking those -- I cited 
to_you my experience-- I used to take Trigger Lock cases to federal court 
·because I could get more time. 

I'm told now that with the construction of prisons in Florida and revised 
statutes, the local prosecutor can do it and would much prefer to do it. And 
what we try to do in these cases is do it based on what's in the best interest 
of the case and what's in the best interest of the community. 
We'll b~ happy to furnish ~ou with the Trigger Lock information 
SEN. DEWINE: Yeah, I don~t think anyone's going to quarrel with that statement. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Okay. 
SEN. DEWINE: My only, I guess, issue or question is, if you don't. you do 
actually still keep those statistics, though, is that --
ATTY GEN. RENO: My understanding is that we do, and I'll be happy to furnish 
whatever we have to you. · 
SEN. DEWINE: Appreciate that. And you believe that they will show that as far 
as federal prosecutions, those are down? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Yes, sir .. 
SEN. DEWINE: But your argument -- or to finish that, you would basically say 
that this is a cooperative effort, basically, between the state and local? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: My argument is -- and you understand it better than anybody else 
-- if you, as the local prosecutor, have the case and can get the time and know 
the detectives and can handle it better, you will handle it better there. What 
has impressed me, because I meet -- you describe it as anecdotal, but what 
impre.sses me as I meet with the National Association of Attorneys General,· the 
National District Attorneys Association, the Sheriffs Association, the 
International Association of Chiefs of Police, they're all telling me that 
finally we are working together, we're not grabbing the credit, we're trying to 
handle the case.based on the right way to do it. 
SEN. DEWINE: And I don't think anybody certainly can quarrel with that. I'll be 
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anxious to see, you know, see the statis~ics, and would appreciate that. I have 
no further questions, Mr. Chairman. Thank you. 
SEN. THURMOND: Senator Feinstein? 
SEN. DIANNE FEINSTEIN (D-CA): Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
Attorney General, I want to thank you for that 40 percent increase in Border 
Patrol. I believe you know, and I confirmed for the fourth time last week, that 
it is making a difference on the Southwest border. And although we have-a long 
way to go, I think the difference is really quite profound. 
Having said that, I also want to thank you for your help with the assault 
weapons legislation. I've been watching that legislation carefully. As you 
know, your department will be, in six years, doing a report on the impact that 
the legislation has. One of the things that concerns me is that certain 
manufacturers are working to get around the legislation by changing some of the 
design of these weapons to move around it. And what I would like to ask you is 
if you have any findings in that regard at this point, and if not, if you would 
watch that area carefully. 

ATTY GEN. RENO: We will watch that carefully with the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco 
and Firearms. I have no findings at this point, but I will ask my staff to be 
in regular consultation with your staff as we develop any information that is 
appropriate. 
SEN. FEINSTEIN: I'd appreciate that very much. The subject that I wanted to 
talk to you about this morning is in the area of narcotics, but slightly 
different. I have a real problem, but it's not with your department, it's with 
Treasury on the so-called ~ine Release Program on the southwest border which has 
about 10,000 large container trucks that are licensed to go back and forth 
across the·border. And one of the problems its developing is a major 
methamphetamine problem in California, where some 13,00 pounds of 
methamphetamine were seized in California in 1994, with a wholesale value of 
$33.4 million. This represents a.518 percent increase since 1991. 
Mexico national poly-drug organizations over the past three years have replaced 
outlaw motorcycle gangs as the predominant methamphetamine producers, 
traffickers and distributors in my state. 
A week ago a delegation o.f narcotics officers and Justice Department -- the head 
of the narcotics division of the California Department of Justice -- visited me 
and presented a major description of the scenario that was taking place, and 
stated that the Western United States market is saturated with high purity 
methamphetamine. The price for methamphetamine at all levels is declining. I 
have those specific statistics. Large scale production laboratories operating 
in California are found to produce 20 to 100 pounds of methamphetamine during 
each manufacturing process. 
Now, the chemicals necessary for methamphetamine production, which are 
controlled in California, are smuggled to the United States across the United 
States-Mexican and the United States-Canadian borders. There is no control on 
hydriodic acid in Canada, and Mexico 'is the major conduit for ephedrine . 

. The production of methamphetamine using pseudoephedrine, red phosphorus, and 
iodine crystals is replacing ephedrine and hydriodic acid, which are more 
strictly controlled. Iodine and red phosphorous are the two ingredients 
necessary to clandestinely manufacture hydriodic acid. 
Iodine -- there's a 978 percent increase in cash sales within the last three 
years; red phosphorous, a 226 percent increase in cash sales within the last 
three years. 
And -- now where am I going with this? Where I'm going with it is whether your 
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department would be willing to give a good look at precursor chemicals, the 
federal threshold for regulation of these chemicals, and present to this 
committee -- and specifically to me, if you wil~ -- any recommendat~ons you 
might have for licensing and regulation of the sale of some of these precursor 
chemicals in the United States. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Senator, as I had indicated earlier, we have tried to develop a 
comprehensive initiative. along the border that combines the DEA and the FBI in 
an excellent worki.ng relationship and they working with the six United States 
attorneys representing the districts along the border. 
I have been in conversation with Administrator Constantine about this issue. I 
do not have a report from him that is current. When we get back to the office, 
I will check and we will try to update you and work with you in every way that's 
proper and appropriate. 
SEN. FEINSTEIN: I would very much appreciate that. I'm in the process of trying 
to put together some legislation on precursor chemicals, and so I would very 
much appreciate that help. 
And I will send you a full packet of facts -- not my facts,· but narcotics 
officers' facts, as developed in California. 
My major c'oncern, in terms of the border, is that precursor chemicals in large 
amounts from Mexican cartel families are crossing the border, I think -- some of 
them through the line-release program. They then go to what are essentially 
Mexican-run labs in rural areas and are put together in large batches of 
methamphetamines, which are then distributed throughout the United States. 

The point I'm making is that it is becoming a major narcotic problem and I think 
one that we need to work together to see that we do our utmost to discourage. 
The other point that I wanted to make is on -- in the issue of -- I think we 
still have a weakness in drugs coming across the border, cocaine and other 
related substances, and I would certainly welcome your department's help in that 
regard. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: As you know, we've discussed this and this is very much a part 
of our whole southwest border initiative. 
SEN. FEINSTEIN: And I thank you very much, and once again I'd like to reiterate 
my thanks for your help with Border Patrol and immigration. I think it's been a 
major change since I first came to the Senate, and I very much appreciate it. 
Thanks, Mr. Chairman. 
SEN. THURMOND: Madame Attorney General, we're glad to have you with us. We 
appreciate your presence. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Thank you, sir. 
SEN. THURMOND': I think you said before this subcommittee last year that, and I 
quote, "Nothing is more important to me than making sure that children are 
protected, particularly protected from the awfulness of child pornography." End 
quote. I think every American is concerned with this issue. Recently we have 
been faced with the spread of child pornography on the Internet. The Senate 
recently adopted an amendment to punish those who make obscene material 
available on the Internet. 
Madame Attorney General, would you please tell this committee whether you 
support the recently passed Exon amendment, which is designed to protect 
America's children? Also, will 'you please tell the committee what steps the 
Department of Justice is taking to prevent the distribution of pornography on 
the Internet and to prosecute those responsible for such distribution? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: With respect to the Exon legislation, what we have tried to do, 
we have some enforcement concerns, and we are t.rying to work with all concerned 
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to make sure that we come up with a bill that's constitutional, that is 
enforceable, and that can achieve the aim that you and I share of protecting our 
children from pornography wherever it is. 
With respect to the whole issue of Internet, I have asked the Department of 
Justice's Criminal Division to look at what can be done to work with all· 
concerned, and they are at this point trying to review any particular case that 
may arise. 
SEN. THURMOND: Madame Attorney General, as you know, I am the chairman of the 
Judiciary Committee's Antitrust Subcommittee. 

I have several questions relating to the Antitrust Division at the Department of 
Justice. First, I have been told that the number of grand jury investigations 
of the Antitrust Division has declined substantially. Can you please give us 
your views on the importance of criminal penalties to deterring antitrust 
violations, and whether there has been a decision to reduce or limit criminal 
enforcement of our antitrust laws? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I think it's very important. Anne Bingaman, the assistant 
attorney general in charge of the Antitrust Division --
SEN. THURMOND: Speak in a louder -- there are a lot of people back there. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Anne Bingaman, the assistant attorney general of the Antitrust 
Division and I have conferred from the -- actually the moment she came into 
office, talking about how important criminal prosecutions can be in antitrust 
enforcement generally. The number of criminal antitrust cases has declined, but 
the significance of the cases has increased, generally larger in geographic 
scope involving more overall dollars of commerce against bigger companies, and 
increasingly with international implications. In fact, almost 50 percent of our· 
current grand juries are investigating cartel activity that is national or 
international in scope. We have referred a large number of local conspiracies 
to other enforcement agencies in order to concentrate our resources on national 
and international conspiracies. And it is, we feel, a more productive use of the 
limited resources in an era of budgetary constraints. 
SEN. THURMOND: As you may know, improving the process for analyzing mergers 
under the antitrust laws has been one of my priorities this year as the chairman 
of the Antitrust Subcommittee. I have been encouraged by the responses to my 
concerns by the Justice Department and the Federal Trade Commission. Progress 
was made when the agencies announced the (Haas-Scott-Rodina ?) pre-merger 
program improvements in late March. Then last week, the commission responded to 
a letter from me by issuing two addi~ional policy statements in order to lessen 
burdens on merging parties and achieve greater uniformity with Justice 
Department procedures. Would you please give us your views on these changes? 
And will you continue to work with us to further improve this important aspect 
of antitrust law? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: As you know, Mr. Chairman, the department and the FTC have 
worked hard to harmonize procedures and we think that this is a very important 
effort. We look forward to looking with the new team at the FTC, and we are 
certainly receptive to suggestions and will work with you. 

I don't have the details on the new suggestions. I will .make sure that Anne 
Bingaman. gets back to you and lets you know exactly how we view these new 
proposals from the FTC. 
SEN .. THURMOND: She worked with us well on the telecommunications bill and she's 
a very fine -lady. 
What can you tell us about·the actions of the Antitrust Division concerning the 
air carrier decisions to cap the fees paid to travel agents? As you are no 
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doubt aware, that action has raised tremendous concerns among travel agents 
nationwide, and they have brought their concerns to the Congress. 
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ATTY GEN. RENO: I can tell you that the department is following that matter 
closely. I cannot go into the details with you at this point because it i's 
pending. As you know, in February Delta announced that it would cap travel 
agent commissions on higher-priced airline tickets. Other airlines, including 
American, United, Continental, USAir and Northwest, subsequently announced that 
they would take similar actions. The Antitrust Division received complaints 
from travel agents that the airlines colluded in reaching their decisions to 
limit travel agent commissions. The Antitrust Division instituted an 
investigation to determine whether the airlines engaged in conduct in ,violation 
of the federal antitrust laws. 
We will take appropriate enforcement action if the investigation reveals 
violation of the antitrust laws, but the fact is that several airlines quickly 
matched a change in commission structure. The fact that that happened does not 
establish an antitrust violation. We will review the matter very carefully and 
take appropriate action based on the evidence and the law. 
SEN. THURMOND: Madame Attorney General, in your 1993 confirmation hearings, you 
said the drug czar should play an extraordinarily important role in coordinating 
budgets, in coordinating priorities, and in developing your plan for fighting 
drugs. Have matters developed as you had hoped? The reason I ask this is that 
I understand there has been talk about a reorganization that would give the 
Justice Departmen~ more control over the drug czar's current functions. The Cox 
News Service reported on June 2nd that the FBI and Drug Enforcement 
Administration recently dispatched a joint letter to the White House proposing 
to shut down the drug czar's office and divide its functions and funding. A 
Scripps 7Howard piece dated May 7th claims that many in the Justice Department 
believe the Clinton administration asked for the letter. Does such a letter 
exist? And if so, could the committee be provided with a copy? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: There is not a letter suggesting that the drug czar's office be 
shut down. 

What has been discussed, Mr. Chairman, is an effort to make-sure that law 
enforcement is coordinated and yet that there is, at .the same time, a balance 
between law enforcement and other agencies, both with respect to prevention, 
education, and treatment. 
And I think we can work with Director Brown. I've had a good working 
relationship with him, and. I think we can continue to work together to insure we 
have an organized law enforcement effort and that there is not fragmentation or 
duplication, while at the same time making sure that we address a balanced 
effort in terms of drug enforcement, prevention, and treatment. 
SEN. THURMOND: Would federal drug law enforcement efforts be better served by 
reorganization or realignment? If so, what specifically is envisioned ·and how 
would it be accomplished? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I've tried to pursue everything that I do in Washington based on· 
what should I do now. I hear an awful lot of talk about restructuring and 
reorgan1z1ng. And some people see that as a means of solving problems. I think 
it's important that we work together. And it has been my personal position that 
I work with all concerned, with what we have, to get the job done. 
SEN. THURMOND: If any changes are planned, would you please brief the committee 
before anything is set in concrete? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: You better be sure, Mr. Chairman, I'll do that. 
SEN. THURMOND: (Chuckles.) At this point in your tenure as attorney general, 
what do you view as your primary goals and priorities for the department in the 
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future? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I think it -- one of my primary goals, as set forth, is to 
continue to do everything I can to eliminate the turf battles, to bring federal 
and local law enforcement together in a coordinated attack against violence, 
against drugs, against crimes that undermine the very fabric of this natio'n, and 
that includes, as we have so tragically seen, organized, vigorous, vigorous 
effort against terrorism. I think that has to be one of our great priorities. 
At the same time, I think it is important that we make sure that the laws of 
this land are used the right way, that we advise people when there are laws that 
are going to be enforced that will prevent discrimination, so.that people can 
understand and that the laws don't seem confused and strange to them. 
But when those people continue to violate the law after we've tried to work with 
them, I want to use as vigorous action as I can that is consistent with the 
Constitution and the laws, whether it be in protecting people from 
discrimination and making sure this nation's interests are protected in civil 
jurisdiction, making sure that the antitrust laws of this nation are enforced 
the right way, and making sure that our air, our water, our beautiful land i~ 
protected against environmental harm. 

SEN. THURMOND: I've got another (forum ?) . I've got to leave. 
Senator Brown, would you take over the chair, please? 
And, Senator Feingold, you're next. 
SEN. RUSSELL FEINGOLD (Q-WI): Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
And Madame Attorney General, I, too, want to thank you for your hard work and 
your patience here today. I would like to pursue an issue that is of interest 
to me and to the senator from Vermont, 'my friend who is also on this 
committee, the Communications Decency Act, so-called Exon Amendment, which the 
distinguished senator from South Carolina just referred to. We attempted on the 
floor to mitigate the possible problems that the Exon Amendment could cause, and 
lost 84 to 16. It was overwhelming.· But I got the feeling if the amendments 
had been positioned differently there might have been·quite a different result. 
And since that time, Madame Attorney General, the speaker of the House, 
Representative Gingrich, has indic~ted a very similar series of concerns about 
the constitutionality and practicality of the Exon Amendment. 
As I said on the floor, I share the goal, as I know you do, of helping .parents 
to protect their children from m~terial they view is inappropriate. I am, 
however, deeply concerned that we do it in a manner that is the least 
restrictive and maintains constitutional protections. I'm afraid that the Exon 
Amendment will create a myriad of p'roblems, not only constitutionally but in 
application as well, as .I think you alluded to in your response to the 
distinguished senator from South Carolina's question. 
So to begin, I ask you as a prosecutor, what practical problems are there with 
imposing a criminal sanction against a defendant who, despite his total lack of 

'knowledge as to who might view his message, is charged with transmitting 
indecent material on the Internet? · 
ATTY GEN. RENO: We're going to have to review all of the issues, and' I think 
it's important because we've got First Amendment issues, we've got enforcement 
issues, we've got proof issues that will be vital to a successful enforcement of 
a sound law that we can all agree on. And I'd like to work with you -- I think 
our staffs are already working together -- to make sure that we focus on these 
problems and that we try to develop solutions that·will protect our children. 
SEN. FEINGOLD: Isn't it fair to say, though, Madame Attorney General, that there 
are practical.problems with a criminal statute that could pose this kind of 
penalty on someone who has a total lack of knowledge as to who might view what 

z 0004041 



Page 35 
Federal News Sezvice, JUNE 27, 1995 

that person is communicating? 
ATTX GEN. RENO: That is correct. And those are the issues that we need to work 
through and to make sure that we address, because as a prosecutor, nothing is 
more frustrating than to prosecute somebody, get them convicted, and then see 
the law held unconstitutional when we know we could have taken st~ps to make it 
better and sounder and still have an impact. 

SEN. FEINGOLD: Thank you for.that response and at least to another area that I 
know you'll be wanting to deal with and that's rather tricky in the area and 
that's defining the relevant community. In the area of indecency generally 
legislators and scholars and citizens groups talk a lot about so-called 
community boundaries. We define what is indecent by applying so-called 
community standards, which usually means a consideration of the standards of the 
jurisdiction in which a case arises. But given the nature of the Internet, 
which transcends and in fact lacks traditional community and state boundaries, 
it even lacks national boundaries, how will we determine which community is the 
appropriate one in these cases for establishing the community standard for 
indecency? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I think this is obviously one of the issues that is going to 
have to be addressed. I think that in this age of emerging technology both in 
terms of national, what is a community nationally -- and then international 
implications, it staggers the imagination sometimes as to what technology has 
done and I think again it's going to take all of us working together to come up 
with a solid product. 
SEN. FEINGOLD: In your view, is it possible that this new technology could 
render the notion of community standards less relevant than it has been in the 
past? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: These are the issues that we're going to have to address. In a 
mobile nation, in nation that can communicate as it does today --·but I think 
our ultimate goal has got to be how do we protect our children in the right way? 
SEN. FEINGOLD: I agree with that and that raises another issue having to do with 
this, which in a sense this Exxon amendment could create one law for the 
Internet which is ~holly inapplicable to the rest of society. It creates a 
different standard for materials solely because they appear on a computer 
screen, as opposed to being in a book, for example. Under the legislation 
individuals will be subject to criminal penalties if they made heir materials 
and publications available on computer networks to which minors had access. 
However, the same material, under the law ,would be protected in a book store or 
a library. 
in my view this inequity'is unjustified and it's cause for concern. In your 
view, Madame Attorney General, is this separate standard consistent with our 
constitutional system, and is the distinction between the means of conveying the 
materials -- that is, the distinction between computers versus traditional print 
-- sufficient to justify this rather starkly differing standard? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I think these are the issues that we have to address. I mean, 
the whole issue with respec~ to television programming at hours that children 
have access to it. We have got to look at the whole picture and see what we can 
come up with, whether it be technology or a law that protects our children 
according to the constitution. 
SEN. FEINGOLD: Given the current lang~age of the Exxon amendment, however, do 
you believe it would withstand constitutional scrutiny? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: As I've expressed, we have serious concerns, but we want to work 
together to try to address those concerns. 
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SEN. FEINGOLD: Thank you. And let me ask one more question on this subject. 
There are many issues, as you have .indicated, but perhaps the fundamental flaw 
in the Exon legislation -- and it goes to your primary goal, which is protecting 
kids from this material -- is its failure to recognize the unique nature of the 
Internet, choosing instead to regulate more like broadcast or telephones. It 
has long been established that government infringement into speech be 
accomplished in the least restrictive means. It's a constitutional standard. 
In this regard, I understand that software does exist -- and is consistently 
being developed -- which allows parents and employees to screen out 
objectionable services on the Internet. Given the presence of this software 
and what is certain to be the emergence of additional capabilities in this 

·regard -- and coupled with the constitutional concerns, don't you think that 
rather than criminalize this activity, it would be better to.first fully explore 
alternative means that are just as effective to prevent this kind of access for 
kids, as opposed to going forward with the Exon amendment? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I think it's -- as I understand it from my staff, there is 
extensive exploration underway now as to. what can be done technically to limit 
it. You still have the concern of the large number of children who do not have 
proper parental supervision that exists with respect to regular television 
programming. All of these issues have got to be addressed to protect the 
children and yet at the same time to insure adherence to the Constitution. And 
I think it's going to be a very difficult issue, but a very important issue for 
us to face, both in terms of technology and in terms of the law. 
SEN. FEINGOLD: I very much appreciate those answers. And I will move on to 
another topic, but I do appreciate ypur candor. . 
One area which both you and the DEA have been very suppo~tive of is in reg~rds 
to the efforts that I and my colleague, Senator Kohl, have made to obtain DEA 
agents for Northeastern Wisconsin to help combat the growing flow of 
methecathanone (sp), or CAT, as it is commonly known. This problem is, I think, 
disproportionately affecting the upper Midwest, but the potential for it to 
spread to the other parts of the country is quite clear. 
At present it is my opinion -- and, I'm certain, that of Senator Kohl that 
the state of Wisconsin is sorely lacking in terms of help in this area. In 
response to the needs of Northeastern Wisconsin, we have been working with the 
DEA to get additional manpower. It's my understanding that it is the intention 
of the DEA to have agents in place by this fall, by September, with additional 
agents subsequently being added. What kind of ·assurances can you give me that 
the necessary resources will be made available and that these new agents will in 
fact be in Green Bay, Wisconsin, this fall? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: As I understand it -- and I can't give you the exact date, but 
that -- the DEA has agreed to put four additional agents in Wisconsin, and I 
will personally put that on what I referred to as my get-back list to make sure 
we try to do just that. 

SEN. FEINGOLD: I'm pleased to be on this list and I think I'm going to create 
such a list in my own office, after listening to you today. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: You've been on the list before, Senator. (Laughter.) I think 
·everybody on this committee has. Because --
SEN. FEINGOLD: Let me just clarify one other item --
ATTY GEN. RENO: Because we do have a great respect for your inquiries. They're 
helpful to us, and we try to make sure we respond in a forthright way. 
SENATOR FEINGOLD: You always have, and -- let me just clarify one point on the 
DEA issue. We have really a starkly low number of folks in this area in 
Wisconsin. We only have eight DEA agents, and compared to other states --

z 0004043 



. Federal News Service, JUNE 27, 1995 
Page 37 

smaller states -- the figures are really quite startling. Sixty-four agents for 
Massachusetts, which is a larger state, but that's a much larger figure. 
Fifteen for Indiana. 40 for Missouri -- we are very low. Extremely -- almost 
embarrassingly low number of people that we have to combat this problem. 
It's essential that we maintain the current number of agents in Wisconsin and 
not have there be a shift within Wisconsin to accommodate_ our concerns in Green 
Bay. So is it your intention that the additional agents for Northeastern 
Wisconsin will not result in a loss of people in another region of the state? 
ATTY- GEN. RENO: That is my understanding and we will clarify that and confirm it 
with you, because as I mentioned earlier to Senator Kohl I had the chance to 
visit in the Eastern District to listen to assistant United States attorneys 
make their positions known, had a chance to talk with Mr. Schneider (sp), and 
had a chance to talk with the investiga'tive agencies as well. And it is so 
important not just that we keep our staffing strong and enhance it in Wisconsin, 
but that we do everything we can to link districts together, because the impact 
of Chicago is felt in Milwaukee, and so it's important that the investigative 
agencies work together in understanding the region-wide consequences of actions 
taken. That's what we're doing across the country through DEA and FBI's 
cooperation with local law enforcement and we want to continue that effort. 
SEN. FEINGOLD: We appreciated your visit to the Eastern district and the notion 
o~ regionalism is terribly important when you look at an issue like CAT (sp) 
which apparently came in from Upper Michigan into Wisconsin. 
Apparently my time is up so I would submit for the record .some additional 
questions on rural crime initiatives and community policing, and I thank you 
very much for your answers. 
I thank you very much ·for your answers. 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
SEN. HANK BROWN (R-CO): Madame Attorney General, we appreciate not only your 
coming here and your responsiveness, but your ability to stick it out -- this 
gets to be a long process and your perseverance is appreciated as well. 
I want to direct your attention to what I think is a difficult area, affirmative 
action. It's my understanding that the Department of Justice had, filed a brief 
that addressed that subject in the Adarand case, and specifically that the 
Department of Justice has argued for intermediate scrutiny for federal 
affirmative action programs. 

The Court, of course, held, as you're well aware, that they want to require a 
higher standard, that is strict scrutiny, for these federal affirmative action 
programs. And after the opinion was announced, the president stated that the 
holding was consistent with his policy. 
That raises, in my mind at least, the question, if the strict scrutiny was 
consistent with the president's policy, how is it that the Department of Justice 
had filed a brief advocating intermediate scrutiny? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I think what the president was referring to is that efforts 
against the vestiges of discrimination that exist in this country is consistent 
with his policy. And I think it's important to understand just what Justice 
O'Connor was sa~ing. She said, "We wish to dispel the notion that strict 
scrutiny is strict in theory but fatal in fact." She went on to say, "The 
unhappy persistence of both the practice and the lingering effects of racial 
discrimination against minority groups in this country is an unfortunate 
reality, and government is not disqualified from acting in response to it." And 
I think the president and the Justice Department agree. 
She said, "As recently as 1987, for example, every justice of this Court agreed 
that-the Alabama pepartment of Public Safety's pervasive, systematic and 
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obstinate discriminatory conduct justified a narrowly tailored race-based 
remedy. When race-based action is necessary to further a compelling!' --
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SEN. BROWN: Attorney General, let me -- because our time is limited, let me go 
on if I could. 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Okay. 
SEN. BROWN: The question I had was -­
ATTY GEN. RENO: Well, the question is 
SEN. BROWN: The Department of Justice had advocated strict intermediate 
scrutiny. The Court had ruled on strict scrutiny. Or perhaps that was the 
point of your reading the opinion was that you feel the Court did not come down 

· for strict scrutiny? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I think what the president was saying, and as I was going to 
finish with reference to strict scrutiny, is the Court continued to recognize 
that affirmative action is a valid tool to eliminate vestiges of discrimination 
and that we shoul'd study it ·with strict scrutiny, but it's still a viable, 
viable option,' 
SEN .. BROWN: Does this mean that the president favors intermediate scrutiny, as 
the Department of Justice had advocated, or favors strict scrutiny as the Court 

ATTY GEN. RENO: The Department of Justice, based on the case law, advocated 
intermediate scrutiny. The Department of Justice and the administration are now 
reviewing Adarand and the.response to it. 

We expect to·provide extensive legal guidance to all the agencies involved next 
week. 
The bottom line is that a program that uses race in decision- making is valid if 
it is narrowly tailored to serve a compelling interest. ·And we will be working 
with the agencies involved to make sure that this guidance is available, that 
the court's opinion is implemented, and that we carry forward, doing everything 
we can to make sure that the vestiges of discrimination to which Justice 
O'Connor referred continue to be addressed. 
SEN. BROWN:. Does the depar~ment support the use of racial quotas? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: No. 
SEN. BROWN: I have gone through a number of, I guess, statements or requirements 
-- one, I think, just recently, from the Department of Transportation. 
Let me quote it to you. This is from the Department of Transportation and the 
Federal Aviation Administration. "More than half of the GS-15 management 
positions recently filled through air traffic national selection system were 
minorities and females. This is in line with a~r traffic's commitment to fill 
one out of every two vacancies with a diversity selection." Do you favor that 
policy as articulated by the Department of Transportation? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: As I indicated, what we are now engaged in is an analysis of 
Adarand, and we will be circulating guidance to all the agencies, including the 
Department of Transpor.tation. And we will then be working with them to 
understand just what is necessary· to comply with Adarand and the strict scrutiny 
test announced by Justice O'Connor. 
SEN. BROWN: Well, I ~-

ATTY GEN. RENO: Until that's done, I don't think it would be appropriate for me 
to comment about a program that I'm not personally familiar with. 
SEN. BROWN: I can understand that. You've indicated to me you're opposed to 
quotas. Their quote is: "This is in line with air traffic's commitment.to fill 
one out of every two vacancies with a diversity selection." Wouldn't you agree 
that suggests a quota? ATTY GEN. RENO: What we're trying to do, sir, is to take 
the language of Adarand, apply it, based on the facts of particular cases. And 
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so rather than prejudge something based on very limited information, I think 
it's more important that we apply the Adarand test and do it the right way after 
proper review. 
SEN. BROWN: I can appreciate that you might want to review this department 
policy specifically. I would just -- it seems to me a fair question. If the 
administration's opposed ·tO quotas and yet have a policy that imposes them, 
something's wrong. And I think that's a fair question. 

LANGUAGE: ENGLISH 

LOAD-DATE: June 29, 1995 
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Thank you very much. 
I think we're in recess till the chair -­
ATTY GEN. RENO: Thank you. 
SEN. KENNEDY: Thank you. 
(Recess.) 

Page23 

SEN. STROM THURMOND (R-SC): The committee will come to order. (Gavel sounds.) . 
. senator Specter, I believe, is next in (order ?) • 
SEN. ARLEN SPECTER (R-PA): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you. 
Madame Attorney General, I have two questions for you relating to the incidents ·. 
at Ruby Ridge and -- one at Ruby Ridge and one at Waco. The question I have w"ith 
respect to Ruby Ridge relates to the promotion of Mr. Larry Potts to be depu~y 
director of the FBI. · · 
And the sequence of events at Ruby Ridge, as I understand it, were that ther~ 
h~ad been. an initial charge against Mr. Weaver for sale of sawed-off shotguns:, 
later determined on his defense to be an entrapment defense. And Mr. John 
Magaw, director of the Alcohol, Firearms and Tobacco Unit, confirmed that it was 
entrapment, although Mr. Magaw characterized it as borderline entrapment. 
And then the tragedy at Ruby Ridge involved the killing of a U.S. marshal and 
the killing of Mr. Weaver's young son, Sam, who was shot in the back, and the 
killing of Mr. Weaver's wife. And there was a controversy as to -- there is a 
controversy as to whether there had been a change in the rules of engagement in 
the FBI standards on deadly force. Special Agent Glenn (sp), who had a key role 
at Ruby Ridge, now the special agent in charge of the Salt Lake City office, has 
represented that there had been a change in .the rules of engagement. The change 
of rules, as I understand it, related to deadly force. And Mr. Potts, in a 
conversation with me last month, May 17th, said to me that there had been no 
changes in the rules of engagement and there had been no authorization to change 
the deadly force policy. 

Before proceeding to the answer to this question, I'd like to ask my second 
question because of the time limits. And my question to you on the Ruby Ridge 
incident is, why was Mr •. P?tts promoted to deputy director of t.he FBI while, 
there are so many open questions on Ruby Ridge, including the issue as to 
whether there is going to be a prosecution by the state prosecutor? 
And the second question tha't I have relates to Waco, and it relates to the use 
of the· CS gas. And I note from the report by Dr. Stone from Harvard the 
consequences of the use of the gas upon minors, referring to a medical study, 
refer to the consequences of first·degree burns, severe respiratory distress, 
toxicity, including an enlarged liver, and serious life-threatening symptoms 
based on medical literature on the effects of that gas on infants, and the fact 
that the use of that cs gas has been banned under the Paris Chemical Weapons 
Convention, to which the United States is a party signatory. And my second 
question is, was the very serious impact of cs gas on children considered in its 
use at Waco? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: With respect to the first question, we had not received Mr. 
Glenn's (sp) letter before the Potts promotion was made, and what I did in that 
instance was to look at Mr. Potts' record and to take into consideration that it 
has been my longstanding policy that when someone is responsible for an 
organization, they should d~velop the staffing of the organization, and I 
deferred to Director Potts -· to Director Freeh • 
• 
With respect to Waco, on~ of the questions I asked before I ever considered 
authorizing the use of the gas, was what effect it could have on the children, 
on elderly people. I was -- the FBI arranged that I would meet with a civilian 
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scientist who works for the Department of the Army, and I met with him in 
advance, and he assured me that both in his readings, in his studies that there 
would be no permanent effect. 
Since the question has arisen, we have continued to explore all possible source$ 
of information with respect to the gas, and we continue in that effort to see· if 
or. Stone's concerns are valid. 
SEN. SPECTER: Were you aware at the time that you· authorized the use of the cs 
gas that it had been· banned by the Paris Chemical Weapons Convention? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: I had not heard that. I've subsequently heard that the treaty 
may not be ratified and that there is a law enforcement exception. But I've · ·. 
asked again that all of that be clarified. 
SEN. SPECTER: Well, were you aware that-- when you say it hadn't been ratified,. 
were you aware that the United Stat.es· had in fact signed the Chemical Weapons' 
Convention agreeing to ban CS gas? ·.; 
A~TY GEN~ RENO: As I indicated, previously, I was not aware of it at the time, 
nor was I advised of the treaty. But as I indicated to you, there -- what I 
have been advised of since is that there is a law enforcement exception. 
SEN. SPECTER: To what extent, Attorney General Reno, had you made an inquiry, of 
the effect of this gas on people generally or infants specifically prior to'its 
use? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: Prior to its use, as I indicated when the issue was first raised 
by the FBI with me, I said, "What about the children? What about elderly people? 
What effect could it have? Could it have a permanent effect on anyone?" The 
Army-- the FBI made arrangements for me to meet with Dr. Harry Salem (sp), who 
is a civilian scientist with the Department of the Army, who I am told, both 
befo~e and subsequently, is one of the world's experts on toxicity of substances 
such as this. And I met with him at FBI Headquarters. He advised me of what •• 
the studies that he had done, and he concluded that it would not have a 
permanent effect. 
SEN. SPECTER: Have you made any follow-up check to see whether or not he was 
correct? 
ATTY GEN. R~NO: As I indicated to you in my previous question, what I have done 
is asked the FBI, asked Di~ector Freeh to do everything they can to pursue all 
lines of inquiry that indicate that the gas might be harmful, so that we can 
understand in future situations if there is any new information that should be 
considered in making any decision affecting CS gas. 
SEN. SPECTER: And what has that additional study produced? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: To this date, it has not -- I keep checking to see whether they 
have found additional information. I understand that the latest effort has been 
made to contact British authorities, but to date I _have found nothing that would 
sustain this as the gas was used, but we want to continue to pursue it. 
SEN. SPECTER1 So if the question were to come up again today, you'd still use 
CS gas? 
ATTY GEN. RENO: No, s·ir. What I would do would be to see what the latest 

, information is, look at it all over again, and make the best judgment that I 
l_-could based on the inquiries that we have made. 

SEN. SPECTER: With respect to Deputy Director Potts, Attorney General Reno, when 
you made the promotion, were you aware of his contention that he had never 
changed the rules of engagement or did not make any change in the FBI's policy 
on deadly force? 
ATTY GEN. RENOs At the time I'm -·,I did not make the promotion. Under the 
procedure as I understand that it exists between the department and the FBI is 
that I .must approve it. Director Freeh made his recommendation that he be 
pro.moted. He felt that it was important and that it was in the best interest of 
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goir.~ ~0 lea: to ar. ~lti~a~e ~ea:ef~l resolutio~ ana ~,~~:-a~- a.· •• v ., . . .- ..... ~···-·· .... 
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pu~lic a~ la:ge I 0::' ~!le 9'0\"ernr:ie:l: age:l:S at the SC:e:'l~. ~!") .t!':e 

!.nc!cent:s a~d possicle at:endant :.::.ju::-ies and harm. a-.a 

!n t~e course o: our deliberat~or.s, we met wi:h ~e=era: Pe:e~ 

Sch~o:nacher s.::d Colonel Jer:;y !) • • ... oyr .. '<:.!n, fo::"i'ne:: an~ p::-eser.: 

Coii.manders cf Celta .For:e respectively, the Army• s :=-oug!: e~ivale::: 

to :he FEI 's f!R':(, eo re,dew the pla.."'l. '!heir comments c:l :h~ ::1a:: 

were inst:u:cive. While indicating ehat the pla~ ~ppea~ed := =e 
scund, or.e sugges~ion was t.hat, rat:he:- t:h·~ an incremen~al ap?::-c~:;: 

to the use of the gas as proposed ·by the FBI, gas sho1.:!d be 

inserted into all por;ions of the compound simul :aneous!y. I 

preferred the FSI approach. which calle~·f~r a 'gradual i~crease ir. 

press~:-e over a.period of t:ime. I~ seemed to me ehat woula ~es: 

ensure the safety of those ~nside, par:!cularly t:he child:e~. --. \ 

directed tha: if at ar.y pcint Kor~sh or h~s fo'llowers t:hreat:ena:! -~ --
~rn the children, ... 'the· Fa! shoul<! cease the act: ion immediate:y. 

Likewise,. if it ao'Oeared that, as a result of the. in~tial ·t:se· -;! . - . . 

teargas, Kcresh was prepared to negotiate' in gooci faith fc:- b!.s 

ultimate st:rr=nder, the FBI was to cease the opera:io~. 0::. :~e 
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t!fe co::-.pound, ·bo:h at. the vehicles and at E?p.iper ?CSi.:!.c:-.s 

The CorruiiS.~de:s also expressed concern about the 

time the HRT had been en the scene !~ a state of read!~ess ar.d a:: 

exp~essed ~he view ~hat the team would hav~ be pull~p back 

ret.:-a!n!r.g. All advised :hat ~here was not a substi~ute civil 

force t!lat: co~.::.d sect.!re -c!:e extensive area around t.he com;:o~nd :!':!.: 

I wanted and.=eceivec assu:anees ~hac ~he gas and i~s mea~s cf 

use we:e not pyrotechnic. I was eoncerned about intentlcnal e: 

aecide.nt.al explosions and ordered that additional · reso\!rces be 

prov~ded to e~sure.treat there was an adequate emergency response 

we should go fcr-..,a~·"-· 

I a!so considered that Koresh had talked abcu~ 'Suicide .... .: 
~· ... 

t.hat cigh: occur at anytime under cond!tio~s ~hae the FBI migh: be 

less likely to c=nt:ol, but that expe~s had advised the sure~u 

tha~ the chances of suicide were not likely. 

·····-·~·-·············································~··············································· 
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T.be Justice Department's official investigation 

publishec! on october Sth together vi tb other information · .. • 

made availablo to tho panelists present convincing evidence 

that David Koresh ordere~ bis followers to set the fire in 

·which they peri5he~. However, ne1tner the official 

investigation nor the Dennis evaluation has providod a clear 

and probing account of the the FBI tact~cs during the stand-

off and their possible relation5hip ta the tragic outcome at 

Waco. This report therefore contains an account based on my 

cwn turther review and interpretation of the facts. 

l have ccncluded that the FBI command failed to give 

adeq~cte considerGticn to their own behavioral science and 

neootiation experts. They also failed to make use of the 

Agency's own prior successful experience in similar 

circumstances. ~hey embarked on a m1sgu1de4 and punishing 

law .enforcement strategy that contributed to thG tragic 

encsinq at waco. 

As a physician, I have concluded that there are 

serious unanswered questions about the basis for the 

decision to deploy toxic c.s. qas !n a closed space where 

1 

. . 
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tbore vero 2S children, •ony of them toddlers an~ infants •. 

This report •akes several reco~endations, tirst a.on~ · 

them ia ~at :further inquiry ·will be neceaeary to resolve . ·. 

the many unanswered questions. Even with that major caveat • 

. l llelieve the Deputy Attorney General's suggestions for ·.• 

forward lockinq changes are excellent and endorae them. 

!his report makes further specific recommendations for 

chango building on his proposal. 

XI. Introduction 
~= ExplonotioD £o~ tbe 4e1ay in the su~misslon of this 

repo%t 

This past summer, the Justice .and Treasury Departments 

appointed~ grcup of panelists, each ot whom vas to_prepare 

a forward-looking report su~~estin; possible chan9es in 

federal law enforcement in light of Waco. For reasons set 

forth below, I deoidcd that before submitting a rep~rt based 

on my particular professional eXPertise, it was necessary to 

nave a complete understanaing of the factual investigation 

by tha JuDtiea DGpartmant. ·Havin9 now had the opportunity 

to read and study that report.and tha Dennis Evaluation. l 
' . . . 

conclude4 that X did not yet have the kind ot clear·an4 

probing view of events that is a necessary prer~quisito to~ 

making suggestions for constructive change. Deputy Attorney 

CenerAl (DAC) Philip Heymann therefore made it poss1~le tor 

~e_to pursue every further question I had with those 

2 

.. 
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directly ~esponsible for the 3~stJ~e nopartment•s tactual 

investigation en~ with the PBI agents whose participation at 

Waco was relevant to ay inquiry. Their cooperation o11ove4 

•• to obtain the info~ation necessary for this report. 

. . 

The Justice Doport~ent has eilted through a mountain .~t 

information, some of Vhich, in accordance with Federal 

Statute, can not he publicly revealed. This evidence 

overwhelmingly proves that David Xoresh and the Branch 

Davidians set.the fire and killed themselves in the 

contlagration a~ waco, which tultilled their apoc~lyptic . 

p~ophecy. Thia report does not question that conclusion; 

instead, ~y concern as a ~ember of the Behavioral science 

P~nel is whether the FBl strotegy pursuoa at Waco in so~e 

way contributed to the tragedy which resultea in the death 

cf twenty-five. innocent children along with tha adults. 

The Justice Depart~ent lnveGtigation and the Dennis · 

Evaluation seem to agree with the F~I cc~ander on the 

9round, who is convince~ that nothing the PBI did or could 

have dona ~ould have ehan;ed the outcome. That is not my 

itnpression. 

I therefore decided it was necessary to include in this 

report my own account of the events I considered cr1t1col • . . 
l have otte~pted ~o confirm avory factual assertion of this 

account with the FBI or the Justice Department. Although, 

3 
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in ~Y dis~ussions with the ~Stice Department, l encountered 

a certain sxapt1c1sm about wa1: x shall report here, % 1fas·. · 

quite reassured by interviews wi~ the PBI 1s behavioral 

scientists and negotiators, who confirmed some of my 

.tmpress1on9 and enool.lrage" IllY ettorts. Because 'they share · .. · 

·my belief that mistakes were made, they expressed their · · 

dete~ination to have the truth come out, regar~less of th~ ·· 
consoq~onoos. X hope that thia ~opo~t will bolatar ~e FBI 

and its new Direetor•s efforts to conauot their forthcoming 

review or waco, which has not yet begun. I also hopo that 

~y report and suggestions for chan;e ~ill in some measure 

enable the FBI to work more effectively with the Justice 

Department, tho Attorney General, ond other law enforcement 

aqencies. 

D. Han4ate to the panel as X u~darstoo4 it 

The mandate to the panelists was ••to assist. in 

aadrao~ing isaues that Federal Law E~forcement.confronts in .. 

barricade/hostage situations such as the stand-off that 

occurre4 near Waco, Texas •••• " Specifically, my sub-group 

(Ammerman, Cancro, Stone, sullivan) was directed to explore: 

"Dealing with persons whose motivations and though~ 

processes are unconventional. How should law anforcamen~ 

agencies deal with persons or groups which thought processes 

· or motivations depart substantially from ordinary familia~ 

4 
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. . . behavior· in barricade situations such as Waco? Hov shQuld 

the activations of the persons affect the lav enforcement 

respon5e? What as~istance can ~e provided ~y experts in 

such fields as psychology, ~sychlatry, sociology, ana 

theology?'' 1 

There seemed to be two premises in this request by the 

Deputy Attorney General (DAG). The first premise vas that 

.. 

· Waco had been a tragic event, so i~ was important for the 

agencies and the people involved to examine the evidence, 

evAlUAte their cctions, end initiate chcnge ~ased on thos4 

conclusions. Secend, althou~h there were questions about · 

the psychiatric status of David Koresh, the DAG's use of the 

tot'lft, "unc:onvcantiona1, 11 indicated that we '-'Oro also broadly 

to consider groups with ''belief systems" that :might cause 

them to thin~ and behave differently than ordinary cri~inals 

ahd therefo~o to ba mora difficult for law enfo~ea~ent to 

deal ~ith and unders~and. As I understood it, the Branch 

Davidians•·religious beliefs ~ere considered unconven­

tional," which was not intended to be a pejcrative term, ~ut 

rather a descriptive one. The panelists were-also told that 

tbere·was concern among fodcaral law anfo~ce~en~ officials 

that 1nore such "unconventional" groups might, in tbe near. 

future, pose problems tor Which law entorcement•s s~an~ard 

·opa~atift; procedurea might not be suitabla. 
• 

. . 
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Given this i~portant responsibility and the fact that 

we were aske4 to ~ake recoMmendations ••(c]oncerning the 

handling of incidents SuCb OS the Branch Davidian Standoff 

in Waeo. Texas" (emphasis added), I telt unprepared to go .. 

forward without a thorough gro~p of ~he •vants and decisions . 
. , 

that lee! to the tra;e4y. . However, the 3ustice Department 

~as still in the preliminary stage of their own fo~­

gathering !nvo~tigat!on at our panel briefinqs in early 

July. Hoping to convey the particular issues of concern to 

~e, I prepared a preliminary report bc~ed on tha initial 

b:riefinqs. Since the factual inforJnation I wanted and 

needed was still ~eing gathered by the J~st1ce Department, % 

did not atten~ the subsequent spQcial briefings arranqed for 

the panel at Quantico, Virginia. Because of my reticence to 

furnish a report based on incomplete.informotion, the DAG 

and I ~esolvod that I would aubmit my report subsequent to 

the completion of the Justice Department's factual inquiry. 

I have now had the opportunity to review tho following 

documentQ: 

1. Report ot the Depa~~mont o~ the ~easury on the 
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms~ 
Investigation ot Vernon Wayne Howell Also Known As 
David JCoresh,) September, 199;J; · 

1. Memorandum of June 25, 1993 

' 
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2. Report to the Deputy Attorney .General on the Ev~nts 
at waco, Texas, February 28 to April 19, 1993 .... 
(Redacted version), octo~er 8, 1993; 

3.- ·Edvard S.C. Dannia, :Jr., Evaluation of the Handling 
of the !ranch Davidian Stand-off in Waco, Texas, 
February 28 to April 19, 1993 (Redacted Ve~aion), 
octo~er 8, 19931 

Deputy Attorney Canaral Philip a. Heymann, LOaaons 
of Waco: Proposed Chanoes in Federal Lav 
Enforcement October 8 1 1993; 

s. Reeo~endaticns ot Experts tor I~provements in 
Fedoral Law Enfo~oo~ont Aftor Waoo. 

As previously mentioned, the Justice Department and the 

FBI have answered my furt~er ~ue~tions, Duppl!ed me with 

documents, and helped ~a explore issues of greatest 

relevance to my inquiry. 

II. Account of the Events at Waco 

T~e FBI replaced the BATF at the Branch Davidian 

compound on the evening of February 28 and the morning of 

Mcrch 1. There had been casualties en both :sides·during the 

BATF's attempted dynamic entry. David Koresb, the leader of 

the Branch Davi~ians, nad been shot through the hip, and the 

situation wao in flux. It would bacoma, aa vo have baan 

told, the longest stan~·off in law enforcement history. ~he 

FBI, with agents in place who were trained tor rapid 

intervention, was locked into a prolonged sieoe. Tha 

,. 
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perimeter was diftio~l~ to control, the conditions were 

extreme, and the stress vas intense. IU;thermore, the F.BI•a 

people had inherited a disaster that was 'not of their own 

•aking. •unao~ the oircum~tances, ~ha FB% eXb1bita4 

extraordinary restraint and handled this crisis with great .. 

professionalism" tne Dennis EValuation concluaes. While 

this may be trua from the par~pectiva of experts in law 

enforcement, it does not contribute to establishing a clear 

explanation of whDt happened et Waco from a paychiDtric and : 

behavioral science perspective. 'he comman4er on the grouna 

believes.that the FBI's actions had no impact on David 

Korosh. He and others who share his opinion will likely 

disagree ~ith the account that follows, which is the product 

ot roy gwn ~urrent ~nderstan~ing o! the events. 

Pbase % 

.. 
During the first phase of the FBI's engage~ent at Waco, 

a period of a few days, the agents. on the ground. proceeded 

with a at~atogy of conciliatory negotiation, which had ~a 

approval and understanaing of the entire chain of command. . . 
They elso too~ ~easures to ensure their own satety and to 

secure the perimeter. In the vi~w of the negoti~ting tea~, 

considerable progress was made ~ for example, some adults 

end ~hildren came out of tho co~pound1 b~t David ~oresh ana . 
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the Branch Davidiano •ada many promises to tha ne;ot!atcrs 

they did not keep. Pushed by the tactical leader, the 

commamSer on the ground ~egan ·to allow tactic.al preccw:'as 'to . .' 

ba placed on the compound in addition to negotiation: e.g., ·. 

turning off the electricity, so that those 1n the compound 

"ould t.e aa c:ol·d ao tho agents ou~sicJo durin~ tha blen~y­

degree night. 

Phase XX 

As documented in the published reports and ~emoran~a, 

this tacticAl pre5sure began at the operational laval ovo~ 

the objections of the FBI's own e~perts in ·negotiation and 

behavioral science, who specificallY advise~ against it. 

~he5o e~perts warned the FBI command abut the potentially 

fatal consequences of such measures in dealing with an 

"unconventional" qroup. Their·advice is documented in 

memoranda. Nonatheless taetical pressure was added. 

Without a clear com~and decision, what evolved was a carrot• 

and-stickc "m~xed-:mes:sage" strctegy. 'l'his happened Yithout 

autsida consultation and without taking into account that 

the FBI was dealing with an "uncon'Ventional .. group. 

Although this carrot-and-stick approach is presented in 

the factual invest19at1on as though it were stan~ard 
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operating. procedure tor law enforcement ana accepted by the 

ehtire chain of command, 1t was inRtea~, apparently, tba 

result of poor coordination ana management !n tha;fiald. 

Negotiators and tactical units ~ere at times operating 

independently in an uncoord1nate4 and oo~nterpro4uctive 

·fashion. 

Phase III 

During the third phase ot the stand-ott, the FBI took a 

mere aggressive approach to negotiation and, when that 

failed, gave up en the process of negotiation, except as a 

maana cf ~aintain!ng communication vith tho compound. By 

March 21, the FBI was concentrating on tactical pressure 

alone: tirst, by using all-out psycno.•physiological warfare 

, intended to stress and intimidate the B~aneh Davidian£; and 

second, :by ••tightening the noose" vith a circle of armcre~ 

vehicles. The FBI considered these efforts a success ... 
because no shots were fired at them by the Bran~h Davidiang. 

This changing strategy at ~be compound from (1) 

conciliatory negotiating to (2) negotiation and tactical 

pressure an~ then to (3) ~act1cal ~ressure alone, evolved 

over the objections ot tho FBX 1s own axparts and vitbout 

clear understanding up the chain of command. When the 
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fourth and ultimate strategy. the inse~tion of e.s~ gas, ~•• 

presented to Attorney General Reno, the FBI had abandoned 

any serious effort to reach a negotlctea tolution en4 was 

well along in its strategy of all-out tactical pressure. 

the~e~y leaving 'little ~ho1ce as ~o how tc ena the Waco 

stand-ott. lt is unclear from ~be raporta wbatho~ the PB% . 
. , 

ever explained to the AC·tbat the agency had rejected the 

advieo of thoir own experts in bebcvioral scien~e and 

negotiation, or whether the AG was told that FBI neoot!ators . 
believed they could get ~ore people out of the compound by 

ne~otiation. By the tl~e the AG mada he~ decision, tbo 

noose was closed and, as one agent told me, the FBI believed 

they had "three options - gas, qas, and gas." 

This account of the FBI's approach at Waco .~ay not be 

correct in avery detail. It is cert~inly oversimplified, 

but it has been confirmed in its qeneral outline by FBI 

~ehavioral scientists and negotiators who were participants 

at Waco. This account with t~ai~ assistance brings into 

focus for ~e the critical issues about law enforcement 

~e~ponse to persona and a group whose beliefs, ~otivations, 

and behavior are unconventional. 

:r:rx. 2\nalyaia 

• 
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A. !he J'.B:t 1 • j,ebavtoral aoience capacity ... 
~. JBI expertise ia deal!~~ vlth pe~~oDa wboae . 

aot!vations aad thought processes •~• 
unconventioual. 

The evidence now available to me indica~es thdt, 

contrary to my previous understandin; and that of tho othe~ 

panaliots, the F8%'s xnvestigative sUpport Unit and train~d 
negotiators ~ossessed the ps1cho1ogical/bebavicral aoien~~ 
_expertise ~bey needed to deal with David Kcresh and an 

unconventional g~oup.like the Branch D5V141ans. The FBI has 

excellent in-house behavioral science eapacity and aloe 

consulted with repu~able experts outside the agency. 

Panelists may have bean misled, ea I was, by FBI officials 

at the original briefings who conveyed the impression that 

they considered ccvid Rcresh a typical ~ri~inal mentality 

and dealt with him as such. They also conveyed the 

impression that they believed his followers were du~es and 

he had "conncacl" them-. e~secl on reports and interviews, the 

FBI's beha~ioral science_experts who were actually cn·the 

sc:ene at Waco hat! an excellent understanding of Xcresh '·s 

psychology and appreciated the group's intense raligicus 

convictions. 

My preliminary report ot Augus~ 3 e~phasized at so~e 

length those aspects ot David Xoresh 1s clinical history aftd 

psychopathology that ccntredi~ted the simplistic and . . 

• 
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misleading impression given at tha first briefings. xu~ 

more information has been made available about his mental 

condition, hia bobav1ora1 abnormalities, hie sexual 

activities, ana his responses under stress. All of this 

evidence is incompatible with ~e notion that Koresh can IH!.: 
. ~. ' 

understood and should have been dealt vitb as a convantiona~ 
· .. • 

criminal type with an antisocial personality disorder. 

However, ~ho evidenc:e availab~e does not leocS direc;:tly ta 

some ·other clear ana obvious psychiatric diagnosis used bY 

~ontemporary psychiatry. Nonetheless, based on tbe FBI's 

in•housa behavioral scianco memoranda and other information 

from cutside consultants, I believe the FBI behavioral 

science exFerts bad worke~ out a goo~· psychological 

understandino of Xoresh's psychopathology. They knew it 

would be a ~!stake to deal ~ith him as thou9h he were a con• 

~an pretending to ~eligious beliefs ~o thet he cou1a exploit 

his followers. 

~his is not to suggest that David Koresh did not 

dominate and exploit _other people. He was able to convince 

husbanda end wives among his followers that only he should 

bava se~ with the women and pro~agata children. Ho 

convinced parents on the same religious grounds to permit 

hi• ~o heve sex with their young teen-age daughters. He 

studied, Jnemori2ed, ~nd was Pt'eoccupiecl \lith Biblical taXi:SI. 

13 
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and ~ada much batter educated people believe that be had _a~ 

enlightened understanding of scripture and that he was tho 

la=b of Cgd. His _followers toot David Xoresh 1s teachings as. 

thei~ faith. HG exaetad strict d!sciplino from adults an4 ·· 

chilelren alike \'bile indulging hi11self. . . 

Whatever else all this adds up ta, it and otho~ 

intormation clearly demonstrate as a psychological matter 

that Xoresh had an abaclute need for control and domination 

of his followers that amounted to a mania. He also had the 

a~ility to control them. Tne intensity and depth of his · 

ability and need to control ig attaQtad to by everyone in 

the FBI vho dealt with hi~, from negotiators and behavioral 

sc!Gfttists tc toctical ogents ond the ~omman~er on the 

c;round. 

Unfcr~unatoly, tho~o ~osponsible for ultimate d~cision• 

making at waco did not listen to those who understood t~s 

~eaning and psychclogical significance of David Koresh's 

"mania. •• Instead they tr !ad to .:how hira who va" the "boss." 

. . . 
What went wrong at Waco was nat that the FBI lacked 

expertise in behavioral science or in ~ha undars~anding of 

unconventional ~el1g1ous groups. ~ther the com=ander on 
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the ;rounc! and others committed to tact!cal•aggressive,~ 

tra~1tional law enforcement practices disregarded those 

oxporta and t~iod to asae:r:t control and damons1:ra1:e to. 

Koresh that they were in charge. There is nothing surprising 

or esoteric in this explanation, ncr does it arise only fro~· 

the clear wisdom of hindsight. As detailed below, the FBI's. 

own experts recognized an4 predicted in memoranda that the~~ 
was the risk that tho acti~o ag~~e~aiva law onfo~cement 

=entality cf the FBI-- the so-called "action.i~perative• 

woul~ prevail 1n the face or rrustration an~ delay. They 

warned that, in these circumstan~es, there mi9ht be tragic 

consequences from the FBI '.s "action imperative," and they 

were correct. 

2. Evaluating the Risks of Mass Suieide 

As I have previously stated, there'is, to my mina, 

unequivocal evidence in the report an~ briefings that the 

Branch Davidians_aat tha oo~pound on fira thamaelve~ and . . 
ended their lives on David Koresh's oraer. However, I am 

also now convince~ that the FBI's noose-tightening tacti~s 

may vell have precipitated Koresh 1 s decision to commit' 

hi~self and his followers to this course of mass suicide. 

~he official repo~ts have shied away trom directly 

confronting an4 examining the possible causal relationship 

15 
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bet~een tha FBI's prassu~e ~aot!ca and David Koresh's·orde~ 

to the Branch Davidians. I believe that this omissioft ia·. 

criticAl beca~se, it tnat tactical strategy increasea the 

likelihood of the confla;ra~ian in ~hich twen~y-~ive 

1nnocen~ chil~ren died, then.that must be a matter of utmo$t 

concern for·tha future man~gement oi such stan4•otts. 

Based on the available ev1~ence ana my own professional 

expertise, I belie~e that tho responsible FS% decision 

makers did not adequately or correctly evaluate the risk of 

ma£a suicide. ~he Dennis Evaluation's e~ecutive summary 

concludes that 11the t-isk of suit:ide vas takGn into account 

during tne negotiations and in the development of the gas 

plan. 11 It is unclear whet "taken into acc:ount•• JDeans. ~he 

questions that now need to be explored are: 

how was the risk or suicide taken into account? 

and how did tha FBI as~o~a'the impact of. their show­

of-force pressure tactics en that risk? 

Gambling with de~tb. 

Thora is a criminology, behavioral science, an~ 

psychiatric literature on the subject of murder followec! by 
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suicide, ~hich in~1cates that these behaviors an4 the"mental 

st~tes·that motivate them have very important and 

complicated linJcs. Family viol~nce often takes the form of,· 

mu:t'c:!ca~ followed ~y auicide. Multiple Jd.llero 1SlotivAto4 by .. 

·paranoid ideas often provoke law enforcement at the scene t~. 

kill them an4 orten co~it suicide. EVen more important 1~ 

what has been called 11tha gamble ~ith death." Inner•city 

youths often provoke a shoot-out, ••gambling" with death 

(suicide) by prov~king police into killing them. The FB% 18 

behavioral science unit, aware of this literature, reali!ed 

that Koresh and his followers were in a desperate kill•or~ 

bo•killad ~ada. They were also well aware of the 

significance and meaning of the Branch Davidians• 

apocalyptic taith. They un~erstoo~ that David Koresh 

interpreted law enforeament attaeks as related to the 

prophesied apo~alyptio ending. 

In moving to the show of force tactical strategy, the 

rBI's·critical assumption, was that David Koresh and the 

Branch Davidians, like ordinary persons, \io\.\ld respon·d to 

pressure in the form of a closing circle of armed vehicles 

an4 eonc1uce tnat. survival was in their selt•interest, an~ 

surrender. Thia ill•fatad assumption runs contra~ tc all 

of the relevant behavioral science and psychiatric 

literature and the understanding it ottera4 ot Koresb and • 

the Branch Dav!dlans. 

11 
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FurtherMore,· there was direct empirical evidence 
. . 

aupportin; the assumption that the Branch Davidians, because 

ot their own unconvantional beliefG, were in the ~gamhlo 

vith death11 JDOde, ~he direct evidence for this was their ~.:. 

~ospon.:a 'to the A'l'F's J~isgu1cSe~ assault. They engaged in. ,a 

desperate _shootout with federal law enforcement, ~bich 

resulted in dea~hs and casualties on both sides. The ATF 

claims qunfire ca~o fro~ forty different lo=ations. Xt . \ 

true, this means that at least forty Branch Davidians were 

_willing to shoot at federal agents and kill or be killed as 

martyr-suicide victims defendin9 their "faith." Tho i~ea 

that·people with those beliefs expecting the apocalyPse 

would aubmit to tacticcl pre~~ure is a conclusion thAt flies 

in the face of their past behavior in the ATF crisis. Past 

behavior is generally considered the best predictor of 

future behavior. 

Wi111Dq to ~111 ~ut not oo1d-Dloo~e~ killers 

The BATF investigation reports that the so-called 

"dynamic entry" turned into what is deseribed as ~eing 

•ambushed". As I tried to oet a sense of the ata~• of mind 
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and behavior ot the people in tha compound ~e idea that the 

Branch Davidians• actl'ons·vere considered an "ambush" 

troubled ao. Xf they ~ere militants determine~ to ambUSh 

and kill as many ATF agents as »ossible, i~ aeemAd ~o •• 

that g~ven their firepower, the devastation would have been.: 

even worse. ~he agonte vere in a very 'V\1lnerab1e position.i 

trcm the moment they arrived·. Yet, as crdered, they tried· 

to gain entry into the compound in the tace of the ball of 

fire. Although there is d.isaqrGeDent,, a cenior FBI tactical 

person an~ other experts confirmed my !~pression ot this 

mattor. Tha ATF agents brought to the·compound in cattle 

cars could have been cattle going to slaughter if the Braneh· 

Davi4ians ha~ taken fUll advantage of their tactical 

superiority. They apparently did not ~aximize the kill of 

ATF agents. This comports with all of the state-of-mind 

evide.nce end suggests that the Branch Davidiar~s we~e not 

determined, cold-blooded killers; rathar, they waro 

desperate reliqious fanatics expecting an apocalyptic 

ending, in ~hich they we~e destined to die defending their 

sacred ground and destined to achieve salvation. 

• ~ha tactical arm of foderal law enfo~cement mDy 

conventionally think of the other sida as a ~and ot 

criminals or as a military torce or, generically, as the 

aggressor. But the Branch Davidians vera an unconvantional. 

1!J 
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group in an exalted, diaturbad, and desperate state of:•ind. 

They were devoted to David Koresh as the Lamb of Cod. They 

were willing to die ~etending theJDselves in en epoc=alypt.io .: 

en4in~ and, in the alternative, t~ kill tbemsalves and thei~ 

children. However, these were neither psychiatrically 

~aprec8ad, cuicidal people nor cold-~looda4 killers. 

were ready to risk death as a test of their faith. 

'l'hay 

~he 

psycholo;y of such behavior-together with its ~eligious 

siqnificance for the Branch Davidians - was mistakenly 

evaluated if, not simply ignored, b,y those responsible for 

the FBI strategy of "tightening ~e noose." 'l'he 

overwhel~ing show of force was not working in the way the 

tacticians supposed. It 014· not provoke the »ranch 

Davidians to surrandar, but it may have provok~d David 

Roresh to order the mass-suici~e. That, at least, is my 

consi~ered opinion. 

· .. • 

The factual ihvestigation reports in detail the many 

times ne;otiatcrs Asked Koreah and others in the compound 

whether they planned suicide. Also documented are Roresh's 

assurances that they would not Kill ~hemselves. such 

ques~ions and anawora ara certainly important f~am·a · 

psychiatric perspective in evaluating a patient's suicidal 

tendency. But the significance ot such communication 

20 

. . 

l"'O roa C9C8 ttl zc;~ IVd SC :zt .DBJ. 98/0Z/ LO 

z 0013049 



. . 

·. depends on the context, tha raia~ionship a£~ab1iahGd, ~nd 

the state ot ~ind of the person being interviewed. ~he F.Bl 

hac! no basis for ~elying on David Koresh'a Dnswers to these .. · 

;uestions. Furthenaora, his responses l)rcvidec! no aulcSance-'. 

to the more pertinent ~QSt1on: - •Nhat will you do if ve 

t!ghtan thA noose around the compound in a ehow of 

cverwhel=inq power, an4 using cs gas, force you to come 

out?' 

the psychology of control 

The most salient feature of Davia Koresh's psychology· 

vas his need ~or control. Every ~eaningtul glimpse ot his 

personality and of day-to-day life in tho eo~pound 

demonstrates his control and do~ination. The tactic of 

tighte~ing-the-noose eround the compouna wos intended to 

convey to David Koresh the realization that he was losing 

control of his ''territory," and that the FBI was taking 

control. 'l'he FBI apparently a:s:sumed that this tactic o.nd 
i 

the war of stress would establish that they were in control 

but would not convey hostile intent. They themselves trulY 

beliovad thGSG tactics vera "no~ an assault," and bacauaa 

the cavidians failed to respond with 9unfire, the FBI 

considered their tactics effective and appropriate. Tb• 

commander en the ;round now acknowledges that thay never 
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... roally gained control ot Dovid Koresb. But, in fact, my 

analysis is that they pushea him to the ulti~ata aet of 

.control -- destruction ot himself and his group. 

The FBl•s tactics were 111 co'lslderec! in light cf Davi4 

Koresh • s psychology enc1 the group p,sychology o~ the people., 

in the compound. The FBI was dealing with a religious 

group, with share~ and reinforced ~eliefs and a charism~tic 

leader. lf o~e taka£ aoriously the psycboloqi=~l syndrome 

cf murder/suicide 9amble with death an4 the group's 

uneonventicnal beliet system in the seven Seals and the 

apocalypse, then you may concludo, as I havo, tha~ the FBI's 

control tactics convinced David ~oresh that, in this 

situation, he ~as becoming hopeless ond helpless -- that be 

was losing control. In his desperate state ot mind, he 

chose death ra~her th·an sut;,mission. When the FBI thought 

they wera.at last taking oontrol, they bad in fact totally 

lost control of the stand-off. 

2. ~he Waco taotioa ift liibt o~ ~ba group p$y~bo1oqy 
of the FBI· 

If this had })een a military operation, the Waco 

conclusion would have been o viotory. The enemy was 

destroyed without a sin;le loss of life for the FBI. ~his 

.situation, however, was not a military operation. ~a 
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question is a did a "military•• Jllentality overtake the r&I? · 

We were told that th• FB% coftaidera a conflict which results 

in any casualties en either side a failure. The law 

anfo~cement ~erts en the·panel agreed. 

There is little doubt that the FSI inherited a terribie 

situation. Fadaral egents ha~ been killed and wounded; and 

there ~ere killed and wcunaed Branch Davidians in and aroun4 

the compound. The ~BI knew that they were in a dangerous 

situation, and that they confronted a g~oup of religious 

fanatics who were willing to kill or be killed. The FBI's . 

initial decision to mount a stan"..;otf and negotiate was a 

remar~able exhibition of restraint.under tho circumstancea. 

In retrospect, tactical units will wonder whether an 

immediate full•scalo dynahic ent~y by an overwhel~ing ·rorce 

would have prcauced less loss of life. 

The FBT stand-off, wa were rapeatedly told, was the 

longest in law enforcement hi~tory. ~he costs in money and 

ma"power were mounting an~, waco had the media impact of the 

~ran Hostage taking as the days mounted. ~he FS% waa Uhder 

enormous pressure to do something. Civen what I ,believe the 

rax•a ~roup p~ycholo9Y to have been, the desultor,Y strategy 

of simultaneous negotiation and tactical preasuro was 

enacted as a compromise ~e~ween doing nothing (pas~ivity) . 
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.. and a •ilitary assault (the action imperative). Tho Dppeal 

of any tactical initiative to an entrenched, stressed FBI·. 

•ust have been overwhel~ing. It may have ~etter su!te4 

their aroup psychology than ~ho greup psychology et ~A 

unconventional people in the compound they vanted tn affe~. 

Civen 'the escAlating pressure to act, the final t1gbten1n~.­

the•noose" and e.s. gas ~trategy •ust have seemed to the · 

tacticians a reasonable co~promise ~etween doing nothing an4 

ovet-reacting. 

This analysis ct the 7Sl's group psychology is not 

intended as a matter of placing blame. If it is accurate, 

it at least points to what might be done differently in the 

future. ~he FBI should not be pushed by their group 

psychology into misguided od hoc decision making the next 

time around. 

D, Failure to use behavioral science capacd.t)' 

J,. Failure o~ coordination :between tactical and 
. ~•;otiatiDg a~•Q of tbe PD% 

Throughout the official factual investigation, there 

are re!erences to the tailure ot communica~ion ~etween the 

tactical and negotiation arms of the FBI. ~hG c~mmando~ on 

the ground thinks that the official investigation and 

. evaluation 8XD9gerote the extent Dnd signifiQance Ot that 
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•. failure. I disagree. !be situation can only ~e tully . 

appreciated by a thoroughgoing review of the documents. 

Consider the Memo of 3/5/93 froJD Special Aqents Peter 

Smerick and MArk Young on the aubjec:t, 11Ne9otiat.ion St~ategy. . . . 

and considerations." ~e memorandu~ not only defines the · .. 
bas1o law enforcement priorities at waco in 'the identical ... 

fashion as tho aftor-tho-fact panel of la~ enforcement 

experts, also anticipates =ost of the panel's ovn behavioral 

scien~e expertise Gnd retro~pective wisao~. Agents Smerick 

and Young were not Monday morning quarterbacks as we 

panelists are; they were members of the F.B.I. team on the 

fiela of play. The basic premise of their overall strategy 

was: 

1. Insure scfety cf children [emphasis in original], 
who are truly victims in this situation. 

2. Facilitate the peaceful surrender of David Koresh 
and his followers. 

The agents went on to emphcsize ~hat the strategy o! 

negotiations, coupled with ever-increasing tactical presence 

was inapplicable. They wrote, "In this situation, however, 

it is believed this strategy, if ca~~iod to excess, could 

eventually be counter-productive and could result in loss of 

life." p. 2, Memo of 3/S/93. The agen~s also were tully 

DVa~e that goresh 1a followe~a believed in his teachings and 

would "die for his cause." They were fully aware, 
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therefore, of the reli;ious significance of the Branch_ 
.. 

Davidians• conduct and attitudes and were sensitive to all 

of the co"corns emphasized by the religious exports on the 

panel in their reports. ~ey su;gested that the F.B.I. 

should consider •ortering to pull tiack, an1! if they releas. 

more children" (e~phas!s in oriqinal). ~be agents further 

recommendet.S that, ••since these people fear law enforcement, 

offer them the opportunity ot ~urrendering to a neutral 

~arty of their chccsin; accompanied by appropriate law 

enforcement personnel." 

These agents recogni%ed that although some in the 

F.a.x. might believe the oavicU.ons were "~izarre and cult­

like," the followers of Kcresh "will fight back to t~e 

death, to defend their property [described elsewhere by the 

~gents as sacred ground, the equivalent_ of a cathedral to 

Catholics, etc.] and their .f.Ait.h" (el!lphasis added). Memo of 

Smerick and Young 3/7/93. 

M1 readinq of these ~e~os indicates that these agents . 
ha~ plaee4 the satety of the children first, exactly as did 

A~ Rano. They recognized that it was not a tradrtional 

hostage situation, as t~e British lew enforcement expert on . 
the panel, c.E. Dirt, repeatedly e~phaaized during our 

briefings of July 1 and 2, when he found it necessary to 
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correct the misrepresentation of the briefer. They warned 

against the carrot•an4•sticx approach, which was e=ployed .. 

and has !>eon CZ"itic.i:r:ec1 tJy sevaral/ot' the ~anelists in ~e!r 

reports. Professor Cancro speaks of it as a "doUble b1nd,~­

a ~e~ used by behavioral scientists to deacriba • mixed 

•eaaage for vhich there is no correct response and which, as 
a result, creates anxiety and agitation in the recip1en~ oi 

The factual investigation daes not explain how or vhy 

thoso axpert ~piniona of be~avioral scientists and 

negotiations within the FBI were ovarrid~en. The Justice 

Depart~ent e~phasized thAt these sama agenta ~bose views I 

have described gave quite contra~ictory views the very next 

day. When I asked whether tha Justice Department's tact­

tinders hAd ~uest!cnad thoca agents as to why they had 

changed their views, no adeguate answer was given. I 

therefore pursue~ tnat inquiry with the agent vho authored 

tho two reports. He ~ade it quite ciear that the . . 
contradictory suggestions were offere~ only in response to 

an expression ot dissctisfection with tha p~eviouG 

rocommendations. Although the commander on the ground and 

the official investigation disagree with ny view, % have 

concluded that decision-making at Waco failed to qive due 
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ra~ard ~o the FBI experts who had the proper understanding 

ot bow to deal with an unconventional group like the Branch· 

DavicU.an$. 

a. Was tactical stratefY app~op~!ate vitb •o aaBy ahila~en 
!a the ccmpouBd7 · · 

f.ba pressure strategy as ve no~ know it consisted ot 

shutting off the compound's electrioity, putting search . . . 

liqhts on the cc~pcund all niqht, playing constant loud 

noise (including Tibetan prayer chants, the ~cre~ming aounas 

of rabbit~ being slaughto~ad, etc.), ti9htenin~ the 

peri~eter into a smaller and smaller circle in an 

overwhelming show at advancing ar~ored force, an~ usin; cs 

gas •. The constant stress overload is intended to lead to 

sleep-deprivation and psychological disor1en1:ation. :En 

precU.spcsed individu~l:s the r:ot~bination of physioloqical 

disruption and psychological stress can also lead to mood 

disturbances, transient hallucinaticns and par~noid 

ideation. lf tho constant noise exceeds 105 decibels, it 

can produc~ner~e deafness in children as well as in adults. 

Presumably, the tactical intent was to cause dieruption and 

o~otio,nal chaos within the compound. The FBI hoped to brea~ 

Koresh•s hold over his followers. Ho~ever, it may bave 

solidified this unconventional group's unity in thoir common 

misery, a phenomenon fa~iliar to v1ct1~ology and group 

psychology. 
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When asked, the Justice Department was unaware whether. 

the FBI had even questioned whether these intentional 

·stresses would be particularly ha~ful ~o the many infants 

an4 children in the co=pound. Apparently, no cne asked 

whether. such dele~er1ous measures were Appropriate, either 
-... 

as a mattor of law enforcement etbics or as a ~atter of · · 

morality, when innocent children wera involve~. This is not 

to suggest that the FBI decision-makero were cold-blooded 

.tacticians who took no account of the chilaren; in tact, 

there are repeated examples snowing the concern of the 

agents, including thA commander on tha oraund. 

Navertheless, ~y opinion is that regardless of their 

apparent concern the rsz agents dia.not adequately consider 

the effacts of these·tact!cal actions on the children. 

3, The plan to inscr~ cs 9aa 

During u.s. l'Dilitary training, trainees are required to 

wear a gas ~ask ~hen entering a tent containinq CS qas. 

~hey then remove the mask and, after a few seconds in that 

atmosphere, are allowed to leave. % can testity from 

pe:r::sonal axpariance 'to ~he power cf c.s. gas to qdickly 
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inflame eyes. nose1 and throat, to produce choking, chest 

pain, ;a;ging, and nausea 1n healthy adul~ males •. It !a 

difficul~ ~o boliovo ~at the u.s. gover~man~ vould 

deliberately plan to expose twenty-five children, =ost ot 

them infants and toddlers, to c.s. gas £or fortr-eigh~ 

hour~. Although !~·is ~ct discussed in the publishe4 

reports, I have been told that the fBI believe4 that ~ba 

Branch DAVidian~ had gAs Daska and ~hat th!o vas ona of the 

reasons for the plan of prolonged exposure. I have also 

~een told that there was so~e protection available to the 

childran, i.e covering places where the seal is incomplete 

with cold wet towels can adapt gas Basks for children and 

perhaps ror tc~~lers though not for infants. Tho official 

reports are silent about these issues and do not reveal wha~ 

the FBI told the AG about this ~atter, and whether she knew 

there might be unprotected children and infanta in the 

compound. 

The written infor~ation about the effects of c.s. gas 

~hich was presented to the AG has been shared with the 

panelists. We do not know whether she hAd time to ~aad it. 

Basod on •Y own medical knowledge and review of the 

acientitic literature, the information supplied to the AG 

see=s to minimize the potential ha~ful eonsaquancas tor 

infants and children. 

30 

no roa 

% 0013059 



. t~o~ 

Scientific literature on c.s. gas is, however. 

surprisingly limited. Xn the sixties,· the British Home 

ottice, comMissioned the Himsworth Reporc, aft~ complaints 

about ~~· use of e.s. gas by British ~roops in tondonderr.y, 

Ireland. The report is said by its critics to understate 

the medical consequences. !'he pu:bliahed aniaal research on·' 

which the report 1s based.ecknowled;ed that at very high 

exposure, which the authors deeme~ unlikely, lethal etfocts 

vere produced. The researchers a~sumea (as did the 

Himsworth report) that e.s. ;as would be use4 primarily in 

open cpacos, to disperse crowds, an~ not 1n closed areas. 

The AG'a information emphasized the British experienoe 

and understated the potential nealth consequGneea in closed 

spaces. The AG also had a consultation with a physician; 

~ut the exact content of that discussion hos not boen 

reported, and the availa~le summary i~ uninformative. The 

FBI co~ander on tho ground assures me that the agency baa 

detc1led, ongoing expertise on c.s. gas end i~s medical 

co~sequences. If so, no such FBI information was supplied 

in the written material to the AG or subsequently to tb1s 

panolist. 
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Based on my review, the American scientific literature 

on the toxic effects of c.s. 9as on adults an~ cbil~en is 

also limited. Ot course, thora bas, baon no daliberate 

experimentation on infants. the Journal of the A;srigan 

Medical Association published two a~ticlea in ~ecen~ ~~· 

in which physicians expressed concern about the use·of c.s. 
qas on civilians, including childre~ in south Korea and 

Israel. Anecdotol ~eports of the serious consequeneeg cf 

tear Qas, however, approved as early as 1956. case reports 

indicate that prolonqe~ exposure to te~r gas in closed 

quarters cau~as che~ical pnaumonia an~ lethal pulmonary 

edema. Gonzalez, T.~., ~, Legal Medicine pathology an4 

toxicology East Norwalk, Conn: Appleton Century Crofts, 

1957). Accora!nq to a 1978 report, a ~isturbea adult died 

after only a half-hour exposure to c.s. gas in closed 

qur1rtcrs. Chep:man, A.:J. anc1 White c. "Case Report: Death 

Resulting from Laerimatory.Agents, 11 J. Forensic sei., 23 

(1978) :· 527-30) . The clinical pathology f'cund et· autopsy in 

these cases i~ e~a=tly what common medical understandinq and 
. . 

ordinary pulmonary physiology predicts would follow 

prolonge~ exposure in clo3cd quartera. . . 
The potential effects of c.s. qas are eas11~ explained. 

c.s. gas causes omong o~her thingc, irritation and 

inflammation of ·mucus membrane. · The lun; is a sack full of· 
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•embranes. The inhala~ion ot c.s. gas would eventually 

causa ·.tntlammation, and fluid would move across the 

_ membranes and collect in ~he alveoli, the tiny air sacks 1n 
the lungs that are ne~easary for breathing. The result is 
~ike pneumonia and can be lethal. Animal studies •~• 

available tp confirm that c.s. gas has this etfect on lung 
. ~ . . 

t!ssuo. Sallantyna, D. ana Callaway, s., "Inhalation 

toxicoloqy ana pathology of animals exposed to omicron­

chlorobenzylic2ene malanitrile (CS), i• Med. Sci. taw, l.2 

(1972)t 43•65. The Special Communication published in 

J.A.M.A 220 (1993): 616-20 by Physicians for Human Rights 

reported thDt its teams, inveatigat!ng the use cf e.s. gas 

in South Korea ana Panama, found "skin burns, eye injuries 

and exa~erbations ot un~erlying heart and lung diseDse • • • 

on oivilian~ at Qites far removed from crowd gatherings." 

Dermatologists have reported blistering rashes on skin 

exposed to sel!•defense sprays, whioh use tha same e.s. gaa. 

Parnaix-Spake, A • .et-Al, "Severe Cutaneous Reactions to 

Self-Defe~se S~rays, Arch. Dermatol 129 (1993): 913. 

The medical literature does contain a clinical case 

histpry of a situation tbat closely approximates tho 

expec~ed waco eonditiona. Park, S.and Giam~ona, S.T., "Toxic 

Effects of Tear Cas on an Infant Following Prolonge4 
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.Exposure, •• .&ner. :1. Dis. Child 123,3 (1972). A normal tour . 

month•old infant Dale wos !~ a house into vhich police 

officers, !~ o~der t~ subaue a disturhe4 adult, fire4 . . 
canisters of e.s. gas. ~he unprotected child•c exposure 

lasted two to three hourc. Therea!ter, he was immediately 

tuan to_,an emerqency rooJD. His symptoZDS during the f.l:r:at 

tventy•four hours were upper t-eapi~a'tozy; but, within forty• · .. : 

eig~t ho~rs hig face £bowed evidence cf first deqree ~Urns, 

and he was in severe· respiratory ~istress typical ot 

chemical pne~mcnia. ~he infant had cyanosis, required 

urgent positive pressure pulmon~ry care, and was· 

hospitalized for twenty-eight days. Other signs of toxicity 

appeare~, including an enlarged liver. The infant's delaye~ 

onset of aerious, life-threatening symptoms parollel3 tha 

experience of animal studies done by Ballantyne and Calloway 

tor the Hinsvorth Raport. The infant's reactions reported 

in this case history were of a vastly diffe~ent di~ension 

than the information given the AC £ugqested. 

Of course, DOst people v1thout gos ~as~a ~ould be 

driven ~y their instinct for survival from a c.s. gas-. . . 
·filled structure. But infants cannot run or even wolk ou~ 

of such an environment; and young children (many were 

.to~dlers) may be fr1ghtane4 or disoriented by this traumatic 

experience. The ·c.s •. gas tactics, planned by the FBI~ and· 
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approved b.Y ~he AC, vould seea ~o give parents no choice. 

lf they vanted to spare their inadequa~ely protected 

~hildren tbe intense and immodiate suffering expectably 

CJ&uca~ by the c.s. ;as, they woulct have nao to take th•• cut,·· · 

of the compound. Ironically, while ~ha •cs~ co~pelling 

tactor used to ju•tify tha waco plan was the safety ot the . 

children, the insertion of the c.s. gas, :ln t4Y opinion# .. 

actually threat~ne~ the safoty of the children. 

The Justice Department has info~mod ~• that because of 

the high winds et Waco, the c.s. gas was dispersed; they . 

~olieve it played no part in the death by suffocation, 

revealed at autopsy, or most of the infants, toddlers, and 

children. The commander on the·ground, however, is ot tho 

opinion that the e.s. gas did nave .some effect, baeause the 

wind did not begin to blow strongly until two hours after he 

ordered the operation to begin. As yet, there has been no 

report as to whether tne children whoso b~dies were found in 

the bunker were equipped vith.oas masks, Whatever the 

actual effects may have been, I find 1~ hard to ~ccopt a 

deliberate plan to insert. c.s~ gaa tor forty•eight hours in 

a ~uilding with co ~any cbil4ren. It certainly makes it 

~ore difficult to believ~ that the heelth and sefaty·ot the 

children was our pri~ary concern. 

• 
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~he coDDander on the ground has into~e4 •• that 

careful consideration vas 9ivan ~o the safety of the 

children, and that the initial pian was to 41rec~ the 9as at 

an area ot the compoun4 not occupied by them. We wi;l never 

know whether that plan would have worked: the Brench 

Pavid.ians began to shoot at the tanJc J.lke veh!~los inserting; 

the gas canisters, an~ c.s. gas vac then directed at all 

parts of the ccmpound, as previously decided in a tall. J:)ook 

plan recommended by ~ilitary advisers. ' 

%V. Recommendations 
A. The Deputy Attorney General's fo~mulation 04 

:re~ommencSation 

The DAG boa, in his overview, outlined the critical 

elemants t·o be consiaerec:J in ctealing with e situation like 

Waco .in the future. This is an e~cellent formulation. 

Based on what I have learned end what 1 have descri~ed 

above, I strongly endorse his tormulction ana the 

recommendations which follow. However, unlika the other 

p~nelist~ in my ;roup, X am impresse4 that· tho FBI haa 
' 

adequate in•bouse expertise to doal with unconventional 

groups li~e the Branch Davidians. FUrthermore it seems . 
clecr that at Waco, the FBI, was sutter!ng from information 

: overload, it from anything. ~hue, t believe that the crisis 

management copacity (see DAG recommendations) and what % 

,, 
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vould describe as information management have to be the 

particular focus tor :uture change. 

a. aeco=meD4ationa of this paueliat . 
·1. ~urther investlgatiaD is necosaary 

one mlgbt think that tha hi;hest priority after a 

tragedy like Waco would be for everyone involve~ to consider 

what went wrong an~ what would they ~o~ do differently. 1 . 

=ust confess that it has been a frustrating and 

disappointing experience to ~1scover that the 3ustico 

Department•a investigation has produced so little in this 

regard. The investigators have assured ~e that everyone 

·involved was as~ed tnese questions and that taw useful 

responses wero givon. An undercurrent of opinion holds that 

everything depends and will depend in the tuture on tho 

co~ander on the ground. SAC Jamar, the commander en the 

g~ound, knows that he is on the spot an~ that there are 

those who point to his position as the weak link at Waeo. 

When I asked him what wont wrong and what shculd·be done· 

differently, he candidly acknowledged his difticult 

position; but he emphasized how ~uch waa still unknown 

about whAt happGned, and that he still had not ~et with the 

FBI Waco negotiators to discuss their views ot what 

happened. His basi~ conclu~ion in ret~ospact, however, was 

· thot no~bing the FBI had done at Waco made any real impact: 

37 

,.,o toa 

.. 

z 0013066 

.. 



His opinion is that Roresh sent people out becauso he d£dn•t 

want them, an~ not ~ecause of the FBI's consciliatori 

negotiation st~ategy. His opinion is that Koresh en4e4 it 

all in mass su1c!de·not because of the FBI teo~1ca1 

strategy, bUt ~cause that vaa always hia intention. His 

deep an4 aeriou9 cencern a~out his responsibilities vee 

impressive and he made it convincin9lY clea~ how much more X 

and the other expe~ts neaded to know about the facts. on 

.this, he was preaching to the converte~. There is no doubt, 

in my mind that muCh ~ore needs to be knovn about waco. In 

my opinion, it is new time for the FBI itself, with the help 

and-participation ot outside experts, to ta~• on ~hat 

responsibility. Indeed, that is my first recoMmendation. I 

~grce with tha FBI's commander on the groun~ that we ati~l 

~o not know enough about what hDppenoa at Waco. We need to 

know more, .not in tha spirit of who is to blaJne, but in tbe 

.pirit of what went wrong ~hat can be ~ade ri9ht. What ean 

we learn from a careful study of David Koresb and the Branch 

· Davidians thot vill bGlp us in learning about other 

unconventional groups?.What can the FBI learn about ita own 

behavior at waco that will balp in the future? 
• • 

Just as I believe the FB% has more work to do, l 

~elieve the Justice Dapartment has work to do as vell. No 
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clear picture has emerge4 ot bow and on what basis the AG 

aade ber deci~ion. civan on my current information aDout 

e.s. 9as, it is difficult to understan4 wby a pcrcon ~hose 

primary concern was the safety of the children would agree 

to the FB%'• plan. l't is critical that .:l.n the future, the AC! ·. 

have accurate information, so 'that &he can aak• an inforaecS .... 

c5ecision. :tr the only infonation she vas given about c.s. ·.• · 
gos ia what has been shown to the panelists then, givan my · 

current understanding, she was ill adviGed and made an ill- . 

8c1V1SGd decision. None of these 21Satters have been 

elarified. Certainly for its own ettective functioning, the 

Justice Department needs to oort this out for the future. 

The sequence of decision makin9 set out in the earlier 

account indicates that tha FSI had already move4 very rar 

down tha branch of the decision tree ~etore consulting the 

AG. This made it ditticult tor he~ to make any other 

choice. Presu~ably, others in the 3ustice Department bad. 

been in~o~vea.every step of the way. Like the ~BI, ~hay 

need to re-examine their own babavior, the channels of 

communication, the processing of information, an~ whot ven~ 

wrong or nee~s to be done ditZerently in tba future. l 

assume tha~ the DAG'a recommendation of a •senior career 

official•• within the Justice Department, who JDaintaln• "a 

familiarity with the resources available to the FBI,• is a• 

forward looking solution to some of these problems. 
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2. ~he I'B:r· ·Dee4s to II&Jte »etter uae ot pas~ exparleaee ~ 
ex!st1nq ~ehavioral soie~o• oapaait7. · 
As we have been told, the commander on the ground was 

not selected because of his past experience in stcndofts o~ 

because of his ~nowledgo ot unoo~ventional ~roups. He was 

~he cpacial agent in charqe of the geographical area in 

which tbe action took place. The DAG bas recommande4 a 
I 'l 

different co~~n4 structure. Nonetheless, the FBI bad a 

oituation room in Washington and a co=mand structure in 

place at Wac~ Which could have ~rougbt tha a~ency•s past 

experience to bear. At the first briefings, when asked ~o 

describe their most successful resolution of c $tan4off with 

an unconventional group, en FBI official re~orted the 

euc~essful usa of a third party intermediary (negotiator). 

When l subsequently inquire~ about the ~Bl's previous 

experience with the succossful use of CS gas, the example 

given was a prison riot. 

These examplec speak for themselves and suggest to m~ 

that in making decisions at Waco, the FBI did not ~aka the 

~est use of its own past experience. The co~ander on the 

ground believes his decision to allow lawyers and ~he local 

sheriff to meet with ~oresh is an example of using a ~bird­

party interMediary. However, in their own highly succ~ssful 
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raoolutlon ot a stan4•off with an armed ~nconventional· 

group, the FBI used a ~allow !llemher ot t~e reli9ious faith·. 

aa tbe intermediary. This option was apparently re~eoted a~ · 

Waco tor rea~on& thAt % find unconvincing. 

Tho DAG has recommencSed that a computer database of ... 

past stan~-offs ba developed. ~he critical 1mportance·of 

this is to insure that the FBI makes better use of its own . •' 

experience. It will be important for the FBI to distinguish 

between unconventional groups and prison populations in 

deciding wnich tactical measures are strate;ically and 

ethically appropriate. 

3, ~he rBI needs a clear policy oD·thir4 party 
~egotiAtorstintermediaries 

The FBl has well-rained negotiators whose ski1ls are 

impressive. Nonetheless, there came a time at· waco whoh tha 

FBI's f~ustration led them to introduce a new negotiating 

approach. ThGy changed froa a conciliatory, trust-bui14ing 

negotiator to a ~ore demanding. an~ intimidating negotiator. 

The changa had no effec~ and may have ~een 

counterproductive. The negotiators also ~riod, at times, to 

telk religion with ~oresh but concluded that this was not 

pro4uctive. 

• 
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Some FBI negotiators are convinced tbat.thoy could hmve 

votten more peo~le cut of the compound if ·the FBI had stayed 

the course ~f conciliatory negotiation. Whether or not that· 

is t~ue, _the FBI reached a point where tactical strate§Y 

~ecame the priority an~ negotiation under those 

circumstances became· ineffective. 

It is my rcco~endation that this point of cftange be 

defined as a red light, a time when tha decisio" ~a~ara in 

tuture stan~ofts should consider the use of a third party 

neqotiator/intermadiary. The red light should go on when 

the co~ander on the ;round or the chain of command be;ins 

· ~c feel thot FBI negotiation is a~ a stand still. 

~he FBI negotiation and behavioral science experts 

.should, at the least, develop D policy in consultation with 

experts on when they miqht consider the use of third party 

negotiators/intermediaries •. ~he current working policy 

seems to ba that third party nagotiDtcra Dre 

counterproductive. The experienc~ justifyinq that policy 

needs to be reviewe~ in li9ht or Waco. It was a significant 

omission at Waco not to involve as a third~p•rty 

~egotiatorfinterme~iary a person of religious st~ture 

familia~ wi~h the un=onvent1onal belief sys~e~ of the Branch 

Davidians. 

. . 

C9C8 tt9 ZOZ Ivd 9t:zt aat 98/0Z/LO 

z 0013071 



.. 

9t0 Ill 

C. the rBI &D4 tba 3ust!aa Dapa~tment Deed a systematic . 
policY. fo~ deallDg vith information ove~1oa4 !D a 
crisis 
A c1itica1 elemen~ of crisis management based on my 

. .. 

analysis of what happ•nod at WAco is intoma~ion manage111ent. ·. 

%ntor.mat1on overload allows decision•aakers to diccount ali 

of the e~ort adv!ce they are given and revert to their own ·· 

gut instincts. Alternatively - ao X believe ve learn from 

"Aco - the dec1s1on~=akers can insist on being given advice 

compatible with thoir 9ut instinct. In ny opinion, the gut 

instinct that prevailed at Waco was the law Gnforcement 

=ind-set, the action-control imperative, 

It, as the DAG recommends, the FBI develops a natwcrk 

cf aeadc2ft.ic a)(pe~ta in behavioral science, religion, 

sociology, and psychiatry. the FBl cah ca~tainly expect an 

infcrmoticn overload in the next crisis. The problem ·~ill 

be how to ~anaga the axpert information overload. rhis is a 

complex problem that requires careful consideration by 

•ppropriate experts. However, one pattern that emerged from 

my understanding of waco neada to be change~. The official 

investiqation lists all kinds ot experts who allegedly vera 

consulted or vho took it upon the~selvea to offer 

unsolicited edvice. It is almost i~pcosible to determine 

wbat ell this edds up to. one of my fellow panelists 
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. . bel!evaa - ana 1 am convinced - that the FBI never actually 

consultea with a rBlig!oua eXpert tam111ar with the 

unconventional beliefs of Branch »avidlana. ~ba 

J.nvestigat~rs at. ~e :Justice »apartment disagree with thia .· · 

conclusion. My c~ncern about this i• no~ a matter of fault• 

finding: it is critical to my concern about information ·; 

management in a criaic. The question ia: what counts as a 

consultation with the FBI? One baa tha impression :rom ~e 

Waco expar!anco that a variety cf agents were talkinq to a 

variety ct experts, and that some of these contacts were 

listed as consultations. We are not told hov thoQe contacts 

or consultationa were aorte~ tnrough. Who in the process 

would decide what was relevant and important and wha~ 

ir~elevant end unimportant. 

In any Qvent, the pre~ailing patte~n in the information 

flow during the crisis was for each separate expert ~o offa~ 

the FBI an opinion. As a prelimincry ~atter, i~ seems to me 

important tor the FBI to establish who the relava~t expe~ts 

are and then arrange through conrerence calls or more high• 

tech arrangements for sustained dialoilole among them,· to 

understand and ~lariry the dimensions of their diaagraomente 

and, ~hen possibla, to achieve consensus. Information 

should ~e exchanged and differences directly contronte4 1n 

tha circle ot consultants; they should not vanish in the 

inform~tion overload. 
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s. ~be IB% Deeas a better kDovledgo ~·•• ••ou~ tbe •o41oa1 
conaeq:uenc:e·s of c.s. ;aa. 

Aa di~cu~sed above, it is my opinion that the AG was 

not properly into~ed ot tha riska ~o infants and small 

children posec1 .by C& gas, This is not to imply t11a~ th~ 
., 

FBl intentionally •icl~4 her. %ndeec1, the FBI may not have 

ba~ the proper medical information. Tha use of cs.gaa io, 

in any event, • controversial matter, and although it 1a 

unc:lerstancSable that tha·.1ustica Department :tnvestiqat1on CSlcl 

not explore medical considerations, .a careful evaluation is 

clearly indicatod. The FBI, the Justice Department, and all 

of law enforcement that uses cs gaa ought to have as clear 

an understanding of its medical consequences as possible. 

The hasty survey of the ~edical and scientir1c literature 

done for this report is hardly definitive. ThAsa ~attars 

should be scrted out so that tbe.AG clearly understands what 

the use of cs ;as entails. 

c. The FS% beec5s a specific polic:y for &SealiDg vith 
uneonvpntiQnal groufs• I 

The basic conclusion of my account and analysis is that 

the standard law enforcement •entality asserte~ itself at 

Waco in the tac~ical ~how ot £orco. ~ha FSl should ~e aware 

of its own group psyehology and of the tendeney to carry cut 

; . 
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. the action !aperative. oou~tless, that imperative is · 

appropriate in dealing ~Jth conventional criminals; 1e may. 

be nec:essary even 1n dealil'lg vi th unconventional groups. _; . 

However, the laaaon o~ Waco is that once the.FBI recognizes 

that it is dealing with an unconvent-.ional group, 'those "ho. 
urge puniabinCI ta«;tical measures should have to meet a heavy ··. 

burden of persuasion~ When children are involved, the 

~urden should he even heavier and ethical conaidarationa, · 

which ~ead to be formulated, would come into play. 

V%. _.inal Word . 
The events at Waoo culminated in a tragic loss cf life 

- on that everyone i~volved in law en~oreemant and in the 

official inquiry a9ree. There is a view within the FBI and 

in the official reports that cuggests the tragedy was 

unavoidable. ~his report is a dissenting opinion from that 

view. ~hera is cbviously.no definitive answer; but my 

eccount and analysis tries to emphasize what might/ha\1e been 

done di!terently at Waco, and ~hat I believe should be do~e · 

differently in tha FBI's fgture dealings With unconventional 

groups. I endorse the DAG's reeommandaticns fa~ change an4 

offer additional suggestions. Altho~;h such a determination 

. falls outside :ray province, lt is •y Qons1dere~ opinion that 

the failings ot.the FBI at Waco involve no intentional 

Jllisccnduct:. 
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TO BRANCH DAVIDIAN OPERATIONS 

l 

NATIONAL DEFENSE AliTHORIZATION 
ACT OF 1991 

June IS, 1999 

APPENDIX I 

Section 1004 of the National Defense Authorization Act of 1991 authorized the Secretary of 

Defense to provide the support of active military units for the counterdrug activities "of any 
. ' 

other department or agency of the Federal Government o~ of any State, local, or foreign law 

enforcement agency."29 In 199~, when the Davidian operations occurred, the Act limited active 

milita~ support for counterdrug activities to the following nine categories:30 

• Main.tenance and repair of equipment made available to a federal department or agency or to 

a state or local government by the_ DOD. 

• Maintenance, .repair, an~ upgrading of non-DOD equipment to ensure that such equipment 

·' will be compatible with equipment used by DOD. 

• . Transportation of personnel, equipment, or supplies. 

:OJ P.L 101-S 10. Div. A.1itlc X,§ 1004,llS amended. Congress extended the authority through 1999. ~ P.L 103-337, Div. A. 
Title X. § 10 II( a). · • . · . · . · · . · · 

EXHI!IS D 
· JO On November 30. 1993. Congress added a tenth purp(>se for which the Secretary may provide suppon-aerial and ground 
reconn:lissance. P.L. 103-160. Div. A. Tide XI.§ 1121(b). 

Page 27 DRAFT 
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• .Establishment and operation of bases of operation or training facilities. 

• Training of law-enforcement personnel, including associated support expe··,--

and the provision of materials necessary to carry out such training. 

• Detection, monitoring, and communication of movement of air, sea, and surface traffic. 

• Construction of roads and fences and installation of lighting to block drug-smuggling 

corridors across international boundaries of the United States. 

• Establishment of command, control, communication. and computer networks to improve 

integration of law-enforcement, active military, and National Guard activities. 

• Provision of linguist and intelligence analysis services. 

. ' 

lo u.s.c. §§ 37 t-382 

Sections 371-382 of Title 10 of the U.S. Code authorize the Secretary of Defense to provide 

certain types of support of active military units to federal. state, or local law-enforcement 

of~cials. LEAs are not required to reimburse DOD for the support if it ( 1) is provided in the 

nonnal course of military training or operations. or (2) results· in a benefit to the DOD that is 

"substantially equivalent" to that which would otherwise be obtained from military operations or 

Page 28 DRAFT 0AO/NSIAD·99-133 Dep:1nment or Defense 
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training.31 Otherwise. DOD must be reimbursed as required by the Economy"A:Ct-?. 

authorizes the following types of suppon: ~ 

. • Any information collected during the normal course of training or operations that may be 

relevant to a violation of any federal or state law within the jurisdiction of the officials 

supported. 

• Equipment (including associated supplies or spare pans), base facilities. or research facilities. 

• Training in the operation and maintenance of equipment provided by DOD. 

• Relevant expert advice. 

• Maintenance .of equipment. 

· • The operation of military equipment for purposes of ( 1) monitoring of air and sea traffic; (2) 

•••-•••••••••c ··•···--• .......... ""' ........... ,.., • .., • ..,..,,_. •• -.~, ............ , ~ -.- ••••••--'. ••••••••• -....w. w'-'•'--...,,., •• •••w . 

initial detection occurred outside the United States; (3) aerial surveillance; (4) interception of 

·. ves~els or aircra'ft detected outside the land area of the United States;(5) facilitating 

Jl 10 u.s.c. § 379 .. 

32 The Ec:onom·y Act. 31 U.S.C. I S3S. generally mandates prompt. repayment for goods ~d 
:mother. 
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communications with federal LEAs: and (6) transporting and staffing an operational base for 

. civilian law-enforcement personne1.33 

32 U.S.C. 112 

Under 32 U.S.C. 112, the Secretary ofDefense may provide funds to the governor of a state wh~ 

submits a drug interdiction and counterdrug activities plan that meets certain statutory 

requirements. To obtain funding, a state's plan must specify how National Guard personnel and 
. ' 

equipment will be used in drug interdiction and counterdrug activities. Plans rylUSt also certify 

that the use of the National Guard of the state is consistent with state law, and tbat the activities 

included in the plan serve a state law-enforcement purpose. If a state's plan is approved and 

DOD provides funding, the state may use the funds to pay expenses related to the use of its 

National Gu~d personnel (while not in federal service) and equipment for drug interdiction and 

counterdrug activities.34 DOD considers.support requests that are not specifically included in th~ 

original plan on a case-by-case basis if accompanied by a certification from the relevant state's 

at.tomey general that the operations requested are consistent with state law.3
' LEAs a~e not 

.. i 

required to reimburse the National Guard for this support. 

33 Sec 10 U.S.C. § 37~. Federal LEAs responsible for enforcing the Controll&:d Subst:lnc:cs A~t (~I l'.S.C. § 801 et seq). c:enain 
lmmigr.uion and Naturalization Act provisions (8 U.S.C. § 1324-1328). section 401 of the Tilriff Act of 1940. and the,: ~-taritimc 
Law Enforcement Act may request such aid. · · · 

. . ' . 

,.. The Act defines ''dru~ interdictioq :111d counter drug :~ctivities" ilS "the use of N:~tion:ll Guard personnel in the drug interdiction 
· and counter-drug Jaw enforcement activities authorized by the lilw of the St:ne :111d requested by the Governor of the State." 

JS Nation:ll.Guard fAR) 500-2. ...:>c·h M.ol 6 c.to.r~ RQjLd., h~;" S'I)O -~. 
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Section 1208 of the National Defense Authorization Act37 allowed DOD to give federal and state 

agencies equipment-free of charge-that the Secretary of Defense had declared excess to the 

military's needs. Under this statute, the Secretary of Defense must also detennine that the 

equipment is suitable for use in counterdrug activities. 

JAP.L. 101-189. 

37 Now codified. as amended. :u I 0 U.S.C. § 2S76a. 
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.;PPE!'iD IX Ill .l.PPE~TILX ni--

REL\1Bl"RSE\1E~TS TO THE \1ILITARY FR0\1 THE ATF l.~D FBI 
FOR ASSISTANCE TO THE 9R.~'1CH DA VIDIA~ OPERATIOS 

Support 

Aircraft 

Active Army-3 UH-~ utility helicopters and 3 CH-47 helicopters 

Active Air Force-\:·14 1 transpon of FBI's hostage rescue team (and its 
eQuipment! to and from Waco 

Vehicles 

Texas Nat1ona1 Guaro-2 M·35A2 2Y2·ton cargo trucKS w1th transpon tra1lers. 5 
M-818 5-ton tractor trucks w1th trailers. 12 M·i009 h1gn-mobility multi-purpose 
wheeled ven1c1es 

Texas Nat1onaJ Guaro-10 M·2 Bradleys (Infantry 11gnung vehicles). 3 M·332 
tractor tra1lers. 5 M· 728 combat eng1neer verucses. ~ M·88A 1 tracked recovery 
vel':it:le (tank retneven. mtscellaneous ventcles 

Active Army-8 M-998 high·mocility multi-purpose wneeled vehiCles. an 
M35A2 2'7·ton cargo truck. 2 5-ton trucks. 14 heavy eou1pment transpons. 
miscellaneous venrcles 

Equipment 

Texas Nat1ona1 Guaro-unrecovered pnorograpn1c anc ooservauon eQuipment. 
tOO canteens. 50 first·ald dressmgs. ,30 empty magazmes for M·16A, nfles. 
assoned field clothing 

Texas Nat1ona1 Guaro-16 helmets. ,3 helmet covers. ~2 M·16A1 r~fle slings. 
54 empty magazmes for M·16A 1 s. an M·25A 1 protecuve mask. 1 SO tent psns 

Act1ve Army-2.488 ,gal. of generator fuet tencmg. 200 sandbags. 6 boxes of 
chem1ca1 lignts. ce11u1ar-pnone cnarges 

Supplies · 

Texas Nat1onaJ Guard-2B6 cases of field rat1ons: 2.036 gallons of diesel fuel 

Texas.Nattonal Guar~2 cases of field rat1ons~ 10.529 gallons of diesel fuel: 
transponation costs of tracked vehU:b!s 

Personnel (per c1em. transponation. and travel costs I 

Active Air Force-e1ectron1c Jammers and trav~J costs 

/,ctive Army-liaiSon to LEAs and HOs: maintenance of a1rcraft. vehicles. and 
equipment: operanon of equipment, lqcat transponat1on costs for DOD 
personnel 

Uniformed Services University of the Heann ScJences-24-hr medical control. 
24-hr clinic. drafting of Waco medical plan 

Total of known amounts reimburud 

Recipient 

FBI 

FBI 

ATF 

FBI. 

FBI 

ATF 

FBI 

FBI 

ATF 

FBI 

FBI 

FBI 

FBI 

Reimbursement 

$375.179 

73.112 

6.858 

174.313 

15.466 

5.022 

5.190 

5.523 

17.015 

19,133 

34.340 

16.135 

Re1mbursed 133 
staff-days• 

$747,286 

I A flat rate plus all travel was used under a memorandum of understanding between the two parties. All travel 
"ouchers were sent directly to the FBI for payment: FBI paid for expendable medical supplies. 
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Undercharges 

DISCREPA~CIES N BILLLNG THE FBI FOR \-1ILITAR Y 
Sl"PPORT FOR THE BRA.\lCH DA VIDIA;.,; OPERATIC~ 

Active Army used the wrong flying-hour rates when determ1n1ng charges for: 
• flights by UH· 1 helicopters for transport. deployment. medical evacuation support. 

and recovery 
flight by CH-47 helicooter on medical standby 

Active Army did not bill for the loss of two night-vision goggles 

Active Army did not bill for 40-mm grenade-launcher ammunition (200 target-practi~e 
rounds. 50 illumination rounds. and 250 high-explosive rounds) · 

Active Army did not bill for 9 cases of field rations consumed by Army personnel while 
suoporting the ·siege 

Active Army (Special Operations; did not bill for the followmg serv1ces provided dunng the 
s1ege: 

observers and technical liaisons to the FBI's hostage rescue team 
• operation of classified/special equipment 
• traming federal agents muse ~f classified equipment 

Total undercharges 

Overcharges 

Texas National Guard overcharged for vehicular parts 

Te.xas National Guard overcharged for the loss of 8 Kevlar ground-troop helmets 

Total overcharges 

Net undercharges 

Amount 

$73,073 

9,168 

5.066. 

164 . 

10,793 

$98,264 
• 

41 

498 

$539 

$97,725 
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COl'\TERDRL"G Sl"PPORT PROVIDED TO 
3RASCH DAVIDIAN OPERATIOS 

Suppon Recipient Cost Authority for waiver 

Alabama National Guard 

2 overtlights for reconnaiSSance ATF 51.238 32 U.S. C. § 1 12 !counterdrug) 
pnotograony of the comoound 

Subtotal 1.238 

Active Army (Jotnt Task Force Six1 

Counte~crug tra1mng ATF 5.610 10 U.S.C; § 3n rsubstanual tra1mng 
C~mmun1cat1ons oenetitl 
Meotcal evacuat1on P.L. 101-510 § 1004 lbl4-5 
First aid ·~a u.s.c. § 373 . 
Finng-range suopon 
M~nor construction 

Suototal 55.610 

Texas National Guard 

UC·26 atrcraft :.TF 8.032' 32 U.S.C. § , ~ 2 ~countercrug) 
.! cvertlights of the comoounc to~ 
reconna1ssance chotograpny 
• tlignt 1n sucoon of stege 

HelicoDter flights in suopon of warram ATF ~ :.388~ 32 U.S. C.§ 1 ~2 ~countercrug) 
servtce 

Helicooter flights m support of s•ege ATF 2.454 32 U.S.C. § 112 ! countercrug) 

Personnel seMCes 11 Siege ATF and FBI 102.301" 32 U.S.C. § 1 ~ 2 !c~unterarug) . ' LiaiSOn. commana and control 
Helicooter flight crews. dr~vers of 
;ancus veh1cfes 
VehiCle and eQUipment maintenance 

Fuel for non-tracked vehicles ATF and FBI 410 32 U.S.C. § 112 !counterdrug) 

Landline and cellular-telepnone seNlte ATF and FBI 1.995 3? U.S.C. § 112 !counterdrug) 

Subtotal 130.580 

Total amount of expenses waived by the military $137,428 

• 
• Includes costs for flying hours, personnel, and special maintenance contract. 

11 lncludes repair of gunshot damage sustained in warrant service. 

c Total pay, per diem, and travel {896 staff-days). All personnel were in Title 32 (counterdrug program) status. 
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Onivaraity·an~ bad bean vitb ATP tor over 5 yeara. He 
ic survived by his vife an4 2 •ona. . 

Special A9en~-of the Nev Orlaans Pield 
Diviaion vork~ana Field Divla!on, and 
he haa been an ATF ayent tor ove~ 3 yeara. ~· 21-
year-old vas tl'oea 11 aabethon, Tenn•••••, and a 
,raduate of Zaatarn ~enn••••• ltate Oniv ... t • Be va• 
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:hairman Nunn: Thank you all fo~ your cestirnony. w~ 

will have all the sca~enencs in:or~o~ated in the record as 

submi t.r.ed, without. nhjP.r.tJ on. 

Let me start with our usual procedure here. 

......... Mt.~ ...... , in his press co~ference yesterday, 

President: Clin:on me:1tioned that the military,had been 

con:au~t_!d d..,.ring the stand-off with ttre·· group ill Waco, Texas. 

We=e personnel from the Special Operation Forces, from your 

com..':land, . involved in any· way in trying to resolve that:. stand-

off? 

Not in resolving i ': ,· I1r. Chairman. We 

did provide three technicians to the .FBI. This was after the 
" (} I J • ~ ' AI~. . 

initial assault took pla.c~~e four"law enforcement. 

~members lost cheir lives. 

Approximately two· -:o three weeks a; , easO after t:ha!:, -e:P 
I . \ 

k-·r~ when the FBI employed eu .. - ... '('the, ho.stage rescue teamr··t 

l~J-.'·\.1 . . . . . 1 . 1:. "" P. • k d f "'·,·as- glven pr1rra:y respc~slb~ l.tY~ . .cer, .. Aitl tney as e. o:-

:echnical assis~a~ce in installing video surveillance devices 

between obsetvation posts. That was approved appropriately{ 
. AL(,·, ·~.,_,,.( 0 

and we did prov:.de that/\ ··· ' D 
C Sur. wP. wP.rP. n~-; i:1vo!.ved fn develop:!.ng the plan. 

Chairma:1 Nu:m: We:-e ycur pecple ever called on? · \<le:e 

ycu ever called on to give a~y assessmen: to t~e De!ense 

Department or to the Ju~tice Department, or to the Treasu~· 

Oepar~ment. for ch.:.c. m.:c.c.cr, since they _were all involved, as. 

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC. 
1111 FOtiR.7EElfi'li !:i1REET, N. ,., • 
St:ITE ~00 , 
\oi.D.SHINGTOt~. 0.:. lOCOS 
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1 . to what concrib~tion the Special Operations Forces cculd QQke 

2 co thac sicuacion? 

3 Gene~al Seiner: No, si~. 

C~ai~n Nunn: So you really weren't called on for 

s either a plan or resources, or eve~ an assessment? 

6 General Stiner: No, net in t:u!.t conte:<t. It was 

7 requested just lasL T~esday that 3 0 a 
8 who used to command one of our Special Operations 

9 Forces a.nd who is now the Assi"stant Division Corrmander of the 

10 First Cav Division ac Ft. Hood, Texas, and :he current 

ll comrrander of one of ~ur su=gical units a=company the commander 

12 of the FBI's hoscage rescue team to Washington to brief t~e 

13 Attorney General on that pla~. ~ 

14 CThey ~ere not asked to cast judgment on the adequacy of 

lS the plan or anything df that nature. 

1; Duri~g the br~~fing, they were asked if t~ey had ~v~r 

17 been exposed to :he effects o: \.5 gas ar.d they indicated that 

13 they had iir.c1 des~ribed the symptoms. The.re was also an e:cpert 

19 

21 

22 

present, a doccor who had been involved in develop~ent and 

expe~imen:aticn on this, ~ho answered question~. 

'!'hat was the total extant~ tf ~ ~. 
Chairman Nunn: But yo~r command was never asked for 

23 ir.i=Ut • • 

24 

25 

General Stine~: It was nol.. 

Chai1-ma:'l Nunn: · · lnLu :!icher planning or '-'lhat resources 

ALDERSON REPORTlNG COM~ANY, !NC. 
1! ll FOUR1•t::!::NTH STREET I N. ,., . 
Sl::":": 400 
WASH1NG1~N. O.C. lC0~5 
i:Z~:!) 22:l·=~·!f. 
•! .~~~' r·~~ ~::= . 
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16 

17 

19 

19 

20 

2l 

22 
.·' 

23 

24 

25 

... ~n•s un.1.que sec ot 

c:irc\lr.\Stances? 

General Stiner: No~ sir. It was not. 

Chairman Nunn: Do you know, General Sti~er, whether the 

FBI and the Justice Department, who were, I understand, in 

charge of the operation, had any understanding of'what Special 

Operations Forces can do? Do you kl1ow-on-your own whet.he: 

they know that? 

General Stiner: ~~$, they do. In fact, we have provided 

t=aini~g assistance to the FBI's hostage rescue tea~ on o~her 
. -occasior:s. 

Chairman Nunn: ~et me ask e~ch ·of you·this question. We 

alerte~ you to this when Senator Thur.mond and I apprised you 

and advised you of our interest. 

How do you rate the personnel morale under your co~~nds 

today and what recommendations do you make :o this committee 

for anything that you think is essential in our considerations 

in making sure that the morale of our military f.or.ces does not 

dete=iorate? 

I noticad, .....-.. that yo~ mendoned that we are 

::;:.3nding, in your word~, "On cr.c brink of a dcgradacion in 

::-eadiness.• I consider that, and !'m sure you do, havi:19 

listed these points, to be. rather.significant. 

So I would asked each of you about t.h~ morale o( yoL: 

mil.i.LaL·y Curc~l:l. ~ let'l:l std.:·t with )"UOl. 

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC. 
1111 FOURTEENTH STREET, N.W. 
SUITE 4CU 
~~AS!i.LNt.;TON, D.C. 20005 
C~U:!)2E9·2260 
c ~ utn :c?: · ~~?c 
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••• PER OU CONVER!sATION HERE IS A WRA?Ul? OF THB QUESTIONS ASKED DURING 
INC TESTIMONY B~FO~. THE SASC 21 APR 93 -- THXS :tS NOT A TRANSCRIPT_ BUT A 
!:COLECTJ:ON FROM 1NO~S TAKEN DORING THE TESTIMOl-lY. 

®' 
/Q (TO I ; 
• ···-·~ REFERRING TO THE STANDOFF :IN WACO, WERB SPECIAL 

~ PERATIONS PEOPL~ PRQVIDED/CONSULTEO? 

THREE SOF PEOPLE WERE PROVIDED TO ASSIST WITH VIDEO 
JRRVIELLANCE, OTHERWISE NOT INVOLVED 

. I 

@., WERE ~OF ~ALL ED ON BY DOD, JUS:riCE DEPT, P'BI, FOR cor:SULTATION ON 

iiE PLAN? @ : ~ G) 

.... ~/ A FORMER ....... . 
S GAS. . 

~SO, YOU W~RE NOT ASKED FOR RESOURCES OR PLANNING? 
® I '• 

NO, WE ~RE'NT INVOLVED IN THAT 

•••• ~t 
0 

DOES TilE. dusTICE DEPT A1'ID FBI KNoW OF SOF CAPABILITIES? 

~ llllllllt YES - THERE ARE TRAINING EXCHANGES BETWEEN THE VARIOUS AGENCIES • 

WAS CONSULTED REF THE 

...... - FYI 1 I AM "ALSO PROVIDING A CY Or" THE PUBLISHED HEARit~G SUMMARY. 

AM AVBL AT YOUR CONVENIENCE FOR ANY OTHER INFO YOU MAY NEED. 

40-5180 
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. , .. . ·~· ... ~~ ... ·:~, ... !1~~, U8SOCCn sowo 
..... ·~ ' 1:1\· ·•••••• . 

oil ·' ••• ... • 

:· ! 1. 

. ·-
! ! , 

I 

s:-eat =~•d!.~ o: :~e 1'3:, :.hey :ec:&-!•Je4 .. ~s:.ant.ia:. f!.:c tr:::t ~i;t.l.:: 

tho co~po~~d, b~:~ ae tha veh~clet ~n~ &t snip•: p:s1:!c~5 
I 

·e··--~o·•~ .... __ , ..... r"J"',· t""• C:""mp-•• ... d w • t"'- t. ~".,.. - w•• ·~;, .... w ..., ... , • . l. •• ;:lU 

:nstqe.d', whpr. t !.:-t ~ ·~::=:., t:.hs :a: :-espo~dod by ~etg!n~!.ns te !.~.s-:.;-t 
! . -

~.ae :~=ou:hb~~:~e ccm~.c~~d. 
~ i .. ! 

t 
; 

Oor:.ma.r.~a:-a 
: . 

time ~he k~T had been en ~he scer.e ~~ a s~ace of read~~'as a~1 a:: 

.. 
ret:-a!n~r.g.! '·All adv1·sed tha.: :here was not a aubs: ~ '-~~; ~! v=..: 
.fc:ce t~at C:cu~c1 sec\!.re e~e oxtensive a=~a. a.ro~~ t.he _:::::m~:::·'"'~:. ~=--~= 

hA~ ehe' •xpfr:!'e ~f tho H.~T. 

I was co~cerned About. i:::;e~:2.c::al 
... _ ... 

acciden~&l 1xplosions a.nc1 o:-dared :ha.t ad~itioncal · re•o~:::~s be 

p~ov!ded·e~:er.sure that chera was an &~aqua~e cmsrgc~cy :es?o~se ~= 

we. ehould go f-:r-.r~el'"'i. 

.. .. . . --. "'• ............ _ 

lasut likelY; to c:~nt.rol, buc that. expctrt.s had· acivise:d l:ht! •~=•J.\! 

tha; the ch~ncea o~ •u1c1~a ware no~ l1kely. 

.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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. ~ •. ··~ .9/!'R ~ "~ ~ 0 EMf lZI"n,l.SSOCOM ~ 
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\~"-t. 
!' 
i 

u,-s-... i,._, .......... -•. ,. ,,,,.,,. e ~ IW•• • I 

K,:_ .... , ..... ··to =:~ "-""•c I .... w* ~ ··o- 'c-•n- o·· ... Y"~ \lr.ta .... • 'y 
'W ~ .. ,., " •• - ... g •• - c ···- ':1 .... .. ... .. • - -0- . 

Un •ccol!..~·at-. 1 1 ... o~.~...... a.l·""w4 -- -'- c:r•~··e ~·1"\ t,. - •- · a '""r"' ••: .... olil ....... I ... -.~ -··g' ...... •> c = :sg, ~ ~ -c:na_.. wa.s &~C: 

gcir.g :o ~~~~ t~ ar. ~lt!~lt& pe&:c~~! rea:lucicd A~~ ~l!~!~~~e 

::~sx :.o ~~~ Sf\~ e:)' ''! the inno:ent et:1lcfren in :~e c:.~:-:l:.:='l.:. 
I 

pu~l ic: at ~~:'Cl_!. or ~he go\"•r:-:oe:~t ;.ge:1:s at the &ce:-.~ .. 
I 

co:.:rart, ~h~-paJse.ge 9t :!ma cnly in=.::~acc :he :.i~e:.i!:~c:! c! 

~r.c!c!en:s ar.d po.ssible ~t:e:-.:!a:l: :.::;:.t:-.tes ar.c hA:ti.o. e-4 

=~ the: course o'!. our deliberat:!cr:e-, we mee w:. :r. ~.;::.•::a.: ~e: e: 

~-- .. --~ .......... .. 
'· 0 

Cou.mande:-$ c! ~elta. ro:-c'e rt.lpec::iv(lly, t.ha "--r.tY' s :-ou~ e~~-..·ale~~ 

~~ the ~se ~f the gas ;.s proposed by the FBI, gao she~.:.~ b~ 

_ ;.r:ser-:ed !.~:.c all port!or.s c~ the compcund aim~l :~~~c~s: y. 

pressu~• ove= a pe~iod o' time. 

ena~:e tha s~~ety c~ those ~nside, pa~:!cul5rly ~~o c~!:c~o~. 

direcr.td tha~ ·it a:. ~~y pc!~t Korash or h1a t=ll~we:s :~::e:~~a; 

~i~aw!se. ~! 1~ appeared cha~, as ~ resul: c~ the ~~~~l~l ~s~ ~~ 

teargae, Keresh waa prepare~ c.o negoc.~aee i..n good :a!.~~. :c:- ~.:. ~ 

I 
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HOUSE ~UDICIARY OOMMil~E TESTIMONY 

OF 

AITORNEY' GENERAL ..TANET RENO 

APRIL :zs I . 1993 

Gooa Mc~ni~g M~. Chai~an and M~mbers of the Comrn!t:~~. :har-k 

C'Ct)Or.:on! CV tc a::>oear cefc=--~ ·.r~'..: t ~ -. - .. . . ~ 

discuss the. t:r.·agic eve~ts which occu~!."ed at -che '2:-anc:Z: Dav:.d~a~ 

C~mpOUJ."ld in Waco ::his pas:. week. I want to be ·as open· as pass:. b: e · 

wich you and al: the people about what we knew b~fcre a~d curing 

the day of ; .. p::il 19 and what we know ~oday. 

This ·was orie of the hardest decisions anyone cou:a ~ake. w~ 

deliberated long and carefully before .. 
reacn~ng the . . . o.s=:.s:.or:. 

Nothing we do can ch~nge the suffering fe!t by the fan:i1.i.es of ~~'?.· 

Agents k'illed or injured or cf the families of those who pe::.·~.sheci 

in. the compot:no. We m'..lsC do ever~hing we can t.o lea=:'l f!:'om :.hese 

events abou~ what we :an do in the future to prevent people :ike 

. David Koresh f=om causing such a senseless, horrible loss o~ life. 

On Febrtiary 28, 1993, four agents of the Burea~ of Alcoho!. 

Tobacco and Firearms were k.illed and sixteen were inj u::ed i:: a 

shootout tha~ ccc'..lrred when they aetempted to execute an ar=est 

warrant ·for Verno~ Howell, AKA David Ko~esh, ~~d a search wa::an: 

at the Branch Davidian compound near waco, Texas. ':he Agents were 

met by a barrage of gunfire from numerous· firing points in t.he 

compound that lasted 45 minu~es, involved thousands of roun~s o: 

z 0004007 
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amir.u:-• .: t: .:.o:'l, a::a 1. e =~ :feu:: ager.ts ciead ar:d s:.xtee~ a;e::-:s :.::jure·:!. 

having a~ ef:e~tive range of-30~0 yards. All o: ~~cse killed cr 

wo~n~ed ·..ter; sh~~ or ir..jured by ho~emade . har..d grenade:;. ~ih:. !e 

severa: 
.. .. 

mer.u:ers o: t.he cc=amune we:-e killed ar:d inj~.lr~e, appa-:-er;::..:..y 

che~e ~ere no se:-ic~s in:~ries eo any o= tr.e children . 

. ~ft~r -:=:e snoo:ou-:, ':!'le remaJ.!li=:g ATF agen':s es-:ab::..shed a 

pr·~t:ect:i ve perimeter around t:he co:npo\.:nd. A few hours la-:e::-, -:~:-ee 

Branch Davidia."'ls at':empced to enter the compound·, res'..l!.ti::g in a 

second shooto~: wich ATF agenes in whic~ one Davidian- was ~~lle6. 

Attern?ts were ~ade tc fu~the~ secure the perimeter. A7F officials 

then reques~ed that :he FE! d~spatch its Hostage Rescue Team ~ER7} . 

en Feb~ary 28, 1993, agents of the Federal Bureau o: 

Investigac~cn, i~cluding the HRT, a~rived on the s=ene. The F3: 

fc~nd an armed fo=tress, a compound consisting of appr~xi~a~ely 

sevency acres loca~ed on R~. 7 near Waco. 

took office on March 12, 1993. I had been briefed 

p::-eviously b~' che Acting Attorney General and was thereaf~el· 

b=iefec speci£ica:ly on the situation at Waco. '!was advised t~at 

the primary goal of the HRT was to nego~iate with Koresh to sec~re 

che release of ~he childrer. ~~d ~he surrender and prosecu~ion o: 

all t.hose who participated in ehe murder and assault of the :ede~a: 

agents without furcher violence or injury to anyone euncer~e:. 

z 0004008 
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t:-y :.c- n-:g:::.i::.:.e ':.c· avoid £u~~!le:: b:oodsl:ed. As th~~ si~uaci:~ 

e~olv~d, the FBI ha~ co~sistently =ejec:ed a di=ec: dssa~::. en :~e 

compound be~aus~ of the danger o: r.ea'y casua!ties to ~~a a~e~:s 

I was to:c ~ha: the F3I had a t:-ained. negotiate:- c.n ~!:e sce:~e 

and that t:.ht:y ;..rere consult:i:l.g with behavicral experts. ar:~ ct:he::s 

who hac knowledge·of the cu!: to dete=mine hew best 

negotiate w:ch Ko~e~h. 

~rom the sta!:"t, ·the nego~iaticn tactics focused on r-~strict: ir:g 

the ac~~vicies of these iriside the compound, and d~priving th~~ o: 

a comfortable environme~t so as to· bring the matter to a co~cl~sio~ 

wi~hout f~rch~r violence. Those inside ~he compound we::s advised 

of the FB!'s rules· of engageme~t. und~r those r~les, agents· would 

not use deadly ... .!orce agains~ any person except as ~ecessary ir. 

self-defense or defense of another, when they had rea" son to bel i ~ve 

·i that they or another were in danger of death or grievous bodily 

harm. 

The FBI installed lights to illum~ nare the .. compound at r..ig!-1-c ; .. , 

and loudspeakers. co ensure that they could communicate with all 

members of ~he compound at once, rather th~,·having to rely solely 

on the single telephone line available to speak to Koresh and tr.~se 

he permitt~d to talk on the phone. They also used the loudspeakers 
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, ... ... , ...... ... cff :hei: ~lec~=ici:y, 

-,.., .. \..e .._ --s .. a-A 
-.t..J -·4 ·.·.J · ... =--

negot:laCC'i:z:s. t.r.ey se::~ .. .. 
nembe:-s, anC. made o-:her good faith ef.for~s desig::ed tc·enccu=age 

$U:'re~de:- bj! · ·chose who \'tished -:.c 'leave tee :ompo~nd. :.:l 

pa~~icular, t:!':.e ~egctiat:.o:.-s ~a::ie repeat:e.:i efforts to secu:--e t.he 

release cf c~ildren. 

In furt.he:- efforts to enc~:;.::age the r.ego~:.at:~r..g p::o.;:ess. · 

actorneys repr~scnting Kcresh and Steve Scr~eider were allowed to 

enter the compound or cor..m-..u:ica:.e bv t.eleohone wi t.!'l them on sever a~· 
. • - ! ' -.. ' 

occasions. Eve4 prcbises made to these a~t.crneys since· were 

b:::-oken. 

Throughout th!s 51-day process. Koresh ·continued to asse:: 

:hat he and ':he ochers· inside wo'..lld at some point surrencer. 

However, ~he FE! advised that ac r.c poi~: did he keep his wor~ or. 

any of his promis.es. Despite all. efforts, the negctia~c~s 

concluded tha: negotiatior.s were ac a standstill and .they had·no~ 

been able t.o successfully negotiat..e a single it:em ·with Koresh. 

Although 21 children and 14 adul~s had.been allowed to leave 

corr.pound bec"'-·een February .28 and Narch 23, l99l, those persons who 

lefe the compound did so because Kcresh affirmatively wanted the~ 

out as they· were not ful!y comrni: ted to his cause, ehey ~ere a · 

drain on his efforts at: internal d!scipline and resources, o: he 

viewed them as potential sp::>kespersons to the·media. 
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the week o: Apr~l 5,· ~he FE! advised r.:e -.... --~ ..... Q.-

develop~~; a pla= fc: tha p~ssible use c~ t~a:gas i= an e~fc~= ~o 

inc::ease c!:e pressu:re cr.. :.hose ir. -:,:a com;?ound ·to sur:e~de:-. 

-:tereafte1.·, I had a series of rn~e:i:1gs to d!sc·.;ss: the emergi::g FE: 

propcsal ~o u:ilize non-:e~~al ~ea~as. 

:r~e -:.=:=eshold q"..!es~ion ! asked was whet::e:- the gas c~~;:c ca:.:.s-: 

perma~e~~ !~jury ~c che child:-en. I did no~ even wan= ~~ cc~s~c~= 

the matr.e~ ft;r~~er !f we could not be certain about ·this fact~=· 

·'!he F.SI assured rr.e r.hat tl:e gas would noc cause pe::-rr.anent inj"..l::-y. 

I asked them -co :-esearch further and subsequently they a:-ra~~ec fc:: 

me to meec ..._.i th :J=. Harry Salem, a doctor who reviewed case st.u~ies 

wi~~ us that ccnfil~r.ed that it would not cause per~anent l~j~ry. 

Then, the primary question I asked again and again duri~g - ... .=. __ ...... 

ensuing disc~ssicn was "Why now?", "Why n·ot wait?". I asked abot:.~ 

their food and water supply and was told that it c~uld las: a: 

least a year or more. I asked that the information abc~t the water 

supply be checked and doublechecked by observing the level in th~ 

water tanks. We explored but c~~ld no~ develop a feasible method 

for cut~ing off their wacer supply. 

! asked my s~aff to have direc~ discussions with the c~ief 

negotiator t·o satisfy oursel .. .res. that we had indeed reacheC: an 

impasse in negotiations. 

. ----------·-·---------·------· 
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t-1os-: 

"'­n- -~ ... 
'-•·.;..~ thi~gs we~e ~eadily appa~~~: :~ ree. 

I was ccr:vincsd that, -.t: ...... 
Kc:es~ to go Eree, r.e w.as: ::ct cc:::in= o·.Jt: vo:t.lr:ta::i!y. -. -· . \.::.. ve:: t. ::;:t: 

goir.g co ~ea~ to ar. ~l~i~a:e pea:ef~! ~es:lutio~ and ell~:.::a:e a~y 

r:sk :o c~~ sa:e~y o: che inno=e~: er.!ldre~ in :~e =~~pn~n~. :he 

o= :~e gov~rn~e~: age~~s at the see::~. 

:.nc~csn~s a~d possicle at-;endant !~j~ries and ha~ .. a~a 

...~ ... 
\. ..... 

:n t~e cou~se of our deliberat~o~s, we met wi:h e~~era: ?e:er 

Sch~omacher ana Colonel Jer~ Boyr~~in, ::o~er an~ p::-eser:: 

:orr.manders cf ~alta For:e resp~ct.i.vely. the Army• s ::-ou6-:: ec-...:i.vale:::. 

to ~he.FBI's HR~, to review the plan. Their comments c~ ~he ~la~ 

were inst=u~tive . While indicating that the pla~ appea=ed ~~ == 
.scund, c:Ae sugges~ion was t.hat, rat:he~ tha..Tl an incremen~a!. app~o.a:~ 

to the t;Se ~f the gas as proposed ·by che FBI, gas sho-..:ld be 

inserted ir:to all pore ions of the compound simul ~a::.ecusl.y. I 

prefer:ed the FBI approach which ca!le~ for a gradual in:rease ir. 

pressure over a period of cime. I~ seemed ~o me ~hac would b~s~ 

ensure ehe safety of those inside, part~cularly the child=e~. 

directed tha~ if at any point Kcresh or his followers t.hrear.ena::: 
_,... --· 

harm ~he children, t:he FE! shoulC. cease the action imn:ediate.:y. 

Likewise,. if it appeared that, as a result of the i~:.~ial \:Se -;! 

teargas, .:<cresh was prepared t:o negociate· in good fai tn tc= h ~ c:: 

ultimate scrrender, the FBI was to cease the opera:io~ . 

.. -. ----------.. -. -. -. -. . . . . ... -. ---
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\.. -•• an:11 . --· ar.d ~is 

the· co::-.pound, bo:h at. t.he vehi:!es ·a.~ at: sniper. pos1~:..c:-.s 

-- fac:, 

throug~c~t t~e s:-day si~ge, :he 2Bl neve~ fired a s~~;:e sho~. 

!:lstea-:1, when iir::i '..!:::::-n, the FE! :-espo::de::i by begin::~ng tc i::.se=-: 

.The Com~aude:-s also expressed concern about. the le::g-:~ 

~ime the HR~ had been en the scene i~ a state of read~ness a~d a:: 

exp~essed ~~e view ~hat the t.eam wou:d hav~ be pul!.~.¢i back 

ret::-a:.n:.r.g. All advised ~hat :here was not a substi~ute civi: 

force tha~ co~:d sec~re ~r.e extensive area aro~d the com~o~nc :~a= 

had the e):pert.ise of t.he HRT ~ 

I wa~ted and ~eceived assu=ances thac ~he gas and its mea~s of 

use we=e no~ ~yrotecr~ic. ! was concerned about intenclonal 

accident:al explosions and ordered ~hat additional resources be 

prov:ded ~o e~sure cr.at there was an adequate e~ergency response i= 
we should go for~a.:!"d. 

I a!so considered thac Koresh had t.alked abcuo; s~icide a~:::. 

that cigh: occu:r at anytime U..."-lder cond!t:ions chat: che FBI migh= be 

less likely to control, but that experts had ad?ised the Bureau 

~ha~ che chances of suicide were not likely. 
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the --~ s_-r p· "'0,..."'-al - ::'oJ;:, I :: 

the goverr.me:1t w:. cl: respect co er.e s~a:e of a f!a!=-s :.::side ~ l1.t; 

.· 
.(l) ~!:e well·being of tl':e :l:ildran in the c~:::pou:~~~ ;-:.ve:: t:he 

der.er io:-a o:..~!':g sani -.:a.ry ccndi.::.icn·s. the a~pce.n~ lack of adec;Ll&=.e 

med~cal care i~side, and rep~~ts c! ser&.lal·a~d other ab~se; 

(:i) t.h.e v-ulnerabili~y of the ou~er perin:et4;!r, w!:i·=~ :::=ea-:ed a 

threac to p~bl~c sa!ecy a~d the federal agents a: ~h~ p~:-~~;':.e=. 

The outer pcr:.meter was v.1lnerable bec:Cluse the::-e were .:.::sl.:ie -:.he 

compound .so caliber weapons havi:l.g.an ef!ect.ive killing rang-e 0 .. 

3000 yards, a distance chat would reach from the u.s: Capitol ~~ 

the White ilouse; 

(3) our inability to maintain the presence o£ t:J.e_:-HR':' or: site 

i::de=ini ~ely, and t.he lack of a suitable subst.i tute fo==~ tl:a~ 

could replace them ac the.compound; and 

· \4) =he increasing risk, as the standoff cont:inued, of i~:·;.1ry 

to federal agents, whethe= by accident or by the risk of shoo~:~g 

froii\ i!".side ~he compound.l 

Since be~ng sworn in as Attorney General, !. have had nurne~o~s 

conversations with people both inside and outside the ~epar:~en~ cf 

Justice ·concern.1.ng the Waco situation. !n addit.ion, I direc-:ed my 

J. During the final week of the standoff, · one of the FBI 
helico~ters struck a wire during an operation to pue in a SWAT team 
to locat.e a trespasser near ehe compound. Remarkably, there were 

·no fat:al injuries. I.n the assessment: of. t:he milit=.ary, t=.~e 
continued use of our HRT equipment in Waco enhaneed the risk of 
accident significant=.ly. 
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c:t :~e ::rem.!.se ~.~,ar;: as ~h!ef :aw enf~==ement offi::er, t!le ce::isic:: · 

! adv!se: the Preside~~ on -:he .Sur~:iai:-

!:le!ore che· ·opera~ic:1 of my decisio:: ~o a~:hori.ze the F~!' s use c: 
teargas a~ -:he cqmpound, ~d he saic he wou:d suppo::--: my <ie:::.s:.c::. 

It is dit£icult to sumr..arize ~he events ot~e~ ~ua= 

emphasizE chat ! believed we were dealing with a situa~ic~ ~~a~ 

would ~ct resolve i~self by mere acq..liescenc:e to the s_tanclc:::. 
-

Nego~:.a~ions were p:-over. t~ be fruitle-ss· and, despite o'..!·~· bes-:. 

efforcs, we could not sec~re the release of the chil~en. 

a situa~ion tha= suggested co me chat time would only incr~ase 
_..,_,:) 
'-··-

risk ~o public .safet}·, ~o the safety ·of ;ove:::-nrnent agen~s a~c c~ 

-:!"lo.se wi ':hin the compound, wit:..l;.ou~ any :::ealis~ic expec~a~i~~ ~bac 

~he matt~r would.be reso~ved peacefully if we did no~hing. 

I: was my call and I made i~ the best way I know how. 

Le~ me urge that we focus on the future and try to de~e~mi~e 

how best we can avoid a recurrence of ~his tragedy. In ~his 

regard, ·a~ the Presider.t 's re·.:JUest, Sec:-etary Bentsen and ! are 

developing a process whereby the events at Waco will be examined by 

expercs both witr.in and oueside government to consider t~e 

following ques~ions: 

(l) In the execution of the arrest and search warran~s by A7F, 

were d d ._-4 -~ established procedures fcllowe an , SO, were c::ey 
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···-····························· ............... ~ ............. . 
Pt'BLI( .o\.FF.HRS 

{·2 J :s federal law en.fo:-cement: 

ar.d available techniques? 

( 3 ), Is -:rai::ing for the exe=ut:.on of war::a:-l-:s 

bar:;icaded suspeccs who rr.ay be ho!ding ir-""locer!: 

adequace for all law enforcement agencies? 

(4) Are improvemen~s needed in coordina~ing activities o:: 

che various investigative agencies? 

( 5) How should federal. law enforcement agencies :t'aQ.::"S!la1. 

~esources in vario~s disciplines, including psycnolo~f and 

psychiatry, in situatio!!s in"~'rolving cults and ocher gr:>ups l.!s:.~;r 

barricades a~d holding innocenc people? and 

!5) Wha~ sys~ems ar!d ~,derstandings abouc command a~d con~r~i 

sho~ld guide the relationships among leaders of the Departmencs ar.~ 

::a=eer officials in operating units when field opera:i=ns imp:)se a 

subs~ancial ~isk of danger to 'law enforcement officials an~ c~r.ers? 

The incidenc at waco ended ~ragically for all involved. ! 

have thought ev~ry day since April 19 about whae I might have done 

differently~ ! only hope that r will never ha•.re·· ::o·- make sue!: a 

decision again. 

::i: would be glad 1:0 answer any q-~estions at this time. · 

z 0004016 

~ .. ·, 

~··~-



,· 

Federal News Service 

JULY 31,1995,2:45 P.M. MONDAY -11:02Eastem T101e 
SECriON: CAPITOL HILL HEARING 

LENGTII: 4326 words 

HEADLINE: JOINT HEARING OF Tim 
CRIME SUBCOMMITfEE OF THE HOUSE JUDICIARY COMMITfEE AND. 
THE NATIONAL SOCURIT¥-INTERNATIQNAL AFFAIRS AND CRIMINAL 
JUSTICE SUBCOMMIITEE OF THE 
HOUSE GOVERNMENT REFORM AND OVERSIGHT COMMITIEE 
SUBJECT: REVIEW OF SmGE OF BRANCH DA VIDIANS' COMPOUND IN 
WACO, TEXAS CHAIRED BY: REPRESENTATIVE Bll..L MCCOLLUM (R-FL) 
AND 
REPRESENTATIVE Bll..L ZELIFF (R-NH) 
WITNESS: ALLEN HOLI\mS, ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF DEFENSE FOR 
SPECIAL OPERATIONS AND LOW INTENSITY CONFLICT 
2154 RAYBURN HOUSE OFFICE BUll.DING 
\VASHINGTON, DC AFIERNOON SESSION PLEASE NOTE: TinS IS A 
RESEND WITH . 
~ODY: 

REP. ZELIFF: Ambassador Holmes, if you'd be willing to take your seat at the table. 
Are we all set? 
The Joint Oversight c·ommittee studying the Waco situation will now come to order. 
I'm very happy to welcome back Ambassador H. Allen Holmes. Mr. Holmes. 
currently serves as the assistant secretary of special operations and low intensity 
conflict. In his current capacity he is responsible for the overall supervision including 
oversight of policy and resources of the special operations and low-intensity conflict 
activities at the Department of Defense. Mr. Holmes previously served as a U.S. 
Ambassador to Portugal from 1982 to 1985. I know you appeared before us last 
week. We have some additional questions that we'd like to ask you and we thank for 
coming back. · 
I understand that you have an opening statement. Okay, before you start if you would 
it's customary to swear you in so if you'd please stand, raise your right hand. 
Do· you solemnly swear that the testimony your about to give these subcommittees is 
the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth? 
MR~ HOLMES: I do. 
REP. ZELIFF: Thank you very much. Please be seated. Let the record show that.the 
answer is in the affirmative. 
Ambassador, please proceed with your statement. 

· MR. HOLMES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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I'm here before you again to· help you and the American people understand fully the 
role of the Defense Department . in supporting civil authorities - REP. ZELIFF: 
Excuse me one second, there's a -
REP. : (Off mike.) . 
REP. ZELIFF: Do ·you have copies of the statement that you can pass out? MR. 
HOLMES: I can-- we can make copies subsequently. 
REP. ZELIFF: All right, thank you very much. Please proceed. MR. HOLMES: rm 
here before you again to help you and the American people understand fully the role 
of the Defense Department in supporting civil authorities in general and, in particular, 

· .. the support that the Department-gave to the· Federal Bureau of Investigation in Waco, 
Texas, in March and April of 1993. · 
As I explained during my testimony on July 20th, the Congress has vested the 
Secretary of Defense with several means of providing assistance to civilian authorities 
and law enforcement agencies. You will recall that during the session on the 20th, the 
focus was on the so-called drug Nexus (sp) and the fact that certain types of the 
Department's support may be available on a non-reimbursable basis. I noted at the 

· time- though that much of the day-to-day support that the department gives to federal, . 
state and local law enforcement agencies is provided pursuant to statutes that require 
agendes to reimburse the department for their use of our equipment and the services 
ot: our personnel. As is the case with many departments of the federal government, 
DOD has well-defined authority, for example in chapter 18 of tide 10 of the U.'S. 
Code, we're under the economy act in tide 31 of the Code to provide support to other 
agencies on a reimbursable basis. 
On February 28th, 1993, and during the weeks that followed the Department received 
numerous requests for support from the Department of Justice, specifically from the 
FBI for assistance at WACO. We responded to these requests by providing the 
equipment and expert advice pursuant to the Secretary's statutory authority. The 
support includeci two M-1 Abrams tanks, five combat engineer vehicles and 10 
Bradley fighting vehicles that were operated by FBI personnel. While . DOD 
personnel were present at Waco, they did not penorm law enforcement functions. 
The support provided was totally consistent with our statutory authority and with the 
Congression~l intent that DOD's equipment be used in a manner that ensures its return 
to the Pentagon in. a combat-ready status. We are still working on a response to the 
chainnan's request for a list of the equipment provided by DOD to law enforcement 
But I can give you the following general summary. 
As I mentioned, DOD support to the FBI, including tanks, CEV s and Bradleys. 
Additionally, we provided about 12 HMMWVs, helicopters for both observations and 
possible medical evacuation and some heavy trucks. They were either loaned to the 
FBI under the economy act and operated by FBI personnel or in the case of stand-by 
medical equipment, offered with the understanding that DOD's costs would be 
reimbursed. Although DOD personnel provided maintenance and training with 
respect to those vehicles, no DOD personnel operated these vehicles as part of the 
FBI's law enforcement activities during this period, including on April 19th: 
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In fact the department was meticulous in advising the military personnel who 
provided support as to the legal limitations on that support. 
We also provided some specialized support. The FBI asked for and we provided 
certain specialized equipment. We provided special video equipment and prototype 
automated reconnaissance equipment, again operated by FBI personnel to ·assist the 
FBI in its operations. Although throughout the period as many as 10 DOD 
technicians, active military or civilians, advised the FBI on the instiillation, 
capabilities or use of this. equipment, no DOD personnel directly participated in any 

· law enforcement operations involving the use of this equipment. In addition, from 
· March 10 to-l7,.we-provided equipment·to·interfere ·with television reception within 

the compound and we provided civilian personnel support to operate that equipment. 
The equipment was removed from Waco on March 18. 
Finally, at the FBI's request, recognizing the potential for injuries resulting from the 
FBI operations, the department, as it does in other civilian operations ranging from 
natural disasters to crisis situations, provided medical support to the FBL Under a 
1991 Memorandum of Agreement between the Uniformed Services University for 
Health Sciences, which is DOD's medical school, and the FBI's hostage rescue team, 
we provided a team ·or medical specialists who would be ready to provided emergency . 
medical ·care to any casualties of the law. enforcement operations. These medical 
professiOnals were located in the vicinity of the Branch Davidian compound but did 
not directly participate in the law enforcement operations. As an added precaution, 
$-e FBI requested and we made available three medical evacuation helicopters and 
medical personnel on standby at Fort Hood, Texas should they be needed. They never 
left ·Fort Hood. The department provided other support to the FBI during March and 
April of 1993, such as gas masks, night Vision devices and training. I reiterate, 
though, that no DOD personnel performed any law enforcement functions. For 
example, we provided essential driver training to ensure that the FBI personnel were 
properly quanited to operate the vehicles we provided. We also provided 
maintenance support and emergency medical support. Our support to the FBI was 
within congressionally directed limits and in keeping with Congress' intent that we 
share our specialized expertise and resources with civil authorities. Finally, ·1 know 
there are questions. among members of the joint commfttee concerning a meeting of 
four DOD personnel with the attorney general and others on April 14, 1993, and 
particularly the role of two Army officers consulted by the attorney general. 

The Department of Justice requested that the two Army officers attend the meeting, 
and DOD approved the request. Before coming to Washington, one of the officers 
flew to Waco, visited the area adjacent to the compound, and met with an FBI· 
representative .. They then overflew the compound in a heJicopter before boarding an 
FBI aircraft to fly to Washington. 
At the m~eting the attorney general's questions centered on two general areas: the 
effects and risks associated with CS gas, and the plan that the FBI had prepared. You 
have received testimony from one of the four DOD participants in that meeting, Dr. 
Harry Salem , a civilian employee of the Army, as to the infonnation he provided 
about CS gas. 
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As for the two Army officers, they related that they had experience with CS as a result 
of their military training. They advised the attorney genera.I·that people's reactions to 
CS will vary. Some· may panic. Others may try to continue to function normally by 
using expedients such as wet cloths to overcome the effects of the gas. ·When asked 
by the attorney general about the FBI's plan, one of them pointed out that they were 
not qualified to pass judgment on law enforcement operations. They were not 
authorized to, and they did not approve or disapprove the plan. 
The two officers did point out that the plan differed from what they would plan if this 
had been a military operation. They emphasized that military operations call for the 

: application ·Of -surprise,. -speed; -·and violence of-,action. In that light, they pointed out 
that in military operation C.S gas would be inserted into the whole compound at once, 
not incrementally, as planned by the FBI. 
With respect to these Army officers, I am convinced that they acted professionally and 
appropriately at all times. · , 
I will conclude by stressing that the department takes its statutory authority seriously. 
We are fully aware of the special charge given us by the Congress and th~ American 
people to support civil authorities. In this case, our support complied with that 
charge, and none of the DOD. personnel who assisted law enforcement agencies 
during this difficult episode participated directly in any law enforcement operations. 

· I'm read' to answer your questions. 

REP. ZELIFF: Thank you. Thank you, Ambassador. 
The chair yields to Mr. Clinger. 
MORE 

It's been two years now since the incident, and we're still trying to come up with an 
accounting. Do you have any idea how long this will take? MR. HOLMES: We're 
very close to completing that We just want to be absolutely certain that it is totally 
accurate, and we have circulated our reply among various parts of the Defense 
Department, so that we are able to give you a totally accurate accounting. And we 
will send it to you. 
REP. ZELIFF: Because I think, as we try to do our report, it's vital that we have very 
defmite, specific information on not only· assets, but -- not only ftxed assets, from 
tanks to HUMVEEs and everything else, but also personnel itself needs to be 
diagrammed. · ( · · . 
MR. HOLMES: We will do our best to get an accurate accounting of personnel as 
well. 
Let me hasten to add here that it may be extremely difficult to give you an exact 
.accounting of the number of people on any given day, but I think we can ·come very 
close to giving you a total picture of the personnel that were there essentially to 
provide maintenance and training and so forth. REP. ZELIFF: In your advice to 
Attorney General Reno, can you just describe what the folks there said to her relative 
to their assurance that CS gas was harmful or not harmful to children, any infonnation 

·relative to the military's experience? 
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MR. HOLMES: Well, based on the experience of the two military~ the two Anny 
officers concerned·, who have used CS gas in training on many occasions, their 
response to the attorney general's question was that reactions vary acsording to the 
individual person concerned. Some people panic and want to leave the vicinity as 
quickly as they can. And others are able to exercise more control and stay ·there and 
use such expedients as might be at hand, such as a wet cloth, to try to overcome the 
effects of the gas. · 
MORE 

.· .. ~But basically their point was there is·no way· of knowing exactly how any two people 
would react to it · · 
REP. ZELIFF: But specifically -- and I know the red light's on -- my question is - to 
little children, people who were very little, less than tWo years old. Any· reference to 
your concerns -
MR. HOLMES: I'm not aware that they were asked nor did they respond directly to 
the effects on children, which, obviously, from the point of view of their military 
training and experience, would not have been relevant REP. ZELIFF: · So, just to 
make the record clear, you were never asked the question to comment relative to 
children. You were just asked the use of CS gas? 
MR. HOLMES: .With respect to people. To the best of my knowledge -- REP. 
ZELIFF: Assuming adults, and your experience has been with adults, and you would 
assume that, you know, adults could have gas masks and work them, but you weren't 
looking at children. 
MR. HOLMES: To the best of my knowledge, that was the extent of their exchange. 
REP. ZELIFF: Mr. Scott, of Virginia. 
REP. SCOTT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Ambassador Holmes, as I understand it, 
you can get military assistance on a number of different ways, and, depending on 
which category you ask, you have to reimburse or not reimburse. As you do this 
accounting will that include who is reimbursed, who for what - so that we can figure 
out under what category the assistance was obtained? MR. HOLMES: Well, if I 
understand your question, if you would like a basic division as between the support -­
REP. SCOTT: Well, let me ask it another way. Has the. military been reimbursed for 
any expenses at Waco? 
MR. HOLMES: I can't answer that I assume --
REP. SCOTT: Who could answer? MR. HOLMES: WeU, I11 have to ask the 
question at the Department of Defense. But I believe a great deal of the accounting 
has taken place but I can't give you a defmitive answer as to who and what and how 
much. , 
REP. SCOTT:. Okay. ·If you could follow up on that I'd appreciate it Does the 
military have experience dealing with cults and people who you're engaging with that 
might have beliefs that are totally different than -- MR. HOLMES: I didn't understand 
the first word you said. Experience with -- REP. SCOIT: Dealing with people 
involved in cults. 
MR. HOLMES: Oh. Cults. Oh. 
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REP. SCOIT: So that the reaction may not be what you expect it to be. Is there any 
expertise in that area? · 
MR. HOLMES: Not to the best of my knowledge. 
REP. SCOIT: You indicated that the military would have gone in all at once and not 
incrementally. _Has anyone evaluated the possibility of that working, as opposed to 
what was actually done, to your knowledge? 

MR. HOLMES: Not in the Department of Defense. 
REP. SCOtT: Okay, back to the gas. We were told that- by a·number of different 
people .who had a background in cs gas,-·that ·in the annals. of history they don't know 
anybody who has experienced long- term medical problems or death as a result of CS 
gas and it's the safest thing out there. It is very traumatic while you're under the CS 
gas, but as soon as it's gone everybody recovers. Did - was anything told to the 
attorney general different than that? MR. HOLMES: I don't believe so, but I'm not 
sure that the question as you posed it was posed to the two Army officers in that way. 
REP. SCOtT: Okay. The question I think that you answered was that the 
psychological reaction is totally unpredictable, that people under gas, you just don't 
know what they might do. 
MR.' HOLMES: Well, yeah, I didn't use the word psychological, but I just simply 
related that the two officers said that any two individuals could react in totally 
different ways. Some might ·panic and some might be more controlled and attempt to 
use expedience for controlling the effects of the gas. REP. SCOIT: And it is your 
recollection that because of that, there's just no way to predict what people might do? 
MR; HOLMES: Yes. 
REP. SCOtT: That is your-- that is your recollection? 
MR. HOLMES: That is what-- basically what the Army officers were saying to the 
attorney general. 
REP. SCOTI:- Okay. You indicated the military \Yere not involved in the law 
enforcement Do military officers have expertise in civilian law enforcement? MR. 
HOLMES: Generally not. Although clearly within the military police function for 
carrying out the Uniformed Code of Military Justice ~n military bases, ·obviously 
military police· and their officers are schooled in those techniques. But--
REP. SCOtT: But that's not appropriate for civilian type use? MR. HOLMES: No, it 
is not appropriate and it's not used. · 
REP. SCOtT: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I yield back. REP. ZELIFF: Thank 
you, Mr. Scott. 
The chair yields to Mr. McCollum. 

REP. MCCOLLUM: Ambassador Holmes, I'd like for you to confirm for us, or 
corroborate the fact that I believe is correct, that all of the vehicles you provided to 
the FBI for the Waco siege p~riod, the Combat Engineering Vehicles, the Bradley 
Fighting Vehicles and the Ml- Al tanks had had their weapon systems disabled or 
removed before you provided them to the FBI, is that correct? MR. HOLMES: That is 
correct, Mr. Chairman. 
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REP. MCCOLLUM: Thank you. I also want to go back to the meeting that the two 
Army -- senior Army officers had with Attorney General Rerio in discussing the CS 
gas and the plan. Am I not correct that among other things that they said to her with 
regard to the CS gas plan was a statement that there are risks associated with it and 
that mothers may leave their children when it's inserted? MR. HOLMES: I ,do recall 
that one of the officers concerned - involved did say - in the context of explaining 
the different reactions said something like some mothers might abandon their 
children. · 
REP. MCCOLLUM: All right Also, I am concerned about the question about 

.: .whether.oi= not they gave any··advice· to the·attorney general regarding taking out the 
·leader at the beginning of the operation. Am I not correct that in a military operation, 
as opposed to law enforcement operation, these two Army officers advised the 
attorney general there. would be that type of action? MR. l{OLMES: The two Army 
officers concerned . did not advise the attorney general in this regard, they simply 
stated that were it a military mission that they would use speed, surprise, violence of 
action, and go for the leader. REP. MCCOLLUM: All right, thank you. 
Also in that same discussion, am I not correct that these two Army officers advised 
the attorney general their opinion that the hostage rescue team needed to be pulled off 
line at some point to restore their perishable skills so that they would not deteriorate 

· further, both mental and physical? MR. HOLMES: Let me rephrase that in replying. 
· They ·didn't advise ·the attorney general that they should do that-- that she should do 

that, they said that, again, if it were a military operation, they would have their 
soldiers rotated off the site in order to maintain their perishable skills. REP. 
MCCOLLUM: All right, that's alii wanted. I'm not trying to pu't your words in your 
mouth, I just need to get it out somehow or another. MR. HOLMES: No, I just want 
to get it accurate. 
REP. MCCOLLUM: That's-- I want you to, too. And with regard to the meeting 
itself and its initiation, am I -- let me ask it this way. Do you know who actually asked 
the two Army officers to come to this meeting with Attorney General Reno, who the 
contact point was? 
MR. HOLMES: The contact point was an FBI official. . 
REP. MCCOLLUM: Was it Dick Rogers? 
REP. MCCOLLUM: And I believe it was -- Rogers was the head of the hostage 
rescue team; I believe it was Rogers who was the contact point. 
REP. MCCOLLUM: Now, with regard to the jamming equipment that was used to 
prevent the Davidians from receiving television signals, you indicated that the 
operation of this equipment was by civilians. Did you mean the FBI? 
You did not mean civilian military personnel, did you? 
MR. HOLMES: No, I - let me just check something here. (Pause.) The equipment to 
interfere with the reception of the TV signals was operated by DOD civilians~· REP. 
MCCOLLUM: It was by DOD civilians? 

.MR. HOLMES: Yes. 
REP. MCCOLLUM: Let me ask you another question. Just to express an explanation 

· here on the Hostage Rescue Team perishable skill issue, did at any time, to you 
knowledge, after the comment was made about how they would be pulled back in the 
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military operation to - if -- it was the military's team out there -- to renew their skills, 
was there a response from the attorney general or from any of the FBI present as to 
whflt their position was with respect to their team, that the I;Dilitary officers (remember 
?)? . 
MR. HOL:MES: Yes, I recall that the two-- that the Army officers concerned-- that 
they mentioned that the FBI officials in charg~ said that in -- that they were confident 
that their people were prepared, because they had used makeshift training facilities in 
the vicinity to keep their training up - something to that effect I would not try to 
characterize precisely how the FBI replied, because I work for the Defense 

~ . Department. (Chuckles.) I think to be-absolutely accurate on that, -you might want to 
ask the FBI. But I-- REP. MCCOLLUM: Well, I thank you. I just wanted to get the 
response-- MR. HOLI\1ES:·I recall it pretty much that way. · 
REP. MCCOLLUM:-- response of how the military officers observed or remembered 
their conversations --
MR. HOLMES: Yeah. 
REP. MCCOLLUM: -- all I was trying to get 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
RE~. ZELIFF: Time has expired. Thank you. 

Mrs. Slaughter, from New York, for five minutes. 
REP. LOUISE SLAUGHTER (D-NY): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Ambassador, it's nice to see you again. 
MR. HOLMES: (Thank ?) you, ma'am. 
REP. SLAUGHTER: I'm not altogether clear why you're back, either to try to prove 
once again the attorney general didn't understand this issue -- what I hear more and 
more is that she tried every way in the world to consult everybody that she could fmd 
about the gas, and that then, given every kind of -- and frankly, we heard it all here. 
MORE ..... 

There were a couple of people who said that nobody really knew, but experts who 
have really worked with it had said, as what we've pointed before and is on the record, 
that no person has suffered any debilitating conditions or death at the use of cs gas. 
As a matter of fact, I'm not sure you're aware that this morning it was put into the 
record that of the autopsy reports from all the people who died on that unfortunate 
day, that not a single one died from CS gas. Did you know that? 
MR. HOLMES: I did not 
REP. SLAUGHTER: No matter how often we say it, we seem to still come back to 
see what -- did CS gas kill anybody. It's sort of like Alice in Wonderland, we'll 
believe six impossible things .before breakfast, I guess. One of the things that concerns 
me is the difference in law enforcement and the Defense Department, I think you're 
trying to make this very clear, and that the chain of events here sometimes gets 
forgotten, because we talk all the time about wh~ther you need to know all about 
cults, does law enforcement need to understand all about cults. You were not there 
because this was a cult. In the first place, the law enforcement was called in by the 
local sheriff because of illegal weapons. Isn't that correct? 
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MR. HOLMES: I only know from -- frankly, from publicly-available information. 
REP. SLAUGHTER: Is it your understanding that they were called in because they 
were stockpiling machine guns and hand grenades and other weapons that were illegal 
to have? · 
MR. HOLMES: That's what I've heard, but, I mean, I don't have any direct personal 
knowledge of that 
REP; SLAUGHTER: Well, my concern is if every law enforcement agency decides it 
has to understand every cult, that's going to be a pretty difficult problem because 
we've heard from numbers of various experts here who have disagreed completely 

· with each other and who are-to this·moment-still·giving me-reports on how they differ 
from what other members have said. But the Defense Department -- I think we need 
to restate what you had said before - you feel that you were ·there on legitimate 
grounds. i 

MR. HOLMES: We feel that we were responding, according to our statutory 
authority, to request from civil authorities, from law enforcement, for help from DOD 
b-ecause of our specialized expertise and resources. REP. SLAUGHTER: And as we 
keep talking about the two officers who spoke to the attorney general, it was not their 
position to tell her how to run the operation because the military itself was not in 
charge of it; isn't that correct? 

~· . '· 
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August 26, 1999 

The Honorable William S. Cohen 
The Secretary of Defense . 

The Honorable Janet F. Reno 
The Attorney General 

The Honorable Lawrence H. Summers 
The Secretary of the Treasury · 

In 1993, the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms (ATF) received 
assistance from the U.S. military, including counterdrug program support, 
while investigating violations of federa.I firearms laws by members of an 
obscure sect, the Branch Davidians, and their leader, Vernon Howell (also 
known as David Koresh), in Waco, Texas. On February 28, 1993, as the ATF 
tried to serve warrants on the sect's compound, a gunfight erupted, killing 
and wounding agents and Davidians. A standoff ensued that soon involved 
the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI). The military provided support to 
the two federal law enforcement agencies (LEA) throughout the 51-day 
standoff, which ended April19, 1993, when the compound was destroyed 
by fire. 

In August 1996, the House Committees on Government Reform and 
Oversight and on the Judiciary issued a report, "Investigation into the 
Activities of Federal Law Enforcement Agencies Toward the Branch 
Davidians" (Report 104-749).1 The report recommended that we review 
certain aspects of the military assistance provided to the LEAs in this 
incident. We have reviewed· the nature and extent of the assistance, 
including that from counterdrug programs, provided to these operations, as 
well as the counterdrug aspects of ATF's plans to serve a search warrant at 
the Davidian compound. We pursued three specific objectives: 

• Determine whether the ATF's requests for support from military 
counterdrug programs met requirements for authorizing that support. 

1 This report was based on a joint investigation by the Subcommittee on National Security, International 
Affairs, and Criminal Justice of the Committee on Government Reform and Oversight, and the 
Subcommittee on Crime of the Committee of the Judiciary. 
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• Identify the measures ATF took to deal with any drug activity it might 
find during its warrant service, and determine whether those measures 
were appropriate for such operations where a methamphetamine 
laboratory ritight be encountered. 

• Account for the types, costs, and reimbursements of all military support, 
including that from counterdrug programs, provided to the ATF and the 
FBI. 

ATF's two requests for military counterdrug support of its Davidian 
operations met requirements to authorize provision of that support under 
the relevant statutes.2 The ATF cited possible drug-related activity at the 
compound in both its written requests-the first to the Texas National · 
Guard and the second to Operation Alliance, a coordinating center for 
.counterdrug assistance. The military's decision in both cases to provide· the 
counterdrug support was a reasonable exercise of agency discretion and 
was authorized under the relevant statutes. 

ATF's planning for the warrant service addressed the possibility of 
encountering hazardous drug materials. ATF agents were made aware of 
the suspected drug laboratory and the appropriate precautions. Moreover, 
a team from the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) was at the 
command post the day of the operation to handle any drug-related 
materials that might be found. This planning was consistent with ATF's 
own policies-and those of other federal LEAs-governing operations to 
secure armed suspects and facilities, including those where a drug 
laboratory is present . 

Military assistance (both counterdrug and other) to the ATF and the FBI 
included surveillance, reconnaissance, and transport; equipment and 
supplies; training and instruction; and maintenance and repairs. The 
military provided several items of major equipment, iflcluding helicopters 
and unarmed tactical ground vehicles. We estimated the total cost of 
military assistance to be about $1 million, of which nearly ~0 percent was 
incurred by the Texas National Guard and active Army units and the rest by 
the Alabama National Guard and active Air Force. Under the Economy Act, . 

2 The military is authorized to provide support to LEAs under a number of statutes. Generally, these 
agencies must reimburse the military for the cost of its assistance. However, the active military can 
support counterdrug activities on a nonreimbursable basis under section 1004 of the National Defense 
Authorization Act of 1991, as amended (P.L. 101-510), and the National Guard can do so under 32 U.S.C. 
§112. . 

Page2 GAO/NSIAD/OSI-99-133 Department of Defense 

z 0038100 



Scope and 
Methodology 

______ __..,..·--·-------·-------------

B-276428 

the ATF and the FBI reimbursed the Texas National Guard, the Army, and 
the Air Force for about three-quarters of the support. Repayment of 
another 14 percent, which came from counterdrug programs, was waived 
by the military, which has the authority to do so if the supported agency 
suspects a drug connection. These nonreimbursable expenses represented 
less than $140,000. The military also mistakenly undercharged these two 
agencies by a comparatively small amount (about 10 percent of the total), 
which should have been reimbursed. The Army does not plan to collect 
these undercharges, as it would realize no current benefit-it would have 
to apply any collection to prior~year obligations. Finally, under applicable 
statutes, 3 the military gave the ATF and the FBI without charge some 
excess military items, mostly office and camp equipment, clothes, and 
tools. 

The events we examined occurred several years before we performed our 
work. Moreover, the ATF's investigation of Vernon Howell during 1992-93 
focused on firearm violations, not on illegal drugs; neither the ATF nor any 
other agency, federal or state, performed a comprehensive, in-depth drug 
investigation of Howell or any other Davidian residing at the compound at 
the time. 

For our first two objectives, we interviewed many current and former 
employees of the military and of those federal, state, and local LEAs that 
had dealings with the case. We also reviewed pertinent case files and 
material provided to the Waco Administrative Review.4 We did not try to 
substantiate actual drug activity by Howell or other compound residents. 
To obtain information concerning the authority under which their 
components assisted the LEAs, we contacted the Department of Defense 
(DOD), the National Guard Bureau, Joint Task Force Six, and the Texas 
National Guard. 

For our third objective, we sought to determine the types and costs of 
military assistance provided to the ATF and the FBI. To this end, we 
reviewed available records maintained by DOD, the Army, and the Texas 
National Guard (requests and authorizations for assistance, hand receipts, 

3 P.L. 101-189 § 1208 and P.L. 102-484 § 1044. 

~A group convened by the Department of the Treasury to review all aspects or ATF's Investigation of 
Howell and the Davidians, including the ATF's effort to serve the arrest and search warrants on Feb. 28, 
1993. 
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flight logs, DOD reports, etc.). We also interviewed officials at Operation 
Alliance, Joint Task Force Six, the Texas National Guard counterdrug 
program, and the Army. In addition, we reviewed the militacy's 
documentation concerning cost and reimbursement by the LEAs, including 
the accounting and recovery records. This information we compared with . 
our data on the support rendered by the military. · 

0 

For all objectives, we visited or contacted various military and law 
enforcement organizations, reviewed hundreds of pertinent documents, 
and viewed other relevant media. Appendix I describes our contacts and 
sources in greater detail. 

We conducted our work between January 1997 and February 1999 in 
accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. 

Throughout the ATF's investigation and the standoff at the compound, the 
military provided the ATF and the FBI a wide variety of assistance. A 
detailed discussion of the statutes authorizing the support is provided in 
~~~li 0 

LEAs operating in Texas may obtain military assistance for investigations 
having a counterdrug component from the Texas National Guard 
counterdrug program. This program can provide a range of investigative 
support services, from aerial reconnaissance to logistics. 5 In accordance 
with regulations,6 requests for support from National Guard counterdrug 
programs must cite in writing a su~pected drug connection. LEAs can also 
seek military counterdrug assistance via Operation Alliance, a 
clearinghouse representing the counterdrug interests of many federal, 
state, and local LEAs. 7 The Alliance only accepts requests that cite in 
writing a suspected drug connection. 

~Program personnel will not normally become involved in arrests of suspects, chain-of-custody of 
evidence, searches, interdiction, or the physical security of law enforcement officers. 

6National Guard Regulation 500-2. 

1The Alliance comprises state and local representatives from several states and agents from the DEA, 
the Customs .Service, the Border Patrol, Coast Guard, the FBI and the ATF, the Internal Revenue 
Service, U.S. Marshal's Service, the Secret Service, and U.S. Attorneys. Representatives from DOD and 
the National Guard serve on the group as advisors only. 
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Requests that the Alliance approves can be referred to.military 
organizations, which review the requests to ensure, among other things, 
that a suspected drug connection is explicitly stated. 8 Each military 
organization can decline to provide the support despite the referral. In 
addition to the National Guard program, the Alliance inay refer the request 
to Joint Task Force Six. This task force, an active service organization, 
identifies military units that can provide the assistance and coordinates 
with the requester.9 It also has a rapid support unit to respond to any 
immediate need. 

Finally, LEAs can receive items without charge from DOD's Regional 
Logistics Support Office; these items come from its excess inventory. The 
agencies can request this support directly, and their operations need not 
have a counterdrug component. 

According to the ATF, the drug connection in this operation was a possible 
clandestine methamphetamine laboratory, perhaps active, that it suspected 
was somewhere on the extensive Davidian compound. Drug laboratories, 

. active or not, are extremely volatile and toxic, and specialized training and 
equipment are necessary to safely deal with the chemical materials. The 
DEA, having lead responsibility for counterdrug activities, provides 
extensive, highly detailed procedures that its agents are supposed to follow 
when·dealing with clandestine laboratories. These procedures, which cover 
planning, entry, assessment, processing, exit, and follow-up, include such 
requirements as 

• planning with a lab-certified chemist the entry of the suspect premises, 
• assigning safety officers for the entry, 
• having self-contained breathing apparatus and lab-certified teams on 

hand, 
• giving specific warnings to the entry team, and 
• supplying the entry team with full heat- and chemical-resistant clothing. 

However, other federal LEAs, including the ATF, which do not have drugs 
as their primary focus and which lack DEXs extensive training and 
equipment have less elaborate drug-lab policies. In ATF's case, its 
instructions in this matter are quite explicit-agents are to call upon DEA 

'7he statutes, however, do not require a full discussion of the possible connection . 

. 
9Joint Task Force Six neither plans nor coordinates civilian operations, and active Army units can 

· perfonn only support roles, not law enforcement functions. 
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to handle any possible drug evidence they encounter during their 
investigations. ATF entry teams must be made aware of the drug laboratoJ 
and of standard precautions. There is, however, no requirement that ATF 
teams making a "dynamic entry"10 wear fully protective c.ounterdrug suits 
with self-contained breathing apparatus. This is also true for DEA entry 
teams. According to officials from both agencies, such equipment would 
restrict an entry team's vision and mobility and place it at unacceptable 
risk, as suspects are often aimed. · · 

The ATF made two requests for military counterdrug support to its 
Davidian operations. The first was.made directly to the Texas National 
Guard counterdrug program, and the second was later made to Operation 
Alliance, which approved and forwarded the request to the Texas National 
Guard counterdrug program and Joint Task Force Six for their 
consideration. Some counterdrug support to the ATF during its attempt to 
ser\re the warrant extended through the ensuing standoff, constituting a . 
continued response to the agency's second request. 

For both of its requests, ATF cited a possible drug connection to its Howell 
investigation. Although ATF conducted a frrearms investigation of Howell 
and other Davidians, it also acquired information on possible drug activity 
when it decided to seek support from military counterdrug elements. Not 
all of this information was shared With the military, but it formed the 
backdrop to and reinforced the data that was shared. 

During our review and in the following narrative, we focused on what the 
ATF !mew aboQt a po~sible drug connection, when the ATF !mew it, and 
what information the ATF provided to the military counterdrug programs. 
These points are central to determining whether the military was 
authorized to provide counterdrug assistance under the relevant statutes. 

10 A very rapid, vigorous, sudden, tin expected entry. It is intended to surprise suspects and prevent them 
from getting to their guns or from destroying evidence and is used to prevent hann to agents and 
civilians alike. · I 
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In 1992, the local sheriffs office discovered that, between March and June 
of that year, Howell and other Davidians at the Waco compound had 
received frequent shipments of weapons, explosive components, and 
related materials. 11 By June 1992 those shipmentS totaled more than 
$40,000. Realizing that matters were now beyond its capabilities, the .local 
sheriffs office contacted the ATF and on June 4, 1992, briefed it on (1) the 
situation at the compound, including armed guards at the site and (2) the 
group's violent history, including a 1987 gun battle between Howell and the 
Davidians' former leader. On June 9, 1992, the ATF formally opened an 
investigation of Howell and his associates. 12 The agency focused on the 
conversion and manufacture of weapons and explosives, gathering 
information on Davidian. connections and gun related deliveries that 
continued to arrive at the compound. 

In late June, the sheriffs office notified ATF of a recent delivery to. the 
compound of "chemicals, instruments, and glassware." The sheriffs 
explosives technician did not regard these items as consistent with the 
manufacture of explosives; an ATF agent thought these items could be used 
to manufacture drugs, suggesting a current operation. Later, in November 
1992, while pursuing its firearms investigation, the ATF acquired 
information about a possible drug connection when the sheriffs office told 
the agency about one of Howell's associates. A search of criminal 
databases showed that this individual had a long history of drug 
involvement and had been paroled to the Waco area in April1992 after 
serving time for his latest drug conviction. 

From the first months of the. investigation, ATF had kept in touch with the 
DEA office in Waco, seeking information it might have about the suspects. 
The DEA agents offered their help on the case, including undercover work, 
and performed some minor investigative assistance. In the summer or fall 
of 1992, the ATF and DEA agents speculated on how the Davidians were 
financing their heavy gun purchases and substantial building projects while 
supporting 100 or so compound residents. Based on their enforcement 

11Assault rifles and conversion kits, ammunition, inert grenades, sensors, night-vision devices, 
chemicals, combat vests, etc. According to the Treasury Department report, some of these items could 
be used to Ulegally manufacture and possess machine guns and destructive devices contrary to the . 
Natio~ Firearms Act (26 U.S.C. § 5845). 

12 The sherifrs office gave ATF the names of more than 30 cWTent residents of the compound, which 
ATF checked for criminal histories. 
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experience, it seemed possible to the agents that a resident might be 
dealing in illegal drugs. 

Having decided that it needed.military assistance, on December 4, 1992, 
ATF discussed with a liaison from DOD13 how the military might help. The 
liaison suggested that the military could provide aerial thernial (infrared) 
photography of the site. He also informed ATF that it would have to 
reimburse the military unless there was a drug connection to its 
investigation. 

On December 11, 1992, ATF contacted officers of the Texas National Guard 
counterdrug program to learn what aid it could provide to the Howell 
investigation. The Texas National Guard discussed the types of assistance 
available, including surveillance ov~rflights, but explained that, to receive 
help from this program, the investigation must have a drug connection. The 
Texas National Guard advised the ATF to determine whether it might have 
a drug connection and, if so, to send a formal written request citing that 
connection. 

On December 14, 1992, ATF wrote the Texas National Guard counterdrug 
program, requesting it to support the investigation with aerial photography 
and surveillance but mentioning no drug connection. The Texas National 
Guard told ATF it must submit a revised request that contained a possible 
drug connection. 14 

The ATF decided to inquire of all its contacts in this case whether they had 
knowledge of any drug activity in connection with the suspects. The first to 
be asked was a former resident of the compound; on December 16, 1992, 
this individual responded in writing with the following statements. 

• Howell had told him that drug trafficking was a desirable way to raise 
money. 

• Howell had told him about fmding a methamphetamine laboratory when 
he took over the compound. 

13rJbis position was filled by a military officer under the Office for Drug Enforcement Policy and 
Support; he was stationed at ATF's Special Operations Division, Washington, D.C. 

14According to Texas National Guard counterdrug officers, it is not unusual for LEAs to make requests · 
without stating a drug connection. In those cases the Texas National Guard returns the request with an 
explanation of the need for a written statement. of possible drug activity. 
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• Howell had told him that he turned the laboratory over to the sheriffs 
office, but another former resident maintained to this individual that 
Howell had not surrendered any drug materials. 

• Another former resident was rumored to have trafficked in drugs while 
living at the compound. 

ATF discussed this information with the sheriff's office, which confumed 
that a methamphetamine laboratory was thought to have existed at the 
compound at one time. The sheriff's office denied ever receiving drug 
evidence from Howell or any other Davidian.15 This raised the possibility 
that the illegal equipment might still be at the compound. 

The sheriff's office also confirmed for ATF that the alleged drug trafficker 
named by the former resident had lived at the compound along with 
another suspicious person. ATF searched the state's criminal database and 

. found that (1) the first individual had an extensive history of narcotics and 
firearms violations and was in prison and (2) the second had violated 
federal firearms laws and was in prison for possessing a frrearm during a 
drug-trafficking crime. It may also be at this time that the ATF learned of a 
third former resident who had produced methamphetamine at the 
compound. ATF's computer checks also showed that several current 
compound residents had prior drug involvement, including possession of 
marijuana, cocaine, and "tablets of dangerous drugs." 

This information suggested to ATF that there were reasonable grounds to 
suspect a drug connection to its investigation. Consequently, on 
December 17, 1992,16 ATF notified DEA to that effect, informing it of the 
suspected laboratory, and asked DEA to handle all drug evidence when the 
warrants would be served. ATF also informed the DOD liaison that a 
methamphetamine laboratory might be at the compound. The next day the 
ATF sent a revised request for aid to the Texas National Guard counterdrug 
program, this time citing a drug connection-specifically, that Howell was 
"suspected of unlawfully being in possession of frrearms and possibly 
narcotics." · 

Since its requirement for a drug connection was met in this new letter, the 
Texas National Guard approved the request. In all, six reconnaissance 

15 1n our discussions with the sheriffs office, it denied receiving drug material from Howell. 

16Report of the Department of the Treasurv on the Bureau or Alcohol lbbacco and Fireanns 
Investigation of Vernon Wavne Howell also known as Qayjd Koresh (Sept..l993). 
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overflights would be made, with thermal imaging used on at least two 
flights to search for armed guards and drug-manufacturing facilities.17 

By late January 1993, the ATF had taken statements from other former 
Davidians and their relatives that suggested a drug conn~ctiol): 

• Information about affidavits and testimony in a 1992 court case that a 
methamphetamine laboratory was still at the compound after it had 
supposedly been turned over to the sheriffs office. 

• Reports that Howell may have used the laboratory. 
• Reports that Howell gave illegal drugs to some of his followers. 

At the same time, an ATF undercover agent reported that Howell had told 
him, in conversation at the compound, that (1) the site would be a good 
place for making methamphetamine and (2) the sheriff suspected him of 
manufacturing drugs. Another Davidian resident, according to two 
undercover ATF agents, told them that he himself had been involved in 
drugs at one time. In addition, thermal images made by National Guard 
overflights had shown a "hot spot" inside the compound, possibly 
indicating a methamphetamine laboratory. 

Meanwhile, in preparation for serving warrants at the compound, ATF 
sought operational and logistical help from other agencies, including the 
military. It updated the DOD liaison on its case, mentioning that 
counterdrug support would soon be requested, and it gave information on 
the drug connection to the head of the Texas National Guard counterdrug 
program. On January 22, 1993, after some confusion over the appropriate 
route to take, the ATF's written request for military support of the 
upcoming warrant service arrived at Operation Alliance~ It asked for 
certain training, as well as a loan of Bradley infantry fighting vehicles and 
other equipment, for "a continuation of the frrearms and drug case."18 When 
the ATF filled out the Alliance's request form, it noted that the operation 
involved a "possible meth lab." 

17At that time, clandestine manufacture of methamphetamine was thought to produce considerable 
heat, which infrared imaging could pick up. LEAs, including the DEA, sometimes used aerial thennal 
imaging to detect the heat produced in illegal narcotics manufacture. 

16oJ'he letter noted that no weapon systems on the Bradleys would be used; it requested tloodHghts, 
loudspeakers, smoke generators, gas masks, night-vision goggles, and office and camping gear. 
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On February 2, 1993, the Alliance and its military advisers met to consider 
the request for support. The ATF discussed some of the indications of a 
drug laboratory-statements by former residents; the suspicious delivery 
of materials possibly intended for use in making drugs (sometimes referred 
to as "precursor materials");19 and the hot spot, which was identified on an 
aerial photograph of the compound. Since its requirement for a ·possible 
drug connection was met, the Alliance referred the request to Joint Task 
Force Six and the Texas National Guard counterdrug program. In its letter 
forwarding the request, the Alliance cited "a dangerous extremist 
organization believed to be producing methamphetamine." 

On February 4, 1993, representatives of the Texas National Guard 
counterdrug program and Joint Task Force Six met with the ATF to discuss 
the request that Operation Alliance had passed on to them. This meeting 
concentrated on parameters, limits, and training objectives but did discuss 
the drug connection. The ATF presented indications of a possible · 
methamphetamine laboratory at the Davidian compound: reports by 
former residents,.deliveries of possible precursor materials, and thermal 
images from reconnaissance overflights that indicated the possible location 
of the laboratory. The ATF also noted in its presentation that some current 
residents had recent drug-related arrests. According to one militaiy 
attendee, the evidence of a possible drug connection was not the strongest 
they had ever seen, nor was it the weakest. 

At this meeting the Texas National Guard agreed to provide the ATF 
operation with vehicles, office and camp equipment. 20 Approval by Joint 
Task Force Six took somewhat longer. After its parent organization, the 
Army Forces Command, had reviewed and modified the support requested, 
Joint Task Force Six agreed on February 17, 1993, to provide range practice 
and some limited training. During February 25-27, Joint Task Force Six's 
rapid-support unit trained ATF agents at Fort Hood, Texas. 21 

19oJ'he glassware, instruments, and chemicals mentioned earlier (p. 7). 

· 20Jbis request to the Texas National Guard was later modified (February 24, 1993) because the ATF now 
needed support for a dynamic entry rather than a siege, as earlier planned. 

21They did not receive training on securing or removing drug material. Texas National Guard helicopters 
and crews also traveled to Fort Hood (February 27) to practice with the ATF their support of the 
operation. 

Pact,. 11 GAO/NSIAD/OSI-99-133 Department of Defense 

z 0038109 



Continuation of Military 
Assistance During the 
Standoff 

Approval of Military 
CounterQI"ug Support Was 
Reasonable and Authorized 

B-276428 

On the day that the ATF attempted to seiVe arrest and search warrants~ 
the compound, the Texas National Guard joined several local, state, and 
federal LEAs to support the operation. ATF had planned a dynamic entry 
secure the Davidians before they could get to their weapons. However, t 
Davidians were warned of the ATF's approach and met the agents with 
gunfrre. A 51-day standoff resulted, from February 28to-Apri119, 1993, 
during which the ATF and the FBI .(which took control of the operation) 
requested and received a range of support from the active military and tt 
Texas National Guard. 

. ' 

The bulk of support during the standoff qualified as militarY assistance tc 
civilian. authorities, which requires no connection to drugs in order to be 
provided but which generally.must be repaid. However, Texas National 
Guard counterdrug assistance (mainly helicopters and personnel) 
continued to be provided after the attempted warrant service became a 
standoff because, upon the Davidians' eventual surrender, this support 

. would be needed to finish the counterdrug mission. 22 

DOD provide<;! support for counterdrug activities of the Davidian operatior 
under section 1004 of the National Defense Authorization Act of 1991 (P.L. 
101-510). The Texas National Guard also provided counterdrug support 
under 32 U.S.C. § 112 .. These laws authorize certain types of support of 
LEAs' counterdrug activities~23 However, neither law provides a formal 
standard for determining the level of counterdrug activity that a particular 
operation must include for authorization of such support. Because there is 
no formal standard, the militacy officials involved have considerable 
discretion in determining the degree of counterdrug activity necessary to 
approve the support. Based on our review of the relevant statutes, events 
leading up to the decision by military officials to approve the support, and 
interviews with key personnel, we found no basis to conclude that the 
officials involved abused that discretion. We also found no indication that 
ATF officials misrepresented the information provided to the military in 
order to obtain the support. Therefore, we conclude that the military's 
decision to approve the counterdrug support was reasonable and 
authorized under the relevant statutes. 

22According to the Texas Nation_al Guard, this counterdrug support did not require a new request, as it 
was provided as a continuation of the ATF's second request approved February 4, 1993. 

23See app. II for a more detailed discussion of these laws. 
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ATF spent several months planning the operation to serve warrants at the 
Davidian compound. Although the possible drug laboratory was not a 
major part of this effort, ATF did plan and take certain measures to deal 
with it. 

As recounted earlier, in December 1992 the ATF had already asked the DEA 
to handle the illegal drug laboratory that it thought might be hidden on the 
compound.24 By the end of January 1993, its plans reflected that agreement: 
A team of DEA agents, including one certified to handle clandestine 
laboratories, would be on hand the day of the warrant service specifically 
to deal with drug evidence. If ATF agents should encounter any drug 
materials while securing people or weapons/explosives evidence, they 
were to pull back from that particular location, cordon it off, and call in the 
DEA team. The DEA agents would manage the drug evidence and supervise 
cleanup. This solution was in keeping w~th standard practice by ATF and 
other federal LEAs. 

These plans were shared with the military organizations supporting the 
operation. At the February 4 meeting between ATF and the military, 
participants discussed the dangers of operating around volatile substances 
(chemicals for making methamphetamine and explosives are very volatile), 
especially with gunfire and diversionary devices.25 The ATF also assured 
the military representatives that it would have a DEA team ready to "take 
down the lab." Indeed, some days before the warrant service occurred, the 
ATF informed DEA of the date, time, and place of the operation and 
confirmed that DEA would have a certified clandestine-laboratory agent at 
ATF's command post to handle the drug evidence. 

ATF also took certain standard measures to guard against explosives, 
weapons, and hazardous chemicals: 

• During final training for the operation, according to ATF and military 
sources, ATF leaders discussed with their agents the suspected 
laboratory and urged caution in the use of weapons. Those few agents 

24Its location was not known. 

~sntese devices, sometimes referred to as "flashbangs," are useful in diverting criminal suspects. Their 
explosions create a very brilliant flash and a very loud noise to disorient or stun people in the 
immediate vicinity. 
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carrying diversionary devices were reminded to look before deployin~ 
them. 

• Before ATF attempted to serve the warrants, at least one ATF leader 
went over routine cautions with the agents-do not taste, smell, or 
touch anything, do not interfere with any chemical reaction, be sure tc 
undergo decontamination if you get drug material on yourself or 
weapons, etc. · · 

• During the attempted warrant service, ATF teams wore helmets, 
anti-ballistic vests, protective gloves, sturdy boots, and eye protection. 
They also had first-aid kits and fire extinguishers on hand. 

These measures also conform in large part with DE};s drug-laboratory 
safety measures for initial-entry teams. They differ only in that the entire 
clothing of DEA teams (hoods, gloves, pants, and jackets) are made of 
Nomex/6 whereas only the gloves of ATF agents are made of this material. 

ATF planners acknowledged that their entry teams were not heavily 
protected against hazardous drug materials. This did not concern them, 
however, because the laboratory was not a tactical consideration. They 
believed they could eliminate some parts of the main residence (e.g., 
bedrooms, dining room, and entrances) as likely sites for a drug laboratory. 
Moreover, the need to secure the weapons and armed suspects overrode 
the hazards of a possibly disassembled laboratory. 

On the day of the warrant service, DEA agents with special gear were at the 
command post specifically to handle any drug laboratory ATF might 
encounter. According to the DEA, it had arranged for a state chemist to be 
on standby to assist it, and its hazardous-materials van was on standby that 
day at its Waco office. Moreover, DEA agents, including the 
laboratory-certified individual, remained part of the law enforcement 
support during the standoff to handle any drug evidence that might be 
uncovered once the residence had been secured and vacated.27 At DE.Ns 
request, the state chemist was also at the command post at least 1 day 
during the siege. 

26Nomex is a highly fire-resistant commercial material used in protective clothing. 

27 At some point in the standoff, the DEA asked to be part of.the final clearing of the site after removal of 
the Davidians, but tha~ task was later assumed by another LEA in the aftermath of the fire. · 
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Military support of the Davidian operation came from both active and 
National Guard units. The cost of all that support amounted to almost 
$1 million, of which about 76 percent was reimbursed to the military and 
another 14 percent ($137,400) waived as counterdrug support. The 
remaining 10 percent represent the military's billing discrepancies. 

Military support for the Davidian operation ranged from aircraft and 
vehicles to equipment, supplies, and services (training, maintenance, etc). 
We have estimated the cost of this support to be at least $982,400.28 The 
Alabama and Texas National Guard, the Army (including Special Forces 
units), the Air Force, and other DOD activities-the Uniformed Services 
University of the Health Sciences, the Regional Logistics Support Office 
and its Defense Reutilization and Marketing Offices-all provided some 
form of military assistance. 

Table 1 summarizes the types and costs of this support. The FBI incurred 
the largest single costs-about $230,000 for damages to an Army UH-1 
helicopter and $170,000 in operational costs forthree Army UH-1s. In these 
two instances, assistance was provided during the standoff; the helicopter 
damage was due to pilot error, not Davidian gunfrre. 

2&Jbis total does not include a cost for medical support from the Uniformed Services University of the 
. Health Sciences (which provided 133 staff days of services to the FBI during the standoff) because the 
military no longer has documents available. The tOtal also does not include the value of material 
provided by the Regional Logistics Support Office and Defense Reutilization and Marketing Offices, 
since those items, as excess inventory,.were provided free of charge. 
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Table 1: Types and Costs of Military Assistance to the ATF and the FBI.in Their Branch Davidian Operations 

Types of support 

Aircraft 

Vehicles 

Equipment and supplies 

Personnel 

Total 

Description 

Reconnaissance and surveillance overflights, aerial diversion, transportation, standby 
for medical evacuation, and recovery of loaned items (helicopters and fixed-wing 
aircraft) 

Surface transportation, protection, and recovery (tanks and other combat vehicles, 
utility vehicles, and various tracked and wheeled transport and recovery vehicles) 

Flak vests, helmets, masks, night-vision goggles, cameras, binoculars, electronic 
jammers, cellular telephones, ammunition for grenade launcher, tents, generators, 
lighting, clothing, fuel for vehicles and generators, and medical dressings 

Coordination, liaison, logistics, maintenance, 24-hr. medical and health clinic, 
operation of classified equipment, driver training, grenade-launcher training, 
mine-detector training, communications training, medical training, and firing-range 
support 

Cos1 

$548,40( 

196,60C 

68,200 

. 169,200 

$982,400 

Note: In figuring costs for active-duty military participants, Incremental costs alone-per diem and 
travel, but not pay and benefits-were used. 

Source: DOD and the Texas National Guard. 

Reimbursement of Support As required by the Economy Act, the ATF and the FBI reimbursed the 
military for most of its assistance. Reimbursements covered 76 percent 
(about $747,300) of the costs, of which the FBI paid about 96 percent 
(about $718,300) and the ATF the remainder (about $29,000). The FBI also 
paid directly for the services of the Uniformed Services University of the 
Health Sciences. Appendix III provides more detail on reimbursements. 

·,J 

Billing Discrepancies 

Waivers of Reimbursement 
for Counterdrug Support 

In five instances the active Army failed to properly bill the FBI for services, 
equipment, and supplies, resulting in undercharges totaling about $100,000. 
The largest instance was an undercharge of $73,000 in operational 
expenses for the UH-1 and CH-47 helicopters lent by Fort Hood. According 
to a Fort Hood official, the Army does not plan to collect these 
undercharges, since it would realize no current benefit-that is, it would 
have to apply any collection to prior-year obligations. There were also two 
minor Texas National Guard overcharges for vehicle parts and helmets. 
Appendix IV provides more details on these billing discrepancies. 

The military waived reimbursement for the costs of support from its 
counterdrug programs. This assistance represented a small part of the 
overall military support to the Davidian operation, accounting for only 
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14 percent of costs (about $137,400) and consisting of aerial overflights, 
helicopter logistical support, fuel, telephone service, and training. Most of 
this nonreimbursable assistance was provided by the Texas National Guard 
counterdrug program at a cost of about $130,600 (about 37 percent of the 
Texas National Guard's total support). The Alabama National Guard and 
Joint Task Force Six waived the minor costs of the counterdrug support 
they provided-$1,200 and $5,600, respectively. Appendix V contains more 
details on these waivers. 

The ATF requests for assistance from military counterdrug programs met 
the requirements of the relevant statutes for authorizing such support. In 
these written requests, ATF cited its suspicions of drug activity. In both 
cases, the military reasonably exercised its discretion in providing that 
support as authorized under the relevant statutes. 

In planning how it would serve warrants at the compound, ATF planned for 
the possibility of encountering a methamphetamine laboratory or other 
hazardous drug materials. As required by agency policy, ATF agents in the 
operation were made aware of the suspected laboratory and of the 
appropriate precautions. Moreover, DEA agents were at the command post 
to handle any drug-related materials. 

· In oral comments on a draft of this report, the Department of Defense 
stated it accepted the report as presented and the Department of Justice 
(including the Drug Enforcement Agency and the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation) stated it concurred with the substance of the report. In 
written comments on a draft of this report, the Department of the Treasury 
(including the Bureau of Alcohol,.Tobacco, and Firearms) stated it 
concurred with ·the. report's conclusions. All three departments provided 
technical comments that we incorporated as appropriate. 

We are sending copies of this report to interested congressional 
committees. We are also sending copies to the Honorable Louis Caldera, 
Secretary of the Anny; the Honorable Russell C. Davis, Chief of the 
National Guard Bureau; the Honorable John W. Magaw, Director of the 
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms; the Honorable Louis J. Freeh, 
Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation; and the Honorable 
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Thomas A. Constantine, Administrator of the Drug Enforcement 
Administration. Copies will also be made available to others upon request. 

Please contact me at (202) 512-5140 if you have any questions concerning 
this report. · , 

Mark E. Gebicke 
Director, National Security and 
Preparedness Issues 
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Appendix I 

Organizations Visited and Documents 
Reviewed 

To obtain the information needed for our review, we visited or contacted 
the following organizations: 

• Military organizations . 
• The Office of the Deputy General Counsel, the Department of 

Defense (DOD); the Office of the Coordinator for Drug Enforcement 
Policy and Support, Office of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of 
Defense; and the National Guard Bureau, all in Washington, D.C. 

• ·Joint Task Force Six, Fort Bliss, Texas. . 
• Texas National Guard, Camp Mabey, Texas. 
• U.S. Anny Aviation and Troop Command, St. Louis, Missouri. 
• U.S. Anny, III Corps, Fort Hood, Texas. 
• Defense Finance and Accounting Service, Fort Monmouth, New 

Jersey. 
• Law enforcement organizations 

• Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms (ATF), Federal Bureau of 
Investigation (FBI), Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA), and 
Customs in Washington, D.C. 

• Local offices of federal law enforcement agencies (LEA) (ATF, DEA, 
and the U.S. Attorney's Office) in Texas. 

• Operation Alliance, Fort Bliss, Texas. 
• State and local LEAs-the McLennan County Sheriff's Department 

and District Attorney's Office, the Texas Department of Public Safety, 
and the Texas Department of Protective and Regulatocy Services. 

We also reviewed hundreds of documents and other media, including the 
following: 

• Investigation into the Activities of Federal Law Enforcement Agencies 
toward the Branch Davidians, Committee on Government Reform and 
Oversight in conjunction with the Committee on the Judiciary, House of 

·Representatives Report 104-749 (Aug. 2, 1996), Union Calendar No·. 395. 
• Activities of Federal Law Enforcement Agencies toward the Branch 

Davidians, Joint hearings before· the Subcommittee on Crime of the 
Committee on the Judiciary and the Subcommittee on National Security, 
International Affairs, and Criminal Justice of the Committee on 
Government Reform and Oversight, Committee on the Judiciary Serial 
No. 72 (July 19-21, 24-28, 31, and Aug. 1, 1995), in three parts. 

• Events Surrounding the Branch Davidian Cult Standoff in Waco, Texas, 
House Judiciary Committee hearing (Apr. 28, 1993). 
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Reviewed 

• Report of the Department of the Treasuzy on the Bureau of Alcohol, 
Tobacco, and Fireanns Investigation of vernon Wayne Howell, also 
lrnown as David Koresh (Sept. 1993). 

• Guidelines for the Cleanup of Clandestine Drug Laboratories, Joint 
Federal Task Force of the Drug Enforcement Administration,· 
Environmental Protection Agency, and Coast Guard (March 1990). 

• "ATF Policy Regarding Investigations Involving Clandestine ·· 
Laboratories," dated April25, 1990 (subsequently incorporated into ATF 
Order 3210.7B). 

• Excerpts from the PEA agent's manual. 
• All Waco Administrative Review documents. 
• ATF investigative files. 
• Final report by Brigadier General Sagsveen on the Waco/Mt. Carmel 

incident (July 30, 1996). 
• Results of the focal group review of Texas National Guard support to the 

ATF, known informally as the "Spence Report" (Apr. 28, 1993). 
• After-action report of Texas National Guard counterdrug support in 

Waco, Texas (Apr. 29, 1993). 
• Other relevant DOD provisions, policies, and procedures as well as 

information on the National Guard counterdrug program, other Guard 
material, and the operational support planning guide for Joint Task 
Force Six. 

• Operation Alliance procedures for reviewing counterdrug requests. 
• Videotapes of overflights of the Davidian compound arid of selected 

operational briefmgs. 
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Appendix II 

Statutes Related to Militacy Support of Branch 
Davidian Operations 

National Defense 
Authorization Act of 
1991 

. ,,: 

10 u.s.c. §§ 371-382 

Section 1004 of the National Defense Authorization·Act of 1991 authorized 
the Secretary of Defense to provide the support of active military units for 
the counterdrug activities "of any other department or agency of the 
Federal Govemlnent or of any State, local, or foreign law enforcement 
agency."1 In 1993, when the Davidian operations occurred, the act limited 
active militacy support for counterdrug activities to the following nine 
categories:2 

• Maintenance and repair of equipment made available by DOD to a 
federal department or agency or to a state or local government. 

• Maintenance, repair, and upgrading of non-DOD equipment to ensure 
that it will be compatible with equipment used by DOD. · 

• Transportation of personnel, equipment, or supplies. 
• Establishment and operation of bases of operation or training facilities. 
• Training of law enforcement personnel, including associated support 

expenses for trainees and the provision of materials necessary to carry 
out such training. 

• Detection, monitoring, and communication of movement of air, sea, and 
surface traffic. 

• Construction of roads and fences and installation of lighting to block 
drug-smuggling across international boundaries of the United States. 

• Establishment of command, control, communication, and computer 
networks to improve integration of law enforcement, active military, and 
National Guard activities. 

• Provision of linguist and intelligence analysi.s seiVices . 

Sections 371-382 of title 10 of the U.S. Code authorize the Secretary of 
Defense to provide certain types of support by active military units to 
federal, state, or local law enforcement officials. LEAs are not required to 
reimburse DOD for the support if it (1) is provided in the normal course of 
military training or operations or (2) results in· a benefit to DOD that is 
"substantially equivalent" to that which would otherwise be obtained from 

1 P.L. 101-510, div. A, title X, § 1004, as amended. Congress was extended the authority through 2002. 
See P.L. 105-261, div. A, title X,§ 1021 

2 1n 1993, Congress adcJed a tenth purpose for which the Secretary may provide support-aerial and 
ground reconnaissance. See P.L. 103-160, div. A., title XI,§ 1121(b). 
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. 32 u.s.c. § 112 

Appendix II 
Statutes Related to Military Support of 
Branch Davidian Operations 

military operations or training.3 Otherwise, DOD must be reimbursed as 
required by the Economy Act.4 · 

Title 10 authorizes the following types of support: 

• Any information collected during the normal course of training or _ 
operations that may be relevant to a violation of any federal or state law 
within the jurisdiction of the officials supported. 

• Equipment (including associated supplies or parts) and base or research 
facilities. 

• Training in the operation and maintenance of DOD equipment. 
• Relevant expert; advice. 
• Maintenance of equipment. 
• The operation of military equipment for (1) monitoring air and sea 

traffic; (2) monitoring surface traffic outside U.S. borders, as well as 
25 miles within U.S. borders if the initial detection occurred outside the 
United States; (3) aerial surveillance; (4) intercepting vessels or aircraft 
detected outside the land area of the United States; (5) facilitating 
communications with federal LEAs; and (6) transporting and staffing an 
operational base for civilian law enforcement personnel.5 

Under 32 U.S.C. § 112, the Secretary of Defense may provide funds 
appropriated for National Guard activities to the governor of a state who 
submits a drug-interdiction and counterdrug-activities plan that meets 
certain statutory requirements. To obtain funding, a state's plan must 
(1) specify how National Guard personnel and equipment will be used in 
such activities, (2) certify that the use of the National Guard of the state is 
consistent with state law, and (3) certify that the activities included in the 
plan serve a state law enforcement purpose. If a state's plan is approved 
and DOD provides funding, the state may use the funds to pay expenses 
related to the use of its National Gl,lard personnel (while not in federal 

3 10 u.s.c. § 377. 

4 The Economy Act, 31 U.S.C. § 1535, generally mandates prompt repayment for goods and services 
provided by one agency to another. 

5 See 10 U.S.C. § 374. Federal LEAs responsible for enforcing the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. § 
801 et seq.), certain Immigration and Naturalization Act provisions (8 U.S. C. §§ 1324-1328), section 401 
of the Tariff Act of 1940, and the Maritime Law Enforcement Act may request such aid. 
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Appendix II 
Statutes Related to Military Support of 
Branch Davidian Operations 

service) and equipment for drug interdiction and counterdrug activities. 6 

DOD considers support requests that are not specifically included in the 
original plan on a case-by-case basis if accompanied by a certification from 
the state's attorney general that the operations requested are consistent 
with state law. 7 LEAs are not required to reimburse the National Guard for 
this support. .. 

Section 1208 of the National Defense Authorization Act9 allowed DOD to 
give federal and state agencies equipment-free of charge-that the 
Secretary of Defense had declared excess to the military's needs. Under 
this statute, the Secretary of Defense was required to detennine that the 
equipment was suitable for use in counterdrug activities. 

6 Th~ act defines "drug interdiction and counter drug activities" as "the use of National Guard personnel 
in the drug interdiction and counter-drug law enforcement activities authorized by the law of the State 
and requested by the Governor of the State." · 

'National Guard (NGR) 50Q-2. 

8 P.L 101-189. 

9 In 1996, Congress repealed § 1208. P.L 104-201, div. A., title X, section 1033(a) contained similar 
language now codified as 10 U.S.C.§ 2576a. 
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Appendix III 

Reimbursements to the Military From the ATF 
and the FBI for Assistance to Their Branch 
Davidian Operations 

Support Recipient Reimbursement 

Aircraft 

Active Army-3 UH-1 utility helicopters and 3 CH-47 helicopters FBI $375,179 

Active Air Force-C-141 transport of FBI's hostage rescue team (and its equipment) to and from FBI 73,112 
Waco 

Vehicles 

Texas National Guard-2 M-35A2 2%-ton cargo trucks with transport trailers, 5 M-818 5-ton tractor ATF 6,858 
trucks with trailers, 12 M-1 009 high-mobility multi-purpose wheeled vehicles 

Texas National Guard-1 0 M-2 Bradleys (infantry fighting vehicles), 3 M-332 tractor trailers, 5 FBI 174,313 
M-728 combat engineer vehicles, 1 M-88A 1 tracked recovery vehicle (tank retriever), miscellaneous 
vehicles 

Active Army-8 M-998 high-mobility multi-purpose wheeled vehicles, an M35A2 2%-ton cargo FBI 15,466 
truck, 2 5-ton trucks, 14 heavy equipment transports, miscellaneous vehicles 

Equipment 

Texas National Guard-unrecovered photographic and observation equipment, 100 canteens, 50 ATF 5,022 
first-aid dressings, 130 empty magazines for M-16A 1 rifles, assorted field clothing 

Texas National Guard-16 helmets, 13 helmet covers, 12 M-16A 1 rifle slings, 54 empty magazines FBI 5,190 
for M-16A 1 s, an M-25A 1 protective mask, 180 tent pins 

Active Army-2,488 gallons of generator fuel, fencing, 200 sandbags, 6 boxes of chemical lights, FBI 5,523 
cellular-phone charges 

Supplies 

Texas National Guard-286 cases of field rations and 2,036 gallons of diesel fuel ATF 17,015 

Texas National Guard-62 cases of field rations, 10,529 gallons of diesel fuel, and transportation FBI 19,133 
costs of trackeq vehicles 

Personnel (per diem, transportation, and travel costs) 

Active Air Force-electronic jammers and travel costs FBI 34,340 

Active Army-liaison to LEAs and HQs; maintenance of aircraft, vehicles, and equipment; operation FBI 16,135 
of equipment; and local transportation costs for DOD personnel 

Uniformed Services University of the Health Sciences-24-hr. medical control, 24-hr clinic, drafting FBI Reimbursed 
of Waco medical plan 133 staff-days8 

Total of known amounts reimbursed $747,286 

•A flat rate plus all travel was used under a Memorandum of Understanding between the two parties. 
All travel vouchers were sent directly to the FBI for payment; FBI paid for expendable medical supplies. 
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Appendix IV 

Discrepancies in Billing the FBI for Military 
Support to Its Branch Davidian. Operations 

Undercharges Amount 

Active Army used the wrong flying-hour rates when determining charges for: $73,073 
• flights by UH-1 helicopters for transport, deployment, medical evacuation support, and recovery 
• flight by CH-47 helicopter on medical standby 

Active Army did not bill for the loss of two night-vision goggles 9,168 

Active Army did not bill for 40-mm grenade-launcher ammunition (200 target-practice rounds, 50 illumination rounds, 
and 250 high-explosive rounds) ' · 

5,066 

Active Army did not bill for 9 cases of field rations consumed by Army personnel while supporting the siege 164 

Active Army (Special Operations) did not bill for the following services provided during the siege: 10,793 
• observers and technical liaisons to the FBI's hostage rescue team 
• operation of classified/special equipment 
• training federal agents in use of classified equipment 

Total undercharges $98,264 

Overcharges 

Texas National Guard overcharged for vehicular parts · $41 

Texas National Guard overcharged for the loss of 8 Kevlar ground-troop helmets 498 

Total overcharges $539 

Net undercharges $97,725 
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AppendixV 

Costs Waived by the Military in Support of the 
Branch Davidian Operations 

Support Recipient Cost Authority for waiver 

Alabama National Guard 

2 overflights for reconnaissance photography of the ATF $1,238 ) 32 U.S.C. § 112 (counterdrug) 
compound 

Subtotal $1,238 

Active Army (Joint Task Force Six) 

Counterdrug training ATF 5,610 10 U.S.C. § 377 (substantial training benefit) 
• Communications P.L. 101-510 § 1004 (b) 4-5 
• Medical evacuation 10 u.s.c. § 373 
• First aid 
• Firing-range support 
• Minor construction 

Subtotal · $5,610 

Texas National Guard 

UC-26 aircraft ATF . 8;0328 32 U.S.C. § 112 (counterdrug) 
• 4 overflights of the compound for reconnaissance 

photography 
• 1 flight in support of siege 

Helicopter flights in support of warrant service ATF 15,388b 32 U.S.C. § 112 (counterdrug) 

Helicopter flights in support of siege ATF 2,454 32 U.S.C. § 112 (counterdrug) 

Personnel services iri siege ATF and FBI 102,301C 32 U.S.C. § 112 (counterdrug) 
• Liaison, command and control 
• Helicopter flight crews, drivers of various vehicles 
• Vehicle and equipment maintenance 

Fuel for non-tracked vehicles ATF and FBI 410 32 U.S.C. § 112 (counterdrug) 

Landline and cellular telephone service ATF and FBI 1,995 32 U.S.C. § 112 (counterdrug) 

Subtotal $130,580 

Total amount of expenses waived by the military $137,428 

•Includes costs for flying hours, personnel, and special maintenance contract. 

b Includes repair of gunshot damage sustained In warrant service. 

cTotal pay, per diem, and travel (896 staff-days). All personnel were In title 32 (counterdrug program) 
status. 
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Appendix VI 

Comments From the Department of the 
Treasury 

• UNDER SECRETARY ' 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 

August 3, 1999 

Mark E. Gebicke, Director 
National Security and Preparedness Issues 
United States General Accounting Office 
Washington, DC 20548 

Dear Mr. Gebicke: 

This is in response to your request for comments on the General 
Accounting Office's draft report concerning military assistance 
provided to the Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco·and Firearms (ATF) and 
to the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) in 1993 in 
connection with the Federal law enforcement· operation at the 
Branch Davidian compound near Waco, Texas. 

With respect to the military counterdrug support provided to 
ATF during the investigation of David Koresh and during the 
warrant operation on February 28, 1993, the draft report 
concludes that ATF's request for assistance from the military 
met the requirements of the relevant statutes for authorizing 
such support. The draft report also concludes that ATF's 
planning for the warrant operation addressed the possibility of 
encountering a methamphetamine laboratory at the compound and 
that the planning of the operation was consistent with ATF's 
policies, and the policies of other Federal law enforcement 
agencies, when a drug laboratory may be present~ 

The Department of the Treasury concurs with the conclusions 
set forth in the draft report with respect to ATF. As you know, 
in 1993 the Department of the Treasury conducted a review of 
ATF's law enforcement operation at the Branch Davidian compound. 
As part of this overall review, the Treasury Department 
investigated the military assistance provided to ATF and 
likewise concluded that ATF had conducted a legitimate inquiry 
into whether a drug nexus existed in the Branch Davidian 
investigation and that ATF had properly presented this 
information to the United States military and to the Texas 
National Guard to obtain counterdrug military support. The 
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COmments From the Department of the 
Treasury 

-2-

Department's findings in this regard were set forth in the 
September 1993 Report on the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and 
Firearms' Investigation of Vernon Wayne Howell, also known as 
David Koresh. 

Finally, we have enclosed proposed technical corrections to 
certain information in the draft report. 

Thank you for the opportunity to review and comment on the draft 
report. 

Enclosure 

Page 31 
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Part One 
Section One: The Probable Cause Investigation 

Preliminary Information: Initiation of the A TF Investigation of Koresh 

and his Followers 

In late May 1992, Chief Deputy Sheriff Daniel ~eyenberg .of the. McLennan County 

Sheriffs Department infonned the Austin, Texas, ATF office that sUspicious United Parcel 

Service (UPS) deliveries had been received by certain persons residing at the Compound, 

known as Mount CanneL The Compound is located a few miles from Waco, which is in 
McLennan County. Several shipments of firearms worth more than $10,000, inert grenade 

casings, and a substantial quantity of black powder5
, an explosive, had been delivered to a 

metal building, known as the Mag Bag, used by Compound residents several miles from the 

Compound. (See Figure 1.) Because the· residents of the Compound were constructing what 

appeared to be a barracks-type cinder-block structure, had buried a school bus to serve as 

both a firing range and a bunker (see Figure 2), and apparently were stockpiling arms and 

other weapons, Deputy Weyenberg asked A TF to investigate~ 

Special Agent Davy Aguilera of the Austin ATF office immediately· began to make 

· , inquiries, with the encouragement of Assistant U.S. Attorney Bill Johnston. On June 4, 

Aguilera debriefed Lieutenant Gene Barber of the sheriffs department about the 

Compound, and Barber told Aguilera that the sheriffs department had referred the same 

matter previously to the Waco office of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI). 

s Black powde; is an explosive under the federal explosive laws in 18 U.S.C. Chapter 40. See 18 U.S.C. 
§§84l(d) and 844(j). Black powder in quantities of fifty pounds or less intended to be used solely for 
sporting, recreational or cultural purposes in antique fueanns is generally exempt from the regulatory 
provisions of Chapter 40. ~ee 18 U.S.C. §845(a)(S). Black powder, however, is not exempt from the criminal 
misuse· provisions of 18 U.S.C. §844. Black powder can be combined with aluminum or magnesium powder, 
items that were delivered to the Compound, to create an enhance_d explosive effect. ln addition, when black 
powder is confined in a metal case or container, particularly when it is combined with aluminum or 
magnesium po~der, it can explode violently when detonated, bursting or fragmenting the casing and 
producing high-velocity fragments. 
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Although the FBI had formally opened a case, an agent from that office told Aguilera that 
the FBI was not actively pursuing any investigation. 

Barber provided Aguilera with a detailed acc:ount of Koresh's alleged attempt to kill 
Oeorge Roden, the Branch Davidian leader whose parents established the Compound in 
1959. and how Koresh seized control of the Compound and the Branch Davidians from 
Roden in 1987. (See Figure 3.) In support of that account. Barber gave Aguilera an 
"incident rerort" that had been prepared by the sherifrs department shortly after the 
confrontation. When deputy sheriffs anived and ended the shoot-out. they found Koresh 
and six followers firing their rifles at Roden. who had already suffered a minor gunshot 
wound and was pinned down behind a tree at the Comround-which was then called 
"Rodenville." On the day _of the shoot-out. Koresh and all of his followers were dressed in 
combat fatigues. had c:amounaged their faces with black greasepaint before going to the 
Comround. and were armed with shotguns. .22-c:aliber rines, and other weapons. as well~ 
more than 3.000 rounds of unspent ammunition. (See Figure 4.) 
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Barber al!'iO told Aguilera more about UPS deliveries made to the ComJK>und during 

the preceding months. which consillted of firearms comronentll and materials ulled to make 

Figure 4: Ammunilion seimJ rrom Kcnsb and his rn11mms after tile Novanher 19117 !lllooe­
out wilh Rodeo. 

explosive!!. On each delivery. followers of Koresh. inctuding Steve Schneider. met the UP~ 

driver at the Mag Bag (liCe Figure 5) and diiected him to the Comround. where armed 

guards oOen kert watch. There. payment was made. U!IWllly in cash. 

t Ising the t JPS invoices. Aguilera began contacting firearms dealers and checking 

national registries to tmck dnwn the srecilic firearm!!. firearms comronents. and cxplosivr.oo 

materials received hy Koresh and his followers during the rast year. Afler his initial 
cnnvers.,tinn with Aguilera. Barher told Aguilera that the tiPS driver delivered to Kor~h ;. 

large quantity nf rowdered aluminum metal. a common ingredient in exrlosivcs. and 60 

ammunition maga7.incs fnr AR-15 rifles. Barber·also related a confidential informant's 

rerort that llenry McMahon. a federally licensed firearms dealer who had recently moved 

let lht> Waco area frnm l=lorida. had recently hragged ahout selling a large numhcr of 
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weapons, including AK-47!>, to Koresh.11 (See Figure 6.) On June CJ. Rarhcr reported that 

automatic gunfire wa~ heard recently at the Compound. 

Aguilera determined that neither Koresh nor any of his followers then known to 

Aguilera were licensed federal arm!> dealers or manufacturers or had rcgil'>tered any National 

• An 1\K-47 is a Soviet-dniJ!ned selective fire machinegun thlll WM the standard wrapm issued to 
Eastern Rloc military prrsonnel. Semiautomatic copies of the 1\K-47 (under a variety of modrl desi~tnation~. 
all commonly referred to as 1\K-47~) were imported Md sold commm:ially in the llnitrd States until their 
importation wu prohibited in 19119. P~sion or I semiliUiomatic cory of an 1\K-47 i' leJ!al IUid does not 
require registration runuant In the National Firearm~ 1\d. llowever. a semiautomatic 1\K-47 can he convrrted 
into an illegal m~~ehinegun hy making modifications to the receiver or the weapnn and rerl~~einR crrtain 
internal rarts with commonly available selective ftre AK-47 Jlllfls. 
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fi~tnre 6: AK-47 a~uuh rine. 

Fiream1s Act weapons.' Using the shipping invoices, Aguilera also learned that Nesard 

<iun rarts Company had shipre«J to Koresh several "M-16 machinegun CAR kits" and 

several "M-16 machinegun E-2 kits," both of which are oRen called "conversion kits." f:.ach 

of these conversion kits, when combined with the lower receiver of an AR-IS 

semiautomatic rine, generally constitute all the parts from which a machincgun could be 

a!>.c;embled. 

Figure 7: M-16 anautt rine. 

'The National Firearms Act, codified in Chapter 51 or Title 26, United Stat~ Code, sds oot 1 

cornprehm~ive tax and registration sy~em governing the mMurlldure. lriUI~rer and pm~nsion or certain 
firearm~. Among other firearms covered by the Act are items classified as "destructive devices; includin& 
any explo~ive, incendiary, bomh, or grenade (26 li.S.C. § 5114~(0), IUid machinquns (26 lJ.S.C. §51145(b)). 
In addition, IR II.S.C. §922(o) makes it unlawful for any prrsno to transfer or pmsns a machineg1m unlest 
the machin~IIO was lawfully registered before May 19, 1986, the effective date or the Firearms Ownm 
Protection Act of 1986. Rrfore that Act, it was legal for citittns to make, sell, and pmsrss machinquns as 
long 115 they Conlplied with the tuin& and registration requirements or the National Firearms Act. Since 198t. 
no m~~ehineguns have bem prrmiHed to be manufactured in the llnited States extq'tl thMe used by 

government ll(lencies or for expolt. 
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An M-16 CAR kit comprises all component parts. with the exception of the lower 
receiver,• for the carbine version of an M-16. (See Figure 7.fThe kit includes a complete 
upper receiver and barrel assembly, buttstock, recoil spring and buffer. M-16 hammer, 
trigger, disconneclor, select~. M-16 automatic sear, pins. springs. trigger. guard, magazine 
relea.o;e, and bolt hold-open. The parts in the kit can be used with an AR-IS rifle or lower 
receiver to as.o;emble a machinegun. The M-16 E-2 kit contains a Nimilar set of parts; 

however. it iN geared for u~ with an M-16 A-2 selective-fire rifle. The parts in the E-2 kit 
also can be used lo convert an AR-1 S into a machinegun. Although the~ kilN can be used 

to maintain M-16 machineguns produced before 1986 and therefore can he sold lawfully. in 

practice they are commonly used to convert semiautomatic weapons into machineguns. 
Such kits. of course, only have a laWful. practical utility if the purchaser already owns a 

registered machinegun. Because neither Koresh nor any of his known followers owned such 

a registered weapon. Aguilera inferred that the kib Koresh was steadily acquiring were not 
heing used for legal purposes. 

On the hasis of this information. Aguilera formally initiated a case on June CJ, 1992. 

Within a week. his immediate supervisors and Phillip Chojnacki. the Special Agent in 

Charge (SAC) of the Houston A TF office, approved this initiation and classified the case as 
"sensitive." thus ensuring a higher degree of oversight from the SAC and A TF 

hendquarters. ATF regulations classify ca.c:es meeting certain criteria as "senNilive" or 
"significant_" and investigating agents are charged with keeping supervising officials 

informed about those cases. The investigation of Koresh and his followers, which 
potentially involved a large amount of weapons and explosives in the pos.c;ession of a 

potentially volatile group with strong professed religious helief.'l. met A TF guidelines for 
treatment a.c; oolh sensitive and !lignificant. 

The primary violalinn.'l within A TF's juri!ldiclion that Aguilera would he pursuing 

wt'te (I) the illegal manufacture of machinegun!l from component parts~J and (2) the illegal 

1 A m:tiver is a part or a fimmn that nonnally houws the banel and bolt a~mnbly. Many modem 
military-style rifles are con~tructed with a horimntal split in the reuiver-hence the term~ •upper receiver• 
and •tower receiver.• With respect to the AR·I5, which has a !lplit-m:eiver design, the lower receiver, by 
~~· definition. cm~itutes a •firearm· for purposes or federal firearm~ laws. l'ee llli.S.C. I 921(a)(J)(n). 

• II tJ.S.C. I Q12{o)(l) provides that. SIVe for emain specified nceptions: •it shall be uniiiWful for any 
renon to transfer or pmsest a machinegun.• The National Firearms Act makes it unlawful for any renon 
other than 11 qualified manufacturer to make a machinegun without first filing an arplication to make and 
tqti~er the item with. ancl receivin& approval fiom. the Secretary of the Treasury. 26 II.S.C. §~1122 and 
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manufacture and possession of destructive devices, including explosive bombs and 
explosive grenades and the materials necessary to produce such items. 10 

The ATF-Investi~atlon and Development of Probable Caase to Arnst Koresh 
and Sun:h Preml~e~ tinder hi~ Control 

Additional Weapnn.s and Expln.sfvr.f Shipments 

Initially, Aguilera focused on the paper trail generated by the weapons and 
explosives purchased by Koresh and his followers. Aguilera determined that Olympic A~ 

had recently shipped a substantial quantity of AR-1 S parts to the Mag Bag, and he also 

learned that llenry McMahon had sold more than a dozen AR-IS lower receivers to Koresl· 

a few months earlier. As Aguilem learned from previous investigations. someone with 
access to metal milling machines and lathes and with the knowledge to use them, can 

readily convert AR-IS semiautomatic rifles into fully automatic weapons (machineguns) 

51161(0. For purposes of Section 922(o) ancl the National Firearm! Act. 'mad!inegun' means my wellpOft 

which shoots. i~ desigJ~ed to ~hoot, or can be readily retored to shoot. automatically. more than one sh::- : 
without manual reloading. by a single fUnction or the trigger.• The term includes ·the rnme or receiver or 
any such weapon. any rart designed and intended solely and exclusively. or combination or parts desi&ned 
and intended ror use in convertin& a weapon into a machinegun. and any combination of parts from which a 
machinegun can be assembled if such parts we in the possession or under the cmtrol ofa pmon. • 26 U.S.(' 
§5114S(b). 

A rart not yet assembled into a macblnegun can still be ntegal if it is (I) •designed solely or 
ellclusively ror use in converting a weapon into 1 machinegun"; (2) a "combination of parts designed and 
intended for u~e in converting a weapon into a machinegun•; or (l) "any combination of parts from which a 
machinegun is ~sembled• ir one person has pcmession or control of all of the partL See Unitftl Stata •· 
Bradt~. 892 F.2d 6J4, 6J5 (7th Cir. 1990). 

,. The National Fimums Ad makes it unlawful for any J!ef!On other titan a qualified manufacturer to 
make a destructive device without first filing an application to make and register the item with, and recelvin, 
approval from, the Secretary or the Treasury. 26 U.S.C. I 5122 and 5161(0. In addition, the National 
Firearms Ad m11kes it unlawful tn possess any unregistered firearm, Including. for narnrle, component! thlll 
readily could be assembled into a hand grenade or any other destnJdive device. 26 U.S.C. II 514S(aXII) ano· 
(f) and 5161(b}, (c), (d) and (e). II U.S.C. I 922(aXIXA) provides that 1iJt shall be unlawful for any penl" 

elltepl a licensed impcmer, licensed manufacturer. or licensed dealer to engage in the business or im(IOI1inJ,. 
manufacturing. or d~aling in firearms. or in the course or such business to ship, transport. or receive any 
fimmn in interstate or foreign commeree.• Ill U.S.C. I 921(aXl) ctermes •firearm• to include, amon1 other 
things, •destnJdive devices.• In tum., •c~estructive device" it defined to encompass •my nplosive, lncendl~ 
or roison gas bomb or grenade ... (or) ... my combination of parts either desigJ~ed or intended for use in 
converting any device into any (of the above destructive devices).• II U.S.C. I 921(aX4). Ill U.S.C. II 
142(a) and (j) make it unlawrul ror any person "to engage in the business or importing. manurldurin& or 
dealing in e11plosive materials without a llc:mse" or "to store any nplosive material in a manner not Ia 
conrormity with regulations promul&ated by the Secretary •• 
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similar to M-16 machineguns by using certain key parts legally available, frequently parts 

designed for u~ with an M-16. It is worth noting that there~.is no practical reason to 

exchange most AR· IS parts on an intact AR-1 S weapon for M-16 parts other than for 

purposes of converting the weapon into a machinegun. The M-16 parts do not improve the 

performance of the weapon if used in a semiautomatic mode. For example, the AR-IS bolt 
assembly performs substantially better in a 5C11'1iautomatic mode than does the M-16 bolt 
a.~bly when installed on an AR-IS. 

Cnmpliancr ln.fprctinn nf llrnry McMahon 

On July .JO. Aguilera. posing as an An: compliance officer. joined Jimmy Ray 

Skinner. an ATF compliance officer. to in!;pect the premise!; of llenry McMahon, who wao; 

doing busines.o; as llewilt llnnd Guns out of his home. Aguilera's review of McMahon's 

records revealed that he had sold 36 firearms to a "Vernon Howell," wha was not identified 

as "David Koresh," and sold others to persons Aguilera knew to be Koresh's followers. 

Moreover, approximately 6S AR-IS lower receivers reflected in McMahon's inventory 

records were not in his physical stock. McMahon claimed that these firearms were being 

stored at the house of his preacher, whom he identified as David Koresh, apparently 

sugge!;ting that Koresh and llowell were two different persons. 

Although McMahon was out of compliance and wao; therefore subject to lines. 

Aguilera and the compliance officer ended the audit without imrosing any penalties on 

McMahon to avoid arousing his suspicion. About a month later. Skinner returned and 

McMahon presented him with receipts and ATF forms renecting the sale (1( the mi!;Sing 6S 

lower receivers to "Vernon Howell.• 

17rr Snrmdr nf Maclrinrgun Firr and Expln.dvrs 

Further evidence that Kore!;h and his followers were manufacturing illegal 

machineguns came when Aguilera interviewed a neighbor who had served in an Army 

artillery unit and was familiar with the sound of automatic weapons lire. The neighbor 

reported that since early 1992. he had fmJuently heard 5J1Urts of we.1pons lire coming from 

the Comround at night, including .50-caliber (See Figure 8) and automatic weapon!; lire. 

and that residents of the Compound had discharged semiautomatics on July 4. In mid­

Novemher. a deputy sheriff rerorted that while on patrol a few days earlier. he had heard a 
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loud explosion at the Compound, accompanied by a large cloud of gray smoke. Neither 
Koresh nor any of his followers had a license or a permit to use explosives at the 
Compound. 

FigureR: .50-caliber rine. 

lntrrvleM nf Famrrr Cull Membrn 

Aguilera also sought information from former cult members. who gave him some 

insight into the extraordinary degree to which Koresh dominated the lives of Compound 

residents. Cult members surrendered all their assets to Koresh and permitted him to have 

sex with all the female members of the cull While reports that Koresh was permitted to 

sexually and physically abuse children were not evidence that firearms or explosives 

violations were occurring, they showed Koresh to have set up a world of his own. where 

legal prohibitions were disregarded freely. 

In early November, Aguilera interviewed Isabel and Guillermo Andrade, then 
residing in California. whose two daughters were living at the Compound. They told 

Aguilera that Koresh had sexual relations regularly with all of the women at the Compour 

including girls younger than 16 years of age. "Annulling" the maniages of couples in the 

cult. Korellh prohibited the men re~iding at the Compound from having sexual relations 

with their "former" wives. The Andrades informed Aguilera that Koresh had fathered a 
child with their daughter Katherine. The child's birth certificate, like the birth certificates 

several other children recently born to women residing at the Compound, listed the father 
unknown. 

In early December 1992, Aguilera interviewed Jeannine Bunds and her daughter, 

Robyn. both of whom had len the Compound within the past two years, and Mrs. Bunds 

son. David, who had len earlier. The three were living in California. Both Mrs. Bunds an 
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her daughter confirmed earlier accounts Aguilera had received about Koresh's sexual 
domination of female residents of the Compound, including minors. They estimated that 
Koresh had fathered atiWt IS children at the Compound. All. ihree said they had seen 

Koresh in possession of numerous weapons, including machineguns, lind that . Koresh had 

often led cult members in live-fire shooting exercises. The Bundses and other former cult 

members identified specific weapons they had seen at the Compound from photographs the 
agents showed the~. The Oundses noted that llenry McMahon had participated in some_ of 
the shooting exercises. 

The Dundses also reported that Koresh frequently directed his followers to maintain 
an armed guard at the Compound 24.hours a day and that he possessed a loaded firearm at 

all times. According to Mrs. Dunds. a registered nurse, Koresh on one occa..'lion told her 
that he wa'l preparing a "hit list" to eliminate former cult members who were complaining 
to law enforcement authorities and the media about his sexual practices and accumulation 

of weapons. Mr5. Ounds also mentioned that when she had told Koresh that she was having 

difficulty with her children. Koresh asked her whether she would kill her children if God 
..•... ,., · a~ked her lo do so. She told him she would not. . . 

Mrs. Otmds told of seeing "pineapple grenades" at the Compound (see Figure 9) and 

David Bunds remembered seeing Branch Davidians with AK-47s, pump shotguns, 

revolvers, pistols, and other weapons. David and Robyn related how in June 1992 they had 

found a machinegun conversion kit at a house in California they had recently taken over 

from followers of Koresh. Shortly thereafter, several Branch Davidians from the Compound 

retrieved the kit. David Bunds also related a telephone conversation he had had with his 

father, Donald, when he called his father at the Compound in spring 1992. Donald Dunds 

told his son that he wa'l armed and prepared to die for Koresh and that he would resist 
authorities if they tried to arrest him. 

The Dundses' accounts were consistent with information·obtained from Poia Vaega. 
another former resident of the Compound, who had moved to New Zealand. She recalled 

how Koresh had pa'lsed an AK-47 machinegun around to his followers during one of his 

Dible study sessions and how Koresh regularly had them watch violent war movies that he 

called "training films" to prepare for "the war to come." Vaega said that both she and her 

sister. another former ~It member. had been subjected on several occasions to physical and 
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Fi&ure 9: Typical •pineapple• type Jrellades. 

sexual abuse by Koresh and one of his fo11owen before she ten the Compound in 1991 n 

that she had been physically restrained from leaving for more than three months before ~ 
_gained her freedom. ller account was corroborated by her sister. 

In December 1992, Aguilera also began a dialogue with Marc Breault, a former c:t 

member living in Australia, which continued until the ATF raid on Febiuary 28,_1993 • 

Breault had already given information about Koresh and the Branch Davidians to Mark 

England, a reporter for the Waco Tribune-Herald Breault, who left the Compound in 19: 

confirmed that Koresh was the undisputed leader of the Branch Davidians and stated tha1 
Koresh frequently had sex with minors residing in the Compound and that several minor. 

had given birth to babies fathered by him. Breault also told Aguilera that from time to ti• 

Koresh had physically abused children who were younger than three years of age when 

they cried during his Bible study sessions. According to an affidavit Breault filed in an · · 

Australian court, which incorporated affidavits by several other former cult members anti 

which Aguilera obtained. Koresh paddled the children with a wooden paddle. until their 
buttocks were "black and blue all over, so that they even bled.• Breault's acc:ount, which 

confirmed in conversations with Aguilera. was corroborated by other former cult membn 

including ~oia Vaega and members of her family. 

Breault also reported that Koresh had posted armed guards around the Compound 
and instructed them to "shoot to kill" anyone who auempted to enter the gate of the 

Compound. Many cult members carried firearms, including AK-47s. In fact, acc:ording I• 

Breault and the sherifT's department, on one occasion in 1988, a cult member had taken 

shot at a newspaper delivery person. Breault also related how Koresh had expressed disd 

for gun control laws, frequently proclaiming thai he wanted to make machineguns. 
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grenades. and explosive devices at the Compound and bragging how easy it was to convert 

a semiautomatic weapon into a fully automatic machinegun~ In particular, Breault stated 

that Koresh mocked gun control laws that permitted easy ac:ciliisition of all component parU 

necessary to make a machinegun, yet made possession of either ail of those parts or a fully 

assembled and operable machinegun mtlawful. Finally, Breault noted that when Koresh took 

over the Compound, he told Breault that he had found methamphetamine manufacturing 

facilities and recipes on the premises. Although Koresh claimed to have turned over these 

materials to the sheritrs department, according to Breault and the 11heritrs department; he 

never had done so. 

fTJdtJ frnnt thr Trkar Dtpartmtnt of l'rntf"cli'-r and RtRJIIatnry Srrvicts 

In tight of reports that Koresh might have been engaging In stxual activities with 

minors. A TF contacted Joyce Sparks, a ~rker with the Texas Department of Protective 

and Regulatory Services who had been investigating several anonymous ~rts of the same 

conduct. Sparks related that, although she had visited the Compound several times in 1992. 

she had been escorted carefully through the Compound on a staged tour each time. Even 

though she had not found sufficient reliable evidence to pre!IS child or sexual abuse charges 

against Koresh or any of his followers, she did learn something about Koresh's preparations 

for an armed struggle. 

One child, approximately seven yean old. told Sparks that he could not wait to grow 

up so that he could have a "long gun" as did all the men in the Compound; the boy 
explained that the men practiced with these weapons regularly. In addition. during one of 

her guided tours of the Compound, Sparks strayed from the designated path and managed to 

see the buried school bus. At one end of the bus was a large object riddled with bullet 

holes. and nearby were at least three "iong guns. • 

In her own dealings with Koresh, Sparlcs saw a dangerous propensity toward 

violence. During one of her conversations with him, he proclaimed to her: "My time is 

coming. When I reveal myself as the messenger and my time comes. what happens will 

make the riots in I..A. rale in comparison. • · 
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Baclp-nundt nf Compound Rtsldents 

Aguilera checked the backgrounds of those he identified as current residents of tht 
Compound. He determined that several either had been arrested, convicted, or were undet 

investigation for crimes ranging from fraud to smuggling and narootics offenses. More th: 

40 residents were foreign nationals. and many of those were illegal aliens. It is unlawful I 

either an illegal alien or a person convicted of a crime punishable by more than one year 

imprisonment to possess any type of firearm. 11 

R~p,rt.t nf ATF Exp~rts 

During December 1992 and January 1993. Aguilera obtained technical assistance 

from several A TF experts. An A TF. firearms expert in Wa-.hington. D.C .• confirmed that 1 

weapons components Koresh had purchased tould be used easily to produce illegal 

machineguns and that the manner in which Koresh had acquired these components was 
similar to the method used by other manufacturers of unlawful machineguns investigated , 

ATF. An explosives expert at the ATF lab near San Francisco reported that several of the­

items Koresh had received, such as the large quantities of black powder and igniter cord C · 

burning-type fuse). were explosives requiring proper registration and storage. The 

explosives expert explained that black powder and inert grenade shells. both of which 

Koresh had received in substantial quantities, are used commonly by illegal arms 

manufacturers to produce live explosive grenades. These grenades. in tum. are destructive 

devices. the possession of which without proper registration is illegal. The explosives exp 
also informed Aguilera that other chemicals Koresh had obtained were common ing~.-.;· 

in homemade explosives. 

Defore Aguilera received the written report from the explosives expert in San 

Francisco. who speciali7.ed in evaluating. the practical utility of various items used to 

produce explosives. the explosives expert in Washington, who had a different specialty. tl' 

Aguilera that he was mtable to conclude that Koresh had accumulated sufficient materials 

manufacture explosives. This expert had noted, however. that Koresh could make unlaw{~· 

explosives by acquiring some additional materials. 

The experts also gave Aguilera additional information about the arms dealers who 

were ~upplying Koresh. The owner of Nesard Oun Parts Company. DBrTington. Illinois. 

"Ste Ill tJ.S.C. f 922(g) 
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who in 19Q2 had shipped M-16 CAR kits. M-16 E-2 kits. and a grenade launcher to 

Koresh, had been convicted three years earlier of violations of feder.al firearm! laM. The 

comrany had unlawfully supplied one of its customen with AR· 1 S ~eceivcrs and certain 
parts kits that together comprised all the component part., necessary to assemble a "short 

rine," a firearm that must be registered pursuant to 26 U.S.C. §§ 5841 and 5845(a)(3). 

Another of Koresh's suppliers. Shooters Equipment Company. Richland. South Carolina. 

had been the subject of several A TF investigations. including one that culminated in the 

seizure of illegal machineguns and silencen in August 1992. At that time, the agents also 

found large quantities of M-16 and AK-47 machinegun parts and kits to convert AR-IS 

mniautomaiic weapon~ into unlawful machineguns. 

In Oettmber, A TF began developing plans for serving the warrants. the "tactical 

planning" ao;pect of the inve.o;tigation. This aspect of the investigation is described in the 

following section of this teport. Aguilera·s superiors at the ATF Houston field office 

directed him to continue developing probable cause for the wartant9. Although Assistant 

U.S. Attorney Johnston was satisfied that probable c::au~ existed in November 1992. it was 
not until Aguilera and Chojnacki briefed ATF Director Stephen !Iiggins and ATF Associate 

Director (Law Enforcement) Daniel Hartnett on February 11 and 12, 1993. in Wa.o;hington. 

D.C .• that ATF authorized Aguilera to present the information to the U.S. Attorney's Office 

for the purpo!le of obtaining the wammts. 

Th~ Dm•iJ Blod Interview 

In late January 1993, Aguilera interviewed Oavid Block. who had been a Branch 

Davidian from I 981 through June 1992. Rinck had lived at the Compound for several 

months before he "e~ped." He reported having oRen seen two Branch Oavidians. Donald 

Bunds. a mechanical engineer, and Jeff Little using a metal milling machine and metal lathe 

to produce wea.pons. On several occasions. Bunds also had used an AutoCAI> (i.e .• 

computer-aided design) software package-which alloW! mechanical engineers to design 

objectq by providing a three-dimem;ional picture and precise measurement! of the object 

being designed-to design a "grease gun." Grease gun i9 the nickname for the M3 and 

MJA I .45-c:aliber military submachinegum used by American forces during World War II. 
The parts of this grease gun included a cylindric::al tube with a bolt-cocking groove carved 

into the side and a template to fit around the tube to enable .it to be used on the milling 

machine. Bunds had explained that Koresh wanted him to design a weapon that could be 

manufactured at the Compound. 
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block also recounted that Koresh had asked tesident9 of the Compound how tn 
manufacture grenades and had discussed activating a shipment of inert grenades he had 

received. Koresh received further technic::al assistance In spring 1992 when a relative of one 

of the Branch Davidians. a survivalist with expertise in firearm! and nplosives. visited the 
Compound. 

Block described the potentially deva.o;tating arsenal Koresh was amassing in the 

Compound. lie had seen one high-caliber weapon-either a .50-c::aliber rine mounted on a 
bi-pod or a "Oritish Boys" .52-caliber antitank rine-and had heard about other .SO-caliber 

weapons !ltored on the premises. Koresh frequently had expressed interest in converting 

the~ high-caliher weapom into unlawful machinegung, Block also had !leen apJ,roximately 

IS AR-15s, 25 AK-47s, several 9mm pistols, and three "streetsweepers.• A strectsweeper is 

a 12-gauge. I 2-shot shotgun with a spring-driven drum magazine and folding buttstock. 

Each time the trigger is released after firing a shot the magazine rotate! to position the next 

shot for firing. ntock reported that Koresh would oRe11 fire weapon! at the Compound's 

•range" and that he posted armed guards at the Compound every nighL 

The Undn~over lloo"e and Spttlal Agent RodriROn 

Aguilera continued to gather info~ation about Koresh's illegal activities even as 

ATF's focus ~gan to change from building a case to planning an enforcement operation. 

After ATF established an "undercover house• near the Compound on January II, 1993 (see 

Figure I 0) one of the undercover agents posted there, Special Agent Robert Rodrigue7 .. 

began to seek opportunities to visit the Compound and talk to cult members. On January 

28, pretending to be interested in purchasing a horse walker that was on the Compound. 

Rodriguez spoke for the first time with Koresh. Rodriguez. who had read portions of the 

Bible in preparation for this encounter. discussed the Book of Revelations with Koresh. 

Koresh showed Rodriguez his motorcycles and invited him to join the cult's Dihle study 
group. Shortly thereafter. Rodriguez attended hi.q first Bible study session. 

After a few more villits to the Compound. Rodriguez attended another Bible study 

session on February 17 and was invited to return the next day. Between Bible study 

sessions, Rodriguez practiced shooting cans with his riOe near the undercover house in an 

effort to further pique Koresh·s interest. Rodriguez spent three hours in Bible study the next 
day and emerged with an invitation to 9hoot with Koresh on the 19th. 
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Koresh greeted Rodriguez and another agent whom Rodriguez had brought along. 

Koresh told Rodriguez he had watched him through his binoculars and saw him shooting on 
the 17th. Koresh brought the agents, both of whom were canying AR-1 S semiautomatic 

rines, to the shooting range, and they practiced shooting. Kore5h examined in detail and 

expres.c;ed familiarity with Rodriguez's semiautomatic rifle and .38-caliher pistol. Koresh 
also established himself as an excellent shot and the owner of several weapons, including 

two Sig-Sauer pisto!s and a Ruger 10122-caliber rifle. 

Over the next I 0 days, Rodriguez visited the Compound several time.c; and often 

engaged in lengthy conversations with Koresh. During these conversations, Kore!'ih 

repeatedly confirmed his strong interest in weapons and his disdain for federal laws 

regulating firearms and explosives. Among other things, Koresh discus.c;ed firearms 

components in great detail, including "hell-fire triggers" 11 and "drop-in sears."" the latter 

of which are devices used exclusively to convert semiauiomatic weapons into machineguns. 

Koresh falsely claimed that the possession of an unregistered drop-in sear was 
lawful as long as the possessor did not also possess an AR-1 S rifle. Possession of an 

unregistered drop-in sear is unlawful regardless of whether the possessor also possesses an 

AR-IS ... Nonetheless, he did exhibit profound knowledge of firearms, the nation's gun 

laws, and methods commonly used to evade those Jaws. And during a visit Rodrigue7. made 

to the Comf,ound on February 23, Koresh showed him a videotape produced by Gun 

Owners of America, which portrayed ATF as an evil agency that threatened the liberty of 

U.S. citizens. 

., A "hell-fire trigger• is an external attachment designed to mum the trigger to the rorward position 
more quickly 11fler each firing. thus enabling 1 semiiiUiomatic weapon to be fin:d more quickly. The device 
does not enable a semiautomatic weapon to fire IS npidly IS 1 typical machinegun, and its u~ d~ nnt 
change the classification or a semiautomatic weapon into an unlawrul weapon. 

" A ·dmp·in ~ear• is a part or combination or parts placed inside the weapon tn eonvert a ~iautomatic 
weapon into 11 machinegun. As a rule, the term rerers to the •AR-IS drop-in auto sear: which was drsignrd 
specifically to cnovert an AR-15 rine into a machinegun. Because the sear is designed and intended 
e~~:c:lusively ror use in convening a weapon into 1 mac:hinegun, it is COMidered an unlawrul machinegun ir it 
was manurncturrd afler 191U and nnl registered properly. 26 U.S.C. §§ 5841 and S845(b); Aff Rutin& 81-4. 

'' 26 lJ.S.C. §§ ~1141 and 5845(b); Aff Rutin& 81-4. 
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Part One 
Section Two: The Decisionmaking Process Leading to Forceful 
Execution of Warrants 

In late November 1992, Assistant U.S. Anomey Bill Johnston in Waco rniewed 

evidence that had been develo~ by A TF and advised Special Agent Davy Aguilera that. 

although the investigation should be continued, there already was sufficient evidence to 

meet the threshold of probable cause for a sean:h \VlUT811l Once Aguilera reported 

Johnston's opinion to Assistant Special Agent in Charge (ASAC) Chuck Sarabyn 

(Houston). who had been supervising the investigation. tactical planning for an enforcement 

opemtion began in earnest. 

Consldrntlon of Tadlral Options 

The Decemher 4, 1991, Meeting 

Directing Aguilera to focus his anention on the probable cause investigation. 

Sarabyn quickly assumed responsibility for tactical planning. Any enforcement action. 

Sarabyn decided. would require at least one Special Response Team (SRT). Such teams 

are specially trained groups of A TF agents with expertise in execUting difficult tactical 

mission!l-flrincipally high-risk wanants. Sarabyn organized a planning meeting to take 

place in Houston on December 4. 

While Sarabyn could not anend the meeting, his superior Phillip Chojnacki, Special 

Agent in Charge (SAq of A TF's Houston Division, did anend, along with Ted Royster. 

SAC of the Dallas Division; William Buford, Resident Agent in Charge (RAq" of the 
linle Rock ATF office, a co-team leader of the New Orleans SRT, and an Army Special 

Forces combat veteran; Jerry Petrilli, RAC of the Albuquerque A TF office, team leader of 

" A •RAe• is the resident ~gent In cllqe of., A 1F field ofY1ce. who KU under supervision of a larger 
field division, in thi~ case tlouston. Buford was a founder of the ATF SRT propam.. 
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the l>alla!l SRT. and a Marine Corps combat vrteran: and James Cav:tnaugh. ASAC of the 
llaiJa.q ATI: office. Twn other ATF agents. Kenny King. a group ·stipervisor in the New 
(Jrle:111~ ATF office. c:o:-team leader of the New Orlean!! SRT. and a Marine Corps combat 
veteran: and Curti!' Williams. a group supervisor in the llouston A TF office and team 
leader of the llou!>ton SRl, who bad five years of experience in the tactical division of the 
l>aiJa.q rolic:e llepartment; both of whom would later assist in tactical plnnning. did not 
allend this mtcting. 

Each of the pl:tnn~ had extensive experience with A TF. col1ectivdy l1aving led 
hundreds ul' high-risk rnids to ~nrc:h for unlawful weapons. A'!. a group. particularly the 

SRT lcatlcrs whet fc,rmed the core of the tactical planning team. they hatl other suh!'tantial 

law enforcement and military experience as well. Only Ouford. however, had rlanncd or 

rarticiratcd in a tactical o!Jtration of the magnitude that eventually would he contemplated 
for Waco-the 19RS siege by ATF and the FOI of the 360-acre Arkansas compound or the 

white supcmaci!>l grotip The Covenant. the Sword. and the Arm of the Lord (CSA). to 
execute a warrant at the heavily armed and fortified CSA compound. which had been 
!'rurroundcd hy concealed bunkers and land mines, Duford helped devi~ a plan that 

estahlishc~d an armed perimeter around the premises. ARer three days of negotiation5. the 

~sieged grour members surrendered. hut not before they bad de!>troyed many of their 

illegal firearm~. including silencers and automatic: weapons. Duford often recalled this siege 

while the rlann~ were considering various ways to execute warrantq at Korcsh's 
Cnmpound. ,. 

At the necember 4 meeting. Aguilera briefed the planners about his investigation of 

Koresb. Based on reports from recent visitors to the Compound, he estimated- that 75 people 

lived at the Compound. including large numbers of women and children, all or whom were 

fiercely loyal tn Kor~b and devoted to his religious teachings. Aguilera ai!'.O reviewed the 

layout of the 77-acn: site. particularly its main structure's fortress-like con!>lruction and 

prominent multi!>tory tower. (See r:igures t I and 12.)" After hearing Aguilera de!\Crihe the 

challenge they had herore them. the planners hegan to con~ider what they deemed the two 

" Jnhn~ton informed A TT- early in the in.esliption d1al be woull'l nol IIUihorille 11 sParch wiiJTllld fl'lf IM 
RriiiCh f>avidian <:mnpnund if it was to be executed through 1 siege-style opnation. I te. too. frared that 1 

siege ~m~ wnuld rennit Kcnsh and his follnwm to dntroy evidence and make JI'M«Utinn mnre 
difficult.~ hiiJ'rll'Md in tbe C!;A cue. l>npite Jnhn~tllll's views_~. 1\TT-'s tactical rlannm smmrdy 
rnnsidered a "~e rlan. 

" The C""'J'JU'Uc'l bac'l no1ved fmm 1 series of liee-stancl'm& bomes. After K~ tonk contrn1 nf d1e 
("CWftrnund be and hi1 fnllowm dkmantled the homes and built the single structure. (~ f'i~tur~ 11 and 14) 

3R 

fi~ II· Main f"c""J'Jtmd huildin~t (fmnt side). 
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principal way!' to execute a ~an:h wanant: a dynamio entry (raid) or a siege. 

Regardless of how the wanant would be executed, A TF•s planners decided that 
execution would be far easier if Koresh were not at the Compound when the agents anived. 
Joyce Sparks of the Tellas Department of Protective and Regulatory Services had told 
Aguilera that Koresh rarely, if ever, len the Compound. When they learned this. the 

planners a.c;kcd Aguilem to find a way to lure Koresh away from the Compound 

immediately before the warrant was to be executed. After Aguilera discussed with Sparks 

her visits to the Compound and Koresh's sexual abuse of minors. the planners suggested 

that Aguilera inquire whether the Department of Protective. and Regulatory Services could 

schedule a meeting with Koresh on the day of the operation. They also asked whether 

Koresh could be brought out of the Compound with a grand jury subpoena. Other ways to 

get Koresh out were also briefly considered. including staging a school bus crash or 
helicopter crash near the Compound. 

Concerned that much of Aguilera's knowledge of the Compound's design and the 

daily routines of its residents wac; somewhat dated, Aguilera and Earl Dunagan. acting RAC 

of the Austin ATF office, recommended that surveillance of the Compound be instituted 

and that additional information be sought concerning the living arrangements inside, the 

attitudes of the cult memhcr.;. the distribution and storage of the cult's weapons and 
ammunition, and the interior design of the Compound. 

At the conclusion of the meeting, Buford, Petri11i, Wi11iams. and King. the leaders of 

the SRTs that likely would participate in the enforcement action, were a.c;signcd to develop 

a plan for either a siege or a dynamic entry. During tactical planning and on the day of the 

raid, both Duford and King shared command responsibility for the New Orleans SRT. 

Sarabyn directed the planning effort. with Buford taking the role of principal tactical 

contributor. From this point forward, the leaders of the SRTs. who 5pecialized in dynamic: 
entries. would be a driving force in shaping the tactical options and selecting the dynamic: 
entry strategy. 

Th~ l.ntC' lkc~mh" artd F..nrly Jarruary Af~~tirrp 

In late lkcember, the tactical planners met in Austin and reviewed additional 

information that Aguilera had obtained through his investigation. including reports of 
interviews of former cull members and new photographs of the Compound. l>uring this 
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time frame, the SRT leader!;-Ruford, William~. Petrilli, and King-ac; well as Sarabyn 

drove to Waco to survey the Compound. Until this roint, the plari~ers thought that a siege 

would be the he~ tactical approach, particularly if Koresh could be anested at a place other 

than the Compound. AOer the planners saw the terrain, however, which offered little cover. 

from the dominating Compound, and aOer considering the injuries that could he innicted 

with the long-range, powerful .SO-caliber wearons the planners thought Koresh rossessed, 

they hcgan to reconsider this option. Even if a rerimeter could he established, they 

reac;(1ncd. it would have to he quite large and therefore difficult to maintain. 

In early Jammry. when the tactical planners next c:nnvened, they continued to discuss 

the practic.'ltity of imposing a siege if the Rranch Oavidians rc~!listed the renccful execution 

nf a search w.trrant. With an eye toward a siege plan, S:uabyn soon thereancr arranged for 

A lF to 5uhmit a formal request to the Regional Logistics Support Office--the nffice 

through which the l>er.'lrtment of Oefen9C J1tovides nonnperational military support to 

civilian law enforcement agencies-for se,en Rradley Fighting Vehicles, which were 

helieved to have sufficient armor to withstand .SO-caliber fire. The planner5, however, were 

~ill uncertain ahout which tactical option was preferable and sought additional information. 

Tu this end, pursuant to Aguilera's and Dunagan's recommendation and to addres.c; a recent 

request from A Tt='s As.o;ocinte llirector (Law Enforcement) Oanic1 llartnett for additional 

evidence to establish probable cause, the decision was made to establish an undercover 

(lreration near the Branch Davidian Compound. 11 

Interviews with Former Cull Memben 

Meanwhile. at the request of the tactical planners, Ruford and Aguilera interviewed 

several former cult members in California The interviewees-most of whom Aguilera had 

already spoken with-included Marc Oreault, four members of the 8unds family, and David 

Block. Aguilera and Ruford also interviewed Isabel Andrade, who at the time had two 

daughters living at the Compound. Also interviewed were Sandra teake and Jaylene Ojena, 

close friends of the Andrades who were working with them to gain the return of the 

"1\ftrr the f!lmtnen ~ined their fncm to 11 mid, 1111 1\11' mi1itary tiai!IOn submitttd tn lll'fl'opriate militllfY 
IIUihmities in mid·Fehruary 11 ~pentding request that did nnl include the Oradl~ 1\11' did, howevrr, 
receive nthrr 5UPJ'CI'1 fmm the military, including sevrral nights over the Cnmpound and the Mag Bag tn 
ywnduce aerial reconnaissan« phntogrlflhs. intnpmation or the photos, end use or the Thermal Imaging 
Sy~tem during nights to identify "hnt spot!'• at the Cnmpound. These nights wrre dirmed toward the search 
fm armed guard~ and drug manufacturing f~ttilities. In addition, the military f!Fnvided A-n: with the Military 
O(lentinn tlrbmt Terrain training facility at fOit llood fnr training I'IJI'JM"n 1111d htl,ed 1\TF .Ht t1J' the 
f~ttility tn resemble the Compound. 
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Andrades' two daughters. hoth Andrade and Ojena had visited the Andrade daughten, 
Katherine and Jennifer, at the Compound in early November 1992. 

These interviews confirmed earlier intelligence concerning the level of weaponry at 
the Compound. Kore!lh and his followers were known to fire assault wea.,Ons and 

machinegun!l, and Block had seen what he believed to be a .SO- or .52-caliber weapon 

mounted on a hipod, as well a.c; several dozen rifle5, including AK-47s and AR-ISs-many 
or which he believed were fully automatic. 

Where I~ weapons were ~ored was not clear. According to ntoclt, Koresh ulrually 
kept the weapons next to hi!l room, which he d~reed ofT limit!! to most Compound 

residents. hnm time to time, Kore!lh would is..c;ue AK-47s and other rifles to mo!lt of the 

men and some of the women living at the Com('IOUnd, and would collect them later. 

Residents who r~cived "long guns" in this fa.c;hion usually kept them under their beds. 

Block did not know whether Koresh also distributed ammunition; however, he did note that 
several cult members were allowed to keep their own private small-caliber weapons. 

Several members of the nunds family corroborated Block·s account of tbis 

intermittent weapons distrihution. However. when the hunds family had lac;t resided at the 

Comround, the weapons distributed had been le!IS sophisticated. consisting mainly of 

shotguns and handguns, rather than AK-47s and AR-ISs. When interviewed hy telephone in 

New Zealand in mid-November, Poia Vaega, a former cult member with several relativ~ 
still living at the Compound said that her husband, another former cult member, "has reason 

to believe that the guns were stored in the quarters that fKoresh) wa'l sleeping in.• 

These interviews confirmed the dangers or a dynamic entry or a siege, especially if 

Koresh was in the Compound to provide leadership when a warrant was ex~uted. Indeed, 

Aguilera reported, "ntock len the cult group because (Koresh) would always remind them 

that if they were to have a confrontation with the local or federal authorities, that the group 

should be ready to fight and resist." Similarly, Aguilera's rerort of his January R interview 

with Breault noted that Koresh would make it a point to emphasize the importance of 

protecting themselves and that if the cult members were attacked, they would have to arm 

themselves to defend Koresh and their children. Nonetheless. a.'l far as the former cult 

members knew, Koresh had not specifically trained his followers to repulse law 
enforcement nffieers or other visitors perceived to he hostile. 

4S 



N 

0 
0 w 
~ 
01 
co 
C» 

Several former cult memhers. mo~ forcefully breault. note4 the distinct possibility 

that Koresh might respond to a siege by leading his followers in a.mass suicide~ Rreault 

exrresscd a particular fear for the children at the Compmnd. One child who had lived at 
the Compound told a California police officer, who in turn informed Aguilera. that she had 

been trained by Knresh and his "'Mighty Men"-Koresh's closest and most trusted 

advisers-to commit suicide in several different ways, including placing the harrcl of a 

handgun in her mouth and pulling the trigger. 

Rloc1t related that Korc:r;h had accumulated at lea~ a three-month surply of military 

rations. known as Meals Ready to Eat (MREs). and that the Compnund had its own source 

nf well .water. This wac; cnnsi~ent with the report of Joyce Sparks that durin~ nne of her 

vi~its she had nhserved large stores of foodstuffs in the Compnund's ~orage area. llreault 

- -·and Block emphasittd that the IJranch Davidians were already familiar with a rudimentary, 

isolated lifestyle and that the Compound had no indoor plumbing. air conditioning. or 

heating. The room in which Korcsh slept, however. wa.c; equipped with air conditioning. 

heating, a stereo. a television, and other amenities. A !'liege would thu.c; not impose 

!ruhstantial new deprivations on Koresh'5 followers. 

The former cult memhers discus!'led the daily routine and rhysical layout of the 

Compound. Rlock reported that only women and children lived on the second noor and in 

the large tower-in quarters that Koresh barred the men from entering-and that the tower 

was not used ac; a watchtower. The men lived on the first noor of the Compound. in a 

different section from and a noor below Knrcsh's "arms room." (Sec Figures 15-11.) 

AccordinR to llreault and other fnrmer cult members, worship services were hdd hctween 

· CJ:OO and 10:00 a.m. each day. roughly three hours after dawn, after which the men began 

their day's work (excert on Saturday, the Rraoch Davidian Sabhath). 

The agents also teamed some details about the work the Cnmround's men 

performed daily. McLennan County Deruty Sheriff Weyenhcrg informed Aguilera that 

daytime reconnais...ance nights over the Comround had revealed men working in a 
construction rit. When visiting the ("omround for two days in early Novemhcr ICJCJ2, lsabei­

Andrade and Jaylene Ojena also had seen men in the pit building a new structure adjacent 

to the Cnmround's main building. (See Figure 18.) For the two months before the raid, the 

eon.c;truction rit was an excavated area next to the Compound's southwc:r;t corner. The rit 
wa.t; connected to the Comround's front wing by an underground rao;.c;age constructed from 

the shell of a buried school bus. The rit was rectangular, about IS feet deer. 100 feet long. 

and 45 feel wide. Between mid-January. when the undercover house was established. and 
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~n 

the day of the raid. the men had huill a roof covering more than half of the pit. 

According to Andrade and Ojena, the men carried no wearons while they worked in 

the pit. And neither Andrade nor Ojena, outsiders whose only connection to the Branch 

Oavidians wa.~ that they were seeking the release of two current cult members. saw any 
wearons displayed at the Comround. They did report, however, that they were carefully 

watched and gently kc:;•t away from certain area~ during their visiL 

While the men worked in the pit, the women cared for the children and did 

household chores. Not every man worked in the pit. however. Some were permitted to go 

into town. while Steve Schneider and Wayne Martin oflen stayed inside to work on 

computers. Koresh's schedule wa~ unpredictable-5nmetimes he slept past noon. and 

5nmetimei; he awoke early for services. Rinck also told the agents that Koresh rarely left 
the Compmnd hccause he feared that he might he arrested 'hy the sherifrs department. 

lnteDistenee frnm the Undercover llouse 

While Aguilera and Duford were conducting their intervi~ in California. other 

agents were bu~ establishing the •undercover house.• By January II. JC)C)J. the operation 

was up and running in a vacant house across from the Compmnd. (See Figure IC).) The 
house offered agents a clear view of the front of the Compound and of the main mad to the 

Comround. The location also provided a limited view of the construction pit. The house 

wao; equipped with basic surveillan~ equipment. including cameras. a radio 5Canncr. and 

night-vision deviceJ. 

llle agents' view af the Comround and it!l resident!! was limited. however. Koresh's 

followers had access to the Comround using a road that led to the rear of the Comround 

not visihle from the undercover house. In addition, Koresh and his followers owned 

numerous motnrcycles, which allowed them to gain acce~~ to the Compound withaut using 

the roads. therehy avoiding detection hy agent~ 

In the heginning. eight ATF agents manned the hause, rosing ao; students from a 

local technical college. Even though Rodrigue7. was more than 40 years old when his 

assignment hcgan. all eight agents were chosen. in large part. for their relatively youthful 

appearances. The agents were instructed, among other thing!!, to determine whether Koresh 

maintained an armed guard en a watch at the ('omround, to identify. count and photograph 

cult members and their cars. to identify any counter-surveillance. and to gather further 
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evidence of firearms violations. Other lhan being told to pay attention to tlle routines 

around the Compound and to gain access to the inside if possible, the agent~ were not given 

a firm sen~ of what information the tactical plannns were looking for. nor were they kept 

abrea.~ of the evolving tactical plan. 

During the fir.;t eight days, the agents in the undercover house maintained 

surveillance of the Compound around the clock. However, in the absence of any clear 

direction or surervision, this vigilance ~oon broke down, ac; the agents perceived no 

significant activity at the Compound and began to di~gree among themselves ahout their 

respective re!IJ'Onsihilities. After ~aying overnight at the hou.c;e on January 19, Sarabyn told 

the agenlc; that they could terminate the effort to maintain 24-hour surveillance and should 

in~ead concentrate o~ ~ignificant events only and devote more energy toward infiltrating 

the Compound. 

lhe agent~ in the undercover house communicated with the tactical planners 

primarily by providing ~urveillance log~ photographs, and videocas.c;elles t~ a contact agent. 

Although the a~ent~ took hundred~ uf photographs of the Compound and it~ re!Oident~ 

many photographs were not develored until long after the raid, and few of the photographs 

that were developed were reviewed by the tactical planners. Although the Review does not 

know where the vidcata('C5 were kept, the tactical planners never looked at any of them. 

l:inally, nnce the cnntact agent obtained the log!l and other materials from the undercover 
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agents, no agent was responsible for ensuring that the materials in their original form either 

were brought to the attention of all tactical planners or analyttd for their benefit. 

Using information relayed to them during the first three weeks of the undercover 

house operation and agents' surveillance logs. the planners concluded that certain routines 

prevailed among the 75 Branch Davidian.c; who reportedly lived at the Compound. The raid 

planner!! concluded that neither armed guards nor sentries were posted at the Compound at 

any time, that Koresh never ten the Compound, and that most of the men worked regularly 

in the pit, starting at about 10:00 a.m. The planners ai'J'llrently envisioned that virtually all 

of the men in the Compound worked in the pit. 

The Deci~ion 

When the tactical planners mel in Houston on January 27-29, Buford reported what 

he and Aguilera had learned from the former cult members. Sarabyn and the agent whn 

served as the contact with the undercover house related what intelligence . was obtained 

through the undercover agents' surveillance of the Compound. At .this time, the tactical 

planners believed they had sufficient information to choose a tactical option. 

Buford, who originally had favored a siege, now rejected ~his option based on what 

former cult members told him about Koresh's ability to withstand a siege and the danger of 

a mass suicide. Ouford also noted the tactical difficulty of laying siege to a structure ~ch 

as the Compound, particularly one with .50-caliber weapons inside. 1n his view, shared by 

the other planners, a siege would not succeed quickly, and ATF probably would have to 

assault the Compound anyway, once public pressure on ATF to resolve the situation grew 

and the government's patience wore thin. Buford and several other planners warned against 

any scenario that might result in ATF entering the Compound forcefully, after a prolonged 

standoff had gi\'en Koresh an opportunity to prepare his defenses. Others in the planning 

group were troubled hy the risk of a rna~ ~icide, and based on Buford's experience with 

the Arkansas siege, they feared that a siege would give Koresh and his folio~ a chance 

to destroy evidence of their wrongdoing. All assumed that Koresh would not leave the 

(:ompound and would maintain strict discipline over his folio~ during a ~iege. 

In contrast, Ouford and others believed that they could formulate a workable plan fnr 

a dynamic entry. If ATF could enter the Compound before weapons could be distributed 

among cult members, Koresh's arsenal would pose no threat. The critical factor was In 

~parate the men from the weapons. The planners believed this was ro~sihle because. 
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Recording to !!nme cult m~mhcts, the weapon!' were •ert under lnc:k and key in a room next 

In Kore!!h's and were not generally distributed among Compound residents. Neither at this 

meeting nor during later planning effort!! did the tactical planne.:S. quem ion the reliability of 

this dated information from former cult members. In addition. the men routinely worked in 

the pit, which was at the far end of the Con1pound away from the arms. room. starting at 

approximately 10:00 a.m. Moreover. relying on surveillance that indicated there were no 

!:entries. which wall con!!i!!tcnt with lllnck's recollection that no !!entries were posted in the. 

tower. the plannCB believed that agents could appn,nch the Compound without alerting 

te!!idents. 

1\lthcn~gh funner cult men1ber5 claimed th:tl Koresh maintained armed guards. often 

on a 24-hour hasis--a report cnrrohurated hy the tJI'S delivery person --the planneB 

believed the more recent reports from undercover agents that neither guard!! nor !!entries had 

~ ohscrvro at the Compmnd. When Rodriguez and another undercover agent visited the 

Compound in mid-February In shoot with Koresh, however, Koresh told the two agents 

that, through his hinoculnB, he had seen Rodrigue7. practicing with tbe same weapon they 

were no~ using :tt the Compound near the undercover house several hundred yards away. 

Knresh and pcrhars other cull memhers were. therefore. watching the undercover house and 

the area arnund the Compouml frum a vantage point well above ground level---a matter. that 

would have hccn of ~me concern to the raid planners.. Rodrigue7.'s exchange with Korcsh 

was never documented or made known to any of the tactical rlanners. In addition, a 

rerresentative of the National Guard told Aguilera on January II that a January 6 night 

surveillance ni~hl using the Guard's Thermal Imaging System indicated "hot spots" 

cnn!!istent with the ~ling nf sentries or guards outside the Compound. 

ny the end of the meeting, the tactical planner5 had reached a con!len..cms that plans 

shmald he furmulated for a dynamic entry. he!!rite 1\ TF's early belief that drawing Korcsh 

away from the Cnmpmnd was central to the su~ of any orerntion. intelligence repnt!! 

that Kotc!!h did not leave the Compound led the planneB to abandon effort!! to lure KCiresh 

away. 

Prnlnpmt'nl nf lhr Tat'lieal Plan 

tluring the ne:oct two weeks.. nutlin~ of the A TF rnid plan were developed hy 

Sarahyn and the SRT leaders who would he involved in the nperation-l'etrilli, Williams. 

Ruf(lrd. and King. The plan was never committed to raper in any detailed fctrm; lwwever. it 

renected a shared ha..;ic understandin(! on the l"3ff of it!! creators. 

S4 

rig.llft 20: Amal rlmtogrllf'h of command rnst 11 TSTC. 

FiJ!urc 2t: Arri:d v" nr llcllmcacl Civic Cmttr, U1iliml bJ ATF as a saa,ing area. 

1\n agent .'1f'pointet1 hy Sarahyn selected Texu State Technic.,1 College (TSTC} M 

the site for the cummand post because of its proximity to an airfield for use hy the 

nreratinn·s hdicc,ptct!! and because the !!herifrs department prcvinU!;Iy had received 

cnureratiun frmn the airport manager. (See Figure 20.) 1\t the sugge5tion of local police. 

the rlmmcrs sdel·tcd Ucllmcad Civic Center ao; the !!taging area because of its rmximity tn 
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tllc Compmnd, exten!;ive f'c1rking fncilitie!;, and ability to accnrrim.odnte rnure than 100 
rcorlc. (Sce Figurc 21.) According to the plan, arproximatcly 15'ATF agent!~ would gather 
at the staging area early on the day of the raid and leave for the Compol!nd in time to 
arrive at ahout I 0:00 a.m. The agents would travel approximately I 0 mile!~ to the 
l'ompound c1n the m:tin mad in cattle trailer!;, hidden be~ath canvas tarpaulin!~ and 

plywood-rcinJi,rced !;ides. (See Figures 22 and 2J.) The pl:tnner!; helieved that cattle trailers •. 

which are quite common in Texas, could move a large numhcr of rcorle without attracting. 

attention. Agent l>ale Littleton. whn had suggc!;tcd U!;ing cattle trailers, had tt!;Cd them in 

Octnher 1992 to surpri!;e a grour of heroin dealers orcrating front a remote 107-acre ranch 

in lexas. On that occasion, law enforcement rcrsonnel who were concealed in the trailers 
~arpri!'t'd the !;Uhjcct!l and were ahlc In make ane!ll.o; and execute a search warrant without 
in.iury or incident. 

In addition to the three SRTs, the trailers would carry three arrest ~'f1Jl0rl teams that 

would he r~nsihle for clearing and securing the perimeter and handling any prisoners. 

All agents would carry !;Cilliautnmatic handguns, and some would he ~uiJlJlCd with 

5emiautnmatic AR-ISs or 9mm MP-S submachineguns. Some of the MP-Ss canicd by the 
agents coultl fire two-shot bursts hut none of the MP-Ss could fire more than two shots 
with o~ trigger pull. 

1f agents in the underco\'et house. whose raid-day mis.c;ion included watclling the 
ComJlOund fur changing conditions. did not observe any unu!;Ual activities, the cattle trailers 

would pull in front of the Compound, and the agents would deploy. The helicopters would 

leave the airfield at the command post, which was approximately three miles from the 

('omJlOund, on a schedule that would make them arrive shortly hefore the trailers. There 

they wnuld prnvidc a diversion hy hovering a di!;lance from the Compound hefore the cattle 

trailers anived. 

l11c three SRTs were to anive at the Cnmround and surprise the men who were 

working in the pit, ~parated from the wearons stored next In Kore:<Oh's mom. The New 

Orleans SRT would he rC:<OJlOn!;ihle for gaining control of the arms mom ami Koresh's 

bedroom. Initially, the rlan called fur rart of this team to climh an internal staircase. 

hclievcd to he lncated ncar the front dnor. and proceed directly to the arms ruum and 
Knrcsh·s hcdrnnm. llowever. hcc:ause the planner!~ were unable to confirm through 

Rodrigue7.·~ vi~it5 to the ComJlOund whether a stairca!;C ran from the frunt door to those 

lwo tc1«1ms f1n the 5Cennd Ooor. the plan wall changed a few days hefore the raid. 
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the modified plan required that most of the New Orleans agents climb onto the 

Compound's roof and enter the arms room and Koresh's room through two separate 

windows, while the halance of the New Orleans team secured the bac;e area. The plan called 

for the New Orleans team to use "flashbangs" ---iliversionary devices that produce a flash 

and a bang hut no fragments, and therefore do not cause injury-to enable it to safety enter 

the windows of rooms believed to be filled with weapons. The Dallas SRT wac; to enter the 

front door and secure the second and third floors and the tower-areas believed to contain 

the women and children's bedrooms. ttatf of the Houston SRT was to enter the fmnt door 

and secure the fir~ floor until it reached the trapdoor to the huried school bus; the other 

half was to circle around to the west edge of the Comround, secure the men in the pit area. 

and then proceed through the huried hus until it reached the other side of the trapdoor. 

After the premises had been secured and the remdents taken outside, a proper search would 

be conducted. (See Figure 24.) 

The plan catled for deployment of at least two groups of forward observers armed 

with long-range rifles, who were to provide cover for the agents entering the Compound. In 

accordance with the ATF forward observer rrogram, the Treasury Department's firearms 

policy, and the standard rules of engagement for federal law enforcement officers. the cover 

provided hy the forward ohservers was limited to shooting in defense only (i.e .• to protect 

the lives of agents and innocent third parties in imminent danger). Two forward observers 

and live other agents who would provide security for them and who would clear and secure 

vehicles parked nearby were to take positions near the hay ham, which was situated on low 

ground about a quarter of a mile behind the Compound; four forward observers were to set 
up in the undercover house. The hay barn team was to arrive at the bam approximately two 

hours before the raid and move into position as the cattle trailers entered the grounds: the 

team in the undercover house wa.c; to arrive the night before and set up surveillance the next 

morning. 

The planners decided not to place forward observers on the east side of the 

Compound to provide cover for the New Orleans SRT memhers because of a concern that 

the tenain to the east did not provide the ntteS!lBty cover. Although some planners favored 

placing !ruch forward ohservers, the opinion of the planners concerned about the lack or 

cover to protect and conceal the observers from Compound occupants prevailed. As a 

re!ruh, the New Orleans team wac; required to achieve ilc; ohjective without any covering 

!rupport. A communication!! network wa.o; to link the variou!l components or the raid, which 

in tum would he connected to the raid's command and control element, which would have 

its own radio channel. (See .Figure 25.) The plan also called for another group of agents to 
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exttule a second search warrant at the Mag Rag as soon as the Compound wall secured. 

The tactical planners devel~ their plan in accordance with th~ A l:F National 

Re~nse Plan (NRP). The NRP. which Sarabyn had played a significant role in drafting. 

!'IOUtzht lo define ATF objectives. rolicies. and procedure!! to ensure a coordinated resronse 

and rapid deployment of ATF resources to situations that exceeded the capabilities of a 

single field division. The NRP set forth the responsibilities of various ATF headquarters 

officials and field division leaden. One of its purposes wa5 to permit ATF Wa.~hington 

officials to oversee operations and maintain communication with field commanders. On 

February 9. pursuant to the NRP, the planners formally requested. and received authority a 

week later from Hartnett. to activate three SRTs to handle the operation. The attempt to 

execute the warrants at the Compound was only the fifth time that ATF u.o;ed more than one 

SRT in a single operation and the fir!lt lime since A TF established the NRP. 

In accordance with the NRP, the Waco raid plan designated certain field personnel 

let serve in particular command and control positions for the operation. Chojnacki. as SAC 

of the field divi!lion in which the operation was laking place. was, pursuant to NRP·s 

directive. designated as incident commander. As Incident Commander. Chojnacki was 

charged with determining lhe overall strategy for lhe operation and for coordinat::~g with 

the National Command Center in Wa.o;hington. 

The tactical plan for entering the Compound. as it evolved toward its final premid 

rnrm. called for Chojnacki to be stationed at the command post. Chojnacki then opted to be 
a ra.~ger in one of the helicopters. Chojnacki dc:Signated Sarabyn. an SRT-trained ASAC. 

as the tactical coordinator in accordance with the NRP. Sarabyn would be reSJlOn!lible for 

directing and controlling all tactical functions during the operation. Pete Ma.~tin. Deputy 

Incident Commander, would first be po!!itioned at the staging area and then would ride to 

the Compound in a callle trailer. C.avanaugh, an SRT-tmined ASAC (Dallas) and Deputy 

Tactical Coordinator. would be stationed in the undercover house. From there. he could 

warn Chojnacki and Sarabyn if he or any of the other agents witnessed any changes at the 

Compound. In addition, once Sarabyn and Chojnacki ten for the Compound. Cavanaugh 

would be in the best position to observe any activities at the Compound. particularly 

outward signs that residents were preparing for a mid, such as guns in the windows or 

barricades. and would thereafter have responsibility fot aborting the raid if nece5581)'. (See 

Figure 26.) 
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there was also a cnntingeney plan in. case the raid had to be aborted. The cattle 

trailers could easily take a detour at several points before reaching I~ road to the 
Compound. Even after turning onto the Compound road, the trailers could, for a short 
while, stop and allow the agents to disembark and retreat from the Compound. To rrovide 

eoncealment from the Compound's long-range weapons-particularly it~ .SO-caliber 

gung-in case agents were forced to retreat from the Com.,Ound on nat and open terrain. 

A TF reque5led smoke canisters from military sources shortly before the raid. Recause of the 

timing of the reque5l. however. no smoke canisters were provided in time for the raid. Rut 

the planner.; determined that once the trailers had arrived near· the front of the Comround, 

the raid could not be aborted because the terrain rrovided no concealment for the agents. 

and the driveway would not permit the trailers to tum around. At this point of no return. 

action wnuld have to be taken. even if the Compound residents were not surrri~ 

Additional lnteiD2m~ GathertnKo TnlnlnKo and the Brtenng of ATF Leadenhip 

The formulation of a raid plan that rested on the assumption that. the Branch 

Davidian men could be surprised in the construction pit, when they were away from their 

weapons. did not lead to any new direction in the intelligence gathering operation at the 

und~rcover hou.c;e. Although the tactical planners recognized by early February that the plan 

hinged on the men being in the pia· at I 0:00 a.m., none of the undercover agents was 

informed that the operation would be based on this assumption. The devdorment of the 

tactical plan. therefore. brought no change in the nature of the surveillance reports coming 

from the undercover hou.c;e; if anrthing, the reports about the work in the pit became even 

vaguer and more sporadic until surveillance was officially terminated on Fehruary·l7. 

During the first few weeks in February, any lingering hopes that Koresh would leave 

the Compound or could be lured away were abandoned. The agents never saw him leave, 

and ATF's principal, effort to draw Koresh away from the Comround failed when Joyce 

Sparks' supervisor at the Texas Department of Prot~tive and Regulatory Services refused 

an ATF request that the agency summon Koresh to town for a meeting. A week before the 

raid, an attemrt was made to obtain a stale arrest warrant for Kore!\h's sexual activities with 

a young girl. which would have gained a basis for either the Texas Department ·or 

Protective and Regulatory Services or the District Attorney's Office to schedule a meeting 

with Koresh in town. The attempt fell short. however, when the girl ~a'l unwilling to testify 

about what had happened. 
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On f:ebruaty II, Chojnacki, Sarabyn, and Aguilera new to Washington and briefed 
Daniel tlartnett, ATF's Associate Director of law Enforcement; Daniel Conroy, Deputy 
Associate Director of law Enforcement; Andrew Vita, ATF's Chief of Firearms; David 

Troy, ATF's Chief of Intelligence; Richard Gamer. ATF's Chief of Special Operations, and 
others about the investigation and the planned operation. The next day, the agents grwe a 
similar briefing to A TF Director Stephen Higgins. Chojnacki and Sarabyn explained that 

Koresh would likely be at the Compound when any operation took place because he 

appartntly rarely len the Comround. After reviewing the reasons for launching a raid rather 

than a siege-including their concerns about a mass sui~ide and Koresh's ability tn 

withstand a siege for an extended period of time--Chojnacki and Sarabyn outlined their 

tactical plan's key aspects, including its focus on separating the men working outside in the 
pit from the wcarons and the women and children. 

After hearing the raid plan, A TF management raised several concem..c; about 

measures being taken to protect A TF agents and the women and children in the Compound. 
Higgins, for example, directed that particular care be taken with the diversionary 

nashbangs. When Hartnett questioned why the raid was scheduled for 10:00 a.m .• rather 

than pre-dawn, when raids are generally begun, Chojnacki and Sarabyn explained. how the 

plan depended on catching the men in the pit, when they were separated from their 

weapons. They also reviewed the rrovisions made for aborting the mission if necessary; 

Chojnacki and Sarabyn, as well as Mastin and_ Cavanaugh, would have authority to slop the 

mission at any time. With their concerns thus addressed. Higgin.c;, llartnett. and the rest of 
ATF lop management approved the plan. 

Shortly thereaner, Hartnett telephoned Chojnacki and expressed his concern that the 

men in the pit might sneak back into the Compound after the· agenis arrived. lie directed 

that, rather than trying to secure the pit area from above, agents should enter the rit to 

secure the men inside. Hartnett also questioned the plan's abort options. But aner receiving 

Chojnacki's ac;surance that the raid would only pmceed if conditions were right, llartnett. 
again exrressed his approval of the operation. 
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Part One 
Section Three: An: and the Media Prepare for the Raid 

The Waco TrliJunr-Hrrald's lnvntl~tatlon or David Kornh and Preparation 
or a Serle~ for Public:atlon 

F.ven before ATF began its inquiry into firearms and explosives violations at the 
nranch Davidian Compound, a local newspaper, the Woco Tribune-Herald had been 

investigating David Koresh and his followers. In spring 1992, Mark England, a Trihune­

Herald reporter who had covered Koresh's 1988 trial for attempted murder, bec:ame 
intrigued by reports that Koresh proclaimed he was Jesus Christ and that there might he a 

mass suicide at the nranch Davidian Compound during Passover. With reporter 

Darlene McCormick, England gathered information and interviewed Koresh, former cult 

members, and the families of current cult members. By fall 1992, the reporters had 

information that children were being physically and sexually abused at the Compound. 

llaving also teamed that the Branch Davidians were using a buried school bus as a shooting 

range and that they were stockpiling large amounts of weapons and munitions, the reporters 

decided that law enforcement and social service agencies were not taking the situation 

seriously. 

In October 1992, McCormick called AS!Iistant U.S. Attorney nm Johnston in Waco 

to a..c;k what constitutes an illegal firearm. According to McCormick, Johnston informed her 
that the "Treasury guys• could tell her if any Branch Davidians had permits for automatic 

weapons. While Johnston did not give McCormick any specific information about the A TF 

investigation, she concluded that federal authorities were in fact investigating the Oranch 
Davidians. AOer the call, Johnston notified A TF that the newspaper wac; working on a 

story. 

ny January 199), England and McCormick had draOed a "Sinful Me5Siah" series of 

articles and submitted them to their editors. By early February, the galleys (used to detect 
and correct errors before a newspaper page is composed) went to Randall Preddy, the 
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Trihune-/leraltfs publillher, for his review. llec:ause of its startling revelation.-; of Branch 

Davidian lifelllyles and its disclosure of dangerous weapons at the ~ompound, Preddy sent 

the galley!! to his superiors at Cox EnterprilleS. the newsrapet'!4 parent company in Atlanta. 

for review. lie also a5kcd Cox's Vice President for Security, Charles Rochner. to assess the 

(IC'tential for violence against the Trihune-lleralcls plant and personnel and to recommend 

any necessary 5ecurity procedures. Preddy and Rochner diliCussed the situation at the 

February Cox publi~rs meeting in Orlando, Florida. and Rochner agreed to visit Waco 

later in the month. 

ATF ()i~t'Union~ Abnul thr Trlbunr-11rra14 lnvntigation and Contading the Mrdla 

A lF first learned ahout media interest in the Compound when, in Octoher 1qq2, 

Johnston told Aguilera that the 1'rihune-llerald wa.o; rreparing a major story ahout Koresh. 

In December 1992, when Aguilera learned that Man: Breault, a fonner Branch Davidian. 

was supplying infonnation to both law enforcement and the Trihunr-llerald, Aguilera 

located Breault and asked him to stop dealing with the newspaper. That same month. 

Aguilera told his supervisor, Earl Dunagan, acting RAC of the Austin office, about the 

l'rihrmr-llt'rtrltfs parallel investigation. Dunagan, in turn. suggested to /\SAC Sarabyn. his 

supervisor in Houston, that A TF try to convince the Triluine-llerald to delay the story until 

after the A TF operation took place. At a meeting to discuss the investigation on 
l>ecember 4. SAC Chojnacki suggested meeting with the Tribune-llerald to request a delay 

in publication, hut James Cavanaugh (then a Dallas ASAC and later Deputy Tactical 

('ommander for the raid) opposed any such contact. Ry January 1993, however, an 
agreement was reached that a delay should he sought to ensure the safety of the undercover 

agenlo; and the integrity of the investigation. 

The February I, 199), Meeting With a Trlbanr-llrrr~14 Offidal 

In mid-January. Barbara Elmore, the Trihune-lleralas managing editor, contacted 

AS!'Iistant lJ.S. Attorney Johnston to asse!IS the likelihood that the Branch Dnvidians would 

retaliate again~ the Trilmne-lleralcls plant or personnel in the wake of the publication of 

the Koresh !'Cries. Johnston advised her of A TF concerns about publication of the articles 

and ~uggested a meeting. 

On Fehruary 1. Sarabyn and Dunagan met with Elmore at the U.S. Attorney's 

Office and, citing their ongoing investigation, &liked her to delay publication of the 

()avidian r.eries. Johnston introduced the parties but did not rarticipate in the meeting. The 
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agents off~red to give Tribune-1/trald reporters •rront-row seats• during the execution of 

the contemplated law enforcement action if the newspaper delayed publication of its series 

until after th~ raid. Elmore said that her publisher would have to make that decision and 

mentioned her conc~ms ahout the security of the Tribune-lleralcls personnel and building. 

At the conclusion of the meeting. Dunagan told ~I more that A TF planned to execute the 

search warrant on February 22 and that he would inform her if the date changed. Elmore 

recalls only that A TF told her that it might take some type of action concerning the cull in 
two to four w~eks. 

About two weeks later. Dunagan, with Sarabyn•s approval, told Elmore that the raid 

had been postroned to March I. According to ~lmore, she told Dunagan that the Trihunr­

llcrald had made no decisions about publication. but alerted other Tribune-llerald 

per.;onnel of the date change. Dunagan believed the paper was cooperating with A TF•s 

request to hold the story because Elmore had not told him anything to the contrary. Editors 

at the Trihrme-Herald. on the other hand. have indicated that they felt no obligation to 

respond to A TF one way or the other: indeed, they report having been surprised that A TF 

agents did not contact other members of Tribune-Herald management after Elmore had told 

A TF ~he could not make the decision to delay publication of the articles. 

Conlin oM Disrunlons Between A TF and the Tnlla,r-Hnal4 

Aner these initial contacts. Chojnacki assumed sole responsibility for A TF 

communications with the Tribune-Herald. On F~bruary 9, Rochner informed Chojnacki that 

he would act ao; the Trihune-lleralcls liaison with A TF and that he was conducting a threat 

BS.<;e!~Sment for the Trihune-llerald in connection with its "Sinful Messiah" serie!4. Trihune­

llerald staff members. however. have said that they did not regard Rochner as the paper's 

liaison with ATF, but only as a security consultant to the paper. Because Rochner planned 

to be in Waco the week of F~bruary 22. Chojnacki agreed to meet with him. In the 

meantime. Chojnacki invited Rochner to observe raid training at Fort Hood on the 2Sth. 

later changing the invitation to the 26th or 27th. 

To rrepare for the meeting with the Tribune-Herald, Chojnacki sought advice from 

Jack Killorin. Chief of ATF's Public: Affairs Branch. ATF's media policy does not require 

that headquarters personnel be notified of media involvement at the operational stages of an 

ATF action. It does, however, require such approval for media •nde-alongs" (A TF Order 

1200.28, January 20, 1988). Noting Koresh's messiah complex and his paranoia. they 
agreed that taking the rress along on a raid could create an innammatory situation. 
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Chojnacki said that he would offer Tribrme-llerald key interviews and would recognize 

their hard work. but that he would not accept a demand that they·~. pre!letlt at the raid or 

tell them the date or time of the raid. Kitlorin advised that ATF should'not give! the 

Trihtmr-llrrald an exclusive story. lie did not discuss this conversation with his supervimr. 

A lF A!l!li!llant Director of Congressional and Media Affairs James Pa.c;co. 

The Tribu11r-lfrrtJid DHI!11on to Pabl1!1h 

8y mid-Fehruary. rerorten and editorial staff at the Tribrme-lleraltl were eager to 

ruhli!!h the "Sinful Messiah• series. Internal revisions and attorney libel review had been 

completed. and. at Rochncr·s direction. new security procedures were in place at the 

newspaper. Entrances to the building were locked. building passes were issued. and 

identifying decals had been removed from all Trihrme-Herald vehicles. F.ngtand and 

McCormick would leave Waco when the series appeared. and the homes of the Tribrme­

llerald executives would be protected. Only three hurdles remained before publication: 

Korcsh was to he interviewed a final time so that his reaction could be included in the 

series; Rochner was to approve security procedures upon his arrival on February 24; and 

('hn_jnacki wa.<: scheduled to meet with Triburte-llrrald editors on February 26. Preddy had 

told his !!tafT that lhe !!Cries would not go forward until he had a face-lo-face meeting with 

A TF official!!. 

On Friday. February 19, the Tribrme-Herald editors took the first step toward 

publication and in!llructed England to interview Koresh. After contacting Koresh on 

Monday. Fehruary 22. for his reaction to the series. England ten for Dallas on Wedne!lday. 

Fehruary 24. pul'!ltlant to the security plan. McCormick was already out or the country on 

vacation. On Wednesday morning. Rochner arrived in Waco and at Preddy"s request. 

rescheduled the meeting with Chojnacki for that afternoon. Preddy recalls that before the 

meeting. Rochner mentioned that Chojnacki had invited him to ob!lerve A TF training at 

Fort Hood. 

The Fehru•ry 24 Mcctln~t With the Tri&urr~llnaltl 

On February 24. Chojnacki. Rochner. and Preddy met with editor Rohert Lott. City 

F.ditor 8rian ntansett. and Managing Editor Barbara Elmore. Lott recall!! that. at the time. 

he w:t.<: committed to publication. absent clear and convincing evidence that the publication 

would cause harm. It is not clear. however. whether Chojnacki understood that this was to 

he the neW!!f1nper"s standard for holding publication. 
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Chojnacki opened the meeting by thanking the TrihUrte-llerald editors for delaying 
the series. but the editors immediately made it clear that they had not held the series in 

deference to ATF-they had not been ready to run it for other reasons. Noting that he was 
concerned with the safety of ATF personnel as well as the safety of Triburte-lleraiJ 

employees and facilities. Chojnacki begged the editors to hold ofT publication until after 

A TF had conducted its operation. Koresh appeared to be relaxed. Chojnacki explained. but 
publication of the series would agitate him and disrupt ATF's planned operation. 

Chojnacki did not. however. give the paper any sense of when ATF's operation 

would take place or what it would entail. lie noted that he had not yet obtained warrants 

and was not ~ure he would be able to get any; if he were unable to obtain such judicial 

authori7.ation. he explained. he would have to "go home." While he told the editors that he 

could not "alford" a siege. Chojnacki refused to answer questions as to "what he had in 

mind" and "if he had an undercover." The most he would say was that a law enforcement 

action would likely take place "'fairly soon." Asked if A TF planned to act within the next 
1 to 14 days. Chojnacki declined to answer. 

Chojnacki then 8.-:ked the Tribrmt-llerald editors if their series would run in one to 

seven days. lie recalls having received an affirmative answer. He asked the editors to give 

him some advance notice of the publication. He concluded by asking: "'So. does that mean 
that you are willing to run this story even though we are asking you to keep it quiet for a 
few more days so that we can do what we have to do?" According to Chojnacki, Lott 

replied "The important thing to us is the public•s right to have information that they need to 

know. and thafs our job. We"re not concerned about where it falls in or falls out in terms 

of your law enforcement case. • Chojnacki then len the meeting and. as he told the Review. 
he wa.o; "hot." 

Atl participants len the 30-minute meeting with the impression that the Tribrme­

llrrald had not agreed to delay publication. and ATF had not revealed any specifics about 

its impending action. Elmore remembers the tone of the meeting as formal. hut not 

antagonistic. Rochner recalls that Chojnacki appeared to be businesslike and that the 

meeting ended with an understanding that Preddy and the editors would discuss his request 
and that Rochner would get back to him. Chojnacki•s impression of the meeting was that it 

was tense and did not end cordially. He had not expected to meet with all the Triburte­
llerald editors and he was upset with the outcome of the meeting. 
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ATF 1nd the Medl• Prep1re for the R1ld Febrall")' 24-27 

After the meeting with Chojnacki, the Tribun~-/l~rald editors ~greed that they had 
heard nothing to persuade them to delay publication. According to the those at the meeting, 

their chief concern was to inform the public about the Branch Davidians as soon as the 

security of the rarer and its employees allowed. Preddy tentatively decided that the series 

would begin on Saturday. February 27. This day wa.'l chosen. according to Tribrm~-llerald 

management, to allow the newspaper to gauge Branch Davidian reaction during the two 

weekend days, when activity at the newspaper's office and plant was reduced. Preddy 

decided not to notify A TF of the decision lo publish until after Rochner had answered aU 
security question~.-

. Tribr~-1fuald officials have asserted that the March 1 A TF raid date was not a 

"factor when they chose the publication date on Wednesday afternoon. Chojnacki's 

discussion of his difficulty securing warrants and his problems funding his (lperation made 

the March I date arpear unlikely to the editors and publisher. In their view, his presentation 

wa.o; consistent with the Trihune-/l~rald editors' belief that local law enforcement had failed 

to take action for lwo years. 

After lhe meeting (ln Wedneroday, Tommy Wither.;poon, the Tribune-llerald reporter 

who covered the court~ told City Editor Blansett that he had received a tip from a 

confidential informant that ~melhing "hig" might happen at the Branch Davidian 

Compound between 9:00 and 10:00 a.m. next Monday, that the roads might be blocked, and 

that Wither~n might want to he there when it happened. (The Trihrme-llerald has told 

the Review that this confidential informant wa.o; not an A TF employee.) Without asking 

Wither.;roon to verify lhe lip nr making assignments. Rlansell decided he would send a few 

reporters to the Comround area lhal Monday. 

In the wake of his meeting with the newsraper, Chojnacki realized that it wa.o; 

unlikely that the n~paper would accommodate his request to delay its series. At the ATF 

command ('O!'t. he and other A TF leaders concluded that the Koresh series would begin on 

Sunday. FebnL"'ry 2R, and Chojnacki told as much to the SRT leader.; at Fori Hood. 

Chojnacki then ac;ked Samhyn whether it would he pos.c;ihle to move the raid date up two 

days to Saturday. Sarahyn said that !Ouch a change was impossible, hut that the raid could 

he done a day earlier, (ln Sunday. Chojnacki set the raid for Sunday. alerted Hartnett and 

Conroy of the change in plans. and they conc:uned. 

72 

ATF Raid Preparation.': February U-16 

Even as Chojnacki met with the Tribune-Herald, A TF's preparations were in full 

swing. On February 24, ATF's forward observers and SRTs began arriving at Fort Hood for 
three days of rigorous training. On Thursday, the first day of training. Sarabyn briefed the 
SRT leaders on the overall plan and set out each team's assignment. 111e team leaders then 
briefed their respective learns. In addition, Rodriguez told the assembled agents about the 
Compound. On Friday, the agents. coordinating with a Fort Bragg Army Special Fon:es 

unit, were able to use the Military Operations Urban Terrain (MOUT) site at Fort llood, a 
mock seHing for urban military exen:ises, and the firing ranges. 

Each team trained on structures similar to areas of the Compound that it was 

assigned to secure. Some members of the Houston and the Dallas teams J'11'3Cticed entering 

the front door of a structure and securing the rooms and hallways inside. 111e New Orleans 
learn practiced transporting ladders to the base of the structure and climbing up to secure 

the roof. In addition. the Special Forces personnel had constructed stand-alone window 
structures that permiHed the New Orleans personnel to practice "break and rake" 

procedures. breaking a window and clearing the glass shards. Team members with prior 
emergency medical training also received trauma medical training, including the 
administration of intravenous transfusions, from the Special Forces medics. Meanwhile, the 

forward observers and agents who had been assigned AR-ISs were given access to range 
facilities, where they qualified and zeroed their weapons to distances that would conform to 
their positions around the Compound. 

&curin~ S~arch and Arnst Wammt.r 

After Aguilera and Chojnacki briefed A TF officials, including Director Higgins and 
ADLF. Hartnett, in Washington, D.C., on February II and 12, Chojnacki received approval 

to !leek both an arrest warrant for Koresh and Sean:h wanants for the Compound and the 

Mag Bag. On February 2S, Aguilera signed a sworn affidavit he had rrepared with the 

assistance of Assistant U.S. AHomeys Bill Johnston and John Phinizy. On the same day. 

after reviewing the affidavit, Dennis Green. U.S. Magistrate-Judge for the U.S. District 
Court for the Western District of Texas, issued an arrest warrant for Koresh for violating 

federal firearms laws and a warrant lo search both the Mag Bag and the Compound for 
evidence of that crime. Even though, to avoid disclosing the progress of the investigation, 

Aguilera had intentionally curtailed his contacts with firearms dealers who had sold 

weapon.o; and components. to Koresh, his affidavit's account of the documented now of 
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materials into the Compound gave some 5en5e of the ar5enal thai Koresh h.1d ama!l'lt'd in 

. IQQ2. Usted in the affidavit wert": 

104 AR-15/M-16 upper-receiver groups with bands 
8,000 rounds of «Jmm and .22-caliber ammunition 
20 100-round-capacity drum mag37jnes for AK-47 rifles 

260 M-16/AR-15 mag87.ines 

30 M-14 maga7.ines 

2 M-16 E-2 kits 
2 M-16 car kit!! 

I M-7ft grenadt" laund~er 

200 M.:ll practice rifle grenades 

4 M-lft rarts 5et!!--Kits "A• 

2 flare launcheB 
2 ca.c;es (approximately SO) inert practice grenades 

40 to SO pounds of hlm:k gunpowder 

30 pounds of potassium nitrate 

S pounds of magnesium metal powder 

I pound uf igniter cord 

91 AR-IS receiver units 
26 various calibers and hrands of handguns and long gun!! 

90 pounds of aluminum metal powder 

30 trt 40 cardhoard tuhes 

Oth~r JJ'crct• AlrJia l~crm Ahnut the Raid 

While ATF agents were training at Fort Hood. reports of the imrending raid were 

beginning to circulate among the Waco media. On Thur~ay. rebruary 25. Trihrm ... lfcmM 

reporter Withers(10('n told his friend !Jan Mullony. who was a cameraman fur television 
station K WTX. that something was going to harren at the Oranch Davidian Compound on 

Monday. Mullony, in tum. alerted KWTX reporter John McLemore ahout the imrending 

raid. Mullony attem(11ed to confirm the tip. Darlene Helmstetter, his friend who wac; a 
dispatcher for American Medical Transport (AMn ambulance service, told him that three 
ambulances had heen put on 5tandhy for Monday at the r~ue51 of law enforcement. On 

Friday. ATF advised AMT that the operation had been moved up and that ambulances 

should he at the llellmead ('ivic Center rather than the airport. On Friday aOcrnoon, at a 
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wreck site, an AMT paramedic also told Mullony that something "big .. was going to happen 
on Monday . 

11re Tribune-Herald Notifies ATF of its Decision to Publish orr Saturday, 
and ATF Reacts 

On Friday, Fehr~•::Jry 26, publisher Preddy gave his final approval for the series to be 
published the next day. At about 3:30p.m .• Rochner gave this information to Chojnacki. 
advising him that a copy would be available at the Trihune-llerald loading doclt at 

12:15 a.m. on Saturday. Rochner says that he told Chojnacki that he would try to talk again 

with the newsparer editors and publisher if A TF had strong objections t~ publication. 

Chojnacki does not recall this offer. AI Chojnacki's request, Rochner and Preddy reviewed 
the first story, and Rochner ac;.c;ured Chojnacki that it did not mention A TF. 

That evening. Chojnacki advised other A TF supervisors. now gathered at Fort Hood. 
that the story would run the next morning. As a precaution, Chojnacki and Sarahyn decided 
they would send Rodriguez into the Compound on Saturday to gauge the effect of the 

article on conditions in the Compound." Saturday was the Branch Davidian Sabbath, 

which usually entailed an all-day service in which Koresh preached to his followers. 

According to the revised plan, Rodriguez would enter the Compound at about 8:00 a.m. 

before the service began and look for signs that the article had caused Koresh to be on the 

alert for action by law enforcement or had otherwise caused a change in Compound routine. 

ATF Nntifie.'f the Trearury Department's Office of Enforcement About the Raid 

On Friday anemoon in Washington, ATF officials notified the Treasury 

Department's Office of Enforcement-which oversees ATF-i)f the impending raid. A one­
page memorandum from ATF's liaison to that office went to Acting Deputy Assistant 

Secretary for taw Enforcement Michael D. Langan. The memo was later shared with 
John P. Simpson, who was acting as As.c;istant Secretary of the Treasury, and 

Ronald K. Noble, who had been designated to be the Assistant Secretary of the Treasury 
for Enforcement, but who, pending nomination and confirmation. was working as a part­

time consultant to the office. AOer Langan, Stanley Morris, who had been detailed to the 

Office of Enforcement, Noble and others expressed grave reservations about the operation 
outlined in the memorandum, Simpson contacted A TF Director Higgins and, noting these 

•• The original raid ptllll hid not povided for this undercoftr mit. or ror the one on die day or the nid. 
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concerns. directed that· the operation not go forward. I Iiggins spoke with As.•;odate Director 

Hartnett, who was able to obtain additional information from Chojnacki that appeared to 
answer the Office of Enforcement's concerns. lliggins was thus able' io assure Simpson and 

Noble that the raid plan recognized the dangers posed by Koresh's weaponry, and to assure 
them that though children were present at the Compound, the raid could be exeeuted safely. 

I Iiggins noted that an undercover agent would he sent into the Compound before the raid to 

ensure that there had been no change in routine; he also assured them that the raid would 

be aborted if things did not look right. After these assurances were given, Simpson said he 

wnuld permit the raid to go forward. (A fuller narrative of the Office of Enforcement's role 

in the oreration appears at Part Two. Section Five of this Report.) 

Sarabyn advised team leaders at a Friday anemoon meeting that Treasury officials 

had placed a "hold" on the raid. lie 5\lggested that this information be withheld from the 

agents until training was completed. After Simpson told Higgins that Treaorury would not 

prevent the raid from proceeding. Higgins notified Hartnett. who gave Chojnacki the 

authority to make the decision to proceed. On Saturday. Chojnacki called Sarabyn to 

announce that Trea.<rury had removed its "hold. • 

Saturday. F,P,mary 17: M~dia rrqNJratlnn.' 

On Saturday. Febnwy 27. the first insta11ment of the "Sinful Messiah" series 

~ared in the Tribrmt-ll~rald. The article described child abuse at the Compound. saying 

that Koresh encourll[!.ed the whiJlPing of children as young as eight months and alleged that 

Koresh had fathered children with IS women, many underage. living at the Compound. The 

article traced the SO-year h~story of the Branch Davidians and explained the importance of 

the Seven Seals· from t~ . BonA: nf R~wlatinn.' to Koresh and his fo11owers. The newspaper 

also featured a sidebar entitled, "The Law Watches. But lias Done Little." and an editorial 

ao;king when the Mcl.ennan County sheriff and the district attorney would take action. :zo 

The TriP,rm~-llrrald then shined its focu!l away from its investigative series and 

pepared to cover the developing story of law enforcement activity at the Oraneh Davidian 

Compound. Tom my Witherspoon • s confidential informant told Wither.ipoon on Saturday 

that the raid had been moved up24 hours. As a re!rult. early Saturday afternoon. Preddy. 

l.oll. Olanscll. and Rochner met and decided to send reporters to the Com('Klbnd area on 

ID On Monday. March I, the day after tbe Alf raid was rqtUI~. tbe Tri"-·lfrroiJ ruh1i~ the 

remainin& live parts or its •smrut Messiah• series. 
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Sunday morning. Preddy encouraged them to consider the safety of the reporters. but len 

before specific plans for coverage were discussed. Aner the meeting. while returning to 

Waco from a dri~e to see the Branch Davidian Compound, Lou, Blansett. and Rochner saw 

a military helicopter headed toward the airport at Texas State Technical College (TSTC). 

Blansett, familiar with landing patterns at TSTC, believed that the helicopter was landing in 

an area not usually u!led by military aircraft. When the three drove to TSTC to investigate, 

they saw approximately I 0 people, some in uniforms. greeting the helicopter pilot. Rochner 

thought that these individuals must be with A TF and that TSTC could be the staging area 

for the raid. 

Blansett returned to his office about 4:30p.m .• developed story assignments. and 

directed reporters to meet at the Tribrm~-ll~rald office at 8:00 a.m. on Sunday. Because 

most reporters did not have Sunday assignments and he believed the updated tip about the 

raid to be reliable. Blansett assigned nine reporters to the story, triple the nmnber he had 

contemplated on Wednesday. Dlansett was interrupted by a call from Steve Schneider. one 

of Koresh's senior deputies. Schneider told Blansett that Koresh was upset by the firSt 
"'Sinful Messiah" article and wanted an opportunity to tell the Triburrt-H~rald the •reat 
story," the story of the Seven Seals and not. as Schneider put it. •seven days of lies.• 

Promising to call Schneider back. Blansett called Mark England in Dallas and told him 

about the raid tip and Koresh·s request for an interview. England len Dallas for Waco. 

Blansett next called Rochner, who suggested that England interview Koresh in a restaurant. 

so that Rochner and an ofT-duty police officer could be nearby. Rochner also asked if 

reporters wanted Oak jackets for the raid. noting that he might be able to locate some. 

When England arrived in Waco, he told Blansett that he did not want to interview Koresh. 

Blansett never called Schneider back. 

Rochner talked with Chojnacki twice that Saturday. First. he sought. unsuccessfully. 

to get Chojnacki's reaction to the story. That evening he also sought Chojnacki's counsel 

an Schneider. s request that someone from the newspaper interview Koresh. They discussed 

sending rerorters into the Compound on Saturday. which Chojnacki discouraged. explaining 

that he did not lhink it would be safe to enter the Compound. Zl 

11 Rochner recalls that he nel!l pmpcned sending 1 reporter into tbe Compound on Sunday. According te 
Rochner. Chojnacki said. ·oooc1 luck. you will not be in our way if you go on Sunday." Rochner contmds 
that this reinforced hi~ view that no raid was plllllled ror Sunday. Chojnecki does not nail making such 1 

statemmt. In any evmt. the Trih--Hrrald did no1 send reporters to the Compound on February 2g to 
inteniew Koresh; it sent reporters to cover 1 raid. 
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KWlX's rre,arations Co cover the raid also moved forward. On Saturday morning, 

Mullony learned from llelmstetter, the AMT ambulance service di~tcher, that the ATF 

operation had been moved up a day. llelmstetter also told him thaf he should plan to be in 
town on Sunday. On Saturday afternoon. Mullony and Witherspoon acknowledged to each 

other that they knew the ATF operation wa.~ set to occur the next day. By Saturday 

evening, Mullony concluded that the raid would occur at about 9:00a.m. Sunday bac;ed on 

standby times Helmstetter had given him. llelmsteHer had also told Mullony that A TF had 

placed CareFiite, a Fort Worth helicopter medical transport service, on standby for Sunday. · 

This fact led K WTX In helieve the operation would he a major nne. 

That night, at the direction of K.WTX News Director Rick Bradfield, Mullony asked 

Jim reeler, another KWTX cameraman, and reporter Mclemore to meet him and Bradfield 

early Sunday morning. Mullany was so concerned about what might happen the next day 

that he drafted his will. In contrast, Mclemore. unconcerned, look his wife out to a local 

club. According to one witness, in a conversation at the bar, McLemore said A TF was 

going to conduct a big raid the following day. McLemore admits that he alluded to a big 

event but denies saying anything about ATF. 

.~trtrday. F~hmmy 17: ATF Pfl'pnratinru 

Saturday was a hectic day for A TF as raid preparations continued. AI the morning 

briefing, Sarabyn di!;Cussed the first installment of the "Sinful Messiah" series. lie pointed 

to Koresh's picture, noting that the article did not mention an ongoing investigation, and 
explained to the agents that Rodriguez would he sent in Saturday and Sunday to gauge 

Koresh's reaction to the series. 

The SRTs were joined hy arrest team personnel for a rehearsal of the deployment 

from the cattle trailers into the Compound. The agents focused on exiting the trailers and 

getting to the Compound as quickly a.<; possible. In an open field,_ Special Forces per.<;nnnel 

had outlined the dimensions of the Compound on the ground with engineer tape and set up 

a front-door facade, thus allowing raid personnel to practice in a confined area similar to 

l11e Compound. In addition, the New Orleans and llouston SRTs practiced using 

•nashbangs"~istraction devices that, when detonated, rroduce a loud banR and a emit a 

bright nash-in one of the MOUT structumt The teams al.<;n simulated the arrival of the 

cattle trailers and the helicopter divnsinn. 
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Meanwhile, ancillary and SUf'IXJrl elements converged on Waco. Two marlced ATF 

bomb-disposal trucks and National Guard SUJIPOrt trucks, including a two-and-a-half ton 

military transport truck and a water truck, arrived at TSTC. After Fort ltood training, three 
National Guard helicopters also proceeded to TSTC. The Texas Department of Public 

Safety was prerared to set ur roadblocks and the sherirrs department was prepared to 

rrovide other support functions. ATF reserved ISl rooms at three Waco hotels for the 

evening of the 28th. At 8:00 that evening Chojnacki and Sarabyn conducted a briefing at 

the Rest Western llotel for arrest and SUpiXJrt teams, including National Guard members. 
explosives specialists. dog handlers, and laboratory technicians. Phillip l.ewis, Support 

Coordinator, had arranged with local suppliers for such diverse items as the ambulance 

service:o;, portahle toilets, and the Bellmead Civic Center. On Saturday, he ordered 

doughnuts at a Waco grocery store, arranging to pick them up the next morning. lie also 

arranged with the sherirrs department for coffee at the Bellmead Civic Center site the next 
morning. 

Special Agent Sharon Wheeler. the 1\TF public inrormation officer (riO) assigned to 

the operation, prepared ror the raid. Several weeks earlier, Chojnacki had a~ked that public 
information he handled hy Killorin, hut his request wa.o; denied because Pa'ICO and Killorin 

determined that Killorin was needed in Washington on other matters. Wheeler was chosen 

hec::ause the llouston PIO was less experienced and New Orleans did not have a PIO. 

Responding to direction rmm her SAC, Ted Royster, Wheeler contacted nne Dallas 
television station for a weekend contact number. Then, following her rress plan, she called 

IWo other Oallas television stations to obtain similar telephone numbers. While she 

indicated to all the stations that A TF might have something going on during the weekend. 

she did not de!;Cribe the action or provide its timing, location. or any other information 

specific to the raid. She did not contact Waco television stations or newspapers, out or a 
concern that the raid"s security might be threatened. n 

Rodrigue7. entered the Branch Davidian Compound at 8:00 a.m. Saturday to join 

Koresh's worshir service. Koresh rreached about the "Sinful Messiah" article and told his 
followers that "they" were coming for him. lie cautioned that. when this harrenecJ. his 

11 l>e~rite earlin accounts to the contrary, Whedn did not divulge any information about the nid in these 
contacts. The rrrorten she contacted wne not able to determine what law enforcement action ~he was 
rerming ro. ha~ on their convenation. Indeed. none or the stations she c:ontacced WeJC at the Compound 
until well ann the firelight !Iegan. 
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followers should not get hysterical and should remember what he had told them to do: he 

did not specify at the time what those instructions were. Between ~oon and S:OO p.m., 
Rodriguez met with Chojnacki at the TSTC command post. Chojnacki asked R~guez 
whether he had seen any guns or preparations to reSist law enforcement. Rodriguez said he 

had not. 

Rodriguez went back to the Compotmd for more services at S:OO p.m .• and stayed 

until about midnight. Upon his return to the undercover house. Cavanaugh and the forward 

observers who had arrived earlier that evening noted that Rodriguez was showing the strain 

of his a.<~signmenl. Rodriguez called Sarabyn and reported that no changes inside the 

Comroond were evident. Sarabyn instructed Rodriguez to return to the Compound Sunday . 

morning for a final check on conditions and leave by 9: IS. Rodriguez explained to Sarabyn 

that he was upset about this· assignment because he wa.<J concerned that an unexpected 

return might arouse Koresh's suspicions. Rodriguez was also concerned about his ability to 

leave the Compound by 9: IS because Koresh exerted such control over the Compound and 

could be so intense in his personal interactions. Rodriguez was not confident that he would 

be able lo leave by 9: IS without alanning Koresh. Nonetheless. he reluctantly agreed to 

rrtum the next morning. 
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Part One 
Section Four: The Assault On The Compound. 

ATF A~~:ent~ A~umhle 

On the morning of February 28. Cavanaugh and the forward observers watched the 

Compound from the undercover house for signs ·or unusual activity. They saw nothing out 

of the ordinary. A few men were walking about the grounds and some women were 

emptying waste buckets. The weather was overcast with traces of pm:ipitation. The forward 

observer teams in the undercover house who, if necessary, were to provide cover fire for 

the raid learns. checked and prepared their equipment. Rodriguez was to enter the 

Compound at 8:00 a.m. Two undercover agents were available to support him. In addition. 

one of the undercover agents was assigned the ta.c;1t of taking forward observer and arrest 

support teams to a hay bam behind the Compound. Once the raid teams had left the staging 

area, the undercover agents also were to ensure that the residents of the neighboring house 

remained safely inside during the raid. 

Meanwhile, at Fort llood. the 76 agents assigned to the cattle trailers assembled at 

S:OO a.m.11 They traveled to the staging area, the Bellmead Civic Center, in an 

approximately RO-vehicle convoy with a cattle trailer at each end. Many of the vehicles 

bore the telltale signs of government vehicles-four-door, late-model, American-made 

vehicles with extra antennas. All the vehicles had their headlights on. Agents rej,ort that. 

once underway. the convoy stretched at lea.c;t a mile. 

The convoy arrived at the Bellmead Civic Center between 7:30 and 8:00a.m. The 
civic center i!; adjacent lo a residential neighborhood and is visible from the nearby 

intersection of Interstate 84 and l.oop 340, 9.4 miles rmm the Compound. (See Figure 27.) 

1' With rew excrptions, no definitive ftCOI'd exists or limes ror lhe evenls on February 211. Acam!ingly. 
excf'('t whrrr nthnwi~e nnted, all limes are llpflfOllimations derived rmm witness recollection!\, logs. and olh~ 
records. 
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An A tr- agent wearing an A Tt raid jac:ket and local fiOiice were in the street .In front of the 
civic center directing the convoy into the parking lot. While waitin~ to be briefed, some of 
the agents went inside the center to have coffee and doughnuts; others milled about outside. 
A supervisor became concerned about the visibility of the agents, many· of whom wore A TF 
in~ignia or were otherwise unmistakably law enforcement personnel. lie ordered everyone 
to go inside and to remain in the civic center. . 

At 8:00 a.m., Sarnhyn gave a short hriefing at the civic center. lie reviewed 

a.~ignment~ with the various group5. discussed the recent Trihune-llerald ar1ic:le, and 

related the suhstance of Rodriguez's Saturday a.c;sessment of conditions in the Compound. 

lie also distrihuted the most recent photographs of the Compound and took questions from 

team leader~. lie told the a~bled agents. that Rodriguez was in the Compound and that 

·there would be a final hriefing after Rodriguez reported on conditions in the Compound. 
Sarnbyn len the !'>taging area for the command post to await Rodriguez's report. The agents 
gathered in !\mall groups. talked, checked their equipment. and reviewed plnn!: ''"bile 
awaiting Snrabyn's final hriefing. 

Activity at the command ~ at TSTC also began at dawn. Special Agent Lewis. in 

charge of logistic!\ SU('J'Ort, checked the telerhone lines. The three National Guard 

helicorter!'>. one tJII-60 Rlackhawk and two 011-SB Jet Rangers that had flown in the night 

hcforc were rnrked on the lannac. 

Andy Vita. Chief of lhe Fireanns Division, opened A TF's National Command 

Center in Washington. D.C., at 9:00 a.m. (E.c;·n. Richard Garner, Chief of the Special 

Operations Oivision: John Jen!'\en, in charge of lhe National Communications Branch, and 

others d~ignatcd hy the National Re~n!'\e rtan. also were pr~nt. Oireclor Stephen 

Higgins. As.o;nciate Director Daniel Hartnell. and Deputy As.o;istanl Director Oaniel Conroy 

were availahle hy lelephone. 

Th~ Media St'l!t Ont Tct Cctnr Th~ Raid 

~vcn as An: agents were gathering to mthar1t on the raid. local reporters were · 

deploying to cover the orcration. At 7:00a.m. at KWTX. Jim reeler. John Mclemore, and 
Dan Mull<my received maps of the area and reviewed assignments with lhe slation's news 

director, Rick Rradfield. Omdfield anticipated a major law enforcement operation because 

he had learned from Muttony's AMT Ambulance Service infonnant. Darlene Helmstetter. 

that l'aret:light. a Fort Worth-based trauma flight company. wa.~ involvrd. nradfield told the 
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Review that K WTX did not call A lF to confirm the raid because asking for information or 
permission is generally unproductive. (According to Bradfield. the P,licy of KWTX when 

covering law enforcement operations is to go to the news site, obey law enforcement 
orders. and respect private property.) · 

reeler wa, ~Ito the intersection of Double E Ranch and Old Mexia roads where, 

according to Mullony, reeler was to watch for and film raid helicopters. Peeler denies 

receiving any information concerning helicopters. reeler thought his job wa.c; to film any 

prisoners brought out during the raid. Mullony and McLemore were sent to Farm Road 

2491 (FR 2491) on the other side of the Compound's grounds. Bradfield, from the 

newsroom. communicated with his employees by cellular telephone. Radios were not used 

so that competitors could not overhear their conversation. 

Prior to the raid. nine Triburr~-1lerald reporters were assigned to the developing 

!dory. The morning of the raid, some of them gathered at the newspaper's office before 

derarting for the Comround in four cars, three heading for the Compound and the fourth to 

TSTC to watch for helicopter activity. The newspaper, concerned about the enormous cache 

(If wearons at the Comround and Koresb's potential for violence. had gone to extraordinary 

lengths to ensure the safety of its plant and personnel. In contra.~. the rerorters were not 

given any safety instructions about covering the raid, nor were they instructed about 

rossible affects their presence or actions might have on the raid. 

As the reporters drove to the Compound they mistakenly expected to encounter 

roadhlocks. In law enforcement operations however, a roadblock is u!Mllly not established 

until the action begin!'. In this cac;e, establishing a roadblock more than two hours before 

the raid wa., to begin likely would have compromised the secrecy of the operation. 

At about 7:30. aner driving up and down the Double E Ranch Road in front of the 

Compotmd twice, Mullony parked on FR 2491 about one mile north of its intersection with 

Oouble n Ranch Road. Oy 8:30, other Triburre-lferald vehicles were patrolling the two 

roads bord~ing the ('ompound. At 9:30. Mark England asked a DrS officer parked on the 

side of the mad if he could go by what he believed to be a roadblock. The officer told 

England that he could pass but that the road would later he closed. In the hour before the 

raid, five media vehicles could be seen driving or parked on roads near the Compound. The 

agents in the undercover house reported the increac;ed traffic to Cavanaugh. The Review has 

been unable to verify whether Cavanaugh forwarded the information to the cnmmand rost. 

(See Figure 28 and legend.) 
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but while other reporters were waiting for the raid to begin. KWTX cameraman 

Peeler became lost. At about 8:30 •. he used his cellular telephone to ask Bradfield and 

Mullony for directions. Despite geHing directions. Peeler remained lost somewhere near the 
intersection of Old Mexia and Double E Ranch roads. There he encountered David Jones, a 

local letter carrier who was driving a yellow Buick with "U.S. Mail• painted on the door. 

Jones pulled up behind reeler and asked him whether be was lost. Peeler. who was wearing 

a K WfX jacket. introduced himself as a cameraman with the station and ac;ked for 

directions to "Rodenville: the name by which many Wac:o residents had referred to the 

Comround ever since it had been owned by the Roden family. Peeler did not know that 

Jones was one of Koresh's followers. Jones rointect to the Compound, which was in sight. 

and commented that he had read about the cult in the paper and thought they were weird. 

reeler, deceived into believing that Jones was not affiliated with Koresh, warned Jones that 
some type of law enforcement action was about to take place at the Compound. He 

indicated that the action was likely to be a raid of some type and that there might be 
shonting.1

• 

Afler the chance encounter with Peeler, Jones returned to his car and as he sped 
away toward the Compound. Peeler began to wonder whether Jones was affiliated with the 
cult. AOer this conversation. Peeler drove to a nearby store and called Bradfield, who told 

him to return to the intersection of Old Mexia and Double E Ranch roads. wait 30 minutes. 

and if nothing happened, go home. When Peeler returned to the intersection, OPS officen 

and A TF agents had set up a roadblock. Peeler was not allowed to pass. but he was told 

where he could set up his camera. 

1
' llltte are c:onniding rtports about what Peeler llduatly to1d Jnnes. 1n a statemmt to the Texas Rangen. 

K~h's attorneys stated that in one of tMir vi!its to tM Compound during the standoff between tM cult 111d 
the F81, Oavid Jones (now dec:eawd) told them that Peeler warned him not to go near the Compound as there 
were going to be ·6o to 70 TABC (Texas Alcohol Revenge Commission) lilY' in helicoptm llld 1 shoot-oul 
would occur.• Peeler hu denied giving this much ddailto Jones. However, he has admitted that on the 
morning of the 28th he believed that TABC was involved 111d had tuned his scanner to the TABC frequencJ. 
TABC was not involved in the action on the 21th and Peeler is the only witness interviewed by the Review 
who believed that TABC wM involved. Peeler's admission lends credibility lo the account provided by 
Komh's attnmeyt. 
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l'eeler·!l encounter with Jones was witn~sed hy one or the A tF undercover agents 

wlm was taking the forward observers and their arrest support teams· ~o a hay bam behind 
the Compound .. The undercover agent wa!l dressed in casual clothes: the forward observer!l 

wore ATF battle dre" utilities. When the undercover agent saw the two vehicles parked 

together on the road, he recognized Jones' postal vehicle. Jones was talking to the occupant 

or the second car, wlmm the agent did not recogni1.e but suspected was a reporter. The 

agent, fearing that Jone5 might spot the uniformed agents in his car, told them to crouch 

down.· Jone5 did not appear to look in the agents' direction and the undercover agent was 

!llltisfied that his group had not been seen. lie drove to the hay bam, deposited the forward 

observers and arrest support team, and returned to the undercover hou!le where he told 

Cavanaugh what he had seen. Cavanaugh claims to have relayed the information to the 

amtmand post although no one· there recalls receiving il 

Rodri~t~ez F.nt"' The ComJ1ound 

At R:OO a.m .• not long before Peeler had his cnnver.~ation with David Jnne5, 

Rodriguez went to the Compound nne final time for the most critical phaq: of his 

undercover a!lc;ignment. a~c;essing whether the ll~rnld-Trihunf! articles had incited Knresh 

and his followers to take UJ1 arms or otherwise increase their security measures. Koresh 

peeled the undercover agent and invited him to join a "Dible study" scs.c;inn with lwo of his 

fnl1nwers. There were no signs of unusual activity. · 

While Kore5h and Rodriguez were engaged in this Bible session. David Jones 

arrived at the Compound, fresh from his encounter with Peeler. lie told his father, Perry 

Jo~ what had happened. Peny Jones devised a rretext to draw Koresh away from 

Rndrigue7_7' lie called to Koresh that he had a rhnne call. When Koresh ignored the 

rtqUeSt. Jone5 added that it was long distance from England. 

F.arly interpretations of Jones' reference to F.ngland speculated that Jones was 

refming to Mark England, the co-author of the Trihunf!·ll~rnld series wlmm Koresh had 

been trying to contact. This interpretation led to SJ!CCUiation that Mark F.ngland alerted 

Koresh to the imrending raid. However, Koresh's attorneys have said that Jones told them 

that he wac; referring to the country. In any event. contrary to early accounts. there is no 

10 Cult rncmhen releaml from the Cmnt'OU"cJ after the raicl 11eve stated that prior In lhe 28th. Kornb hacJ 
suspected that Roclriguez wll.'l an undercover agent. One cult member slated that clt!~pite hi~ su~icinns. 

N Kornh cmtinued let meet with Rntfrigue7. belie.ing that he could nonetheless mccenfully rKn~il him. 
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evidence that Mark t!ngland placed a call to the Compound on the morning or February 28. 

Records provided by the Tribunf!-Hf!rald or their telephone calls contain no record of a call 
to the Comround on the morning of February 211. 

When Koresh left the room to take the fictitious call, David Jones described his 

conversation with Peeler. Upon Koresh's return, Rodrig~ could see that he was extremely 

agitated,.and although he tried to resume the Bible session, he could not talk and had 

trouble holding his Dible. Rodriguez grabbed the Bible from Koresh and asked him what 

was wrong. Rodriguez recalls that Koresh said something about. "the Kingdom of God." 
and rroclaimed, "neither the A TF nor the National GUard will ever get me. They got me 

once and they'll never get me again." Koresh then walked to the window and looked out, 

· saying. "They're coming. Robert, the time has c:Ome." He turned. looked at Rodriguez and 
repeated, "They're coming Robert, they•re coming." 

Rodriguez was shocked. As Koresh repeatedly looked out the window ~ said, 
"They're coming." Rodriguez wondered whether the raid was beginning even though he 

was still in the Compound. Needing an excuse to leave, Rodriguez told Koresh he had to 

meet someone for breakfast but Koresh did not respond. Other maJe cult members entered 

the room, effectively if not intentionaJiy coming between Rodriguez and the door. Fearing 

that if he did not leave he would be trapped in the Compound. Rodriguez contemplated 

jumping through the window. He repeated that he had to leave for a lmakfast appointmenL 

Koresh approached him, and in a manner RodrigUez believed highly uncharacteristic, shook 

Rodriguez's hand and said. "Oood luck. Robert." Rodriguez left the Compound. got into his 
truck and drove to the undercover house. 

Rodri~n R~porb 

Agents in the undercover house recall that Rodriguez was visibly upset when he 

returned from the Compound. He complained that the windows of the undercover house 

were raised and that he could sec a camera in one of them. Cavanaugh asked Rodriguez 

what had happened in the Compound. Rodriguez announced that Koresh was agitated and 
had said A TF and the National Guard were coming. Cavanaugh asked Rodriguez whether 

he had seen any guns. had heard anyone talking about guns. or had seen anyone hurrying 

around. Rodriguez responded in the negative to all three questions. Cavanaugh then told 
Rodriguez to rerort his observations to Sarabyn. 
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Rodrigue1. called ~arabyn at the command post and told him that Kore!~h wa5 up!ICt, 

that Koresh had said A Tf and the National Guard were coming, and that a~ Rodriguez len 

Koresh was shaking and reading the nible. Sarabyn a~ked Rodrigue7. a !erie~ .of questionll 

from a prepared list provided by the tactical planneB: Did you see any wearons? Was there 

a call to annll? T>id you ~ them make any preparations? Robert responded in the negative 

to each question. Then. Snrahyn ac;ked what the people in the Compound were doing when 

Rodrigue7. len. Rodrigue7. an~wered that they were praying. Next. Sarabyn called 

Cavanaugh who reported that there wac; no ob!ICI'Vahle activity in the Compound. 

A special agent in the command rost witnessed Sambyn's part of the conveBation 

with Rodrigue7_ Aner Samhyn had hung up the rhone. the agent stopped Sarahyn and 

a.c;ked what Rodriguez had said. Sarahyn responded that Rodriguez had been with Koresb 

when Ko~h was called from the room to take an emergency telephone call. Whtl\ Koresh 

returned tn the room he said that A TF and the National Guard were in Waco and \\<ere 

coming. Sarahyn ai!;O stated that ~odriguez reported Koresh was nervous and dropped the 

Dible from which he wall reading. The agent ac;ked Sarabyn. •What are you going to do! 

Sarahyn r~nded that Rodriguez had seen no firearms and that Koresh wall reading the 

nihle when Rudrigtre7. leR. Sarahyn said he thought they could still execute the plan if they 

moved quickly. 

Initial accounts hy the participants in and witnes!ICS to Rodrigue1.'s conversations 

with Cavanaugh and Sarabyn differed significantly with respect to whether Rodriguez 

clearly communicated that Koresh knew the raid wac; imminent. Although there remains 

some variance with respect to Rodrigtre7.'s actual words. all key participants now agree that 

Rndrigue7. communicated. and they understood. that Koresh had said the ATF and National 

Guard were coming. 

Now S:uahyn hurried nut of the command post to the tarmac to confer with Royster 

and ("hojnacki. lire helicnpters had alrc:1dy begun warming up. In order to hear over the 

noi!IC or the ruturs. the three supervisors moved to a fence bordering the tarmac. 

awmximately 50 feet away. Although the noise still made conversation difficult. the three 

men huddled together so Sarahyn could pass on what he had learned. Sarahyn related that 

he had jn!lt spoken with Rodrigue7. who had said that Koresh knew ATI: and the National 

Guard were coming hut that. when Rodrigue7. had len, Koresh was reading the Rihle and 

shaking. Sarahyn also stated. ha.c;ed on what Rodrigue7. had said. that Korcsb was not 

ordering anyone in the Compound to do anything. Chojnacki asked Sarahyn whether 

Rodrigue7. had seen any guns. When Sarabyn resronded that ·Rodrigue7. had not. Chojnacki 
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a.o;ked Sarabyn what he thought should ~done. Sarabyn expressed his belief that the raid 

could still be executed successfully if they hurried. Chojnacki responded, "Let's go.• The 
conference lasted no more than three minutes. Sarabyn len immediately for the staging 
area. 

Events began '" reflect Sarabyn's perceived need for speed. News of Rodriguez'! 
rerort spread rapidly among the A TF agents at the command post, creating an atmosphere 

of great urgency and commotion. Various agents were heard yelling that Koresh knew of 

the raid and that they needed to depart immediately. Royster hastened to the helicopters and 
told the agents there that Koresh knew of the raid and therefore it was beginning 

immediately. Royster then ran back to the command post, joined by Chojnacki who called 

the National Command Center and reported to Special Agent Jensen, responsible for the 

Center's communications, that the undercover agent was out of the Compound and that the 

raid wa~ commencing. Chojnacki did not relate the substance of Rodriguez's report. 

Chojnacki then ran to and boarded his helicopter. A few minutes later, the helicopters 

derarted. Shortly thereafter, Rodriguez arrived at the command post only to find that 

Sarabyn. Chojnacki and Royster had departed. Witnesses recount ·that Rodriguez beeame 

distraught, repeatedly asking how the raid could have gone forward when he had told them 
that Koresh knew they were coming. 

The Raid Goes Forward 

Sarabyn arrived at the staging area at 9: I 0 a.m. Witnesses report that he was excited 

and obviously in a hurry. Agents in the parking lot when Sarabyn arrived recall that he ran 

to them and told them that they had to hurry, making statements such as. "Get ready to go, 

they know we are coming," and "They know A TF and the National Guard are coming. 
We're going to hit them now.• 

Similarly. agents inside the civic center recall Sarabyn running in and calling for 

their attention. lie announced. "Robert has just come out. Koresh knows that A TF and the 

National Guard are coming.• Sarabyn told the agents they would proceed immediately. 

Sarabyn exhorted the agents to move quickly, repeatedly telling them to huny, to get their 

gear because Koresb knew they were coming. There was no formal briefing, discussion or 

evaluation of Rodriguez's information. Several agenb report having had qualms about 

going forward, especially since Koresh had mentioned the National Guard, yet they also felt 
questioning the decision would be inappropriate. 
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Within IS minute!> nf ~arabyn•s arrival at the staging area. the ~ial re~n~ and 
the arresl team!: hoarded the trailers and lc:R. According to agents in the· trailers. although 

there was wme lighthearted hanter. the overall mood in the trailers wa., uncharacteristically 

!Wmhcr. While wme felt confident. others began tn wonder why they were rrnceeding if 

Knre!dt knew they were nn their way. 

Sarahyn rude in the truck ru11ing the fir!ll cattle trailer. lie maintained an npen 

cellular rhone contact with Cavanaugh thrnughnut the trip tn the Compound. keeping 

01\·annugh ptstctl as In the team·!'! lncatinn and a!>king fnr rcrort!> on the level nf activity at 

the Cnmpmnd. Ca\•anaul,!h reported that he could nnt. !'lee any !llgn., of :1etivity in the 

("nmrmmd nr unit!> grnunds. 

Adivity In The Comronnd 

According tn !'OOme nf the former cult members in the Compound at the time. 

peparations were heing made in the Cnmround. although not deteetahle hy Cavanaugh and 

the forw:trtl c•h!>crvcr!!!. Fven a5 Rndrigue7. was departing. rerry Jone5 and the -female 

memhcr!'l of the Compmnd had gathered in the chapel. thinking that they had hcen c.·.tled 

for a church ~n·ice. They had hcen waiting almost an hour when Korcsh came in and 

ardercd them hack In their rooms. The alder women and children went to the second floor 

and hegan to lay on the floor in the hallway. away from the outer walls of the Compnund. 

Many af the cult memhcrs hegan to arm themselves. some with 9mm.ri5tols. some with 

automatic and 5emiautomatic aSllault rifle5. and othen with both pi5tol5 and rifles. (Stt 

Fil!ure 29.) Snme donned hulletrroof vests. others put nn ammunition ve!lls. (See Figure_ 

JO.) 1\mmunitinn was di!llrihutcd. The Compnund mcmhcn a55U1ned !Illations at the 

windows. wnitinJ.! fc11 the A TF agmts In arrive. 

The Mrdi• ("nnn The 1\pprn•~h or The R•id Tnm!l 

1\ccnnling to 7"rihrm~-""'"''' cellular rhnne r«<rds. at CJ:26 a.m .• rhotnjmtmali51 

Rohcrt Sanchct. cal~ed l\lansell lo advise him th:tl several hclicnrtcr!i were leaving TSTC. 

Sanche7. h:ttl c:nlicr repnrtcd to hi!i collcague5 waiting ncar the Compnund that he had scm 

agents at TSTC in camc•uflage fatigue5 loading duffie h."lg!i and gear into vchicle5. and 

lining ur In gn. 1\s ~anche7. clmve In the Compnund he caught urto the twn cattle lrailcr!i 

fitt~ with unifnm1cd agentll. lie relayed this information to his cnlteague5 ncar the 

Cmnround. 1\f!c:nts in the ~ond trailer rcpnrted that a vehicle was following them and two 

A lF agent5 in a ch:t.<~C car fnllowing the lrailen !llnrred ~nche7_ Sanche7. again called hi~ 

CJ2 

.) 

Figme 29: Kala.~hni\cw lml!Uft rine. recovered from Scflmecfer"s ¥all wflidl ._ ...,ted in fmnt of mail'l C~ 
huilding (rhntof%rarh lakm liRn Arril ICJ. ICJCJJ). 
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figure 30: (From left) t.oad-bearin& ammunition ~s cont11ining two 'hnm magari.-.. fl1l1f l"l!dcd AK-47 magv.in~ 
lnd a military helmd FKCWcrrd frC11ft Scbmcdtr's van after the 4/lq/Q) fire. 
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colleagues and advised them that he had been turned back and was unable to continue to 
the Cumpound. 

Media personnel used radio and cellular telephones to communicate with one 

another and u~d scanners to monitor law enforcement frequencies during the hour hefore 

the raid. Several members of the pre!!!! heard nn scanners "no guns in the windows." and 

"it's a go" moments before ATF raid trucks entered the Compound's driveway. 

Once Blansett relayed Sanchez's information. the reporters in the area moved doser 

In the ('mnpnund. 1'rilmnt'-llt'rald reporters, Witherspoon. Aydelotte, and Masferrer drove 

to the hem~ beside the undercover house to oh!ICTVe the raid from its front yard. 

Wither!lpuon knocked on the door to a!lk permission, but the agent safeguarding the 

residents in!lide declined to answer. As Witherspoon was knocking another agent 

approached. Relieving the approaching agent to be a resident. Witherspoon said there was 

about to he. a mid and ao;ked whether he and his colleagues could observe it from the front 

yard. Without ide~tifying himself, the agent ordered the reporters to leave the properly. As 

the reporter!! were backing their car onto Double E Ranch Road, the trailers were turning 

into the Compound's driveway. The reporters parked their car on the road in front of the 

hon~ next to the undercover house. Aydelotte was retrieving his camera from the trunk of 

his car. when a !ICCond car containing two more Trilumr-lfrrnld reporters pulled alongside. 

Aydelotte managed to shoot several frames hefore gunfire hegan striking the car. forcing aU 

five reporters into a ditch alongside the road. 

Meanwhile, KWTX's Mullony and Mcl.emore turned onto Double E Ranch Road 

and followed the ATF calllc trailers up the Compound's driveway. McLemore pulled up 

behind a p:ukcd hu!l. As the trailers continued the short distance to the front of the 

Compound. Mnlluny set up his tripod. Seconds later gunfire erupted from the Compound. 

The llt"licnpler Oivenion 

1\s the trailers approached the Compound from the Double E Ranch road, the 

helicopter!! hall not yet arrived at their designated point. even though Cavanaugh repeatedly 

radioed for them to come in "low and fast." The helicopters approached the rear of the 

("ompnund at approximately the same time the trucks pulled along the front, which failed to 

create the intended diversion. When they were approximately 350 meters from the rear of 

the ('ompmnd, the helicopters were fired upon, forcing them to pull back. It was too late at 

this P'int fnr the-m to warn the trailers to abort. 
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Two of the hclicorters were forced tn land in a field to inspect for damage. Agents 
di~overed that bullets had rierced the skins of each of the helicopter:s. The third hclicorter. 
although alr.o struck by gunfire. was able to remain airborne. II circled overhead to watch 

for additional altacltcrs. Due to the damage. the two heticorter pilot!! initially decided not to 

attempt to fly them hack to the command po!ll. Chojnacki requested the third helicopter to 

land and take him hack to the command po!lt. While the pilots inspected the hc:licortef!l • 

. agents climbed a !m'la11 hill to determine how far they were from the Compound. r:rom the 

hill they concluded that the group WM still within range of hostile fire. They recommended 

to the helicnrter pilots that if the helicopters could be flown. they should leave the area. 

The pilots decided that the helicopters were nightworthy ·and they returned to the command 

po!ll without further incidcnL 

The R•id Tc•m Arrivn 

As the cattle trailers entered the driveway there wa.<; no sign of activity iMide or 

nut11ide the Comround. The ai'J'roaching agents realized the absence of activity wa.o; a had 
omen. When one agent noted over the radio. '7here.!l no one outside." a second agent 
r~ed. .. l'h.,rs not good. • 

The truck!! storrecJ in front of the Compmmct•!l main building as planned. Figure Jl 

sbows their position. Agents with fire extinguishers for holding the Compound·!! dogs at 

bay were the fif!lt to exit the trailer. One agent opened the gate in the wall in front of the 

C'ompound. and another di!ICharged a fire extinguisher at the dogs. Simultaneously. agent!! 

began exiting the second trailer. Koresh appeared at the front door and yelled. "Whafs 

going on?" The agents identified them5elvcs. stated they had a warrant and yelled .. free7.e" 

and .. get down." Rut Koresh slammed the door before the agents could reach it. Gunfire 

from inside the Comround burst through the door. The force of the gunfire was so great 

that the door howed outward. The agent closest to the door wa.o; !'>hot in the thumh before he 

could dive for cover into a pit near the door. Then gunfire erurted from virtually every 

window in the front of the Comround. The Dalla.<~ and llouston SRTs. which were 

ai'Pf03Ching the front of the Comround and the pit area to the ten. took the brunt of the 

initial lmrmge. Agents scrambled for cover. One of the first shot~ fired hit the engine block 

of the lead rickup truck. Cnn!ICCJuently. neither the first. nor the ~nd vehicle were ahle to 

leave. 

A~ the Oalln~ and 1totmon teams attempted In get In the front of the CClmJ!OUnd. the 

New Orlean~ team. which had been concealed in the ~cnnd trailer. apJlMachcd the ea~t side 
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of the Comround. All they len the trailer, the agent!! heard gunfire. At fir!ll, the agent!! 

thought it came from the dog teams. l>uring training the agenlo; had h¢.en told that they 

might hear the dog teams firing at the dog.o; if they were not able to suhdue them with fire 

exlinguishffs. However. they quickly reali7.cd that the gunfire wao; coming from the 

Cnmround. While one agent provided cover from the ground. ~ven olhet!l aprrnached the 

walt and climhcd In the roof. Conway l..e81eu. Todd McKeehan. Kenny King. and David 

Millen were to enter Korcsh's hedrnom nn the we5t pitch nf the mnf. while Rill llufnrd, 

Kdth Constantino and Glen Jordan were to enter the window on the east pitch or the roof. 

That window led to the mom that A TF intelligence indicated contained the wearon~. Out 

soon aner the agent!! reached the roof. they came under heavy gunfire. Srccial Agent 

Millen was ahle to retreat hack to the eao;t pitch of the roof where he stood guard outside 

the annmy. Special Agent l..enteu and Srccial Agent McKeehan were killed.· 

Srccia1 Agent King w.tS shot six times before managing to roll himself ofT the roof 

and into the courtyard behind the Comrnund. (See l:igure 32.) As he lay traf'l'cd in the 

courtyard. tno injured to move, King repeatedly called over his radio that he had heen shot 

several times and wao; bleeding badly. Agents hearing King's pleas, tried to re!ICue him. 

New Orleans rield Uivision SAC. rete Mastin. contacted Cavanaugh and askrd whether the 

forward oh!>c~ could suppress fire from the tower while agents on the grouml attempted 

to rescue King. The forward observers directed rine fire at the area of the tower from 

which shots had been directed at the agents. However. as the agents attempted to move 

toward the rear nf the Compound, gunfire from other areas stopped them. l>espite the 

agents" best eiTtlrls, the intensity of the gunfire made it imrossihle lo rescue King until the 

final cease·fire. approximately an hour and a half later. 

AI the arm!l mmn. Agent Jordan managed to "hreak and rake• the window and 

Agent Oufnrd threw a distraction device into the mom. Ruford. Constantino ·and Jordan 

entered. Inside. Agent Ruford saw a rer!;On armed with an assault rine h."1Cking nut of a 

doorway in the far len comer of the room. That individual began firing into the room from 

the other side of the tl,in walls. lhe agents returned fire, hut without automatic wearnns. 

which are u.c;cd to deliver a defensive spray of gunfire. they could not SUJ1PfCSs the 

anacker's fire. The shots fired at the agents inside the mom rao;.-;cd through the wall to 

\\-here Srccial Agent Millen was rositinned on the roof. Shots were al!iO fired at Millen 

from the firllt noor up through the rc10f. lie escaped the attacks hy sliding down the ladder 

to the ground. 
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Inside the room, Buford was shot twice in the upper thigh. Agent Constantino 

provided cover for Buford and Jordan while lhey ran back for the ~ndow, dove out onto 

the pitc11ed roof and then dropped to the ground. As Agents Chisolm and Bonaventure 

dragged Buford out of the line of fire, they were fired upon. A bullet creaSed Buford's 

nolle. Agent Chisolm threw his body over Buford to protect him11• When the shooting 

Stopped. Chisolm and Bonaventure pulled Buford to a safe position. Chi!!Oim. the medic for 

his team, omerved Buford's wounds and began administering an IV to him. 

Immediately after Buford and Jordan were out of the arms room, the firing stopped. 

As Constantino was deciding whether to hold his position or make a nm for the window, a 

cult member entered the room aiming an assault rine at him. lie fired two or three shots at 
Constantino. Constantino rellD'ned fire and the man feU. Constantino ran for the window, 

but as he was going through it, he struck his head. lcnoclted ofT his helmet and dropped his 

weapon. OB7..ed, he rolled ofT the roof and fell to the ground, severely fracturing his hip and 

leg and cam;ing exten.<~ive injury to both knees. As he lay on the ground, vulnerable to the 

cult's guns, he 58W two agents who had taken cover near the wall of the Compound. 

Constantino put his hand out and Special Agents David Millen and Charles Smith dragged 

him out of the line of fire. (Contrary to some publicly disseminated accounl"', none of the 
agents that entered the armory were killed.) 

Special Agents Steven 0. Willis and Robert J. Williams were killed during the 

ambu!!h. Agent Willis. a member of the Houston raid support team. had taken cover behind 

a van parked near the right front comer of the Compound. Special Agent Williams. New 

Orleans SRT. was providing cover for his teammates mounting the roof. Intense gunfire 

forced him to seck cover behind a large metal object on the ground to the ea'll side of the 

Compound. 

Throughout the vicious firefight. A TF agents demonstrated extraordinary discipline 

and courage. Special Agents Bernadette Oriffin. Jonathan Zimmer and Martin Roy were 

pinned down behind a shed when Special Agent Jordan, who had been wounded in the 

arms room, staggered over to where they were and collapsed on them. Special Agmt 

~riffin discovered that Jordan's arm was bleeding profu.o;ely. She elevated his arm and 

compressed the wound with her hand until the cea..o;e-fire, 90 minutes later. Special Agmt 

Chisolm. relinquishing his own protected location. came to their location and rendered 

• lbere were many Kts or ucriflce .., .. heroism duriJ11 die 8lbdt on dte agents, only some or Milch Clll'l 

lie I!Colmted here. 
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medical aid. Special Agent Tim Oabotuie, a medic with the Dallas SRT, who also 

repeatedly exposed himself to gunfire to treat several wounded agents, had one of his 

medical bags shot out of his hand by .SO-caliber gunfire. He braved gunfire in an 

unsuccessful effort to reach Special Agent Willis who died during the baHie. 

In the face of insurmountable, unrelenting automatic and semiautomatic weapons fire . 

from virtually every area of the Compound. the agents had no choice but to remain in their 
covered position.'!. The openness of the terrain made retreat impossible. They returned fire 

when P,ssible. but conserved their ammunition. They also fired only when they saw an 

individual engage in a threatening action. such as pointing a weapon. Neither of these 

constraints applied to those in the Branch Davidian Compound who had a virtually limitless 

supply of ammunition (Several hundred thousand rounds of ammunition were later found in 

the Compound) and could fire at will. They even fired at the unden:over house and at the 
reporters parked on the road in front of the Compound. 

In addition to the agent fatalities, the cult•s weapons inflicted vicious wounds on 

other agents. For example, one agent was shot in both legs by a shotgun. Another agent 

was shot in the left leg by one bullet whiie a second passed through his left leg and lodged 

in his right leg. There were many other serious wounds and related injuries which are listed 
in Figures 33 and 34. 

In contrast to the extensive casualties inflicted upon the agents, there were few 

casualties among the cult members. (See Figure JS.) Autopsies revealed that two cull 

members were killed by agents in the entry teams returning fire. Autopsies of two other cult 
fatalities reveal that they were shot at close range: Perry Jones was killed by a shot in his 

mouth, a manner of death consistent with suicide; Peter Hipsman was wounded but was 
later killed by a cult member who shot him at close range in the back of his skull-an 

apparent mercy killing, although the autopsy revealed that his initial wound would not have 

been fatal. Koresh was wounded both in the pelvic area and in his wrist. 

The Cease-Fire 

According to Mclennan County 911 records, Branch ·Davidian Wayne Martin called 
the Waco 911 emergency service at 9:48. His call was handled by Deputy Lany lynch. 

. Martin sounded very frightened and lynch heard pnfire in the background. Deputy Lynch 

aHempted to speak with Martin. but Martin did not respond and at J 0:02. Martin hung up • 
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GUNSHOT RELATED DEATHS SUSTAINEb BY ATF ON 
FEBRUARY 28, 1993 . 

(KCQnfins In CA..fi fc1nM submitted lty ATF) 

Name TMm "*" 
~·"'*" 

Cause lnlaled 

t Conwlly Lebleu NO Death Gunshot NIA" 
2 Todd McKeehan NO Death Gunshot NIA" 
3 Robert Williams NO Death Gunshot NIA" 
4 StiMII'I Willis HOU Death Gunshot NIA" 

GUNSHOT AND SHRAPNEL RELATED INJURIF..S SUSTAINED BY ATF ON 
FEBRUARY 28, 1993 

{KCQnfina In CA-l Fonm wbmitted by A 11') 

' Claylon Ate•ander NO Two gunshot wounds. thigh In left lag; Gunshot Providence 
ltlfghlnttghtlag 

2 Roland Bai!Mteros HOIJ Gunshot womdl to the hand Gunshot Hlllcresl 
3 8111 Buford NO Gunahoe womdl to both lags Gunshot Hlllcnm 
4 Samuel Cohen DAL Shfapnallragments to lower right thigh Shrapnel Hlllcre5t 
5 Eric Evers HOU Gunshot and shrapnel wounds to d1ll5l Gunshot/ Hillcrest 

and 8hou4der area Shrapnel 
8 Ma111Handley HOU Shrapnel wounds In right la9 Shrapnel Hlllcfest 
7 Waner Glen Jordan NO Gun5hot wounds to both legs Gunshot Hlllcfest 

8 Kenneth King NO Gunshot wounds to arms. chest and legs Gunshot Providence 

9 Ma111 Murray DAL Buck shot wounds lo left shoulder Gunshot N/A" 
tO OeryOrt:howsld HOU Shrapnel wound to the right hand Shrapnel Hl11crest 

" Joseph Patterson DAL Shrapnel wounds to right cheek Shrapnel NIA" · 
t2 Gerald Petrilli DAl Shrapnel wounds to right hand. wrist. Shrapnel HOicrest 

lor8arms and left upper arm 
t3 Clair Rayburn HOU Gun5hot wound to the hand Gunshot Hlllcfest 
t4 John Risenhoover HOU Gunshot wounds to both legs Gunshot Hillcrest 

tS Robol'l Rowe HOU Shrapnel wounds to ltght hand; Shrapnel NIA" 

large abraston on face 

t8 Michael Russell OAl Wound to back of left lhoutder Gunshot NIA" 

t7 larry Shlvef HOU Multiple shrapnel wounds to left Shrapnel HIDcrest 

lower extnlmfty. ll5sue loss to 
left medial calf. 10ft tissue lnluiY to 
left thiGh 

t8 Steven Steele DAl Shol In lower lip and left hand; Gunshot Hillcrest 

InJured lower blldt and left lag 

t9 Robel1 White OAL Bultet wound to left shoulder, neck Gunshot NIA" 

and bruise to ltaht l!hln 

20 Curtis Williams HOU Bullet fragments and punc:Me wound Gun5hot NIA" 
to upper thigh of left la9 

"NIA _.,Hal ~.lnlllfed by EMT al_.., or by potwala pflplr:laft. 
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SERIOUS NON-GUNSHOT RELATED INJURIES SUSTAINED BY ATF ON 
FEBRUARY 18, 1993 

I 

2 

I 

2 
3 

4 

5 
8 

(KCOnfina to CA-l Forms submitted by All') 

~--Name Team "*"' ea.. lnlaled 
Keith Constantino NO Broken hlp. e.tenslve k1furfes to both Falling from roof HlDcrest 

lmee5 and tevs 
Terry lee Hlctls NO Torn ligament between 3nt & 4th Moving for C0¥9I NIA" 

vertebnlln ned!; posdJia ruplunld 

dlsll between 7th and 8th vertebnlln 
ned!; bruised 01 crushed neMt 

between 7th and 8th vertebnl 

OTHER NON-GUNSHOT RELATED INJURIES SUSTAINED BY ATF ON 
FEBRUARY 28. 1993 

(according to CA· t Fonns submitted br ATFI 

Wendel Frost NIA Earaeubfed to elltnlme nolle levels Nolle of two .308 N/A" 
loss rtllas 

FeDxGarda NIA Severe Jrrttatlon to left heal ATFboolll NIA" 
Steven Jensen HOU Severe badl pain ·lower badl and Cenylng dead & NJA• 

right lag. musde epasme ....,., tram ... 
Kenneth Latimer HOU SpraWpull to light shoulder Wanant e•eaJtlon NIA" 
Charles Maver NIA Rib and badllnlurY on left aide I DMna for C0¥91 N/A" 
John Henry Williams HOU Two top fronlleeth dllpped Moving for C0¥9I NIA 

"M'A ..,_,.Hal Appllceble, lnlaled by EMT .. -. or by p!Mte ~ 

Figure ]4 
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CULT Mf'..MIF.Il~ --··· ·-·------·.-... .... .._..._,-. 
IWII! 

,...II OF ~IIISTAM:e WPPON CAU8!N LOCAnolf OF WOUNO!I 
WOUieOII TO WOUND (!WIG!) TTPe OF A-...moll CAVIl! OF D!Ant 

WII'IITONIIUd t twO to""'""· .m CftAJIIOCP!IIRAL TRAUMA 

"""MIPI1WI • .. , Ott! to twO"· IW.WINCHDT!R C•J V'P!II POSTERIOR 
81Lftii11P .IACdT!D IC!Ctl 

HOlLOW I'OINT ..,, LEIS ntAN t INCH I-. COI't'!II.IACK!T!O (b) liT. PAIII!TAL SCALP 
!JOn POINT 

CcJ MORE nwten. 1-.~.IAacn!D (c)L~IIL!n 
HOlLOW I'OINT ANT!IIIOR CMtST 

Cdl IIDfle ntAN. "· UNKNOWN (d) !W111T to POST· 
(NOT tm:ommJ) LATERAL ARII Wt!mT 
PfiOIIAIILT IIUU.Ef (e) OF ANT!IIOLAT!IIAL Allllll 

oeA'n'loutto(a)&(ll) 
CRAMOC:EII!BfiAL TIIAUIIA 

f. 
"""'.1011!8 ' WPPON IN IIOV'n'l UIIKNOWN ~IIIIALTIIAIJIIA. 

(NOT II!C0¥!11!11) OUMMOT WOUND to MOU11t 
J:. 
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---------
CULT MDDIEIIS IUtLFDBY A1T - NU118!110F WPPCM OIIITMC:e WUPON CAUII1!1V LOcaTIOM 01' WOUMDit 

WOUMOII TO WOUND (IIAJIM) TTPe OF AMIIUMITIOM CAVIl! OF O!ATH 

PVVIO!Jff t liiiTANT I-. HTOAOIHOCtl P!RPOflATIOM OF AORTA 
GUNSHOT to UPfl!lll LF. CHUT 

IUtLFDBY A1T 

MICMAR. SCHAOEDfA • .. , liiiTANT ...... MTCifiOSHOCtl (a) liT. ANT!RIOft SMOULO!R 

... , DriTAHr I ... HVIJROSHOCI( (II) IIT.L~IIFI.AMI( 

CCI li!ITANT I W. H"iollosHOCtt cct un THIGH 

Cd) .,.,,.,.., I ..... IC'rDROSHOCtl (d) liT. T!III'OIIAL SCALP .. , liiiTAHr UNIIIIOWit (a) IIT.IIUPRA·AURICUlAlt 

INOT R!coY!MIJt II!OION ·!liT liT. P'OSTIOA 
AURICULAR SURFAC! 

(I) DISTANT UMICMOW'It (f) GRAZING OUNSMOT WOUND 
C"OT R!COV!R!Dt OFnt!L!nCMtST. oeA'n'l 

~to IIULnPL! OtJNSHOT 
WOUieOII 

.IA'IDIANW!HO!LL ' liiiTAHr .... HTOROSMOC:1l CftAMOCEA!IIIIAL TRAUMA· 
OtJNSHOT WOUND to H!AO 

RRANCII DAVIDIAN INJURIES SUSTAINED ON n:BRUARY 28. 199. .... IIATUM OF INJUIIT 

OAYIDJONU "OUII!It40T WOUND to OUIT!U!IMAXIMU!I 

OAYID ltOftUH GUM!HOT WOUND to l'fl.VIC IIIII Aim Un Wfii!IT 

.IUDY !ICHNml!1l "OUII!It40T WOUNO to IHD!I hNMII 

tc:OTT tiOIIOft "GUNSHOT WOUND to UO 

•AU.I!Oftt WOUNDS 
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Using the telephone number that appears on a screen when a call is placed to 91 t, 
lync:h called back to the Compound. An 11Jl5Wering machine responded. Hoping that 
Martin, or someone in the Compound. could hear, Lynch yelled for Martin to pick up the 
phone. Martin responded and Lynch began attempting to arrange a cease-fire. 
Simultaneously. Lynch tried to contact ATF through Lieutenant Barber, who as the liaison 

between ATF and the sheriffs department. was at the command post. However, Barber had 
turned orr his radio because he was planning to assist the bomb technicians in recovering 
and processing any explosives. Although Lynch was unable to raise A TF on his radio. a 
TSTC officer. Jim Stone. responded and said that he was able to contact A TF. Stone drove 
to the command post and reached SAC Chojnacl:i. Chojnacki used Stone's radio to speak 
with Deputy l.ynch. 

Afraid that if Martin was told to hang up the telephone to attow ATF to contact him 
directly. contact might not be restored, A TF worked through Lynch. Thus. Martin was in 

· contact with Deputy Lynch. who had to relay what Martin said to Olojnacki by way of 
Stone's radio. Lynch told Martin to cease ftting while simultaneously arranging for A TF 
agents at the Compound to do the same and pull back. 

At 10:34. Martin advised Deputy Lynch that someone else in the Compound wanted 
to speak to Lynch. At 10:3S Koresh called Lynch. Lynch was then in contact with Martin 
on one telephone line, David Koresh on another. and ATF by radio, as he attempted to 
arrange a cease-fire. The negotiations were unproductive. stymied by the unwieldy 
communications and confusion in the Compound. 

In the undercover house. Cavanaugh evenlually decided that the sheriffs department 
was not making sufficient progress toward achieving a tease-fire. but he did not have the 
telephone number for any phone in the Compound. He yelled across to the agents in the 

neighboring house. who yelled back that the number was on the refrigerator. Cavanaugh 
found the number and dialed the Compound. The phone rang repeatedly but no one 

answered. Cavanaugh radioed to the agents on the Compound grounds to yell into the 
Compound for someone to answer the phone. Then. Branch Davidian Steve Schneider 
answered the telephone. Cavanaugh identified himself and told Schneider that he wanted to 
discuS!! the situation. Through the telephone Cavanaugh could hear yelling. screaming and 
crying in the Compound. Intermittent gunfire between agents and those in the Compound 
punctuated the tense standoff. Schneider was frantic and hostile. It took Cavanaugh several 
minutes to calm him. When Cavanaugh began to discuss arranging a cease-fire. Schneider 
was receptive because individuals in the Compound had also been wounded. But even aner 
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Schneider and Cavanaugh had agreed to call a cease-fire, it took several minutes to achieve 

one. Sctmeider for his part had to walk throughout the Compound to tell peorle inside to 

slop shooting. Cavanaugh, who had no direct radio link to each agent, had to advise the 
team leaders of the cease-fire and the team leaders in turn had to communicate with their 

agents. The cease-fire was negotiated for a period of time before the shooting finally 

stopped. 

The cease-fire agrmnent did not address how the agents would leave. Cavanaugh 

told Schneider that A TF wanted to retrieve il~ dead and wounded agenl~. Schneider 
demanded that the agents withdraw unconditionally. Cavanaugh insisted that the agents 

would• leave only if they could retrieve their wounded and dead. Schneider who remained 

excitable and irrational insisted that the agents leave immediately. Cavanaugh assured 

Schneider that the agents would retreat. but vowed not without their fallen comrades. 
Retrieval of King, who had fallen in the rear courtyard, was a particularly diffi"dt point of 

negotiation. Initially, Schneider would not allow agents to go to the courtyard for King. 
Cavanaugh was able to discuss with Schneider King's precise location. even arranging for 

Schneider to have someone in the Compound look in the Courtyard to verify that an agent 

wa.o; there. Eventually, Schneider agreed to let agents retrieve King. 

Cavanaugh in,structed the agents to raise their hands. not to make any sudden 

movements and begin leaving the grounds. At approximately II :34, SAC Mastin 
approached Agents Griffin, .Bonaventure and Chisolm to assist them in retrieving King from 

the rear courtyard. The four of them proceeded slowly, with their hands rai~. around the 

east wall of the Compound to reach the rear courtyard. When they reached the courtyard 
area. they began searching for King. Suddenly, one of the Branch Davidians aimed a rifle at 

Griffin and yelled racial slurs at her. Griffin decided that if she was going to be shot. she 

would rather it be while attempting to assist one of her fellow agents. She turned and 

walked toward King. The cult member did not shoot. 

King was too seriously injured to be c."m'ied without a stretcher; so the agents rlaced 

him em a ladder. "fhey brought him out to the front of the Compound and put him in an 

ambulance that Special Agents Aguilera and l>unagan had driven to the Comround with 

Special Agenl~ Rodriguez and Salas riding in the back to provide assistance: The AMT 

driver wa5 not rre5ent hecause ATF could not guarantee his safely. 

ny this time, most of the agents able to walk had gathered near a large bus to the 

right of the Compound. At II :46 Cavanaugh was able to persuade Schneider to allow A TF 

106 

to retrieve the remaining dead and wounded agents. ~ cease-fire len the agents at a 

significant tactical disadvantage. The agents were not covered, while the cult members were 
shielded inside the Compound's main building with vantage points on floors above the 
ground. While many agents were almost out of ammunition, the Branch Davidians were 
well supplied, which became clear when the Compound was searched aRer the April 19 
fire. Under the threat of Branch Davidian gunfire the agents withdrew, some with holstered 

weapons. some with their shields raised, some with their hands in the air, and some with 

their backs to the Compound. The dead agents and those unable to ~k were placed in any 

available ~chicle: the ambulance; a pickup truck that had been parked in front of the 
undercover house; and a K WTX reporter's Ford Bronco. The six agents in the undercover 

house, rearranged the furniture into a defensive configuration and the forward observers 

monitored the retreat. prepared to return lire if necessary. The agents stayed in the 
undercover house until later that anernoon, when they received support from the Texas 

Department of Public Safety SWAT team who took positions at the nearby roadblock. At 

roughly the same time, ATF agents who had taken positions in a building near the 
undercover house were also able to withdraw safely. During the ceasefire, some agents bad 
moved from the hay barn closer to the Compound. From this relatively safe, high ground. 

they had an excellent view of the Compound. But soon they were ordered back to the hay 
bam. where they had no such vantage point. 

Because no one had designated a rallying point at which agents would take 

defensive positions or had ordered a sequential withdrawal that might have penniHed some 

agents to cover the movements of others. the retreat continued until the agents reached the 
roadblock at the intersection of Double E Road and FM 2491. There. arrangements were 
made for bus transrortation. first to a nearby social club, the Pep Club, and then back to the 

staging area. It was approximately 1 :00 when the withdrawal negotiations were completed. 

Once the agents had len the Compound grounds. Cavanaugh agreed with Schneider that no 

agents would come on the property and no one inside would attempt to leave. Cavanaugh 

told Schneider that he would call again at 2:00 p.m. Cavanaugh then arranged for the 
resident-; of the neighboring house to he taken to a hotel, and he went to the command post. 
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Part One 
Section Five: Post-raid Events 

Aftermath of the Shoot-Out on February 211 

Once Cavanaugh and Schneider had negotiated the cease-fire, A TF was confronted 
with a number of demanding and urgent tasks. First. and foremost, A TF needed to give 
prompt medical aHention to the agents who had been wounded in the gunfight Second. as 
described in the preceding section. A TF agents needed to withdraw safely from their 
vulnerable po!litlons uound the Coh1pound. 'llllrd. A tF had to establish and maintain a 
secure perimeter around the Compound to prevent the e1C8pe of an)' adult cull 
members-all of whom were 5\ISpeCts in the murder of four A tF agents and the aHempted 
murder of federal agents-and to prevent cult members oulside the Compound from 
rendering assistance. Fourth. residents of the Compound who had not resisted, especially the 
children. needed to be evacuated. Finally, A TF had to provide the public with a prompt and 
accurate outline of the events at the Compound. while making clear to both the general 
public and those inside the Compound that A TF was in control of a difficult and 
challenging situation. 

Events in the aftennath of the cease-fire demonstrated that A TF lacked the planning. 
training. and re.o;ources to accomplish all of these tasks satisfactorily. Nonetheless. through 
the courage and tenacity of its agents and local law enforcement personnel. A TF managed 
to make substantial progress toward achieving several critical post-raid objectives. 

The Evacuation of Wnanded Agents 

Before the raid on the Branch Davidian Compound, planners amnged for a private 
ambulance to stand by at a roadblock near the Compound during the operation and for a 
CareFiite helicopter to be available at the command post. which was five minutes• Dying 
time away from the Compound, for medical evacuations. Soon after the operation began. it 
became clear that these resources were not enough to help all of the wounded agents. Evea 
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before the shooting was O\tcr, An: agents called for more ambulances and an additional 

Careflite helicopter. The additional evacuation \'chicles soon reached ~e roadblock where 

the retreating agents had gathered. First, thrre additional ambulances and an additional 

Careflite helicopter anived. During the next fiReen minutes, emergency medical care was 
administered to the A TF agents most seriously wounded. Those who needed immediate 

additional attention were then taken by either ambulance or helicopter to one of the two 

ho!lpitals in Waco equipped to treat persons with gunshot wounds. Oy 12:25 p.m., the 

helicopters were airborne, and by 12:35, they had landed at Providence Hospital in Waco. 

ARer one or the ho!~pitals received death threats against the wo1Dlded agents. A TF sent 

agents to the Providence and Hillcrest hospitals to provide security for the wounded agents 

and to ohtain accurate infonnation about the extent of A TF lol!seS. 

The Mflfi• •nd the Shoot-Oat 

Tensions ran high. betWeen ATF and the media during the sboot.:.out and cease-fire. 

Many agents were angry with media personnel who had been in the midst of the shoot-out, 

di~tfng agents while they were under fire and whom agents had almost shot accidentally. 

fearing they were cult members. Whett the tease-fire was established, the five Triburrt­
,trald rerorters who had been rinned in the ditch on Double E Road retreated quitltly 

toward FM 2491. An ambulance driver, concerned that three of the media representatives 

might be Oranch Davidinns. ducked behind his ambulance and pointed the suspects out to 

an A TF agent. 

Multony, who had filmed portions of the shoot-out from the front of the Compound. 

walked along the Compound driveway aner the cca.o;e-fire and filmed the agents ao; they 

walked to the roadblock. Once he reached the roadblock at FM 2491, ATF agents and local 

law enforcement authorities verbally and phy!rically assaulted Mullony as he filmed the 

agents' dead colleagues lying on the ground. Witherspoon, who had spent the shoot-out 

huddled in the ditch. was scolded hy a sheritrs department employee for being at the 

scene. 

f· t ne FaUare lo Maintain the Pmmetrr 

~ During the course or the aRmmon. A TF withdrew from its positions. and m;ide from 

the roadblocks it maintained, relinquished much or its control over the perimeter of the 

Compound. At one of these roadblocks. an alert A TF agent and local law enforcement 

officer prevented cult member Donald Bunds from returning to the Compound within an 
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hour aner the firelight. Because Bunds was driving a car with an expired registration. he 
was arrested and taken to Mclennan County jail. 

The failure to maintain the perimeter other than the roadblocks was due in part to a 
communication failure. ARer learning that Koresh had thmltened to use women and 

children as shields in order to bring wounded cult members to the hospital, Hartnett ordered 

that Koresh be pennitted to leave the Compound if he made good on this threat. In Waco. 

however. this order was either received erroneously or transfonned by command post 

supervisors as a directive to abandon perimeter positions and to permit Koresh and his 

followers to leave. Numerous agents in the field, receiving these instructions. were gmttly 

demoralized because these instructions would permit people who had murdered other agents 

to escape. 

The withdrawal of the agents from the hay bam, combined with A TF's failure to 

guard the rear of the ba!n from attack by cult members outside the Compound. resulted in a 

sequence of events that almost produced additional A TF casuahies. While most of the 

agents had been deployed to execute the warrants at the Compound. a smaller group was 
sent to execute a search warrant at the Mag bag. The plan called for the group to arrive at 
the Mag Bag shortly aner tht CompoWld had been secuttd. lfo\W\fa", while en route to the 
Mag bag, the group was told of the firelight and ordered to return to the cornmand post. 

This leO the Mag Bag unsecured, even though Aguilera's investigation had revealed regular 

co":lmunication between cult members in the Mag Bag and those in the Compoimd. Shortly 

thereaOer. thrre armed cult members who had been inside the Mag Bag drove to a house 
near the Compound and ':Wiked from there toward the rear of the Compound. . 

Meanwhile, during the aRemoon. one or the agents stationed near the hay bam 

spotted a Branch Davidian moving away from the Compound toward an adjacent property •. 
Because the agents had been instructed to avoid confrontations and to permit persons who 
did not pose an immediate threat to leave the Compound, the agents allowed him to leave. 

Shortly thereaRer, agents withdrawing from positions around t~ hay barn. led by ASAC 

Darrell Dyer, encountered in the woods the three Branch Oavidians who had len the Mag 
Bag. When the agents identified themselves as federal agents. the cult members opened fire. 

ARer a prolonged exchange of gunfire, one of the three cult members sunendered. He was 
carrying a .22-caliber weapon and 100 rounds or amm1Dlition. A second cult member. 

Michael Dean Schroeder, was killed by the agents; he had a loaded Glock 9mm 

semiautomatic pistol and two amm1Dlition magazines-one empty and one full. The third 

Branch Davidian. Woodrow Kendrick, nc:aped. but was captured later. 
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t When ASAC Oyer first saw the branch Oavidi~ In the woods, he informed the 

command post that he and the other agents were in contact with suspect~ cult members. 

. By dtat time. a National Guard .Annored Personnel Carrier (APC) had arrived at ihe 

forward command post. that A TF had established near one of dte roadblocks after the 
eea.~-1ire. Sarabyn asked the National Ouard commander to send the APC to dte rear of the 

Compound to support Dyer and his fellow agents. Cavanaugh. however. who was sti11 

engaged in negotiations with dte Branch Oavidians. feared dtat the appearance of an APC 

near the Compound might disrupt negotiations. In addition. the supervisors were concerned 

that the APC could be pierced by long-range .SO-caliber fire. As a result. the APC wao; k~pt 
near the forward command post for the duration of the conflict. The agents made their way 

back to the roadhlock where they were taken by car to the command po~t. Throughout this 

exchange of gunfire in the woods, Cavanaugh continued his negotiations with Koresh and 

odter cult memher5. 

Widt the withdrawal of dtese agents. A TF temporarily stopped efforts to preveni cult 

members from leaving the Compound. To the limited extent the perimeter around the 

Compound was controlled. that was accomplisbed principally through dte effth'ts of local 

law enforcement rersonnel and SWAT teams. including the Austin Police Department. 

Texas Department of Pdblic Safety. Waco Polite Department. Killeen Pollee Department. 

McLennan County Sherifrs Oeparunento and the U.S. Marshals Service. These officers 

refused to follow ATF directives to abandon the perimeter that would have allowed cult 

members to leave the Compound. However. local taw enforcement were able to control 

only the mads to the Compound; other routes went unguarded. Colonel Charlie:A­

Beckwith, U.S.A .• Ret .• on assignment for Soldl~r of Fortun~ magazine, claims that be 

managed to advance on foot to w.ithin less than a mile of the Compound without being 

challenged. 

A ~e Develnps •nd A TF Obt•ln!l Aubt•nce from the FBI 

Chan~ at tM Cnmmmrd Pn." 

Aft" the shoot-out, the situation at the command po!!l became chaotic. Nonetbete~ 
throughout the afternoon. individual agents identified urgent tao;ks both at the command 

post and elsew~ and completed them. Cavanaugh negotiated with the Compound; Dyer 

provided support to agents at the rear of the Compound; Robert White, an a.o;si!!lant SRT 

leader (Dallas). began organizing agents to establish a renrneter; Phillip l.ewis regularly 

N updated the National Command Center in Washington. D.C .. and various agents handled 
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tasks related to the wounded, including pro~iding security, eontacting relati~ and insurfna 

all received PfOP" medical attention. Widt no one coordinating these diverse individual 

efforts. however, the logistical situation in Waco deteriorated rapidly. Many ATF agents. 

after returning from dte shoot-out at the Compound. milled around the command post 
during the late afternoon and evening hours. awaiting ordm. Othm were told by 

supervisors not to return until early dte next morning. In contrast, many of the agents who 

stood guard at the roadhlocks and provided security at the hospitals for the wounded agents 

remained at their rosts for lengthy shifts, some exceeding 24 hours. Many of the agents in 

the field were not adequately supplied with food. wann clothing. and other necessities. 

Initial Rtlitf 

Based on conversations widt agents at the command post. A TF management at the 

National Command Center determined that additional SRTs should be brought to Waco 

immediately to provide relief. Widtin a few hours of the firelight. three additional SRTs 

from Miami. St. Louis. and Detroit were requested by Washington A TF officials to report 

to Waco. They arrived over dte course of the next 24 hours and. after beiltg briefed by the 
tactical eommanders. were rapidly rressed into ~ice around the Compound. They 
relieved their fellow ATF agents as well as dtose local law enforcement persoMel who had 
stood vigilant lluough the night 

Th~ Dtdsion to Bring In t1r~ FBI HilT 

Shortly after the shoot-out. Chojnacki spoke ~tit Hartnett. who was in Washington. 

D.C .• and recommended that the FBI Hostage Rescue Team (HRT). which had experience 

with both prolonged standoffs and hostage negotiations. be brought to Waco to handle what 
had bttome a siege situation. At roughly the same time. FBI Director William Ses5ions 

learned of the shoot-out. contacted A TF Director Stephen Higgins and offered his 

condo1enc6 and his agency's assistance. After Hartnett arrived at the National CmnmancJ 

Center and was fully briefed •. he determined that the FBIIIRT should be sent to Waco. 

Soon after the cea.o;e-fire. Hartnett contacted Douglas Gow. FBI Associate Deputy 
Director of Investigations. and fonnally requested FBI assistance. Gow. in tum. contacted 

FBI SAC Jeffrey Jamar (San Antonio) and briefed him on the situation. At roughly the 

same time. FBI Special Agent James Fossum (Waco) was infonned of the crisis by both 

AUSA Phiniry and another local FBI agent After speaking with Jamar. Fossum drove to 
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the ATF command f!OSI. Shortly aner he arrived, Chojnacki told him. the ATF would 
~lcome whatever B.'lsistanc:e the FBI could provide. 

Meanwhile, the Office of the Mistant Secretary for Enforcement at the Treasury 
Department, particularly Ronald Noble, had contacts with both high-ranking FBI officials 
and A TF leadttship. Noble, who had been informed of the firelight and the losses incurred 
by ATF while en route by train from Washington, D.C. to New York. sought advice and 
assistance from FBI Assistant Director larry Potts and Deputy Director Floyd Clark. 1' 

Shortly after Hartnett requested the IIRT, Noble and Clark discussed the possibility of 
dispatching the IIRT to Waco in one of their conversations. Clark informed him that a 
request for the IIRT had already been made by ATF and that the IIRT wa.o; on its way to 
the Compound to evaluate the situation. 

Jeffrey Jamar (San Antonio), as the SAC or the affected district, wa!c gi··-n 
command or the FBI operttlott Jle arrived In Waco at about 5:30 p.nt. and tngelhet wtth 
Fo5.'nllll and seveml other local FBI agents, immediately began to establish 8 comtnand post 
and ~ the ~tdalion. The balance of the tiRT members began arriving on March I. 

After further discussions with FBI, ATF and Treasury officia,s, Noble spoke with 
ATF Director lliggins and ADLE Hartnett early March I. Noble advised them that if the 
FOI determined that the HRT was needed for the long term, the FBI should have 
operational command to resolve the standoff. There were several reasons for this advice. 
First, the FBI HRT traditionally has control over operations in which it participates, and 
A TF was not in a position to assert such control. Second, the FBI was in 8 better position 
to stabilize the situation than ATF. The ATF had _already absorbed heavy lo!ISCS and if 
further hostilities occurred might he accused of seeking revenge. Noble also wanted to 
preclude any turf battles that might arise if the effort were jointly managed. At the FBI. 
Potts and Clark. as well as Gerson from Justice. agreed that were the IIRT fully deployed. 

its leaders must have command and control of the operation. 

" Due to the Wmld Trade Center bombin&o Putts, C1mt, and Ading Attorney General StlllD1 (im(Jn were 
• the mt ~ center in Wadlington, D.C .. on the day or the raid. 
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llartntll and Cnnroy Arrlvt at the CommanJ l'o.fl 

Hartnett, who had arrived in the National Command Center shortly after noon CEST) 
on the day of the raid, ordered Dan Conroy to leave immediately for Waco. Hartnett 
remained at the National Command Center until Director lliggins anived at roughly 3:00 
p.m. After Hartnett had briefed him, Higgins directed Hartnett to proceed to Waco. 

Hartnett, accompanied by several members of the FBI JIRT advance team, including Dick 
Rogers, the HRT supervisor, tmveled to Waco on an FBI airplane. 

At approximately 6:30 p.m., Oyer returned to the command post and informed 
Assistant U.S. Attorney Johnston and the supervisors about the shoot-out near the hay bam. 
By that time, after hours of negotiation with cult members. Cavanaugh had managed to 

reach an agreement with Koresh who allowed the release of several children in exchange 
for A TF 8ITIU1ging to have a particular passage of scripture broadcast repeatedly on a local 
radio station. Cavanaugh was assisted by two negotiators fiom the Texas Depar1ment of 
Public Safety. Cavanaugh continued to play a leading role in these negotiations for several 
days. although the FBI toolc charge of them during the afternoon of March I. 

When Oyer returned, Cavanaugh directed him to assemble a RfOup of agents to 
receive the children that would soon be released from the Compound. Dyer, Rodriguez and 
several others went to the Compound and received six children over the course of the 
evening. The children were immediately placed in the custody of the Texas Department of 
Protective and Regulatory Services. 

Conroy arrived in Waco at approximately 8:30 p.m. and found the command post 

still in a state of disarray. Several of the commanding officers were trying to restore order 
and were striving to deal with the most pressing tasks. Cavanaugh was continuing to 
negotiate with the cult members; Sarabyn was coordinating the recovery of the children 

through contacts with Oyer and others, and Royster was trying to handle the large influx of 
ATF agents and the state and local law enforcement officers who were volunteering for 
service. Royster was also seeking night-vision equipment. lenses, Light Armored Vehicles. 
and Bmdley Fighting Vehicles from the National Guard. Other agents were trying to deal 
with the media. In fact. the raid became an international story within hours after the 
shooting ended. According to the Trlbu~-H~ralcl, by mid-afternoon the day of the mid, 60 
newspaper reporter.; and camera crews from at lea.~ 17 television stations and the Cable 
News Network had deluged the police barricades near the Compound. More than SO 
repOrters attended the A TF press conferenC:e at the Waco Convention Center Sunday 
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afternoon where SAC Royster tead a statement from Director Higgins. A similar crowd 
aHended Sharon Wheeler's short briefing and announcement that a press conference would 
be held at I 0:30 the following morning. Despite A TF and FBI aHempts to ·provide daily 
news briefings, the media complained that they were not geHing enough information. 
Neither AlF, the local media, nor the town of Waco was prepared for the intense media 
co~e following the raid. 

A few houn later, when lfartneH arrived at the command post at about II :00 p.m .• 
he found over I 00 local law enforcement ptr!!Onnel and A TF agents, many still wearing 
bloodstained clothes from the raid. After Conroy briefed him, HartneH tool control nf the 
operation, requiring the original operation commanders to report directly to him and 
Conroy. lie ~hen cleared the main area or all non-A TF people and told mo~ of the A TF 
agents to rqmrt bacl: the next morning. 

~ . Together with Conroy and Chojnacki, HartneH established a new A TF command 
m1cture. Ivan Kallster, Program Manager for Ttk:tltal lttsponst Branth, WSshinRfon, D.C .• 

. and Saribyn were made responsible for establishing the SR.T peoJJie on the perimeter of the 
~ Compound and for JttOviding security for the hospitalized agents. Cavanaugh and the FBI 
, were to c:otiduct the negotiations with the Cornpound. Royster was given m;ponslbility for 

die •overall criminal investigation of Koresh and the other cult member!. Once the Texas 

t'· Rangers opened a formal homicide investigation. he became the liaison with the Texas 
f• Rangm. David Troy, Chief, Intelligence Division. Washington, D.C.; Dave Benton, Chie( 
~- Planning and Analysis Division, Washington, D.C .• and Bill Wood, SAC. Cleveland 
~ Divi!ion. were the shooting review team, charged with interviewing all participants in the 
~ shoot-out. RAC rhillip t.ewis, San Antonio, and l'rogram Manager, Firearms llivi!lion. 
~ Dick Curd. Washington. D.C.. were put in charge of managing all logi~ics, including 
l' lodging and vehicles. A TF Public Information Officers Wheeler and rerot were told to 
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continue functioning a.~ the public information officers. 

These a~ents reported to Conroy and llartnett until the FB1 HRT took control of 
G.eir rapective asrects of the operation. Many supervi~ry and field agents believed the 
llutnctt and Conroy takeover exacerbated the problem of poor communication hctween the 
operatjon·s leadership and the field agents. In addition. because Hartnett and Conroy oRen 
met privately. most agent~ including the raid leaden. felt they were in8J'l'Topriately being 

denied access to the decisionmaking proc~ 
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.HartneH instructed the A TF agents to talte control of the roadblocks by rnidnight and 
to establish a full perimeter around the Compound at dawn. By early morning on March 1. 
with the assistanc:e of both local law enforcement and the relieving SRTs. A TF had 
resumed its watch on most of the roads leading into and out of the Compound. From thett 
posts, law enforcement officials could observe much of the Compound. In the days 
immediately following the raid. aside from the person seen near the hay bam escaping ftom 
the Compound, law enforcement· officials did not ~ any other cult members leave the 
Compound. 

Starting soon after the shooting ended A TF also attempted to provide support and 
counseling for the raid participants. Members of A TF peer SUJJport groups. which provide 
confidential support for agents who have experienced traumatic incidents, met with 
numerous raid participants. These support groups consist or aaents who have been through 
earlier traumatic incidents and who are trained to provide peer support. In addition. 
l'rofessional counseling from experts in handlihll .,.rticipants in violebt incider.ts was 
available for those agents who elected to avail themsel~ of those 8er'lices. Although many 
agents did u.~ those services. other agents who could have beneliHed ftotn such services 
chose not to. Some ot those who did not seek counseling apparently feared that if they did. 
they would be stigrnatiied as weak or troubled. Numerous agents also provided support and 
care for their hospitalized cOlleagues. 

At approximately 10:00 a.m. on March 1, Hartnen and Jamar conducted a meeting 
with those A TF agents who were not posted around the Compound. This was the first post­
raid meeting aHended by most of the ATF agents who had participated in the raid. Hartnett 
announced that the FBI HRT was going to take over the operation because of its special 
expertise in ho~age and siege negotiations. Hartnett expressed his concern that fmther A TF 
involvement in violence at the Compound might lead to accusations that A TF was seeking 
revenge. The agents were angered by HartneH's ~marks. lie did not comment upon the 
four agent fatalities or the bravery exhibited the day of the raid. The agents resented the 
implication that they were not capable of handling the current situation. Next, HartneH 
introduced Jamar who also failed to mention the slain agents and the valiant actions of A TF 
agents. Moreover, &.'1 Jamar explained the rationale for the FBI takeover, the agents felt he 
overemphasittd FRI capabilities and, by inference, ATF shortcomings. Many of the agents, 
including several of A TF's top management team. wete disappointed and angered by 
Jamar's remarks. 
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the nell day. March 2. the liRT tnoft cantrot of the inner rerlmetet from ATF 
agents. who by then had supplanted local law enforcement officials. In tum. the A TF agent 
took the positions on the outer perimeter previously held by local law enforcernenL Many 
ATF agents re~ted the way some of the IIRT agents acted when taking over the 
perimeter. and they were especiatly troubled by what they perceived as the FBI"s lack of 

interest in debriefing them. Although a few verbal exchanges took place between certain 
agents. the transition between A TF commanders and HRT supervisors was reasonably 

smooth. with ATF briefing the IIRT leaden about Koresh and the situation at the 

Compound. A few days aner the takeover. llartneH sent the Daltas. Houston. and New 
Orleans A TF agents home. The remaining A TF agents a.~ed positions in an outer 

perimeter outside the ltRT and provided support for the operation. Transfer to the FBI of 

control of the inner perimeter effectively ended ATF"s authority over and responsibility foe 

the standoff. 
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J•art Two 

Section Seven: ATF l'ost-raid Dissemination of Misleading Information 

About the Raid and the Raid Pliln 

h'11owing a tragedy of this magnitude, it was inevitable that the law enforcement 
cmmnunity, the Eltt."Cutivc Uranch. Congress and concerned private citi7.cns would demand 

om at."CnuntinJ; nf these events. 

In the wake of the tragedy on February 28, the raid commanders. who made the 

decision In rruceed with the mid desrite the clear evidence that Koresh had been 

lttrewarncd. and their superiors in the ATF hierarchy endeavored to answer the call for 

cxrlanations. Rut critical asrects of the information that they rrovided-to superiors. to 
investigators. and to the public-were misleading or plain wrong. It was not that they 

lacked access to the relevant facts. Rather, raid commanders Chojnacki and Sarabyn appear 
tu have engaged in a concerted effort to conceal their errors in judgment. And A TF's 

ntanagement. rer1mrs out of a misrlaced desire to protect the agency from criticism, offered 

accuunts based un Omjnacki and Sarnbyn's statements. disregarding clear evidence that 
those statemcnt5 were false. 

ATF Managmtent•s Misleading Post-nid Statements 

1n the aftermath of the Waco raid, rerhaps the most frequently asked questions were: 

llad Kuresh been tipred ofT that A TF was coming? And, if Koresh indeed was forewarned. 
did All: commanders know this before they launched the raid? Certainly the news media 

rerrescntativcs pouring into Waco sought answers fur these questions from official ancl 
unoflicial A"ll: spokcsreoplc. The answers would also be significant for thu5C looking 

toward a criminal rrnsecutitm uf Kuresh and his fo11owers. since evidence that the 

('mnrnund's residents had deliberately rlanned an ambush afler getting tipped ofT would 

blunt any claims that they had merely acted in self-defense against unknown assailants. And 
ATI:'s leadershir 51n1gl•t an!'wcrs, that they might rcspmd to media and ufficial inquiries. 
and that thc:y l."nuld wnrk In pc\·ent future tragedies. 
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In fact. that representatives of both the Texas Rangers and the local United State! 

AHorney's Office asked Hartnett. Conroy and Troy to refrain from commenting in speelnc 
tenns about the loss of the element of surprise because of concern about how such 
statements might affect ongoing investigations and likely future prosecutions. Similar 

requests came from the Treasury Department. Over time. as ATF kept misch:uacterizing the 
raid commanders' knowledge. the~ requests were sharpened and put more forcefully-and 

indeed, by early April, particularly with respect to Treasury's concerns, ripened into an 
effort to convince A TF to make no further statements on the subject. Still, since A TF 
officials obviously ignored these requesl'l. and spoke regularly about this subject to the 

media. the requests offer no justification for making statements known to be misleading or 

false.. 

In addition to misleading the public, the statements by Conroy, Hartnett and Troy 

also had the effect of wrongfully pointing the finger at Rodriguez as being responsible for 

the failed raid. If the raid commanders were not Informed that Koresh had been tipped, then 
the necessary corollary was that Rodriguet likely had failed to tell them what they needed 
to know. He was to blame. Moreover, despite the consistency of Rodriguez's recollection of' 
what happened immediately before the raid, persistent rumors circulated that he was 

changing his story. As Rodriguez appropriately protested: 

They're saying that ll've changed my story about what 1 saw in the compound 

and what 1 told raid commanders.) That's not true. Every time 1 told my story, 1 saicl 

it the same way-every time. The Rangers know that too. There's no reason for me 

to go and make up stories. 

•ATF Agent Says He Saw Disaster Loom: Dalla.t Morning News, May 13, 1993 at 8A. 

ATF's top managerS should have acted swinly to qua~ th()!;C rumors: they did nol 

Sarabyn and Chojnacki lied to their superiors and investigators about what 

Rodriguez had reported. Their consistent aHempts to rlace blame on a junior agent wete 

one or the most disturbing aspects or the conduct or senior A TF officials. The recollections 

of Sarabyn and Chojnacki have diverged considerably since the immediate anermath of the 
raid. Aner being confronted with the collective contrary recollections of dozens of line 

agents. Sarabyn finally admitted the accuracy or Rodriguez's account. In contrast. despite 
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When advised hy the Review that Chojnacki and Sarabyn had denied making any 

change!! except the handwritten marginal comments Chojnacki had affix~ to one of the 

already altered versions of the plan and Sarabyn's change of the raid dat~, Oyer seemed 
shocked. Obviously, a!l llyer reali7.rd, when taken together, Chojnacki's and Sa'rabyn's · 

denials amounted to a joint ac:cu~tion that Dyer had directed or made all of the other 

change!l. 

The Review credits Dyer's account' of eventS and believes that both Sarnhyn and 

Chojnacki fai$Ciy denied .,artici.,ating in the alteration of the original raid plan. The 

IL.;sessments arc reinforced hy Dyer's relative lack of knowledge about the facts that were 

dmngcd in the raid plan. Certain changes that were made went beyond l>ycr's knowledge 

of the raid plan and the factual ac;sumptions upon which it wac; built. Everything he knew 

came from r.omcone ei$C; he created nothing; he decided nothing. And. of course. ~ the 

only one of the three who wac; not intimately involved in planning the failed raid, he lacked 

mativation to lie about makins ~hanges to the plan. Sarabyn and Chojnacki's false 
statemenlc; with rettard to altering the raid plan document is consistent with their failbre to 

tell the tnllh about raid day e\fent~. And thtir readiness to blame Oyer Indirectly is iquatly 
ccm.c;istent with their efforts to do the !Wne tn Robert Rodrigue7. 
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Part Two 
Section Eight: National Guard Support 

lntrndudlnn 

During the investigation of the Branch Davidians and the subsequent raid on the 

Compound, A TF obtained assistance from the military, including the Texas National Guard. 

This support included the provision of training facilities and equipment. aerial 

reeonnaissanc:e missions. the u5e of helicopters during the raid, 8Jtd advice concerning 

ATF's medical and communications plans. In the wake of lhe raid's outcome. specific 
questions were raised about the rcpreset1tatlons made by A TF in Its effort to obtain the use 
of the helicopters which had been provided by the National Guard. This section responds to 

those questions. 

ATF's lnitl1l Contut with the MUIIII"J 

While investigating Koresh for violations of federal firearms taws in November 

1992, ATF believed it required military assistance. ATF. therefore, approached the U.~ 
military and Texas National Guard for support. In early December. at ATF's request. the 
Department of Defense liaison to A TF briefed A TF officials about military support 

available for the Branch Davidian operation. During this briefing, the Department of 

Defense representative told A TF officials that ATF could obtain military assistance without 

having to reimburse the Department of Defense if the investigation was related to narcotics 

enforcement, i.e. had a "drug nexus.• An ATF agent then met with officials of the Texas 

National Guard Counterdrug Support Program to determine \Wet assistance the Texas 

National Guard could provide. During the meeting. the Guard and individuals representins 
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the state of Texa.o; reiterated the fact that nonreimbursable military sup~rt could be made 

available In ATF if the ca.o;e had a drug nexu~ 11 · 

After these meetings, ATF officials investigated whether there was any drug activity 

at the Compound. The A TF case agent learned from an informant that parts of an illegal 

methamphetamine laboratory had been at the Compound when Knresh took control of the 

premises. and that the McLennan County Sheriff"s Department had planned to collect this 

equipment. The informant, however, did not know whether such parts were ever collected. 

Upon inquiring at the sheriff"s departmeht, the agent found no records indicating that these 

11arts had been collected by or turned over to the sheriff. raising the possibility that the 

illegal equipment might still ha\'e been at the Compound.. 

A TF acquired additional lnfonnatlon tltat suggested thtte was druR actMty at the 

Compound. An A TF agent who was acting in an undercover capacity during th~ 

inve!tigation reported that Koresh had told him that the Compound would ·be a great f'lac:e 

for a methamrhetamine laboratory beeause of Its location. Furthermore, information 

obtained from informants and a search of the criminal records of the Branch Oavidians 

revealed that· nne cult member living at the Compound had a prior conviction for possession 

of amphetamines and a controlled substance, and that 10 other individuals a.~iatcd with 

the Compound had Jlreviously been identified as having r.ome involvement in illegal 

narcotia activity. The drug involvement of the 10 individuals varied; some had been 
~ed for alleged drug violations while other.; had been investigated for su.o;pected drug 

activity. 

After ATF had gathered this information, ATF official!; informed representatives of 

the U.S. military and the Texas National Guard on numerous occasions abnut possible drug 

activity at the Compound. On February 4, 1993. ATF officials met with rerre!;tntatives of 

both group5 to discuss the Oranch Davidian operation. At this meeting. the military 

representatives were accurately informed of the results of ATF's investigation into the 

existence of a drug nexus. This briefing satisfied the representatives that a sufficient drug 

nexu.o; exi~ed to justify military a.o;sistance on a nonreimbursable hasis. 

" Under 10 \J.S.C. § 371 d seq. end 32 \J.S.C. § 112. the Setmary of Defense h autborimt to provide 
military SUJ!PC"' tn law enfCJRement egencies engaged in counterdrug operations. The Secmary of Defense is 
.uthorized to pay for the !ruJ1P011 pursuant lo Section t004 of P.L tOI-510, Section 10118 of P.L 102-l'm. 
lnCI Sectkln 1041 nf P.L 102-4114. 
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ATF't SpHint Requnts for National Guard Support 

On December 14 and 18, 1992, an ATF official wrote to the Texas National Guard 

Counterdrug Support Program requesting that the Guard take and interpret aerial 

reconnai!IWlce photographs of the Compotmd. The National Guard subsequently conducted 

a total of six flighl'l over the Compound and Mag Bag from January 6 through February 2S. 
1993. l>uring the flights, the Guard used infrared scanning devices. which identified "hot 

spots" -'-heat !murces-inside and outside the Compotmd. A Texas National Guard airman 

then provided A TF with an unofficial interpretation of the reconnaissance videotapes that 

suggested a hot spot inside the Compound was consistent with characteristics of a 

methamphetamine lab. ATF. however, never obtained an official interpretation of the 
videotapes. 

1n addition to the reconnai!Sinte nights, the texu National Guard supplied three 
helicopters and pilots for training exercises on February 27, and ror the raid the following 

day. Prior to February 27, ATF officials told representatives of the Guard that the 
helicopters would be used as an airborne command platform and to transport A TF 
personnel and evidence on the day of the raid.. During the training exercises, however, J\ TF 
officials informed the National Guard pilots that on the day of the raid, the helicopters were 

to anive at the rear of the Compound shortly berore the raid teams to draw the attention Clf 
the Branch Oavidians away from the agents arriving in the cattle trailers. On raid day. 

·however. the helicopter pilots encountered unexpected gunfire from the Compound as soon 

as their aircraft came within range. and they were forced to abort their mission." 

Analy!lit 

ATF did not mislead U.S. military or Texas Na~ional Guard officials in abtaining 

· their a.o;sistance on a nonreimbursable basis. A TF conducted a legitimate inquiry into 

whether a drug nexus existed in the investigation after military representatives told A TF 

officials about the possibility of nonreimbursable a.c;sistance. A TF officials were aware that 

they could have obtained military support for the operation even if no drugs were involved 

in their investigation. However, in the absence of a drug nexus, A TF was told by both the 

U.S. military and the National Guard that the assistance would be reimbursable. 

.. A 1F should have notified the National Guanl artier than February 27 lhll its pi1ol!l mig11t be ~ 
to dangeroM gunf~re. In any event. lhe helicoplen could not sene effectively a m eirbmne command 
platform while being used simultaneously •• diwenion on the diJ or the nid.. • 
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Once A TF gathered information about· a possible drug nexus at the Compound, it 

presented this information to the U.S. mi1itary and the Texas National Guard. 

Representatives of these groups evaluated the information and found that it was sufficient to 

warrant assistance on a nonreimbursable basis. Because there is no formal standard by 
which the military defines a drug nexus in a law enforcement investigation. a substantive 

review of this decision cannot be conducted. 

Nonetheless. the Review finds that the standards for nonreimbur!;.:tble military 

support raise questions about the appropriate scrutiny that should be given when 

considering the is.~e of a drug nexus. The lack of a formal standard hy which the military 

defines a drug nexus in a taw enforcement inve!>tigntion raised que!>tions rega~ing the 

nonreimbursable assistance provided to ATF. It \\I•Uid he appropriate therefore that federal 

law enforcement, the U.S. military and National f.:luard develop more rrecisely defined 

criteria fdr detennlnhtg when a drug nexus is JUITicient to justify nonreimbursable military 

assistance. 
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